
Joint Select Committee on Collective
Bargaining

Senator Hays, Co-Chair
Representative Van Zant, Co-Chair

Meeting Packet
Materials Submitted by:

Department of Management Services

Monday, February 18, 2013
11 :00 AM

Morris Hall (17 HOB)





n
~
CD.,
r-
~
l"'1'
CD.,



RICK SCOTT

G()V~mOr

DEPARThml\T OP MANAGP..'U!l\1'

SERVICES
February 13,2013

CRAIG J. NICHOLS

Agency Secretary

The Florida Legislature
Joint Select Committee on Collective Bargaining
218 House Office Building
402 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1300

Re: Impasse of Fiscal Year 2013-14 Collective Bargaining Negotiations between the State of Florida
and All Parties at Impasse

Dear Members:

Please find the enclosed materials in response to the Joint Select Committee on Collective Bargaining's
February 7, 2013, Notice of Public Hearing regarding the issues at impasse between the State of Florida and
all parties at impasse pursuant to sections 216.163 and 447.403, Florida Statutes (2012). These materials
include an overview of the collective bargaining units and state employee union membership; the state's
notice of impasse to the Florida Legislature; the state and union proposals currently at impasse for each
collective bargaining unit, the state's costing of union proposals; and the current status of negotiations.

Thank you for the opportunity to present this information to the Committee.

Respectfully submitted,

~~c?1~~~
Michael Mattimore
Chief Labor Negotiator

MM/psr
Enclosures

cc: Mike Hogan, Chairman, Public Employees Relations Commission
Ben Gibson, Assistant General Counsel, Executive Office of Governor Rick Scott
Renee Tondee, Policy Coordinator, Office of Policy and Budget
Craig Nichols, Secretary, Department of Management Services
Jason Dimitris, General Counsel, Department of Management Services
Sharon Larson, Director, Human Resource Management, Department of Management Services
Marlene Williams, Legislative Affairs Director, Department of Management Services

Office of the General Counsel
4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 160 ITallahassee, Florida 32399-0950 ITel' 850.487.1082 I Fax: 850.922.6312 I

www.dms.MyFlorida.com





January 4, 2013 

OVERVIEW OF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING UNITS 
 (Statistics for Composition of Unit and Dues-Paying Membership as of January 2013) 

 
 
American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) 
 
The Master Contract covers four bargaining units:  

 
Administrative and Clerical Unit - Includes approximately 14,000 Career Service employees 
whose work involves the keeping or examination of records and accounts or general office 
work.  (Dues-paying members – 376) All state agencies employ members of this unit. 
 
Operational Services Unit - Includes approximately 3,200 Career Service laborers and 
artisans, as well as technicians, mechanics, operators, and service workers.  (Dues-paying 
members – 97)  All state agencies except the Agency for Health Care Administration, the 
Parole Commission, the Public Service Commission, and the Departments of Legal Affairs, 
and Elder Affairs employ members of this unit. 
 
Human Services Unit - Includes approximately 7,500 Career Service employees involved in 
human or institutional services. (Dues-paying members – 476)  The Departments of 
Corrections, Children and Families, Economic Opportunity, Education, Health, Juvenile 
Justice, Military Affairs, Veterans’ Affairs, the Agency for Persons with Disabilities, and the 
School for the Deaf and Blind employ members of this unit. 
 
Professional Unit - Includes approximately 25,000 non-health care Career Service 
professional employees who are engaged in predominately intellectual work which requires 
discretion and judgment with advanced knowledge in a field of science or learning.  (Dues-
paying members – 737)  All state agencies employ members of this unit.  
 

 
Federation of Physicians and Dentists – SES Physicians Unit 
 

Includes approximately 300 physicians and senior physicians in the Selected Exempt Service. 
(Dues-paying members – 44)  The Agency for Persons with Disabilities, and the Departments 
of Corrections, Children and Families, Education, Health, and Juvenile Justice employ 
members of this unit. 
 

 
Federation of Physicians and Dentists – SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
 

Includes approximately 1,400 non-professional supervisory employees in the Selected 
Exempt Service.  (Dues-paying members – 34)  All state agencies except the Parole 
Commission employ members of this unit. 
 

 
 



January 4, 2013 

State Employees Attorneys Guild – SES Attorneys Unit 
 

Includes approximately 600 attorneys and senior attorneys in the Selected Exempt Service 
who are not supervisory, or designated confidential or managerial, and are required as a 
condition of employment to be members of the Florida Bar.  (Dues-paying members – 9)  All 
agencies except the Departments of Citrus, Legal Affairs, Veterans’ Affairs, and the School 
for the Deaf and Blind employ members of this unit. 
 
 

Florida Nurses Association – Professional Health Care Unit 
 

Includes approximately 4,000 professional Career Service employees engaged in direct 
health care activities.  (Dues-paying members – 503)  The Agency for Health Care 
Administration, the Agency for Persons with Disabilities, and the Departments of Business 
and Professional Regulation, Corrections, Children and Families, Elder Affairs, Financial 
Services, Health, Juvenile Justice, Veterans’ Affairs, and the School for the Deaf and Blind 
employ members of this unit. 
 
 

Florida State Fire Service Association – Fire Service Unit 
 

Includes approximately 570 Career Service uniformed firefighters whose primary duty is the 
prevention and extinguishing of fires, the protection of life and property, the enforcement of 
municipal, county, and state fire prevention codes, as well as the enforcement of any law 
pertaining to the prevention and control of fires, who is certified pursuant to section 633.35, 
Florida Statutes.  (Dues-paying members – 256)  The Agency for Health Care Administration 
and the Departments of Agriculture, Children and Families, Financial Services, and Military 
Affairs employ members of this unit. 

 
 
Police Benevolent Association – Law Enforcement Unit  
 

Includes approximately 1,100 Career Service sworn law enforcement officers, except those 
members of the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles.  (Dues-paying members 
– 410)  The Departments of Agriculture, Business and Professional Regulation, 
Environmental Protection, Financial Services, Law Enforcement, the School for the Deaf and 
Blind, and the Fish & Wildlife Conservation Commission employ members in this unit. 
 

 
Police Benevolent Association – Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
 

Includes approximately 1,600 Career Service sworn law enforcement officers of the 
Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles.  (Dues-paying members – 550) 

 
 
 



January 4, 2013 

Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 – Security Services Unit 
 

Includes approximately 16,800 Career Service employees whose primary duties involve the 
direct care, custody, and control of persons involuntarily confined in state institutions; or the 
supervised custody, surveillance and control of assigned probationers and parolees. 
The Department of Corrections, the Department of Children and Families, and the Agency 
for Persons with Disabilities employ members of this bargaining unit. (Dues-paying members 
– 3,466) 
 

 
Police Benevolent Association – Special Agent Unit 
 

Includes approximately 250 Career Service professional, sworn law enforcement 
investigators in the Florida Department of Law Enforcement.  (Dues-paying members – 171) 
 



V'C
I"'t'tD
~n
l: iiiI"'t'..,o DI
~~
_0
3 ::J

"C 0
DI -too
III
III
tD



RICK SC01T

Gowmor

DEPARlMl!t\'T OF MANAGI!.'tfl\T

SERVICES
February 5, 2013

CRAIG]. NICHOLS

Agency Secret3ry

The Honorable Will Weatherford, Speaker
Florida House of Representatives
420, The Capitol
402 South Momoe Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1300

The Honorable Don Gaetz, President
The Florida Senate
409, The Capitol
404 South Momoe Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1100

Re: Notification of Collective Bargaining Impasse

Dear Speaker Weatherford and President Gaetz:

There are thirteen certified collective bargaining units in the State Personnel System's workforce,
four of which are covered by a Master Contract between the State of Florida and the American
Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, Public Council 79 (AFSCME). The State of
Florida's collective bargaining team has been negotiating with representatives ofthese bargaining
units. The state has reached agreement and concluded negotiations with the Florida Nurses
Association, representing the Professional Health Care unit. Negotiations continue with the other
collective bargaining units.

In accordance with section 216.163(6), Florida Statutes, an impasse has occurred with the remaining
bargaining units, effective January 31, 2013. Accordingly, this letter is provided to notify the
Legislature that the attached issues are at impasse.

Please note that the entire contents of the attached articles are at impasse. The resolution of these
articles is not limited to those issues discussed by the parties in negotiation sessions to date.
Negotiations continue on these articles and it is possible that one or more may be resolved prior to
the end of the legislative session. We will keep you informed of any changes resulting from
continued negotiations.

Office of the General Counsel
4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 160 ITallahassee, Florida 32399-0950 ITel: 850.487.1082 I Fax: 850.922.6312 I

www.dms.MyFI<;>rida.com



The Honorable Will Weatherford, Speaker
The Honorable Don Gaetz, President
February 5, 2013
Page Two

In accordance with section 216.163(6), Florida Statutes, all unresolved articles as of this date are
respectfully submitted for impasse.

If you have questions or concerns, please contact me at 561-3503.

Sincerely,

Michael Mattimore
Chief Labor Negotiator

MM/psr

cc: Mike Hogan, Chairman, Public Employees Relations Commission
Ben Gibson, Assistant General Counsel, Executive Office of Governor Rick Scott
Renee Tondee, Policy Coordinator, Office ofPolicy and Budget
Craig Nichols, Secretary, Department of Management Services
Jason Dimitris, General Counsel, Department of Management Services
Sharon Larson, Director, Human Resource Management, Department ofManagement Services
Marlene Williams, Legislative Affairs Director, Department ofManagement Services
Collective Bargaining Unit Representatives



Florida State Fire Service Association - Fire Service Unit (Successor Agreement Negotiations)

The State of Florida and the Florida State Fire Service Association have not reached agreement on any
articles of the contract:

Article 2 - Gender Reference
Article 3 - Vacant
Article 4 - No Discrimination
Article 5 - Representation Rights
Article 6 - Grievance Procedure
Article 7 - Disciplinary Action
Article 8 - Workforce Reductions
Article 9 - Voluntary Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station and Promotions
Article 10 - Occupation Profiles/Rules Maintained !Documentation
Article 11 - Classification Review
Article 12 - Personnel Records
Article 13 - Health and Welfare
Article 14 - State Ve.hicles and Vessels
Article 15 - Probationary Status
Article 16 - Retirement (state proposes Vacant article)
Article 17 - Allowances and Reimbursements
Article 18 - Leaves of Absence
Article 19 - Outside Employment
Article 20 - Training and Education
Article 21 - Committees
Article 22 - Personal Property - Replacement and/or Reimbursement
Article 23 - Hours of Work and Overtime
Article 24 - On-Call Assignment, Call-Back and Residency
Article 25 - Wages
Article 26 - Vacant
Article 27 - Uniforms
Article 28 - Vacant
Article 29 - Vacant
Article 30 - Vacant
Article 31 - Management Rights
Article 32 - Entire Agreement
Article 33 - Savings Clause



American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees - Human Services, Professional,
Operational Services, and Administrative and Clerical Units (Successor Agreement Negotiations)

The State of Florida and the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees have not
reached agreement on the following articles that contain issues impacting terms and conditions of
employment:

Article 4 - No Discrimination
Article 6 - Grievance Procedure
Article 13 - Health and Safety
Article 18 - Leaves ofAbsence, Hours of Work, Disability Leave
Article 25 - Wages



Police Benevolent Association - Special Agent Unit (Successor Agreement Negotiations)

The State of Florida and the Police Benevolent Association have not reached agreement on the
following articles that contain issues impacting terms and conditions of employment:

Article 5 - Employee Representation and Association Activities
Article 6 - Grievance Procedure
Article 7 - Internal Investigations and Disciplinary Action
Article 8 - Workforce Reduction
Article 9 - Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station, Promotion
Article 14 - Performance Review
Article 15 - Seniority
Article 18 - Leave
Article 21 - Acting Ranks
Article 23 - Workday, Workweek and Overtime
Article 24 - On-Call Assignment, Call-Back and Court Appearances
Article 25 - Wages
Article 26 - Equipment and Service Awards
Article 27 - Insurance Benefits
Article 31 - Vacant (union proposes Retirement article)



Police Benevolent Association - Law Enforcement Unit (Successor Agreement Negotiations)

The State of Florida and the Police Benevolent Association have not reached agreement on the
following articles that contain issues impacting terms and conditions of employment:

Article 6 - Grievance Procedure
Article 7 - Internal Investigations
Article 8 - Workforce Reduction
Article 9 - Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station and Promotion
Article 10 - Disciplinary Action
Article 14 - Performance Review
Article 15 - Seniority
Article 16 - Employment Outside State Government
Article 18 - Hours of Work, Leave and Job-Connected Disability
Article 21 - Acting Ranks
Article 22 - Vacant
Article 24 - On-Call Assignment, Call-Back - Court Appearance
Article 25 - Wages
Article 26 - Uniforms and Accessories
Article 27 - Insurance Benefits
Article 31 - State Personnel System Rules



Police Benevolent Association - Florida Highway Patrol Unit (Successor Agreement Negotiations)

The State of Florida and the Police Benevolent Association have not reached agreement on the
following articles that contain issues impacting terms and conditions of employment:

Article 6 - Grievance Procedure
Article 7 - Internal Investigations
Article 8 - Workforce Reduction
Article 9 - Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station and Promotion
Article 10 - Disciplinary Action
Article 14 - Performance Review
Article 15 - Seniority
Article ]6 - Employment Outside State Government
Article 18 - Hours of Work, Leave, and Job-Connected Disability
Article 21 - Acting Ranks
Article 22 - Vacant
Article 24 - On-Call Assignment - Call-Back - Court Appearance
Article 25 - Wages
Article 26 - Uniforms and Accessories
Article 27 - Insurance Benefits
Article 31 - State Personnel System Rules



Teamsters Local Union No. 2011- Security Services Unit (Successor Agreement Negotiations)

The State ofFlorida and the Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 have not reached agreement on the
following articles that contain issues impacting terms and conditions of employment:

Article 3 - Vacant (union proposes Dues Deduction article)
Article 4 - No Discrimination (union proposes Workplace Behavior/No Discrimination article)
Article 5 - Union Activities and Employee Representation
Article 6 - Grievance Procedure
Article 7 - Discipline and Discharge
Article 9 - Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station
Article 10 - Promotions
Article 13 - Safety
Article 18 - Leaves of Absence
Article 23 - Hours of Work/Overtime
Article 25 - Wages
Article 26 - Uniform and Insignia
Article 27 - Insurance Benefits
Article 28 - Travel Expenses
Article 30 - Vacant (union proposes Mandatory Meetings article)
Article 32 - Entire Agreement



Federation of Physicians and Dentists - Selected Exempt Service Physicians Unit (Successor Agreement
Negotiations)

The State of Florida and the Federation of Physicians and Dentists have not reached agreement on any
articles of the contract:

Article 2 - Gender Reference
Article 3 - Vacant
Article 4 - No Discrimination
Article 5 - Employee Rights, Management, and Union Communications
Article 6 - Grievance Procedure
Article 7 - Employee Standards of Conduct and Performance
Article 8 - Termination Due To a Reduction in Force and Recall
Article 9 - Reassignment; Article 10 - Classification and Pay Plan
Article 10 - Classification and Pay Plan
Article 11 - Classification Review and Professional Practice Scope
Article 12 - Personnel Records
Article 13 - Safety
Article 14 - Replacement of Personal Property
Article 15 - Drug Testing
Article 16 - Leaves of Absence, Hours of Work
Article 17 - Training and Education
Article 18 - Wages
Article 19 - Insurance Benefits
Article 20 - Per Diem and Travel Expenses
Article 21 - Pay Plan and Classification of Wark
Article 22 - Vacant
Article 23 - Management Rights
Article 24 - Entire Agreement
Article 25 - Savings Clause



Federation of Physicians and Dentists - Selected Exempt Service Supervisory Non-Professional Unit
(Successor Agreement Negotiations)

The State of Florida and the Federation of Physicians and Dentists have not reached agreement on any
articles of the contract:

Article 2 - Gender Reference
Article 3 - Vacant
Article 4 - No Discrimination
Article 5 - Union Activities and Employee Representation
Article I) - Grievance Procedure
Article 7 - Employee Standards of Conduct
Article 8 - Employee Rights
Article 9 - Vacant
Article 10 - Career Opportunities
Article 11 - Classification and Pay Plan
Article 12 - Personnel File
Article 13 - Safety
Article 14 - Review and Performance Evaluations
Article 15 - Scope of Professional Responsibilities
Article 16 - Employment Outside State Government
Article 17 - Drug Testing
Article 18 - Hours of Work/Overtime & Leaves of Absence
Article 19 - Holidays
Article 20 - Training
Article 21 - Travel Expenses
Article 22 - Replacement of Personal Property
Article 23 - Insurance Benefits
Article 24 - Vacant
Article 25 - Wages
Article 26 - Printing of the Agreement
Article 27 - Vacant
Article 28 - Management Rights
Article 29 - Entire Agreement
Article 30 - Savings Clause



State Employees Attorneys Guild - Selected Exempt Service Attorneys Unit (Successor Agreement
Negotiations)

The State of Florida and the State Employees Attorneys Guild have not reached agreement on any
articles of the contract:

Article 2 - Gender Reference
Article 3 - Vacant
Article 4 - No Discrimination
Article 5 - Employee Rights, Management, and Union Communications
Article 6 - Grievance Procedure
Article 7 - Employee Standards of Conduct and Performance
Article 8 - Workforce Reduction
Article 9 - Reassignment
Article 10 - Classification and Pay Plan
Article 11 - Classification Review and Professional Practice Scope
Article 12 - Personnel Records
Article 13 - Safety
Article 14 - Replacement of Personal Property
Article 15 - Vacant
Article 16 - Hours of Work and Employee Leave
Article 17 - Training and Education
Article 18 - Wages
Article 19 - Insurance Benefits
Article 20 - Per Diem and Travel Expenses
Article 21 - Employment Outside of State Government
Article 22 - Vacant
Article 23 - Management Rights
Article 24 - Entire Agreement
Article 25 - Savings Clause





Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 2 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 2 
GENDER REFERENCE 

All references in this Agreement to employees of the male gender are used for 
convenience only and shall be construed to include both male and female employees. 
 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 3 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 3 
VACANT 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 4 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 4 
NO DISCRIMINATION 

SECTION 1 – Non-Discrimination Policy – State-Federal Law 
(A) The Sstate and the Association FSFSA shall not discriminate against any employee 

for any reason prohibited under Florida Statutes or any Ffederal Llaw. 
(B) The Association FSFSA shall have the right to consult on issues of discrimination or 

unlawful discrimination with the Step 1 Management Representative and/or his designee(s), up 
through the Step 2 Management Representative and/or his designee(s), to the Department of 
Management Services. 

(C) Any claim of discrimination or unlawful discrimination by an employee against the 
Sstate, its officials or representatives, except for grievances related to Association FSFSA 
membership, shall only be subject to the method of review prescribed by law or by rules and 
regulations having the force and effect of law. 

 
SECTION 2 – Non-Discrimination Policy – Association FSFSA Membership 

Neither the Sstate nor the Association FSFSA shall interfere with the right of employees 
covered by this Agreement to become or refrain from becoming members of the Association 
FSFSA, and neither the Sstate nor the Association FSFSA shall discriminate against any such 
employee because of membership or non-membership in any employee organization. 
 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 5 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 5 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 5 
REPRESENTATION RIGHTS 

SECTION 1 - Definitions 
(A) The term “employee” as used in this Agreement, shall mean an employee included in 

the bargaining unit or represented by the Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA). 
(B) The term "Grievance Representative," as used in this Agreement, shall mean a 

bargaining unit member officially designated by the President of the FSFSA to investigate 
grievances.  The state recognizes and agrees to deal with designated grievance representatives of 
the FSFSA on all matters relating to grievances. 
 
SECTION 2 – Designation of Employee Representatives 

(A) The President of the FSFSA shall furnish to the state and keep up-to-date a list of 
FSFSA Staff Representatives. The state will not recognize any person as a Staff Representative 
whose name does not appear on the list. 

(B) From employees in the bargaining unit, the FSFSA shall select a reasonable number 
of FSFSA Grievance Representatives. The FSFSA shall furnish the state with the name, official 
class title, name of employing agency, and specific work location of each employee who has 
been designated to act as a Grievance Representative. The state shall not recognize an employee 
as an authorized Grievance Representative until such information has been received from the 
FSFSA.  

(1) Upon request of an aggrieved employee, or upon filing of a grievance by the 
FSFSA as an employee organization, an FSFSA Grievance Representative may investigate the 
grievance and may assist in the grievance presentation, provided it is in his/her existing district.  
State level representatives may operate statewide; region level representatives may operate 
region wide. 

 
SECTION 3 – Access  

(A) The state agrees that accredited representatives of the FSFSA shall have access to the 
premises of the state which are available to the public. 

(B) If any area of the state's premises is restricted to the public, permission must be 
requested to enter such areas and such permission will not be unreasonably denied.  Such access 
shall be during the regular working hours of the employee and shall be to investigate an 
employee's grievance. 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 5 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

(C) Upon request and receipt of payment, the state shall provide accredited 
representatives information, documents, or other public records for the investigation of an 
employee’s grievance. 
 
SECTION 4 – Distribution of Literature 

FSFSA representatives may, during non-working hours or during any breaks, distribute 
employee organization literature.  The FSFSA agrees that nothing of a libelous, racist, sexist, 
obscene, or partisan political nature shall be so distributed. 

 
SECTION 5 – Use of State Facilities for Meetings 

The state agrees that recognized representatives of the FSFSA shall have access to the 
premises of the state which are available to the public for the purpose of conducting meetings, in 
compliance with Department of Management Services Rule 60H-6.007, F.A.C.   If any area of 
the state's premises is restricted to the public, permission must be requested to enter such areas 
and such permission will not be unreasonably denied.  

 
SECTION 6 – Bulletin Boards 

(A) Where requested in writing, the state agrees to furnish in state-controlled facilities to 
which employees are assigned, wall space not to exceed 24x36” for FSFSA-purchased bulletin 
boards of an equal size.  Such bulletin boards will be placed at a state facility in an area normally 
accessible to, and frequented by, covered employees. Once a location has been established, it 
shall not be moved without notice.   

(B) The FSFSA bulletin boards shall be used only for the following notices: 
(1) Recreation and social affairs of FSFSA, 
(2) FSFSA meetings, 
(3) FSFSA elections, 
(4) Reports of FSFSA committees, 
(5) FSFSA benefit programs, 
(6) Current FSFSA contract, 
(7) Training and educational opportunities, and 
(8) Other materials pertaining to the welfare of FSFSA members with 

agency approval and such approval shall not be unreasonably denied. 
(9) Decisions reached through consultation meetings, as approved by the 

Department of Management Services.  



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 5 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

(10) Notices of wage increases for covered employees. 
(C) Material posted on these bulletin boards shall not contain anything reflecting 

adversely on the state, or any of its officers or employees nor shall any posted material violate 
any law, rule, or regulation. 

(D) Notices posted must be dated and bear the signature of the FSFSA's authorized 
representative. 

(E) A violation of these provisions by an FSFSA Staff Representative or an authorized 
representative shall be a basis for removal of bulletin board privileges for that representative by 
the Department of Management Services for a period not to exceed three (3) months. 

 
SECTION 7 – Use of State Phones 

When an FSFSA steward or officer is called by a management representative while on 
duty, the steward or officer may receive the call without charge.  An FSFSA steward or officer 
may place a call to a management representative even though the call may result in a cost to the 
state. 
 
SECTION 8 – Consultations  

(A) In order to provide a means for continuing communication between the parties and 
upon request of the President of the FSFSA, the Secretary of the Department of Management 
Services and/or designated representative(s), and not more than three (3) representatives of 
FSFSA, shall make a good faith effort to meet and consult quarterly. Such meetings shall be held 
at a mutually agreeable time and place designated by the Department of Management Services. 

(B) Upon request by the designated FSFSA Staff Representative, the Agency Head 
and/or designee(s) and the FSFSA Staff Representative, with not more than three (3) FSFSA 
representatives from the agency, shall make a good faith effort to meet and consult quarterly. 
Such meetings shall be held at a mutually agreeable time and place to be designated by the 
Agency Head or designee. 

(C) Upon request by the designated FSFSA Staff Representative, the Step 1 Management 
Representative and/or designee(s) and the designated FSFSA Staff Representative, with not more 
than two (2) FSFSA representatives from the agency, shall make a good faith effort to meet and 
consult. Such meetings shall be held at a mutually agreeable time and place to be designated by 
the Step 1 Management Representative.  

(D) All consultation meetings will be scheduled at a mutually convenient time and place.  
If a consultation meeting is held or requires reasonable travel time during the working hours of 
any employee participant, such participant shall be excused without loss of pay for that purpose. 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 5 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Attendance at a consultation meeting outside of regular working hours shall not be deemed time 
worked. 

(E) The purpose of all consultation meetings shall be to discuss matters relating to the 
administration of this Agreement and any agency activities affecting unit employees. It is 
understood that these meetings shall not be used for the purpose of discussing pending 
grievances or for negotiation purposes.  Prior to the scheduled meeting date, the parties shall give 
reasonable notice of topics to be discussed and persons to be in attendance. 

(F) An agency is encouraged to consult a representative from the Florida State Fire 
Marshal, Bureau of Fire Standards and Training, regarding issues of firefighter safety, 
qualifications, or training if such issues arise as topics of consultation.  

(G) An agency shall prepare a written response to issues raised during a consultation 
meeting within 30 days after the date of the meeting. 
 
SECTION 9 – Negotiations 

(A) The FSFSA agrees that all collective bargaining is to be conducted with state 
representatives designated for that purpose by the Governor, as chief executive officer. 
Negotiating meetings shall be held in Tallahassee unless the state and the FSFSA agree to meet 
elsewhere at a state facility or other location which involves no rental cost to the state. There 
shall be no negotiation by FSFSA at any other level of state government. 

(B)  The FSFSA may designate up to six (6) employees within the unit to attend each 
single-day session as Negotiation Committee members and such employees will be granted 
administrative leave with pay to attend negotiating sessions with the state.  If travel to and from 
negotiations unavoidably occurs on the participant’s scheduled work days immediately preceding 
or following a day of negotiation, employees shall be eligible to receive leave with pay on an 
hour for hour basis for such reasonable travel time pending review and approval by the 
employing agency.  No employee shall be credited with more than the number of hours in the 
employee's regular workday for any day the employee is attending negotiations or traveling to or 
from negotiations.  The time in attendance at such negotiating sessions shall not be counted as 
hours worked for the purpose of computing compensatory time or overtime.  The agency shall 
not reimburse the employee for travel, meals, lodging, or any expense incurred in connection 
with attendance at negotiating sessions. 

(C)  The FSFSA President shall be allowed to take up to 16 hours of leave with pay per 
fiscal year; the remaining five (5) members of the Negotiation Committee shall each be allowed 
to take up to eight (8) hours of leave with pay per fiscal year not to exceed a total of 40 hours, to 
participate in FSFSA training and preparation for negotiation meetings provided fire conditions, 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 5 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

emergency activities or other priority work projects do not preclude such participation.  Use of 
these hours will require appropriate documentation.  

 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
February 4, 2013 

Page 1 of 7 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 6 
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

It is the policy of the state and the FSFSA to encourage informal discussions of 
complaints between management and supervisors covered by this Agreement, as well as between 
those supervisors and covered employees. Such discussions should be held with a view to 
reaching an understanding which will resolve the matter in a manner satisfactory to the employee 
and the state, without need for recourse to the formal grievance procedure prescribed by this 
Article. 
 
SECTION 1 – Definitions 
As used in this Article: 

(A) "Grievance" shall mean a dispute involving the interpretation or application of the 
specific provisions of this Agreement, except as exclusions are noted in this Agreement, filed on 
the appropriate form as contained in Appendix B of the Agreement. 

(B) “Grievant” shall mean an employee, or a group of employees having the same 
grievance, or the FSFSA.  In the case of a group of employees, one shall be designated by the 
group to act as spokesperson and to be responsible for processing the grievance. 

(C) "Days" shall mean calendar days, excluding any day observed as a holiday pursuant 
to section 110.117, Florida Statutes. If the due date for a grievance response, or for a grievance 
submission to a step or to arbitration falls on a weekend or a holiday, the action shall be due the 
next business day. 
 
SECTION 2 – Election of Remedy and Representation 

(A) If an employee or the FSFSA has a grievance which may be processed under this 
Article which may also be appealed to the Florida Public Employees Relations Commission, the 
employee or the FSFSA shall elect at the outset which procedure is to be used and such election 
shall be binding on the employee or the FSFSA. In the case of any duplicate filing, the action 
first filed will be the one processed. 

(B A) An employee who decides to use this Grievance Procedure shall indicate at Step 1 
(or the initial written step if authorized by the provisions of this Article) whether he shall be 
represented by the FSFSA. When the employee has elected FSFSA representation, both the 
employee and the FSFSA Representative shall be notified of any Step 1 meeting. Further, any 
written communication concerning the grievance or its resolution shall be sent to both the 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
February 4, 2013 

Page 2 of 7 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

employee and the FSFSA representative, and any decision agreed to by the state and the FSFSA 
shall be binding on the employee. 

(C B) If the employee is not represented by the FSFSA, any adjustment of the grievance 
shall be consistent with the terms of this Agreement. The FSFSA shall be given reasonable 
opportunity to be present at any meeting called for the resolution of such grievance. An 
employee using this procedure in the processing of a grievance will be bound by the procedure 
established by the parties to the Agreement.  

The FSFSA shall not be bound by the decision of any grievance or arbitration in which 
the employee was not represented by the FSFSA. 
 
SECTION 3 – Procedures 

(A) Employee grievances filed in accordance with this Article should be presented and 
handled promptly at the lowest level of management having the authority to adjust the 
grievances.   

(B) There shall be no reprisals against any of the participants in the procedures contained 
herein by reason of such participation. 

(C) The filing or pendency of any grievance under the provisions of this Article shall in 
no way operate to impede, delay or interfere with the right of the state to take the action 
complained of; subject, however, to the final disposition of the grievance. 

(D) Once a grievance is presented, no new violation or issue can be raised. When an issue 
is unchanged, but it is determined that an article, section, or paragraph of the Agreement has 
been cited imprecisely or erroneously by the employee, then the employee shall have the right to 
amend that part of his grievance. 

(E) The resolution of a grievance prior to its submission in writing at Step 2 shall not 
establish a precedent binding on either FSFSA or the state in other cases. 

(F) If a grievance meeting is held, and a required participant must travel during work 
time, reasonable travel time will be deemed time worked.  A required participant is defined as 
the grievant, the designated FSFSA Grievance Representative located in the grievant’s district, or 
the FSFSA Grievance Representative from the nearest district if there is no designated 
representative in the grievant’s district, and any person required by the state to attend.  
Attendance at grievance meetings outside of regular working hours shall not be deemed time 
worked.  All grievance meetings shall be held at times and locations agreed to by the parties.  
Unless agreed otherwise, all meetings shall be held within 50 miles of the grievant’s place of 
work.  



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
February 4, 2013 

Page 3 of 7 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

(G) Grievances shall be presented and adjusted in the following manner, and no 
individual may respond to a grievance at more than one written step. 

(H) Grievances and grievance responses may be filed by hand-delivery, mail (including 
e-mail), courier, or electronic facsimile. If sent via electronic facsimile, the burden shall be on 
the sending party to confirm the correct electronic facsimile number before transmission. 
Documents shall be deemed filed upon receipt during regular business hours (8:00 a.m. to 5:00 
p.m. E.S.T.). Documents received after business hours shall be considered received the next 
business day. 
 (I) Grievance Processing.  Grievances shall be filed and processed in the following 
manner: 

(1) Step 1 
(a) An employee having a grievance may, within 14 days following actual 

knowledge of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance, submit a grievance at Step 
1. Employee grievances are to be filed on the grievance form as contained in Appendix B.  
Nothing in this procedure shall preclude an employee from presenting concerns through informal 
discussions with management representative(s). In filing a grievance at Step 1, the employee or 
his designated representative shall submit to the Step 1 Management Representative a grievance 
form, as contained in Appendix B, setting forth specifically the known facts on which the 
grievance is based, the specific provision or provisions of the Agreement allegedly violated, and 
the relief requested. In discipline cases, it shall be presumed that the grievance alleges that the 
discipline was without just cause, and requests as relief, at a minimum, reinstatement or other 
make whole relief. 

(b) The Step 1 Management Representative or designee may meet with the 
employee and/or the FSFSA Grievance Representative, and shall communicate a decision in 
writing to the employee and FSFSA Grievance Representative, if any, within 14 days following 
receipt of the grievance form. If the Step 1 Management Representative fails to respond within 
the time limit, it shall be deemed a denial. 
 

(2) Step 2 
(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the employee or the FSFSA 

Grievance Representative may submit it to the Agency Head or designee within 14 days after 
following receipt of the decision at Step 1. 

(b) The Agency Head or designee may meet with the employee and/or the 
FSFSA Grievance Representative, and shall communicate a decision in writing to the employee 
and FSFSA Grievance Representative, if any, within 14 days following receipt of the written 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
February 4, 2013 

Page 4 of 7 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

grievance. If the Agency Head or designee fails to respond within the time limits, it shall be 
deemed a denial. 
 

(3) Step 3 – Contract Language Disputes 
(a) If a grievance concerning the interpretation or application of this 

Agreement, other than a disciplinary grievance alleging only a violation of Article 7, is not 
resolved at Step 2, the employee or FSFSA Grievance Representative may submit it to the 
Department of Management Services within 14 days after following receipt of the decision at 
Step 2. 

(b) The Department of Management Services shall meet with the 
employee and/or the FSFSA Grievance Representative, if any, to discuss the grievance, and shall 
communicate a decision in writing to the FSFSA within fourteen (14) days following receipt of 
the written grievance.  
 

(4) Grievance Mediation 
 The parties may, by written agreement, submit a grievance to mediation to 

be conducted by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS), either prior to the 
grievance being submitted to arbitration or after it has been submitted to arbitration but before a 
hearing is scheduled.  When the parties agree to mediate a grievance, the time limits to file for, 
or process, an arbitration are automatically extended for the period necessary to conclude the 
mediation process.  Either party may withdraw from the mediation process with written notice no 
later than five (5) days before a scheduled mediation. 

 
(5) Arbitration 

(a) If a disciplinary grievance alleging only a violation of Article 7 is not 
resolved at Step 2, the FSFSA may appeal the grievance to arbitration within 14 days after 
following receipt of the decision at Step 2. If a contract language dispute as described in (3), 
above, is not resolved at Step 3, the FSFSA may appeal the grievance to arbitration within 14 
days after following receipt of the decision at Step 3. If, at the initial written step, the FSFSA 
declined to represent the employee because he was not a member of the FSFSA, the employee 
may appeal the grievance to arbitration. The appeal to arbitration shall be filed with the 
Department of Management Services on the form contained in Appendix C and shall include a 
copy of the grievance forms submitted at Steps 1, 2, and 3 (if applicable), together with all 
written responses and documents in support of the grievance.  



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
February 4, 2013 

Page 5 of 7 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

(b) The arbitrator shall be chosen from a panel of at least four (4) 
arbitrators selected by the parties. 

(c) The parties may, by mutual agreement in writing, submit related 
grievances for hearing before the same arbitrator. Arbitration hearings shall be held at times and 
locations mutually agreed to by the parties; however, unless mutually agreed otherwise, all 
hearings shall be held within 50 miles of the grievant(s)’ place of work. 

(d) Issues of arbitrability, including timeliness, shall be separated from the 
substantive issue(s) of the grievance and, whenever possible, determined by a hearing conducted 
by conference call.  The arbitrator shall have ten (10) days from the hearing to render a decision 
on arbitrability. Where there is a threshold issue regarding arbitrability, including timeliness, of a 
grievance raised by either party, an expedited arbitration hearing shall be conducted to address 
only the arbitrability issue.  In such cases, the parties shall choose an arbitrator from the panel of 
arbitrators (see (5)(b), above), who is available to schedule a hearing and render a decision 
within twenty days of an arbitrator being chosen for this limited purpose.  The hearing on this 
issue shall be limited to one day, and the arbitrator shall be required to decide the issue within 
five (5) business days of the hearing.  The hearing shall be conducted by telephone upon the 
agreement of the parties and the arbitrator.  The fees and expenses of the expedited arbitration 
shall be shared equally by the parties.  If the decision is arbitrator determines that the issue is 
arbitrable, another arbitrator shall then be selected chosen from the parties’ regular arbitration 
panel in accordance with the provisions of 5(b) of this Article to conduct a hearing on hear the 
substantive issue(s). in accordance with the provisions of (5)(b) of this Article. 

(e) The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the 
grievance and, provided the decision is in accordance with his jurisdiction and authority under 
this Agreement, shall be final and binding on the state, the FSFSA, the grievant(s), and the 
employees in the bargaining unit. In considering a grievance the arbitrator shall be governed by 
the following provisions and limitations:  

1) The arbitrator shall issue his decision not later than 14 days 
from the date of the closing of the hearing or the submission of briefs, whichever is later. 

2) The arbitrator’s decision shall be in writing, and shall set forth 
the arbitrator’s opinion and conclusions on the issue(s) submitted. 

3) The arbitrator shall have no authority to determine any other 
issue, and shall refrain from issuing any statement of opinion or conclusion not essential to the 
determination of the issues submitted.  

4) The arbitrator shall limit his decision strictly to the application 
and interpretation of the specific provisions of this Agreement.  



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
February 4, 2013 

Page 6 of 7 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

5) The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make any 
decisions that are: 

a) Contrary to or inconsistent with, adding to, subtracting 
from, or modifying, altering or ignoring in any way, the terms of this Agreement, or of 
applicable law or rules or regulations having the force and effect of law.  

b) Limiting or interfering in any way with the power, duties 
and responsibilities of the state under its Constitution, applicable law, and rules and regulations 
having the force and effect of law, except as such powers, duties and responsibilities have been 
abridged, delegated or modified by the express provisions of this Agreement. 

(f) The arbitrator’s award may include back pay to the Grievant(s); 
however, the following limitations shall apply to such monetary awards: 

1) No award for back pay shall exceed the amount of pay the 
employee would otherwise have earned at his regular rate of pay and such back pay shall not be 
retroactive to a date earlier than the date of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the 
grievance under consideration. 

2) The award shall not exceed the actual loss to the grievant, will 
not include punitive damages, and will be reduced by the amount of wages earned from other 
sources excluding unemployment compensation received by the employee during the period of 
time affected by the award. 

(g) The reasonable fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne 
equally by the parties for the first five (5) matters submitted for arbitration in the respective 
contract year and thereafter the loser pays the fees and expenses of the arbitration.  Each party 
shall be responsible for compensating and paying the expenses of its own representatives, 
attorneys and witnesses.  

(h) FSFSA will not be responsible for costs of an arbitration to which it 
was not a party. 

 
SECTION 4 – Time Limits 

(A) Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance 
within the specified time limits shall permit the employee, or the FSFSA, where appropriate, to 
proceed to the next step. The state will make a good faith effort to timely communicate decisions 
at each step.  

(B) The number of days indicated at each step should be considered as a maximum, and 
every effort should be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits specified in any 
step of this procedure may be extended, in any specific instance, by written agreement. 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
February 4, 2013 

Page 7 of 7 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

(C) Claims of either an untimely filing or untimely appeal shall be made at the step in 
question.   
 
SECTION 5 – Exceptions  

(A) Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to permit 
the FSFSA or an employee to process a grievance (1) in behalf of any employee without his 
consent, or (2) with respect to any matter which is the subject of a grievance, appeal, 
administrative action before a government board or agency, or court proceeding, brought by the 
FSFSA. 

(B) All grievances will be presented at the initial step with the following exceptions: 
(1) If a grievance arises from the action of an official higher than the Step 1 

Management Representative, the grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 or 3, as appropriate, by 
submitting a grievance form as set forth in Step 1 within 14 days following the actual knowledge 
of the occurrence giving rise to the grievance. 

(2) The FSFSA shall have the right to bring a class action grievance on behalf of 
employees in its own name, concerning disputes relating to the interpretation or application of 
this Agreement. Such grievance shall not include disciplinary actions taken against an employee. 
The FSFSA's election to proceed under this Article shall preclude it from proceeding in another 
forum on the same issue. Such grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 of this procedure, in 
accordance with the provisions set forth herein, within 14 days of the knowledge or reasonable 
knowledge of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance. 

 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 7  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
  
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 7 
DISCIPLINARY ACTION 

(A) An employee who has satisfactorily completed at least a one-year probationary 
period in their current position may be disciplined or discharged only for just cause as provided 
in Section 110.227, Florida Statutes. 

(B) Reductions in base pay, demotions, involuntary transfers of more than 50 miles by 
highway, suspensions, and dismissals may be effected by the state at any time.   The state will 
make a good faith effort to initiate a disciplinary action within 60 days of knowledge of the event 
giving rise to the disciplinary action.  Such disciplinary actions shall be grievable for employees 
with permanent status in their current position in accordance with the grievance procedure in 
Article 6.  An employee with permanent status in his current position may file an appeal of a 
reduction in base pay, demotion, involuntary transfer of over 50 miles by highway, suspension, 
or dismissal with the Public Employees Relations Commission within 21 calendar days after the 
date of receipt of notice of such action from the agency, under the provisions of Section 
110.227(5) and (6), Florida Statutes.  Such appeal process is the exclusive remedy for review of 
such actions; they are not subject to the Article 6 grievance procedure. 

(C) Each employee shall be furnished a copy of all disciplinary actions placed in his 
official personnel file and shall be permitted to respond thereto. 

(D) An employee may request that an FSFSA Staff Representative be present during any 
disciplinary investigation meeting in which the employee is being questioned relative to alleged 
misconduct of the employee. 

(E) Letters of counseling are not disciplinary actions and not grievable.  Letters of 
counseling may be used at arbitration only to show that an employee was placed on notice of a 
rule not as an example of prior discipline.  Memoranda of Record and Memoranda of 
Supervision (letters of counseling) are documentation of minor work deficiencies or conduct 
concerns that are maintained by a supervisor in a working file.  Such documents are not 
discipline, are not grievable, and shall not become part of the employee’s official personnel file; 
however, such documentation may be used by the state at an administrative hearing involving an 
employee’s discipline to demonstrate the employee was on notice of the performance 
deficiencies or conduct concerns.  They shall not be relied upon for the purposes of promotional 
decisions or performance evaluations if the conduct resulting in the letter is not repeated in the 
following 12 months.  

(F) Reprimands shall be subject to the grievance procedure as follows: 
(1) Oral reprimands shall not be grievable under the provisions of this Agreement. 
(2) An oral reprimand will not be considered in determining discipline, provided 

the employee is not disciplined for the same offense during the succeeding 12 months. 
(3) Written reprimands may be grieved by employees with permanent status in 

their current position up to Step 2; the decision at that level shall be final and binding. 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 7  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
  
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

(4) A written reprimand will not be considered in determining discipline, provided 
the employee is not disciplined for the same offense during the succeeding 18 months, and the 
written reprimand was not for a major offense which could have resulted in the employee’s 
dismissal. 

(G) The state may, at its discretion, assess disciplinary suspensions of more than three 
days over two pay periods. 

(H) The state may have special compensatory leave equal to the length of a disciplinary 
suspension deducted from an employee’s leave balance in lieu of the employee serving the 
suspension.  In making such determination, the state shall take into consideration the preference 
of the employee as to serving the suspension or having leave deducted.  If the employee does not 
have sufficient special compensatory leave, annual leave may be deducted.  If there is not 
sufficient special compensatory or annual leave, the remainder of the period will be leave 
without pay. Employees from whom leave is deducted will continue to report for duty.  The 
employee’s personnel file will reflect a disciplinary suspension regardless of whether the 
employee serves the suspension or has leave deducted. 

 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 8 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 8 
WORKFORCE REDUCTIONS 

SECTION 1 - Layoffs 
(A) When employees certified pursuant to Chapter 633, Florida Statutes, are to be laid 

off, the state shall implement such layoff in the following manner: 
(1)  The competitive area within which layoffs will be affected shall be defined as 

statewide within each agency. 
(2) Layoff shall be by class or occupational level within the fire service 

bargaining unit. 
(3)  An employee who does not have permanent status in his current position may 

be laid off without applying the provision for retention rights. 
(4)  No employee with permanent status in his current position shall be laid off 

while an employee who does not hold permanent status is serving in that broadband level, unless 
the permanent employee does not elect to exercise his retention rights or does not meet the 
selective competition criteria. 

(5) All employees who have permanent status in their current position in the 
affected broadband level shall be ranked on a layoff list based on the total retention points 
derived as follows: 

(a) Length of service retention points shall be based on one point for each 
month of continuous service in a Career Service position. 

(1) An employee who resigns from one Career Service position to 
accept employment in another Career Service position is not considered to have a break in 
service. 

(2) An employee who has been laid off and is reemployed within 
one year from the date of the layoff, shall not be considered to have a break in service. 

(3) Moving from Career Service to Selected Exempt Service or 
Senior Management Service and back to Career Service does not constitute a break in service 
unless the employee’s break in service is more than 31 calendar days.  Only time spent in the 
Career Service can be counted in calculating retention points. 

(b) Retention points deducted for performance not meeting performance 
standards or work expectations defined for the position shall be based on the five years 
immediately prior to the agency’s established cutoff date.  One (1) point shall be deducted for 
each month an employee has a rating below performance expectations. 

(6) The layoff list shall be prepared by totaling retention points.  Employees 
eligible for veterans’ preference pursuant to section 295.07(1)(a) or (b), Florida Statutes, shall 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 8 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

have ten percent added to their total retention points, and those eligible pursuant to section 
295.07(1)(c) or (d) shall have five percent added. 

(7)  The employee with the highest total retention points is placed at the top of the 
list, and the employee with the lowest retention points is placed at the bottom of the list. 

(8) The employee at the top of the list shall bump the employee at the bottom of 
the list.  The next highest employee on the list and the remaining employees shall be handled in 
the same manner until the total number of filled positions in the broadband level to be abolished 
is complete. 

(9) Should two or more employees have the same combined total of retention 
points, the order of layoff shall be determined by giving preference for retention in the following 
sequence: 

(a)  The employee with the longest service in the affected broadband level. 
(b) The employee with the longest continuous service in the Career 

Service. 
(c) The employee who is entitled to veteran’s preference pursuant to 

section 295.07(1), Florida Statutes. 
(10)  An employee who has permanent status in his current position and who is to 

be laid off shall be given at least 14 calendar days’ notice of such layoff or in lieu thereof, two 
weeks’ pay or a combination of days of notice and pay in lieu of the full 14 calendar days’ 
notice, to be paid at the employee’s current hourly base rate of pay.  The state will make a 
reasonable effort to provide 30 days’ notice of a layoff.  The notice of layoff shall be in writing 
and sent to the employee by certified mail, return receipt requested.  Within seven (7) calendar 
days after receiving the notice of layoff, the employee shall have the right to request a demotion 
or reassignment within the competitive area, in lieu of layoff, to a position in a broadband level 
within the bargaining unit in which the employee held permanent status, or to a position at the 
level of or below the current level in the bargaining unit in which the employee held permanent 
status.  Such request must be in writing and reassignment or demotion cannot be effected to a 
higher broadband level. 

(11)  An employee’s request for demotion or reassignment shall be granted unless 
it would cause the layoff of another employee who possesses a greater total of retention points. 

(12) An employee who is adversely affected as a result of another employee 
having a greater number of retention points shall have the same right of reassignment or 
demotion under the same procedure as provided in this section. 

(13) If an employee requests a demotion or reassignment in lieu of layoff, the 
same formula and criteria for establishing retention points shall be used as prescribed in this 
section. 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 8 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

(B)  If there is to be a layoff of employees, the state shall take all reasonable steps to 
place any adversely affected employees in existing vacancies for which they are qualified. 

(C)  If work performed by employees in this unit is to be performed by non-state 
employees, the state agrees to encourage the employing entity to consider any adversely affected 
unit employees for employment in its organization if the state has been unable to place the 
employees in other positions within the State Personnel System.  
 
SECTION 2 – Recall  

When a vacancy occurs, or new position is established, laid off employees shall be 
recalled in the following manner: 

(A)  For one year following layoff, when a position is to be filled, or a new position is 
established in the same agency and in the same broadband level within the affected competitive 
area, a laid off employee with the highest number of retention points shall be offered 
reemployment; subsequent offers shall be made in the order of the employee’s total retention 
points.  Reemployment of such employees shall be with permanent status in their position.  An 
employee who refuses such offer of reemployment shall forfeit any rights to subsequent 
placement offers as provided in this subsection. 

(B)  An employee who accepts a voluntary demotion in lieu of layoff and is subsequently 
promoted to a position in the same broadband level in the same agency from which the employee 
was demoted in lieu of layoff, shall be promoted with permanent status in the position. 

(C)  Under no circumstances is a layoff to be considered as a disciplinary action, and in 
the event an employee elects to appeal the action taken, such appeal must be based upon whether 
the layoff was in accordance with the provisions of this Article. 
 
SECTION 3 – Job Security 

The state shall make a reasonable effort to notify FSFSA at least 30 days in advance of a 
layoff involving positions within the bargaining unit. Prior to the actual layoff, if requested, the 
state will meet with the FSFSA to bargain the impact of the layoff on the employees involved. 

 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 9 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 9 
VOLUNTARY REASSIGNMENT, TRANSFER, CHANGE IN DUTY STATION, AND 

PROMOTIONS 
Employees who have attained permanent status in their current position and who meet all 

eligibility requirements shall have the opportunity to request reassignment, transfer, or change in 
duty station to vacant positions within their respective agencies and promotions to vacant 
positions within the bargaining unit in accordance with the provisions of this Article. 
 
SECTION 1 – Definitions 

As used in this Article: 
(A) "Change in Duty Station" shall mean the moving of an employee to a duty station 

located within 50 miles, by highway, of his current duty station. 
(B) "Duty station" shall mean the place which is designated as an employee's official 

headquarters. 
(C) "Broadband level" shall mean all positions which are sufficiently similar in 

knowledge, skills, and abilities, and sufficiently similar as to kind or subject matter of work, 
level of difficulty or responsibilities, and qualification requirements of the work, to warrant the 
same treatment as to title, pay band, and other personnel transactions. 

(D) "Reassignment" shall mean the moving of an employee from a position in one 
broadband level to a different position in the same broadband level or to a different broadband 
level having the same maximum salary. 

(E) "Transfer" shall mean the moving of an employee from one geographic location of 
the state to a different geographic location in excess of 50 highway miles from the employee's 
current duty station. 

(F) "Promotion" shall mean the changing of the classification of an employee to a 
broadband level having a higher maximum salary, or the changing of the classification of an 
employee to a broadband level having the same or a lower maximum salary but a higher level of 
responsibility. 

(G) "Demotion" shall mean the changing of the classification of an employee to a 
broadband level having a lower maximum salary, or the changing of the classification of an 
employee to a broadband level having the same or a higher maximum salary but a lower level of 
responsibility. 
 
 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 9 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

SECTION 2 – Procedures  
(A) An employee who has satisfactorily completed at least a one-year probationary 

period in his current position may apply for a reassignment, transfer, change in duty station, or 
promotion on a Request for Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station, and Promotion 
Form (supplied by the agency). Such requests shall indicate the broadband level(s), county(ies), 
duty station, and/or shift(s) to which the employee would like to be reassigned, transferred, or 
promoted. When the employee requests reassignment to a different position in a different 
broadband level, or a promotion, a State of Florida Employment Application Form must be 
completed and sent with the request form. 

(B) An employee may submit a Request for Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty 
Station, and Promotion Form at any time; however, all such requests shall expire on May 31 of 
each calendar year. Requests can be filed in May to become effective on June 1. 

(C) All Request for Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station, and Promotion 
Forms shall be submitted to the agency head or designee who shall be responsible for furnishing 
a copy of each request to the management representatives who have the authority to make 
employee hiring decisions in the work unit to which the employee has requested reassignment, 
transfer, change in duty station, or promotion. 

(D) Except where a vacancy is filled by demotion, or where reassignment, transfer, 
change in duty station, or promotion is not in the best interests of the agency, the management 
representative having hiring authority for that vacancy shall give first consideration to those 
employees who have submitted a Request for Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station, 
and Promotion Form; provided, however, that employees whose request for reassignment is not 
submitted by the first day of the month shall not be considered for vacancies which occur during 
that month. 

(E) The hiring authority shall normally fill a permanent vacancy with the applicant who 
has the greatest length of service in the broadband level and who has a Request on file for the 
vacancy. The parties agree, however, that other factors, such as employees' work history and 
agency needs, will be taken into consideration in making the decision as to whether the applicant 
with the greatest length of service in the broadband level will be placed in the vacant position. 

(F) If the applicant with the greatest length of service in the broadband level is not 
selected for the vacant position, all applicants who have greater length of service in the 
broadband level than the employee selected shall be notified in writing of the agency's decision. 

(G) When an employee has been reassigned, transferred, or promoted, or had his duty 
station changed pursuant to a Request filed under this Article, all other pending Requests for 
Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station, and Promotion from that employee shall be 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 9 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

canceled.  No other Request may be filed by the employee under this Article for a period of 
twelve (12) months following the employee's reassignment, transfer, change in duty station, or 
promotion. If an employee declines an offer of reassignment, transfer, change in duty station, or 
promotion pursuant to a request filed under this Article, the employee's request shall be canceled 
and the employee will not be eligible to resubmit that request for a period of twelve (12) months 
from the date the employee declined the offer. 

 
SECTION 3 – Involuntary Reassignment, Transfer or Change in Duty Station 

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent an agency, at its 
discretion, from effecting the involuntary reassignment, transfer, or change in duty station of any 
employee according to the needs of the agency; however, the agency will make a good faith 
effort to take such action only when dictated by the needs of the agency and in each case will 
take into consideration the needs and circumstances of the employee prior to taking such action. 
 
SECTION 4 – Notice 

An employee shall be given a minimum of 14 calendar days’ notice prior to the agency 
effecting any reassignment or transfer of the employee. In the case of a transfer, the agency will 
make a good faith effort to give a minimum of 30 calendar days’ notice. The parties agree, 
however, that these notice requirements shall not be required during an emergency or other 
extraordinary conditions.  
 
SECTION 5 – Relocation Allowance 

An employee who is involuntary reassigned and required to relocate his residence shall 
be granted time off with pay for one (1) work day for purposes of relocating his residence. In 
addition, the employee shall be granted travel time to the new location based on the most direct 
route. No employee will be credited with more than the number of hours in the employee's 
regular workday and such time shall not be counted as hours worked for the purpose of 
computing compensatory time or overtime.  

SECTION 6 – Grievability   
The provisions of this Article regarding voluntary reassignment, transfer, change in duty 

station, or promotion shall not be subject to the grievance procedures of Article 6 of this 
Agreement; however, an employee complaint concerning improper application of the provisions 
of Section 2(E), and Section 3 may be grieved in accordance with Article 6, up to and including 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 9 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Step 2 of the Grievance Procedure. In considering such complaints, weight shall be given to the 
specific procedures followed and decisions made, along with the needs of the agency. 

 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 10 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 10 
OCCUPATION PROFILES/RULES  

SECTION 1 – Occupation Profiles/Rules Maintained 
(A) The state will maintain the Occupation Profiles and the Rules of the State Personnel 

System on the Department of Management Services’ website. 
(B) In instances where the state determines that a revision to an Occupation Profile for 

positions covered by this Agreement is needed, the Department of Management Services shall 
notify the FSFSA in writing of the proposed changes, and provide the bargaining rights allowed 
by law over the proposed change. 

 
SECTION 2 – Documentation  

The state will make a good faith effort to provide the FSFSA with the following: 
(A) Thirty (30) days prior to agencies implementing policies and procedures which affect 

employees' wages, hours, or terms and conditions of employment, and are not expressly 
addressed by this Agreement, the FSFSA will be sent a copy of the proposed changes, and 
provided the bargaining rights allowed by law over the proposed change. 

(B) Upon request by the FSFSA to an agency, the state shall provide a current copy of the 
agency's rules, regulations and policies which affect employees’ wages, hours, and terms and 
conditions of employment covered by this Agreement, and which are not included in the Rules of 
the State Personnel System. 

(C) Agency rules, regulations or policies which affect the employees’ wages, hours, and 
terms and conditions of employment shall be made available to all employees. 

 

 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 11 (Substance – Status Quo)  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 11 
CLASSIFICATION REVIEW 

SECTION 1 – Additional Duties 
(A) When an employee alleges that the employee is being regularly required to perform 

duties which are not included in the position description of the position being filled by the 
employee, and the employee alleges that the duties assigned are not included in the official 
Occupation Profile to which the position is allocated, the employee may request in writing that 
the Agency Head review the duties assigned to the employee's position. The Agency Head or 
designee shall review the duties as requested.  The employee will receive a copy of the written 
decision within 60 days of the request. If the decision is that the duties assigned are sufficient to 
justify reclassifying the position, either the position will be reclassified or the duties in question 
will be removed. Shortage of funds shall not be used as the basis for refusing to reclassify a 
position after a review has been completed.  If the decision is to reclassify the position and the 
employee is to receive a promotional pay increase, the pay increase shall be effective from the 
date the agency received the employee's request for a classification review. 

(B) If the employee is not satisfied with the decision, the employee, with or without 
representation, may request in writing a review by the Secretary of the Department of 
Management Services or designee.  The review by the Department of Management Services will 
be in accordance with Chapter 110, Florida Statutes. 

(C) The written decision of the Secretary of the Department of Management Services or 
designee as to the classification of the position shall be final and binding on all parties. 
 
SECTION 2 – Work Load Quotas 

(A) When an employee alleges that the employee is being regularly required to carry an 
inequitable work load quota, the employee may request in writing that the Agency Head or 
designee review the work load quota assigned to the employee.  The Agency Head or designee 
shall make the final written decision on the complaint which shall be binding on all parties.  The 
employee will receive a copy of the written decision within 60 days of the request. 

(B) The state and the Union FSFSA agree that work load quota problems are an 
appropriate item for discussion in consultation meetings as described in Article 5. 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 12  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 12 
PERSONNEL RECORDS 

(A) There shall be only one official personnel file for each employee, which shall be 
maintained by the employing agency.  Information in an employee's official personnel file shall 
only refer to matters concerning (affecting) the employee's job or related to his state 
employment. 

(B) If derogatory material is placed in an employee's official personnel file, a copy will 
be sent to the employee. The employee will have the right to answer any such material within six 
(6) months of placement in the file, and his answer will be attached to the file copy. 

(C) An employee will have the right to review his own official personnel file at 
reasonable times under the supervision of the designated records custodian. 

(D) Where the Agency Head or designee, the Public Employees Relations Commission, 
the courts, an arbitrator, or other statutory authority determines that a document has been placed 
in the employee’s personnel file in error or is otherwise invalid, such document shall be sealed in 
the file and shall be stamped "NOT VALID", and retained in the employee’s personnel file as 
specified in the State of Florida General Records Schedule GS1-SL for State and Local 
Government Records, as promulgated by the Department of State. In the case of electronic 
records, a Personnel Action Request (PAR) that has been determined to be invalid shall have a 
note added to the PAR form indicating that the action was invalid. 

 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 13 (Status Quo)  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 13 
HEALTH AND WELFARE 

SECTION 1 – Insurance Benefits 
 The state agrees to administer the State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan in 
accordance with any statutory provision or Act affecting the plan or its operation. 
 
SECTION 2 – Employee Assistance Program 

(A) Where a state agency has adopted an employee assistance program pursuant to 
section 110.1091, Florida Statutes, the state will make psychological and substance abuse 
counseling services available. 

(B) Any complaint or claim by an employee concerning this section shall not be 
subject to the grievance procedure of this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 3 – Death In-Line-Of Duty Benefits 

(A) Funeral and burial expenses will be as provided in section 112.191, Florida Statutes. 
(B)  Education benefits will be as provided in section 112.191, Florida Statutes. 
(C)  Health insurance benefits will be as provided in section 110.123, Florida Statutes. 
(D)  Any complaint or claim by an employee concerning this Article shall not be subject 

to the grievance procedure of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 4 – Florida Forest Service Fire Fighter Health and Physical Fitness Standards 
Program 
The Florida Forest Service (FFS) and FSFSA agree to a fire fighter health and physical fitness 
standards program, which shall include appropriate screening and vaccination of all bargaining 
unit members. 

(A) The FFS shall provide Fitness Technician(s) in each Field Unit. 
(1) Fitness Technicians must maintain a current AED CPR card or higher. 
(2) Fitness technicians will provide fitness, health, nutrition, and wellness 

information to all bargaining unit employees, and the Fitness Technicians will be given 
opportunities to receive information and training in such areas as nutrition, exercise physiology, 
etc. 

(B) Employees will be permitted to exercise a maximum of three (3) times per week 
for 30 minutes per session. 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 13 (Status Quo)  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

(1) This is an employee optional activity and may be permitted if fire 
conditions, emergency activities or other priority work projects, (that have been approved by the 
Field Unit Manager), do not preclude such activities. 

(2) Individual aerobic and/or strength exercises are authorized. 
(3) Team sports are prohibited. 
(4) If it is not possible for the employee to conduct aerobic exercises at the 

work site, then the employee must start and finish his exercise session from their work site and 
be able to respond back to the site within 15 minutes of notification. 

(5) The acquisition of all exercise equipment is a local decision. However, 
state funds may not be used to purchase this equipment. 

(6) The FFS will not provide reduced memberships with any gyms or health 
clubs.  This is a personal decision on the part of employees. 

(C) FFS Employee Health Exam & Fitness Test 
(1) The FFS employee Health Exam & Fitness Test is required for Special 

Risk employees hired or rehired after January 1, 1993, and includes the Initial or Annual Medical 
Examination and the Fitness Test.  The Initial Medical Exam shall be in accordance with the FFS 
approved edition of the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA 1582) Medical 
Requirements for Firefighters.  The Initial and Annual Medical Exams standards for the 
pulmonary function test and the resting blood pressure limits are established by FFS.  The 
Annual Medical Examination consists of specific components of the Initial Medical 
Examination, (Pulmonary Function Test & Resting Blood Pressure).  For the Annual Medical 
Exam, employees are required to utilize the FFS Annual Medical Exam standard.  The employee 
has the option of utilizing the FFS facility for the Annual Medical Exam, or obtaining 
certification to take the Annual Fitness Test, utilizing the FFS Annual Medical Exam standard, 
from their personal physician (at personal cost). The Fitness Test currently is the United States 
Forestry Service (USFS) Work Capacity Test (WCT), also called the Pack Test.  The employee 
must successfully complete the Medical Examination within 30 days prior to taking the Fitness 
Test.   

(2) Employees who fail the Annual Fitness Test due to fitness reasons will not 
be allowed to perform wildfire suppression duties until they retake and pass the Annual Fitness 
Test.  The employee will be mandated to perform physical fitness training as described in (B) 
and will be permitted up to twelve (12) months and a minimum of four (4) attempts, at three (3) 
month intervals or less, to retake the Annual Fitness Test. 

(3) Employees who fail the Annual Medical Exam will be placed on sick leave 
until they provide a personal physician’s statement allowing them to work in a modified duty 
capacity.   If the employee provides a personal physician’s statement releasing him to full duty 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 13 (Status Quo)  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

status and successfully completes the Annual Medical Exam at a FFS medical examination 
facility, or is certified to take the Annual Fitness Test utilizing the FFS Annual Medical Exam 
standard, by his personal physician (at personal cost), he will be required to take the Annual 
Fitness Test within 30 days of medical release to full duty status.  Should the employee fail the 
Annual Fitness Test after release to full duty status, he will be provided the opportunity to take 
the Annual Fitness Test in accordance with paragraph (C)(2) above. 

(4) Employees who have exhausted all attempts to pass the Annual Medical 
Exam and/or Fitness Test, may be offered a vacant position that does not include fire fighting 
duties in the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services.  If another position cannot be 
identified and agreed upon, termination may result. 

(5) The FFS employee Annual Fitness Test and the “National Fitness Test” 
will be conducted during the months of November, December and January.  These two tests may 
be combined and taken as one test, with the National Fitness Test (three (3) mile walk with 45 
pound pack in 45 minutes) substituting for the FFS employee Annual Fitness Test (two (2) mile 
walk with 25 pound pack in 30 minutes). 

(6) If a candidate for hire is required to take the FFS Initial Fitness Test, or an 
employee is currently scheduled to take the FFS employee Annual Fitness Test after January 31st 
and before September 1st, the candidate or employee will take these tests as scheduled, and will 
take the FFS employee Annual Fitness Test the upcoming November, December or January (this 
means two tests in 12 months).  When the test is completed in November, December or January, 
the employee will be synchronized for future November, December or January testing. 

(7) If a candidate for hire is required to take the FFS Initial Fitness Test, after 
August 31st and before November 1st, the candidate will take the test as scheduled, and be 
required to take the FFS employee Annual Fitness Test in November, December or January of 
the following year (this means more than 12 months between tests). (Example: candidate takes 
the FFS Initial Fitness Test on October 15, 2006, and will be required to take the FFS employee 
Annual Fitness Test in November or December of 2007 or January of 2008.)  When the test is 
completed in November, December or January, the employee will be synchronized for future 
November, December or January testing. 

(8) If an employee is scheduled to take the FFS employee Annual Fitness Test 
after August 31st and before November 1st, the employee will wait until November, December 
or January to take the FFS employee Annual Fitness Test (this means more than 12 months 
between tests).  When the test is completed in November, December or January, the employee 
will be synchronized for future November, December or January testing. 

 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 14 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 14 
STATE VEHICLES AND VESSELS 

SECTION 1 – Vehicle and Vessel Safety 
State vehicles and vessels used by employees, whether or not issued to the employee, 

shall be maintained in safe operating condition. 
 
SECTION 2 – Firefighting Equipment 
 Existing open-cab Dozer/Plow units will be replaced with closed-cab, climate controlled 
units as funding is made available and as determined by Florida Fire Service management. 
 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 15 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 15 
PROBATIONARY STATUS 

An employee who has attained permanent status in a bargaining unit position within a 
broadband level who fails after a promotion to a higher broadband level, due to the performance 
of the new duties, to satisfactorily complete the promotional probationary period shall have the 
opportunity to be demoted. The demotion will be to a vacant unit position in the agency at the 
former broadband level. 

(A) Such a demotion shall be with permanent status in the position, provided the 
employee held permanent status in a position in the lower broadband level. 

(B) The employee’s salary will be reduced in accordance with the agency’s pay upon 
demotion policy.  In no case will the employee’s salary be reduced by an amount greater than the 
promotional increase. 

(C) Such demotion shall not be grievable under the contractual grievance procedure. 
 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 16  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 16 
RETIREMENT 

VACANT 
 

The State agrees to administer the Florida Retirement System (FRS) in accordance with 
any statutory provision or Act affecting the plan or its operation. 
 

 
 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 17 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 17 
ALLOWANCES AND REIMBURSEMENTS 

SECTION 1 – Travel Expenses 
With the prior approval of the Agency Head, travel expenses of employees incurred in 

the performance of a public purpose authorized by law will be paid in accordance with section 
112.061, Florida Statutes.  The state will make a good faith effort to pay travel vouchers within 
30 days after they have been properly completed and submitted.  Vouchers are considered 
submitted when the employee submits them to the local official designated by management to 
receive such vouchers. 
 
SECTION 2 – Competitive Area Differential 

The Department of Management Services shall review Competitive Area Differential 
salary additive requests by agencies and determine appropriate differentials in accordance with 
Rule 60L-32, Florida Administrative Code. 
 
SECTION 3 – Fee Reimbursements 

(A) Agencies will reimburse a permanent employee for filing and examination fees 
associated with renewing the appropriate commercial driver’s license and endorsement(s) if the 
employee is : (1) in a classification that requires the operation of equipment which requires either 
a Class A, Class B or Class C commercial driver’s license and any endorsement(s) ; or (2) the 
classification designated by the department requires the employee to upgrade his/her driver’s 
license to a Class A, Class B or Class C commercial driver’s license and any endorsement(s); 
provided the employee successfully passes the required examination and is issued the license and 
appropriate endorsement(s). 

(B) Employees applying for renewal or reinstatement of a license due to an illegal 
violation will not be reimbursed for any costs associated with obtaining a license as required by 
the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles. 

(C) The state will not pay any additional cost incurred as a result of an employee’s failure 
to pass the written and/or performance test within the opportunities allowed by the original 
application fee. 

(D) Reimbursement for commercial driver’s license renewal fees will be for that portion 
of the commercial driver’s license fee (including the cost of endorsement(s) required by the 
employer) which exceeds the cost of the regular noncommercial Class E driver’s license, 
provided the employee applies for the required license and any required endorsement(s) 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 17 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

simultaneously.  If an employee fails to take all required extras simultaneously, reimbursement 
will not exceed the cost that would have been incurred had the tests been taken simultaneously. 

 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 18 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 18 
LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

SECTION 1 - Leaves 
The parties specifically agree that the attendance and leave provisions as contained in 

Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code, including the accrual, usage and payment of sick and 
annual leave upon separation from Career Service employment, shall apply to all employees. 

 
SECTION 2 – Association Activities 

Employees shall have the right to request annual or compensatory leave or leave without 
pay for the purpose of attending FSFSA conventions, conferences and meetings. When such 
requests cannot be granted, the supervisor shall provide such denial in writing. 
 
SECTION 3 – Personal Holiday  

Employees shall be credited a personal holiday on July 1 that must be taken by the end of 
each fiscal year. 
 

 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 19 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 19 
OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT 

(A) If during the term of this Agreement, an employee is to accept new employment 
outside of Sstate government, the employee shall notify the agency head, or designee, of such 
employment, prior to the date of employment, and who shall verify that there does not exist a 
conflict with the Sstate’s employment policies or procedures. 

(B) During the course of the employee’s outside employment, an agency may make 
reasonable inquires of the employee to ensure that continued outside employment does not 
constitute a conflict of interest, or interfere with the employee’s primary duties with the Sstate. 
 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 20 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 20 
TRAINING AND EDUCATION 

The state and the FSFSA recognize the importance of training programs in the 
development of employees. 

 
SECTION 1 – Employee Education 

(A) At the discretion of the Agency Head or designee, the state may allow employees to 
attend short courses, institutes, and workshops which will improve their performance in their 
current position, without a loss of pay and benefits. 

(B) Such training/education shall be considered as time worked and may be granted if: 
the employee applies in advance in writing specifying the course and his objectives related to his 
position; the employee obtains permission of his Agency Head; and such training/education does 
not interfere with agency services.  

(C) Subsections (A) and (B) above do not preclude the state from assigning employees to 
attend training courses.  Such required training shall be consistent with the employee’s position 
description.  
 
SECTION 2 – Employee Training 

(A) The state will not unreasonably deny applications for training. 
(B) The state will make a good faith effort to give priority to employees for available 

training courses that are mandatory for their respective positions. 
 
SECTION 3 – Educational Assistance Plan 

The state shall provide up to six (6) credit hours of tuition-free courses per term at a state 
university or community college to full-time employees on a space available basis as authorized 
by law. 
 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 21 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 21 
COMMITTEES 

SECTION 1 – Safety Committee 
The parties agree that each agency shall have at least one Safety Committee.  The FSFSA 

may select one person to serve on each committee directly addressing fire services operations 
and other matters of safety related to employees.  Employees assigned to serve on these Safety 
Committees shall be permitted to attend meetings while on-duty with no loss of pay or benefits.  
At the discretion of the agency, travel costs may be reimbursed.  Any recommendations of the 
Committee shall be submitted in writing to the appropriate management representative who shall 
promptly respond with respect to each recommendation.  
 
SECTION 2 – Other Committees 

The parties agree that where the state or an agency has a committee created by agency 
policy to directly address fire service operations and other matters of safety related to employees, 
the FSFSA may select one employee to serve on any such committee.  Employees assigned to 
serve shall be permitted to attend meetings while on-duty with no loss of pay or benefits.  If 
travel costs are incurred by the FSFSA selected member, the agency may reimburse the costs at 
its discretion. 
 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 22 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 22 
PERSONAL PROPERTY – REPLACEMENT AND/OR REIMBURSEMENT 
(A) An employee, while on duty and acting within the scope of employment, who suffers 

damage or destruction of the employee’s watch or prescription glasses, or other such items of 
personal property as have been given prior approval by the Agency Head or his/her designee as 
being required by the employee to adequately perform the duties of the position, will be 
reimbursed or have such property repaired or replaced as provided herein. 

(B) A written report must be filed detailing the circumstances under which such property 
was damaged or destroyed.  Reimbursement will not be provided for The damage cannot be that 
is the result of the negligence of the employee.  Upon verification by the agency of the 
circumstances under which the damage or destruction occurred, and upon proper documentation 
by the employee of the amount expended, the Sstate shall authorize reimbursement for repair or 
replacement of such property, not to exceed the following amounts: 
 

1. Watch - $75 
2. Prescription glasses - $200 – including any examination 
3. Other items – The Agency Head or his/her designee shall have final authority 

to determine the reimbursement value of any items other than watches or 
prescription glasses. 

4. Total allowable per incident - $500 
 

(C) Such reimbursements require the approval of the Agency Head or his/her designee.  
Approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 23 (Status Quo)  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 30, 2013 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 23 
HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME 

SECTION 1 – Hours of Work and Overtime 
(A) The normal work period for each full-time employee shall be 40 hours consisting of 

five (5) eight (8) hour, or four (4) ten (10) hour, days, or a 28 day, 160 hour period.  Department 
of Children and Families employees shall remain on a 28 day, 192 hour period, consisting of 24 
hours on-duty and 48 hours off-duty. 

(B) Management retains the right to schedule its employees; however, the state will make 
a good faith effort, whenever practical, to provide employees with consecutive hours in the 
workday and consecutive days in the workweek. 

(C) Work beyond the normal workweek shall be administered in accordance with the 
provisions of Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code. 

(D) Management retains the right to approve time off for its employees.  However, the 
state will make a good faith effort, whenever practical, to allow employees to use compensatory 
leave credits as requested by the employee.  Failure to approve an employee’s specific request 
shall not be grievable under the provisions of Article 6 of this Agreement. 

(E) The state agrees that the assignment of overtime is not to be made on the basis of 
favoritism.  Where an employee has reason to believe that overtime is being assigned on the 
basis of favoritism, the employee shall have the right to the grievance procedure under Article 6 
up to Step 2 of the procedure. 
 
SECTION 2 – Work Schedules, Vacation and Holiday Schedules 

(A) When regular work schedules are changed, employees’ normal work schedules, 
showing each employee’s shift, workdays, and hours, will be posted no less than 14 calendar 
days in advance, and will reflect at least a two (2) workweek schedule; however, the state will 
make a good faith effort to reflect a one (1) month schedule.  In the event an employee’s shift, 
workdays, or hours are changed while the employee is on approved leave, the agency will notify 
the employee of the change at his home.  With prior written notification of at least three (3) 
workdays to the employee’s immediate supervisor, employees may agree to exchange days or 
shifts on a temporary basis.  If the immediate supervisor objects to the exchange of workdays or 
shifts, the employee initiating the notification shall be advised that the exchange is disapproved. 

(B) Where practical, shifts, shift transfers, and regular days off shall be scheduled with 
due regard for the needs of the agency, seniority, and employee preference.  The state and the 
FSFSA understand that there may be times when the needs of the agency will not permit such 
scheduling; however, when an employee’s shift and/or regular days off are changed, the agency 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 23 (Status Quo)  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 30, 2013 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

will make a good faith effort to keep the employee on the new shift or regular days off for a 
minimum of 12 months unless otherwise requested by the employee. 

(C) When an employee is not assigned to a rotating shift and the employee’s regular shift 
assignment is being changed, the state will schedule the employee to be off work for a minimum 
of two shifts between the end of the previous shift assignment and the beginning of the new shift 
assignment. 

(D) Where practical, vacation and holiday leave shall be scheduled in advance of such 
leave.  Time off for vacations and holidays, when the holiday is a regularly scheduled workday 
for the employee, will be scheduled with due regard for the needs of the agency, seniority, and 
employee preference.  In implementing this provision, nothing shall preclude an agency from 
making reasonable accommodations for extraordinary leave requests as determined by the 
agency, or ensuring the fair distribution of leave during the holidays. 

(E) The state will continue to observe the scheduling structures currently in place at each 
agency and agrees to bargain any change in the overall practice of how schedules are established.  
Scheduling structures shall mean the normal work period as set forth in Section 1(A) of this 
article. 
 
SECTION 3 – Rest Periods 

(A)  No supervisor shall unreasonably deny an employee a 15 minute rest period during 
each four (4) hour work shift.  Whenever possible, such rest periods shall be scheduled at the 
middle of the work shift.  However, it is recognized that many positions have a post of duty 
assignment that requires coverage for a full eight hour shift, which would not permit the 
employee to actually leave his post.  In those cases, it is recognized that the employee can “rest” 
while the employee physically remains in the geographic location of his duty post. 

(B) An employee may not accumulate unused rest periods, nor shall rest periods be 
authorized for covering an employee’s late arrival on duty or early departure from duty. 
 
SECTION 4 – Work Day 
 (A) The state will make a good faith effort not to require an employee to split a workday 
into two or more segments without the agreement of the employee and the employer. 
 (B) Where employees are required to work extra hours during an approved extended 
work period, the state will make a good faith effort to offset such extra hours in eight (8) hour 
increments, provided this can be done prior to the end of the extended work period. 
 
 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 23 (Status Quo)  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 30, 2013 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

SECTION 5 – Special Compensatory Leave 
(A)  Earning of Special Compensatory Leave Credits.  Special compensatory leave 

credits may be earned only in the following instances: 
  (1) By an employee in the career service for work performed on a holiday as 
defined in section 110.117, Florida Statutes, or for work performed during a work period that 
includes a holiday, as provided by the Rules of the State Personnel System. 
  (2) By an employee in the career service for work performed in the 
employee’s assigned office, facility, or region which is closed pursuant to an Executive Order of 
the Governor or any other disaster or emergency condition. 

(B) Special Compensatory Leave Earned Prior to July 1, 2012 
An employee may be required to reduce special compensatory leave credit 

balances. 
(C)  Special Compensatory Leave Earned On or After July 1, 2012 

  (1) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection 
(A)(1), on or after July 1, 2012, which are not used each year by the April 30 or October 31 that 
immediately succeeds the work period in which the leave is credited, whichever date occurs 
earlier, shall be forfeited. 
  (2) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection 
(A)(2), on or after July 1, 2012, which are not used within 120 calendar days from the end of the 
work period in which the leave is credited shall be forfeited. 
  (3) Each agency shall schedule employees earning special compensatory leave 
credits in a manner that allows all such leave credits earned on or after July 1, 2012, to be used 
within the time limits specified in subsections 1 and 2.  However, if scheduling such leave within 
such time limits would prevent the agency from meeting minimum staffing requirements needed 
to ensure public safety, the agency head may extend the time limits specified in subsections 1 
and 2 for up to an additional 180 calendar days.  Extensions will not be allowed for any other 
reason. 
  (4) No agency may make a payout of unused special compensatory leave 
credits earned on or after July 1, 2012. 
 (D) Unless otherwise prohibited by law or rule, all requests for use of approved leave, 
other than administrative leave, shall first be charged to any special compensatory leave credits 
the employee has accrued. 
 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 24 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 24 
ON-CALL ASSIGNMENT, CALL-BACK AND RESIDENCY 

SECTION 1 – On-Call 
 An “on-call” assignment shall exist where the employee has been instructed by the 
appropriate management to remain available to work during an off duty period.  The employee 
must leave word where the employee may be reached by phone or electronic signaling device.  
The employee must be available to return to the work location on short notice to perform 
assigned duties. 
 
SECTION 2 – On-Call Fees 
 (A) When approved as provided herein, an employee who is required to be on-call shall 
be compensated by payment of a fee in an amount of one dollar ($1.00) per hour for each hour or 
portion thereof such employee is required to be on-call. 
 (B) An employee who is required to be on-call on a Saturday, Sunday, or holiday as listed 
in section 110.117, Florida Statutes, will be compensated by payment of a fee in an amount equal 
to one-fourth (1/4) of the statewide minimum for the employee’s payband level for each hour or 
portion thereof such employee is required to be on-call. 
 (C) On-call assignments are not to be granted on the basis of favoritism. 
 
SECTION 3 – Call Back 

(A) When an employee who has been placed on-call in accordance with Section 1 above 
is called back to the work location to perform assigned duties, the employee shall be credited for 
actual time worked, or a minimum of two (2) hours whichever is greater. 

(B) An employee called back during a designated on-call assignment shall be required to 
be en route with apparatus within 45 minutes of confirmed notification by dispatch. 
 
SECTION 4 – Residency Requirement 
 Florida Forest Service employees will reside within a radius of 20 statute miles of their 
permanent assigned headquarters.  However, single engine and multi-engine reciprocal aircraft 
pilots/fire, and firefighter rotorcraft pilots hired after July 1, 2012, will reside within a radius of 
20 statute miles of the permanent location of their assigned aircraft. 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 25 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 30, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 

For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

Article 25 
WAGES 

SECTION 1 – Pay Provisions – General 
(A) Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 General 

Appropriations Act.  
(B) Increases to base rate of pay and salary additives shall be in accordance with state 

law and the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 General Appropriations Act.   

SECTION 2 – Unemployment Rate Incentive 
 In recognition of reducing the unemployment rate from December 2010 to December 
2012, the Governor’s Budget Recommendations provide for a one-time, non-discretionary, 
$1,200 lump sum bonus award, plus applicable taxes, to eligible employees.  Eligibility 
requirements are set forth in Section 8 – Salaries and Benefits – Fiscal Year 2013-2014 of the 
Governor’s Recommendations.  The awards shall be paid to eligible employees no later than 
August 30, 2013, and are subject to funding as provided in the 2013-2014 General 
Appropriations Act. 

SECTION 3 – Variable Compensation Award 
 The Governor’s Budget Recommendations provide for discretionary, one-time lump sum 
interim variable compensation awards to eligible employees achieving high job performance as 
evidenced by the employee’s performance evaluation period ending during the period July 1, 
2012 through June 30, 2013.  Awards for Outstanding and Commendable performance will be 
$5,000 and $2,500, respectively, plus applicable taxes.  Eligibility requirements are set forth in 
Section 8 – Salaries and Benefits – Fiscal Year 2013-2014 of the Governor’s Recommendations. 
The awards shall be paid to eligible employees no later than September 30, 2013, and are subject 
to funding as provided in the 2013-2014 General Appropriations Act. 

SECTION 4 – Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency 
 In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 General 
Appropriations Act, and contingent upon the availability of funds and at the agency head’s 
discretion, each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15 
percent of the employee’s base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or 
area closed due to emergency conditions from another area of the state that is not closed. 

SECTION 5 – Cash Payout of Annual Leave 
 Permanent Career Service employees may be given the option of receiving up to 24 hours 
of unused annual leave each December, in the form of a cash payout subject to, and in 
accordance with, section 110.219(7), Florida Statutes. 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 25 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 30, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 

For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

SECTION 6 – Performance Pay  
 Each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee’s 
exemplary performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 
60L-35, Florida Administrative Code. 

SECTION 7 – Savings Sharing Program 
 An employee or groups of employees may be eligible for monetary awards for ideas or 
programs that result in a cost saving to the state, pursuant to section 110.1245(1), Florida 
Statutes. 

SECTION 8 – Pay Subject to General Appropriations Act 
 In the event the 2013 Legislature provides different funding or eligibility provisions for 
the above-specified pay increases and payments, the State and the Union agree that such 
increases and payments shall be administered in accordance with the provisions of the Fiscal 
Year 2013-2014 General Appropriations Act, and any other relevant statutes.   



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 26 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 26                     
VACANT 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 27 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 27 
UNIFORMS 

SECTION 1 – Uniform Allowance  
FSFSA e Employees who are currently required to wear uniforms in the Florida Forest 

Service and at the Florida State Hospital shall have a uniform purchase and boot allowance 
pursuant to the agency’s uniform policy. 
 
SECTION 2 – Accessories 

(A) Where hand-held radios are provided, they will be suitable for firefighting use. 
(B) Where it is current practice, shield or star style badges shall be provided to 

employees.  Collar brass will continue to be standard issue per agency policy. 
(C)  Name tags shall continue to be standard issue per agency policy. 
(D)  Employees will be permitted to wear EMT, award recognition and union pins.  The 

union pin shall be no larger than one (1) inch in diameter. 
 
SECTION 3 – Non-Uniformed Employees 

Non-uniformed employees in the Department of Financial Services, Division of State 
Fire Marshal, shall receive a clothing allowance in the amount of $250.00 annually. 

 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 28 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 28 
VACANT 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 29 (Status Quo)  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 29 
VACANT 

 
 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 30 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 30 
VACANT 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 31 (Substance – Status Quo)  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
Approved for the State      Approved for the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 31 
MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 

The FSFSA agrees that the Sstate has and will continue to retain, whether exercised or 
not, the right to determine unilaterally the purpose of each of its constituent agencies, set 
standards of services to be offered to the public, and exercise control and discretion over its 
organization and operations.  It is also the right of the public employer to direct its employees, 
take disciplinary action for proper cause, and relieve its employees from duty because of lack of 
work or for other legitimate reasons, except as abridged or modified by the express provisions of 
this Contract Agreement; provided, however, that the exercise of such rights shall not preclude 
an employee or employee representative from raising a grievance on any such decision which 
violates the terms and conditions of this Contract Agreement. 
 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 32 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 32 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

SECTION 1 – Agreement 
(A) This Agreement supersedes and cancels all prior practices and agreements in conflict 

with this Agreement, whether written or oral, unless expressly stated to the contrary herein, and 
constitutes the complete and entire agreement between the parties, and concludes collective 
bargaining for its term. 

(B) The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which resulted in this 
Agreement, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with 
respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining, and 
that the understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right 
and opportunity are set forth in this Agreement. 

(C) Except as to the above subjects, t The state and the FSFSA, for the duration of this 
Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right, and each agrees that the other 
shall not be obligated to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter referred to, or 
covered in this Agreement, even though such subjects or matters may not have been within the 
knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated or signed 
this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 2 – Memorandum of Understanding/Settlements 

The parties recognize that during the term of this Agreement situations may arise which 
require that terms and conditions not specifically and clearly set forth in the Agreement must be 
clarified or amended. Under such circumstances, the FSFSA is specifically authorized by 
employees to enter into the settlement of grievance disputes or memorandums of understanding 
which clarify or amend this Agreement, without having to be ratified by employees.  Such 
settlements and memorandums of understanding, if any, shall be attached as Appendix D. 

 



Florida State Fire Service Association (FSFSA)/Fire Service Unit 
State Proposal – Article 33 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State       For the FSFSA 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Nathaniel Wright 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     President and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date         Date 
 
 

Article 33 
SAVINGS CLAUSE 

If any provision of this Agreement is rendered or declared invalid, unlawful, or not 
enforceable by reason of any court action or existing or subsequently enacted legislation or 
federal regulation; or if the appropriate governmental body having amendatory power to change 
a law, rule or regulation which is in conflict with a provision of this Agreement fails to enact or 
adopt an enabling amendment to make the provision effective in accordance with section 
447.309(3), Florida Statutes; then such provision shall not be applicable, performed, or enforced; 
but the remaining parts or portions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect for the 
term of this Agreement. 

 



JOSEPH EGAN, JR.

TOBEM.LEV

RICHARDP. SIWICA

EGAN. LEV & SIWICA, P.A.
ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW

POST OfFICE Box 2231
ORLANDO, FLORIDA 32802-2231

TEL (407) 422-1400
FAX (407) 422-3658

January 30,2013

STREET ADDRESS

231 E. COLONIAL DRIVE

ORLO\NDO, FLORIDA

32801

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL

Michael Mattimore, Esquire
MMATTIMORE@anblaw.com
Allen, Norton & Blue, P.A.
906 N. Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL 32303

Re: Florida State Fire Service Associatioll Negotiations

Dear Mike:

I am in receipt of your proposals for the Florida State Fire Service Association (the
"FSFSA") contract to begin on July 1, 2013.

As you know, the parties are in litigation Over the Governor unlawfully insisting to
impasse over, inter alia, changes to Article 16 (retirement) in reopener negotiations for the 2009
- 2012 contract. Because the case was in litigation, the "resoh-ed" reopener issues were not
submitted to a ratification vote, and thus did not take effect as a matter of contract or by virtue of
Section 447.403(4)(e). The Governor's proposals in connection with the subsequent
"agreement" were likewise riddled with permissive subjects of bargaining and the putative 2012
- 2013 "agreement" has likewise not been submitted to a ratification vote, and have therefore not
taken effect, either as a matter of contract or by operation oflaw.

Without prejudice to the FSFSA addressing the foregoing, we are enclosing a summary
ofthe Union's proposals for the contract to go into effect July 2013.

Hopefully can get some of these off the table in advance of the legislative body hearing.

Respectfully,

Richard Siwica

Enclosure



Union Proposals; effective July 12013

! Article
!Union Response to !Union PTOpo~alSI Employer Propo~al

Agreement No proposal
No proposal

Preamble No proposal
No proposal

1
The FSFSA accepts the No Proposal
proposed change

2 No proposal
No proposal

3 No proposal
Maintain/restore 2009-2012 CBA language':'.

The Union accepts the
references to "FSFSA"

4 throughout the document but No proposal
reject all other proposals
regarding Article 4.

- The FSFSA re-proposes its proposed changes to Sections 3(C),
8(G) and 9(D) made in bargaining for the CBA to succeed the

5 No proposal
2009-2012 CBA.

- Maintain/restore Article 5, Sections 2(B)(1), 8(A), 9(A) and
9(B) from the 2009-2012 CBA*.

- The FSFSA re-proposes its proposed changes to Section 3,
Step 3 made in bargaining for the CBA to succeed the 2009-
2012 CBA.

- The FSFSA proposes to delete the references to "Appendix 8"
- The Union accepts the and "Appendix C" throughout the C8A.
proposed changes to Article 6,
Section 2 as well as the deletion - Maintain/restore Step 3 (Arbitration) and Article 6, Section 4
of the word "after" and from the 2009-2012 CBA*.

6
addition of the word "following
throughout the article. - The FSFSA proposes to delete Section 4 and replace it with

the following: "Any party failing to comply with a time limit
- The Union rejects the shall forfeit the grievance on the merits, and the arbitrator's
proposed changes to Article 6, jurisdiction shall be limited to the scope of the remedy."
Section 3(5)(d).

- The FSFSA proposes to replace the current Section 5(f) 2)
with the following: "When backpay is awarded, it shall
automatically include lost overtime. In the e\ ent of any
monetary award, the prevailing Grievant shall be entitled to
compound interest."

- The FSFSA re-proposes its proposed changes to Article 7(A),

7
- The Union rejects all the (E) and new provisions (G) and (H) made in bargaining for the
Employer's proposed changes. CRA to succeed the 2009-2012 CBA.

- Except for the forgoing proposed changes, maintain/restore
Article 7 from the 2009-2012 CBA"'.

8 No Proposal The FSFSA proposes to restore the language of Article 8 that



9

10

11

12

13

14

The Union rejects all the
Employer's proposed changes.

No Proposal

No Proposal

The FSFSA accepts the
proposed change, consistent
with the re-lettering in the
Union's proposal.

No Proposal

No proposal

appeared in the 2009-2012 CBA.

The FSFSA proposes to maintain/restore the language of Article
9 that appeared in the original 2009-2012 CBA, except as
modified by the FSFSA's proposals in connection with
negotiations for the CBA to succeed the 2009-2012 CBA,
including the proposals to change Section 2 (adding a new
paragraph (H», Section 3 (adding new paragraphs (B) and (C»,
and deleting Section (6).

The FSFSA re-proposes the proposal it made in connection with
negotiations for the CBA to succeed the 2009-2012 CBA,
including the proposals to change Section 1 (adding a new
paragraphs (C) and (D» and Section 3 (adding new paragraph
D».

The FSFSA re-proposes the proposal it made in connection with
negotiations for the CBA to succeed the 2009-2012 CBA,
including the proposals to add new Sections 3 and 4.

The FSFSA proposes to maintain/restore the language of Article
12 that appeared in the original 2009-2012 CBA, except as
modified by the FSFSA's proposals in connection with
negotiations for the CBA to succeed the 2009-2012 CHA,
including adding new paragraphs (D) and (E).

-The FSFSA proposes to delete Section I(B).

-The FSFSA re-proposes the proposals it made in connection
with negotiations for the CBA to succeed the 2009-2012 CBA,
including the proposals to change Section (4)(A) (adding a new
subparagraphs (3» and Section 4(C) (amending subparagraph
(3) and adding new subparagraphs (9) and (l0».

-The FSFSA proposes to add Section 4(C)(9) providing as
follows: "No employee will suffer loss of compensation or will
be separated from employment ~ithout first being offered the
opportunity to receive a second medical opinion. If the medical
opinions differ, the final return to work determination will be
made be a third physician jointly chosen by the other two (at the
state's expense), subject to final review in arbitration."

- The FSFSA also proposes to add a new Section 5 as follows:
"Notwithstanding anything else in this agreement, the state may
not increase the cost of any premium or cost at the point of
service (including deductibles, co-pays or the like) or in any
way reduce the level of benefits without first reaching mutual
agreement with the FSFSA."

The FSFSA proposes to maintain/restore the language of Article
14 that appeared in the original 2009-2012 CBA, except as



modified by the Union's proposals In connection with
negotiations for the CBA to succeed the 2009-2012 CBA,
including adding new paragraphs (A), (B), (C) and (D) under
Section 2; (A) and (B) under Section 3; and new Section (4).

15 No proposal
The FSFSA proposes to maintain/restore the language of Article
15(A) that appeared in the 2009-2012 CBA.

The FSFSA rejects the proposal
The FSFSA proposes to maintain/restore the language of Article
16 that appeared in the original 2009-2012 CBA, to wit: "All

16 to delete any reference to bargaining unit members shall continue to participate in the
retirement. Florida Retirement (FRS) at no cost to the employee."

-The FSFSA re-proposes the proposals it made in connection
with negotiations for the CBA to succeed the 2009-2012 CBA,
including the proposal to add a new Section (1)(B) and amend

17 No Proposal
Section 2.

-The FSFSA proposes to maintain/restore the language of
Article 17, Section 2 that appeared in the original 2009-2012
CBA.

18 No Proposal No Proposal

19 No Proposal No Proposal

The FSFSA re-proposes the proposal it made in connection with
negotiations for the CBA to succeed the 2009-2012 CBA,

20 No Proposal including the proposals to add a new language to Section 2,
specifically subsections 2(C) through (F), as well as new
Sections 4 and 5.

The FSFSA re-proposes the proposal it made in connection with

21 No Proposal
negotiations for the CBA to succeed the 2009-2012 CBA,
including the proposals to add a new language to Subsection
2(B).

22 FSFSA agrees to state proposal No FSFSA proposal

- The FSFSA proposes to maintainirestore the language of
Article 23 that appeared in the original 2009-2012 CRA, with
the exception of the proposals it made in connection with
negotiations for the CRA to succeed the 2009-2012 CBA,
including the proposals to add new language in Section 1,
Subparagraph (A) and (E) as well as new Subparagraphs (F),

23 No Proposal (G), (H), (1) and (J) in Section 1; and new Subparagraph (F) in
Section 2 and new Subparagraph (C) in Section 4.

- The FSFSA further proposes language as follows "The state
agrees to comply with the Fair Labor Standards Act, and permit
the accrual and usage of compensatory time to the fullest extent
permitted by law."

24 No Proposal



The FSFSA proposes to maintain/restore the language of Article
24 that appeared in the original 2009-2012 CBA, with the
exception of the proposals it made in connection with
negotiations for the CBA to succeed the 2009-2012 CBA,
including the proposals to add new Subparagraphs (B) and (C)
in Section 1, as well as new language in Subparagraph (A)
Section 3; and new Subparagraphs (C), (0) and (E) in Section 3.

- The FSFSA proposes a retroactive across the board retroactive
pay increase of ten percent (10%) for the first year of the
contract with reopeners for wages and two (2) other articles in
the second and third years.

25 No Proposal
- The FSFSA re-proposes the proposal it made in connection
with negotiations for the CBA to succeed the 2009-2012 CBA,
including the proposals to add a new language to Section new
Sections 5 and 6 of Article 25.

No New Proposal
The FSFSA re-proposes the proposal it made in connection with

26
negotiations for the CBA to succeed the 2009-2012 CBA,
including the proposals to add a new language comprising
Article 26

No Proposal
The FSFSA re-proposes the proposal it made in connection with

27
negotiations for the CBA to succeed the 2009-2012 CBA,
including the proposals to add a new language comprising
Article 27

28 No Proposal No Proposal

29 No Proposal No Proposal

No Proposal

30
The FSFSA proposes to maintain/restore the language of Article
30 that appeared in the 2009-2012 CBA.

31 No New Proposal No New Proposal

The FSFSA proposes to maintain/restore the language of Article
30 that appeared in the 2009-2012 CBA, with the exception of

32 Sections I(A). Th~ agreement shall be of three year's duration,
with an automatic reopener for wages and two other subjects in
the second and third year.

33 No Proposal No Proposal

The FSFSA proposes to maintain/restore the language of Article
30 that appeared in the 2009-2012 C,BA, with the exception of

34 Sections I(A). The agreement shall be ofthree year's duration,
with an automatic reopener for wages and two other subjects in
the second and third year.

Appendices The Union reiects Appendices "B" and "C"
*Removed in 2012-2013 CBA; prior language remains in effect by operation oflaw.



Florida State Fire Service Association – Fire Service Unit 
Cost Estimates of Union’s Economic Proposals 

 
 
The state is unable to provide cost estimates for the union’s proposals based on the lack of 
specificity in its letter and summary document. 



Fl
or

id
a 

St
at

e 
Fi

re
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
Fi

re
 S

er
vi

ce
 U

ni
t –

 S
ta

te
 P

er
so

nn
el

 S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 O

ne
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
 –

 1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

A
ll 

ar
tic

le
s a

re
 a

t i
m

pa
ss

e 
 

Pa
ge

 1
 

  
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

1 
– 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

18
-1

3:
 

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

 

 
 

2 
– 

G
en

de
r R

ef
er

en
ce

 
St

at
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 o
f 0

1-
18

-1
3:

 
St

at
us

 q
uo

 
 

 
 

3 
– 

V
ac

an
t 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

18
-1

3:
 

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

 

 
 

4 
– 

N
o 

D
is

cr
im

in
at

io
n 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

18
-1

3:
 

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

 

 
 

5 
– 

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

R
ig

ht
s 

 
St

at
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 o
f 0

1-
18

-1
3:

 
St

at
us

 q
uo

 
 

 
 

6 
– 

G
rie

va
nc

e 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

            

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
2-

04
-1

3:
 

Se
ct

io
n 

2(
A

) –
 S

tri
ke

s t
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 fo

r 
el

ec
tio

n 
of

 re
m

ed
y 

fo
r i

ss
ue

s t
ha

t m
ay

 
be

 g
rie

ve
d 

or
 a

pp
ea

le
d 

to
 th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s R

el
at

io
ns

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 
(P

ER
C

) –
 st

at
e 

pr
op

os
al

 fo
r A

rti
cl

e 
7 

pr
ov

id
es

 P
ER

C
 a

pp
ea

l a
s e

xc
lu

si
ve

 
re

m
ed

y 
fo

r s
uc

h 
ac

tio
ns

. 
     

 
 



Fl
or

id
a 

St
at

e 
Fi

re
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
Fi

re
 S

er
vi

ce
 U

ni
t –

 S
ta

te
 P

er
so

nn
el

 S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 O

ne
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
 –

 1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

A
ll 

ar
tic

le
s a

re
 a

t i
m

pa
ss

e 
 

Pa
ge

 2
 

  
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

6 
– 

G
rie

va
nc

e 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Se
ct

io
n 

3(
I)(

4)
 –

 P
ro

po
se

s t
he

 p
ar

tie
s 

m
ay

, b
y 

w
rit

te
n 

ag
re

em
en

t, 
su

bm
it 

a 
gr

ie
va

nc
e 

to
 m

ed
ia

tio
n 

af
te

r i
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 a

rb
itr

at
io

n 
bu

t b
ef

or
e 

a 
he

ar
in

g 
is

 sc
he

du
le

d.
 

 Se
ct

io
n 

3(
I)(

5)
(d

) –
 P

ro
po

se
s i

ss
ue

s o
f 

ar
bi

tra
bi

lit
y 

be
 h

ea
rd

 in
 a

n 
ex

pe
di

te
d 

 
he

ar
in

g 
lim

ite
d 

to
 o

ne
 d

ay
; i

f t
he

 
ar

bi
tra

to
r d

et
er

m
in

es
 th

at
 th

e 
is

su
e 

is
 

ar
bi

tra
bl

e,
 a

no
th

er
 a

rb
itr

at
or

 sh
al

l b
e 

ch
os

en
 to

 c
on

du
ct

 a
 h

ea
rin

g 
on

 th
e 

su
bs

ta
nt

iv
e 

is
su

es
. 

   
7 

– 
D

is
ci

pl
in

ar
y 

A
ct

io
n 

           

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

18
-1

3:
 

Se
ct

io
n 

B
 –

 P
ro

po
se

s t
ha

t a
ct

io
ns

 
ap

pe
al

ab
le

 to
 P

ER
C

 u
nd

er
 se

ct
io

n 
11

0.
22

7(
5)

, F
.S

., 
i.e

., 
su

sp
en

si
on

, 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 p

ay
, d

em
ot

io
n,

 in
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

tra
ns

fe
r o

f m
or

e 
th

an
 5

0 
m

ile
s b

y 
hi

gh
w

ay
, a

nd
 d

is
m

is
sa

l, 
be

 a
pp

ea
le

d 
ex

cl
us

iv
el

y 
to

 P
ER

C
 a

nd
 n

ot
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 th
e 

gr
ie

va
nc

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

in
 A

rti
cl

e 
6.

 
   

 
A

n 
em

pl
oy

ee
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 h
as

 th
e 

op
tio

n 
of

 a
pp

ea
lin

g 
di

sc
ip

lin
ar

y 
ac

tio
ns

 re
fe

re
nc

ed
 in

 S
ec

tio
n 

B
 

to
 P

ER
C

, o
r g

rie
vi

ng
 su

ch
 

ac
tio

ns
 u

til
iz

in
g 

th
e 

gr
ie

va
nc

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

in
 A

rti
cl

e 
6.

  T
he

 
st

at
e 

pr
op

os
es

 P
ER

C
 a

s t
he

 
ex

cl
us

iv
e 

re
m

ed
y 

fo
r r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
su

ch
 a

ct
io

ns
. B

en
ef

its
: t

he
 h

ig
h 

co
st

 o
f a

rb
itr

at
io

ns
 v

s. 
PE

R
C

 a
t 

no
 c

os
t t

o 
th

e 
ag

en
ci

es
; 

sc
he

du
lin

g 
di

ff
ic

ul
tie

s w
ith

 



Fl
or

id
a 

St
at

e 
Fi

re
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
Fi

re
 S

er
vi

ce
 U

ni
t –

 S
ta

te
 P

er
so

nn
el

 S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 O

ne
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
 –

 1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

A
ll 

ar
tic

le
s a

re
 a

t i
m

pa
ss

e 
 

Pa
ge

 3
 

  
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

7 
– 

D
is

ci
pl

in
ar

y 
A

ct
io

n 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
Se

ct
io

n 
E 

– 
Pr

op
os

es
 m

em
or

an
da

 o
f 

re
co

rd
 a

nd
 m

em
or

an
da

 o
f s

up
er

vi
si

on
 

(le
tte

rs
 o

f c
ou

ns
el

in
g)

 a
re

 n
ot

 d
is

ci
pl

in
e 

an
d 

ar
e 

no
t g

rie
va

bl
e;

 su
ch

 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n 

m
ay

 b
e 

us
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

st
at

e 
at

 a
n 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
he

ar
in

g 
in

vo
lv

in
g 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

’s
 d

is
ci

pl
in

e 
to

 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
 w

as
 o

n 
no

tic
e 

of
 th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 d

ef
ic

ie
nc

ie
s o

r 
co

nd
uc

t c
on

ce
rn

s. 
 Se

ct
io

n 
H

 –
 P

ro
po

se
s a

n 
ag

en
cy

 m
ay

 
ha

ve
 sp

ec
ia

l c
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

eq
ua

l 
to

 th
e 

le
ng

th
 o

f a
 d

is
ci

pl
in

ar
y 

su
sp

en
si

on
 d

ed
uc

te
d 

fr
om

 a
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

’s
 le

av
e 

ba
la

nc
e 

in
 li

eu
 o

f 
se

rv
in

g 
th

e 
su

sp
en

si
on

; t
he

 a
ge

nc
y 

w
ill

 
co

ns
id

er
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
’s

 p
re

fe
re

nc
e 

of
 

se
rv

in
g 

th
e 

su
sp

en
si

on
 o

r h
av

in
g 

le
av

e 
de

du
ct

ed
; i

f l
ea

ve
 d

ed
uc

te
d,

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 re

po
rt 

fo
r 

du
ty

; t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
’s

 p
er

so
nn

el
 fi

le
 w

ill
 

re
fle

ct
 a

 d
is

ci
pl

in
ar

y 
su

sp
en

si
on

 
re

ga
rd

le
ss

 o
f w

he
th

er
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
 

se
rv

es
 th

e 
su

sp
en

si
on

 o
r h

as
 le

av
e 

de
du

ct
ed

. 
  

ar
bi

tra
to

rs
 v

s. 
an

 e
xp

ed
iti

ou
s 

he
ar

in
g 

an
d 

de
ci

si
on

 fr
om

 
PE

R
C

; e
xp

er
ie

nc
ed

 h
ea

rin
g 

of
fic

er
s f

am
ili

ar
 w

ith
 a

ge
nc

y 
m

is
si

on
s;

 P
ER

C
 o

rd
er

s a
re

 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
gu

id
an

ce
 to

 
ag

en
ci

es
 w

he
n 

si
m

ila
r i

ss
ue

s 
ar

is
e;

 a
nd

 a
pp

ea
ls

 to
 d

is
tri

ct
 

co
ur

ts
. 

 



Fl
or

id
a 

St
at

e 
Fi

re
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
Fi

re
 S

er
vi

ce
 U

ni
t –

 S
ta

te
 P

er
so

nn
el

 S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 O

ne
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
 –

 1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

A
ll 

ar
tic

le
s a

re
 a

t i
m

pa
ss

e 
 

Pa
ge

 4
 

  
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

8 
– 

W
or

kf
or

ce
 R

ed
uc

tio
ns

 
St

at
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 o
f 0

1-
18

-1
3:

 
St

at
us

 q
uo

 
 

 

9 
– 

V
ol

un
ta

ry
 

R
ea

ss
ig

nm
en

t, 
Tr

an
sf

er
, 

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 D

ut
y 

St
at

io
n 

an
d 

Pr
om

ot
io

ns
 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

18
-1

3:
  

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

 
 

10
 –

 O
cc

up
at

io
n 

Pr
of

ile
s/

R
ul

es
 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d/

D
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

18
-1

3:
  

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

 

 
 

11
 –

 C
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n 
R

ev
ie

w
 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

18
-1

3:
  

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

 
 

12
 –

 P
er

so
nn

el
 R

ec
or

ds
 

 
St

at
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 o
f 0

1-
18

-1
3:

 
Pr

ov
id

es
 fo

r t
he

 p
ro

ce
ss

 to
 m

ar
k 

el
ec

tro
ni

c 
re

co
rd

s t
ha

t h
av

e 
be

en
 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 to

 b
e 

in
va

lid
. 

 
 

13
 –

 H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 W

el
fa

re
 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

18
-1

3:
  

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

 
 

14
 –

 S
ta

te
 V

eh
ic

le
s a

nd
 

V
es

se
ls

 
St

at
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 o
f 0

1-
18

-1
3:

  
St

at
us

 q
uo

 
 

 

15
 –

 P
ro

ba
tio

na
ry

 S
ta

tu
s 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

18
-1

3:
  

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

 
 

16
 –

 R
et

ire
m

en
t 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

18
-1

3:
 

Pr
op

os
es

 v
ac

an
t a

rti
cl

e 
 

 

17
 –

 A
llo

w
an

ce
s a

nd
 

R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
ts

 
St

at
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 o
f 0

1-
18

-1
3:

  
St

at
us

 q
uo

 
 

 

18
 –

 L
ea

ve
s o

f A
bs

en
ce

 
St

at
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 o
f 0

1-
18

-1
3:

  
St

at
us

 q
uo

 
 

 



Fl
or

id
a 

St
at

e 
Fi

re
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
Fi

re
 S

er
vi

ce
 U

ni
t –

 S
ta

te
 P

er
so

nn
el

 S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 O

ne
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
 –

 1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

A
ll 

ar
tic

le
s a

re
 a

t i
m

pa
ss

e 
 

Pa
ge

 5
 

  
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

19
 –

 O
ut

si
de

 E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
St

at
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 o
f 0

1-
18

-1
3:

  
St

at
us

 q
uo

 
 

 

20
 –

 T
ra

in
in

g 
an

d 
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

 
St

at
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 o
f 0

1-
18

-1
3:

  
St

at
us

 q
uo

 
 

 

21
 –

 C
om

m
itt

ee
s  

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

18
-1

3:
 

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

 
 

22
 –

 P
er

so
na

l P
ro

pe
rty

 –
 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t a
nd

/o
r 

R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
t 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

18
-1

3:
  

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

 
 

23
 –

 H
ou

rs
 o

f W
or

k 
an

d 
O

ve
rti

m
e 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

30
-1

3:
  

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

 
 

24
 –

 O
n-

C
al

l A
ss

ig
nm

en
t, 

C
al

l-B
ac

k 
an

d 
R

es
id

en
cy

 
St

at
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 o
f 0

1-
18

-1
3:

  
St

at
us

 q
uo

 
 

 

25
 –

 W
ag

es
 

              

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

30
-1

3:
 

 Se
ct

io
n 

1 
– 

Pr
op

os
es

 p
ay

 sh
al

l b
e 

in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 th

e 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 2
01

3-
20

14
 G

en
er

al
 A

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

 A
ct

; 
in

cr
ea

se
s t

o 
ba

se
 ra

te
 o

f p
ay

 a
nd

 sa
la

ry
 

ad
di

tiv
es

 sh
al

l b
e 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 

st
at

e 
la

w
 a

nd
 th

e 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 2
01

3-
20

14
 

G
en

er
al

 A
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
 A

ct
. 

  Se
ct

io
n 

2 
– 

Pr
op

os
es

 U
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

R
at

e 
In

ce
nt

iv
e 

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 th

e 
G

ov
er

no
r’

s B
ud

ge
t R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

 

 
 



Fl
or

id
a 

St
at

e 
Fi

re
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
Fi

re
 S

er
vi

ce
 U

ni
t –

 S
ta

te
 P

er
so

nn
el

 S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 O

ne
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
 –

 1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

A
ll 

ar
tic

le
s a

re
 a

t i
m

pa
ss

e 
 

Pa
ge

 6
 

  
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

25
 –

 W
ag

es
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
                           

Se
ct

io
n 

3 
– 

Pr
op

os
es

 V
ar

ia
bl

e 
C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

A
w

ar
d 

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 th

e 
G

ov
er

no
r’

s B
ud

ge
t R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

 Se
ct

io
n 

4 
– 

Pr
op

os
es

 T
em

po
ra

ry
 S

pe
ci

al
 

D
ut

ie
s P

ay
 A

dd
iti

ve
 fo

r e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

te
m

po
ra

ril
y 

de
pl

oy
ed

 to
 a

 fa
ci

lit
y 

or
 

ar
ea

 c
lo

se
d 

du
e 

to
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

fr
om

 a
no

th
er

 a
re

a 
of

 th
e 

st
at

e 
th

at
 is

 n
ot

 
cl

os
ed

 
  Se

ct
io

n 
5 

– 
Pr

op
os

es
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s m
ay

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
th

e 
op

tio
n 

of
 re

ce
iv

in
g 

up
 to

 2
4 

ho
ur

s o
f a

nn
ua

l l
ea

ve
 e

ac
h 

D
ec

em
be

r i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 S

ec
tio

n 
11

0.
21

9(
7)

, 
F.

S.
 

  Se
ct

io
n 

6 
– 

Pr
op

os
es

 e
ac

h 
ag

en
cy

 is
 

au
th

or
iz

ed
 to

 g
ra

nt
 m

er
it 

pa
y 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
’s

 e
xe

m
pl

ar
y 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
s e

vi
de

nc
ed

 b
y 

a 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 R

ul
e 

60
L-

35
, F

.A
.C

. 
   



Fl
or

id
a 

St
at

e 
Fi

re
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
Fi

re
 S

er
vi

ce
 U

ni
t –

 S
ta

te
 P

er
so

nn
el

 S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 O

ne
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
 –

 1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

A
ll 

ar
tic

le
s a

re
 a

t i
m

pa
ss

e 
 

Pa
ge

 7
 

  
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

25
 –

 W
ag

es
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
  

Se
ct

io
n 

7 
– 

Pr
op

os
es

 a
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

 o
r 

gr
ou

ps
 o

f e
m

pl
oy

ee
s m

ay
 b

e 
el

ig
ib

le
 fo

r 
m

on
et

ar
y 

aw
ar

ds
 fo

r i
de

as
 o

r p
ro

gr
am

s 
th

at
 re

su
lt 

in
 a

 c
os

t s
av

in
g 

to
 th

e 
st

at
e,

 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 to

 S
ec

tio
n 

11
0.

12
45

(1
), 

F.
S.

 
 Se

ct
io

n 
8 

– 
Pr

op
os

es
 th

at
 in

 th
e 

ev
en

t 
th

e 
20

13
 L

eg
is

la
tu

re
 p

ro
vi

de
s d

iff
er

en
t 

fu
nd

in
g 

or
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s f

or
 th

e 
ab

ov
e-

re
fe

re
nc

e 
pa

y 
in

cr
ea

se
s a

nd
 

pa
ym

en
ts

, t
he

 st
at

e 
an

d 
th

e 
un

io
n 

ag
re

e 
th

at
 th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
s a

nd
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 sh
al

l b
e 

ad
m

in
is

te
re

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 F
is

ca
l Y

ea
r 2

01
3-

20
14

 
G

en
er

al
 A

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

 A
ct

, o
r a

ny
 

ot
he

r r
el

ev
an

t s
ta

tu
te

s. 
26

 –
 V

ac
an

t  
 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

18
-1

3:
 

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

 
 

27
 –

 U
ni

fo
rm

s  
 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

18
-1

3:
 

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

 
 

28
 –

 V
ac

an
t  

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

18
-1

3:
 

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

 
 

29
 –

 V
ac

an
t  

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

18
-1

3:
 

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

 
 

30
 –

 V
ac

an
t 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

18
-1

3:
 

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

 
 

31
 –

 M
an

ag
em

en
t R

ig
ht

s 
St

at
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 o
f 0

1-
18

-1
3:

 
St

at
us

 q
uo

 
 

 



Fl
or

id
a 

St
at

e 
Fi

re
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
Fi

re
 S

er
vi

ce
 U

ni
t –

 S
ta

te
 P

er
so

nn
el

 S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 O

ne
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
 –

 1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

A
ll 

ar
tic

le
s a

re
 a

t i
m

pa
ss

e 
 

Pa
ge

 8
 

  
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

32
 –

 E
nt

ire
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
St

at
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 o
f 0

1-
18

-1
3:

 
St

at
us

 q
uo

 
 

 

33
 –

 S
av

in
gs

 C
la

us
e 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

18
-1

3:
 

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

 
 

34
 –

 D
ur

at
io

n 
St

at
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 o
f 0

1-
18

-1
3:

  
Pr

op
os

es
 o

ne
-y

ea
r a

gr
ee

m
en

t t
o 

ex
pi

re
 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

4.
 

 
 

  



»
."
VI

~
rrI



AFSCME Florida Council 79 
State Proposal – Article 4 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 8, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State              For AFSCME Florida Council 79 
 
_____________________________         ______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore             Doug Martin 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator          Chief Negotiator    
                                                                                                                                                                               
_____________________________          ______________________________                                                   
Date                Date 

Article 4 
NO DISCRIMINATION 

SECTION 1 – Non-Discrimination Policy – State-Federal Law 
(A) Neither the state nor the Union shall discriminate against any employee for any 

reason prohibited under Florida Statutes or any federal law.  If any provision of this Contract is 
in conflict with any federal or state law or any rules having the effect of law, the law or rule shall 
prevail.  
 (B) Any claim of illegal discrimination by an employee against the state, its officials, 
or representatives, except for grievances related to union membership, shall only be subject to 
the method of review prescribed by law or by rules and regulations having the force and effect of 
law. 
 
SECTION 2 – Sexual Harassment 
 (A) The Union shall have the right to consult on issues of sexual harassment with the 
Step 1 Management Representative and/or designee(s), up through the Step 2 Management 
Representative and/or designee(s). 
 (B) The state agrees to take appropriate action if it finds an employee has engaged in 
sexual harassment. 
 (C) Any claim of sexual harassment by an employee against the state, its officials or 
representatives, shall only be subject to the method of review prescribed by law or by rules and 
regulations having the force and effect of law. 
 
SECTION 3 – Affirmative Action Program 

The Union agrees to support the state's Affirmative Action Program and any other 
affirmative action programs affecting unit employees which may be developed by the state in 
consultation with the Union which comply with or are mandated by applicable state and/or 
federal law.  Each agency will furnish the Union, upon written request, with a copy of its 
affirmative action programs which affect employees. 

The Union will have the right to appoint a representative to meet and confer with the 
agency's affirmative action - equal employment opportunity officer on the agency's affirmative 
action programs which affect employees. The agency's program shall not be subject to review 
under the provisions of Article 6 of this Contract. 
 



AFSCME Florida Council 79 
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
February 4, 2013 v2 

Page 1 of 8 
 

 
For the State              For AFSCME Florida Council 79 
 
_____________________________         ______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore             Doug Martin 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator          Chief Negotiator    
                                                                                                                                                                               
_____________________________          ______________________________                                                   
Date                Date 

Article 6 
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

It is the policy of the state and Union to encourage informal discussions between 
supervisors and employees of employee complaints. Such discussions should be held with a view 
to reaching an understanding which will resolve the matter in a manner satisfactory to the 
employee and the state, without need for recourse to the formal grievance procedure prescribed 
by this Article. 

 
SECTION 1 – Definitions  

As used in this Article 
(A) "Grievance" shall mean a dispute involving the interpretation or application of the 

specific provisions of this Contract that is filed on a grievance form as contained in Appendix B.  
(B) "Employee" shall mean an employee or a group of employees having the same 

grievance.  
(C) "Days" shall mean calendar days, excluding any day observed as a holiday 

pursuant to Florida Statutes, or holiday observed by the Union pursuant to a list furnished to the 
state in writing, as of the effective date of this Contract. 

(D) “File” or “Appeal” shall mean the receipt of a grievance by the appropriate step 
representative. 
 
SECTION 2 – Election of Remedy and Representation 

(A) Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in this Contract shall be construed to permit 
the Union or an employee to process a grievance (1) on behalf of any employee without his 
consent, or (2) when the subject of such (employee's) grievance is at the same time the subject of 
an administrative action under section 120.569 or 120.57, Florida Statutes, or appeal before a 
governmental board or agency, or court proceeding, except that employees shall have the right to 
pursue claims of discrimination in other appropriate forums. If a grievance is filed that may be 
processed under this Article and also under the Public Employees Relations Act pursuant to 
section 110.227(5), Florida Statutes, the grievant shall indicate at the time the grievance is 
reduced to writing which procedure is to be used as the exclusive remedy.  In the case of any 
duplicate filing, the action first filed will be the one processed. 

(B) An employee who decides to use this Grievance Procedure shall indicate at the 
Oral Step or initial written step (if authorized by the provisions of this Article) whether to be 
represented by the Union or another representative designated by the employee. If the employee 
is represented by the Union or another representative, any decision agreed to by the state and 



AFSCME Florida Council 79 
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
February 4, 2013 v2 

Page 2 of 8 
 

 
For the State              For AFSCME Florida Council 79 
 
_____________________________         ______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore             Doug Martin 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator          Chief Negotiator    
                                                                                                                                                                               
_____________________________          ______________________________                                                   
Date                Date 

Union or the state and the employee’s designated representative, shall be binding on the 
employee. 

 (C) Where Union representation is authorized as provided in this Contract and is 
requested by an employee, the employee's representative shall be selected from the list of 
Stewards, Union Staff Representatives or Union Regional Directors which has been provided to 
the state in accordance with Article 5 of this Contract.  The employee may also be represented by 
an attorney or other representative retained by either the Union or the employee. 

(1) If an employee selects a Steward to represent that employee in a grievance 
which has been properly filed in accordance with this Article, the Steward may be allowed a 
reasonable amount of time off with pay to investigate the grievance at the Oral Step and to 
represent the grievant at any Oral Step and Step 1 meetings which are held during regular work 
hours. Such time off with pay shall be subject to prior approval by the Steward's immediate 
supervisor; however, approval of such time off will not be withheld if the Steward can be 
allowed such time off without interfering with, or unduly hampering, the operations of the unit to 
which the Steward is regularly assigned. The Steward's immediate supervisor will notify the 
grievant's supervisor prior to allowing the Steward time off to investigate the grievance. 

(2) Investigations will be conducted in a way that does not interfere with state 
operations. 

(3) As indicated in Article 5 of this Contract, the Steward in the same work 
location or the closest work location to the grievant's work location shall be selected to represent 
the employee. In no case shall a Steward be allowed to travel more than 25 miles from his 
official work location in order to investigate a grievance. The Union will make a reasonable 
effort to ensure that it trains a sufficient number of stewards in order to minimize any such travel. 

(4) A Steward who has been selected to represent an employee as provided in 
this Article, will be considered a required participant at the Step 1 grievance meeting. 

(5) An employee who files a grievance in accordance with this Article, or the 
designated spokesperson in a class action grievance, will be considered a required participant at 
the Oral Step and Step 1 grievance meetings. 

(D) Both the employee and the employee's representative, if any, shall be notified of 
the Step 1 meeting. Further, all communication concerning written grievances or their resolution 
shall be in writing and a copy shall be sent to both the employee and the employee's 
representative. 

(E) If the employee is not represented by the Union, any adjustment of the grievance 
shall be consistent with the terms of this Contract, the Union shall be given reasonable 
opportunity to be present at any meeting called for the resolution of the grievance, and 
processing of the grievance will be in accordance with the procedures established in this 
Contract. The Union shall not be bound by the decision of any grievance in which the employee 



AFSCME Florida Council 79 
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
February 4, 2013 v2 

Page 3 of 8 
 

 
For the State              For AFSCME Florida Council 79 
 
_____________________________         ______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore             Doug Martin 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator          Chief Negotiator    
                                                                                                                                                                               
_____________________________          ______________________________                                                   
Date                Date 

chose not to be represented by the Union. 
(F) The filing or pendency of any grievance under the provisions of this Article shall 

in no way operate to impede, delay or interfere with the right of the state to take the action 
complained of, subject, however, to the final disposition of the grievance. 

(G) The resolution of a grievance prior to its submission in writing at Step 3 shall not 
establish a precedent binding on either the state or the Union in other cases. 
 
SECTION 3 – Procedures  

(A) Employee grievances filed in accordance with this Article are to be presented 
and handled promptly at the lowest level of supervision having the authority to adjust the 
grievances.  A grievance may be filed and responded to by facsimile, electronic mail, personal 
service, or mail.  Grievances are to be filed on the appropriate form as contained in Appendix B 
of this Contract. 

(B) Once a grievance is filed, no new violation or issue can be raised. 
(C) There shall be no reprisals against any of the participants in the procedures 

contained herein by reason of such participation. 
(D)  If a grievance meeting is held or requires reasonable travel time during the 

working hours of any required participant, such participant shall be excused without loss of pay 
for that purpose. Attendance at grievance meetings outside of regular working hours shall not be 
deemed time worked. 

(E)    All written grievances will be presented at the Oral Step 1, with the following 
exceptions: 

(1) If a grievance arises from the action of an official higher than the Step 1 
Management Representative, the grievance shall be filed at Step 2 on the grievance form as 
contained in Appendix B of this Contract within 21 days following the occurrence of the event 
giving rise to the grievance.   

(2) A dispute involving the interpretation or application of a provision of this 
Contract which gives a right to the Union as an employee organization may be filed by the Union 
as a grievance.  Such grievance shall be initiated at Step 3 of this procedure, in accordance with 
the provisions set forth therein, and received by the Office Manager for the Office of the General 
Counsel, Department of Management Services, 4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 160, Tallahassee, 
Florida 32399-9050, within 21 days of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance.   

(F) An employee who has not attained permanent status in his position can only file 
non-discipline grievances, which are final and binding at Step 3 as provided in this Article.  With 
respect to disciplinary grievances, oral reprimands shall not be grievable.  An employee who has 
attained permanent status in his position may grieve a written reprimand up to Step 2; the 



AFSCME Florida Council 79 
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
February 4, 2013 v2 

Page 4 of 8 
 

 
For the State              For AFSCME Florida Council 79 
 
_____________________________         ______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore             Doug Martin 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator          Chief Negotiator    
                                                                                                                                                                               
_____________________________          ______________________________                                                   
Date                Date 

decision at that level shall be final and binding. 
(G) Grievances shall be presented and adjusted in the following manner, and no 

individual may respond to a grievance at more than one written step. In the event a grievance is 
not answered in a timely manner at the preceding step, the state agrees not to remand the 
grievance for the purpose of obtaining the answer without the agreement of the Union or the 
employee’s designated representative, if any. 

(1) Oral Discussion 
(a) An employee having a grievance may, within 21 days following 

the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance, initiate the grievance by presenting the 
grievance it orally to his or her immediate supervisor, stating the specific provision(s) of the 
Contract allegedly violated, and the relief requested, or by filing a written grievance at Step 1. 
The immediate supervisor shall make every effort to resolve the grievance at the Oral Step, 
including meeting to discuss the grievance if such meeting is requested by the employee or the 
employee's representative, or if a meeting is deemed necessary by the supervisor. The supervisor 
shall communicate a decision to the employee and the employee's representative, if any, within 
14 days following the date the grievance is received at the Oral Step. 

(b) If the grievance is not resolved by such informal discussion, the 
employee may, within 21 days after receipt of a timely decision at the Oral Step, file a written 
grievance at Step 1 of this procedure. 

(c b) Failure to communicate the decision in a timely manner shall 
permit the employee, the Union, or other designated employee representative where appropriate, 
to proceed to the next step. 

(d c) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the 
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits 
specified in this step of this procedure may be extended in writing provided there is agreement 
by both parties. There shall be no retroactive extensions of time limits. 

(2 1) STEP 1 
(a) If the employee elects to utilize the oral discussion step and the 

grievance is not resolved, the employee or the designated employee representative may submit it 
in writing to the Step 1 Management Representative to be received within 21 days following the 
receipt of the oral step decision.  If the employee elects not to utilize the oral discussion 
provision of this section Tthe employee or the designated employee representative shall file a 
written grievance with the Step 1 Management Representative to be received within 21 days 
following the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance, or within 21 days of receipt of 
the decision at the Oral Step, whichever is later, on the appropriate grievance form as contained 
in Appendix B of this Contract, setting forth specifically the complete facts on which the 
grievance is based, the specific provision(s) of the Contract allegedly violated, and the relief 



AFSCME Florida Council 79 
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
February 4, 2013 v2 

Page 5 of 8 
 

 
For the State              For AFSCME Florida Council 79 
 
_____________________________         ______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore             Doug Martin 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator          Chief Negotiator    
                                                                                                                                                                               
_____________________________          ______________________________                                                   
Date                Date 

requested.  All written documents to be considered by the Step 1 Management Representative 
shall be submitted with the grievance form. 

(b) The Step 1 Management Representative or his designated 
representative shall meet to discuss the grievance and shall communicate a decision in writing to 
the employee and the employee's representative, if any, within 14 days following the date the 
grievance is received at Step 1. 

(c) Failure to communicate the decision in a timely manner shall 
permit the employee, the Union, or other designated employee representative where appropriate, 
to proceed to the next step. 

 (d) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the 
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits 
specified in this step of this procedure may be extended in writing provided there is agreement 
by both parties. There shall be no retroactive extensions of time limits. 

(3 2) STEP 2 
(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the employee or the 

employee's representative may file a written grievance with the Agency Head or designated 
representative within 21 days after receipt of the decision at Step 1 provided the Step 1 decision 
is received on or before the last valid due date.  The grievance shall include a copy of the 
grievance form submitted at Step 1 and a copy of the Step 1 response, together with all written 
documents in support of the grievance. When the grievance is eligible for initiation at Step 2, the 
grievance form must contain the same information as a grievance filed at Step 1 above. 

(b) The Agency Head or designated representative may meet with the 
employee and/or the designated Union Staff Representative to discuss the grievance. The 
Agency Head or designated representative shall communicate a decision in writing within 21 
days following receipt of the written grievance. 

(c) Failure to communicate the decision in a timely manner shall 
permit the employee, the Union, or other designated employee representative where appropriate, 
to proceed to the next step. 

(d) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the 
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits 
specified in this step of this procedure may be extended in writing provided there is agreement 
by both parties. There shall be no retroactive extensions of time limits. 

(4 3) STEP 3 
(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 2, the Union President or 

the designated member of the Union President's staff, or the employee or designated employee 
representative if not represented by the Union, may appeal the Step 2 decision by filing a written 
grievance to the Office Manager for the Office of the General Counsel of the Department of 



AFSCME Florida Council 79 
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
February 4, 2013 v2 

Page 6 of 8 
 

 
For the State              For AFSCME Florida Council 79 
 
_____________________________         ______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore             Doug Martin 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator          Chief Negotiator    
                                                                                                                                                                               
_____________________________          ______________________________                                                   
Date                Date 

Management Services, 4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 160, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-9050 within 
21 days after receipt of the decision at Step 2, provided the Step 2 decision is received on or 
before the last valid due date.  The grievance shall be filed on the appropriate grievance form as 
contained in Appendix B of this Contract, setting forth specifically the complete facts on which 
the grievance is based, the specific provision(s) of the Contract allegedly violated, the relief 
requested, and shall include a copy of the grievance form submitted at Steps 1 and 2, together 
with all written responses and documents in support of the grievance. The designated 
representative of the Department of Management Services may meet with the Union President or 
the designated member of the Union President's staff, the employee, or the designated employee 
representative if not represented by the union to discuss the grievance. When the grievance is 
eligible for initiation at Step 3, the grievance form must contain the same information as a 
grievance filed at Step 1, above. 

(b) The designated representative of the Department of Management 
Services shall communicate a decision in writing to the Union President or the designated 
member of the Union President's staff if the employee is represented by the union, or to the 
employee or the designated employee representative, within 21 days following receipt of the 
written grievance.  The employee’s representative is responsible for providing a copy of the Step 
3 decision to the employee. 

(c) Failure to communicate the decision within the specified time limit 
shall permit the employee, the Union, or other designated employee representative where 
appropriate, to proceed to the next step.  

(d) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the 
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits 
specified in this step of this procedure may be extended in writing provided there is agreement 
by both parties. There shall be no retroactive extensions of time limits. 

 (5 4) GRIEVANCE MEDIATION 
The parties may, by written agreement, submit a grievance to mediation to be 

conducted by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS), either prior to the 
grievance being submitted to arbitration or after it has been submitted to arbitration but before a 
hearing is scheduled.  When the parties agree to mediate a grievance, the time limits to file for, 
or process, an arbitration are automatically extended for the period necessary to conclude the 
mediation process.  Either party may withdraw from the mediation process with written notice no 
later than five (5) days before a scheduled mediation. 

(6 5) ARBITRATION 
(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 3, the Union President or 

the designated member of the Union President's staff may appeal the Step 3 decision to 
Arbitration by filing a written appeal to arbitration on the appropriate form as contained in 



AFSCME Florida Council 79 
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
February 4, 2013 v2 

Page 7 of 8 
 

 
For the State              For AFSCME Florida Council 79 
 
_____________________________         ______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore             Doug Martin 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator          Chief Negotiator    
                                                                                                                                                                               
_____________________________          ______________________________                                                   
Date                Date 

Appendix C of this Contract, with the Arbitration Coordinator, Office of the General Counsel for 
the Department of Management Services, 4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 160, Tallahassee, Florida 
32399-9050 within 45 days after receipt of the decision at Step 3, provided the Step 3 decision is 
received on or before the last valid due date.  The appeal to arbitration may be filed by facsimile, 
electronic mail, personal service, or mail, and shall include a copy of the Step 3 decision. If, at 
the initial written step, the employee did not elect Union representation, or the Union refused to 
represent the employee because the employee was not a dues-paying member of the Union, the 
employee may appeal the grievance to Arbitration or may designate another representative to 
appeal the Step 3 decision to arbitration on their behalf.    

(b)   The parties may agree in writing to file related grievances for 
hearing before the same arbitrator. 

(c) The arbitrator shall be one person from a panel of at least five (5) 
arbitrators, mutually selected by the state and the Union to serve in rotation for any case 
submitted.  The Department of Management Services shall facilitate the scheduling of all 
arbitration hearings and shall contact the next arbitrator in the agreed rotation and coordinate the 
arbitration hearing time and date.   

(d) Arbitration hearings shall be held at times and locations agreed to 
by the parties, taking into consideration the availability of evidence, location of witnesses, 
existence of appropriate facilities, and other relevant factors. If agreement cannot be reached, the 
arbitration hearing shall be held in the City of Tallahassee. 

(e) Issues of arbitrability shall be separated from the substantive 
issue(s) of the grievance and, whenever possible, determined by a hearing conducted by 
conference call.  The arbitrator shall have ten (10) days from the hearing to render a decision on 
arbitrability. Where there is a threshold issue regarding arbitrability, including timeliness, of a 
grievance raised by either party, an expedited arbitration hearing shall be conducted to address 
only the arbitrability issue.  In such cases, the parties shall choose an arbitrator from the panel of 
arbitrators (see (5)(c) above), who is available to schedule a hearing and render a decision within 
twenty days of an arbitrator being chosen for this limited purpose.  The hearing on this issue 
shall be limited to one day, and the arbitrator shall be required to decide the issue within five (5) 
business days of the hearing.  The hearing shall be conducted by telephone upon the agreement 
of the parties and the arbitrator.  The fees and expenses of the expedited arbitration shall be 
shared equally by the parties.  If the decision is arbitrator determines that the issue is arbitrable, 
another arbitrator shall then be selected chosen from the parties’ regular arbitration panel in 
accordance with the provisions of (5)(c) of this Article to conduct a hearing on hear the 
substantive issue(s). in accordance with the provisions of (5)(c) of this Article. 

(f) The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the 
grievance and, provided the decision is in accordance with his jurisdiction and authority under 



AFSCME Florida Council 79 
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
February 4, 2013 v2 

Page 8 of 8 
 

 
For the State              For AFSCME Florida Council 79 
 
_____________________________         ______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore             Doug Martin 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator          Chief Negotiator    
                                                                                                                                                                               
_____________________________          ______________________________                                                   
Date                Date 

this Contract, shall be final and binding on the state, the Union, the grievant(s), and the 
employees in the bargaining unit. In considering a grievance, the arbitrator shall be governed by 
the following provisions and limitations: 

1. The arbitrator shall issue a decision not later 30 days from 
the date of the closing of the hearing or the submission of briefs, whichever is later. 

2. The arbitrator's decision shall be in writing, and shall set 
forth the arbitrator's opinion and conclusions on the precise issue(s) submitted. 

3. The arbitrator shall have no authority to determine any 
other issue, and the arbitrator shall refrain from issuing any statement of opinion or conclusion 
not essential to the determination of the issues submitted. 

4. The arbitrator shall conform an award to the limitations 
imposed by section 447.401, Florida Statutes, and specifically shall not have the power to add to, 
subtract from, modify, or alter the terms of this Contract.  

5. The arbitrator's award may include back pay to the 
grievant(s); however, the following limitations shall apply to such monetary awards:  

a. No award for back pay shall exceed the amount of 
pay the employee would otherwise have earned at his regular rate of pay and such back pay shall 
not be retroactive to a date earlier than the date of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the 
grievance under consideration and in no event more than the time limits permitted for initiation 
of the grievance. 

b. The award shall not exceed the actual loss to the 
grievant and will not include punitive damages. 

(g) The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne equally by 
the parties; however, each party shall be responsible for compensating and paying the expenses 
of its own representatives, attorneys and witnesses.  

(h) The Union will not be responsible for costs of an arbitration to 
which it was not a party. 
 
SECTION 4 – Time Limits 

(A) Failure to initiate, file or appeal a grievance within the time limits specified shall 
be deemed a waiver of the grievance.    

(B) Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance 
to be received within the specified time limit shall permit the employee, the Union, or the 
designated employee representative where appropriate, to proceed to the next step. 

(C) Claims of either an untimely filing or untimely appeal shall be made at the step in 
question. 



AFSCME Florida Council 79 
State Proposal – Article 13  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
February 4, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
For the State              For AFSCME Florida Council 79 
 
_____________________________         ______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore             Doug Martin 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator          Chief Negotiator    
                                                                                                                                                                               
_____________________________          ______________________________                                                   
Date                Date 
 

Article 13 
HEALTH AND SAFETY 

SECTION 1 – Workplace Safety 
 Pursuant to Executive Order 2000-292, the departments subject to the Executive Order 
are directed to voluntarily comply with Subparts C through T and Subpart Z of the Occupational 
Safety and Health Standards, as revised July 1, 1993.  The remedies shall be those defined in the 
Executive Order. 

SECTION 1 2– Safety Committee 
 (A) It shall be the policy of the state to make every reasonable effort to provide 
employees a safe and healthy working environment. 
 (B A) Where management has created a workplace safety committee in a state-
controlled facility, the Union shall select one unit employee of the facility to serve on such 
committee. 
 (C B) Where management has not established a safety committee, both the state and 
Union shall work toward the establishment of one in each state-controlled facility. 
 
SECTION 2 3 – Employee Safety 
 (A) An employee becoming aware of a work-related accident shall immediately notify 
the supervisor of the area where the incident occurred. 
 (B) When an employee believes that an unsafe working condition exists in the work 
area, he shall immediately report the condition to the supervisor. The supervisor shall investigate 
the report, and make a reasonable effort to take action deemed appropriate. The nature of the 
action taken shall be based on the seriousness of the condition. Within 30 days after the report of 
unsafe working condition is received, the supervisor will furnish a response to the employee and, 
where the employee's report was in writing, the supervisor shall respond in writing. 
 
SECTION 3 4– Grievability  

Complaints which arise under the application or interpretation of this Article shall be 
grievable, but only to Step 2 3 of the Grievance Procedure of the Contract. 
 
 
 



AFSCME Florida Council 79 
State Proposal – Article 13  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
February 4, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
For the State              For AFSCME Florida Council 79 
 
_____________________________         ______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore             Doug Martin 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator          Chief Negotiator    
                                                                                                                                                                               
_____________________________          ______________________________                                                   
Date                Date 
 

SECTION 4 5– Use of Inmate Labor or Known Criminal Offender Labor 
 (A) Employees working for any agency, exclusive of the Department of Corrections 
and the Department of Juvenile Justice, who are not told at the time of employment in that 
position that they may be required to work with or supervise inmates or persons known to by the 
agency to be under the supervision of a court or a criminal justice agency, may, because of 
religious or moral objection, request reassignment to a comparable vacant position not requiring 
work with or supervision of inmates or persons known to by the agency to be under the 
supervision of a court or criminal justice agency. Such requests shall not be unreasonably denied. 
 (B) It shall be prohibited for any agency head, or any other officer or employee of an 
agency, to take any retaliatory action against an individual who, in accordance with this section, 
requests reassignment to a position not requiring work with or supervision of inmates or persons 
known to by the agency to be under the supervision of a court or criminal justice agency. 



AFSCME Florida Council 79 
State Proposal – Article 18 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 30, 2013 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
For the State              For AFSCME Florida Council 79 
 
_____________________________         ______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore             Doug Martin 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator          Chief Negotiator    
                                                                                                                                                                               
_____________________________          ______________________________                                                   
Date                Date 

Article 18 
LEAVES OF ABSENCE, HOURS OF WORK, DISABILITY LEAVE 

 
SECTION 1 – Leaves  
 Employees shall be granted leaves of absence as provided in Rule 60L-34, Florida 
Administrative Code. 
 
SECTION 2 – Hours of Work and Overtime  

(A)  The normal workweek for each full-time employee shall be 40 hours. 
(B)  Management retains the right to schedule its employees; however, the state will 

make a good faith effort, whenever practical, to provide the employees with consecutive hours in 
the workday and consecutive days in the workweek. 

(C)  Work beyond the normal workweek shall be recognized in accordance with the 
provisions of Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code. 

(D) Management retains the right to approve or disapprove time off for its employees.  
However, the state will make a good faith effort, whenever practical, to allow employees to use 
compensatory leave credits as requested by the employee. Failure to approve an employee's 
specific request shall not be grievable under the provisions of Article 6 of this Contract. 

(E)  The state agrees that the assignment of overtime is not to be made on the basis of 
favoritism.  In any case, where an employee has reason to believe that overtime is being assigned 
on the basis of favoritism, the employee shall have the right to the Grievance Procedure under 
Article 6 herein, to Step 2. 

(F)  The Union agrees to support those changes in Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative 
Code that may be required in order for the state to be in compliance with the Fair Labor 
Standards Act as it is applied to public employees.  

 
SECTION 3 – Work Schedules  

(A)  Where work schedules are rotated, employees' normal work schedules, showing each 
employee's shift, workdays and hours, will be posted no less than ten (10) calendar days in 
advance, and will reflect at least a two workweek schedule; however, the state will make a good 
faith effort to reflect a one month schedule. With prior written notification of at least three 
workdays to the employee's immediate supervisor, employees may agree to exchange days or 
shifts on a temporary basis.  If the immediate supervisor objects to the exchange of workdays or 
shifts, the employee initiating the notification shall be advised that the exchange is disapproved. 

(B)  Where work schedules are rotated, the state will make a good faith effort to equalize 



AFSCME Florida Council 79 
State Proposal – Article 18 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 30, 2013 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
For the State              For AFSCME Florida Council 79 
 
_____________________________         ______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore             Doug Martin 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator          Chief Negotiator    
                                                                                                                                                                               
_____________________________          ______________________________                                                   
Date                Date 

scheduled weekend work among employees in the same functional unit whenever this can be 
accomplished without interfering with efficient operations.   

(C)  When an employee is not assigned to a rotating shift and the employee's regular shift 
assignment is being changed, the state will schedule the employee to be off work for a minimum 
of two shifts between the end of the previous shift assignment and the beginning of the new shift 
assignment. 

(D)  When an employee works two consecutive shifts, the state will make a good faith 
effort to allow the employee a minimum of 16 consecutive hours off prior to returning to work. 

  
SECTION 4 – Rest Periods  

(A)  No supervisor shall unreasonably deny an employee a 15 minute rest period during 
each four hour work shift. Whenever possible, such rest periods shall be scheduled at the middle 
of the work shift.  However, it is recognized that many positions have a post of duty assignment 
that requires coverage for a full eight-hour shift, which would not permit the employee to 
actually leave his post.  In those cases, it is recognized that the employee can "rest" while the 
employee physically remains in the geographic location of his duty post. 

(B)  An employee may not accumulate unused rest periods, nor shall rest periods be 
authorized for covering an employee's late arrival on duty or early departure from duty.  

  
SECTION 5 – Negotiation Committee   

The Union may designate employees within each unit to serve as its Negotiation 
Committee, and such employees will be granted administrative leave with pay to attend 
negotiating sessions with the state; provided, however, that the total number of employees 
designated by the Union shall not exceed one employee for each 2,000 covered employees.  No 
more than one employee shall be selected from the same work unit at any one time, nor shall the 
selection of any employee unduly hamper the operations of the work unit.  The names, 
classifications, and work locations of employees designated for the Negotiations Committee shall 
be provided to the Department of Management Services by September 1 of each year. 
 
SECTION 6 – Union Activities   

Employees shall have the right to request annual or compensatory leave or leave without 
pay for the purpose of attending Union conventions, conferences and meetings.  When such 
requests cannot be granted, the supervisor shall provide such denial in writing. 
 
 



AFSCME Florida Council 79 
State Proposal – Article 18 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 30, 2013 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 
For the State              For AFSCME Florida Council 79 
 
_____________________________         ______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore             Doug Martin 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator          Chief Negotiator    
                                                                                                                                                                               
_____________________________          ______________________________                                                   
Date                Date 

SECTION 7 – Disability Leave  
(A)  An employee eligible for disability leave with pay under the provisions of Rule 60L-

34, Florida Administrative Code, shall not be required to use accrued compensatory or annual 
leave in order to be eligible to be carried in full pay status under Rule 60L-34, Florida 
Administrative Code. The Agency Head or designee shall not unreasonably refuse to submit a 
request to carry an employee in full pay status under the provisions of Rule 60L-34, Florida 
Administrative Code; provided, however, the Secretary of the Department of Management 
Services or designee shall have the right to determine whether an employee should be carried in 
full pay status for more than 26 weeks. 

(B)  Except as provided in sub-section (C) below, no employee shall be carried in full pay 
status until the employee has utilized 100 hours of accumulated sick leave, annual leave, 
compensatory leave, or leave without pay. 

(C)  If an employee has not had continuous state service necessary to accumulate 100 
hours of sick leave credits, the employee will be eligible to be carried in full pay status upon 
having exhausted all accumulated sick, annual and compensatory leave credits (not to exceed 
100 hours) provided the injury results from an act of violence inflicted by another person while 
engaged in law enforcement duties or an assault under riot conditions. 

 
SECTION 8 – Special Compensatory Leave 

(A)  Earning of Special Compensatory Leave Credits.  Special compensatory leave 
credits may be earned only in the following instances: 
  (1) By an employee in the career service for work performed on a holiday as 
defined in section 110.117, Florida Statutes, or for work performed during a work period that 
includes a holiday, as provided by the Rules of the State Personnel System. 
  (2) By an employee in the career service for work performed in the 
employee’s assigned office, facility, or region which is closed pursuant to an Executive Order of 
the Governor or any other disaster or emergency condition. 

(B) Special Compensatory Leave Earned Prior to July 1, 2012 
An employee may be required to reduce special compensatory leave credit 

balances. 
(C)  Special Compensatory Leave Earned On or After July 1, 2012 

  (1) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection 
(A)(1), on or after July 1, 2012, which are not used each year by the April 30 or October 31 that 
immediately succeeds the work period in which the leave is credited, whichever date occurs 
earlier, shall be forfeited. 
  (2) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection 



AFSCME Florida Council 79 
State Proposal – Article 18 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 30, 2013 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
For the State              For AFSCME Florida Council 79 
 
_____________________________         ______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore             Doug Martin 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator          Chief Negotiator    
                                                                                                                                                                               
_____________________________          ______________________________                                                   
Date                Date 

(A)(2), on or after July 1, 2012, which are not used within 120 calendar days from the end of the 
work period in which the leave is credited shall be forfeited. 
  (3) Each agency shall schedule employees earning special compensatory leave 
credits in a manner that allows all such leave credits earned on or after July 1, 2012, to be used 
within the time limits specified in subsections 1 and 2.  However, if scheduling such leave within 
such time limits would prevent the agency from meeting minimum staffing requirements needed 
to ensure public safety, the agency head may extend the time limits specified in subsections 1 
and 2 for up to an additional 180 calendar days.  Extensions will not be allowed for any other 
reason. 
  (4) No agency may make a payout of unused special compensatory leave 
credits earned on or after July 1, 2012. 
 (D) Unless otherwise prohibited by law or rule, all requests for use of approved leave, 
other than administrative leave, shall first be charged to any special compensatory leave credits 
the employee has accrued. 



AFSCME Florida Council 79  
State Proposal – Article 25 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 30, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
For the State       For AFSCME Florida Council 79 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Doug Martin 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
_____________________________    _______________________________                                                  
Date        Date 

Article 25 
WAGES 

SECTION 1 – Pay Provisions – General 
(A) Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 General 

Appropriations Act.  
(B) Increases to base rate of pay and salary additives shall be in accordance with state 

law and the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 General Appropriations Act.   

SECTION 2 – Unemployment Rate Incentive 
 In recognition of reducing the unemployment rate from December 2010 to December 
2012, the Governor’s Budget Recommendations provide for a one-time, non-discretionary, 
$1,200 lump sum bonus award, plus applicable taxes, to eligible employees.  Eligibility 
requirements are set forth in Section 8 – Salaries and Benefits – Fiscal Year 2013-2014 of the 
Governor’s Recommendations.  The awards shall be paid to eligible employees no later than 
August 30, 2013, and are subject to funding as provided in the 2013-2014 General 
Appropriations Act. 

SECTION 3 – Variable Compensation Award 
 The Governor’s Budget Recommendations provide for discretionary, one-time lump sum 
interim variable compensation awards to eligible employees achieving high job performance as 
evidenced by the employee’s performance evaluation period ending during the period July 1, 
2012 through June 30, 2013.  Awards for Outstanding and Commendable performance will be 
$5,000 and $2,500, respectively, plus applicable taxes.  Eligibility requirements are set forth in 
Section 8 – Salaries and Benefits – Fiscal Year 2013-2014 of the Governor’s Recommendations. 
The awards shall be paid to eligible employees no later than September 30, 2013, and are subject 
to funding as provided in the 2013-2014 General Appropriations Act. 

SECTION 4 – Recidivism Reduction Incentive 
 The Governor’s Budget Recommendations provide for one-time, non-discretionary, lump 
sum bonus awards to eligible employees in the Department of Corrections in recognition of a 
decrease in Florida’s recidivism rate over the past two years, saving more than $44 million in 
prison costs.  Awards to eligible Department employees will be $500, plus applicable taxes. 
Eligibility requirements are set forth in Section 8 – Salaries and Benefits – Fiscal Year 2013-
2014 of the Governor’s Recommendations.  The awards shall be paid to eligible employees no 
later than July 31, 2013, and are subject to funding as provided in the 2013-2014 General 
Appropriations Act. 

 



AFSCME Florida Council 79  
State Proposal – Article 25 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 30, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
For the State       For AFSCME Florida Council 79 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Doug Martin 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
_____________________________    _______________________________                                                  
Date        Date 

SECTION 5 – Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency 
 In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 General 
Appropriations Act, and contingent upon the availability of funds and at the agency head’s 
discretion, each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15 
percent of the employee’s base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or 
area closed due to emergency conditions from another area of the state that is not closed. 

SECTION 6 – Cash Payout of Annual Leave 
 Permanent Career Service employees may be given the option of receiving up to 24 hours 
of unused annual leave each December, in the form of a cash payout subject to, and in 
accordance with, section 110.219(7), Florida Statutes. 

SECTION 7 – Performance Pay  
 Each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee’s 
exemplary performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 
60L-35, Florida Administrative Code. 

SECTION 8 – Savings Sharing Program 
 An employee or groups of employees may be eligible for monetary awards for ideas or 
programs that result in a cost saving to the state, pursuant to section 110.1245(1), Florida 
Statutes. 

SECTION 9 – Pay Subject to General Appropriations Act 
 In the event the 2013 Legislature provides different funding or eligibility provisions for 
the above-specified pay increases and payments, the State and the Union agree that such 
increases and payments shall be administered in accordance with the provisions of the Fiscal 
Year 2013-2014 General Appropriations Act, and any other relevant statutes.   



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Proposal - Article 4

Fiscal Year 2013-14
January 28,2013

Page 1 of2

Article 4
NO DISCRIMINATION

SECTION 1 - Non-Discrimination Policy - State~Federal Law

(A) Neither the state nor the Union shall discriminate against any employee for any
reason prohibited under Florida Statutes or any federal law. If any provision of this Contract is
in conflict with any federal or state law or any rules having the effect of law, the law or rule shall
prevail.

(B) Any claim of illegal discrimination by an employee against the state, its officials,
or representatives, except for grievances related to union membership, shall only be subject to
the method of review prescribed by law or by rules and regulations having the force and effect of
law.

(A) The State and the U'1ion agree that 00mpliancf: with state minimum "':age lav/s
pursuant to Section 14m, Article X of the Stat~ Constitution as implemented by Florid.. Statutes
is mandatory for all employ~s in Flof-de; and aoplicable to employees in Florida. The State
acknowledges that members of the bargaining unit will receive the same protections under the
State Minimum 'Nage Law (1S other employees ~n Florida. Every member of the bargaining class
will have his or her pay adjusted up-v:ard to thoe ~xtant necessary to ensure that coml:ler.satioll is
at bast equal to llte Florida Minimum Wage Act.

(B) The State and the Unio::l agree that workers in Florida are protected by state labor
la\vs including the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) covering such issues as overtime, minimum
vI/age, child laljor a.~d equal pay. The State acknowledges that members of the bargaining unit are
entitled to be treated the same as other employees in Florida and that they will also receive the
sam~ protections under FLSA as other employees in Florida.

(C) The State ano Union agree thet workp,rs. in Florida ar~ protected by federal la''v,
United States Code, Title ?-9, Chapter 15, th? Occupational Safety and Health Act (GuHA)
-ensuring that employee£ are able to work in environments that are free from recognized hazards.
The State 3.cknowledges that members of the bargain~,r..g unit are entitled to be treated the same
as other employ:ves in Florida and that they will also receiv~ LIe same protections under OSHA
as other employees in Florida.

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's ChiefLabor Negotiator

Date

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
ChiefNegotiator

Date



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Proposal - Article 4

Fiscal Year 2013-14
January 28,2013

Page 2 of2

SECTION ~.:; - Sexual Harassment

(A) The Union shall have the right to consult on issues of sexual harassment with the
Step I Management Representative and/or designee(s), up through the Step 2 Management
Representative and/or designee(s).

(B) The state agrees to take appropriate action if it finds an employee has engaged in
sexual harassment. .

(C) . Any claim of sexual harassment by an employee against the state, its officials or
representatives, shall only be subject to the method of review prescribed by law or by rules and
regulations having the force and effect oflaw.

SECTION ~~~ - Affirmative Action Program

The Union agrees to support the state's Affirmative Action Program and any other
affirmative action programs affecting unit employees which may be developed by the state in
consultation with the Union which comply with or are mandated by applicable state and/or
federal law. Each agency will furnish the Union, upon written request, with a copy of its
affirmative action programs which affect employees.

The Union will have the right to appoint a representative to meet and confer with the
agency's affirmative action - equal employment opportunity officer on the agency's affirmative
action programs which affect employees. The agency's program shall not be subject to review
under the provisions of Article 6 of this Contract.

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's ChiefLabor Negotiator

Date

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
ChiefNegotiator

Date



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Counter Proposal- Article 6 (Status Quo)

Fiscal Year 2013-14
January 28,2013

Page 1 of8

Article 6
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

It is the policy of the state and Union to encourage informal discussions between
supervisors and employees of employee complaints. Such discussions should be held with a view
to reaching an understanding which will resolve the matter in a manner satisfactory to the
employee and the state, without need for recourse to the formal grievance procedure prescribed
by this Article.

SECTION 1 - Definitions

As used in this Article
(A) "Grievance" shall mean a dispute involving the interpretation or application of the

specific provisions of this Contract that is filed on a grievance form as contained in Appendix B.
(B) "Employee'! shall mean an employee or a group of employees having the same

grievance.
(C) "Days" shall mean calendar days, excluding any day observed as a holiday

pursuant to Florida Statutes, or holiday observed by the Union pursuant to a list furnished to the
state in writing, as of the effective date of this Contract.

(D) "File" or "Appeal" shall mean the receipt of a grievance by the appropriate step
representative.

SECTION 2 - Election of Remedy and· Representation

(A) Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in this Contract shall he construed to permit
the Union or an employee to process a grievance (1) on behalf of any employee without his
consent, or (2) when the subject of such (employee's) grievance is at the same time the subject of
an administrative action under section 120.569 or 120.57, Florida Statutes, or appeal before a
governmental board or agency, or court proceeding, except that employees shall have the right to
pursue claims of discrimination in other appropriate forums. If a grievance is filed that may be
processed under this Article and also under the Public Employees Relations Act pursuant to
section 110.227(5), Florida Statutes, the grievant shall indicate at the time the grievance is
reduced to writing which procedure is to be used as the exclusive remedy. In the case of any
duplicate filing, the action first filed will be the one processed.

(B) An employee who decides to use this Grievance Procedure shall indicate at the
Oral Step or initial written step (if authorized by the provisions of this Article) whether to be
represented by the Union or another representative designated by the employee. If the employee
is represented by the Union or another representative, any decision agreed to by the state and

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

Date

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
ChiefNegotiator

Date



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Counter Proposal- Article 6 (Status Quo)

Fiscal Year 2013-14
January 28,2013

Page 2 of8

Union or the state and the employee's designated representative, shall be binding on the
employee.

(C) Where Union representation is authorized as provided in this Contract and is
requested by an employee, the employee's representative shall be selected from the list of
Stewards, Union Staff Representatives or Union Regional Directors which has been provided to
the state in accordance with Article 5 of this Contract. The employee may also be represented by
an attorney or other representative retained by either the Union or the employee.

(l) If an employee selects a Steward to represent that employee in a grievance
which has been properly filed in accordance with this Article, the Steward may be allowed a
reasonable amount of time off with pay to investigate the grievance at the Oral Step and to
represent the grievant at any Oral Step and Step 1 meetings which are held during regular work
hours. Such time off with pay shall be subject to prior approval by the Steward's immediate
supervisor; however, approval of such time off will not be withheld if the Steward can be
allowed such time off without interfering with, or unduly hampering, the operations of the unit to
which the· Steward is regularly assigned. The Steward's immediate supervisor will notify the
grievant's supervisor prior to allowing the Steward time off to investigate the grievance.

(2) Investigations will be conducted in a way that does not interfere with state
operations.

(3) As indicated in Article 5 of this Contract, the Steward in the same work
location or the closest work location to the grievant's work location shall be selected to represent
the employee. In no case shall a Steward be allowed to travel more than 25 miles from his
official work location in order to investigate a grievance. The Union will make a reasonable
effort to ensure that it trains a sufficient number ofstewards in order to minimize any such travel.

(4) A Steward who has been selected to represent an employee as provided in
this Article, will be considered a required participant at the Step 1 grievance meeting.

(5) An employee who files a grievance in accordance with this Article, or the
designated spokesperson in a class action grievance, will be considered a required participant at
the Oral Step and Step 1 grievance meetings.

(D) Both the employee and the employee's representative, if any, shall be notified of
the Step 1 meeting. Further, all communication concerning written grievances or their resolution
shall be in writing and a copy shall be sent to both the employee and the employee's
representative.

(E) If the employee is not represented by the Union, any adjustment of the grievance
shall be consistent with the terms of this Contract, the Union shall be given reasonable
opportunity to be present at any meeting called for the resolution of the grievance, and
processing of the grievance will be in accordance with the procedures established in this
Contract. The Union shall not be bound by the decision of any grievance in which the employee

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

Date

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
Chief Negotiator

Date



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Counter Proposal- Article 6 (Status Quo)

Fiscal Year 2013-14
January 28,2013

Page 3 of8

chose not to be represented by the Union.
(F) The filing or pendency of any grievance under the provisions of this Article shall

in no way operate to impede, delay or interfere with the right of the state to take the action
complained of, subject, however, to the final disposition of the grievance.

. (G) The resolution of a grievance prior to its submission in writing at Step 3 shall not
establish a precedent binding on either the state or the Union in other cases.

SECTION3 - Procedures

(A) Employee grievances filed in accordance with this Article are to be presented
and handled promptly at the lowest level of supervision having the authority to adjust the
grievances. A grievance may be filed and responded to by facsimile, electronic mail, personal
seIyice, or mail. Grievances are to be filed on the appropriate form as contained in Appendix B
of this Contract.

(B) Once a grievance is filed, no new violation or issue can be raised.
(C) There shall be no reprisals against any of the participants in the procedures

contained herein by reason of such participation.
(D) If a grievance meeting is held or requires reasonable travel time during the

working hours of any required participant, such participant shall be excused without loss of pay
for that purpose. Attendance at grievance meetings outside of regular working hours shall not be
deemed time worked.

(E) All grievances will be presented at Oral Step, with the following exceptions:
(1) If a grievance arises from the action of an official higher than the Step 1

Management Representative, the grievance shall be filed at Step 2 on the grievance form as
contained in Appendix B of this Contract within 21 days following the occurrence of the event
giving rise to the grievance.

(2) A dispute involving the interpretation or application of a provision of this
Contract which gives a right to the Union as an employee organization may be filed by the Union
as a grievance. Such grievance shall be initiated at Step 3 of this procedure, in accordance with
the provisions set forth therein, and received by the Office Manager for the Office of the General
Counsel, Department of Management Services, 4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 160, Tallahassee,
Florida 32399-9050, within 21 days of the occUrrence ofthe event giving rise to the grievance.

(F) An employee who has not attained permanent status in his position can only file
non-discipline· grievances, which are final and binding at Step 3 as provided in this Article. With
respect to disciplinary grievances, oral reprimands shall not be grievable. An employee who has
attained permanent status in his position may grieve a written reprimand. up to Step 2; the
decision at that level shall be final and binding.

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

Date

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
ChiefNegotiator

Date



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Counter Proposal- Article 6 (Status Quo)

Fiscal Year 2013-14
January 28, 2013

Page 4 of8

(G) Grievances shall be presented and adjusted in the following manner, and no
individual may respond to a grievance at more than one written step. In the event a grievance is
not answered in a timely manner at the preceding step, the state agrees not to remand the
grievance for the purpose of obtaining the answer without the agreement of the Union or the
employee's designated representative, if any.

(1) Oral Discussion
(a) An employee having a grievance may, within 21 days following

the occurrence ofthe event giving rise to the grievance,. present the grievance orally to his or her
immediate supervisor, stating the specific provision(s) of the Contract allegedly violated, and the
relief requested. The immediate supervisor shall make every effort to resolve the grievance at the
Oral Step, including meeting to discuss the grievance if such meeting is requested by the
employee or the employee's representative~ or if a meeting is deemed necessary by the
supervisor. The supervisor shall communicate a decision to the employee and the employee's
representative, if any, within 14 days following the date the grievance is received at the Oral
Step.

(b) If the grievance is not resolved by such informal discussion, the
employee may, within 21 days after receipt of a timely decision at the Oral Step, file a written
grievance at Step 1 of this procedure.

(c) Failure to communicate the decision in a timely manner shall
permit the employee, the Union, or other designated employee representative where appropriate,
to proceed to the next step.

(d) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits
specified in this step of this procedure may be extended in writing provided there is agreement
by both parties. There shall be no retroactive extensions of time limits.

(2) STEP 1
(a) The employee or the designated employee representative shall file

a written grievance with the Step 1 Management Representative to be received within 21 days
following the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance, or within 21 days of receipt of
the decision at the Oral Step, whichever is later, on the appropriate grievance form as contained
in Appendix B of this Contract, setting forth specifically the complete facts on which the
grievance is based, the specific provision(s) of the Contract allegedly violated, and the relief
requested. All written documents to be considered by the Step 1 Management Representative
shall be submitted with the grievance form.

(b) The Step I Management Representative or his designated
representative shall meet to discuss the grievance and shall communicate a decision in writing to
the employee and the employee's representative, if any, within 14 days following the date the

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

Date

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
ChiefNegotiator

Date



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Counter Proposal- Article 6 (Status Quo)

Fiscal Year 2013-14
January 28,2013

Page 5 of8

grievance is received at Step 1.
(c) Failure to communicate the decision in a timely manner shall

permit the employee, the Union, or other designated employee representative where appropriate,
to proceed to the next step.

(d) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits
specified in this step of this procedure may be extended in writing provided there is agreement
by both parties. There shall be no retroactive extensions oftime limits.

(3) STEP 2
(a). If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the employee or the

employee's representative may file a written grievance with the Agency Head or designated
representative within 21 days after receipt of the decision at Step 1 provided the Step 1 decision
is received on or before the last valid due date. The grievance shall include a copy of the
grievance form submitted at Step 1 and a copy of the Step 1 response, together with all written
documents in support of the grievance. When the grievance is eligible for initiation at Step 2, the
grievance form must contain the same information as a grievance filed at Step 1 above.

(b) The Agency Head or designated representative may meet with the
employee and/or the designated Union Staff Representative to discuss the grievance. The
Agency Head or designated representative shall communicate a decision in writing within 21
days following receipt of the written grievance.

(c) Failure to communicate the decision in a timely manner shall
permit the employee, the Union; or other designated employee representative where appropriate,
to proceed to the next step.

(d) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits
specified in this step of this procedure may be extended in writing provided there is agreement
by both parties. There shall be no retroactive extensions of time limits.

(4) STEP 3
(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 2, the Union President or

the designated member of the Union President's staff, or the employee or designated employee
representative if not represented by the Union, may appeal the Step 2 decision by filing a written
grievance to the Office Manager for the Office of the General Counsel of the Department of
Management Services, 4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 160, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-9050 within
21 days after receipt of the decision at Step 2, provided the Step 2 decision is receiyed on or
before the last valid due date. The grievance shall be filed on the appropriate grievance form as
contained in Appendix B of this Contract, setting forth specifically the complete facts on which
the grievance is based, the specific provision(s) of the Contract allegedly violated, the relief

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

Date

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
ChiefNegotiator

Date



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Counter Proposal- Article 6 (Status Quo)

Fiscal Year 2013-14
January 28,2013

Page 6 ofB

requested, and shall include a copy of the grievance fonn submitted at Steps 1 and 2, together
with all written responses and documents in support of the grievance. The desigpated
representative of the Department of Management Services may meet with the Union President or
the designated member of the Union President's staff, the employee, or the designated employee
representative if not represented by the union to discuss the grievance. When the grievance is
eligible for initiation at Step 3, the grievance form must contain the same infonnation as a
grievance filed at Step 1, above.

(b) The designated representative of the Department of Management
Services shall communicate a decision in writing to the Union President or the designated
member of the Union President's staff if the employee is represented by the union, or to the
employee or the designated employee representative, within 21 days following receipt of the
written grievance. The employee's representative is responsible for providing a copy of the Step
3 decision to the employee.

(c) Failure to communicate the decision within the specified time limit
shall permit the employee, the Union, or other designated employee representative where
appropriate, to proceed to the next step.

(d) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits
spe>;ified in this step of this procedure may be extended in writing provided there is agreement
by both parties. There shall be no retroactive extensions of time limits.

(5) GRIEVANCE MEDIATION
The parties may, by written agreement, submit a grievance to mediation to be

conducted by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS), either prior to the
grievance being submitted to arbitration or after it has been submitted but before a hearing is
scheduled. When the parties agree to mediate a grievance, the time limits to file for, or process,
an arbitration are automatically extended for the period necessary to conclude the mediation
process. Either party may withdraw from the mediation process with written notice no later than
five (5) days before a scheduled mediation.

(6) ARBITRATION
(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 3, the Union President or

the designated member of the Union President's staff may appeal the Step 3 decision to
Arbitration by filing a written appeal to arbitration on the appropriate form as contained in
Appendix C of this Contract, with the Arbitration Coordinator, Office of the General Counsel for
the Department of Management Services, 4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 160, Tallahassee, Florida
32399-9050 within 45 days after receipt of the decision at Step 3, provided the Step 3 decision is
received on or before the last valid due date. The appeal to arbitration may be filed by facsimile,
electronic mail, personal service, or mail, and shall include a copy of the Step 3 decision. If, at

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

Date

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
ChiefNegotiator

Date



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Counter Proposal- Article 6 (Status Quo)

Fiscal Year 2013-14
January 28,2013

Page 7 of8

the initial written step, the employee did not elect Union representation, or the Union refused to
represent the employee because the employee was not a dues-paying member of the Union, the
employee may appeal the grievance to Arbitration or may designate another representative to
appeal the Step 3 decision to arbitration on their behalf.

(b) The parties may agree in writing to file related grievances for
hearing before the same arbitrator.

(c) The arbitrator shall be one person from a panel of at least five (5)
arbitrators, mutually selected by the state and the Union to serve in rotation for any case
submitted. The Department of Management Services shall facilitate the scheduling of all
arbitration hearings and shall contact the next arbitrator in the agreed rotation and coordinate the
arbitration hearing time and date.

(d) Arbitration hearings shall be held at times and locations agreed to
by the parties, taking into consideration the availability of evidence, location of witnesses,
existence of appropriate facilities, and other relevant factors. If agreement cannot be reached, the
arbitration hearing shall be held in the City ofTallahassee.

(e) Issues of arbitrability shall be separated from the substantive
issue(s) of the grievance and, whenever possible, determined by a hearing conducted by
conference call. The arbitrator shall have ten (10) days from the hearing to render a decision on
arbitrability. If the decision is that the issue is arbitrable, an arbitrator shall then be selected to
hear the substantive issue(s).

(t) The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the
grievance and, provided the decision is in accordance with his jurisdiction and authority under
this Contract, shall be final and binding on the state, the Union, the grievant(s), and the
employees in the bargaining unit. In considering a grievance, the arbitrator shall be governed by
the following provisions and limitations:

1. The arbitrator shall issue a decision not later 30 days from
the date of the closing of the hearing or the submission of briefs, whichever is later.

2. The arbitrator's decision shall be in writing, and shall set
forth the arbitrator's opinion and conclusions on the precise issue(s) submitted.

3. The arbitrator shall have no authority to determine any
other issue, and the arbitrator shall refrain from issuing any statement of opinion or conclusion
not essential to the determination of the issues submitted.

4. The arbitrator shall conform an award to the limitations
imposed by section 447.401, Florida Statutes, and specifically shall not have the power to add to,
subtract from, modify, or alter the terms of this Contract.

5. The arbitrator's award may include back pay to the
grievant(s); however, the following limitations shall apply to such monetary awards:

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

Date

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
ChiefNegotiator

Date



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Counter Proposal- Article 6 (Status Quo)

Fiscal Year 2013-14
January 28,2013

Page 8 of8

a. No award for back pay shall exceed the amount of
pay the employee would otherwise have earned at his regular rate of pay and such back pay shall
not be retroactive to a date earlier than the date of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the
grievance under consideration and in no event more than the time limits permitted for initiation
of the grievance.

b. The award shall not exceed the actual loss to the
grievant and will not include punitive damages.

(g) The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne equally by
the parties; however, each party shall be responsible for compensating and paying the expenses
of its own representatives, attorneys and witnesses.

(h) The Union will not be responsible for costs of an arbitration to
which it was not a party.

SECTION 4 - Time Limits

(A) Failure to initiate, file or appeal a grievance within the time limits specified shall
be deemed a waiver of the grievance.

(B) Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance
to be received within the specified time limit shall permit the employee, the Union, or the
designated employee representative where appropriate, to proceed to the next step.

(C) Claims of either an untimely filing or untimely appeal shall be made at the step in
question.

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

Date

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
ChiefNegotiator

Date



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Counter Proposal- Article 13

Fiscal Year 2013-14
January 28,2013

Page I of2

Article 13
HEALTH AND SAFETY

SECTION 1 _ • ~n ...._.

(A) It shall be the policy of the stat~ to make eVf:ry reasonabl~ effort to proYide
~ployees a s:l:e and healthy working environment free from re~ognized hazcrds and comply
with f~dera~ la":v,' United States Code, Title 29, Chapter 25, L1.e C~cuuational Safety and Health
Act (OSHA).

r -'1" - J', S fi ty C Ott,,-: ':::'........~-L-:::.=~ a e omlDI ee

CAB) Where management has created a workplace safety committee in a state
controlled facility, the Union shall select one unit employee of the facility to serve on such
committee.

ili'2) Where management has not established a safety committee, both the state and
Union shall work toward the establishment of one in each state-controlled facility.

SECTION :,:.... - Employee Safety

(A) An employee becoming aware of a work-related accident shall immediately notify
the supervisor of the area where the incident occurred.

(B) When an employee believes that an unsafe working condition exists in the work
area, he shall immediately report the condition to the supervisor. The supervisorshall investigate
the report, and make a reasonable effort to take action deemed appropriate. The nature of the
action taken shall be based on the seriousness of the condition. Within 30 days after the report of
unsafe working condition is received, the supervisor will furnish a response to the employee and,
where the employee's report was in writing, the supervisor shall respond in writing.

SECTION ~~ - Grievability

Complaints which arise under the application or interpretation of this Article shall be
grievable,-&at oBly to S-~the-8F&VanG~-P-re-c~eof the Seatmet.

SECTION .:- Use of Inmate Labor or Known Criminal Offender Labor

(A) Employees working for any agency, exclusive of the Department of Corrections
and the Department of Juvenile Justice, who are not told at the time of employment in that

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

Date

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
ChiefNegotiator

Date



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Counter Proposal - Article 13

Fiscal Year 2013-14
January 28,2013

Page 2 of2

position that they may be required to work with or supervise inmates or persons known to by the
agency to be under the supervision of a court or a criminal justice agency, may, because of
religious or moral objection, request reassignment to a comparable vacant position not requiring
work with or supervision of inmates or persons known to by the agency to be under the
supervision of a court or criminal justice agency. Such requests shall not be unreasonably denied.

(B) It shall be prohibited for any agency head, or any other officer or employee of an
agency, to take any retaliatory action against an individual who, in accordance with this section,
requests reassignment to a position not requiring work with or supervision of inmates or persons
known to by the agency to be under the supervision of a court or criminal justice agency.

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

Date

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
ChiefNegotiator

Date



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Proposal - Article 18

Fiscal Year 2013-14
January 28,2013

Page 1 of2

Article 18
LEAVES OF ABSENCE, HOURS OF WORK, DISABILITY LEAVE

SECTION 1-7 retain current contract language.

SECTION 8 - Special Compensatory Leave

(A) Earning of Special Compensatory Leave Credits. Special compensatory leave credits may be
earned only in the following instances:

(1) By an employee in the career service for work perfonned on a holiday as defined in
section 110.117, Florida Statutes, or for work perfonned during a work period that
includes a holiday, as provided by the Rules ofthe State Personnel System.

(2) By an employee in the career service for work perfonned in the employee's assigned
office, facility, or region which is closed pursuant to an Executive Order of the Governor
or any other disaster or emergency condition.

(R Special compensatory leave credits shall be calculated by multiplying the number ofhours
the employee perfonned work on the qualifying holiday or period ofdeclared emergency times
1.5.

(BC) Special Compensatory Leave Earned Prior to July 1, 2012

An employee may be required to reduce special compensatory leave credit balances.

(GD) Special Compensatory Leave Earned On or After July 1, 2012

(1) When Sspecial compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection (A)(I),
on or after July 1, 2012, which are Rot cannot be used each year by the employee by the
April 30 or October 31 that immediately succeeds the work period in which the leave is
credited, because of operational needs of the agency, the employee shall be paid for the
special compensatory leave credits by multiplying the employee's hourly pay rate times
the number of special compensatory credits, unless the agency and employee agree to
extend the date the credits must be used for an additional 180 days. be forfeited.

(2) When ~ecialcompensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection (A)(2),
on or after July 1, 2012, which are not cannot be used by the employee within 120
calendar days from the end ofthe work period in which the leave is credited because of
operational needs of the agency, the employee shall be paid for the special compensatory
leave credits by multiplying the employee's hourly pay rate times the number of special

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

Date

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
Chief Negotiator

Date



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Proposal - Article 18

Fiscal Year 2013-14
January 28,2013

Page 2 of2

compensatory credits, unless the agency and employee agree to extend the date the
credits must be used for an additional 180 days shall-as forfeited.

(3) Each agency shall schedule employees earning special compensatory leave credits in
a manner that allows all such leave credits earned on or after July 1,2012, to be used
within the time limits specified in subsections 1 and 2. However, if scheduling such leave
within such time limits would prevent the agency from meeting minimum staffing
requirements needed to ensure public safety, the agency head may extend the time limits
specified in subsections 1 and 2 for up to an additional 180 calendar days. Extensions will
not be allowed for any other reason.

(4) No ageney may make a paye1:lt of UftUsed speeial eompensatory leaye credits earned on or
after J1:l1y 1, 2012.

m£)) Unless otherwise prohibited by law or rule, all requests for use of approved leave, other
than administrative leave, shall first be charged to any special compensatory leave credits the
employee has accrued.

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

Date

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
ChiefNegotiator

Date



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Proposal - Article 25

Fiscal Year 2013-14
February 4,2013

Page 1 of2

ARTICLE 25
WAGES

SECTION 1 - Pay Provisions

(A) Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Year 2012 13 General Appropriations Act. All
employees of the AFSCME represented bargaining units (Professional, Administrative Clerical,
Operational Services and Human Services) will receive a 5 percent increase, plus aprl~2~1~

tLx~s,-to their base rate ofpay on July 1, 2013, with a $1,200 minimum increase.

SECTION 2 - Cash Payout of t I - -Leave

Permanent Career Service employees will have may be given the option of receiving up to
twenty-four (24) hours of unused annual leave each December, in the form ofa cash payout,
subject to, and in accordance with, Section 110.219(7), Florida Statutes, Permanent Career
Service employees in the AFSCME represented bargaining units (Professional,
Administrative/Clerical, Operational Services and Human Services) will have the option of
receiving a payout each December of all unused special compensatory leave earned after July 1,
2012.

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

Date

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
Chief Negotiator

Date



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Proposal - Article 25

Fiscal Year 2013-14
February 4,2013

Page 2 of2

SECTION 3 - Savings Sharing Program

Individual An employees or groups of employees may be eligible for monetary awards for ideas
or programs that result in a cost saving to the state, pursuant to section 110.1245(1), Florida
Statutes.

SECTION4 - Performance Pay

Each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee's exemplary
performance, as evidenced by a performance eyaluationconducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35,
Florida Administrative Code. The granting ofmerit pay increases should be awarded fairly and
be distributed proportionally to all members of a work unit who have achieved outstanding or
commendable perfonnance. Superyiso::'s ~>-'i!l b~ reguirf"/~ to rbcmhe~1t tb.~ o~:~<;ti\-~ r.riteria u3ed
for aYv'enE::g merit pay inG7~as~s.

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

Date

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
Chief Negotiator

Date



Page 1 of 1

Article 25(1): Provides for a 5% increase in pay, 
plus applicable taxes, with a 1,200 minimum 
increase

$94.1M People First was the source of data for calculation- 
retirement and FICA were also included.

Article 25(5):Provides an additional $40 per day 
for employees required to work during a period of 
time in an area in which there is a hurricane 
emergency.

Indeterminate

AFSCME Unit  CBU 01,02,03, and 05 Proposals with Fiscal Impact                                                                                                                                                    
Fiscal Year 2013-2014

Union/Issue Estimated Cost Comments



A
FS

C
M

E
 F

lo
ri

da
 C

ou
nc

il 
79

 
H

um
an

 S
er

vi
ce

s, 
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
, O

pe
ra

tio
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s, 
an

d 
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
an

d 
C

le
ri

ca
l U

ni
ts

 
St

at
e 

Pe
rs

on
ne

l S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 O

ne
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
-1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 4

, 6
, 1

3,
 1

8,
 a

nd
 2

5 
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

4 
– 

N
o 

D
is

cr
im

in
at

io
n 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f J
an

ua
ry

 8
, 2

01
3:

 
St

at
us

 q
uo

 
U

ni
on

 P
ro

po
sa

l o
f J

an
ua

ry
 2

8,
 2

01
3:

 
Pr

op
os

es
 n

ew
 S

ec
tio

n 
2 

– 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

ll 
St

at
e 

w
ag

e 
an

d 
ho

ur
 la

w
s, 

th
e 

Fe
de

ra
l F

ai
r L

ab
or

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 A

ct
 

(F
LS

A
), 

an
d 

th
e 

O
cc

up
at

io
na

l S
af

et
y 

an
d 

H
ea

lth
 A

ct
 (O

SH
A

) 
 

U
ni

on
 p

ro
po

sa
l w

ou
ld

 p
ro

vi
de

 
gr

ie
va

bi
lit

y,
 th

ro
ug

h 
ar

bi
tra

tio
n,

 o
f 

cl
ai

m
s o

f v
io

la
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

fe
de

ra
l 

Fa
ir 

La
bo

r S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 A

ct
 a

nd
 

O
SH

A
.  

C
ur

re
nt

 p
ol

ic
y 

is
 th

at
 

cl
ai

m
s o

f v
io

la
tio

n 
of

 st
at

e 
an

d 
fe

de
ra

l l
aw

s g
ov

er
ni

ng
 th

e 
w

or
kp

la
ce

 b
e 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 su

ch
 la

w
s. 

6 
– 

G
rie

va
nc

e 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3:
 

Pr
op

os
es

 o
pt

io
n 

of
 in

iti
at

in
g 

gr
ie

va
nc

es
 a

t t
he

 o
ra

l d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

st
ep

 
or

 a
t S

te
p 

1;
 p

ro
po

se
s i

ss
ue

s o
f 

ar
bi

tra
bi

lit
y 

be
 h

ea
rd

 in
 a

n 
ex

pe
di

te
d 

 
he

ar
in

g 
lim

ite
d 

to
 o

ne
 d

ay
; i

f t
he

 
ar

bi
tra

to
r d

et
er

m
in

es
 th

at
 th

e 
is

su
e 

is
 

ar
bi

tra
bl

e,
 a

no
th

er
 a

rb
itr

at
or

 sh
al

l b
e 

ch
os

en
 to

 c
on

du
ct

 a
 h

ea
rin

g 
on

 th
e 

su
bs

ta
nt

iv
e 

is
su

es
. 

 

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f J
an

ua
ry

 2
8,

 2
01

3:
 

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

St
at

e 
pr

op
os

al
 o

n 
ar

bi
tra

bi
lit

y 
av

oi
ds

 th
e 

tim
e 

an
d 

ex
pe

ns
e 

of
 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
a 

th
e 

en
tir

e 
ca

se
 

de
fe

nd
in

g 
em

pl
oy

ee
 d

is
ci

pl
in

e 
in

 
in

st
an

ce
s w

he
re

 th
er

e 
is

 a
n 

in
iti

al
 

is
su

e 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
ar

bi
tra

to
r h

as
 

au
th

or
ity

 to
 h

ea
r t

he
 c

as
e 

du
e 

to
 a

 
qu

es
tio

n 
of

 a
rb

itr
ab

ili
ty

.  
It 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
n 

ex
pe

di
te

d 
de

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

of
 th

at
 is

su
e.

 



A
FS

C
M

E
 F

lo
ri

da
 C

ou
nc

il 
79

 
H

um
an

 S
er

vi
ce

s, 
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
, O

pe
ra

tio
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s, 
an

d 
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
an

d 
C

le
ri

ca
l U

ni
ts

 
St

at
e 

Pe
rs

on
ne

l S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 O

ne
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
-1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 4

, 6
, 1

3,
 1

8,
 a

nd
 2

5 
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

13
 –

 H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 S

af
et

y 
     

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3:
 

Pr
op

os
es

 n
ew

 S
ec

tio
n 

1 
– 

R
ef

er
en

ce
s 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
O

rd
er

 2
00

0-
29

2 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

w
or

kp
la

ce
 sa

fe
ty

. 
     R

en
um

be
re

d 
Se

ct
io

n 
4 

– 
Pr

op
os

es
 

gr
ie

va
bi

lit
y 

to
 S

te
p 

3.
 

 

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f J
an

ua
ry

 2
8,

 2
01

3:
 

Pr
op

os
es

 n
ew

 S
ec

tio
n 

1 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

st
at

e 
po

lic
y 

to
 m

ak
e 

ev
er

y 
re

as
on

ab
le

 e
ff

or
t 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s a
 sa

fe
 a

nd
 

he
al

th
y 

w
or

ki
ng

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
fe

de
ra

l 
O

cc
up

at
io

na
l S

af
et

y 
an

d 
H

ea
lth

 A
ct

 ; 
 

  Pr
op

os
es

 st
rik

in
g 

th
e 

lim
its

 o
n 

gr
ie

va
bi

lit
y 

to
 S

te
p 

2.
 

O
SH

A
 is

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 b

y 
its

 te
rm

s 
on

ly
 to

 p
riv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s. 
 

EO
 2

00
0-

29
2 

re
qu

ire
s c

er
ta

in
 st

at
e 

ag
en

ci
es

 to
 c

om
pl

y 
vo

lu
nt

ar
ily

 
w

ith
 so

m
e 

O
SH

A
 st

an
da

rd
s. 

 
N

ei
th

er
 th

e 
EO

 n
or

 st
at

e 
la

w
 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
n 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
 fo

r t
hi

s v
ol

un
ta

ry
 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e.

  U
ni

on
 p

ro
po

sa
l 

w
ou

ld
 m

ak
e 

is
su

es
 o

f c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

gr
ie

va
bl

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
ar

bi
tra

tio
n.

 

18
 –

 L
ea

ve
s o

f A
bs

en
ce

, 
H

ou
rs

 o
f W

or
k,

 D
is

ab
ili

ty
 

Le
av

e 
 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f J
an

ua
ry

 8
, 2

01
3:

 
St

at
us

 q
uo

 
U

ni
on

 P
ro

po
sa

l o
f J

an
ua

ry
 2

8,
 2

01
3:

 
Pr

op
os

es
 th

at
 a

n 
em

pl
oy

ee
 b

e 
pa

id
 ti

m
e 

an
d 

a 
ha

lf 
fo

r s
pe

ci
al

 c
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

cr
ed

its
 e

ar
ne

d 
af

te
r J

ul
y 

1,
 2

01
2,

 
th

at
 c

an
no

t b
e 

us
ed

 b
y 

A
pr

il 
30

 o
r 

O
ct

ob
er

 3
1 

be
ca

us
e 

of
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l 
ne

ed
s o

f t
he

 a
ge

nc
y,

 u
nl

es
s t

he
 a

ge
nc

y 
an

d 
em

pl
oy

ee
 a

gr
ee

 to
 e

xt
en

d 
th

e 
da

te
 

th
e 

cr
ed

its
 m

us
t b

e 
us

ed
 fo

r a
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l 1
80

 d
ay

s;
 st

rik
es

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

la
ng

ua
ge

 p
ro

hi
bi

tin
g 

a 
pa

yo
ut

 o
f 

sp
ec

ia
l c

om
p 

cr
ed

its
 e

ar
ne

d 
on

 o
r a

fte
r 

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
2.

 
      

 



A
FS

C
M

E
 F

lo
ri

da
 C

ou
nc

il 
79

 
H

um
an

 S
er

vi
ce

s, 
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
, O

pe
ra

tio
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s, 
an

d 
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
an

d 
C

le
ri

ca
l U

ni
ts

 
St

at
e 

Pe
rs

on
ne

l S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 O

ne
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
-1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 4

, 6
, 1

3,
 1

8,
 a

nd
 2

5 
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

25
 –

 W
ag

es
 

                              

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f J
an

ua
ry

 3
0,

 2
01

3:
 

  Se
ct

io
n 

1 
– 

Pr
op

os
es

 p
ay

 sh
al

l b
e 

in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 th

e 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 2
01

3-
20

14
 G

en
er

al
 A

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

 A
ct

; 
in

cr
ea

se
s t

o 
ba

se
 ra

te
 o

f p
ay

 a
nd

 sa
la

ry
 

ad
di

tiv
es

 sh
al

l b
e 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 

st
at

e 
la

w
 a

nd
 th

e 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 2
01

3-
20

14
 G

en
er

al
 A

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

 A
ct

. 
 Se

ct
io

n 
2 

– 
Pr

op
os

es
 U

ne
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
R

at
e 

In
ce

nt
iv

e 
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 th
e 

G
ov

er
no

r’
s B

ud
ge

t R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 
 Se

ct
io

n 
3 

– 
Pr

op
os

es
 V

ar
ia

bl
e 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
A

w
ar

d 
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 
th

e 
G

ov
er

no
r’

s B
ud

ge
t 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 
Se

ct
io

n 
4 

– 
Pr

op
os

es
 R

ec
id

iv
is

m
 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
In

ce
nt

iv
e 

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 th

e 
G

ov
er

no
r’

s B
ud

ge
t R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

 Se
ct

io
n 

5 
– 

Pr
op

os
es

 T
em

po
ra

ry
 

Sp
ec

ia
l D

ut
ie

s P
ay

 A
dd

iti
ve

 o
f u

p 
to

 
15

%
, s

ub
je

ct
 to

 a
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

of
 fu

nd
s 

an
d 

at
 th

e 
ag

en
cy

 h
ea

d’
s d

is
cr

et
io

n,
 

fo
r e

m
pl

oy
ee

s t
em

po
ra

ril
y 

de
pl

oy
ed

 to
 

a 
fa

ci
lit

y 
or

 a
re

a 
cl

os
ed

 d
ue

 to
 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
co

nd
iti

on
s f

ro
m

 a
no

th
er

 
ar

ea
 o

f t
he

 st
at

e 
th

at
 is

 n
ot

 c
lo

se
d.

 

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3:
 

Pr
op

os
es

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 w

ag
e 

in
cr

ea
se

 
na

rr
at

iv
e.

 
Se

ct
io

n 
1 

– 
Pr

op
os

es
 a

 5
%

 b
as

e 
ra

te
 o

f 
pa

y 
in

cr
ea

se
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 

ta
xe

s;
 m

in
im

um
 in

cr
ea

se
 o

f $
1,

20
0 

                 Se
ct

io
n 

5 
– 

Pr
op

os
es

 T
em

po
ra

ry
 

Sp
ec

ia
l D

ut
ie

s P
ay

 A
dd

iti
ve

 o
f u

p 
to

 
15

%
 fo

r e
m

pl
oy

ee
s t

em
po

ra
ril

y 
de

pl
oy

ed
 to

 a
 fa

ci
lit

y 
or

 a
re

a 
cl

os
ed

 d
ue

 
to

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

co
nd

iti
on

s f
ro

m
 a

no
th

er
 

ar
ea

 o
f t

he
 st

at
e 

th
at

 is
 n

ot
 c

lo
se

d.
 

  

   C
os

t e
st

im
at

e:
 $

94
.1

M
 

                           



A
FS

C
M

E
 F

lo
ri

da
 C

ou
nc

il 
79

 
H

um
an

 S
er

vi
ce

s, 
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
, O

pe
ra

tio
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s, 
an

d 
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
an

d 
C

le
ri

ca
l U

ni
ts

 
St

at
e 

Pe
rs

on
ne

l S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 O

ne
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
-1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 4

, 6
, 1

3,
 1

8,
 a

nd
 2

5 
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

25
 –

 W
ag

es
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
                            

Se
ct

io
n 

6 
– 

Pr
op

os
es

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s m

ay
 

be
 g

iv
en

 th
e 

op
tio

n 
of

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
up

 to
 

24
 h

ou
rs

 o
f a

nn
ua

l l
ea

ve
 e

ac
h 

D
ec

em
be

r i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 S

ec
tio

n 
11

0.
21

9(
7)

, F
.S

. 
 Se

ct
io

n 
7 

– 
Pr

op
os

es
 e

ac
h 

ag
en

cy
 is

 
au

th
or

iz
ed

 to
 g

ra
nt

 m
er

it 
pa

y 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

’s
 e

xe
m

pl
ar

y 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 a

s e
vi

de
nc

ed
 b

y 
a 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 to

 R
ul

e 
60

L-
35

, F
.A

.C
. 

 Se
ct

io
n 

8 
– 

Pr
op

os
es

 a
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

 o
r 

gr
ou

ps
 o

f e
m

pl
oy

ee
s m

ay
 b

e 
el

ig
ib

le
 

fo
r m

on
et

ar
y 

aw
ar

ds
 fo

r i
de

as
 o

r 
pr

og
ra

m
s t

ha
t r

es
ul

t i
n 

a 
co

st
 sa

vi
ng

 to
 

th
e 

st
at

e,
 p

ur
su

an
t t

o 
Se

ct
io

n 
11

0.
12

45
(1

), 
F.

S.
 

 Se
ct

io
n 

9 
– 

Pr
op

os
es

 th
at

 in
 th

e 
ev

en
t 

th
e 

20
13

 L
eg

is
la

tu
re

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
di

ff
er

en
t f

un
di

ng
 o

r e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 fo

r t
he

 a
bo

ve
-r

ef
er

en
ce

 p
ay

 
in

cr
ea

se
s a

nd
 p

ay
m

en
ts

, t
he

 st
at

e 
an

d 
th

e 
un

io
n 

ag
re

e 
th

at
 th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
s a

nd
 

pa
ym

en
ts

 sh
al

l b
e 

ad
m

in
is

te
re

d 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 2
01

3-
20

14
 G

en
er

al
 

A
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
 A

ct
, o

r a
ny

 o
th

er
 

re
le

va
nt

 st
at

ut
es

. 
 

Se
ct

io
n 

2 
(u

ni
on

 c
ha

ng
es

 o
rd

er
 o

f 
se

ct
io

ns
) –

 P
ro

po
se

s e
m

pl
oy

ee
s w

ill
 

ha
ve

 th
e 

op
tio

n 
of

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
a 

ca
sh

 
pa

yo
ut

 o
f u

p 
to

 2
4 

ho
ur

s o
f a

nn
ua

l 
le

av
e 

ea
ch

 D
ec

em
be

r i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 

w
ith

 S
ec

tio
n 

11
0.

21
9(

7)
, F

.S
.; 

an
d 

th
e 

op
tio

n 
of

 a
 p

ay
ou

t e
ac

h 
D

ec
em

be
r f

or
 

al
l u

nu
se

d 
sp

ec
ia

l c
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

ea
rn

ed
 a

fte
r J

ul
y 

1,
 2

01
2.

 
  

        Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

os
ts

 fo
r a

ge
nc

ie
s 

af
fe

ct
ed

; u
nd

et
er

m
in

ed
 $

. 



A
FS

C
M

E
 F

lo
ri

da
 C

ou
nc

il 
79

 
H

um
an

 S
er

vi
ce

s, 
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
, O

pe
ra

tio
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s, 
an

d 
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
an

d 
C

le
ri

ca
l U

ni
ts

 
St

at
e 

Pe
rs

on
ne

l S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 O

ne
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
-1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 4

, 6
, 1

3,
 1

8,
 a

nd
 2

5 
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

34
 –

 D
ur

at
io

n 
St

at
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 o
f J

an
ua

ry
 8

, 2
01

3:
 

Pr
op

os
es

 o
ne

-y
ea

r a
gr

ee
m

en
t t

o 
ex

pi
re

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
4.

 

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3:
 

Pr
op

os
es

 a
 th

re
e-

ye
ar

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t t

o 
ex

pi
re

 Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

6;
 fo

ur
 a

rti
cl

es
 to

 b
e 

re
op

en
ed

 in
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r 2
01

4-
15

 a
nd

 
20

15
-1

6.
 

 

 





PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 5 (Status Quo)  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 5 
 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

Article 5 
EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATION AND ASSOCIATION ACTIVITIES 

 
SECTION 1 – Definitions 

(A) The term “employee” as used in this Agreement, shall mean an employee 
included in the Special Agent bargaining unit represented by the Florida Police Benevolent 
Association, Inc. (Association). 

(B) The term "Grievance Representative," as used in this Agreement, shall mean an 
employee who has been designated by the President of the Association to investigate grievances 
at the Oral Step, and to represent a grievant at the Oral Step and Step 1 meetings on grievances 
which have been properly filed under Article 6 of this Agreement, when the Association has 
been selected as the employee's representative.  

SECTION 2 – Representation 
(A) The Association shall select one (1) employee as an Association Grievance 

Representative per region as defined by the Florida Department of Law Enforcement, and shall 
furnish to the state and keep up-to-date a list of all such employees authorized to act as 
Grievance Representatives.  In addition, the Association shall furnish to the state and keep up-to-
date a list of Association Staff Representatives. The state will not recognize a grievance or staff 
representative whose name does not appear on the appropriate list.  Where Association 
representation is requested by an employee, the representative shall be a person so selected and 
designated by the Association. 

(B) Where Association representation is not requested by the employee, an Association 
Grievance Representative shall be notified of and be given an opportunity to be present at any 
meeting held concerning the grievance. 

SECTION 3 – Representative Access 
The state agrees that accredited representatives of the Association shall have access to the 

premises of the state which are available to the public.  If any area of the state's premises is 
restricted to the public, permission must be requested to enter such areas and such permission 
will not be unreasonably denied.  Such access shall be during the regular working hours of the 
employee and shall be restricted to matters related to the application of this Agreement. 

SECTION 4 – Academy Access 
Where the agency operates its own Academy and conducts entry-level Special Agent 

training, a representative of the Association, accompanied by a representative of the Executive 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 5 (Status Quo)  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 2 of 5 
 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

Director, will be permitted to address each entry-level Special Agent class during class time to 
provide each recruit a copy of the current Special Agent Unit Agreement and to discuss the 
provisions of that Agreement.  This presentation will not last longer than 30 minutes unless a 
longer period is agreed to by the Association and the agency, and may be made only once per 
class at a time mutually selected in advance by the Association, the representative of the 
Executive Director, and the Special Agent Unit Head or designee. 

It is understood by the parties that the Association will not use this time to solicit new 
members. Any violation of this provision may result in the revocation of this section of the 
Agreement. 
SECTION 5 – Consultation  

(A) Upon request by the designated Association Staff Representative, the Secretary of the 
Department of Management Services and/or designated representative(s) shall make a good faith 
effort to meet and consult on a quarterly basis with three (3) Association representatives. Such 
meetings shall be held at a time and place designated by the Department of Management 
Services. 

(B) Upon request by the designated Association Staff Representative, but not more often 
than once in each calendar month, the Executive Director and/or designated representatives shall 
meet and consult with not more than two (2) Association representatives from the Agency and 
the Association Staff Representative.  Such meetings shall be held at a time and place designated 
by the Executive Director. 

(C) Upon request by the designated Association Staff Representative, but not more than 
once in each calendar month, the Step 1 Management Representative shall make a good faith 
effort to meet and consult with the Association Staff Representative and not more than two (2) 
Association representatives from the Agency.  Such meetings shall be held at a time and place to 
be designated by the Step 1 Management Representative. 

(D) All consultation meetings will be scheduled after giving due consideration to the 
availability and work location of all parties. If a consultation meeting is held or requires 
reasonable travel time during the working hours of any employee participant, such participant 
shall be granted administrative leave for that purpose.  Attendance at the consultation meeting 
outside of regular working hours shall not be deemed time worked. 

(E) The purpose of all consultation meetings shall be to discuss matters relating to the 
administration of this Agreement and agency law enforcement activities which affect employees, 
and no such meeting shall be used for the purpose of discussing pending grievances or for 
negotiation purposes.  No later than three (3) calendar days prior to the scheduled meeting date, 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 5 (Status Quo)  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 3 of 5 
 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

the parties shall exchange agenda indicating the matters they wish to discuss. 

SECTION 6 – Bulletin Boards 
(A) Where requested in writing, the state agrees to furnish in a permanent state-controlled 

facility to which any employees are assigned, wall space not to exceed 24 x 36 inches for 
Association-purchased bulletin boards of an equal size.  Where the Association currently 
maintains bulletin boards, that practice shall continue.  

(B) When requested in writing, the state agrees to furnish at an academy in an agency-
controlled facility, wall space not to exceed 24 x 36 inches for an Association-purchased bulletin 
board. 

(C) The use of Association bulletin board space is limited to the following notices: 
(1) Recreation and social affairs of the Association, 
(2) Association meetings, 
(3) Association elections, 
(4) Reports of Association committees, 
(5) Association benefit programs, 
(6) Current Association contract, 
(7) Training and educational opportunities, and 
(8) Other materials pertaining to the welfare of Association members. 

(D) Notices posted on these bulletin boards shall not contain anything reflecting 
adversely on the state, or any of its officers or employees, nor shall any posted material violate or 
have the effect of violating any law, rule, or regulation. 

(E) Notices posted must be dated and bear the signature of the Association's authorized 
representative. 

(F) A violation of these provisions by an Association authorized representative shall be a 
basis for removal of bulletin board privileges by the Department of Management Services. 

SECTION 7 – Employee Lists 
(A) Upon request of the designated Association Staff Representative, the state will, on no 

more than a quarterly basis, provide the Association with a list giving the name, work address on 
file, classification title, and gross salary for each employee. 

(B) When an employee resigns, is terminated, retires normally, is retired by disability, or 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 5 (Status Quo)  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 4 of 5 
 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

is transferred, promoted or demoted out of the bargaining unit, the state shall promptly notify the 
Association, giving the employee's name and agency. 

SECTION 8 – Occupation Profiles and Rules  
(A)  The state will maintain on the Department of Management Services’ website the 

occupation profiles and the Rules of the State Personnel System.  
(B)  In instances where the state determines that a revision to an occupation profile or 

occupational level for positions covered by this Agreement is needed, the Department of 
Management Services shall notify the Association in writing of the proposed changes.  This 
procedure shall not constitute a waiver of the Association’s right to bargain over such matters in 
accordance with Chapter 447, Part II, Florida Statutes and applicable law.  The Association shall 
notify the Department of Management Services in writing within seven (7) calendar days of its 
receipt of written notification from the Department, of its comments concerning the proposed 
change(s) or its desire to discuss the proposed change(s).  Failure of the Association to notify the 
Department of Management Services within the specified period shall constitute a waiver of the 
right to discuss the change(s).   
SECTION 9 – Negotiations  

(A) The Association agrees that all collective bargaining is to be conducted with state 
representatives designated for that purpose by the Governor, as chief executive officer. While 
negotiating meetings shall normally be held in Tallahassee, the state and the Association may 
agree to meet elsewhere at a state facility or other location which involves no rental cost to the 
state. There shall be no negotiation by the Association at any other level of state government. 

(B) The Association may designate certain employees to serve as its Negotiation 
Committee, and such employees will be granted administrative leave to attend negotiating 
sessions with the state.  An employee serving on the Negotiation Committee shall also be granted 
a maximum of eight (8) hours administrative leave to attend a negotiation preparatory meeting to 
be held the calendar day immediately preceding each scheduled negotiation session, provided 
that the negotiation preparatory meeting is held on what would otherwise be the employee’s 
normal workday.  No employee shall be credited with more than the number of hours in the 
employee's regular workday for any day the employee is in negotiations.  No more than three (3) 
employees that may attend a preparatory meeting or negotiating session.  The time in attendance 
at such preparatory meetings and negotiating sessions shall not be counted as hours worked for 
the purpose of computing compensatory time or overtime. The agency shall not reimburse the 
employee for travel, meals, lodging, or any expense incurred in connection with attendance at 
preparatory meetings or negotiating sessions. 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 5 (Status Quo)  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 5 of 5 
 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

(C) The selection of an employee shall not unduly hamper the operations of the work 
unit. 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 8 
 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 
 

Article 6 
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

It is the policy of the Sstate and the Association to encourage informal discussions of 
complaints between management and employees covered by this Agreement, as well as between 
supervisors and covered employees. Such discussions should be held with view to reaching an 
understanding, which will resolve the matter in a manner satisfactory to the employee, without 
need for recourse to the formal grievance procedure prescribed by this Article. 
SECTION 1 – Definitions  

As used in this Article: 
(A) "Grievance" shall mean a dispute involving the interpretation or application of the 

specific provisions of this Agreement, except as exclusions are noted in this Agreement, filed on 
the appropriate form as contained in Appendix B of this Agreement. 

(B) "Employee" shall mean a Special Agent, Special Agent Trainee, or a group of such 
employees having the same grievance. In the case of a group of employees, one shall be 
designated by the group to act as spokesperson and to be responsible for processing the 
grievance. 

(C) "Days" shall mean calendar days, excluding any day observed as a holiday pursuant 
to the Personnel Rules section 110.117, Florida Statutes. 
SECTION 2 – Election of Remedy and Representation 

(A) If an employee or the Association has a grievance which may be processed under this 
Article and which may also be appealed to the Florida Public Employees Relations Commission, 
the employee or the Association shall elect at the outset, which procedure is to be used and such 
election shall be binding on the employee or the Association.   In the case of any duplicate filing, 
the action first filed will be the one processed. 

(B A) An employee who decides to use this Grievance Procedure shall indicate at Step 
1(or the initial written step if authorized by the provisions of this Article) whether or not he shall 
be represented by the Association.  When the employee has elected Association representation, 
both the employee and the Association Representative shall be notified of any Step 1 meeting. 
Further, any written communication concerning the grievance or its resolution shall be sent to 
both the employee and the Association representative, and any decision mutually agreed to by 
the Sstate and the Association shall be binding on the employee. 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 2 of 8 
 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 
 

(C B) If the employee is not represented by the Association, any adjustment of the 
grievance shall be consistent with the terms of this collective bargaining Agreement. The 
Association shall be given reasonable opportunity to be present at any meeting called for the 
resolution of such grievance.   An employee using this procedure in the processing of a grievance 
will be bound by the procedure established by the parties to the Agreement. The Association 
shall not be bound by the decision of any grievance or arbitration in which the employee was not 
represented by the Association. 
SECTION 3 – Procedures  

(A) Employee grievances filed in accordance with this Article should are to be presented 
and handled promptly at the lowest level of management having the authority to adjust the 
grievances.  Grievances may be filed and responded to by facsimile, electronic mail, mail, or 
personal delivery. 

(B) There shall be no reprisals against any of the participants in the procedures contained 
herein by reason of such participation. 

(C) Except for suspensions, t The filing or pendency of any grievance under the 
provisions of this Article shall in no way operate to impede, delay or interfere with the right of 
the Sstate to take the action complained of; subject, however, to the final disposition of the 
grievance. Suspensions shall not be imposed until the final disposition of the grievance, if any, 
except where such suspension is made pending the outcome of a criminal investigation.  The 
employee shall notice the agency head or his designated representative of his intention 
to grieve appeal a suspension to the Public Employees Relations Commission (see Article 7, 
Section 2(C) of the Agreement) within seven (7) days of the receipt of the final notice from the 
agency. Suspensions shall not be imposed until the final disposition of an appeal, if any, except 
where such suspension is made pending the outcome of a criminal investigation.  The employee's 
failure to do so notify the agency of his intention to appeal shall permit the agency to proceed 
with the suspension. 

(D) Once After a grievance is presented, no new violation or issue can be raised. unless 
the parties agree in writing to revise or amend the alleged violations or issues, or upon a party’s 
showing of good cause for the consideration of such new issue, but in no event later than the 
filing of a grievance at Step 3.  When an issue is unchanged, but it is determined that an article, 
section or paragraph of the Agreement has been cited imprecisely or erroneously by the 
employee, then the employee shall have the right to amend that part of his grievance. 

(E) The resolution of a grievance prior to its submission in writing at Step 3 to 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 3 of 8 
 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 
 

Arbitration shall not establish a precedent binding on either the Association or the Sstate in other 
cases. 

(F) If a grievance meeting is held or requires reasonable travel time during the working 
hours of any required participant, such participant shall be excused without loss of pay for that 
purpose.  Attendance at grievance meetings outside of the regular working hours shall not be 
deemed time worked. 

(G) Grievances shall be presented and adjusted in the following manner, and no one 
individual may respond to a grievance at more than one written step. 

(1) Oral Discussion 
(a) An employee having a grievance may, within fourteen (14) days 

following the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance, present the grievance orally, 
for informal discussion, to the management representative who has the authority to adjust the 
grievance, or may file a written grievance at Step 1. , for informal discussion, and  tThe 
management representative shall make every effort to resolve the grievance promptly. 

(b) If the grievance is not resolved by such informal discussion, the 
employee may, within fourteen (14) days after following the date of that discussion, submit 
a formal written grievance at Step 1 of this procedure. 

(2) Step 1 
(a) If the employee elects not to utilize the oral discussion provision of this 

section he may file a written grievance at Step 1, provided such written grievance is filed within 
14 days following the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance.  In filing a grievance 
at Step 1, the employee or his designated representative shall submit to the Step 1 Management 
Representative a grievance form as contained in Appendix B of this Agreement, setting forth 
specifically the complete facts on which the grievance is based, the specific provision or 
provisions of the Agreement allegedly violated, and the relief requested. 

(b) The Step 1 Management Representative or his designee 
shall communicate a decision in writing to the employee and to the Association Grievance 
Representative, if any, within fourteen (14) days following receipt of the grievance form. 

(3) Step 2 
(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the employee or his 

designated representative may submit it in writing to the Agency Head or his designated 
representative within fourteen (14) days after following receipt of the decision at Step 1.  When 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 4 of 8 
 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 
 

the grievance is eligible for initiation at Step 2, the Ggrievance form must contain the same 
information as a grievance filed at Step 1 above. The Agency Head or his designated 
representative may have a meeting meet with the employee, and/or with an Association 
Grievance Representative, at the employee's option, to discuss the grievance. 

(b) The Agency Head or his designated representative shall communicate 
a decision in writing to the employee and to the Association Grievance Representative 
within twenty-one (21) days following receipt of the written grievance. 

(4) Step 3 
Step 3 shall serve as the final and binding step for all matters, which are 

grievable, but not arbitrable, under this Agreement. 
(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 2, the employee 

or his designated representative may submit the grievance in writing on the appropriate form as 
contained in Appendix B of this Agreement, to the Department of Management Services 
within fourteen (14) days after following receipt of the decision at Step 2.  The grievance shall 
include a copy of the grievance forms submitted at Steps 1 and 2, together with all written 
responses and documents in support of the grievance.  When the grievance is eligible for 
initiation at Step 3, the grievance form must contain the same information as a grievance filed at 
Step 1 above. 

(b) The Department of Management Services may have a meeting meet 
with the Association Staff Representative or his designee, to discuss the grievance. The 
Department of Management Services shall communicate a decision in writing to the employee 
and to the Association Staff Representative within twenty-one (21) days following receipt of the 
written grievance. 

(5) Grievance Mediation 
 The parties may, by written agreement, submit a grievance to mediation to 

be conducted by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS) after it has been 
submitted to arbitration but before a hearing is scheduled.  Either party may withdraw from the 
mediation process with written notice no later than five (5) days before a scheduled mediation. 

(5 6) Step 4 – Arbitration  
(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 3, the Association 

representative may appeal the grievance in writing to arbitration on a form to be supplied by the 
State, the appropriate form as contained in Appendix C of this Agreement within fourteen (14) 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 5 of 8 
 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 
 

days after following receipt of the decision at Step 3.  If, at the initial written step, the 
Association refused to represent the employee because he was not a dues-paying member of the 
Association, the employee may appeal the grievance to arbitration. 

(b) The arbitrator shall be one person from a panel of three (3) 
permanent arbitrators, mutually selected by the State and the Association to serve in rotation for 
any case or cases submitted.  The Department of Management Services shall facilitate the 
scheduling of all arbitration hearings. 

(c) The parties may, by mutual agreement in writing, submit related 
grievances for hearing before the same arbitrator.  

(d)  Where there is a threshold issue regarding arbitrability, including 
timeliness, of a grievance raised by either party, an expedited arbitration hearing shall be 
conducted to address only the arbitrability issue.  In such cases, the parties shall choose an 
arbitrator from the panel of arbitrators (see (6)(b) above), who is available to schedule a hearing 
and render a decision within twenty days of an arbitrator being chosen for this limited purpose.  
The hearing on this issue shall be limited to one day, and the arbitrator shall be required to 
decide the issue within five (5) business days of the hearing.  The hearing shall be conducted by 
telephone upon the agreement of the parties and the arbitrator.  The party losing the arbitrability 
issue shall pay the fees and expenses of the expedited arbitration. If the arbitrator determines that 
the issue is arbitrable, another arbitrator shall be chosen from the parties’ regular arbitration 
panel in accordance with the provisions of (6)(b) of this Article to conduct a hearing on the 
substantive issue(s). 

(d e) Arbitration hearings shall be held at times and locations mutually 
agreed to by the parties. Under normal circumstances hearings will be held in Tallahassee; 
however, selection of the site shall take into account the availability of evidence, location of 
witnesses and existence of appropriate facilities. 

(e f) The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the 
grievance and, provided the decision is in accordance with his jurisdiction and authority under 
this Agreement, shall be final and binding on the Sstate, the Association, the grievant(s), and the 
employees in the bargaining Unit. In considering a grievance the arbitrator shall be governed by 
the following provisions and limitations: 

1. The arbitrator shall issue his a decision not later than thirty (30) 
days from the date of the closing of the hearing or the submission of briefs, whichever is later. 

2. The arbitrator's decision shall be in writing, and shall set forth 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 6 of 8 
 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 
 

the arbitrator's opinion and conclusions on the issue(s) submitted. 
3. The arbitrator shall have no authority to determine any other 

issue, and shall refrain from issuing any statement of opinion or conclusion not essential to the 
determination of the issues submitted. 

4. The arbitrator shall limit his the decision strictly to the 
application and interpretation of the specific provisions of this Agreement. 

5. The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make any 
decisions: 

a. Contrary to or inconsistent with, adding to, subtracting 
from, or modifying, altering or ignoring in any way, the terms of this Agreement, or of 
applicable law or rules or regulations having the force and effect of law. 

b. Limiting or interfering in any way with the powers, 
duties and responsibilities of the Sstate under its Constitution, applicable law, and rules and 
regulations having the force and effect of law, except as such powers, duties and responsibilities 
have been abridged, delegated or modified by the expressed provisions of this Agreement. 

6. The arbitrator's award may include back pay to the grievant(s); 
however, the following limitations shall apply to such monetary awards: 

a. No award for back pay shall exceed the amount of pay 
the employee would otherwise have earned at his regular rate of pay and such back pay shall not 
be retroactive to a date earlier than the date of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the 
grievance under consideration and in no event more than the time limits permitted for initiation 
of the grievance. 

b. The award shall not exceed the actual loss to the 
grievant, will not include punitive damages, and will be reduced by the amount of wages earned 
from other sources and/or unemployment compensation received by the employee during the 
period of time affected by the award. 

(f g) The reasonable fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne 
solely by the party who fails to prevail in the hearing; however, each party shall be responsible 
for compensating and paying the expenses of its own representatives, attorneys and witnesses. 

(g h) The Association will not be responsible for costs of an arbitration to 
which it was not a party. 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 7 of 8 
 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 
 

SECTION 4 – Time Limits 
(A) Failure to initiate a grievance within the time limits in Section 3 above shall be 

deemed a waiver of the grievance.   Failure at any step of this procedure to submit a grievance to 
the next step within the specified time limits shall be deemed to be acceptance of the decision at 
that step. 

(B) Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance 
within the specified time limits shall permit the employee, or the Association where appropriate, 
to proceed to the next step.   A Step 2 or Step 3 answer that is not received by the Association by 
the written, agreed-to deadline does not alter the time limits for appealing the grievance to the 
next step. 

(C) The number of days indicated at each step should be considered as a maximum, and 
every effort should be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits specified in any 
step of this procedure may be extended, in any specific instance, by mutual agreement. 

(D) Claims of either an untimely filing or untimely appeal shall be made at the step in 
question. 
SECTION 5 – Exceptions  

(A) Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to permit 
the Association or an employee to process a grievance (1) in on behalf of any employee without 
his written consent, or (2) with respect to any matter which is the subject of a grievance, an 
appeal, an administrative action before a government board or agency, or a court proceeding, 
brought by an individual employee or group of employees, or by the Association. 

(B) All grievances will be presented at the initial step with the following exceptions: 
(1) If a grievance arises from the action of an official higher than the Step 1 

Management Representative, the grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 or 3, as appropriate, by 
submitting a grievance form as set forth in Step 1 within fourteen (14) days following the 
occurrence giving rise to the grievance. 

(2) The Association shall have the right to bring a class action grievance on behalf 
of bargaining Unit employees, in its own name, concerning disputes relating to the interpretation 
or application of this Agreement. Such grievance shall not include disciplinary actions taken 
against an employee. The Association's election to proceed under this Article shall preclude it 
from proceeding in another forum on the same issue. Such grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 
of this procedure, in accordance with the provisions set forth herein, within fourteen (14) days of 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 8 of 8 
 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 
 

the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance. 
(3) Any An employee who has not attained permanent status in the Career Service his 

current position can may only bring file non-discipline grievances to Step 3. as provided for in 
this Article.   Non-discipline grievances filed by probationary employees are final and binding at 
Step 3 unless the processing of such grievances is further limited by specific provisions of this 
Agreement. 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 7 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 3 
 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

Article 7 
INTERNAL INVESTIGATIONS AND DISCIPLINARY ACTION 

SECTION 1 – Internal Investigations 
(A) The parties recognize that law enforcement personnel occupy a special place in 

American society. Therefore, it is understood that the Sstate has the right to expect that a 
professional standard of conduct be adhered to by all law enforcement personnel regardless of 
rank or assignment.  Since internal investigations may be undertaken to inquire into complaints 
of law enforcement misconduct, the Sstate reserves the right to conduct such investigations to 
uncover the facts in each case, but expressly agrees to carefully guard and protect the rights and 
dignity of accused personnel. In the course of any internal investigation, the investigative 
methods employed will be consistent with the law.   

(B) When an allegation is made against an employee, the Sstate will make every 
reasonable effort to ensure that the allegation and related statements are reduced to writing, 
under oath, and signed.   An internal investigation may be opened on the basis of an anonymous 
or unwritten complaint if, following a preliminary review of the allegations, the agency 
determines there is a reasonable basis to initiate the investigation. 

(C)  Any employee while under investigation and subject to interrogation by members of 
the Department of Law Enforcement for any reason which could lead to disciplinary action, 
demotion, or dismissal, shall be interrogated under the conditions as established, and shall have 
the rights and privileges afforded, by Sections 112.532 and 112.533, Florida Statutes.  Failure of 
the Department to comply with Sections 112.532 and 112.533, Florida Statutes, shall be subject 
to the grievance procedure in Article 6, but only through Step 2 3.  

(D) In cases where an agency determines that the employee's absence from the work 
location is essential to the investigation and the employee cannot be reassigned to other duties 
pending completion of the investigation, the employee shall be placed on administrative leave 
pending investigation,. sSuch leave shall be in accordance with Chapter Rule 60L-34, Florida 
Administrative Code.  

(E) Unless required by statute, no employee shall be required to submit to a polygraph 
test or any device designed to measure the truthfulness of his responses during an investigation 
of a complaint or allegation. 

(F) Only sustained findings may be inserted in personnel records. Unfounded findings 
shall not be inserted in permanent personnel records or referred to in performance reviews. 
Nothing in this Ssection shall obligate the Sstate to violate or act in a manner contrary to Chapter 
119, Florida Statutes. 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 7 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 2 of 3 
 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

(G) The Sstate shall ensure that persons who investigate charges against law enforcement 
employees are aware of, and in good faith abide by, the requirements of Ssections 112.532 and 
112.533, Florida Statutes. 
SECTION 2 – Disciplinary Action 

(A) An employee who has attained permanent status in the Career Service System his 
current position may be disciplined only for just cause.  Cause shall include, but is not limited to 
poor performance, negligence, inefficiency or inability to perform assigned duties, 
insubordination, violation of provisions of law or agency rules, conduct unbecoming a public 
employee, misconduct, habitual drug abuse, or conviction of any crime.  The agency head shall 
ensure that all employees of the agency have reasonable access to the agency’s personnel 
manual. 

(B)   Letters of counseling or counseling notices are documentation of minor work 
deficiencies or conduct concerns that are not discipline, and are not grievable; however such 
documentation may be used by the state at an administrative hearing involving an employee’s 
discipline to demonstrate the employee was on notice of the performance deficiencies or conduct 
concerns. 

(C) The agency may have special compensatory leave equal to the length of a 
disciplinary suspension deducted from an employee’s leave balance in lieu of serving the 
suspension.  In making such determination, the agency shall take into consideration the 
preference of the employee as to serving the suspension or having leave deducted.  If the 
employee does not have sufficient special compensatory leave, annual leave may be deducted.  If 
there is not sufficient special compensatory or annual leave, the remainder of the period will be 
leave without pay. Employees from whom leave is deducted will continue to report for duty.  
The employee’s personnel file will reflect a disciplinary suspension regardless of whether the 
employee serves the suspension or has leave deducted. 

(B D) If filed within fourteen (14) 21 calendar days from following the date of receipt of 
notice from the agency, by personal delivery or by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, a complaint by an employee with permanent status in the Career Service his current 
position may appeal concerning a reduction in base pay, involuntary transfer of over 50 miles by 
highway, suspension, demotion, or dismissal may be grieved at Step 2 and processed through the 
Arbitration Step without review at Step 3, in accordance with the grievance procedure in Article 
6 of this Agreement. to the Public Employees Relations Commission under the provisions of 
Section 110.227(5) and (6), Florida Statutes.  Such appeal process is the exclusive remedy for 
review of such actions; they are not subject to the Article 6 grievance procedure. 

(C) An employee who has not attained permanent status in the Career Service System 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 7 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 3 of 3 
 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

shall not have access to the grievance procedure in Article 6 when disciplined. 
 (E) A Wwritten reprimands shall be subject to the grievance procedure in Article 6 if a 

grievance is filed by an employee with permanent status in his current position; but only 
through the decision is final and binding at Step 3 2. 

 (D F) Each employee shall be furnished a copy of all disciplinary actions placed in his 
official personnel file and shall be permitted to respond thereto. 

(E G) An employee may request that an Association Staff Representative be present 
during any disciplinary investigation meeting in which the employee is being questioned relative 
to alleged misconduct of the employee, or during a predetermination conference in which 
suspension, demotion, or dismissal of the employee is being considered. 

(F) An oral reprimand shall not be considered in determining progressive discipline, 
provided that the employee is not disciplined for the same offense during the succeeding twelve 
(12) months from the date of issuance, and a written reprimand shall not be considered in 
determining progressive discipline, provided that the employee is not disciplined for the same 
offense during the succeeding twenty-four (24) months for the date of issuance, and further 
provided that the oral or written reprimands were not for a major offense which cold have 
resulted in the employee’s dismissal. 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 8 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

Article 8 
WORKFORCE REDUCTION 

SECTION 1 – Layoffs  
(A) When bargaining Unit employees are to be laid off, the Sstate shall implement such 

layoff in the following manner: 
(1) The competitive area for the bargaining unit shall be statewide unless the Department 

and Association agree otherwise. 
(2) Layoff shall be by class or occupational level within the Special Agent unit. 
(3) Any employee who does not have Career Service status has not attained permanent 

status in his current position may be laid off without applying the provision for retention rights. 
(4) No employee with permanent status in the affected class his current position shall be 

laid off while an employee who does not hold permanent status in his current position is serving 
in that class or level unless the permanent employee does not elect to exercise his retention rights 
or does not meet selective competition criteria. 

(5) All employees who have permanent status in the affected class or level their current 
position shall be ranked in a layoff list based on the total retention points derived as follows: 

(a) Length-of-service retention points shall be based on one point for each month 
of continuous service in a Career Service position based on the five years immediately prior to 
the agency’s established cutoff date for the determining layoff. 

(1) An employee who resigns from one Career Service position to accept 
employment in another Career Service position is not considered to have a break in services if 
such break is not in excess of 31 calendar days. 

(2) An employee who has been laid off and is reemployed within one year 
from the date of layoff, shall not be considered to have a break in service. 

(3) Moving from Career Service to Selected Exempt Service or Senior 
Management Service and back to Career Service does not constitute a break in service unless the 
employee’s break between services is more than 31 days.  Only the time spent in Career Service 
can be is counted in calculating retention points. 

(b) Retention points deducted for performance not meeting performance standards 
or work expectations defined for the position shall be based on the five years immediately prior 
to the agency’s established cutoff date.  Five points shall be deducted from the length of service 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 8 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

points for each month in which performance was below standards.  In the case of reassignment 
or demotion to a class within a series, reduction of retention points shall be calculated in the 
same manner for a class in a series as for a class outside a series. 

(6) The layoff list shall be prepared by totaling retention points.  Employees eligible for 
veteran’s’ preference pursuant to Ssection 295.07(1)(a) or (b), Florida Statutes, shall have ten 
percent added to their total retention points, and those eligible pursuant to Ssection 295.07(1)(c) 
or (d), Florida Statutes, shall have five percent added. 

(7) The employee with the highest total retention points is placed at the top of the list and 
the employee with the lowest total retention points is placed at the bottom of the list. 

(8) The employee at the top of the list shall bump the employee at the bottom of the list.  
The next highest employee on the list and the remaining employees shall be handled in the same 
manner until the total number of filled positions in the class to be abolished is complete.    

(9) Should two or more employees have the same combined total retention points, the 
order of layoff shall be determined by giving preference for retention in the following sequence: 

(a) The employee with the longest service in the affected class. 
(b) The employee with the longest continuous service in the Career Service. 
(c) The employee who is entitled to veteran’s’ preference pursuant to Ssection 

295.07(1), Florida Statutes. 
(10) An employee who has Career Service permanent status in his current position and 

who is to be laid off shall be given at least 14 calendar days’ notice of such layoff or in lieu 
thereof, two weeks’ pay, for or a combination of days of notice or and pay., in lieu of the full 
fourteen calendars days notice, Any payment will be made to be paid at the employee’s current 
hourly base rate of pay.  The notice of layoff shall be in writing and sent to the employee by 
certified mail, return receipt requested.  Within seven calendar days after receiving the notice of 
layoff, the employee shall have the right to request, in writing, a reassignment or demotion to 
another position within the competitive area in lieu of layoff to another position.  Such request 
must be in writing. 

(11) An employee’s request for reassignment or demotion shall be granted unless it 
would cause the layoff of another employee who possesses a greater total of retention points. 

(12) An employee who is adversely affected as a result of another employee having a 
greater number of retention points shall have the same right of reassignment or demotion under 
the same procedures provided in this section. 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 8 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 
For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

(13) If an employee requests a reassignment or demotion in lieu of layoff, the same 
formula and criteria for establishing retention points for that class shall be used as prescribed in 
this section. 
SECTION 2 – Recall    

(A) When a vacancy occurs or a new position is established, laid off employees shall be 
recalled in the following manner: 

(1) For one year following lay-off layoff, when a position is to be filled, or a new 
position is established in the same agency and in the same class within the affected competitive 
area, the a laid off employees with the highest number of retention points shall be offered 
reemployment; and subsequent offers shall be made in the order of the an employee’s total 
retention points.  Reemployment of such employees shall be with permanent status in their 
position.  An employee who refuses such offer of employment shall forfeit any rights to 
subsequent placement offers as provided in this subsection. 

(2) An employee who accepts a voluntary demotion in lieu of layoff and is 
subsequently promoted to a position in the same class in the same agency from which the 
employees was demoted in lieu of layoff, shall be promoted with permanent status in the 
position. 

(3) Under no circumstances is a layoff to be considered a disciplinary action, an 
and in the event an employee elects to appeal the action taken, such appeal must be based on 
whether the layoff was in accordance with the provisions of this article. 
SECTION 3 – Retirement Benefits 

Pursuant to Ssection 121.021(38), Florida Statutes, an absence from the employer's 
payroll for a period of not to exceed twelve (12) calendar months due to a "layoff" by the State 
shall not constitute a break in the continuous service requirement as provided in Section 121.021, 
Florida Statutes, for special risk members. 
SECTION 4 – Job Security 

(A) The Sstate shall make a reasonable effort to notify the Association at least thirty (30) 
days in advance of classes within the bargaining unit that will be involved in a layoff.  Prior to 
the actual layoff, the Sstate will meet with the Association to discuss the effect of the layoff on 
the employees involved. 

(B) At least thirty (30) days prior to aeffecting a planned organizational change which 
will result in the movement of positions out of the bargaining unit, or in the demotion of Unit 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 8 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

employees, the agency will notify the Department of Management Services of the changes.  If 
the Department of Management Services determines that bargaining Unit employees are 
impacted by the changes, under Chapter 447, Florida Statutes, it will notify the Association of 
the changes pursuant to Chapter 447, Florida Statutes. 
 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 9 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 5 
 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

Article 9 
REASSIGNMENT, TRANSFER, CHANGE IN DUTY STATION, PROMOTION 

 
It is the intent of the Sstate and the Association that the minimum initial service 

obligation for Unit members employees shall be twenty-four (24) months. Employees who have 
fulfilled their minimum initial service obligations shall have the opportunity to request 
reassignment, transfer, or a change in duty station, or promotion in accordance with the 
provisions of this Article; however, the Sstate retains the right to determine the nature and 
location of work assignments based upon staffing needs. 
SECTION 1 – Definitions  

As used in this Article: 
(A) "Change in Duty Station" shall mean the moving of an employee to a duty station 

located within fifty (50) miles, by highway, of his current duty station. 
(B) "Duty station" shall mean the place which is designated as an employee's official 

headquarters. 
(C) “Occupational Broadband level” shall mean the same level within the employee’s 

current occupation within the State classification system all positions sufficiently similar in 
knowledge, skills, and abilities, and sufficiently similar as to kind or subject matter of work, 
level of difficulty or responsibilities, and qualification requirements of the work, to warrant the 
same treatment as to title, pay band, and other personnel transactions. 

(D) "Reassignment" shall mean the moving of an employee from a position in one 
class/occupational broadband level to a different position in the same class/occupational 
broadband level or to a different broadband level having the same maximum salary. with the 
same essential knowledge, skills & abilities, regardless of the location of the position. 

(E) "Transfer" shall mean the moving of an employee from one geographic area of the 
Sstate to a different geographic location which is in excess of fifty (50) miles, by highway, from 
the employee's current duty station. 

(F) “Promotion” shall mean changing the classification of an employee to a 
broadband level having a higher maximum salary; or the changing of the classification of an 
employee to a broadband level having the same or a lower maximum salary but a higher level of 
responsibility. 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 9 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 2 of 5 
 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

SECTION 2 – Procedures and Exceptions – Voluntary Reassignment, Transfer, Change in 
Duty Station 

(A) An employee who has completed the twenty-four (24) month minimum service 
obligation in his initial job assignment may apply for a reassignment on a Request for 
Reassignment Form (supplied by the Agency).  Such Requests shall indicate the county(ies) 
and/or duty station to which the employee would like to be reassigned. 

(B) An employee may submit a Request for Reassignment Form at any time; however, all 
such Requests shall expire on June 30 of each calendar year.  Requests for reassignment for the 
next fiscal year may be filed on June 1 of the preceding fiscal year. 

(C) All Request for Reassignment Forms shall be submitted to the appropriate Executive 
Council member who shall be responsible for furnishing a copy of each such Request to the 
management representatives who have the authority to make employee hiring decisions in the 
county and duty station to which the employee has requested reassignment.  The employee shall 
provide a copy of the Request to the Association at the time it is filed with the agency. 

(D) Except where a vacancy is filled by demotion, the management representative having 
hiring authority for that the vacancy shall give first consideration to those employees who have 
submitted a Request for Reassignment Form; provided, however, that employees whose Request 
for Reassignment is not submitted by the first day of the month shall not be considered for 
vacancies which occur during that month. 

(E) The hiring authority shall normally fill a permanent vacancy with the employee who 
has the greatest length of service in the class/occupational level and who has a Request for 
Reassignment Form on file for the county in which the vacancy exists.  The parties agree, 
however, that other factors, such as employees’ work history and agency needs, may be taken 
into consideration in making the decision as to whether or not the employee with the greatest 
length of service in the class/occupational broadband level will be placed in the vacant position. 

(F) If the employee with the greatest length of service in the class/occupational 
broadband level is not selected for the vacant position, all employees who have greater length of 
service in the class/occupational broadband level than the employee selected shall be notified in 
writing of the agency's decision with a copy to the Association.  Except where mutually agreed 
otherwise by the Association and the Agency, the Executive Director’s notification shall contain 
the reason(s) the less senior applicant was selected. 

(G) When an employee has been reassigned pursuant to a Request filed under this 
Article, all other pending Requests shall be canceled.  No other Request may be filed under this 
Article for a period of twelve (12) months following the employee's reassignment.  If an 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 9 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 3 of 5 
 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

employee declines an offer of reassignment pursuant to a Request filed under this Article, the 
employee will not be eligible for consideration for reassignment to the specific 
class/occupational broadband level, county(ies), and/or duty station declined, for a period of 
twelve (12) months. 

(H) The twenty-four (24) month service obligation for an initial appointment shall only 
be waived if the employee is promoted to a position in another location, or if an unusual 
circumstance or hardship affecting the employee is accepted by the agency as justification for 
varying the required minimum service, or as otherwise approved by the Executive Director or his 
designee. 
SECTION 3 – Involuntary Reassignment, Transfer or Change in Duty Station 

(A) An employee shall not be required to change residence for the sole purpose of living 
within a specific county; however, an employee may be required to reside within a reasonable 
distance of a specific duty station. 

(B) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent an agency, at its 
discretion, from effecting the involuntary reassignment, transfer, or change in duty station at any 
time, of any employee, at any time, according to the needs of the agency or as authorized by 
Ssection 110.205(3), Florida Statutes.  However, it is understood that the agency will make an a 
good faith effort not to aeffect any involuntary reassignment, transfer, or change in duty station 
which will impose a residency hardship on the employee (in that he must relocate his residence 
from a permanent home presently owned or cancel a rental lease extending more than three (3) 
months), without first considering any Request for Reassignment Forms on file for the county in 
which the agency need exists. 

(C) Except in unusual circumstances, a member involuntarily transferred will be 
permitted ninety (90) days to report to the new assignment location.  An employee who receives 
an involuntary change in duty station will be permitted a reasonable time in which to report to 
the new duty station. 

(D) Reassignments, transfers and changes in duty station shall not be utilized as 
disciplinary sanctions. 
SECTION 4 – Notice  

(A) An employee shall be given a minimum of fourteen (14) calendar days’ notice prior 
to the agency aeffecting any reassignment, and thirty (30) calendar days’ notice prior to the 
agency affecting any transfer. 

(B) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent the Sstate from 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 9 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 4 of 5 
 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

making effecting the involuntary reassignments, transfers, or changes in duty stations of any 
employee during an emergency or as otherwise required to meet urgent law enforcement needs 
of the Sstate. 

(C) When an Aagency establishes a new position within a class/occupational broadband 
level it shall notice all Agency bargaining Unit employees of the duties, and responsibilities, and 
qualifications of the position and the qualifications for said position.  The procedures established 
in this Article shall thereafter apply to filling vacancies in such positions. 
SECTION 5 – Promotion  

The Sstate and the Association agree that promotion of an FDLE member to Special 
Agent should is to be made based on the employee meeting the qualifications for law 
enforcement employment set forth in Chapter 943, Florida Statues, and upon successfully 
completing  whatever additional training required by the Department prior to such appointment. 
The parties agree that the provisions of the Personnel Rules of the State Personnel System will be 
followed when making such appointments. 
SECTION 6 – Probationary Status on Promotion 

(A) An employee who has been appointed to a classification or occupational level to a 
position shall attain permanent status in that classification or occupational level position upon 
successful completion of the designated probationary period.  Such employee shall not lose 
permanent in such classification or occupational level by accepting a promotion to a higher 
classification or occupational level with the same agency and within the Career Service system. 

(B) An employee who has obtained permanent status in a classification or occupational 
level who is promoted to a higher classification or occupational level that fails, to due to 
performance, to satisfactorily complete probation in the promotional classification or 
occupational level shall be demoted in the former classification or occupational level previously 
held by the employee in an available vacant position.  An employee serving a probationary 
period in a position to which he has received an internal agency promotion may be removed from 
that promotional position at any time during the probationary period.  If his former position, or a 
comparable position, is vacant, the employee is to be placed in such position.  If such a position 
is not available, before dismissal, the agency shall make a reasonable effort to retain the 
employee in another vacant position.  This process does not apply to terminations for cause nor 
does it create a right to bump an employee from an occupied position. 
  (1) If the employee is demoted into their former position or a comparable 
position, Ssuch a demotion shall be with permanent status, provided the employee held 
permanent status in the agency in the lower class/occupational level position. 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 9 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 5 of 5 
 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

  (2) Such a demotion shall not be grievable under Article 6 of this Agreement. 
  (3) Such a demotion shall not preclude the agency from seeking to discipline the 
employee for just cause based upon specific acts of misconduct. 
SECTION 7 – Relocation Allowance 

An employee who is reassigned, or promoted, and who is required by agency policy to 
relocate his residence shall be granted time off with pay for two (2) work days for this purposes 
of relocating his residence.  In addition, the employee shall be granted travel time to the new 
location based on the most direct route.  No employee will be credited with more than the 
number of hours in the employee's regular workday and such time shall not be counted as hours 
worked for the purpose of computing compensatory time or overtime. 
SECTION 8 – Grievability  

(A) An employee complaint concerning the administration of this Article may be grieved 
in accordance with Article 6 of this Agreement up to and including Step 3 of the grievance 
procedure.  In considering such complaints, weight shall be given to the specific procedures 
followed and decisions made, along with the needs of the agency. 

(B) An employee complaint concerning the administration of Section 3 of this Article 
may be grieved in accordance with Article 6 of this Agreement up to and including Step 3 of the 
grievance procedure.  The initiation of a grievance claiming a residency hardship shall stay any 
required change in residence until final disposition of the grievance.  In considering such a 
grievance, weight shall be given to the needs of the agency against the hardship on the employee. 
Complaints concerning transfers, as authorized by Ssection 110.205(3), Florida Statutes, shall 
not be subject to the grievance procedure. 
 

 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 14 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

Article 14 
PERFORMANCE REVIEW 

(A)  Employees shall be evaluated by their immediate supervisors or designated raters, 
who shall be held accountable for such reviews.  All appraisals shall conform to the provisions of 
Section 110.224, Florida Statutes. Performance reviews shall be conducted in accordance with 
Rule 60L-35, Florida Administrative Code, Performance Evaluation System. 

(B)  The Pparties agree that management is required to establish squad-level numerical 
arrest and other case-related goals in accordance with Llegislative direction associated with 
performance-based budgeting.  Such goals may be considered for the evaluation of individual 
performance; however, the primary factor in such evaluation shall be the individual’s employee’s 
performance of his assigned duties and responsibilities. 

(C)  The Pparties agree that performance evaluations are not grievable under Article 6 of 
this Agreement; however a performance appraisal that serves as the basis for a disciplinary 
action under the appeal provisions of Article 7, Section 2(C) may be contested if it serves, in 
whole or in part, as the basis for a disciplinary action reviewed in such appeal. 

(D)  Any employee who has attained permanent status in his current class position shall 
not be disciplined for poor performance unless the employee has been counseled about the poor 
performance, and provided a reasonable opportunity to correct performance deficiencies. 

(E)  The use of performance counseling shall not preclude the agency from seeking to 
discipline the employee for cause based upon specific acts of misconduct. 

(F)  Bargaining Unit eEmployees shall receive an evaluation from the academy upon 
completion of entry-level Special Agent training.   A copy of the evaluation shall be forwarded 
to the appropriate supervisor. 
 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 15 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

Article 15 
SENIORITY 

SECTION 1 – Definition  
For the purpose of this Agreement, "seniority" shall be defined as continuous service in 

the job classification/occupational level positions covered by this bargaining unit; provided, 
however, that an employee shall be considered to have a break in service when the employee 
separates, and is not on any State Personnel System payroll for at least thirty-one (31) calendar 
days following the separation. 
SECTION 2 – Seniority Application 

Except under extraordinary circumstances, vacations, and regular days off shall be 
scheduled with due regard for the needs of the agency, seniority, and bargaining Unit employee 
preference.  The Sstate and the Association understand that there may be times when the needs 
of the agency will not permit such scheduling. 
SECTION 3 – Vacation and Holiday Leave 

Where practicable, requests for leave of forty (40) contiguous hours or more, or for 
holidays requested, shall be requested at least sixty (60) days in advance of such leave in order 
that the provisions of this Article may be fully implemented; however, in implementing this 
provision nothing shall preclude an agency from making reasonable accommodations for 
extraordinary leave requests or ensuring the fair distribution of leave during favored holidays. 
 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 18 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

Article 18 
LEAVE 

The attendance and leave provisions as contained in Chapter Rule 60L-34, Florida 
Administrative Code of the Personnel Rules of the State Personnel System shall apply to all 
bargaining Unit employees. 

 
 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 21 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

Article 21 
ACTING RANKS 

COMPENSATION FOR TEMPORARY SPECIAL DUTY IN HIGHER  
LEVEL POSITION 

 
SECTION 1 – Eligibility  

Each time an employee is officially designated in writing by the appropriate employee’s 
immediate supervisor to act in an established position in a higher classification broadband level 
than the employee's permanent classification current broadband level, and actually performs said 
a major portion of the duties of the higher level position, irrespective of whether the higher level 
position is funded, for a period of more than twenty-two (22) workdays, within any six (6) 
consecutive months, the employee shall be eligible to receive for a temporary special duty 
additive as provided in Chapter in accordance with Rule 60L-32, Florida Administrative Code. If 
an employee performs duties in a higher classification for twenty-two (22) consecutive workdays 
within any six (6) consecutive months, the employee shall be eligible for a Temporary Special 
Duty salary additive, as provided in Article 25 of this Agreement, effective the first day of 
performing such duties. 
SECTION 2 – Method of Compensation 

It is understood by the parties that, insofar as pay is concerned, employees temporarily 
performing the duties of a higher classification position in a higher broadband level shall be paid 
according to the same compensation method as permanent promotees promoted employees under 
pursuant to the Personnel Rules of the State Personnel System. 
SECTION 3 – Return to Regular Rate 

Employees being paid at a higher rate while temporarily performing the duties of a higher 
classification position in a higher broadband level will be returned to their regular rate of pay 
when the period of temporary employment special duty in the higher class broadband level ends. 

 
 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 23 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

Article 23 
WORKDAY, WORKWEEK AND OVERTIME 

SECTION 1 – Overtime 
(A) The normal workweek work period for each full-time employee shall be forty 

(40) 160 hours. 
(B) Work beyond the normal workweek or approved extended period shall be recognized 

in accordance with Chapter Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code; provided, however, that 
when an emergency is declared by the Governor and funds are available, employees who are 
assigned to the emergency area described in the Governor's Executive Order shall be subject to 
a forty (40) hour workweek while so assigned.  The Sstate and the Association will cooperate to 
secure funds for the payment of overtime to Unit employees in the situation described herein. 

(C) The Association agrees to support those changes in Chapter Rule 60L-34, Florida 
Administrative Code, that may be required in order for the Sstate to be in compliance with the 
Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) as it is applied to public employees. 

(D) If an agency has a plan approved in advance by the Department of Management 
Services, FLSA special compensatory leave credits shall be granted, administered and used as 
described below: 

An employee who is filling an included position may, at the end of the approved 
extended period if mutually agreed to by the employee and supervisor, waive payment for 
overtime and have the overtime hours credited to "FLSA special compensatory leave." If such 
approved election is made, the overtime hours will be credited as "FLSA special compensatory 
leave" credits at the rate of one and one-half (1-1/2) hours for each hour of overtime worked.  An 
employee will only be permitted to accumulate a maximum of eighty (80) hours 
of "FLSA special compensatory leave" credits which may be taken in any increments if mutually 
agreed to by the employee and the supervisor.  If mutual agreement is not reached, the supervisor 
may, with a minimum of five (5) workdays notice, require the employee to use such leave credits 
at any time in increments of full work days.  However, all unused "FLSA special compensatory 
leave" credits at the close of business on December 31 and June 30 shall be paid for at the 
employee's straight time regular hourly rate in accordance with Chapter Rule 60L-34, Florida 
Administrative Code.  An employee who separates from the Career Service or moves to another 
state agency shall be paid for all unused "FLSA special compensatory leave" in accordance with 
the above. 
 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 23 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

SECTION 2 – Workday  
(A) Agencies shall not require an employee to split a workday into two or more segments 

without the mutual agreement of the employee and the employer.  
(B) Where employees are required to work extra hours during an approved extended 

work period, the Sstate will make a good faith effort to offset such extra hours in eight (8) hour 
increments, provided this can be done prior to the end of the extended work period. 
SECTION 3 – Sick Leave Pool and Sick Leave Transfer 

Special Agent bargaining Unit eEmployees shall be subject to the conditions, and have 
full access to the benefits, of the employing agency’s existing sick leave pool and sick leave 
transfer plan. 
SECTION 4 – Special Compensatory Leave 

Special Agent bargaining Unit employees shall be required, with reasonable advance 
notice, to use special compensatory leave before using accrued annual leave credits.  Employees 
will only be permitted to accumulate a maximum of 240 hours of special compensatory leave 
credits. 

(A)  Earning of Special Compensatory Leave Credits.  Special compensatory leave 
credits may be earned only in the following instances: 
  (1) By an employee in the career service for work performed on a holiday as 
defined in section 110.117, Florida Statutes, or for work performed during a work period that 
includes a holiday, as provided by the Rules of the State Personnel System. 
  (2) By an employee in the career service for work performed in the 
employee’s assigned office, facility, or region which is closed pursuant to an Executive Order of 
the Governor or any other disaster or emergency condition. 

(B) Special Compensatory Leave Earned Prior to July 1, 2013 
(1) Despite the fact that previous collective bargaining agreements only 

permitted employees to accumulate a maximum of 240 hours of special compensatory leave 
credits, certain employees may have earned hours prior to July 1, 2013 in excess of that 
amount.   Nothing in this agreement is intended to address the validity or invalidity of special 
compensatory leave credits above 240 hours earned prior to July 1, 2013. 

 (2) An employee may be required to reduce special compensatory leave credit 
balances. 

(C)  Special Compensatory Leave Earned On or After July 1, 2013 
  (1) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 23 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

(A)(1), on or after July 1, 2013, which are not used each year by the April 30 or October 31 that 
immediately succeeds the work period in which the leave is credited, whichever date occurs 
earlier, shall be forfeited. 
  (2) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection 
(A)(2), on or after July 1, 2013, which are not used within 120 calendar days from the end of the 
work period in which the leave is credited shall be forfeited. 
  (3) Each agency shall schedule employees earning special compensatory leave 
credits in a manner that allows all such leave credits earned on or after July 1, 2013, to be used 
within the time limits specified in subsections 1 and 2.  However, if scheduling such leave within 
such time limits would prevent the agency from meeting minimum staffing requirements needed 
to ensure public safety, the agency head may extend the time limits specified in subsections 1 
and 2 for up to an additional 180 calendar days.  Extensions will not be allowed for any other 
reason.   
  (4) No agency may make a payout of unused special compensatory leave 
credits earned on or after July 1, 2013. 
 (D) Unless otherwise prohibited by law or rule, all requests for use of approved leave, 
other than administrative leave, shall first be charged to any special compensatory leave credits 
the employee has accrued. 

 
 

 
 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 24 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

Article 24 
ON CALL, CALL-BACK and COURT APPEARANCES 

SECTION 3 1 – On-Call 
On-call assignment shall be as defined in Rule 60L-32, Florida Administrative Code.  

Based on the availability of funds, employees who are required to be on-call shall be 
compensated by payment of a fee in an amount of not less than one dollar ($1.00) for each hour 
such the employee is required to be available.  Employees who are required to be on-call on a 
Saturday, Sunday and/or a holiday as listed in Ssection 110.117, Florida Statutes, will be 
compensated by payment of a fee in an amount equal to one-fourth (1/4) of the statewide 
minimum for the employee's class for each eight (8) hour period such the employee is required to 
be available. 
SECTION 1 2 – Call-Back 

When Aan Unit employee who has been placed on-call is called out back to the work at a 
time not contiguous with the employee's scheduled hours of work location to perform assigned 
duties, the employee shall be credited for actual time worked, or a minimum of two (2) hours, 
whichever is greater.  
SECTION 2 3 – Court Appearances 

If an Unit employee is subpoenaed to appear as a witness in a job-related court case, not 
during the employee's regularly assigned work hours, the employee shall be credited for actual 
time worked, or a minimum of two and one-half (2-1/2) hours, whichever is greater. 
 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 25 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 30, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

Article 25 
WAGES 

SECTION 1 – Pay Provisions – General 
(A) Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 General 

Appropriations Act.  
(B) Increases to base rate of pay and salary additives shall be in accordance with state 

law and the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 General Appropriations Act.   

SECTION 2 – Unemployment Rate Incentive 
 In recognition of reducing the unemployment rate from December 2010 to December 
2012, the Governor’s Budget Recommendations provide for a one-time, non-discretionary, 
$1,200 lump sum bonus award, plus applicable taxes, to eligible employees.  Eligibility 
requirements are set forth in Section 8 – Salaries and Benefits – Fiscal Year 2013-2014 of the 
Governor’s Recommendations.  The awards shall be paid to eligible employees no later than 
August 30, 2013, and are subject to funding as provided in the 2013-2014 General 
Appropriations Act. 

SECTION 3 – Variable Compensation Award 
 The Governor’s Budget Recommendations provide for discretionary, one-time lump sum 
interim variable compensation awards to eligible employees achieving high job performance as 
evidenced by the employee’s performance evaluation period ending during the period July 1, 
2012 through June 30, 2013.  Awards for Outstanding and Commendable performance will be 
$5,000 and $2,500, respectively, plus applicable taxes.  Eligibility requirements are set forth in 
Section 8 – Salaries and Benefits – Fiscal Year 2013-2014 of the Governor’s Recommendations. 
The awards shall be paid to eligible employees no later than September 30, 2013, and are subject 
to funding as provided in the 2013-2014 General Appropriations Act. 

SECTION 4 – Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency 
 In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 General 
Appropriations Act, and contingent upon the availability of funds and at the agency head’s 
discretion, each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15 
percent of the employee’s base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or 
area closed due to emergency conditions from another area of the state that is not closed. 

SECTION 5 – Cash Payout of Annual Leave 
 Permanent Career Service employees may be given the option of receiving up to 24 hours 
of unused annual leave each December, in the form of a cash payout subject to, and in 
accordance with, section 110.219(7), Florida Statutes. 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 25 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 30, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

SECTION 6 – Performance Pay  
 Each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee’s 
exemplary performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 
60L-35, Florida Administrative Code. 

SECTION 7 – Savings Sharing Program 
 An employee or groups of employees may be eligible for monetary awards for ideas or 
programs that result in a cost saving to the state, pursuant to section 110.1245(1), Florida 
Statutes. 

SECTION 8 – Pay Subject to General Appropriations Act 
 In the event the 2013 Legislature provides different funding or eligibility provisions for 
the above-specified pay increases and payments, the State and the Union agree that such 
increases and payments shall be administered in accordance with the provisions of the Fiscal 
Year 2013-2014 General Appropriations Act, and any other relevant statutes.   



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 26 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

Article 26 
EQUIPMENT AND SERVICE AWARDS 

SECTION 1 – Accessories and Equipment 
Accessories and equipment will include the following minimum requirements: 
(A) A service weapon gun belt, holster and accessories as appropriate for the Unit 

employees. 
(B) Spare ammunition, and an appropriate case. 
(C) Where hand-held radios are provided, they will be suitable for law enforcement use. 
(D) The agency shall provide bullet-proof vests to bargaining Unit employees and will 

develop a policy for replacement upon expiration of the guaranteed life of the vest as expressed 
by the manufacturer at the time of purchase. 

(E) The agency will select and provide to each employee at least one intermediate force 
weapon, as determined appropriate by the agency, and provide training in the use of such 
weapon. 

(F) Unless otherwise required by agency needs, vehicles shall be equipped by the 
manufacturer as provided by current Sstate of Florida contract specifications for unmarked law 
enforcement vehicles. 
SECTION 2 – Clothing Allowance 

Employees of this Unit shall receive a clothing allowance in the amount of $500.00 
annually.  
SECTION 3 – Award  

When an employee retires under any provision of the State Florida rRetirement sSystem, 
including medical disability retirement, the employee shall be presented his badge, his service 
revolver or pistol, if one had been issued as part of the employee's equipment, and an 
identification card clearly marked "RETIRED" as provided in Ssection 112.193, Florida Statutes. 
SECTION 4 – Award Program 

The Sstate agrees to promote a program of recognition awards for bargaining Unit 
employees which shall include: 

(A) Upon promotion, a framed certificate certifying the promotion. 
(B) Awards for bravery and outstanding service. 
(C) Service awards through the use of certificates, patches or pins recognizing years of 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 26 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

service with the State; specifically recognizing fifteen (15), twenty (20) and twenty-five (25) 
years of service. 

(D) Upon normal retirement, an identification card and badge. 
 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 27 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

Article 27       
 INSURANCE BENEFITS     

SECTION 1 – State Employees Group Insurance Program 
The Sstate agrees to administer the State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan in 

accordance with any statutory provision or Act affecting the plan or its operation. 
 
SECTION 2 – Death In-Line-Of-Duty Benefits 

(A) Funeral and burial expenses will be as provided in Ssection 112.19, Florida 
Statutes. 

(B) Education benefits will be as provided in Ssection 112.19, Florida Statutes. 
(C) State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan premium for the employee's 

surviving spouse and children will be as provided in Ssection 110.123, Florida Statutes. 
(D)  Any complaint or claim by an employee or the Association concerning this 

Ssection shall not be subject to the Ggrievance Pprocedure of this Agreement. 
 
 



PBA/Special Agent Unit 
State Proposal – Article 31 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State       For the PBA 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     General Counsel and Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

Article 31 
VACANT 

 



-

PeAl ~C'l\l. ~~:~r u.tJ,r
Uu.ctJ Rlf.'~
fl~ 4O\Q... .)0,'2.-'"
,.JOvl?~t2. fC(, dCl~

FLORIDA POllCEBENEVOLENTASSOCIATION, INC.

State of }"lorida and Florida P.B.A.
Proposal 1 - November 19, 2012
2013-2014 Negotiations
July 1, 2013 through June 30,2014
SPECIAL AGENT BARGAINING (1'. IT

The Florida P.B.A. proposes the articles contained in the FY 2012-20:g3
revised agreement remain unchanged unless specific modifications
(attached) have been submitted.

All modifications are drawn to the FY 2012-2013 revised agreement.
The modifications are pr(;~pared in legislative sty}e..

The Florida P.B.A. proposed agreement is attached. [Changes to the
current agreement are found at Articles 5, 6, 18, 23,25,26,27,31 and
35.]

Florida'Police Benevolent Association, Inc.
300 East Brevard Street. Tallahassee, Florida 32301

(850) 222-3329 • (800) 733-3722 • Fax (850) 561-8898



*AGREEMENT

THE STATE OF FLORIDA

and

THE FLORIDA POLICE
BENEVOL,ENT ASSOCIATION

Special Agent Bargaining Unit

Effective July 1, 20 2 through
June 30, 2013

Incorporates 2012 Legislative Impasse Resolution
to Articles 5, 25, and 31

All other articles status quo from Fiscal Year 2011-12 Ag"eement

GTOBE CHANGED ONC~ACRlrEMJ~NTO'~ 1
IlUll.;\TION Al'ro OTHER ARTICLES IS

REACHIW



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA- Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

TABLE OF CONTENTS

t lii,l 1 - Recognition
Article 2 - Gender Reference
Article 3 - Vacant
Article 4 - No Discrimination
Article 5 - Employee Representation and Association Activities (OPEN)
Article 6 - Grievance Procedure (OPEN)
Article 7 - Internal Investigations and Disciplinary Actions
Article 8 - Workforce Reduction
Article 9 - Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station; Promotion
Article 10 - Grooming
Article Ii - Classification Review
Artide 12 - Personnel Records
Arti-:"1,€.:.13 -. Safety
Arth.·,!l;: 14 - Performance Review
Article 15 - Seniority
Article 16 -- Employment Outside State Government
Article 17 - Department Vehicles
Article 18 - Leave (OPEN)
Article 19 - Personal Property Replacement and/or Reimbursement
Article 20 _. Educational Assistance Plan
Altick 21 - Acting Ranks
AJ1idc 22 - Job-Connected Disability
Altick 23 - ,,\Torkday, Workweek and Overtime illfEl..J)
Article 24 - On-Call, Call-Back, and Court Appearances
Article 25 - Wages (OPE!)
Altid~26 - Equipment and Service Awards (OPEH)
Article 27 -Insurance Benefits (OPEN)
Article 28 - Travel Expenses
Article 29 - Drug T~i:>tjllg

Article 30 _. No Strikl::1
Article 31 -- ¥aeantRetirement(OPEl~.D
Article 32 - Management Rights
Article 33 -- Entire Agreement
Article 34 - Savings Clause
Article 35·- Duration (OPEl)
A.ppendix A. - Special Agent Unit Description

1



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is between the State of Florida (hereinafter called the "State") and
the FLORIDA POLI~~E Cb EV~J E1\!T ASSOCIATION, INC. (hereinafter called the
"Association") representing the employees in the Special Agent bargaining Unit.

PREAMBLE

WHEREAS, it is recognized by the parties hereto that the declared public policy of the
Slare and the purpose of Part II, Chapter 447, Florida Statutes, is to provide statutory
implementation of Section 6, Article I of the Constitution of the State of Florida, and to promote
hannonious and cooperative relationships between State government and its employees, both
collectively and individually, and to protect the public by assuring, at all times, the orderly and
uninterrupted operations and functions of State Government; and

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the parties of this Agreement to scI forth the entire
agreement with respect to matters within the scope of negotiations; and

WHEREAS, the above language is a statement of intent and, therefore, n 1 subject to the
grievance procedure as outlined in Article 6;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the
parties do agree as follow;;:

rhtidt~ 1
RECOGNITION

A) The ...l~..le hereby recognizes the Florida Police Benevolent Association, Inc., as the
exclusive representative for the purposes of collective bargaining with respect to wages, hours;
and terms and conditions. of employment for all employees included in the Special Agent
bi:lf!.~'ljning Unit.

(B) The bargaining Unit t~)l' which lhi~ recoglljt1on is accorded is as defined ill tl (:'
Certification issued by th.e Florida Public Elnp)oy(~c:s Rcl<ttions Commission, Certification No.
1228.

(C) This Agreem'nr includes all full-lime and l':-ll'l-time Career Service employees in the
classifications and positions U~; ed in .'\ppt~ndjx A ( fr.his Agreement.

Article 2
GENDER REFERENCE

A11 references in this Agreement to employees of the rmde gender are used for
convenience only and shall be construed to include both male and female employees.

Article 3
VACANT

2



fiscal Yezr 20 12-l3 PBA - ~l:)ecial ~f.'m l tt Successor Agreement

Article 4
NO DISCRIMINATION

.EC 10N 1 - Non-Discrimination Policy - State-Federal Law

(A) The State and the Association shall not discriminate against any employee for any
reason prohibited under Florida Statutes or any Federal Law.

(B) The Association shall have the right to consult on issues of unlawful discrimination
with the Step I Management Representltive and/or his designee(s), up through the Step 2
Management Representative and/or his designee(s), to the Department ofManagement Services.

(C) Any claim of unlawful discrimination by an employee against the State, its officials
or representatives, except for grievances related to Association membership, shall only be subject
to the method ofreview prescribed by law or by rules and regulations having the force and effect
oflaw.

(D) The Association agrees to support the State's current affirmative action programs and
efforts to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act, as well as other initiatives to avoid
unlawful discrimination.

SECTION 2 - Non-Discrimination Policy - Association Membership

Neir.he.r the State nor the Association shall interfere with the right of law enforcement
employees covered by this Agreement to hecome or refrain from becoming members of the
Association, and neither the Slate nor the Association shall discriminate against allY such
employee because ofmembership or non-membership in allY employee organization.

Article 5 .)i)l.;?-l;;f!-;~i: a-W·e-lmpfflj~1ffl.se ~h

EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATION AND ASSOCIATION ACTIVITIES

SECTION 1 - Definitions

(A) The term "employee" as used in this Agreement, shall mean an employee
included in the Special Agent bargaining unit represented by the Florida Police Benevolent
Association, Inc. (Association).

(B) The term "Grievance Representative," as used in this Agreement, shall mean an
employee who has been designated by the President of the Association to investigate grievances
at the Oral Step, and to represent a grievant at the Oral Step and Step 1 meetings on grievances
which have been properly filed under Article 6 of this Agreement, when the Association has
been selected as the employee's representative.

SECTION 2 - Representation

(A) The Association shall select one (1) employee a~ an Association Grievance
Representative per region as defined by the Florida Department of Law Enforcement, and shall
furnish to the state and keep up-to-date a list of all such employees authorized to act as
Grievance Representatives. In addition, the Association shall furnish to the state and keep up-to
date a list of Association Staff Representatives. The state will not recognize a grievance or staff
representative whose name does not appear on the appropriate list. Where Association

3



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - SpeGial Agent Unit Successor Agreement

representation is requested by an employee, the representative shall be a person so selected a;' d
designated by the Association.

(B) Where Association representation is not requested by the employee, an Association
Grievance Representative shall be notified of and be given an opportunity to be present at any
meeting held concerning the grievance.

SECTION 3 - Representative Access

The state agrees that accredited representatives of the Association shall have access to the
premises of the state which are available to the public. If any area of the state's premises is
restricted to the public, permission must be requested to enter such areas and such permission
will not be unreasonably denied. Such access shall be during the regular working hours of the
employee and shall be restricted to matters related to the application of this Agreement.

SECTION 4 - Academy Access

Where the agency operates its own Academy and conducts entry-level Special Agent
training, a representative of the Association, accompanied by a representative of the Executive
Director, will be permitted to address each entry-level Special Agent class during class time to
provide each recruit a copy of the current Special Agent Unit Agreement and to discuss the
provisions of that Agreement. This presentation will not last longer than 30 minutes unless a
longer period is agwed to by the Association and the agency, and may be made only once per
da~s at a. time mutually selected in advance by the Association, the representative of the
Executive Director, and the Special Agent Unit Head or designee.

It is understood by the parties that the Association will not use this time to solicit new
members. Any violation of this provision may result in the revocation of this section of the
Agreement.

SI~CTlON 5 - Consultation

(A) Upon request by the designated Association St.affRepresentative, the Secretary of the
Department of Management Services and/or designated representative(s) shall make a good faith
effort to meet and consult on a quarterly basis with three (3) Association representatives. Such
meetings shall be held at a time and place designated by the Department of Management
Services.

(B) Upon request by the designated Association Staff Representative, but not more often
than once in each calendar month, the Executive Director and/or designated representatives shall
meet and consult with not more than two (2) Association representatives from the Agency and
the Association Staff Representative. Such meetings shall be held at a time and place designated
by the Executive Director.

(C) Upon request by the designated Association Staff Representative, but not more than
once in each calendar month, the Step 1 Management Representative shall make a good faith
effort to meet and consult with the Association Staff Representative and not more than two (2)
Association representatives from the Agency. Such meetings shall be held at a time and place to
be designated by the Step 1 Management Representative.

(0) All consultation meetings will be scheduled after giving due consideration to the
availability and work location of all parties. If a consultation meeting is held or requires

4



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Spt:cial Agent Unit Successor Agreement

reasonable travel time during the working hours of any employee participant, such participant
shall be granted administrative leave for that purpose. Attendance at the consultation meeting
outside of regular working hours shall not be deemed time worked.

(E) The purpose of all consultation meetings shall be to discuss matters relating to the
administration of this Agreement and agency law enforcement activities which affect employees,
and no such meeting shall be used for the purpose of discussing pending grievances or for
negotiation purposes. No later than three (3) calendar days prior to the scheduled !ll('l,;,ting date,
the parties shall exchange agenda indicating the matters they wish to discuss.

SECTION 6 - Bulletin Boards

(A) Where requested in writing, the state agrees to fumiBh in a pennanent state-controlled
facility to which any employees are assigned, wall space not to exceed 24 x 36 inches for
Association-purchased bulletin boards of an equal size. Where the Association currently
maintains bulletin boards, that practice shall continue.

(B) When requested in writing, the state agrees to furnish at an academy in an agency
controlled facility, wall space not to exceed 24 x 36 inches for an Association-purchased bulletin
board.

(C) The use of Association bulletin board space is limited to the following notices:

(1) Recreation and social affairs of the Association,

(2) Association meetings,

(3) Association elections,

(4) Reports ofAssociation committees,

(5) Association benefit programs,

(6) Current Association contract,

(7) Training and educational opportunities, and

(8) Other materials pertaining to the welfare ofAssociation members.

(D) Notices posted on these bulletin boards shall not contain In) hing reflecting
adversely on the state, or any of its officers or employees, nor shall allY prJsted material violate or
have the effect of violating any law, rule, or regulation.

(E) Notices posted must be dated and bear the signature of the Association's authorized
representative.

(F) A violation of these provisions by an Association authorized representative shall be a
basis for removal ofbulletin board privileges by the Departmem oiManagem,;-nl Servjce~.

SECTION 7 - Employee Lists

(A) Upon request of the designated Association Staff Representative, the state will, on no
more than a quarterly basis, provide the Association with a list giving the name, work address on
file, classification title, and gross salary for each employee.

(B) When an employee resigns, is terminated, retires normally, is retired by disability, or
is transferred, promoted or demoted out of the bargaining unit, the state shall promptly notify the

5



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Sucr.:essOJ Agreement

Association, giving the employee's name and agency.

SECTION 8 - Occupation Profiles and Rules

(A) The state will maintain on the Department of Management Services' website the
occupation profiles and the Rules of the State Personnel System.

(B) In instances where the state detennines that a revision to an occupation profile or
occupational level for positions covered by this Agreement is needed, the Department of
Management Services shall notify the Association in writing of the proposed changes. This
procedure shall not constitute a waiver of the Association's right to bargain over such matters in
accordance with Chapter 447, Part II, Florida Statutes and applicable law. The Association shall
notify the Department of Management Services in writing within seven (7) calendar. days of its
receipt of written notification from the Department, of its comments concerning the proposed
change(s) or its desire to discuss the proposed change(s). Failure of the Association to notify the
Department of Management Services within the specified period shall constitute a waiver of the
right to discuss the change(s).

SECTION 9 Negotiations

(A) The Association agrees that all coJlt'ctive bargaining is to be conduct d with state
representatives designated for that purpose by the Governor, as chief executive officer. While
negotiating meetings shall normally be held in Tallahassee, the state and the Association may
agree to meet elsewhere at a state facility or other location which involves no rental cost to the
state. There shall be no negotiation by the Association at any other level of state government.

(B) The Association may I1.ksignarc I;enain employees to serve as its Negotiation
Committee, and such emph yees will he granted <ldministrative leave to attend negotiating
sessions with the state. An tJ.uplf y"oe serving nn the Negotiation Committee shall also be granted
a maximum of eight (8) hours adnijni~tr:-:l1ive ka\'c to at1l':nd a negotiation preparatory meeting to
be held the calendar day irnmedi&t Iv !Jrcc(xling cac.h sdleduled negotiation session, provided
that the negotiation prepnnnor.' meeting is held OTl whal: would otherwise be the employee's
nonna! workday. No t"mr)oyee. shall be credited with more than the number of hours in the
employee's regular wor1.da~ fN mlj' d"y th~~ employee i:-: In negotiations. No more than three (3)
employees that may atte'nd a preparalory meding ( r l\t'gotjating session. The time in attendance
at such preparatory meeTings a.nd nc,gotiating ses~ioJ!~, shall not be counted as hours worked for
the purpose of computing (:ompt'HSal(}1"y time; IJr CJ'~ l;,rtlJJ)'. The agency shall not reimburse the
employee for travel, me-als. 1 ,dging, or any e.xpenSl'1 incUiTed in connection with attendance at
preparatory meetings or negotbting ~~(;s;:-iol1S.

(C) The selection fan enlp!ljyet' shall D '1 undnly hamper the operations of the work
unit.

SEC~'

(A) The State shall pro\ridc reasonable notic(;; to the PEA, of amendments to existing policies
that result in change in a mandatory subject of bargaining.

(B) After notice, the PEA may consult witll the .Dl4b1'V'f'v

6



FiscalYear2012-13PB -s ·IAe.~ mlSl.ICce.sor e~m~fii

(C.t.}yh~~ the_12I9.;2"",Q=oo=-"-,,,,;::::Wm=::.I;o.,g;L<:e=o-===~~-===-=,,-=_
subicsts oCb.'..tr.~'!igoi~uu,g.",--,=th:.<.:e::...'"-,,-P-,=B::<-A..:.._=...1"'--"''-'=-=:':='=-:'=:''-===0

([) Nothing h~[~in)?.hall Rrecllo!~i~Jh~1:J3A from filing ~_lSri.~vance iLtill:_.P-rpposed chgrrg~~

yiglatc th~ AgreClt1en.L.

Article 6
GIDEVANCEPROCEDURE

It is the policy of the State and the Association to encourage illtl.nnal discussions i'"lt"

complaints between management and employees covered by this Agreement, as well as between
supetvisors and covered employees. Such discussions should be held with view to reaching an
understanding, which will resolve the matter in a maImer satisfactory to the employee, without
need for recourse to the fonnal grievance procedure prescribed by this Alticle.

SECTION 1 - neflllitions

As used in this Article:

(A) "Grievance" shall mean a dispute involving the interpretation or application of the
spe:;::.jfjc pru'/i~;jcn~;, ohhis Agreement, except as exclusions are noted in this Agreement.

(B) "Employee" shall mean a Special Agent, Special Agent Trainee, or a group of such
employees having the same grievance. In the case of a group of employees, one shall be
designated by the group to act as spokesperson and to be responsible for processing the
grievance.

(C) "Days" shall mean calendar days, excluding any d:1\ observed as a holiday pun;uam
to the Personnel Rules.

SECTION 2 - Election of Remedy and Representation

(A) If an employee or the Association has a grievance which may be processed under this
Article and which may also be appealed to the Florida Public Employees Relations Commission,
the employee or the Association shall elect at the outset, which procedure is to be used and such
election shall be binding on the employee or the Association. In the case of any duplicate filing,
the action first filed will be the one processed.

(B) An employee who decides to use this Grievance Procedure shall indicate at Step 1 (or
the initial written step if authorized by the provisions of this Article) whether or not he shall be
represented by the Association. When the employee has elected Association representation, both
the employee and the Association Representative shall be notified of any Step I meeting.
Further, any written communication concerning the grievance or its resolution shall be sent to
both the employee and the Association representative, and any decision mutually agreed to by
the State and the Association shall be binding on the employee.

(C) If the employee is not represented by the Association, any adjustment of the

7



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

grievance shall be consistent with the tenus of this collective bargaining Agreement. Th ...
Association shall be given reasonable opportunity to be present at any meeting called for the
resolution of such grievance. An employee using this procedure in the processing of a grievance
will be bound by the procedure established by the parties to the Agreement. The Association
shall not be bound by the decision of any grievance or arbitration in which the employee was not
represented by the Asso..-;i!itJ,an,

SECTION 3 - Procedures

(A) Employee grievances filed in accordance with this Article should b- presented 1:i.ll.d

handled promptly at the lowest level of management having the m,tliLwiry to adjust the
gnevances.

(B) There shall be no reprisals against any oft11c participants in the procedures contained
herein by reason of such participation.

(C) Except for suspensions, the filing or pendency of any grievance under the provisions
of this Article shall in no way operate to impede, delay or interfere with the right of the State to
take the action complained of; subject, however, to the fin"l dj:;pnsiti.1l (~f the grievance.
Suspensions shall not be imposed until the final disposition uf the grievance, if any, except
where such suspension is made pending the outcome of a crim:ual :ove:stigation , The employee
shall notice the agency head or his designated representative of his inl. ~ntloJ) to 6ri "ve a
suspension within seven (7) days of the receipt of the final notice from the agency. The
employee's failure to do so shall permit the agency to proceed with the suspension.

(D) Gfle~e-is-fifV'~'ad,no n9w-'"i~Eh~-{)r iSSUC--eal'l-f,E-Faffiffi:-Once a
grievance is presented, no new violation or issue Ct:11 be raised. unless tbe Parties mutually agree
in Wliting to revise or amend the alleged violations or issues or for good cause tut in no event
less than seven (7) days urior to an) arbitratio:i:1 hearing. """hen an issue is unchanged, but it is
detennined that an article, section or paragraph of the AJITeement has been cited imprecisely or
erroneously by the eJ:!lploy~e, thl.m the f:lllployec sh.al~ have th~right to amend that part of his
grievance.

(E) The resolution of a grievance prior to its submission in writing at Step 3 shall not
establish a precedent binding on either the Association or the State in other cases.

(F) If a grievance meeting is held or requires reasonable travel time during the working
hours of any required participant, such participant shall be excused without loss of pay for that
purpose. Attendance at grievance meetings outside of the regular working hours shall not be
deemed time worked.

(G) Grie't'fffi€e5 shaH be presented and ndy..Bfet:l ~.n tbc folly.ving mann{!~
i-A:eividual mayr~B R grie'iafloo---e~'H:ffi'3-\.rritteH st~Grievances and gticvanc~

re~p-()nsesmay be filed by hand::-delivery, rnad {it'!c1uc\1ng e-mail}, courier, or electronic facsimile.
If ~ent via def~tLQ.P.-i.c facsimile, th~.9_~1,Iden shall b<~ Qr~1h~ sending PaI1YJo coe,filTI)Jhe correct
.Ql~~jf(~.ni.£Jacsimilenun).Q.~ before tn:msmi~~i0J1. Documents s.h~lJ be deemc.Q.Jjled UPQ1LI..e..~eipt

during regular business hours (8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m..J. Documents rec~ived after business hours
shall b~ cOl1sid~red recei"'cd the next business day.



Fiscal Year 2012-1 J PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

(1) Oral Discussion

(a) An employee having a grievance may, within fourteen (14) days
following the occurrence of the event giving rise-to the grievance, present the grievance orally to
Lie InatUi,ge" .~l l epresentative who has the authority to adjust the grievance, for infonnal
dls .i} "'1011 ~:.m:t die management representative shall make every effort to resolve the grievance
promptly.

(b) If the grievance is not resolved by such informal discussion, the
employee may, within fourteen (14) days after th" date of that discussion, S!uhniJ fl formal
grievance at Step 1 of this procedure.

(2) Step I

(a) In filing a grievance at Step 1, the employee or his designated
representative shall submit to the Step I Management Representative a grievance form setting
forth specifically the complete facts on which the grievance is based, the specific provision or
provisions of the Agreement allegedly violated, and the reliefrcq uested.

(b) The Step 1 Management Representative or his designee shall
communicate a decision in writing to the employee and to the Association Grievance
Representative, if any, within fourteen (14) days following receipt of the grievance form.

(3) Step 2

(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the employee or hi~J

designated representative may submit it in writing to the Agency Head or his designated
representative within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the decision at Step 1. When the
grievance is eligible for initiation at Step 2, the Grievance form must contain the same
information as a grievance filed at Step I above. The Agency Head or his designated
representative may have a meeting with the employee, and/or with an Association Grievance
Representative, at the employee's option, to discuss the grievance.

(b) The Agency Head or his designated representative shall communicate
a decision in writing to the employee and to the Association Grievance Representative within
twenty-one (21 ) days following receipt of the written grievance.

(4) Step 3

Step 3 shall serve as the fin<ll and binding step for all matters, \'\'hj -11 are
grievable, but not arbitrable, under this Agreement.

(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 2, the employee or his
designated representative may submit the grievance in writing to the Department of Management
Services within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the decision at Step 2. The grievance shall
include a copy of the grievance forms submitted at Steps 1 and 2, together with all written
responses and documents in support of the grievance. When the grievance is eligible for
initiation at Step 3, the grievance form must contain the same infonnation as a grievance filed at
Step I above.

(b) The Department ofManagement Services may have a meeting with the
AS~iJciat~ JJ Staff Representative or his designee, to discuss the grievance. Tlle Department of

9



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

Management Services shall communicate a decision in writing to the employee and to the
Association Staff Representative within twenty-one '21} days following receipt of the written
gnevance.

(5) Step 4} - Arbitration

(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 3, the Association
representative may appeal the grievance in writing to arbitration on a fonn to he supplied by the
State, within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the decision at Step 3. If, at the initial written
step, the Association refused to represent the employee because he was not a dues-paying
member ofthe Association, the employee may appeal the grievance to arbitration.

(b) The arbitrator shall be one person from a panel of three (3) permanent
arbitra!M::;:, JULl1Ually selected by the State and the Association to serve in rotation for any case or
CitSeS subrritkd.

(c) The parties may, by mutual agreement 01) writing, submit related
grievances for hearing before the same arbitrator.

(0) Arbitration h'~i1rings sball h" held at times and locations mutually
agreed to by the parties. Under nonnal circumstances hearings will be held in Tallahassee;
however, selection of the site shall take into account [he' availability of evidence, location of
witnesses and existence ofappropriate facilities.

(e) The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the
grievance and, provided the decision is in accordance with his jurisdiction and authority under
this Agreement, shall be final and binding on the State, the Association, the grievant(s), and the
employees in the bargaining Unit. In considering a grievance the arbitrator shall b~" govl~rnf;'.d by
the following provisions and limitations:

1. The arbitrator shall issue his decision not lar(~I than thirty (30)
days from the date of the closing of the hearing or the submission ofbriefs, whichever is later.

2. The arbitrator's decision shall be in writing, and shall set forth
the arbitrator's opinion and conclusions on the issue(s) submitted.

3. The arbitrator shall have no authority to determine any other
issue, and shall refrain ffOri! is:miflg- any SiarelTI(:nt of lJpinion or conclusion not essential to the
detennination of the issues :,ubmi!td.

4. The arbitrator shall limit his d~,t,ision strictly to the application
and interpretation of the specific provisions of this Agreement.

5. The arbirrak}[ ~hdJ b without power or authm'it:li r \ mak o

, itJ'"

decisions:

a. Contrary to or inconsistent with, adding to, subtracting
from, or modifying, altering or ignoring in any way, the telTIlS of this Agreement, or of
applicable law or rules or regulations having the force and effect oflaw.

b. Limiting or interfering in any way with the powers,
duties and responsibilities of the State under its Constitution, applicable law, and rules and
regulations having the force and effect of law, except as such powers, duH' and responsibilities

10



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

have been abridged, delegated or modified by the expressed provisions of this Agreement.

6. The arbitrator's award may include back pay to the grievant(s);
however, the following limitations shall apply to such monetary awards:

a. No award for back pay shall exceed the amount of pay
the employee would otherwise have earned at his regular rate of pay and such back pay shall not
be retroactive to a date earlier than the date of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the
grievance under consideration and in no event more than the time limits permitted for initiation
of the grievance.

b. The award shall not exceed the actual loss to the
grievant, will not include punitive damages, and will be reduced by the amount of wages earned
from other sources and/or unemployment compensation received by the employee during the
period of time affected by the award.

(f) The reasonable fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne solely
by the party who fails to prevail in the hearing; however, each party shall be responsible for
compensating and paying the expenses of its own representatives, attorneys and witnesses.

(g) The Association will not be- responsible for costs of an arbitration to
which it was not a party.

SECTION 4 - Time Limits

(1\) Failul"~ 10 initiate a grievance within the time limits in Section 3 ahove shall be
kemcd a \\/aiver of the grievance. Failure at any step of this procedure to submit a grievance to

the next step within the specified time limits shall be deemed to be acceptance of the decision at
that step_

(B) Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance
wi!hin t.he- :-;pt:cified time limits shall pennit the employee, or the Association where appropriate,
{o pr(lc.(:'ti.! w the 1I;~Xt step. A Step 2 or Step 3 answer that is not received by the Association by
tilt" ,(~Til1~i'l. agrc.l:d-to deadline does not alter the time limits for appealing the grievance to the
ne. t '"Jtcp.

(C) The number of days indicated at each step should be considered as a maximum, and
every effort should be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits specified in <my
step of this procedure may be extended, in any specific instance, by mutual agreement.

(D) Claims of either "11 untimely tiling or untimely appeal shall be made at the step in
question.

SECTION';;·- E ~CCI)tions

(A) Nothing in this Article or 'I;;ev, hl:r~ in this. Agreement shall be construed to pennit
the Association or an employee to process a grievance (1) in behalf of any employee without his
consent, or (2) with respect to any matter which is the subject of a grievance, appeal,
administrative action before a government board or agency, or court proceeding, brought by an
individual employee or group of employees, or by the Association.

(B) All grievances will be presented at the initial step with the following exceptions:

(1) If a grievanc~ arises from the action Jf an official !ligfl""T than the Step 1

11



Fi ca i Y;e 20'12- I3 PEL'\ - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

Management Representative, the grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 or 3, as appropriate, by
submitting a grievance form as set forth in Step 1 within fourteen (14) days following the
occurrence giving rise to the grievance.

(2) The Association shall have the right to bring a class action grievance on behalf
of bargaining Unit' employees in its own name, conceming disputes relating to the interpretation
or application of this Agreement. Such grievance shall not include disciplinary actions taken
against an employee. The Association's election to proceed under this Article shall preclude it
from proceeding in another forum on the same issue. Such grievance shall be initiated at Step 2
of this procedure, in accordance with the provisions set forth herein, within fourteen (14) days of
the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance. '

(3) Any employee who has not attained permanent status in the Career Service
can only bring non-discipline grievances to Step 3 as provided for in this Article.

Article 7
fNI"ERNAL INVESTIGATIONS AND DISCIPLINAtl"V A~TI(). "

S~CfrlON 1 - Internal Investigations

(A) The parties recognize that law enforcement personnel occupy a ~;p(~(:i[}1 place in
American society. Therefore, it is understood that the StattS has the right to expect that a
professional standard of conduct be adhered to by all law enforcement personnel regardless of
nUlk or assigulllent Since internal investigations may be undertaken to inquire into complaints
of law enforcement misconduct, the State reserves the right to conduct such investigations to
uncover the facts in each case, but expressly agrees to carefully guard and protect the rights and
dignity of accu~L'd personnel. In the course of any internal investigation, th .. investigative
methods employed will be consistent with the law.

(B) When an allegation is made against an employee, the State will make every
reasonable effort to ensure that the allegation and related statements are reduced to writing,
under oath and signed. An internal investigation may be opened on the basis of an anonymous
or unwritten complaint if, following a preliminary review of the allegations, the agency
determines there is a reasonable basis to initiate the investigation.

(C) Any employee while under investigation and subject to interrogation by members of
the Department of Law Enforcement for any reason which could lead to disciplinary action,
demotion, or dismissal, shall be interrogated under the conditions as established, and shall have
the rights and privileges afforded, by Sections 112.532 and 112.533, Florida Statutes. Failnre of
the Department to comply with Sections 112.532 and 112.533, Florida Statutes, shall be subject
to the grievance procedure in Article 6, but only through Step 2.

{D) In cases where an agency determines that the employee's absence from the work
location is essential to the investigation and the employee cannot be reassigned to other duties
pending completion of the investigation, the employee shall be placed on administrative leave
pending investigation, such leave shall be in accordance with Chapter 60L-34, Florida
Administrative Code.

(E) Unless required by statute, no employee shall be required to submit to a polygraph
test or any device designed to measure the truthfulness of his responses during an investigation

12



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

of a complaint or allegation.

(F) Only sustained findings may be inserted in personnel records. Unfounded findings
shall not be inserted in permanent personnel records or referred to in 'performance reviews.
Nirthi.ng in U-ig ~:""':fjon shall obligate the State to violate or act in a manner contrary to Chapter
119, flDf"fda S'-!ifiJl":·~.

(G) The State shall ensure that persons who investigate charges against law enforcement
employees are aware of, and in good faith abide by, the requirements of Sections 112.532 and
112.533, Florida Statutes.

SECTION 2 - Disciplinary Action

(A) An employee who has permanent statlls in the Career Service System may be
disciplined only for just cause. Cause shall include, but is not limited to poor performance,
negligence, inefficiency or inability to perfom1 assigned duties, insubordination, violation of
provisions of law or agency rules, conduct unbecoming a public employee, misconduct, habitual
drug abuse, or conviction of any crime. The agency head shall enSure that all employees of the
agt~n~y have reasonable access to the agency's personnel manual.

(B) If filed within fourteen (14) calendar days from the date of receipt of notice from the
agency, by personal delivery or by certified mail, return receipt requested, a complaint by an
employee with perm~ent status in the Career Service concerning a reduction in base pay,
:'lIspe!\, inn, d "11101 Ion, or dismissal may be grieved at Step 2· and processed through the
ArbitI~lion Sh;:p without review at Step 3, in accordance with the grievance procedure in Article
6 l}f this Agreement, Written reprimands shall be subject to the grievance procedure in Article 6
but only through at Step 3.

(C) An employee who has not attained pennanent -t;'lfns in the Career Service System
shall not have access to the grievance procedure in Article 6 when disciplined.

(D) Each emplo..~ec shall be furnd'lcd a (:opy of all disciplinary actions placed in his
official personnel file and shall be pennittl:d to rcsptJluJ th\.reto.

(E) An employee may request that an Association Staff Representative be present during
any disciplinary investigation meeting in which the employee is being questioned relative to
alleged misconduct of the employee, or during a predetennination conference in which
suspension, demotion, or dismissal of the employee is being considered.

(F) An oral reprimand shall not b~ (',onsidel.'e.d in determining progressive discipline,
provided that the employee is not disciplined for the same offense during the succeeding twelve
(12) months from the date of issuance, and a written reprimand shall not be considered in
determining progressive discipline, provided that the employee is not disciplined for the same
offense during the succeeding twenty-four (24) months for the date of issuance, and further
provided that the oral or written reprimands were not for a major offense which could have
resulted in the employee's dismissal.

Article 8
WORKFORCE REDUCTION

SECTION J1 - Layoffs

13



:F:i;:,l:!:! Ye!tr 2012-L PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

(A) When bargaining Unit employees are to be laid of- the State shall implement such
layoff in the following manner:

(1) The competitive area for the bargaining unit shall be statewide unless the
Department and Association agree otherwise.

(2) Layoff shall be by class or occupationalleveJ within the Special Agent unit.

(3) Any employee who does not have Career Service status may be laid off
without applying the provision for retention rights.

(4) No employee with permanent status in the affected class shall be laid off while
an employee who does not hold permanent status is serving in that class or level unless the
permanent employee does not elect to exercise his retention rights or does not meet selective
competition criteria.

(5) All employees who have permanent status in the affected class or level shall
be ranked in a layofflist based on the total retention points derived as follows:

(a) Length-of-service retention points shall be based on one point for each
month of c !ntilluou~ service in a Career Service position based on the five years immediately
prior to the agency's established cutoff date for the determining. JayofC

(1) An employee who resigns from one Career Service position to
accept employment in another Career Service position is not considered to have a break in
services if such break is not in excess of31 calendar days.

(2) An employee who has been laid off and is reemployed \vithill
one year from the date oflayoff, shall not be considered to have a break in scrvic-',

(3) Moving from Career Service to Selected Exempt Service or
Senior Management Service and back tQ Career Service does not constitute a break in service
unless the employee's break between services is more than 31 days. Only the time spent in
Career Service can be counted in calculating retention points.

(b) Retention points deducted for performance 110t meeting perfonnance
standards or work expectations defined for the position shall be based on the five years
immediately prior to the agency's established cutoff date. Five points shall be deducted from the
length of service points for each month in which perfonnance was below standards. In the case
of r~is~jgmnent or demotion to a class within a series, redw.:ticm of retention poims shall be
calculah.~d m tht' same manner for a class in a series as for a class outside a series.

(6) The layoff list shall be prepared by totaling retention points. Employees
eligible for veteran's preference pursuant to Section 295.07(l)(a) or (b), Florida Statutes, shall
have ten percent added to their total retention points, and those eligible pursuant to Section
295.07(l)(c) or (d) shall have five percent added.

(7) The employee with the highest total retention POiilt.~:~ I hc!.~d at rll ~ ~{. p ~lf tIl '
list and the ,~mpl';jlt'e with the lowest total retention points is plac~~d <1T the. bolt'lm l. f the li~L.

(8) The employee at the top of the list shall bump the employee at the bottom of
the list. The next highest employee on the list and the remaining employees shall be handled in
the same manner until the total mgrt '" r of filled positions in the class to be abolished is

14



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA- Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

complete.

(9) Should two or more employees have the same combined total retention points,
1:11--- oro -r of layoff shall be detennined by giving preference for retention in the following
sequence:

(a) Th .employee with the longest scrvice in the affected class.

(b) The employee with the longest continuous Career Service.

(c) The employee who is entitled to veteran's preference pursuant to
Section 295.07(1), Florida Statutes.

(10) An employee who has Career Service status and who is to be laid off shall be
given at least 14 calendar days notice of such layoff in lieu thereof, two weeks pay for a
c(.mbin,)ti,))) of lay~~ notice or pay, in lieu of the full fourteen calendars days notice, to be paid at
tht~ emplo/I:c's; C1.ITI'ent hourly base rate of pay. The notice of layoff shall be in writing sent to
the cmrh)~'e;;; bv ~~,::rtified mail, return receipt requested. Within seven calendar days after
r~ '\.iving ihe notic of layoff, the employee shall have the right to request a reassignment within
the competitive area in lieu oflayoffto another position. Such request must be in writing.

(11) An employee's request for reassignment or demotion shall be granted unless
it would cause th> layoff of another employee who possesses a greater total of retention points.

(12) An employee who is adversely affected as a result of another employee
having a greater number of retention points shall have the same right of reassignment or
demotion under the same procedures provided in this section.

(13) If an employee requests a reassignment or demotion in lieu of layoff, the
same formula and criteria for establishing retention points for that class shall be used as
prescribed in this section.

SECTION 2 - Recall

(A) When a vacancy occurs or a new position is established, laid off employees shall be
recalled in the following manner:

(1) For one year following lay-off, when a position is to be filled, or a new
po~it'iou 15 established in the same agency and in the same class within the affected competitive
area, the laid off employees with the highest number of retention points shall be offered
reemployment and subsequent offers shall be made in the order of the employee's total retention
points. Reemployment of such employees shall ht.', with permanent status. An employee who
refuses such offer of emph)} nellt shall fiH·ft.~it any rights to subsequent placement offers as
provided in this subsection.

(2) An employee who accepts a voluntary demotion in lieu of layoff and is
subsequently promoted to a position in the same class in the same agency from which the
employees was demoted ill lieu of layoff, shall be promoted with permanent status.

(3) Under no circumstances is a layoff to be considered a disciplinary action, and
in the event an employee elects to appeal the action taken, such appeal must be based on whether
the layoff was in accordance with the provisions of this article.

15



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

SECTION 3 - Retirement Benefits

T-'1)LS "rP;Ilt iLl gection 121.021 (38), Florida Statutes, .n ab:iCTI... from the employeris payroll
for a period of not to exceed twelve (12) calendar months due to a "layoff" by the State shall not
constitute a break in the C('~~jfri1f\1 .!S service requirement as provided in Section 121.021, Florida
Statutes, for special risk members.

SECTION 4 - Job Security-

(A) The State shall make a reasonable effort to notify the Association at least thirty (30)
days in advance of classes within the bargaining unit that will be involved in a layoff. Prior to
the actual layoff, the State will meet with the Association to discuss the effect of the layoff on
the employees involved.

(B) At least thirty (30) days prior to affecting a planned organizational change which will
result in the movement of positions out of the bargaining unit, or in the demotion of Unit
employees, the agency will notify the Department of Management Services of the changes. If
the Department of Management Services determines that bargaining Unit employees are
impacted by the changes under Chapter 447, Florida Statutes, Or will notify the Association of the
changes.

Article 9
REASSIGNMENT. TRANSFER, CHANGE IN DUTY STATION. I'ROMOTLON

It is the intent of the State and the Association that the minimum initial service obligation
for Unit members shall be twenty-four (24) months. Employees who have fulfilled their
minimum initial service obligations shall have the opportunity to request reassignment, transfer,
or a change in duty station in accordance with the provisions of this Article; however, the State
retains the right to determinelhe nature and location of work assignments based upon staffing
needs.

SECTION 1 - Definitions

As used in this Article:

(A) "Change in Duty Station" shall mean the moving of an employee to a duty station
located within fifty (50) miles ofhis current duty station.

(B) "Duty station" shall mean the place which is designated as an employee's official
headquarters.

(C) "Occupational level" shall mean the same level within the employee's current
occupation within the State classification system.

(D) "Reassignment" shall mean the moving of an employee from a position in one
class/occupational level to a different position in the same class/occupational level with the same
essential knowledge, skills & abilities, regardless of the location of the position.

(E) "Transfer" shall mean the moving of an employee from one geographic area of the
State to a different geographic location which is in excess of fifty (50) miles from the employee's
current duty station.



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA- Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

SECTION 2 - Procedures and Exceptions

(A) An employee who has completed the twenty-four (24) month minimum service
obligation in his initial job assignment may apply for a reassignment on a Request for
Reassignment Form (supplied by the Agency). Such Requests shall indicate the cOllilty(ies)
and/or duty station to which the employee would like to be reassigned.

(B) An employee may submit a Request for Reassignment Form at any time; however, all
such Requests shall expire on June 30 of each calendar year. Requests for reassignment for the
next fiscal year may be filed on June I of the preceding fiscal year.

(C) All Request for Reassignment Forms shall be submitted to the appropriate Executive
Council member who shall be responsible for furnishing a copy of each such Request to the
management representatives who have the authority to make employee hiring decisions in the
county and duty station to which the employee has requested reassignment. The employee shall
provide a copy ofthe Request to the Association at the time it is filed with the agency.

(D) Except where a vacancy is filled by demotion, the management representative having
hiring authority for that vacancy shall give first consideration to those employees who have
submitted a Request for Reassignment Form; provided, however, that employees whose Request
for Reassignment is not submitted by the first day of the month shall not be considered for
vacancies which occur during that month.

(E) The hiring authority shall normally fill a permanent vacancy with the employee who
has the greatest length of service in the class/occupational level and who has a Request for
Reassignment Form on file for the county in which the vacancy exists. The parties agree,
however, that other factors, such as employees' work history and agency needs, may be taken
into consideration in making the decision as to whether or not the employee with the greatest
length ofservi .,~ in the class/occupational level will be placed in the vacant position.

(F) If the employee with the greatest length of service in the class/occupational level is
not selected for the vacant position, all employees who have greater length of service in the
class/occupational level than the employee selected shall be notified in writing of the agency's
(kc.i~ifln with a copy to the Association. Except where mutually agreed otherwise by the
Asso(;iation mL! the Agency, the Executive Director's notification shall contain the reason(s) the
kss senior appU--'~lJlt was selected.

(Cr) Wben ~:m employee has been r~~j)~igncd pursuant h), R~LJuest filed under this
Anicle, all oih~~r pending Requests shall be (ancded, No other Request may be filed llilder this
Artide k'r a p(:~riod of twelve (12) months following the employee's reassignment. If an
employee decHues an offer of reassignment pursuant to a Request filed under this Article, the
i,:1nrph'iyce will n"t be eligible for consideration for reassignment to the specific
~hSS/olTupational l~~vel, county(ies), and/or duty station declined, for a period of twelve (12)
tllc'fiths.

(H) The twenty-four (24) month service obligation for an initial appointment shall only
be waived if the employee is promoted to a position in another location, or if an unusual
circumstance or hardship affecting the employee is accepted by the agency as justification for
varying the required minimum service, or as otherwise approved by the Executive Director or his
designee.

17



11 1.+' 'ear 2fi 12~] PEA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

SFCTION 3 - Involuntary Reassignment, Transfer or Change in Duty Station

(A) An employee shall not be required to change residence for the sole purpose of living
within a specific county; however, an employee may be required to reside within a reasonable
distance of a specific duty station.

(B) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent an agency, at its
discretion, from effecting the involuntary reassignment, transfer or change in duty station at any
time, of any employee, according to the needs of the agency or as authorized by Section
110.205(3), Florida Statutes. However, it is understood that the agency will make an effort not
to affect any involuntary reassignment, transfer or change in duty station which will impose a
residency hardship on the employee (in that he must relocate his residence from a permanent
home presently owned or cancel a rental lease extending more than three (3) months), without
first considering any Request for Reassignment Fonns on file for the county in which the agency
need exists.

(C) Except in unusual circumstances, a member involuntarily transferred will be
permitted ninety (90) days to report to the new assignment location. An employee who receives
an involuntary change in duty station will bl~ penTihted a reasonable time in which to report to
the new duty station.

(D) Reassignments, transfers and changes in duty station shall not be utilized as
disciplinary sanctions.

SECTION 4 - Notice

(A) An employee shall be given a minimum of fourteen (14j calendar days' notice prior
t') the agelwy <lffecling any reassignment and thirty (30) calendar days' notice prior to the agency
affe >r.ing, any transJ1.7T.

C8 ·Nclthin.. contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent the State from
making ffc(:tillg r "assignments, transfers, or changes in duty stations of any employee during an
cmergenl:y or CI.:'" otherwise required to meet urgent law enforcement needs of the State.

(C) When an Agency >f;tabli~hes a H"W posirion within a class/occupational level it shalt
notice all Agency bargaining Unit (':mpl()Yl~es of the duties and responsibilities of the position
and the qualifications for said piJsition. The proc{:dl~rcs established in this Article shall thereafter
apply to filling vacancies in sueh po:·iti()tl.s.

SECflON 5 - Promotion

The State and the Association agree that promotion of an FDLE member to Special Agent
should be madi:. based on the employee meeting the qualifications for law enforcement
employmont s\.~ funh in Chapter 943, Florida Statues, and upon successfully completing
w!latev,'" additit!llClJ l1't:lining required by the Department prior to such appointment. The parties
agree that the provisi -111;" of the Personnel Rules will be followed when making such
appointments.

SECTION 6 - Probationary Status on Promotion

(A) An employee who has been appointed to a dassification or occupational level shall
attain pennanent status in that classification or i.)C~l patj(ln~llevelupon successful completion of

18



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

the designated probationary period. Such employee slwU not f-~e pennanent in u'h
classification or occupational level by accepting a promotion to a higher classification or
occupational level with the same agency and within the Career Service system.

(B) An employee who has obtained permanent status in a classification or occupational
level who is promoted to a higher classification or occupational level that fails, to due to
performance, to satisfactorily complete probation in the f l.'" lotioml1 lnsil'fi ·;.xinn 0r

occupational level shall be demoted in the former classification or occupational level previously
held by the employee in an available vacant position.

(1) Such a demotion shall be with permanent status, provided the employee}r id
pennanent status in the lower class/occupational level.

(2) Such a demotion shall not be grievable under Article 6 of this Agreement.

(3) Such a demotion shall not preclude the agency from seeking to discipline till';

employee for just cause based upon specific acts ofmisconduct.

S}!~·C flO! 7 - Rd(lcation Allowance

;\J1 emplove<' who is reassigned, or promoted, and who is required by agency policy to
rehK"atc hi.~ n;;id lK~e shall be granted time off with pay for two (2) work days for purposes of
relocating his residence. In addition, the employee shall be granted travel time to the new
location based on the most direct route. No employee will be credited with more than the
number of hours in the employee's regular workday and such time shall not be c unfed as hours
worked for the purpose of computing compensatory time or overtime.

SECTION 8 - Grievability

(A) An employee complaint concerning administration of this Article may be grieved in
accordance with Article 6 of this AJ!)"e~mcnt up lO ::md indudinS St~p 3 of the grievance
P'\'R~(:Jur('. In clJllsidering Wdl (".omplain1.s. wreighl Eihall hI,'; giVl~11 1(> 11h~ specific procedures
to]]o\\'c'd and ded:~i()n. Iltade. akng v..-ith tl1e needs of th...~ agency.

(B) An employee complaint concerning administration of Section 3 of this Article may be
grieved in accordance with Article 6 of this Agreement up to and including Step 3 of the
grievance procedure. The initiation of a grievance claiming a residency hardship shall stay any
required change in residence until final disposition of the grievance. In considering such a
grievance weight shall be given to the needs of the agency against the hardship on the employee.
Complaints concerning transfers, as authorized by Section 110.205(3), Florida Statutes, shall not
be subject to the grievance procedure.

Article 10
GROOMING

The Parties agree that the agency shall have the right to set reasonable and professional
grooming standards for its employees. The Agency and State agree to consult with the
Association in the development of said grooming standards.

Article 11

19



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

CLASSIFICATION REVIEW

(A) Except in case of an emergency, bargaining Unit employees shall not be required to
perform work not included in the employee's class specification.

(B) When an employee alleges that the employee is being regularly required to perform
duties which are not included in the class specification to which his position is allocated, the
employee may request that the Executive Director review the duties assigned to the employee's
position. The Executive Director or his designee shall review the duties as requested. The
employee will receive a copy of the decision.

(C) If the employee is not satisfied with the decision, the employee, with or without
representation, may request in review by the Secretary ofManagement Services or his designee.

(D) The decision of the Secretary of Management Services or his designee as to the
classification of the positl,":)U 9hrtJ) be final and binding on all partie,

Article 12
PERSOI'.'NF.:l, RECORDS

SECTION 1 - PersonJ1<-! hIe

(A) There shall h ~ OfU.• one official personnel file for 'a 'h Unit employee, which shall
be maintained in the central pcrsonnel office of the employing agency unless a different location
is approved by the Secretary of the Department of Management Services or designee, which may
be a contractor. Duplicate personnel files may be established and maintained within an agency.
Such duplicate personnel files may contain part or all of the items filed in the official personnel
file, but may not contain any items which are not filed in the official personnel file.

(B) If any derogatory material is placed in a Unit employee's official personnel file, a
copy will be sent to the employee. The employee will have the right to answer any such material
filed, and his answer will be attached to the file copy.

(C) A Unit employee will htlv ; the: right \0 review his own otficial pen;onod tik and .my
duplicate personnel files at reasonable lhrlt:~:s unde the SUpt',rvisi,,))') of til -, de: ignat~d I'('l:ord'
custodian.

(D) Where the Executive Director or his designee, the Publi\.: Emph)ye.es Relations
Commission, the courts, an arbitrator, or other statutory authority dekmlincs That a (\Q('lIlnent has
been placed in the employee's personnel file in error or is othcrwi.5l1 invalid. su<.~h dowment shall
be placed in an envelope together with a letter of explanation. The. envelope sh 11 he se-a1eJ.
stamped "NOT VALID", as specified in the State of Florida Gene;:ral Rt'~YJnls Schedule OS I for
State and Local Government Records, as promulgated by the Department of State; provided,
however, that the document shall he removed upon the employee's written request in accordance
'~viih [bi;~ h:.regoing H:cords schedule.

SECTION 2 - Privacy

The home addresses, telephone numbers, photographs, and social security numbers of
active or fonner law enforcement personnel, as well as the places of employment of the spouses
and children l"! the names and locations of schools attended [ y the children of said active or

20



Fiscal Year 2012- 13 PBA - Special Agent -nil Successor Agreement

fonner law enforcement personnel are exempt from disclos .)J"" under the Public Records law,
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and shall not be released except for a legitimate governmental
purpose.

SECTION 3 - Counselin Q Nute!!

U) Tn .st. lie and the Association agree that a letter of counseling or counseling notice is
not discipline and not subject to the grievance procedure. Such materials are documentation of
minor work deficiencies and are appropriately utilized in evaluating the perfOlmance of an
employee or documenting adherence to an agency's standards of conduct.

(B) A letter of counseling or counseling notice will not be considered in determining
progressive discipline provided the employee has not been counseled or disciplined for the same
offense during the succeeding twelve (12) months, except it may be cited to demonstrate the
t;.lllph)yec had been previously noticed ofthe same performance or conduct deficiency.

Article 13
SAFETY

SECllON 1 - Vehicle Safety

Vehicles used by bargaining Unit employees, whether issued to the employee or not,
shall be maintained in safe operating condition by the State.

SECTION 2 - Firearms Safety

In order to promote safety in the use of firearms by Special Agent bargaining Unit
employees, the State will guarantee that each bargaining Unit employee is offered the
opportunity to fire his issued and/or depaltmental-approved personal weapon in an agency
approved course of fire at least once every six (6) months, at no cost to employee. Such training
shall be for the purpose offilmiliarization in the use of firearms.

SECTlOJ\i 3 - Salcty CommiCtee

Where the agency has a Safety Committee, the Association will name one bargaining
Unit member to serve on such committee. Where such a committee has not been established, the
State will consider estahlishm~'11t ,:>1' ont: in each lOl~atjlJll having Special Agent Unit employees.
Time spent in attendance and travel to such committee meetings shall be considered as time
worked. However, the employee's attendance shall not unduly hamper the operations of the
employee's work unit.

Article 14
PERFORM:\N .~ REVIEW

(A) Employees shall be evaluated by their immediate supervisors or designated raters,
who shall be held accountable for such reviews. All appraisals shall conform to the provisions of
Section 110.224, Florida Statutes.

}3) hi:; Parties agree that management is required to establish squad-level numerical
arrest and other case-related goals in accordance with Legislative direction associated with
performance-based budgeting. Such goals may be considered for the c\'3hHttion of individual

21



"Ft", ...a} en:- 20! _-1 -pip; - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

performance; however, the primary factor in such evaluation shall be the individual's
performance of his assigned duties and responsibilities.

(C) The Parties agree that performance evaluations are not grievable under Article 6 of
this Agreement; however a performance appraisal may be contested if it serves, in whole or in
part, as the basis for a disciplinary action.

(D) Any employee who has attained permanent status in his current class gn3li !h}t bt:
disciplined for poor performance unless the employee has been counseled about the poor
performance, and provided a reasonable opportunity to correct performance deficiencies.

(E) The use of performance counseling shall not preclude the agency from seeking t\:

discipline the employee for cause based upon specific acts ofmisconduct.

(F) Bargaining Unit employees shall receive an evaluation from the academy upon
completion of entry-level Special Agent training. A copy of the evaluation shall be forwarded
to the appropriate supervisor.

Article 15
SENIORITY

SE TION l-ndinition

For the purpose of this .'\.grecme.nL "seniority" ghat! be ddinc:tl as continuous service in
the job classification/occupational level: provided. however, that :;m employe shall be
considered to have a break in s\;rvict: '\.\ihcn the employee separates, and is not on any payroll for
at least thirty-one (31) cakndaf d~iY f\)t1owing tht~ sep"ration.

SECTION 2 - Seniority Application

E'X,~cJlI. under extraordinary circumstances, vacations, and regular days off sh~ll be
~;cJwduJed with '.ill\;,. regard for needs of the agency, seniority and bargaining Unit employee
prefer(~.nl.'~. The State and the Association understand that there may be times when the needs of
the agency will not permit such scheduling.

SECTION 3 - Vacation and Holiday Lea\ic

When: practicable, leave of forty (40) contiguous hours or more, or for holiday~

r('~que~~ted. -'hail b~: n~quested at least sixty (60) days in advance of such leave in order that the
pr v'ision.~ of thi~ '\rticle may be fully implemented; however, in implementing this provision
nothing shall preclude an agency from making reasonable acc()l1lmiJdg.tlon~ for extraordinary
leave requests or ensuring the fair distribution ofleave during 1: vorcl:! hcliday;;:.

Article 16
EMPLOYMENT OUTSIDE STATE GOVERNM.ENT

SECTION 1 - Outside Employment - Non-Police EmploymP.'ut

(A) On the effective date of this Agreement, any baH!:flining Unit employee who ~s

performing non-police employment outside of State government, which employment has not
been previously approved, shall be subject to the provisions of Section 1(B) ofthis Article.

(B) If, during the term of this Agreement, an employee is to accept new non-police

22



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA- Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

JJrl.pJLI 'nlcht l.)lft:-.;iJ .. of State government, the employee shall notify the Executive Director, or
his de~-grree "f -rn;::h employment, prior to date of employment, and verify that such non-police
employment does not conflict with the employee's State employment, or with the employing
agency's procedures limiting such outside employment. Should such conflict(s) be found to
exist, outside employment shall be disapproved.

(C) During the course of the employee's outside employment, an agency may make
reasonable inquiries of the employee to ensure that the employee's :cmrinued nlll~jde

employment does not constitute a conflict of interest, or interfere with the employee's primary
duties as a State law enforcement officer. Employees shall not be requireo to file regular reports
regarding the outside employment.

SECTION 2 - Outside Employment - Police Employment

(A.) Any bargaining Unit employee who wishes to perfonn police employment outside of
State government shall secure the required approval in advance in accordance with Chapter 60L
32, Florida Administrative Code and applicable law. It is understood that pennission shall not be
unreasonably withheld as long as such outside employment does not conflict with the employee's
State employment or with the employing agency's procedures limiting such outside employment.

(B) During the course of the employee's outside employment, an agency may make
reasonable inquiries of the employee to ensure that the employee's continued outside
employment does not constitute a conflict of interest, or interfere with the employee's primary
duties as a State law enforcement officer. Employees shall not be required to file regular reports
regarding the outside empjo) nent.

(C) Each employee will be permitted to use his official car during approved off-duty
police employment, provided the off-duty employment is \vilhirJ fifty (50) miles of the
employee's city of assignment, and the official car directly facilitates the pcrfonnance of the otT
duty employment. Use of the official car which necessitates travel beyond fifty (50) miles of the
employee's city of assignm 'Hi will require· prior written approval by either the employee's
Regional Director or Program Director. .Approyal tor Slrh outside employment, consistent with
the (l,ho,;:c-siah,d conditions, wIll be l'ranted 50 lOtH! as:

,~. -
(1) It does not constitute a conflict of interest;

(2) It does not interfere \1,.. ith the employee's pnmary duties :is a State law
enforcement officer;

(3) It is within the duties and responsibilities the employee perfOlnlS or may
reasonably be expected to perform as a part of his job duties and responsibilities;

(4) Such employment does not carry the employee outside the State of Florida;
and

(5) Such employment does not unduly hamper the operation of the work unit.

(D) Each employee shall be permitted to work up to 64 hours per week of on-duty and
off-duty approved work. Employees may work in excess of 64 hours per week with the
approval of the Regional Director.

(E) When required by the agency, bargaining 'nit employees.,,'fhu are utill'.>iHg State

2



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

~_. i:pPTt.;tIJ while performing police employment outside of State employment shall be
responsible for all insurance relative to such outside employment, including workers'
compensation, and liability insurance.

SECTION 3 - Reimbursement of Costs

All mileage placed on a State automobile in off-duty police employment shall be paid for
by the employee at the mileage rate established in Section 112.061, Florida Statutes.

Article 17
DEPARTMENT VIUn .LES

The agency may provide each unit employee with an unmarked \lehi .jle. for work use.
Employees will reside within 35 miles of their assigned office.

An employee currently residing outside of the 35 mile limit will continue to be allowed to
do so; however, newly appointed employees and current employees that relocate their residence
must abide by the 35 mile rule, unless the Agency grants the employee a waiver of the rule.

Article 18
LEAVE

The attendance and leave provisions as contained in Chapter 60L-34 of til ~ Personnel
Rules shall apply to all bargaining Unit employees, except as noted in this agreement.

Article 19
PERSONAL PROPERTY - REPLACEMENT ANDiOn R~IMHI)RSE·i\oIENT

(A) Other than the employee's watch or prescription glasses, any personal property
subject to replacement or reimbursement pursuant to this article must be approved in advance by
the Agency as being require,,1 by th(: employet' i. dequ<ltdy perform the duties ofhis position.

(B) Thereafter, an employee who, while on duty and acting within the scope of
employment, suffers the damage, destruction or loss of his watch, prescription glasses, or other
personal property approved pursuant to Paragraph (A), will be reimbursed, have such property
repaired, or have such property replaced with an item which is of the same or a similar quality, as
described in this Article; provided, however, that:

(1) The Agency has the option to decide whether a 5pecif1c piece of property is
repaired versus replaced; and

(2) The employee shall not be reimbursed or have property repaired or replaced if
the Agency determines that the damage, destruction or loss resulted from the employee's
negligence.

(C) An employee who wants to be reimbursed or have personal property repaired or
replaced must:

(1) File a written report detailing the circumstances under which the property was
damaged, destroyed or lost; and

24



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA- Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

(2) Document the amount expended to repair or replace such property.

CD) After meeting the conditions described above, the Executive Director or designee
shall authorize reimbursement not to exceed the following amounts:

Watch - $75

Prescription glasses - $300 (including any required examination)

Other Items - the Executive Director or designee shall have final authority to determine
the reimbursement value of any items other than watches or prescription glasses,

Total allowable per incident· $600.

Artic.le 21
ACTING RANKS

, SECTION l-l?ligibility

Each time an employee is officially designated by the appropriate supervisor to act in a
higher ~·lassJfi<.:ation than the employee's permanent classification, and actually performs said
duties for a period of more than twenty-two (22) workdays, within any six (6) consecutive
months, the employee shall be eligible for a temporary special duty additive as provided in
Chapter 60L-32, Florida Administrative Code. If an employee performs duties in a higher
classification for twenty-two (22) consecutive workdays within any six (6) consecutive months,
the employee shall be eligible for a Temporary Special Duty salary additive, as provided in
Article 25 of this Agreement, effective the first day of performing such duties.

SEC] ION 2: - Metbod of Compensation

h i.- un(ier~'I.(lod by the parties that, insofar as pay is concerned, employees temporarily
performing the duties of a higher classification shall be paid according to the s31ue. compensation
method as permanent promotees under the Personnel Rules.

STeT}ON 3 - Return to Regular Rate

Employees being paid at a higher rate while temporarily performing the duties or a higher
classification will be returned to their regular rate of pay when the period of tmnpllrary
employment in the higher class ends.

;\I'ticJt> 22
JOB-CONNECTED DISABILn~V

SECTION I - Section 440.15(11), Florida Statutes - Full-Pay Status

(A) An employee who sustains a job-connected disability tmd meets the eligibility
requirements, as provided for in Section 440.15(11), Florida Statutes, may be carried in full-pay
statu~.

(B) Any claim by an employee or the Association concerning this Section shall not be
subject to the Grievance Procedure of this Agreement.

SECTION 2 - Chapter 60L-34, lifQ";thl1\dutluis ra.th ~ Code - Disability Leave With Pay

25



Fiscal Year 2012-13 :?BA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

An employee who sustains a job-connected disability which is not covered by Section 1
above, is eligible for disability leave with pay under the provisions of Chapter 60L-34, Personnel
Rules. The Executive Director or his designee shall not unreal>("lably reru.., "f.' submit a request
to carry an employee in full-pay status under the provisions -,f Chapter 60L-34, Florida
Administrative Code, provided, however, the Secretary of the Department of Management
Services or its designee shall have the right to determine whether or not an employee should be
carried in full-pay status for more than twenty-six (26) weeks. An employee shall not be
required to use accrued compensatory or annual leave in order to be eligible to be carried in full
pay status under Chapter 60L-34. However, no employee shall be carried in full-pay status until
he has utilized 100 hours of accumulated sick leave, annual leave, compensatory leave or leave
w"ithout pay.

SECTION 3 - Alternate Duty

(A) Where an employee is eligible for disability leave with pay under the Personnel Rules
as a result of an injury in the line of duty, and is temporarily unable to perform his normal work
duties, the Executive Director or his designee shall give due consideration to any request by the
employee to be temporarily assigned substitute duties within the employee's medical restrictions.
This shall have no effect on the agency's ability to make a different assignment based upon
current medical opinion.

(B) Where an employee is temporarily unable to perform his normal work duties, but is
given a reasonable prognosis to return to full duty within the near future, the Executive Director
or his designee shall give due consideration to any request by the employee to be temporarily
assigned duties within the employee's medical restrictions. This shall have no effect on the
agency's ability to make a different assignment based upon current medical opinion.

(C) Where an employee suffers an injury in the line of dut.. , and is permanenrly unabl" to
perform his nonnal work duties, the Executive Director or his designe' ~haJl attempt to
reasonably accommodate any written request by the employc~ to be- assigned ro a different
vacant position in a different classification within the employee's medical restrict.ions.

(D) A complaint concerning this Section may be grieved in accordance with Article 6 of
this Agreement up to and including Step 3. The decision of the Department FManagement
Services shall be final and binding on all parties.

Article 23
WORKDAY, WORKWEEK AND OVERTIME

SECTION 1 - On:·)'time

(A) The normal wOlkweeK for each full-time employee shall be forty (40) h~ ttrs.

(B) Work beyond the normal workweek or approved extended period shall be recognized
in accordance with Chapter 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code; provided, however, that when
an emergency is declared by the Governor and funds are available, employees who are assigned
to the emergency area described in the Governor's Executive Order shall be subject to a forty
(40) hour workweek while so assigned. The State and the Association will cooperate to secure
funds for the payment ofovertime to Unit employees in the situation described herein.

(C) The Association agrees to support those changes in Chapter tSOL-.34. Florida

26



:?iscal Year 2012,-13 PBA- Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

Administrative Code that may be required in order for the State to be in compliance with the Fair
Labor Standards Act as it is applied to public employees.

(D) If an agency has a plan approved in advance by the Department of Management
Services, FLSA special compensatory leave credits shall be granted, administered and used as
described below:

An employee who is filling an included position may, at the end of the approved
extended period if mutually agreed to by the employee and supervisor, waive payment for
overtime and have the overtime hours credited to "FLSA special compensatory leave." If such
approved election is made, the overtime hours will be credited as "FLSA special compensatory
leave" credits at the rate of one and one-half (1-112) hours for each hour of overtime worked. An
employee will only be permitted to accumulate a maximum of eighty (80) hours of "FLSA
special compensatory leave" credits which may be taken in any increments if mutually agreed to
by the employee and the supervisor. If mutual agreement is not reached, the superv~sor may,
with a minimum of five (5) workdays notice, require the employee to use such leave credits at
,my timt' in incremrnts of full work days. However, all unused "FLSA special compensatory
leave" "'I'edlts at the close of business on December 31 and June 30 shall be paid for at the
employee's straight time regular hourly rate in accordance with Chapter 60L-34, Florida
Administrative Code. An employee who separates from the Career Service or moves to another
state agency shall be paid for all unused "FLSA special compensatory leave" in accordance with
the above.

SECTION 2 - Workday

(A) Agencies shall not require an employee to split a workday into two or more segments
without the mutual agreement of the employee and the employer.

(B) Where employees are required to work extra hours during an approved extended
work period, the State will make a good faith effort to offset such extra hours in eight (8) hour
increments, provided this can be done prior to the end of the extended work period.

Sf,CTION 3 - Sick Leave Pool and Sick Leave Transfer

Special Agent bargaining Unit employees shall be subject to the conditions, and have full
access to the benefits, of the employing agency's existing sick leave pool and ~ick leave transfer
plan.

SECTION 4 - Special Compensatory Leave

Special Agent bargaining Unit employees shall be required, with reasonable advance
notice, to use special compensatory leave setere-us-ffig--a£€fW;d annual !-~a";5-er~.:rit:r-Et!lFle;rees

w-itl-Blliy-b~cnnitte<l to aecumuJate a m[;,xilmm1 of 210 lwurs c.f--f'~empoo-~
ez-.:di-ts:-in accordance with the curr~l1t agency policv and proc~durc. Tb~ use of special
~QillP.ensatory leav~ usage may be extended by the ,~gency b,~sed upon operational needs or
9:y.flared ~nergel.lciG.~

Artjcle 24
ON CALL, 'CALL BACK and COURT APPEARANCES

27



:Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA- Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

SECTION 1 - Call-Back

A Unit employee called out to work at a time not contiguous with i;h- employee's
scheduled hours of work shall be credited for ~i\J1:HI'i.J time worked, or a minimum of two (2)
hours, whichever is grem J".

SECTION 2 - Court Appearances

If a Unit employee is subpoenaed to appear as ;j "{fitness in a job-related court case, not
during the employee's regularly assigned work hours, the employee shall be credited for actual
time worked, or a minimum of two and one-half (2-112) hours, whichever is greater.

SECTION 3 - On-Call

Based on the availability of funds, employees ,\~ho are required to be on-call shall be
compensated by payment of a fee in an amount of not less than one dollar ($1.00) for each hour
such employee is required to be available. Employees who are required to be on call on a
Saturday, Sunday and/or a holiday as listed in Section 110.117, Florida Statutes, will be
compensated by payment of a fee in an amount equal to one-fourth (114) of the statewide
minimum '1~,r the employee's class for each eight (8) hour period such employee is required to be
available.

Article 25
WAGES

S.~CI'I()l\r - "a~1 Provisions

(A) Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Year ;w,};1--g~0IJ-2014 General
Appropriations Act:- and as Rrovided herein:

1. Effective July 1, 2013. all employe~s shall hav~ their base rate of pay
increased by six percent (6%).

2. Effective October L 2013, all employees with seven (7~ continuous years
of service as a law enforcement officer with tnc Stat~ and a "meel:s staildards"
perforrnan~e evaluation sh'JJLr:~_~~1-y~_a three J2~rcent (3%) an internal pay rela~onship

adjustment in tlleirJ1~§l_~.!J!.~--9Lp~..s.liQJ:lJd an employee reacb the seven p) years of
service level subsequent to Cctobcr 1. 2013, the employee shall receive the sameintemal
yay relationship ~diustment.

3. Effe<;;,tive July 1, 2013 all ~f!!illoyees serving on the Protective Operations
Squad shall r ceive a temporary dutv salary additive in the amount of five per~e11t (5%)

oft:.'1e empbyee's b2S~ rate of pay.

(B) Increases to base rate of pay and salary additives shall be in accordance with state
law and the Fiscal Year 2012-13 General Appropriations Act.

SECTION 2 - Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2012-13 General
Appropriations Act, and contingent upon the availability of funds and at the agency head's
discretion, the FDLE is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15
percent ofthe employee's base rate ofpay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or

28



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA- Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

area closed due to emer" reG.. conditions from another area of the state that is not closed.

SECTION 3 - Cash Payout of Annual Leave

Permanent Career Service employees may be given the option of receiving up to 24 hours
of unused annual leave each December, in the fonn of a cash payout subject to, and in
accordance with, section 110.219(7), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 4 - Performance Pay

Each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee's
exemplary perfonnance, as evidenced by a perfonnance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule
60L-35, Florida Administrative Code.

SECTION 5 - Savings Sharing Program

An employee or groups of employees may be eligible for monetary awards for ideas or
programs that result in & cost saving to the state, pursuant to section 110.1245(1), Florida
Statutes.

Article 26
t.QVJVM :.NT AN1) SERV1(·t~ AWARDS

SECTIOl\ 1- Accessories and Equipment

Accessories and equipment will include the following minimum requirements:

(A) A service v.'eapvli hUH b .t!., holswr and accessories as appropriate for the {]flit

employees.

(f .I Spare ammunition, and an appropriate case.

(C) Where hand-held radios are provided, they will be sniltlble for law enforcement use.

(D) The agency shaH pWvlck hullt't-proof vesL<.; to bargaining Unit employees and will
develop a policy for repli:lc~'mem upon (:~piraljon of the guaranteed life of the vest as expressed
by the manufacturer at the !"Irnc: of pllrclw~e-.

(E) The agency will select and provide to each employee at least one intermediate force
weapon, as detennined appropriate by the agency, and provide training in the use of such
weapon.

(F) Unless otherwise required by agency needs, vehicles shall be cquipr"li hy thc;,\
manllfrwt.urer as prl vided by current State of Florida contract specifications for "1. rrl;1rk~:d law
enf;)r 'em 'm vehicles.

SECTION 2 - Clothing Allowance

Employees of this Unit shall receIve a clothing allowance III tbe amount of
$500.00750.00 annually.

SECTION 3 -Award

When an employee retires under an.. pm\-i.. if n of the State retirement system, including
medical disability retire1 )<"1\1., th~ l.....lHpl~ycc shaH b ' t}ri.::~~nted his badge, his service revolver or
pistol, if -':1 ~ had been i~ 100 as part of the employee's equipment, and an identification card

29



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA- Special Agent Unit SuccessoT Agreement

clearly marked "RETIRED" as provided in Section 112.193, Florida Statutes.

SECTION 4 - Award Program

The State agrees to promote a program of recognition awards for bargaining Unit
employees which shall include:

(A) Upon promQtitJll. a fi •.fNI. Cd1.if ote: l·,~rtit: in') th\; promotion.

(B) Awards for bravery and outstanding service.

(C) Service awards through the use of certificates, patches or pins recognizing years of
service with the State; specifically recognizing fifteen (15), twenty (20) and twenty-five (25)
years oi service.

(0) Upon normal retirement, an identification card and badge.

Article 27
INSrRANCE BENFFlTS

SECTION 1- State Employees Group Insurance Program

The Stilt" agrees to administer the State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan in
accordance w~th any statutory provision or Act affecting the plan or its operation.,. at no
additional co;,>t in co-payments or health insurance premiums to fu.l!.u;;mploycec

SECTION 2 -Death In-Line-Of-Duty Benefits

i.A-J Funeral and hl.rial ~xpcnses will be as provided in Section 112.19, FLorida
Statutes.

(B) Education benefits will be as provided in Section 112.19, Florida Statutes.
(C) State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan premium for the employee's

surviving spouse and children will be as provided in Section 110.123, FLorida Statutes.
(D) Any complaint' or claim by an employee or the Association concerning this

Section shall not be subject to the Grievance Procedure of this Agreement.

Article 28
TRAVEL EXPENSES

SECTION] -- Payment of Travel Vouchers

With the prior approval of the Executive Director, travel expenses of employees incurred
in the performance of a public purpose authorized by law wi~l be paid in accordance with Section
112.061, Florida Statutes. The State will make a good faith effort to pay travel vouchers within
thirty (30) days after they have been properly submitted. Vouchers are considered submitted
when the employee submits them to the local official designated by m;tD(!...'~ Ih;:'Ili to receive ~uch

vouchers.

SECTION 2 - Emergency Travel

(A) When an emergency, SId) as a hurricane, arises that requires the agency to
temporarily assign employees with less than forty-eight (48) hours notice, the agency will make
a good faith effort to officially notify employees of the temporary assignment. Such notification

30



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agel'.t Unit Succes30r Agreement

may be in person, by telephone, by radio, or in writing.

(B) When an emergency arises requiring temporary personnel assiglUllcnt with less than
forty-eight (48) hours notice, the State agrees to make the necessary payment to the vendor for
lodging for such employees. The employee shall have no responsibility to make 3t,C~:' payments
to the vendor. Travel vouchers will be submitted as required in Section I above.

SECTlON 3 -l.\'m 'age Allowance

The State agrees to seek continued funding to provide for the payment of a mileage
allowance for the use of privately-owned vehicles for official travel nt the rate of 44.5 cents per
mile.

Article 29
DRUG TESTING

(A) Tfw State and the Association agree to drug testing of bargaining unit employees in
accordance with Section 112.0455, Florida Statutes, the Drug-Free Workplace Act.

(B) All c1;)-:~es covered by this Agreement are designated special risk for drug testing
purposes. Special risk means employees who are required as a condition of emplfJymcnt to he
certified under Chapter 633 or Chapter 943, Florida Statutes.

(C) An employee shall have the right to grieve any disciplinary action taken under
Section 112.0455, the Drug-Free Workplace Act, subject to the limitations on the grievability of
disciplinary actions in Article 6. If an employee is not disciplined but is denied a demotion,
reassignment or promotion as a result of a positive confirmed drug test, the employee shall have
the right to grieve such aetiol] in accordan.l:c with Article 6.

Article 30
NO STRIKE

SECTION 1-No Strike Agreement

Neither the Association nor any of its officers or agents nor members covered by this
Agreement, nor any other employees covered by this Agreem.el'li, will instigate, proulOtc,
sponsor, or engage in any prohibited activities as defined in Sedioll 447...dB(6). Florida Statutes.

SECTION 2 - "l'nalty

Any or all employees who violate any provision of this law prohibiting strikes or of this
Article will be subject to disciplinary action up to nd including discharge, and ill'!\' such
dis :ipli.JJ"lry action by the State shall not be subject to the Grievance Procedure established
11l;ri.~i.J.).

-;'f.·jU!!?i.:I~~:w!-J, f!:"fL5,~£-OJ,'WJ. 'i#fflH

i!..Ti -'_'ENT

*Hold open l~ending riecision of the Florida Supreme Court in the case of Ric!' Scoli, et d. v.
George 'i\:, illiam ,et a1.. Case No. SC 12-510.

31



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA- Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

Article 32
MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

The Association agrees that the State has and will continue to retain, whether (; ~"l' ised or
not, the right to determine unilaterally the purpose of each of its constituent agencies, set
standards of services to be offered to the public, and exercise control and discretion over its
organization and operations. It is also the right of the public employer to direct its employees,
take disciplinary action for proper cause, and relieve its employees from duty because of lack of
work or for other legitimate reasons, except as abridged or modified by the express provisions of
this Agreement; provided, however, that the exercise of such rights shall not preclude an
employee or employee representative from raising a grievance on any such decision which
violates the terms and conditions u[lhis Agreement.

Article 33
ENTIRE AGRl£.Ei\,lF,NT

SRCIlON ] - AgreementIReopeners

This Agreement, upon ratification, supersedes and cancels 311 prior practices and
agreements, whether written or oral, unless expressly stated to the contrary herein, and
constitutes the complete and entire agreement between the parties, and concludes collective
bargaining for its term.

The parties acknowledge that, during the negotiations which resulted in this Agreement,
each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and pt\.posals ...;'irh re~~pect to :1ny
subject or matter not removed by law from the area of c )Jkc:liv\,;. lMrgainlng ;md that the
understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and
opportunity are set forth in this Agreement. The State maintains the right to make changes to
rules, policies or practices during the term of this Agreement unless such action will be in direct
conflict with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Ex,:cpt as 1{, the above subjects, the State and the Association, for the duration of this
Agleellll~Jll.. (;'..<1\:1\ voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right,and each agrees that the other
shall )\()l h~' ohlig'lte -I to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter referred to, or
~OVtr{'d in this Agreement, even though such subjects or matters may not have been within the

knowl6ige 0r ~~onl,;:mplationof either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated or signed
this Agreement.

~mCTION 2- M-:,.morandum of Understanding/Settlements

The Parties recognize that during the term of this Agreement situations may arise which
require that terms and conditions not specifically and clearly set forth in the Agreement must be
clarified or amended. Under such circumstances, the Association is specifically authorized by
bargaining Unit employees to enter into the settlement of grievance disputes or memorandum of
understanding which clarifies or amends this Agreement, without having to be ratified by
bargaining Unit members.

Article 34
SAVINGS CLAUSE

If any provision of this Agreement, or the application of such provision, sik nld be

32



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

rendered or declared invalid, unlawful, or not enforceable, by any cou11 a' rinn or by reason of
any existing or subsequently enacted legislation; or if the appropriate governmental body, having
amendatory power to change a law, rule or regulation which is in conflict with a provision of this
Agreement, fails to enact or adopt an enabling amendment to make the provision effective, in
accordance with Section 447.309(3), Florida Statutes; then such provision shall not be
applicable, performed or enforced, but the remaining parts or portions of this Agreement shall
remain in full force and effect for the term ofthis Agreement.

Article 35
DURATION

SECTION 1 - T~..m

This Agreement shall remain in full force and l••,fl:ect through the thirtieth day of Jum:
wg2014. This Agreement shall be automatically renewed from year to year thereafter, unless
either party shall notify the other in writing on or before September I of each year that it desires
to change or modify this Agreement. This Agreement shall remain in full force and be effective
during the period of negotiation and may be extended in the manner set forth in the following
paragraph.

In the event that the State and the Association fail to secure a successor Al!,r dn'nl prior
t,) the expiratioll tlat~ of this Agreement, the parties may mutually agree in writing to extend this
Agr~Gllle,nt. tor any period oftime.

In the event that either party desires to terminate or modify this Agreement, written
notice must be given to the other party not less than ten (10) days prior to the desired termination
date, which shall not he before lh~. mlJljvcr~ary date set forth in the preceding paragraph.

SECTION 2 - Notices

. -oti'~"s hereunder shall be given by registered or certified mail, and if by the State shall
be addressed to the Association at 300 East Brevard Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301; and ifby
he A5::iociatinll shall be addressed to the Chief Negotiator, Department of Management Services,
4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 160, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0950. Either party may, by a like
written notice, change the address to which such notice shall be given. Notices shall be
considered to have been given as of the date shown on the postmark.

SECTION 3 - Emergencies

If it is determined that civil emergency conditions exist, including, but not limited to,
riots, civil disorders, hurricane conditions, or similar catastrophes, the provisions of this
Agreement may be suspended by the Governor during the time of the declared emergency,
provided that wage rates and monetary fringe benefits shall not be suspended. It is understood
that a declared emergency may be limited to specific geographic areas, in which case suspension
of the terms of this Agreement as provided above, would apply only w those bargaining Unit
employees pennanently or temporarily assigned to such areas.

33



F1ScaL Year 2012-13 PBA- Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

APPENDIX A
SPECIAL AGENT UNIT DESCRIPTION

CBUCODE to

Class
O.tllc

8580

8581

Class Title

Special Agent Trainee

Special Agent

34



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Sp
ec

ia
l A

ge
nt

 U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 5

, 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
3,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7,

 a
nd

 3
1 

 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
5 

– 
Em

pl
oy

ee
 

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

an
d 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

A
ct

iv
iti

es
 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

23
-1

3:
 

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f 1
1-

19
-1

2:
 

N
ew

 S
ec

tio
n 

10
 –

 st
at

e 
sh

al
l p

ro
vi

de
 

re
as

on
ab

le
 n

ot
ic

e 
to

 th
e 

PB
A

 o
f 

am
en

dm
en

ts
 to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
po

lic
ie

s t
ha

t 
re

su
lt 

in
 a

 c
ha

ng
e 

th
at

 re
la

te
s t

o 
a 

m
an

da
to

ry
 su

bj
ec

t o
f b

ar
ga

in
in

g;
 

w
he

re
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ch
an

ge
s a

ff
ec

t t
he

 
en

tir
e 

ba
rg

ai
ni

ng
 u

ni
t, 

th
e 

PB
A

 a
nd

 th
e 

st
at

e 
sh

al
l m

ee
t t

o 
ba

rg
ai

n 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 

ch
an

ge
. 

 

A
rti

cl
e 

6 
– 

G
rie

va
nc

e 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

               

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

23
-1

3:
 

Se
ct

io
n 

1 
– 

pr
op

os
es

 a
 g

rie
va

nc
e 

fo
rm

 
as

 A
pp

en
di

x 
B

 to
 th

e 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t; 
de

fin
iti

on
 o

f “
da

ys
” 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 st

at
ut

e.
 

 Se
ct

io
n 

2 
– 

st
rik

es
 g

rie
va

nc
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
as

 o
pt

io
na

l r
em

ed
y 

fo
r a

ct
io

ns
 th

at
 a

re
 

ap
pe

al
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

Pu
bl

ic
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
R

el
at

io
ns

 C
om

m
is

si
on

. 
 Se

ct
io

n 
3(

A
) –

 p
ro

po
se

s f
ili

ng
 o

f 
gr

ie
va

nc
es

 b
y 

fa
cs

im
ile

, e
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

m
ai

l, 
m

ai
l, 

or
 p

er
so

na
l d

el
iv

er
y.

  
 Se

ct
io

n 
3(

C
) –

 p
ro

vi
de

s f
or

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 

no
tic

e 
to

 a
ge

nc
y 

of
 h

is
 in

te
nt

io
n 

to
 

ap
pe

al
 a

 su
sp

en
si

on
. 

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f 1
1-

19
-1

2:
 

                

 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Sp
ec

ia
l A

ge
nt

 U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 5

, 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
3,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7,

 a
nd

 3
1 

 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
6 

– 
G

rie
va

nc
e 

Pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
                         

Se
ct

io
n 

3(
D

) –
 p

ro
po

se
s a

fte
r a

 
gr

ie
va

nc
e 

is
 p

re
se

nt
ed

, n
o 

ne
w

 
vi

ol
at

io
n 

or
 is

su
e 

ca
n 

be
 ra

is
ed

 u
nl

es
s 

th
e 

pa
rti

es
 a

gr
ee

 in
 w

rit
in

g 
to

 re
vi

se
 o

r 
am

en
d 

th
e 

al
le

ge
d 

vi
ol

at
io

ns
 o

r i
ss

ue
s, 

or
 u

po
n 

a 
pa

rty
’s

 sh
ow

in
g 

of
 g

oo
d 

ca
us

e 
fo

r t
he

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 su
ch

 n
ew

 
is

su
e,

 b
ut

 in
 n

o 
ev

en
t l

at
er

 th
an

 th
e 

fil
in

g 
of

 a
 g

rie
va

nc
e 

at
 S

te
p 

3.
  W

he
n 

an
 is

su
e 

is
 u

nc
ha

ng
ed

, b
ut

 it
 is

 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 th
at

 a
n 

ar
tic

le
, s

ec
tio

n 
or

 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

of
 th

e 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
ci

te
d 

im
pr

ec
is

el
y 

or
 e

rr
on

eo
us

ly
 b

y 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
, t

he
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 sh
al

l h
av

e 
th

e 
rig

ht
 to

 a
m

en
d 

th
at

 p
ar

t o
f h

is
 

gr
ie

va
nc

e.
 

 Se
ct

io
n 

3(
E)

 –
 p

ro
po

se
s t

he
 re

so
lu

tio
n 

of
 a

 g
rie

va
nc

e 
pr

io
r t

o 
its

 su
bm

is
si

on
 in

 
w

rit
in

g 
to

 a
rb

itr
at

io
n 

sh
al

l n
ot

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

pr
ec

ed
en

t b
in

di
ng

 o
n 

ei
th

er
 p

ar
ty

. 
 Se

ct
io

n 
3(

G
)(

1)
 –

 p
ro

vi
de

s t
he

 o
pt

io
n 

of
 in

iti
at

in
g 

a 
gr

ie
va

nc
e 

at
 th

e 
or

al
 st

ep
 

or
 S

te
p 

1.
 

   

Se
ct

io
n 

3(
D

) –
 o

nc
e 

a 
gr

ie
va

nc
e 

is
 

pr
es

en
te

d,
 n

o 
ne

w
 v

io
la

tio
n 

or
 is

su
e 

ca
n 

be
 ra

is
ed

 u
nl

es
s t

he
 p

ar
tie

s a
gr

ee
 in

 
w

rit
in

g 
to

 re
vi

se
 o

r a
m

en
d 

th
e 

al
le

ge
d 

vi
ol

at
io

ns
 o

r i
ss

ue
s o

r f
or

 g
oo

d 
ca

us
e;

 
in

 n
o 

ev
en

t l
es

s t
ha

n 
7 

da
ys

 p
rio

r t
o 

an
 

ar
bi

tra
tio

n 
he

ar
in

g.
 W

he
n 

an
 a

rti
cl

e,
 

se
ct

io
n 

or
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 o
f t

he
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
ha

s b
ee

n 
ci

te
d 

im
pr

ec
is

el
y 

or
 

er
ro

ne
ou

sl
y 

by
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
, t

he
 

em
pl

oy
ee

 sh
al

l h
av

e 
th

e 
rig

ht
 to

 a
m

en
d 

th
at

 p
ar

t o
f h

is
 g

rie
va

nc
e.

 
          Se

ct
io

n 
3(

G
) –

 p
ro

vi
de

s f
or

 th
e 

fil
in

g 
of

 g
rie

va
nc

es
 a

nd
 re

sp
on

se
s v

ia
 h

an
d-

de
liv

er
y,

 m
ai

l, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

em
ai

l, 
co

ur
ie

r, 
or

 fa
cs

im
ile

; e
st

ab
lis

he
s b

us
in

es
s h

ou
rs

 
an

d 
re

ce
ip

t o
f d

oc
um

en
ts

. 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Sp
ec

ia
l A

ge
nt

 U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 5

, 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
3,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7,

 a
nd

 3
1 

 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
6 

– 
G

rie
va

nc
e 

Pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
                         

Se
ct

io
n 

3(
G

)(
5)

 –
 p

ro
po

se
s o

pt
io

na
l 

m
ed

ia
tio

n 
by

 w
rit

te
n 

ag
re

em
en

t o
f t

he
 

pa
rti

es
 a

fte
r a

 g
rie

va
nc

e 
ha

s b
ee

n 
su

bm
itt

ed
 to

 a
rb

itr
at

io
n.

 
 Se

ct
io

n 
3(

G
)(

6)
(a

) –
 p

ro
po

se
s a

 re
qu

es
t 

fo
r a

rb
itr

at
io

n 
fo

rm
 a

s A
pp

en
di

x 
C

 o
f 

th
e 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t. 

 Se
ct

io
n 

3(
G

)(
6)

(d
) –

 p
ro

po
se

s i
ss

ue
s o

f 
ar

bi
tra

bi
lit

y,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

tim
el

in
es

s, 
be

 
se

pa
ra

te
d 

fr
om

 su
bs

ta
nt

iv
e 

is
su

es
 o

f 
gr

ie
va

nc
e 

an
d 

be
 h

ea
rd

 in
 a

n 
ex

pe
di

te
d 

he
ar

in
g 

by
 a

no
th

er
 a

rb
itr

at
or

; t
he

 p
ar

ty
 

lo
si

ng
 th

e 
ar

bi
tra

bi
lit

y 
is

su
e 

sh
al

l p
ay

 
th

e 
fe

es
 a

nd
 e

xp
en

se
s o

f t
he

 e
xp

ed
ite

d 
ar

bi
tra

tio
n.

  
 Se

ct
io

n 
5 

– 
pr

op
os

es
 n

on
-d

is
ci

pl
in

e 
gr

ie
va

nc
es

 fi
le

d 
by

 p
ro

ba
tio

na
ry

 
em

pl
oy

ee
s a

re
 fi

na
l a

nd
 b

in
di

ng
 a

t S
te

p 
3 

un
le

ss
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

si
ng

 o
f s

uc
h 

gr
ie

va
nc

es
 is

 fu
rth

er
 li

m
ite

d 
by

 sp
ec

ifi
c 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t. 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Sp
ec

ia
l A

ge
nt

 U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 5

, 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
3,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7,

 a
nd

 3
1 

 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
7 

– 
In

te
rn

al
 

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 

D
is

ci
pl

in
ar

y 
A

ct
io

ns
 

                        

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

23
-1

3:
 

Se
ct

io
n 

2(
A

) –
 p

ro
po

se
s a

n 
em

pl
oy

ee
 

w
ho

 h
as

 a
tta

in
ed

 p
er

m
an

en
t s

ta
tu

s i
n 

hi
s c

ur
re

nt
 p

os
iti

on
 m

ay
 b

e 
di

sc
ip

lin
ed

 
on

ly
 fo

r c
au

se
. 

 Se
ct

io
n 

2(
B

) –
 p

ro
po

se
s l

et
te

rs
 o

f 
co

un
se

lin
g 

an
d 

co
un

se
lin

g 
no

tic
es

 a
re

 
no

t d
is

ci
pl

in
e 

an
d 

ar
e 

no
t g

rie
va

bl
e;

 
su

ch
 d

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n 

m
ay

 b
e 

us
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

st
at

e 
at

 a
n 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
he

ar
in

g 
in

vo
lv

in
g 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

’s
 d

is
ci

pl
in

e 
to

 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
 w

as
 o

n 
no

tic
e 

of
 th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 d

ef
ic

ie
nc

ie
s 

or
 c

on
du

ct
 c

on
ce

rn
s. 

 Se
ct

io
n 

2(
C

) –
 p

ro
po

se
s a

n 
ag

en
cy

 m
ay

 
ha

ve
 sp

ec
ia

l c
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

eq
ua

l 
to

 th
e 

le
ng

th
 o

f a
 d

is
ci

pl
in

ar
y 

su
sp

en
si

on
 d

ed
uc

te
d 

fr
om

 a
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

’s
 le

av
e 

ba
la

nc
e 

in
 li

eu
 o

f 
se

rv
in

g 
th

e 
su

sp
en

si
on

; t
he

 a
ge

nc
y 

w
ill

 
co

ns
id

er
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
’s

 p
re

fe
re

nc
e 

of
 

se
rv

in
g 

th
e 

su
sp

en
si

on
 o

r h
av

in
g 

le
av

e 
de

du
ct

ed
; i

f l
ea

ve
 d

ed
uc

te
d,

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 re

po
rt 

fo
r 

du
ty

; t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
’s

 p
er

so
nn

el
 fi

le
 

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f 1
1-

19
-1

2:
 

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

                           



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Sp
ec

ia
l A

ge
nt

 U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 5

, 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
3,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7,

 a
nd

 3
1 

 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
7 

– 
In

te
rn

al
 

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 

D
is

ci
pl

in
ar

y 
A

ct
io

ns
 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

  

w
ill

 re
fle

ct
 a

 d
is

ci
pl

in
ar

y 
su

sp
en

si
on

 
re

ga
rd

le
ss

 o
f w

he
th

er
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
 

se
rv

es
 th

e 
su

sp
en

si
on

 o
r h

as
 le

av
e 

de
du

ct
ed

. 
 Se

ct
io

n 
2(

D
) –

 p
ro

po
se

s a
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

 
w

ith
 p

er
m

an
en

t s
ta

tu
s i

n 
hi

s c
ur

re
nt

 
po

si
tio

n 
m

ay
 a

pp
ea

l a
 re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 b

as
e 

pa
y,

 in
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

tra
ns

fe
r o

f o
ve

r 5
0 

m
ile

s, 
su

sp
en

si
on

, d
em

ot
io

n,
 o

r 
di

sm
is

sa
l t

o 
th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

R
el

at
io

ns
 C

om
m

is
si

on
 a

s e
xc

lu
si

ve
 

re
m

ed
y 

fo
r r

ev
ie

w
 o

f s
uc

h 
ac

tio
ns

; t
he

y 
ar

e 
no

t s
ub

je
ct

 to
 th

e 
A

rti
cl

e 
6 

gr
ie

va
nc

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e.

 
 Se

ct
io

n 
2(

E)
 –

 p
ro

po
se

s w
rit

te
n 

re
pr

im
an

ds
 b

e 
gr

ie
va

bl
e 

on
ly

 to
 S

te
p 

2 
(a

ge
nc

y 
he

ad
). 

A
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 h

as
 th

e 
op

tio
n 

of
 a

pp
ea

lin
g 

di
sc

ip
lin

ar
y 

ac
tio

ns
 re

fe
re

nc
ed

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
2 

to
 

th
e 

Pu
bl

ic
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

s R
el

at
io

ns
 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 (P
ER

C
), 

or
 g

rie
vi

ng
 

su
ch

 a
ct

io
ns

 u
til

iz
in

g 
th

e 
gr

ie
va

nc
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
in

 A
rti

cl
e 

6.
  T

he
 st

at
e 

pr
op

os
es

 P
ER

C
 a

s t
he

 e
xc

lu
si

ve
 

re
m

ed
y 

fo
r r

ev
ie

w
 o

f s
uc

h 
ac

tio
ns

. 
B

en
ef

its
: t

he
 h

ig
h 

co
st

 o
f 

ar
bi

tra
tio

ns
 v

s. 
PE

R
C

 a
t n

o 
co

st
 to

 
th

e 
ag

en
ci

es
; s

ch
ed

ul
in

g 
di

ff
ic

ul
tie

s w
ith

 a
rb

itr
at

or
s v

s. 
an

 
ex

pe
di

tio
us

 h
ea

rin
g 

an
d 

de
ci

si
on

 
fr

om
 P

ER
C

; e
xp

er
ie

nc
ed

 h
ea

rin
g 

of
fic

er
s f

am
ili

ar
 w

ith
 a

ge
nc

y 
m

is
si

on
s;

 P
ER

C
 o

rd
er

s a
re

 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
gu

id
an

ce
 to

 
ag

en
ci

es
 w

he
n 

si
m

ila
r i

ss
ue

s a
ris

e;
 

an
d 

ap
pe

al
s t

o 
di

st
ric

t c
ou

rts
. 

 
A

rti
cl

e 
8 

– 
W

or
kf

or
ce

 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

23
-1

3:
 

Se
ct

io
n 

1 
– 

pr
op

os
es

 c
la

rif
yi

ng
 

la
ng

ua
ge

 to
 re

fle
ct

 p
er

m
an

en
t s

ta
tu

s 
m

us
t b

e 
at

ta
in

ed
 in

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

’s
 

cu
rr

en
t p

os
iti

on
. 

 

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f 1
1-

19
-1

2:
 

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Sp
ec

ia
l A

ge
nt

 U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 5

, 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
3,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7,

 a
nd

 3
1 

 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
9 

– 
R

ea
ss

ig
nm

en
t, 

Tr
an

sf
er

, C
ha

ng
e 

in
 

D
ut

y 
St

at
io

n,
 

Pr
om

ot
io

n 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

23
-1

3:
 

Se
ct

io
n 

1 
– 

de
fin

iti
on

 o
f “

br
oa

db
an

d 
le

ve
l”

, “
re

as
si

gn
m

en
t”

, a
nd

 
“p

ro
m

ot
io

n”
 a

s d
ef

in
ed

 in
 se

ct
io

n 
11

0.
10

7,
 F

.S
. 

 Se
ct

io
n 

6 
– 

la
ng

ua
ge

 to
 c

la
rif

y 
pr

ob
at

io
na

ry
 st

at
us

 u
po

n 
an

 in
te

rn
al

 
ag

en
cy

 p
ro

m
ot

io
n,

 re
m

ov
al

 fr
om

 
pr

om
ot

io
na

l p
os

iti
on

 a
t a

ny
 ti

m
e 

du
rin

g 
pr

ob
at

io
na

ry
 p

er
io

d,
 a

nd
 st

at
us

 
if 

de
m

ot
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

’s
 fo

rm
er

 
po

si
tio

n 
or

 a
 c

om
pa

ra
bl

e 
po

si
tio

n.
 

  

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f 1
1-

19
-1

2:
 

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

 

A
rti

cl
e 

14
 –

 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 R

ev
ie

w
 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

23
-1

3:
 

Pr
op

os
es

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 re
vi

ew
s b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 R

ul
e 

60
L-

35
, F

.A
.C

.; 
a 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
ap

pr
ai

sa
l t

ha
t s

er
ve

s a
s t

he
 b

as
is

 fo
r a

 
di

sc
ip

lin
ar

y 
ac

tio
n 

un
de

r t
he

 a
pp

ea
l 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f A
rti

cl
e 

7 
m

ay
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 in

 su
ch

 a
pp

ea
l. 

 

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f 1
1-

19
-1

2:
 

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

 

A
rti

cl
e 

15
 –

 S
en

io
rit

y 
St

at
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 o
f 0

1-
23

-1
3:

 
Su

bs
ta

nc
e 

– 
st

at
us

 q
uo

 
 

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f 1
1-

19
-1

2:
 

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Sp
ec

ia
l A

ge
nt

 U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 5

, 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
3,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7,

 a
nd

 3
1 

 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
18

 –
 L

ea
ve

 
St

at
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 o
f 0

1-
23

-1
3:

 
St

at
us

 q
uo

 
U

ni
on

 P
ro

po
sa

l o
f 1

1-
19

-1
2:

 
Pr

ov
id

es
 a

tte
nd

an
ce

 a
nd

 le
av

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 a
s c

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 R

ul
e 

60
L-

34
 

ap
pl

y 
to

 a
ll 

ba
rg

ai
ni

ng
 u

ni
t e

m
pl

oy
ee

s, 
ex

ce
pt

 a
s n

ot
ed

 in
 th

e 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t. 
     

 

A
rti

cl
e 

21
 –

 A
ct

in
g 

R
an

ks
 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

23
-1

3:
 

Pr
op

os
es

 ti
tle

 c
ha

ng
e 

to
 C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

fo
r T

em
po

ra
ry

 S
pe

ci
al

 D
ut

y 
in

 H
ig

he
r 

Le
ve

l P
os

iti
on

; c
la

rif
ie

s t
ha

t a
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

 is
 e

lig
ib

le
 fo

r a
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 
sp

ec
ia

l d
ut

y 
ad

di
tiv

e 
w

he
n 

pe
rf

or
m

in
g 

a 
m

aj
or

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 d

ut
ie

s o
f a

 h
ig

he
r 

br
oa

db
an

d 
le

ve
l p

os
iti

on
 fo

r m
or

e 
th

an
 

22
 w

or
kd

ay
s w

ith
in

 a
ny

 6
 c

on
se

cu
tiv

e 
m

on
th

s. 
       

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f 1
1-

19
-1

2:
 

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Sp
ec

ia
l A

ge
nt

 U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 5

, 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
3,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7,

 a
nd

 3
1 

 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
23

 –
 W

or
kd

ay
, 

W
or

kw
ee

k 
an

d 
O

ve
rti

m
e 

                        

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

23
-1

3:
 

Se
ct

io
n 

1(
A

) –
 p

ro
po

se
s t

he
 w

or
k 

pe
rio

d 
fo

r e
m

pl
oy

ee
s s

ha
ll 

be
 1

60
 

ho
ur

s (
cu

rr
en

t p
ra

ct
ic

e)
. 

 Se
ct

io
n 

4 
– 

Pr
op

os
es

 in
st

an
ce

s i
n 

w
hi

ch
 sp

ec
ia

l c
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

cr
ed

its
 a

re
 e

ar
ne

d:
 

    
   

   
(A

)  
Ea

rn
in

g 
of

 S
pe

ci
al

 
C

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

Le
av

e 
C

re
di

ts
.  

Sp
ec

ia
l 

co
m

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

cr
ed

its
 m

ay
 b

e 
ea

rn
ed

 o
nl

y 
in

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
in

st
an

ce
s:

 
 

   
 (1

) B
y 

an
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 in
 th

e 
ca

re
er

 se
rv

ic
e 

fo
r w

or
k 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 o

n 
a 

ho
lid

ay
 a

s d
ef

in
ed

 in
 se

ct
io

n 
11

0.
11

7,
 

Fl
or

id
a 

St
at

ut
es

, o
r f

or
 w

or
k 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 

du
rin

g 
a 

w
or

k 
pe

rio
d 

th
at

 in
cl

ud
es

 a
 

ho
lid

ay
, a

s p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 th
e 

R
ul

es
 o

f 
th

e 
St

at
e 

Pe
rs

on
ne

l S
ys

te
m

. 
 

   
 (2

)  
B

y 
an

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 in

 th
e 

ca
re

er
 se

rv
ic

e 
fo

r w
or

k 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 in
 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

’s
 a

ss
ig

ne
d 

of
fic

e,
 

fa
ci

lit
y,

 o
r r

eg
io

n 
w

hi
ch

 is
 c

lo
se

d 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 to

 a
n 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
O

rd
er

 o
f t

he
 

G
ov

er
no

r o
r a

ny
 o

th
er

 d
is

as
te

r o
r 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
co

nd
iti

on
. 

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f 1
1-

19
-1

2:
 

    Se
ct

io
n 

4 
– 

w
ith

 re
as

on
ab

le
 n

ot
ic

e,
 

em
pl

oy
ee

s s
ha

ll 
be

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 u

se
 

sp
ec

ia
l c

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 c
ur

re
nt

 a
ge

nc
y 

po
lic

y 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e;

 u
se

 o
f s

pe
ci

al
 

co
m

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

us
ag

e 
m

ay
 b

e 
ex

te
nd

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ag

en
cy

 b
as

ed
 u

po
n 

op
er

at
io

na
l n

ee
ds

 o
r d

ec
la

re
d 

em
er

ge
nc

ie
s. 

 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Sp
ec

ia
l A

ge
nt

 U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 5

, 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
3,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7,

 a
nd

 3
1 

 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
23

 –
 W

or
kd

ay
, 

W
or

kw
ee

k 
an

d 
O

ve
rti

m
e 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

                        

A
dd

re
ss

es
 sp

ec
ia

l c
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

ea
rn

ed
 p

rio
r t

o 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

3:
 

    
   

  (
B

)  
Sp

ec
ia

l C
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
Le

av
e 

Ea
rn

ed
 P

rio
r t

o 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

3 
   

   
   

   
  (

1)
  D

es
pi

te
 th

e 
fa

ct
 th

at
 

pr
ev

io
us

 c
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

ba
rg

ai
ni

ng
 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 o

nl
y 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

to
 a

cc
um

ul
at

e 
a 

m
ax

im
um

 o
f 2

40
 h

ou
rs

 
of

 sp
ec

ia
l c

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
cr

ed
its

, 
ce

rta
in

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s m

ay
 h

av
e 

ea
rn

ed
 

ho
ur

s p
rio

r t
o 

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
3 

in
 e

xc
es

s o
f 

th
at

 a
m

ou
nt

.  
N

ot
hi

ng
 in

 th
is

 
ag

re
em

en
t i

s i
nt

en
de

d 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

va
lid

ity
 o

r i
nv

al
id

ity
 o

f s
pe

ci
al

 
co

m
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
cr

ed
its

 a
bo

ve
 2

40
 

ho
ur

s e
ar

ne
d 

pr
io

r t
o 

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
3.

 
   

   
   

   
   

(2
)  

A
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

 m
ay

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 re

du
ce

 sp
ec

ia
l 

co
m

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

cr
ed

it 
ba

la
nc

es
. 

       



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Sp
ec

ia
l A

ge
nt

 U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 5

, 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
3,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7,

 a
nd

 3
1 

 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
23

 –
 W

or
kd

ay
, 

W
or

kw
ee

k 
an

d 
O

ve
rti

m
e 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

                        

A
dd

re
ss

es
 h

ow
 sp

ec
ia

l c
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

ea
rn

ed
 o

n 
or

 a
fte

r J
ul

y 
1,

 2
01

3 
w

ill
 b

e 
us

ed
 o

r f
or

fe
ite

d:
 

    
   

  (
C

) S
pe

ci
al

 C
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
Le

av
e 

Ea
rn

ed
 O

n 
or

 A
fte

r J
ul

y 
1,

 2
01

3 
 

   
(1

)  
Sp

ec
ia

l c
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

cr
ed

its
 e

ar
ne

d,
 a

s d
es

cr
ib

ed
 in

 
su

bs
ec

tio
n 

(A
)(

1)
, o

n 
or

 a
fte

r J
ul

y 
1,

 
20

13
, w

hi
ch

 a
re

 n
ot

 u
se

d 
ea

ch
 y

ea
r b

y 
th

e 
A

pr
il 

30
 o

r O
ct

ob
er

 3
1 

th
at

 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 su

cc
ee

ds
 th

e 
w

or
k 

pe
rio

d 
in

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
le

av
e 

is
 c

re
di

te
d,

 
w

hi
ch

ev
er

 d
at

e 
oc

cu
rs

 e
ar

lie
r, 

sh
al

l b
e 

fo
rf

ei
te

d.
 

 
  (

2)
  S

pe
ci

al
 c

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
cr

ed
its

 e
ar

ne
d,

 a
s d

es
cr

ib
ed

 in
 

su
bs

ec
tio

n 
(A

)(
2)

, o
n 

or
 a

fte
r J

ul
y 

1,
 

20
13

, w
hi

ch
 a

re
 n

ot
 u

se
d 

w
ith

in
 1

20
 

ca
le

nd
ar

 d
ay

s f
ro

m
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

w
or

k 
pe

rio
d 

in
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

le
av

e 
is

 c
re

di
te

d 
sh

al
l b

e 
fo

rf
ei

te
d.

 
 

(3
)  

Ea
ch

 a
ge

nc
y 

sh
al

l s
ch

ed
ul

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s e

ar
ni

ng
 sp

ec
ia

l 
co

m
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
cr

ed
its

 in
 a

 m
an

ne
r 

th
at

 a
llo

w
s a

ll 
su

ch
 le

av
e 

cr
ed

its
 e

ar
ne

d 
on

 o
r a

fte
r J

ul
y 

1,
 2

01
3,

 to
 b

e 
us

ed
 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Sp
ec

ia
l A

ge
nt

 U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 5

, 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
3,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7,

 a
nd

 3
1 

 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
23

 –
 W

or
kd

ay
, 

W
or

kw
ee

k 
an

d 
O

ve
rti

m
e 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
tim

e 
lim

its
 sp

ec
ifi

ed
 in

 
su

bs
ec

tio
ns

 1
 a

nd
 2

.  
H

ow
ev

er
, i

f 
sc

he
du

lin
g 

su
ch

 le
av

e 
w

ith
in

 su
ch

 ti
m

e 
lim

its
 w

ou
ld

 p
re

ve
nt

 th
e 

ag
en

cy
 fr

om
 

m
ee

tin
g 

m
in

im
um

 st
af

fin
g 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 n
ee

de
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
pu

bl
ic

 
sa

fe
ty

, t
he

 a
ge

nc
y 

he
ad

 m
ay

 e
xt

en
d 

th
e 

tim
e 

lim
its

 sp
ec

ifi
ed

 in
 su

bs
ec

tio
ns

 1
 

an
d 

2 
fo

r u
p 

to
 a

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l 1

80
 

ca
le

nd
ar

 d
ay

s. 
 E

xt
en

si
on

s w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

al
lo

w
ed

 fo
r a

ny
 o

th
er

 re
as

on
. 

 
 (4

)  
N

o 
ag

en
cy

 m
ay

 m
ak

e 
a 

pa
yo

ut
 o

f u
nu

se
d 

sp
ec

ia
l c

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
cr

ed
its

 e
ar

ne
d 

on
 o

r a
fte

r J
ul

y 
1,

 
20

13
. 

 Pr
ov

id
es

 fo
r s

ub
st

itu
tio

n 
of

 sp
ec

ia
l 

co
m

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

cr
ed

its
 fo

r 
re

qu
es

te
d 

le
av

e:
 

   
   

 (D
)  

U
nl

es
s o

th
er

w
is

e 
pr

oh
ib

ite
d 

by
 la

w
 o

r r
ul

e,
 a

ll 
re

qu
es

ts
 fo

r u
se

 o
f 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 le
av

e,
 o

th
er

 th
an

 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

le
av

e,
 sh

al
l f

irs
t b

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
to

 a
ny

 sp
ec

ia
l c

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
cr

ed
its

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 h
as

 a
cc

ru
ed

. 
  



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Sp
ec

ia
l A

ge
nt

 U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 5

, 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
3,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7,

 a
nd

 3
1 

 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
24

 –
 O

n-
C

al
l, 

C
al

l-B
ac

k,
 a

nd
 C

ou
rt 

A
pp

ea
ra

nc
es

 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

23
-1

3:
 

Se
ct

io
n 

2 
– 

O
n-

ca
ll 

as
si

gn
m

en
t s

ha
ll 

be
 

as
 d

ef
in

ed
 in

 R
ul

e 
60

L-
32

, F
.A

.C
.; 

Pr
ov

id
es

 c
la

rif
yi

ng
 la

ng
ua

ge
 fo

r 
co

m
pe

ns
at

in
g 

an
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 w
ho

 h
as

 
be

en
 in

st
ru

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
on

-c
al

l, 
an

d 
is

 
ca

lle
d 

ba
ck

 to
 th

e 
w

or
k 

lo
ca

tio
n 

to
 

pe
rf

or
m

 a
ss

ig
ne

d 
du

tie
s. 

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f 1
1-

19
-1

2:
 

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

 

A
rti

cl
e 

25
 –

 W
ag

es
 

                  

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

30
-1

3:
 

 Se
ct

io
n 

1 
– 

Pr
op

os
es

 p
ay

 sh
al

l b
e 

in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 th

e 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 2
01

3-
20

14
 G

en
er

al
 A

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

 A
ct

; 
in

cr
ea

se
s t

o 
ba

se
 ra

te
 o

f p
ay

 a
nd

 sa
la

ry
 

ad
di

tiv
es

 sh
al

l b
e 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 

st
at

e 
la

w
 a

nd
 th

e 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 2
01

3-
20

14
 G

en
er

al
 A

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

 A
ct

. 
 Se

ct
io

n 
2 

– 
Pr

op
os

es
 U

ne
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
R

at
e 

In
ce

nt
iv

e 
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 th
e 

G
ov

er
no

r’
s B

ud
ge

t R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 
 Se

ct
io

n 
3 

– 
Pr

op
os

es
 V

ar
ia

bl
e 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
A

w
ar

d 
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 
th

e 
G

ov
er

no
r’

s B
ud

ge
t 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 
 

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f 1
1-

19
-1

2:
 

 Pa
y 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
-1

4 
G

en
er

al
 A

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

 A
ct

, 
an

d:
 

 6%
 b

as
e 

ra
te

 o
f p

ay
 in

cr
ea

se
 fo

r a
ll 

un
it 

em
pl

oy
ee

s e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

3.
 

 3%
 in

te
rn

al
 p

ay
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t i
nc

re
as

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

O
ct

ob
er

 1
, 2

01
3,

 fo
r 

em
pl

oy
ee

s w
ith

 7
 c

on
tin

uo
us

 y
ea

rs
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
a 

“m
ee

ts
 st

an
da

rd
s”

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 e

va
lu

at
io

n;
 sh

ou
ld

 a
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

 re
ac

h 
th

e 
7 

ye
ar

s o
f s

er
vi

ce
 

le
ve

l s
ub

se
qu

en
t t

o 
O

ct
ob

er
 1

, 2
01

3,
 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 sh
al

l r
ec

ei
ve

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
in

te
rn

al
 p

ay
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t. 
 

      C
os

t e
st

im
at

e:
 $

1,
02

2,
72

7 
  C

os
t e

st
im

at
e:

 $
27

2,
87

0 
         



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Sp
ec

ia
l A

ge
nt

 U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 5

, 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
3,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7,

 a
nd

 3
1 

 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
25

 –
 W

ag
es

 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
                         

Se
ct

io
n 

4 
– 

Pr
op

os
es

 T
em

po
ra

ry
 

Sp
ec

ia
l D

ut
ie

s P
ay

 A
dd

iti
ve

 fo
r 

em
pl

oy
ee

s t
em

po
ra

ril
y 

de
pl

oy
ed

 to
 a

 
fa

ci
lit

y 
or

 a
re

a 
cl

os
ed

 d
ue

 to
 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
co

nd
iti

on
s f

ro
m

 a
no

th
er

 
ar

ea
 o

f t
he

 st
at

e 
th

at
 is

 n
ot

 c
lo

se
d 

 Se
ct

io
n 

5 
– 

Pr
op

os
es

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s m

ay
 

be
 g

iv
en

 th
e 

op
tio

n 
of

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
up

 to
 

24
 h

ou
rs

 o
f a

nn
ua

l l
ea

ve
 e

ac
h 

D
ec

em
be

r i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 S

ec
tio

n 
11

0.
21

9(
7)

, F
.S

. 
Se

ct
io

n 
6 

– 
Pr

op
os

es
 e

ac
h 

ag
en

cy
 is

 
au

th
or

iz
ed

 to
 g

ra
nt

 m
er

it 
pa

y 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

’s
 e

xe
m

pl
ar

y 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 a

s e
vi

de
nc

ed
 b

y 
a 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 to

 R
ul

e 
60

L-
35

, F
.A

.C
. 

 Se
ct

io
n 

7 
– 

Pr
op

os
es

 a
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

 o
r 

gr
ou

ps
 o

f e
m

pl
oy

ee
s m

ay
 b

e 
el

ig
ib

le
 

fo
r m

on
et

ar
y 

aw
ar

ds
 fo

r i
de

as
 o

r 
pr

og
ra

m
s t

ha
t r

es
ul

t i
n 

a 
co

st
 sa

vi
ng

 to
 

th
e 

st
at

e,
 p

ur
su

an
t t

o 
Se

ct
io

n 
11

0.
12

45
(1

), 
F.

S.
 

  

5%
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 sp
ec

ia
l d

ut
y 

ad
di

tiv
e 

fo
r 

em
pl

oy
ee

s s
er

vi
ng

 in
 th

e 
Pr

ot
ec

tiv
e 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 S

qu
ad

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
Ju

ly
 1

, 
20

13
.  

 

C
os

t e
st

im
at

e:
 $

30
,4

96
 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Sp
ec

ia
l A

ge
nt

 U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 5

, 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
3,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7,

 a
nd

 3
1 

 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
25

 –
 W

ag
es

 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
Se

ct
io

n 
8 

– 
Pr

op
os

es
 th

at
 in

 th
e 

ev
en

t 
th

e 
20

13
 L

eg
is

la
tu

re
 p

ro
vi

de
s d

iff
er

en
t 

fu
nd

in
g 

or
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s f

or
 th

e 
ab

ov
e-

re
fe

re
nc

e 
pa

y 
in

cr
ea

se
s a

nd
 

pa
ym

en
ts

, t
he

 st
at

e 
an

d 
th

e 
un

io
n 

ag
re

e 
th

at
 th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
s a

nd
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 sh
al

l 
be

 a
dm

in
is

te
re

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 F
is

ca
l Y

ea
r 2

01
3-

20
14

 G
en

er
al

 A
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
 A

ct
, o

r 
an

y 
ot

he
r r

el
ev

an
t s

ta
tu

te
s. 

   
A

rti
cl

e 
26

 –
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t 
an

d 
Se

rv
ic

e 
A

w
ar

ds
 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

23
-1

3:
 

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f 1
1-

19
-1

2:
 

Se
ct

io
n 

2 
– 

in
cr

ea
se

s c
lo

th
in

g 
al

lo
w

an
ce

 fr
om

 $
50

0 
to

 $
75

0/
an

nu
al

ly
. 

 

 C
os

t e
st

im
at

e:
 $

66
,0

00
 

A
rti

cl
e 

27
 –

 In
su

ra
nc

e 
B

en
ef

its
 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

23
-1

3:
 

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f 1
1-

19
-1

2:
 

Se
ct

io
n 

1 
– 

th
e 

st
at

e 
ag

re
es

 to
 

ad
m

in
is

te
r t

he
 S

ta
te

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
s G

ro
up

 
H

ea
lth

 S
el

f-
In

su
ra

nc
e 

Pl
an

 in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 a

ny
 st

at
ut

or
y 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
or

 A
ct

 a
ff

ec
tin

g 
th

e 
pl

an
 o

r 
its

 o
pe

ra
tio

n 
at

 n
o 

ad
di

tio
na

l c
os

t i
n 

co
-

pa
ym

en
ts

 o
r h

ea
lth

 in
su

ra
nc

e 
pr

em
iu

m
s t

o 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
. 

 

 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Sp
ec

ia
l A

ge
nt

 U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 5

, 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
3,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7,

 a
nd

 3
1 

 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
31

 –
 V

ac
an

t 
St

at
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 o
f 0

1-
23

-1
3:

 
St

at
us

 q
uo

 
U

ni
on

 P
ro

po
sa

l o
f 1

1-
19

-1
2:

 
Pr

op
os

es
 R

et
ire

m
en

t a
rti

cl
e 

– 
ho

ld
 

op
en

 p
en

di
ng

 d
ec

is
io

n 
of

 th
e 

Fl
or

id
a 

Su
pr

em
e 

C
ou

rt 
in

 th
e 

ca
se

 o
f R

ic
k 

Sc
ot

t, 
et

 a
l. 

v.
 G

eo
rg

e 
W

ill
ia

m
s, 

et
 a

l.,
 

C
as

e 
N

o.
 S

C
12

-5
20

. 
 

 

 



rr1"'O

~~
.., I

n .to
3 ~
to
:::::J,....
c:
:::::Jr;



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

Article 6 
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

 
It is the policy of the Sstate and the PBA to encourage informal discussions of complaints 

between management and supervisors covered by this Agreement, as well as between those 
supervisors and covered employees. Such discussions should be held with a view to reaching an 
understanding which will resolve the matter in a manner satisfactory to the employee, without 
need for recourse to the formal grievance procedure prescribed by this Article. 
 
SECTION 1 – Definitions 
 

As used in this Article: 
 
(A) "Grievance" shall mean a dispute involving the interpretation or application of the 

specific provisions of this Agreement, except as exclusions are noted in this Agreement, filed on 
the appropriate form as contained in Appendix B of this Agreement. 
. 

(B) "Employee" shall mean a law enforcement employee or a group of law enforcement 
employees having the same grievance. In the case of a group of employees, one shall be 
designated by the group to act as spokesperson and to be responsible for processing the 
grievance. 

(C) "Days" shall mean calendar days, excluding any day observed as a holiday pursuant 
section 110.117, Florida Statutes to the Rules of the State Personnel System. If the due date for a 
grievance response or for a grievance submission to a step or to arbitration falls on a weekend or 
a holiday, the action shall be due the next business day. 

SECTION 2 - Election of Remedy and Representation 

(A) If an employee or the PBA has a grievance which may be processed under this 
Article and which may also be appealed to the Florida Public Employees Relations Commission, 
the employee or the PBA shall elect at the outset which procedure is to be used and such the 
election shall be binding on the employee or the PBA. In the case of any duplicate filing, the 
action first filed will be the one processed. 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 2 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

(B) (A) An employee who decides to use this Grievance Procedure shall indicate at Step 
1 (or the initial written step if authorized by the provisions of this Article) whether or not he shall 
be represented by the PBA. When the employee has elected PBA representation, both the 
employee and the PBA Representative shall be notified of any Step 1 meetings. Further, any 
Wwritten communication concerning the grievance or its resolution shall be sent to both the 
employee and the PBA representative, and any the decision mutually agreed to by the Sstate and 
the PBA shall be binding on the employee. 

(C) (B) If the employee is not represented by the PBA, any adjustment of the grievance 
shall be consistent with the terms of this Collective Bargaining Agreement. The PBA shall be 
given reasonable opportunity to be present at any meeting called for the resolution of such the 
grievance. An employee using this procedure in the processing of a grievance will be bound by 
the procedure established by the Parties to the this Agreement. The PBA shall not be bound by 
the decision of any grievance or arbitration in which the employee was not represented by the 
PBA. 
 
SECTION 3 - Procedures 

(A) Employee grievances filed in accordance with this Article should are to be presented 
and handled promptly at the lowest level of management having the authority to adjust the 
grievances. 

(B) There shall be no reprisals against any of the participants in the procedures contained 
herein by reason of such participation. 

(C) The filing or pendency of any grievance under the provisions of this Article shall in 
no way operate to impede, delay or interfere with the right of the Sstate to take the action 
complained of; subject, however, to the final disposition of the grievance. 

(D) Once After a grievance is presented, no new violation or issue can be raised, unless 
the Parties mutually agree in writing to revise or amend the alleged violations or issues, or upon 
a party’s showing of or for good cause for the consideration of such new issue, but in no event 
less later than seven (7) days prior to any arbitration hearing the filing of a contract language 
grievance at Step 3, or the filing of a disciplinary grievance at Step 2.  When an issue is 
unchanged, but it is determined that an article, section or paragraph of the Agreement has been 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 3 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

cited imprecisely or erroneously by the employee, then the employee shall have the right to 
amend that part of his grievance. 

(E) The resolution of a grievance prior to its submission in writing at Step 2 to 
Arbitration shall not establish a precedent binding on either the PBA or the State in other cases. 

(F) If a grievance meeting is held or requires reasonable travel time during the working 
hours of any required participant, such the participant shall be excused without loss of pay for 
that purpose. Attendance at grievance meetings outside of the regular working hours shall not be 
deemed time worked. All grievance meetings shall be held at times and locations mutually 
agreed to by the parties, except that, unless mutually agreed otherwise, all meetings shall be held 
within fifty (50) miles of the grievant’s place of work. 

(G) Grievances shall be presented and adjusted in the following manner, and no one 
individual may respond to a grievance at more than one written step. 

(H) Grievances and grievance responses may be filed by hand-delivery, mail (including 
e-mail), courier, or electronic facsimile. If sent via electronic facsimile, the burden shall be on 
the sending Party to confirm the correct electronic facsimile number before transmission. 
Documents shall be deemed filed upon receipt during regular business hours (8:00 a.m. to 5:00 
p.m.). Documents received after business hours shall be considered received the next business 
day. 

(1) Step 1. 

(A) An employee having a grievance may within fourteen (14) days following actual 
knowledge of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance submit a grievance at Step 
1. Nothing in this procedure shall preclude an employee from presenting concerns through 
informal discussions with management representative. In filing a grievance at Step 1, the 
employee or his designated representative shall submit to the Step 1 Management Representative 
a grievance form as contained in Appendix B setting forth specifically the known facts on which 
the grievance is based, the specific provision or provisions of the Agreement allegedly violated, 
and the relief requested. In discipline cases, it shall be presumed that the grievance alleges that 
the discipline was without just cause, and requests to be made whole. , as relief, at a minimum, 
reinstatement, full make whole relief. 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 4 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

(B) The Step 1 Management Representative or his designee shall communicate a decision 
in writing to the employee and to the PBA Grievance Representative, if any, within fourteen (14) 
days following receipt of the grievance form. If the Management Representative fails to respond 
within the time limit, it shall be deemed a denial. 

(2) Step 2. 

(A) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the employee or his designated 
representative may submit it to the Agency Head or his designated representative within fourteen 
(14) days after following receipt of the decision at Step 1. 

(B) The Agency Head or his designated representative shall communicate a decision in 
writing to the employee and the PBA Grievance Representative, if any, within fourteen (14) days 
following receipt of the written grievance. If the Agency Head fails to respond within the time 
limits, it shall be deemed a denial.  

(3) Step 3 – Contract Language Disputes  
 

(A) If a grievance concerning the interpretation or application of this Agreement, other 
than a disciplinary grievance alleging only a violation of Article 10, is not resolved at Step 2, the 
employee or PBA Grievance Representative may submit it to the Office Manager for the Office 
of the General Counsel of the Department of Management Services, 4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 
160, Tallahassee, Florida, 32399-0950 within 14 days following receipt of the decision at Step 2. 

 
(B) The Department of Management Services shall meet with the employee and/or the 

PBA Grievance Representative, if any, to discuss the grievance, and shall communicate a 
decision in writing to the PBA within 14 days following receipt of the written grievance.  
 
(4) Grievance Mediation  
 

The parties may, by written agreement, submit a grievance to mediation to be conducted 
by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS after it has been submitted to 
arbitration but before a hearing is scheduled.  Either party may withdraw from the mediation 
process with written notice no later than five (5) days before a scheduled mediation. 
 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 5 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

 
Step 3  (5) Arbitration  
 

(A) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 2, the PBA may appeal the grievance to 
arbitration within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the decision at Step 2. If a contract language 
dispute as described in (3), above, is not resolved at Step 3, the PBA may appeal the grievance to 
arbitration within 14 days following receipt of the decision at Step 3.  If, at the initial written 
step, the PBA declined to represent the employee because he was not a member of the PBA, the 
employee may appeal the grievance to arbitration. The grievance appeal to arbitration shall be 
filed with the Department of Management Services on the form contained in Appendix C and 
shall include a copy of the grievance forms submitted at Steps 1, and 2, and 3 (if applicable) 
together with all written responses and documents in support of the grievance. The Department 
of Management Services may have a meeting with the PBA Staff Representative or his designee 
to discuss the grievance. 

(B) The arbitrator shall be one person from a panel of four (4) arbitrators selected by the 
Parties.  The Department of Management Services shall facilitate the scheduling of all arbitration 
hearings. 

(C) The parties may, by mutual agreement in writing, submit related grievances for 
hearing before the same arbitrator. Arbitration hearings shall be held at times and locations 
mutually agreed to by the parties; however, unless mutually agreed otherwise, all hearings shall 
be held within fifty (50) miles of the grievant(s)’ place of work.  

 
(D) Where there is a threshold issue regarding arbitrability, including timeliness, of a 

grievance raised by either party, an expedited arbitration hearing shall be conducted to address 
only the arbitrability issue.  In such cases, the parties shall choose an arbitrator from the panel of 
arbitrators (see (5)(B) above), who is available to schedule a hearing and render a decision within 
twenty days of an arbitrator being chosen for this limited purpose.  The hearing on this issue 
shall be limited to one day, and the arbitrator shall be required to decide the issue within five (5) 
business days of the hearing.  The hearing shall be conducted by telephone upon the agreement 
of the parties and the arbitrator.  The party losing the arbitrability issue shall pay the fees and 
expenses of the expedited arbitration. If the arbitrator determines that the issue is arbitrable, 
another arbitrator shall be chosen from the parties’ regular arbitration panel in accordance with 
the provisions of (5)(B) of this Article to conduct a hearing on the substantive issue(s). 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 6 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

 
(E) (D) The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the grievance and, 

provided the decision is in accordance with his jurisdiction and authority under this Agreement, 
shall be final and binding on the Sstate, the PBA, the grievant(s), and the employees in the 
bargaining unit. In considering a grievance the arbitrator shall be governed by the following 
provisions and limitations:  

(1) The arbitrator shall issue his a decision not later than fourteen (14) days from 
the date of the closing of the hearing or the submission of briefs, whichever is later. 

(2) The arbitrator’s decision shall be in writing, and shall set forth the arbitrator’s 
opinion and conclusions on the issue(s) submitted. 

(3) The arbitrator shall have no authority to determine any other issue, and shall 
refrain from issuing any statement of opinion or conclusion not essential to the determination of 
the issues submitted.  

(4) The arbitrator shall limit his the decision strictly to the application and 
interpretation of the specific provisions of this Agreement.  

(5) The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make any decisions that 
are: 

(a) Contrary to or inconsistent with, adding to, subtracting from, or 
modifying, altering or ignoring in any way, the terms of this Agreement, or of applicable law or 
rules or regulations having the force and effect of law.  

(b) Limiting or interfering in any way with the power, duties and 
responsibilities of the Sstate under its Constitution, applicable law, and rules and regulations 
having the force and effect of law, except as such powers, duties and responsibilities have been 
abridged, delegated or modified by the express provisions of this Agreement. 

(6) The arbitrator’s award may include back pay, to the Grievant(s); however, the 
following limitations shall apply to such monetary awards: 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 7 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

(a) No award for back pay shall exceed the amount of pay the employee 
would otherwise have earned at his regular rate of pay and such back pay shall not be retroactive 
to a date earlier than the date of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance under 
consideration. 

(b) The award shall not exceed the actual loss to the grievant, will not 
include punitive damages, and will be reduced by the amount of wages earned from other 
sources excluding unemployment compensation received by the employee during the period of 
time affected by the award. 

(c) The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne solely by the 
party who fails to prevail in the hearing; however, each party shall be responsible for 
compensating and paying the expenses of its own representatives, attorneys and witnesses. 
Should the arbitrator fashion an award in such a manner that the grievance is sustained in part 
and denied in part, the Sstate and the PBA will evenly split the arbitrator's fee and expenses. 

(d) The PBA will not be responsible for costs of an arbitration to which it 
was not a Party. 

SECTION 4 - Time Limits 

(A) Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance 
within the specified time limits shall permit the employee, or the PBA, where appropriate, to 
proceed to the next step. The Sstate will make a good faith effort to timely communicate 
decisions at each step.  

(B) The number of days indicated at each step should be considered as a maximum, and 
every effort should be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits specified in any 
step of this procedure may be extended, in any specific instance, by mutual written agreement. 

(C) Claims of either an untimely filing or untimely appeal shall be made at the step in 
question. 

 
 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 8 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

SECTION 5 - Exceptions 

(A) Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to permit 
the PBA or an employee to process a grievance (1) in behalf of any employee without his written 
consent, or (2) with respect to any matter which is the subject of a grievance, an appeal, an 
administrative action before a government board or agency, or a court proceeding, brought by an 
employee or group of employees, or by the PBA. 

(B) All grievances will be presented at the initial step with the following exceptions: 

(1) If a grievance arises from the action of an official higher than the Step 1 
Management Representative, the grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 or 3, as appropriate, by 
submitting a grievance form as set forth in Step 1 within fourteen (14) days following the actual 
knowledge of the occurrence giving rise to the grievance. 

(2) The PBA shall have the right to bring a class action grievance on behalf of 
bargaining Unit employees in its own name, concerning disputes relating to the interpretation or 
application of this Agreement. Such grievance shall not include disciplinary actions taken 
against an employee. The PBA's election to proceed under this Article shall preclude it from 
proceeding in another forum on the same issue. Such grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 or, 
where more than one agency is implicated, Step 3 of this procedure, in accordance with the 
provisions set forth herein, within fourteen (14) days of the knowledge or reasonable knowledge 
of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance. 

 
(3) An employee who has not attained permanent status in his current position 

may only file non-discipline grievances to Step 3. Non-discipline grievances filed by 
probationary employees are final and binding at Step 3 unless the processing of such grievances 
is further limited by specific provisions of this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 6 – Expedited Arbitration 
 

(A) The parties recognize that certain grievances are may be amenable to expedited 
resolution by an arbitrator.  Accordingly at any point in the grievance procedure, the PBA may 
request expedited arbitration of any grievance. Requests for expedited arbitration shall be 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 9 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

granted in cases involving arbitrable disciplinary action less than discharge. In all other cases, 
expedited arbitration will be used in instances of mutual upon agreement of the parties. 

 
(B) Expedited Arbitration Rules: 

(1) When a grievance is to be resolved via expedited arbitration, all remaining 
steps in the grievance procedure are skipped and the grievance is submitted directly to the 
expedited arbitrator.  

(2) The arbitrator is designated by rotation from the list of four (4) permanent 
arbitrators. 

 
(3) Expedited arbitration hearings shall be no longer than four (4) six (6) hours in 

duration, with each party limited to two (2) three (3) hours, with a maximum of two (2) 
witnesses per party, and one (1) rebuttal witness if necessary. There shall be no post-hearing 
briefs, although either party may submit a written statement of position to the arbitrator during 
the hearing. The Arbitrator shall issue a short (no longer than three (3) pages) decision within 
seven (7) days of the hearing. With the exception of the foregoing, all provisions of Ssection 
(3)(J)(5) of this procedure shall be applicable.  

 
 
 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 7 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

Article 7 
INTERNAL INVESTIGATIONS  

 
SECTION 1 - Internal Investigations 

(A) The parties recognize that law enforcement personnel occupy a special place in 
American society. Therefore, it is understood that the Sstate has the right to expect that a 
professional standard of conduct be adhered to by all law enforcement personnel regardless of 
rank or assignment. Since internal investigations may be undertaken to inquire into complaints of 
law enforcement misconduct, the Sstate reserves the right to conduct such investigations to 
uncover the facts in each case, but expressly agrees to carefully guard and protect the rights and 
dignity of accused personnel. In the course of any internal investigation, the investigative 
methods employed will be consistent with the law (including but not limited to Ssection 112.532, 
Florida Statutes) and this agreement; nothing in this agreement, however, shall be deemed to 
diminish the rights of employees under applicable law. 

(B) When an allegation is made against an employee, the Sstate will make every 
reasonable effort to ensure that the allegation and any related statements are reduced to writing, 
under oath, and signed. The written allegation shall be known as a complaint.  

(C) When an employee is to be questioned or interviewed concerning a complaint or 
allegation, the employee will be informed prior to the interview of the nature of the investigation 
and whether he is the subject of the investigation or a witness in an investigation. Employees 
shall be informed of the right to have a union representative in attendance at the interview and 
where requested, an employee shall be given forty-eight (48) hours to contact, consult with and 
secure the attendance of a representative at the interview. If he is the subject of the investigation, 
the employee and his representative will also be informed of each complaint or allegation against 
him and they shall be permitted to review all written statements and recordings made by the 
complainant and witnesses will be made available for review at least one (1) hour prior to the 
commencement of the interview in accordance with Ssection 112, Florida Statutes. In the event 
the written statement or recordings are such that additional review time is warranted, the 
employee may request and be granted additional time unless the request is made for the purposes 
of delay. Pursuant to Ssection 112.533, Florida Statutes, the employee who is the subject of the 
investigation shall not disclose the contents to anyone other than his representative or attorney 
until the investigation is complete. 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 7 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

(D) Interviews and questioning of employees shall be conducted in a professional 
manner. Statements from an employee shall not be taken in a coercive manner.   

(E) The formal interrogation of an law enforcement officer employee shall comply with 
the provisions of Florida Statutes, Ssection 112.532. The employee shall receive a copy of his 
written or recorded statement at no cost to the employee. No recording or transcription of the 
investigative interview will be made without the knowledge of all participants present at the 
interview. 

(F) In cases where the agency determines that the employee's absence from the work 
location is essential to the investigation and the employee cannot be reassigned to other duties 
pending completion of the investigation, the employee shall be placed on administrative leave 
with pay. Such leave shall be in accordance with Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code. 

(G) Unless required by statute, no employee shall be required to submit to a polygraph 
test or any device designed to measure the truthfulness of his responses during an investigation 
of a complaint or allegation. 

(H) Only sustained findings may be inserted in personnel records. Unfounded findings 
shall not be inserted in permanent personnel records or referred to in performance reviews. 

(I) Internal investigations will ordinarily be completed within forty-five (45) days from 
the date the complaint is filed, unless circumstances necessitate a longer period. An investigation 
shall not exceed one hundred and twenty (120) days without the approval of the Agency head or 
designee. Except in the case of a criminal investigation, the employee shall be notified in writing 
of any investigation that exceeds one hundred and twenty (120) days. 

(J) The employee under investigation shall be advised in writing of the results of the 
investigation at its conclusion. 

(K) The Sstate will make a good faith effort to train persons who investigate charges 
against law enforcement employees in the investigative rights reserved for those employees in 
the interest of avoiding infringement of those rights. 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 7 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

(L) In the case of criminal, non-administrative internal investigation into the criminal 
misconduct of a sworn employee, the provisions of (B) through (K) shall not apply. 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 8 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 5 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

Article 8 
WORK FORCE REDUCTION 

 
SECTION 1 - Layoffs 

(A) When bargaining Unit employees are to be laid off, the Sstate shall implement such 
layoff in the following manner: 

(1) For bargaining Unit employees, Tthe competitive area within which layoffs 
will be affected shall be defined as statewide within each agency. 

(2) Layoff shall be by occupational level within the Law Enforcement bargaining 
unit. 

(3) An employee who does not have has not attained permanent status in his 
current position the Career Service System may be laid off without applying the provision for 
retention rights. 

(4) No employee with permanent status in the affected broadband level his current 
position shall be laid off while an employee who does not hold permanent status in his current 
position is serving in that broadband level unless the permanent employee does not elect to 
exercise his retention rights or does not meet the selective competition criteria. 

(5) All employees who have permanent status in the affected broadband level 
their current position shall be ranked on a layoff list based on the total retention points derived as 
follows: 

(a) Length of service retention points shall be based on one point for each 
month of continuous service in a Career Service position. 

(1)  An employee who resigns from one Career Service position to 
accept employment in another Career Service position is not considered to have a break in 
service. 

(2) An employee who has been laid off and is reemployed within 
one year from the date of the layoff, shall not be considered to have a break in service. 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 8 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

(3) Moving from Career Service to Selected Exempt Service or 
Senior Management Service and back to Career Service does not constitute a break in service 
unless the employee’s break in service is more than 31 calendar days.  Only time spent in the 
Career Service can be counted in calculating retention points. 

 
(b) Retention points deducted for performance not meeting performance 

standards or work expectations defined for the position shall be based on the five years 
immediately prior to the agency’s established cutoff date.  Five points shall be deducted for 
each month an employee has a rating below performance expectations. 

 
(6) The layoff list shall be prepared by totaling retention points.  Employees 

eligible for veterans’ preference pursuant to Ssection 295.07(1)(a) or (b), Florida Statutes, shall 
have ten percent added to their total retention points, and those eligible pursuant to Ssection 
295.07(1)(c) or (d), Florida Statutes, shall have five percent added. 

 
(7) The employee with the highest total retention points is placed at the top of the 

list, and the employee with the lowest retention points is placed at the bottom of the list. 
 

(8) The employee at the top of the list shall bump the employee at the bottom of 
the list.  The next highest employee on the list and the remaining employees shall be handled in 
the same manner until the total number of filled positions in the broadband level to be abolished 
is complete. 

 
(9) Should two or more employees have the same combined total of retention 

points, the order of layoff shall be determined by giving preference for retention in the 
following sequence: 

(a) The employee with the longest service in the affected broadband level. 
(b) The employee with the longest continuous service in the Career 

Service. 
(c) The employee who is entitled to veteran’s preference pursuant to 

Ssection 295.07(1), Florida Statutes. 
 

(10)  An employee who has permanent status in his current position  Career 
Service status and who is to be laid off shall be given at least 14 calendar days’ notice of such 
layoff or in lieu thereof, two weeks pay or a combination of days of notice and pay. , in lieu of 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 8 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

the full 14 calendar days notice,  Any payment will be made to be paid at the employee’s 
current hourly base rate of pay.  The notice of layoff shall be in writing and sent to the 
employee by certified mail, return receipt requested.  Within 7 calendar days after receiving the 
notice of layoff, the employee shall have the right to request, in writing, a demotion or 
reassignment within the competitive area in lieu of layoff to a position in a broadband level 
within the bargaining unit which the employee held permanent status, or to a position at the 
level of or below the current level in the bargaining unit, in which the employee held permanent 
status. Such request must be in writing and reassignment or demotion cannot be effected to a 
higher broadband level. 

 
(11) An employee’s request for demotion or reassignment shall be granted unless 

it would cause the layoff of another employee who possesses a greater total of retention points. 
 

(12) An employee who is adversely affected as a result of another employee 
having a greater number of retention points shall have the same right of reassignment or 
demotion under the same procedure as provided in this section. 

 

(13) If an employee requests a demotion or reassignment in lieu of layoff, the 
same formula and criteria for establishing retention points shall be used as prescribed in this 
section. 

 

(B) If there is to be a layoff of employees the Sstate shall take all reasonable steps to 
place any adversely affected employees in existing vacancies for which they are qualified. 

 
(C) If work performed by employees in this unit is to be performed by non-Sstate 

employees, the State agrees to encourage the employing entity to consider any adversely affected 
unit employees for employment in its organization if the Sstate has been unable to place the 
employees in other positions within the Career Service System.  

 
 
 
 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 8 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

 

SECTION 2 - Recall 

(A) For a period of six (6) calendar months following layoff, when a vacancy occurs or a 
new position is established, laid off employees with the highest number of retention points shall 
be notified and permitted the opportunity to apply. 

(B) Any appointment offer by the employing agency shall be subject to agency needs and 
sufficient funds and salary rate for the vacant position. 

(C) Employees who are reemployed after layoff in a position in the broadband level from 
which the employee was laid off shall be reemployed with permanent status. 

 

SECTION 3 - Retirement Benefits 

Pursuant to Ssection 121.021(38), Florida Statutes, an absence from the employer's 
payroll for a period of not to exceed twelve (12) calendar months due to a "layoff" by the State 
shall not constitute a break in the continuous service requirement as provided in Section 121.021, 
Florida Statutes, for special risk members. 
 
SECTION 4 - Job Security 
 

(A) The Sstate shall notify the PBA at least thirty (30) days in advance of a layoff 
involving positions within the bargaining unit. Thirty (30) days prior to the actual layoff 
decision, the State will meet and negotiate with the PBA over the necessity of the layoff, 
alternatives to the proposed layoff and like and related matters. However, these negotiations shall 
not delay the implementation of layoffs after completion of the thirty (30) days bargaining 
period. The union PBA will not pursue statutory impasse resolution procedures after the 
satisfaction of this bargaining obligation.  

 
(B) At least thirty (30) days prior to aeffecting a planned organizational change which 

will result in the movement of positions out of the bargaining unit, or in the demotion of Unit 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 8 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

employees, the agency will notify the Department of Management Services of the changes. If the 
Department of Management Services determines that bargaining Unit employees are impacted 
by the changes, under Chapter 447, Florida Statutes, it will notify the PBA of the changes 
pursuant to Chapter 447, Florida Statutes. 
 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 9 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

Article 9 
REASSIGNMENT, TRANSFER, CHANGE IN DUTY STATION, AND PROMOTION 

 
Employees who are have attained permanent status in the Career Service their current 

position shall have the opportunity to request and be selected for vacant positions in their current 
class within the respective agency in accordance with the provisions of this Article. 
 
SECTION 1 – Definitions 
 
 As used in this Article: 

(A) "Change in Duty Station" shall mean the moving of an employee to a duty station 
located within fifty (50) miles, by highway, of his current duty station. 

(B) "Duty station" shall mean the place which is designated as an employee's official 
headquarters. 

(C) Broadband Level shall mean all positions sufficiently similar in knowledge, skills, 
and abilities, and sufficiently similar as to kind or subject matter of work, level of difficulty or 
responsibilities, and qualification requirements of the work, to warrant the same treatment as to 
title, pay band, and other personnel transactions "Occupational level" shall mean the same level 
within the employee’s current occupation within the State classification system. 

 (D) Reassignment shall mean the moving of an employee from a position in one 
broadband class/occupational level to a different position in the same broadband 
class/occupational level or to a different broadband level having the same maximum salary 
essential knowledge, skills & abilities, regardless of the location of the position. 
 
 (E) Transfer shall mean the moving of an employee from one geographic area of the 
Sstate to a different geographic location which is in excess of fifty (50) miles, by highway, from 
the employee's current duty station. 
 
 
 
 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 9 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 2 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

(F) Promotion shall mean changing the classification of an employee to a broadband level 
having a higher maximum salary; or the changing of the classification of an employee to a 
broadband level having the same or a lower maximum salary but a higher level of responsibility 
shall mean the moving of an employee from a position in one occupational level to a different 
position in another occupational level having a higher maximum salary, provided the position in 
the higher occupational level is in the bargaining Unit. 

(G) Demotion shall mean changing the classification of an employee to a broadband level 
having a lower maximum salary; or the changing of the classification of an employee to a 
broadband level having the same or a higher maximum salary but a lower level of responsibility 
shall mean the moving of an employee from a position in one occupational level to a different 
position in another class/occupational level having a lower maximum salary. 

SECTION 2 – Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station 

(A) An employee who is has attained permanent status in the Career Service System his 
current position may apply for a reassignment on a Request for Reassignment Form (supplied by 
the agency). Such Requests shall indicate the county(ies) and/or shift(s) to which the employee 
would like to be reassigned. When the employee requests reassignment, a State of Florida 
Employment Application Form must be completed and sent with the Request for Reassignment 
Form. 

 (B) An employee may submit a Request for Reassignment Form at any time; however, 
all such Requests shall expire on June 30 of each calendar year. Requests for reassignment for 
the next fiscal year may be filed on June 1 of the preceding fiscal year. 

(C) All Request for Reassignment Forms shall be submitted to the Aagency Hhead or his 
designee who shall be responsible for furnishing a copy of each such Request to the management 
representatives who have the authority to make employee hiring decisions in the county to which 
the employee has requested reassignment. The employee shall provide a copy of the Request to 
the PBA at the time it is filed with the agency. 

 (D) Except where a vacancy is filled by demotion, or where reassignment is not in the 
best interests of the agency, the management representative having hiring authority for that 
vacancy shall give first consideration to those employees who have submitted a Request for 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 9 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 3 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

Reassignment Form; provided, however, that employees whose Request for Reassignment is not 
submitted by the first day of the month shall not be considered for vacancies which occur during 
that month. 

(E) Provided the reassignment is in the best interest of the agency, the hiring authority 
shall normally fill a permanent vacancy with the employee who has the greatest length of service 
in the broadband occupational level and who has a Request for Reassignment Form on file for 
the county in which the vacancy exists. The Parties agree, however, that other factors, such as 
employees' work history and agency needs, may be taken into consideration in making the 
decision as to whether or not the employee with the greatest length of service in the broadband 
occupational level will be placed in the vacant position.  

(F) If the employee with the greatest length of service in the broadband occupational 
level is not selected for the vacant position, the Agency shall notify the employee selected with 
reasons for the selection. Employees with greater length in service will be allowed to obtain a 
copy of the notice. 

(G) When an employee has been reassigned pursuant to a Request filed under this 
Article, all other pending Requests shall be canceled. No other Request may be filed under this 
Article for a period of twelve (12) months following the employee's reassignment. If an 
employee declines an offer of reassignment pursuant to a Request filed under this Article, the 
employee will not be eligible for consideration for reassignment to the county(ies) and/or shift(s) 
declined, for a period of twelve (12) months. 

(H) An employee shall not be required to change residence for the sole purpose of living 
within a specific county; however, an employee may be required to reside within a reasonable 
distance of a specific duty station. 

(I) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent an agency, at its 
discretion, from affecting the involuntary reassignment, transfer or change in duty station of any 
employee according to the needs of the agency. However, it is understood that the agency will 
make an effort not to affect any involuntary reassignment, transfer or change in duty station 
which will impose a residency hardship on the employee (in that he must relocate his residence 
from a permanent home presently owned or cancel a rental lease extending more than three (3) 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 9 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 4 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

months), without first considering any Request for Reassignment Forms on file for the county in 
which the agency need exists. 

(J) An employee shall be given a minimum of fourteen (14) calendar days’ notice prior to 
the agency affecting any shift change or reassignment and thirty (30)  calendar days' notice prior 
to the agency affecting any transfer.  

(K) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent the Sstate from 
making reassignments, shift changes, transfers, or changes in duty stations of any employee 
during an emergency or as otherwise required to meet urgent law enforcement needs of the 
Sstate. 

 

SECTION 3 - Relocation Allowance 

An employee who is reassigned or promoted and who is required by agency policy to 
relocate his residence shall be granted time off with pay for one (1) work day leave for purposes 
of relocating his residence. In addition, the employee shall be granted travel time to the new 
location based on the most direct route. No employee will be credited with more than the number 
of hours in the employee's regular workday and such time shall not be counted as hours worked 
for the purpose of computing compensatory time or overtime. 
 
SECTION 4 - Request to Take Promotional Test 

The Sstate and the PBA agree that promotions should be made based on the relative merit 
and fitness of applicants. Toward the goal of selecting the most qualified applicant for each 
promotional vacancy, the parties agree that the provisions of this Article along with all 
provisions of the Rules of the State Personnel System will be followed when making such 
appointments. 

(A) If an agency has established a promotional test, an employee who is has attained 
permanent status in the Career Service System his current position may apply to take a the 
promotional test by submitting a Request to Take Test Form to the agency in which the 
promotional position is located that he wishes to be considered for promotional vacancies. Such 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 9 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 5 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

request shall indicate the occupational level(s) to which the employee would like to be promoted. 
If the request is for promotion to a position in the same agency, the employee's eligibility for the 
occupational level shall be made from information in the employee's personnel file. If the request 
is for a promotion to a position in any agency other than the agency in which the employee is 
currently employed, a State of Florida Employment Application Form must be completed and 
sent with the employee's request for promotional consideration. In such cases, the employee's 
eligibility shall be determined by the agency by the use of this completed application. Each 
applicant will be notified of his eligibility or ineligibility for the broadband occupational level(s) 
applied for. 

(B) An employee may submit a request to take a promotional test where established by an 
agency at any time; however, all such requests must be filed every two (2) years and must be 
received in the agency personnel office by no later than the first business day after January 15 of 
each calendar year and shall remain effective until revoked by the employee. 

(C) If an agency has established a promotional test, by January 15 of each calendar year, 
the central personnel office of each agency shall provide a "NOTICE OF PROMOTIONAL 
TEST" containing the following information: 

(1) The date(s) of the test(s), 

(2) The city(ies) where the test(s) will be administered, 

(3) The major categories to be covered by each test, 

(4) A bibliography of the sources from which test questions have been 
taken; e.g., name of textbooks, departmental policies, general orders, special 
orders, etc. 

(5) The passing grade that must be attained, expressed as a percent (%) of 
correct answers to the total number of questions graded. 

(D) By February 15 of each calendar year, each agency shall furnish to those eligible 
employees whose test requests are on file in that agency, a copy of the "NOTICE OF 
PROMOTIONAL TEST".  The respective agency shall be responsible for the administration of 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 9 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 6 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

the written test no earlier than April 15 of each calendar year and only those employees whose 
names are furnished to the agency will be eligible to take the promotional test. 

(E) Each agency that has established a promotional test and administers a written test 
shall be responsible for notifying each employee who takes a promotional test of the test results. 

(F) When extraordinary circumstances make it necessary to give a promotional test at a 
time other than as set forth above, the employees will be given adequate notice to prepare for 
such special test. 

 
SECTION 5 - Test Standards and Criteria  

(A) The respective State agency shall be responsible for the development of all written 
promotional tests which shall be based upon a job task analysis of the occupational broadband 
level of positions being tested and an assessment of the knowledge, skills and abilities necessary 
to perform the requirements of positions in the occupational level. 

(B) Only persons who have been certified as a law enforcement officer pursuant to 
Chapter 943, Florida Statutes, shall be eligible for agency promotional tests. 

(C) A one-hour test review will be held at the conclusion of each test session. All 
challenges to test items must be submitted in writing and received by the respective State agency 
within five (5) days after the date of the test. 

SECTION 6 - Promotional Lists  

(A) If the agency does not elect to rank employees solely on the basis of a written test, 
the agency shall establish a promotional list which ranks the employees according to their 
relative merit and fitness for promotional vacancies in the Law Enforcement Occupation, 
occupation code 33-3051 occupational level. In addition to the written test score, the agency 
may, at its discretion, utilize the employee's performance reviews and/or oral interviews in 
establishing the agency’s final promotional list. When performance reviews and/or oral 
interviews are used, in addition to written test scores the agency shall advise PBA in writing as to 
the weight the agency proposes to accord to each criteria in establishing the agency promotional 
list. The PBA may upon request discuss the criteria and weight to be accorded in addition to 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 9 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 7 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

written test scores. If an agency utilizes oral interviews, it will establish a three member panel, 
one to be selected by the Aagency Hhead or his designee, one by mutual agreement of the 
parties, and the third to be selected by the PBA, provided that no member of the panel may be an 
employee covered by this Agreement. Questions asked at an oral interview will be limited to 
those that are clearly job related and the same questions shall be asked of all applicants. 

(B) The agency promotional list shall be effective July 1st of each calendar year. Names 
shall be retained on the agency's promotional list for a period of one year. Time extensions of 
said list may be made only by the mutual consent of the parties. When a list is established as a 
result of a special test being given pursuant to Section 4(F) 2(D) above, it shall remain in force 
through June 30 of the calendar year. 

(C) The agency's promotional list, consisting of the name, final score and position on the 
appropriate list, shall be furnished to each employee who passed the written test. 

 
SECTION 7 - Method of Filling Vacancies  

(A) Except where a vacancy is filled by demoting a law enforcement employee or by 
reassignment, any person who is to be selected for a vacancy must first have his name placed on 
the agency's promotional list in accordance with the criteria set forth in this Article. Upon the 
employee receiving his copy of the agency promotional list, the employee who wishes to be 
considered for promotional opportunities shall file with the agency a Request for Promotion 
Form which shall indicate the occupational broadband level(s) and the county(ies) to which the 
employee would like to be promoted. The vacancy shall be filled from among the persons having 
the highest five numerical scores contained on the promotional list who have applied for the 
vacancy. However, an agency shall have the discretion to fill a vacancy from only the highest 
five numerical scores of current agency or bargaining Unit employees contained on the agency's 
promotional list. Agencies shall attempt to fill vacancies in an expeditious manner when 
operationally feasible. 

(B) In filling vacancies, the agency will first consider any pending Request for 
Reassignment forms on file for the work area in which the agency need exists. Nothing contained 
in this agreement shall be construed to prevent an agency from filling a vacancy in a manner 
meeting the agency’s needs. 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 9 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 8 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

SECTION 8 – Grievability  

The initiation of a grievance claiming a residency hardship shall stay any required change 
in residence until final disposition of the grievance. In considering such a grievance weight shall 
be given to the needs of the agency against the hardship on the employee. 
 
SECTION 9 – Promotions Outside the Unit 
 

The State shall make a good faith effort to fill vacant positions in the rank immediately 
above the bargaining unit with employees of the bargaining unit. This provision is not subject to 
the Article 6 grievance procedure. 
 
SECTION 10 – Probationary Status on Promotion 

An employee who has obtained permanent status in a position in a broadband level who 
fails, due to the performance of the new duties, to satisfactorily complete the probationary period 
in the promotional broadband level shall be demoted to the former broadband level previously 
held by the employee in an available vacant position in the employing agency or may, at the 
discretion of the agency in which the employee was previously employed when the employee 
successfully completed probation, be demoted to an available vacant position. 

(A) Such a demotion shall be with permanent status, provided the employee held 
permanent status in the lower broadband level. 
 

(A) An employee appointed to a position must successfully complete at least a one-
year probationary period and shall attain permanent status in that position upon successful 
completion of the designated probationary period.   

 
(B) An employee serving a probationary period in a position to which he has received 

an internal agency promotion may be removed from that promotional position at any time during 
the probationary period.  If his former position, or a comparable position, is vacant, the employee 
is to be placed in that position.  If such a position is not available, before dismissal, the agency 
shall make a reasonable effort to retain the employee in another vacant position.  This process 
does not apply to terminations for cause nor does it create a right to bump an employee from an 
occupied position. 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 9 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 9 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

 
(1) If the employee is demoted into their former position or a comparable 

position, such demotion shall be with permanent status, provided the employee held permanent 
status in the agency in the lower position. 

 
(2) (B) The employee’s salary will be reduced in accordance with the agency’s 

pay upon demotion policy. 
 
(3) (C) Such demotion shall not be grievable under the contractual grievance 

procedure. 
 
 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 10 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

Article 10 
DISCIPLINARY ACTION 

 
(A) An employee who has attained permanent status in his current position the Career 

Service System may be disciplined only for just cause. 

(B) An employee who has not attained permanent status in his current position the Career 
Service System shall not have access to the grievance procedure in Article 6 when dismissed. 

(C) Each employee shall be furnished a copy of all disciplinary actions placed in his 
official personnel file and shall be permitted to respond thereto. 

(D) An employee may request that a PBA Staff Representative be present during any 
disciplinary investigation meeting in which the employee is being questioned relative to alleged 
misconduct of the employee, or during a predetermination conference in which suspension or 
dismissal of the employee is being considered. 

(E) Letters of counseling are not disciplinary action and not grievable; documentation or 
discipline less severe than an oral reprimand shall not be used against any employee in any 
fashion.  Letters of counseling or counseling notices are documentation of minor work 
deficiencies or conduct concerns that are not discipline, and are not grievable; however such 
documentation may be used by the state at an administrative hearing involving an employee’s 
discipline to demonstrate the employee was on notice of the performance deficiencies or conduct 
concerns. 
 

(F) Suspensions, Dismissal, Reductions in Pay, and Demotions resulting in a loss of pay 
may be challenged under Article 6 through arbitration. Oral reprimands, written reprimands or 
other disciplinary actions not resulting in monetary loss are grievable to Step 2 only and not 
arbitrable. At arbitration over a suspension, dismissal, reduction in pay, or demotion with a 
monetary loss an employee may challenge any basis relied upon by the Agency for taking the 
disciplinary action.  The agency may have special compensatory leave equal to the length of a 
disciplinary suspension deducted from an employee’s leave balance in lieu of serving the 
suspension.  In making such determination, the agency shall take into consideration the 
preference of the employee as to serving the suspension or having leave deducted.  If the 
employee does not have sufficient special compensatory leave, annual leave may be deducted.  If 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 10 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

there is not sufficient special compensatory or annual leave, the remainder of the period will be 
leave without pay. Employees from whom leave is deducted will continue to report for duty.  
The employee’s personnel file will reflect a disciplinary suspension regardless of whether the 
employee serves the suspension or has leave deducted. 
 

(G) If filed within 21 calendar days following the date of receipt of notice from the 
agency, by personal delivery or by certified mail, return receipt requested, an employee with 
permanent status in his current position may appeal a reduction in base pay, involuntary transfer 
of over 50 miles by highway, suspension, demotion, or dismissal to the Public Employees 
Relations Commission under the provisions of section 110.227(5) and (6), Florida Statutes.  Such 
appeal process is the exclusive remedy for review of such actions; they are not subject to the 
Article 6 grievance procedure. 

 
(H) A written reprimand shall be subject to the grievance procedure in Article 6 if a 

grievance is filed by an employee with permanent status in his current position; the decision is 
final and binding at Step 2. 

 

 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 14 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

Article 14 
PERFORMANCE REVIEW 

 
SECTION 1 - Performance Reviews  
 

(A) Performance reviews of employees shall be conducted in accordance with Rule 60L-
35, Florida Administrative Code, Performance Evaluation System. 

(B) Employees' performance shall be reviewed by their immediate supervisors or 
designated raters, who shall submit the proposed performance review to higher management for 
approval.  

(C) Numerical arrest, citation or violation quotas will not be used as the primary factor in 
reviewing employees' performance. 

(D) The Sstate will continue to maintain and will make a good faith effort to train 
supervisors in performance review techniques. 

(E) The parties agree that the performance review evaluations of an employee shall are 
not be grievable subject to under Article 6 of this Agreement; however a performance evaluation 
may be considered in the review of an appeal of a suspension or dismissal under the provisions 
of Article 10(G).  the Grievance Procedure of Article 6 of this Agreement unless the performance 
review is relied upon in whole or in part as the basis for a disciplinary action under Article 10. 

SECTION 2 - Agency Performance Reviews  

The State agrees that each Agency's performance review system for bargaining Unit 
employees shall adhere to the following standards. 

(A) Performance reviews shall be based on an employee's actual job performance and 
shall not conform to preconceived percentage distributions. When a numerical scoring formula is 
to be utilized by any agency, the evaluation form shall contain the formula with blanks for 
insertion of the actual scores that will be used in reaching the overall evaluation. 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 14 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

(B) Whenever practicable, an employee's performance shall be reviewed by a sworn law 
enforcement officer. 
 
SECTION 3 - Recruit Evaluation 
 

Bargaining Unit Eemployees shall receive an evaluation from the academy upon 
completion of recruit school. A copy of the evaluation shall be forwarded to their Law 
Enforcement Unit supervisor. 
 
 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 15 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

Article 15 
SENIORITY 

 
SECTION 1 – Definition 

For the purpose of this Agreement, "seniority" shall be defined as continuous service in 
the job classification; positions covered by this bargaining unit provided, however, that an 
employee shall be considered to have a break in service when the employee separates, and is not 
on any State Personnel System payroll for at least thirty-one (31) calendar days following the 
separation. 

SECTION 2 - Seniority Application 

Except under extraordinary circumstances, vacations, shifts, shift transfers and regular 
days off shall be scheduled with due regard for the needs of the agency, seniority, and bargaining 
Unit employee preference. The Sstate and the PBA understand that there may be times when the 
needs of the agency will not permit such scheduling.  
 
SECTION 3 - Vacation and Holiday Leave 
 

Where practicable, requests for leave of forty (40) contiguous hours or more, or for 
holidays requested, shall be requested at least sixty (60) days in advance of such leave in order 
that the provisions of this Article may be fully implemented; however, in implementing this 
provision nothing shall preclude an agency from making reasonable accommodations for 
extraordinary leave requests or ensuring the fair distribution of leave during favored holidays. 
 
 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 16 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

Article 16 
EMPLOYMENT OUTSIDE STATE GOVERNMENT 

 
For purposes of this Article, the following definitions are used: 

(A) "Hireback": Off duty police employment administered by the Sstate. 

(B) "Off-Duty Employment": Any secondary employment undertaken while in an off-
duty status which does not entail the use or implied use of policy authority. Work of this type 
provides no real or potential law enforcement services, and vested policy powers are not a 
condition of employment. 

(C) "Off-Duty Police Employment": Secondary employment undertaken while in order 
than a duty status which entails actual or potential use of policy authority and requires police 
powers as a condition of employment. 
 
SECTION 1 - Outside Employment - Non-Police Employment 

(A) On the effective date of this Agreement, any bargaining Unit employee who is 
performing non-police employment outside of Sstate government, which employment has not 
been previously approved, shall be subject to the provisions of Section 1(B) of this Article. 

(B) If, during the term of this Agreement, an employee is to accept new non-police 
employment outside of Sstate government, the employee shall notify his Aagency Hhead, or his 
designee, of such employment, prior to date of employment, and verify that such non-police 
employment does not conflict with the employee's Sstate employment, or with the employing 
agency's policies or procedures limiting such outside employment. Should such conflict(s) be 
found to exist, outside employment shall be disapproved.  Absent extenuating circumstances, a 
disapproval of a notice or request for outside non-police employment will be communicated to 
the employee within fourteen (14) calendar days of the notice or request. If extenuating 
circumstances prevent a determination as to the appropriateness of the non-police employment, 
the reasons for the delay will be provided to the employee in writing. In any event Wwhenever 
the Sstate determines that any outside employment conflicts with the employee’s responsibilities 
connected with his state employment, the outside employment may be disapproved and 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 16 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

prohibited. Disapprovals of outside employment shall be subject to the contract’s expedited 
arbitration procedure. 

(C) During the course of the employee's outside employment, an agency may make 
reasonable inquiries of the employee to ensure that the employee's continued outside 
employment does not constitute a conflict of interest, or interfere with the employee's primary 
duties as a Sstate law enforcement officer. 

SECTION 2 - Outside Employment - Police Employment 

(A) Any bargaining Unit employee who wishes to perform police employment outside of 
Sstate government shall secure the required approval in advance in accordance with the agency’s 
policies and procedures the Rules of the State Personnel System, agency policies and procedures 
and applicable law.  It is understood that Ppermission shall not be withheld as long as such 
outside employment does not conflict with the employee's Sstate employment or with the 
employing agency's policies and procedures limiting such outside employment.   

(B) Requests for approval of outside employment shall be acted upon in a timely manner.  
Within 60 days of ratification of the contract the parties will initiate consultations on the amount 
of off-duty hours to be allowed.  Absent extenuating circumstances, a disapproval of outside 
employment will be communicated within fourteen (14) calendar days of the submission of the 
notice by the employee.  In the event extenuating circumstances prevent a determination with 
fourteen (14) calendar days, the reasons for the delay will be provided in writing to the 
employee.  In any event Aa request can be denied or an approval can be revoked whenever the 
outside employment State determines that a conflicts exists between with the employee’s state 
employment or the agency’s policies and procedures and the outside employment.  Disapprovals 
of a request for outside employment shall be subject to the contract’s expedited arbitration 
procedure.  Disapprovals of a request for outside employment shall be grievable up through Step 
2. 

(C) During the course of the employee's outside employment, an agency may make 
reasonable inquiries of the employee to ensure that the employee's continued outside 
employment does not constitute a conflict of interest, or interfere with the employee's primary 
duties as a Sstate law enforcement officer.  



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 16 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

(D) Each employee will be permitted to wear his uniform and personal equipment and 
use his patrol car or vessel during approved off-duty police employment. Any employee who 
desires to seek such outside employment during his off-duty hours or leave time will seek 
permission from his agency whose decision will be in accordance with the policy established by 
the agency on such matters. Approval for such outside employment will be granted so long as it: 

(1) Does not constitute a conflict of interest; 

(2) Does not interfere with the employee's primary duties as a Sstate law 
enforcement officer; and 

(3) Within the duties and responsibilities the employee performs or may 
reasonably be expected to perform as a part of his job duties and responsibilities. 

(E) When required by the Sstate, bargaining Unit employees who are utilizing Sstate 
equipment while performing police employment outside of Sstate employment shall be 
responsible for all insurance relative to such outside employment, including workers' 
compensation, liability and vehicle insurance, unless the employees are engaged in activity as 
provided in Ssection 440.091, Florida Statutes. 

SECTION 3- Reimbursement of Costs 

Use of a Sstate vessel or vehicle in off-duty police employment shall be paid for by the 
employee pursuant to the agency's current rate schedule or the agency's estimated cost of 
operating the vessel or vehicle, including all mileage on the vehicle at the mileage rate 
established in Ssection 112.061, Florida Statutes. 
 
 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 18 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 6 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

Article 18 
HOURS OF WORK, LEAVE AND JOB-CONNECTED DISABILITY 

 
The Parties specifically agree that the attendance and leave provisions as contained in 

Chapter Rule 60L-34, of the Florida Administrative Code, including the accrual, usage and 
payment of sick and annual leave upon separation from Career Service employment, shall apply 
to all Bargaining Unit employees.  The Sstate shall not compel an employee to involuntarily use 
annual leave in circumstances where the employee is ill or otherwise qualified for sick leave.  
This provision shall not apply in instances of qualified family medical leave.   
 
SECTION 1 – Workday, Work Period 
 

(A)  Agencies shall not require an employee to split a workday into two or more 
segments without the mutual agreement of the employee and the employer. 
 

(B)  Where an employee works hours in excess of their regular schedule the State has the 
ability to adjust the employees schedule as long as it occurs within the same work period and 
provided the employee receives notice of the adjustment prior to the commencement of the 
employee’s adjusted shift for a 40-hour work period, or 24 hours notice for a 80-hour work 
period or 36 hours notice for a 160-hour work period.  The State will make a good faith effort to 
offset such extra hours in eight (8) hour increments. 
 

(C)  The work period for employees shall be 40 hours or an agency established extended 
work period. 
 
SECTION 2 – Non-Required Work Time 
 

Law Enforcement Bargaining Unit Eemployees shall not be required to volunteer time to 
the State.  If records of voluntary time are kept by the Sstate or its agencies, they shall not be 
used to adversely affect performance reviews or promotions. 
 
SECTION 3 – Work Schedule 
 

(A)  Where an employee has an established schedule, a change in workdays or shifts will 
be posted no less than fourteen (14) calendar days in advance and will reflect at least a two (2) 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 18 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 2 of 6 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

workweek schedule; however, the Sstate will make a good faith effort to reflect a one (1) month 
schedule. 
 

(B)  In the event of a declared emergency, the notice requirement of this Section may be 
voided by the state.  
 

(C)  The state will continue to observe the scheduling structures currently in place at each 
agency and agrees to bargain any change in the overall practice of how schedules are established. 
 
SECTION 4 – Overtime 
 

(A)  The normal workweek for each full-time employee shall be forty (40) hours. 
 

(B)  Work beyond the normal workweek or approved extended period shall be recognized 
in accordance with Chapter Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code; provided, however, that 
when an emergency is declared by the Governor and funds are available, employees who are 
assigned to the emergency area described in the Governor’s Executive Order shall be subject to a 
forty (40) hour workweek while so assigned.  The Sstate and the PBA will cooperate to secure 
funds for the payment of overtime to Unit employees in the situation described herein.  The 
Sstate shall make a reasonable effort to equalize distribution of overtime opportunities. 
 

(C) The PBA agrees to support those changes in Chapter Rule 60L-34, Florida 
Administrative Code that may be required in order for the Sstate to be in compliance with the 
Fair Labor Standards Act as it is applied to public employees, which the State agrees to comply 
with. 
 
SECTION 5 – FLSA Special Compensatory Leave 
 

(A) If an agency has a plan approved in advance by the Department of Management 
Services, FLSA special compensatory leave credits shall be granted, administered and used as 
described below: 
 

(B) An employee who is filling an included position may, at the end of the approved 
extended period, waive payment for overtime and have the overtime hours credited to “FLSA 
special compensatory leave.”  If such election is made, the overtime hours will be credited as 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 18 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

“FLSA special compensatory leave” credits at the rate of one and one-half (1-1/2) hours for each 
hour of overtime worked.  An employee will only be permitted to accumulate a maximum of one 
hundred (100) hours of “FLSA special compensatory leave” credits which may be taken in any 
increments at the employee’s discretion provided the FLSA compensatory leave is taken by June 
30 or December 31 of each year.  The employee’s request to utilize FLSA compensatory leave 
shall be granted so long as granting the request would not result in “undue disruption.”  If the 
FLSA compensatory leave is not utilized by the employee by June 30 or December 31 of each 
year, all unused “FLSA special compensatory leave” credits at the close of business on 
December 31 and June 30 shall be paid for at the employee’s straight time regular hourly rate in 
accordance with Chapter Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code, as amended.  An employee 
who separates from the Career Service or moves to another state agency shall be paid for all 
unused “FLSA special compensatory leave” in accordance with the above. 
 

(C) The parties agree that all law enforcement recruits shall be treated in the manner 
described below with regard to FLSA compensatory leave: 
 

(1) Law enforcement recruits undergoing training to attain Law Enforcement 
Certification, or agency-specific orientation, will be exempt from the 100 hour cap on the 
earning of FLSA compensatory leave credits and mandatory June 30 and December 31 payment 
requirements during the time they attend an academy or education institution.  

 
(2) Recruits may request up to 120 hours of FLSA leave upon graduation 

from the academy or educational institution for the purpose of relocating to their new 
assignment.  Such leave must be authorized by the recruit’s agency.  Recruits must use the 
accrued FLSA compensatory leave credits before using regular annual leave. 
 

(3) Any remaining FLSA compensatory leave credits shall be used within the 
next six-month cycle, or paid for at the end of that cycle, as presently provided for in Chapter 
Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code, and Article 18, Section 6(A) of the Agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 18 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

SECTION 6 – Special Compensatory Leave 
 

(A)  An employee shall be eligible to earn special compensatory leave credits as a result 
of hours worked on a holiday; extra hours worked during an established work period which 
contains a holiday or when a facility is closed under Executive Order during emergency 
conditions.  When an employee is required to work in circumstances as set forth in this 
paragraph, any special compensatory leave earned at the end of the workweek, work period, or 
extended work period, shall be taken with the mutual agreement of the employee and the 
supervisor provided the special compensatory leave is taken within sixty (60) calendar days of 
the holiday or last date the facility remained closed under Executive Order.  Thereafter, the 
special compensatory leave will be scheduled at the discretion of the supervisor.  The State shall 
not offset special compensatory leave earned during a work period due to a holiday with 
approved sick leave used during the same work period or administrative leave used in the work 
period for negotiations pursuant to Article 5.   
 

(B)  Florida Highway Patrol bargaining unit Employees may, at their option, use special 
compensatory leave before using accrued annual leave credits.  Employees will only be 
permitted to accumulate a maximum of two hundred and forty (240) hours of special 
compensatory leave credits.  

(A)  Earning of Special Compensatory Leave Credits.  Special compensatory leave 
credits may be earned only in the following instances: 
  (1) By an employee in the career service for work performed on a holiday as 
defined in section 110.117, Florida Statutes, or for work performed during a work period that 
includes a holiday, as provided by the Rules of the State Personnel System. 
  (2) By an employee in the career service for work performed in the 
employee’s assigned office, facility, or region which is closed pursuant to an Executive Order of 
the Governor or any other disaster or emergency condition. 

(B) Special Compensatory Leave Earned Prior to July 1, 2013 
(1) Despite the fact that previous collective bargaining agreements only 

permitted employees to accumulate a maximum of 240 hours of special compensatory leave 
credits, certain employees may have earned hours prior to July 1, 2013 in excess of that 
amount.   Nothing in this agreement is intended to address the validity or invalidity of special 
compensatory leave credits above 240 hours earned prior to July 1, 2013. 

(2) An employee may be required to reduce special compensatory leave credit 
balances. 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 18 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 5 of 6 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

(C)  Special Compensatory Leave Earned On or After July 1, 2013 
  (1) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection 
(A)(1), on or after July 1, 2013, which are not used each year by the April 30 or October 31 that 
immediately succeeds the work period in which the leave is credited, whichever date occurs 
earlier, shall be forfeited. 
  (2) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection 
(A)(2), on or after July 1, 2013, which are not used within 120 calendar days from the end of the 
work period in which the leave is credited shall be forfeited. 
  (3) Each agency shall schedule employees earning special compensatory leave 
credits in a manner that allows all such leave credits earned on or after July 1, 2013, to be used 
within the time limits specified in subsections 1 and 2.  However, if scheduling such leave within 
such time limits would prevent the agency from meeting minimum staffing requirements needed 
to ensure public safety, the agency head may extend the time limits specified in subsections 1 
and 2 for up to an additional 180 calendar days.  Extensions will not be allowed for any other 
reason.  
  (4) No agency may make a payout of unused special compensatory leave 
credits earned on or after July 1, 2013. 

(D) Unless otherwise prohibited by law or rule, all requests for use of approved leave, 
other than administrative leave, shall first be charged to any special compensatory leave credits 
the employee has accrued. 
 
SECTION 7 – Sick Leave Pool and Sick Leave Transfer 
 

Each agency shall set up and administer a sick leave pool and sick leave transfer plan for 
the Law Enforcement Bargaining Unit employees if there is sufficient employee participation to 
render the pool and sick leave transfer plan administratively feasible.  Employees shall be subject 
to the conditions, and have full access to the benefits, of the employing agency’s existing sick 
leave pool and sick leave transfer plan. 
 
SECTION 8 – Section 440.15(112), Florida Statutes – Full-Pay Status 
 

(A)  An employee who sustains a job-connected disability and meets the eligibility 
requirements, as provided for in Ssection 440.15(112), Florida Statutes, may be carried in full-
pay status. 
 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 18 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 6 of 6 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

(B)  Any claim by an employee or the PBA concerning this Section shall not be subject to 
the Grievance Procedure of this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 9 – Chapter Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code- Disability Leave With 
Pay 
 

An employee who sustains a job-connected disability which is not covered by Section 8 
above, is eligible for disability leave with pay under the provisions of Chapter Rule 60L-34, 
Florida Administrative Code.  The Agency Head or his designee shall not unreasonably refuse to 
submit a request to carry an employee in full-pay status under the provisions of Chapter Rule 
60L-34, Florida Administrative Code, provided, however, the Secretary of the Department of 
Management Services or his designee shall have the right to determine whether or not an 
employee should be carried in full-pay status for more than twenty-six (26) weeks.  An employee 
shall not be required to use accrued compensatory or annual leave in order to be eligible to be 
carried in full-pay status under Chapter Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code.  However, no 
employee shall be carried in full-pay status until he has utilized 100 hours of accumulated sick 
leave, annual leave, compensatory leave or leave without pay. 
 
SECTION 10 – Alternate Duty 
 

(A)  Where an employee is eligible for disability leave with pay under Rules of the State 
Personnel System as a result of an injury in the line of duty, and is temporarily unable to perform 
his normal work duties, the Agency Head or his designee shall give due consideration to any 
request by the employee to be temporarily assigned substitute duties within the employee’s 
medical restrictions.  This shall have no effect on the agency’s ability to make a different 
assignment based upon current medical opinion. 
 

(B)  A complaint concerning this Section may be grieved in accordance with Article 6 of 
this Agreement up to and including Step 2.  The decision of the Agency Head or designee 
Department of Management Services shall be final and binding on all parties. 
 
 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 21 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

Article 21 
ACTING RANKS  

 
COMPENSATION FOR TEMPORARY SPECIAL DUTY IN HIGHER 

LEVEL POSITION 
 
 

SECTION 1 – Eligibility 
 

Each time an employee is officially designated in writing by the appropriate employee’s 
immediate supervisor to act in an established position in a higher broadband level than the 
employee's permanent current broadband level, and actually performs said a major portion of the 
duties of the higher level position, irrespective of whether the higher level position is funded, for 
a period of more than twenty-two (22) workdays, within any six (6) consecutive months, the 
employee shall be eligible for a temporary special duty additive in accordance with Rule 60L-32, 
Florida Administrative Code.  promotional pay increase to the higher broadband level as 
provided in the Rules of the State Personnel System. 
 
SECTION 2 - Method of Compensation 

It is understood by the parties that, insofar as pay is concerned, employees temporarily 
filling a position in a higher broadband level shall be paid according to the same compensation 
method as permanent promotees promoted employees under the Rules of the State Personnel 
System. 

SECTION 3 - Return to Regular Rate 

Employees being paid at a higher rate while temporarily filling a position in a higher 
broadband level will be returned to their regular rate of pay when the period of temporary 
employment special duty in the higher broadband level is ended. 
 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 22 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

Article 22 
VACANT 

 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 24 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

Article 24 
ON-CALL ASSIGNMENT - CALL-BACK - COURT APPEARANCE 

 
SECTION 1 - Definition 

On-call assignment shall be as defined in the Rules 60L-32, Florida Administrative Code 
of the State Personnel System. 

SECTION 2 - Request for On-Call Pay 

When an employee is required by appropriate management to be on call, a request for on-
call payment under Chapter Rule 60L-32, Florida Administrative Code, shall be submitted by the 
agency for approval. The Secretary of Management Services or his designee shall not 
unreasonably withhold approval of such request. 
 
SECTION 3 - On-Call Fee 

(A) When approved as provided herein, employees who are required to be on call shall be 
compensated by payment of a fee in an amount of not less than one dollar ($1.00) for each hour 
such employee is required to be available. 

(B) Employees who are required to be on call on a Saturday, Sunday and/or a holiday as 
listed in Ssection 110.117, Florida Statutes, will be compensated by payment of a fee in an 
amount equal to one-fourth (1/4) of the statewide minimum for the employee's class for each 
eight (8) hour period such employee is required to be available. 

SECTION 4 - Call-Back 

When A an law enforcement employee who has been placed on-call is called out back to 
the work at a time not contiguous with the employee's scheduled hours of work location to 
perform assigned duties, the employee shall be credited for actual time worked, or a minimum of 
four (4) hours, whichever is greater. The rate of compensation shall be in accordance with the 
Rules of the State Personnel System. 

 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 24 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

 

SECTION 5 - Court Appearances 

If an law enforcement employee is subpoenaed to appear as a witness in a job-related 
court case, not during the employee's regularly assigned shift, the employee shall be credited for 
actual time worked, or a minimum of two and one-half (2-1/2) hours, whichever is greater. 
 
 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 25 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 30, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

Article 25 
WAGES 

 
SECTION 1 – Pay Provisions – General 

(A) Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 General 
Appropriations Act.  

(B) Increases to base rate of pay and salary additives shall be in accordance with state 
law and the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 General Appropriations Act.   

 
SECTION 2 – Unemployment Rate Incentive 
 In recognition of reducing the unemployment rate from December 2010 to December 
2012, the Governor’s Budget Recommendations provide for a one-time, non-discretionary, 
$1,200 lump sum bonus award, plus applicable taxes, to eligible employees.  Eligibility 
requirements are set forth in Section 8 – Salaries and Benefits – Fiscal Year 2013-2014 of the 
Governor’s Recommendations.  The awards shall be paid to eligible employees no later than 
August 30, 2013, and are subject to funding as provided in the 2013-2014 General 
Appropriations Act. 

 
SECTION 3 – Variable Compensation Award 
 The Governor’s Budget Recommendations provide for discretionary, one-time lump sum 
interim variable compensation awards to eligible employees achieving high job performance as 
evidenced by the employee’s performance evaluation period ending during the period July 1, 
2012 through June 30, 2013.  Awards for Outstanding and Commendable performance will be 
$5,000 and $2,500, respectively, plus applicable taxes.  Eligibility requirements are set forth in 
Section 8 – Salaries and Benefits – Fiscal Year 2013-2014 of the Governor’s Recommendations. 
The awards shall be paid to eligible employees no later than September 30, 2013, and are subject 
to funding as provided in the 2013-2014 General Appropriations Act. 

 
 
 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 25 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 30, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

SECTION 4 – Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency 
 In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 General 
Appropriations Act, and contingent upon the availability of funds and at the agency head’s 
discretion, each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15 
percent of the employee’s base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or 
area closed due to emergency conditions from another area of the state that is not closed. 

 
SECTION 5– Cash Payout of Annual Leave 
 Permanent Career Service employees may be given the option of receiving up to 24 hours 
of unused annual leave each December, in the form of a cash payout subject to, and in 
accordance with, section 110.219(7), Florida Statutes. 

 
SECTION 6 – Performance Pay  
 Each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee’s 
exemplary performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 
60L-35, Florida Administrative Code. 

 
SECTION 7 – Savings Sharing Program 
 An employee or groups of employees may be eligible for monetary awards for ideas or 
programs that result in a cost saving to the state, pursuant to section 110.1245(1), Florida 
Statutes. 
 
SECTION 8 – Pay Subject to General Appropriations Act 
 
 In the event the 2013 Legislature provides different funding or eligibility provisions for 
the above-specified pay increases and payments, the State and the Union agree that such 
increases and payments shall be administered in accordance with the provisions of the Fiscal 
Year 2013-2014 General Appropriations Act, and any other relevant statutes.   
 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 26 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

Article 26 
UNIFORMS AND ACCESSORIES 

 
SECTION 1 - Uniform - Standard Issue 

(A) All Law Enforcement Bargaining Unit employees shall receive a standard issue of 
uniforms (winter and summer) and uniform accessories. If the uniforms are to be replaced, the 
State will study the feasibility of replacing them with quality wash and wear uniforms. 

(B) The Sstate shall provide uniforms for its female officers in the appropriate sizes, 
designed and cut for females. If a female officer is required to wear a bullet proof vest, it shall be 
designed and fitted for a female. 

SECTION 2 - Uniform Accessories  

Uniform accessories will include the following minimum requirements: 

(A) Gun belt, either 2-1/4 inches or 3 inches as appropriate for the individual officer. 

(B) An employee who currently has, and who has been trained in the use of, a cross-draw 
holster, shall be permitted to continue to utilize that type of holster. All other employees will be 
issued a strong-hand holster. 

(C) Spare ammunition, and an appropriate case. 

(D) Where hand-held radios are provided, they will be suitable for law enforcement use. 

(E) Each agency that provides bullet proof vests to Law Enforcement bargaining Unit 
employees will develop a policy for replacement upon expiration of the guaranteed life of the 
vest as expressed by the manufacturer at the time of purchase.  

(F) Each agency will select and provide to each employee at least one intermediate force 
weapon, as determined appropriate by the agency, and provide training in the use of such 
weapon. 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 26 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

SECTION 3 - Uniform and Clothing Maintenance Allowance 

The Sstate will provide Unit employees who are furnished and required by the Sstate to 
wear a uniform, or those employees of this Unit assigned to full-time plain clothes positions, a 
maintenance, clothing and shoe allowance in the amount of $500.00 annually, unless laundry and 
dry cleaning facilities are available and the service is furnished by the agency without cost to the 
employees. 
 
 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 27 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

Article 27 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

 
SECTION 1 - State Employees Group Insurance Program 
 

The Sstate agrees to administer the State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan in 
accordance with any statutory provision or Act affecting the plan or its operation. 

SECTION 2 - Death In-Line-Of-Duty Benefits 

(A)  Funeral and burial expenses will be as provided in Ssection 112.19, Florida 
Statutes. 
 

(B)  Education benefits will be as provided in Ssection 112.19, Florida Statutes. 
 
 (C)  State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan premium for the employee's 
 surviving spouse and children will be as provided in Ssection 110.123, Florida Statutes. 
 
 (D)  Any complaint or claim by an employee or the PBA concerning this Section shall 
not be  subject to the Grievance Procedure of this Agreement. 
 
 



PBA / Law Enforcement Unit 
State Proposal - Article 31 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                              Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                               ___________________ 
Date                                                                                      Date 

 
 

Article 31 
VACANT 

 
STATE PERSONNEL SYSTEM RULES 

 
All pay and benefits provisions published in the Rules of the State Personnel System which 
cover employees in the bargaining Unit and which are not specifically provided for or modified 
by this Agreement shall continue in effect during the term of this Agreement. 
 



-.

Re c e J"v ~ cI by D /y) 5'
/1- Iq - 12

FLORIDA POLICE B.ENBVOLENTASSOCIATION, INC.

State of Florida and Florida P.B.A.
Proposal 1 - November 19,2012
2013 ~2014 Negotiations
July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2016
LAW ENFORCEMENT BARGAINING ITNIT

The Florida P.B.A. proposes the articles contained in the FY 2012~2013

revised agreement remain unchanged .unless specific modifications
(attached) have been submitted.

All modifications are drawn to the FY 2012-2013 revised agreement.
The modifications are prepared in legislative style.

The Florida P.B.A. proposed agreement is attached. (Changes to the
current agreement are found at Articles 9, 14, 18,22, 25, 27, 33 and
35.]

Florida Police Benevolent Association, Inc.
300 East Brevard Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301,

(850) 222~3329 • (800) 733-3722 • Fax (850) 561-8898.



*AGREEMENT
THE STATE OF FLORIDA

and

THE FLORIDA POLICE
BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION

Law Enforcement Bargaining Unit

December 27, 2010 through June 30, 2013

Incorporates FY 2011 - 2012 approved reopener revisions
to Articles 3, 16, 18, 25 and 27

and

FY 2012-2013 reopener revisions
to Articles 5 and 25

pursuant to 2012 legislative impasse resolution

""TO BE: CHANGED ONCE AGREEl\IENT ON
DURATION AND OTHER ARTICLES IS

REACHED



2010 - 2013 State ofFlonda & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revi8ions

TABLE OF CONTENTS

• AGREEMENT
• PREAMBLE
11 Article 1 - RECOGNITION
• Article 2 - GENDER REFERENCE
• Article 3 - VACANT
• Article 4 - NO DISCRIMINATION
• Article 5 - EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATION AND PBA ACTIVITIES
• Article 6 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE
• Artide 7 - INTERNAL INVESTIGATIONS
• Article 8 - WORKFORCE REDUCTION
• Article 9 - REASSIGNMENT, TRANSFER, CHANGE IN DUTY STATION AND PROMOTIONjOP~NJ

• Artlde 10 - DISCIPLINARY ACTION
• Article 11 - CLASSIFICATION REVIEW
• Article 12 - PERSONNEL RECOR.DS
• Article 13 - SAFETY
• Article 14 - PERFORMANCE REVIEWJPPI?~}

• Article 15 - SENIORITY
• Article 16 - EMPLOYMENT OUTSIDE STATE GOVERNMENT
• Article 17 - GROOMING STANDARDS
• Article 18 - HOURS OF WORK, LEAVE AND JOB-CONNECTED DISABILITY iOPEN}
• Article 19 - PERSONAL PROPERTY - REPLACEMENT AND/OR REIMBURSEMENT
• Article 20 - TRAINING AND EDUCATION
• Article 21 - ACTING RANKS
• Article 22 -:.: VAtAtfFRETIREMf;NT_illP.fID

Article 23 - EQUIPMENT
• Article 24 - ON-CALL ASSIGNMENT - CALL-BACK - COURT APPEARANCE
• Article 25 - WAGESJ.QPBNJ
• Article 26 - UNIFORMS AND ACCESSORIES
• Article 27 - INSURANCE BENEFITS, {Q.:et!~J
• Article 28·· TRAVEL EXPENSES
• Article 29 - DRUG TESTING
• Article 30 - NO STRIKE
• Article 31 - STATE PERSONNEL SYSTEM RULES
• Article 32 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS
• Article 33 - ENTIRE AGREEMENT (OPEN>
• Article 34 - SAVINGS CLAUSE
• Article 35 - DURATION (OPE~.,

• Article 36 - AWARDS
• SIGNATURES
• APPENDIX A - Classes In the Law Enforcement Unit

1



2010 -- 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporate8 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Re"isions

AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT IS between the State of Florida (hereinafter calleci the "State") and
the FLORIDA POLICE BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION, (hereinafter called the "PBA")
representing the employees In the Law Enforcement Bargaining Unit.

PREAMBLE

WHEREAS, it IS recognized by the parties hereto that the declared publiC polley of the
State and the purpose of Part II, Chapter 447, Florida Statutes, IS to provide
statutory implementation of Section 6, Article I of the Constitution of the State of
Florida, and to promote harmonious and cooperative relationships between State
government and Its employees, both collectively and individually, and to protect the
public by assuring, at ail times, the orderly and uninterrupted operations and
functions of State Government; and

WHEREAS, It IS the intention of the parties of this Agreement to set forth the entire
agreement with respect to matters within the scope of negotiations; and

WHEREAS, the above language IS a statement of Intent and, therefore, not subject to
the grievance procedure as outlined in Article 6;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the
parties do agree as follows:

Article 1
RECOGNITION

CA) The State hereby recognizes the PBA as the exclusive representative for the
purposes of collective bargaining With respect to wages, hours, and terms and
conditions of employment for all employees Included in the Law Enforcement
Bargaining Umt.

(B) The bargaining Unit for which this. recognition IS accorded IS as defined In

Certification Number 1281 issued by the Florida Public Employees Relations
CommiSSion and as subsequently amended by the Commission.

(C) This Agreement Includes all full-time and part-time Career SerVice employees In
the classifications and POSitions listed In AppendiX A of this Agreement.

Article 2
GENDER REFERENCE

All references in this Agreement to employees of the male gender are used for
convenience only and shall be construed to Include both male and female employees.

Article 3
VACANT

2



2010 - 2013 State ofFlonda & PR\ - Law Enforcement Urnt Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reupener Revisions

Article 4
NO DISCRIMINATION

SECTION 1 - Non-Discrimination Policy - State-Federal Law

(A) The State and the PBA shall not discriminate against any employee for any
reason prohibited under Flonda Statutes or any Federal Law.

(B) The PBA shall have the right to consult on issues of discrimination or sexual
harassment with the Step 1 Management RepresentatIve and/Clr hIs deslgnee(s), up
through the Step 2 Management Representative and/or his deslgnee(s), to the
Department of Management Services.

(C) Any claim of discrimination or sexual harassment by an employee against the
State, ItS offIcials or representatlv~s, except for grievances related to PBA
membership, shall only be subject to the method of review prescribed by law or by
rules and regulations having the force and effect of law.

SECTION 2 - Non-Discrimination Policy - PBA Membership

Neither the State nor the PBA shall Interfere WIth the right of law enforcement
employees (;overed by this Agreement to become or refrain from becoming members
of the PBA, and neither the State nor the PBA shall discriminate against any such
employee because of membershIp or non-membership In any employee organizatIon.

SECTION 3 - Affirmative Action and Americans with Disabilities Prog.rams

The Parties agree that dUring the first year of the initIal collective bargaining
agreement that the PBA may contact each law enforcement agency for the purpose
of conducting a consultation meetmg. Such meeting shall be conducted In

accordance With the: proviSIons of Article 5 of the Agreement. At the mitial meeting,
the agency shall prOVide to the PBA an orientation to the agency's current affirmative
action program and efforts to comply With the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Article 5 2912 Legislatir.-re IMpasse ReselutieR
EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATION AND PBA ACTIVITIES

SECTION 1- Deimitions

(A) The tenn "employee", as U8ed III thJS Agreement, shall mean an employee
mcluded m the bargaJmng urnt represented by the Florida Police Benevolent Associatil>n,
(PBA).

(B) The term "Gnevance Representattve", as used in tlus .Agreement, 8hall mean an
employee designated by the President of the PBA to represent a gnevant at Step 1
meettngs on grievances which have been properly filed under Article 6 of this
Agreement, where; the PBA has bt:en selected as the employee's representattve.

3



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Caw Enforcement Urnt Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener RevisIons

SECTION 2 - Representation

(A) The PBA shall select a reasonable number of PBA Grievance Representattves, and
shall furnish to the State and keep up-to-date a lIst of employees authonzed as Grievance
Representatives. The State will not recognize a grievance or staff representative whose
name does not appear on the Itst. The PBA shall furnish to the State and keep up-to-date
a lIst of PBA Staff Representatives. "''here PBA representatIOn IS requested by an
employee, the representative shall be a person designated by the PBA.

(B) Where PBA representatIOn is not requested by the employee, the PBA shall be
nottfied of. and be gIven an opportunity for a Staff Repre~entattve to be present at
meetings concerning the grievance

SECTION 3 - Representative Access

The State agree~ that recogIllzed representattves of the PBA 8hall have a{';cess to the
premises of the State which are available to the publIc If an-area of the State's premi8es
IS restrIcted to the publIc, penmssion must be rtXluested to enter the area; such petmtsslon
will not be unreasonably demed. Access shall bt: dunng the regular wOlkIng hours of the
employee and shall be restricted to matter8 related to the applIcation ofthts Agreement.

SECTION 4 - Documents

(A) Tht: State shall provide the PBA with the followmg:

(1) When agencIes send out mfonnatlon which affects an employee's
tenns and conditions of employment covered by this Agreement or whIch
could affect the application or interpretation of this Agreement, the PBA
will be sent the information.

(2) Each agency shall funw"sh the PBA a current copy of the agency's
rules, regulations and policie8 which affect employees' tenns and
condlttoflSi of employment covered by this Agreement which are not
included in the Rules of the State Personnel SY8tem. Changes and updates
shall be furnished to the PBA as they occur. If an agency publtshes and
timely maIntaInS 01'. the agency's website the documents referenced in this
SectIon for use by employees, the documents on the agenc}'s webSIte
shall serve as the copIes furnished to the PBA. This does not relteve the
affected agency of the duty to notify the PBA as changes and updates
occur.

4



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Urnt Agreement
Incorporates 2011·2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(B) The State shall provid~ each employee with the following.

(1) Access to a copy of the Rules of the State Personnel System, and

(2) Access to a copy of department rules, regulations or poliCIes whIch
affect the employee's salary, benefits or terms and c(\ndition.~ of
employment. Employees "ill be notified of changes and updates as they
occur.

SECTION 5 - Consultation

(A) Upon request by the deSIgnated PBA Staff Representanve, the Secretary of the
Department of Management SetVlces and/or designated representatIves !"shall make a good
faith effort to meet and consult on a quarterly basis \\ith three (3) PBA representatl'ves.
Meetings shall be held at a time and place deSIgnated by the Department ofManagement
Services.

(B) Upon request by the deSIgnated PBA Staff Representative, but not more often than
once in each calendar month, the Agency Head and/or designated representatives shall
make a good faith effort to meet and consult with not more than two (2) PBA
representatIves from the Agency and PBA StaffRepresentative. Meetlngs shall be held at
a tune and place deSIgnated by the Agency Head.

(C) Upon Iequest by the designated PBA Staff Representative, but not more than once in
each calendar month, the Step 1 Management RepresentatIve shall make a good faith
~ffort to meet and consult WIth the PDA Staff Representative and not more t.lJan two (2)
PBA representatIves from the ~\.gency MeetIngs shall be held at a time and place to be
designated by the Step 1 Management RepresentatIve.

(D) Consultation meetmgs WIll be scheduled aftex givmg due conSIderatIOn to the
availabtlity and work location of all parties. If a consultation meeting is held or requires
rea80nable travel tIme dunng the working hours of an employee particIpant. the
employee shall be excused without loss of pay for that purpose Attendance at the
con8ultation meeting outside ofregulw working hours shall not be deemed time wOIked.

(E) The purpose of consultation meetings shall be to discuss matter8 relatlng to the
administratlon of thIs Agreement and agency law enforcement actiVIties which affect
employees, and no meeting shall be used for the purpose of discussing pendmg
gnevances or for negotiation purposes. No later than seven (7) calendar days pnor to the
scheduled meeting date, the parties shall exchange agenda Illdicatlng the matters they
WIsh to discuss.

5



2010 - 20B State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisiun8

SECTION 6 - Bulletin Boards

(A) ·Where requested in writing. the State agrees to furnish m a permanent State
controlled faclhty to wInch employees are assigned, wall space not to exceed 24" x 36"
for PBA-purchased bulletin boards.

(B) When requested m wnting, the State agrees to furnish at an academy man agency
controlled factlity~ wall space not to exceed 24" x 36" for a PBA - purchased bulletm
board

(C) The PBA bulletm boards shall be used only for the following nou.ces:

(1) RecreatIon and sodal affains of the PBA,

(2) PBA mt:eting8,

(3) PBA elections,

(4) Report8 ofPBA cOIlllll1ttees,

(5) PBA benefit plOgrams,

(6) Current PBA conttact,

(7) Training and educational opportunitIes, and

(8) Other matenals pertaImng to the welfare ofPBA members

(D) NotIces posted on the~e bulletm boards shall not contain anythmg reflecting
adversely on the State, its officers or employee8; nc>r shall any p08ted matenal violate
law, rule", 01 regulation

(E) NotIces p08ted must be dated and bear the signature of the PBA's authorized
representatIve.

(F) A violatIon of these pro"\'lsions by a PBA authonzed representative 8hall be a basIS for
removal ofbulletin board priVIleges by the Department ofManagement SefYlces

I"G) Agencie8 shall cooperate with the PBA to mamtain PBA bulletin boards free of
postings by non-PBA indh'iduals or organizations.

SECTION 7 - Occupational ProtUes and Rules Maintained

The State will maintain on the Department of Management Services' website the
oc.cupatIonal profile8 and the Rules of the State Personnel System.

6



2010 - 2013 State of Flonda & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener RevisIons

SECTION 8 - Negotiations

(A) The PBA agrees that all collective bargaining is to be conducted '\\Ith State
representatives desIgnated for that purpose by the Governor, as cluef executive officer.
Negotiating meetings shall be held In Tallahassee unless the State and the PBA agree to
meet eliewhere at a State facIlity or other locatIOn which involves no rental cost to the
State. There shall be no negotiation by the PBA at other levels of State government.

(B) The PBA may designate up to eIght (8) employeeiS to attend each smgle-day session
as Negotiation Committee members who will be granted admInistratIve leave to attcnd
negotIatIOn seSSIOns with the State If travel to and from negotiations unaVOIdably occurs
on work days Immediatdy precedmg or following a day of negotiatIon, employees shall
be elIgible to receIve administrative leave on an hour fO! hour basis for such reasonable
travel time pendmg review and approval by the employing agency If the PBA chooses
to hold a negotIatIon preparatory meeting on the calendar day unmediately precedmg a
scheduled negotiatIon seSSIon, negotiation committee members will be granted
admini8trative leave for attendance at the meetIng AdmimstratIve leave for travel time
to the preparatory meeting is lImited to the day of the preparatory meetIng. No employee
shall be credIted with more than the number of hours in the employee's regular 'Workday
for a day the employee is attending negotIatIons 01 traveling to or from negotIations. The
time in attendance at negotIating 8essions shall not be counted as hours worked for the
purpose of computing compensatory time or overtune. The Agency shall not reimburse
the employee for travel, meals, lodging, or any expense mcurred m connectIon WIth
attendance at negotIating sessions.

(C) The selectIon of an employee shall not unduly hamper the operatIons of the work
unit. No mOle than one (1) employee pm' agency shall attend a smgle day session

SECTION 9 - Changes To Policies

(A) The State shall pro\lde reasonable notice to the PBA of amendments to eXIsting
poliCIes that result in change in a mandatory subject ofbargaming

(B) After notIce~ the PBA rna} consult WIth an agency on a change in a mandatory
subject of hargaining prOVIded that the PBA makes a request m a reasonable timeframe.
If consultation is unsuccessful, the matter 'Will be referred to the Department of
Management Selvices to bargain over the proposed change.

(C) Where the proposed changes affect the entire bargaining Wlit. and relate to
mandatory subjects of bargainmg, .the PBA and the State shall m~et to bargaIn the
proposed changes.

(D) Nothing herein !Shall preclude the PBA from filing a grievance if the proposed
changes violate the Agreement

7



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Urnt Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-1013 Reopener Revisions •.'

(E) The; PBA acknowledges that certam proposed changes require an expedited response
and may be lffiplem~ntedwithout undue delay in those instances where there 18 a wmve!,
eXIgent circumstanc~s, or satlsfaction ofbargmnmg to resolution or impasse

SECTION 10 - Academy Access

\V'here the agency operates Its own Academy and conducts entry-level law enforcement
trammg, the PBA will be notrfied of the date, time and locatlon of the traming, and the
pmtles Will determine the dat~ and time the PBA Wlll he granted academy access. A
representatIve of the PBA, accompamecl by the head of the Academy, will be permitted to
address each entry-Ieve1law enforcement class dunng class time, to issue to each recruit
a copy of the current PBA Agreement, to diSCUSS the proviSions of that Agr~ement and to
describe the orgamzatlon and benefits. The presentatlon WIll not last longer than thtrty
(30) minut~s, unIes~ a longer penod is agreed to by the PBA and the agency, and may be
made only once per class at a tlme selected in advance by the PBA, th~ representaTIve of
the head ofthe academy, and the agency he·ad or deSignee.

It IS understood by the parttes that the PBA wrI1 not ~e this time to obtmn exe.cuted
apphcatlons for membership or dues deduction.

Article &
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

It is the policy of the State and the PBA to encourage informal discussions of
complaints between management and supervisors covered by this Agreement, as
well as between those supervisors and covered employees. Such discussions should
be held With a -"lew to reaching an understanding which will resolve the matter In a
manner satlsfQctory to the employee, Without need for recours~ to the formal
grievance procedure preSCribed by thiS Article.

SEcnoN 1 - Definitions

As used In thiS Article:

(A) "Grievance" shall mean a dispute Involving the Interpretation or application of the
speCifiC proVISions of thiS Agreement, except as exclusions are noted In this
Agreement.

(B) "Employee" shall mean a law enforcement employee or a group of law
enforcement employees having the same grievance. In the case of a group of
employees, one shall be deSignated by the group to act as spokesperson and to be
responSible for processmg the grievance.

(C) "Days" shall mean calendar days, excluding any day obs~rved as a holiday
pursuant to the Rules of the State Personnel System. If the due date for a grievance
response or for a grievance submission to a step or to arbitration falls on a weekend
or a holiday, the action shall be due the next bUSiness day.

8



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 201l-:~012 and 2012-2013 Reopener ReVl8ions

SECTION 2 - Election of Remedy and Representation

(A) If an employee or the PBA has a grievance which may be processed under this
Article and which may also be appealed to the Florida Public Employees Relations
Commission, the employee or the PBA shall elect at the outset which procedure IS to
be used and such election shall be bmdlng on the employee or the PBA. In the case
of any duplicate filing, the action first filed will be the one processed.

(6) An employee who decides to use this Grievance Procedure shall indicate at Step
1 (or the Initial written step If authorrzed by the provisions of this Article) whether or
not he shall be represented by the PBA. When the employee has elected PBA
representation, both the employee and the PBA Representative shall be notified of
arty Step 1 meetmg. Further, any written commuOication concerning the grievance or
Its resolution shall b~ sent to both the employee and the PBA representative, and
any decIsion mutually agreed to by the State and the PBA shall be binding on the
employee.

(C) If the employee IS not represented by the PBA, any adjustment of the grievance
shall be consistent with the terms of thiS Collective Bargaining Agreement. The PBA
shall be given reasonable opportunity to be present at any meeting called for the
resolution of such grievance. An employee uSing thiS procedure In the processing of a
grievance Will be bound by the procedure estabUshed by the Parties to the
Agreement.

The PBA shall not be bound by the decision of any grievance or arbitratIon in which
the employee was not represented by the PBA.

SECTION 3 - Procedures

(A) Employee grievances fIled m accordance with .thiS Article should be presented
and handled promptly at the lowest level of management having the authority to
adjust the grievances.

(B) There shall be no reprisals agamst any of the participants in the procedures
contained herein by reason of such participation.

(C) The filing or pendency of any grievance under the prOVIsIons of thiS Article shall
lil no way operate to Impede, delay or mterfere with the right of the State to take the
action complained of; subject, however, to the fmal disposition of the grievance.

(D) Once a grievance is presented, no new violation or Issue can be raIsed, unless
the Parties mutually agree in wrrtlng to revise or amend the alleged violatIons or
Issues or for good cause but m no event less than seven (7) days prior to any
arbitration hearing. When an Issue is unchanged, but It is determined that an article,
section or paragraph of the Agreement has been Cited Imprecisely or erroneously by
the employee, then the employee shall have the right to amend that part of hiS
grievance.

(E) The resolution of a grievance prior to its submiSSion in wrrtlng at Step 2 shall not
establish a precedent bmding on either the PBA or the State in other cases.

9



2010 - 2013 State ofFlonda & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener RevIsions

(F) If a grievance meeting IS held or requires reasonable travel time during the
working hours of any required participant, such participant shall be excused without
loss I)f pay for that purpose. Attendance at grievance meetings outside of the regular
working hours shall not be deemed time worked. All grievance meetings shall be held
at times and locations mutually agreed to by the parties, except that, unless
mutually agreed otherWise, all meetmgs shall be held within fifty (50) miles of the
grievant's place of work.

(G) Grievances shall b~ presented and adjusted m the follOWing m~nner, and no one
indiVidual may respolld to a grievance at more than one written step.

(H) Grievances and grievance responses may be filed by hand-delivery, mall
(Including e-maIl), COUrier, or electronic facsimile. If sent via electfClnlc facsimile, the
burden shall be on the sending Party to confirm the correct electronic facsimile
number before transmission. Documents shall be deemed filed upon receipt dUring
regular business hours (8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.). Documents received after business
hours shall be cOrlsidered received the next business day.

Step 1.

(A) An employe~ having a gnevance may Within fourteen (14) days follOWing actual
knowledge of the occurrence of the event giving nse to the grievance submit a
gnevance at Step 1. Nothing In this procedure shall preclude an employee from
presenting concerns throl1gh Informal diScussions with management representative.
In filing a grievance at Step 1, the employee or hie; designated representative shall
submit to the Step 1 Management Representative a grtevance form '5ettln9 forth
speCifically the known facts Gn which the grievance is based, the speCific prov:slon or
provisions of the Agreement allegedly Violated, and the relief requested. In Olsciplme
cases, It shall be presumed that the grievance alleges that the discipline was without
Just cause, and requests, a5 relief, at a minimum, reinstatement, full make whole
rehef.

(B) The Step 1 Management Representative or his designee shall commUnicate a
deCISIon in writing to the employee and to the PBA Grtevance RepresentatIve, If any,
Within fourteen (14) days follOWing receipt of the grievance form. If the Management
Representative falls to respond Within the time limit It shall be deemed a denial.

Step 2.

(A) If the gnevance is not resolved at Step 1, the employee or his desIgnated
representative may submit It to the Agency Head or his designated representative
Within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the decision at Step 1.

(8) The Agency Head or his designated representative shall com",urllcate a deCiSion
In writing to the employee and the PBA Gnevance Representative, If any, within
fourteen (14) days follOWing receipt of the written grievance. If the Agency Head falls
to respond Within the time limits It shall be deemed a denial.

10



2010 - 2013 State of Flonda & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener RevIsions

Step 3.

(A) If the grievance IS not resolved at Step 2, the PBA may appeal the grievance to
arbitration within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the decIsion at Step 2. If, at the
initial written step, the PBA declmed to represent the employee bec;ause he was not a
member of the PBA, the employee may appeal the grievance to arbitration. The
grievance shall mclude a copy of the grievance forms submitted at Steps 1 and 2
together with all written responses and documents In support of the grievance. The
Department of Management Services may have a meeting with the PBA Staff
Representative or his deSignee to diSCUSS the grievance.

(B) The arbItrator shall be one person from a panel of four (4) arbItrators selected hy
the Parties.

(C) The parties may, by mutual agreement In writing, submit related grievances for
hearing before the same arbitrator. Arbitration hearings shall be held at times and
locations mutually agreed to by the parties; however, unless mutually agreed
otherWise, all hearings shall be held withIn fifty (50) miles of the gnevant(s)' place of
work.

(D) The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the grievance and.
prOVided the decIsion IS In accorciance with his jUrisdiction and authority under this
Agreement, shall be final and binding on the State, the PBA, the grlevant(s), and the
employees In the bargaining Unit. In conSidering a grievance the arbitrator shall be
governed by the follOWing provisions and limitations:

(1) The arbitrator shall issue hiS deCision not later than fourteen (14)
days from the date of the closing of the hearing or the submiSSion I)f
bri~fs, whichever IS later.

(2) The arbitrator's decIsion shall be In Writing, and shall set forth the
arbitrator's opinion and conclusions on the Issue(s) submitted.

(3) The arbitrator shall have no authOrity to determine any other
Issue, and shall refrain from ISSUing any statement of opinion or
conclUSion not essential to the determination of the Issues 'Submitted.

(4) The arbitrator shall limit hiS deCISion strictly to the application and
interpretation of the specifiC prOVISions of thiS Agreement.

(5) The arbitrator shall be without power or authOrity to make any
deCisions that are:

(a) Contrary to or Inconsistent With, adding to, subtracting from, or
modifying, altenng or ignormg In any way, the terms of thiS
Agreement, or of applicable law or rules or regulations haVing the
force and effect of law.

(b) Limiting or Interfering In any way with the power, duties and
responsibilities of the State under ItS Constltlltion, applicable law, and
rules and regulations haVing the force and effect of law, except as

11



2010 - 2013 State of Flonda & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 ReoptmeI RevisIOns

such powers, duties and responsibilities have been abridged, delegated
or modified by the express provIsions of this Agreement.

(6) The arbitrator's award may include back pay, to the Grievant(s);
however, the following limitations shall apply to such monetary
awards:

(a) No award for back pay shall exceed the amount of pay the
employee would otherwise have earned at his regular rate of pay and
such back pay shall not be retroactive to a date earlier than the date
of the occurrence of the event glvmg rise to the grievance under
consideration.

(b) The award shall not exceed the actual loss to the grievant, will not
include pUnitive damages, and will be reduced by the amount of wages
earned from other sources excluding unemployment compensatiorl
received by the employee during the period of time affected by the
award.

(c) The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne solely by the
party who falls to prevail in the hearing; however, each party shall b~

responsible for compensating and paying the expenses of its own
representatives, attorneys and wltneSSE:s. Should the arbitrator fashion
an award In such a manner that the grievance is sustained in part and
denred In part, the State and the PBA will evenly split the C1rb,trator's
fee and expenses.

(d) The PBA will not be responsible for costs of an arbitration to which
It was not a Party.

SECTION 4 - Time Limits

(A) Failure at any step of this procedure to commUnicate the decIsIon on a grievance
within the s.pedfled time limits shall permit the employee, or the PBA, where
appropriate, to proceed to the next step. The State will make a good faith effort to
timely communicate deCISions at each step.

(B) The number of days indicated at each step should be considered as a maximum,
and every effort should be made to expedite the process. However, the time Imllts
speCified In any step of this procedure may be extended, In any specific instance, by
mutual written agreement.

(C) ClaIms of either an untimely filing or untimely appeal snail be made at the step in
question.

SECTION 5 - Exceptions

(A) Nothing In this Article or elsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to
permit the PBA or an employee to process a grievance (1) in behalf of any employee
without his consent, or (2) With respect to any matter which is the subject of a

12



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener ReVIsions

grievance, appeal, administrative action before a government board or agency, or
court proceeding, brought by the PBA.

(6) All gnevances will be presented at the initial step with the following exceptlorls:

(1) If a grievance arises from the action of an offiCial higher than the
Step 1 Management Representative, the grievance shall be initiated at
Step 2 or 3, as appropriate, by submitting a grievance form as set
forth In Step 1 within fourteen (14) days following the actual
knowledge of the occurrence giVing rise to the grievance.

(2) The PBA shall have the nght to bnng a class action grrevance on
behalf of bargaining Unit employees In Its own name. concerning
disputes relating to the Interpretation or application of this Agreement.
Such grievance shall not Include dIsciplinary ::Ictions taken against an
employee. The PBA's election to proceed under thiS Article shall
preclude It from proceeding In another forum on the same issue. Such
grievance ~hall be Initiated at Step 2 or, where more than one agency
is implicated, Step 3 of thiS procedure, In accordance with the
prOVisions set forth herein, within fourteen (14) days ·of the knowledge
or rea'ionable knowledge of th~ occurrence of the event giVing rise to
the grrevance.

SECTION 6 - Expedited Arbitration

(.IX) The parties recognize that certain grrevances are amenable to expedited
resolution by an arbitrator. Accordingly at any point in the grievance procedure. the
PBA may request expedited arbitration of any grievance. Requests for expedited
arbitration shall be granted in cases involving arbItrable diSCiplinary action less than
discharge. In all other cases, expedited arbitration will be used in instances of
mutual agreement.

(B) Expedited Arbitration Rules:

(1) When a grievance IS to be resolved via expedited arbitration, all
remaining steps In the grievance procedure are skipped and the
grievance IS submitted directly to the expedited arbitrator.

(2) The arbitrator is deSignated by rotation from the li'it of four (4)
permanent arbitrators.

(3) Expedited arbitration hearings shall be no longer than four (4)
hours In duration. With each party limited to two (2) hours, With a
maximum of two (2) witnesses per party, and one (1) rebuttal witness
if necessary. There shall be no post-hearrng brrefs, although either
party may submit wrrtten statement of POSItion to the arbItrator during
the hearing. The Arbitrator shall Issue d short (no longer than three
(3) pages) decision Within seven (7) days of the hearrng. With the
exception of the foregOing, all prOVISions of Section (3)(J)(S) of thiS
procedure shall be applicable.

13



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener RevIsions

Article 7
INTERNAL INVESTIGATIONS

SECTION 1 - Internal Investigations

(A) The parties recognize that law enforcement personnel occupy a special place in
Amencan society. Therefore, it IS understood that the State has the right to expect
that a professional standard of conduct be adhered to by all law enforcement
personnel regardless of rank or assignment. Since Internal investigations may be
undertaken to inquire Into complaints of law enforcement mIsconduct, the State
reserves the right to conduct such InvestIgations to uncover the facts In each case,
but expressly agrees to carefully guard and protect the rights and dIgnity of accused
personnel. In the course of any Internal inVestigatIon, the investigative methods
employed will be consIstent with the law (Including but not limited to Section
112.532, FlOrida Statutes) and this agreement; nothing In thIS agreement, however,
shall be deemed to diminish the right'S of emplovees under applicable law.

(B) When an allegation is made against an employee, the State will make every
reasonable effort to ensure that the allegation and any related statements are
reduced to Writing, under oath, and Signed. The written allegatIon shall be known as
a complaint.

(C) When an employee IS to be questioned or interviewed concerning a complaint or
allegation, the employee will be mformed pnor to the interview rJf the nature of the
investigation and whether he is the subJec.t of the investIgation or a wItness in an
Investigation.. Employees shall be Informed of the right to have a union
representative in attendance at the Interview and where requested, an employee
shall be given forty-eight (48) hours to contact, consult With and secure the
attendance of a representative at the Interview. It he is the subJect of the
investigation, the employee and his representative will also be informed of each
complaint or allegation agamst him and they shall be permitted to review all wntten
statements and recordings made by the complainant and witnesses will be made
available for review at least one (1) hour prior to the commencement of the
mtervlew in accordance With SectIon 112, FlOrida Statutes. In the event the wntten
statement or recordings are such that additional review time is warranted, the
employee may request and be granted addItional time unless the request is made for
the purposes of delay. Pursuant to Section 112.533, FlOrida Statutes, the employee
who IS the subject of the investIgation shall not disclose the contents to anyone other
than ;'IS representatIve or attorney until the investigation IS complete.

(D) Interviews and questioning of employees shall be conducted in a professional
manner. Statements from an employee: shall not be taken in a coercive manner.

(E) The formal interrogation of a law enforcement officer shall comply with the
prOVISions of Flonda Statutes, Section 112.532. The employee shall receive a copy of
hiS wntten or recorded statement at no cost to the employee. No recording or
transcription of the investigative mtervlew will be made without ttle knowledge of all
participants present at the mtervlew.

(F) In cases where the agency determines that the employee's absence from the
work location IS essential to the investigation and the employee cannot be reassigned

14



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

to other duties pending completion of the investigation, the employt!e shall be placed
on administrative leave with pay.

(G) Unless required by statute, no employee shall be required to submit to a
polygraph test or any deVice deSigned to measure the truthfulness of hiS responses
during an investigation of a complaint or allegation.

(H) Only sustained findings may be inserted in personnel records. Unfounded
findings shall not be Inserted In permanent personnel records or referred to In

performance reviews.

(I) Internal investigations will ordinarily be completed within forty-five (45) days
from the date the complaint IS filed, unless circumstances necessitate a longer
period. An investIgation shall not exceed one hundred and twenty (120) days without
the approval of the Agency head or designee. Except IfI the case of a cnminal
investigation, the employee shall be notified in writmg of any investigation that
exceeds one hundred and twenty (120) days.

(J) The employse under investigation shall be adVised In writing of the results of the
investigation at its conclusion.

(K) The State will make a good faith effort to train persons who investigate charges
against law enforcement employees In the Investigative rights reserved for those
employees in the Interest of aVOiding infringement of those nghts.

(L) In the cr.lse of cnmlnal, non-administrative Internal investigation into the criminal
misconduct of a sworn employee, the provIsions of (B) through (K) shall not apply.

Article 8
WORK FORCE REDUCTION

SECTION 1 - Layoffs

(A) When bargamlng Unit employees are to be laid off, the State shall
implement such layoff In the follOWing manner:

(1) For bargaining Unit employees, the ,=ompetltlve area Within which
layoffs Will be affected shall be defined as statewide Within each agency.

(2) Layoff shall be by occupatIonal level within the Law Enforcement
bargaining unit.

(3) An employee who does not have permanent status in the Career
Service System may be laid off without applying the proviSion for retention
nghts.

(4) No employee with permanent status m the affected broadband
level shall be laid off while an employee who does not hold permanent status
IS serving In that broadband level unless the permanent employee does not
elect to exercise his retention nghts or does not meet the selective
competition cnterla.

15



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revlslon8

(5) All employees who have permanent status In the affected
broadband level shall be ranked on a layoff list based on the total retention
POints derived as follows:

(a) Length of service retention POints shall be based on one
POint for each month of contmuous service in a Career Service
POSition.

(1) An employee who resigns from one Career Service
POSition to accept employment In another Career Service
position IS not considered to have a break In service.

(2) An employee who has been laid off and IS
reemployed Within one year from the date of the layoff, shall
not be conSidered to have a break In service.

(3) Moving from Career Service to Selected Exempt
Service or Senior Management Service and back to Career
Service does not constitute a break In service unless the
employee's break In service IS more than 31 calendar days.
Only time spent In the Career Service can be counted In
calculating retention pOints.

(b) Retention POints deducted for performance not meeting
performance standards or work expectations defined for the position
shall be based on the five years Immediately prior to tht! agency's
established cutoff date., Five POints shall be deducted for each month
an employee has a rating below performance expectations.

(6) The layoff list shall be prepared by totaling retention POints.
Employees eligible for veterans' preference pursuant to Section 2.95.07(1)(a)
or (b), FlOrida Statutes, shall have ten percent added to their total retention
POints, and those eligible pursuant to Section 295.07(1)(c) or (d) shall have
five percent added.

t7) The employee With the highest total retention POints IS placed at
the top of the list, and the employee with the lowest retention pOints IS placed
at the bottom of the list.

(8) The employee at the top of the list shall bump the employee at the
bottom of the list. The next highest employee on the list and the remaining
employees shall be handled In the same manner until the total number of
filled pOSitions In the broadband level to bE' abolished IS cOlTlplt!te.

(9) Should two or more employees have the same combined total of
retention POints, the order of layoff shall be determined by giVing preference
for retention in the follOWing sequence:

(a) The employee WIth the longest service in the affected
broadband level.

(b) The employee With the longest continuous Career Service.
(c) The employee who IS entitled to veteran's preference

pursuant to Section 295.07(1), FlOrida Statutes.

16



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Re\'lsions

(10) An employee who has Career Service status and who IS to be laid
off shall be given at least 14 calendar days notice of such layoff or In lieu
thereof, two weeks payor a combination of days of notice and pay, In lieu of
the full 14 calendar days notice, to be paId at the employee's current hourly
hase rate of pay. The notice of layoff shall be in writing and sent to the
employee by certified mail, return receipt requested. Within 7 calendar days
after recelvmg the notice of layoff, the employee shall have the right to
request a demotion or reassignment within the competitive area in lieu of
layoff to a position in a broadband level within the bargaining Unit which the
employee held permanent status, or to a position at the level of or below the
current level In the bargaining untt, In which the employee held permanent
status. Such request must be In writing and reassignment or demotion cannot
be effected to a higher broadband level.

(11) An employee's request for demotion or reassignment ~hall be
granted unless It would cause the layoff of another employee who possesses a
greater total of retention points.

(12) An employee who is adversely affected as a result of another
employee having a greater number of retention POints shall have the same
right of reassignment or demotion under the same procedure as prOVided In

this section.

(13) If an employee requests a demotion or reassignment In lieu of
layoff, the same formula and criteria for estahlishing retention POints shall be
used as preSCribed In thiS section.

(B) If there IS to be a layoff of employees the State shall take all reasonable
step~ to place any adversely affected employees in eXisting vacancies for which they
are qualified.

(C) If work performed by employees In thiS Unit IS to be performed by non
State employees, the State agrees to encourage the employing entity to consider
any adversely affected unit employees for employment in Its organization If the State
has been unable to place the employees in other pOSitions within the Career Service
System.

SECTION 2 - Recall

(A) For a period of six (6) calendar months follOWing layoff.. when a vacancy
occurs or a new pOSition is established, laid off employees with the highest number
of retention POints shall be notified and permitted the opportunity to apply.

(B) Any appointment offer by the employing agency shall be subject to
agency needs and sufficient funds and salary rate for the vacant position.

(C) Employees who are reemployed after layoff in a position In the broadband
level from which the employee was laid off shall be reemployed with permanent
status.

17



2010 - 2013 State of Flonda & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener RevisIons

SECTION 3 - Retirement Benefits

Pursuant to Section 121.021(38), Florida Statutes, an absence from the employer's
payroll for a period of not to exceed twelve (12) calendar months due to a "layoff" by
the State shall not constitute a break In the continuous service requirement as
provided in Section 121.021, Florida Statutes, for c;pecial rIsk members.

SECTION 4 - Job Security

(A) The State shall notIfy the PBA at least thirty (30) days in advance of a
layoff involving positions within the bargaining Unit. Thirty (30) days prior to the
actual layoff decision, the State will meet and negotiate with the PBA over the
necessity of the layoff, alternatives to the proposed layoff and like and relnted
matters. However, the5e negotiations shall not delay the ImplementatIon of layoffs
after completion of the thirty (30) days bargaining period. The union will not pursue
statutory Impasse resolution procedures after the satisfaction of thiS bargaining
obligation.

(B) At least thirty (30) days pnor to affecting a planned orgamzatlonal change
whIch will result In the movement of positions out of the bargaining unit, or In the
demotTon of Unit employees, the agency will notify the Department of Management
Services of the changes. If the Department of Management Services determines that
bargaining Unit employees are Impacted by the changes under Chapter 447, FlOrida
Statutec;, It will notify the PBA of the changes.

Article 9
REASSIGNMENT, TRANSFER, CHANGE IN DUTY STATION, AND PROMOTION

Employees who have attained permanent status in the Career Service shall have the
opportunity to request and be selected for vacant pOSitions In their current class
within the respective agency in accordance with the provISions of thiS Article.

SECTION 1 - Definitions

As used In thiS Article:

(A) "Change in Duty Station" shall mean the moving of an employee to a duty station
located within fifty (50) miles of his current duty station.

(B) "Duty station" shall mean the place which is designated as an employee's official
headquarters.

(C) "Occupational level" shall mean the same level within the employee's current
occupation within the St~te classification system.

(D) "Reassignment" shall mean the moving of an employee from a position in one
occupational level to a different P051tlon in the same occupational level with the

18



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

same essentIal knowledge, skills and abilities, regardless of the location of the
position.

(E) "Transfer" shall mean the moving of an employee from one geographiC area of
the State to a different geographiC location which is In excess of fifty (50) miles from
the employee's current duty station.

(F) "Promotion" shall mean the moving of an employee from a POSition In one
occupational level to a different POSition in anCither occupational level haVing a higher
maximum salary, provided the position In the higher occupational level IS In the
bargamlng Unit.

(G) "Demotion" shall mean the moving of an employee from a positIon In one
occupational level to a different POSitIon In another class/occupational level haVing a
lower maximum salary.

SECTION 2 - Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station

(A) An employee who has attained permanent status in the Career Service System
may apply for a reassignment on a Request for Reassignment Form (supplied by the
agency). Such Requests shall indicate the county(les) and/or shift(s) to which the
employee would like to be reassigned. When the employee requests reassIgnment, a
State of Flonda Employment Application Form must be completed and sent With the
Request for Reassignment Form.

(B) An employee may submit a Request for ReaSSignment Form at any time;
however, all such Requests shall expire on June 30 of each calendar year. Requests
for reassignment for the next fiscal year may be filed on June 1 of the preceding
fiscal year.

(C) All Request for ReaSSignment Forms shall be submitted to the agency head or hIS
deSignee who shall be responsible for furnishing a r:opy of each such Request to the
management representatives who have the authority to make employee hiring
decls!ons In the county to which the employee has requested reac.;slgnment. The
employee shall provide a copy of the Request to the PBA at the time it is flied with
the agency.

(D) Except where a vacancy IS filled by demotion, er-~ ~is-fl6t-~
the best- iAtercsts of-fhe- agency, the management representative haVing hlrmg
authonty for that vacancy shall give first consideration to those employees who have
submitted a Request for ReaSSignment Form; prOVided, however, that employees
whose Request for ReaSSignment is not submitted by the first day of the month shall
not be conSidered for vacancies which occur during that month.

(E) Provieleel the reasslgAfficnt is iA the best Interest of the ageflcy, tIhe hiring
authOrity shall normally fill a permanent vacancy With the employee who has the
greatest length of service In the occupational level and who has a Request for
ReaSSignment Form on file for the county in which the vacancy exists':" _unlegi--1lJe
employee has been fo!"mally diSCiplined. received a "below standards" performanc.e
evaluatlo!1 or plac.e..d.- on ..Qmformc:nce Imprl)\{emen.LQt~_wlthil1 thee.. past Calendar
year.~ agFf.c, ho·..,;ever/--t:fl.at- other factors, stKfl- as empleyees'-wefk

19



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement lTrot Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener ReVlsions

history and agency needs, ffiay be talten into consideration in ffiakmy the decision as
to wt1eHler or I1Ot·-tJ.te· employee--witft--tfle. greate!?lt lel'lgth (If service· -tA---tfte
6f:€upatlona~&e'~ H=t the vacant position.

(F) If the employee with the greatest length of s~rvlc:e In the occupational level is not
selected for the vacant position, the Agency shall notify the employee: selected with
reasons for the selection. Employees with greater length In service will be allawed to
obtain a copy of the notice.

(G) When an employee has been reassigned pursuant to a Request filed under this
Article, all other pending Requests shall be canceled. No other Reque!it may be filed
under this Article for a period of twelve (12) months folloWing the employee's
reassignment. If an employee declines an offer of reassignment pursuant to a
Request filed under thIs ArtIcle, the employee will not be eligible for conSideration for
reassignment to the county(les) and/or shlft(s) declined, for a period of twelve (12)
months.

(H) An employee shdll not be required to change residence for the sole purpose of
liVing withm a ~peclfic count,/; however, an employee may be required to reside
Y'vithin a reasonable distance of a speCifiC duty station.

(I) Nothing contained In this Agreement shall be construed to prevent an agency, at
Its discretion, from affecting the Involuntary reassignment, transfer or change in duty
station of any employee according to the needs of the agency. However, It is
understood that the agency will make an effort not to affect any involuntary
reassignment, transfer or change In duty station which will Impose a residency
hardship on the employee (in that he must relocate hiS r~sldence from a permanent
home presently owned or cancel a rental lease extending more than three (3)
months), without first considering any Request for ReaSSignment Forms on file for
the county In which the agency need eXists.

(J) An employee shall be gIven a minimum of fourteen (14) calendar days' notice
prior to the agency affecting any shift change or reassignment and thirty (30)
calendar days' notice prior to the agency affecting any transfer.

(K) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent the State from
makmg reassignments, shift changes.• transfers, or changes in duty stations of any
employee dUring an emergency or as otherwise required to meet urgent law
enforcement needs of the State.

SECTION 3 - Relocation Allowance

An employee who is reassigned or promoted and who IS reqUired by agency policy to
relocate his reSidence shall be granted time off WIth pay for one (1) work day leave
for purposes. of relocating hiS residence. In addition. the employee shall be granted
travel tIme to the new location based on the most direct route. No employee WIll be
credited with more than the number of hours in the employee's regular workday and
such time shall not be counted as hours worked for the purpose of computing
compensatory time or overtime.

20



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA _. Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener ReV18ions

SECTION 4 - Request to Take Promotional Test

The State and the PBA agree that promotrons should be made based on the relative
merit and fitness of applicants. Toward the goal of selecting the most qualified
applicant for each promotional vacancy, the parties agree that the provISions of this
Article along with all provisions of the Rules of the State Personnel System Will be
followed when making such ctppolntments.

(A) If an agency has established a promotional test, an employee who has attained
permanent status In the Career Service System may applv to take a the promotional
test by submitting a Request to Take Test Form to the agency In which the
promotional position IS located that he Wishes to be conSidered for promotional
vacancies. Such request shall indicate the occ.upatlonal level(s) to which the
employee would like to be promoted. If the request is for promotion to a position in
the same agency, the employee's E'lIglbllity for the occupational level shall be made
from information in the employee's personnel file. If the request IS for a promotion to
a pOSition In any agency other than the agency in which the employee IS currently
employed, a State of Flonda Employment Application Form must be completed and
sent With the employee's requer;t for promotional consideration. In such r.ases, the
employee's eligibility shall be determined by the agency by the use of thiS completed
application. Each applicant Will be notified of hiS eligibility or ineligibility for the
occupational level(s) applied for.

(8) An employee may submIt a request to take a promotional test where established
by an agency at any tlme~ however, all such requests must bE' filed every two (2)
years and must be received In the agency personnel office by no later than the first
bUSiness day after January 15 of each calendar year and shall remain effective until
revoked by the employee.

(C) If an agency has established a promotional test, by January 15 of each calendar
year, the central personnel office of each agency shall prOVide a "NOTICE OF
PROMOTIONAL TEST" containing the follOWing Information:

(1) The date(s) of the testes),

(2) The clty(ies) where the testes) Will be administered,

(3) The major categories to be covered by each test,

(4) A bibliography Of the sources from which test questions have been
taken; ~.g., name of textbooks, departmental poliCies, general orders,
speclCiI orders, etc.

(5) The passing grade that must be attained, expressed as a percent
(%) of correct answers to the total number of questions graded.

(D) By February 15 of each calendar year, each agency shall furnish to those
eligible employees whose test requests are on file in that agency, a copy of the
"NOTICE OF PROMOTIONAL TEST". The respective agency shall be responsIble for
the administration of the wntten test no earlier than April 15 of each calendar year

21



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener ReVl:'iions

and only those employees whose names are furnished to the agency will be eligible
to take the promotIonal test.

(E) Each agency that has establIshed a promotional test and administers a
written test shall be responsible for notifying each employee who takes a
promotIonal tes~ of the test results.

(F) When extraordinary circumstances make It necessary to give a
promotional test at a time other than as set forth above, the employees will be given
adequate notice to prepare for such specIal test.

SECTION 5 - Test Standards and Criteria

(A) The respective State agency shall be responsIble for the development of
all written promotional tests which shall be based upon a job task analysis of the
occupational level of positions being tested and an assessment of the knowledge,
skills and abilities necessary to perform the requirements of posItIons In the
occupational level.

(8) Only persons who have been certified as a law enforcement officer
pursuant to Chapter 943, FlOrida Statutes, shall be eligible for agency promotional
tests.

(C) A one-hour test review will be held at the conclusion of each test session.
All challenges to test Items must be submitted In writing and received by the
respective State agency within five (5) days after the date of the test.

SECTION 6 - Promotional Lists

(A) If the agency does not elect to rank employees solely on the baSIS of a
written test, the agency shall establish a promotional tlst which ranks the employees
according to their relative ment and fitness for promotional vacancies In the
occupational level. In addition to the written test score, the agency may, at Its
dlscretfoll, utilize the employee's performance reviews and/or oral mtervlews In

establishing the agency's final promotional list. When performance reviews and/or
oral interviews are used, in addition to written test scores the agency shall advise
PBA in writing as to the weight the agency proposes to accord to each criteria In
establishing the agency promotional list. The F'BA may upon request discuss the
Criteria and weight to be accorded In addition to wntten test scores. If an agency
utilizes oral interviews, It WI" establish a three member panel, one to be selected by
the agency head or his deSignee, one by mutual agreement of the parties, and the
third to be selected by the PBA, prOVided that no member of the panel may be an
employee covered by this Agreement. Questions asked at an oral Interview Will be
limited to those that are clearly Job related and the same questions shall be asked of
all applicants.

(B) The agency promotional list shall be effective July 1st of each calendar
year. Names shall be retained on the agency's promotional list for a period of one
year. Time extensions of said Jist may be made only by the mutual consent of the
parties. When a list is established as a result of a special test bemg given pursuant to
Section 2(0) above, it shall remain in force through June 30 of the calendar year.

22



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2011-2013 Reopener R~visions

(C) The agency's promotional list, conSisting of the name, final score and
POSition on the appropriate list, shall be furnished to each employee who passed the
written test.

SECTION 7 - Method of Filling Vacancies

(A) Except where a vacancy IS filled by demotmg a law enforcement employee
or by reassignment, any person who is to be selected for a vacancy must first have
his name placed on the agency's promotional list In accordance With the criteria set
forth in this Article Upon the employee recelvmg his copy of the agency promotional
list, the employee who wishes to be considered for promotional opportunities shall
fl!e With the agency a Request for Promotion Form which shall indicate the
occupational level(s) and the county(les) to which the employee would like to be
promoted. The vacancy shall be filled from among the persons haVing the highest
five numerical scores contained on the promotional list who have applied for the
vacancy. However, an agency shall have the discretion to fill a vacancy from only the
highest five numerical scores of current agency or bargaining Unit employees
contained on the agel1cy's promotional list. AgenCies shall attempt to fill vacancies In

an expeditiouS manner when operationally feasible.

(8) In filling vacandes, the agency will first consider any pending Request for
ReaSSignment forms on file for the work area m which the agency need eXists.
Nothing contamed m this agreement shall be const.rued tc prevent an agency from
fillmg a vacancy in a manner meeting the agency's needs.

SECTION 8 - Grievability

The initiation of a grrevance claiming a residency hardship shall stay any reqUired
change In resldenc.e until final diSPOSition of the grievance. In considering such a
grrevance weight shall be given to the needs of the agency against the hardship on
the employee.

SECTION 9 - Promotions Outside the Unit

The State shall make a good faith effort to fill vacant POSitions in the rank
Immediately above the bargainmg unit With employees of thp. bargainmg unit. This
prOVISion IS not subject to the Article 6 grievance procedure.

SECTION 10 - Probationary Status

An employee who has obtained permanent status In a posltll:..n in a broadband level
who falls, due to the performance of the new duties, to satisfactorily complete the
probationary period In the promotional broadband level shall be demoted to the
former broadband level preViously held by the employee In an available vacant
POSition in the employmg agency or may, at the discretion of the agency in which the
employee was previously employed when the employee successfully completed
probation, be demoted to an available vacant position.

(A) Such a demotion shall be with permanent status, provided the employee held
permanent status In the lower broadband level.

23



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporate8 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(B) The employee's salary will be reduced in accordance with the agency's pay upon
demotion policy.

(C) Such demotion shall not be gnevable under the contractual gnevance procedure.

Article 10
DISCIPLINARY ACTION

(A) An employee who has permanent status in the Career Service System may be
disciplined only for Just cause.

(B) An employee who has not attained permanent status In the Career Servic.e
System shall not have access to the gnevanc.e procedure in ArtIcle 6 when dismissed.

(e) Each employee shall be furnist,ed a copy of all disCiplinary acticns placed rn his
official personnel file and shall be permItted to respond thereto.

(D) An employee may request that a PBA Staff R.epresentative be present dunng any
dlsciplmary investigation meeting rn whIch the employee IS being questioned relative
to alleged misconduct of the employee, or during a predetermrnation conference In
which suspension or dismissal of the employee is being conSidered.

(E) Letters of counselrng i:tre not disciplinary action and not grievable; documentatIon
or disCipline less severe than an oral reprimand shall not be used against any
employee In any fashion.

(F) Suspensions, Dismissal, Reductions In Pay, and DemlJtlons resulting in a loss of
pay may be challenged under Article 6 through arbitration. Oral reprimands, wntten
reprimands or other disCiplinary actions nlJt resulting In monetary loss are gnevable
to Step 2 only and not arbitrable. At arbitration over a suspension, dismissal,
reduction in pay, or demotion with a monetary loss an employee may challenge any
basIs relied upon by the Agency for taking the disCiplinary action.

Article 11
CLASSIFICATION REVIEW

(A) Except In case of an emergency, bargaining Unit t:!mployees shall not be required
to perform work not Included In the employee's POSition description.

(8) When an employee alleges that the employee IS being regularly required to
perform duties whIch are not included In the POSition description of the pOSitIOn being
filled by the employee, and the employee alleges that the duties assigned are not
Ineluded Within the broadband level to which the position IS allocated, the employee
may request that the agency head review the duties assigned to the employee's
position. The agency head or his designee shall review the dutIes as requested. The
employee will receive a copy of the deCISion.

(C) If the employee is not satisfied With the decision, the employee, With or Without
representation, may request review by the Secretary of the Department of
Management Services or hiS deSIgnee.

24



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Inoorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener ReVIsIons

(D) The decision of the Secretary of the Department of Management Services or his
designee as to the hroadband level of the position shall be final and binding on all
parties.

Article 12
PERSONNEL RECORDS

SECTION 1 - Personnel File

(A) There shall be only one official personnel file for each law enforcement employee,
which file shall be mamtaineci In the central personnel office of the employing agency
unless; a different locatton IS approved by the Secretary of the Department of
Management Services or his designee In accordance with applicable law. Duplicate
personnel files may be established and maintained within an agency. Such duplicate
personnel files may contain part or all of the Items filed in the offiCial personnel file,
but may not contain any Items which are not filed In the offiCial personnel file.

(6) If any derogatory material IS placed In a law enforcement employee's offiCial
personnel file, a copy will be sent to the employee. The law enforcement employee
Will have the right to answer any such matenal filed, and his answer will be attached
to the file copy.

(C) A law enforcement employee Will have the right to review hiS own official
personnel file and any duplicate personnel files at reasonable times under the
slJpervlsion of the deSignated records custodian.

(D) Where the Agency Head or hiS designee, the Department of Management
Services, the FlOrida Public Employees Relations Commission, the Courts, an
Arbitrator, or other statutory authority determines that a dl~clphnary action against
an employee 15 not sustained, or IS unfounded, or IS otherwise Invalid, or when an
employee is exonerated of a charge brought In a diSCiplinary action, the record copy
of such action shall be sealed In the file together with an explanation, stamped "NOT
VALID", and retained In the employee's personnel file for at least five (5) years after
final action as specified in the State of Florida General Records Schedule GSl for
State and Local Government Records, as promulgated by the Department of State;
prOVided, however, that the document shall be removed only upon the employee's
written request In accordance with the foregoing records schedule.

SECTION 2 - Privacy

The State and Its agencies recognize the fact that Law Eilforcement bargaining Unit
employees' home.· addresses, telephone numbers, photographs, places of
employment of the spouses and children and the names and locations of sc:hools
attended by the children of bargaining Unit members are exempt from disclosure
under the Public Records law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and shall not be
released except for a legitimate governmental purpose.

25



2010 - 2013 State ofFlonda & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener RevisIons

Article 13
SAFETY

SECTION 1 - Vehicle and Vessel Safety

Vehicles and vessels. used by bargaining Unit employees, whether Is~ued to the
employee or not, shall be mamtamed In safe operatmg condition by the State.

SECTION 2 - Firearms Safety

In order to promote safety in the use of firearms by Law Enforcement Bargammg
UnIt employees, the State will guarantee that each bargamlng Unit employee IS

allowed to fire his weapon In an approved Standards and Trammg Course at least
once every SIX (6) months, at no cost to employee. Such traming shall be for the
purpose of famillanzatlon m the use of firearms.

SECTION 3 - Consultation

The parties agree to form a Safety Committee With an equal number of PBA and
employer representatives, to study and recommend the purchase and maintenance
of minimal standards of safety equipment. The Committee shall conduct research
and penodically make recommendations to the State and/or appropnate agencies
with regard to:

(A) That all vehicles shall incorporate standard "police packages", power wmdows,
rear wmdow defoggers, and heated rearvlew mlrro,-.;;

(6) That all 4X4 vehicles be equipped With roll bars;

(C) That all vehicles and vessels shall have a lockmg gun rack.

(D) Crash barriers for inspection booths;

(E) Use of racilos by umformed personnel not assigned marked vehicles; and

(F) Other matters relating to equipment, vehicle, and vessel purchases;
Improvements to eXisting vehicles to enhance safety; trainrng; and other matters
relatl ng to safety.

The recommendations of the Committee shall be submitted m writmg to the
appropriate agency head who shall respond, m wntmg, With respect to each
recommendation. Rejection of any recommenaatioi1 shall include written Justification
for the reJection.

The parties agree to execute a Memorandum of Understanding setting forth the
composition and schedule for the Committee.

26



2010 - 201'3 State ofF1orida & PBA- Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012·2013 Reopener Rensions

Article 14
PERFORMANCE REVIEW

SECTION 1- Performance Reviews

(A) Performance reviews shall be conducted In accordance with Rule 60L-35, FlorIda
Administrative Code, Performance Evaluation System.

(B) Employees' performance shall be reviewed by their Immediate supervisors or
deSignated raters, who shall submit the proposed performance review to higher
management for approval.

(C) Numerical arrest, citation or violation quotas Will not be used as me"ffflfftiWf
fa€te.r-in reviewing employees' performance.

(D) The State Will continue to malnt.aln and Will make a good faith effort to train
supervisors in performance review t~chnlques.

(E) The performance review of an employee shall not he subj~ct to the Gnevance
Procedure of Article 6 of this Agreement unless the performance review IS relied
upon In whole or In part as the baSIS for a diSCiplinary actlCln under Article 10.

SECTION 2 - Agency Performance Reviews

The State agrees that each Agency's performance review system for bargaining Unit
employees shall adhere to the followmg standards.

(A) P~rformance reviews shall be based on al1 employe~'s actual job performanc~

and shall not conform to preconceived percentage dlstnbutions. When a numencal
scoring formula IS to be utilized by any agency, the evaluation form shall contain the
formula with blanks for insertion of the actual score~ that Will be used In reaching the
overall evaluation.

(13) Whenever practicable, an employee's performance shall be reviewed by a sworn
law enforc~ment officer.

SECTION 3 - Recruit Evaluation

Bargaintng Unit employees shall receive an evaluation from the academy upon
completion of recruit school. A copy of the evaluatIOn shall be forwarded to their Law
Enforcement Unit supervisor.

Article 15
SENIORITY

SECTION 1 - Definition

For the purpose of this Agreement, "seniority" shall be defined as continuou!:. service
in the Job classification; provided, however, that an employee shall be considered to
have a break in service when the employee separates, and is not on any payroll for
at least thirty-one (31) calendar days follOWing the separation.

27



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporate!'l20ll-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener ReyislOnS

SECTION 2 - Seniority Application

Except under extraordinary circumstances, vacations, ShiftS, shift transfers and
regular days off shall be scheduled with due regard for needs of the agency,
senlorrty, and bargaining Unit employee preference- The State and the PBA
understand that there may be times when the needs of the agency will not permit
such scheduling.

SECTION 3 - Vacation and Holiday Leave
Where practicable, leave of forty (40) contiguous hours or more, or for holidays
requested, shall be requested at least sixty (60) days In advance of such leave In

order that the provisions of thiS Article may be fully implemented; however, In
Implementing thiS provIsion nothing shall preclude an agency from making
reasonable acc.ommodatlons for extraordinary leave requests or ensuring the fair
dl'3tnbutlon of leave during favored holidays.

Article 16
EMPLOYMENT OUTSIDE STATE GOVERNMENT

For purposes of thIS Article, the following definitions are used:

(A) "Hlreback": Off duty pollc:e employment administered by the State.

(6) "Off-Duty Employment"; Any secondary employment undertaken while in an off
duty status which does not entail the use or Implied use of policy authority. Work of
thiS type provides no real or potential law enforcement services, and vested policy
powers are not a conditIon of employment.

(C) "Off-Duty Police Employment": Secondary employment undertaken while In order
than a duty status which entails actual or potential use of policy authonty and
reqUires police powers as a condition of employment.

SECTION 1 - Outside Employment - Non-Police Employment

(A) On the effective date of thiS Agreement, any bargaining Unit employee who is
performing il0n-police employment outside of State government, which employment
has not been previously approved, shall be subject to the prOVisions of Sec.tion l(B)
of thiS Artlde.

CB) If, during the term of thIS Agreement, an employee IS to accept new non-police
employment outside of State government, the employee shall notify hiS agency
head, or his deSignee, of such employment, prior to date of employment, and verify
that such non-police employment does not conflict with the employee's State
employment, or With the emplOYing agency's policies or procedures hmJtlng such
outSide employment, Should such confllct(s) be found to exist, outSide employment
shall be dIsapproved. Absent extenuating circumstances, a disapproval of a notice or
request for outSide non-police employment Will be communicated to the employee
within fourteen (14) calendar days of the notice or request. If extenuating
circumstances prevent a determination as to the appropnateness of the non-police
employment, the reasons for the delay Will be prOVided to the employee in writing.
In any event whenever the State determines that any outSide employment conflicts

28



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Umt Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener ReVIsions

with the employee's responsibilities connected with hiS state employment, the
outside employment may be disapproved and prohibited. Disapprovals of outside
employment shall be subject to the contract's expedited arbitration procedure.

(C) DUring the course of the employee's outside employment, an agency may make
reasonable inquIries of the employee to ensure that the employee's continued
outside employment does not constitute a conflict of interest, or Interfere with the
employee's primary dutl~s as a State law enforcement officer.

SECTION 2 - Outside Employment - Police Employment

(A) Any bargalntng Unit employee who wishes to perform police employment outside
of State government shall secure the reqUired approval In ad"ance m accordance
with the Rules of the State Personnel System, agency poliCies and procedures and
applicable law. It IS understood that permiSSion shall not be wIthheld as long as such
outside employment does not conflict with the employee's State employment or with
th€ Pomploymg agency's procedures limiting such outside employment.

(6) Requests for approval of outside employm~nt shall be acted upon In a timely
manner. Within 60 days of ratification of the contract the parties will inltlate
consultations on the amount of off~duty hours to be allowed. Absent ~xtenuatmg

circumstances, a disapproval will be communicated within fourteen (14) calendar
days of the submission Ilf the notice by the employee. In the event extenuating
circumstances prevent a determination with fourteen (14) calendar days, the reasons
for the delay WIll be provided in writing to the ~mployee. In any event a request can
be denied or an approval can be revoked whenever the State determines that a
conflict eXists between the employee's state employment and the outside
employment. Disapprovals of a request for outside employment shall be subject to
the contract's expedited arbitration procedure.

(C) DUring the course of the employee's outside employment. an agency may make
reasonable inquiries of the employee to ensure that the employee's continued
outside employment does not constitute a conflict of Interest, or Interfere with the
employee's primary dutIes as a State law enforcement officer.

(D) Each employee Will be permitted to wear hiS Uniform and personal equipment
and use hiS patrol car or vessel during approved off-duty police employment. Any
employe~ who deSires to seek such outside employment dUring his off-duty hours or
leave time will seek permiSSion from hiS agency whose decision will be In accordance
with the policy established by the agency on 5uch matters. Approval for such outside
employment Will be granted so long as It:

(1) Does not constitute a conflJct. of Interest;

(2) Does not interfere WIth the employee's primary duties as a State
law enforcement officer; and

(3) Within the duties and responsibilities the employee performs or
may reasonably be expected to perform as a part of hiS Job duties and
responsibIlities.

29



2010 - 2013 State ofFlonda & PBA. - La\\ Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener RtWISlons

(E) When required by the State, bargaining Unit employees who are utilizing State
equipment while performing police employment outSide of State employment shall
be responsible for all insurance relative to such outSide employment, includmg
workers' compensation, liability and \tehlcle Insurance, unless the employees are
engaged in activity as provided in Section 440.091, Florida Statutes.

SEcnON 3- Reimbursement of Costs

Use of a State vessel or vehicle in off-duty police employment shall be paid for by
the employee pursuant to the agency's current rate schedule or the agency's
estimated cost of operating the vessel OJ' vehicle, including all mileage on the vehicle
at the mileage rate established In Section 112.061, Florida Statutes.

Article 17
GROOMING STANDARDS

SECTION 1 - Haircuts

Haircuts will conform to the follOWing standards:

(A) Half on top of the head Will be neatly groomed. The length or bulk of the haIr will
not be excessive or present a ragged, unkempt appearance. When combed, It will
not fall over the ears or eyebrows, or touch the collar, except for the closely cut haIr
at the back of the neck:. The hair of Uniformed female members may touch the shirt
collar but not fall below the collar's edge and may cover a portion of the ear. Long
hair must be worn up In a neat, stylish manner which permits the wearing of the hat.
Conspicuous barrettes, pins or combs Will not be worn.

(6) If an employee desires to wear Sideburns, they will be neatly trimmed. The base
will be a clean shaven hOrizontal line. Sideburns Will not extend downward beyond
the lowest part of the exterior ear opening.

(C) The face will be clean shaven, except that if a mustache is worn it WIll be kept
neatly trimmed and tIdy. No portion extending beyond the corners of the mouth will
fall below a line parallel With the bottom of the lower lip.

SECTION 2 - Cosmetics and Jewelry

If worn, cosmetIcs shall be subdued and blended to match the natural skin color of
the individual. False eyelashes are prohlbltE:'d. Fingernails should be clear and
trimmed so as not to extend beyond the tips of the fingers. Fingernail polish, If worn,
shall be clear. Female officers may wear small post earnl1gs.

SECTION 3 - Permitted Variations

Variations In the grooming standards deSCribed in this Article may be permitted by
an agency when It deems that such variations are required by an employee's current
work assignment.

30



201 0 - 2U13 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Umt Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener ReVISIons

Article 18
HOURS OF WORK, LEAVE AND JOB-CONNECTED DISABILITY

The Parties specifically agree that the attendance and leave provisions as contained
In Chapter 60L-34, of the FlOrida Administrative Code, including the accrual, usage
and payment of sick and annual leave upon separation from Career Service
employment, shall apply to all Bargaining Unit employees. The State shall not
compel an employee to involuntarily use annual leave In circumstances where the
employee IS III or otherwise qualified for Sick leave. ThiS provIsion shall not apply In
instances of qualified family medical leave.

SECTION 1 - Workday

(A) Agencies shall not require an employee to split a workday Into two or more
segments Without the mutual agreement of the employee and the employer.

(B) Where an employee works hours In excess of their regular schedule the State
has the ability to adjust the employees schedule as long a!; it occur<;; Within the same
work period and provided the employee receives notice of the adjustment prior to
the commencement of the employee's adjusted shift for a 40-hour work period, or
24 hours notice for a 80-hour work period or 36 hours notice for a 160-hour work
period. The State will make a good faith effort to offset such extra hours In eight (8)
hour Increments.

SECTION 2 - Non-ReqUired Work Time

Law Enforcement Bargaining Unit employees shall not be reqUired to volunteer time
to the State. If records of voluntary time are kept by the State or ItS agencies, they
shall not be used to adversely affect performance reviews or promotions.

SECTION 3 - Work Schedule

(A) Where an employee has an established schedule, a change In workdays or shifts
Will be posted no less than fourteen (14) calendar days in advance and will reflect at
least a two (2) workweek schedule; however, the State will make a good faith effort
to reflect a ont! (1) month schedule.

(B) In the event of a declared emergency the notice requirement of thiS Section
may be void.

(C) The state will continue to observe the scheduling structures currently In place at
each agency and agrees to bargam any change in the overall practice of how
schedules are established.

SECTION 4 - Overtime

(A) The normal workweek for each full-time employee shall be forty (40) hours.

(B) Work beyond the normal workweek (lr approved extended period shall be
recognized In accordance with Chapter 60L-34, FlOrida Administrative Code;
provided, however, that when an emergency IS declared by the Governor and funds

31



2010 - 2013 State of Flonda & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporate8 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener ReVlsiom

are available, employees who are assIgned to the emergency area described m the
Governor's Executive Order shall be subject to a forty (40) hour workweek while so
assigned. The State and the PBA will cooperate to secure funds for the payment of
overtime to Unit employees m the situation descnbed herem. The State shall make a
reasonable effort to equalize distributIon of overtime opportunities.

(C) The PBA agrees to .support those changes in Chapter 60L-34, Florida
Administrative Code that may be required In order for the State to be in complIance
With the Fair Labor Standards Act as It IS applied to public employees, which the
State agrees to comply With.

SECTION 5 - FLSA Special Compensatory Leave

(A) If an agency has a plan approved In advance by the Department of Management
Services, FLSA speCial compensatory leave credits shall be granted, administered
and used as desCribed below:

(6) An employee who IS filling an Included POSition may, at the end of the approved
extended period, waive payment for overtime and have the overtime hours credited
to \'FLSA speCial compensatory leave." If such election is made, the: overtime hours
Will be credited as "FLSA speCial compensatory leave" credits at the rate of one and
one-half (1-1/2) hours for each hour of overtime worked. An employee Will only be
permitted to accumulate a maximum of one hundred (100) hours I)f "FLSA speCial
compensatory leave" credits which may be tak.en In any Increments at the
employe~'s discretion provided the FLSA compensatory leave is taken by June 30 or
December 31 of each year. The employee's request to utilize FLSA compensatory
leave shall be granted so long as grantmg the request would not result In "undue
disruption." If the FLSA compensatory leave IS not utilized by the employee by June
30 or December 31 of each year, all unused"'FLSA speCial compensatory leave"
credits at the close of busmess on December 31 and June 30 shall be paid for at the
employee's straight time regular hourly rate m accordance With Chapter 60L~34,

Florida Administrative Code, as amended. An employee who separates from the
Career Service or moves to another state agency shall be paid for all unused "FLSA
speCial compensatory leave" in accordance with the above.

(C) The parties agree that all law enforcement recruits shall be treated in the
manner deSCribed below With regard to FLSA compensatory leave:

(1) Law enforcement recruits undergomg training to attain Law
Enforcement Certification, or agency-specific orientation, Will be
exempt from the 100 hour cap on the earning of FLSA compensatory
leave credits and mandatory June 30 and December 31 payment
requirements during the time they attend an academy or education
Institution.

(2) Recruits may request up to 120 hours of FLSA leave upon graduation
from the academy or educational institution for the purpose of
relocating to their new assignment. Such leave must be authorized by
the recruit's agency. Recruits must use the accrued FLSA
compensatory leave credits before usmg regular annual leave.

32



2010 - 2013 State ofFlonda & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporate8 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revi8ions

(3) Any remaining FLSA compensatory leave credits shall be used within
the next sIx-month cycle, or paid for at the end of that cycle, as
presently provided for in Chapter GOL-34, Florida Administrative Code,
and Article 18, Section 6(A) of the Agreement.

SECTION 6 - Special Compensatory Leave TO BE DISCUSSED

fA) An eml;}loyec shall be eligible to eam slgeclOl cornpensatoFjl leave credits as a
result- ef hours wo~ke~ -&R-a hoh~a't; extFa'flw-fs~~ itIl estabhshc:d-wet'k
peftee· -whlCfl eeTtt:atRS .a-ltok5ay-ai- wfl.efl. a-. facHtty . ts- -de5ed--tJfl6er .F.xceutl't'e---9r-tief
5t:trlng emergency cendltlans.- When 00- emplovce lSi reEttJifea-te-"weW--tfl
~-i¥.3-setfeft-h tA-t:Rffl'i*ira~Faph,any SI;}CCla-t COmpeR$at~F'f lea.. , ear-P.ed
at--#le-eft6 ef the- '.....orkweek,-·we-rk peftOO,-t)f-extet=teee-wer·k-..pene6-,.-sflaH. * ..taifefl
~he mutuai agreement of lhe employcC'-eM U:te-~vtSe-f provided ·the-special
€&ffipensiltory -leave. tS·takef'l-Wtttlin slxt>~69t-~ €Ia.,.,.~ef-t~-* ffi5t
ffitte -#le- fa€thty-remained .c1ose~- t:fft6er-. ~xecuflve....effief·.· .. ··-"Fhereafteri- the·~taf
compensatory .JeavewllI he-seAeduled at:: the-EIlscFetlo",~visor. fhe 5tate
~ .. Ft6t .~-~~ <:~ePf-teave --eamea--Ett:tt"tng--a -work· perteti ·ffite-ro-ft
hohday--w+th- aflPFo't'eti--si€k Iett¥e ~--El-tH-fflg- tfte.-same-W&fk ~n6&-(;ff-aelffllnlst..attYe
.Jeaye-tJsed in the work:- fjeFIOa fer ~latieR5-PlJrSuaFltte-Afttde-~

{Bt·--b.vw-·EAferc~~ t:ffitt- Efflployces fflay,---ffi'·Hletr-~tefl;~:;e spncta-!
com~en5atery leEl t'e before tI:5i-Ag- ....a-a;rued annual~cretJlts.~"ffi~-es--wllIonly
'8e-pffl'ffiltted ~cumulate a· maximum -ef- two- ~undFed ClAd fefft-~40) ~IOU~S af
~a+-~4ea-ve-~~ts,

SECTION 7 - Sick Leave Pool and Sick Leave Transfer

Each agency shall set up and administer a sick: leave pool and Sick leavE transfer
plan for the Law Enforcement Bargaming Unrt employees If there IS suffICient
employee participation to render the pool and SIck leave transfer plan
administratively feasible. Employees shall be subject to the conditIons, and have full
access to the benefits, of the employing agency's eXIsting sick leave pool and sick
leave transfer plan,

SECTION 8 - Section 440.15(12), Florida Statutes - Full-Pay Status

(A) An employee who sustains a job-connected disabIlity and meets the eligibility
requirements, as provided for m Section 440.15(12), FlOrida Statutes, may be
carried in full-pay status.

(6) Any claim by an employee or the PBA concerning this Section shall not be
subject to the Grievance Procedure of thiS AgreemE!nt.

SECTION 9 - Chapter 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code- Disability Leave
With Pay

An employee who sustains a job-connected disability which IS not covered by Section
8 above, IS eligible for disability leave with pay under the provIsions of Chapter GOl'
34, Florida Administrative Code. The Agency Head or his designee shall not
unreasonably refuse to submit a request to carry an employee in full-pay status
under the prOVIsions of Chapter 60L-34, FlOrida AdministratIve Code, prOVided,

33



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener RevisIons

however, the Secretary of the Department of Management Services or his designee
shall have the right to determine whether or not an employee should be camed In

full-pay status for more than twenty-six (26) weeks. An employee shall not be
required to use accrued compensatory or annual leave in order to be eligible to be
camed in full-pay status under Chapter 60L-34, Flonda Administrative Code.
However, no employee shall be carned In full-pay status until he has utilized 100
hours of accumulated sick leave, annual leave, compensatory leave or leave without
pay.

SECTION 10 - Alternate Duty

(A) Where an employee IS eligible for disability leave with pay under Rules of the
State Personnel System as a result of an injury In the line of duty, and IS temporarily
unable to perform his normal work duties, the Agency Head or his designee shall
give due consideration to any request by the employee to be temporarily assigned
substItute duties within the employee's medical restrictions. Thi~ shall have no effect
en the agency's ability to make a different assignment based upon current medical
opInion.

(6) A complaint concerning this Section may be grieved in accordance with Article 6
of this Agreement up to and including Step 2. The deCISion of the Department of
t-lanagement Services shall be final and binding on all parties.

Article 19
PERSONAL PROPERTY - REPLACEMENT AND/OR REIMBURSEMENT

(A) Other than the employee's watch or prescription glasses, any personal property
subJect to replacement or reimbursement pursuant to this article must be approved
In advance by the Agency as being required by the employee to adequately perform
the duties of his/her position.

(B) Thereafter, an employee who, while on duty and acting Within the scope of
employment, suffers the damage, destruction or loss of hiS or her watch, presc.nptlon
glasses, or other personal property approved pursuant to Paragraph (A), Will be
reimbursed, have such property repaired, or have such property replaced With an
Item which IS of the same or a Similar qualIty, as described in this Article; prOVided,
however, that:

(1) the Agency has the option to deCide whether a speCific piece of
property IS repaired versus replaced; and

(2) the employee shall not be reimbursed or have property repaired or
replaced If the Agency determines that the damage, destructIon or loss
resulted from the employee's negligence.

(C) An employee who wants to be reimbursed or have personal property repaired or
replaced must:

(1) File a written report detailing the circumstances under which the
property was damaged, destroyed or lost; and

34



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(2) Document the amount expended to repair or replace such
property.

(D) After meeting the conditions desCribed above, the Agency head or designee shall
authOrize reimbursement not to exceed the folloWing amounts:

Watch - $75

PreSCription glasses - $200 (includmg any required examination)

Other Items - the Agency head or designee shall have final authOrity
to determine the reimbursement value of any Items other than
watches or prescription glasses.

Total allowable per inCident - $500.

Article 20
TRAINING AND EDUCATION

SECTION 1 - Law Enforcement Supervisors' Training

The State and the PBA recognize the Importanc.e of supervisor training programs to
develop management skills In our law enforcement supervisors. The State Will make
a rl:!asonable effort to continue existmg training programs In law enforcement
teChniques and to develop new programs In performance review techniques,
sllpervisory skills and managerial techniques.

SECTION 2 - Educational Assistance Plan

The State shall provide up to SIX (6) credit hours of tUition-free courses per term at a
state uillverslty or community college to full-time employeeS on a space available
basIs as authOrized by law. DUring the term of this agreement, and subject to
additional funding, the Governor agrees to seek approval of the Legislature to
cOl1tinue the eXisting program for the prOVISion of tuitIon-free courses.

Article 21
ACTING RANKS

SECTION 1 - Eligibility

Each time an employee IS officially designated by the appropriate supervisor to act In

a higher broadband level than the -employee's permanent broadband level, and
actually performs said duties for a period of more than twenty-two (22) workdays,
withm any six (6) consecutive months, the employee shall be eligible for a
promotIOnal pay increase to the higher broadband level as prOVided m the Rules of
the State Personnel System.

35



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Urnt Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener ReVISIons

SECTION 2 - Method of Compensation

It IS understood by the parties that, insofar as pay IS concerned, employees
temporarily filling a position in a higher broadband level shall be paid according to
the same compensation method as permanent promotees under the Rules of the
State Personnel System.

SECTION 3 - Return to Regular Rate

Employees being paid at a higher rate while temporarily filling a position In a higher
broadband level Will be returned to their regular rate of pay when the period of
temporary employment !n the hIgher broadband level IS ended.

,!Article 22
'MeANT RETIREMENT

*Hold open Q.er.dlng decIsion of the Flcrida SU2remc Court Ul the case pf R!ck. Scott,
et aLv. G~orge Wlllla(l}$~et al. .._Case No. SC12:·520 ..

Article 23
EQUIPMENT

SECTION 1 - NEW VEHICLES

Newly purchased pursuit vehldes for Uniformed patrol shall be police package
eqUipped by the manufacturer as prOVided by current State of FlOrida contract
specifications for pursuit vf:!hicles.

SECTION 2 - HIGH VISIBILITY LIGHTS

Each agency shall utilize high visibility lights as dictated by agency needs.

Article 24
ON-CALL ASSIGNMENT - CALL-BACK - COURT APPEARANCE

SECTION 1 - Definition

On-call assignment shall be a5 defined In the Rules of the State Personnel System.

SECTION 2 - Request for On-Call Pay

When an employee is required by appropriate management to be on call, a request
for on-call payment under Chapter 60L-32, FlOrida Administrative Code, shall be
submitted by the agency for approval. The Secretary of Management Services or his
deSignee shall not unreasonably withhold approval of such request.

36



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Vmt Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

SECTION 3 - On-Call Fee

(A) When approved as provided herem, employees who are reqUired to be on call
shall be compensated by payment of a fee In an amount of not less than one dollar
($1.00) for each hour such employee IS required to be available.

(6) Employees who are required to be on call on a Saturday, Sunday and/or a
holiday as listed in Section 110.117, Flonda Statutes, will be compensated by
payment of a fee in an amount equal to one-fourth (1/4) of the statewide minimum
for the employee's class for each eight (8) hour penod such employee IS required to
be available.

SECTION 4 - Call-Back

A law enforcement employee called out to work at a time not contiguous with the
employee's scheduled hours of work shall be credited for actual time worked, or a
minimum of four (4) hours, whichever IS greater. The rate of compensation shall be
In accordance With the Rules of the State Personnel System.

SECTION 5 - Court Appearances

If a law enforcement employee IS subpoenaed to appear as a witness in a job-related
court case, not dunng the employee's regularly assigned shift, the employee shall be
credited for actual time worked, or a minimum of two and one-half (2-1/2) hours,
whichever is greater.

Article 25 2912 Legislative IMl'asSe Resetluti., ..
WAGES

SECTION 1 - Pay Provision~- General

(A) Pay shall be m accordance WIth the Fiscal Year ~}.. :MH-~2(l13·~OJ.:t General
Appropnattons Act~J!lld_a,s-nr9Uded n.(;"[yin;

L __EfYecth.:£ll:!h 1, 201 ~~l_~umQYee8 shall _hi1"~ thw hase Bile of
IDLY increased by si·lle.ry~nt!6%).

~-:-.__ Efft'ctlve _.Oct~Pcr_l~~_Qll..._all .. em...p-19.Y~cs_ w:itlL~~,:ycn ill
contmuous year~ of service JlS a law enforyement officC!-with the State and a
"meet~ standards" .Q..erformanc~ evaluation shall receive !i three rercentJ3%L~~

internal p~r~lJ.tlOnshm..adlust.llent ill_ theit: ~.,!§~_~£l.!~.Qfl2..ay~ Should an emplcy~s:

reacl! the~y.~Il.i1tyears_of se.rvlc~ leveL~1Jb8~l].! to f)c!9Q9f ~.70l) •. the
employee shall receive th~ same tnJemal RID". relationship adjustmCllt.

37



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener RevIsions

(B) Increa'Ses to base. rate ofpay and salary addiuye8 shall be in accordance with state
law and the FI8Cal Year 2012-2013 General Appropnations Act.

SECTION 2 -Pay Provisions

Based on an agency's determmatlOn that sufficient funds and salary rate are available, the
State and PBA agree:

(A) When an agency grants an mcrease to an employee's base rate of pay, the new
ba!Se rate of pay shall be. WIthin the broadband level and m acoordance WIth SectIon
216.251(3), Florida Statutes. If an agenc)t determines that an increase to base rate of pay
IS to be granted based on one of the categones below, the following amounts of mcrease
shall be granted'

1.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

Outstandmg Job Performance Ratmg- up to 8%;

Added Duties and Respon81blhties - up to 8%;

EducatIon anti Traming - up to 8%;

Reassignment - up to 8%,

Transfer - up to 12%,

CompetItive Job Offer - up to a level to be competItlve;

Internal Pay RelatlonshIps - ~ necessary and ,Jlithin the funds
available.

(B) Salary additive8 shall be Implemented in accordance WIth the General
AppropriatIons Act and state law, Including Section 110.2035(6)(c), Honda Statutes and
Section 216 25l(3) Florida Statutes.

An Agency may assign one of the following job dunes to an omlpluyee If an Agency
grants a salary addItive to an employee, which must be In accordance with the law, the
following amount'S of increase shall be granted.

1. Leadworker - up to 5~'o of the broadband mimmum;

2 Temporary Special Duty - up to 15% of the employee's base
rate of pay,

3. Trainer - up to 15% of the broadband mimmum;

38



2010 - 2013 State of Flonda & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

4. Hazardous Duty-up to 15% of the broadband mmimum.

(C) If an Agency elects to grant an increase or additive lugheI than those
proVIded m paragraphs (A) or (B), the Dmon will be notified

SECTION 3 - Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency

In accordance WIth the authority pmuded m the FIscal Year 2012-2013 General
AppropriatIOns Act, and contIngent upon the availability of funds and at the agency
head's dlscretion~ each agency IS authorized to grant a temporary specIal duties pay
addItrv~ of up to 15 percent of the employee's base rate of pay to each employee
temporarily deployed to a facIlity or area closed due to emergency condItioDS; from
another area of the state that is not closed.

SECTION 4 - Cash Payout of Annual Leave

Permanent Career Service etnployees may be gLven the optIon of receiving up to twenty
four (24) hours of unused annual leave each December m the fonn of a cash payout,
subject to, and m acc()ldance with. Section 110 219(7), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 5 - Performance Pay

Each agency is authonzed to grant ment pay increases based on the employee'8
eJ(etnplary pel'formance, as evidenced by a perfolmance evaluatIon conducted purSUd.Dt to
Rule 60L-35) Flonda AdminIstrative Code.

SECTION 6 - Savings Sharing Program

An employee or groups of employees may be elIgIble for monetary award8 for ide~ or
programs that result in a cost saVll1g to the state, pursuant to section 110.1245(1), Florida
Statutes.

Article 26
UNIFORMS AND ACCESSORIES

SECTION 1 ~ Uniform - Standard Issue

(A) All Law Enforcement Bargamlng Unit employees shall receive a standard Issue of
uniforms (wmter and summer) and Uniform accessories. If the uniforms are to be
replaced, the State will study the feaSibility of replacmg them With quality wash and
wear uniforms.

(5) The State shall prOVide uniforms for its female officers in the appl-opnate Sizes,
deSigned and cut for females. If a female officer IS reqUIred to wear a bullet proof
vest, it shall be deSigned and fitted for a female.

39



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PB A - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporate8 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener RevisIons

SECTION 2 - Uniform Accessories

Uniform accessories will include the following minimum requirements:

(A) Gun belt, either 2-1/4 Inches or 3 Inches as appropriate for the individual officer.

(6) An employee who currently has, and who has been trained rn the use of, a cross
draw holster, shall be permitted to continue to utilize that type of holster. All other
employees will be Issued a strong-hand holster.

(C) Spare ammunition, and an appropriate case.

(D) Where hand-held radios are provided, they will be sUitable for law enforcement
use.

(E) Each agency that prOVides bullet proof vests to Law enforcement bargaining Unit
employees will develop a policy for replacement upon expiration of the guaranteed
life of the vest as expressed by the manufacturer at the time of purchase.

(F) Each agen<..y will select and provu1e to each employee at least one Intermediate
force weapon, as determrned appropriate by the agency, and provide training In the
use of such weapon.

SECTION 3 - Uniform and Clothing Maintenance Allowance

The State will provide Unit employees who are furnished and required by the State to
wear a uniform, or those employees of thiS Unit assigned to full-time plain clothes
positions, a marntenance, clothrng and shoe allowance In the amount of
$590~OO7S0.0Qannually, u.... less laundry and dry c1eanrng facIlities are available and
the service IS furnished by the agency Without cost to the employees.

Article 27
INSURANCE BENEFITS

SECTION 1 - State Employees Group Insurance Program

The State agrees to adminIster the State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance
Plan rn accordance With any statutory prOVISIon or Act affecting the plan or Its
operatlon-:- at fl.9 aq<;!l!lQ(lflLc..Q..sts.in. ~.Q..-.D_ay-,'TlI~.JJt!?-9L..IJ.e..9ttt.un.s.lmlll~~.pr~ml!Jm~_tQ. t.b.e
employee.

SECTION 2 - Death In-Line-Ot-Duty Benefits

(A) Funeral and burial expenses will be as prOVided in Section 112.19, FlOrida
Statutes.

(6) Education benefits will be as provided in Section 112.19, Flonda Statutes.

40



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Re"lSlons

(C) State Employees Group Health Self-Insuranc.e Plan premium for the
employee's surviVing spouse and children will be as provided in Section 110.123,
Flonda Statutes.

(D) Any complaint or claim by an employee or the PBA concerning this Section
shall not be sUbject to the Grievance Procedure of thIS Agreement.

Article 28
TRAVEL EXPENSES

SECTION 1 - Payment of Travel Vouchers

With the prior approval of the agency head, travel expensec; of employp.es Incurred in
the performance of a public purpose authorized by law WIll be paId In accordance
with Section 112.06l, Florida Statutes. The State Will make a good faith effort to pay
travel vouchers Within thIrty (30) days after they have been properly submitted.
Vouchers are conSidered submitted when the employee submits them to the local
official deSignated by management to receive such vouchers.

SECTION 2 - Emergency Travel

(A) When an emergency. such as it hUrricane, arises that requires the agency to
temporarily assign employees With less than forty-eIght (48) hours notice, the
agency will make a good faith effort to officially notIfy employees of the temporary
assignment. Such notification may be In person, by telephone, by radiO, or In writing.

(6) When an emergency arises requiring temporary personnel assignment with less
than forty-eIght (48) hours' notice, the State agrep.s to make the necessary payment
to th~ vendor for lodging for such employees. The employee shall have no
responsibility to make such payments to the vendor. Travel vouchers WIll be
submitted as reqUired In Section 1 above.

SECTION 3 - Mileage Allowance

The State agrees to seek continued funding to prOVide for the payment of a mileage
allowance for the u~e of privately-owned vehIcles for official travel at the rate
prOVIded In Section 112.061(7)(d)1., Flonda Statutes.

Article 29
DRUG TESTING

(A) The State and the PBA agree to drug testing of bargaining unit employees In
accordance with Section 112.0455, FlOrida Statutes, the Drug-free Workplace Act.

(6) All classes covered by this Agreement are deSignated special risk classes for drug
testing purposes. SpeCial risk means employees who are reqUired as a condition of
employment to be certified under Chapter 633 or Chapter 943, Florida Statutes.

(C) An employee shall have the right to grieve any diSCiplinary action taken under
Section 112.0455, the Drug-Free Workplace Act, subject to the limitatIons on the

41



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-201'3 Reopener RevisIons

gnevabltity of diSCiplinary actions in Article 10. If an employee is not disciplined but
is de.nled a demotion, reassignment or promotion as a result of a positive confirmed
drug test, the employee shall have the right to grieve such action in accordance with
Article 6.

Article 30
NO STRIKE

SECTION 1 - No Strike Agreement

Neither the PBA nor any of Its officers or agents nor members covered by this
Agreement, nor any other employees covered by thiS Agreement, will instigate,
promote, sponsor, or engage In any prohibited activities as defined in Section
447.203(6), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 2 - Penalty

Any or all employees who Violate any provision of thiS law prohibiting strikes or of
this Article will be subject to disciplinary action up to and Including discharge, and
any such diSCiplinary action by the State shall not be subJ<ec:t to the Grievance
Procedure established herE."in.

Article 31
STATE PERSONNEL SYSTEM RULES

All pay and benefits provIsions published IrI the Rules of the State Personnel System
which cover employees In the bargaming Unit and which are not specifically prOVided
for or modified by this Agreement shall continue m effect dUring the term of this
Agreement.

Article 32
MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

The PBA agrees that the Stale has and Will contmue to retain, whether exercised or
not, the right to determine Unilaterally the purpose of ear.h of Its constituent
agencies, set standards of services to be offered to the public, and exercise control
and discretion over Its organization and operations. It is also the right of the public
employer to direct its employee!., take diSCiplinary action for proper cause, and
relieve its employees from duty because of lack of work or for other legitimate
reasons, except as abridged or modified by the express provisions of this
Agreement; provided, however, that the exercise of such rights shall not preclude an
employee or employee representative from raising a grievance on any such deciSion
which violates the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

42



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
IncOlporatefs 2011-2012 and 201.2-2013 Reopener RevIsIons

Article 33
ENTIRE AGREEMENT

SECTION 1 - Agreement/Reopeners

This Agrp,ement, upon ratification, supersedes and cancels all prior practices and
agreements, whether written or oral, unless expressly stated to the contrary herein,
and constitutes the complete and entire agreement between the parties, and
concludes collective b2l.rgalning for Its term.

The parties acknowledge that, during the negotiations which resulted In this
Agreement, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and
proposals with respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from the area of
collective bargaining, and that the understandings and agreements arrived at by the
parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in thiS
Agreement.

The State and the PBA agree that changes In any four (4) artlc:Jes within thiS
Agreement that the PBA or the State deSire to reopen, plus any articles which
provide for a study by the State and the PBA, shall be subject to negotiatIOns for
Fiscal Year WH--2-t»2.~Q.l~.:2_0l:>.

The State and the PBA further agree that changes In any four (4) articles within thic;
Agreement that the PBA or the State deSIre to reopen, plus any articles which
provide for a study by the State and the PBA, shall be subject to negotiations dUring
the second year of this Agreement for Fiscal Year ~~-20{3-2015-2C116.

Except as to the above subjects, the State and the PBA, for the duration of thiS
Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right, and each agrees that
the other shall not be obligated to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or
matter referred to, or covered In thiS Agreement, even though such subjects or
motters may not have been within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both
of the parties at the time they negotiated or signed this Agreement.

SECTION 2 - Memorandum of Understanding/Settlements

The Parties recognize that dunng the term of thiS Agreement Situations may arrse
which require that terms and conditions not speCifically and clearly c;et forth in the
Agreement must be clarified or amended. Under such circumstances, the PBA IS
speCifically authorized by bargaining Unit employees to enter into the settlement of
grievance dlspLltes or memorandum of understanding which c1arrfies or amends thiS
Agreement, without haVing to be ratified by bargaining Unit members.

Article 34
SAVINGS CLAUSE

If any provision of this Agreement, or the application of such provision, should be
rendered or declared invalid, unlawful, or not enforceable, by any court action or by
reason of any existing or subsequently enacted legislation; or If the appropriate
governmental body, having amendatory power to change a law, rule or regulation

43



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Vnit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and20l2-2013 Reopener ReVIsIons

which IS m conflict with a provIsIon of this Agreement, fails to enact or adopt an
enabling amendment to make the provIsion effective, In accordance with Section
447.309(3), Florida Statutes; th~n such provision shall not be applicalJle, performed
or enforced, but the remaining parts or portions of this Agreement shall remam In

full force and effect for the term of thiS Agreement.

Article 35
DURATION

SECTION 1 - Term

ThiS Agreement shall be effective upon ratificatIon, and shall remam In full forca and
effect through the thirtieth day of June 2ftl-3~..Q16. Either party may reopen up to
four (4) Articles per contract year. Either party may reopen these Articles by
providing written notice Within the thirty (30) days prior to September 1 of the
contract year. This Agreement shall be automatically renewed from year to year
thereafter, unless either party shall notify the other in writing on or before
September 1 of each year that it deSires to change or modify thiS Agreement. ThiS
Agreement shall remam In fIJII force and be effective during the period of negotiation
and may be extended m the manner set forth in the follOWing paragraph.

In the event that the State and the PBA fail to secure a successor Agreement prior to
the expiration date of this Agreement, the parties may mutually agree In wrltmg to
extend thiS Agreement for any period of lime.

In the event that either party deSires to termmate or modify thiS Agreement, written
notice must be given to the other party not less than ten (10) days prior to the
desired termination date, which shall not be before the anniversary date set forth in
the precedIng paragraph.

SECTION 2 - Notices

Notrces hereunder shall be given by registered or certified mall, and if by the State
shall be addressed to the Flonda Police Benevolent Association, Inc. at 300 East
Brevard Street, Tallahassee, FII,)r1da 32301 and if by the PBA shall be addressed to
the Office of the Secretary and the Office of the General Counsel, Department of
Management SerVices, 4050 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, FlOrida 32399-0950. Either
party may: by a like written notice, change the address to which such notice shall be
given. NotIces shall be conSidered to have been given as of the date shown on the
postmark.

SECTION 3 - Emergencies

If it is determined that Civil emergency conditions exist, including, but not limited to,
nots, ciVil disorders, hUrricane conditions, or similar catastrophes, the proviSions of
thiS Agreement may be suspended by the Governor or a State agency head during
the time of the declared emergency, prOVided that wage rates and monetary fnnge
benefits shall not be suspended. It IS understood that a declared emergency may be
limited to speCific geographiC areas, in which case suspension of the terms of thiS

44



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener ReVIsions

Agreement as provided above, would apply only to those bargaining Unit employees
permanently or temporarIly assigned to such areas.

Article 36
AWARDS

A. MEDAL OF VALOR

The State may recognize heroIc conduct with an award of valor. The crlterra for
awardmg a medal of valor is as defined at Section 112.194 FlOrida Statutes. A
medal of valor may be accompanied by a monet",ry award up to $250.00.

B. RETIREMENT AWARDS

1. Retirement awards for elIgible employees who retire from the State Retirement
System with substantial service to an agency of the State of Florida, including the
badge worn by him or her, the emplt)yee's service revolver or pistol, If one had been
Issued as part of the employee's eqUipment, and an Identification card clearly
marked "RETIRED" shall be as provided m Section 112.193, FlOrida Statutes.

2. The State may grant awards, certrficates and other recognition pursuant to FlOrida
Statutes, Sectiol' 110.1245(3) to retiring employees whose service to the State has
been satisfactory, In appreciation and recognitIOn of such service .. The cost for such
awards shall not exceed $100.00.

c. RECOGNITION AWARDS

The State may grant awards, certificates and other recognition to employees who
demonstrate satisfactory servIce to the State In appreCiation and recognition of such
service. The cost for such tokens of recognitIOn shall not exceed $100.00.

45



2010 - 2013 State ofFlonda & PBA - Law Enforcement Umt Agreement
Incorporates 2011~2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revi8i.Ons

APPENDIX A
LAW ENFORCEMENT UNIT - CBU Code 06

Class Class Title
Code

5497 Youth Custody Officer
8515 Law Enforcement Officer
8517 Law Enforcement Corporal
8519 Law Enforcement Sergeant
8528 Law Enforcement Wildlife Inspector
8532 Law Enforcement Airplane Pilot I
8534 Law Enforcement Airplane Pilot II
8540 Law Enforcement Investrgator I
8541 Law Enforcement Investigator II

NOTE: The above classes have been designated specIal risk for drug testing purposes
under Chapter 60L-19, Florida Administrative Code. "Special risk" means employees
who are required as a condition of employment to be certified under Chapter 633 or
Chapter 943, Florida Statutes.

46



Police Benevolent A8S<ICtabon (PBA) • l.aw Enforcement Unit CBU 06 ECG)nomic Proposals
Fiscal Year 2013-2&14

Estimated
CommentsUnionllssue

CO$t
Costs calculated with a 6% increase on each position's current base

Article 25(1)(A)(1): Effective July 1, 2013, 6%
$3,681,570 rate salary. Includes filled and vacant positions. Source used for

Competitive Pay Adjustment
calculation is LAS/PBS. Costinn nrenared bv OPB.

fJUtiCTe "'" ,",.."./: cneCtive October 1, 2U1;$, all Calculation is based on current active employees and excludes
bargaining unit employees with seven (7)

vacancies and those not yet having 7 years ($625,946) and those
conitinuous years of service will receive a 3

$674,115
completing their 7th year between Oct 1 and June 30, 2014 ($48,169).

percent (3%) experience adjustment to their base
People First was the source of data for calculation- annualized for 9

rate of pay. Should an employee reach the 7 years
months (a full year would cost $834,594). Assumes all employees

of level subsequent to October 1, 2013, they shall
have a "meet standards" performance evaluation.

• ". ~~~n _ ... : .".~"".

Article 26(2): Increases the clothing allowance
$328,250

Costing prepared by OPB using all members in the unit including
from !l:500 to !l:750 annuallv. vacant Dositions (1 313 FTEI at !l:250 each.

The Governor'S Recommended Buaget for Fiscal Year~S:20~4has
Article 27(1): Propose thatthe State agrees to

not been completed at this time. Any additional cost to the collectiveadminister the State Employee Group Health Self-
bargaining member will be based on recommendations for state

Insurance Plan at no additional costs in co- Indeterminate
employee benefits in the Governor's Recommended Budget for Fiscal

payments or health insurance premiums to the
Year 2013-2014. State employee wage and benefit recommendations

employee. I...m ...", I "'~ '" I..'~r r1..t~
[Affu:re'llJ{6T: MOdifies speCial compleave ro
allow for payments of accumulated leave at the
employee'S straight time regular hourly rate after
June 30th and Dec 31st. Special comp may also

Indeterminate
To be Discussedbe paid in the amount of 8 hours for each year of

but significant
service up to a total of 40 hrs per year. Prohibits
the requirement to use special comp in lieu of
annual leave if conversion of annual leave into

',t- .- . .. -Article 21: Retirement- hold open pending Indeterminate
To be Discussed

decision of the Florida Sunreme Court. but sianificant

Page 1 of 1



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

L
aw

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 T
hr

ee
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
 –

 1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

 
A

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
  A

rt
ic

le
s 6

, 7
, 8

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

4,
 1

5,
 1

6,
 1

8,
 2

1,
 2

2,
 2

4,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 a

nd
 3

1 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
6 

– 
G

rie
va

nc
e 

Pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

23
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 Pr
op

os
es

 a
 g

rie
va

nc
e 

fo
rm

 fo
r A

pp
en

di
x 

B
 

an
d 

a 
re

qu
es

t f
or

 a
rb

itr
at

io
n 

fo
rm

 fo
r 

A
pp

en
di

x 
C

 o
f A

gr
ee

m
en

t, 
 if 

a 
co

nt
ra

ct
 la

ng
ua

ge
 g

rie
va

nc
e 

is
 n

ot
 

re
so

lv
ed

 a
t S

te
p 

2 
of

 G
rie

va
nc

e 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 m
ay

 su
bm

it 
th

e 
gr

ie
va

nc
e 

to
 

th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f M
an

ag
em

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s, 

St
ep

 3
, f

or
 re

vi
ew

, 
 th

e 
pa

rti
es

 m
ay

 b
y 

w
rit

te
n 

ag
re

em
en

t 
su

bm
it 

a 
gr

ie
va

nc
e 

fo
r m

ed
ia

tio
n 

af
te

r i
t i

s 
su

bm
itt

ed
 to

 a
rb

itr
at

io
n 

bu
t b

ef
or

e 
a 

he
ar

in
g 

is
 sc

he
du

le
d,

 a
nd

 
 Pa

rti
es

 m
ay

, b
y 

w
rit

te
n 

ag
re

em
en

t, 
su

bm
it 

a 
gr

ie
va

nc
e 

fo
r m

ed
ia

tio
n 

af
te

r i
t i

s 
su

bm
itt

ed
 to

 a
rb

itr
at

io
n 

bu
t b

ef
or

e 
a 

he
ar

in
g 

is
 sc

he
du

le
d;

 e
xp

ed
ite

d 
ar

bi
tra

tio
n 

he
ar

in
g 

be
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 w
he

re
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 
th

re
sh

ol
d 

is
su

e 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

ar
bi

tra
bi

lit
y 

(s
uc

h 
as

 ti
m

el
in

es
s)

; a
no

th
er

 a
rb

itr
at

or
 w

ill
 h

ea
r 

su
bs

ta
nt

iv
e 

is
su

es
. 

  

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

      St
at

e’
s p

ro
po

sa
l e

ns
ur

es
 

D
M

S’
 S

te
p 

3 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

co
nt

ra
ct

 la
ng

ua
ge

 
gr

ie
va

nc
es

, c
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
.  

If
 

th
e 

gr
ie

va
nc

e 
is

 n
ot

 
re

so
lv

ed
 a

t S
te

p 
3,

 th
e 

un
io

n 
m

ay
 re

qu
es

t 
ar

bi
tra

tio
n.

 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

L
aw

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 T
hr

ee
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
 –

 1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

 
A

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
  A

rt
ic

le
s 6

, 7
, 8

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

4,
 1

5,
 1

6,
 1

8,
 2

1,
 2

2,
 2

4,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 a

nd
 3

1 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
7 

– 
In

te
rn

al
 

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
23

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

C
la

rif
ie

s t
ha

t w
he

n 
em

pl
oy

ee
 is

 p
la

ce
d 

on
 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
le

av
e 

w
ith

 p
ay

, s
uc

h 
le

av
e 

sh
al

l b
e 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 

Sy
st

em
 R

ul
e 

60
L-

34
, F

.A
.C

. 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

 

A
rti

cl
e 

8 
– 

W
or

kf
or

ce
 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

23
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 C
la

rif
ie

s t
ha

t l
ay

of
f r

ig
ht

s p
er

ta
in

 to
 

em
pl

oy
ee

s w
ith

 p
er

m
an

en
t s

ta
tu

s i
n 

th
ei

r 
cu

rr
en

t p
os

iti
on

. 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 
    

St
at

e’
s p

ro
po

sa
l c

om
po

rts
 

w
ith

 S
ta

te
 P

er
so

nn
el

 
Sy

st
em

 R
ul

e 
60

L-
33

, 
F.

A
.C

. 

A
rti

cl
e 

9 
– 

R
ea

ss
ig

nm
en

t, 
Tr

an
sf

er
, C

ha
ng

e 
in

 D
ut

y 
St

at
io

n 
an

d 
Pr

om
ot

io
n 

          

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
23

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

C
la

rif
ie

s t
ha

t e
m

pl
oy

ee
s w

ho
 a

re
 

pe
rm

an
en

t i
n 

th
ei

r c
ur

re
nt

 p
os

iti
on

 sh
al

l 
ha

ve
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 to

 re
qu

es
t a

nd
 b

e 
se

le
ct

ed
 

fo
r v

ac
an

t p
os

iti
on

s. 
 

 C
la

rif
ie

s d
ef

in
iti

on
 o

f r
ea

ss
ig

nm
en

t, 
tra

ns
fe

r, 
pr

om
ot

io
n,

 a
nd

 d
em

ot
io

n.
   

    

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

            

       St
at

e’
s p

ro
po

se
d 

de
fin

iti
on

s c
om

po
rt 

w
ith

 
de

fin
iti

on
s i

n 
se

ct
io

n 
11

0.
10

7,
 F

.S
. 

  



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

L
aw

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 T
hr

ee
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
 –

 1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

 
A

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
  A

rt
ic

le
s 6

, 7
, 8

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

4,
 1

5,
 1

6,
 1

8,
 2

1,
 2

2,
 2

4,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 a

nd
 3

1 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
9 

– 
R

ea
ss

ig
nm

en
t, 

Tr
an

sf
er

, C
ha

ng
e 

in
 D

ut
y 

St
at

io
n 

an
d 

Pr
om

ot
io

n 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
                       

Se
ct

io
n 

2(
D

): 
 S

ta
tu

s Q
uo

. 
     Se

ct
io

n 
2(

E)
:  

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

            C
la

rif
ie

s t
ha

t p
ro

m
ot

io
na

l v
ac

an
ci

es
 a

re
 

th
os

e 
va

ca
nc

ie
s i

n 
th

e 
La

w
 E

nf
or

ce
m

en
t 

O
cc

up
at

io
n 

C
od

e 
33

-3
05

1.
 

 C
la

rif
ie

s t
ha

t e
m

pl
oy

ee
s a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 to
 a

 
po

si
tio

n 
m

us
t s

uc
ce

ss
fu

lly
 c

om
pl

et
e 

at
 le

as
t 

a 
on

e-
ye

ar
 p

ro
ba

tio
na

ry
 p

er
io

d 
to

 a
tta

in
 

pe
rm

an
en

t s
ta

tu
s i

n 
th

ei
r c

ur
re

nt
 p

os
iti

on
. 

Se
ct

io
n 

2(
D

): 
 St

rik
es

 –
 “

or
 w

he
re

 re
as

si
gn

m
en

t i
s n

ot
 

in
 th

e 
be

st
 in

te
re

st
s o

f t
he

 a
ge

nc
y.

” 
  Se

ct
io

n 
2(

E)
: 

 H
iri

ng
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

sh
al

l n
or

m
al

ly
 fi

ll 
a 

pe
rm

an
en

t v
ac

an
cy

 w
ith

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 
w

ho
 h

as
 th

e 
gr

ea
te

st
 le

ng
th

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 in

 
th

e 
oc

cu
pa

tio
na

l l
ev

el
 a

nd
 w

ho
 h

as
 a

 
R

eq
ue

st
 fo

r R
ea

ss
ig

nm
en

t F
or

m
 o

n 
fil

e 
fo

r t
he

 c
ou

nt
y 

in
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

va
ca

nc
y 

ex
is

ts
, u

nl
es

s t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

fo
rm

al
ly

 d
is

ci
pl

in
ed

, r
ec

ei
ve

d 
a 

“b
el

ow
 

st
an

da
rd

s”
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
or

 
pl

ac
ed

 o
n 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

pl
an

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
pa

st
 c

al
en

da
r y

ea
r. 

 

                   St
at

e’
s p

ro
po

sa
l c

om
po

rts
 

w
ith

 se
ct

io
n 

11
0.

21
7,

 F
.S

. 
    St

at
e’

s p
ro

po
sa

l c
om

po
rts

 
w

ith
 se

ct
io

n 
11

0.
21

7,
 F

.S
. 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

L
aw

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 T
hr

ee
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
 –

 1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

 
A

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
  A

rt
ic

le
s 6

, 7
, 8

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

4,
 1

5,
 1

6,
 1

8,
 2

1,
 2

2,
 2

4,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 a

nd
 3

1 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
9 

– 
R

ea
ss

ig
nm

en
t, 

Tr
an

sf
er

, C
ha

ng
e 

in
 D

ut
y 

St
at

io
n 

an
d 

Pr
om

ot
io

n 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 

C
la

rif
ie

s t
ha

t a
 p

ro
ba

tio
na

ry
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 
se

rv
in

g 
in

 a
n 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ge

nc
y 

pr
om

ot
io

na
l 

po
si

tio
n 

ca
n 

be
 re

m
ov

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
pr

om
ot

io
na

l p
os

iti
on

 a
t a

ny
 ti

m
e,

 if
 

re
m

ov
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

po
si

tio
n 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 is
 

to
 b

e 
pl

ac
ed

 in
 h

is
 fo

rm
er

 p
os

iti
on

 o
r 

co
m

pa
ra

bl
e 

po
si

tio
n,

 if
 v

ac
an

t, 
w

ith
 

pe
rm

an
en

t s
ta

tu
s p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 
he

ld
 p

er
m

an
en

t s
ta

tu
s i

n 
th

e 
ag

en
cy

 in
 th

e 
lo

w
er

 le
ve

l p
os

iti
on

. 

 

 

A
rti

cl
e 

10
 –

 D
is

ci
pl

in
ar

y 
A

ct
io

n 
             

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
23

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 Se

ct
io

n 
(A

): 
 

C
la

rif
ie

s t
ha

t e
m

pl
oy

ee
s w

ith
 p

er
m

an
en

t 
st

at
us

 in
 th

ei
r c

ur
re

nt
 p

os
iti

on
 m

ay
 b

e 
di

sc
ip

lin
ed

 fo
r c

au
se

. 
 Se

ct
io

n 
(B

): 
 C

la
rif

ie
s t

ha
t e

m
pl

oy
ee

s w
ho

 a
re

 n
ot

 
pe

rm
an

en
t i

n 
th

ei
r c

ur
re

nt
 p

os
iti

on
 sh

al
l n

ot
 

ha
ve

 a
cc

es
s t

o 
th

e 
gr

ie
va

nc
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
in

 
A

rti
cl

e 
6.

 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 
            

    St
at

e’
s p

ro
po

sa
l c

om
po

rts
 

w
ith

 se
ct

io
n 

11
0.

22
7,

 F
.S

. 
         



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

L
aw

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 T
hr

ee
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
 –

 1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

 
A

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
  A

rt
ic

le
s 6

, 7
, 8

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

4,
 1

5,
 1

6,
 1

8,
 2

1,
 2

2,
 2

4,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 a

nd
 3

1 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
10

 –
 D

is
ci

pl
in

ar
y 

A
ct

io
n 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

                         

Se
ct

io
n 

(C
): 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

 Se
ct

io
n 

(D
): 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

 Se
ct

io
n 

(E
): 

C
la

rif
ie

s t
ha

t l
et

te
rs

 o
f c

ou
ns

el
in

g 
or

 
co

un
se

lin
g 

no
tic

es
 a

re
 d

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

m
in

or
 w

or
k 

de
fic

ie
nc

ie
s o

r c
on

du
ct

 
co

nc
er

ns
 a

nd
 a

re
 n

ot
 d

is
ci

pl
in

e 
an

d 
ar

e 
no

t 
gr

ie
va

bl
e;

 th
ey

 m
ay

 b
e 

us
ed

 a
t 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
he

ar
in

gs
 to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 th
at

 
an

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 w

as
 o

n 
no

tic
e 

fo
r p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

de
fic

ie
nc

ie
s o

r c
on

du
ct

 c
on

ce
rn

s. 
 

 Se
ct

io
n 

(F
): 

Pr
op

os
es

 th
at

 th
e 

ag
en

cy
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

sp
ec

ia
l 

co
m

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

eq
ua

l t
o 

th
e 

le
ng

th
 o

f a
 

di
sc

ip
lin

ar
y 

su
sp

en
si

on
 d

ed
uc

te
d 

fr
om

 a
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

’s
 sp

ec
ia

l c
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

ba
la

nc
e 

in
 li

eu
 o

f s
er

vi
ng

 a
 su

sp
en

si
on

.  
Th

e 
ag

en
cy

 w
ill

 ta
ke

 in
to

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
’s

 p
re

fe
re

nc
e.

  A
nn

ua
l l

ea
ve

 m
ay

 
be

 d
ed

uc
te

d 
if 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 d
oe

s n
ot

 h
av

e 
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 sp
ec

ia
l c

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e.
  

Em
pl

oy
ee

’s
 p

er
so

nn
el

 fi
le

 w
ill

 re
fle

ct
 a

 
di

sc
ip

lin
ar

y 
su

sp
en

si
on

 re
ga

rd
le

ss
 o

f 
w

he
th

er
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 se
rv

es
 th

e 
su

sp
en

si
on

 o
r 

ha
s l

ea
ve

 d
ed

uc
te

d.
 

                           

              St
at

e’
s p

ro
po

sa
l g

iv
es

 
D

H
M

V
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 to

 
re

du
ce

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s’

 sp
ec

ia
l 

co
m

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

ba
la

nc
es

 to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

st
at

e’
s f

in
an

ci
al

 li
ab

ili
ty

. 
       



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

L
aw

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 T
hr

ee
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
 –

 1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

 
A

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
  A

rt
ic

le
s 6

, 7
, 8

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

4,
 1

5,
 1

6,
 1

8,
 2

1,
 2

2,
 2

4,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 a

nd
 3

1 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
10

 –
 D

is
ci

pl
in

ar
y 

A
ct

io
n 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

                         

N
ew

 S
ec

tio
n 

(G
): 

Pr
op

os
es

 th
at

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s w

ith
 p

er
m

an
en

t 
st

at
us

 in
 th

ei
r c

ur
re

nt
 p

os
iti

on
 m

ay
 fi

le
 a

n 
ap

pe
al

 o
f a

 re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 b
as

e 
pa

y,
 

su
sp

en
si

on
, i

nv
ol

un
ta

ry
 tr

an
sf

er
 o

f o
ve

r 5
0 

m
ile

s b
y 

hi
gh

w
ay

, d
em

ot
io

n,
 o

r d
is

m
is

sa
l 

w
ith

 th
e 

Pu
bl

ic
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

s R
el

at
io

ns
 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 p
ur

su
an

t t
o 

se
ct

io
n 

11
0.

22
7(

5)
 

an
d 

(6
), 

F.
S.

, a
nd

 th
at

 th
e 

PE
R

C
 a

pp
ea

l 
pr

oc
es

s s
ha

ll 
be

 th
e 

ex
cl

us
iv

e 
re

m
ed

y 
fo

r 
re

vi
ew

 o
f s

uc
h 

pe
rs

on
ne

l a
ct

io
ns

. 
 N

ew
 S

ec
tio

n 
(H

): 
 W

rit
te

n 
re

pr
im

an
ds

 sh
al

l b
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
gr

ie
va

nc
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
in

 A
rti

cl
e 

6 
if 

fil
ed

 b
y 

an
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 w
ith

 p
er

m
an

en
t s

ta
tu

s i
n 

hi
s 

cu
rr

en
t p

os
iti

on
.  

    

     

PE
R

C
 a

pp
ea

l p
ro

ce
ss

 
en

su
re

s e
xp

ed
ie

nt
 

re
so

lu
tio

n 
of

 g
rie

va
nc

es
 

an
d 

is
 fr

ee
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 4

 
st

ep
 g

rie
va

nc
e 

pr
oc

es
s, 

w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

rb
itr

at
or

 
fe

es
 a

nd
 e

xp
en

se
s, 

an
d 

m
ay

 ta
ke

 a
 y

ea
r o

f s
ta

te
’s

 
tim

e 
an

d 
ex

pe
ns

e 
to

 
re

so
lv

e.
 

 PE
R

C
’s

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
ru

lin
gs

 
ar

e 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l t
oo

ls
 fo

r 
St

at
e 

Pe
rs

on
ne

l S
ys

te
m

 
H

um
an

 R
es

ou
rc

e 
st

af
f. 

 Th
e 

un
io

n 
cu

rr
en

tly
 u

se
s 

PE
R

C
 a

pp
ea

l p
ro

ce
ss

. 
 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

L
aw

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 T
hr

ee
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
 –

 1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

 
A

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
  A

rt
ic

le
s 6

, 7
, 8

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

4,
 1

5,
 1

6,
 1

8,
 2

1,
 2

2,
 2

4,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 a

nd
 3

1 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
14

 –
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

R
ev

ie
w

 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

23
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

   C
la

rif
ie

s t
ha

t e
m

pl
oy

ee
s p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 S
ta

te
 

Pe
rs

on
ne

l S
ys

te
m

 R
ul

e 
60

L-
35

, F
.A

.C
. 

 C
la

rif
ie

s t
ha

t p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 e
va

lu
at

io
ns

 a
re

 
no

t g
rie

va
bl

e 
un

de
r A

rti
cl

e 
6 

an
d 

m
ay

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 in

 th
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f a
n 

ap
pe

al
 o

f a
 

su
sp

en
si

on
 o

r d
is

m
is

sa
l u

nd
er

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
A

rti
cl

e 
10

(G
). 

 

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
Se

ct
io

n 
1(

C
): 

 N
um

er
ic

al
 a

rr
es

ts
, 

ci
ta

tio
n 

or
 v

io
la

tio
n 

qu
ot

as
 w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
us

ed
 a

s t
he

 p
rim

ar
y 

fa
ct

or
 in

 re
vi

ew
in

g 
em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

. 
 

 

 

A
rti

cl
e 

15
 - 

Se
ni

or
ity

 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

23
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
C

la
rif

ie
s t

ha
t s

en
io

rit
y 

sh
al

l b
e 

de
fin

ed
 a

s 
co

nt
in

uo
us

 se
rv

ic
e 

in
 p

os
iti

on
s c

ov
er

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ag

re
em

en
t. 

      

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

L
aw

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 T
hr

ee
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
 –

 1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

 
A

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
  A

rt
ic

le
s 6

, 7
, 8

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

4,
 1

5,
 1

6,
 1

8,
 2

1,
 2

2,
 2

4,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 a

nd
 3

1 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
16

 –
 E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

O
ut

si
de

 S
ta

te
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
             

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
23

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 C

la
rif

ie
s t

ha
t e

m
pl

oy
ee

s w
an

tin
g 

to
 

pe
rf

or
m

 o
ut

si
de

 p
ol

ic
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t s

ha
ll 

se
cu

re
 a

pp
ro

va
l i

n 
ad

va
nc

e 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
ei

r a
ge

nc
y’

s p
ol

ic
ie

s a
nd

 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

. 
 C

la
rif

ie
s t

ha
t a

 re
qu

es
t f

or
 o

ut
si

de
 p

ol
ic

e 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t c
an

 b
e 

re
vo

ke
d 

w
he

n 
th

e 
ou

ts
id

e 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t c
on

fli
ct

s w
ith

 
em

pl
oy

ee
’s

 st
at

e 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t o
r t

he
 

ag
en

cy
’s

 p
ol

ic
ie

s a
nd

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s. 

Pr
op

os
es

 th
at

 d
is

ap
pr

ov
al

s o
f r

eq
ue

st
s f

or
 

ou
ts

id
e 

po
lic

e 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t b
e 

gr
ie

va
bl

e 
up

 
th

ro
ug

h 
St

ep
 2

. 

 

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

 

A
rti

cl
e 

18
 –

 H
ou

rs
 o

f 
W

or
k,

 L
ea

ve
 a

nd
 Jo

b-
C

on
ne

ct
ed

 D
is

ab
ili

ty
 

      

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
23

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 Se

ct
io

n 
6,

 S
pe

ci
al

 C
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
Le

av
e:

 
 Pr

op
os

es
 in

st
an

ce
s i

n 
w

hi
ch

 sp
ec

ia
l 

co
m

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

cr
ed

its
 a

re
 e

ar
ne

d:
 

 
(A

)  
Ea

rn
in

g 
of

 S
pe

ci
al

 C
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
Le

av
e 

C
re

di
ts

.  
Sp

ec
ia

l c
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

rik
es

 S
ec

tio
n 

6 
w

ith
 n

ot
e 

“t
o 

be
 

di
sc

us
se

d”
.  

 
 

St
at

e’
s p

ro
po

sa
l t

o 
re

du
ce

 
em

pl
oy

ee
 sp

ec
ia

l 
co

m
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
ba

la
nc

es
 to

 re
du

ce
 st

at
e’

s 
fin

an
ci

al
 li

ab
ili

ty
 is

 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 th
e 

st
at

e’
s 

sp
ec

ia
l c

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 in
 th

e 
A

FS
C

M
E 

M
as

te
r 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

L
aw

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 T
hr

ee
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
 –

 1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

 
A

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
  A

rt
ic

le
s 6

, 7
, 8

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

4,
 1

5,
 1

6,
 1

8,
 2

1,
 2

2,
 2

4,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 a

nd
 3

1 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
18

 –
 H

ou
rs

 o
f 

W
or

k,
 L

ea
ve

 a
nd

 Jo
b-

C
on

ne
ct

ed
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
                       

cr
ed

its
 m

ay
 b

e 
ea

rn
ed

 o
nl

y 
in

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
in

st
an

ce
s:

 
 

(1
) 

B
y 

an
 

em
pl

oy
ee

 
in

 
th

e 
ca

re
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 f
or

 w
or

k 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 o
n 

a 
ho

lid
ay

 
as

 
de

fin
ed

 
in

 
se

ct
io

n 
11

0.
11

7,
 

Fl
or

id
a 

St
at

ut
es

, 
or

 f
or

 w
or

k 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 
du

rin
g 

a 
w

or
k 

pe
rio

d 
th

at
 

in
cl

ud
es

 
a 

ho
lid

ay
, 

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 t

he
 R

ul
es

 o
f 

th
e 

St
at

e 
Pe

rs
on

ne
l S

ys
te

m
. 

 
(2

) 
B

y 
an

 
em

pl
oy

ee
 

in
 

th
e 

ca
re

er
 s

er
vi

ce
 f

or
 w

or
k 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
’s

 
as

si
gn

ed
 

of
fic

e,
 

fa
ci

lit
y,

 
or

 
re

gi
on

 
w

hi
ch

 
is

 
cl

os
ed

 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 

to
 

an
 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
O

rd
er

 o
f 

th
e 

G
ov

er
no

r 
or

 a
ny

 
ot

he
r d

is
as

te
r o

r e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

co
nd

iti
on

. 
 A

dd
re

ss
es

 sp
ec

ia
l c

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
ea

rn
ed

 p
rio

r t
o 

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
3:

 
 (B

) 
Sp

ec
ia

l 
C

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

Le
av

e 
Ea

rn
ed

 P
rio

r t
o 

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
3 

(1
) 

D
es

pi
te

 
th

e 
fa

ct
 

th
at

 
pr

ev
io

us
 c

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
ba

rg
ai

ni
ng

 a
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 
on

ly
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

to
 a

cc
um

ul
at

e 
a 

m
ax

im
um

 
of

 
24

0 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

sp
ec

ia
l 

co
m

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

cr
ed

its
, 

ce
rta

in
 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
m

ay
 h

av
e 

ea
rn

ed
 h

ou
rs

 p
rio

r 
to

 

C
on

tra
ct

, t
he

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l 
H

ea
lth

 C
ar

e 
U

ni
t a

nd
 

Se
cu

rit
y 

Se
rv

ic
es

 U
ni

t F
Y

 
20

12
-2

01
3 

ag
re

em
en

ts
.  

 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

L
aw

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 T
hr

ee
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
 –

 1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

 
A

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
  A

rt
ic

le
s 6

, 7
, 8

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

4,
 1

5,
 1

6,
 1

8,
 2

1,
 2

2,
 2

4,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 a

nd
 3

1 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
18

 –
 H

ou
rs

 o
f 

W
or

k,
 L

ea
ve

 a
nd

 Jo
b-

C
on

ne
ct

ed
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
                       

Ju
ly

 1
, 

20
13

 i
n 

ex
ce

ss
 o

f 
th

at
 a

m
ou

nt
.  

 
N

ot
hi

ng
 i

n 
th

is
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t 
is

 i
nt

en
de

d 
to

 
ad

dr
es

s 
th

e 
va

lid
ity

 o
r 

in
va

lid
ity

 o
f 

sp
ec

ia
l 

co
m

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

cr
ed

its
 

ab
ov

e 
24

0 
ho

ur
s e

ar
ne

d 
pr

io
r t

o 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

3.
 

(2
) 

A
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

 
m

ay
 

be
 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
sp

ec
ia

l 
co

m
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
cr

ed
it 

ba
la

nc
es

. 
 

A
dd

re
ss

es
 h

ow
 sp

ec
ia

l c
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

ea
rn

ed
 o

n 
or

 a
fte

r J
ul

y 
1,

 2
01

3 
w

ill
 b

e 
us

ed
 

or
 fo

rf
ei

te
d:

 
 

(C
)  

Sp
ec

ia
l 

C
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
Le

av
e 

Ea
rn

ed
 O

n 
or

 A
fte

r J
ul

y 
1,

 2
01

3 
 

(1
) 

Sp
ec

ia
l 

co
m

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

cr
ed

its
 e

ar
ne

d,
 a

s 
de

sc
rib

ed
 i

n 
su

bs
ec

tio
n 

(A
)(

1)
, o

n 
or

 a
fte

r 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

3,
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 
no

t 
us

ed
 e

ac
h 

ye
ar

 b
y 

th
e 

A
pr

il 
30

 o
r 

O
ct

ob
er

 3
1 

th
at

 i
m

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 s

uc
ce

ed
s 

th
e 

w
or

k 
pe

rio
d 

in
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

le
av

e 
is

 c
re

di
te

d,
 

w
hi

ch
ev

er
 

da
te

 
oc

cu
rs

 
ea

rli
er

, 
sh

al
l 

be
 

fo
rf

ei
te

d.
 

 
(2

) 
Sp

ec
ia

l 
co

m
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
cr

ed
its

 e
ar

ne
d,

 a
s 

de
sc

rib
ed

 i
n 

su
bs

ec
tio

n 
(A

)(
2)

, o
n 

or
 a

fte
r 

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
3,

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 

no
t u

se
d 

w
ith

in
 1

20
 c

al
en

da
r d

ay
s 

fr
om

 th
e 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

L
aw

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 T
hr

ee
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
 –

 1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

 
A

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
  A

rt
ic

le
s 6

, 7
, 8

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

4,
 1

5,
 1

6,
 1

8,
 2

1,
 2

2,
 2

4,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 a

nd
 3

1 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
18

 –
 H

ou
rs

 o
f 

W
or

k,
 L

ea
ve

 a
nd

 Jo
b-

C
on

ne
ct

ed
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
                       

en
d 

of
 th

e 
w

or
k 

pe
rio

d 
in

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
le

av
e 

is
 c

re
di

te
d 

sh
al

l b
e 

fo
rf

ei
te

d.
 

 
(3

) 
Ea

ch
 a

ge
nc

y 
sh

al
l 

sc
he

du
le

 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

ea
rn

in
g 

sp
ec

ia
l 

co
m

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

cr
ed

its
 i

n 
a 

m
an

ne
r 

th
at

 a
llo

w
s 

al
l 

su
ch

 le
av

e 
cr

ed
its

 e
ar

ne
d 

on
 o

r a
fte

r J
ul

y 
1,

 
20

13
, 

to
 b

e 
us

ed
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 t
im

e 
lim

its
 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

 in
 s

ub
se

ct
io

ns
 1

 a
nd

 2
.  

H
ow

ev
er

, 
if 

sc
he

du
lin

g 
su

ch
 l

ea
ve

 w
ith

in
 s

uc
h 

tim
e 

lim
its

 
w

ou
ld

 
pr

ev
en

t 
th

e 
ag

en
cy

 
fr

om
 

m
ee

tin
g 

m
in

im
um

 
st

af
fin

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

ne
ed

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

pu
bl

ic
 s

af
et

y,
 th

e 
ag

en
cy

 
he

ad
 m

ay
 e

xt
en

d 
th

e 
tim

e 
lim

its
 s

pe
ci

fie
d 

in
 

su
bs

ec
tio

ns
 

1 
an

d 
2 

fo
r 

up
 

to
 

an
 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
18

0 
ca

le
nd

ar
 d

ay
s. 

 E
xt

en
si

on
s 

w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

al
lo

w
ed

 fo
r a

ny
 o

th
er

 re
as

on
. 

 
(4

) 
N

o 
ag

en
cy

 
m

ay
 

m
ak

e 
a 

pa
yo

ut
 

of
 

un
us

ed
 

sp
ec

ia
l 

co
m

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

cr
ed

its
 e

ar
ne

d 
on

 o
r 

af
te

r 
Ju

ly
 1

, 
20

13
. 

 Pr
ov

id
es

 fo
r s

ub
st

itu
tio

n 
of

 sp
ec

ia
l 

co
m

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

cr
ed

its
 fo

r r
eq

ue
st

ed
 

le
av

e:
 

 (D
) 

U
nl

es
s 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
pr

oh
ib

ite
d 

by
 la

w
 

or
 r

ul
e,

 a
ll 

re
qu

es
ts

 f
or

 u
se

 o
f 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

L
aw

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 T
hr

ee
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
 –

 1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

 
A

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
  A

rt
ic

le
s 6

, 7
, 8

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

4,
 1

5,
 1

6,
 1

8,
 2

1,
 2

2,
 2

4,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 a

nd
 3

1 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
18

 –
 H

ou
rs

 o
f 

W
or

k,
 L

ea
ve

 a
nd

 Jo
b-

C
on

ne
ct

ed
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
  

le
av

e,
 o

th
er

 th
an

 a
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
le

av
e,

 s
ha

ll 
fir

st
 

be
 

ch
ar

ge
d 

to
 

an
y 

sp
ec

ia
l 

co
m

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

cr
ed

its
 t

he
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 
ha

s a
cc

ru
ed

. 
  

A
rti

cl
e 

21
 –

 A
ct

in
g 

R
an

ks
 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
23

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

Pr
op

os
es

 n
ew

 ti
tle

:  
 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
fo

r T
em

po
ra

ry
 S

pe
ci

al
 D

ut
y 

in
 H

ig
he

r L
ev

el
 P

os
iti

on
. 

 C
la

rif
ie

s t
ha

t t
o 

be
 e

lig
ib

le
 fo

r a
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 
sp

ec
ia

l d
ut

y 
ad

di
tiv

e 
fo

r p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

th
e 

du
tie

s o
f a

 h
ig

he
r l

ev
el

 p
os

iti
on

, t
he

 
em

pl
oy

ee
 m

us
t p

er
fo

rm
 a

 m
aj

or
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
du

tie
s o

f t
ha

t p
os

iti
on

, a
nd

 th
at

 th
e 

m
et

ho
d 

of
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

be
 p

ur
su

an
t t

o 
th

e 
R

ul
es

 o
f t

he
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
. 

      
 

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 
  

 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

L
aw

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 T
hr

ee
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
 –

 1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

 
A

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
  A

rt
ic

le
s 6

, 7
, 8

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

4,
 1

5,
 1

6,
 1

8,
 2

1,
 2

2,
 2

4,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 a

nd
 3

1 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
22

 - 
V

ac
an

t 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

23
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

  

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
R

et
itl

ed
 –

 R
et

ire
m

en
t. 

 H
ol

d 
op

en
 p

en
di

ng
 d

ec
is

io
n 

of
 th

e 
Fl

or
id

a 
Su

pr
em

e 
C

ou
rt 

in
 th

e 
ca

se
 o

f 
R

ic
k 

Sc
ot

t, 
et

. a
l. 

v.
 G

eo
rg

e 
W

ill
ia

m
s, 

et
. a

l.,
 C

as
e 

N
o.

 S
C

12
-5

20
. 

  

 

A
rti

cl
e 

24
 –

 O
n-

C
al

l 
A

ss
ig

nm
en

t –
 C

al
l-B

ac
k 

– 
C

ou
rt 

A
pp

ea
ra

nc
e 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
23

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 C

la
rif

ie
s t

ha
t o

n-
ca

ll 
as

si
gn

m
en

t i
s d

ef
in

ed
 

in
 R

ul
e 

60
L-

32
, F

lo
rid

a 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

C
od

e 
an

d 
cl

ar
ifi

es
 d

ef
in

iti
on

 o
f “

ca
ll-

ba
ck

”.
 

 

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

 

A
rti

cl
e 

25
 –

 W
ag

es
 

          

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
30

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
  

Pa
y 

sh
al

l b
e 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r 
20

13
-1

4 
G

en
er

al
 A

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

 A
ct

. 
 Pr

ov
id

es
 fo

r o
th

er
 p

ay
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s:
 

 U
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t R

at
e 

In
ce

nt
iv

e:
 

Pr
ov

id
es

 fo
r a

 o
ne

-ti
m

e,
 n

on
-d

is
cr

et
io

na
ry

, 
$1

,2
00

 lu
m

p 
su

m
 b

on
us

 a
w

ar
d,

 p
lu

s 

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

  6%
 in

cr
ea

se
 fo

r a
ll 

em
pl

oy
ee

s e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

3.
 

 3%
 in

te
rn

al
 p

ay
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t i
nc

re
as

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

O
ct

ob
er

 1
, 2

01
3,

 fo
r 

em
pl

oy
ee

s w
ith

 7
 c

on
tin

uo
us

 y
ea

rs
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
a 

“m
ee

ts
 st

an
da

rd
s”

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 e

va
lu

at
io

n.
 

Es
tim

at
ed

 c
os

t o
f u

ni
on

’s
 

pr
op

os
al

s:
 

 $3
,6

81
,5

70
 

  $6
74

,1
15

 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

L
aw

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 T
hr

ee
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
 –

 1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

 
A

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
  A

rt
ic

le
s 6

, 7
, 8

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

4,
 1

5,
 1

6,
 1

8,
 2

1,
 2

2,
 2

4,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 a

nd
 3

1 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
25

 –
 W

ag
es

 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 ta
xe

s, 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
el

ig
ib

ili
ty

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 in

 S
ec

tio
n 

8 
of

 F
Y

 2
01

3-
20

14
 

G
ov

er
no

r’
s B

ud
ge

t R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

, t
o 

be
 p

ai
d 

no
 la

te
r t

ha
n 

A
ug

us
t 3

0,
 2

01
3,

 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

fu
nd

in
g 

in
 F

Y
 2

01
3-

20
14

 
G

en
er

al
 A

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

 A
ct

. 
 V

ar
ia

bl
e 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
A

w
ar

d:
 

Pr
ov

id
es

 fo
r a

 d
is

cr
et

io
na

ry
, o

ne
-ti

m
e 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
aw

ar
d 

of
 $

5,
00

0 
to

 e
lig

ib
le

 
em

pl
oy

ee
s a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 jo
b 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
nd

 $
2,

50
0 

to
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s f
or

 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

C
om

m
en

da
bl

e 
jo

b 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

ba
se

d 
on

 e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 in

 S
ec

tio
n 

8 
of

 G
ov

er
no

r’
s F

Y
 2

01
3-

20
14

 B
ud

ge
t 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

. 
 Pr

op
os

es
 a

 te
m

po
ra

ry
 sp

ec
ia

l d
ut

ie
s 

ad
di

tiv
e 

du
rin

g 
de

pl
oy

m
en

t t
o 

a 
fa

ci
lit

y 
or

 
ar

ea
 c

lo
se

d 
du

e 
to

 a
n 

em
er

ge
nc

y,
 a

nd
 

pr
ov

id
es

 fo
r a

 c
as

h 
pa

yo
ut

 o
f a

nn
ua

l l
ea

ve
 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
an

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 se
ct

io
n 

11
0.

21
9(

7)
, F

.S
., 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 p
ay

, a
nd

 
Sa

vi
ng

s S
ha

rin
g 

Pr
og

ra
m

.  
   

 If
 a

n 
em

pl
oy

ee
 re

ac
he

s t
he

 7
 y

ea
rs

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e 

le
ve

l s
ub

se
qu

en
t t

o 
O

ct
ob

er
 1

, 
20

13
, t

he
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 sh
al

l r
ec

ei
ve

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
in

te
rn

al
 p

ay
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t. 
  



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

L
aw

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 T
hr

ee
-Y

ea
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xp
ir

es
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
3 

St
at

us
 o

f C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

B
ar

ga
in

in
g 

as
 o

f F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

3 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

13
 –

 1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

 
A

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
  A

rt
ic

le
s 6

, 7
, 8

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

4,
 1

5,
 1

6,
 1

8,
 2

1,
 2

2,
 2

4,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 a

nd
 3

1 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
A

rti
cl

e 
26

 –
 U

ni
fo

rm
s a

nd
 

A
cc

es
so

rie
s 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
23

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
   St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 
  

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 

 In
cr

ea
se

s e
m

pl
oy

ee
s’

 a
nn

ua
l u

ni
fo

rm
 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
llo

w
an

ce
 fr

om
 $

50
0.

00
 to

 
$7

50
.0

0.
 

  

Es
tim

at
ed

 c
os

t o
f u

ni
on

’s
 

pr
op

os
al

s:
 

  $3
28

,2
50

 

A
rti

cl
e 

27
 –

 In
su

ra
nc

e 
B

en
ef

its
 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
23

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
M

ai
nt

ai
ns

 th
e 

st
at

us
 q

uo
 la

ng
ua

ge
 w

ith
 

th
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l p
ro

vi
si

on
, a

t n
o 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
co

st
s i

n 
co

-p
ay

m
en

ts
 o

r h
ea

lth
 in

su
ra

nc
e 

pr
em

iu
m

s t
o 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

. 
 

 

A
rti

cl
e 

31
 –

 S
ta

te
 

Pe
rs

on
ne

l S
ys

te
m

 R
ul

es
 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
23

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

Pr
op

os
es

 to
 v

ac
at

e 
th

e 
A

rti
cl

e.
 

 

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

 

 





PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 6 
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

 
It is the policy of the Sstate and the PBA to encourage informal discussions of complaints 

between management and supervisors covered by this Agreement, as well as between those 
supervisors and covered employees. Such discussions should be held with a view to reaching an 
understanding which will resolve the matter in a manner satisfactory to the employee, without 
need for recourse to the formal grievance procedure prescribed by this Article. 

SECTION 1 - Definitions 

As used in this Article: 

(A) "Grievance" shall mean a dispute involving the interpretation or application of the 
specific provisions of this Agreement, except as exclusions are noted in this Agreement, filed on 
the appropriate form as contained in Appendix B of this Agreement. 

(B) "Employee" shall mean a Florida Highway Patrol employee or a group of Florida 
Highway Patrol employees having the same grievance. In the case of a group of employees, one 
shall be designated by the group to act as spokesperson and to be responsible for processing the 
grievance. 

(C) "Days" shall mean calendar days, excluding any day observed as a holiday pursuant 
to section 110.117, Florida Statutes the Rules of the State Personnel System. If the due date for a 
grievance response or for a grievance submission to a step or to arbitration falls on a weekend or 
a holiday, the action shall be due the next business day. 

SECTION 2 - Election of Remedy and Representation 

(A) If an employee or the PBA has a grievance which may be processed under this 
Article and which may also be appealed to the Florida Public Employees Relations Commission, 
the employee or the PBA shall elect at the outset which procedure is to be used and such election 
shall be binding on the employee or the PBA. In the case of any duplicate filing, the action first 
filed will be the one processed. 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 2 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

(B) (A) An employee who decides to use this Grievance Procedure shall indicate at Step 
1 (or the initial written step if authorized by the provisions of this Article) whether or not he shall 
be represented by the PBA. When the employee has elected PBA representation, both the 
employee and the PBA Representative shall be notified of any Step 1 meeting. Further, any 
Wwritten communication concerning the grievance or its resolution shall be sent to both the 
employee and the PBA representative, and any the decision mutually agreed to by the Sstate and 
the PBA shall be binding on the employee. 

(C) (B) If the employee is not represented by the PBA, any adjustment of the grievance 
shall be consistent with the terms of this Collective Bargaining Agreement. The PBA shall be 
given reasonable opportunity to be present at any meeting called for the resolution of such the 
grievance. An employee using this procedure in the processing of a grievance will be bound by 
the procedure established by the Parties to the this Agreement.  The PBA shall not be bound by 
the decision of any grievance or arbitration in which the employee was not represented by the 
PBA. 

SECTION 3 - Procedures 

(A) Employee grievances filed in accordance with this Article should are to be presented 
and handled promptly at the lowest level of management having the authority to adjust the 
grievances.   

(B) There shall be no reprisals against any of the participants in the procedures contained 
herein by reason of such participation. 

(C) The filing or pendency of any grievance under the provisions of this Article shall in 
no way operate to impede, delay or interfere with the right of the Sstate to take the action 
complained of; subject, however, to the final disposition of the grievance. 

(D) Once After a grievance is presented, no new violation or issue can be raised, unless 
the Parties mutually agree in writing to revise or amend the alleged violations or issues, or upon 
a party’s showing of or for good cause for the consideration of such new issue, but in no event 
less later than seven (7) days prior to any arbitration hearing the filing of a contract language 
grievance at Step 3, or the filing of a disciplinary grievance at Step 2.  When an issue is 
unchanged, but it is determined that an article, section or paragraph of the Agreement has been 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 3 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

cited imprecisely or erroneously by the employee, then the employee shall have the right to 
amend that part of his grievance. 

(E) The resolution of a grievance prior to its submission in writing at Step 2 to 
Arbitration shall not establish a precedent binding on either the PBA or the Sstate in other cases. 

(F) If a grievance meeting is held or requires reasonable travel time during the working 
hours of any required participant, such the participant shall be excused without loss of pay for 
that purpose. Attendance at grievance meetings outside of the regular working hours shall not be 
deemed time worked. All grievance meetings shall be held at times and locations mutually 
agreed to by the parties, except that, unless mutually agreed otherwise, all meetings shall be held 
within fifty (50) miles of the grievant’s place of work. 

(G) Grievances shall be presented and adjusted in the following manner, and no one 
individual may respond to a grievance at more than one written step. 

(H) Grievances and grievance responses may be filed by hand-delivery, mail (including 
e-mail), courier, or electronic facsimile. If sent via electronic facsimile, the burden shall be on 
the sending Party to confirm the correct electronic facsimile number before transmission. 
Documents shall be deemed filed upon receipt during regular business hours (8:00 a.m. to 5:00 
p.m.). Documents received after business hours shall be considered received the next business 
day. 

(1) Step 1. 

(A) An employee having a grievance may within fourteen (14) days following actual 
knowledge of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance submit a grievance at Step 
1. Nothing in this procedure shall preclude an employee from presenting concerns through 
informal discussions with management representative. In filing a grievance at Step 1, the 
employee or his designated representative shall submit to the Step 1 Management Representative 
a grievance form as contained in Appendix B setting forth specifically the known facts on which 
the grievance is based, the specific provision or provisions of the Agreement allegedly violated, 
and the relief requested. In discipline cases, it shall be presumed that the grievance alleges that 
the discipline was without just cause, and requests to be made whole, as relief, at a minimum, 
reinstatement, full and make whole relief. 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 4 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

(B) The Step 1 Management Representative or his designee shall communicate a decision 
in writing to the employee and to the PBA Grievance Representative, if any, within fourteen (14) 
days following receipt of the grievance form. If the Management Representative fails to respond 
within the time limit, it shall be deemed a denial. 
 
(2) Step 2. 

(A) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the employee or his designated 
representative may submit it to the Agency Head or his designated representative within fourteen 
(14) days after following receipt of the decision at Step 1. 

(B) The Agency Head or his designated representative shall communicate a decision in 
writing to the employee and the PBA Grievance Representative, if any, within fourteen (14) days 
following receipt of the written grievance. If the Agency Head fails to respond within the time 
limits, it shall be deemed a denial.  

(3) Step 3 – Contract Language Disputes  
 

(A) If a grievance concerning the interpretation or application of this Agreement, other 
than a disciplinary grievance alleging only a violation of Article 10, is not resolved at Step 2, the 
employee or PBA Grievance Representative may submit it to the Office Manager for the Office 
of the General Counsel of the Department of Management Services, 4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 
160, Tallahassee, Florida, 32399-0950 within 14 days following receipt of the decision at Step 2. 

 
(B) The Department of Management Services shall meet with the employee and/or the 

PBA Grievance Representative, if any, to discuss the grievance, and shall communicate a 
decision in writing to the PBA within 14 days following receipt of the written grievance.  
 
(4) Grievance Mediation  
 

The parties may, by written agreement, submit a grievance to mediation to be conducted 
by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS) after it has been submitted to 
arbitration but before a hearing is scheduled.  Either party may withdraw from the mediation 
process with written notice no later than five (5) days before a scheduled mediation. 
 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 5 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

 
Step  3. (5) Arbitration 
 

(A) If grievance is not resolved at Step 2, the PBA may appeal the grievance to 
arbitration within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the decision at Step 2. If a contract language 
dispute as described in (3), above, is not resolved at Step 3, the PBA may appeal the grievance to 
arbitration within 14 days after following receipt of the decision at Step 3.  If, at the initial 
written step, the PBA declined to represent the employee because he was not a member of the 
PBA, the employee may appeal the grievance to arbitration. The grievance appeal to arbitration 
shall be filed with the Department of Management Services on the form contained in Appendix 
C and shall include a copy of the grievance forms submitted at Steps 1, and 2, and 3 (if 
applicable) together with all written responses and documents in support of the grievance. The 
Department of Management Services may have a meeting with the PBA Staff Representative or 
his designee to discuss the grievance. 
 

(B) The arbitrator shall be one person from a panel of four (4) arbitrators selected by the 
Parties.  The Department of Management Services shall facilitate the scheduling of all arbitration 
hearings. 

(C) The parties may, by mutual agreement in writing, submit related grievances for 
hearing before the same arbitrator. Arbitration hearings shall be held at times and locations 
mutually agreed to by the parties; however, unless mutually agreed otherwise, all hearings shall 
be held within fifty (50) miles of the grievant(s)’ place of work.  

 
(D) Where there is a threshold issue regarding arbitrability, including timeliness, of a 

grievance raised by either party, an expedited arbitration hearing shall be conducted to address 
only the arbitrability issue.  In such cases, the parties shall choose an arbitrator from the panel of 
arbitrators (see (5)(B) above), who is available to schedule a hearing and render a decision within 
twenty days of an arbitrator being chosen for this limited purpose.  The hearing on this issue 
shall be limited to one day, and the arbitrator shall be required to decide the issue within five (5) 
business days of the hearing.  The hearing shall be conducted by telephone upon the agreement 
of the parties and the arbitrator.  The party losing the arbitrability issue shall pay the fees and 
expenses of the expedited arbitration. If the arbitrator determines that the issue is arbitrable, 
another arbitrator shall be chosen from the parties’ regular arbitration panel in accordance with 
the provisions of (5)(B) of this Article to conduct a hearing on the substantive issue(s). 
 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 6 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

(E) (D) The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the grievance and, 
provided the decision is in accordance with his jurisdiction and authority under this Agreement, 
shall be final and binding on the Sstate, the PBA, the grievant(s), and the employees in the 
bargaining unit. In considering a grievance the arbitrator shall be governed by the following 
provisions and limitations:  

(1) The arbitrator shall issue his a decision not later than fourteen (14) days from 
the date of the closing of the hearing or the submission of briefs, whichever is later. 

(2) The arbitrator’s decision shall be in writing, and shall set forth the arbitrator’s 
opinion and conclusions on the issue(s) submitted. 

(3) The arbitrator shall have no authority to determine any other issue, and shall 
refrain from issuing any statement of opinion or conclusion not essential to the determination of 
the issues submitted.  

(4) The arbitrator shall limit his the decision strictly to the application and 
interpretation of the specific provisions of this Agreement.  

(5) The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make any decisions that 
are: 

(a) Contrary to or inconsistent with, adding to, subtracting from, or 
modifying, altering or ignoring in any way, the terms of this Agreement, or of applicable law or 
rules or regulations having the force and effect of law.  

(b) Limiting or interfering in any way with the power, duties and 
responsibilities of the Sstate under its Constitution, applicable law, and rules and regulations 
having the force and effect of law, except as such powers, duties and responsibilities have been 
abridged, delegated or modified by the express provisions of this Agreement. 

(6) The arbitrator’s award may include back pay, to the Grievant(s); however, the 
following limitations shall apply to such monetary awards: 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 7 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

(a) No award for back pay shall exceed the amount of pay the employee 
would otherwise have earned at his regular rate of pay and such back pay shall not be 
retroactive to a date earlier than the date of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the 
grievance under consideration. 

(b) The award shall not exceed the actual loss to the grievant, will not 
include punitive damages, and will be reduced by the amount of wages earned from other 
sources excluding unemployment compensation received by the employee during the period of 
time affected by the award. 

(c) The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne solely by the 
party who fails to prevail in the hearing; however, each party shall be responsible for 
compensating and paying the expenses of its own representatives, attorneys and witnesses. 
Should the arbitrator fashion an award in such a manner that the grievance is sustained in part 
and denied in part, the Sstate and the PBA will evenly split the arbitrator's fee and expenses. 

 
(d) The PBA will not be responsible for costs of an arbitration to which it 

was not a Party. 
 

SECTION 4 - Time Limits 

(A) Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance 
within the specified time limits shall permit the employee, or the PBA, where appropriate, to 
proceed to the next step. The Sstate will make a good faith effort to timely communicate 
decisions at each step.  

(B) The number of days indicated at each step should be considered as a maximum, and 
every effort should be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits specified in any 
step of this procedure may be extended, in any specific instance, by mutual written agreement. 

(C) Claims of either an untimely filing or untimely appeal shall be made at the step in 
question. 
 
 
 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 8 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

SECTION 5 - Exceptions 

(A) Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to permit 
the PBA or an employee to process a grievance (1) on behalf of any employee without his 
written consent, or (2) with respect to any matter which is the subject of a grievance, an appeal, 
an administrative action before a government board or agency, or a court proceeding, brought by 
an employee or group of employees, or by the PBA. 

(B) All grievances will be presented at the initial step with the following exceptions: 

(1) If a grievance arises from the action of an official higher than the Step 1 
Management Representative, the grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 or 3, as appropriate, by 
submitting a grievance form as set forth in Step 1 within fourteen (14) days following the actual 
knowledge of the occurrence giving rise to the grievance. 

(2) The PBA shall have the right to bring a class action grievance on behalf of 
bargaining Unit employees in its own name, concerning disputes relating to the interpretation or 
application of this Agreement. Such grievance shall not include disciplinary actions taken against 
an employee. The PBA’s election to proceed under this Article shall preclude it from proceeding 
in another forum on the same issue. Such grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 in accordance 
with the provisions set forth herein, within fourteen (14) days of the knowledge or reasonable 
knowledge of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance. 

(3) An employee who has not attained permanent status in his current position 
may only file non-discipline grievances to Step 3.  Non-discipline grievances filed by 
probationary employees are final and binding at Step 3 unless the processing of such grievances 
is further limited by specific provisions of this Agreement. 

SECTION 6 – Expedited Arbitration 

(A) The parties recognize that certain grievances are may be amenable to expedited 
resolution by an arbitrator.  Accordingly at any point in the grievance procedure, the PBA may 
request expedited arbitration of any grievance. Requests for expedited arbitration shall be 
granted in cases involving arbitrable disciplinary action less than discharge. In all other cases, 
expedited arbitration will be used in instances of mutual upon agreement of the parties. 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 9 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

(B) Expedited Arbitration Rules: 

(1) When a grievance is to be resolved via expedited arbitration, all remaining 
steps in the grievance procedure are skipped and the grievance is submitted directly to the 
expedited arbitrator.  

(2) The arbitrator is designated by rotation from the list of four (4) permanent 
arbitrators. 

(3) Expedited arbitration hearings shall be no longer than four (4) six (6) hours in 
duration, with each party limited to two (2) three (3) hours, with a maximum of two (2) 
witnesses per party, and one (1) rebuttal witness if necessary. There shall be no post-hearing 
briefs, although either party may submit a written statement of position to the arbitrator during 
the hearing. The Arbitrator shall issue a short (no longer than three (3) pages) decision within 
seven (7) days of the hearing. With the exception of the foregoing, all provisions of Ssection 
(3)(J)(5) of this procedure shall be applicable.  
 
 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 7 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 7 
INTERNAL INVESTIGATIONS  

 
SECTION 1 - Internal Investigations 
 
(A) The parties recognize that Florida Highway Patrol personnel occupy a special place in 
American society. Therefore, it is understood that the Sstate has the right to expect that a 
professional standard of conduct be adhered to by all Florida Highway Patrol personnel 
regardless of rank or assignment. Since internal investigations may be undertaken to inquire into 
complaints of Florida Highway Patrol misconduct, the Sstate reserves the right to conduct such 
investigations to uncover the facts in each case, but expressly agrees to carefully guard and 
protect the rights and dignity of accused personnel. In the course of any internal investigation, 
the investigative methods employed will be consistent with the law (including but not limited to 
Ssection 112.532, Florida Statutes) and this agreement; nothing in this agreement, however, shall 
be deemed to diminish the rights of employees under applicable law. 

(B) When an allegation is made against an employee, the Sstate will make every reasonable 
effort to ensure that the allegation and any related statements are reduced to writing, under oath, 
and signed. The written allegation shall be known as a complaint.  

(C) When an employee is to be questioned or interviewed concerning a complaint or allegation, 
the employee will be informed prior to the interview of the nature of the investigation and 
whether he is the subject of the investigation or a witness in an investigation. Employees shall be 
informed of the right to have a union representative in attendance at the interview and where 
requested, an employee shall be given forty-eight (48) hours to contact, consult with and secure 
the attendance of a representative at the interview. If he is the subject of the investigation, the 
employee and his representative will also be informed of each complaint or allegation against 
him and they shall be permitted to review all written statements and recordings made by the 
complainant and witnesses will be made available for review at least one (1) hour prior to the 
commencement of the interview in accordance with Ssection 112, Florida Statutes. In the event 
the written statement or recordings are such that additional review time is warranted, the 
employee may request, and be granted, additional time unless the request is made for the 
purposes of delay. Pursuant to Ssection 112.533, Florida Statutes, the employee who is the 
subject of the investigation shall not disclose the contents to anyone other than his representative 
or attorney until the investigation is complete. 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 7 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

(D) Interviews and questioning of employees shall be conducted in a professional manner. 
Statements from an employee shall not be taken in a coercive manner.   

(E) The formal interrogation of an Florida Highway Patrol officer employee shall comply with 
the provisions of Florida Statutes, Ssection 112.532. The employee shall receive a copy of his 
written or recorded statement at no cost to the employee. No recording or transcription of the 
investigative interview will be made without the knowledge of all participants present at the 
interview. 

(F) In cases where the agency determines that the employee's absence from the work location is 
essential to the investigation and the employee cannot be reassigned to other duties pending 
completion of the investigation, the employee shall be placed on administrative leave with pay.  
Such leave shall be in accordance with Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code. 

(G) Unless required by statute, no employee shall be required to submit to a polygraph test or 
any device designed to measure the truthfulness of his responses during an investigation of a 
complaint or allegation. 

(H) Only sustained findings may be inserted in personnel records. Unfounded findings shall not 
be inserted in permanent personnel records or referred to in performance reviews. 

(I) Internal investigations will ordinarily be completed within forty-five (45) days from the date 
the complaint is filed, unless circumstances necessitate a longer period. An investigation shall 
not exceed one hundred and twenty (120) days without the approval of the Agency head or 
designee. Except in the case of a criminal investigation, the employee shall be notified in writing 
of any investigation that exceeds one hundred and twenty (120) days. 

(J) The employee under investigation shall be advised in writing of the results of the 
investigation at its conclusion. 

(K) The Sstate will make a good faith effort to train persons who investigate charges against 
Florida Highway Patrol employees in the investigative rights reserved for those employees in the 
interest of avoiding infringement of those rights. 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 7 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

(L) In the case of criminal, non-administrative internal investigation into the criminal misconduct 
of a sworn employee, the provisions of (B) through (K) shall not apply. 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 8 (Substance Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 8 
WORK FORCE REDUCTION 

 
SECTION 1 - Layoffs 

(A) When bargaining Unit employees are to be laid off, the Sstate shall implement such 
layoff in the following manner: 

(1) For bargaining Unit employees, Tthe competitive area within which layoffs 
will be affected shall be defined as statewide within the DHSMV. 

(2) Layoff shall be by occupational level within the Florida Highway Patrol 
bargaining unit. 

(3) An employee who does not have has not attained permanent status in his 
current position the Career Service System may be laid off without applying the provision for 
retention rights. 

(4) No employee with permanent status in the affected broadband level his current 
position shall be laid off while an employee who does not hold permanent status in his current 
position is serving in that broadband level unless the permanent employee does not elect to 
exercise his retention rights or does not meet the selective competition criteria. 

(5) All employees who have permanent status in the affected broadband level 
their current position shall be ranked on a layoff list based on the total retention points derived as 
follows: 

(a) Length of service retention points shall be based on one point for each 
month of continuous service in a Career Service position. 

(1)  An employee who resigns from one Career Service position to 
accept employment in another Career Service position is not considered to have a break in 
service. 

(2) An employee who has been laid off and is reemployed within 
one year from the date of the layoff, shall not be considered to have a break in service. 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 8 (Substance Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

(3) Moving from Career Service to Selected Exempt Service or 
Senior Management Service and back to Career Service does not constitute a break in service 
unless the employee’s break in service is more than 31 calendar days.  Only time spent in the 
Career Service can be counted in calculating retention points. 

 
(b) Retention points deducted for performance not meeting performance 

standards or work expectations defined for the position shall be based on the five years 
immediately prior to the DHSMV’s established cutoff date.  Five points shall be deducted for 
each month an employee has a rating below performance expectations. 

 
(6) The layoff list shall be prepared by totaling retention points.  Employees 

eligible for veterans’ preference pursuant to Ssection 295.07(1)(a) or (b), Florida Statutes, shall 
have ten percent added to their total retention points, and those eligible pursuant to Ssection 
295.07(1)(c) or (d), Florida Statutes, shall have five percent added. 

 
(7) The employee with the highest total retention points is placed at the top of the list, and 

the employee with the lowest retention points is placed at the bottom of the list. 
 
(8) The employee at the top of the list shall bump the employee at the bottom of the list.  

The next highest employee on the list and the remaining employees shall be handled in the same 
manner until the total number of filled positions in the broadband level to be abolished is 
complete. 

 
(9) Should two or more employees have the same combined total of retention points, the 

order of layoff shall be determined by giving preference for retention in the following sequence: 
(a) The employee with the longest service in the affected broadband level. 
(b) The employee with the longest continuous service in the Career 

Service. 
(c) The employee who is entitled to veteran’s preference pursuant to 

Ssection 295.07(1), Florida Statutes. 
 

(10)  An employee who has permanent status in his current position Career Service status and 
who is to be laid off shall be given at least 14 calendar days’ notice of such layoff or in lieu 
thereof, two weeks pay or a combination of days of notice and pay. , in lieu of the full 14 
calendar days notice,  Any payment will be made to be paid at the employee’s current hourly 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 8 (Substance Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

base rate of pay.  The notice of layoff shall be in writing and sent to the employee by certified 
mail, return receipt requested.  Within 7 calendar days after receiving the notice of layoff, the 
employee shall have the right to request, in writing, a demotion or reassignment within the 
competitive area in lieu of layoff to a position in a broadband level within the bargaining unit 
which the employee held permanent status, or to a position at the level of or below the current 
level in the bargaining unit, in which the employee held permanent status. Such request must be 
in writing and reassignment or demotion cannot be effected to a higher broadband level. 

 

(11) An employee’s request for demotion or reassignment shall be granted unless it 
would cause the layoff of another employee who possesses a greater total of retention points. 

 
(12) An employee who is adversely affected as a result of another employee having a 

greater number of retention points shall have the same right of reassignment or demotion under 
the same procedure as provided in this section. 

 
(13) If an employee requests a demotion or reassignment in lieu of layoff, the same 

formula and criteria for establishing retention points shall be used as prescribed in this section. 
 

(B) If there is to be a layoff of employees the State shall take all reasonable steps to place 
any adversely affected employees in existing vacancies for which they are qualified. 

 
(C) If work performed by employees in this unit is to be performed by non-State 

employees, the State agrees to encourage the employing entity to consider any adversely affected 
unit employees for employment in its organization if the State has been unable to place the 
employees in other positions within the Career Service System.  

SECTION 2 - Recall 

(A) For a period of six (6) calendar months following layoff, when a vacancy occurs or a 
new position is established, laid off employees with the highest number of retention points shall 
be notified and permitted the opportunity to apply. 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 8 (Substance Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

(B) Any appointment offer by the employing agency shall be subject to agency needs and 
sufficient funds and salary rate for the vacant position. 

(C) Employees who are reemployed after layoff in a position in the broadband level from 
which the employee was laid off shall be reemployed with permanent status. 

 
SECTION 3 - Retirement Benefits 

Pursuant to Ssection 121.021(38), Florida Statutes, an absence from the employer's payroll for a 
period of not to exceed twelve (12) calendar months due to a "layoff" by the State shall not 
constitute a break in the continuous service requirement as provided in Section 121.021, Florida 
Statutes, for special risk members. 

SECTION 4 - Job Security 

(A) The Sstate shall notify the PBA at least thirty (30) days in advance of a layoff 
involving positions within the bargaining unit. Thirty (30) days prior to the actual layoff 
decision, the Sstate will meet and negotiate with the PBA over the necessity of the layoff, 
alternatives to the proposed layoff and like and related matters. However, these negotiations shall 
not delay the implementation of layoffs after completion of the thirty (30) days bargaining 
period. The union PBA will not pursue statutory impasse resolution procedures after the 
satisfaction of this bargaining obligation.  

(B) At least thirty (30) days prior to aeffecting a planned organizational change which 
will result in the movement of positions out of the bargaining unit, or in the demotion of Unit 
employees, the agency will notify the Department of Management Services of the changes. If the 
Department of Management Services determines that bargaining Unit employees are impacted 
by the changes, under Chapter 447, Florida Statutes, it will notify the PBA of the changes 
pursuant to Chapter 447, Florida Statutes. 

 
 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit 
State Proposal - Article 9 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 9 
REASSIGNMENT, TRANSFER, CHANGE IN DUTY STATION, AND PROMOTION 

 
Employees who are have attained permanent status in the Career Service their current 

position shall have the opportunity to request and be selected for vacant positions in their current 
class within the DHSMV in accordance with the provisions of this Article. 
 
SECTION 1 - Definitions 

As used in this Article: 

(A) "Change in Duty Station" shall mean the moving of an employee to a duty station 
located within fifty (50) miles, by highway, of his current duty station. 

(B) "Duty station" shall mean the place which is designated as an employee's official 
headquarters. 

(C) Broadband Level shall mean all positions sufficiently similar in knowledge, skills, 
and abilities, and sufficiently similar as to kind or subject matter of work, level of difficulty or 
responsibilities, and qualification requirements of the work, to warrant the same treatment as to 
title, pay band, and other personnel transactions "Occupational level" shall mean the same level 
within the employee’s current occupation within the State classification system. 

 (D) Reassignment shall mean the moving of an employee from a position in one 
broadband class/occupational level to a different position in the same broadband 
class/occupational level or to a different broadband level having the same maximum salary 
essential knowledge, skills & abilities, regardless of the location of the position. 
 
 (E) Transfer shall mean the moving of an employee from one geographic area of the 
Sstate to a different geographic location which is in excess of fifty (50) miles, by highway, from 
the employee's current duty station. 
 
 
 
 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit 
State Proposal - Article 9 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 2 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

(F) Promotion shall mean changing the classification of an employee to a broadband level 
having a higher maximum salary; or the changing of the classification of an employee to a 
broadband level having the same or a lower maximum salary but a higher level of responsibility 
shall mean the moving of an employee from a position in one occupational level to a different 
position in another occupational level having a higher maximum salary, provided the position in 
the higher occupational level is in the bargaining Unit. 

(G) Demotion shall mean changing the classification of an employee to a broadband level 
having a lower maximum salary; or the changing of the classification of an employee to a 
broadband level having the same or a higher maximum salary but a lower level of responsibility 
shall mean the moving of an employee from a position in one occupational level to a different 
position in another class/occupational level having a lower maximum salary. 
 
SECTION 2 – Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station 

(A) An employee who is has attained permanent status in the Career Service System his 
current position may apply for a reassignment on a Request for Reassignment Form (supplied by 
the agency). Such Requests shall indicate the county(ies) and/or shift(s) to which the employee 
would like to be reassigned. When the employee requests reassignment, a State of Florida 
Employment Application Form must be completed and sent with the Request for Reassignment 
Form. 

(B) An employee may submit a Request for Reassignment Form at any time; however, all 
such Requests shall expire on June 30 of each calendar year. Requests for reassignment for the 
next fiscal year may be filed on June 1 of the preceding fiscal year. 

(C) All Request for Reassignment Forms shall be submitted to the Aagency Hhead or his 
designee who shall be responsible for furnishing a copy of each such Request to the management 
representatives who have the authority to make employee hiring decisions in the county to which 
the employee has requested reassignment. The employee shall provide a copy of the Request to 
the PBA at the time it is filed with the agency. 

 

 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit 
State Proposal - Article 9 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 3 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

(D) Except where a vacancy is filled by demotion, or where reassignment is not in the 
best interests of the agency, the management representative having hiring authority for that 
vacancy shall give first consideration to those employees who have submitted a Request for 
Reassignment Form; provided, however, that employees whose Request for Reassignment is not 
submitted by the first day of the month shall not be considered for vacancies which occur during 
that month. 

(E) Provided the reassignment is in the best interest of the agency, the hiring authority 
shall normally fill a permanent vacancy with the employee who has the greatest length of service 
in the broadband occupational level and who has a Request for Reassignment Form on file for 
the county in which the vacancy exists. The Parties agree, however, that other factors, such as 
employees' work history and agency needs, may be taken into consideration in making the 
decision as to whether or not the employee with the greatest length of service in the broadband 
occupational level will be placed in the vacant position.  

(F) If the employee with the greatest length of service in the broadband occupational 
level is not selected for the vacant position, the Agency shall notify the employee selected with 
reasons for the selection. Employees with greater length in service will be allowed to obtain a 
copy of the notice. 

(G) When an employee has been reassigned pursuant to a Request filed under this 
Article, all other pending Requests shall be canceled. No other Request may be filed under this 
Article for a period of twelve (12) months following the employee's reassignment. If an 
employee declines an offer of reassignment pursuant to a Request filed under this Article, the 
employee will not be eligible for consideration for reassignment to the county(ies) and/or shift(s) 
declined, for a period of twelve (12) months. 

(H) An employee shall not be required to change residence for the sole purpose of living 
within a specific county; however, an employee may be required to reside within a reasonable 
distance of a specific duty station. 

(I) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent the DHSMV, at its 
discretion, from affecting the involuntary reassignment, transfer or change in duty station of any 
employee according to the needs of the agency. However, it is understood that the DHSMV will 
make an effort not to affect any involuntary reassignment, transfer or change in duty station 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit 
State Proposal - Article 9 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 4 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

which will impose a residency hardship on the employee (in that he must relocate his residence 
from a permanent home presently owned or cancel a rental lease extending more than three (3) 
months), without first considering any Request for Reassignment Forms on file for the county in 
which the agency need exists. 

(J) An employee shall be given a minimum of fourteen (14) calendar days’ notice prior to 
the agency affecting any shift change or reassignment and thirty (30) calendar days' notice prior 
to the agency affecting any transfer.  

(K) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent the State from 
making reassignments, shift changes, transfers, or changes in duty stations of any employee 
during an emergency or as otherwise required to meet urgent law enforcement needs of the State. 

SECTION 3 - Relocation Allowance 

An employee who is reassigned or promoted and who is required by agency policy to 
relocate his residence shall be granted time off with pay for one (1) work day leave for purposes 
of relocating his residence. In addition, the employee shall be granted travel time to the new 
location based on the most direct route. No employee will be credited with more than the number 
of hours in the employee's regular workday and such time shall not be counted as hours worked 
for the purpose of computing compensatory time or overtime. 

SECTION 4 - Request to Take Promotional Test 

The Sstate and the PBA agree that promotions should be made based on the relative merit 
and fitness of applicants. Toward the goal of selecting the most qualified applicant for each 
promotional vacancy, the parties agree that the provisions of this Article along with all 
provisions of the Rules of the State Personnel System will be followed when making such 
appointments. 

(A) If the DHSMV has established a promotional test, an employee who is has attained 
permanent status in the Career Service System his current position may apply to take a the 
promotional test by submitting a Request to Take Test Form to the DHSMV to indicate that he 
wishes to be considered for promotional vacancies. Such request shall indicate the occupational 
level(s) to which the employee would like to be promoted. The employee's eligibility for the 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit 
State Proposal - Article 9 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 5 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

occupational level shall be determined from information in the employee's personnel file. Each 
applicant will be notified of his eligibility or ineligibility for the broadband occupational level(s) 
applied for. 

(B) An employee may submit a request to take a promotional test where established by 
the DHSMV at any time; however, all such requests must be filed every two (2) years and must 
be received in the agency personnel office by no later than the first business day after January 15 
of each calendar year and shall remain effective until revoked by the employee. 

(C) If the DHSMV an agency has established a promotional test, by January 15 of each 
calendar year, the DHSMV central personnel office of each agency shall provide a "NOTICE OF 
PROMOTIONAL TEST" containing the following information: 

(1) The date(s) of the test(s), 

(2) The city(ies) where the test(s) will be administered, 

(3) The major categories to be covered by each test, 

(4) A bibliography of the sources from which test questions have been taken; e.g., 
name of textbooks, departmental policies, general orders, special orders, etc. 

(5) The passing grade that must be attained, expressed as a percent (%) of correct 
answers to the total number of questions graded. 

(D) By February 15 of each calendar year, the DHSMV shall furnish to those eligible 
employees whose test requests are on file in the agency, a copy of the "NOTICE OF 
PROMOTIONAL TEST".  The DHSMV shall be responsible for the administration of the 
written test no earlier than April 15 of each calendar year and only those employees whose 
names are furnished to the DHSMV will be eligible to take the promotional test. 

(E)  The DHSMV, if it has established a promotional test and administers a written test 
shall be responsible for notifying each employee who takes a promotional test of the test results. 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit 
State Proposal - Article 9 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 6 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

(F) When extraordinary circumstances make it necessary to give a promotional test at a 
time other than as set forth above, the employees will be given adequate notice to prepare for 
such special test. 

SECTION 5 - Test Standards and Criteria  

(A) The DHSMV shall be responsible for the development of all written promotional 
tests which shall be based upon a job task analysis of the occupational broadband level of 
positions being tested and an assessment of the knowledge, skills and abilities necessary to 
perform the requirements of positions in the occupational level. 

(B) Only persons who have been certified as a law enforcement officer pursuant to 
Chapter 943, Florida Statutes, shall be eligible for agency promotional tests. 

(C) A one-hour test review will be held at the conclusion of each test session. All 
challenges to test items must be submitted in writing and received by the DHSMV within five (5) 
days after the date of the test. 

SECTION 6 - Promotional Lists  

(A) If the DHSMV does not elect to rank employees solely on the basis of a written test, 
the agency shall establish a promotional list which ranks the employees according to their 
relative merit and fitness for promotional vacancies in the Law Enforcement Occupation, 
occupation code 33-3051 occupational level. In addition to the written test score, the agency 
DHSMV may, at its discretion, utilize the employee's performance reviews and/or oral 
interviews in establishing the agency’s final promotional list. When performance reviews and/or 
oral interviews are used, in addition to written test scores the DHSMV shall advise PBA in 
writing as to the weight the agency proposes to accord to each criteria in establishing the agency 
promotional list. The PBA may upon request discuss the criteria and weight to be accorded in 
addition to written test scores. If the DHSMV utilizes oral interviews, it will establish a three 
member panel, one to be selected by the Aagency Hhead or his designee, one by mutual 
agreement of the parties, and the third to be selected by the PBA, provided that no member of the 
panel may be an employee covered by this Agreement. Questions asked at an oral interview will 
be limited to those that are clearly job related and the same questions shall be asked of all 
applicants. 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit 
State Proposal - Article 9 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 7 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

 
(B) The agency promotional list shall be effective July 1st of each calendar year. Names 

shall be retained on the agency's promotional list for a period of one year. Time extensions of 
said list may be made only by the mutual consent of the parties. When a list is established as a 
result of a special test being given pursuant to Section 4(F) 2(D) above, it shall remain in force 
through June 30 of the calendar year. 

(C) The agency's promotional list, consisting of the name, final score and position on the 
appropriate list, shall be furnished to each employee who passed the written test. 

SECTION 7 - Method of Filling Vacancies  

(A) Except where a vacancy is filled by demoting a law enforcement employee or by 
reassignment, any person who is to be selected for a vacancy must first have his name placed on 
the agency's promotional list in accordance with the criteria set forth in this Article. Upon the 
employee receiving his copy of the agency promotional list, the employee who wishes to be 
considered for promotional opportunities shall file with the agency a Request for Promotion 
Form which shall indicate the occupational broadband level(s) and the county(ies) to which the 
employee would like to be promoted. The vacancy shall be filled from among the persons having 
the highest five numerical scores contained on the promotional list who have applied for the 
vacancy. However, the DHSMV shall have the discretion to fill a vacancy from only the highest 
five numerical scores of DHSMV bargaining Unit employees contained on the agency's 
DHSMV’s promotional list. The DHSMV shall attempt to fill vacancies in an expeditious 
manner when operationally feasible. 

(B) In filling vacancies, the DHSMV will first consider any pending Request for 
Reassignment forms on file for the work area in which the agency need exists. Nothing contained 
in this agreement shall be construed to prevent the DHSMV from filling a vacancy in a manner 
meeting the agency’s needs. 

SECTION 8 – Grievability  

The initiation of a grievance claiming a residency hardship shall stay any required change 
in residence until final disposition of the grievance. In considering such a grievance weight shall 
be given to the needs of the agency against the hardship on the employee. 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit 
State Proposal - Article 9 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 8 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

SECTION 9 – Promotions Outside the Unit 

The State shall make a good faith effort to fill vacant positions in the rank immediately 
above the bargaining unit with employees of the bargaining unit. This provision is not subject to 
the Article 6 grievance procedure. 
 
SECTION 10 – Probationary Status on Promotion 

An employee who has obtained permanent status in a position in a broadband level who 
fails, due to the performance of the new duties, to satisfactorily complete the probationary period 
in the promotional broadband level shall be demoted to the former broadband level previously 
held by the employee in an available vacant position in the DHSMV. 

(A) Such a demotion shall be with permanent status, provided the employee held 
permanent status in the lower broadband level. 
 

(A) An employee appointed to a position must successfully complete at least a one-
year probationary period and shall attain permanent status in that position upon successful 
completion of the designated probationary period.   

 
(B) An employee serving a probationary period in a position to which he has received 

an internal agency promotion may be removed from that promotional position at any time during 
the probationary period.  If his former position, or a comparable position, is vacant, the employee 
is to be placed in such position.  If such a position is not available, before dismissal, the DHSMV 
shall make a reasonable effort to retain the employee in another vacant position.  This process 
does not apply to terminations for cause nor does it create a right to bump an employee from an 
occupied position. 

 
(1) If the employee is demoted into their former position or a comparable 

position, such demotion shall be with permanent status, provided the employee held permanent 
status in the agency in the lower position. 

 
(2) (B) The employee’s salary will be reduced in accordance with the agency’s 

pay upon demotion policy. 
 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit 
State Proposal - Article 9 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 9 of 9 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

(3) (C) Such demotion shall not be grievable under the contractual grievance 
procedure. 
 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 10 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 10 
DISCIPLINARY ACTION 

 
(A) An employee who has attained permanent status in his current position the Career 

Service System may be disciplined only for just cause. 

(B) An employee who has not attained permanent status in his current position the Career 
Service System shall not have access to the grievance procedure in Article 6 when dismissed. 

(C) Each employee shall be furnished a copy of all disciplinary actions placed in his 
official personnel file and shall be permitted to respond thereto. 

(D) An employee may request that a PBA Staff Representative be present during any 
disciplinary investigation meeting in which the employee is being questioned relative to alleged 
misconduct of the employee, or during a predetermination conference in which suspension or 
dismissal of the employee is being considered. 

(E) Letters of counseling are not disciplinary action and not grievable; documentation or 
discipline less severe than an oral reprimand shall not be used against any employee in any 
fashion.  Letters of counseling or counseling notices are documentation of minor work 
deficiencies or conduct concerns that are not discipline, and are not grievable; however such 
documentation may be used by the state at an administrative hearing involving an employee’s 
discipline to demonstrate the employee was on notice of the performance deficiencies or conduct 
concerns. 
 

(F) Suspensions, Dismissal, Reductions in Pay, and Demotions resulting in a loss of pay 
may be challenged under Article 6 through arbitration. Oral reprimands, written reprimands or 
other disciplinary actions not resulting in monetary loss are grievable to Step 2 only and not 
arbitrable. At arbitration over a suspension, dismissal, reduction in pay, or demotion with a 
monetary loss an employee may challenge any basis relied upon by the Agency for taking the 
disciplinary action.  The DHSMV may have special compensatory leave equal to the length of a 
disciplinary suspension deducted from an employee’s leave balance in lieu of serving the 
suspension.  In making such determination, the DHSMV shall take into consideration the 
preference of the employee as to serving the suspension or having leave deducted.  If the 
employee does not have sufficient special compensatory leave, annual leave may be deducted.  If 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 10 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

there is not sufficient special compensatory or annual leave, the remainder of the period will be 
leave without pay. Employees from whom leave is deducted will continue to report for duty.  
The employee’s personnel file will reflect a disciplinary suspension regardless of whether the 
employee serves the suspension or has leave deducted. 
 

(G) If filed within 21 calendar days following the date of receipt of notice from the 
DHSMV, by personal delivery or by certified mail, return receipt requested, an employee with 
permanent status in his current position may appeal a reduction in base pay, involuntary transfer 
of over 50 miles by highway, suspension, demotion, or dismissal to the Public Employees 
Relations Commission under the provisions of section 110.227(5) and (6), Florida Statutes.  Such 
appeal process is the exclusive remedy for review of such actions; they are not subject to the 
Article 6 grievance procedure. 

 
(H) A written reprimand shall be subject to the grievance procedure in Article 6 if a 

grievance is filed by an employee with permanent status in his current position; the decision is 
final and binding at Step 2. 

 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 14 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 14 
PERFORMANCE REVIEW 

 
SECTION 1 - Performance Reviews  

(A) The performance of permanent status bargaining Unit employees shall be reviewed in 
accordance with State Personnel System Rule 60L-35, Florida Administrative Code, 
Performance Evaluation System. Section 110.224, Florida Statutes. 

(B) Employees' performance shall be reviewed by their immediate supervisors or 
designated raters, who shall submit the proposed performance review to higher management for 
approval.  

(C) Numerical arrest, citation or violation quotas will not be used as the primary factor in 
reviewing employees' performance. 

(D) The State will continue to maintain and will make a good faith effort to train 
supervisors in performance review techniques. 

(E) The parties agree that the performance review evaluations of an employee shall are 
not be grievable subject to under Article 6 of this Agreement; however a performance evaluation 
may be considered in the review of an appeal of a suspension or dismissal under the provisions 
of Article 10(G).  the Grievance Procedure of Article 6 of this Agreement unless the performance 
review is relied upon in whole or in part as the basis for a disciplinary action under Article 10. 

(F) FHP leadership agrees to meet with the PBA within 90 days of the signing of this 
Agreement to discuss the adoption of standards related to enforcement contacts and contacts 
related to public assistance.  Following the adoption of standards by the FHP, FHP leadership 
agrees to meet annually with the PBA to discuss the adopted standards. 

SECTION 2 - Agency Performance Reviews  

The State agrees that the DHSMV’s performance review system for bargaining Unit 
employees shall adhere to the following standards. 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 14 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

(A) Performance reviews shall be based on an employee's actual job performance and 
shall not conform to preconceived percentage distributions. When a numerical scoring formula is 
to be utilized by the agency, the evaluation form shall contain the formula with blanks for 
insertion of the actual scores that will be used in reaching the overall evaluation. 

(B) Whenever practicable, an employee's performance shall be reviewed by a sworn law 
enforcement officer. 
 
 
SECTION 3 - Recruit Evaluation 
 

Bargaining Unit Eemployees shall receive an evaluation from the academy upon 
completion of recruit school. A copy of the evaluation shall be forwarded to their Florida 
Highway Patrol Unit supervisor. 
 
 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 15 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 15 
SENIORITY 

 
SECTION 1 – Definition 

For the purpose of this Agreement, "seniority" shall be defined as continuous service in 
the job classification positions covered by this bargaining unit; provided, however, that an 
employee shall be considered to have a break in service when the employee separates, and is not 
on any State Personnel System payroll for at least thirty-one (31) calendar days following the 
separation. 

SECTION 2 - Seniority Application 

Except under extraordinary circumstances, vacations, shifts, shift transfers and regular 
days off shall be scheduled with due regard for the needs of the agency, seniority, and bargaining 
Unit employee preference. The Sstate and the PBA understand that there may be times when the 
needs of the agency will not permit such scheduling.  

SECTION 3 - Vacation and Holiday Leave 

Where practicable, requests for leave of forty (40) contiguous hours or more, or for 
holidays requested, shall be requested at least sixty (60) days in advance of such leave in order 
that the provisions of this Article may be fully implemented; however, in implementing this 
provision nothing shall preclude the DHSMV from making reasonable accommodations for 
extraordinary leave requests or ensuring the fair distribution of leave during favored holidays. 
 
 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 16 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
February 13, 2013 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 16 
EMPLOYMENT OUTSIDE STATE GOVERNMENT 

 
For purposes of this Article, the following definitions are used: 

(A) "Hireback": Off duty police employment administered by the Sstate. 

(B) "Off-Duty Employment": Any secondary employment undertaken while in an off-
duty status which does not entail the use or implied use of police authority. Work of this type 
provides no real or potential law enforcement services, and vested police powers are not a 
condition of employment. 

(C) "Off-Duty Police Employment" (ODPE): Secondary employment undertaken while 
in other than a duty status which entails actual or potential use of police authority and requires 
police powers as a condition of employment.  The definition encompasses those who schedule 
off-duty police employment. 

(D) “ODPE Job”: A distinct project that has one employer and in which work is 
performed in a set location(s) identified at the beginning of the job.  In the case of a construction 
or similar project, an ODPE job may consist of multiple phases.  However, a second distinct 
construction project shall be considered a separate ODPE job for the purposes of assigning a 
scheduler. 
 
SECTION 1 - Outside Employment - Non-Police Employment 

(A) On the effective date of this Agreement, any bargaining Unit employee who is 
performing non-police employment outside of Sstate government, which employment has not 
been previously approved, shall be subject to the provisions of Section 1(B) of this Article. 

(B) If, during the term of this Agreement, an employee is to accept new non-police 
employment outside of Sstate government, the employee shall notify his agency head, or his 
designee, of such employment, prior to date of employment, and verify that such non-police 
employment does not conflict with the employee's Sstate employment, or with the DHSMV’s 
policies or procedures limiting such outside employment. Should such conflict(s) be found to 
exist, outside employment shall be disapproved.  Absent extenuating circumstances, a 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 16 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
February 13, 2013 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

disapproval of a notice or request for outside non-police employment will be communicated to 
the employee within fourteen (14) calendar days of the notice or request. If extenuating 
circumstances prevent a determination as to the appropriateness of the non-police employment, 
the reasons for the delay will be provided to the employee in writing. In any event Wwhenever 
the Sstate determines that any outside employment conflicts with the employee’s responsibilities 
connected with his state employment, the outside employment may be disapproved and 
prohibited. Disapprovals of outside employment shall be subject to the contract’s expedited 
arbitration procedure. 

(C) During the course of the employee's outside employment, the DHSMV may make 
reasonable inquiries of the employee to ensure that the employee's continued outside 
employment does not constitute a conflict of interest, or interfere with the employee's primary 
duties as a State law enforcement officer. 

SECTION 2 - Outside Employment - Police Employment 

(A) Any bargaining Unit employee who wishes to perform police employment outside of 
Sstate government shall secure the required approval in advance in accordance with the agency’s 
policies and procedures the Rules of the State Personnel System, agency policies and procedures 
and applicable law.  It is understood that Ppermission shall not be withheld as long as such 
outside employment does not conflict with the employee's Sstate employment or with the 
DHSMV’s agency’s policies and procedures limiting such outside employment.   

(B) Scheduling of off-duty police employment shall be at the discretion of the 
Department. 

(C) (B) Requests for approval of outside employment shall be acted upon in a timely 
manner.  Within 60 days of ratification of the contract the parties will initiate consultations on 
the amount of off-duty hours to be allowed.  Absent extenuating circumstances, a disapproval of 
outside employment will be communicated within fourteen (14) calendar days of the submission 
of the notice by the employee.  In the event extenuating circumstances prevent a determination 
with fourteen (14) calendar days, the reasons for the delay will be provided in writing to the 
employee.  In any event A a request can be denied or an approval can be revoked whenever the 
outside employment State determines that a conflicts exists between with the employee’s state 
employment or the agency’s policies and procedures and the outside employment.  Disapprovals 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 16 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
February 13, 2013 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

of a request for outside employment shall be subject to the contract’s expedited arbitration 
procedure.  Disapprovals of a request for outside employment shall be grievable up through Step 
2. 

(D) (C) During the course of the employee's outside employment, the DHSMV may 
make reasonable inquiries of the employee to ensure that the employee's continued outside 
employment does not constitute a conflict of interest, or interfere with the employee's primary 
duties as a Sstate law enforcement officer.  

(E) (D) Each employee will be permitted to wear his uniform and personal equipment and 
use his patrol car or vessel during approved off-duty police employment. Any employee who 
desires to seek such outside employment during his off-duty hours or leave time will seek 
permission from the DHSMV whose decision will be in accordance with the policy established 
by the agency on such matters. Approval for such outside employment will be granted so long as 
it: 

(1) Does not constitute a conflict of interest; 

(2) Does not interfere with the employee's primary duties as a Sstate law 
enforcement officer; and 

(3) Within the duties and responsibilities the employee performs or may 
reasonably be expected to perform as a part of his job duties and responsibilities. 

(F) (E) When required by the Sstate, bargaining Unit employees who are utilizing Sstate 
equipment while performing police employment outside of Sstate employment shall be 
responsible for all insurance relative to such outside employment, including workers' 
compensation, liability and vehicle insurance, unless the employees are engaged in activity as 
provided in Ssection 440.091, Florida Statutes. 
 
SECTION 3 - Taxes 
 
 The employee shall be responsible for reporting and paying all taxes incurred as a result 
of off-duty police and off-duty non-police employment. 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 18 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 6 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 18 
HOURS OF WORK, LEAVE AND JOB-CONNECTED DISABILITY 

 
The Parties specifically agree that the attendance and leave provisions as contained in 

Chapter Rule 60L-34, of the Florida Administrative Code, including the accrual, usage and 
payment of sick and annual leave upon separation from Career Service employment, shall apply 
to all Bargaining Unit employees.  The Sstate shall not compel an employee to involuntarily use 
annual leave in circumstances where the employee is ill or otherwise qualified for sick leave.  
This provision shall not apply in instances of qualified family medical leave.   
 
SECTION 1 – Workday, Work Period 
 

(A)  The DHSMV shall not require an employee to split a workday into two or more 
segments without the mutual agreement of the employee and the employer. 
 

(B)  Where an employee works hours in excess of their regular schedule, the Sstate has 
the ability to adjust the employee’s schedule as long as it occurs within the same work period 
and provided the employee receives notice of the adjustment prior to the commencement of the 
employee’s adjusted shift for a 40-hour work period, or 24 hours notice for a 80-hour work 
period or 36 hours notice for a 160-hour work period.  The State will make a good faith effort to 
offset such extra hours in eight (8) hour increments. 
 

(C)  The work period for Florida Highway Patrol Bargaining Unit employees shall be 40, 
80 or 160 hours, as determined by the Executive Director of the DHSMV. 
 
SECTION 2 – Non-Required Work Time 
 

Florida Highway Patrol Bargaining Unit Eemployees shall not be required to volunteer 
time to the State.  If records of voluntary time are kept by the State or the DHSMV, they shall 
not be used to adversely affect performance reviews or promotions. 
 
 
 
 
SECTION 3 – Work Schedule 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 18 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 2 of 6 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

 
(A)  Where an employee has an established schedule, a change in workdays or shifts will 

be posted no less than fourteen (14) calendar days in advance and will reflect at least a two (2) 
workweek schedule; however, the State will make a good faith effort to reflect a one (1) month 
schedule. 
 

(B)  In the event of a declared emergency the notice requirement of this Section may be 
voided by the DHSMV.  
 

(C)  The state will continue to observe the scheduling structures currently in place at the 
DHSMV and agrees to bargain any change in the overall practice of how schedules are 
established. 
 
SECTION 4 – Overtime 
 

(A)  The work period for each full-time employee shall be 40, 80 or 160 hours, as 
determined by the DHSMV agency. 
 

(B)  Work beyond the employee’s regular work period shall be recognized in accordance 
with Chapter Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code; provided, however, that when an 
emergency is declared by the Governor and funds are available, employees who are assigned to 
the emergency area described in the Governor’s Executive Order shall be subject to a forty (40) 
hour workweek while so assigned.  The State and the PBA will cooperate to secure funds for the 
payment of overtime to Unit employees in the situation described herein.  The Sstate shall make 
a reasonable effort to equalize distribution of overtime opportunities. 
 

(C)  The PBA agrees to support those changes in Chapter Rule 60L-34, Florida 
Administrative Code, that may be required in order for the State to be in compliance with the 
Fair Labor Standards Act as it is applied to public employees, which the State agrees to comply 
with. 
 
 
 
 
 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 18 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

 
SECTION 5 – FLSA Special Compensatory Leave 
 

(A) If the DHSMV has a plan approved in advance by the Department of Management 
Services, FLSA special compensatory leave credits shall be granted, administered and used as 
described below: 
 

(B) An employee who is filling an included position may, at the end of the approved 
extended period, waive payment for overtime and have the overtime hours credited to “FLSA 
special compensatory leave.”  If such election is made, the overtime hours will be credited as 
“FLSA special compensatory leave” credits at the rate of one and one-half (1-1/2) hours for each 
hour of overtime worked.  An employee will only be permitted to accumulate a maximum of one 
hundred (100) hours of “FLSA special compensatory leave” credits which may be taken in any 
increments at the employee’s discretion provided the FLSA compensatory leave is taken by June 
30 or December 31 of each year.  The employee’s request to utilize FLSA compensatory leave 
shall be granted so long as granting the request would not result in “undue disruption.”  If the 
FLSA compensatory leave is not utilized by the employee by June 30 or December 31 of each 
year, all unused “FLSA special compensatory leave” credits at the close of business on 
December 31 and June 30 shall be paid for at the employee’s straight time regular hourly rate in 
accordance with Chapter Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code, as amended.  An employee 
who separates from the Career Service or moves to another state agency shall be paid for all 
unused “FLSA special compensatory leave” in accordance with the above. 
 

(C) The parties agree that all Florida Highway Patrol recruits shall be treated in the 
manner described below with regard to FLSA compensatory leave: 
 

(1) Florida Highway Patrol recruits undergoing training to attain Law 
Enforcement Certification, or agency-specific orientation, will be exempt from the 100 hour cap 
on the earning of FLSA compensatory leave credits and mandatory June 30 and December 31 
payment requirements during the time they attend an academy or education institution.  

 
(2) Recruits may request up to 120 hours of FLSA leave upon graduation 

from the academy or educational institution for the purpose of relocating to their new 
assignment.  Such leave must be authorized by the recruit’s agency.  Recruits must use the 
accrued FLSA compensatory leave credits before using regular annual leave. 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 18 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

 
(3) Any remaining FLSA compensatory leave credits shall be used within the 

next six-month cycle, or paid for at the end of that cycle, as presently provided for in Chapter 
Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code, and Article 18, Section 6(A) of the Agreement. 
 
SECTION  6 – Special Compensatory Leave  
 
 (A)  An employee shall be eligible to earn special compensatory leave credits as a result of 
hours worked on a holiday; extra hours worked during an established work period which 
contains a holiday or when a facility is closed under Executive Order during emergency 
conditions.  When an employee is required to work in circumstances as set forth in this 
paragraph, any special compensatory leave earned at the end of the workweek, work period, or 
extended work period, shall be taken with the mutual agreement of the employee and the 
supervisor provided the special compensatory leave is taken within sixty (60) calendar days of 
the holiday or last date the facility remained closed under Executive Order.  Thereafter, the 
special compensatory leave will be scheduled at the discretion of the supervisor.  The State shall 
not offset special compensatory leave earned during a work period due to a holiday with 
approved sick leave used during the same work period or administrative leave used in the work 
period for negotiations pursuant to Article 5.   
 
(B)  Florida Highway Patrol bargaining unit Employees may, at their option, use special 
compensatory leave before using accrued annual leave credits.  Employees will only be 
permitted to accumulate a maximum of two hundred and forty (240) hours of special 
compensatory leave credits.  
(A)  Earning of Special Compensatory Leave Credits.  Special compensatory leave credits 
may be earned only in the following instances: 
 (1) By an employee in the career service for work performed on a holiday as defined 
in section 110.117, Florida Statutes, or for work performed during a work period that includes a 
holiday, as provided by the Rules of the State Personnel System. 
 (2) By an employee in the career service for work performed in the employee’s 
assigned office, facility, or region which is closed pursuant to an Executive Order of the 
Governor or any other disaster or emergency condition. 
(B) Special Compensatory Leave Earned Prior to July 1, 2013 

(1) Despite the fact that previous collective bargaining agreements only permitted 
employees to accumulate a maximum of 240 hours of special compensatory leave credits, certain 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 18 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 5 of 6 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

employees may have earned hours prior to July 1, 2013 in excess of that amount.   Nothing in 
this agreement is intended to address the validity or invalidity of special compensatory leave 
credits above 240 hours earned prior to July 1, 2013. 

(2) An employee may be required to reduce special compensatory leave credit 
balances. 
(C)  Special Compensatory Leave Earned On or After July 1, 2013 
 (1) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection (A)(1), on 
or after July 1, 2013, which are not used each year by the April 30 or October 31 that 
immediately succeeds the work period in which the leave is credited, whichever date occurs 
earlier, shall be forfeited. 
 (2) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection (A)(2), on 
or after July 1, 2013, which are not used within 120 calendar days from the end of the work 
period in which the leave is credited shall be forfeited. 
 (3) Each agency shall schedule employees earning special compensatory leave credits 
in a manner that allows all such leave credits earned on or after July 1, 2013, to be used within 
the time limits specified in subsections 1 and 2.  However, if scheduling such leave within such 
time limits would prevent the agency from meeting minimum staffing requirements needed to 
ensure public safety, the agency head may extend the time limits specified in subsections 1 and 2 
for up to an additional 180 calendar days.  Extensions will not be allowed for any other reason. 
 (4) No agency may make a payout of unused special compensatory leave credits 
earned on or after July 1, 2013. 
(D) Unless otherwise prohibited by law or rule, all requests for use of approved leave, other 
than administrative leave, shall first be charged to any special compensatory leave credits the 
employee has accrued. 
 
SECTION 7 – Sick Leave Pool and Sick Leave Transfer 
 

The DHSMV shall set up and administer a sick leave pool and sick leave transfer plan for 
the Florida Highway Patrol Bargaining Unit employees if there is sufficient employee 
participation to render the pool and sick leave transfer plan administratively feasible.  Employees 
shall be subject to the conditions, and have full access to the benefits, of the DHSMV’s existing 
sick leave pool and sick leave transfer plan. 
SECTION 8 – Section 440.15(112), Florida Statutes – Full-Pay Status 
 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 18 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 6 of 6 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

(A)  An employee who sustains a job-connected disability and meets the eligibility 
requirements, as provided for in Section 440.15(112), Florida Statutes, may be carried in full-pay 
status. 
 

(B)  Any claim by an employee or the PBA concerning this Section shall not be subject to 
the Grievance Procedure of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 9 – Chapter Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code- Disability Leave With 
Pay 
 

An employee who sustains a job-connected disability which is not covered by Section 8 
above, is eligible for disability leave with pay under the provisions of Chapter Rule 60L-34, 
Florida Administrative Code.  The Agency Head or his designee shall not unreasonably refuse to 
submit a request to carry an employee in full-pay status under the provisions of Chapter Rule 
60L-34, Florida Administrative Code, provided, however, the Secretary of the Department of 
Management Services or his designee shall have the right to determine whether or not an 
employee should be carried in full-pay status for more than twenty-six (26) weeks.  An employee 
shall not be required to use accrued compensatory or annual leave in order to be eligible to be 
carried in full-pay status under Chapter Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code.  However, no 
employee shall be carried in full-pay status until he has utilized 100 hours of accumulated sick 
leave, annual leave, compensatory leave or leave without pay. 
 
SECTION 10 – Alternate Duty 
 

(A)  Where an employee is eligible for disability leave with pay under Rules of the State 
Personnel System as a result of an injury in the line of duty, and is temporarily unable to perform 
his normal work duties, the Agency Head or his designee shall give due consideration to any 
request by the employee to be temporarily assigned substitute duties within the employee’s 
medical restrictions.  This shall have no effect on the agency’s ability to make a different 
assignment based upon current medical opinion. 
 

(B)  A complaint concerning this Section may be grieved in accordance with Article 6 of 
this Agreement up to and including Step 2.  The decision of the Agency Head or designee 
Department of Management Services shall be final and binding on all parties. 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 21 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 21 
ACTING RANKS  

 
COMPENSATION FOR TEMPORARY SPECIAL DUTY IN HIGHER  

LEVEL POSITION 
 
 

SECTION 1 - Eligibility 

Each time an employee is officially designated in writing by the appropriate employee’s 
immediate supervisor to act in an established position in a higher broadband level than the 
employee's permanent current broadband level, and actually performs said a major portion of the 
duties of the higher level position, irrespective of whether the higher level position is funded, for 
a period of more than twenty-two (22) workdays, within any six (6) consecutive months, the 
employee shall be eligible for a temporary special duty additive in accordance with Rule 60L-32, 
Florida Administrative Code.  promotional pay increase to the higher broadband level as 
provided in the Rules of the State Personnel System. 

SECTION 2 - Method of Compensation 

It is understood by the parties that, insofar as pay is concerned, employees temporarily 
filling a position in a higher broadband level shall be paid according to the same compensation 
method as permanent promotees promoted employees under pursuant to the Rules of the State 
Personnel System. 

 

SECTION 3 - Return to Regular Rate 

Employees being paid at a higher rate while temporarily filling a position in a higher 
broadband level will be returned to their regular rate of pay when the period of temporary 
employment special duty in the higher broadband level is endsed. 
 
 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 22 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 22 
VACANT 

 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 24 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 24 
ON-CALL ASSIGNMENT - CALL-BACK - COURT APPEARANCE 

 
SECTION 1 - Definition 

On-call assignment shall be as defined in the Rules 60L-32, Florida Administrative Code 
of the State Personnel System. 

SECTION 2 - Request for On-Call Pay 

When an employee is required by appropriate management to be on call, a request for on-
call payment under Chapter Rule 60L-32, Florida Administrative Code, shall be submitted by the 
DHSMV for approval. The Secretary of Management Services or his designee shall not 
unreasonably withhold approval of such request. 

SECTION 3 - On-Call Fee 

(A) When approved as provided herein, employees who are required to be on call shall be 
compensated by payment of a fee in an amount of not less than one dollar ($1.00) for each hour 
such employee is required to be available. 

(B) Employees who are required to be on call on a Saturday, Sunday and/or a holiday as 
listed in Ssection 110.117, Florida Statutes, will be compensated by payment of a fee in an 
amount equal to one-fourth (1/4) of the statewide minimum for the employee's class for each 
eight (8) hour period such employee is required to be available. 
 
SECTION 4 - Call-Back 
 

When Aan law enforcement employee who has been placed on-call is called back out to 
the work at a time not contiguous with the employee's scheduled hours of work location to 
perform assigned duties, the employee shall be credited for actual time worked, or a minimum of 
four (4) hours, whichever is greater. The rate of compensation shall be in accordance with the 
Rules of the State Personnel System. 
 
 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 24 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

 
SECTION 5 - Court Appearances 
 

If an law enforcement employee is subpoenaed to appear as a witness in a job-related 
court case, not during the employee's regularly assigned shift, the employee shall be credited for 
actual time worked, or a minimum of two and one-half (2-1/2) hours, whichever is greater. 
 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 25 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 30, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 25 
WAGES 

 
SECTION 1 – Pay Provisions – General 

(A) Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 General 
Appropriations Act.  

(B) Increases to base rate of pay and salary additives shall be in accordance with state 
law and the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 General Appropriations Act.   

 
SECTION 2 – Unemployment Rate Incentive 
 In recognition of reducing the unemployment rate from December 2010 to December 
2012, the Governor’s Budget Recommendations provide for a one-time, non-discretionary, 
$1,200 lump sum bonus award, plus applicable taxes, to eligible employees.  Eligibility 
requirements are set forth in Section 8 – Salaries and Benefits – Fiscal Year 2013-2014 of the 
Governor’s Recommendations.  The awards shall be paid to eligible employees no later than 
August 30, 2013, and are subject to funding as provided in the 2013-2014 General 
Appropriations Act. 

 
SECTION 3 – Variable Compensation Award 
 The Governor’s Budget Recommendations provide for discretionary, one-time lump sum 
interim variable compensation awards to eligible employees achieving high job performance as 
evidenced by the employee’s performance evaluation period ending during the period July 1, 
2012 through June 30, 2013.  Awards for Outstanding and Commendable performance will be 
$5,000 and $2,500, respectively, plus applicable taxes.  Eligibility requirements are set forth in 
Section 8 – Salaries and Benefits – Fiscal Year 2013-2014 of the Governor’s Recommendations. 
The awards shall be paid to eligible employees no later than September 30, 2013, and are subject 
to funding as provided in the 2013-2014 General Appropriations Act. 

 
 
 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 25 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 30, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

SECTION 4 – Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency 
 In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 General 
Appropriations Act, and contingent upon the availability of funds and at the agency head’s 
discretion, each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15 
percent of the employee’s base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or 
area closed due to emergency conditions from another area of the state that is not closed. 

 
SECTION 5– Cash Payout of Annual Leave 
 Permanent Career Service employees may be given the option of receiving up to 24 hours 
of unused annual leave each December, in the form of a cash payout subject to, and in 
accordance with, section 110.219(7), Florida Statutes. 

 
SECTION 6 – Performance Pay  
 Each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee’s 
exemplary performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 
60L-35, Florida Administrative Code. 

 
SECTION 7 – Savings Sharing Program 
 An employee or groups of employees may be eligible for monetary awards for ideas or 
programs that result in a cost saving to the state, pursuant to section 110.1245(1), Florida 
Statutes. 
 
SECTION 8 – Pay Subject to General Appropriations Act 
 
 In the event the 2013 Legislature provides different funding or eligibility provisions for 
the above-specified pay increases and payments, the State and the Union agree that such 
increases and payments shall be administered in accordance with the provisions of the Fiscal 
Year 2013-2014 General Appropriations Act, and any other relevant statutes.   
 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 26 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 26 
UNIFORMS AND ACCESSORIES 

 
SECTION 1 - Uniform - Standard Issue 

(A) All Florida Highway Patrol Bargaining Unit employees shall receive a standard issue 
of uniforms (winter and summer) and uniform accessories. If the uniforms are to be replaced, the 
State will study the feasibility of replacing them with quality wash and wear uniforms. 

(B) The Sstate shall provide uniforms for its female officers in the appropriate sizes, 
designed and cut for females. If a female officer is required to wear a bullet proof vest, it shall be 
designed and fitted for a female. 

SECTION 2 - Uniform Accessories  

Uniform accessories will include the following minimum requirements: 

(A) Gun belt, either 2-1/4 inches or 3 inches as appropriate for the individual officer. 

(B) An employee who currently has, and who has been trained in the use of, a cross-draw 
holster, shall be permitted to continue to utilize that type of holster. All other employees will be 
issued a strong-hand holster. 

(C) Spare ammunition, and an appropriate case. 

(D) Where hand-held radios are provided, they will be suitable for law enforcement use. 

(E) The DHSMV, which provides bullet proof vests to Florida Highway Patrol 
bargaining Unit employees, will develop a policy for replacement upon expiration of the 
guaranteed life of the vest as expressed by the manufacturer at the time of purchase.  

(F) The DHSMV will select and provide to each employee at least one intermediate force 
weapon, as determined appropriate by the agency, and provide training in the use of such 
weapon. 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 26 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

SECTION 3 - Uniform and Clothing Maintenance Allowance 

The Sstate will provide Unit employees who are furnished and required by the Sstate to 
wear a uniform, or those employees of this Unit assigned to full-time plain clothes positions, a 
maintenance, clothing and shoe allowance in the amount of $500.00 annually, unless laundry and 
dry cleaning facilities are available and the service is furnished by the agency without cost to the 
employees. 
 
 
 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 27 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 27 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

 
SECTION 1 - State Employees Group Insurance Program 
 

The Sstate agrees to administer the State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan in 
accordance with any statutory provision or Act affecting the plan or its operation. 

SECTION 2 - Death In-Line-Of-Duty Benefits 

(A)  Funeral and burial expenses will be as provided in Ssection 112.19, Florida 
Statutes. 
 

(B)  Education benefits will be as provided in Ssection 112.19, Florida Statutes. 
 

(C)  State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan premium for the employee's 
surviving spouse and children will be as provided in Ssection 110.123, Florida Statutes. 
 
 (D)  Any complaint or claim by an employee or the PBA concerning this Section shall 
not be  subject to the Grievance Procedure of this Agreement. 
 
 



PBA / Florida Highway Patrol Unit  
State Proposal - Article 31 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                        For the PBA 
 

_____________________________                                   _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                   Gene “Hal” Johnson 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                            General Counsel  
                                                                                             Florida Police Benevolent Association 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 31 
VACANT 

 
STATE PERSONNEL SYSTEM RULES 

 
All pay and benefits provisions published in the Rules of the State Personnel System 

which cover employees in the bargaining Unit and which are not specifically provided for or 
modified by this Agreement shall continue in effect during the term of this Agreement. 
 



!<t:ce."ved by DmS
//-/'1- /:1..

FLORIDA POllCEBENEVOLENTASSOCIA110N, INC.

State of Florida and Florida P.B.A.
Proposal 1- November 19, 2012
2013-2014 Negotiations
July 1,2013 through June 30, 2016
FLORIDA mGIrnTA'Y PATROL BARGAINING UNIT

The Florida P.B.A. proposes the articles contained in the FY 2012-2013
revised agreement remain. unchanged unles8 specific modifications
(attached) have been submitted.

All modifications are drawn to the FY 2012-2013 revised agreement.
The modifications are prepared in legislative style.

, .

The Florida P.B.A. proposed agreement is attached. [Changes to the
current agreement are found at Articles 10, 17, 18, 22, 25,26, 27" 33
and 35.]

Florida Police Benevolent Association. Inc.
300 East Brevard Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301

(850) 222-3329· (800) 733-3722· Fax (850) 561-8898



*AGREEMENT
THE STATE OF FLORIDA

and

THE FLORIDA POLICE
BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION

Florida Highway Patrol Bargaining Unit

December 27, 2010 through June 30, 2013

Incorporates FY 2011 - 2012 approved reopener revisions
to Articles 3, 16, 18, 25 and 27

and

FY 2012-2013 reopener revisions
to Articles 5 and 25

pursuant to 2012 legislative impasse resolution

*TO BE CHANGED ONCE AGREEMENT ON
DURATION AND OTHER ARTICLES IS

REACHED



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

TABLE OF CONTENTS

• AGREEMENT
• PREAMBLE
• Article 1 - RECOGNITION
,,, Article 2 - GENDER REFERENCE
• Article 3 - VACANT
Ii Article 4 - NO DISCRIMINATION
• Article 5 - EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATION AND PBA ACTIVITIES
• Article 6 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE
• Article 7 - INTERNAL INVESTIGATIONS
• Article 8 - WORKFORCE REDUCTION
• Article 9 - REASSIGNMENT, TRANSFER, CHANGE IN DUTY STATION AND ROMOTION

I. Article 10 - DISCIPLINARY ACTION (OfEN)
• Article 11 - CLASSIFICATION REVIEW
• Article 12 - PERSONNEL RECORDS
• Article 13 - SAFETY
• Artlde 14 - PERFORMANCE REVIEW
.. Article 15 - SENIORITY
• Article 16 - EMPLOYMENT OUTSIDE STATE GOVERNMeNT

I
• Article 17 ~ GROOMING STANDARDS,iOPEN)
• Article 18 - HOURS OF WORK, LEAVE AND JOB-CONNECTED DISABILITYillPENl
.. Artkle 19 - PERSONAL PROPERTY - REPLACEMENT AND/OR REIMBURSEMENT
• Article 20 - TRAINING AND EDUCATION
• Article 21 - ACTING RANKS

I. Article 22··= \«AGAN1=RETIREMEN"r LQe,EN)
• Article 23 - EQUIPMENT
• Article 24 - ON-CALL ASSIGNMENT - CALL-BACK - COURT APPEARANCE
• Article 25 - WAGES.(OrgNl '
• Article 26 - UNIFORMS AND ACCESSORIES _(9Pl-!~)

• Article 27 - INSURANCE BENEFITSJOPI1~)

Ii Article 28 - TRAVEL EXPENSES
• Article 29 - DRUG TESTING
• Article 30 - NO STRIKE
• Article 31 - STATE PERSONNEL SYSTEM RULES
• Article '32 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

I. Article 33 - ENTIRE AGREEMENT.10PE1'4)
• Article 34 - SAVINGS CLAUSE

I. Article 35 - DURATION (OPEN)
• Article 36 - AWARDS
• SIGNATURES
• APPENDIX A - Classes in the FlOrida Highway Patrol Unit

1



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida HIghway Patrol Vmt Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Reviliions

AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is between the State of Florida (hereinafter called the "State") and
the FLORIDA POLICE BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION, (heremafter called the IJPBAIJ )
representing the employees m the Florida Highway Patrol Bargaullng Unit.

PREAMBLE

WHEREAS, It is recognized by the parties hereto that the declared public policy of the
State and the purpose of Part II, Chapter 447, Florida Statutes, is to prOVide
statutory implementation of Section 6, Article I of the Constitution of the State of
Florida, and to promote harmonious and cooperative relationships between State
government and Its employees, both collectively and individually, and to protect the
public by assurmg, at all times, the orderly and uninterrupted operations and
functions of State Government; and

WHEREAS, It is the intention of the parties of this Agreement to set forth the entire
agreement With respect to matters within the scope of negotiations; and

WHEREAS, the above language IS a statement of Intent and, therefore, not subject to
thp. grievance procedure as outlmed In Article 6;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contamed, the
parties do agree as follows:

Article 1
RECOGNITION

(A) The State hereby recognizes the PBA as the exclusive representative for the
purposes of collective Dargalnmg With respect to wages, hours, and terms and
conditions of employment for all employees mcluded In the FlOrida Highway Patrol
Bargaining Unit.

(B) The bargaining Unit for which thiS recognition is accorded is as defined In
Certification Number 1634 issued by the FlOrida Public Employees Relations
Commission and as subsequently amended by the Commission.

(C) ThiS Agreement Includ~s all full-time and part-time Career Service employees m
the classifications and POSitions listed In AppendiX A of thiS Agreement.

Article 2
GENDER REFERENCE

All references in this Agreement to employees of the male gender are used for
convenience only and shall be construed to include both male and female employees.

2



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Flonda Highway Patrol Urnt Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

Article 3
VACANT

Article 4
NO DISCRIMINATION

SECTION 1- Non-Discrimination Policy - State-Federal Law

(A) The State and the PBA shall not diSCriminate against any employee for any
reason prohibited under FlOrida Statutes or any Federal Law.

(B) The PBA shall have the right to consult on Issues of discrimination or sexual
harassment With the Step 1 Management Representative and/or his deslgnee(s), up
through the Step 2 Management Representative and/or his deslgnee(s), to the
Department of Management Services.

(C) Any claim of discrimination or sexual harassment by an employee against the
State, Its officials or representatives, except for grievances related to PBA
membership, shall only be subject to the method of review prescribed by law or by
rules and regulations haVing the force and effect of IdW.

SECTION 2 - Non-Discrimination Policy - PBA Membership

Neither the State nor the PBA shall interfere with the right of Florida Highway Patrol
employees covered by this Agreement to become or refrain from becoming members
of the PBA, and neither the State nor the PBA shall discnmlnate against any such
employee because of membership or non-membership in any employee organization.

SECTION 3 - Affirmative Action and Americans with Disabilities Programs

The Parties agree that during the first year of the Initial collective bargaining
agreement that the PBA may contact the DHSMV for the purpose of conducting a
consultation meeting. Such meeting shall be conducted In accordance With the
prOVISions of Article 5 of the Agreement. At the initial meeting, the agency shall
provide to the PBA an orientation to the agency's current affirmative action program
and efforts to comply With the Americans With Disabilities Act.

Article 5 2912 Legislsih'e 1""8~5eReseltlliie,.
EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATION AND PBA ACTIVITIES

SF,CTION 1 - Defmitions

(A) The term "employee", as used in thIs Agreement, shall mean an employee
mcluded in the bargaining unit represented by the Florida Police Benevolent Association,
(PBA)

(B) The term "Grievance Representative", as used in tins Agreement, shall mean an
employee deSignated by the PreSident of the PBA to represent a grievant at Step 1

3



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Urnt Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

meetmgs on grievances which have been properly filed under Article 6 of this
Agreement, where the PBA has been selected as the employee's representative.

SECTION 2 - Representation

(A) The PBA shall select a reasonable number of PBA Grievance Representatives. and
shall furmsh to the State and keep up-to-date a list of all employees authorized as
Grievance Representatives_ The State will not recognize a grievance or staff
representative whose name does not appear on the list lhe PBA shall furmsh to the State
and keep up-to-date a hst of PBA Staff Representanves. Where PBA representation IS

requested by an employee, the representative ~hall be a person designated by the PBA.

(R) Where PBA ASSOCiation representation is nut requested by the employee, the PBA
shall be notIfied of, and be given an opportunity for a Staff Representative to be present
at a meeting held concerrnng the gnevance.

SECTION 3 - Representative Access

The State agrees that recognized representanves of the PBA shall have access to the
premises of the State which are aVaIlable to the pubhc. If an area of the State's premises
is restllcted to the public, pennission must be requested to enter the area; such permission
Will not be unreasonably denied. Access shall be during the re.gular workIng hours of the
employee and shall be restricted to matters related to the application of thiS Agreement

SECTION 4 - Documents

(A) The State shall proVide the PBA with the followmg:

(1) When the DHSMV sends out informatIOn whIch affects an employee's
terms and condltions of employment covered by this Agreement, or which
could affect the application or interpretation of this Agreement, the PBA
Will be sent the information.

(2) The DHSMV shall funush to the PBA a current copy of the agency's
rules, regulatioms and pohcies Whl~h affect employees' terms and
condlnons of employment covered by this Agreement and wmch are not
included in the Rules of the State Personnel System. Changes and updates
shall be furnished to the PBA as they occur. If the. DHSMV pubhshes and
timely mamtams on DHSMV's webSite documents referenced in this
Section for use by employees, the documents on the website shall serve as
the copies furnished to the PBA. This does not relieve the DHSMV of the
duty to nonty the PBA as changes and updates occur.

4



2010 - 2013 State ofFlonda & PBA - Flonda Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(B) The State shall pro\'ide each employee with the following.

(l) Access to a copy of the applicable Rules of the State Per.~onne1

System; and

(2) Access to a copy of department rules, regulatIons or poliCIes which
affect the employee's salaty, benefits or terms and conditIons of
employment Employees will be nOtified of changes and updates as they
occur

SECTION 5 - Consultation

(A) Upon request by the designated PBA Staff RepresentatIve, the Secretary of the
Department of~lanagementSenices antl/or deSignated lepresentatives shall make a good
faith effort to meet and cornult on a qUatterly basis with three (3) PBA representatives.
MeetIngs shall be held at a orne and place deSIgnated by the Department of Management
Senic~s.

(B) Upon lequest hy the deslgnatoo PBA Staff RepresentatIve, but not more often than
once m each calendar month, the DHSMV Agency Head mcl/or de!o.lignated
representatIves shall make a good faith effort to meet and consult with not more than two
(2) PBA representatives from the DHSMV and PBA Staff Representative. MeetIngs
shall be held at a orne and place designated by the Agency Head

.- .

(C) Upon request hy the designated PBA Staff Representative. but not more than once m
each calendar month, the Step 1 Management Repre8entatIve 'Shall make a good fmth
effort to meet and consult with the PBA Staff Representative and not more than two (2)
PHA representattve8 from the DHSMV. Meetmgs shall be held at a tune and place to be
designated by the Step 1 Management Representative

(0) ConsultatIon meetings will be scheduled after gn·mg due consideratIon to the
availability and work location of all parties. If a consultation meetIng IS held or requires
reasonable travel time during the V\.rorkmg hours of an employee participant, the
employee shall be excused without loss of pay for that purpose Attendance at the
consultation meeting outSIde of regular workmg hourN shall not be deemed time worked

(E) The purpose of consultation meetings shall be to discuss matters relating to the
admtmstranon of this Agreement and Flonda HIghway Patrol actiVIties which affect
employees, and no meetIng shall be used for the purpose of discussmg pending
gri~vances or for negotIation purposes No later than seven (7) calendar days prior to the
scheduled meetIng date. the partIes shall exchange agenda mdicating the matters they
wish to discuss.

5



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway PatrollTnit Agreement
Incorporate8 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener ReVIsions

SECTION 6 - Bulletin Boards

(A) Where requested m writing, the State agrees to fumi8h in a pennanent State
controlled facility to which employees are assigned, wall space not to exceed 24" x 36"
for PBA-purchased bulletin boards.

(B) When requested in wntmg, the State agrees to furnish at an academy in a DHSMV
controlled facility} wall space not to exceed 24" x 36" for a PBA - purchased bulletin
board.

(C) The PBA bulletm boards shall be used only for the followmg notices'

(l) Re~reatIonand social affairs of the PBA,

(2) PBA meetings,

(3) PBA electlollii,

(4) Report".i ofPBA cOmmIttees,

(5) PHA benefit programs,

(6) Current PBA contract~

(7) Training and educational opportunities, and

(8) Other materials pertalmng to the welfare ofPHA members.

(0) NotIces posted on these bulletin bOaIds shall not oontaIn anything reflectIng
adveIsely on the State, or 1ts officers or employees, nor shall any posted material violate
law, rule, or regulatIon.

(E) Notices posted must be dated and bear the signature of the PBA's authorized
representative.

(F) A Vlolation of these prov1sIOns by a PHA authon7ed representatIve shall be a basis for
removal ofbulletin board privileges by the Department ofManagement Services.

(0) The DHSMV shall cooperate with the PHA to maintain PHA bulletm boards free of
pllstings by non-PHA indiv1duals or organizations.

SECTION 7 - Occupational PronIes and Rules Maintained

The State will maintaIn on the Department of Management Servtces' webstte the
occupational profiles and the Rules of the State Personnel System.

6



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PHA - Florida Highway Patrol Urnt Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener RevisIons

SECTION 8- Negotiations

(A) The PHA agrees that all collective bargaining is to be oonducted WIth State
representattves designated for that purpose by the Governor, as chief executIve officer.
Negotiating m~etings shall be held in Tallahasse~unless the State and the PBA agree to
meet elsewhere at a State facility or othtT location which involves no rental cost to the
State. There shall be no negotIation by the PHA at other levehs of State go\'emment.

(8) The PBA may deSIgnate up to four (4) employees to attend each smgle-day session as
NegotIatIon Committee members who will be granted admim8trative leave to attend
negotiating seSSIons 'VIth the State. If tray~l to and from negotiations unavoidably occurs
on work days immedIately preceding or followmg a day of negottation, employee8 shall
be ehgible to receive administrati"e leave on an hour for hour basis for such reasonable
travel bme pending reVIew and appro"al by the employing agency. If the PBA chooses
to hold a negotiation preparatory meetlng on the calendar day unmedlately precedmg a
scheduled negotiation sesswn, negotiatIon committee members WIll be granted
admim8tratJ.ve leave for attendance at such meeting. AdmtrnstratIve leave for travel tIme
to such preparatory meetIng IS hmlted to the day of the preparatory meeting. , No
employee shall be credtted with more than the number ofhours in the employ~e's regular
workday for any day the employee is attending negotiations or travelmg to or from
negotiatIons. The time m attendance at negotiating sessions shall not be counted as hours
worked for the purpose of computing compensatory time or o\'ertime. The Agency shall
not reimbmse the employee fOl travel, meals, lodgmg, or any expense mcurred m
connectton WIth attendance at negotIating seSSiOns.

(C) The selecbon of an employee shall not unduly hamptT the operations of the work
urn!. No more than one (1) employee per FHP region shall attend a smgle day s~·'Sslon

SECTION 9 -Changes To Policiert

(A) The State shall provide reasonable notice to fue PBA of amendments to existing
poliCIes that result m change In a mandatory subject ofbargaining.

(B) After notice, the PHA may consult WIth the DHSMV on a change m a mandatory
8ubject of bargaining provided that the PBA makes a request In a reasonable tuneframe.
If con~ultation is unsuccessful, the matter will be referred to the Department of
Management Servtces to bargam over the proposed change

(C) Where the proposed changes affect the entire bargammg unit and relate to mandatory
subjects ofbargaining, the PBA and the State shall meet to bargam the proposed changes.

(D) Nothing herein shall preclude the PBA from filmg a gneYance If the proposed
changes VIolate the Agreement.

7



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Urnt Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener RevIsIOns

(E) The PBA acknowledges that certain proposed changes requIre an expedited respom;e
and may be implemented 'without undue delay in those instances where there is a waiver,
exigent cIrcumstances, or satisfaction ofbargaining to resolution or impasse.

SECTION 10 - Academy Access

Where the DHSMV operate~ Its own Academy and conducts entry-level Flonda HIghway
Patrol training~ the PBA will be notified of the date~ hme and location of the traIning, and
the partIes will determine the date and time the PBA will be granted academy access. A
representative ofthe PBA, accompanied by the head of the Academy, wtlI be penmtted to
address each entry-level Flonda HIghway Patrol class during class time, to issue to each
recruit a copy of the current PBA Agreement, to dISCUSS the prOVIsions of that
Agreement. and to describe the organization and benefits. Ihe presentation will not last
longer than thirty (30) minutes, unless a longer period IS agreed to by the PBA and the
DHSMV. and may be made onl)t once per class at a hme selected In advance by the PBA,
the representatIve of the head ofthe academy. and the DHSMV agenc)t head or designee.

It IS understood by the parties that the PBA WIll not use this time to obtain executed
apphcations for membership or dues fef deduchon.

Article 6
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

It IS the policy of the State and the: PBA to encourage mformal discussions of
complaints between management and supervisors covered by thiS Agreement, as
well as between those supervisors and covered employees. Such discusslon~ should
be held With a view to reaching an understanding which Will resolve the matter In a
manner satisfactory to the employee, WIthout need for recourse to the formal
grievance procedure preSCribed by this Article.

SECTION 1 - Definitions

As used in thiS Article:

CA) "Gnevance" shall mean a dispute involVing the mterpretatlon or application of the
speCifiC provIsions of thiS Agreement, except as exclUSions are noted In thIS
Agreement.

(6) "Employee" shall mean a Florida Highway Patrol_employee or a group of Florida
Highway Patrol employees haVing the same grievance. In the case of a group of
employees, one shall be designated by the group to act as spokesperson and to be
responSible for processing the grievance.

(C) "Days" shall mean calendar days, excludmg any day observed as a holiday
pursuant to the Rules of the State Personnel System. If the due date for a grievance
response or for a grievance submission to a step or to arbitration falls on a weekend
or a holiday, the action shall be due the next business day.

8



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener ReVIsions

SECTION 2 - Election of Remedy and Representation

(A) If an employee or the PBA has. a gnevance which may be processed under thiS
Article and which may also be appealed to the Florida Public Employees Relations
Commission, the employee or the PBA shall elect at the outset which procedure is to
be used and such election shall be binding on the employl3e or the PBA. In the case
of any duplicate filing, the action first filed Will be the one processed.

(B) An employee who deCides to use this Gnevance Procedure shall indicate at Step
1 (or the Initial written step If authorized by the provisions of this Article) whether or
not he shall be represented by the PBA. When the employee has elected PBA
representation, both the employee and the PBA Representative shall be notified of
any Step 1 meeting. Further, any wntten commUnication concerning the grievance or
ItS resolution shall be sent to both the employee and the PBA representatIve, and
any deCISIOn mutually agreed to by the State and the PBA shall be binding on the
employee.

(C) If the employee IS not represented by the PBA, any' adjustment of the grievance
shall be consistent with the terms of thiS Collective Bargaining Agreement. The PBA
shall be given reasonable opportUnity to be present at any meeting called for the
resolution of such gneva'1ce. An employee uSing thiS procedure In the processing of a
grievance will be bound by the procedure established by the Parties to the
Agreement.

The PBA shall not be bound by the decision of any gnevance or arbitration in which
the employee was not represented by the PBA.

SECTION 3 - Procedures

(A) Employee grievances filed In accordance with this Article should be presented
and handled j:.lromptly at the lowest level of management haVing the authority to
adjust the gnevances.

(B) There shall be no reprisals against any of the participants In the procedures
contained herein by reason of such participation.

(C) The filing or pendency of any gnevance under the provisions of this Article shall
In no way operate to Impede, delay or interfere with the nght of the State to take the
action complained of~ subject, however, to the final disposition of the gnevance.

(D) Once a grievance IS presented, no new violation or is'iue can be raised, unless
the Parties mutually agree In writing to revise or amend the alleged violations or
Issues or for good cause but in no event less than seven (7) days pnor to any
arbitration hearing. When an Issue IS unchanged, but It IS determmed that an article,
section or paragraph of the Agreement has been CIted imprecisely or erroneously by
the employee, then the employee shall have the right to amend that part of his
grievance.

(E) The resolution of a grievance prior to Its submission In writing at Step 2 shall not
establish a precedent binding on either the PBA or the State In other cases.

9



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(F) If a grievance meeting IS held or requires reasonable travel time during the
working hours of any required participant, such participant shall be excused without
loss of pay for that purpose. Attendance at grievance meetings outside of the regular
working hours shall not be deemed time worked. All grievance meetings shall be held
at times and locations mutually agreed to by the partIes, except that, unless
mutually agreed otherwise, all meetings shall be held within fifty (50) miles of the
grievant's place of work.

(G) Grievances shall be presented and adjusted In the following manner, and no one
individual may respond to a grievance at more than one written step.

(H) Grievances and gnevance responses may be filed by hand-delivery, mall
(Includmg e-mail), courier, or electronic facsimile, If sent via electronic facsimile, the
burden shall be on the sending Party to confirm the correct electromc facsimile
number before transmission. Documents shall be deemed filed upon receipt during
regular busmess hours (8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.). Documents received after busmess
hours shall be considered received the next bUSiness day.

Step 1.

(A) An employee haVing a grievance may within fourteen (14) days follOWing actual
knowledge of the occurrence of the event glvmg rise to the grievance submit a
grievance at Step 1. Nothing in thiS procedure shall preclude an employee from
presenting concerns through mformal discussions With management representative"
In filing a grievance at Step 1, the employae or his designated representative shall
submit to the Step 1 Management Representative a gnevance form setting forth
speCifically the known facts on whIch the grievance IS based, the specIfIC provision or
provisions of the Agreement allegedly Violated, and the relief requested. In discipline
cases, It shall be presumed that the grievance alleges that the diSCipline was without
just cause, and requests, as relief, at a mimmum, reinstatement, full make whole
relief.

(B) The Step 1 Management Representative or his deSignee shall communicate a
dp.clslon in wrltmg to the employee and to the PBA Grievance Representative, if any,
wlthm fourteen (14) days follOWing receIpt of the grievance form. If the Manag~ment

Representative falls to respond Within the time limit It shall be deemed a demal.

Step 2.

(A) If the grievance IS not resolved at Step 1, the employee or hiS deSignated
representative may submit it to the Agency Head or hiS deSignated representative
Within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the deCISion dt Step 1.

(B) The Agency Head or hiS deSignated representative shall commUnicate a decision
in writing to the employee and the PBA Grievance Representative, If any, WIthin
fourteen (14) days follOWing receipt of the written grievance. If the Agency Head falls
to respond Within the time limits It shall be deemed a denial.

10



2QlO - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener ReVisions

Step 3.

(A) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 2, the PBA may appeal the grievance to
arbitration Within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the deCISlfJn at Step 2. If, at the
inItial written step, the PBA declined to represent the employee because he was not a
member of the PBA, the employee may appeal the grievance to arbitration. The
grievance shall Include a copy of the grievance forms submitted at Steps 1 and 2
together With all written responses and documents in support of the grievance. The
Department of Management Services may have a meetmg With the PBA Staff
Representative or hiS designee to diSCUSS the grievance.

(6) The arbitrator shall be one person from a panel of four (4) arbitrators selected by
the Parties.

(C) The parties may, by mutual agreement In Writing, submit related grievances for
hearmg before the same arbitrator. Arbitration hearings shall be held at times and
locations mutually agreed to by the parties; however, unless mutually agreed
otherWise, all hearmgs shall be held Within fifty (50) miles of the grievant(s)' place of
work.

(D) The arbItrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the grievance and,
prOVided the deCision is in accordance With hiS Jurisdiction and authOrity under thiS
Agreement, shall be fmal and binding on the State, the PBA, the grlevant(s), and the
employees In the bargaming unit. In considering a grievance the arhltrator shall be
governed by the following proviSions and limitations:

(1) The arbitrator shall Issue hiS deCiSion not later than fourteen (14)
days from the date of the clOSing of the hearing or the submiSSion of
briefs, whichever is later.

(2) The arbitrator's deciSion shall be 10 Writing, and shall set forth the
arbitrator's oplmon and conclUSions on the Issuets) submitted.

(3) The arbitrator shall have no authOrity to determme any other
issue, and shall refram from Issuing any statement of opinion or
conclUSion not essential to the determination of the issues submitted.

(4) The arbitrator shall limit his deciSion strictly to the application and
mterpretatlon of the speCifiC provisions of thiS Agreement.

(5) The arbitrator shall be w!thout power or authOrity to make any
deCisions that are:

(a) Contrary to or inconSistent with, addmg to, subtracting from, or
modifying, altering or ignoring In any way, the terms of this
Agreement, or of applicable law or rules or regulations havmg the
force and effect of law.

(b) lImltmg or interfering in any way with the power, duties and
responsibilities of the State under Its Constitution, applicable law, and
rules and regulations haVing the force and effect of law, except as

11



2010 - 2013 State of Flonda & PBA - Florida Highwa}' Patrol Fnit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener RevisIons

such powers, duties and responsibilities have bt!en abndged, delegated
or modified by the express prOVISions of this Agreement.

(6) The arbitrator's award may Include back pay, to the Grievant(s);
however, the following limitations shall apply to such monetary
awards:

(a) No award for back pay shall exceed the amount of pay the
employee would otherwise have earned at hIs regular rate of pay and
such back pay shall not be retroactive to a date earlIer than the date:
of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the gnevance under
consideration.

(b) The award shall not exceed the actual loss to the gnevant, will not
include punitIve damages, and will be reduced by the amount of wages
earned from other sources excluding unemployment compensation
received by the employee during the period of time affected by the
award.

(c) The fees and expenses of the arbItrator shall be borne solely by the
party who falls to pre'/ati in the hearing; however, each party shall be
responsible for compensating and paying the expenses of Its own
representatives, attorneys and witnesses. Should the arbitrator fashion
an award In such a manner that the grievance is sustained In part and
denied In part, the State and the PBA Will evenly split the arbitrator's
fee and expenses.

(d) The PBA WIll not be responsible for costs of an arbitration to which
It was not a Party.

SECTION 4 - Time Limits

(A) Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the deCision on a gnevance
wIthin the specified time limits shall permit the employee, or the PBA, where
appropriate, to proceed to the next step. The State will make a good faith effort to
timely communicate deCISions at each step.

(B) The number of days indicated at each step should be conSidered as a maXimum,
and every effort should be made to expedite the process. However, the time limIts
speCified in any st~p of thIS procedure may be extended, In any specific Instance, by
mutual wntten agreement.

(C) Claims of either an untimely filing or untimely appeal shall be made at the step in
question.

SECTION 5 - Exceptions

(A) Nothing In this ArtIcle or elsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to
permit the PBA or an employee to process a grievance (1) on behalf of any employee
without his cons~nt, or (2) with respect to any matter which is the subject of a

12



2010 - 2013 State of Flonda & PBA- Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Re'Vlsions

grievance, appeal, administrative action before a government board or agency, or
court proceeding, brought by the PBA.

(6) All grievances will be presented at the initial step with the following exceptions:

(1) If a grievance arises from the action 1)f an offiCial higher than the
Step 1 Management Representative, the grievance shall be initiated at
Step 2 or 3, as appropriate, by submitting a grievance form as set
forth In Step 1 Within fourteen (14) days follOWing the actual
knowledge of the occurrence giVing rise to the grievance.

(2) The PBA shall have the right to bring a class action gnevanc.:e on
behalf of bargaining Unit employees In Its own name, concernmg
dispute~ relating to the interpretation or application of thiS Agreement.
Such grievance shall not include disciplinary actions taken against an
employee. The PBA's election to proceed under this Article shall
preclude It from proceeding In another forum on the same Issue. Such
grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 In accordance with the provisions
set forth herein. Within fourteen (14) days of the knowledge or
reasonahle knowledge of the occurrence of the event giVing rise to the
grievance.

SECTION 6 - Expedited Arbitration

(A) The parties recognize that certain grievances are amenable to expedited
resolution by an arbitrator. Accordingly at any POint in the grievance procedure, the
PBA may request expedited arbItration of any grievance. Requests for expedited
arbitration shall be granted in cases Involving arbitrable diSCiplinary action less than
discharge. In all other cases, expedited arbitration will be used In mstanc:es of
mutual agreement.

(B) Expedited Arbitration Rules",

(1) When a grievance IS to be resolved via expedited arbitration, all
remaining steps in the grievance procedure are skipped and the
grievance IS submitted directly to the expedited arbitrator.

(2) The arbitrator is designated by rotation from the list of four (4)
permanent arbitrators.

(3) Expedited arbitration hearings shall be no longer than four (4)
hours In duration, With each party limited to two (2) hours, With a
maximum of two (2) witnesses per party, and one (1) rebuttal Witness
If necessary. There shall be no post-hearing briefs, although either
party may submit written statement of position to the arbitrator during
the hearing. The Arbitrator shall issue a short (no longer than three
(3) pages) deciSion Within seven (7) days of the hearing. With the
exception of the foregOing, all prOVIsions of Section (3)(J)(5) of thiS
procedure shall be applicable.

13



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener RevislOns

Article 7
INTERNAL INVESTIGATIONS

SECTION 1 - Internal Investigations

(A) The parties recognize that Florida Highway PatroLpersonnel occupy a special
place in American society. Therefore, it is understood that the State has the right to
expect that a professional standard of conduct be adhered to by all Florida Highway
Patrol_personnel regardless of rank or assignment. Since Internal investigations may
be undertaken to inquire Into complaints of Florida Highway Patrol misconduct, the
State reserves the right to conduct such investigations to uncover the facts in each
case, but expressly agrees to carefully guard and protect the rights and dignity of
accused personnel. In the course of any Internal investigation, the investigative
methods employed will be consIstent with the law (including but not limited to
Section 112.532, FlOrida Statutes) and this agreement; nothing in thiS agreement,
however, shall be deemed to diminish the rights of employees under applicable law.

(6) When an allegation IS made against an employee, the State will make every
reasonable effort to ensure that the allegation and any related statements are
reduced to Writing, under oath, and SIgned. The written allegation shall be known as
a complaint.

(e) When an employee IS to be questioned or interviewed concerning a complaint or
allegation, the employee Will be Informed prior to the interview of the nature of the
investigation and whether he IS the subject of the investigation or a Witness In an
investigation. Employees shall be Informed of the right to have a union
representative in attendance at the Int~rvlew and where requested, an employee
shall be given forty-eight (48) hours to contact, consult With and secure the
attendance of a representative at the interview. If he IS the subject of the
investigation, the employee and his representativE' will also be Informed of each
complaint or allegation agamst hIm and they shall be permitted to review all written
statements and recordlng$ made by the complainant and witnesses will be made
available for review at least one (1) hour prior to the commencement of the
interview in accordance with Section 112, FlOrida Statutes. In the event the written
statement or recordings are such that additional review time IS warranted, the
employee may request and be granted additional time unless the request IS made for
the purposes of delay. Pursuant to Section 112.533, FlOrida Statutes, the employee
who is the subject of the investigation shall not disclose the contents to anyone other
than hiS representative or attorney until the investigation IS complete.

(D) InterVIews and questIoning of employees shall be conducted In ::J professional
manner. Statements from an employee shall not be taken m a coercive manner.

(E) The formal interrogation of a FlOrida Highway Patrotofflcer shall comply with the
provisions of Florida Statutes, Section 112.532. The employee shall receive a copy of
his written or recorded statement at no cost to the employee. No recortjlng or
transcription of the Investigative interview will be made without the knowledge of all
participants prE:sent at the Interview.

(F) In cases where the agency determines that the employee's absence from the
work location is essential to the Investigation and the employee cannot be reassigned

14



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

to other duties pending completion of the investigatIon, the employee shall be placed
on administrative leave with pay.

(G) Unless requIred by statute, no employee shall be required to submit to a
polygraph test or any device designed to measure the truthfulness of his responses
during an investigation of a complaint or allegation.

(H) Only sustained findings may be inserted In personnel records. Unfounded
findings shall not be inserted In permanent personnel records or referred to in
performance reviews.

(I) Internal investigations will ordinarily be completed Within forty-five (45) days
from the date the complaint is filed, unless circumstances necessitate a longer
perIod. An investigation shall not exceed one hundred and twenty (120) days without
the approval of the Agency head or designee. Except In the case of a crIminal
inVestigation, the employee shall be notified In writing of any investigation that
exceeds one hundred and twenty (120) days.

(J) The employee under investigation shall be adVised In Writing of the results of the
inves.tigatlon at Its conclUSIon.

(K) The State will make a good faIth effort to train persons who investigate charges
against FlOrIda Highway Patrol employees in the investigatIve rights reserved for
those employees In the Interest of aVOIding infringement of those rIghts.

(L) In the case of criminal, non-administrative mternal investigation Into the cnminal
mIsconduct of a sworn employee, the prOVISions of (6) through (K) shall not apply.

Article 8
WORK FORCE REDUCTION

SECTION 1 - Layoffs

(A) When bargaining Unit E::mployees are to be laid off, the State shall
implement such layoff in the following manner:

(1) For bargaining Unit employees, the competitIve area Within which
layoffs will be affected shall be defined as statewide withm the DHSMV.

(2) Layoff shall be by occupational level Within the FlOrida Highway
Patrol bargaining unrt.

(3) An employee who does not have permanent status in the Career
Service System may be laid off without applYing the provision for retention
rights.

(4) No employee with permanent status in the affected broadband
level shalt be laid off while an employee who does not hold permanent status
IS serving m that broadband level unless the permanent employee does not
elect to exercise his retention rights or does not meet the selective
competition criteria.

15



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012·2013 Reopener RevislODS

(5) ,1\/1 employees who have permanent status In the affected
broadband level shall be ranked on a layoff list based on the total retention
points derived as follows:

(a) Length of service retention points shall be based on one
POint for each month of continuous service ina Career Service
position.

(1) An employee who resigns from one Career Service
position to accept employment in another Career Service
position IS not considered to have a break in service.

(2) An employee who has been laid off and is
reemployed within one year from the date of the layoff, shall
not be considered to have a break In service.

(3) Moving from Career Service to Selected Exempt
Service or Senior Management Service and back to Career
Service does not constitute a break In serJlce unless the
employee's break in service IS more than 31 calendar days.
Only time spent in the Career Service can be counted In

calculating retention points.

(b) Retention POints deducted for performance not meeting
performance standards or work expectations defined for the position
shall be based on the five years Immediately prior to the DHSMV's
established cutoff date. FIve POints shall be deducted for each mo.nth
an employee has a rating below performance expectations.

(6) The layoff list shall be prepared by totaling retention POints.
Employees eligible for veterans' preference pursuant to Section 29S.07(1)(a)
or (b), FlOrida Statutes, shall have ten percent added to their total retention
POints, and those eligible pursuant to Section 29S.07(1)(c) or (d) shall have
five percent added.

(7) The employee with the highest total retention pomts IS place:d at
the top of the list, and the employee With the lowest retention POints IS placed
at the bottom of the list.

(8) The employee at the top of the list shall bump the employee at the
bottom of the list. The next highest employee on the list and the remaining
employees shall be handled In the same manner until the total number of
filled POSitions in the broadband level to be abolished IS complete.

(9) Should two or more employees have the same combined total of
retention points, the order of layoff shall be determined by giVing preference
for retention In the following sequence:

(a) The employee with the longest service in the affected
broadband level.

(b) The employee with the longest continuous Career Service.
(e) The employee who IS entitled to veteran's preference

pursuant to Section 295.07(1), Florida Statutes.

16



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida HIghway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener RevISIons

(10) An employee who has Career Service status and who IS to be laId
off shall be given at least 14 calendar days notice of such layoff or in lieu
thereot', two weeks payor a combination of days of notice and pay, In lieu of
the full 14 calendar days notIce, to be paid at the employee's current hourly
base rate of pay. The notice of layoff shall be In writing and sent to the
employee by certified mail, return receipt requested. Within 7 calendar days
after receiving the notice of layoff, the employee shall have the right to
request a demotion or reassignment within the competitive area in lieu of
layoff to a position In a broadband level within the bargaining umt which the
employee held permanent status, or to a position at the level of or below the
current level In the bargaining Unit, In which the employee held permanent
status. Such request must be m writing and reassignment or demotion cannot
be effected to a higher broadband level.

(11) An employee's reque~t for demotIon or reassignment shall b~

granted unless It would cause the layoff of another employee who possesses a
greater total of retention POints.

(12) An employee who IS adversely affected as a result of another
employee haVing a greater number of retention POints shall have the same
right of reassignment or demotion under the sam~ procedure as provided In
this sectIon.

(13) If an employee requests a demotion or reassignment: In lieu of
layoff, the same formula and criteria for establishing retention pomts shall be
used as preSCribed In thIS section.

(B) If there IS to he a layoff of employees the State shall take all reasonable
steps to place any adversely affected employees In existing vacancies for which they
are qualified.

(C) If work performed by employees In thiS unit is to be performed by non
State employees, the State agrees to encourage the employing entity to consider
any adversely affected unit employees for employment In Its organization If the State
has been unable to place the employees in other positions within the Career Service
System,

SECTION 2 - Recall

(A) For a period of six (6) calendar months following layoff, when a vacancy
occurs or a new POSitIon is established, laid off employees with the highest number
of retention points shall be notified and permitted the opportunity to apply.

(6) Any appomtment offer by the employing agency shall be subject to
agency needs and suffiCient funds and salary rate for the vacant position.

(C) Employees who are reemployed after layoff in a position in the broadband
level from which the employee was laid off shall be reemployed With permanent
status.

17



2010 _. 2013 State ofF1orida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporate8 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener RevisIons

SECTION 3 - Retirement Benefits

Pursuant to Section 121.021(38), FlOrida Statutes, an absence from the employer's
payroll for a period of not to exceed twelve (12) calendar months due to a "layoff' by
the State shall not constitute a break In the continuous service requirement as
provided in Section 121.021, Florida Statutes, for special risk members.

SECTION 4 - Job Security

(A) The State shall notify the PBA at least thirty (30) days In advance of a
layoff involving positions within the bargaimng Unit. Thirty (30) days pnor to the
actual layoff decIsion, the State wIll meet and negotiate with the PBA over the
necessity of the layoff, alternatives to the proposed layoff and like and related
matters. However, these negotiations shall not delay the Implementation of layoffs
after completion of the thirty (30) days bargaining period. The union Will not pursue
statutory Impasse resolutton procedures after the satisfaction of thiS bargaining
obligation.

(B) At least thirty (30) days pnor to affecting a planned organizational change
which will result In the movement of positions out of the bargaining unit, or In the
demotion of Unit employees, the agency will notify the Department of Management
Services of the changes. If the Department of Management Ser",ces determlnp.s that
bargaining Unit employees are impacted by the changes under Chapter 447 r FlOrida
Statutes, It will notify the PBA of the changes.

Article 9
REASSIGNMENT, TRANSFER, CHANGE IN DUTY STATION, AND PROMOTION

Employees who have attained permanent status In the Career Service shall have the
opportunity to request and be selected for vacant positions In their current class
within the DHSMV In accordance with the prOVISions of thiS Article.

SECTION 1 - Definitions

As used In thl'.) Article:

(A) "Change In Duty Station" shall mean the moving of an employee to a duty station
located within fifty (SG) miles of his current duty station.

(B) "Duty station" shall mean the place whIch IS designated as an employee's offiCial
headquarters.

(C) "Occupational level" shall mean the same level within the employee's current
occupation Within the State claSSification system.

(D) "ReaSSignment" shall mean the moving of an employee from a position in one
occupational level to a different position In the same occupational level with the
same essential knowledge, skills and abilities, regardless of the location of the
position.

18



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporate8 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Re\lSions

(E) "Transfer" shall mean the moving of an employee from one geographic area of
the State to a different geographic location which is in excess of fIfty (50) miles from
the employee's current duty station.

(F) "Promotion" shall mean the moving of an employee from a position In one
occupational level to a different position In another occupational level haVing a higher
maximum salary, provided the position in the higher occupational level is In the
bargaining Unit.

(G) "Demotion" shall mean the moving of an employee from a position in one
occupational level to a different pOSition In another class/occupational level haVing a
lower maximum salary.

SECTION 2 - Reassignment, Transfer, change In Duty Station

(A) An employee who has attained permanent status In thE:! Career Service System
may apply for a reassignment on a Request for ReaSSignment Form (supplied by the
agency). Such Requests shall indicate the countY(les) and/or shlft(~) to which the
employee would like to be reassigned. When the employee requests reassignment. a
State of Florida Employment Application Form must be completed and sent with the
Request for Reassignment Form.

(B) An employee may submit a Request for ReaSSignment Form at any time;
however, all such Requests shall expire on June 30 of each calendar year. Requests
for reassignment for the next fiscal year may be filed on June 1 of the precedmg
fiscal year.

(C) All Request for ReaSSignment Forms shall be submitted to the agency head or his
designee whu shall be responsible for furnishing a copy of each such Request to the
management representatives who have the authority to make employee hiring
decisions in the county to which the employee has requested reassignment. The
employee shall prOVide a copy of the Request to the PBA at the time It IS flied With
the agency.

(D) Except where a vacancy IS fiHed by demotion, or where reassignment IS not in
the best Interests of the agency, the management representative haVing hiring
authority for that vacancy shall give first conSideration to those employees who have
submitted a Request for ReaSSignment Form; provided, however, that employees
whose Request for Reassignment IS not submitted by the first day of the month shall
not be conSidered for vacancies which occur durmg that month.

(E) PrOVided the reassignment IS In the best interest of the agency, the hiring
authority shall normally fill a permanent vacancy with the employee who has the
greatest length of service in the occupational level and who has a Request for
Reassignment Form on file for the county In which the vacancy exists. The Parties
agree, however, that other factors, such as employees' work history and agency
needs, may be taken into consideration in making the deCIsion as to whether or not
the employee with the greatest length of service In the occupational level will be
placed in the vacant position.

19



2010 - 2013 State of Flonda & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener ReVIsions

(F) If the employee with the greatest length of service In the occupational level is not
selected for the vacant position, the Agency shall notify the employee selected with
reasons for the selection. Employees with greater length In service Will be allowed to
obtam a copy of the notice.

(G) When an employee has been reassigned pursuant to a Request filed under this
Article, all other pending Requests shall be canceled. No other Request may be filed
under this Article for a period of twelve (12) months following the employee's
reassignment. If an employee declines an offer of reassignment pursuant to a
Request filed under this Article, the employee Will not be eligible for consideration for
reassignment to the county(les) and/or shlft(s) declined, for a period of twelve (12)
months.

(H) An employee shall not be reqUired to change reSidence for the sole purpose of
hVing Within a specific county; however, an employee may be reqUired to reSide
Within a reasonable distance of a specific duty station.

(1) Nothing contained In this Agreement shall be construed to prevent the DHSMV, at
Its discretion, from affecting the Involuntary reassignment, transfer or change in duty
station of any employee acclJrding to the needs of the agency. However, It IS

understood that the DHSMV Will make an effort not to affec:t any Involuntary
reassignment, transfer or change In duty station which Will Impose a reSidency
hardship on the employee (in that he must relor:ate his reSidence from a permanent
home presently owned or cancel a rental lease extending more than three (3)
months), Without first considering any Request for Reassignmel"lt Forms on flte for
the county in which the agency need exists.

(J) An employee shall be given a minimum of fourteen (14) calendar days' notice
prior to the agency affecting any shift change or reassignment and thirty (30)
calendar days' notice prior to the agency affecting any transfer.

(K) Nothing contained In this Agreement shall be construed to prevent the State from
making reassignments, shift changes, transfers, or changes in duty stations of any
~mployee during an emergency or as otherWise reqUired to meet urgent law
enforcement needs of th~ State.

SECTION 3 - Relocation Allowance

An employee who is reassigned or promoted and who IS required by agency pollc.y to
relocate his residence shall be granted time off With pay for one (1) work day I~ave

for purposes of relocating his residence. In addition, the employee shall be granted
travel time to the new location based on the most direct route. No employee will be
credited with more than the number of hours in the employee's regular workday and
such time shall not be counted as hours worked for the purpose of computing
compensatory time or overtime.

SECTION 4 - Request to Take Promotional Test

The State and the PBA agree that promotions should be made based on the relative
merit and fitness of applicants. Toward the goal of selectmg the most qualified
applicant for each promotional vacancy, the parties agree that the proVisions of this

20



2010 - 2013 State ofFlonda & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener ReVIsIOns

Article along with all prOVIsions of the Rulp.s of the State Personnel System will be
followed when making such appointments.

(A) If the DHSMV has established a promotional test, an employee who has attained
permanent status in the Career Service System may apply to take it the promotional
test by submitting a Request to Take Test Form to the DHSMV to Indicate that he
wishes to be considered for promotional vacancies. Such request shall indicate the
occupational level(s) to which the employee would like to he promoted. The
employee's eligibility for the occupational level shall be determined from information
in the employee's personnel file. Each applicant Will be notified of hiS eligibIlity or
ineligibility for the occupational level(s) applied for.

(B) An employee mi1Y submit a request to take a promotional test where established
by the DHSMV at any time; however, all such requests must be flied every two (2)
years and must be received n the agency personnel office by no later than the first
business day after January 15 of each calendar yei1r and shall remain effective until
revoked by the employee.

(C) If an agency has established a promotional test, by January 15 of each calendar
year, the central personnel office of each agency shall prOVide a "NOTICE OF
PROMOTIONAL TEST" containing the foll,)wlng information:

(1) The date(s) of the testes),

(2) The citY(les) where thoa testes) Will be administered,

(3) The major categones to be covered by each test,

(4) A bibliography of the sources from which test questIons have been
taken; e.g., name of textbooks, departmental poliCies, general orders,
special orders, etc.

(5) The passing grade that must be attained, expressed as a percent
(%) of correct answers to the total number of questions graded.

(D) By February 15 of each calendar year, the DHSMV shall furnish to those
eligible employees whose test requests are on file in the agency, a copy of the
"NOTICE OF PROMOTIONAL TEST". The DHSMV shall be responsible for the
administration of the wntten test no earlier than Apnl 15 of each caloandar year and
only those employees whose names are furnished to the DHSMV Will be eligible to
take the promotional test.

(E) The DHSMV, If it has established a promotional test and administers a
written test shall be responsible for notifying each employee who takes a
promotional test of the test results.

(F) When extraordinary circumstances make it necessary to give a
promotional test at a time other than as set forth above, the employees Will be given
adequate notice to prepare for such special test.

21



2010 - 201'3 State ofFlorida & PBA - Flonda Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener RevIsIons

SECTION 5 - Test Standards and Criteria

(A) The DHSMV shall be responsible for the development of all written
promotional tests which shall be based upon a Job task analysis of the occupational
level of posItions bemg tested and an assessment of the knowledge, skills and
abilities necessary to perform the requirements of positions In the occupational level.

(B) Only persons who have been certified as a law enforcement offIcer
pursuant to Chapter 943, FlOrida Statutes, shall be eligible for agency promotional
tests.

(C) A one~hour test review will be held at the conclusion of each test session.
All challenges to test Items must be submitted In writing and received by the DHSMV
within five (5) days after the date of the test.

SECTION 6 - Promotional Lists

(A) If the DHSMV does not elect to rank employees solely on the basIs of a
written test, the agency shall establish a promotional list which ranks the employees
a:cordlng to their relative merit and fitness for promotional vacancies In the
occupational level. 111 addition to the written test score, the agency may, at Its
discretion, utlh.~e the employee's performance revIews and/or oral intervIews In

establishmg the agency's fmal promotIonal list. When performance revIews and/or
oral interviews are used, In addition to written test scores the DHSMV shall adVIse
PBA In Writing as to the weight the agency proposes to accord to each criteria In

establishing the agency promotional list. The PBA may upon request ciiscuss the
criteria and weight t ..."l be accorded In additIon to written test scores. If the DHSMV
utilizes oral interviews, it Will establish a three member panel, one to be selected by
the agency head or his deSignee, onp- by mutual agreement of the parties, and the
third to be selected by the PBA, prOVided that no member of the panel may be an
emlJloyee covered by this Agreement. Questions asked at an oral interview Will be
limited to those that are clearly Job related and the c;ame questluns shall be asked of
all applicants.

(B) The agency promotional list shall be effectIve July 1st of each calendar
year. Names shall be retamed on the agency's promotional list for a period of one
year. Time extensions of said list may be made only by the mutual consent of the
partIes, When a list is established as a result of a special test being given pursuant to
Section 2(D) above, It shall remain In force through June 30 of the calendar year.

(C) The agency's promotional list, consisting of the name, fmal score and
POSition on the appropriate list, shall be furnIshed to each employee who passed the
written test.

SECTION 7 - Method of Filling Vacancies

(A) Except where a vacancy is filled by demoting a law enforcement employee
or by reassignment, any person who is to be selected for a vacancy must first have
hIS name placed on the agency's promotional list in accordance with the Criteria set

22



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agteement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

forth in this Article. Upon the employee receiving his copy of the agency promotional
list, the employee who wishes to be considered for promotional opportunities shall
file with the agency a Request for Promotion Form which shall Indicate the
occupational level(s) and the county(les) to which the employee would like to be
promot~d. The vacancy shall be filled from among the persons having the highest
five numerical scores contained on the promotional list who have ;.3pplied for the
vacancy. However, the DHSMV shall have the discretion to fill a vacancy from only
the highest five numerical scores of DHSMV bargaining Umt employees contained on
the agency's promotional list. The DHSMV shall attempt to fill vacancies In an
expeditiouS manner when operationally feasible.

lB) In filling vacanCies, the DHSMV will first consider any pending Req-uest for
Reassignment forms on file for the work area 111 which the agency need exists.
Nothing contained In thiS agreement shall be construed to prevent the DHSMV from
filling a vacancy in a manner meeting the agency's n'=!eds.

SECTION 8 - Grievability

The initiatIon of a grievance claiming a reSIdency hardship shall stay any reqUired
change In reSidence until final diSposition of the grievance. In considering such a
grievance weight shall be given to the needs of the ag~ncy against the hardship on
the employee.

SECTION 9 - Promotions Outside the Unit

The State shall make a good faith effort to fill vacant positions In the rank
Immediately above the bargaining unit with- employees of the bargaining umt. ThiS
prOVIsion IS not subject to the Article 6 grievance procedure.

SECTION 10 - Probationary Status

An employee who has obtained permanent status in a position in a broadband level
who falls, due to the performance of the new duties, to satisfactorily complete the
probationary penod In the promotional broadband level shall be demoted to the
former broadband level preViously held by the employee In an available vacant
position In the DHSMV.

CA) Such a demotion shall be with permanent status, prOVided the employee held
permanent status In the lower broadband level.

(6) The employee"s salary Will be reduced In accordance with the agency's pay upon
demotion policy.

(C) Such demotion shall not be grlevable under the contractual grIevance procedure.

Article 10
DISCIPLINARY ACTION

CA) An employee who has permanent status in the Career Service System may be
disciplined only for Just cause.

23



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida HIghway Patrol Dnit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(6) An employee who has not attained permanent status In the Career Service
System shall not have access to the grievance procedure in Article 6 when dismissed.

(C) Each employee shall be furnished a copy of all disciplinary actlons~_lncll.tdiog

$;}dmLnls.tri=ltlve_~:dnct:ons.J,placed in his official personnel file and shall be permitted to
respond thereto.

(D) An employee may request that a P6A Staff Representative be present during any
disciplinary investigation meeting in which the employee IS being questioned relative
to alleged misconduct of the employee, or during a predetermination conference In
which suspensIon or dismissal of the employee is being considered.

(E) Letters of counseling are not disciplinary action and not grrevable; documentation
0" discipline less ~evere than an oral reprrmaild shall not be used against any
employee In any fashion.

(F) SuspenSions, Dismissal, Reductions In Pay, and Demotions resulting in a loss of
pay may be challenged under Article 6 through arbitration. Oral reprimands, written
reprimands or other disciplinary actlOns.l.._lncludJ!lfl.j:ldnni1lstratlv~__sanctJor~_1)l.ict·-A~
lo~s_ot'yehicie U.S~l. not resulting In monetary loss are grrevable to Step 2 only and
not arbitr'3ble. At arbitration over a suspenSion, dismissal, reduction In pay, or
demotion With a monetary loss an employee may challenge any baSIS relied upon by
the Agency for taking the disciplinary action.

Article 11
CLASSIFICATION REVIEW

(A) Except in case of an emergency, bargaining Umt employees shall not be required
to perform work not included In the employee's position descrrptlon.

(6) When an employee alleges that the e=mployee is being regularly reqUired to
perform duties which Qre not Included In the position description of the POSition being
filled by the employee, and the employee alleges that the duties aSSigned are not
Included Within the broadband level to which the position IS allocated, the employee
may request that the agency head review the duties aSSigned to the employee's
POSItion. The agency head or hiS deSignee shall review the duties as requested. The
employee Will receive a copy of the decision.

(C) If the employee IS not satisfied With the deCISion, the employee, With or Without
representation, may request reView by the Secretary of the Department of
Management Services or his designee.

(D) The decision of the Secretary of the Department of Management Services or his
designee as to the broadband level of the POSition shall be final and binding on all
parties.

Article 12
PERSONNEL RECORDS

SECTION 1 - Personnel File

24



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporate.~ 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(A) There shall be only one official personnel file for each law enforcement employee,
which file shall be maintained In the central personnel offIce of the DHSMV unless a
different location is approved by the Secretary of the Department of Management
Services or his deSignee in accordance with applicable law. Dupllci':Ite per')onnel files
may be established and maintained within the DHSMV. Such duplicate persannel files
may contain part or all of the Items filed in the official personnel file, but may not
contam any Items which are not filed in the offl(;lal personnel file.

(B) If any derogatory matenal IS placed In a law enforcement employee's official
personnel file, a copy will be sent to the employee. The law enforcement_employee
will have the right to answer any such materral filed, and hiS answer will be attached
to the file copy.

(C) A laW enforcemencemployee will have the rrght to review hIS own offir.lal
personnel fIle and any dupllcat~ personnel files at rei':lsonable tImes under the
supervisIon of the designated records custodian.

(D) Where the Agency Head or his deSignee, the Department of Management
Services, the FlOrida Public Employees Relatfons CommiSSion, the Courts, an
Arbitrator, or other statutory authority determines that a diSCiplinary action against
an employee is not sustained, or IS unfounded, or is otherwise invalid, or when an
employee IS exonerated of a charge brought in a dl5clplinary action, the record copy
of such action shall be sealed in the flit! together With an explanation, stamped "NOT
VALID", and retained In the employee's personnel file for at least five (5) years after
final action as speCified in the State of Florida General Records Schedule GSl for
State and Local Government Records, as promulgated by the Department of State;
prOVided, however, that the document shall be removed only upon the employee's
written request in accordance With the foregOing records schedule.

SECTION 2 - Privacy

The State and its agenc:ies recognize the fact that Florida Highway Patrol bargaining
Unit employees' home addresses, telephone numbers, photographs, places of
employment of the spouses and children and the names and locations of schools
attended by the children of bargaining Unit members are exempt from disclosure
under the Public Records law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and shall not be
released except for a legitimate governmental purpose.

Article 13
SAFETY

SECTION 1 - Vehicle and Vessel Safety

Vehicles and vessels used by bargaining Unit employees, whether Issued to the
employee or not, shall be maintained In safe operating condition by the State.

SECTION 2 - Firearms Safety

In order to promote safety in the use of firearms by Flonda Highway Patrol
Bargaining Unit employees, the State will guarantee that each bargaining Unit
employee is allowed to fire his weapon in an approved Standards and Training

25



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

Course at least once every SIX (6) months, at no cost to employe~. Such training
shall be for the purpose of familiarization In the use of firearms.

SECTION 3 - Consultation

The partIes agree to form a Safety Committee with an equal number of PBA and
employer representatives, to study and recommend the purchase and maintenance
of minimal standards of safety equipment. The Committee shall conduct research
and periodically make recommendations to the State and/or appropriate agencies
With regard to:

(A) That all vehicles shall incorporate standard "pollee packages", power windows,
rear window defoggers, and heated rearview mirrors;

(6) That all 4X4 vehicles be equIpped With roll bars;

(C) That all vehicles and vessels shall have a locking gun rack.

(D) Crash barriers for inspection booths;

(E) Use of radIos by uniformed personnel not assigned marked vehIcles; and

(F) Other matters relating to equipment, vehIcle, and vessel purchases;
Improvements to eXIsting vehicles to enhance safety; training; and other matters
relating to safety.

The recommendations of the Committee shall be submitted In wrltin9 to the
appropriate agency head who shall respond, In Writing, with respect to each
recommendation. RejectIon of any recommendation shall include written justification
for the rejection.

The parties agree to execute a Memorandum of Understanding setting forth the
composition and schedule for the CommIttee.

Article 14
PERFORMANCE REVIEW

SECTION 1- Performance Reviews

(A) The performance of permanent status bargaining Unit employees shall be
reVIewed In accordance With SectIon 110.224, FlOrida Statutes.

(B) Employees' performance shall be reviewed by their ImmedIate supervisors or
designated raters, who shall submit the proposed performance revIew to higher
management for approval.

(C) Numerical arrest, citation or Violation quotas Will not be used as the primary
factor in reviewing employees' performance.

26



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener RevisIons

CD) The State will continue to maintain and will make a good faith effC'rt to train
supervisors in performance review techniques.

(E) The performance review of an employee shall not be subject to the Grievance
Procedure of Article 6 of this Agreement unless the performance review is relied
upon in whole or in part as the basis for a disciplinary action under Article 10.

SECTION 2 - Agency Performance Reviews

The State agrees that the DHSMV's performance review system for bargaining Unit
employees shall adhere to the following standards.

(A) Performance reviews shall be based on an employee's actual job performance
and shall not conform to preconceived percentage distributions. When a numerical
scoring formula IS to be utIlized by the agency, the evaluation form shall contain the
formula WIth blanks for insertion of the actual scores that will be used In reac.hlng the
overall evaluation.

(6) Whenever practicable, an employee's performance shall be revIewed by a sworn
law enforcement offIcer.

SECTION 3 - Recruit Evaluation

Bargaining Unit employees shall rec~ive an evaluation from the academy upon
completion of recruit school. A COPy of the evaluatIon shall be forwarded to theIr
Florida HIghway Patrol Unit supervisor.

Article 15
SENIORITY

SECTION 1 - Definition

For the l'Jurpose of this Agreement, "seniority" shall be defined as continuous service
In the job clasSifIcation; provided, however, that an employee shall be conSidered to
have a break in service when the employee separates, and IS not on any payroll for
at least thirty-one (31) calendar days following the separation.

SECTION 2 - Seniority Application

Except under extraordmary circumstances, vacations, Shifts, shift: transfers and
regular days off shall be scheduled With due regard for needs of the agency,
seniority, and bargaining Unit employee preference. The State and the PBA
understand that there may be times when the needs of the agency Will not permit
such scheduling.

SECTION 3 - Vacation and Holiday Leave

Where practicable, leave of forty (40) contiguous hours or more, or for holidays
requested, shall be requested at least Sixty (60) days In advance of such leave m
order that the prOVIsions of this Article may be fully Implemented; however, In

27



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener ReVIsIons

implementing this provision nothing shall preclud~ the DHSMV from making
reasonable accommodations for extraordinary leave requests or ensurlllg the fair
dIstribution of leave during favored holidays.

Article 16
EMPLOYMENT OUTSIDE STATE GOVERNMENT

For purposes of this Article, the following definitions are used:

(A) "Hlreback": Off duty police employment administered by the State.

(B) "Off-Duty Employment": Any secondary employment undertaken while in an off
duty status which does not entail the use or implied use of police authonty. Work of
this type provides no real or potential law enforcement services, and vested police
powers are not a condition of employment.

(C) "Off-Duty Police Employment" (ODPE): Secondary employment undertaken while
In other than a duty status which entails actual or potential use of police authority
and requires police powers as a condition of employment. The definition
encompasses those who schedule off-duty pollee employment.

(D) "DOPE Job": A distinct project that has 'lOe employer and in which work IS
performed In a set location(s) Identified at the beginning of t.he job. In the cac;e of a
construction or Similar projp'ct, an ODPE job may consist of multiple phac;es.
However, a second dlstmct construc:tlon project shall be conSidered a separate ODPE
job for the purposes (If assigning a scheduler.

SECTION 1 - Outside Employment - Non-Police Employment

(A) On the effective date of thiS Agreement, any bargaining Unit employee who is
performing non-pollee employment outSide of State government: which employment
has not been prevhJusly approved, shall be subject to the prOVISions of Section l(B)
of thiS Article.

(B) If, during the term of this Agreement, an employee is to accept new non-police
employment outSide of State government, the employee shall notify his agency
head, or hIS designee, of such employment, prior to date of employment, and veritY
that such non-pollee employment does not conflict with the employee's State
employment, or with the DHSMV's poliCies or procedures limitmg such outSIde
employment. Should such conflict(s) be found to eXist, outside employment shall be
disapproved. Absent extenuating circumstances, a disapproval of a notice or request
for outside non-police employment will be communicated to the employee wIthin
fourteen (14) calendar days of the notice or request. If extenuating circumstances
prevent a determination as to the appropriateness of the non-police employment,
the reasons for the delay will be prOVided to the employee in wrltmg. In any event
whenever the State determines that any outSide employment conflicts with the
employee's responsibilities connected with his state employment, the outside
employment may be disapproved and prohibited, Disapprovals of outSide
employment shall be subject to the contract's expedIted arbitration procedure.

28



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida HIghway Patrol Umt Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener RevisiOns

(C) During the course of the employee's outside employment, the DHSMV may make
reasonable inquIries of the employee to ensure that the employee's continued
outSide employment does not constitute a conflict of interest, or interfere with the
employee's primary duties as a State law enforcement officer.

SECTION 2 - Outside Employment - Police Employment

(A) Any bargaining Unit employee who wishes to perform police employment outSide
of State government shall secure the required approval In advance in accordance
with the Rules of the State Personnel System, agency policies and procedures and
applicable law. It IS understood that permission shall not be withheld as long as such
outSide employment does not conflict with the employee's State employment or with
the DHSMV's procedures limiting suc:h outSIde tamployment.

(B) Requests for approval of outSide employment shall be acted upon In a timely
manner. Within GO days of ratification of the contract the parties wIll initiate
consultations on the amount I)f off-duty hours to be allowed. Absent extenuating
Circumstances, a disapproval will be communicated within fourteen (14) calendar
days of the Ciubmisslon of the notice by the employee. In the t!vent extenuating
circumstances prevent 3 determination with fourteen (14) calendar days, the reasons
for the delay will be provided in writing to the employee. In any event a request can
be denied or an approval can be revoked whenever the State determme'3 that a
conflict exists between the employee's state employment and the outSide
employment. Disapprovals of a request for outside employment shall be subject to
the contract's expedited arbitration procedure.

(e) DUring the course of the employee's outside employment, the DHSMV may make
reasonable inquiries of the employee to ensure that the employee's continued
outside employment does not constitute a conflict of Interest, or mterfere With the
employee's pilmary duties as a State law enforcement officer.

(0) Each employee will be permitted to wear hiS Uniform and personal equipment
and use his patrol car or vessel during approved off-duty pollee employment. Any
employee who desires to seek such outside employment during hiS off-duty hours or
leave time Will seek permission from the DHSMV wht)se deCISion Will be In
accordance With the polley established by the agency on such matters. Approval for
such outSide employment will be granted so long as it:

(1) Does not constitute a conflict of interest;

(2) Does not Interfere With the employee's primary duties as a State
law enforcement officer; and

(3) Within the duties and responsibilities the employee performs or
.may reasonably be expected to perform as a part of hiS Job duties and
responsi billties.

(E) When reqUired by the State, bargaining Unit employees who are utilizing State
equipment while performing police employment outSide of State employment shall
be responsible for all insurance relative to such outSide employment, Includang

29



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Urnt Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012·2013 Reopener Revisions

workers' compensation, liability and vehicle msurance, unless the employees are
engaged In activIty as provided in Section 440.091, Florida Statutes.

Article 11
GROOMING STANDARDS

SECTION 1 - Haircuts

Haircuts will conform to the follOWing standards:

(A) Hair on top of the head will be neatly groomed. The length or bulk of the hair Will
not be excessive or present a ragged, unkempt appp.arance. When combed, it Will
not fall over the ~ars or eyebrows, or touch the collar, except for the closely cut hair
at the back of the neck. The hair of uniformed female members may touch the shirt
collar but not fall below the collar's ~dge and may cover a portion of the ear. Long
haIr must be worn up In a neat, stylish manner whIch permits the wearing of th~ hat.
Conspicuous barrettes, PinS or combs Will not be worn.

(6) If an employee desires to wear SIdeburns, they Will be neatly tnmmed. The base
Will be a clean shaven horizontal Ime. Sideburns Will not extend downward beyond
the lowest part of the extenor ear openmg.

(C) The face will be clean shaven, except that if a mustache is worn it will be kept
neatly trimmed and tidy. No portion extendmg beyond th~ corners of thp. mouth Will
fall below a line parallel with the bottom of the lower lip.

SECTION 2 - Cosmetics and Jewelry

If worn, cosmetics shall be subdued and blendeci to match the natural skm color of
the individual. False eyelashes are prohibited. Fingernails should be clear and
tnmmed so as not to extend beyond the tips of tne fmgers. FingernaIl polish, if worn,
shall be clear. Female offic~rs may wear small PO!'it earrings.

SECTION 3 - Permitted Variations

Variations In the groommg standards descrIbed In this Article may be permitted by
the DHSMV when It deems that such vanatlons are requIred by an employee's
current work assignment.

SECTION 4 - Tattoos

Mem.bers employed prior _to Ju:y 1, 2013 ~nd having pre-exIsting tattoos are
permi"tted to have tattoos provided th~~onform to thE:! follOWIng gUid~l;nes;

T~toos_vlslble whlte-.th~ _Illember is_ in unlf.orm are_reslricte_d.. to -.the
member's uPRer arl1ls or forearms.

30



2010 - 2013 State ofFlonda & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener RevisIons

(1) Tattoos are not permitted In the elbow or Wrist areCi5 of the arms.

(2) Tatt90LG.~DnQLc;,9ntpin offensi'{.g or vulggLmatergU..9LSJD.YJeference W.
Florida Highway Patrol.

Any-member with non-conforming tattQQs on their arms shall be r§Q,IJjred
to wear a Class A Uniform.

Article 18
HOURS OF WORK, LEAVE AND JOB-CONNECTED DISABILITY

The Parties specificdlly agree that the attendance and leave prOVIsions as contamed
in Chapter 60L-34, of the Florida Administrative Code, Including the accrual, usage
and payment of sick and annual leave upon separation from Career ServIce
employment, shall apply to all Bargaining Unit employees" The State shall not
compel an employe~ to Involuntarily use annual leave in circumstances where the
employee IS 'II or otherwise qualif,ed for s,ck leave. This prOVIsion shall not apply in
Instances of qualified family medical leave.

SECTION 1 - Workday, Work Period

(A) The DHSMV shall not require an employee to split a workday mto two or more
segments Without the mutual agreement of the employee and the employer.

(8) Where an employee works hours In excess of their reguldr schedule, the State
has the ability to adjust the employee~s schedule as long as It occ:urs wlthm the ~ame

work penod and provided the employee receives notice of the adjustment prior to
the commencement of the employee's adjusted shift for a 40-hour work penod, or
24 hours notice for a 80-hour work penod or 36 hours notIce for a 160-hour work
period. The State will make a good faith effort to offset such extra hours In eight (8)
hour increments.

(C) The work penod for Florida Highway Patrol Bargaining Unit employees shall be
40; 80 or 160 hours, as determined by the ExecutIve Director of the DHSMVI"...Sift~r

1l1~. 'p!O-P_Q~e.d-.change.-,_~_.bargaln.!!d~.Ltb..t!lELPJ2&

SECTION 2 - Non-Required Work Time

Flonda HIghway Patrol Bargaining Umt employees shall not be requIred to volunteer
time to the State. If records of voluntary time are kept by the State or the DHSMV,
they shall not be used to adversely affect performance reviews or promotions.

SECTION 3 - Work Schedule

(A) Where an employee has an established schedule, a change in workdays or shifts
will be posted no less than fourteen (14) calendar days in advance and WIll reflect at
least a two (2) workweek schedule; however, the State will make a good faith effort
to reflect a one (1) month schedule.

31



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Flonda HIghway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener ReVIsions

(6) In the event of a declared emergency the notice requirement of this Section
may be vOid. .

(C) The state will continue to observe the scheduling structures currently In place at
the DHSMV and agrees to bargain any change In the overall practice of how
schedules are established.

SECTION 4 - Overtime

CA) The work period for each full-time employee shall be 40, 80 or 160 hours, as
determined by the agency.

(6) Work beyond the employee's regular work period shall be recognized In
accordance with Chapter 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code; provIded, however,
that when an emergency is declared by the Governor and funds are available,
employees who are assigned to the emergency area descnbed In the Governor's
Executive Order shall be subject to a forty (40) hour workweek while so assigned.
The State and the PBA Will cooperate to secure funds for the payment of overtime to
Unit employees In the situation described herem. The State shall make a reasonable
effort to equalize dlstnbution of overtime opportunities.

(C) The PBA agrees to support those changes In Chapter 60L-34, Flonda
Administrative Code that may be reqUired In order for the State to be In compliance
with the Fair Labor Standards Act as It IS applied to public employees, which the
State agrees to comply with.

SECTION 5 - FLSA Special Compensatory Leave

(A) If the DHSMV·has a plan approved In advance by the Department of Management
Services, FLSA special compensatory leave credits shall be granted, administered
and used as described below:

(B) An employee who IS filling an Included position may, at the end of the approved
extended period, waive payment for overtime and have the overtime hours credited
to \'FLSA special compensatory leave." If such election IS made, the overtime hours
will be credited as "FLSA special compensatory leave" credits at the rate of one and
one-half (1~1/2) hours for each hour of overtime worked. An employee Will only be
permitted to accumulate a maximum of one hundred (100) hours of "FLSA special
compensatory leave" credits which may be taken In any increments at the
employee's discretion provided the FLSA compensatory leave is taken by June 30 or
December 31 of each year. The employee's request to utilize FLSA compensatory
leave shall be granted so long as granting the request would not result In "undue
disruption." If the FLSA compensatory leave is not utili~ed by the employee by June
30 or December 31 of each year, all unused "FLSA speCial compensatory leave"
credits at the close of bUSiness on December 31 and June 30 shall be paid for at the
employee's straight time regular hourly rate In accordance With Chapter 60L-34,
Florida Administrative Code, as amended. An employee who separates from the
Career Service or moves to another state agency shall be paid for all unused "FLSA
special compensatory leave" in accordance with the above.

(C) The parties agree that all FlOrida Highway Patrol recruits shall be treated In

the manner described below with regard to FLSA compensatory leave:

32



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida HIghway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener ReVlsions

(1) Florida Highway Patrol recruits undergoing training to attain Law
Enforcement Certification, or agency-specific orientation, will be
exempt from the 100 hour cap on the earnmg of FLSA compensatory
leave credits and mandatory June 30 and December 31 payment
requirements durmg the time they attend an academy or education
institution.

(2) Recruits may request up to 120 hours of FLSA leave upon graduation
from the academy or educational institution for the purpose of
relocatmg to their new assignment. Such leave must be authorIzed by
the recruit's agel'lcy. RecrUits must use. the accrued FLSA
compensatory leave credits before usmg regular annual leave.

(3) Any remaining FLSA compensatory leave credits shall be used wlth,n
the next six-month cycle, or paid for at the ei1d of that cycle, as
presently prOVided for in Chapter 6lJL-34, FlOrida Administrative Code,
and Article 18, Section 6(A) of the Agreement,

SECTION 6 - Special Compensatory Leave

(A) An eA'lfllovee !*all be eligible ~rt- speciill r.offipcnsatory leave credit':' a'S it
r5t:rtt--ef hours wef'ked-efl it-l=tehdaY;~Fd00ur$-w&r*e&~aft·~llsh(;dwark
periOd-Which r;el1tains-a holiday or 'h'hel1 a facility is c1osed- under E>Eceul:ive Glfffef
6t:ifl-ng en~ergel'lcy·· c:ondltlE:lns. - When' '2ft- eA'I!3!ayce 15 required· to wor;<-ifl
eircum':ltanc:es ~-~-ift-thls pari:l~ra,",h, dRy special eOillpensatory leo'ic earned
at· the ~. of tAe workweek, worle. penod, or e><tendec:l wef"1t--per-ied,~. be taken
WttIT the mutUf:ti. agreement of tl=le employee aRd the: supervisor provised the ::;peciol
~--J.ea.\.<e ~Iitn· ~y.{69t-~. days. e-f the- hol!dtl'j er-ffist
date the faCIlity remained closed I:JFldcF ~)(ecutive Order. Tl'leFCaftef, the special
cOfflpensatery teove-wt&-be-- scheduled at tJ:1e dlscretlen of the ~pePJlsl)r. Special
COrTJ~l1sato_ry_ Let'lve IS _~fine-<r as leave .j;hat I~ earned as a re:sult of hour<; worked
Qn _C!..bond~y ~extra b.oqr§....w..9.t.I<_e_(Ld.y.rl!l9_g!L.~~gbh$_heg. wor.~. W_~~*. 'lthlcl'l£P[l!~illi_g

hOliodY, .Qf extra hgurs wQrke.d. wh~.!1_~_.JacIIL~~losEl.d-.J.!ILq§f af! E~~culive Order:
d:.J(mg eme!:9.l:lli.CY condltlons~

(6) Use of Special Compensatory Leave:

t.JNhen .~Ll"(1emb~::.~arf'!.!Ls"p~~ial cQ..I'TI?e!1~g.tQ.tJ:Jea~e_qedJt:;,the:Jnembf;'t..$..OSl.l!.
have 60 calencar daysJn which to use the earned SpeCial Compensatory Leave time.

2.JLtb~member fails to .!.Jse the ~arn5!~~cial C.Q!t!.P5!I1~qtmy._Lea.'I@__du}'In.Q.Jh~
60 day period, the supervisor shall schedule the member to use the lec.:ve.

b..8. member wtlQ has a leay-e bal.anc~ in exc.ess ot 2 Q. .hQuJ~_shall ..be~qY!red
to usc a minimum of 120 hours of the member's earned Special Compensatory Leave
eq~h-h.alend~.r year ...,QLthe . amount necessary to bring the melTlb~r's SQ..ecial

33



20I0 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Flonda Hlghway Patrol Unit A.greement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener ReVlsions

Compensatory leave balance to 240 hours, whichever is less, prior to using any
annual leave cre_dlts, _exceRL.!L.1.he f~!lure f.JLgLant annual Jeay§. w.11I resylt-Lfl~

!=QIlY.ersiQnJ;Q.l)lck I~.§y-e .

.1:-The State shall not offset speCial compensatory leave earned dUring a work
period due to a holiday with approved Sick leave used dUring the same work penod
or administrative leave used in the work period for negotiations pursuant to Article 5.

.5~.AJ:nember: wh_o begins em.Q1Qyment after J.Y..!.Y_~l-2ot3 sh.ctJJ....QnlY_J2-e permitted
lQ _accymlilaJe_s )JlaXUTou_m ot 24Q... .!lQ.u.~-.Qf -'sp-eclal j;:9mlJ~nsatoty_LeQy~cr~d!1s./
m~twithstandlng anY-.Q..qdltIO.MLJlOufs worked on. a hotld~t dUi'lng the e$t:q.bil~tl~Q

wosk -,,~eek coma.mlng a hohd~"'(hls prOVISion shall oot ap.IDY. to credit ~.a.rn~Q due
t~clQsI..lIg"Qfa faclllt~.Yo.der an!;K~cutl~g,.Qrder dy illQ__cl1lergeng_c.9JJ.QltioJ1S....

,6. EIJIQl.Qyees stall no! _be J;:om pciied tQ..JJ~U&~Ct;ed speCial compensatory leave
t;Q...~.Q.Y~r_ qlL~Lbs_~llcJ~.(sJ.....tct}<en fQ.r:..!o~_ use__ ptittimjni~troiJt.ryLt~_~YS!.t._s!c.k leave, ....9,(
p..e_~9lJgl ~l-JoIJ«;taY...

{-8)--- FlOrida Hlg~1'fl.ay flatf~- ~i~IAg un.~ Emrlo)'ees fflitY:* ~-oJ*tt»r,-use

special calTlflcnsatoFy.~ before U91Ag- 8ccFues annual leave (:I'edlts. --Emfl1oye('s
wfu-m:Hy-be flerm+ttea-~ accumlJlale a-maxiFf'.IJA1 of twa -fltJnsl'ed -u-M-fef:t:i-~
fl&ttrs ef Sf*!C1a1 ceFP.pei"lsatory-~c'fE':6ftS-.

SECTION 7 - Sick Leave Pool and Sick Leave Transfer

The DHSMV shall set up and administer a Sick leave pool and sick leave transfer plan
for the Florida Highway Patrol Bargaining Unit employees If there is sufficient
employee partiCipatIon to render the pool and sick leave transfer plan
administratively feaSible. Employees shall be subject to the conditions, and have full
access to the benefits, of the DHSMV's eXisting Sick leave pool and Sick leave
transfer plan.

SECTION 8 - Section 440.15(12), Florida Statutes - FUll-Pay Status

(A) An employee who sustains a ]ob-connt!cted disability and met!ts the eligibility
requirements, as provided for in Section 440.15(12), Florida Statutes, may be
carried In full-pay status.

(6) Any claim by an employee or the PBA concerning this Section shall not be
subject to the Grrevance Procedure of thiS Agreement.

SECTION 9 - Chapter 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code- Disability Leave
With Pay

An employee who sustains a job-connected dIsability which is not covered by Section
8 above, is eligible for disability leave With pay under the prOVisions of Chapter 60L
34, FlOrida Administrative Code. The Agency Head or hiS designee shall not
unreasonably refuse to submit a request to carry an employee in full-pay status
under the proviSions of Chapter 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code, prOVided,
however, the Secretary of the Department of Management Services or hiS designee
shall have the right to determine whether or not an employee should be carned in
full-pay status for more than twenty-sIx (26) weeks. An employee shall not be

34



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Flonda Highway Patrol Urnt Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener ReVisIOns

required to use accrued compensatory or annual leave In order to be eligible to be
carried in full-pay status under Chapter 60L-34, Flonda Administrative Code.
However, no employee shall be carried m full-pay status until he has utilized 100
hours of accumulated sick leave, annual leave, compensatory leave or leave wIthout
pay.

SECTION 10 - Alternate Duty

(A) Where an employee is eligIble for disability leave with pay under Rules of the
State Personnel System as a result of an injury in the Ime of duty, and is temporarily
unable to perform hiS normal work duties, the Agency Head or hIS designee shall
give due consideration to any request by the employee to be temporarily aSSigned
substitute duties within the employee's medical restrictions. ThIs shall have no effect
on the agency's ability to make a dlffert!nt assignment based upon current medical
opinIon.

(B) A complaint concerning this Section may be gneved in accordance with Article 6
of this Agreement up to and Including Step 2. The decision of the Department of
Management Services shall be final and blndmg on all partIes.

Article 19
PERSONAL PROPERTY - REPLACEMENT AND/OR REIMBURSEMENT

(A) Other than the employee's watch or prescription glasses, any personal property
subject to replacement or reimbursement pursuant to this article must be approved
in advance by the DHSMV as being required by the employee to adequately perform
the duties of his/her position.

tB) Thereafter, an employee who, while on duty and actmg Within the scope of
empl~ymcnt,suffers the damage, destruction or loss of his or her watch, prescription
glasses, or other personal property approved pursuant to Paragraph (A), Will be
reimbursed, have such property repaired, or have such property replaced with an
item which IS of the same or a Similar quality, as described In thIs Article; provided,
however, that:

(1) the DHSMV has the option to decide wht!ther a speCIfic piece of
property IS repaired versus replaced; and

(2) the employee shall not be reimbursed or have property repaired or
replaced if the DHSMV determines that the damage, destruction or loss
resulted from the employee's negligence.

(C) An employee who wants to be reimbursed or have personal property repaired or
replaced must:

(1) File a written report detailing the circumstances under which the
property was damaged, destroyed or lost; and

(2) Document the amount expended to repair or replace such
property.

35



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Flonda Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener ReVisions

(D) After meeting the conditions descnbed above, the Agency head or designee shall
authorize reimbursement not to exceed the following amounts:

Watch - $75

Prescription glasses - $200 (including any required examination)

Other Items - the Agency head or designee shall have final authority
to determine the reimbursement value of any Items other than
watches or prescription glasses.

Total allowable per incident - $500.

Article 20
TRAINING AND EDUCATION

SECTION 1 - Law Enforcement Supervisors' Training
The State and the PBA recogni:ze the Importance of supervisor training programs to
develop management skills In our law enforcement supervisors. The State Will make
a reasonable effort to continue eXisting training programs In law enforcement
techniques and to develop new programs in performance review techniques,
supervisory skills and managenal techniques.

SECTION 2 - Educational Assistance Plan
The State shall prOVide up to six (6) credit hours of tuition-free courses per term at a
state university or community college to full-tIme employees on a space available
basis as authOrized by law. During the term of this agreement, and subject to
addItional funding, the Governor agrees to s~ek approval of the Legislature to
continue the eXisting program for the proVision of tUItion-free courses.

Article 21
ACTING RANKS

SECTION 1 ~ Eligibility

Each time an emploYf:!e IS offiCially deSignated by the appropriate supervisor to act In
a higher broadband level than the employee's permanent broadband level, and
actually performs said duties for a period of more than twenty-two (.22) workdays,
Within any SIX (6) r:onsecutive months, the employee shall be eligible for a
promotional pay increase to the higher broadband level as prOVided in the Rules of
the State Personnel System.

SECTION 2 - Method of Compensation

It IS understood by the parties that, Insofar as pay is concerned, employees
temporarily filling a POSition In a higher broadband level shall be paid according to
the same compensation method as permanent promotees under the Rules of the
State Personnel System.

36



2010 - 2013 State of Flonda & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Urnt Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener ReVIsions

SECTION 3 - Return to Regular Rate

Employees being paid at a higher rate while temporarily filling a position in a higher
broadband level will be returned to their regular rate of pay when the period of
temporary employment In the higher broadband level IS ended.

.!Article 22
VAGANTRETIREMENT

*l-lol~.9~n..Q~nding deQ~lQ!l..91..the-Elorida Supreme CQvrt U:UIJ.e. c"se ofBiCk: Scott
.e1..!l!.._V. GeQrg~_W.!lILaIl1S.l et£lJ., Case tJ.Q•.SC12:52Q...

Article 23
EQUIPMENT

SECTION 1 - NEW VEHICLES

Newly purchased pursUit vehicles for uniformed patrol shall be police package
equipped by the manufacturer as provided by current State of Florida contract
specifications for pursUit vehicles.

SECTION 2 - HIGH VISIBILITY LIGHTS

Each agency shall utilize high ViSIbility lights as dictated by agency needs.

Article 24
ON-CALL ASSIGNMENT - CALL-BACK - COURT APPEARANCE

SECTION 1 - Definition

On-call assignment shall be as defmed in the Rules of the State Personnel System.

SECTION 2 - Request for On-Call Pay

When an employee is required by appropriate management to be on call, a request
for on-call payment under Chapter 60L-32, Florida AdmInistrative Code, shall be
submItted by the DHSMV for approval. The Secretary of Management ServIces or hiS
designp.e shall not unreasonably withhold approval of such request.

SECTION 3 - On-Call Fee

(A) When approved as provided herein, employees who are required to be on call
shall be compensated by payment of a fee In an amount of not less than one dollar
($1.00) for each hour such employee is reqUired to be available.

(B) Employees who are reqUired to be on call on a Saturday, Sunday and/or a
holiday as listed in Section 110.117, Florida Statutes, will be compensated by
payment of a fee in an amount equal to one-fourth (1/4) of the statewide minimum
for the employee's class for each eight (8) hour period such employee IS required to
be available.

37



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Urnt Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

SECTION 4 - Call-Back

A law enforcement employee called out to work at a tIme not contiguous with the
employee's scheduled hours of work shall be credited for actual time worked. or a
minimum of four (4) hours, whichever is greater. The rate of compensatIon shall be
in accordance with the Rules of the State Personnel System.

SECTION 5 - Court Appearances

If a law enforcement employee IS subpoenaed to appear as a witness In a job-related
court case, not during the employee's regularly assigned Shift, the employee shall be
credited for actual time worked, or a minimum of two and one-half (2-1/2) hours,
whichever IS greater.

Article 25~ I::egislative IM,ssse I\eseh:ltie"
WAGES

SECTION 1 - Pay Provisions - General

(A) Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Yeat 20l-22Ul-3J3-2~.)14

General AppropriatIons Act. ~~L~~.J~roy'lgedIWt:~!!l·

J Effe~:ti_yeJ.llh I._2UBO-aU elJ;I!lpyees. )hall h~ys lheiI hase rate of
lli!..Y..lllcreasegJn::..~ixper~en:t (6_%1.

~ . J':ff~~Jb:~__Q~_g'pI.'f _1....._)01 ~J_ ~.L_~P.h~ll;~L~itb.._8t'y~1l..j.1)
~Q.ntinu~~s years of. ~cn.1£~ as~aw enforcement. ufficer WI~l the State _fu.1JL~

~lUe~t:s ~t.andarus-, pmonnan~e e, al~tiolL~Dall r~~ive _a three~r(,ent (J%Lfq\
int~ma1Jl~r~li!tio!!~htp a9.JlLst:J!.~t in_fugr b~~ !'at.~..J·?t..r~~.l.:. ..s.4i~l!14_ 81Lt:J.Ilpl~:l.~~

t:~~<;h th~._sey'elJJ.7l-year:.:LQt seni~e.J~yt!Lsub~99.~~D-1J.9 Oct91J~tJ..s 291~, 1,hc
I~Hl..Ph.~yee s1:].all receiv ~J1t~:..~Wll~ mtein!ll.P..~r~?til,).D:.,hip ailiu~t:.!l.!cnt.

(R) Increases to bclfo;e rate of pay and salary additives shall be m accordance
WIth state law and the FISCal Year 2012-2013 General AppropriatlOms Act.

SECTION 2 - Other Pay Provisions

Based on the DHSMV's detennination that sufficient funds and salarv rat~ are available,
the State and PBA agree:

(A) When the DHSMV grants an increase to an employee's base rate of pay, the new
ba8e rate of pay shall be WIthin the broadband level and m accordance with Section
216251(3), Florida Statute'S. If the DHSMV determInes that an increase to ba.8e rate of
pay IS to be granted based on one of the categories below, the folluwmg amounts of
lIlcrease shall be granted.

38



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener ReVISIons

1. Outstandmg Job Perfonnance Rating - up to 8%;

2. Added Duties and ResponsibIlItIes - up to 8%;

3. EducatIon and Training-up to 8%;

4. ReassIgnment - up to 8%;

5. Transfer - up to 12%,

6 CompetItIve Job Offer - up to a level to be competitIve;

7. Internal Pay RelationshIps - a~ necessary and WIthIn the funds
available.

(B) Salary addItives shall be implemented m accordance with the General
Appropriations Act and state law, including SectIon 110 2035(6)(c), Florida Statutes and
SectiOn 216.251(3), Flonda Statutes.

The DHSMV may assign one of the following Job duties to an employee. If the DHSMV
grant8 a salary addItIve to an employee, whtch must be ill accordance WIth the law, the
following amounts of increase shall be granted:

1. Leadworker - up to 5% of the broadband mtn1mum;

2. Temporary Special Duty - up to 15% ofthe employee's base
rate of pay;

3. Tramer - up to 15% ofthe broadband minimum;

4. Hazardous Duty - up to 15~'o of the broadband mimmum.

(C) If the DHSMV elects to grant an illcrease or additIve highel than those provided
in paragraph8 (A) or (B), the Union ,.",ill be notified.

SECTION 3 - Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency

In accordance WIth the authority prOVIded in the Fiscal Yea! 2012-2013 General
Appropliations Act, and contIngent upon the avaIlabIlity of funds and at the agency
head's discretion, the DHSMV is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay
additIve of up to 15 percent of the employee's base rate of pay to each employee
temporarily deployed to a facility or area closed due to emergency conditions from
another area of the state that is not closed.

SECTION 4 - Cash Payout of Annual Leave

39



2010 - 2013 State ofFlonda & PBA - Flonda Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

Permanent Career Service employees may be gIven the op1:lon of recel'vmg up to twenty
four (24) hours of unused annual leave each December m the form of a cash payout,
subject to, and m accordance with~ Section 110.219(7), Flonda Statutes

SECTION 5 - Performance Pay

Each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee's
ex.emplary performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to
Rule 60L-35, Flonda Admlmstratlve Code.

SECTION 6 - Savings Sharing Program

An employee or groups of employees may be elIgIble for monetary awards for ideas or
pnJgrams that result in a cost saving to the state, pursuant to section 110.1245(1), Florida
Statutes

Article 26
UNIFORMS AND ACCESSORIES

SECTION 1 - Unifo·rm - Standard Issue

(A) All Florida Highway Patrol Bargaining Unit employees shall receive a standard
Issue of uniforms (Winter and summer) and UnifOrm accessories. If the uniforms are
to be replaced, the State will study the feaSibility of replacing them With quality wash
and wear uniforms.

(B) The State shall proVide uniforms for its female officers In the appropriate Sizes,
deSigned and cut for females. If a female officer IS required to wear a bullet proof
vest, it shall be designed and fitted for a female.

SECTION 2 - Uniform Accessories

Uniform accessories will include the following minimum requirements:

(A) Gun belt, either 2-1/4 inches or 3 Inches as appropriate for the indiVidual officer.

(B) An employee who currently has, and who has been tramed in the use of, a cross
draw holster, shall be permItted to continue to utilize that type of holster. All other
employees will be issued a strong-hand holster.

(e) Spare ammunition, and an appropriate case.

(D) Where hand-held radios are prOVided, they Will be suitable for law enforcement
use.

40



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(E) The DHSMV, which provides bullet proof vests to Florida Highway Patrol
bargaining Unit employees, will develop a policy for replacement upon expiration of
the guaranteed life of the vest as expressed by the manufacturer at the time of
purchase.

(F) The DHSMV will select and provide to each employee at least one intermediate
force weapon, as determined appropriate by the agency, and provide training in the
use of such weapon.

SECTION 3 - Uniform and Clothing Maintenance Allowance

The State will provide Unit employees who are furnished and r~qulred by the State to
wear a uniform, or those employees of this Unit assigiled to full-time plain clothes
positions, a maintenance, clothing and shoe allowance in the amount of
$J5G9.:00150._0_Q annually, unless laundry and dry cleaning facIlities are available dnd
the servIce IS furnished by the agency without cost to the employees.

Article 27
INSURANCE BENEFITS

SECTION 1 - State Employees Group Insurance Program

The State agrees to administer the State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance
Plan in accordance with any statutory provIsion or Act affecting the plan or its
operation; at '-'.9 addltLQna' co_sts iO ~9.::1li!~r!l~l"!ts .9!:..lJealth [lsurar)::e t>."emil!rn~..!Q the.
emQ19..y:efl..

SECTION 2 - Death In-Line-Of-Duty Benefits

(A) Funeral and burial expenses Will be as provided In Section 112.19, FlOrida
Statutes.

(B) Education benefits will be as provided In Section 112.19, Florida Statutes.

(C) State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan" premium for the
employee's surviving spouse and children will be as provided In Section 110.123,
Florida Statutes.

(D) Any complaint or claim by an employee or the PBA concerning this Section
shall not be subject to the Grievance Procedure of this Agreement.

Article 28
TRAVEL EXPENSES

SECTION 1 - Payment of Travel Vouchers

41



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener RevisIons

With the prior approval of the agency head, travel expenses of employees incurred in
the performance of a public purpose authorized by law will be paid In accordance
with Section 112.061, FlOrida Statutes. The State will make a good faith effort to pay
travel vouchers within thirty (30) days after they have been properly submitted.
Vouchers are considered submitted when the employee submits them to the local
official designated by management to receive such vouchers.

SECTION 2 - Emergency Travel

(A) When an emergency, such as a hurricane, arises that requires the DHSMV to
temporarily assign employees with less than forty-eight (48) hours notice, the
agency will make a go.od faith effort to officially notify employees of the temporary
assignment. Such notification may be in person, by telephone, by radio, or In Writing.

(6) When an emergency arises requIring temporary personnel assignment with less
than forty-eight (48) hours' notice, the State agrees to make the necessary payment
to the vendor for lodging for such employees. The employee shall have no
responsibility to make such payments to the vendor. Travel "ouchers will be
submitted as required In Section 1 above.

SECTION 3 - Mileage Allowance

The State agrees to seek continued funding to provide for the payment of a mileage
allowance for the use of privately-owned vehicles for official travel at the rate
provided In Section 112.061(7)(d)1., FlOrida Statutes.

Article 29
DRUG TESTING

(A) The State and the PBA agree to drug testing of bargaining Unit employees In

accordance With Section 112.0455, Florida Statutes, the Drug-free Workplace Act.

(B) All classes covered by thiS Agreement are designated special risk classes for drug
testing purposes. Special risk means employees who are required as a condition of
employment to be certified under Chapter 633 or Chapter 943, FlOrida Statutes.

(C) An E."mployee shall have the right to grieve any disciplinary action taken under
Section 112.0455, the Drug-Free Workplace Act, subject to the limitations on the
grievabihty of diSCiplinary actions In Article 10. If an employee is not disciplined but
is denied a demotion, reassignment or promotion as a result of a positive confirmed
drug test, the employee shall have the right to grieve such action In accordance With
Article 6.

Article 30
NO STRIKE

SECTION 1 - No Strike Agreement

Neither th~ PBA nor any of its officers or agents nor members covered by thiS
Agreement, nor any other employees covered by this Agreement, will instigate,

42



2010- 2013 State ofFlOIida & PR\ - Florida Highway Patrol Urnt Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

promote, sponsor, or engage in any prohibited activities as defined in Section
447.203(6), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 2. - Penalty

Any or all employees who Violate any prOVIsion of this law prohibiting strikes or of
this ArtIcle will be subject to disciplinary action up to dnd including discharge, and
any such disciplinary action by the State shall not be subject to the Grievance
Procedure established herein.

Article 31
STATE PERSONNEL SYSTEM RULES

All pay and benefits prOVisions published in the Rules of the State Personnel Sy~tem
which cover employees In the bargdlning Umt and which are not specifically provided
for or modified by this Agreement shall continue in effect during the term of this
Agreement.

Article 32.
MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

The PBA agrees that the State has and Will continue to retain, whether exercised or
not, the right to determine unilaterally the purpose of each of its constituent
agencIes, set standards of services to be offered to the public, and exercise c;ontrol
and discretion over Its organization and operations, It IS also the right of the public
employer to direct ItS employees, take dIsciplinary action for proper cause, and
relieve ItS employees from duty because of lack of work or for other legitimate
reasons, except as abridged or modified by the express provisions of this
Agreement; prOVided, however, that the exercise of such rights shall not preclude an
employee or employee representative from raiSing a grievance on any such decision
whIch Violates the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Article 33
ENTIRE AGREEMENT

SECTION 1- Agreement/Reopeners

ThiS Agreement, upon ratification, supersedes and cancelc; all prror practices and
agreements, whether written or oral, unless expressly stated to the contrary herein,
and constitutes the complete and entire agreement between the parties, and
concludes collective bargaining for Its term.

The parties acknowledge that, dUring the negotiations which resulted In this
Agreement, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and
proposals with respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from the area of
collective bargaining, and that the understandings and agreements arrived at by the

43



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this
Agreement.

The State and the PBA agree that changes In any four (4) Clrtlcles within this
Agreement that the PBA or the State deSire to reopen, plus any articles which
provide for a study by the State and the PBA, shall be subject to negotiations for
Fiscal Year-29:l1-2-{l:1·2-2014-20J,__~.

The State and the PBA further agree that changes in any four (4) articles within this
Agreement that the PBA or the State deSire to reopen, plus (my articles which
provide for a study by the State and the PBA, shall be subject to negotiations during
the second year of this Agreement for Fiscal Year~-;;o.H2015-2016.

Except as to the above subjects, the State and the PBA, for the duration of this
Agreement, each voluntarily ar:1d unqualIfiedly waives the right, and each agrees that
the other shall not be obligated to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or
matter referred to, or covered in this Agreement, even though such subjects or
matters may not have been within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both
of the parties at the time they negotiated or signed this Agreement.

SECTION 2 - Memorandum of Understanding/Settlements

The Partie,; recognize that during the term of this Agreement situations may arise
which require that terms and conditions not specifically and clearly set forth In the
Agreement must be clarified or amended. Under sUl::h cIrcumstances, the PBA IS

specifically authorized by bargammg Unit employees to enter Into the settlement of
grievance disputes or memorandum of understanding which clarifies or amends this
Agreement, Without haVing to be ratified by bargaining Umt members.

Article 34
SAVINGS CLAUSE

If any provision of this Agreement, or the application of such proviSion, should be
rendered or declared invalid, unlawful, or not enforceable, by any court action or by
reason of any eXisting or subsequently enacted legislation: or if the appropriate
governmental body, haVing amendatory power to change a law, rule or regulation
which IS In conflict With a provIsion of thiS Agreement, falls to enact or adopt an
enabling amendment to make the prOVISion effective, In accordance With Section
447.309(3), Florida Statutes; then such provision shall not be applicable, performed
or enforced, but the remaining parts or portions of this Agreement shall remain in
full force and effect for the term of thiS Agreement.

Article 35
DURATION

SECTION 1 - Term

This Agreement shall be effective upon ratification, and shall remain In full force and
effect through the thirtieth day of June----2:OH.2.Ql§'. Either party may reopen up to
four (4) Articles per contract year. Either party may reopen these Articles by

44



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

prOViding written notice within the thirty (30) days prior to September 1 of the
contract year. ThiS Agreement shall be automatically renewed from year to year
thereafter, unless either party shall notify the other In writing on or before
September 1 of each year that it desires to change or modify thiS Agreement. ThiS
Agreement shall remain in full force and be effective during the period of negotiation
and may be extended in the manner set forth In the following paragraph.

In the event that the State and the PBA fall to secure a successor Agreement prior to
the expiration date of thiS Agreement, the parties may mutually agree In writing to
extend thiS Agreement for any period of time.

In the event that either party deSires to terminate or modify thiS Agreement, wntten
notice must be given to the other party not less than ten (10) days prior to the
deSired terminatIon date, which shall not be before the anniversary date set forth In

the preceding paragraph.

SECTION 2 - Notices

Notices hereunder shall be given by registered or certified mall, and If by the State
shall be addressed to the Flonda Police Benevolent AsSOCiation, Inc. at 300 East
Brevard Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301 and if by the PBA shall be addressed to
the Office of the Secretary and the Office of the Gl;!neral Counsel, Department of
Management Services, 4050 Esplanade Way, Tal1ahassee, Florida 32399-0950. Either
party may, by a like written notice, change the address to which such notice shall be
given. Notices shall be conSidered to have been given as of the date shown on the
postmark.

SECTION 3 - Emergencies

If It is determined that ciVil emergency conditions eXist, including, but not limited to,
nots, CIVil disorders, hUrricane conditions, or Similar catastrophes, the prOVISions of
this Agreement may be suspended by the Governor or a State agency head during
the time of the declared emergency, prOVided that wage rates and monetary fringe
benefJts shall not be suspended. It is understood that a declared emergency may be
limited to specifiC geographic areas, In which case suspension of the terms of this
Agreement as provided above, wOlJld apply only to those bargaining Unit employees
permanently or temporarily assigned to such areas.

Article 36
AWARDS

A. MEDAL OF VALOR

The State may recognize herOIC conduct with an award of valor. The Criteria for
awarding a medal of valor is as defined at Section 112.194 Florida Statutes. A
medal of valor may be accompanied by a monetary award up to $250.00.

B. RETIREMENT AWARDS

1. Retirement awards for eligible employees who retire from the State Retirement
System with substantial service to an agency of the State of Florida, including the

45



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Ineorporate8 2011·2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

badge worn by hll'Tl or her, the employee's service revolver or pistol, if one had been
Issued as part of the employee's equipment, and an identification card clearly
marked "RETIRED" shall be as prOVided In Section 112.193, Florida Statutes.

2. The State may grant awards, certificates and other recognition pursuant to Flonda
Statutes, Section 110.1245(3) to retiring employees whose service to the State has
been satisfactory, in appreciation and recognition of such service. The cost for such
awards shall not exceed $100.00.

C. RECOGNITION AWARDS

The State may grant awards, certificates and other recognition to employees who
demonstrate satisfactory service to the State In appreCiatIOn and recogOltlon of such
service. The cost for such tokens of recognrtion shaH not exceed $100.00.

46



2010- 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener RevisIOns

APPENDIX A

FLORIDA HIGHWAY PATROL UNIT - CBU Code 12

Class
Code Class Title Working Title

8515 Law Enforcement Officer
8519 Law Enforcement Sergeant
8532 Law Enforcement Airplane PIlot I
8534 Law Enforcement Airplane Pilot II
8540 Law Enforcement Investigator I
8541 Law Enforcement Investigator II

Flarlda Highway Patrol Trooper
FlOrida Hlghw2y Patrol Sergeant
FlOrida Highway Patrol Pilot I
Florida Highway Patrol Pilot II
Florida Highway Patrol Trooper II
FlOrida Highway Patrol Investigator II

NOTE: The above classes have been designated special nsk for drug testing purposes
under Chapter 60L-19, Flonda Administrative Code. "Special risk" means employees
who are reqUired as a conditIon of employment to be certified under Chapter 633 or
Chapter 943, FlOrida Statutes.

47



Police BenPOJent AssocIation (PBA) • Fionda Highway Pittrol CBU 12 &:ono""c Propoeals
Fiscal Year .2013·2014

Estimated
CommenblUnionltssue

Cost
Costs calculated with a 6% increase on each position's current base

Article 25(1)(A)(1): Effective July 1, 2013, 6%
$5,000,402 rate salary. Includes filled and vacant positions. Source used for

Competiti'/e Pay Adjustment calculation is LAS/PBS. Costine oreoared bv OPS.
IArticle "':lrII\AI\"',: t:rrectlv~ UCtODer 1, LU1;', all Calculation is based on current active employees and excludes
bargaining unit employees WIth seven (7) vacancies and those not yet having 7 years ($1,178,301) and those
conitinuous years of service will receive a 3

$1,208,164
completing their 7th year between Oct 1 and June 30, 2014 ($29,863).

percent (3%) experience adjustment to their base People First was the source of data for calculation- annualized for 9
rate of pay. Should an employee reach the 7 years

months (a full year would cost $1,571,062). Assumes all employees
of level subsequent to October 1, 2013, they shall have a "meet standards" performance evaluation.

Iro";..,,.. t".. ~~ ......
Costing prepared by OPB using all members in the unit includingArticle 26(2): Increases the clothing allowance

$434,500
from $500 to $750 annuallv. vacant Dositions (1 738 FTE) at $250 each.

J he Governors Recommenaea Ijudget for Fiscal Year 2013-201 ~ has
Article 27(1): Propose that the State agrees to

not been completed at this time. Any additional cost to the collective
administer the State Employee Group Health Self-

Indeterminate
bargaining member will be based on recommendations for state

Insurance Plan at no additional costs in c0-
employee benefits in the Governor's Recommended Budget for Fiscal

payments or health insurance premiums to the
Year 2013-2014. State employee wage and benefit recommendations

employee. Iwill n~ I ",t '"
li\rtlcle 10{tl): MOulTleS speCial comp leave ,0

allow for payments of accumulated leave at the
employee's straight time regular hourly rate after
June 30th and Dec 31st. Special comp may also Indeterminate

To be Discussedbe paid in the amount of 8 hours for each year of but significant
service up to a total of 40 hrs per year. Prohibits
the requirement to use special comp in lieu of
annual leave if conversion of annual leave into

I" i,..k I~~,,~ ;~ ..

Page 1 of 1



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Fl
or

id
a 

H
ig

hw
ay

 P
at

ro
l U

ni
t –

 S
ta

te
 P

er
so

nn
el

 S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 T

hr
ee

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
 

A
t I

m
pa

ss
e:

 A
rt

ic
le

s 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
0,

 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
6,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
2,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7 

an
d 

31
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

A
rti

cl
e 

6 
– 

G
rie

va
nc

e 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
23

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

Pr
op

os
es

 a
 g

rie
va

nc
e 

fo
rm

 fo
r A

pp
en

di
x 

B
 

an
d 

a 
re

qu
es

t f
or

 a
rb

itr
at

io
n 

fo
rm

 fo
r 

A
pp

en
di

x 
C

 o
f a

gr
ee

m
en

t, 
 If

 a
 c

on
tra

ct
 la

ng
ua

ge
 g

rie
va

nc
e 

is
 n

ot
 

re
so

lv
ed

 a
t S

te
p 

2 
of

 G
rie

va
nc

e 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 m
ay

 su
bm

it 
th

e 
gr

ie
va

nc
e 

to
 

th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f M
an

ag
em

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s, 

St
ep

 3
, f

or
 re

vi
ew

, 
 Pa

rti
es

 m
ay

, b
y 

w
rit

te
n 

ag
re

em
en

t, 
su

bm
it 

a 
gr

ie
va

nc
e 

fo
r m

ed
ia

tio
n 

af
te

r i
t i

s 
su

bm
itt

ed
 to

 a
rb

itr
at

io
n 

bu
t b

ef
or

e 
a 

he
ar

in
g 

is
 sc

he
du

le
d;

 e
xp

ed
ite

d 
ar

bi
tra

tio
n 

he
ar

in
g 

be
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 w
he

re
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 
th

re
sh

ol
d 

is
su

e 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

ar
bi

tra
bi

lit
y 

(s
uc

h 
as

 ti
m

el
in

es
s)

; a
no

th
er

 a
rb

itr
at

or
 w

ill
 h

ea
r 

su
bs

ta
nt

iv
e 

is
su

es
. 

  

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

 

      St
at

e’
s p

ro
po

sa
l e

ns
ur

es
 

D
M

S’
 S

te
p 

3 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

co
nt

ra
ct

 la
ng

ua
ge

 
gr

ie
va

nc
es

, c
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
.  

If
 

th
e 

gr
ie

va
nc

e 
is

 n
ot

 
re

so
lv

ed
 a

t S
te

p 
3,

 th
e 

un
io

n 
m

ay
 re

qu
es

t 
ar

bi
tra

tio
n.

 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Fl
or

id
a 

H
ig

hw
ay

 P
at

ro
l U

ni
t –

 S
ta

te
 P

er
so

nn
el

 S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 T

hr
ee

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
 

A
t I

m
pa

ss
e:

 A
rt

ic
le

s 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
0,

 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
6,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
2,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7 

an
d 

31
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

A
rti

cl
e 

7 
– 

In
te

rn
al

 
In

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

23
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
C

la
rif

ie
s t

ha
t w

he
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

 is
 p

la
ce

d 
on

 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

le
av

e 
w

ith
 p

ay
, s

uc
h 

le
av

e 
sh

al
l b

e 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 S
ta

te
 P

er
so

nn
el

 
Sy

st
em

 R
ul

e 
60

L-
34

, F
.A

.C
. 

 

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

 

A
rti

cl
e 

8 
– 

W
or

kf
or

ce
 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

23
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
C

la
rif

ie
s t

ha
t l

ay
of

f r
ig

ht
s p

er
ta

in
 to

 
em

pl
oy

ee
s w

ith
 p

er
m

an
en

t s
ta

tu
s i

n 
th

ei
r 

cu
rr

en
t p

os
iti

on
. 

 

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

 

St
at

e’
s p

ro
po

sa
l c

om
po

rts
 

w
ith

 S
ta

te
 P

er
so

nn
el

 
Sy

st
em

 R
ul

e 
60

L-
33

, 
F.

A
.C

. 

A
rti

cl
e 

9 
– 

R
ea

ss
ig

nm
en

t, 
Tr

an
sf

er
, C

ha
ng

e 
in

 D
ut

y 
St

at
io

n 
an

d 
Pr

om
ot

io
n 

           

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
23

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

C
la

rif
ie

s t
ha

t e
m

pl
oy

ee
s w

ho
 a

re
 

pe
rm

an
en

t i
n 

th
ei

r c
ur

re
nt

 p
os

iti
on

 sh
al

l 
ha

ve
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 to

 re
qu

es
t a

nd
 b

e 
se

le
ct

ed
 

fo
r v

ac
an

t p
os

iti
on

s. 
 

 C
la

rif
ie

s d
ef

in
iti

on
 o

f r
ea

ss
ig

nm
en

t, 
tra

ns
fe

r, 
pr

om
ot

io
n,

 a
nd

 d
em

ot
io

n.
  

 C
la

rif
ie

s t
ha

t p
ro

m
ot

io
na

l v
ac

an
ci

es
 a

re
 

th
os

e 
va

ca
nc

ie
s i

n 
th

e 
La

w
 E

nf
or

ce
m

en
t 

O
cc

up
at

io
n 

C
od

e 
33

-3
05

1.
 

 

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

 

       St
at

e’
s p

ro
po

se
d 

de
fin

iti
on

s c
om

po
rt 

w
ith

 
de

fin
iti

on
s i

n 
se

ct
io

n 
11

0.
10

7,
 F

.S
.  

   



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Fl
or

id
a 

H
ig

hw
ay

 P
at

ro
l U

ni
t –

 S
ta

te
 P

er
so

nn
el

 S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 T

hr
ee

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
 

A
t I

m
pa

ss
e:

 A
rt

ic
le

s 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
0,

 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
6,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
2,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7 

an
d 

31
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

A
rti

cl
e 

9 
– 

R
ea

ss
ig

nm
en

t, 
Tr

an
sf

er
, C

ha
ng

e 
in

 D
ut

y 
St

at
io

n 
an

d 
Pr

om
ot

io
n 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

C
la

rif
ie

s t
ha

t e
m

pl
oy

ee
s a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 to
 a

 
po

si
tio

n 
m

us
t s

uc
ce

ss
fu

lly
 c

om
pl

et
e 

at
 le

as
t 

a 
on

e-
ye

ar
 p

ro
ba

tio
na

ry
 p

er
io

d 
to

 a
tta

in
 

pe
rm

an
en

t s
ta

tu
s i

n 
th

ei
r c

ur
re

nt
 p

os
iti

on
, 

an
d 

 C
la

rif
ie

s t
ha

t a
 p

ro
ba

tio
na

ry
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 
se

rv
in

g 
in

 a
n 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ge

nc
y 

pr
om

ot
io

na
l 

po
si

tio
n 

ca
n 

be
 re

m
ov

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
pr

om
ot

io
na

l p
os

iti
on

 a
t a

ny
 ti

m
e,

 if
 

re
m

ov
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

po
si

tio
n 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 is
 

to
 b

e 
pl

ac
ed

 in
 h

is
 fo

rm
er

 p
os

iti
on

 o
r 

co
m

pa
ra

bl
e 

po
si

tio
n,

 if
 v

ac
an

t, 
w

ith
 

pe
rm

an
en

t s
ta

tu
s, 

pr
ov

id
ed

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 
he

ld
 p

er
m

an
en

t s
ta

tu
s i

n 
th

e 
ag

en
cy

 in
 th

e 
lo

w
er

 le
ve

l p
os

iti
on

. 
 

St
at

e’
s p

ro
po

sa
l c

om
po

rts
 

w
ith

 se
ct

io
n 

11
0.

21
7,

 F
.S

. 
    St

at
e’

s p
ro

po
sa

l c
om

po
rts

 
w

ith
 se

ct
io

n 
11

0.
21

7,
 F

.S
. 

 

A
rti

cl
e 

10
 –

 D
is

ci
pl

in
ar

y 
A

ct
io

n 
        

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
23

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

Se
ct

io
n 

(A
): 

C
la

rif
ie

s t
ha

t e
m

pl
oy

ee
s w

ith
 p

er
m

an
en

t 
st

at
us

 in
 th

ei
r c

ur
re

nt
 p

os
iti

on
 m

ay
 b

e 
di

sc
ip

lin
ed

 fo
r c

au
se

. 
    

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
        

   St
at

e’
s p

ro
po

sa
l c

om
po

rts
 

w
ith

 se
ct

io
n 

11
0.

22
7,

 F
.S

. 
     



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Fl
or

id
a 

H
ig

hw
ay

 P
at

ro
l U

ni
t –

 S
ta

te
 P

er
so

nn
el

 S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 T

hr
ee

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
 

A
t I

m
pa

ss
e:

 A
rt

ic
le

s 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
0,

 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
6,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
2,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7 

an
d 

31
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

A
rti

cl
e 

10
 –

 D
is

ci
pl

in
ar

y 
A

ct
io

n 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
                         

Se
ct

io
n 

(B
): 

 C
la

rif
ie

s t
ha

t e
m

pl
oy

ee
s w

ho
 a

re
 n

ot
 

pe
rm

an
en

t i
n 

th
ei

r c
ur

re
nt

 p
os

iti
on

 sh
al

l n
ot

 
ha

ve
 a

cc
es

s t
o 

th
e 

gr
ie

va
nc

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

in
 

A
rti

cl
e 

6 
w

he
n 

di
sm

is
se

d.
 

 Se
ct

io
n 

(C
): 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

     Se
ct

io
n 

(E
): 

 C
la

rif
ie

s t
ha

t l
et

te
rs

 o
f c

ou
ns

el
in

g 
or

 
co

un
se

lin
g 

no
tic

es
 a

re
 d

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

m
in

or
 w

or
k 

de
fic

ie
nc

ie
s o

r c
on

du
ct

 
co

nc
er

ns
 a

nd
 a

re
 n

ot
 d

is
ci

pl
in

e 
an

d 
ar

e 
no

t 
gr

ie
va

bl
e;

 th
ey

 m
ay

 b
e 

us
ed

 a
t 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
he

ar
in

gs
 to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 th
at

 
an

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 w

as
 o

n 
no

tic
e 

fo
r p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

de
fic

ie
nc

ie
s o

r c
on

du
ct

 c
on

ce
rn

s. 
 

    

       Se
ct

io
n 

(C
): 

 Em
pl

oy
ee

s t
o 

be
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

a 
co

py
 o

f 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

sa
nc

tio
ns

 p
la

ce
d 

in
 th

ei
r 

of
fic

ia
l p

er
so

nn
el

 fi
le

.  
 

               

                           



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Fl
or

id
a 

H
ig

hw
ay

 P
at

ro
l U

ni
t –

 S
ta

te
 P

er
so

nn
el

 S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 T

hr
ee

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
 

A
t I

m
pa

ss
e:

 A
rt

ic
le

s 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
0,

 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
6,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
2,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7 

an
d 

31
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

A
rti

cl
e 

10
 –

 D
is

ci
pl

in
ar

y 
A

ct
io

n 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
                         

Se
ct

io
n 

(F
): 

 Pr
op

os
es

 th
at

 th
e 

D
H

SM
V

 m
ay

 h
av

e 
sp

ec
ia

l c
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

eq
ua

l t
o 

th
e 

le
ng

th
 o

f a
 d

is
ci

pl
in

ar
y 

su
sp

en
si

on
 

de
du

ct
ed

 fr
om

 a
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

’s
 sp

ec
ia

l 
co

m
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
ba

la
nc

e 
in

 li
eu

 o
f 

se
rv

in
g 

a 
su

sp
en

si
on

.  
D

H
SM

V
 w

ill
 ta

ke
 

in
to

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
’s

 
pr

ef
er

en
ce

.  
A

nn
ua

l l
ea

ve
 m

ay
 b

e 
de

du
ct

ed
 

if 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
 d

oe
s n

ot
 h

av
e 

su
ff

ic
ie

nt
 

sp
ec

ia
l c

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e.
  E

m
pl

oy
ee

’s
 

pe
rs

on
ne

l f
ile

 w
ill

 re
fle

ct
 a

 d
is

ci
pl

in
ar

y 
su

sp
en

si
on

 re
ga

rd
le

ss
 o

f w
he

th
er

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 

se
rv

es
 th

e 
su

sp
en

si
on

 o
r h

as
 le

av
e 

de
du

ct
ed

. 
 N

ew
 S

ec
tio

n 
(G

): 
 Pr

op
os

es
 th

at
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s w
ith

 p
er

m
an

en
t 

st
at

us
 in

 th
ei

r c
ur

re
nt

 p
os

iti
on

 m
ay

 fi
le

 a
n 

ap
pe

al
 o

f a
 re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 b

as
e 

pa
y,

 
su

sp
en

si
on

, i
nv

ol
un

ta
ry

 tr
an

sf
er

 o
f o

ve
r 5

0 
m

ile
s b

y 
hi

gh
w

ay
, d

em
ot

io
n,

 o
r d

is
m

is
sa

l 
w

ith
 th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
s R

el
at

io
ns

 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 p

ur
su

an
t t

o 
se

ct
io

n 
11

0.
22

7(
5)

 
an

d 
(6

), 
F.

S.
, a

nd
 th

at
 th

e 
PE

R
C

 a
pp

ea
l 

Se
ct

io
n 

(F
): 

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
sa

nc
tio

ns
, s

uc
h 

as
 th

e 
lo

ss
 o

f v
eh

ic
le

 u
se

, w
ou

ld
 b

e 
gr

ie
va

bl
e 

up
 to

 S
te

p 
2 

(w
ith

in
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f 

H
ig

hw
ay

 S
af

et
y 

&
 M

ot
or

 V
eh

ic
le

s)
.  

 
 

 

St
at

e’
s p

ro
po

sa
l g

iv
es

 
D

H
M

V
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 to

 
re

du
ce

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s’

 sp
ec

ia
l 

co
m

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

ba
la

nc
es

 to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

st
at

e’
s f

in
an

ci
al

 li
ab

ili
ty

. 
           PE

R
C

 a
pp

ea
l p

ro
ce

ss
 

en
su

re
s e

xp
ed

ie
nt

 
re

so
lu

tio
n 

of
 g

rie
va

nc
es

 
an

d 
is

 fr
ee

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 4
 

st
ep

 g
rie

va
nc

e 
pr

oc
es

s, 
w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 a
rb

itr
at

or
 

fe
es

 a
nd

 e
xp

en
se

s, 
an

d 
m

ay
 ta

ke
 a

 y
ea

r o
r m

or
e 

of
 st

at
e’

s t
im

e 
an

d 
ex

pe
ns

e 
to

 re
so

lv
e 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Fl
or

id
a 

H
ig

hw
ay

 P
at

ro
l U

ni
t –

 S
ta

te
 P

er
so

nn
el

 S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 T

hr
ee

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
 

A
t I

m
pa

ss
e:

 A
rt

ic
le

s 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
0,

 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
6,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
2,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7 

an
d 

31
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

A
rti

cl
e 

10
 –

 D
is

ci
pl

in
ar

y 
A

ct
io

n 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
      

pr
oc

es
s s

ha
ll 

be
 th

e 
ex

cl
us

iv
e 

re
m

ed
y 

fo
r 

re
vi

ew
 o

f s
uc

h 
pe

rs
on

ne
l a

ct
io

ns
. 

 N
ew

 S
ec

tio
n 

(H
): 

 W
rit

te
n 

re
pr

im
an

ds
 sh

al
l b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

gr
ie

va
nc

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

in
 A

rti
cl

e 
6 

if 
fil

ed
 b

y 
an

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 w

ith
 p

er
m

an
en

t s
ta

tu
s i

n 
hi

s 
cu

rr
en

t p
os

iti
on

.  
 

 PE
R

C
’s

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
ru

lin
gs

 
ar

e 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l t
oo

ls
 fo

r 
St

at
e 

Pe
rs

on
ne

l S
ys

te
m

 
H

um
an

 R
es

ou
rc

e 
st

af
f. 

 Th
e 

un
io

n 
cu

rr
en

tly
 u

se
s 

PE
R

C
 a

pp
ea

l p
ro

ce
ss

 to
 

co
nt

es
t d

is
ci

pl
in

e.
 

 
A

rti
cl

e 
14

 –
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

R
ev

ie
w

 
               

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
23

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

C
la

rif
ie

s t
ha

t e
m

pl
oy

ee
s’

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 S

ta
te

 
Pe

rs
on

ne
l S

ys
te

m
 R

ul
e 

60
L-

35
, F

.A
.C

. 
 C

la
rif

ie
s t

ha
t p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 e

va
lu

at
io

ns
 a

re
 

no
t g

rie
va

bl
e 

un
de

r A
rti

cl
e 

6 
an

d 
m

ay
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 in
 th

e 
re

vi
ew

 o
f a

n 
ap

pe
al

 o
f a

 
su

sp
en

si
on

 o
r d

is
m

is
sa

l u
nd

er
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

A
rti

cl
e 

10
(G

). 
      

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

 

 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Fl
or

id
a 

H
ig

hw
ay

 P
at

ro
l U

ni
t –

 S
ta

te
 P

er
so

nn
el

 S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 T

hr
ee

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
 

A
t I

m
pa

ss
e:

 A
rt

ic
le

s 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
0,

 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
6,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
2,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7 

an
d 

31
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

A
rti

cl
e 

14
 –

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
R

ev
ie

w
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
 

Pr
op

os
es

 th
e 

FH
P 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
 m

ee
t w

ith
 

PB
A

 to
 d

is
cu

ss
 a

do
pt

io
n 

of
 st

an
da

rd
s 

re
la

tiv
e 

to
 c

on
ta

ct
s a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 a
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

co
nt

ac
ts

 a
nd

 th
at

 F
H

P 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

 m
ee

t 
an

nu
al

ly
 w

ith
 P

B
A

 to
 d

is
cu

ss
 th

e 
ad

op
te

d 
st

an
da

rd
s. 

 
A

rti
cl

e 
15

 - 
Se

ni
or

ity
 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
23

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

C
la

rif
ie

s t
ha

t s
en

io
rit

y 
sh

al
l b

e 
de

fin
ed

 a
s 

co
nt

in
uo

us
 se

rv
ic

e 
in

 p
os

iti
on

s c
ov

er
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ag
re

em
en

t. 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

 

 

A
rti

cl
e 

16
 –

 E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
O

ut
si

de
 S

ta
te

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

            

St
at

e’
s 0

2-
13

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

C
la

rif
ie

s t
ha

t e
m

pl
oy

ee
s w

an
tin

g 
to

 
pe

rf
or

m
 o

ut
si

de
 p

ol
ic

e 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t s
ha

ll 
se

cu
re

 a
pp

ro
va

l i
n 

ad
va

nc
e 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

ei
r a

ge
nc

y’
s p

ol
ic

ie
s a

nd
 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
. 

 C
la

rif
ie

s t
ha

t a
 re

qu
es

t f
or

 o
ut

si
de

 p
ol

ic
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t c

an
 b

e 
re

vo
ke

d 
w

he
n 

th
e 

ou
ts

id
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t c

on
fli

ct
s w

ith
 

em
pl

oy
ee

’s
 st

at
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t o

r t
he

 
ag

en
cy

’s
 p

ol
ic

ie
s a

nd
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s. 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

         

 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Fl
or

id
a 

H
ig

hw
ay

 P
at

ro
l U

ni
t –

 S
ta

te
 P

er
so

nn
el

 S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 T

hr
ee

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
 

A
t I

m
pa

ss
e:

 A
rt

ic
le

s 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
0,

 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
6,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
2,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7 

an
d 

31
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

A
rti

cl
e 

16
 –

 E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
O

ut
si

de
 S

ta
te

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Pr
op

os
es

 th
at

 th
e 

sc
he

du
lin

g 
of

 o
ff

-d
ut

y 
po

lic
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t s

ha
ll 

be
 a

t t
he

 
di

sc
re

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t. 
 Pr

op
os

es
 th

at
 d

is
ap

pr
ov

al
s o

f r
eq

ue
st

s f
or

 
ou

ts
id

e 
po

lic
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t b

e 
gr

ie
va

bl
e 

up
 

th
ro

ug
h 

St
ep

 2
.  

 
 Pr

op
os

es
 th

at
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s s
ha

ll 
be

 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r r
ep

or
tin

g 
an

d 
pa

yi
ng

 a
ll 

ta
xe

s i
nc

ur
re

d 
fr

om
 o

ff
-d

ut
y 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

an
d 

of
f-

du
ty

 p
ol

ic
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t. 

 
A

rti
cl

e 
18

 –
 H

ou
rs

 o
f 

W
or

k,
 L

ea
ve

 a
nd

 Jo
b-

C
on

ne
ct

ed
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 
           

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
23

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 Se

ct
io

n 
1(

C
): 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

           

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 Se
ct

io
n 

1(
C

) W
or

kd
ay

, W
or

k 
Pe

rio
d:

 
 Th

e 
w

or
k 

pe
rio

d 
fo

r e
m

pl
oy

ee
s s

ha
ll 

be
 

40
, 8

0 
or

 1
60

 h
ou

rs
, a

s d
et

er
m

in
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f t
he

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f H

ig
hw

ay
 S

af
et

y 
an

d 
M

ot
or

 V
eh

ic
le

s, 
af

te
r t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ch
an

ge
 is

 b
ar

ga
in

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
PB

A
. 

    

              



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Fl
or

id
a 

H
ig

hw
ay

 P
at

ro
l U

ni
t –

 S
ta

te
 P

er
so

nn
el

 S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 T

hr
ee

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
 

A
t I

m
pa

ss
e:

 A
rt

ic
le

s 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
0,

 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
6,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
2,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7 

an
d 

31
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

A
rti

cl
e 

18
 –

 H
ou

rs
 o

f 
W

or
k,

 L
ea

ve
 a

nd
 Jo

b-
C

on
ne

ct
ed

 D
is

ab
ili

ty
 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

                       

Se
ct

io
n 

6,
 S

pe
ci

al
 C

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

Le
av

e:
 

 Pr
op

os
es

 in
st

an
ce

s i
n 

w
hi

ch
 sp

ec
ia

l 
co

m
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
cr

ed
its

 a
re

 e
ar

ne
d:

 
 

(A
)  

Ea
rn

in
g 

of
 S

pe
ci

al
 C

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

Le
av

e 
C

re
di

ts
.  

Sp
ec

ia
l c

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
cr

ed
its

 m
ay

 b
e 

ea
rn

ed
 o

nl
y 

in
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

in
st

an
ce

s:
 

 
(1

) 
B

y 
an

 
em

pl
oy

ee
 

in
 

th
e 

ca
re

er
 s

er
vi

ce
 f

or
 w

or
k 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 o

n 
a 

ho
lid

ay
 

as
 

de
fin

ed
 

in
 

se
ct

io
n 

11
0.

11
7,

 
Fl

or
id

a 
St

at
ut

es
, 

or
 f

or
 w

or
k 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 

du
rin

g 
a 

w
or

k 
pe

rio
d 

th
at

 
in

cl
ud

es
 

a 
ho

lid
ay

, 
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 t
he

 R
ul

es
 o

f 
th

e 
St

at
e 

Pe
rs

on
ne

l S
ys

te
m

. 
 

(2
) 

B
y 

an
 

em
pl

oy
ee

 
in

 
th

e 
ca

re
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 f
or

 w
or

k 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

’s
 

as
si

gn
ed

 
of

fic
e,

 
fa

ci
lit

y,
 

or
 

re
gi

on
 

w
hi

ch
 

is
 

cl
os

ed
 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 
to

 
an

 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

O
rd

er
 o

f 
th

e 
G

ov
er

no
r 

or
 a

ny
 

ot
he

r d
is

as
te

r o
r e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
co

nd
iti

on
. 

 A
dd

re
ss

es
 sp

ec
ia

l c
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

ea
rn

ed
 p

rio
r t

o 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

3:
 

 (B
) 

Sp
ec

ia
l 

C
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
Le

av
e 

Se
ct

io
n 

6 
Sp

ec
ia

l C
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
Le

av
e:

 
 D

ef
in

es
 sp

ec
ia

l c
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

as
 

le
av

e 
th

at
 is

 e
ar

ne
d 

as
 a

 re
su

lt 
of

 h
ou

rs
 

w
or

ke
d 

on
 a

 h
ol

id
ay

, e
xt

ra
 h

ou
rs

 
w

or
ke

d 
du

rin
g 

an
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
w

or
k 

w
ee

k 
w

hi
ch

 c
on

ta
in

s a
 h

ol
id

ay
, o

r e
xt

ra
 

ho
ur

s w
or

ke
d 

w
he

n 
a 

fa
ci

lit
y 

is
 c

lo
se

d 
un

de
r a

n 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

O
rd

er
 d

ur
in

g 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

co
nd

iti
on

s. 
 Em

pl
oy

ee
s s

ha
ll 

ha
ve

 6
0 

ca
le

nd
ar

 d
ay

s 
to

 u
se

 e
ar

ne
d 

sp
ec

ia
l c

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e.
 

 Th
e 

su
pe

rv
is

or
 sh

al
l s

ch
ed

ul
e 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 to
 u

se
 th

e 
sp

ec
ia

l 
co

m
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
if 

em
pl

oy
ee

 fa
ils

 to
 

us
e 

th
e 

le
av

e 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

60
 d

ay
 p

er
io

d.
 

 Em
pl

oy
ee

s w
ith

 sp
ec

ia
l c

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
ba

la
nc

e 
gr

ea
te

r t
ha

n 
24

0 
ho

ur
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 u

se
 m

in
im

um
 o

f 1
20

 h
ou

rs
 

of
 sp

ec
ia

l c
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

ea
ch

 
ca

le
nd

ar
 y

ea
r o

r t
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 

to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

sp
ec

ia
l c

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
ba

la
nc

e 
to

 2
40

, w
hi

ch
ev

er
 is

 le
ss

, 

St
at

e’
s p

ro
po

sa
l t

o 
re

du
ce

 
em

pl
oy

ee
 sp

ec
ia

l 
co

m
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
ba

la
nc

es
 to

 re
du

ce
 st

at
e’

s 
fin

an
ci

al
 li

ab
ili

ty
 is

 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 th
e 

st
at

e’
s 

sp
ec

ia
l c

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 in
 th

e 
A

FS
C

M
E 

M
as

te
r 

C
on

tra
ct

, t
he

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l 
H

ea
lth

 C
ar

e 
U

ni
t a

nd
 

Se
cu

rit
y 

Se
rv

ic
es

 U
ni

t F
Y

 
20

12
-2

01
3 

ag
re

em
en

ts
.  

  



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Fl
or

id
a 

H
ig

hw
ay

 P
at

ro
l U

ni
t –

 S
ta

te
 P

er
so

nn
el

 S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 T

hr
ee

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
 

A
t I

m
pa

ss
e:

 A
rt

ic
le

s 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
0,

 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
6,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
2,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7 

an
d 

31
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

A
rti

cl
e 

18
 –

 H
ou

rs
 o

f 
W

or
k,

 L
ea

ve
 a

nd
 Jo

b-
C

on
ne

ct
ed

 D
is

ab
ili

ty
 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

                       

Ea
rn

ed
 P

rio
r t

o 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

3 
(1

) 
D

es
pi

te
 

th
e 

fa
ct

 
th

at
 

pr
ev

io
us

 c
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

ba
rg

ai
ni

ng
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 

on
ly

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
to

 a
cc

um
ul

at
e 

a 
m

ax
im

um
 

of
 

24
0 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
sp

ec
ia

l 
co

m
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
cr

ed
its

, 
ce

rta
in

 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

m
ay

 h
av

e 
ea

rn
ed

 h
ou

rs
 p

rio
r 

to
 

Ju
ly

 1
, 

20
13

 i
n 

ex
ce

ss
 o

f 
th

at
 a

m
ou

nt
.  

 
N

ot
hi

ng
 i

n 
th

is
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t 
is

 i
nt

en
de

d 
to

 
ad

dr
es

s 
th

e 
va

lid
ity

 o
r 

in
va

lid
ity

 o
f 

sp
ec

ia
l 

co
m

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

cr
ed

its
 

ab
ov

e 
24

0 
ho

ur
s e

ar
ne

d 
pr

io
r t

o 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

3.
 

(2
) 

A
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

 
m

ay
 

be
 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
sp

ec
ia

l 
co

m
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
cr

ed
it 

ba
la

nc
es

. 
 

A
dd

re
ss

es
 h

ow
 sp

ec
ia

l c
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

ea
rn

ed
 o

n 
or

 a
fte

r J
ul

y 
1,

 2
01

3 
w

ill
 b

e 
us

ed
 

or
 fo

rf
ei

te
d:

 
 

(C
)  

Sp
ec

ia
l 

C
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
Le

av
e 

Ea
rn

ed
 O

n 
or

 A
fte

r J
ul

y 
1,

 2
01

3 
 

(1
) 

Sp
ec

ia
l 

co
m

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

cr
ed

its
 e

ar
ne

d,
 a

s 
de

sc
rib

ed
 i

n 
su

bs
ec

tio
n 

(A
)(

1)
, o

n 
or

 a
fte

r 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

3,
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 
no

t 
us

ed
 e

ac
h 

ye
ar

 b
y 

th
e 

A
pr

il 
30

 o
r 

O
ct

ob
er

 3
1 

th
at

 i
m

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 s

uc
ce

ed
s 

th
e 

pr
io

r t
o 

us
in

g 
an

y 
an

nu
al

 le
av

e 
cr

ed
its

, 
ex

ce
pt

 if
 th

e 
fa

ilu
re

 to
 g

ra
nt

 a
nn

ua
l 

le
av

e 
w

ill
 re

su
lt 

in
 it

s c
on

ve
rs

io
n 

to
 si

ck
 

le
av

e.
 

 Em
pl

oy
ee

s e
m

pl
oy

ed
 a

fte
r J

ul
y 

1,
 2

01
3,

 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 to

 a
cc

um
ul

at
e 

a 
m

ax
im

um
 o

f 
24

0 
ho

ur
s o

f s
pe

ci
al

 c
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

cr
ed

its
, n

ot
w

ith
st

an
di

ng
 a

ny
 

ad
di

tio
na

l h
ou

rs
 w

or
ke

d 
on

 a
 h

ol
id

ay
, 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
w

or
k 

w
ee

k 
co

nt
ai

ni
ng

 a
 h

ol
id

ay
.  

Th
is

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 

sh
al

l n
ot

 a
pp

ly
 to

 c
re

di
t e

ar
ne

d 
du

e 
to

 
cl

os
ur

e 
of

 a
 fa

ci
lit

y 
un

de
r a

n 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

O
rd

er
 d

ur
in

g 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

co
nd

iti
on

s. 
 Em

pl
oy

ee
s s

ha
ll 

no
t b

e 
co

m
pe

lle
d 

to
 

us
e 

ac
cr

ue
d 

sp
ec

ia
l c

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
to

 c
ov

er
 a

n 
ab

se
nc

e(
s)

 ta
ke

n 
fo

r t
he

 u
se

 
of

 a
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
le

av
e,

 si
ck

 le
av

e,
 o

r 
pe

rs
on

al
 h

ol
id

ay
. 

 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Fl
or

id
a 

H
ig

hw
ay

 P
at

ro
l U

ni
t –

 S
ta

te
 P

er
so

nn
el

 S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 T

hr
ee

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
 

A
t I

m
pa

ss
e:

 A
rt

ic
le

s 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
0,

 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
6,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
2,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7 

an
d 

31
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

A
rti

cl
e 

18
 –

 H
ou

rs
 o

f 
W

or
k,

 L
ea

ve
 a

nd
 Jo

b-
C

on
ne

ct
ed

 D
is

ab
ili

ty
 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

                   

w
or

k 
pe

rio
d 

in
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

le
av

e 
is

 c
re

di
te

d,
 

w
hi

ch
ev

er
 

da
te

 
oc

cu
rs

 
ea

rli
er

, 
sh

al
l 

be
 

fo
rf

ei
te

d.
 

 
(2

) 
Sp

ec
ia

l 
co

m
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
cr

ed
its

 e
ar

ne
d,

 a
s 

de
sc

rib
ed

 i
n 

su
bs

ec
tio

n 
(A

)(
2)

, o
n 

or
 a

fte
r 

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
3,

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 

no
t u

se
d 

w
ith

in
 1

20
 c

al
en

da
r d

ay
s 

fr
om

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
w

or
k 

pe
rio

d 
in

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
le

av
e 

is
 c

re
di

te
d 

sh
al

l b
e 

fo
rf

ei
te

d.
 

 
(3

) 
Ea

ch
 a

ge
nc

y 
sh

al
l 

sc
he

du
le

 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

ea
rn

in
g 

sp
ec

ia
l 

co
m

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

cr
ed

its
 i

n 
a 

m
an

ne
r 

th
at

 a
llo

w
s 

al
l 

su
ch

 le
av

e 
cr

ed
its

 e
ar

ne
d 

on
 o

r a
fte

r J
ul

y 
1,

 
20

13
, 

to
 b

e 
us

ed
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 t
im

e 
lim

its
 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

 in
 s

ub
se

ct
io

ns
 1

 a
nd

 2
.  

H
ow

ev
er

, 
if 

sc
he

du
lin

g 
su

ch
 l

ea
ve

 w
ith

in
 s

uc
h 

tim
e 

lim
its

 
w

ou
ld

 
pr

ev
en

t 
th

e 
ag

en
cy

 
fr

om
 

m
ee

tin
g 

m
in

im
um

 
st

af
fin

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

ne
ed

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

pu
bl

ic
 s

af
et

y,
 th

e 
ag

en
cy

 
he

ad
 m

ay
 e

xt
en

d 
th

e 
tim

e 
lim

its
 s

pe
ci

fie
d 

in
 

su
bs

ec
tio

ns
 

1 
an

d 
2 

fo
r 

up
 

to
 

an
 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
18

0 
ca

le
nd

ar
 d

ay
s. 

 E
xt

en
si

on
s 

w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

al
lo

w
ed

 fo
r a

ny
 o

th
er

 re
as

on
. 

 
(4

) 
N

o 
ag

en
cy

 
m

ay
 

m
ak

e 
a 

pa
yo

ut
 

of
 

un
us

ed
 

sp
ec

ia
l 

co
m

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

cr
ed

its
 e

ar
ne

d 
on

 o
r 

af
te

r 
Ju

ly
 1

, 
20

13
. 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Fl
or

id
a 

H
ig

hw
ay

 P
at

ro
l U

ni
t –

 S
ta

te
 P

er
so

nn
el

 S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 T

hr
ee

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
 

A
t I

m
pa

ss
e:

 A
rt

ic
le

s 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
0,

 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
6,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
2,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7 

an
d 

31
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

Pr
ov

id
es

 fo
r s

ub
st

itu
tio

n 
of

 sp
ec

ia
l 

co
m

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

cr
ed

its
 fo

r r
eq

ue
st

ed
 

le
av

e:
 

 (D
) 

U
nl

es
s 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
pr

oh
ib

ite
d 

by
 la

w
 

or
 r

ul
e,

 a
ll 

re
qu

es
ts

 f
or

 u
se

 o
f 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 
le

av
e,

 o
th

er
 th

an
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

le
av

e,
 s

ha
ll 

fir
st

 
be

 
ch

ar
ge

d 
to

 
an

y 
sp

ec
ia

l 
co

m
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
cr

ed
its

 t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 

ha
s a

cc
ru

ed
.  

A
rti

cl
e 

21
 –

 A
ct

in
g 

R
an

ks
 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
23

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

Pr
op

os
es

 n
ew

 ti
tle

:  
 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
fo

r T
em

po
ra

ry
 S

pe
ci

al
 D

ut
y 

in
 H

ig
he

r L
ev

el
 P

os
iti

on
. 

 C
la

rif
ie

s t
ha

t t
o 

be
 e

lig
ib

le
 fo

r a
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 
sp

ec
ia

l d
ut

y 
ad

di
tiv

e 
fo

r p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

th
e 

du
tie

s o
f a

 h
ig

he
r l

ev
el

 p
os

iti
on

, t
he

 
em

pl
oy

ee
 m

us
t p

er
fo

rm
 a

 m
aj

or
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
du

tie
s o

f t
ha

t p
os

iti
on

, a
nd

 th
at

 th
e 

m
et

ho
d 

of
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

be
 p

ur
su

an
t t

o 
th

e 
R

ul
es

 o
f t

he
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
. 

    

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

 

 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Fl
or

id
a 

H
ig

hw
ay

 P
at

ro
l U

ni
t –

 S
ta

te
 P

er
so

nn
el

 S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 T

hr
ee

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
 

A
t I

m
pa

ss
e:

 A
rt

ic
le

s 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
0,

 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
6,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
2,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7 

an
d 

31
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

A
rti

cl
e 

22
 –

 V
ac

an
t 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
23

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

 

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 A
rti

cl
e 

re
tit

le
d 

R
et

ire
m

en
t. 

 Pr
op

os
es

 th
e 

A
rti

cl
e 

be
 h

el
d 

op
en

 
du

rin
g 

ne
go

tia
tio

ns
 p

en
di

ng
 a

 d
ec

is
io

n 
of

 th
e 

Fl
or

id
a 

Su
pr

em
e 

C
ou

rt 
in

 th
e 

ca
se

 
of

 R
ic

k 
Sc

ot
t, 

et
 a

l. 
v.

 G
eo

rg
e 

W
ill

ia
m

s, 
et

. A
l.,

 C
as

e 
N

o.
 S

C
12

-5
20

. 
  

 

A
rti

cl
e 

24
 –

 O
n-

C
al

l 
A

ss
ig

nm
en

t –
 C

al
l-B

ac
k 

– 
C

ou
rt 

A
pp

ea
ra

nc
e 

   

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
23

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

C
la

rif
ie

s t
ha

t o
n-

ca
ll 

as
si

gn
m

en
t i

s d
ef

in
ed

 
in

 R
ul

e 
60

L-
32

, F
lo

rid
a 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
C

od
e 

an
d 

cl
ar

ifi
es

 d
ef

in
iti

on
 o

f “
ca

ll-
ba

ck
”.

 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

 

 

A
rti

cl
e 

25
 –

 W
ag

es
 

         

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
30

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
  

Pa
y 

sh
al

l b
e 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r 
20

13
-1

4 
G

en
er

al
 A

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

 A
ct

. 
 Pr

ov
id

es
 fo

r o
th

er
 p

ay
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s:
 

 U
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t R

at
e 

In
ce

nt
iv

e:
 

Pr
ov

id
es

 fo
r a

 o
ne

-ti
m

e,
 n

on
-d

is
cr

et
io

na
ry

, 

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

  6%
 in

cr
ea

se
 fo

r a
ll 

em
pl

oy
ee

s e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

3.
 

 3%
 in

te
rn

al
 p

ay
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t i
nc

re
as

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

O
ct

ob
er

 1
, 2

01
3,

 fo
r 

em
pl

oy
ee

s w
ith

 7
 c

on
tin

uo
us

 y
ea

rs
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
a 

“m
ee

ts
 st

an
da

rd
s”

 

Es
tim

at
ed

 c
os

t o
f u

ni
on

’s
 

pr
op

os
al

s:
 

 $5
,0

00
,4

02
 

  $1
,2

08
,1

64
 

 



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Fl
or

id
a 

H
ig

hw
ay

 P
at

ro
l U

ni
t –

 S
ta

te
 P

er
so

nn
el

 S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 T

hr
ee

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
 

A
t I

m
pa

ss
e:

 A
rt

ic
le

s 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
0,

 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
6,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
2,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7 

an
d 

31
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

A
rti

cl
e 

25
 –

 W
ag

es
 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

$1
,2

00
 lu

m
p 

su
m

 b
on

us
 a

w
ar

d,
 p

lu
s 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 ta

xe
s, 

ba
se

d 
on

 e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
8 

of
 F

Y
 2

01
3-

20
14

 
G

ov
er

no
r’

s B
ud

ge
t R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
, t

o 
be

 p
ai

d 
no

 la
te

r t
ha

n 
A

ug
us

t 3
0,

 2
01

3,
 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
fu

nd
in

g 
in

 F
Y

 2
01

3-
20

14
 

G
en

er
al

 A
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
 A

ct
. 

 V
ar

ia
bl

e 
C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

A
w

ar
d:

 
Pr

ov
id

es
 fo

r a
 d

is
cr

et
io

na
ry

, o
ne

-ti
m

e 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

aw
ar

d 
of

 $
5,

00
0 

to
 e

lig
ib

le
 

em
pl

oy
ee

s a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 jo

b 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 a

nd
 $

2,
50

0 
to

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s f

or
 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
C

om
m

en
da

bl
e 

jo
b 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
ba

se
d 

on
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
8 

of
 G

ov
er

no
r’

s F
Y

 2
01

3-
20

14
 B

ud
ge

t 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
. 

 Pr
op

os
es

 a
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 sp
ec

ia
l d

ut
ie

s 
ad

di
tiv

e 
du

rin
g 

de
pl

oy
m

en
t t

o 
a 

fa
ci

lit
y 

or
 

ar
ea

 c
lo

se
d 

du
e 

to
 a

n 
em

er
ge

nc
y,

 a
nd

 
pr

ov
id

es
 fo

r a
 c

as
h 

pa
yo

ut
 o

f a
nn

ua
l l

ea
ve

 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

an
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 se

ct
io

n 
11

0.
21

9(
7)

, F
.S

., 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 p

ay
, a

nd
 

Sa
vi

ng
s S

ha
rin

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
. 

  

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 e
va

lu
at

io
n.

 
 If

 a
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

 re
ac

he
s t

he
 7

 y
ea

rs
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 
le

ve
l s

ub
se

qu
en

t t
o 

O
ct

ob
er

 1
, 

20
13

, t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 sh

al
l r

ec
ei

ve
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

in
te

rn
al

 p
ay

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t. 

  



Po
lic

e 
B

en
ev

ol
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Fl
or

id
a 

H
ig

hw
ay

 P
at

ro
l U

ni
t –

 S
ta

te
 P

er
so

nn
el

 S
ys

te
m

 
C

ur
re

nt
 T

hr
ee

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

4,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 1

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
 

A
t I

m
pa

ss
e:

 A
rt

ic
le

s 6
, 7

, 8
, 9

, 1
0,

 1
4,

 1
5,

 1
6,

 1
8,

 2
1,

 2
2,

 2
4,

 2
5,

 2
6,

 2
7 

an
d 

31
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

A
rti

cl
e 

26
 –

 U
ni

fo
rm

s a
nd

 
A

cc
es

so
rie

s 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

23
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

  
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

  In
cr

ea
se

s e
m

pl
oy

ee
s’

 a
nn

ua
l u

ni
fo

rm
 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
llo

w
an

ce
 fr

om
 $

50
0.

00
 to

 
$7

50
.0

0.
 

 

Es
tim

at
ed

 c
os

t o
f u

ni
on

’s
 

pr
op

os
al

s:
 

 $4
34

,5
00

 

A
rti

cl
e 

27
 –

 In
su

ra
nc

e 
B

en
ef

its
 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
23

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

 

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 M
ai

nt
ai

n 
st

at
us

 q
uo

 la
ng

ua
ge

 w
ith

 th
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l p
ro

vi
si

on
, a

t n
o 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
co

st
s i

n 
co

-p
ay

m
en

ts
 o

r h
ea

lth
 in

su
ra

nc
e 

pr
em

iu
m

s t
o 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

. 
 

 

A
rti

cl
e 

31
 –

 S
ta

te
 

Pe
rs

on
ne

l S
ys

te
m

 R
ul

es
 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
23

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

Pr
op

os
es

 to
 v

ac
at

e 
th

e 
A

rti
cl

e.
 

U
ni

on
’s

 1
1-

19
-1

2 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

 

 

 



V')-i
t'D t'D

< '"-·3n III

m~
c:~
::::J I
;::;V')

t'D
n
l:
:::::l.
I"'t'
'<



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 3 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 9, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 
 

Article 3 
VACANT 

 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 4 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 9, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

Article 4 
NO DISCRIMINATION 

SECTION 1 – Non-Discrimination Policy – State-Federal Law 
(A) The state and the Union shall not discriminate against any employee for any 

reason prohibited under Florida Statutes or any federal law. 
(B) The Union shall have the right to consult on issues of unlawful discrimination 

with the Step 1 Management Representative and/or designee(s), up through the Step 2 
Management Representative and/or designee(s), to the Department of Management Services. 

(C) Any claim of unlawful discrimination by an employee against the state, its 
officials or representatives, except for grievances related to Union membership, shall only be 
subject to the method of review prescribed by law or by rules and regulations having the force 
and effect of law. 

(D) The Union agrees to support the state's current affirmative action programs and 
efforts to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  

SECTION 2 – Non-Discrimination Policy – Union Membership 
Neither the state nor the Union shall interfere with the right of employees covered by this 

Agreement to become or refrain from becoming members of the Union, and neither the state nor 
the Union shall discriminate against an employee because of membership or non-membership in 
any employee organization. 
 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 5  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
February 5, 2013 

Page 1 of 4 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

Article 5 
UNION ACTIVITIES AND EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATION 

SECTION 1 – Definitions 
(A) The term “employee” as used in this Agreement, shall mean an employee 

included in the bargaining unit represented by the Union. 
(B) The term "Grievance Representative," as used in this Agreement, shall mean an 

employee designated by the President of the Union to investigate grievances at the Oral Step and 
to represent a grievant at the Oral Step and Step 1 meetings on grievances which have been 
properly filed under Article 6 of this Agreement, when the Union has been selected as the 
employee's representative. 

(C) The term “Training Academies” as used in this Article, shall mean any location 
where training is conducted to meet initial certification requirements.  

SECTION 2 – Designation of Employee Representatives 
(A) The President of the Union shall furnish to the state and keep up-to-date a list of 

Union Staff Representatives Business Agents.  The state will not recognize any person as a Staff 
Representative Business Agent whose name does not appear on the list. 

(B) The Union shall select a reasonable number of employees to be Union Grievance 
Representatives Stewards. The Union shall furnish the state the name, official class title, name of 
employing agency, and specific work location of each employee designated to act as a Grievance 
Representative Union Steward. The state shall not recognize an employee as an 
authorized Grievance Representative Union Steward until such information has been received 
from the Union.  

(C) Union Business Agents and Stewards may represent employees as Grievance 
Representatives.  

SECTION 3 – Bulletin Boards 
(A) Where requested in writing, the state agrees to furnish in state-controlled facilities 

to which employees are assigned, wall space not to exceed 4’x4’ for Union-purchased bulletin 
boards of an equal size.  Such bulletin boards will be placed at a state facility in an area normally 
accessible to, and frequented by, employees. Once a location has been established, it shall not be 
moved without notice.  Where the Union currently maintains bulletin boards or bulletin board 
space, that practice shall continue. 

(B) The use of Union bulletin board space is limited to the following notices:  
(1) Recreational and social affairs of the Union 
(2) Union meetings  



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 5  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
February 5, 2013 

Page 2 of 4 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

(3) Union elections  
(4) Reports of Union committees  
(5) Union benefit programs  
(6) Current Union Agreement  
(7) Training and educational opportunities  
(8) Decisions reached through consultation meetings, as approved by the 

Department of Management Services  
(9) Notices of wage increases for covered employees 

(C) Materials posted on these bulletin boards shall not contain anything, which 
violates or has the effect of violating any law, rule, or regulation, nor shall any posted material 
contain anything reflecting adversely on the state or any of its officers or employees. 

(D) Postings must be dated and bear the signature of an authorized Union 
representative. 

(E) A violation of these provisions by a Union Staff Representative Business Agent, 
Steward, or an authorized representative shall be a basis for removal of bulletin board privileges 
for that representative by the Department of Management Services. 

SECTION 4 – Information 
(A) Upon request of the President of the Union or designee, the state will, on no more 

than on a quarterly basis, provide the Union with a list giving the name, home address on file, 
classification title, and gross salary for each employee. This list will be prepared on the basis of 
the latest information on file at the time the list is prepared.  Where employee lists are fully 
available at no cost to non-public entities, they shall be made available to the President of the 
Union upon written request, at no cost. 

(B) The Union agrees that the home addresses and telephone numbers of employees 
shall remain confidential pursuant to section 119.07, Florida Statutes. The Union will not 
disclose the home addresses and telephone numbers of employees to third parties including, but 
not limited to, sale of the information to other persons or parties. 

(C) Upon request and receipt of payment, the state shall provide accredited 
representatives information, documents, or other public records for the investigation of an 
employee’s grievance. 

SECTION 5 – Occupation Profiles and Rules  
(A) The state will maintain on the Department of Management Services’ website the 

occupation profiles and the Rules of the State Personnel System.   
(B) In instances where the state determines that a revision to an occupation profile or 

occupational level for positions covered by this Agreement is needed, the Department of 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 5  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
February 5, 2013 

Page 3 of 4 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

Management Services shall notify the Union in writing of the proposed changes.  This procedure 
shall not constitute a waiver of the Union’s right to bargain over such matters in accordance with 
Chapter 447, Part II, Florida Statutes and applicable law.  The Union shall notify the Department 
of Management Services, in writing within 10 calendar days of its receipt of written notification 
from the Department, of its comments concerning the proposed changes, or of its desire to 
discuss the proposed change(s).  Failure of the Union to notify the Department of Management 
Services within this specified period shall constitute a waiver of the right to discuss the 
change(s). 

SECTION 6 – Representative Access 
(A) The state agrees that accredited representatives of the Union shall have access to 

the premises of the state which are available to the public. 
(B) If any area of the state's premises is restricted to the public, permission must be 

requested to enter such areas and such permission will not be unreasonably denied. Such access 
shall be during the regular working hours of the employee and shall be to investigate an 
employee's grievance. 

(C) Upon request and receipt of payment, the state shall provide accredited 
representatives information, documents, or other public records for the investigation of an 
employee’s grievance. 

SECTION 7 – New Employee Orientation and Training Academies 
 The Union will be permitted a 15-minute presentation to address new employees at 
orientation and training academies.  The Union may issue each new recruit a copy of the current 
Security Services Agreement, discuss the provisions of the Agreement, and programs available 
through the Union.  A presentation may be made only once per academy class.  The Union 
President or designee will be notified 14 days in advance of new employee training whenever 
practicable. 
SECTION 7 8 – Consultation 

(A) In order to provide a means for continuing communication between the parties 
and upon request of the President of the Union, the Secretary of the Department of Management 
Services and/or his designated representative(s) and not more than three (3) representatives of 
the Union shall make a good faith effort to meet and consult quarterly.  Such meetings shall be 
held at a time and place designated by the Department of Management Services. 

(B) Upon request by the designated Union Staff Representative, the Agency Head 
and/or designee(s) and the Staff Representative, with not more than three (3) Union 
representatives from the agency, shall make a good faith effort to meet and consult quarterly.  



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 5  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
February 5, 2013 

Page 4 of 4 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

Such meetings shall be held at a time and place to be designated by the Agency Head or his 
designee after consulting with the Union Staff Representative. 

(C) Upon request by the designated Union Staff Representative, the Step 1 
Management Representative and/or designee(s) and the designated Union Staff Representative, 
with not more than two (2) Union representatives from the agency, shall make a good faith effort 
to meet and consult.  Such meetings shall be held at a time and place to be designated by the Step 
1 Management Representative after consulting with the Union Staff Representative.  A copy of 
all requests shall be served on both the agency and the Union at their principal offices. 

(D) All consultation meetings will be scheduled after giving due consideration to the 
availability and work location of all parties. If a consultation meeting is held or requires 
reasonable travel time during the working hours of an employee participant, such participant 
shall be excused without loss of pay for that purpose.  Attendance at a consultation meeting 
outside of regular working hours shall not be deemed time worked. 

(E) The purpose of all consultation meetings shall be to discuss matters relating to the 
administration of this Agreement and agency activities affecting employees. It is understood that 
these meetings shall not be used for the purpose of discussing pending grievances or for 
negotiation purposes. The parties shall exchange agenda indicating the matters they wish to 
discuss no later than seven (7) calendar days prior to the scheduled meeting date. 

(F) An agency shall prepare a written response to issues raised during a consultation 
meeting within 30 days after the date of the meeting.  

SECTION 8 9 – Negotiations 
The Union agrees that all collective bargaining is to be conducted with state 

representatives designated for that purpose by the Governor, as Chief Executive Officer. While 
negotiating meetings shall normally be held in Tallahassee, the state and the Union may agree to 
meet elsewhere at a state facility or other location which involves no rental cost to the state. 
There shall be no negotiation by the Union at any other level of state government. 
 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 25, 2013 v2 

Page 1 of 8 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

Article 6 
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

It is the policy of the state and Union to encourage informal discussions between 
supervisors and employees of employee complaints.  Such discussions should be held with a 
view to reaching an understanding which will resolve the matter in a manner satisfactory to the 
employee and the state, without need for recourse to the formal grievance procedure prescribed 
by this Article. 

SECTION 1 – Definitions 
As used in this Article: 
(A) "Grievance" shall mean a dispute involving the interpretation or application of the 

specific provisions of this Agreement, except as exclusions are noted in this Agreement, filed on 
the appropriate form as contained in Appendix B of this Agreement. 

(B) "Employee" shall mean an employee or a group of employees having the same 
grievance. In the case of a group of employees one employee shall be designated by the group to 
act as spokesperson and to be responsible for processing the grievance. 

(C) "Days" shall mean calendar days, excluding any day observed as a holiday 
pursuant to Section 110.117, Florida Statutes, or holiday observed by the Union pursuant to a list 
furnished to the state in writing, as of the effective date of this Agreement. 

SECTION 2 – Election of Remedy and Representation 
(A) If an employee or the Union has a grievance which may be processed under this 

Article and which may also be appealed to the Public Employees Relations Commission, the 
employee or the Union shall indicate at the time the grievance is reduced to writing which 
procedure is to be used and such decision shall be binding on the employee or the Union.  In the 
case of any duplicate filing, the action first filed will be the one processed. 

(B A) An employee who decides to use this grievance procedure shall indicate at the 
Oral Step or initial written step (if authorized by the provisions of this Article) whether he shall 
be represented by the Union.  If the employee is represented by the Union, any decision agreed 
to by the state and Union shall be binding on the employee. 

(C B) Where Union representation is requested by an employee, the employee's 
representative shall be selected from the list of Union Grievance Representatives or Union Staff 
Representatives Business Agents which has been provided to the state by the Union.  When an 
employee has been appropriately designated to serve as a Grievance Representative and the state 
has been notified in accordance with Article 5, Section 2 (B), the Grievance Representative shall 
be authorized to investigate grievances and represent grievants in accordance with this Article, 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 25, 2013 v2 

Page 2 of 8 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

subject to the following limitations: 
(1) A Grievance Representative will not be allowed time off with pay to 

investigate his own grievance. 
(2) Time spent by a Grievance Representative in investigating a grievance 

shall be the minimum amount of time necessary to perform the specific investigation involved. 
(a) If an employee selects a Grievance Representative to represent him 

in a grievance which has been properly filed in accordance with this Article, the Grievance 
Representative may be allowed a reasonable amount of annual or compensatory leave to 
investigate the grievance at the Oral Step and to represent the grievant at Oral Step and Step 1 
meetings held during regular work hours. Such annual or compensatory leave shall be subject to 
prior approval by the Grievance Representative's immediate supervisor; however, approval of 
such time off will not be withheld if the Grievance Representative can be allowed such time off 
without interfering with, or unduly hampering the operations of the unit to which the Grievance 
Representative is regularly assigned. The Grievance Representative's immediate supervisor will 
notify the grievant's supervisor prior to allowing the Grievance Representative time off to 
investigate the grievance. 

(b) Investigations will be conducted in a way that does not interfere 
with state operations. 

(c) The Grievance Representative must be selected from Grievance 
Representatives within the same work unit as the grievant's work unit. If no Grievance 
Representative is located in the grievant's work unit, the Grievance Representative must be 
selected from the work unit located closest to the grievant's work location.  In no case shall a 
Grievance Representative who is on duty be allowed to travel more than 50 miles from his 
official work location in order to investigate a grievance. Such travel limitation shall not apply 
when the Grievance Representative is not on duty. 

(d) A Grievance Representative selected to represent an employee as 
provided in this Article will be considered a required participant at the Step 1 grievance meeting. 

(D C) Both the employee and the employee's representative, if any, shall be notified of 
the Step 1 meeting.  Further, all communication concerning written grievances or their resolution 
shall be in writing, with a copy sent to both the employee and the employee's representative. 

(E D) If the employee is not represented by the Union, any adjustment of the grievance 
shall be consistent with the terms of this Agreement. The Union shall be given reasonable 
opportunity to be present at any meeting called for the resolution of the grievance, and 
processing of the grievance will be in accordance with the procedures established in this 
Agreement. The Union shall not be bound by the decision of any grievance in which the 
employee chose not to be represented by the Union. 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 25, 2013 v2 

Page 3 of 8 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

(F E) The resolution of a grievance prior to its submission in writing at Step 3 shall not 
establish a precedent binding on either the state or the Union in other cases. 

SECTION 3 – Procedures 
(A) Employee grievances filed in accordance with this Article are to be presented and 

handled promptly at the lowest level of supervision having the authority to adjust the grievances.  
Grievances may be filed and responded to by facsimile, electronic mail, mail, or personal 
delivery. 

(B) After a grievance is presented, no new violation or issue can be raised. 
(C) There shall be no reprisals against any of the participants in the procedures 

contained herein by reason of such participation. 
(D) If a grievance meeting is held or requires reasonable travel time during 

the working hours of any required participant, such participant shall be excused without loss of 
pay for that purpose. Attendance at grievance meetings outside of regular working hours shall 
not be deemed time worked. 

(E) Grievances shall be presented and adjusted in the following manner, and no 
individual may respond to a grievance at more than one written step. 

(1) Oral Discussion 
(a) An employee having a grievance may, within 14 days following 

the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance, initiate the grievance by presenting the 
grievance it orally to the Oral Step representative or by filing a written grievance at Step 1. The 
Oral Step representative shall make every effort to resolve the grievance at the Oral Step, 
including meeting to discuss the grievance if such meeting is requested by the employee or the 
employee's representative if a meeting is deemed necessary by the Oral Step representative.  The 
Oral Step representative shall communicate a decision to the employee and the employee's 
representative, if any, within 14 days following the date the grievance is received at the Oral 
Step. 

(b) If the employee elects not to utilize the oral discussion provision of 
this section he may file a written grievance at Step 1, provided such written grievance is filed 
within 14 days following the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance. 

(c b) Failure to communicate the decision within the specified time limit 
shall permit the employee, or the Union where appropriate, to proceed to the next step. 

(d c) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the 
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits 
specified in any step of this procedure may be extended in writing in any specific instance as 
long as necessary provided there is agreement by both sides. 

(e d) The Oral Step representative for correctional institutions shall be 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 25, 2013 v2 

Page 4 of 8 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

the Chief Correctional Officer or designee. The Oral Step representative for community 
corrections shall be the Circuit Administrator, or designee. The Oral Step representative for 
employees in the institutional security specialist series shall be the Security Chief or designee. 

(2) Step 1 
(a) If the employee elects to utilize the oral discussion step and the 

grievance is not resolved, the employee or the designated employee representative may submit it 
in writing to the Step 1 management representative within 14 days following the receipt of the 
oral step decision.  If the employee elects not to utilize the oral discussion provision of this 
section he may file a written grievance at Step 1, provided such written grievance is filed within 
14 days following the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance.  In filing a grievance 
at Step 1, the employee or the designated employee representative shall submit to the Step 1 
Management Representative a grievance form as contained in Appendix B, setting forth 
specifically the complete facts on which the grievance is based, the specific provision or 
provisions of the Agreement allegedly violated, and the relief requested. All written documents 
to be considered by the Step 1 Management Representative shall be submitted with the grievance 
form; however, if additional written documentation is obtained after the grievance is filed, such 
documentation may be presented at the Step 1 meeting. 

(b) The Step 1 Management Representative or designated 
representative shall meet to discuss the grievance and shall communicate a decision in writing to 
the employee and the employee's representative, if any, within 14 days following the date the 
grievance is received at Step 1. 

(c) Failure to communicate the decision within the specified time limit 
shall permit the employee, or the Union where appropriate, to proceed to the next step. 

(d) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the 
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process.  However, the time limits 
specified in any step of this procedure may be extended in writing in any specific instance as 
long as necessary provided there is agreement by both sides. 

(3) Step 2 
(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the employee or the 

employee's representative may submit it in writing to the Agency Head or designated 
representative within 14 days after receipt of the decision at Step 1. The grievance shall include a 
copy of the grievance form submitted at Step 1 and a copy of the Step 1 response, together with 
all written documents in support of the grievance.  When the grievance is eligible for initiation at 
Step 2, the grievance form must contain the same information as a grievance filed at Step 1 
above. 

(b) The Agency Head or designated representative may meet with the 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 25, 2013 v2 

Page 5 of 8 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

employee and/or the designated Union Staff Representative to discuss the grievance. The 
Agency Head or designated representative shall communicate a decision in writing within 21 
days following receipt of the written grievance. 

(c) Failure to communicate the decision within the specified time limit 
shall permit the employee, or the Union where appropriate, to proceed to the next step. 

(d) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the 
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits 
specified in any step of this procedure may be extended in writing in any specific instance as 
long as necessary provided there is agreement by both sides. 

(4) Step 3  
(a) If a grievance is not resolved at Step 2, the designated Union 

representative, or the employee if not represented by the Union, may appeal the Step 2 decision, 
in writing, to the Department of Management Services within 14 days after receipt of the 
decision at Step 2. The grievance shall include a copy of the grievance form submitted at Steps 1 
and 2, together with all written responses and documents in support of the grievance.  The 
Department of Management Services may meet with the Union President or designated Union 
representative to discuss the grievance.  When the grievance is eligible for initiation at Step 3, 
the grievance form must contain the same information as the grievance filed at Step 1 above. 

(b) The Department of Management Services shall communicate a 
decision in writing to the employee and the Union President or designated Union representative 
within 21 days following receipt of the written grievance. 

(c) Failure to communicate the decision within the specified time limit 
shall permit the employee, or the Union where appropriate, to proceed to the next step. 

(d) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the 
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process.  However, the time limits 
specified in any step of this procedure may be extended in writing in any specific instance as 
long as necessary provided there is agreement by both sides. 

 (5) Grievance Mediation 
The parties may, by written agreement, submit a grievance to mediation to 

be conducted by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS), either prior to the 
grievance being submitted to arbitration or after it has been submitted to arbitration but before a 
hearing is scheduled.  When the parties agree to mediate a grievance, the time limits to file for, 
or process, an arbitration are automatically extended for the period necessary to conclude the 
mediation process.  Either party may withdraw from the mediation process with written notice no 
later than five (5) days before a scheduled mediation. 

(6) Arbitration 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 25, 2013 v2 

Page 6 of 8 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

(a) If a grievance is not resolved at Step 3, the President of the Union 
or a designated member of his staff, may appeal the grievance to Arbitration on a Request for 
Arbitration Form as contained in Appendix C within 14 days after receipt of the decision at Step 
3.  If, at the initial step, the Union refused to represent the employee because he was not a dues-
paying member of the Union, the employee may appeal the grievance to Arbitration. 

(b) The parties may, by agreement in writing, submit related 
grievances for hearing before the same arbitrator. 

(c) The arbitrator shall be one person from a panel of five (5) 
arbitrators, selected by the state and the Union to serve in rotation for any case or cases 
submitted.  The Department of Management Services shall facilitate the scheduling of all 
arbitration hearings. 

(d) Arbitration hearings shall be held at times and locations agreed to 
by the parties, taking into consideration the availability of evidence, location of witnesses, 
existence of appropriate facilities, and other relevant factors.  If agreement cannot be reached, 
the arbitration hearing shall be held in the City of Tallahassee. 

(e) Where there is a threshold issue regarding arbitrability, including 
timeliness, of a grievance raised by either party, an expedited arbitration hearing shall be 
conducted to address only the arbitrability issue.  In such cases, the parties shall choose an 
arbitrator from the panel of arbitrators (see (6)(c) above), who is available to schedule a hearing 
and render a decision within twenty days of an arbitrator being chosen for this limited purpose.  
The hearing on this issue shall be limited to one day, and the arbitrator shall be required to 
decide the issue within five (5) business days of the hearing.  The hearing shall be conducted by 
telephone upon the agreement of the parties and the arbitrator.  The party losing the arbitrability 
issue shall pay the fees and expenses of the expedited arbitration. If the arbitrator determines that 
the issue is arbitrable, another arbitrator shall be chosen from the parties’ regular arbitration 
panel in accordance with the provisions of (6)(c) of this Article to conduct a hearing on the 
substantive issue(s). 

(e f) The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the 
grievance and, provided the decision is in accordance with his jurisdiction and authority under 
this Agreement, shall be final and binding on the state, the Union, the grievant(s), and the 
employees.  In considering a grievance, the arbitrator shall be governed by the following 
provisions and limitations: 

1. The arbitrator shall issue a decision not later than 30 days 
from the date of the closing of the hearing or the submission of briefs, whichever is later. 

2. The arbitrator's decision shall be in writing, and shall set 
forth the arbitrator's opinion and conclusions on the precise issue(s) submitted. 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 25, 2013 v2 

Page 7 of 8 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

3. The arbitrator shall have no authority to determine any 
other issue, and the arbitrator shall refrain from issuing any statement of opinion or conclusion 
not essential to the determination of the issues submitted. 

4.  The arbitrator shall limit the decision strictly to the 
application and interpretation of the specific provisions of this Agreement. 

5.  The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make 
any decisions: 

a. Contrary to or inconsistent with, adding to, subtracting 
from, or modifying, altering or ignoring in any way, the terms of this Agreement, or of 
applicable law or rules or regulations having the force and effect of law; or 

b. Limiting or interfering in any way with the powers, 
duties, and responsibilities of the state under its Constitution, applicable law, and rules and 
regulations having the force and effect of law, except as such powers, duties, and responsibilities 
have been abridged, delegated, or modified by the expressed provisions of this Agreement; or 

c. Which has the effect of restricting the discretion of an 
Agency Head as otherwise granted by law or the Rules of the State Personnel System unless such 
authority is modified by this Agreement; or 

d. That is based solely upon an agency past practice or 
policy unless such agency practice or policy is contrary to law, the Rules of the State Personnel 
System, or this Agreement. 

6. The arbitrator's award may include back pay to the 
grievant(s); however, the following limitations shall apply to such monetary awards. 

a. No award for back pay shall exceed the amount of pay 
the employee would otherwise have earned at his regular rate of pay and such back pay shall not 
be retroactive to a date earlier than the date of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the 
grievance under consideration and in no event more than the time limits permitted for initiation 
of the grievance. 

b. The award shall not exceed the actual loss to the grievant 
and will not include punitive damages. 

(f g) The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne solely by the 
party who fails to prevail in the hearing; however, each party shall be responsible for 
compensating and paying the expenses of its own representatives, attorneys and witnesses. 
Should the arbitrator fashion an award in such a manner that the grievance is sustained in part 
and denied in part, the state and Union will evenly split the arbitrator's fee and expenses. 

(g h) The Union will not be responsible for costs of an arbitration to 
which it was not a party. 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 6  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 25, 2013 v2 

Page 8 of 8 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

SECTION 4 – Time Limits 
(A) Failure to initiate or appeal a grievance within the time limits specified shall be 

deemed a waiver of the grievance. 
(B) Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance 

within the specified time limit shall permit the employee, or the Union where appropriate, to 
proceed to the next step.  A Step 2 or Step 3 answer that is not received by the Union by the 
written, agreed-to deadline does not alter the time limits for appealing a grievance to the next 
step. 

(C) Claims of either an untimely filing or untimely appeal shall be made at the step in 
question. 

SECTION 5 – Exceptions 
(A) Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to 

permit the Union or an employee to process a grievance: (1) on behalf of any employee without 
his consent, or (2) when the subject of such (employee's) grievance is, at the same time, the 
subject of an administrative action, an appeal before a governmental board or agency, or a court 
proceeding. 

 (B) All grievances will be presented at the Oral Step or Step 1, with the following 
exceptions: 

(1) If a grievance arises from the action of an official higher than the Step 1 
Management Representative, the grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 or 3 as appropriate, by 
submitting a grievance form as set forth in Step 1 within 14 days following the occurrence of the 
event giving rise to the grievance. 

(2) The Union shall have the right to bring a class action grievance on behalf 
of employees in its own name concerning disputes relating to the interpretation or application of 
this Agreement. Such grievance shall not include disciplinary actions taken against any 
employee. The Union’s election to proceed under this Article shall preclude it from proceeding 
in another forum on the same issue.  The class action grievance shall list the employees 
adversely impacted by the dispute relating to the interpretation or application of the Agreement.  
Such grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 of this procedure, in accordance with the provisions 
set forth herein, within 14 days of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance. 

(C) An employee who has not attained permanent status in his current position may 
only file non-discipline grievances.  Non-discipline grievances filed by probationary employees 
are final and binding at Step 3 unless the processing of such grievances is further limited by 
specific provisions of this Agreement. 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 7  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 25, 2013 

Page 1 of 6 
 

 
For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

Article 7 
DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE 

SECTION 1 – Disciplinary Action 
(A) An employee who has attained permanent status in his current position may be 

disciplined only for cause as provided in section 110.227, Florida Statutes.  Reductions in base 
pay, demotions, involuntary transfers of more than 50 miles by highway, suspensions, and 
dismissals may be effected by the state at any time against any employee.  Such actions against 
employees with permanent status in their current position for disciplinary reasons shall be 
grievable in accordance with the grievance procedure in Article 6, if the employee alleges that 
the action was not for just cause. However, any reduction in base pay required by the Rules of 
the State Personnel System shall not be grievable. Demotion will not be used as a form of 
disciplinary action for employees in the classes of Correctional Officer, Correctional Probation 
Officer, Correctional Probation Officer-Institution, or Institutional Security Specialist I. 
Disciplinary actions shall be subject to the grievance procedure as follows: 

(1) Oral reprimands shall not be grievable under the provisions of this 
Agreement.  The Department of Corrections will not issue Oral Reprimands. 

(2) An oral reprimand will not be considered in determining progressive 
discipline provided the employee is not disciplined for the same offense during the succeeding 
12 months, and in such cases the employee may request that an existing Oral Reprimand 
contained in his official personnel file be marked “expired.” 

(1) The state may issue Memoranda of Record, Memoranda of Counseling, or 
Supervisory Counseling Memoranda, which are documentation of minor work deficiencies or 
conduct concerns that are maintained by a supervisor in a working file.  Such documents are not 
discipline, are not grievable, and shall not become part of the employee’s official personnel file; 
however, such documentation may be used by the state at an administrative hearing involving an 
employee’s discipline to demonstrate the employee was on notice of the performance 
deficiencies or conduct concerns. 

(3 2) Written reprimands may be grieved by employees with permanent status 
in their current position up to Step 3 2; the decision at that level shall be final and binding. 

(4) A written reprimand will not be considered in determining progressive 
discipline provided the employee is not disciplined for the same offense during the succeeding 
18 months, and the written reprimand was not for a major offense which could have resulted in 
the employee's dismissal. 

(B) A complaint by an employee with permanent status in his current position 
concerning any written reprimand which contains criminal allegations or criminal charges may 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 7  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 25, 2013 

Page 2 of 6 
 

 
For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

be grieved through the arbitration step of the grievance procedure. 
(C B) An employee with permanent status in his current position may file an appeal of a 

reduction in base pay, suspension, involuntary transfer of over 50 miles by highway, demotion, 
or dismissal with the Public Employees Relations Commission If filed within 14 21 calendar 
days from after the date of receipt of notice of such action from the agency, under the provisions 
of Section 110.227(5) and (6), Florida Statutes.  Such appeal process is the exclusive remedy for 
review of such actions; they are not subject to the Article 6 grievance procedure.  by personal 
delivery or by certified mail, return receipt requested, a complaint by an employee with 
permanent status in his current position concerning a reduction in base pay, suspension, 
involuntary transfer of over 50 miles by highway, demotion, or dismissal may be grieved at Step 
1 and processed through the Arbitration Step, in accordance with the Grievance Procedure in 
Article 6 of this Agreement. 

(D) Where a disciplinary action may be appealed to the Public Employees Relations 
Commission and is also grievable under this Agreement, the employee shall indicate at the time 
the grievance is reduced to writing which procedure is to be used and such decision shall be 
binding on the employee. In the case of any duplicate filing, the action first filed will be the one 
processed. 

(E C)     For employees in the Department of Corrections, the following shall apply: 
           (1)     If the Department of Corrections issues a disciplinary suspension to an 

employee and the employee files an appeal to the Public Employees Relations Commission 
(PERC) in the required 21 calendar days from the date the employee receives the letter, or files a 
collective bargaining grievance within the time limits set forth in Article 6 of this Agreement, the 
Department of Corrections shall have the option to stay the suspension for up to 90 calendar days 
pending a Recommended or Final Order by PERC, or a decision/award from an arbitrator.  If the 
Department of Corrections stays the suspension, and PERC has not issued a Recommended or 
Final Order, or an arbitrator has not rendered a decision/award by the end of the period for which 
the suspension was stayed, the Department of Corrections may proceed with the disciplinary 
suspension. 

            (2)    The Department may have special compensatory leave equal to the length of 
a disciplinary suspension deducted from an employee’s leave balance in lieu of the employee 
serving the suspension.  In making such determination, the Department shall take into 
consideration the preference of the employee as to serving the suspension or having leave 
deducted.  If the employee does not have sufficient special compensatory leave, annual leave 
may be deducted.  If there is not sufficient special compensatory or annual leave, the remainder 
of the period will be leave without pay. Employees from whom leave is deducted will continue 
to report for duty. during the period of time in which their leave is deducted.  The employee’s 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 7  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 25, 2013 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 
For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

personnel file will reflect a disciplinary suspension regardless of whether the employee serves 
the suspension or has leave deducted. 

(3) The Department of Corrections may use Records of Counseling or other 
documentation to describe the employee’s work behavior in litigation involving employee 
discipline.  

SECTION 2 – Interrogation during Internal Investigations 
In the course of any internal investigation, the interrogation methods employed will be 

consistent with Sections 112.532 and Section 112.533, Florida Statutes. 
(A) Definitions 
For the purpose of this section the following definitions of terms as used in Section 

112.532, Florida Statutes, shall apply: 
(1) "Interrogation" refers to a disciplinary investigation meeting with respect 

to an incident or complaint between a member of management or supervision, including an 
investigator, and an employee covered by this Agreement in which the information to be 
obtained at the investigation meeting will be the basis for the decision as to whether to suspend 
or dismiss the employee. It does not include counseling sessions, or investigations, which may 
result in lesser forms of disciplinary action or meetings at which the employee is solely being 
advised of intended disciplinary action, and offered an opportunity to explain why he should not 
be disciplined. 

(2) "Complainants" refers to the complaining or charging party relative to an 
incident, complaint, or reason. 

(B) Procedures 
Whenever an employee covered by this Agreement is under investigation and subject to 

interrogation by members of his agency for any reason, which could lead to disciplinary action, 
suspension, demotion, or dismissal, such interrogation shall be conducted under the following 
conditions: 

(1) The interrogation shall be conducted at a reasonable hour, preferably at a 
time when the employee is on duty, unless the seriousness of the investigation is of such a degree 
that immediate action is required. 

(2) The interrogation shall take place either at the office of the command of 
the investigating officer or correctional unit in which the incident allegedly occurred, as 
designated by the investigating officer or agency. 

(3) The employee under investigation shall be informed of the rank, name, 
and command of the officer in charge of the investigation, the interrogating officer, and all 
persons present during the interrogation. All questions directed to the officer under interrogation 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 7  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 25, 2013 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 
For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

shall be asked by and through one interrogator at any one time. 
(4) The employee under investigation shall be informed of the nature of the 

investigation prior to any interrogation, and he shall be informed of the name of all 
complainants. 

(5) Interrogating sessions shall be for reasonable periods and shall be timed to 
allow for such personal necessities and rest periods as are reasonably necessary for both the 
employee and the representative. 

(6) The employee under interrogation shall not be subjected to offensive 
language or be threatened with transfer, dismissal, or disciplinary action. No promise or reward 
shall be made as an inducement to answer any questions. 

(7) The formal interrogation of an employee, including all recess periods, 
shall be recorded, and there shall be no unrecorded questions or statements. Upon the request of 
the interrogated officer, a copy of any such recording of the interrogation session must be made 
available to the interrogated officer no later than 72 hours, excluding holidays and weekends, 
following said interrogation. 

(8) If the employee under interrogation is under arrest, or is likely to be placed 
under arrest as a result of the interrogation, he shall be completely informed of all his rights prior 
to the commencement of the interrogation. 

 (9) At the request of any employee under investigation, he shall have the right 
to be represented by counsel or any other representative of his choice, who shall be present at all 
times during such interrogation whenever the interrogation relates to the officer's continued 
fitness for correctional service. 

(10) Where the agency determines that a complaint is unsupported by the facts 
or is otherwise without merit, or determines that the facts are insufficient to charge or otherwise 
discipline the employee under investigation, such conclusion will be so noted as part of the 
investigative record. Written documents relative to the investigation are subject to the provisions 
of Article 12, Personnel Records. 

(11) Where the employee is the subject of the investigation, the employee shall 
be provided the opportunity to review all written statements made by the complainant and 
witnesses immediately prior to the beginning of the investigation interview. 

(C) Unless required by statute, no employee shall be required to submit to a 
polygraph test or any device designed to measure the truthfulness of his response during an 
investigation of a complaint or allegation. If an employee is offered an opportunity to submit to a 
polygraph test, the employee's refusal will not be referred to in any final action taken by the 
agency. 

(D) Alleged violations of the investigative rights provided for in this section by an 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 7  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 25, 2013 

Page 5 of 6 
 

 
For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

employee or the Union shall be investigated by the agency. The agency shall provide the 
employee and the Union with an explanation concerning the alleged violation and corrective 
action taken, if any. 

(E) The state will make a good faith effort to complete all internal investigations 
within 60 calendar days from the date the investigation is assigned to the investigator. Except in 
the case of a criminal investigation, the employee shall be notified in writing of any investigation 
that exceeds 120 calendar days. The employee under investigation shall be advised of the results 
of the investigation at its conclusion. 

(F) The provisions of this section may be grieved in accordance with Article 6, up to 
Step 3 of the Grievance Procedure; the decision at that step shall be final and binding. 

(G) In cases where the agency determines that the employee’s absence from the work 
location is essential to the investigation and the employee cannot be reassigned to other duties 
pending completion of the investigation, the employee shall be placed on administrative leave in 
accordance with Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code.  In cases where an employee has 
been reassigned by the Department of Corrections pending the outcome of an investigation and 
the charges or allegations against the employee are not sustained, the reassigned employee shall 
be offered the option to return to the original work location and, if requested, the previously held 
shift and days off as soon as they become available.  As an exception, the Department may retain 
the employee in the reassigned work location if it determines that information has been produced 
in the course of its investigation of the charges that evidences a substantial likelihood of 
interference with the operations of the work unit if the employee is returned to the original work 
location.   

SECTION 3 – Employee Copy 
Each employee shall be furnished a copy of all disciplinary entries placed in his official 

personnel file and shall be permitted to respond thereto, and a copy of the employee's response 
shall be placed in the employee's personnel file. 

SECTION 4 – Notice 
Notice of reduction in base pay, demotion, involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by 

highway, suspension, or dismissal affecting an employee who has satisfactorily completed at 
least a one-year probationary period in his current position shall be in accordance with section 
110.227(5), Florida Statutes. 

SECTION 5 – Representation 
 Where union representation is requested by an employee during an investigation by the 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 7  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 25, 2013 

Page 6 of 6 
 

 
For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 
 

agency Inspector General’s Office, or during a predetermination conference, a union steward will 
be allowed a reasonable amount of accrued leave, other than sick leave, to attend such meetings, 
subject to prior approval by the steward’s immediate supervisor.   Such leave will be approved if 
the steward can be allowed leave without interfering with, or unduly hampering, the operations 
of the unit to which the steward is regularly assigned. 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 9  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 9, 2013 

Page 1 of 3 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

Article 9 
REASSIGNMENT, TRANSFER, CHANGE IN DUTY STATION 

Employees who have attained permanent status in their current position and who meet all 
eligibility requirements shall have the opportunity to request reassignment, transfer, or change in 
duty station to vacant positions within their respective agencies in accordance with the 
provisions of this Article.  

SECTION 1 – Definitions as used in this Article: 
(A) "Duty station" shall mean the place which is designated as an employee's official 

headquarters. 
(B) "Change in duty station" shall mean the moving of an employee to a duty station 

located within 50 miles, by highway, of his current duty station. 
(C) "Broadband level" shall mean all positions sufficiently similar in knowledge, 

skills, and abilities, and sufficiently similar as to kind or subject matter of work, level of 
difficulty or responsibilities, and qualification requirements of the work, to warrant the same 
treatment as to title, pay band, and other personnel transactions.   

(D) "Reassignment" shall mean moving an employee from a position in one 
broadband level to a different position in the same broadband level or to a different broadband 
level having the same maximum salary.  

(E) "Transfer" shall mean moving an employee from one geographic area of the state 
to a different geographic location in excess of 50 miles, by highway, from the employee's current 
duty station. 

(F) "Agency needs" are those actions taken by an agency in order to meet its mission 
of protecting the public, providing a safe and humane environment for staff and offenders, 
working in partnership with the community to provide programs and services to offenders, and 
supervising offenders at a level of security commensurate with the danger they present.  
 (G) “Major institution” shall mean in the Department of Corrections, the main facility 
under the control of one warden, and will include the annexes, work camps, release centers, and 
other satellite/sister facilities under the authority of that main facility warden. 

SECTION 2 – Procedures 
(A) An employee who has attained permanent status in his current position may apply 

for a reassignment, transfer, or change in duty station on a Request for Reassignment, Transfer, 
or Change in Duty Station Form (supplied by the agency). Such requests shall indicate 
county(ies), institution(s), and/or other work location(s) or shift(s) to which the employee would 
like to be reassigned.  In the Department of Corrections, an employee in the correctional officer 
class series may only request reassignment, transfer, or change in duty station from one major 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 9  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 9, 2013 

Page 2 of 3 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

institution to another major institution.  A State of Florida Employment Application Form must 
be completed and sent with the Request for Reassignment Form. 

(B) An employee may submit a Request for Reassignment Form at any time; 
however, all such requests shall expire on May 31 of each calendar year.  Requests can be filed 
in May to become effective on June 1. 

(C) All Request for Reassignment Forms shall be submitted to the Agency Head or 
designee who shall be responsible for furnishing a copy of each such request to the manager(s) or 
supervisor(s) who have the authority to make employee hiring decisions in the work unit to 
which the employee has requested reassignment. 

(D) Except where a vacancy is filled by demotion, the manager or supervisor having 
hiring authority for that vacancy shall give first consideration to employees who have submitted 
a Request for Reassignment Form; provided, however, that employees whose request for 
reassignment is not submitted by the first day of the month shall not be considered for vacancies 
which occur during that month. 

(E) The hiring authority shall normally fill a vacancy with the employee who has the 
greatest length of service in the broadband level and who has a Request for Reassignment Form 
on file for the vacancy. The parties agree, however, that other factors, such as employees' work 
history and agency needs, will be taken into consideration in making the decision as to whether   
the employee with the greatest length of service in the broadband level will be placed in the 
vacant position. 

(F) In the Department of Children and Families, i If the employee with the greatest 
length of service in the broadband level is not selected for the vacant position, all employees who 
have greater length of service in the broadband level than the employee selected shall be notified 
in writing of the agency's decision. 

(G) When an employee has been reassigned pursuant to a request filed under this 
Article, all other pending requests for reassignment from that employee shall be canceled.  No 
other request for reassignment may be filed by the employee under this Article for a period of 12 
months following the employee's reassignment, transfer, or change in duty station.  If an 
employee declines an offer of reassignment pursuant to a request filed under this Article, the 
employee's request shall be canceled and the employee is not eligible to resubmit that request for 
a period of 12 months from the date the employee declined the offer of reassignment.  

SECTION 3 – Involuntary Reassignment, Transfer, or Change in Duty Station  
 (A) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent an agency, at 
its discretion, from effecting the involuntary reassignment, transfer, or change in duty station of 
an employee according to the needs of the agency. 
 (B) In those instances where the Department of Corrections determines that an 
excessive caseload at a probation office requires the reassignment of an officer, the Department 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 9  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 9, 2013 

Page 3 of 3 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

will consider requests from volunteers, employee seniority, and the needs of the agency in 
making such reassignment.  

SECTION 4 – Notice 
An employee shall be given a minimum of 14 calendar days’ notice prior to the agency 

effecting any reassignment or transfer of the employee. In the case of a transfer, the agency will 
make a good faith effort to give a minimum of 30 calendar days’ notice. The parties agree, 
however, that these notice requirements shall not be required during an emergency or other 
extraordinary condition.  

SECTION 5 – Relocation Allowance 
An employee who is reassigned and required by agency policy to relocate his residence 

shall be granted time off with pay for one (1) workday for this purpose. In addition, the 
employee shall be granted travel time to the new location based on the most direct route.  No 
employee will be credited with more than the number of hours in the employee's regular 
workday and such time shall not be counted as hours worked for the purpose of computing 
compensatory time or overtime.  

SECTION 6 – Grievability 
The provisions of this Article shall not be subject to the grievance procedures of Article 6 

of this Agreement; however, an employee complaint concerning improper application of the 
provisions of Section 2(E), Section 3, and Section 4 may be grieved in accordance with Article 6, 
up to and including Step 3 of the grievance procedure.  In considering such complaints, weight 
shall be given to the specific procedures followed and decisions made, along with the needs of 
the agency. 
 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 10  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
February 5, 2013 

Page 1 of 3 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

Article 10 
PROMOTIONS 

(A) The state and the Union agree that promotions should be used to provide career 
mobility within the State Personnel System and should be based on the relative merit and fitness 
of applicants. 

(B) Toward the goals of selecting the most qualified applicant for each promotional 
vacancy, the parties agree that the provisions of this Article, along with all provisions of the 
Rules of the State Personnel System, will be followed when making such appointments. 

SECTION 1 – Definitions 
As used in this Article: 
(A) "Broadband level" shall mean all positions sufficiently similar in knowledge, 

skills, and abilities, and sufficiently similar as to kind or subject matter of work, level of 
difficulty or responsibilities, and qualification requirements of the work, to warrant the same 
treatment as to title, pay band, and other personnel transactions.   

(B) "Promotion" shall mean changing the classification of an employee to a 
broadband level having a higher maximum salary; or the changing of the classification of an 
employee to a broadband level having the same or a lower maximum salary but a higher level of 
responsibility. 

(C) "Demotion" shall mean changing the classification of an employee to a broadband 
level having a lower maximum salary; or the changing of the classification of an employee to a 
broadband level having the same or a higher maximum salary but a lower level of responsibility.  

SECTION 2 – Procedures 
(A) An employee who has attained permanent status in his current position may apply 

for a promotion by submitting a Request for Promotion Form furnished by the agency in which 
the promotional position is located, to be considered for promotional vacancies. Such requests 
shall indicate the class(es)/broadband level(s), county(ies), institution(s), and/or other work 
locations to which the employee would like to be promoted. A State of Florida Employment 
Application Form must be completed and sent with the employee's request for promotion. 

(B) An employee may submit a request for promotion at any time; however, all such 
requests shall expire on May 31 of each calendar year. 

(C) When an employee has been promoted pursuant to a request filed under this 
Article all other pending requests for promotion from that employee shall be canceled. No other 
requests for promotion may be filed by that employee under this Article for a period of 12 
months following the employee's promotion. 

SECTION 3 – Method of Filling Vacancies 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 10  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
February 5, 2013 

Page 2 of 3 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

(A) Except where a vacancy is filled by demotion, or by reassignment as defined in 
Article 9 of this Agreement, employees who have applied for promotion in accordance with 
Section 2 of this Article shall be given first consideration for promotional vacancies in 
accordance with the agencies' standard selection process. 

(B) Each employee who applies in accordance with Section 2 of this Article will be 
notified in writing by the appointing authority when the position has been filled. 

(C) The standard selection process for filling institutional security specialist 
promotional vacancies covered by this Agreement shall continue in effect during the term of this 
Agreement.  The standard selection process for filling Correctional Officer and Correctional 
Probation Officer promotional vacancies shall be as provided for in Department of Corrections 
Procedure Number 208.005 (Appendix D).  

SECTION 4 – Status  
 (A) An employee appointed to a position must successfully complete at least a one-
year probationary period, and shall attain permanent status in that position upon successful 
completion of the designated probationary period.   
 (B) An employee serving a probationary period in a position to which he has received 
an internal agency promotion may be removed from that promotional position at any time during 
the probationary period.  If his former position, or a comparable position, is vacant, the employee 
is to be placed in such position.  If such a position is not available, before dismissal, the agency 
shall make a reasonable effort to retain the employee in another vacant position.  This process 
does not apply to terminations for cause nor does it create a right to bump an employee from an 
occupied position. 
  (1) If the employee is demoted into their former position or a comparable 
position, such demotion shall be with permanent status, provided the employee previously 
attained permanent status in the agency in the lower position. 
  (2) The employee’s salary will be reduced in accordance with the agency’s 
pay upon demotion policy. 
  (3) Such demotion shall not be grievable under the contractual grievance 
procedure. 
  (4) Such demotion shall not preclude the agency from seeking to discipline 
the employee for just cause based upon specific acts of misconduct. 

SECTION 5 – Relocation Allowance 
An employee who is promoted and required by agency policy to relocate his residence 

shall be granted time off with pay for one (1) workday for this purpose.  In addition, the 
employee shall be granted travel time to the new location based on the most direct route. No 
employee will be credited with more than the number of hours in the employee's regular 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 10  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
February 5, 2013 

Page 3 of 3 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

workday and such time shall not be counted as hours worked for the purpose of computing 
compensatory time or overtime. 

SECTION 6 – Grievability 
(A) The provisions of this Article may be grieved in accordance with Article 6, up to 

and including Step 3 of the Grievance Procedure, which decision shall be final and binding. 
(B) If the Step 3 authority in the Department of Management Services determines that 

the standard selection process was not followed in filling a promotional vacancy, he shall have 
the authority, among other remedies, to order that the promotion be rescinded and direct that the 
promotion be conducted in accordance with the standard selection process. 

 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 13  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 25, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

Article 13 
SAFETY 

SECTION 1 – Safety Committee 
(A) It shall be the policy of the state to make every reasonable effort to provide 

employees a safe and healthy working environment. 
(B) Where management has created a safety committee in a state-controlled facility, 

the employees shall select at least one person at the facility to serve on such committee. 
(C) Where management has not established a safety committee both the state and 

Union shall work toward the establishment of one in each state-controlled facility.  

SECTION 2 – Employee Safety 
(A) An employee who becomes aware of a work-related accident shall immediately 

notify the supervisor of the area where the incident occurred. 
(B) When an employee believes that an unsafe working condition exists in the work 

area, the employee shall immediately report the condition to the supervisor.  The supervisor shall 
investigate the report and make a reasonable effort to take action deemed appropriate.  

SECTION 3 – Grievability  
Complaints which arise under the application or interpretation of this Article shall be 

grievable, but only up to Step 3 of the grievance procedure of the Agreement.  

SECTION 4 – Communicable Diseases 
(A) In institutions, centers, and units in which inmates and/or patients with AIDS or 

other communicable diseases are isolated due to their condition, employees entering such areas 
shall have such protective wear and equipment made available to them as is made available to 
health care employees working in that area. 

(B) Employees shall not be required to handle, examine, or test materials from the 
human body of inmates, offenders, or clients under their supervision except in accordance with 
the rules and regulations of the agency regarding the handling and testing of such materials. 

(C) The agencies shall make available to employees a procedure to screen for 
tuberculosis (PPD SKIN TEST).   Alternatively, the employee may at his own cost, have such 
test performed by a private physician and provide the results of the test to the agency. 

SECTION 5 – Correctional Probation Officer Safety 
Correctional probation officers, upon the approval of their immediate supervisor, shall be 

provided with the following safety equipment: bulletproof vest, a hand-held radio, or a cellular 
telephone. An officer may be authorized to carry a firearm while on duty in accordance with 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 13  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 25, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

Rules of the Department of Corrections, Chapter 33-302.104, Florida Administrative Code, as 
amended February 13, 2012.   

SECTION 6 – Personal Weapons 
  (A) The Department of Corrections may, upon written request, provide weapons 
lockers to employees who are also employed outside the Department as an auxiliary police 
officer or deputy and are required to carry these weapons to perform their duties.  

(B) The Department of Corrections authorizes employees to carry one handgun to 
work in private vehicles and park such vehicles on the department grounds provided the handgun 
is secured in the vehicle and maintained in a standard handgun lockbox in accordance with the 
following: 

(1) Only one handgun per vehicle/per lockbox. 
(2) The handgun must be stored in a lockbox that is designed to hold a 

handgun and can be locked; an empty ammunition box or metal coin box, or a glove 
compartment are not lockboxes for this purpose. 

(3) The doors and windows of the vehicle must lock if the lockbox is kept in 
the cab of the vehicle.  If the cab of the vehicle can be accessed from the trunk, the trunk must 
lock.  The trunk must be locked at all times. 

(4) The lockbox cannot be placed in a metal toolbox on a truck. 
(5) For convertibles, the lockbox must be placed in the trunk.  If the vehicle is 

a Jeep or similar vehicle, with no top and no trunk, the officer cannot carry a handgun. 
 (C) Only the ammunition necessary to load the handgun to capacity will be allowed in 
the lockbox.  It is the officer’s choice whether the handgun is loaded or the ammunition is 
separate, but both must be in the lockbox and locked. 

(D) At no time will the employee leave the vehicle unlocked while the handgun is in 
the vehicle and parked on state grounds. 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 18 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 9, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

Article 18 
LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

SECTION 1 – Leaves 
The parties specifically agree that the attendance and leave provisions as contained in 

Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code, including the accrual, usage, and payment of sick 
and annual leave upon separation from Career Service employment shall apply to all employees. 

SECTION 2 – Negotiation Committee 
(A) The Union may designate certain employees within this unit to serve as its 

Negotiation Committee, and such employees will be granted administrative leave to attend 
negotiating sessions with the state.  An employee serving on the Negotiation Committee shall 
also be granted a maximum of eight (8) hours administrative leave to attend a negotiation 
preparatory meeting to be held the calendar day immediately preceding each scheduled 
negotiation session, provided that the negotiation preparatory meeting is held on what would 
otherwise be the employee’s normal workday.  No employee shall be credited with more than the 
number of hours in the employee's regular workday for any day the employee is in negotiations.  
The total number of hours, including the hours spent in negotiation preparatory meetings, paid all 
employees on the Union’s Negotiation Committee shall not exceed one thousand (1000) hours. 
The time in attendance at such preparatory meetings and negotiating sessions shall not be 
counted as hours worked for the purpose of computing compensatory time or overtime.  The 
agency shall not reimburse the employee for travel, meals, lodging, or any expense incurred in 
connection with attendance at preparatory meetings or negotiating sessions. 

(B) No more than two (2) employees shall be selected from the same work unit at any 
one time, nor shall the selection of any employee unduly hamper the operations of the work unit. 

SECTION 3 – Union Activities 
Employees shall have the right to request leave without pay, annual, or compensatory 

leave for the purpose of attending Union conventions, conferences, and meetings.  When such 
requests cannot be granted, the supervisor shall provide such denial in writing. 
 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 23  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 25, 2013 

Page 1 of 4 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

Article 23 
HOURS OF WORK/OVERTIME 

SECTION 1 – Hours of Work and Overtime 
(A) The normal workweek for each full-time employee shall be 40 hours unless the 

employee is on an agency-established extended work period. Except for emergency 
circumstances, the normal work day for the Department of Corrections is eight (8) hours, ten 
(10) hours for its employees assigned to public or Department of Transportation work squads, or 
twelve (12) hours; the normal workday for Department of Corrections’ employees assigned to 
public or Department of Transportation work squads is ten (10) hours. The parties agree that the 
issue of the hours in a normal work day for Department of Corrections’ employees may be a 
subject of negotiation at any time during the term of this agreement. 

(B) Management retains the right to schedule its employees; however, the state will 
make a good faith effort, whenever practical, to provide employees with consecutive hours in the 
workday and consecutive days in the workweek. 

(C) Work beyond the normal workweek shall be recognized in accordance with the 
provisions of Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code. 

(D) Management retains the right to approve time off for its employees. However, the 
state will make a good faith effort, whenever practical, to allow employees to use compensatory 
leave credits as requested by the employee. Failure to approve an employee's specific request for 
time off.  Failure to approve such requests shall not be grievable under the provisions of Article 6 
of this Agreement.   

(E) The state agrees that the assignment of overtime is not to be made on the basis of 
favoritism.  In any case where an employee has reason to believe that overtime is being assigned 
on the basis of favoritism, the employee shall have the right to the grievance procedure under 
Article 6 herein, to Step 3 of the procedure. 

(F) The Union agrees to support those changes in Rule 60L-34, Florida 
Administrative Code that may be required in order for the state to be in compliance with the Fair 
Labor Standards Act as it is applied to public employees. 

SECTION 2 – Work Schedules, Vacation and Holiday Schedules 
(A) When regular work schedules are changed, employees' normal work schedules, 

showing each employee's shift, workdays, and hours, will be posted no less than 14 calendar 
days in advance, and will reflect at least a two (2) workweek schedule; however, the state will 
make a good faith effort to reflect a one (1) month schedule.  In the event an employee’s shift, 
workdays or hours are changed while the employee is on approved leave, the agency will make a 
good faith effort to notify the employee of the change at his home. With prior written notification 
of at least three (3) workdays to the employee's immediate supervisor, employees may agree to 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 23  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 25, 2013 

Page 2 of 4 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

exchange days or shifts on a temporary basis.  If the immediate supervisor objects to the 
exchange of workdays or shifts, the employee initiating the notification shall be advised that the 
exchange is disapproved. 

(B) For shifts, and shift changes the following shall apply: 
(1) In the Department of Children and Families where practical, shifts, shift 

changes, and regular days off shall be scheduled with due regard for the needs of the agency, 
seniority, and employee preference.  The state and the Union understand that there may be times 
when the needs of the agency will not permit such scheduling; however, when an employee’s 
shift and/or regular days off are changed, the agency will make a good faith effort to keep the 
employee on the new shift or regular days off for a minimum of 12 months unless otherwise 
requested by the employee. 

(2) For the Department of Corrections, shifts, shift changes, and regular days 
off shall be scheduled primarily to meet the needs of the agency, with due regard for employee 
seniority, work history, and preference.  Management is responsible for the assignment to and 
from administrative shift positions.  The Department of Corrections, whenever practical, will try 
to offset an officer’s additional work hours in conjunction with his regular days off.   

(C) When an employee is not assigned to a rotating shift and the employee's regular 
shift assignment is being changed, the state will schedule the employee to be off work for a 
minimum of two shifts between the end of the previous shift assignment and the beginning of the 
new shift assignment. 

(D) Where practical, vacation and holiday leave shall be scheduled at least 60 days in 
advance of such leave. Time off for vacations and holidays, when the holiday is a regularly 
scheduled workday for the employee, will be scheduled with due regard for the needs of the 
agency, seniority, and employee preference.  In implementing this provision, nothing shall 
preclude an agency from making reasonable accommodations for extraordinary leave requests as 
determined by the agency, or ensuring the fair distribution of leave during holidays.  For the 
Department of Corrections, annual leave requests and approvals for correctional officers shall be 
in accordance with procedure 602.030.    

(E) Correctional probation officers (excluding community control officers) who carry 
a regular caseload may be required to work a maximum of 16 hours per month outside the 
normal 8 a.m. to 5 p.m., Monday through Friday schedule. The 16 hours may be broken down 
into no less than two-hour or more than eight-hour segments. Officers may schedule their field 
time in the morning, evening, Saturday or Sunday, or in any combination thereof.  Officers may 
also volunteer to schedule more than 16 hours of field work in a month.  Officers must receive 
prior approval from their supervisor before implementing their work schedule.   

(F) A complaint concerning this Section may be grieved in accordance with Article 6 
of this Agreement up to and including Step 3.  The decision of the Step 3 Management 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 23  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 25, 2013 

Page 3 of 4 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

Representative shall be final and binding on all parties. 

SECTION 3 – Rest Periods 
(A) No supervisor shall unreasonably deny an employee a 15 minute rest period 

during each four (4) hour work shift.  Whenever possible, such rest periods shall be scheduled at 
the middle of the work shift.   However, it is recognized that many positions have a post of duty 
assignment that requires coverage for a full eight-hour shift, which would not permit the 
employee to actually leave his post.  In those cases, it is recognized that the employee can "rest" 
while the employee physically remains in the geographic location of his duty post. 

(B) An employee may not accumulate unused rest periods, nor shall rest periods be 
authorized for covering an employee's late arrival on duty or early departure from duty. 

SECTION 4 – Court Appearances 
If a correctional officer or institutional security specialist is subpoenaed to appear as a 

witness in a job-related court case, not during the employee's regularly assigned shift, the 
correctional officer or institutional security specialist shall be granted a minimum of two hours 
pay at his straight-time hourly rate.   In all other respects, such appearances shall be governed by 
the provisions of Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code. 

SECTION 5 – Non-Required Work Time 
Employees shall not be required to volunteer time to the state. 

SECTION 6 – Special Compensatory Leave  
(A)  Earning of Special Compensatory Leave Credits.  Special compensatory leave 

credits may be earned only in the following instances: 
  (1) By an employee in the career service for work performed on a holiday as 
defined in section 110.117, Florida Statutes, or for work performed during a work period that 
includes a holiday, as provided by the Rules of the State Personnel System. 
  (2) By an employee in the career service for work performed in the 
employee’s assigned office, facility, or region which is closed pursuant to an Executive Order of 
the Governor or any other disaster or emergency condition. 

 (B) Special Compensatory Leave Earned Prior to July 1, 2012 
(1) Despite the fact that previous collective bargaining agreements only 

permitted employees to accumulate a maximum of 240 hours of special compensatory leave 
credits, certain employees may have earned hours prior to July 1, 2012 in excess of that amount. 
Nothing in this agreement is intended to address the validity or invalidity of special 
compensatory leave credits above 240 hours earned prior to July 1, 2012. 

(2) An employee may be required to reduce special compensatory leave credit 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 23  

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 25, 2013 

Page 4 of 4 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

balances.  Where an employee is required to reduce special compensatory time, the employee 
shall be provided seven (7) days’ notice of such leave.  Such required leave shall be scheduled at 
a minimum of eight (8) hour increments if such hours are available. 
 (C)  Special Compensatory Leave Earned On or After July 1, 2012 
  (1) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection 
(A)(1), on or after July 1, 2012, which are not used each year by the April 30 or October 31 that 
immediately succeeds the work period in which the leave is credited, whichever date occurs 
earlier, shall be forfeited. 
  (2) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection 
(A)(2), on or after July 1, 2012, which are not used within 120 calendar days from the end of the 
work period in which the leave is credited shall be forfeited. 
  (3) Each agency shall schedule employees earning special compensatory leave 
credits in a manner that allows all such leave credits earned on or after July 1, 2012, to be used 
within the time limits specified in subsections 1 and 2.  However, if scheduling such leave within 
such time limits would prevent the agency from meeting minimum staffing requirements needed 
to ensure public safety, the agency head may extend the time limits specified in subsections 1 
and 2 for up to an additional 180 calendar days.  Extensions will not be allowed for any other 
reason. 
  (4) No agency may make a payout of unused special compensatory leave 
earned on or after July 1, 2012. 
 (D) Unless otherwise prohibited by law or rule, all requests for use of approved leave, 
other than administrative leave, shall first be charged to any special compensatory leave credits 
the employee has accrued.  

SECTION 7 – Compulsory Disability Leave 
An agency may require an employee to use earned leave credits to cover the period 

between the agency’s determination that the employee may be unable to perform assigned duties 
and the results of an agency-ordered medical examination.  The medical examination shall be in 
accordance with the provisions of Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code.  If the medical 
examination confirms that the employee is able to perform assigned duties, any earned leave 
required to be used by the employee prior to the results of the medical examination shall be 
restored.  If the employee is placed in non-pay status due to a lack of earned leave credits, the 
employee may be paid as if he had worked; however, requests for such payment shall be 
considered by the agency on a case-by-case basis. 
 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 25 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 30, 2013 

Page 1 of 4 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

Article 25 
WAGES 

SECTION 1 – Pay Provisions – General 
(A) Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 General 

Appropriations Act.  
(B) Increases to base rate of pay and salary additives shall be in accordance with state 

law and the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 General Appropriations Act.   

SECTION 2 – Unemployment Rate Incentive 
 In recognition of reducing the unemployment rate from December 2010 to December 
2012, the Governor’s Budget Recommendations provide for a one-time, non-discretionary, 
$1,200 lump sum bonus award, plus applicable taxes, to eligible employees.  Eligibility 
requirements are set forth in Section 8 – Salaries and Benefits – Fiscal Year 2013-2014 of the 
Governor’s Recommendations.  The awards shall be paid to eligible employees no later than 
August 30, 2013, and are subject to funding as provided in the 2013-2014 General 
Appropriations Act. 

SECTION 3 – Variable Compensation Award 
 The Governor’s Budget Recommendations provide for discretionary, one-time lump sum 
interim variable compensation awards to eligible employees achieving high job performance as 
evidenced by the employee’s performance evaluation period ending during the period July 1, 
2012 through June 30, 2013.  Awards for Outstanding and Commendable performance will be 
$5,000 and $2,500, respectively, plus applicable taxes.  Eligibility requirements are set forth in 
Section 8 – Salaries and Benefits – Fiscal Year 2013-2014 of the Governor’s Recommendations. 
The awards shall be paid to eligible employees no later than September 30, 2013, and are subject 
to funding as provided in the 2013-2014 General Appropriations Act. 

SECTION 4 – Recidivism Reduction Incentive 
 The Governor’s Budget Recommendations provide for one-time, non-discretionary, lump 
sum bonus awards to eligible employees in the Department of Corrections in recognition of a 
decrease in Florida’s recidivism rate over the past two years, saving more than $44 million in 
prison costs.  Awards to eligible Department employees will be $1,000, plus applicable taxes. 
Eligibility requirements are set forth in Section 8 – Salaries and Benefits – Fiscal Year 2013-
2014 of the Governor’s Recommendations.  The awards shall be paid to eligible employees no 
later than July 31, 2013, and are subject to funding as provided in the 2013-2014 General 
Appropriations Act. 

 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 25 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 30, 2013 

Page 2 of 4 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

SECTION 5 – Other Pay Provisions – Department of Corrections  
 The following provisions shall apply to all appointments of Department of Corrections’ 
employees to positions allocated to classifications or broadband levels listed in Appendix A of 
the Agreement, regardless of whether the appointee is a newly-hired employee or currently 
employed in another class series or occupational level in the State Personnel System. The pay 
grades and rates of pay shall be determined in accordance with the Schedule of Salary Ranges of 
the Career Service Pay Plan. An employee receiving an original, promotion, reassignment, 
transfer, or demotion appointment shall have a base rate of pay equal to an amount within the 
pay range, subject to the following: 
 (A)  Initial Appointment 
 The following shall apply to all employees who are appointed to a position with 
probationary status: 
  (1)  Persons appointed to a position prior to being certified by the Criminal 
Justice Standards and Training Commission will be employed at a biweekly base rate of pay at 
the established trainee rate 10% below the minimum for the class or broadband level to which 
the appointment is made. 
  (2)  Upon being certified by the Criminal Justice Standards and Training 
Commission, the employee shall be placed at the minimum of the appropriate pay grade for the 
class or broadband level to which appointed, effective the date of certification. Appointments 
above the minimum may be approved by the Agency Head or designee. 
  (3)  Persons holding a current Certificate of Completion for basic recruit 
training issued by the Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission at the time of 
appointment will have their biweekly base rate of pay established at the minimum of the  pay 
grade for the class or broadband level to which the appointment is made. 
  (4)  The probationary period shall be 12 months for any employee appointed to 
a position with probationary status. 
  (5)  Time spent as a trainee prior to receiving a Certification of Completion 
shall not be counted toward completion of the probationary period. 
 (B)  Pay upon Promotion Appointment 

When promoted the employee shall receive a minimum of five percent (5%) above the 
employee's base rate of pay in the lower class or broadband level, contingent upon funds being 
available, or to the minimum of the higher pay grade, whichever is greater at the time of 
promotion. An exception to this provision shall be when the employee is demoted and 
subsequently promoted back to the former classification or broadband level, or to a classification 
assigned to the same broadband level in the Security Services Unit, within the succeeding 12 
months, in which case the employee shall receive the same amount upon increase as was 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 25 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 30, 2013 

Page 3 of 4 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

received when demoted. The Agency Head may, at his discretion, grant the employee up to an 
additional five percent (5%) at the time of promotion. In no case shall the employee be paid 
below the minimum for the class or broadband level.   
 (C)  Pay upon Demotion Appointment 

When demoted the employee's biweekly base rate of pay in the lower class or broadband 
level shall be determined in accordance with the following: 
  (1)  If the employee is demoted before satisfactorily completing the 
probationary period for the current position, and attaining permanent status, the employee's base 
rate of pay in the lower class/broadband level shall be determined in the same manner as an 
initial appointment. 
  (2)  If the employee attained permanent status in a bargaining unit position 
prior to promotion, and is demoted before satisfactorily completing the probationary period for 
the higher class/broadband level, the employee's base rate of pay shall be reduced to the amount 
the employee was being paid when promoted. 
  (3)  If the employee is demoted after satisfactorily completing the probationary 
period for the higher class/broadband level, the employee's base rate of pay shall be reduced to 
the amount the employee was being paid when promoted. The employee’s pay in the lower pay 
grade shall be at the discretion of the Agency Head or designee. Normally, the employee's base 
rate of pay will be reduced to the same amount the employee was paid when promoted. 
However, in no case shall the employee's base rate of pay in the lower class/broadband level 
exceed the employee's base rate of pay in the higher class/broadband level, nor shall the 
employee be placed at an amount within the lower pay grade which is less than the employee 
was being paid at the time of the promotion. 

SECTION 6 – Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency 
 In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2013-14 General 
Appropriations Act, and contingent upon the availability of funds and at the agency head’s 
discretion, each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15 
percent of the employee’s base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or 
area closed due to emergency conditions from another area of the state that is not closed. 

SECTION 7– Cash Payout of Annual Leave 
 Permanent Career Service employees may be given the option of receiving up to 24 hours 
of unused annual leave each December, in the form of a cash payout subject to, and in 
accordance with, section 110.219(7), Florida Statutes. 

 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 25 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 30, 2013 

Page 4 of 4 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

SECTION 8 – Performance Pay  
 Each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee’s 
exemplary performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 
60L-35, Florida Administrative Code. 

SECTION 9 – Savings Sharing Program 
 An employee or groups of employees may be eligible for monetary awards for ideas or 
programs that result in a cost saving to the state, pursuant to section 110.1245(1), Florida 
Statutes. 

SECTION 10 – Pay Subject to General Appropriations Act 
 In the event the 2013 Legislature provides different funding or eligibility provisions for 
the above-specified pay increases and payments, the State and the Union agree that such 
increases and payments shall be administered in accordance with the provisions of the Fiscal 
Year 2013-2014 General Appropriations Act, and any other relevant statutes.   



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 26 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 9, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

Article 26 
UNIFORM AND INSIGNIA 

SECTION 1 – Uniform and Insignia for Correctional Officers and Institutional Security 
Specialists 
  Correctional officers and institutional security specialists, where applicable, shall receive 
a standard issue of uniforms and uniform accessories.  The state shall provide uniforms for its 
female correctional officers and institutional security specialists in the appropriate sizes, 
designed and cut for females.   

SECTION 2 – Uniform Maintenance Allowance for Correctional Officers and Institutional 
Security Specialists 

The state will provide unit correctional officers and institutional security specialists who 
are furnished and required to wear a uniform, a maintenance allowance in the amount of $250.00 
annually, unless laundry and dry cleaning facilities are available and the service is furnished by 
the agency without cost to the employee; in addition, such correctional officers and institutional 
security specialists shall receive a shoe allowance in the amount of $75.00 annually.  

SECTION 3 – Badges 
(A) Correctional officers and correctional probation officers shall be issued badges 

according to the following specifications: 
(1) Badges issued to correctional officers below the rank of lieutenant shall be 

silver metal, black lettering and pre-numbered. These badges shall be worn on the officers’ 
uniforms in a manner consistent with department policy and procedures. 

(2) Badges issued to correctional officers at the rank of lieutenant and above 
shall be gold metal, black lettering and pre-numbered. These badges shall be worn on the 
officers’ uniforms in a manner consistent with department policy and procedures. 

(3) Badges issued to correctional probation officers shall be police size.  
These badges shall be carried in badge cases and in accordance with department procedure. 

(B) Correctional officers are only authorized to wear issued badges with the 
correctional officer class "A" or "C" uniform, and only while performing official duties, or while 
in uniform and traveling to or returning from their official duty station. 

(C) The use of an issued badge as a credential for personal purposes is prohibited. 
(D) Issued badges are considered state property and, except for retirement under 

specific conditions or death in the line of duty, are to be returned upon an employee’s 
termination of employment with the department or removal from a position in the Security 
Services Unit. Only badges, which are issued by the department, shall be used to conduct 
officially designated duties.  Employees shall be responsible for reimbursing the department for 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 26 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 9, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

any issued badge which is lost. 
(E) Correctional officers and correctional probation officers who retire from the 

department under honorable conditions from the Florida Retirement System, including 
retirement under medical disability, shall be authorized to retain their issued badge. 

(F) The badge of a correctional officer or a correctional probation officer who is 
killed in the line of duty shall be presented to the employee’s next of kin. 

(G) Upon request, correctional officers and correctional probation officers who are 
promoted or transferred to other positions may retain their badge if they are in good standing 
with the department and pay the cost of the badge. 
 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 27 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 9, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

Article 27 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

The state agrees to administer the State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan in 
accordance with any statutory provision or Act affecting the plan or its operation. 
 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 28 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 9, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

Article 28 
TRAVEL EXPENSES 

With the prior approval of the Agency Head, travel expenses of employees incurred in 
the performance of a public purpose authorized by law will be paid in accordance with section 
112.061, Florida Statutes.  The state will make a good faith effort to pay travel vouchers within 
30 days after they have been properly completed and submitted.  Vouchers are considered 
submitted when the employee submits them to the local official designated by management to 
receive such vouchers. 
 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 30 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 9, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

Article 30 
VACANT 

 



Teamsters/Security Services Unit  
State Proposal – Article 32 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-14 
January 25, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State       For the Teamsters 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Michael Mattimore      Kari Seime 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator     Chief Negotiator  
                                                                                                                                                                            
____________________      ____________________                                                  
Date        Date 

Article 32 
      ENTIRE AGREEMENT        

SECTION 1 – Agreement 
(A) This Agreement supersedes and cancels all prior practices and agreements, 

whether written or oral, unless expressly stated to the contrary herein, and constitutes the 
complete and entire agreement between the parties, and concludes collective bargaining for its 
term. 

(B) The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which resulted in this 
Agreement, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with 
respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining, and 
that the understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right 
and opportunity are set forth in this Agreement.   

 (C) Except as to the above subjects, t The state and the Union, for the duration of this 
Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right, and each agrees that the other 
shall not be obligated, to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter referred to, or 
covered in this Agreement, even though such subjects or matters may not have been within the 
knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated or signed 
this Agreement.  

SECTION 2 – Memorandum of Understanding/Settlements 
The parties recognize that during the term of this Agreement, situations may arise which 

require terms and conditions not specifically and clearly set forth in the Agreement to be 
clarified or amended.  Under such circumstances, the Union is specifically authorized by 
employees to enter into the settlement of grievance disputes or memorandums of understanding 
which clarify or amend this Agreement without having to be ratified by employees. 
 
 



Teamsters Local 2011 Proposal
12.03.12

Article 3
DUES DEDUCTION

(A) During the term of this Agreement, the state; by and through its respective
agencies, agrees to deduct Union membership dues and uniform assessments, if any, in an
amount established by the Union and certified in writing by the President of the Union, or his
designee to the state, from the pay ofthose employees in the bargaining units who individually
make such request on a written check~offauthorization form provided by the Union (Appendix
B). Such deduction will be made by the agency when other payroll deductions are made and will
begin with the pay for the first full pay period following receipt of the authorization by the
agency.

(B) The Union shall advise the state of any uniform assessment of increase in dues in
writing at least thirty (30) days prior to its effective date.

(C) This Article applies only to the deduction ofmembership dues and uniform
assessments, if any, and shall not apply to the collection of any fmes, penalties, or special
assessments

(0) Employee organization dues deduction will be provided for the certified
bargaining agent only

SECTION 2 - Remittance

Deductions ofdues and uniform assessments, if any, shall be remitted exclusively to the
President of the Teamsters Local 2011 or his designee, by the respective agencies on either a
biweekly or monthly cycle along with a list containing names, social security numbers, agency
division, district, institution, and amount deducted, of the employees for whom the remittance is
made

SECTION 3 - Insufficient Pay for Deduction

In the event an employee's salary is earnings within any pay period, after deductions for
withholding social security, retirement, and insurance, are not sufficient to cover dues and any
uniform assessments, it will be the responsibility of the Union to collect its dues and uniform
assessments for that pay period directly from the employee.

SECTION 4 - Termination of Deduction

Deductions for Union dues and/or uniform assessments shall continue until either: (1)
revoked by the employee providing the state and the Union with thirty (30) days written notice
that he is terminating the prior check-off authorization; (2) revoked pursuant to Section 447.507,
Florida Statutes; (3) the termination ofemployment; or (4) the transfer, promotion, or demotion
of the employee out of this bargaining unit. If these deductions are continued when any of the
above situations occur, the Association shall, upon notice of the error, reimburse the employee
for the deduction that were improperly withheld.

SECTION 5 - Identification



Teamsters Local 2011 Proposal
12.03.12

The Union shall indemnify, defend and hold the State of Florida, its officers, officials,
agents, and employees, harmless against any claim, demand, suit, or liability (monetary or
otherwise) and for all legal costs arising from any action taken or not taken by the State, its
officials, agents and employees in complying with this Article. The Union shall promptly refund
to the state any ftmds received in accordance with this Article, which are in excess of the amount
of dues and/or uniform assessments, which the state or its agencies have agreed to deduct.

SECTION 6 - Processing the Dues Check-offAuthorization Form
D

(A) The Dues Check-off Authorization Form (Appendix·HJ supplied by the
Association shall: (1) be in strict conformance with Appendix B; (2) be the only form used by
bargaining unit employees who wish to initiate dues deduction; (3) contain all the information
required for processing prior to submission to the state.

(B) Changes in the Dues Check-off Authorization Forms required by (A) above will
not affect deductions authorized by forms that the parties have previously agreed to.

(C) Forms that are: (1) incorrectly filled out or do not contain all the information
necessary for payroll processing, (2) postdated, or (3) submitted to the state more than sixty (60)
days following the date of the employee's signature will be returned to the Union.



Teamsters Local 2011 

Proposal – Article 4 

February 4, 2013 

Article 4 

WORKPLACE BEHAVIOR/NO DISCRIMINATION 

 

SECTION 1-Non-Discrimination Policy -State-Federal Law  

(A) The state and the Union shall not discriminate against any employee for any 

reason prohibited under Florida Statutes or any federal law. 

(B) The Union shall have the right to consult on issues of unlawful discrimination 

with the Step 1 Management Representative and/or designee(s), up through the Step 2 

Management Representative and/or designee(s), to the Department of Management Services.  

(C) Any claim of unlawful discrimination by an employee against the state, its 

officials or representatives, except for grievances related to Union membership, shall only be 

subject to the method of review prescribed by law or by rules and regulations having the force 

and effect of law.  

(D) The Union agrees to support the state's current affirmative action programs and 

efforts to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  

 

SECTION 2 -Non-Discrimination Policy -Union Membership  

Neither the state nor the Union shall interfere with the right of employees covered by this 

Agreement to become or refrain from becoming members of the Union, and neither the state nor 

the Union shall discriminate against an employee because of membership or non-membership in 

any employee organization.  

SECTION 3 - Workplace Behavior 

(A) The state and the Union agree that all employees should work in an environment that 

fosters mutual respect and professionalism. The parties agree that inappropriate behavior in the 

workplace does not further an agency’s business needs, employee well-being or productivity. All 

employees are responsible for contributing to such an environment and are expected to treat 

others with dignity and respect. 

(B) Inappropriate workplace behavior by employees, supervisors and/or managers will 

not be tolerated. This Section is not subject to the grievance procedure in Article 6; however, if 

an employee believes he or she has been subjected to inappropriate behavior, the employee is 

encouraged to report this behavior to the Human Resources Office in writing, on the designated 

form.   



Teamsters Local 2011 

Proposal – Article 5 

February 4, 2013 

1 

 

Article 5  

UNION ACTIVITIES AND EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATION  

 

SECTION 1 - Definitions  

(A) The term "employee" as used in this Agreement, shall mean an employee included in 

the bargaining unit represented by the Union.  

(B) The term "Grievance Representative," as used in this Agreement, shall mean an 

employee designated by the President of the Union to investigate grievances at the Oral Step and 

to represent a grievant at the Oral Step and Step 1 meetings on grievances which have been 

properly filed under Article 6 of this Agreement, when the Union has been selected as the 

employee's representative. 

(C) The term “Training Academies,” as used in this Article, shall mean any location 

where training is conducted to meet certification requirement.  

 

SECTION 2 - Designation of Employee Representatives  

(A) The President of the Union shall furnish to the state and keep up-to-date a list of 

Union Staff Representatives Business Agents. The state will not recognize any person as a Staff 

Representative Business Agents whose name does not appear on the list.  

(B) The Union shall select a reasonable number of employees to be Union Grievance 

Representatives Stewards. The Union shall furnish the state the name, official class title, name of 

employing agency, and specific work location of each employee designated to act as a Grievance 

Representative Union Steward. The state shall not recognize an employee as an authorized 

Grievance Representative Union Steward until such information has been received from the 

Union.  

(C)  Union Business Agents and Stewards may represent employees as Grievance 

Representatives. 

 

SECTION 3 - Bulletin Boards  

 

(A) Where requested in writing, the state agrees to furnish in state-controlled facilities to 

which employees are assigned, wall space not to exceed 4'x4' for Union-purchased bulletin 

boards of an equal size. Such bulletin boards will be placed at a state facility in an area normally 

accessible to, and frequented by, employees. Once a location has been established, it shall not be 

moved without notice. Where the Union currently maintains bulletin boards or bulletin board 

space, that practice shall continue.  

(B) The use of Union bulletin board space is limited to the following notices:  

(I) Recreational and social affairs of the Union  

(2) Union meetings  

(3) Union elections  

(4) Reports of Union committees  

(5) Union benefit programs  

(6) Current Union Agreement  

(7) Training and educational opportunities  

(8) Decisions reached through consultation meetings, as approved by the 

Department of Management Services  

(9) Notices of wage increases for covered employees  



Teamsters Local 2011 

Proposal – Article 5 

February 4, 2013 

2 

 

(C) Materials posted on these bulletin boards shall not contain anything, which violates or 

has the effect of violating any law, rule, or regulation, nor shall any posted material contain 

anything reflecting adversely on the state or any of its officers or employees.  

(D) Postings must be dated and bear the signature of an authorized Union representative 

Business Agent or Steward.  

(E) A violation of these provisions by a Union Staff Representative Business Agent, 

Steward or an authorized representative shall be a basis for removal of bulletin board privileges 

for that representative by the Department of Management Services.  

 

SECTION 4 - Information  

(A) Upon request of the President of the Union or designee, the state will, on no more 

than on a quarterly basis, provide the Union with a list giving the name, home address on file, 

classification title, and gross salary for each employee. This list will be prepared on the basis of 

the latest information on file at the time the list is prepared. Where employee lists are fully 

available at no cost to non-public entities, they shall be made available to the President of the 

Union upon written request, at no cost.  

(B) The Union agrees that the home addresses and telephone numbers of employees shall 

remain confidential pursuant to section 119.07, Florida Statutes. The Union will not disclose the 

home addresses and telephone numbers of employees to third parties including, but not limited 

to, sale of the information to other persons or parties.  

(C) Upon request and receipt of payment, the state shall provide accredited 

representatives information, documents, or other public records for the investigation of an 

employee's grievance.  

 

 

SECTION 5 - Occupation Profiles and Rules  

(A) The state will maintain on the Department of Management Services' website the 

occupation profiles and the Rules of the State Personnel System.  

(B) In instances where the state determines that a revision to an occupation profile or 

occupational level for positions covered by this Agreement is needed, the Department of 

Management Services shall notify the Union in writing of the proposed changes. This procedure 

shall not constitute a waiver of the Union's right to bargain over such matters in accordance with 

Chapter 447, Part II, Florida Statutes and applicable law. The Union shall notify the Department 

of Management Services, in writing within 10 calendar days of its receipt of written notification 

from the Department, of its comments concerning the proposed changes, or of its desire to 

discuss the proposed change(s). Failure of the Union to notify the Department of Management 

Services within this specified period shall constitute a waiver of the right to discuss the 

change(s).  

 

SECTION 6 - Representative Access  

(A) The state agrees that accredited representatives of the Union shall have access to the 

premises of the state which are available to the public.  

(B) If any area of the state's premises is restricted to the public, permission must be 

requested to enter such areas and such permission will not be unreasonably denied. Such access 

shall be during the regular working hours of the employee and shall be to investigate an 



Teamsters Local 2011 

Proposal – Article 5 

February 4, 2013 

3 

 

employee's grievance.  

(C) Upon request and receipt of payment, the state shall provide accredited 

representatives information, documents, or other public records for the investigation of an 

employee's grievance.  

 

SECTION 7 – New Employee Orientation and Training Academies  

 

The Union will be permitted a 15-minute presentation to address new employees at 

orientation and training academies.  The Union may issue each new recruit a copy of the current 

Security Services Agreement, discuss the provisions of the Agreement, and programs available 

through the Union.  A presentation may be made only once per class.  The Union President or 

designee will be notified 14 days in advance of new employee training.   

  

 

SECTION 7 8 - Consultation  

(A) In order to provide a means for continuing communication between the parties and 

upon request of the President of the Union, the Secretary of the Department of Management 

Services and/or his designated representative(s) and not more than three (3) representatives of 

the Union shall make a good faith effort to meet and consult quarterly. Such meetings shall be 

held at a time and place designated by the Department of Management Services.  

(B) Upon request by the designated Union Staff Representative, the Agency Head and/or 

designee(s) and the Staff Representative, with not more than three (3) Union representatives 

from the agency, shall make a good faith effort to meet and consult quarterly. Such meetings 

shall be held at a time and place to be designated by the Agency Head or his designee after 

consulting with the Union Staff Representative.  

(C) Upon request by the designated Union Staff Representative, the Step 1 Management 

Representative and/or designee(s) and the designated Union Staff Representative, with not more 

than two (2) Union representatives from the agency, shall make a good faith effort to meet and 

consult. Such meetings shall be held at a time and place to be designated by the Step 1 

Management Representative after consulting with the Union Staff Representative. A copy of all 

requests shall be served on both the agency and the Union at their principal offices.  

(D) All consultation meetings will be scheduled after giving due consideration to the 

availability and work location of all parties. If a consultation meeting is held or requires 

reasonable travel time during the working hours of an employee participant, such participant 

shall be excused without loss of pay for that purpose. Attendance at a consultation meeting 

outside of regular working hours shall not be deemed time worked.  

(E) The purpose of all consultation meetings shall be to discuss matters relating to the 

administration of this Agreement and agency activities affecting employees. It is understood that 

these meetings shall not be used for the purpose of discussing pending grievances or for 

negotiation purposes. The parties shall exchange agenda indicating the matters they wish to 

discuss no later than seven (7) calendar days prior to the scheduled meeting date.  

(F) An agency shall prepare a written response to issues raised during a consultation 

meeting within 30 days after the date of the meeting.  

SECTION 8 9 - Negotiations  

The Union agrees that all collective bargaining is to be conducted with state 

representatives designated for that purpose by the Governor, as Chief Executive Officer. While 



Teamsters Local 2011 

Proposal – Article 5 

February 4, 2013 

4 

 

negotiating meetings shall normally be held in Tallahassee, the state and the Union may agree to 

meet elsewhere at a state facility or other location which involves no rental cost to the state. 

There shall be no negotiation by the Union at any other level of state government.  

 



Teamsters Local 2011 

Proposal – Article 6  

February 4, 2013 

 

1 

 

Article 6 

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

It is the policy of the state and Union to encourage informal discussions between 

supervisors and employees of employee complaints.  Such discussions should be held with a 

view to reaching an understanding which will resolve the matter in a manner satisfactory to the 

employee and the state, without need for recourse to the formal grievance procedure prescribed 

by this Article. 

SECTION 1 – Definitions 

As used in this Article: 

(A) "Grievance" shall mean a dispute involving the interpretation or application of the 

specific provisions of this Agreement, except as exclusions are noted in this Agreement, filed on 

the appropriate form as contained in Appendix B of this Agreement. 

(B) "Employee" shall mean an employee or a group of employees having the same 

grievance. In the case of a group of employees one employee shall be designated by the group to 

act as spokesperson and to be responsible for processing the grievance. 

(C) "Days" shall mean calendar days, excluding any day observed as a holiday 

pursuant to Section 110.117, Florida Statutes, or holiday observed by the Union pursuant to a list 

furnished to the state in writing, as of the effective date of this Agreement. 

SECTION 2 – Election of Remedy and Representation 

(A) If an employee or the Union has a grievance which may be processed under this 

Article and which may also be appealed to the Public Employees Relations Commission, the 

employee or the Union shall indicate at the time the grievance is reduced to writing which 

procedure is to be used and such decision shall be binding on the employee or the Union.  In the 

case of any duplicate filing, the action first filed will be the one processed. 

(B) An employee who decides to use this grievance procedure shall indicate at the 

Oral Step or initial written step (if authorized by the provisions of this Article) whether he shall 

be represented by the Union.  If the employee is represented by the Union, any decision agreed 

to by the state and Union shall be binding on the employee. 

(C) Where Union representation is requested by an employee, the employee's 

representative shall be selected from the list of Union Grievance Representatives or Union Staff 

Representatives Business Agents which has been provided to the state by the Union.  When an 

employee has been appropriately designated to serve as a Grievance Representative and the state 

has been notified in accordance with Article 5, Section 2 (B), the Grievance Representative shall 

be authorized to investigate grievances and represent grievants in accordance with this Article, 

subject to the following limitations: 

(1) A Grievance Representative will not be allowed time off with pay to 

investigate his own grievance. 

(2) Time spent by a Grievance Representative in investigating a grievance 

shall be the minimum amount of time necessary to perform the specific investigation involved. 

(a) If an employee selects a Grievance Representative to represent him 

in a grievance which has been properly filed in accordance with this Article, the Grievance 

Representative may be allowed a reasonable amount of annual or compensatory leave to 

investigate the grievance at the Oral Step and to represent the grievant at Oral Step and Step 1 



Teamsters Local 2011 

Proposal – Article 6  

February 4, 2013 

 

2 

 

meetings held during regular work hours. Such annual or compensatory leave shall be subject to 

prior approval by the Grievance Representative's immediate supervisor; however, approval of 

such time off will not be withheld if the Grievance Representative can be allowed such time off 

without interfering with, or unduly hampering the operations of the unit to which the Grievance 

Representative is regularly assigned. The Grievance Representative's immediate supervisor will 

notify the grievant's supervisor prior to allowing the Grievance Representative time off to 

investigate the grievance. 

(b) Investigations will be conducted in a way that does not interfere 

with state operations. 

(c) The Grievance Representative must be selected from Grievance 

Representatives within the same work unit as the grievant's work unit. If no Grievance 

Representative is located in the grievant's work unit, the Grievance Representative must be 

selected from the work unit located closest to the grievant's work location.  In no case shall a 

Grievance Representative who is on duty be allowed to travel more than 50 miles from his 

official work location in order to investigate a grievance. Such travel limitation shall not apply 

when the Grievance Representative is not on duty. 

(d) A Grievance Representative selected to represent an employee as 

provided in this Article will be considered a required participant at the Step 1 grievance meeting. 

(D) Both the employee and the employee's representative, if any, shall be notified of 

the Step 1 meeting.  Further, all communication concerning written grievances or their resolution 

shall be in writing, with a copy sent to both the employee and the employee's representative. 

(E) If the employee is not represented by the Union, any adjustment of the grievance 

shall be consistent with the terms of this Agreement. The Union shall be given reasonable 

opportunity to be present at any meeting called for the resolution of the grievance, and 

processing of the grievance will be in accordance with the procedures established in this 

Agreement. The Union shall not be bound by the decision of any grievance in which the 

employee chose not to be represented by the Union. 

(F) The resolution of a grievance prior to its submission in writing at Step 3 shall not 

establish a precedent binding on either the state or the Union in other cases. 

SECTION 3 – Procedures 

(A) Employee grievances filed in accordance with this Article are to be presented and 

handled promptly at the lowest level of supervision having the authority to adjust the grievances.  

Grievances may be filed and responded to by facsimile, electronic mail, mail, or personal 

delivery. 

(B) After a grievance is presented, no new violation or issue can be raised. 

(C) There shall be no reprisals against any of the participants in the procedures 

contained herein by reason of such participation. 

(D) If a grievance meeting is held or requires reasonable travel time during the 

working hours of any required participant, such participant shall be excused without loss of pay 

for that purpose. Attendance at grievance meetings outside of regular working hours shall not be 

deemed time worked. 

(E) Grievances shall be presented and adjusted in the following manner, and no 

individual may respond to a grievance at more than one written step. 

(1) Oral Discussion 



Teamsters Local 2011 

Proposal – Article 6  

February 4, 2013 

 

3 

 

(a) An employee having a grievance may, within 14 days following 

the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance, initiate the grievance by presenting the 

grievance it orally to the Oral Step representative or by filing a written grievance at Step 1. The 

Oral Step representative shall make every effort to resolve the grievance at the Oral Step, 

including meeting to discuss the grievance if such meeting is requested by the employee or the 

employee's representative if a meeting is deemed necessary by the Oral Step representative.  The 

Oral Step representative shall communicate a decision to the employee and the employee's 

representative, if any, within 14 days following the date the grievance is received at the Oral 

Step. 

(b) If the employee elects not to utilize the oral discussion provision of 

this section he may file a written grievance at Step 1, provided such written grievance is filed 

within 14 days following the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance. 

(c b) Failure to communicate the decision within the specified time limit 

shall permit the employee, or the Union where appropriate, to proceed to the next step. 

(d c) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the 

maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits 

specified in any step of this procedure may be extended in writing in any specific instance as 

long as necessary provided there is agreement by both sides. 

(e d) The Oral Step representative for correctional institutions shall be 

the Chief Correctional Officer or designee. The Oral Step representative for community 

corrections shall be the Circuit Administrator, or designee. The Oral Step representative for 

employees in the institutional security specialist series shall be the Security Chief or designee. 

(2) Step 1 

(a) If the employee elects to utilize the oral discussion step and the 

grievance is not resolved, the employee or the designated employee representative may submit it 

in writing to the Step 1 management representative within 14 days following the receipt of the 

oral step decision.  If the employee elects not to utilize the oral discussion provision of this 

section he may file a written grievance at Step 1, provided such written grievance is filed within 

14 days following the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance.  In filing a grievance 

at Step 1, the employee or the designated employee representative shall submit to the Step 1 

Management Representative a grievance form as contained in Appendix B, setting forth 

specifically the complete facts on which the grievance is based, the specific provision or 

provisions of the Agreement allegedly violated, and the relief requested. All written documents 

to be considered by the Step 1 Management Representative shall be submitted with the grievance 

form; however, if additional written documentation is obtained after the grievance is filed, such 

documentation may be presented at the Step 1 meeting. 

(b) The Step 1 Management Representative or designated 

representative shall meet to discuss the grievance and shall communicate a decision in writing to 

the employee and the employee's representative, if any, within 14 days following the date the 

grievance is received at Step 1. 

(c) Failure to communicate the decision within the specified time limit 

shall permit the employee, or the Union where appropriate, to proceed to the next step. 

(d) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the 

maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process.  However, the time limits 

specified in any step of this procedure may be extended in writing in any specific instance as 



Teamsters Local 2011 

Proposal – Article 6  

February 4, 2013 

 

4 

 

long as necessary provided there is agreement by both sides. 

(3) Step 2 

(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the employee or the 

employee's representative may submit it in writing to the Agency Head or designated 

representative within 14 days after receipt of the decision at Step 1. The grievance shall include a 

copy of the grievance form submitted at Step 1 and a copy of the Step 1 response, together with 

all written documents in support of the grievance.  When the grievance is eligible for initiation at 

Step 2, the grievance form must contain the same information as a grievance filed at Step 1 

above. 

(b) The Agency Head or designated representative may meet with the 

employee and/or the designated Union Staff Representative to discuss the grievance. The 

Agency Head or designated representative shall communicate a decision in writing within 21 

days following receipt of the written grievance. 

(c) Failure to communicate the decision within the specified time limit 

shall permit the employee, or the Union where appropriate, to proceed to the next step. 

(d) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the 

maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits 

specified in any step of this procedure may be extended in writing in any specific instance as 

long as necessary provided there is agreement by both sides. 

(4) Step 3  

(a) If a grievance is not resolved at Step 2, the designated Union 

representative, or the employee if not represented by the Union, may appeal the Step 2 decision, 

in writing, to the Department of Management Services within 14 days after receipt of the 

decision at Step 2. The grievance shall include a copy of the grievance form submitted at Steps 1 

and 2, together with all written responses and documents in support of the grievance.  The 

Department of Management Services may meet with the Union President or designated Union 

representative to discuss the grievance.  When the grievance is eligible for initiation at Step 3, 

the grievance form must contain the same information as the grievance filed at Step 1 above. 

(b) The Department of Management Services shall communicate a 

decision in writing to the employee and the Union President or designated Union representative 

within 21 days following receipt of the written grievance. 

(c) Failure to communicate the decision within the specified time limit 

shall permit the employee, or the Union where appropriate, to proceed to the next step. 

(d) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the 

maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process.  However, the time limits 

specified in any step of this procedure may be extended in writing in any specific instance as 

long as necessary provided there is agreement by both sides. 

 (5) Grievance Mediation 

The parties may, by written agreement, submit a grievance to mediation to 

be conducted by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS), either prior to the 

grievance being submitted to arbitration or after it has been submitted but before a hearing is 

scheduled.  When the parties agree to mediate a grievance, the time limits to file for, or process, 

an arbitration are automatically extended for the period necessary to conclude the mediation 

process.  Either party may withdraw from the mediation process with written notice no later than 

five (5) days before a scheduled mediation. 



Teamsters Local 2011 

Proposal – Article 6  

February 4, 2013 

 

5 

 

(6) Arbitration 

(a) If a grievance is not resolved at Step 3, the President of the Union 

or a designated member of his staff, may appeal the grievance to Arbitration on a Request for 

Arbitration Form as contained in Appendix C within 14 days after receipt of the decision at Step 

3.  If, at the initial step, the Union refused to represent the employee because he was not a dues-

paying member of the Union, the employee may appeal the grievance to Arbitration. 

(b) The parties may, by agreement in writing, submit related 

grievances for hearing before the same arbitrator. 

(c) The arbitrator shall be one person from a panel of five (5) 

arbitrators, selected by the state and the Union to serve in rotation for any case or cases 

submitted.  The Department of Management Services shall facilitate the scheduling of all 

arbitration hearings. 

(d) Arbitration hearings shall be held at times and locations agreed to 

by the parties, taking into consideration the availability of evidence, location of witnesses, 

existence of appropriate facilities, and other relevant factors.  If agreement cannot be reached, 

the arbitration hearing shall be held in the City of Tallahassee. 

 (e) The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the 

grievance and, provided the decision is in accordance with his jurisdiction and authority under 

this Agreement, shall be final and binding on the state, the Union, the grievant(s), and the 

employees.  In considering a grievance, the arbitrator shall be governed by the following 

provisions and limitations: 

1. The arbitrator shall issue a decision not later than 30 days 

from the date of the closing of the hearing or the submission of briefs, whichever is later. 

2. The arbitrator's decision shall be in writing, and shall set 

forth the arbitrator's opinion and conclusions on the precise issue(s) submitted. 

3. The arbitrator shall have no authority to determine any 

other issue, and the arbitrator shall refrain from issuing any statement of opinion or conclusion 

not essential to the determination of the issues submitted. 

4.  The arbitrator shall limit the decision strictly to the 

application and interpretation of the specific provisions of this Agreement. 

5.  The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make 

any decisions: 

a. Contrary to or inconsistent with, adding to, subtracting 

from, or modifying, altering or ignoring in any way, the terms of this Agreement, or of 

applicable law or rules or regulations having the force and effect of law; or 

b. Limiting or interfering in any way with the powers, 

duties, and responsibilities of the state under its Constitution, applicable law, and rules and 

regulations having the force and effect of law, except as such powers, duties, and responsibilities 

have been abridged, delegated, or modified by the expressed provisions of this Agreement; or 

c. Which has the effect of restricting the discretion of an 

Agency Head as otherwise granted by law or the Rules of the State Personnel System unless such 

authority is modified by this Agreement; or 

d. That is based solely upon an agency past practice or 

policy unless such agency practice or policy is contrary to law, the Rules of the State Personnel 

System, or this Agreement. 



Teamsters Local 2011 

Proposal – Article 6  

February 4, 2013 

 

6 

 

6. The arbitrator's award may include back pay to the 

grievant(s); however, the following limitations shall apply to such monetary awards. 

a. No award for back pay shall exceed the amount of pay 

the employee would otherwise have earned at his regular rate of pay and such back pay shall not 

be retroactive to a date earlier than the date of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the 

grievance under consideration and in no event more than the time limits permitted for initiation 

of the grievance. 

b. The award shall not exceed the actual loss to the grievant 

and will not include punitive damages. 

(f) The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne solely by the 

party who fails to prevail in the hearing; however, each party shall be responsible for 

compensating and paying the expenses of its own representatives, attorneys and witnesses. 

Should the arbitrator fashion an award in such a manner that the grievance is sustained in part 

and denied in part, the state and Union will evenly split the arbitrator's fee and expenses. 

(g) The Union will not be responsible for costs of an arbitration to 

which it was not a party. 

SECTION 4 – Time Limits 

(A) Failure to initiate or appeal a grievance within the time limits specified shall be 

deemed a waiver of the grievance. 

(B) Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance 

within the specified time limit shall permit the employee, or the Union where appropriate, to 

proceed to the next step.  A Step 2 or Step 3 answer that is not received by the Union by the 

written, agreed-to deadline does not alter the time limits for appealing a grievance to the next 

step. 

(C) Claims of either an untimely filing or untimely appeal shall be made at the step in 

question. 

SECTION 5 – Exceptions 

(A) Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to 

permit the Union or an employee to process a grievance: (1) on behalf of any employee without 

his consent, or (2) when the subject of such (employee's) grievance is, at the same time, the 

subject of an administrative action, an appeal before a governmental board or agency, or a court 

proceeding. 

 (B) All grievances will be presented at the Oral Step or Step 1, with the following 

exceptions: 

(1) If a grievance arises from the action of an official higher than the Step 1 

Management Representative, the grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 or 3 as appropriate, by 

submitting a grievance form as set forth in Step 1 within 14 days following the occurrence of the 

event giving rise to the grievance. 

(2) The Union shall have the right to bring a class action grievance on behalf 

of employees in its own name concerning disputes relating to the interpretation or application of 

this Agreement. Such grievance shall not include disciplinary actions taken against any 

employee. The Union’s election to proceed under this Article shall preclude it from proceeding 

in another forum on the same issue.  The class action grievance shall list the employees 



Teamsters Local 2011 

Proposal – Article 6  

February 4, 2013 

 

7 

 

adversely impacted by the dispute relating to the interpretation or application of the Agreement.  

Such grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 of this procedure, in accordance with the provisions 

set forth herein, within 14 days of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance. 

(C) An employee who has not attained permanent status in his current position may 

only file non-discipline grievances.  Non-discipline grievances filed by probationary employees 

are final and binding at Step 3 unless the processing of such grievances is further limited by 

specific provisions of this Agreement. 



Teamsters Local 2011 

Proposal – Article 7 

February 4, 2013 

1 

 

Article 7 

DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE 

 

SECTION 1 - Disciplinary Action 

(A) An employee who has attained permanent status in his current position may be 

disciplined only for cause as provided in section 110.227, Florida Statutes. Reductions in base 

pay, demotions, involuntary transfers of more than 50 miles by highway, suspensions, and 

dismissals may be effected by the state at any time against any employee. Such actions against 

employees with permanent status in their current position for disciplinary reasons shall be 

grievable in accordance with the grievance procedure in Article 6, if the employee alleges that 

the action was not for just cause. However, any reduction in base pay required by the Rules of 

the State Personnel System shall not be grievable. Demotion will not be used as a form of 

disciplinary action for employees in the classes of Correctional Officer, Correctional Probation 

Officer, Correctional Probation Officer-Institution, or Institutional Security Specialist I. The 

Department of Corrections and the Department of Children and Families will not utilize 

cumulative discipline.  Disciplinary actions shall be subject to the grievance procedure as 

follows: 

(1) Oral reprimands shall not be grievable under the provisions of this Agreement. 

The Department of Corrections will not issue Oral Reprimands. 

(2) An oral reprimand will not be considered in determining progressive 

discipline provided the employee is not disciplined for the same offense during the succeeding 

12 months, and in such cases the employee may request that an existing Oral Reprimand 

contained in his official personnel file be marked "expired." 

(1) The state may issue Counseling Notices or Supervisory Counseling 

Memoranda, which are documentation of minor work deficiencies or conduct concerns that are 

maintained by a supervisor in a working file.  Such documents are not discipline, and are not 

grievable, and shall not become part of the employee’s official personnel file.  However, such 

documentation may be used by the state at an administrative hearing involving an employee’s 

discipline to demonstrate that the employee was on notice of the performance deficiencies or 

conduct concerns, so long as the performance deficiencies or conduct concerns indicated in 

documentation occurred within the six months immediately prior to the administrative hearing.  

(3) Written reprimands may be grieved by employees with permanent status in 

their current position up to Step 3; the decision at that level shall be final and binding through the 

arbitration step of the grievance procedure. 

(4) A written reprimand will not be considered in determining progressive 

discipline provided the employee is not disciplined for the same offense during the succeeding 

18 months, and the written reprimand was not for a major offense which could have resulted in 

the employee's dismissal. 

(B) A complaint by an employee with permanent status in his current position concerning 

any written reprimand which contains criminal allegations or criminal charges may be grieved 

through the arbitration step of the grievance procedure. 

(C B) If filed within 14 calendar days from the date of receipt of notice from the agency, 

by personal delivery or by certified mail, return receipt requested, a complaint by an employee 

with permanent status in his current position concerning a reduction in base pay, suspension, 

involuntary transfer of over 50 miles by highway, demotion, or dismissal may be grieved at Step 



Teamsters Local 2011 

Proposal – Article 7 

February 4, 2013 

2 

 

1 and processed through the Arbitration Step, in accordance with the Grievance Procedure in 

Article 6 of this Agreement. 

(DC) Where a disciplinary action may be appealed to the Public Employees Relations 

Commission and is also grievable under this Agreement, the employee shall indicate at the time 

the grievance is reduced to writing which procedure is to be used and such decision shall be 

binding on the employee. In the case of any duplicate filing, the action first filed will be the one 

processed. 

(ED) For employees in the Department of Corrections, the following shall apply: 

(1) If the Department of Corrections an agency issues a disciplinary suspension to 

an employee and the employee files an appeal to the Public Employees Relations Commission 

(PERC) in the required 21 days from the date the employee receives the letter, or files a 

collective bargaining grievance within the time limits set forth in Article 6 of this Agreement, the 

Department of Corrections suspension shall be have the option to stayed the suspension for up to 

90 calendar days pending a Recommended or Final Order by PERC, or a decision/award from an 

arbitrator. If at the end of the 90 calendar day period the Department of Corrections stays the 

suspension, and PERC has not issued a Recommended or Final Order, or an arbitrator has not 

rendered a decision/award by the end of the period for which the suspension was stayed, the 

Department of Corrections agency may proceed with the disciplinary suspension. 

(2) The employee Department may voluntarily elect to have special compensatory 

leave equal to the length of a disciplinary suspension deducted from an employee's leave balance 

in lieu of the employee serving the suspension. In making such determination, the Department 

shall take into consideration the preference of the employee as to serving the suspension or 

having leave deducted. If the employee does not have sufficient special compensatory leave, he 

may elect to use annual leave may be deducted. If there is not sufficient special compensatory or 

annual leave, the remainder of the period will be leave without pay. Employees who elect to have 

their from whom leave is deducted will continue to report for duty during the period of time in 

which their leave is deducted. The employee's personnel file will reflect a disciplinary 

suspension regardless of whether the employee serves the suspension or has leave deducted. 

(3) The Department of Corrections may use Records of Counseling or other 

documentation to describe the employee’s work behavior in litigation involving employee 

discipline. 

 

SECTION 2 - Interrogation during Internal Investigations 

 

In the course of any internal investigation, the interrogation methods employed will be 

consistent with Sections 112.532 and Section 112.533, Florida Statutes. 

(A) Definitions 

For the purpose of this section the following definitions of terms as used in Section 

112.532, Florida Statutes, shall apply: 

(1) "Interrogation" refers to a disciplinary investigation meeting with respect to an 

incident or complaint between a member of management or supervision, including an 

investigator, and an employee covered by this Agreement in which the information to be 

obtained at the investigation meeting will be the basis for the decision as to whether to suspend 

or dismiss the employee. It does not include counseling sessions, or investigations, which may 

result in lesser forms of disciplinary action or meetings at which the employee is solely being 



Teamsters Local 2011 

Proposal – Article 7 

February 4, 2013 

3 

 

advised of intended disciplinary action, and offered an opportunity to explain why he should not 

be disciplined. 

(2) "Complainants" refers to the complaining or charging party relative to an 

incident, complaint, or reason. 

(B) Procedures 

Whenever an employee covered by this Agreement is under investigation and subject to 

interrogation by members of his agency for any reason, which could lead to disciplinary action, 

suspension, demotion, or dismissal, such interrogation shall be conducted under the following 

conditions: 

(1) The interrogation shall be conducted at a reasonable hour, preferably at a time 

when the employee is on duty, unless the seriousness of the investigation is of such a degree that 

immediate action is required. 

(2) The interrogation shall take place either at the office of the command of the 

investigating officer or correctional unit in which the incident allegedly occurred, as designated 

by the investigating officer or agency. 

(3) The employee under investigation shall be informed of the rank, name, and 

command of the officer in charge of the investigation, the interrogating officer, and all persons 

present during the interrogation. All questions directed to the officer under interrogation shall be 

asked by and through one interrogator at any one time. 

(4) The employee under investigation shall be informed of the nature of the 

investigation prior to any interrogation, and he shall be informed of the name of all 

complainants. 

(5) Interrogating sessions shall be for reasonable periods and shall be timed to 

allow for such personal necessities and rest periods as are reasonably necessary for both the 

employee and the representative. 

(6) The employee under interrogation shall not be subjected to offensive language 

or be threatened with transfer, dismissal, or disciplinary action. No promise or reward shall be 

made as an inducement to answer any questions. 

(7) The formal interrogation of an employee, including all recess periods, shall be 

recorded, and there shall be no unrecorded questions or statements. Upon the request of the 

interrogated officer, a copy of any such recording of the interrogation session must be made 

available to the interrogated officer no later than 72 hours, excluding holidays and weekends, 

following said interrogation. 

(8) If the employee under interrogation is under arrest, or is likely to be placed 

under arrest as a result of the interrogation, he shall be completely informed of all his rights 

prior to the commencement of the interrogation. 

(9) At the request of any employee under investigation, he shall have the right to 

be represented by counselor any other representative of his choice, who shall be present at all 

times during such interrogation whenever the interrogation relates to the officer's continued 

fitness for correctional service. 

(l0) Where the agency determines that a complaint is unsupported by the facts or 

is otherwise without merit, or determines that the facts are insufficient to charge or otherwise 

discipline the employee under investigation, such conclusion will be so noted as part of the 

investigative record. Written documents relative to the investigation are subject to the provisions 

of Article 12, Personnel Records. 



Teamsters Local 2011 

Proposal – Article 7 

February 4, 2013 

4 

 

(11) Where the employee is the subject of the investigation, the employee shall be 

provided the opportunity to review all written statements made by the complainant and witnesses 

immediately prior to the beginning of the investigation interview. 

(C) Unless required by statute, no employee shall be required to submit to a polygraph 

test or any device designed to measure the truthfulness of his response during an investigation of 

a complaint or allegation. If an employee is offered an opportunity to submit to a polygraph test, 

the employee's refusal will not be referred to in any final action taken by the agency. 

(D) Alleged violations of the investigative rights provided for in this section by an 

employee or the Union shall be investigated by the agency. The agency shall provide the 

employee and the Union with an explanation concerning the alleged violation and corrective 

action taken, if any. 

(E) The state will make a good faith effort to complete all internal investigations within 

60 calendar days from the date the investigation is assigned to the investigator. Except in the 

case of a criminal investigation, the employee shall be notified in writing of any investigation 

that exceeds 120 calendar days. The employee under investigation shall be advised of the results 

of the investigation at its conclusion. 

(F) The provisions of this section may be grieved in accordance with Article 6, up to Step 

3 of the Grievance Procedure; the decision at that step shall be final and binding. 

(G) In cases where the agency determines that the employee's absence from the work 

location is essential to the investigation and the employee cannot be reassigned to other duties 

pending completion of the investigation, the employee shall be placed on administrative leave in 

accordance with Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code. In cases where an employee has 

been reassigned by the Department of Corrections pending the outcome of an investigation and 

the charges or allegations against the employee are not sustained, the reassigned employee shall 

be offered the option to return to the original work location and, if requested, the previously held 

shift and days off as soon as they become available. As an exception, the Department may retain 

the employee in the reassigned work location if it determines that information has been produced 

in the course of its investigation of the charges that evidences a substantial likelihood of 

interference with the operations of the work unit if the employee is returned to the original work 

location. 

 

SECTION 3 - Employee Copy 

 

Each employee shall be furnished a copy of all disciplinary entries placed in his official 

personnel file and shall be permitted to respond thereto, and a copy of the employee's response 

shall be placed in the employee's personnel file. 

 

SECTION 4 – Notice 

 

Notice of reduction in base pay, demotion, involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by 

highway, suspension, or dismissal affecting an employee who has satisfactorily completed at 

least a one-year probationary period in his current position shall be in accordance with section 

110.227(5), Florida Statutes. 

 

SECTION 5 – Representation 

 



Teamsters Local 2011 

Proposal – Article 7 

February 4, 2013 

5 

 

Where union representation is requested by an employee during an investigation by the 

agency Inspector General's Office, or during a predetermination conference, a union steward will 

be allowed a reasonable amount of accrued leave, other than sick leave, to attend such meetings, 

subject to prior approval by the steward's immediate supervisor. Such leave will be approved if 

the steward can be allowed leave without interfering with, or unduly hampering, the operations 

of the unit to which the steward is regularly assigned. Where an employee is represented by a 

Union Representative in a predetermination conference, the Union Representative shall be 

notified of the disposition of the predetermination conference. 

 



'~f\'('(\6-rE126 WeJ.<<.... dO ( 1

Rz.c {-:bSi\i.,·- ArLrtc.,t_t Cj

~-eau-Ai2J1 5, dO 13

Article 9

REASS 'GNMENT, TRANS <ER, CHANGE J.r DUTY S:"AT:!ON

Employees who have attained permanent status in their current position and who meet all
eligibility requirements shall have the opportunity to request reassignment, transfer, or change in
duty station to vacant positions within their respective agencies in accordance with the
provisions of this Article.

SECTION 1 - Definitions as used in this Article:

(A) "Duty station" shall mean the place which is designated as an employee's official
headquarters.

(B) "Change in duty station" shall mean the moving of an employee to a duty station
located within 50 miles, by highway, ofhis current duty station.

(C) "Broadband level" shall mean all positions sufficiently similar in knowledge, skills,
and abilities, and sufficiently similar as to kind or subject matter of work, level of difficulty or
responsibilities, and qualification requirements of the work, to warrant the same treatment as to
title, pay band, and other personnel transactions.

(D) "Reassignment" shall mean moving an employee from a position in one broadband
level to a different position in the same broadband level or to a different broadband level having
the same maximum salary.

(E) "Transfer" shall mean moving an employee from one geographic area of the state to a
different geographic location in excess of 50 miles, by highway, from the employee's current
duty station.

(F) "Agency needs" are those actions taken by an agency in order to meet its mission of
protecting the public, providing a safe and humane environment for staff and offenders, working
in rartnership with the community to provide programs and services to offenders, and
supervising offenders at a level of security commensurate with the danger they present.

(G) "Major institution" shall mean in th~ D~parP-nentof~~the main facility
under the control of one warden or a~m~ni£trator,and will include the annexes, work camps,
release centers, and other satellite/sister facilities under the authority of that main facility warden
or administrator.

SEC1'ION 2 - Pt"ocedures

(A) An employee who has attained permanent status in his current position may apply for
a reassignment, transfer, or change in duty station on a Request for Reassignment Trar.sfer, or
Chan3;;: in Duty 3tation Form (hereinafter "Request Form") (supplied by the agency: and
atta~hed as "p~ppendix C'·i). Such requests shall indicate county(ies), institution(s), and/or other
work location( s) or shift(s) to which the employee would like to be reassigned. In-t-he
&epartmer:.t--ef..G€:ffeetWn£.,-an--3ffi.1*eyee in the '36ffectional offiG-5f-class-5<'ffies-may-enlY-'itliuest
feU¥'.rlg!lm'5ffi;-tfat'.tSf.er,-9f ohange in duty s~ation from OR;) major institutbn to anota'3r majer
ifts#t-ut1:&1r. A State ofFlorida Employment Application Form must be completed and sent with
the Request for Reassignmeffi Form, except when the request is for a ~hange in duty station
within a maior institution.

(B) An employee may submit a Request fx-ReassigriRWIH Form at any time; however, all



such requests shall expire on May 31 of each calendar year. Requests can be filed in May to
become effective on June 1.

(C) All Request f3f-R:9assigSfaest Forms shall be submitted to the Agency Head or
designee who shall be responsible for furnishing a copy of each such request to the manager(s) or
supervisor(s) who have the authority to make employee hiring decisions in the work unit to
which the employee has requested reassignment.

(D) Except where a vacancy is filled by demotion, the manager or supervisor having
hiring authority for that vacancy shall give first consideration to employees who have submitted
a Request feF-R~G~-gRmentForm; provided, however, that employees whose request for
reassignment is not submitted by the first day of the month shall not be considered for vacancies
which occur during that month.

(E) The hiring authority shall normally fill a vacancy with the employee who has the
greatest length of service in the broadband level and who has a Request fer-Pceass~'**Form
on file for the vacancy. The parties agree, however, that other factors, such as employees' work
history and agency needs, will be taken into consid~ation in making the decision as to whether
the employee with the greatest length ofservice in the broadband level will be placed in the
vacant position.

(F) Employe~s in th~ Department ofChildren and Famili-es shall ha\"~ th-e same ,,~cess to
giWly for va~ant positi'Jns in th~ Depa."1ment of COITe~tlonsas th~-;:moloyees in the Dep-artm~:at

of Ccrr~~tiJilS.
(G)-kl-t~J~artr:s.~'it-Gf.:;m!ar,~1h~Famili~s,i~fthe employee with the greatest length

of service in the broadband level is not selected forthe vacant position, all employees who have
greater length of servit;e in the broadband level than the employee selected shall be notified in
writing of the agency's decision.

(H) When an employee has been reassigned pursuant to a request filed under this Article,
all other pending requests for reassignment from that employee shall be canceled. No other
request for reassignment may be filed by the employee under this Article for a period of 12
months following the employee's reassignment. If an employee declines an offer of reassignment
pursuant to a request filed under this Article, the employee's requent shall be canceled and the
employee is not eligible to resubmit that request for a period of 12 months from the date the
employee declined the offer of reassignment.

SECTION 3 - -nvolunttu-y Reass;gnment, Tmnsfet·, or C~!1L:.ge in Duty S"ation

(A) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent an agency, at its
discretion, from effecting the involuntary reassignment, transfer, or change in duty station of an
employee according to the needs of the agenCY7 ; how~ver, the agency wi:! make a good fai~h

effort to take such action onlY when dictated by th-:: ne,~ds of the agency, and in each case, 'vill
take into consideration thr.: needs and aircvmstances of the employe~ prior to taking such a9tion.
l:;'or th~ Dep-artment of Corrections Article 23, Sp,etion 2(B)(2)a of this Agreement applies.

(B) In those instances where the Department of Corrections determines that an excessive
caseload at a probation office requires the reassignment of an officer, th~,ffi-v.,m
%'ftS~quests from voluat~-t;FS;-employ~-£effiorit:v, Cl:ftd the nee-4s-?f..$e-ug~'r~"'1Ta:lang

SU'3h reassignment. such rp,assignment shall first be made on a volunteer basis. and next, on the
basis of seniority with the least senior officer subject to reassignment.

SEC""ION 4 - Notice



An employee shall be given a minimum of 14 calendar days notice prior to the agency
effecting any reassignment or transfer of the employee. In the case of a transfer, the agency will
make a good faith effort to give a minimum of 30 calendar days notice. The parties agree,
however, that these notice requirements shall not be required during an emergency or other
extraordinary condition.

S1:CTION 5 -Relocation A!lowance

An employee who is reassigned and required by agency policy to relocate his residence
shall be granted time off with pay for one (I) workday for this purpose. In addition, the employee
shall be granted travel time to the new location based on the most direct route. No employee will
be credited with more than the number ofhours in the employee's regular workday and such time
shall not be counted as hours worked for the purpose of computing compensatory time or
overtime.

:r~~isi:&~.llisArtish-shall not b'f' sub,;e~~lange pr-e<-~$S-€-:--f ..i#71e-~
ef4~e~m'Jnt; h':Y;!-e:v:~:.", an emp!eyee--39mplein-t-oonB~m~r-eper-a~HSii:tien-~,_

~-€J...}~~~~l.J-T~eGurity~.:;:es Un~-esse:::---A.-greemeH:t

" •• _.c(:lq<:!+~__ "lL~Q.",~+~" '::' ..:10 +~~--,A, "~. '.-~,l'" _, ._·'1...A ...·J <
pF3¥lSfen{}'cn--c",7tt'.11~\~J>:>n"E.-.r,-.lfk'''1V-eem::nr ·_,---ffi{ly-v'e--gffel' "il.t-.rt---e~9'~aan0e~-'ff,,:r-t"~f"tre.s--v,

up -te--aflfr-.ffie.1Y:ting-8-t-er-J of the gfle¥ane3-pr-eeeciUFO. In :aRe~4$Fffi.g-sa-9h--zslRpkffits,---v,eetg-ht
t:R:al-l-t'e-gi¥efl-~";) 4e-s-pe*f.,-,}?i'()OOiktf~g- :fol.kwP';3-and--SW~sf9fi5";ffia93,d-Jr.-g---\·+ith-;;he-ilS';~ds--sf

tlw-agtm;~:r.



Teamsters Local 2011 

Proposal – Article 10 

February 4, 2013 

1 

 

Article 10  

PROMOTIONS  

(A) The state and the Union agree that promotions should be used to provide career 

mobility within the State Personnel System and should be based on the relative merit and fitness 

of applicants.  

 

(B) Toward the goals of selecting the most qualified applicant for each promotional 

vacancy, the parties agree that the provisions of this Article, along with all provisions of the 

Rules of the State Personnel System, will be followed when making such appointments.  

 

SECTION 1 - Definitions  

As used in this Article:  

(A) "Broadband level" shall mean all positions sufficiently similar in knowledge, skills, 

and abilities, and sufficiently similar as to kind or subject matter of work, level of difficulty or 

responsibilities, and qualification requirements of the work, to warrant the same treatment as to 

title, pay band, and other personnel transactions.  

(B) "Promotion" shall mean changing the classification of an employee to a broadband 

level having a higher maximum salary; or the changing of the classification of an employee to a 

broadband level having the same or a lower maximum salary but a higher level of responsibility.  

(C) "Demotion" shall mean changing the classification of an employee to a broadband 

level having a lower maximum salary; or the changing of the classification of an employee to a 

broadband level having the same or a higher maximum salary but a lower level of responsibility.  

 

SECTION 2 - Procedures  

(A) An employee who has attained permanent status in his current position may apply for 

a promotion by submitting a Request for Promotion Form, furnished by the agency in which the 

promotional position is located, to be considered for promotional vacancies. Such requests shall 

indicate the class(es)/broadband level(s), county(ies), institution(s), and/or other work locations 

to which the employee would like to be promoted. A State of Florida Employment Application 

Form must be completed and sent with the employee's request for promotion.  

(B) An employee may submit a request for promotion at any time; however, all such 

requests shall expire on May 31 of each calendar year.  

(C) When an employee has been promoted pursuant to a request filed under this Article; 

all other pending requests for promotion from that employee shall be canceled. No other requests 

for promotion may be filed by that employee under this Article for a period of 12 months 

following the employee's promotion.  

 

SECTION 3 - Method of Filling Vacancies  

(A) Except where a vacancy is filled by demotion, or by reassignment as defined in 

Article 9 of this Agreement, employees who have applied for promotion in accordance with 

Section 2 of this Article shall be given first consideration for promotional vacancies in 

accordance with the agencies' standard selection process.  

(B) Each employee who applies in accordance with Section 2 of this Article will be 

notified in writing by the appointing authority when the position has been filled.  



Teamsters Local 2011 

Proposal – Article 10 

February 4, 2013 

2 

 

(C) The standard selection process for filling institutional security specialist promotional 

vacancies covered by this Agreement shall continue in effect during the term of this Agreement. 

The standard selection process for filling Correctional Officer and Correctional Probation Officer 

promotional vacancies shall be as provided for in Department of Corrections Procedure Number 

208.005.  

 

SECTION 4 – Probationary Status on Promotion 

(A) An employee who has been appointed to a position must successfully complete at 

least a one-year probationary period, and shall attain permanent status in that position upon 

successful completion of the designated probationary period. Such employee shall not lose 

permanent status in such position or broadband level with the same agency and within the career 

service system. 

(B) An employee serving a probationary period in a position to which he has received an 

internal agency promotion may be removed from that promotional position at any time during 

the probationary period. If his former position, or a comparable position, is vacant, the employee 

is to be placed in such position. If such a position is not available, before dismissal, the agency 

shall make a reasonable effort to retain the employee in another vacant position. This process 

does not apply to terminations for cause nor does it create a right to bump an employee from an 

occupied position. An employee who has obtained permanent status in a position or broadband 

level who fails, due to performance, to satisfactorily complete the probation in the promotional 

position or broadband level shall be demoted to the former position or broadband level 

previously held by the in an available vacant position. 

(1) If the employee is demoted into their former position or a comparable 

position, such demotion shall be with permanent status, provided the employee 

previously attained permanent status in the agency in the lower position.  

(2) The employee's salary will be reduced in accordance with the agency's pay 

upon demotion policy.  

(3) Such demotion shall not be grievable under the contractual grievance 

procedure. 

(4) Such demotion shall not preclude the agency from seeking to discipline the 

employee for just cause based upon specific acts of misconduct. 

 

SECTION 5 - Relocation Allowance  

An employee who is promoted and required by agency policy to relocate his residence 

shall be granted time off with pay for one (1) workday for this purpose. In addition, the 

employee shall be granted travel time to the new location based on the most direct route. No 

employee will be credited with more than the number of hours in the employee's regular 

workday and such time shall not be counted as hours worked for the purpose of computing 

compensatory time or overtime.  

SECTION 6 - Grievability  

(A) The provisions of this Article may be grieved in accordance with Article 6, up to and 

including Step 3 of the Grievance Procedure, which decision shall be final and binding.  

(B) If the Step 3 authority in the Department of Management Services determines that the 

standard selection process was not followed in filling a promotional vacancy, he shall have the 

authority, among other remedies, to order that the promotion be rescinded and direct that the 



Teamsters Local 2011 

Proposal – Article 10 

February 4, 2013 

3 

 

promotion be conducted in accordance with the standard selection process.  
 

 



~~STL"Y6LoeAL dOtl

PlWPtJSAL _~(;(£ 12>

~~A0li 4, 6013
Article 13
SAFETY

SECTION 1- Safety Committee

(A) It shall be the policy of the state to make every reasonable effort to provide employees a
safe and healthy working environment.

(B) Where management has created a safety committee in a state-controlled facility, the
employees shall select at least one person at the facility to serve on such committee.

(C) Where management has not established a safety committee both the state and Union shall
work toward the establishment ofone in each state-controlled facility.

SEe~'jON 2 - Employee Safety

(A) An employee who becomes aware of a work-related accident shall immediately notify
the supervisor of the area where the incident occurred.

(B) When an employee believes that an unsafe working condition exists in the work area, the
employee shall immediately report the condition to the supervisor. The supervisor shall investigate
the report and make a reasonable effort to take action deemed appropriate.

SEC'i'ION 3 - Gioievnbility

Complaints which arise under the application or interpretation of this Article shall be
grievable, but only up to Step 3 of the grievance procedure of the Agreement.

SECTION 4 - Communicable Uisenses

(A) In institutions, centers, and units in which inmates and/or patients with AIDS or other
communicable diseases are isolated due to their condition, employees entering such areas shall have
such protective wear and equipment made available to them as is made available to health care
employees working in that area.

(B) Employees shall not be required to handle, examine, or test materials from the human
body of inmates, offenders, or clients under'their supervision except in accordance with the rules and
regulations of the agency regarding the handling and testing of such materials.

(C) The agencies shall make available to employees a procedure to screen for tuberculosis
(PPD SKIN TEST). Altematively, the employee may at his own cost, have such test performed by a
pri':ate physician and provide the results of the test to the agency.

SECTION 5 - Correctional Probation Officer Safety

(A) Correctional probation officers, upon the approval of their immediate supervisor,
shall be provided with the following safety equipment: bulletproof vest, a hand-held radio, or a
ceBular telephone. Th~re shall be a saf:fici~nt number of radios in each J)robation and parol~

offk;e such that ea~h officer has access to " radio v:hen conducting field work. AH-€rf.five-f-ffi:t~,

ffi:\:t.flOOz~c-eaff'.f-tl:-firearm -....~Tn duty in ao~:tM~9-::the-g~partmentaf
~3-::-reetions,Chapt~~2-W-~,Florida lrtlrni!listrnti-v-e-Ge-4e,--ss amended February 1~3-:

(B) If a correctional probation officer is celtified to carry a firearm. the ~mployee is
authorized to carry his weapon and 2 additional ammunition magazines at all times while on
duty, including coming to and from work.



SECTION 6 - Personal Weapons

(A) The Department ofCorrections may, upon written request, provide weapons lockers
to employees who are also employed outside the Department as an auxiliary police officer or
deputy and are required to carry these weapons to perform their duties.

(B) The Department ofCorrections authorizes employees to carry one handgun to work
in private vehicles and park such vehicles on the department grounds provided the handgun is
secured in the vehicle and maintained in a standard handgun lockbox in accordance with the
following:

(1) Only one handgun per vehicle/per lockbox.
(2) The handgun must be stored in a lockbox that is designed to hold a handgun

and can be locked; an empty ammunition box or metal coin box, or a glove compartment
are not lockboxes for this purpose.

(3) The doors and windows of the vehicle must lock if the lo.ckbox is kept in the
cab of the vehicle. If the cab of the vehicle can be accessed from the trunk, the trunk must
lock. The trunk must be locked at all times.

(4) The lockbox cannot be placed in a metal toolbox on a truck.
(5) For convertibles, the lockbox must be placed in the trunk. If the vehicle is a

Jeep or similar vehicle, with no top and no trunk, the officer cannot carry a handgun.
(C) Only the ammunition necessary to load the handgun to capacity will be allowed in the

lockbox. It is the officer's choice whether the handgun is loaded or the ammunition is separate,
but both must be in the lockbox and locked.

(D) At no time will the employee leave the vehicle unlocked while the handgun is in the
vehicle and parked on state grounds.

(A) Any and all saf~ty eguipm~nt issued by the Deuartment of Corr~ctionsand used by
Err:oloyees shall com.,ly with manufac~uresa~ety standards for:

(1) Bdlet-ProofVests;
(2) Radios. which must al20 be ::;ompatibl~vdth 10callaV'! ~nforr-ernent

fr~guenc£es for correcdo~al probation officers working in the fi~ld~ and
(3) P;::.'sonal Prot~ction Equipment.

;8) lny and all State-owned yehichs used by Employees must comply ,,;'ith st2xe and
feceral DOT sta'1'lar d.s for commercial v~hicles and be in sound workir.g order. Under roo
circumstances shall an Employ~ete held financially re~Donsible f.:>r towing and/or repair ~08ts if
a Stale-owiled vehicle breaks down while being used by an Employee.



SECTION 5 -Correctional Probation Officer Safety

Correctional probation officers, upon the approval of their immediate supervisor, shall be
provided with the following safety equipment: bulletproof vest, a hand-held radio, or a cellular
telephone. An officer may be authorized to carry a firearm while on duty in accordance with Rules of
the Department of Corrections, Chapter 33-302.1 04, Florida Administrative Code, as amended
February 13, 2012.

SECTION 6 -Personal Weapons

(A) The Department of Corrections may, upon written request, provide weapons lockers to
employees who are also employed outside the Department as an auxiliary police officer or deputy
and are required to carry these weapons to perform their duties.
(B) The Department ofCorrections authorizes employees to carry one handgun to work in private
vehicles and park such vehicles on the department grounds provided the handgun is secured in the
vehicle and maintained in a standard handgun lockbox in accordance with the following:
(I) Only one handgun per vehicle/per lockbox.
(2) The handgun must be stored in a lockbox that is designed to hold a handgun and can be locked;
an empty ammunition box or metal coin box, or a glove compartment are not lockboxes for this
purpose.
(3) The doors and windows of the vehicle must lock if the lockbox is kept in the cab of the vehicle. If
the cab of the vehicle can be accessed from the trunk, the trunk must lock. The trunk must be locked
at all times.
(4) The lockbox cannot be placed in a metal toolbox on a truck.
(5) For convertibles, the lockbox must be placed in the trunk. If the vehicle is a Jeep or similar
vehicle, with no top and no trunk, the officer cannot carry a handgun.
(C) Only the ammunition necessary to load the handgun to capacity will be allowed in the lockbox. It
is the officer's choice whether the handgun is loaded or the ammunition is separate, but both must be
in the lockbox and locked.
(D) At no time will the employee leave the vehicle unlocked while the handgun is in the vehicle and
parked on state grounds.



Teamsters Local 2011
Proposal - Article 18

February 4,2013
Article 18

LEAVES OF ABSENCE
SECTION I-Leaves

(A) The parties specifically agree that the attendance and leave provisions as contained in
Rule60L-34, Florida Administrative Code, including the accrual, usage, and payment of sick
and annual leave upon separation from Career Service employment shall apply to all employees.

(B) EmJ2lo~es shall not be r,;:quir~d to use special compensatory leave prior to tne ust;: of
annual leave and regular Gompem:atory le~l':,~. Employee3 sha~i not b~ re1uir~d to use st-ecial
Gompensa~o:.-y teav~ for activities condu~td pnrs\.lant to 3ecti'Jn 2 bebv:.

SECTION 2 -Negotiation Committee

(A) The telID "N~gotiation Co;nmittee Time," as used in this Agreement, 3hai~ mean time
gran~~d to a..'1 emplove~ servircg on the Negotiation Committee to att~nd n-;2"ot:ation preoaratOlY
me~tings and negotiatiml sessi::ms, and shall00unt as time worked.

(B) The Union may designate certain employees within this unit to serve as its
Negotiation Committee, and such employees will be granted a.ffiffi.ni.Dtrative l~-¥e- Negotiation
Commi~teeTime ("NeT") to attend negotiating sessions with the state.--P2.-~yeescrviftg Oft

th~re-Bt*iati<m-,:;effiffa~:'~y..JffiH.-a:tseae grantes a max...fl:mHrc aE-13igM-f8) hours-ft'.lm-:flistlati:V9

~~~ and to attend a negotiation preparatory meeting to be held the calendar day immediately
preceding each scheduled negotiation session, provided that the negotiation preparatory meeting
is held on what would otherwise be the employee's normal workday. Me An employee shall be
credited with m·3£~-thaB the number ofhours in the employee's regular workday for any day the
employee is in negotiations and negotiation preparatory meetine;s. The total number ofhours,
including the hours spent in negotiation preparatory meetings, paid all employees on the Union's
Negotiation Committee shall not exceed one thousand (1000) hours. The time in attendance at
such preparatory meetings and negotiating sessions shall not be counted as hours worked for the
purpose of computing compensatory time or overtime; hov,twer, an employee shaH not be
IY(lui:~d to work additi:mal hours during the work peliod to offset NeT. The agency shall not
reimburse the employee for travel, meals, lodging, or any expense incurred in connection with
attendance at preparatory meetings or negotiating sessions.

(B) No more than two (2) employees shall be selected from the same work unit at any
one time, nor shall the selection ofany employee unduly hamper the operations of the work unit.

SJLCTION 3 -Union ActivUies

Employees shall have the right to request leave without pay, annual, or compensatory
leave for the purpose of attending Union conventions, conferences, and meetings. When such
requests cannot be granted, the supervisor shall provide such denial in writing.



Teamsters Local 2011 Proposal
12.04.12

Article 23

HOURSOFWOmuOVERT~E

SECTION I-Hours of Work and Overtime

(A) The nonnal workweek for each full-time employee shall be 40 hours unless the employee
is or; an agency-established extended work period. Except for emergency circumstances, the normal
work day for the Department of Corrections is eight (8) hours, ten (10) hours for its employees
assigned to public or Department ofTransportation work squads, or twelve (12) hours. The parties
agree that the issue of the hours in a nonnal work day for Department ofCorrections' employees may
be a subject ofnegotiation at any time during the tenn of this agreement.

(B) Management retains the right to schedule its employees; however, the state will make a
good faith effort, whenever practical, to provide employees with consecutive hours in the workday
and \;onsecutive days in the workweek.

(C) Work beyond the normal workweek shall be recognized in accordance with the
provisions ofRule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code.

(D) Management retains the right to approve time offfor its employees. However, the state
will make a good faith effort, whenever practical, to allow employees to use compensatory leave
credits as requested by the employee. Failure to approve an employee's specific request shall not be
grievable under the provisions ofArticle 6 ofthis Agreement.

(E) The state agrees that the assignment ofovertime is not to he made on the basis of
favoritism. In any case where an employee has reason to believe that overtime is being assigned on
the basis of favoritism, the employee shall have the right to the grievance procedure under Article 6
herein, to Step 3 of the procedure.

(F) The Union agrees to support those changes in Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code
that may be required in order for the state to be in compliance with the Fair Labor Standards Act as it
is applied to public employees.

SECTION 2 -Work Schedules, Vacation and Holiday Schedules

(A) When regular work schedules are changed, employees' normal work schedules, showing
each employee's shift, workdays, and hours, will be posted no less than 14 calendar days in advance,
and will reflect at least a two (2) workweek schedule; however, the state will make a good faith effort
to reflect a one (1) month schedule. In the event an employee's shift, workdays or hours are changed
while the employee is on approved leave, the agency will make a good faith effort to notify the
employee of the change at his home. With prior written notification of at least three (3) workdays to
the employee's immediate supervisor, employees may agree to exchange days or shifts on a
temporary basis. If the immediate supervisor objects to the exchange of workdays or shifts, the
empbyee initiating the notification shaH be advised that the exchange is disapproved.

1



Teamsters Local 2011 Proposal
12.04.12

(B) For shifts, and shift changes the following shall apply:

(l) In the Department ofChildren and Families where practical, shifts, shift changes,
and regular days off shall be scheduled with due regard for the needs of the agency, seniority,
and employee preference. The state and the Union understand that there may be times when
the needs of the agency will not permit such scheduling; however, when an employee's shift
and/or regular days off are changed, the agency will make a good faith effort to keep the
employee on the new shift or regular days off for a minimum of 12 months unless otherwise
requested by the employee. .

(2) For the Department ofCorrections, shifts, shift changes, and regular days off shall
be scheduled primarily to meet the needs of the agency, with due regard for employee
seniority, work history, and preference. Management is responsible for the assignment to and
from administrative shift positions. The Department ofCorrections, whenever practical, will
try to offset an officer's additional work hours in conjunction with his regular days off.

(C) When an employee is not assigned to a rotating shift and the employee's regular shift
assignment is being changed, the state will schedule the employee to be offwork for a minimwn of
two shifts between the end ofthe previous shift assignment and the beginning ofthe new shift
assignment.

(D) Where practical, vacation and holiday leave shall be scheduled at least 60 days in
advance of such leave. Time off for vacations and holidays, when the holiday is a regularly
scheduled workday for the employee, will be scheduled with due regard for the needs of the agency,
seniority, and employee preference. In implementing this provision, nothing shall preclude an agency
from making reasonable accommodations for extraordinary leave requests as determined by the
agency, or ensuring the fair distribution of leave during holidays. For the Department of Corrections,
annual leave requests and approvals for correctional officers shall be in accordance with procedure
602.030.

(E) Correctional probation officers (excluding community control officers) who carry a
regular caseload may be required to work a maximum of 16 hours per month outside the nonnal 8
a.m. to 5 p.m., Monday through Friday schedule. The 16 hours may be broken down into no less than
two-hour or more than eight-hour segments. Officers may schedule their field time in the morning,
evening, Saturday or Sunday, or in any combination thereof. Officers may also volunteer to schedule
more than 16 hours offield work in a month. Officers must receive prior approval from their
supervisor before implementing their work schedule.

(F) A complaint concerning this Section may be grieved in accordance with Article 6 of this
Agreement up to and including Step 3. The decision of the Step 3 Management Representative shall
be final and binding on aU parties.

2



Teamsters Local 2011 Proposal
12.04.12

SECTION 3 - Rest Periods

(A) No supervisor shall unreasonably deny an employee a 15 minute rest period during each
four (4) hour work shift. Whenever possible, such rest periods shall be scheduled at the middle of the
work shift. However, it is recognized that many positions have a post of duty assignment that
requires coverage for a full eight-hour shift, which would not permit the employee to actually leave
his post. In those cases, it is recognized that the employee can tlresttl while the employee physically
remains in the geographic location ofhis duty post.

(B) An employee may not accumulate unused rest periods, nor shall rest periods be
authorized for covering an employee's late arrival on duty or early departure from duty.

SECTION 4 - Court Appearances

Ifa correctional officer Or institutional security specialist is subpoenaed to appear as a
witness in a job-related court case, not during the employee's regularly assigned shift, the
correctional officer or institutional security specialist shall be granted a minimum of two hours pay at
his straight-time hourly rate. In all other respects, such appearances shall be governed by the
provisions of Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code.

SECTION 5 - Non-Required Work Time

Employees shall not be required to volunteer time to the state.

SECTION 6 - Special Compensatory Leave

(A) Earning ofSpecial Compensatory Leave Credits. Special compensatory leave credits may
be earned only in the following instances:

(1) By an employee in the career service for work performed on a holiday as defined
in section 110.117, Florida Statutes, or for work performed during a work period that
includes a holiday, as provided by the Rules of the State Personnel System.

(2) By an employee in the career service for work performed in the employee's
assigned office, facility, or region which is closed pursuant to an Executive Order of the
Governor or any other disaster or emergency condition.

(D) Special Compensatory Leave Earned Prior to July 1,2012:
(1) Emr>loyees with a special compensatory leave balance in exc~ss of240 ho~rs as

ofJlme 30, 2012 will be ullowed to use hours above 240 (the "Excess Hot~rs") for a peliod of
10 years (-,Phase-Ont Pe~·iod"). The 10 y~ar period will begin on JHRe 3Q, 2EH3 and will end
en Juo-z 30. 2023. Excess hours not csed by Jcne 30, 2023 will be elimbated from the
employee's l~ave balance and will have no value thereafter. Df'sl'ite -Elte fast that ~re>,~
eetlcetiv-e bargsiniHg agroaments only permi~d em~~es to ~9~H:Hllldate a nleJdmUll'l of2'iO
hours ofSfleeial eor.~2nsatory leave eredits, ee;tain £:~3es fl'lfty Have eamed hours f'lrior
to Jul~( 1,2012 in eKeeSIi of that amouRt. NdthiHg in this agreemeHt is iAtenJed to aderess the
>falidity Of iH"Ialiciity ofsf'leei~rodits&bo'/e 2".9 ROlifS elH"Aed fWiOl1:e

July I, 29~ .
(2) During the te'itl of this Agreeme::tt. if an 'employee has a special compensatory

leave belance ofat least 540 hours. '1n ~mployee May request. and receive, a one-time payout
of up to 300 hours payable at a diswunted rate of75% of the employee's current ra~e of pay.

(3) If a Eargainiilg Unit employee separates from h:s employing agency dming the
Ph~.se-Outperiod. the emp~oyeewill receive compenst'!tioil for all special compensatory jer.ve
em-ted before June 30, 2012 at his current rate ofpav .

(4) An employee may be required to reduce special compensatory leave credit

3

~u.u( (,
2013



Teamsters Local 2011 Proposal
12.04.12

balances r.bove 240 hour~. Where an employee is required to reduce special compensatory
time, the employee shall be provided seven (7) days notice of such leave. Such required leave
shall be scheduled in increment5 of time equa~ to the employee's normai hOLlrs ofwork. m-a
mffi-tlmm of\3igitt-E&) horn' in~eelents ifsl:leh Hm,ifs·at:s&v£ilable. --~- --

.~

(C) Special Compensatory Leave Earned On or After July 1, 2013:
(I) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection (A)(l), on

or after July 1, 201~3, mus~ be whieh are Hot used each year by the April 30 or October 31
that immediately succeeds the work period in which the leave is credited, whichever date
occurs earIier.,shail ke foyf?iwd

(2) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection (A)(2), on
or after July 1, 201~3, must be wl:Jieh are He't used within 120 calendar days from the end of
the work period in which the leave is credited shaH s3--ferfeiteEi.

(3) Each agency shall schedule employees earning special compensatory leave credits
in a manner that allows all such leave credits earned on or after July 1, ~9H, to be used 'Wi~
within the time limits specified in subsections 1 and 2. However, ifscheduling such leave -
within such time limits would prevent the agency from meeting minimum staffing
requirements needed to ensure public safety, the agency head may extend the time limits
specified in subsections 1 and 2 for tip to aft ftddit;oool-l80 calendar days. Extensions will not
be allowed for any other reason.

(4) If'scheduling such leave withirl the 180 calendar day extension would prevent the
agency from meetiJ'!€$ minimum staffing requirements needed to enSl~re publ~c safety. the
..gem'" must com')eIiSare ilie emoloyee for the le~w~, at the eXlJiration of the 180 days, at the
emnloy~e'scurrent rate ofpay.

(4) No ageftey~'elm Ii pa~!eet ofaRUSeG speeia~ eompeasatory leave eftFfle& on or
after hly 1, 2g~2.
(:9) Ualess otheut'ise pr-ehieitee by 1M'" m: Rile, al! re"it:lests for ase of~¥eG )()&¥e. odrer

tllan aEbilinistmti'Je4eav...~H fil sf be 6R~,Fgei to ftHy spc>eial €3R'lf'6il&atory leave erecii~s the
emfJJoyea has aeonu~rl,

SECTION 7 - Compulsory Disability Leave

An agency may require an employee to use earned leave credits to cover the period between
the agency's determination that the employee may be unable to perform assigned duties and the
results ofan agency-ordered medical examination. The medical examination shall be in accordance
with the provisions ofRule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code. If the medical examination
confinns that the employee is able to perform assigned duties, any earned leave required to be used
by the employee prior to the results ofthe medical examination shall be restored. If the employee is
placed in non-pay status due to a lack ofearned leave credits, the employee may be paid as ifhe had
worked; however, requests for such payment shall be considered by the agency on a case-by-case
basis.

4



Teamsters Local 2011 Proposal
12.03.12

Article 25

WAGES

SECTION 1- Pay Provisions -General

(A) Pay shall be in assordanee with tbe Fiscal Year 2012 13 General Appropriations Act.
(8) lflcreases to basemte of pay and salary additi't'es sAall be in aseordano6 ..vitA: state lav¥

and the Fiscal Year 2012 13 General Appropriations Act.

Officers who have been employed in a position within their respective agency (i.e. DOC,
DCn for the duration indicated below shall receive the following wage increase to their base rate of
pay effective July 1, 2013:

0·3 years - 3% increase
4-6 years - 5% increase
7+ years -7% increase

SECTION 2 -Other Pay Provisions

The following provisions shall apply to all appointments of employees to positions allocated
to classifications or broadband levels listed in Appendix A, of the Agreement, regardless of whether
the appointee is a newly hired employee or currently employed in another class series or occupational
level in the State Personnel System. The pay grades and rates of pay shall be determined in
accordance with the Schedule of Salary Ranges of the Career Service Pay Plan. An employee
receiving an original, promotion, reassignment, transfer, or demotion appointment shall have a base
rate of pay equal to an amount within the pay range, subject to the following:

(A) Initial Appointment

The following shall apply to all employees who are appointed to a position with probationary
status:

(l) Persons appointed to a position prior to being certified by the Criminal Justice
Standards and Training Commission will be employed at a biweekly base rate ofpay at the
established trainee rate 10% below the minimum for the class or broadband level to which
the appointment is made.

(2) Upon being certified by the Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission,
the employee shall be placed at the minimum of the appropriate pay grade for the class or
broadband level to which appointed, effective the date of certification. Appointments above
the minimum may be approved by the Agency Head or designee.

(3) Persons holding a current Certificate of Completion for basic recruit training
issued by the Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission at the time of
appointment will have their biweekly base rate ofpay established at the minimum ofthe pay
grade for the class or broadband level to which the appointment is made.

(4) The probationary period shall be 12 months for any employee appointed to a
position with probationary status.

(5) Time spent as a trainee prior to receiving a Certification of Completion shall not
be counted toward completion of the probationary period.

(B) Pay upon Promotion Appointment

When promoted the employee shall receive a minimum of fi.ve seven and one-half percent

1



Teamsters Local 2011 Proposal
12.03.12

(So7.5%) above the employee's base rate of pay in the lower class or broadband level, contingent upon
funds being available, or to the minimum of the higher pay grade, whichever is greater at the time of
promotion. An exception to this provision shall be when the employee is demoted and subsequently
promoted back to the fonner classification or broadband level, or to a classification assigned to the
same broadband level in the Security Services Unit, within the succeeding 12 months, in which case
the employee shall receive the same amount upon increase as was received when demoted. The
Agency Head may, at his discretion, grant the employee up to an additional five percent (5%) at the
time of promotion. In no case shall the employee be paid below the minimum for the class or
broadband level.

(C) Pay upon Demotion Appointment

When demoted the employee's biweekly base rate of pay in the lower class or broadband
level shall be determined in accordance with the following:

(1) If the employee is demoted before satisfactorily completing the probationary
period for the current position, and attaining permanent status, the employee's base rate of
pay in the lower class/broadband level shall be determined in the same manner as an initial
appointment.

(2) If the employee attained permanent status in a bargaining unit position prior to
promotion, and is demoted before satisfactorily completing the probationary period for the
higher classlhroadband level, the employee's base rate ofpay shall be reduced to the amount
the employee was being paid when promoted.

(3) If the employee is demoted after satisfactorily completing the probationary period
for the higher classlbroadband level, the employee's base rate of pay shall be reduced to the
amount the employee was being paid when promoted. The employee's pay in the lower pay
grade shall be at the discretion of the Agency Head or designee. Normally, the employee's
base rate ofpay will be reduced to the same amount the employee was paid when promoted.
However, in no case shall the employee's base rate ofpay in the lower class/broadband level
exceed the employee's base rate ofpay in the higher class/hroadband level, nor shall the
employee be placed at an amount within the lower pay grade which is less than the employee
was being paid at the time of the promotion.

SECTION 3 - Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2012-13 General Appropriations
Act, and contingent upon the availability of funds and at the agency head's discretion, each agency is
authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive ofup to 15 percent of the employee's base
rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or area closed due to emergency
conditions from another area of the state that is not closed.

SECTION 4 - Cash Payout of Annual Leave

Permanent Career Service employees may be given the option of receiving up to 24 hours of
unused annual leave each December, in the form of a cash payout subject to, and in accordance with,
section 110.219(7), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 5 - Performance Pay

Each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee's exemplary

2



Teamsters Local 2011 Proposal
12.03.12

performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35, Florida
Administrative Code.

SECTION 6 - Savings Sharing Program

An employee or groups of employees may be eligible for monetary awards for ideas or
programs that result in a cost saving to the state, pursuant to section 110.1245(1), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 7 - Wage Increase "Me Too" Clause

The members of the bargaini'lg unit shall receive all cost of living adjustments (COLA) and,
or any other uniformly applied wage increases (Le. "across the board raises") at the same percentage
level of those offered to other bargaining units of state employees.

3



~E:Am~\C.--a:s Lo~~ ~ lJ fP-CPDSi\L.

l~.O~- I()-

Article 26

UNIFORM AND INSIGNIA

SECTION 1 - Uniform and Insignia for Correctional Officers and Institutional Security
Specialists

Correctional officers and institutional security specialists, where applicable, shall receive 8
standard issue of uniforms and uniform accessories. The state shall provide unifornls for its female
correctional officers and institutional security specialists in the appropriate Sizes, designed and cut
for females.

SECTION 2 - Uniform Maintenance AUowance for CorrectionaJ Officers and Institutional
Security Specialists

The state will provide unit correctional officers and institutional security specialists who are
furnished and required to wear a uniform, a maintenance allowance in the amount of $250.00
annually, unless laundry and dry cleaning facilities are available and the service is furnished by the
agency without cost to the employee; in addition, such correctional officers and institutional security
specialists shall receive a shoe allowance in the amount of$75.00 annually.

SECTION 3 - Badges

(A) Correctional officers and correctional probation officers shall be issued badges according
to the following specifications:

(l) Badges issued to correctional officers below the rank of lieutenant shall be silver
metal, black lettering and pre-numbered. These badges shall be worn on the officers'
uniforms in a manner consistent with department policy and procedures.

(2) Badges issued to correctional officers at the rank of lieutenant and above shall be
gold metal, black lettering and pre-numbered. These badges shall be worn on the officers'
uniforms in a manner consistent with department policy and procedures.

(3) Badges issued to correctional probation officers shall be police size. These badges
shall be carried in badge cases and in accordance with department procedure.
(B) Correctional officers are only authorized to wear issued badges with the correctional

officer class "A" or "e" uniform, and only while performing official duties, or while in uniform and
traveling to or returning from their official duty station.

(C) The use ofan issued badge as a credential for personal purposes is prohibited.
(D) Issued badges are considered state property and, except for retirement under specific

conditions or death in the line ofduty, are to be returned upon an employee's termination of
employment with the department or removal from a position in the Security Services Unit. Only
badges, which are issued by the department, shall be used to conduct officially designated duties.
Employees shall be responsible for reimbursing the department for any issued badge which is lost.

(E) Correctional officers and correctional probation officers who retire from the department
under honorable conditions from the Florida Retirement System, including retirement under medical
disability, shall be authorized to retain their issued badge.

(F) The badge of a correctional officer or a correctional probation officer who is killed in the
line ofduty shall be presented to the employee's next ofkin.

(G) Upon request, correctional officers and correctional probation officers who are promoted
or transferred to other positions may retain their badge if they are in good standing with the
department and pay the cost ofthe badge.

SECTION 4 - Class "A" Uniforms



\~~6T£l'2S Lee kL. .Joll AuY-CSt\t-
1d.-. D6 · \J-

'"Employees shall be required to wear Class "A" uniforms for the following occasions
only: executions. funerals. and court appearances.



Teamsters Local 2011 Proposal
12.04.12

Article 27

INSURANCE BENEFITS

The state agrees to administer the State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan in
accordance with any statutory pr,ovision 01' Act affecting the plaA or its operation. the current F\j"w{ ~- j4
General Appropriations Act and, if provided, the Summary Statement of Intent.



Teamsters Local 2011 Proposal
12.03.12

Article 28

TRAVEL EXPENSES

S.ECTION 1 - Travel Expenses - Institutions ~ General

With the prior approval of the Agency Head, travel expenses of employees incurred in the
performance of a public purpose authorized by law will be paid in accordance with section 112.061,
Florida Statutes, with the exception of Section 2 below. The state will make a goo€! faith effort to pay
travel vouchers within 30 days after they have been properly completed and submitted. Vouchers are
considered submitted when the employee submits them to. the local official designated by
management to receive such vouchers.

SECTION 2 - Travel Expenses - Institutions - "Hospital Duty"

All officers required to use their own vehicles for hospital duty, shall b~ reimbursed at the
current federal mileage rate, which will be adjusted, as required. in accordance with changes
published in the federal register.

SECTION 3 - Travel Expenses - Community Corrections

All officers who use their own vehicles to conduct field work and/or to attend court
proceedings and/or training, shall be reimbursed at the current federal mileage rate, which will be
adjusted, as required, in accordance with changes published in the federal register.



T.c1\i"Y1'S-'tl:.-125 L.O d.L ~ { \ A'2.('~t.

i d... O~. \ 0--

Article 32

ENTIRE AGREEMENT
SECTION 1 Agreement

(A) This Agreement supersedes and cancels all prior praetiees and agreemeHts, whether
written 0.£ oral, Iiflless eRpressly stated to the contrary herein, and eOllstitl:ltes the complete and efltire
agreement betvlecn the parties, and concludes collective bargaining for its term.

(B) The parties aelrnowledge that during the negotiations whieh resulted in this
Agreement, each had t:ae unlimited right and opporttlftity to make demands aad proposals with
respect to aft)' subjeet or matter not removed l3y lli\v from that area ofe01leoti'le bargainiRg, and that
the understandings and agreements arrivod at by the parties after the eKereise sfthet fight and
opportunity are set furth i:H this Agreement.

(C) &eept as to the aaove subjects, the state and the Union, for the duration of this
Agreement, each Yolliflterily and Hoqualifiedly \'+'-8i·'Ies the right, and each agrees that the other shall
not be obligated,te bargain eolleetiYely with respect to ao)' SHbjOGt or matter referred to, or covered
in this Agreement, even tholigh sHch subjects or matters may not have l3eea witHin the JmowJedge or
eontemplatioR of@ither or both of the parties at the time they negotiated or sigoed this Agreement.

SECTION 2 - Memorandum of Understandings Settlements

The parties recognize that during the term of this Agreement, situations may arise which
require terms and conditions not specifically and clearly set forth in the Agreement to be clarified or
amended. Under such circumstances, the Union is specifically authorized by employees to enter into
the settlement of grievance disputes or memorandums of understanding which clarify or amend this
Agreement without having to be ratified by employees.



Page 1 of 1

Article 13(5):Provides hand-held radios to all 
employees required to work in an area with no cell 
reception.

Indeterminate 

Article 18(1):Provides employees shall not be 
required to use special compensatory leave prior to 
the use of annual or regular compensatory leave.

Indeterminate 

Article 19:  Increases the amount provided for 
replacement of personal property from $300 to 
$750 for prescription glasses and total allowable per 
incident from $600 to $1000

The cost of an increase of $400 per incident for the replacement of 
personal property is dependent on the number of incidents that occur. 

Article 23(6)(B):Provides employees with special 
comp leave balances in excess of 240 hours as of 
June 30, 2012 the ability to use the hours in a 10 
year "phase out" period, or they will be eliminated 
with no value after 2023. Members with balances in 
excess of 540 hrs may receive a one time payout of 
up to 300 hours at 75% of the employees current 
rate of pay. If a member separates during the phase 
out period, special comp leave balances will be paid 
at the current rate of pay.

Indeterminate 
but significant Special Compensatory Leave issues are to be discussed.

Article 23(6)(C):Provides employees earning 
special comp leave after July 1, 2013 180 days to 
use the leave. If scheduling the leave will create 
staffing issues the agency must compensate the 
employee for the leave at the expiration of the 180 
days, at the current rate of pay.

Indeterminate 
but significant Special Compensatory Leave issues are to be discussed.

Article 24(2):Provides a minimum of 2 hours pay 
for employees called in for a meeting on a day other 
than a scheduled work day.

Indeterminate 

Article 25(1):  Provides at least a 3% increase in 
base pay for all DOC officers, 5% for those 
employed more between 4 and 6 years, and 7% for 
those with 7 or more years of service. 

$44.5M
Calculation is based on current active employees and excludes 
vacancies.  People First was the source of data for the calculation- 
Retirement and FICA included.

Article 25(7):  Provides members of the bargaining 
unit shall receive all cost of living adjustments and 
other uniformly paid wage increases at the same 
percentage level of those offered to other 
employees.

Indeterminate 
but significant

The Governor's Recommended Budget for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 has 
not been completed at this time.  Any additional cost to the collective 
bargaining member will be based on recommendations for state 
employee benefits in the Governor's Recommended Budget for Fiscal 
Year 2013-2014.  State employee wage and benefit recommendations 
will be presented at a later date.

Article 27: Propose that the State agree to 
administer the State Employees Group Health Self-
Insurance Plan in accordance with the GAA.

Indeterminate

The Governor's Recommended Budget for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 has 
not been completed at this time.  Any additional cost to the collective 
bargaining member will be based on recommendations for state 
employee benefits in the Governor's Recommended Budget for Fiscal 
Year 2013-2014.  State employee wage and benefit recommendations 
will be presented at a later date.

Article 28, section 2: Propose reimbursement at 
current federal mileage rates for officers who use 
their own vehicles for work.

$698,956 

Based on FY 2011-12 expenditures of $2.6M at the state rate of 
$0.445 per mile. Assuming an average of 5.8 M miles, the 2013 
Federal mileage rate of $0.565 per mile was used to calculate the 
increase in cost.

Teamsters- Security Services Bargaining Unit- (08)                                                                                                                                    
Fiscal Year 2013-14

Union/Issue Estimated 
Cost Comments



T
ea

m
st

er
s L

oc
al

 U
ni

on
 N

o.
 2

01
1 

Se
cu

ri
ty

 S
er

vi
ce

s U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

5,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

-1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 - 

A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 3

, 4
, 5

, 6
, 7

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

3,
 1

8,
 2

3,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 2

8,
 3

0,
 a

nd
 3

2 
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

3 
– 

V
ac

an
t 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

09
-1

3:
 

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f 1
2-

03
-1

2:
 

Pr
op

os
es

 re
in

st
at

em
en

t o
f f

or
m

er
 D

ue
s 

D
ed

uc
tio

n 
ar

tic
le

 a
nd

 c
on

tra
ct

 la
ng

ua
ge

 
th

at
 w

as
 re

m
ov

ed
/v

ac
at

ed
 a

s a
 re

su
lt 

of
 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 2

01
1-

12
 le

gi
sl

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ss

e 
re

so
lu

tio
n.

 

A
 c

er
tif

ie
d 

ba
rg

ai
ni

ng
 a

ge
nt

 
is

 a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 b

y 
s.4

47
.3

03
, 

F.
S.

, t
o 

ha
ve

 d
ue

s d
ed

uc
te

d 
fr

om
 th

e 
pa

y 
of

 u
ni

on
 

m
em

be
rs

; t
he

re
fo

re
 

au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
is

 n
ot

 re
qu

ire
d 

in
 th

e 
co

lle
ct

iv
e 

ba
rg

ai
ni

ng
 

ag
re

em
en

t. 
  

4 
– 

N
o 

D
is

cr
im

in
at

io
n 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

09
-1

3:
 

St
at

us
 q

uo
 

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f 0
2-

04
-1

3:
 

Pr
op

os
es

 ti
tle

 c
ha

ng
e 

to
 W

or
kp

la
ce

 
B

eh
av

io
r/N

o 
D

is
cr

im
in

at
io

n;
 a

dd
s a

 n
ew

 
Se

ct
io

n 
3 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
w

or
kp

la
ce

 b
eh

av
io

r, 
pr

op
os

in
g 

an
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t t
ha

t f
os

te
rs

 
m

ut
ua

l r
es

pe
ct

 a
nd

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

lis
m

 w
he

re
 

em
pl

oy
ee

s a
re

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 tr
ea

t o
th

er
s 

w
ith

 d
ig

ni
ty

 a
nd

 re
sp

ec
t; 

in
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
w

or
kp

la
ce

 b
eh

av
io

r i
s n

ot
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

gr
ie

va
nc

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e,

 h
ow

ev
er

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 is
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

d 
to

 re
po

rt 
th

is
 

be
ha

vi
or

 to
 th

e 
H

um
an

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 O

ff
ic

e 
in

 w
rit

in
g.

 
    

 



T
ea

m
st

er
s L

oc
al

 U
ni

on
 N

o.
 2

01
1 

Se
cu

ri
ty

 S
er

vi
ce

s U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

5,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

-1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 - 

A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 3

, 4
, 5

, 6
, 7

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

3,
 1

8,
 2

3,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 2

8,
 3

0,
 a

nd
 3

2 
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

5 
– 

U
ni

on
 A

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
nd

 
Em

pl
oy

ee
 R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
2-

05
-1

3:
 

Se
ct

io
n 

1 
– 

pr
op

os
es

 si
m

ila
r d

ef
in

iti
on

 
of

 “
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 A

ca
de

m
ie

s”
 to

 m
ea

n 
an

y 
lo

ca
tio

n 
w

he
re

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 is
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 
to

 m
ee

t i
ni

tia
l  c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

. 
 Se

ct
io

n 
2 

– 
ag

re
es

 w
ith

 th
e 

un
io

n’
s 

pr
op

os
al

. 
   Se

ct
io

n 
4 

– 
ag

re
es

 w
ith

 th
e 

un
io

n’
s 

pr
op

os
al

; m
ov

es
 th

is
 la

ng
ua

ge
 fr

om
 

Se
ct

io
n 

6.
 

   N
ew

 S
ec

tio
n 

7 
– 

N
ew

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 

O
rie

nt
at

io
n 

an
d 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 A
ca

de
m

ie
s –

 
pr

ov
id

es
 th

e 
un

io
n 

a 
15

-m
in

ut
e 

pe
rio

d 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 n
ew

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s a

t 
or

ie
nt

at
io

n 
or

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
ca

de
m

ie
s;

 1
4-

da
y 

ad
va

nc
e 

no
tic

e 
to

 u
ni

on
 w

he
ne

ve
r 

pr
ac

tic
ab

le
. 

  

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f 0
2-

04
-1

3:
 

Se
ct

io
n 

1 
– 

pr
op

os
es

 d
ef

in
iti

on
 o

f 
“T

ra
in

in
g 

A
ca

de
m

ie
s”

 to
 m

ea
n 

an
y 

lo
ca

tio
n 

w
he

re
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 is

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 to

 
m

ee
t c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t. 

  Se
ct

io
n 

2 
– 

am
en

ds
 re

fe
re

nc
es

 to
 

em
pl

oy
ee

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

Te
am

st
er

s’
 te

rm
in

ol
og

y,
 i.

e.
 st

ew
ar

ds
 a

nd
 

bu
si

ne
ss

 a
ge

nt
s. 

 Se
ct

io
n 

4 
– 

m
ov

es
 la

ng
ua

ge
 fr

om
 S

ec
tio

n 
6;

 p
ro

po
se

s t
he

 st
at

e 
pr

ov
id

e 
ac

cr
ed

ite
d 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 d

oc
um

en
ts

, 
or

 o
th

er
 p

ub
lic

 re
co

rd
s f

or
 th

e 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

of
 a

n 
em

pl
oy

ee
’s

 g
rie

va
nc

e.
 

 N
ew

 S
ec

tio
n 

7 
– 

N
ew

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 

O
rie

nt
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 T
ra

in
in

g 
A

ca
de

m
ie

s –
 

pr
op

os
es

 th
e 

un
io

n 
be

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 a

 1
5-

m
in

ut
e 

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 n

ew
 

em
pl

oy
ee

s a
t o

rie
nt

at
io

n 
or

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 
ac

ad
em

ie
s, 

w
ith

 1
4-

da
y 

no
tic

e 
to

 u
ni

on
 in

 
ad

va
nc

e 
of

 n
ew

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 tr

ai
ni

ng
. 

    

                 



T
ea

m
st

er
s L

oc
al

 U
ni

on
 N

o.
 2

01
1 

Se
cu

ri
ty

 S
er

vi
ce

s U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

5,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

-1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 - 

A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 3

, 4
, 5

, 6
, 7

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

3,
 1

8,
 2

3,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 2

8,
 3

0,
 a

nd
 3

2 
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

6 
– 

G
rie

va
nc

e 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

                            

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

25
-1

3:
 

Se
ct

io
n 

2 
– 

pr
op

os
es

 th
at

 a
ct

io
ns

 
ap

pe
al

ab
le

 to
 P

ER
C

 u
nd

er
 se

ct
io

n 
11

0.
22

7(
5)

, F
.S

., 
i.e

., 
su

sp
en

si
on

, 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 p

ay
, d

em
ot

io
n,

 
in

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
tra

ns
fe

r o
f m

or
e 

th
an

 5
0 

m
ile

s b
y 

hi
gh

w
ay

, a
nd

 d
is

m
is

sa
l, 

be
 

ap
pe

al
ed

 e
xc

lu
si

ve
ly

 to
 P

ER
C

 a
nd

 n
ot

 
be

 su
bj

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
gr

ie
va

nc
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
in

 A
rti

cl
e 

6;
 th

e 
ch

oi
ce

 o
f r

em
ed

ie
s i

s 
al

so
 st

ru
ck

 in
 A

rti
cl

e 
7,

 D
is

ci
pl

in
e 

an
d 

D
is

ch
ar

ge
. 

 Se
ct

io
n 

3(
E)

(1
) –

 p
ro

po
se

s t
he

 o
pt

io
n 

of
 in

iti
at

in
g 

a 
gr

ie
va

nc
e 

at
 th

e 
or

al
 

di
sc

us
si

on
 st

ep
 o

r a
t S

te
p 

1,
 th

e 
in

iti
al

 
w

rit
te

n 
st

ep
. 

 Se
ct

io
n 

3(
E)

(5
) –

 p
ro

po
se

s o
pt

io
n 

of
 

gr
ie

va
nc

e 
m

ed
ia

tio
n 

af
te

r t
he

 
gr

ie
va

nc
e 

ha
s b

ee
n 

ap
pe

al
ed

 to
 

ar
bi

tra
tio

n,
 b

ut
 b

ef
or

e 
a 

he
ar

in
g 

is
 

sc
he

du
le

d.
 

  Se
ct

io
n 

3(
E)

(6
) –

 p
ro

po
se

s a
n 

ex
pe

di
te

d 
ar

bi
tra

tio
n 

he
ar

in
g 

be
 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
w

he
re

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 th

re
sh

ol
d 

is
su

e 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

ar
bi

tra
bi

lit
y 

(s
uc

h 
as

 
tim

el
in

es
s)

; a
no

th
er

 a
rb

itr
at

or
 w

ill
 

he
ar

 su
bs

ta
nt

iv
e 

is
su

es
. 

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f 0
2-

04
-1

3:
 

Se
ct

io
n 

2 
– 

pr
op

os
es

 st
at

us
 q

uo
; r

ej
ec

ts
 

st
at

e 
pr

op
os

al
 fo

r P
ER

C
 to

 b
e 

th
e 

ex
cl

us
iv

e 
re

m
ed

y 
fo

r d
is

ci
pl

in
ar

y 
ac

tio
ns

. 
         Se

ct
io

n 
3(

E)
(1

) –
 a

gr
ee

s w
ith

 st
at

e 
pr

op
os

al
. 

   Se
ct

io
n 

3(
E)

(5
) –

 p
ro

po
se

s s
ta

tu
s q

uo
 th

at
 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
 g

rie
va

nc
e 

m
ay

 b
e 

su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 

m
ed

ia
tio

n 
ei

th
er

 p
rio

r t
o 

th
e 

gr
ie

va
nc

e 
be

in
g 

su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 a

rb
itr

at
io

n 
or

 a
fte

r i
t 

ha
s b

ee
n 

su
bm

itt
ed

 b
ut

 b
ef

or
e 

a 
he

ar
in

g 
is

 
sc

he
du

le
d.

 
 Se

ct
io

n 
3(

E)
(6

) –
 re

je
ct

s s
ta

te
 p

ro
po

sa
l 

  

 



T
ea

m
st

er
s L

oc
al

 U
ni

on
 N

o.
 2

01
1 

Se
cu

ri
ty

 S
er

vi
ce

s U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

5,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

-1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 - 

A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 3

, 4
, 5

, 6
, 7

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

3,
 1

8,
 2

3,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 2

8,
 3

0,
 a

nd
 3

2 
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

7 
– 

D
is

ci
pl

in
e 

an
d 

D
is

ch
ar

ge
 

                           

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

25
-1

3:
 

Se
ct

io
n 

1 
– 

pr
op

os
es

 re
du

ct
io

ns
 in

 
ba

se
 p

ay
, d

em
ot

io
ns

, i
nv

ol
un

ta
ry

 
tra

ns
fe

rs
 o

f m
or

e 
th

an
 5

0 
m

ile
s, 

su
sp

en
si

on
s, 

an
d 

di
sm

is
sa

ls
 a

re
 n

ot
 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
gr

ie
va

nc
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
in

 
A

rti
cl

e 
6,

 b
ut

 m
ay

 b
e 

ap
pe

al
ed

 to
 th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
s R

el
at

io
ns

 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 a

s t
he

 e
xc

lu
si

ve
 re

m
ed

y 
fo

r s
uc

h 
ac

tio
ns

; 
 m

ov
es

 la
ng

ua
ge

 fr
om

 A
rti

cl
e 

12
, 

Se
ct

io
n 

3 
an

d 
am

en
ds

: c
ou

ns
el

in
g 

is
 

no
t d

is
ci

pl
in

e 
an

d 
is

 n
ot

 g
rie

va
bl

e,
 a

nd
 

w
ill

 n
ot

 b
ec

om
e 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
’s

 o
ff

ic
ia

l p
er

so
nn

el
 fi

le
, b

ut
 

m
ay

 b
e 

us
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

st
at

e 
in

 a
n 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
he

ar
in

g 
in

vo
lv

in
g 

an
 

em
pl

oy
ee

’s
 d

is
ci

pl
in

e 
to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
 w

as
 o

n 
no

tic
e 

of
 th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 d

ef
ic

ie
nc

ie
s o

r c
on

du
ct

 
co

nc
er

ns
; 

       

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f 0
2-

04
-1

3:
 

Se
ct

io
n 

1 
– 

pr
op

os
es

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f 
C

or
re

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f C

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

Fa
m

ili
es

 w
ill

 n
ot

 u
til

iz
e 

cu
m

ul
at

iv
e 

di
sc

ip
lin

e;
 re

je
ct

s s
ta

te
 p

ro
po

sa
l f

or
 P

ER
C

 
as

 th
e 

ex
cl

us
iv

e 
re

m
ed

y 
fo

r c
er

ta
in

 
di

sc
ip

lin
ar

y 
ac

tio
ns

; 
    m

ov
es

 la
ng

ua
ge

 fr
om

 A
rti

cl
e 

12
, S

ec
tio

n 
3 

an
d 

am
en

ds
: t

he
 st

at
e 

m
ay

 is
su

e 
C

ou
ns

el
in

g 
N

ot
ic

es
 o

r S
up

er
vi

so
ry

 
C

ou
ns

el
in

g 
M

em
or

an
da

 w
hi

ch
 sh

al
l n

ot
 

be
co

m
e 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
’s

 o
ff

ic
ia

l 
pe

rs
on

ne
l f

ile
; s

uc
h 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
m

ay
 

be
 u

se
d 

by
 th

e 
st

at
e 

in
 a

n 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

he
ar

in
g 

in
vo

lv
in

g 
an

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
’s

 
di

sc
ip

lin
e 

to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
 

w
as

 o
n 

no
tic

e 
of

 th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
de

fic
ie

nc
ie

s o
r c

on
du

ct
 c

on
ce

rn
s, 

so
 lo

ng
 

as
 th

e 
is

su
es

 in
 th

e 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n 

oc
cu

rr
ed

 w
ith

in
 6

 m
on

th
s i

m
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 
pr

io
r t

o 
th

e 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

he
ar

in
g;

 
    

A
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 h

as
 

th
e 

op
tio

n 
of

 a
pp

ea
lin

g 
di

sc
ip

lin
ar

y 
ac

tio
ns

 
re

fe
re

nc
ed

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
1 

to
 

PE
R

C
, o

r g
rie

vi
ng

 su
ch

 
ac

tio
ns

 u
til

iz
in

g 
th

e 
gr

ie
va

nc
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
in

 
A

rti
cl

e 
6.

  T
he

 st
at

e 
pr

op
os

es
 P

ER
C

 a
s t

he
 

ex
cl

us
iv

e 
re

m
ed

y 
fo

r 
re

vi
ew

 o
f s

uc
h 

ac
tio

ns
. 

B
en

ef
its

: t
he

 h
ig

h 
co

st
 o

f 
ar

bi
tra

tio
ns

 v
s. 

PE
R

C
 a

t n
o 

co
st

 to
 th

e 
ag

en
ci

es
; 

sc
he

du
lin

g 
di

ff
ic

ul
tie

s w
ith

 
ar

bi
tra

to
rs

 v
s. 

an
 e

xp
ed

iti
ou

s h
ea

rin
g 

an
d 

de
ci

si
on

 fr
om

 
PE

R
C

; e
xp

er
ie

nc
ed

 h
ea

rin
g 

of
fic

er
s f

am
ili

ar
 w

ith
 

ag
en

cy
 m

is
si

on
s;

 P
ER

C
 

or
de

rs
 a

re
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
gu

id
an

ce
 to

 
ag

en
ci

es
 w

he
n 

si
m

ila
r 

is
su

es
 a

ris
e;

 a
nd

 a
pp

ea
ls

 to
 

di
st

ric
t c

ou
rts

. 
   



T
ea

m
st

er
s L

oc
al

 U
ni

on
 N

o.
 2

01
1 

Se
cu

ri
ty

 S
er

vi
ce

s U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

5,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

-1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 - 

A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 3

, 4
, 5

, 6
, 7

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

3,
 1

8,
 2

3,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 2

8,
 3

0,
 a

nd
 3

2 
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

7 
– 

D
is

ci
pl

in
e 

an
d 

D
is

ch
ar

ge
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
                           

Se
ct

io
n 

1 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
 w

rit
te

n 
re

pr
im

an
ds

 m
ay

 b
e 

gr
ie

ve
d 

on
ly

 u
p 

to
 S

te
p 

2;
 

 pr
op

os
es

 st
at

us
 q

uo
; r

ej
ec

ts
 u

ni
on

 
pr

op
os

al
; 

     pr
op

os
es

 st
at

us
 q

uo
 la

ng
ua

ge
 th

at
 

pr
ov

id
es

 th
e 

ag
en

cy
 m

ay
 d

ed
uc

t 
sp

ec
ia

l c
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

in
 li

eu
 o

f 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
 se

rv
in

g 
th

e 
su

sp
en

si
on

; 
 st

rik
es

 re
fe

re
nc

es
 to

 o
ra

l r
ep

rim
an

ds
, 

pr
og

re
ss

iv
e 

di
sc

ip
lin

e,
 a

nd
 w

rit
te

n 
re

pr
im

an
ds

 c
on

ta
in

in
g 

cr
im

in
al

 
al

le
ga

tio
ns

 o
r c

rim
in

al
 c

ha
rg

es
 b

ei
ng

 
gr

ie
va

bl
e 

to
 a

rb
itr

at
io

n.
 

 Se
ct

io
n 

5 
– 

pr
op

os
es

 st
at

us
 q

uo
; 

re
je

ct
s u

ni
on

 p
ro

po
sa

l. 
 

Se
ct

io
n 

1 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
 w

rit
te

n 
re

pr
im

an
ds

 m
ay

 b
e 

gr
ie

ve
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

ar
bi

tra
tio

n 
st

ep
; 

 ex
te

nd
s c

ur
re

nt
 la

ng
ua

ge
 th

at
 is

 sp
ec

ifi
c 

to
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f C

or
re

ct
io

ns
 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
a 

st
ay

 o
f s

us
pe

ns
io

n 
to

 a
ll 

ag
en

ci
es

 w
ith

 b
ar

ga
in

in
g 

un
it 

em
pl

oy
ee

s, 
an

d 
gi

ve
s t

he
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

, n
ot

 th
e 

ag
en

cy
, 

th
e 

op
tio

n 
to

 st
ay

 th
e 

su
sp

en
si

on
; 

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 m
ay

 v
ol

un
ta

ril
y 

el
ec

t  t
o 

ha
ve

 sp
ec

ia
l c

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
de

du
ct

ed
 in

 li
eu

 o
f s

er
vi

ng
 a

 su
sp

en
si

on
; 

  ag
re

es
 w

ith
 th

e 
st

at
e 

pr
op

os
al

. 
     Se

ct
io

n 
5 

– 
pr

op
os

es
 w

he
re

 a
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

 
is

 re
pr

es
en

te
d 

by
 th

e 
un

io
n 

in
 a

 
pr

ed
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

co
nf

er
en

ce
, t

he
 u

ni
on

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e 

sh
al

l b
e 

no
tif

ie
d 

of
 th

e 
di

sp
os

iti
on

 o
f t

he
 c

on
fe

re
nc

e.
 

 

      In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fr
om

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f C
or

re
ct

io
ns

 
in

di
ca

te
s t

ha
t i

n 
a 

m
aj

or
ity

 
of

 c
as

es
, t

he
 w

ar
de

ns
 

cu
rr

en
tly

 d
ef

er
 to

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 

pr
ef

er
en

ce
. 

            Th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f 
C

or
re

ct
io

ns
 re

sp
on

ds
 it

 is
 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

’s
 o

bl
ig

at
io

n 
to

 in
fo

rm
 h

is
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e 

of
 th

e 
ou

tc
om

e.
 



T
ea

m
st

er
s L

oc
al

 U
ni

on
 N

o.
 2

01
1 

Se
cu

ri
ty

 S
er

vi
ce

s U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

5,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

-1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 - 

A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 3

, 4
, 5

, 6
, 7

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

3,
 1

8,
 2

3,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 2

8,
 3

0,
 a

nd
 3

2 
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

9 
– 

R
ea

ss
ig

nm
en

t, 
Tr

an
sf

er
, C

ha
ng

e 
in

 D
ut

y 
St

at
io

n 
                          

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

09
-1

3:
 

      Se
ct

io
n 

2 
– 

ex
te

nd
s t

he
 ti

tle
 o

f t
he

 
re

qu
es

t f
or

m
 a

s p
ro

po
se

d 
by

 th
e 

un
io

n 
on

 1
2-

04
-1

2;
 p

ro
vi

de
s w

he
n 

an
 

em
pl

oy
ee

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

as
si

gn
ed

 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 to

 a
 re

qu
es

t f
ile

d 
un

de
r t

hi
s 

ar
tic

le
, n

o 
ot

he
r r

eq
ue

st
 m

ay
 b

e 
fil

ed
 

fo
r a

 p
er

io
d 

of
 1

2 
m

on
th

s;
 re

je
ct

s 
un

io
n 

pr
op

os
al

 fo
r r

ea
ss

ig
nm

en
t o

f 
D

C
F 

In
st

itu
tio

na
l S

pe
ci

al
is

ts
 to

 D
O

C
 

C
or

re
ct

io
na

l O
ff

ic
er

s. 
            

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f 0
2-

05
-1

3:
 

Se
ct

io
n 

1 
– 

pr
op

os
es

 th
e 

de
fin

iti
on

 o
f 

“M
aj

or
 In

st
itu

tio
n”

 b
e 

am
en

de
d 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

fa
ci

lit
y 

an
d 

sa
te

lli
te

/s
is

te
r 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s u
nd

er
 th

e 
co

nt
ro

l o
f o

ne
 w

ar
de

n 
(D

O
C

) o
r a

dm
in

is
tra

to
r  (

D
C

F)
. 

 Se
ct

io
n 

2 
– 

pr
op

os
es

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s i

n 
D

C
F 

ha
ve

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 a

pp
ly

 fo
r v

ac
an

t 
po

si
tio

ns
 in

 D
O

C
. 

                   

Th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f 
C

or
re

ct
io

ns
 re

sp
on

ds
 th

at
 

of
fic

er
s i

n 
bo

th
 a

ge
nc

ie
s a

re
 

“c
er

tif
ie

d”
, b

ut
 th

ei
r 

tra
in

in
g 

is
 su

bs
ta

nt
ia

lly
 

di
ff

er
en

t w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 
pr

ec
lu

de
 th

e 
ty

pe
 o

f a
ge

nc
y-

to
-a

ge
nc

y 
m

ov
em

en
t 

pr
op

os
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

U
ni

on
.  

Th
e 

fa
ct

 th
at

 c
la

ss
 

tit
le

s (
co

rr
ec

tio
na

l o
ff

ic
er

s 
an

d 
in

st
itu

tio
na

l s
ec

ur
ity

 
sp

ec
ia

lis
ts

) a
re

 d
iff

er
en

t 
su

gg
es

ts
 d

iff
er

en
tia

tio
n 

w
as

 
m

ad
e 

w
he

n 
cl

as
si

fic
at

io
ns

 
w

er
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

fo
r t

he
se

 
po

si
tio

ns
. E

m
pl

oy
ee

s m
ay

 
ap

pl
y 

fo
r a

ny
 v

ac
an

cy
 fo

r 
w

hi
ch

 th
ey

 a
re

 q
ua

lif
ie

d 
ho

w
ev

er
 th

e 
st

at
e 

is
 n

ot
 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
of

 a
 c

on
tra

ct
ua

l 
re

as
si

gn
m

en
t p

ro
ce

du
re

 a
s 

pr
op

os
ed

 th
at

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
gr

ie
va

bl
e 

to
 a

rb
itr

at
io

n.
 

     



T
ea

m
st

er
s L

oc
al

 U
ni

on
 N

o.
 2

01
1 

Se
cu

ri
ty

 S
er

vi
ce

s U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

5,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

-1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 - 

A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 3

, 4
, 5

, 6
, 7

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

3,
 1

8,
 2

3,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 2

8,
 3

0,
 a

nd
 3

2 
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

9 
– 

R
ea

ss
ig

nm
en

t, 
Tr

an
sf

er
, C

ha
ng

e 
in

 D
ut

y 
St

at
io

n 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
                    

Se
ct

io
n 

3 
– 

pr
op

os
es

 st
at

us
 q

uo
 

la
ng

ua
ge

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

fo
r 

ag
en

ci
es

 to
 e

ff
ec

t a
n 

in
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

re
as

si
gn

m
en

t, 
tra

ns
fe

r, 
or

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 

du
ty

 st
at

io
n 

of
 a

n 
em

pl
oy

ee
 a

cc
or

di
ng

 
to

 th
e 

ne
ed

s o
f t

he
 a

ge
nc

y;
 re

je
ct

s 
un

io
n 

pr
op

os
al

; 
      pr

op
os

es
 st

at
us

 q
uo

 la
ng

ua
ge

  t
ha

t 
pr

ov
id

es
 th

e 
ag

en
cy

 w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
re

qu
es

ts
 fr

om
 v

ol
un

te
er

s, 
em

pl
oy

ee
 

se
ni

or
ity

, a
nd

 th
e 

ne
ed

s o
f t

he
 a

ge
nc

y 
in

 m
ak

in
g 

su
ch

 re
as

si
gn

m
en

ts
; r

ej
ec

ts
 

un
io

n 
pr

op
os

al
. 

   Se
ct

io
n 

6 
– 

pr
op

os
es

 st
at

us
 q

uo
 

la
ng

ua
ge

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 g

rie
va

bi
lit

y 
to

 
St

ep
 3

; r
ej

ec
ts

 u
ni

on
 p

ro
po

sa
l. 

    

Se
ct

io
n 

3 
– 

pr
op

os
es

 c
on

tra
ct

 la
ng

ua
ge

 
fr

om
 a

 p
re

vi
ou

s c
on

tra
ct

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 th

e 
ag

en
cy

 w
ill

 m
ak

e 
a 

go
od

 fa
ith

 e
ff

or
t t

o 
ef

fe
ct

 in
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

re
as

si
gn

m
en

t, 
tra

ns
fe

r, 
or

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 d

ut
y 

st
at

io
n 

on
ly

 w
he

n 
di

ct
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ne

ed
s o

f t
he

 a
ge

nc
y,

 a
nd

 
w

ill
 ta

ke
 in

to
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

th
e 

ne
ed

s a
nd

 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s o

f t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 p

rio
r t

o 
ta

ki
ng

 su
ch

 a
ct

io
n;

 p
ro

po
se

s f
or

 D
O

C
 th

at
 

A
rti

cl
e 

23
, S

ec
tio

n 
2(

B
)(

2)
 a

pp
lie

s;
 

   pr
op

os
es

 in
 in

st
an

ce
s w

he
re

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f C
or

re
ct

io
ns

 d
et

er
m

in
es

 
th

an
 a

n 
ex

ce
ss

iv
e 

ca
se

lo
ad

 a
t a

 p
ro

ba
tio

n 
of

fic
e 

re
qu

ire
s t

he
 re

as
si

gn
m

en
t o

f a
n 

of
fic

er
, s

uc
h 

re
as

si
gn

m
en

t s
ha

ll 
fir

st
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

on
 a

 v
ol

un
te

er
 b

as
is

 a
nd

 n
ex

t o
n 

th
e 

ba
si

s o
f s

en
io

rit
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

le
as

t s
en

io
r 

of
fic

er
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

re
as

si
gn

m
en

t. 
 Se

ct
io

n 
6 

– 
pr

op
os

es
 st

rik
in

g 
pr

oh
ib

iti
on

 
to

 g
rie

ve
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s o
f t

hi
s a

rti
cl

e,
 th

er
eb

y 
al

lo
w

in
g 

gr
ie

va
nc

es
 in

vo
lv

in
g 

th
is

 a
rti

cl
e 

to
 b

e 
ap

pe
al

ed
 to

 a
rb

itr
at

io
n.

 
  

        A
rti

cl
e 

23
, S

ec
tio

n 
2(

B
)(

2)
 

is
 sp

ec
ifi

c 
to

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 

sh
ift

s, 
sh

ift
 c

ha
ng

es
, a

nd
 

re
gu

la
r d

ay
s o

ff
 (h

ou
rs

 o
f 

w
or

k)
, n

ot
 re

as
si

gn
m

en
ts

. 
        



T
ea

m
st

er
s L

oc
al

 U
ni

on
 N

o.
 2

01
1 

Se
cu

ri
ty

 S
er

vi
ce

s U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

5,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

-1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 - 

A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 3

, 4
, 5

, 6
, 7

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

3,
 1

8,
 2

3,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 2

8,
 3

0,
 a

nd
 3

2 
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

10
 –

 P
ro

m
ot

io
ns

 
St

at
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 o
f 0

2-
05

-1
3:

 
Pr

op
os

es
 st

at
us

 q
uo

 la
ng

ua
ge

 w
ith

 th
e 

ad
di

tio
n 

of
 D

O
C

 P
ro

ce
du

re
 2

08
-0

05
 

ad
de

d 
as

 A
pp

en
di

x 
D

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
3.

 
 Se

ct
io

n 
4 

– 
pr

op
os

es
 st

at
us

 q
uo

 
la

ng
ua

ge
; r

ej
ec

ts
 u

ni
on

 p
ro

po
sa

l. 

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f 0
2-

04
-1

3:
 

    Se
ct

io
n 

4 
– 

Pr
op

os
es

 a
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

 w
ho

 
ha

s a
tta

in
ed

 p
er

m
an

en
t s

ta
tu

s i
n 

hi
s 

po
si

tio
n 

sh
al

l n
ot

 lo
se

 p
er

m
an

en
t s

ta
tu

s i
n 

su
ch

 p
os

iti
on

 o
r b

ro
ad

ba
nd

 le
ve

l w
ith

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
ag

en
cy

 a
nd

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
ca

re
er

 se
rv

ic
e 

sy
st

em
.  

 

     U
ni

on
 p

ro
po

sa
l c

on
fli

ct
s 

w
ith

 S
ec

tio
n 

11
0.

21
7(

2)
, 

F.
S.

; p
er

m
an

en
t s

ta
tu

s i
s 

at
ta

in
ed

 o
nl

y 
in

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

’s
 c

ur
re

nt
 p

os
iti

on
 

up
on

 su
cc

es
sf

ul
 c

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e 

pr
ob

at
io

na
ry

 p
er

io
d;

 
th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
pe

rm
an

en
t s

ta
tu

s 
in

 th
e 

ca
re

er
 se

rv
ic

e 
sy

st
em

.  
    

13
 –

 S
af

et
y 

          

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

25
-1

3:
 

Pr
op

os
es

 st
at

us
 q

uo
 

 

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f 0
2-

04
-1

3:
 

Se
ct

io
n 

5 
– 

pr
op

os
es

 a
 su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 n
um

be
r 

of
 ra

di
os

 in
 e

ac
h 

pr
ob

at
io

n 
an

d 
pa

ro
le

 
of

fic
e 

su
ch

 th
at

 e
ac

h 
of

fic
er

 h
as

 a
cc

es
s t

o 
a 

ra
di

o 
w

he
n 

co
nd

uc
tin

g 
fie

ld
 w

or
k;

 
au

th
or

iz
es

 c
or

re
ct

io
na

l p
ro

ba
tio

n 
of

fic
er

s 
ce

rti
fie

d 
to

 c
ar

ry
 a

 fi
re

ar
m

 to
 c

ar
ry

 h
is

 
w

ea
po

n 
an

d 
2 

ad
di

tio
na

l a
m

m
un

iti
on

 
m

ag
az

in
es

 a
t a

ll 
tim

es
 w

hi
le

 o
n 

du
ty

 a
nd

 
tra

ve
lin

g 
to

 a
nd

 fr
om

 w
or

k.
 

 

C
os

t e
st

im
at

e:
 

in
de

te
rm

in
at

e 
bu

t 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

  
C

el
l p

ho
ne

s/
ra

di
os

:  
Th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f C

or
re

ct
io

ns
’ 

LB
R

 re
qu

es
t f

or
 2

01
3-

14
 

in
cl

ud
es

 $
2,

57
2,

50
0 

fo
r 

ra
di

o 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

 re
pl

ac
em

en
t a

nd
 

$2
91

,0
31

 in
 re

cu
rr

in
g 

co
st

s 
fo

r s
of

t b
od

y 
ar

m
or

.  
 



T
ea

m
st

er
s L

oc
al

 U
ni

on
 N

o.
 2

01
1 

Se
cu

ri
ty

 S
er

vi
ce

s U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

5,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

-1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 - 

A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 3

, 4
, 5

, 6
, 7

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

3,
 1

8,
 2

3,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 2

8,
 3

0,
 a

nd
 3

2 
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

13
 –

 S
af

et
y 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

  

N
ew

 S
ec

tio
n 

7 
– 

Pe
rs

on
al

 S
af

et
y 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t a
nd

 V
eh

ic
le

s –
 p

ro
po

se
s a

ll 
sa

fe
ty

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t i

ss
ue

d 
by

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f C
or

re
ct

io
ns

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 
m

an
uf

ac
tu

re
r s

af
et

y 
st

an
da

rd
s f

or
 b

ul
le

t-
pr

oo
f v

es
ts

, r
ad

io
s, 

an
d 

pe
rs

on
al

 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

eq
ui

pm
en

t; 
al

l s
ta

te
-o

w
ne

d 
ve

hi
cl

es
 u

se
d 

by
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s m
us

t c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 st
at

e 
an

d 
fe

de
ra

l D
O

T 
st

an
da

rd
s f

or
 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 v
eh

ic
le

s a
nd

 b
e 

in
 so

un
d 

w
or

ki
ng

 o
rd

er
; n

o 
em

pl
oy

ee
 to

 b
e 

he
ld

 
fin

an
ci

al
ly

 re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r t

ow
in

g 
or

 
re

pa
ir 

co
st

s o
f a

 st
at

e-
ow

ne
d 

ve
hi

cl
e.

 
 

Fi
re

ar
m

s:
  T

he
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
of

 C
or

re
ct

io
ns

 is
 a

m
en

di
ng

 
its

 U
se

 o
f F

or
ce

 P
ro

ce
du

re
 

au
th

or
iz

in
g 

P&
P 

of
fic

er
s t

o 
ha

ve
 fi

re
ar

m
s s

ec
ur

ed
 in

 
in

di
vi

du
al

 lo
ck

bo
xe

s 
(p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 th

e 
ag

en
cy

) a
t 

th
ei

r w
or

k 
st

at
io

ns
. 

 St
af

fin
g:

  T
he

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 C

or
re

ct
io

ns
’ L

B
R

 
re

qu
es

t f
or

 2
01

3-
14

 
in

cl
ud

es
 $

12
,4

50
,9

12
 fo

r 
ad

di
tio

na
l s

ta
ff

in
g.

 
  



T
ea

m
st

er
s L

oc
al

 U
ni

on
 N

o.
 2

01
1 

Se
cu

ri
ty

 S
er

vi
ce

s U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

5,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

-1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 - 

A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 3

, 4
, 5

, 6
, 7

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

3,
 1

8,
 2

3,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 2

8,
 3

0,
 a

nd
 3

2 
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

18
 –

 L
ea

ve
s o

f A
bs

en
ce

 
St

at
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 o
f 0

1-
09

-1
3:

 
St

at
us

 q
uo

 
U

ni
on

 P
ro

po
sa

l o
f 0

2-
05

-1
3:

 
Se

ct
io

n 
1 

– 
pr

op
os

es
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s s
ha

ll 
no

t 
be

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 u

se
 sp

ec
ia

l c
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

pr
io

r t
o 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 a

nn
ua

l o
r r

eg
ul

ar
 

co
m

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e,

 o
r b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 u
se

 
sp

ec
ia

l c
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

fo
r 

ne
go

tia
tio

n 
co

m
m

itt
ee

 ti
m

e.
 

 Se
ct

io
n 

2 
– 

pr
op

os
es

 “
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 T
im

e”
 d

ef
in

ed
 a

s t
im

e 
gr

an
te

d 
to

 a
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

 se
rv

in
g 

on
 th

e 
un

io
n’

s 
ne

go
tia

tio
n 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 to

 a
tte

nd
 

ne
go

tia
tio

n 
pr

ep
ar

at
or

y 
m

ee
tin

gs
 a

nd
 

ne
go

tia
tio

ns
 se

ss
io

ns
, a

nd
 sh

al
l c

ou
nt

 a
s 

tim
e 

w
or

ke
d;

 a
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

 sh
al

l b
e 

cr
ed

ite
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f h
ou

rs
 in

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

’s
 re

gu
la

r w
or

kd
ay

 fo
r a

ny
 d

ay
 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 is
 in

 n
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 a
nd

 
ne

go
tia

tio
n 

pr
ep

ar
at

or
y 

m
ee

tin
gs

; t
he

 
ho

ur
s w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
co

un
te

d 
as

 h
ou

rs
 w

or
ke

d 
fo

r t
he

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f c

om
pu

tin
g 

ov
er

tim
e,

 h
ow

ev
er

 a
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

 sh
al

l n
ot

 
be

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 w

or
k 

ad
di

tio
na

l h
ou

rs
 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
w

or
k 

pe
rio

d 
to

 o
ff

se
t t

he
 

ne
go

tia
tio

n 
co

m
m

itt
ee

 ti
m

e.
 

    

 



T
ea

m
st

er
s L

oc
al

 U
ni

on
 N

o.
 2

01
1 

Se
cu

ri
ty

 S
er

vi
ce

s U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

5,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

-1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 - 

A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 3

, 4
, 5

, 6
, 7

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

3,
 1

8,
 2

3,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 2

8,
 3

0,
 a

nd
 3

2 
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

23
 –

 H
ou

rs
 o

f 
W

or
k/

O
ve

rti
m

e 
                           

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

25
-1

3:
 

Se
ct

io
n 

1(
A

) –
 P

ro
po

se
s t

he
 n

or
m

al
 

w
or

kd
ay

 is
 8

 h
ou

rs
 o

r 1
2 

ho
ur

s;
 th

e 
no

rm
al

 w
or

kd
ay

 fo
r D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f 

C
or

re
ct

io
ns

’ e
m

pl
oy

ee
s a

ss
ig

ne
d 

to
 

pu
bl

ic
 o

r D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

w
or

k 
sq

ua
ds

 is
 1

0 
ho

ur
s. 

 Se
ct

io
n 

1(
D

) –
 c

la
rif

ie
s m

an
ag

em
en

t’s
 

rig
ht

 to
 a

pp
ro

ve
 ti

m
e 

of
f f

or
 it

s 
em

pl
oy

ee
s;

 fa
ilu

re
 to

 a
pp

ro
ve

 re
qu

es
ts

 
fo

r t
im

e 
of

f s
ha

ll 
no

t b
e 

gr
ie

va
bl

e.
 

 

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f 1
2-

04
-1

2:
 

 Se
ct

io
n 

6(
B

) –
 S

pe
ci

al
 C

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

Le
av

e 
Ea

rn
ed

 P
rio

r t
o 

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
2:

 
pr

op
os

es
 fo

r e
m

pl
oy

ee
s w

ith
 sp

ec
ia

l 
co

m
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
ba

la
nc

es
 in

 e
xc

es
s o

f 
24

0 
ho

ur
s a

s o
f J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
2,

 a
 te

n-
ye

ar
 

“p
ha

se
-o

ut
 p

er
io

d”
 to

 re
du

ce
 sp

ec
ia

l 
co

m
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
ba

la
nc

es
; e

xc
es

s 
ho

ur
s n

ot
 u

se
d 

by
 Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

02
3 

w
ill

 b
e 

el
im

in
at

ed
; f

or
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s w
ith

 sp
ec

ia
l 

co
m

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

ba
la

nc
es

 o
f a

t l
ea

st
 

54
0 

ho
ur

s, 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
 m

ay
 re

qu
es

t a
nd

 
re

ce
iv

e 
a 

on
e-

tim
e 

pa
yo

ut
 o

f u
p 

to
 3

00
 

ho
ur

s p
ay

ab
le

 a
t a

 d
is

co
un

te
d 

ra
te

 o
f 7

5%
 

of
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
’s

 c
ur

re
nt

 ra
te

 o
f p

ay
; f

or
 

em
pl

oy
ee

s w
ho

 se
pa

ra
te

 fr
om

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
in

g 
ag

en
cy

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ph
as

e-
ou

t 
pe

rio
d,

 p
ay

 a
ll 

sp
ec

ia
l c

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
ea

rn
ed

 b
ef

or
e 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

2 
at

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

’s
 c

ur
re

nt
 ra

te
 o

f p
ay

; 
em

pl
oy

ee
s m

ay
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 re
du

ce
 

sp
ec

ia
l c

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

le
av

e 
cr

ed
it 

ba
la

nc
es

, b
ut

 o
nl

y 
ba

la
nc

es
 a

bo
ve

 2
40

 
ho

ur
s, 

an
d 

re
qu

ire
d 

le
av

e 
sh

al
l b

e 
sc

he
du

le
d 

in
 in

cr
em

en
ts

 o
f t

im
e 

eq
ua

l t
o 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

’s
 n

or
m

al
 h

ou
rs

 o
f w

or
k.

 
  

  C
os

t e
st

im
at

e:
 

in
de

te
rm

in
at

e 
bu

t 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 



T
ea

m
st

er
s L

oc
al

 U
ni

on
 N

o.
 2

01
1 

Se
cu

ri
ty

 S
er

vi
ce

s U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

5,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

-1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 - 

A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 3

, 4
, 5

, 6
, 7

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

3,
 1

8,
 2

3,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 2

8,
 3

0,
 a

nd
 3

2 
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

23
 –

 H
ou

rs
 o

f 
W

or
k/

O
ve

rti
m

e 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
                  

Se
ct

io
n 

6(
C

) –
 S

pe
ci

al
 C

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

Le
av

e 
Ea

rn
ed

 O
n 

or
 A

fte
r J

ul
y 

1,
 2

01
3:

 
pr

op
os

es
 if

 sc
he

du
lin

g 
of

 sp
ec

ia
l 

co
m

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
18

0 
ca

le
nd

ar
 d

ay
 e

xt
en

si
on

 w
ou

ld
 p

re
ve

nt
 th

e 
ag

en
cy

 fr
om

 m
ee

tin
g 

m
in

im
um

 st
af

fin
g 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
pu

bl
ic

 sa
fe

ty
, t

he
 

ag
en

cy
 m

us
t c

om
pe

ns
at

e 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
 

fo
r t

he
 le

av
e 

at
 th

e 
ex

pi
ra

tio
n 

of
 1

80
 d

ay
s, 

at
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
’s

 c
ur

re
nt

 ra
te

 o
f p

ay
; 

pr
op

os
es

 st
rik

in
g 

pr
oh

ib
iti

on
 fo

r p
ay

ou
t 

of
 u

nu
se

d 
sp

ec
ia

l c
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

ea
rn

ed
 o

n 
or

 a
fte

r J
ul

y 
1,

 2
01

2.
 

 Se
ct

io
n 

6(
D

) –
 p

ro
po

se
s s

tri
ki

ng
 th

at
 

un
le

ss
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
pr

oh
ib

ite
d 

by
 la

w
 o

r 
ru

le
, a

ll 
re

qu
es

ts
 fo

r u
se

 o
f a

pp
ro

ve
d 

le
av

e,
 o

th
er

 th
an

 a
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
le

av
e,

 
sh

al
l f

irs
t b

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
to

 a
ny

 sp
ec

ia
l 

co
m

pe
ns

at
or

y 
le

av
e 

cr
ed

its
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
 

ha
s a

cc
ru

ed
. 

 



T
ea

m
st

er
s L

oc
al

 U
ni

on
 N

o.
 2

01
1 

Se
cu

ri
ty

 S
er

vi
ce

s U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

5,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

-1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 - 

A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 3

, 4
, 5

, 6
, 7

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

3,
 1

8,
 2

3,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 2

8,
 3

0,
 a

nd
 3

2 
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

25
 –

 W
ag

es
 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

30
-1

3:
 

Se
ct

io
n 

1 
– 

Pr
op

os
es

 p
ay

 sh
al

l b
e 

in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 th

e 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 2
01

3-
20

14
 G

en
er

al
 A

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

 A
ct

; 
in

cr
ea

se
s t

o 
ba

se
 ra

te
 o

f p
ay

 a
nd

 
sa

la
ry

 a
dd

iti
ve

s s
ha

ll 
be

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 st

at
e 

la
w

 a
nd

 th
e 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

-2
01

4 
G

en
er

al
 A

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

 
A

ct
. 

 Se
ct

io
n 

2 
– 

Pr
op

os
es

 U
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

R
at

e 
In

ce
nt

iv
e 

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 th

e 
G

ov
er

no
r’

s B
ud

ge
t R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

 Se
ct

io
n 

3 
– 

Pr
op

os
es

 V
ar

ia
bl

e 
C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

A
w

ar
d 

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 

th
e 

G
ov

er
no

r’
s B

ud
ge

t 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

 Se
ct

io
n 

4 
– 

Pr
op

os
es

 R
ec

id
iv

is
m

 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

In
ce

nt
iv

e 
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 th
e 

G
ov

er
no

r’
s B

ud
ge

t R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 
 Se

ct
io

n 
5 

– 
Pr

op
os

es
 T

em
po

ra
ry

 
Sp

ec
ia

l D
ut

ie
s P

ay
 A

dd
iti

ve
 fo

r 
em

pl
oy

ee
s t

em
po

ra
ril

y 
de

pl
oy

ed
 to

 a
 

fa
ci

lit
y 

or
 a

re
a 

cl
os

ed
 d

ue
 to

 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

co
nd

iti
on

s f
ro

m
 a

no
th

er
 

ar
ea

 o
f t

he
 st

at
e 

th
at

 is
 n

ot
 c

lo
se

d.
 

  

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f 1
2-

03
-1

2:
 

Se
ct

io
n 

1 
– 

pr
op

os
es

 b
as

e 
ra

te
 o

f p
ay

 
in

cr
ea

se
s b

as
ed

 o
n 

ye
ar

s o
f s

er
vi

ce
 w

ith
 

th
ei

r r
es

pe
ct

iv
e 

ag
en

ci
es

, e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
Ju

ly
 1

, 
20

13
: 

0-
3 

ye
ar

s –
 3

%
 

4-
6 

ye
ar

s –
 5

%
 

7+
 y

ea
rs

 –
 7

%
 

               

C
os

t e
st

im
at

e:
 $

44
.5

 m
ill

io
n 

         



T
ea

m
st

er
s L

oc
al

 U
ni

on
 N

o.
 2

01
1 

Se
cu

ri
ty

 S
er

vi
ce

s U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

5,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

-1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 - 

A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 3

, 4
, 5

, 6
, 7

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

3,
 1

8,
 2

3,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 2

8,
 3

0,
 a

nd
 3

2 
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

25
 –

 W
ag

es
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
                            

Se
ct

io
n 

6 
– 

Pr
op

os
es

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s m

ay
 

be
 g

iv
en

 th
e 

op
tio

n 
of

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
up

 to
 

24
 h

ou
rs

 o
f a

nn
ua

l l
ea

ve
 e

ac
h 

D
ec

em
be

r i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 S

ec
tio

n 
11

0.
21

9(
7)

, F
.S

. 
  Se

ct
io

n 
7 

– 
Pr

op
os

es
 e

ac
h 

ag
en

cy
 is

 
au

th
or

iz
ed

 to
 g

ra
nt

 m
er

it 
pa

y 
in

cr
ea

se
s b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

’s
 

ex
em

pl
ar

y 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 a

s e
vi

de
nc

ed
 

by
 a

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 to

 R
ul

e 
60

L-
35

, 
F.

A
.C

. 
  Se

ct
io

n 
8 

– 
Pr

op
os

es
 a

n 
em

pl
oy

ee
 o

r 
gr

ou
ps

 o
f e

m
pl

oy
ee

s m
ay

 b
e 

el
ig

ib
le

 
fo

r m
on

et
ar

y 
aw

ar
ds

 fo
r i

de
as

 o
r 

pr
og

ra
m

s t
ha

t r
es

ul
t i

n 
a 

co
st

 sa
vi

ng
 to

 
th

e 
st

at
e,

 p
ur

su
an

t t
o 

Se
ct

io
n 

11
0.

12
45

(1
), 

F.
S.

 
       

       N
ew

 S
ec

tio
n 

7 
– 

W
ag

e 
In

cr
ea

se
 “

M
e 

To
o”

 C
la

us
e 

– 
pr

op
os

es
 c

os
t o

f l
iv

in
g 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 u

ni
fo

rm
ly

 
ap

pl
ie

d 
w

ag
e 

in
cr

ea
se

s a
t t

he
 sa

m
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 le

ve
l o

f t
ho

se
 o

ff
er

ed
 to

 o
th

er
 

ba
rg

ai
ni

ng
 u

ni
ts

 o
f s

ta
te

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s. 

 

       C
os

t e
st

im
at

e:
 

in
de

te
rm

in
at

e 
bu

t 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 



T
ea

m
st

er
s L

oc
al

 U
ni

on
 N

o.
 2

01
1 

Se
cu

ri
ty

 S
er

vi
ce

s U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

5,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

-1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 - 

A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 3

, 4
, 5

, 6
, 7

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

3,
 1

8,
 2

3,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 2

8,
 3

0,
 a

nd
 3

2 
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

25
 –

 W
ag

es
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
Se

ct
io

n 
9 

– 
Pr

op
os

es
 th

at
 in

 th
e 

ev
en

t 
th

e 
20

13
 L

eg
is

la
tu

re
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

di
ff

er
en

t f
un

di
ng

 o
r e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 fo
r t

he
 a

bo
ve

-r
ef

er
en

ce
d 

pa
y 

in
cr

ea
se

s a
nd

 p
ay

m
en

ts
, t

he
 st

at
e 

an
d 

th
e 

un
io

n 
ag

re
e 

th
at

 th
e 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
an

d 
pa

ym
en

ts
 sh

al
l b

e 
ad

m
in

is
te

re
d 

in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f t

he
 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 2

01
3-

20
14

 G
en

er
al

 
A

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

 A
ct

, o
r a

ny
 o

th
er

 
re

le
va

nt
 st

at
ut

es
. 

 
26

 –
 U

ni
fo

rm
 a

nd
 

In
si

gn
ia

 
St

at
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 o
f 0

1-
09

-1
3:

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

 –
 re

je
ct

s u
ni

on
 p

ro
po

sa
l 

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f 1
2-

03
-1

2:
 

N
ew

 S
ec

tio
n 

4 
– 

C
la

ss
 “

A
” 

U
ni

fo
rm

s –
 

pr
op

os
es

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s s

ha
ll 

be
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 
w

ea
r C

la
ss

 “
A

” 
un

ifo
rm

s o
nl

y 
fo

r 
ex

ec
ut

io
ns

, f
un

er
al

s, 
an

d 
co

ur
t 

ap
pe

ar
an

ce
s. 

Th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f 
C

or
re

ct
io

ns
 h

as
 re

vi
se

d 
its

 
un

ifo
rm

 p
ro

ce
du

re
 

ex
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
w

ea
rin

g 
of

 
C

la
ss

 “
A

” 
un

ifo
rm

s w
hi

le
 

on
 h

os
pi

ta
l d

ut
y.

   
  

27
 –

 In
su

ra
nc

e 
B

en
ef

its
 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

09
-1

3:
 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
  

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f 1
2-

04
-1

2:
 

Pr
op

os
es

 th
e 

st
at

e 
ag

re
es

 to
 a

dm
in

is
te

r t
he

 
St

at
e 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s G
ro

up
 H

ea
lth

 S
el

f-
In

su
ra

nc
e 

Pl
an

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t G
en

er
al

 A
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
 A

ct
 (F

Y
 

20
13

-1
4)

 a
nd

, i
f p

ro
vi

de
d,

 th
e 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
St

at
em

en
t o

f I
nt

en
t. 

  

C
os

t e
st

im
at

e:
 

in
de

te
rm

in
at

e 



T
ea

m
st

er
s L

oc
al

 U
ni

on
 N

o.
 2

01
1 

Se
cu

ri
ty

 S
er

vi
ce

s U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

5,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

-1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 - 

A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 3

, 4
, 5

, 6
, 7

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

3,
 1

8,
 2

3,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 2

8,
 3

0,
 a

nd
 3

2 
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

28
 –

 T
ra

ve
l E

xp
en

se
s 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

09
-1

3:
 

St
at

us
 q

uo
 –

 re
je

ct
s u

ni
on

 p
ro

po
sa

l 
U

ni
on

 P
ro

po
sa

l o
f 1

2-
03

-1
2:

 
N

ew
 S

ec
tio

n 
1 

– 
In

st
itu

tio
ns

 –
 G

en
er

al
 –

 
pr

op
os

es
 p

ay
m

en
t o

f t
ra

ve
l v

ou
ch

er
s 

w
ith

in
 3

0 
da

ys
. 

 N
ew

 S
ec

tio
n 

2 
– 

In
st

itu
tio

ns
 –

 “
H

os
pi

ta
l 

D
ut

y”
 –

 p
ro

po
se

s a
ll 

of
fic

er
s r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 

us
e 

th
ei

r o
w

n 
ve

hi
cl

es
 fo

r h
os

pi
ta

l d
ut

y 
ar

e 
to

 b
e 

re
im

bu
rs

ed
 a

t t
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 fe
de

ra
l 

m
ile

ag
e 

ra
te

. 
 N

ew
 S

ec
tio

n 
3 

– 
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
or

re
ct

io
ns

 
– 

pr
op

os
es

 a
ll 

of
fic

er
s w

ho
 u

se
 th

ei
r o

w
n 

ve
hi

cl
es

 to
 c

on
du

ct
 fi

el
d 

w
or

k,
 to

 a
tte

nd
 

co
ur

t p
ro

ce
ed

in
gs

 o
r t

ra
in

in
g 

be
 

re
im

bu
rs

ed
 a

t t
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 fe
de

ra
l m

ile
ag

e 
ra

te
. 

C
os

t e
st

im
at

e:
 $

69
8,

95
6 

    W
he

n 
th

e 
ho

sp
ita

l 
as

si
gn

m
en

t i
s c

lo
se

r t
o 

th
e 

of
fic

er
’s

 h
om

e 
th

an
 is

 th
e 

in
st

itu
tio

n 
w

he
re

 h
e 

w
or

ks
, 

th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f 
C

or
re

ct
io

ns
 c

on
si

de
rs

 th
e 

ho
sp

ita
l t

o 
be

 h
is

 d
ut

y 
st

at
io

n 
fo

r t
ha

t d
ay

; 
th

er
ef

or
e 

no
 re

im
bu

rs
em

en
t 

is
 w

ar
ra

nt
ed

, j
us

t a
s t

ho
ug

h 
he

 h
ad

 re
po

rte
d 

to
 th

e 
in

st
itu

tio
n.

  T
he

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 C

or
re

ct
io

ns
 is

 u
na

w
ar

e 
of

 
an

y 
in

st
an

ce
s w

he
re

 a
n 

of
fic

er
 w

as
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 
re

po
rt 

to
 a

 h
os

pi
ta

l t
ha

t w
as

 
fa

rth
er

 fr
om

 h
is

 h
om

e 
th

an
 

th
e 

in
st

itu
tio

n.
  I

n 
th

os
e 

ca
se

s, 
th

e 
ag

en
cy

’s
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

is
 to

 h
av

e 
th

e 
of

fic
er

 re
po

rt 
as

 u
su

al
 to

 h
is

 in
st

itu
tio

n,
 

th
en

 ta
ke

 a
 p

oo
l v

eh
ic

le
 to

 
th

e 
ho

sp
ita

l. 



T
ea

m
st

er
s L

oc
al

 U
ni

on
 N

o.
 2

01
1 

Se
cu

ri
ty

 S
er

vi
ce

s U
ni

t –
 S

ta
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f F

eb
ru

ar
y 

5,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

-1
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 - 

A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
A

rt
ic

le
s a

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 3

, 4
, 5

, 6
, 7

, 9
, 1

0,
 1

3,
 1

8,
 2

3,
 2

5,
 2

6,
 2

7,
 2

8,
 3

0,
 a

nd
 3

2 
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

30
 –

 V
ac

an
t 

St
at

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 o

f 0
1-

09
-1

3:
 

St
at

us
 q

uo
 –

 re
je

ct
s u

ni
on

 p
ro

po
sa

l f
or

 
ne

w
 M

an
da

to
ry

 M
ee

tin
gs

 a
rti

cl
e.

 

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f 0
2-

04
-1

3:
 

Pr
op

os
es

 M
an

da
to

ry
 M

ee
tin

gs
 a

rti
cl

e;
 

pr
op

os
es

 m
an

ag
em

en
t m

ak
e 

a 
go

od
 fa

ith
 

ef
fo

rt 
to

 sc
he

du
le

 a
ll 

m
an

da
to

ry
 m

ee
tin

gs
 

du
rin

g 
an

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
’s

 sc
he

du
le

d 
w

or
kd

ay
 

an
d/

or
 a

bu
tti

ng
 to

 a
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

’s
 

sc
he

du
le

d 
w

or
kd

ay
; i

f a
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

 is
 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 a

tte
nd

 a
 m

ee
tin

g 
th

at
 d

oe
s n

ot
 

oc
cu

r b
ef

or
e 

or
 a

fte
r h

is
 sc

he
du

le
d 

w
or

kd
ay

, h
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

pa
id

 a
 m

in
im

um
 o

f 2
 

ho
ur

s. 
 

C
os

t e
st

im
at

e:
 

in
de

te
rm

in
at

e 
G

iv
en

 th
e 

na
tu

re
 o

f t
he

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f C

or
re

ct
io

ns
’ 

24
/7

 o
pe

ra
tio

n,
 so

m
e 

of
fic

er
s w

ill
 b

e 
ca

lle
d 

in
 to

 
at

te
nd

 m
ee

tin
gs

 o
n 

th
ei

r 
da

ys
 o

ff
.  

M
os

t m
ee

tin
gs

 
la

st
 fo

r o
ve

r a
n 

ho
ur

 a
nd

 
of

fic
er

s a
re

 p
ai

d 
fo

r t
he

 
tim

e 
th

ey
 a

re
 in

 a
tte

nd
an

ce
. 

32
 –

 E
nt

ire
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
St

at
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 o
f 0

1-
25

-1
3:

 
G

ra
m

m
at

ic
al

 c
ha

ng
e 

on
ly

; r
ej

ec
ts

 
un

io
n 

pr
op

os
al

 

U
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l o

f 1
2-

03
-1

2:
 

Se
ct

io
n 

1 
– 

pr
op

os
es

 st
rik

in
g 

cu
rr

en
t 

la
ng

ua
ge

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 th

at
 th

is
 su

pe
rs

ed
es

 
an

d 
ca

nc
el

s a
ll 

pr
io

r p
ra

ct
ic

es
 a

nd
 

ag
re

em
en

ts
, a

nd
 c

on
st

itu
te

s t
he

 c
om

pl
et

e 
an

d 
en

tir
e 

ag
re

em
en

t b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
pa

rti
es

. 

 

34
 –

 D
ur

at
io

n 
St

at
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 o
f 0

1-
09

-1
3:

 
Pr

op
os

es
 1

-y
ea

r a
gr

ee
m

en
t t

o 
ex

pi
re

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
4.

 

 
 

 





FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 2 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 2 
GENDER REFERENCE 

 
All references in this Agreement to employees of the male gender are used for 

convenience only and shall be construed to include both male and female employees. 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 3 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 3 
VACANT 

 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 4 (Substance - Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 4 
NO DISCRIMINATION 

SECTION 1 - Non-Discrimination Policy - Age, Sex, Race, Color, Religious Creed, National 
Origin, Disability 

(A) The Sstate and the Union shall not discriminate against any employee for any 
reason prohibited by law. Consistent with Chapter 447, Florida Statutes, public employees in the 
State of Florida have the right to self-organization, to form, join, or assist labor unions or labor 
organizations or to refrain from such activity, to bargain collectively through representatives of 
their own choosing, and to engage in concerted activities, for the purpose of collective 
bargaining or other mutual aid or protection. 

(B) The Union shall have the right to consult on issues of unlawful discrimination 
with an agency head or designee. If the matter is not resolved, the Union can consult with the 
Chief Labor Negotiator of the Department of Management Services. 

(C) Any claim of unlawful discrimination by an employee against the Sstate under 
this Section, except for grievances related to Association membership, shall only be subject to 
the method of review prescribed by law or by rules and regulations having the force and effect of 
law. 

 
SECTION 2 - Non-Discrimination - Union Activity 

(A) Neither the Sstate nor the Union shall interfere with the right of employees to 
become or refrain from becoming members of the Union, and the Union shall not discriminate 
against any employee because of membership or non membership in any employee organization. 

(B) Union claims of discrimination against the Sstate, its officers or representatives, 
shall be remedied only through the Public Employees Relations Commission or such other 
administrative proceedings provided by law. 
 
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 5 (Substance - Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 5 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 5 
EMPLOYEE RIGHTS, MANAGEMENT, AND UNION COMMUNICATIONS 

 
SECTION 1 – Definition 
 

The term “employee” as used in this Agreement, shall mean an employee included in 
the bargaining unit represented by the Federation of Physicians and Dentists, (Union). 
 
SECTION 2 - Selected Exempt Service Rule Interpretations 

The Sstate will maintain on the Department of Management Services’ website any 
written interpretations of the Rules of the State Personnel System. 

SECTION 3 - Consultation Meetings 

(A) Upon request by the Union, the Secretary of the Department of Management 
Services or designee shall make a good faith effort to meet and consult on a quarterly basis. Such 
meetings shall be held at a time and place mutually agreed to by the Sstate and the Union. 

(B) Upon request by the Union, an agency head or designee shall make a good faith 
effort to meet and consult on a quarterly basis. Such meetings shall be held at a time and place 
agreed to by the Aagency head or designee and the Union. 

(C) The purpose of consultation meetings shall be to discuss matters relating to the 
administration of this Agreement and any activity which affects employees. No meeting shall be 
used for the purpose of discussing pending grievances or for negotiation purposes. No later than 
seven (7) calendar days prior to the scheduled meeting date, the parties shall exchange agenda 
indicating the matters they wish to discuss. 

(D) Decision(s) reached through consultation meetings shall be reduced to writing by 
the agency and a copy shall be furnished to the Department of Management Services and the 
Union. 
 
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 5 (Substance - Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

SECTION 4 - Bulletin Boards 

(A) Where requested in writing, and where justified by the number of employees 
affected, the Sstate agrees to furnish at State institutions where employees are employed, wall 
space not to exceed 20" X 30" for Union purchased bulletin boards. Space will be provided in 
those areas as agreed by the agency and Union. When agreement cannot be reached, the agency 
will select an area. 

(B) Union bulletin boards may be used to communicate with and inform employees. 
Bulletin board items may include notices of meetings, elections, and other related materials 
pertaining to the welfare of employees.  Notices posted on these bulletin boards shall not contain 
anything reflecting adversely on the Sstate, or any of its officers or employees; nor shall any 
posted material violate or have the effect of violating any law, rule, or regulation. 

(C) Notices posted must be dated and bear the signature of the Union's authorized 
representative. 

(D) A violation of these provisions shall be a basis for removal of bulletin board 
privileges by the Chief Labor Negotiator of the Department of Management Services. 

SECTION 5 - Employee Lists 

Upon request of the Union, the Sstate will provide the Union with a list giving the 
name, home address on file, classification title, and gross salary and location of employment for 
each employee (unless the home address and location of employment are confidential under 
applicable law). This list will be prepared on the basis of the latest information on file at the time 
the list is prepared and will be furnished to the Union after receipt by the Sstate of the payment 
of the actual costs to the State incurred in the preparation of such list. 
 
SECTION 6 - Selected Exempt Service Class Specifications and Rules of the State 
Personnel System 
 

The Sstate will maintain on the Department of Management Services’ website the 
classification specifications and the Rules of the State Personnel System.  
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 5 (Substance - Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

SECTION 7 - Negotiations 

(A)  All collective bargaining is to be conducted with Sstate representatives 
designated for that purpose by the Governor, as chief executive officer. While negotiating 
meetings shall normally be held in Tallahassee, the Sstate and the Union may agree to meet 
elsewhere at a Sstate facility or other location which involves no rental cost to the Sstate.  There 
shall be no negotiation between the Union and the State at other levels of Sstate government. 

(B) The Union may designate certain employees to serve on its negotiation 
committee, and such employees will be granted administrative leave to attend negotiation 
sessions with the Sstate.  The Union negotiation committee shall be limited to up to five 
employees and no more than two per agency.  The Sstate shall not reimburse employees for 
travel, meals, and lodging in connection with negotiations unless the Sstate specifically requests 
that an employee be in attendance to elaborate on a particular issue. 
 
SECTION 8 – Employee Assistance Programs 
 

The Sstate and the Union encourage and support the creation of Employee Assistance 
Programs by agencies, and the utilization of such programs by employees. 

SECTION 9 – Charitable Solicitations 

Employee participation in charitable drives is voluntary.  

SECTION 10 – Representative Access 

(A) The Sstate agrees that designated Union Representatives shall have access to 
State controlled premises where employees are employed. 

(B) If any area of the Sstate’s premises is otherwise restricted to the public, 
permission must be requested to enter such area and such permission shall not be unreasonably 
denied.  Access shall be during the regular working hours of the employee and only for the 
purpose of investigating an employee’s grievance. 

 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 5 (Substance - Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

SECTION 11 – Professional Council 

(A) A physician’s professional council may be organized at a Sstate institution or 
facility employing more than ten (10) employees, or in the case of Public Health Departments, 
such councils shall be comprised of up to six (6) physicians in the district. The purpose of the 
council is to advise the Medical Director or administrator regarding medical policies that govern 
the institution or facility. The council may meet on a monthly basis at the convenience of the 
members, provided there is a written agenda prepared in advance and such meetings do not 
conflict with the council members’ primary responsibilities or emergencies. Attendance at such 
meetings will be with pay. Such professional council shall exist in addition to any other 
committee or group within the institution or facility. 

(B) The council shall consist of no more than six (6) members and not more than one 
(1) council member may be selected from the same location or work unit. A chairperson will be 
elected annually from the council members. 

 
SECTION 12 – 
 

Employees shall have the rights afforded by the United States and Florida 
Constitution and Chapter 447, Florida Statutes, including the right to join, participate in or 
refrain from joining or participating in the Union; the right to be represented or refrain from 
being represented in determinations of grievances pursuant to Article 6; and the right to negotiate 
collectively with the Sstate in the terms and conditions of their employment.  No grievance may 
be filed under this contract alleging a violation of this Section.  Recourse for a violation of law is 
as prescribed by the applicable law. 
 
SECTION 13 –  
 

The Sstate shall not assist a creditor in collecting any debt unless requested by court 
order or applicable law. 
 
SECTION 14 – 
 

Employees shall not be subjected to prohibited personnel practices or policies. 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 5 (Substance - Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

SECTION 15 – 

Each employee shall be provided access to a copy of his current job description. 

SECTION 16 –  

Where an agency currently provides a toll allowance to employees subject to tolls for 
access to their work place, the practice shall continue during the term of the agreement. 

SECTION 17 –  

An employee who wishes to perform other employment outside of state government 
shall secure approval in advance.  Permission shall not be unreasonably withheld as long as such 
outside employment does not conflict with the employee’s state employment nor with the 
employing agency’s procedures limiting such outside employment. 
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 8 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 6 
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

 
It is the policy of the Sstate and Union to encourage informal discussions between 

supervisors and employees regarding employee concerns. Such discussions should be held with a 
view to reaching an understanding which will resolve the matter in a manner satisfactory to the 
employee, without need for recourse to a formal grievance procedure. 
 
SECTION 1 – Definitions 
 

As used in this Article: 

(A) "Grievance" shall mean a dispute involving the interpretation or application of the 
specific provisions of this Agreement, filed on the appropriate form as contained in Appendix B 
of the Agreement. 

(B) "Employee" shall mean an employee or group of employees having the same 
grievance. In the case of a group of employees, one employee shall be designated by the group to 
act as spokesperson and to be responsible for processing the grievance. 

(C) "Days" shall mean calendar days, excluding any day observed by the Sstate as a 
holiday for employees pursuant to section 110.117, Florida Statutes. 

(D) "Grievance Representative" shall mean an employee designated by the Union to 
investigate grievances at the Informal Step and to represent grievants at the Informal Step and 
Step 1 meetings on grievances which have been properly filed under this Article when the Union 
has been selected as the employee's representative. 

(E) "Required Participant" means an employee whose presence at a grievance 
meeting has been determined necessary by the agency. 

(F) "Union Representative" means a non-State employee officially designated by the 
Union. 
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 2 of 8 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

SECTION 2 - Election of Remedy 

An employee shall have the option of utilizing the unfair labor practice procedures as 
provided in Chapter 447, Florida Statutes, or this grievance procedure, but such employee is 
precluded from using more than one procedure to address the same or similar complaints and 
issues. 

SECTION 3 - Grievance Representation 

(A) An employee who decides to use this grievance procedure shall indicate at Step 1 
(or other initial written step if authorized by the provisions of this Article) whether he shall be 
represented by the Union. When an employee has elected Union representation, both the 
employee and the Union representative shall be notified of any Step 1 meetings. Further, any 
written communication concerning the grievance or its resolution shall be sent to both the 
employee and the Union representative, and any decision agreed to by the Sstate and the Union 
shall be binding on the employee. 

(B) If the employee is not represented by the Union, any adjustment of the grievance 
shall be consistent with the terms of this collective bargaining Agreement. Further, the Union 
shall be given reasonable opportunity to be present at any meeting called for the resolution of 
such grievance. An employee using this procedure in the processing of a grievance will be bound 
by the procedure established by the parties to the Agreement. 

(C) The Executive Director of the Union shall furnish to the Sstate a list of Union 
Representatives and Grievance Representatives. The Sstate will not recognize any person as a 
Union Representative or Grievance Representative whose name does not appear on the list. 

(D) If a grievance meeting is held or requires reasonable travel time during the 
working hours of any required participant, such participant shall be excused without loss of pay 
for that purpose. Attendance at grievance meetings outside of regular working hours shall not be 
deemed time worked. 
 
 
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 3 of 8 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

SECTION 4 - Procedures 

(A) The filing or pendency of any grievance under the provisions of this Article shall 
in no way operate to impede, delay or interfere with the right of the Sstate to take the action 
complained of; subject, however, to the final disposition of the grievance.  Grievances may be 
filed and responded to by facsimile, electronic mail, mail, or personal delivery. 

(B) The resolution of a grievance prior to its submission in writing at Step 3 shall not 
establish a precedent binding on either the Union or the Sstate in other cases. 

(C) Grievances shall be presented and adjusted in the following manner. 

(1) Informal Discussion 

(a) An employee having a grievance may, within seven (7) days 
following the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance, present the grievance orally to 
his immediate supervisor who has the authority to adjust the grievance, for informal discussion. 

(b) If the grievance is not resolved by such informal discussion, the 
employee may, within fourteen (14) days after the date of that discussion, submit a formal 
written grievance at Step 1 of this procedure. 

(2) Step 1 

(a) In filing a grievance at Step 1, the employee shall submit to the Step 
1 management representative within 14 days following the occurrence of the event giving rise to 
the grievance a grievance form as contained in Appendix B, setting forth specifically the 
complete facts and issues on which the grievance is based, the specific provision or provisions of 
the Agreement allegedly violated, and the relief requested. 

(b) The Step 1 management representative or designee shall meet with 
the Union Representative to discuss the grievance and shall communicate a decision in writing to 
the employee and to the Union Representative, if any, within fourteen (14) days following the 
date of the meeting. 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 4 of 8 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

(3) Step 2 

(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the employee may appeal 
the grievance in writing to the Aagency Hhead or designee within fourteen (14) days after 
following receipt of the decision at Step 1. 

(b) The Aagency Hhead or designee may meet with the Union 
Representative to discuss the grievance. The Aagency Hhead or designee shall communicate a 
decision in writing to the employee and to the Union Representative within twenty-one (21) days 
following receipt of the written grievance. 
 

(4) Step 3 

(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 2, the employee may submit 
the grievance in writing to the Chief Labor Negotiator Office Manager for the Office of the 
General Counsel of the Department of Management Services, 4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 160, 
Tallahassee, Florida, 32399-0950,  or designee within fourteen (14) days after following receipt 
of the decision at Step 2. The grievance shall include a copy of the grievance form submitted at 
Steps 1 and 2, together with all written responses and documents in support of the grievance. 

(b) The Chief Labor Negotiator of the Department of Management 
Services’ or designee may meet with the Union Representative to discuss the grievance. The 
Chief Labor Negotiator or designee shall communicate a decision in writing to the employee and 
the Union Representative within twenty-one (21) days following receipt of the written grievance. 
 

(c) (5) Grievance Mediation 
The parties may, by written agreement, submit a grievance to mediation to be 

conducted by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS), either prior to the 
grievance being submitted to arbitration or after it has been submitted to arbitration but before a 
hearing is scheduled.  When the parties agree to mediate a grievance, the time limits to file for, 
or process, an arbitration are automatically extended for the period necessary to conclude the 
mediation process.  Either party may withdraw from the mediation process with written notice no 
later than five (5) days before a scheduled mediation. 
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 5 of 8 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

 
(5) (6) Step 4 - Arbitration 

(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 3, the Union Representative 
may appeal the grievance to arbitration on a Request for Arbitration form as contained in 
Appendix C within fourteen (14) days after following receipt of the decision at Step 3. 

(b) The arbitrator shall be one person from a panel of three (3) 
permanent arbitrators, selected by the Sstate and the Union to serve in rotation for any case or 
cases submitted.  The Department of Management Services shall facilitate the scheduling of all 
arbitration hearings. 

(c) Arbitration hearings shall be held at times and locations agreed to by 
the parties. Under normal circumstances, hearings will be held in Tallahassee; however, selection 
of the site shall take into account the availability of evidence, location of witnesses and existence 
of appropriate facilities. If agreement cannot be reached, the arbitration hearing shall be held in 
the city of Tallahassee. 

(d) Issues of arbitrability, including timeliness, shall be separated from 
the substantive issue(s) of the grievance and, whenever possible, determined by a hearing 
conducted by conference call.  The arbitrator shall have ten (10) days from the hearing to render 
a decision on arbitrability.  If the decision is that the issue is arbitrable, an arbitrator shall then be 
selected to hear the substantive issue(s) in accordance with the provisions of (5)(b).  Where there 
is a threshold issue regarding arbitrability, including timeliness, of a grievance raised by either 
party, an expedited arbitration hearing shall be conducted to address only the arbitrability issue.  
In such cases, the parties shall choose an arbitrator from the panel of arbitrators (see (6)(b) 
above), who is available to schedule a hearing and render a decision within twenty days of an 
arbitrator being chosen for this limited purpose.  The hearing on this issue shall be limited to one 
day, and the arbitrator shall be required to decide the issue within five (5) business days of the 
hearing.  The hearing shall be conducted by telephone upon the agreement of the parties and the 
arbitrator.  The fees and expenses of the expedited arbitration shall be shared equally by the 
parties. If the arbitrator determines that the issue is arbitrable, another arbitrator shall be chosen 
from the parties’ regular arbitration panel in accordance with the provisions of (6)(b) of this 
Article to conduct a hearing on the substantive issue(s). 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 6 of 8 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

 
(e) The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the 

grievance and, provided the decision is in accordance with his jurisdiction and authority under 
this Agreement, the decision shall be final and binding on the State, the Union, the grievant(s), 
and the employees. In considering a grievance, the arbitrator shall be governed by the following 
provisions and limitations: 

1. The arbitrator shall issue his decision not later than thirty (30) 
days from the date of the closing of the hearing or the submission of briefs, whichever is later. 

2. The arbitrator's decision shall be in writing, and shall set forth 
the arbitrator's opinion and conclusions on the issue(s) submitted. 

3. The arbitrator shall have no authority to determine any issues 
other than those issues raised in the initial written grievance. The arbitrator shall refrain from 
issuing any statement of opinion or conclusion not essential to the determination of the issues 
submitted. 

4. The arbitrator shall limit his decision strictly to the application 
and interpretation of the specific provisions of this Agreement. 

5. The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make any 
decision: 

a. Contrary to or inconsistent with, adding to, subtracting 
from, or modifying, altering or ignoring in any way, the terms of this Agreement, or of 
applicable law or rules or regulations having the force and effect of law; 

b. Limiting or interfering in any way with the powers, 
duties and responsibilities of the State under its Constitution, applicable law, and rules and 
regulations having the force and effect of law, except as such powers, duties and responsibilities 
have been abridged, delegated or modified by the expressed provisions of this Agreement; 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 7 of 8 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

c. Which has the effect of restricting the discretion of an 
agency head as otherwise granted by law or the Selected Exempt Service Rules of the State 
Personnel System; or 

d. That is based solely upon an agency past practice or 
policy, other than to determine that such agency practice or policy is contrary to law, the 
Selected Exempt Service Rules, or this Agreement. 

(e) The reasonable fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall 
be equally shared by the parties.  Each party shall be responsible for compensating and paying 
the expenses of its own representatives, attorneys and witnesses. 

(f) The employee, not the Union, will be responsible for 
costs of an arbitration to which the Union was not a party. 
 
SECTION 5 - Time Limits 

(A) Failure to initiate or appeal a grievance within the time limits in Section 4 shall be 
deemed a waiver of the grievance. Failure at any step of this procedure to submit a grievance to 
the next step within the specified time limits shall be deemed to be acceptance of the decision at 
that step. 

(B) Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance 
within the specified time limit shall permit the employee, or the Union where appropriate, to 
proceed to the next step. 

(C) The number of days indicated at each step should be considered as a maximum, 
and every effort should be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits specified in 
any step of this procedure may be extended in writing, in any specific instance, by agreement of 
the parties. 

(D) Claims of either an untimely filing or untimely appeal shall be made at the step in 
question, or will be considered waived. 
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 8 of 8 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

SECTION 6 – Exceptions 
 

(A) Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to 
permit the Union or an employee to process a grievance (1) on behalf of any employee without 
his consent, or (2) with respect to any matter which is the subject of a grievance, appeal, 
administrative action before a governmental board or agency, or court proceeding, brought by an 
individual employee or group of employees, or by the Union. 

(B) All grievances will be presented at the initial step with the following exceptions: 

(1) If a grievance arises from the action of an official higher than the Agency 
Step 1 management representative, the grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 or 3 as appropriate, 
by submitting a grievance form as set forth in Step 1 (Appendix B) within seven (7) days 
following the occurrence giving rise to the grievance. 

(2) The Union shall have the right to bring a class action grievance on behalf 
of employees in its own name concerning disputes relating to the interpretation or application of 
this Agreement. The Union's election to proceed under this Article shall preclude it from 
proceeding in another forum on the same issue. Such grievance shall be initiated at Step 3 of this 
procedure, in accordance with the provisions set forth therein, within fourteen (14) days of the 
occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance. 
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 7 (Substance - Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 7 
EMPLOYEE STANDARDS OF CONDUCT AND PERFORMANCE 

SECTION 1 - Standards of Conduct and Performance 

(A) The Selected Exempt Service, to which classes within this unit are assigned, is 
designed to provide the delivery of high quality performance in selected classifications by 
facilitating the Sstate's ability to attract and retain qualified personnel in these positions, while 
also providing sufficient management flexibility to ensure that the work force is responsive to 
agency needs. 

(B) Consistent with applicable statutes, an employee's off-the-job conduct shall not 
result in disciplinary action unless such conduct impairs his effectiveness as an employee. 
Moreover, the Sstate recognizes the right of a duly recognized Union Representative to express 
the views of the Union provided they are identified as Union views. 

(C) The duties and responsibilities for each Selected Exempt Service class of 
Physician and Senior Physician are assigned by the respective agencies. 

(D) Each employee shall serve at the pleasure of the Aagency Hhead and is subject to 
suspension, dismissal, reduction in pay, demotion, transfer, or other personnel action at the 
discretion of the Aagency Hhead.  No final action will be taken prior to a review by the agency 
head or designee.  Upon written request and receipt of payment, the Sstate shall provide the 
union with copies of any public records related to the adverse personnel action.  All requests and 
all documents provided shall be in accordance with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes.  If any adverse 
action is taken because of an alleged violation of Chapter 458 or 459 of the Florida Statutes, the 
employee shall be entitled to a “peer review” prior to the action being taken.  Such “peer review” 
shall be as prescribed by law, medical staff by-laws, or for county Health Units in accordance 
with Section 2 of this Article.  

(E) Administrators shall not discipline employees in the presence of other staff 
members. 
 
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 7 (Substance - Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

SECTION 2 - County Health Department Peer Review Procedures 
 

The Sstate and FPD agree to continue to implement the provisions of the March 9, 
1998 Memorandum of Agreement regarding Peer Review within the Department of Health in the 
County Health Departments.  
 
SECTION 3 – Performance Evaluations 

 
The performance of employees shall be evaluated in accordance with Rule 60L-35, 

Florida Administrative Code. 
 

(A) Performance evaluations shall be directed to identify strengths as well as 
weaknesses. 
 

(B) Employees shall be evaluated at least annually on the date determined by their 
agency. 
 

(C) Each employee shall be informed of the criteria and procedure to be used in the 
evaluation process.   
 

(D) The employee shall have the right to submit a written statement to be attached to 
the written evaluation. 
 

(E) The employee shall be provided a copy of the evaluation at the time it is signed 
by him acknowledging receipt. 
 
SECTION 4 – Employee Representation Right 
 
 An employee may request a union representative be present to advise and/or assist the 
employee during any investigation meeting in which the employee is being questioned relative to 
alleged misconduct of the employee.  Upon the request of the employee, the purpose of the 
investigation will be explained. 
 
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 7 (Substance - Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

SECTION 5 – State Denial of Representation 
 
 The employer may refuse a request for a union representative during an investigatory 
interview not intended to lead to discipline of the interviewed employee.  If the interview 
transitions to questions, which may lead to the discipline of the interviewed employee, he may 
request union representation for the interview to continue.   
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 8 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 8 
TERMINATION DUE TO A REDUCTION IN FORCE AND RECALL 

 
SECTION 1 - Reduction in Force 
 
  (A) Employees shall be subject to termination, including but not limited to a 
reduction in force, at the discretion of the Aagency Hhead. 

(B) The Aagency Hhead shall furnish the Union Representative with a copy of any 
notice terminating an employee as a result of a reduction in force. 

(C) The decision of the Aagency Hhead regarding termination shall be final and not 
subject to the grievance procedure of this Agreement.   

SECTION 2 – Recall and Consideration 

(A) No new employees shall be hired until employees who have been terminated due 
to a reduction in force and who meet Sstate criteria for the respective open position have had an 
opportunity to refuse or fail to accept recall to the class and the agency from which the employee 
was terminated. Thereafter, individual agencies will consider qualified employees of the agency, 
terminated due to a reduction in force, for vacancies in a different class before appointing new 
employees.  

(B) An employee who has been terminated due to a reduction in force will be given 
ten (10) workdays notice of recall. Notice shall be given by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, or any other form of delivery that provides a written receipt.  The employee shall 
inform the agency of his acceptance or rejection of reemployment within ten (10) workdays of 
receipt.  In the event the employee does not respond within ten (10) workdays, the agency is 
released from recall obligations, and the employee will be deemed to have voluntarily resigned 
from employment by the State. It is the employee's responsibility to keep the agency informed of 
his current address. 

(C) Employees will be eligible for recall for a period not to exceed one (1) year from 
date of termination due to a reduction in force or until recalled or recall is declined, whichever is 
sooner. 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 8 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

 
SECTION 3 - Department of Health Recall Procedures 
 

The Sstate and FPD agree to continue to implement the provisions of the March 16, 
1998, Memorandum of Agreement regarding employee recalls within the Department of Health. 

 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 9 (Substance - Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 9 
REASSIGNMENT 

Employees are subject to reassignment at the discretion of the Aagency Hhead. 
However, employees shall have the opportunity to request to be considered for vacant positions 
in accordance with the provisions of this Article. 

SECTION 1 - Definitions 

As used in this Article: 

"Reassignment" shall mean the moving of an employee from a position in a 
broadband level to a different position in the same broadband level or to a different broadband 
level having the same maximum salary and shall be treated as an original appointment. 

 
SECTION 2 - Voluntary Reassignment 

 (A) An employee who has attained twelve (12) months of continuous service in the 
Selected Exempt Service System may apply for a voluntary reassignment on a Request Form 
(supplied by the agency). Such Requests shall indicate the position(s), county(ies), institution(s) 
and/or other work location(s) to which the employee would like to be reassigned or transferred. 

 (B) An employee may submit a Request Form at any time; however, all such 
Requests shall expire on May 31 of each calendar year. Requests can be filed in May to become 
effective on June 1. 

 (C) All Request Forms shall be submitted to the Aagency Hhead or designee who 
shall be responsible for furnishing a copy of each such Request to the manager(s) or 
supervisor(s) who has the authority to make employee hiring decisions in the work unit to which 
the employee has requested reassignment or transfer. The employee shall provide a copy of the 
Request to the Union at the time it is filed with the agency. 

 (D) When an employee has been reassigned pursuant to a Request filed under this 
Article, all other pending Requests shall be canceled. No other Request may be filed under this 
Article for a period of twelve (12) months following the employee's reassignment. If an 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 9 (Substance - Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

employee declines an offer of reassignment pursuant to a Request filed under this Article, the 
employee's request shall be canceled and the employee will not be eligible to submit a Request 
for a period of twelve (12) months.  
 
SECTION 3 - Involuntary Reassignment 

(A) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent an agency, at 
its discretion, from effecting the involuntary reassignment of an employee according to the needs 
of the agency. 

(B) An employee shall be given a minimum of fourteen (14) calendar days notice 
prior to the agency effecting an involuntary reassignment of the employee. An agency shall make 
a good faith effort to provide thirty (30) calendar days notice but shall provide 14 calendar days 
notice prior to the agency effecting an involuntary reassignment of the employee that would 
require a relocation of the employees residence. The parties agree, however, that these notice 
requirements shall not be required during an emergency or other extraordinary conditions.  An 
employee shall receive relocation costs in accordance with applicable law. 
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 10 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 10 
CLASSIFICATION AND PAY PLAN 

(A) The Department of Management Services shall continue to maintain a 
classification and pay plan applicable to all positions in this Unit, designed to attract and retain 
qualified personnel.  When the Department of Management Services conducts a comparison 
between the salaries and benefits of private and public sector employees performing the same or 
similar job responsibilities, such information shall be provided to the Union.   

 (B) The employing agency shall continue to maintain a position description for each 
position on a current basis.   

(C) The Department shall assign each position to its appropriate broadband level 
according to the position description. 

(D) The classification and pay plan includes: 

(1) All approved pay bands,  

(2) The allocation of each position to a pay band, and 

(3) Provisions governing the administration of the plan. 

 (E) Upon making an original or any subsequent appointment to a Selected Exempt 
Service position in this unit, the employing agency shall set the salary at an amount within the 
assigned pay band. Based on the employee's initial or subsequent appraisal, the agency head may 
give an employee an increase in salary provided the total salary is within the assigned pay band, 
funds are available for such increase, and such increase is not specifically prohibited by act of 
the Legislature. An employee may be paid less than the minimum of the assigned pay band only 
due to budget limitations if approved by the Secretary of the Department of Management 
Services. All acting appointments will be handled and compensated in accordance with Rule 
60L-33, Florida Administrative Code.  The Union shall be notified in writing of any increase or 
decrease in a bargaining unit employee’s salary.  Increases in salary will be consistent with state 
law.   



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 10 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

 (F) Unless a different reporting procedure is prescribed by the Secretary of the 
Department of Management Services, the employing agency shall promptly report to the 
Department the initial salary for each appointment to a Selected Exempt Service position in this 
Unit and each subsequent change in such salary. The Department may adjust any or all pay 
bands in the classification and pay plan at any time such adjustments are deemed appropriate. 
When such adjustments are made by the Department, instructions as to how employees' salaries 
will be affected will be issued by the Department to all agency heads, of which a copy shall be 
provided to the Union.  
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 11 (Substance - Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 11 
CLASSIFICATION REVIEW AND PROFESSIONAL PRACTICE SCOPE 

 
SECTION 1 - Classification Review 
 
 (A)  When an employee alleges that he is being regularly required to perform duties 
not included in the position description of the position being filled by the employee, and the 
employee alleges that the duties assigned are not included in the occupational profile for the 
broadband level to which the position is allocated, the employee may request in writing that the 
agency head review the duties assigned to the employee's position. The Aagency Hhead or 
designee shall review the duties as requested. The employee will receive a copy of the written 
decision within sixty (60) days of the request. If the decision is that the duties assigned are 
sufficient to justify reclassifying the position, either the position will be reclassified or the duties 
in question will be removed. Shortage of funds shall not be used as the basis for refusing to 
reclassify a position after a review has been completed. 
  
 (B) If the employee is not satisfied with the decision, the employee, with or without 
representation, may request in writing a review by the Secretary of the Department of 
Management Services or designee. The written decision of the Secretary of the Department of 
Management Services or designee as to the classification of the position shall be final and 
binding on all parties. 
 
SECTION 2 - Scope of Health Care Professional Practice 

 (A) The Sstate will comply with all statutory and rule provisions relating to Chapters 
458 and 459, Florida Statutes. The Sstate recognizes that physicians and osteopaths licensed to 
practice in the State of Florida are required to comply with provisions of Chapters 458 and 459, 
Florida Statutes, respectively.  

 (B) A physician who has been ordered to provide medical service which in his 
professional judgment could be a threat of injury or illness to himself or others or is inconsistent 
with (A) above, may request an expedited consultation, either oral or written, from the Medical 
Director without fear of intimidation. 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 11 (Substance - Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

 (C) Employees may appeal up to and including arbitration of the grievance procedure, 
the assignment of duties that the employee alleges jeopardizes the employee's professional 
license. 

 (D) The employee will state the specific duties at issue, and will reference the 
provision(s) of law he feels places his license in jeopardy. Failure to provide this information 
will result in a dismissal of the grievance.  An employee may report alleged violations of the 
Medical Practice Act(s) or Federal Law, as appropriate, without fear of retribution. 

 (E) The Sstate shall comply with all applicable provisions of HIPPA. 
 
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 12 (Substance - Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 12 
PERSONNEL RECORDS 

 
  (A) There shall be only one official personnel file for each employee, which shall be 
maintained by the employing agency. 

 (B) Before any derogatory material is placed in an employee's official personnel file, 
a copy will be sent to the employee. The employee shall have ten (10) calendar days to provide a 
written response and his answer will be attached to the file copy. If the employee fails to respond 
the material may be placed in his official personnel file by the agency. 

 (C) An employee will have the right to review his official personnel file at reasonable 
times under the supervision of the designated records custodian. 

 (D) Employees shall not be subjected to local personnel practices which are 
prohibited or in conflict with Sstate or agency policies. 
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 13 (Substance - Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 13 
SAFETY 

 
 (A) When an employee believes that a condition exists at a Sstate facility which is in 
violation of an established health or safety rule, the condition shall be reported immediately by 
the employee in writing to the appropriate supervisor, detailing the specific violation and rule, if 
known and/or appropriate. 

 (B) The supervisor shall investigate the report and make a reasonable effort to take 
action deemed appropriate. The supervisor will furnish a written response to the employee within 
thirty (30) calendar days after the employee's report is received. 

 (C) Failure on the part of the supervisor to comply with Section (B) shall be 
grievable, but only up to and including Step 3 of the grievance procedure of this Agreement. 
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 14 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 14 
REPLACEMENT OF PERSONAL PROPERTY 

 
 
  (A) An employee, while on duty and acting within the scope of employment, who 
suffers damage or destruction of the employee's watch or prescription glasses, or other items of 
personal property as have been given prior approval by the agency and the Secretary of the 
Department of Management Services or designee, as being required by the employee to 
adequately perform the duties of the position, will be reimbursed as provided herein. 

 (B) A written report must be filed by the employee detailing the circumstances under 
which the property was damaged or destroyed. A receipt or other estimate of replacement or 
repair cost must be attached to the employee's written report. 

 (C) The State shall authorize reimbursement for repair or replacement of the property, 
not to exceed the following amounts, or as otherwise provided for by law: 

(1) Watch - $75 
(2) Prescription glasses - $200 (including any required examination) 
(3) Other Items - The Secretary of the Department of Management 

Services, or designee, shall have final authority to determine the reimbursement value of 
items other than watches or prescription glasses. 

 
(4) Total allowable per incident - $500 
 

(D) Reimbursement shall be with the approval of the Agency Head. 
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 15 (Substance - Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 15 
DRUG TESTING 

(A) The Sstate and the Union agree to drug testing of employees in accordance with 
Ssection 112.0455, Florida Statutes, the Drug-Free Workplace Act and Ssection 944.474, Florida 
Statutes. 

(B) Unless otherwise specified, all classes covered by this Agreement are designated 
safety sensitive for drug testing purposes in accordance with Ssection 112.0455, Florida Statutes. 

(C) In accordance with Ssection 944.474, Florida Statutes and the Department of 
Corrections Personnel Procedures, all employees in the classes of Physician and Senior 
Physician within the Department of Corrections shall be subject to random drug testing. In 
accordance with Article 25 of this Agreement, if Ssection 944.474, Florida Statutes, is repealed, 
or found unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, this subparagraph shall 
not be applicable, performed, or enforced. 
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 16 (Substance - Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 16 
LEAVES OF ABSENCE, HOURS OF WORK 

 
SECTION 1 - Hours of Work, Holidays and Leave 
 

(A) Inasmuch as an employee's service is performance based, each employee is 
expected to work whatever hours may be required by the position and no overtime or 
compensatory leave may be earned or paid. The head of each agency shall, by written 
procedures, establish the work hours and attendance and leave requirements for employees. Such 
written procedures, at a minimum, shall require that an accurate record of the time worked and 
leave taken be maintained and that any full-time employee who works less than the normal 
number of hours in the pay period (biweekly period-80 hours; monthly period-hours required by 
Comptroller) shall be required to utilize annual, sick or administrative leave, or leave without 
pay to bring the employee's total for the pay period up to the minimum hours required. The same 
requirements shall apply to part-time employees, except that the normal working hours in the pay 
period shall be prescribed by the agency head. With prior approval, employees working more 
than their regularly scheduled hours within a particular workweek may be allowed to offset those 
hours within the same pay period. 
 

(B) Employees are entitled to the holidays provided for in Ssection 110.117, Florida 
Statutes.  If an employee is required to work on the actual holiday or the actual holiday falls on 
the employee's regular day off, the employee would be allowed to take another day off to use as 
a holiday observance, during the pay period in which the holiday occurs. Due to agency needs, 
management would make the final decision as to which alternate date would be used for the 
holiday observance. There may be some instances where an agency may not be able to permit an 
employee to observe the holiday, due to agency needs. A consultation meeting to discuss any 
holiday staffing decisions may be requested by the Union or the agency at any time in 
accordance with Article 5, Section 2 of this agreement.  Each employee is entitled to a personal 
holiday as governed by the provisions of Ssection 110.117, Florida Statutes.  
 

(C) The general requirements for leave earning, approval and use are governed by the 
provisions of Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code and Ssection 110.219, Florida Statutes. 
 
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 16 (Substance - Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

SECTION 2 - Union Activities 
 

Employees shall have the right to request leave without pay for the purpose of 
attending Union conventions, conferences and meetings. When such requests cannot be granted, 
the supervisor shall provide such denial in writing. 
 
SECTION 3 – Negotiation Committee 
 

(A) The Union may designate certain employees to serve on its Negotiation 
Committee, and such employees will be granted administrative leave to attend negotiating 
sessions with the Sstate. No employee shall be credited with more than the number of hours in 
the employee's regular workday for any day the employee is in negotiations. The agency shall 
not reimburse employees for travel, meals, lodging, or any expense incurred in connection with 
attendance at negotiating sessions. 
 

(B) No more than one (1) employee shall be selected from the same work unit at any 
one time, nor shall the selection of an employee unduly hamper the operations of the work unit. 
 
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 17 (Substance - Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 17 
TRAINING AND EDUCATION 

SECTION 1 - Professional Education 

(A) The Sstate will make a good faith effort to allow employees a reasonable amount 
of time, with pay, as the work schedule will permit, for the purpose of attending short courses, 
institutes, and workshops which will improve their performance in their current position, as 
provided below: 

(1) Such leave may be granted if: the employee applies in advance in writing 
specifying the course and his objectives related to his position; the employee obtains permission 
of his department head, and such leave does not interfere with patient services. Such application 
should be submitted by the employee at least thirty (30) days prior to the date of the seminar or 
fourteen (14) days prior to the posting of the employee's work schedule, whichever comes 
sooner. If the request is approved, the employee will be notified in writing of the dates approved, 
and the dates of absence will be shown on the work schedule for the employee's unit. Where 
management has approved a request and the employee scheduled is unable to attend, another 
employee in the unit may be allowed by management to substitute for the employee who was 
originally scheduled. Time limits established herein may be waived by management. 

(2) No out-of-state travel will be approved to attend such courses, institutes, or 
workshops when similar programs are available within the State of Florida. 

(3) Subsections (1) and (2) above do not preclude the Sstate from assigning 
employees to attend training courses as determined by management. 

(B) In addition to the time which may be allowed under (A), above, employees who 
are required, either by statute or by the official class specification, to meet mandatory continuing 
education requirements in order to remain eligible to perform assigned duties, shall be granted 
eleven (11) days every two calendar years toward the fulfillment of such continuing education 
requirements.  Such time shall be considered time worked. 
 
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 17 (Substance - Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

SECTION 2 - Sabbatical Leave  
 

Employees may request a sabbatical leave without pay for the purpose of completing 
additional training or residencies. While on such leave without pay, employees may purchase 
those benefits consistent with applicable law at their own expense.  
 
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 18 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 30, 2013 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 18 
WAGES 

 
SECTION 1 – Pay Provisions – General 

(A) Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 General 
Appropriations Act.  

(B) Increases to base rate of pay shall be in accordance with state law and the Fiscal 
Year 2013-2014 General Appropriations Act.   

 
SECTION 2 – Unemployment Rate Incentive 
 In recognition of reducing the unemployment rate from December 2010 to December 
2012, the Governor’s Budget Recommendations provide for a one-time, non-discretionary, 
$1,200 lump sum bonus award, plus applicable taxes, to eligible employees.  Eligibility 
requirements are set forth in Section 8 – Salaries and Benefits – Fiscal Year 2013-2014 of the 
Governor’s Recommendations.  The awards shall be paid to eligible employees no later than 
August 30, 2013, and are subject to funding as provided in the 2013-2014 General 
Appropriations Act. 

 
SECTION 3 – Variable Compensation Award 
 The Governor’s Budget Recommendations provide for discretionary, one-time lump sum 
interim variable compensation awards to eligible employees achieving high job performance as 
evidenced by the employee’s performance evaluation period ending during the period July 1, 
2012 through June 30, 2013.  Awards for Outstanding and Commendable performance will be 
$5,000 and $2,500, respectively, plus applicable taxes.  Eligibility requirements are set forth in 
Section 8 – Salaries and Benefits – Fiscal Year 2013-2014 of the Governor’s Recommendations. 
The awards shall be paid to eligible employees no later than September 30, 2013, and are subject 
to funding as provided in the 2013-2014 General Appropriations Act. 

 
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 18 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 30, 2013 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

SECTION 4 – Recidivism Reduction Incentive 
 
 The Governor’s Budget Recommendations provide for one-time, non-discretionary, lump 
sum bonus awards to eligible employees in the Department of Corrections in recognition of a 
decrease in Florida’s recidivism rate over the past two years, saving more than $44 million in 
prison costs.  Awards to eligible Department employees will be $500, plus applicable taxes. 
Eligibility requirements are set forth in Section 8 – Salaries and Benefits – Fiscal Year 2013-
2014 of the Governor’s Recommendations.  The awards shall be paid to eligible employees no 
later than July 31, 2013, and are subject to funding as provided in the 2013-14 General 
Appropriations Act. 
 
SECTION 5 – Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency 
 In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 General 
Appropriations Act, and contingent upon the availability of funds and at the agency head’s 
discretion, each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15 
percent of the employee’s base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or 
area closed due to emergency conditions from another area of the state that is not closed. 

 
SECTION 6 – Performance Pay  
 Each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee’s 
exemplary performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 
60L-35, Florida Administrative Code. 

 
SECTION 7 – Savings Sharing Program 
 An employee or groups of employees may be eligible for monetary awards for ideas or 
programs that result in a cost saving to the state, pursuant to section 110.1245(1), Florida 
Statutes. 
 
 
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 18 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 30, 2013 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

SECTION 8 – Pay Subject to General Appropriations Act 
 
 In the event the 2013 Legislature provides different funding or eligibility provisions for 
the above-specified pay increases and payments, the State and the Union agree that such 
increases and payments shall be administered in accordance with the provisions of the Fiscal 
Year 2013-2014 General Appropriations Act, and any other relevant statutes.   
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 19 (Substance - Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 19 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

 
The Sstate agrees to administer the State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance 

Plan in accordance with any statutory provision or Act affecting the plan or its operation. 
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 20 (Substance - Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 20 
PER DIEM AND TRAVEL EXPENSES 

SECTION 1 – Allowable Expenses 
 

Per diem and travel expenses shall be paid for authorized travel on Sstate business in 
the manner and amounts as provided in Ssection 112.061, Florida Statutes.  Employees shall be 
allowed either of the following for each day of travel, at the option of the employee, for 
subsistence when traveling to conduct bona fide state business, as authorized by the agency: 

 
(A) Eighty dollars per diem; or 

 
(B) If actual expenses exceed $80, the following amounts for meals, plus actual 

expenses for lodging at a single-occupancy rate to be substantiated by paid bills therefor. 
Breakfast……………………………………….…..$6  
Lunch………………………………………….….  $11  
Dinner……………………………………………   $19  

SECTION 2 – Exceptions 
 

(A) When lodging or meals are provided at a state institution, the employee shall be 
reimbursed only for the actual expenses of such lodging or meals, not to exceed the maximum 
provided by Florida Statutes, Ssection 112.061. 

 
(B) No employee, whether traveling out of state or in state, shall be reimbursed for 

any meal or lodging included in a convention or conference registration fee paid by the Sstate. 
 
(C) No employee shall be reimbursed on a per diem basis, nor shall he receive 

subsistence allowance, when traveling on short trips where the employee is not away from his 
headquarters overnight. 
 
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 21 (Substance - Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 21 
PAY PLAN AND CLASSIFICATION OF WORK 

SECTION 1 – Pay Plan and Classification Changes 

In instances where the State of Florida determines that a position or the occupational 
profile for the broadband level to which the position or occupational profile is allocated 
possesses or assumes duties and responsibilities to warrant assignment to a different pay plan, an 
occupational profile for a broadband level outside this bargaining unit, or a different collective 
bargaining unit, the union will be provided with ten calendar (10) days notice and an opportunity 
to consult. 

SECTION 2 – Exclusions 

Specifically excluded are managerial employees and confidential employees as 
determined by the Florida Public Employees Relations Commission, and all persons paid from 
Other Personal Services (OPS) Funds as defined by Ssection 216.011(1), Florida Statutes. 
 
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 22 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 22 
VACANT 

 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 23 (Substance - Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 23 
MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 

 
The Union agrees that the Sstate has and will continue to retain, whether exercised or 

not, the right to determine unilaterally the purpose of each of its constituent agencies, set 
standards of services to be offered to the public, and exercise control and discretion over its 
organization and operations. Unit employees shall serve at the pleasure of the Aagency Hhead 
and shall be subject to suspension, dismissal, reduction in pay, demotion, transfer, or other 
personnel action at the discretion of the Aagency Hhead. 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 24 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 24 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

(A) This Agreement supersedes and cancels all prior practices and agreements, 
whether written or oral, unless expressly stated to the contrary herein, and constitutes the 
complete and entire Agreement between the parties, and concludes collective bargaining for its 
term. 

(B) The parties acknowledge that, during the negotiations which resulted in this 
Agreement, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with 
respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining, and 
that the understanding and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and 
opportunity are set forth in this Agreement. 

(C) If the Union believes an agency has changed a practice relative to wages, hours, 
or terms and conditions of employment, in violation of Chapter 447, Florida Statutes, this will be 
immediately brought to the agency's attention in writing. 
 
 



FPD / SES Physicians Unit 
State Proposal – Article 25 (Substance - Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
For the State                                                                          For the FPD 

 
_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 25 
SAVINGS CLAUSE 

 
If any provision of this Agreement, or the application of such provision, should be 

rendered or declared invalid, unlawful, or not enforceable, by any court action or by reason of 
any existing or subsequently enacted legislation; or if the appropriate governmental body having 
amendatory power to change a law, rule or regulation which is in conflict with a provision of this 
Agreement fails to enact or adopt an enabling amendment to make the provision effective, in 
accordance with Ssection 447.309(3) and Chapter 110, Part V, Florida Statutes; then such 
provision shall not be applicable, performed or enforced, but the remaining parts or portion of 
this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect for the term of this Agreement. 
 



Selected Exempt Service (SES) Physicians Bargaining Unit – Union Proposals 

 

To date the Federation of Physicians and Dentists representing employees in the SES Physicians 
Unit has not submitted proposals for a successor agreement for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 or 
responses to the state’s proposals.  The parties are currently scheduling negotiations and will 
advise the Committee of the outcome of these meetings. 



Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 P
hy

si
ci

an
s a

nd
 D

en
tis

ts
 (“

FP
D

”)
  

SE
S 

Ph
ys

ic
ia

ns
 U

ni
t 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f J

an
ua

ry
 3

0,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 2

01
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

 
A

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 A

rt
ic

le
s 2

 th
ro

ug
h 

25
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

2-
G

en
de

r R
ef

er
en

ce
 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

3-
V

ac
an

t 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

4-
N

o 
D

is
cr

im
in

at
io

n 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

5-
Em

pl
oy

ee
 R

ig
ht

s, 
M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
an

d 
U

ni
on

 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

6-
G

rie
va

nc
e 

Pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
               

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

Pr
op

os
es

 a
 g

rie
va

nc
e 

fo
rm

 fo
r A

pp
en

di
x 

B
 

an
d 

a 
re

qu
es

t f
or

 a
rb

itr
at

io
n 

fo
rm

 fo
r 

A
pp

en
di

x 
C

 o
f t

he
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t, 
 Pa

rti
es

 m
ay

, b
y 

w
rit

te
n 

ag
re

em
en

t, 
su

bm
it 

a 
gr

ie
va

nc
e 

fo
r m

ed
ia

tio
n 

af
te

r i
t i

s s
ub

m
itt

ed
 

to
 a

rb
itr

at
io

n 
bu

t b
ef

or
e 

a 
he

ar
in

g 
is

 
sc

he
du

le
d;

 e
xp

ed
ite

d 
ar

bi
tra

tio
n 

he
ar

in
g 

be
 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
w

he
re

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 th

re
sh

ol
d 

is
su

e 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

ar
bi

tra
bi

lit
y 

(s
uc

h 
as

 ti
m

el
in

es
s)

; 
an

ot
he

r a
rb

itr
at

or
 w

ill
 h

ea
r s

ub
st

an
tiv

e 
is

su
es

. 
  

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 



Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 P
hy

si
ci

an
s a

nd
 D

en
tis

ts
 (“

FP
D

”)
  

SE
S 

Ph
ys

ic
ia

ns
 U

ni
t 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f J

an
ua

ry
 3

0,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 2

01
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

 
A

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 A

rt
ic

le
s 2

 th
ro

ug
h 

25
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

7-
Em

pl
oy

ee
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
f 

C
on

du
ct

 a
nd

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

8-
Te

rm
in

at
io

n 
D

ue
 to

 a
 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 F
or

ce
 a

nd
 

R
ec

al
l 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 
N

o 
Pr

op
os

al
 O

ff
er

ed
. 

 

9-
R

ea
ss

ig
nm

en
t 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

10
-C

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

11
-C

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
n 

R
ev

ie
w

 
an

d 
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

Sc
op

e 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

12
-P

er
so

nn
el

 R
ec

or
ds

 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

13
-S

af
et

y 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

14
-R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t o

f 
Pe

rs
on

al
 P

ro
pe

rty
 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

15
-D

ru
g 

Te
st

in
g 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

  

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 



Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 P
hy

si
ci

an
s a

nd
 D

en
tis

ts
 (“

FP
D

”)
  

SE
S 

Ph
ys

ic
ia

ns
 U

ni
t 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f J

an
ua

ry
 3

0,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 2

01
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

 
A

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 A

rt
ic

le
s 2

 th
ro

ug
h 

25
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

16
-L

ea
ve

s o
f A

bs
en

ce
, 

H
ou

rs
 o

f W
or

k 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

17
-T

ra
in

in
g 

an
d 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

18
-W

ag
es

 
                      

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
30

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

Pa
y 

sh
al

l b
e 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r 
20

13
-1

4 
G

en
er

al
 A

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

 A
ct

. 
 Pr

ov
id

es
 fo

r o
th

er
 p

ay
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s:
 

 U
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t R

at
e 

In
ce

nt
iv

e:
 

Pr
ov

id
es

 fo
r a

 o
ne

-ti
m

e,
 n

on
-d

is
cr

et
io

na
ry

, 
$1

,2
00

 lu
m

p 
su

m
 b

on
us

 a
w

ar
d,

 p
lu

s 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 ta
xe

s, 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
el

ig
ib

ili
ty

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 in

 S
ec

tio
n 

8 
of

 F
Y

 2
01

3-
20

14
 

G
ov

er
no

r’
s B

ud
ge

t R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

, t
o 

be
 

pa
id

 n
o 

la
te

r t
ha

n 
A

ug
us

t 3
0,

 2
01

3,
 su

bj
ec

t 
to

 fu
nd

in
g 

in
 F

Y
 2

01
3-

20
14

 G
en

er
al

 
A

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

 A
ct

. 
 V

ar
ia

bl
e 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
A

w
ar

d:
 

Pr
ov

id
es

 fo
r a

 d
is

cr
et

io
na

ry
, o

ne
-ti

m
e 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
aw

ar
d 

of
 $

5,
00

0 
to

 e
lig

ib
le

 
em

pl
oy

ee
s a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 jo
b 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
nd

 $
2,

50
0 

to
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s f
or

 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 



Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 P
hy

si
ci

an
s a

nd
 D

en
tis

ts
 (“

FP
D

”)
  

SE
S 

Ph
ys

ic
ia

ns
 U

ni
t 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f J

an
ua

ry
 3

0,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 2

01
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

 
A

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 A

rt
ic

le
s 2

 th
ro

ug
h 

25
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

18
-W

ag
es

 (c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

  

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
C

om
m

en
da

bl
e 

jo
b 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
ba

se
d 

on
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
8 

of
 G

ov
er

no
r’

s F
Y

 2
01

3-
20

14
 B

ud
ge

t 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
. 

 R
ec

id
iv

is
m

 R
ed

uc
tio

n 
In

ce
nt

iv
e:

 
Pr

ov
id

es
 fo

r a
 o

ne
-ti

m
e,

 n
on

-d
is

cr
et

io
na

ry
, l

um
p 

su
m

 b
on

us
 a

w
ar

d 
of

 $
50

0,
 p

lu
s a

pp
lic

ab
le

 ta
xe

s 
to

 e
lig

ib
le

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f C
or

re
ct

io
ns

’ 
em

pl
oy

ee
s b

as
ed

 o
n 

el
ig

ib
ili

ty
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 in

 
Se

ct
io

n 
8 

of
 G

ov
er

no
r’

s F
Y

 2
01

3-
20

14
 B

ud
ge

t 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
. 

 Pr
op

os
es

 a
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 sp
ec

ia
l d

ut
ie

s a
dd

iti
ve

 
du

rin
g 

de
pl

oy
m

en
t t

o 
a 

fa
ci

lit
y 

or
 a

re
a 

cl
os

ed
 

du
e 

to
 a

n 
em

er
ge

nc
y,

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 p
ay

, a
nd

 
sa

vi
ng

s s
ha

rin
g 

pr
og

ra
m

. 
   

19
-In

su
ra

nc
e 

B
en

ef
its

 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

20
-P

er
 D

ie
m

 a
nd

 T
ra

ve
l 

Ex
pe

ns
es

 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

21
-P

ay
 P

la
n 

an
d 

C
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 W
or

k 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 



Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 P
hy

si
ci

an
s a

nd
 D

en
tis

ts
 (“

FP
D

”)
  

SE
S 

Ph
ys

ic
ia

ns
 U

ni
t 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

-Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f J

an
ua

ry
 3

0,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 2

01
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

 
A

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 A

rt
ic

le
s 2

 th
ro

ug
h 

25
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

22
-V

ac
an

t 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

23
-M

an
ag

em
en

t R
ig

ht
s 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

24
-E

nt
ire

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

25
-S

av
in

gs
 C

la
us

e 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

 



z."
o -0
::::J C

I

-0'
., til
o ITI
(D'tIl
VI til
la, c:
0"0
::::J t1)

!.<
c V;'
::::J 0
;::j:~



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 2 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

 
Article 2 

GENDER REFERENCE 
 

All references in this Agreement to employees of the male gender are used for 
convenience only and shall be construed to include both male and female employees. 

 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 3 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

 
Article 3 

VACANT 
 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 4 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

 
Article 4 

NO DISCRIMINATION 
 
SECTION 1 – Non-Discrimination Policy - Age, Sex, Race, Color, Religious Creed, 
National Origin, Disability 
 
 (A) The Sstate and the Union shall not discriminate against any employee for any 
reason prohibited by law. Consistent with Chapter 447, Florida Statutes, public employees in the 
State of Florida have the right to self-organization, to form, join, or assist labor unions or labor 
organizations or to refrain from such activity, to bargain collectively through representatives of 
their own choosing, and to engage in concerted activities, for the purpose of collective 
bargaining or other mutual aid or protection. 
 
 (B) The Union shall have the right to consult on issues of unlawful discrimination 
with an agency head or designee. 
  
 (C) Any claim of unlawful discrimination by an employee against the Sstate under 
this Section, except for grievances related to Association membership, shall only be subject to 
the method of review prescribed by law or by rules and regulations having the force and effect of 
law. 
 
SECTION 2 – Non-Discrimination Union Activities  
 
 (A) Neither the Sstate nor the Union shall interfere with the right of employees to become 
or refrain from becoming members of the Union, and the Union shall not discriminate against 
any employee because of membership or non-membership in any employee organization. 
However, the Union is not obligated to represent a non-member with respect to grievances 
and/or any arbitration or administrative proceeding.   
 
 (B) Union claims of discrimination against the Sstate, it officers or representatives shall 
be remedied only through the Public Employees Relations Commission or other such 
administrative proceedings provided by law. 
 

 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 5 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 3 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 5 
UNION ACTIVITIES AND EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATION 

 
SECTION 1 – Definition 
 

The term “employee” as used in this Agreement, shall mean an employee included in the 
bargaining unit represented by the Federation of Physicians and Dentists, (Union). 
 
SECTION 2 – Union Seminars and Conventions 
 

A designated Union representative may be granted leave without pay for his attendance at 
regularly scheduled Union seminars and conventions. 
 
SECTION 3 - Consultation Meetings 
 

(A) Upon request by the Union, the Secretary of the Department of Management Services 
or designee or the Aagency Hhead or designee shall make a good faith effort to meet and consult 
on a quarterly basis.  Such meetings shall be held at a time and place agreed to by the Sstate and 
the Union. 

 
(B) The purpose of consultation meetings shall be to discuss matters relating to the 

administration of this Agreement and any activity which affects employees.  No meeting shall be 
used for the purpose of discussing pending grievances or for negotiation purposes.  No later than 
seven (7) calendar days prior to the scheduled meeting date, the parties shall exchange agendas 
indicating matters they wish to discuss. 

 
(C) Decision(s) reached through consultation meetings shall be reduced to writing by the 

Sstate and a copy shall be furnished to the Union. 
 
SECTION 4 - Bulletin Boards 
 

(A) Union bulletin boards may be used to communicate with and inform employees.  
Bulletin board items may include notices of meetings, elections, and other related materials 
pertaining to the welfare of employees.  Notices posted on these bulletin boards shall not contain 
inflammatory material about the Sstate, its officers or employees; nor shall any posted material 
violate or have the effect of violating law, rule or regulation. 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 5 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 2 of 3 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

 
(B) Posted notices must be dated and bear the signature of the Union's authorized 

representative. 
 
(C) A violation of these provisions shall be a basis for removal of bulletin board 

privileges by the Aagency Hhead. 
 

SECTION 5 - Employee Lists 
 

The Sstate will upon request provide the Union with a list giving the name, home address 
on file, position title, and gross salary for each employee (unless the home address is confidential 
under applicable law).  This list will be prepared on the basis of the latest information on file at 
the time the list is prepared. 
 
SECTION 6 – Broadbanding Occupational Level Lists 
 

Upon request, the Sstate will provide a list of position/occupational levels for employees 
to the authorized Union representative.   
 
SECTION 7 - Representative Access 
 

(A) The Sstate agrees that designated representatives of the Union, whether local, state or 
national Union representatives, shall have access to the premises of the Sstate where employees 
are employed, consistent with applicable law. 

 
(B) If an area of the Sstate 's premises is restricted to the public, permission may be 

requested to enter the area; permission will not be unreasonably denied.  Access shall be during 
the regular working hours of the employee and only for the purpose of investigating an 
employee’s grievance. 
 

SECTION 8 – Negotiations  
 

(A)  All collective bargaining is to be conducted with Sstate representatives designated 
for that purpose by the Governor, as chief executive officer. While negotiating meetings shall 
normally be held in Tallahassee, the State and the Union may agree to meet elsewhere at a Sstate 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 5 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 3 of 3 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

facility or other location which involves no rental cost to the State.  There shall be no negotiation 
between the Union and the State at other levels of Sstate government. 

 
(B)  The Union may designate employees to serve on its Negotiation Committee, and the 

employees will be granted administrative leave to attend negotiating sessions with the Sstate. No 
employee shall be credited with more than the number of hours in the employee's regular 
workday for a day the employee is in negotiations. The total number of hours paid employees on 
the Negotiation Committee during the term of the Agreement shall not exceed two hundred fifty 
(250) hours. The agency shall not reimburse employees for travel, meals, lodging, or any 
expense incurred in connection with attendance at negotiating sessions. 

 
(C)  No more than one (1) employee shall be selected from the same work unit at any one 

time, nor shall the selection of an employee unduly hamper the operations of the work unit. 

 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 6 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 6 
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

 
It is the policy of the Sstate and Union to encourage informal discussions between 

supervisors and employees regarding employee concerns. Such discussions should be held with a 
view to reaching an understanding which will resolve the matter in a manner satisfactory to the 
employee, without need for recourse to a formal grievance procedure. 
 
SECTION 1 – Definitions 
 

(A) A "grievance" shall mean a complaint by an employee or the Union that there has 
been a violation or misinterpretation of the provisions of this Agreement, filed on the appropriate 
form as contained in Appendix B of the Agreement. 

 
(B) "Employee" shall mean an employee having a grievance. 
 
(C) "Days" shall mean calendar days, excluding any days observed by the Sstate as a 

holiday for employees pursuant to section 110.117, Florida Statutes.  
 
(D) "Required Participant" means an employee whose presence at a grievance meeting 

has been determined necessary by the agency.   
 
(E) "Union Representative" means a Union designated representative. 

 
SECTION 2 - Election of Remedy 
 

An employee shall have the option of utilizing the redress procedures as provided in 
Chapter 447, Florida Statutes, or this grievance procedure, but the employee is precluded from 
using more than one procedure to address the same or similar complaints and issues. 
 
SECTION 3 - Union Representation 
 

(A) An employee who decides to use this grievance procedure shall indicate at Step 1 (or 
other initial written step as authorized by the provisions of this Article) whether he shall be 
represented by the Union.  When an employee has elected Union representation, both the 
employee and the Union representative shall be notified of Step 1 meetings.  Written 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 2 of 6 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

communication concerning the grievance or its resolution shall be sent to both the employee and 
the Union representative, and the decision agreed to by the Sstate and the Union shall be binding 
on the employee. 

 
(B) If the employee is not represented by the Union, an adjustment of the grievance shall 

be consistent with the terms of this collective bargaining Agreement.  The Union shall be given 
reasonable opportunity to be present at a meeting called for the resolution of such grievance.  An 
employee using this procedure in the processing of a grievance will be bound by the procedure 
established by the parties to the Agreement. 

 
(C) The Executive Director of the Union shall furnish to the Sstate a list of Union 

Representatives and the Sstate will not recognize a person as a Union Representative whose 
name does not appear on the list. 

 
(D) If a grievance meeting is held during the working hours of any required participant, 

the participant shall be excused without loss of pay for that purpose.  Attendance at grievance 
meetings outside of regular working hours shall not be deemed time worked. 
 
SECTION 4 – Procedures 
 

(A) The filing or pendency of any grievance under the provisions of this Article shall in 
no way operate to impede, delay or interfere with the right of the Sstate to take the action 
complained of; subject, however to the final disposition of the grievance.  Grievances may be 
filed and responded to by facsimile, electronic mail, mail, or personal delivery. 

(B) The resolution of the grievance prior to its submission at Step 2 shall not establish a 
precedent binding on either the Union or the Sstate in other cases. 

(C) A grievance may be withdrawn by the grievant at any time at any step of this 
procedure, provided however, that the same grievance may not be filed a second time by the 
same party after the grievance has been withdrawn. 

(D) Grievances shall be presented and adjusted in the following manner. 
(1) Informal Discussion 

(a) An employee having a grievance may, within fourteen (14) days 
following the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance, present the grievance orally to 
his immediate supervisor who has the authority to adjust the grievance, for informal discussion. 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 3 of 6 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

(b) If the grievance is not resolved by such informal discussion, the 
employee may, within fourteen (14) days after the date of that discussion, submit a formal 
written grievance at Step 1 of this procedure. 

(2) Step 1 
(a) In filing a grievance at Step 1, the employee shall submit to the Step 1 

management representative or designee within 14 days following the occurrence of the event 
giving rise to the grievance a grievance form as contained in Appendix B setting forth 
specifically the complete facts and issues on which the grievance is based, the specific provision 
or provisions of the Agreement allegedly violated, and the relief requested. 

(b) The Step 1 management representative or designee shall meet with the 
Union Representative to discuss the grievance and shall communicate a decision in writing to the 
employee and to the Union Representative, if any, within fourteen (14) days following the 
receipt of the written grievance. 

(3) Step 2 
(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the employee may appeal the 

grievance in writing to the Aagency Hhead or designee within fourteen (14) days after following 
receipt of the decision at Step 1. 

(b) The Aagency Hhead or designee may meet with the Union 
Representative to discuss the grievance.  The Aagency Hhead or designee shall communicate a 
decision in writing to the employee and to the Union Representative within twenty-one (21) days 
of receipt of the written grievance. 

(c) Grievance Mediation.  The parties may, by written agreement, submit a 
grievance to mediation to be conducted by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service 
(FMCS), either prior to the grievance being submitted to arbitration or after it has been submitted 
but before a hearing is scheduled.  When the parties agree to mediate a grievance, the time limits 
to file for, or process, an arbitration are automatically extended for the period necessary to 
conclude the mediation process.  Either party may withdraw from the mediation process with 
written notice no later than five (5) days before a scheduled mediation. 

(4) Step 3 
(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 2, the employee may submit 

the grievance in writing to the Office Manager for the Office of the General Counsel of the 
Department of Management Services, 4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 160, Tallahassee, Florida, 
32399-0950 within fourteen (14) days following receipt of the decision at Step 2. The grievance 
shall include a copy of the grievance form submitted at Steps 1 and 2, together with all written 
responses and documents in support of the grievance. 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 4 of 6 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

(b) The Department of Management Services’ designee may meet with 
the Union Representative to discuss the grievance. The designee shall communicate a decision in 
writing to the employee and the Union Representative within twenty-one (21) days following 
receipt of the written grievance. 

(5) Grievance Mediation 
The parties may, by written agreement, submit a grievance to mediation to be 

conducted by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS) after it has been submitted 
to arbitration but before a hearing is scheduled.  Either party may withdraw from the mediation 
process with written notice no later than five (5) days before a scheduled mediation. 

(4) (6) Step 34 - Arbitration 
(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 2, the Union Representative 

may appeal the grievance to arbitration on a Request for Arbitration form as contained in 
Appendix C within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the decision at Step 2. 

(b) The arbitrator shall be one person from a panel of three (3) 
permanent arbitrators, selected by the State and the Union to serve in rotation for any case or 
cases submitted.  The Department of Management Services shall facilitate the scheduling of all 
arbitration hearings. 

(c) Arbitration hearings shall be held at times and locations agreed to by 
the parties. Under normal circumstances, hearings will be held in Tallahassee; however, selection 
of the site shall take into account the availability of evidence, location of witnesses and existence 
of appropriate facilities. If agreement cannot be reached the arbitration hearing shall be held in 
the city of Tallahassee. 

(d) Issues of arbitrability, including timeliness, shall be separated from 
the substantive issue(s) of the grievance and, whenever possible, determined by a hearing 
conducted by conference call.  The arbitrator shall have ten (10) days from the hearing to render 
a decision on arbitrability.  If the decision is that the issue is arbitrable, an arbitrator shall then be 
selected to hear the substantive issue(s) in accordance with the provisions of (4)(b). Where there 
is a threshold issue regarding arbitrability, including timeliness, of a grievance raised by either 
party, an expedited arbitration hearing shall be conducted to address only the arbitrability issue.  
In such cases, the parties shall choose an arbitrator from the panel of arbitrators (see (6)(b) 
above), who is available to schedule a hearing and render a decision within twenty days of an 
arbitrator being chosen for this limited purpose.  The hearing on this issue shall be limited to one 
day, and the arbitrator shall be required to decide the issue within five (5) business days of the 
hearing.  The hearing shall be conducted by telephone upon the agreement of the parties and the 
arbitrator.  The fees and expenses of the expedited arbitration shall be shared equally by the 
parties. If the arbitrator determines that the issue is arbitrable, another arbitrator shall be chosen 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 5 of 6 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

from the parties’ regular arbitration panel in accordance with the provisions of (6)(b) of this 
Article to conduct a hearing on the substantive issue(s). 

(e)  The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the 
grievance and, provided the decision is in accordance with his jurisdiction and authority under 
this Agreement, such decision shall be final and binding on the State, the Union, the grievant(s), 
and the employees.  In considering a grievance, the arbitrator shall be governed by the following 
provisions and limitations: 

1. The arbitrator shall issue his decision not later than thirty (30) 
days from the date of the closing of the hearing or the submission of briefs, whichever is later. 

2. The arbitrator's decision shall be in writing, and shall set forth 
the arbitrator's opinion and conclusions on the issue(s) submitted. 

3. The arbitrator shall have no authority to determine any issues 
other than those issues raised in the initial written grievance. The arbitrator shall refrain from 
issuing any statement of opinion or conclusion not essential to the determination of the issues 
submitted. 

4. The arbitrator shall limit his decision strictly to the application 
and interpretation of the specific provisions of this Agreement. 

5. The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make any 
decision: 

a. Contrary to or inconsistent with, adding to, subtracting 
from, or modifying, altering or ignoring in any way, the terms of this Agreement, or of 
applicable law or rules or regulations having the force and effect of law. 

b. Limiting or interfering in any way with the powers, 
duties and responsibilities of the State under its Constitution, applicable law, and rules and 
regulations having the force and effect of law, except as such powers, duties and responsibilities 
have been abridged, delegated or modified by the expressed provisions of this Agreement. 

c. Which has the effect of restricting the discretion of an 
agency head as otherwise granted by law; or 

d. That is based solely upon an agency past practice or 
policy other than to determine that such agency practice or policy is contrary to law. 

(f)  The reasonable fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne 
equally by the parties.  Each party shall be responsible for compensating and paying the 
expenses of its own representatives, attorneys and witnesses. 

(g) The employee, not the Union, will be responsible for costs of an 
arbitration to which the Union was not a party. 

 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 6 of 6 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

(5) (7) Time Limits 
(a) Failure to initiate or appeal a grievance within the time limits in 

Section 4 shall be deemed a waiver of the grievance. Failure at any step of this procedure to 
submit a grievance to the next step within the specified time limits shall be deemed to be 
acceptance of the decision at that step. 

(b) Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a 
grievance within the specified time limit shall permit the employee or the Union where 
appropriate, to proceed to the next step. 

(c) The number of days indicated at each step should be considered as a 
maximum, and every effort should be made to expedite the process.  However, the time limits 
specified in any step of this procedure may be extended in writing, in any specific instance, by 
agreement of the parties. 

(d) Claims of either an untimely filing or untimely appeal shall be made at 
the step in question, or will be considered waived. 

(6) (8) Facts or arguments not presented by the grievant to the Step 2 grievance 
officer may not be raised at arbitration in support of the grievance. 

 
 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 7 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 7 
EMPLOYEE STANDARDS OF CONDUCT 

 
SECTION 1 - Employee Representation Right 
 

An employee may request a union representative be present to advise and/or assist the 
employee during an investigation meeting in which the employee is being questioned relative to 
alleged misconduct of the employee.  The purpose of the investigation will be explained to the 
employee prior to the time of the meeting. 

 
SECTION 2 - Employee Election 
 

An employee’s rights are not violated where an investigatory proceeding takes place and 
the employee fails to request representation, unless the employer fails to advise the employee of 
the purpose of the meeting. 

 
SECTION 3 - State Denial of Representation 
 

The employer may refuse a request for a union representative during an investigatory 
interview not intended to lead to the discipline of the interviewed employee.  If the interview 
transitions to questions which may lead to the discipline of the interviewed employee, he or she 
may have union representation for the interview to continue. 

 
SECTION 4 - Standards of Conduct 
 

(A) The Selected Exempt Service, to which occupational level positions within this unit 
are assigned, is designed to provide the delivery of high quality performance in selected 
positions by facilitating the Sstate 's ability to attract and retain qualified personnel in these 
positions, while also providing sufficient management flexibility to ensure that the work force is 
responsive to agency needs.  

 
(B) The duties and responsibilities for each of the occupational level positions are 

assigned by the respective agencies. 
 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 7 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

(C) Each employee shall serve at the pleasure of the Aagency Hhead and may be subject 
to suspension, dismissal, reduction in pay, demotion, transfer, or other personnel action at the 
discretion and upon prior review and consideration of the Aagency Hhead or designee.  Upon 
written request of the Union, agencies will in accordance with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, 
provide the Union documentation related to the personnel action. 

 
(D) If not available electronically, the Sstate will, upon the payment of appropriate costs, 

provide the union with copies of public records related to all personnel actions.  Requests shall 
be provided in accordance with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. 
 
 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 8 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 8 
EMPLOYEE RIGHTS 

 
(A) Employees shall have the rights afforded by the Florida Constitution and Chapter 

447, Florida Statutes, including the right to join, participate in or refrain from joining or 
participating in a union; the right to be represented or refrain from being represented in 
determinations of grievances pursuant to Article 6 of this Agreement; and the right to negotiate 
collectively with the Sstate in the determination of the terms and conditions of their employment. 

 
(B) The Sstate shall not assist a creditor in collecting any debt unless required by court 

order or applicable law. 
 
(C) Employee participation in charitable drives is voluntary. 
 
(D) Employees shall not be subjected to prohibited personnel practices or policies. 
 
(E) Each employee shall be provided access to a current copy of his current position 

description. 
 
(F) Where an agency currently provides a toll allowance to employees subject to tolls to 

access their work place, the practice shall continue during the term of this agreement to the 
extent consistent with law. 

 
(G) Employees with the Department of Children and Families, Department of Health, 

Department of Juvenile Justice and Department of Corrections can seek restitution for property 
damage or direct medical expenses for injuries caused by sheltered children, foster children, or 
escapees, inmates or patients of Sstate’s institutions in accordance with Ssection 402.181, 
Florida Statutes.  If an agency develops a policy for reimbursement of employees’ personal 
property, the entitlement to such reimbursement shall be incorporated therein by reference. 

 
(H) Employees currently receiving clothing allowances will continue to receive these 

allowances at existing levels. 
 

 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 9 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 9 
VACANT 

 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 10 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 10 
CAREER OPPORTUNITIES 

 
The Sstate and the Union agree that with the advent of online information regarding 

career opportunities within the Selected Exempt Service, employees have access to information 
regarding career opportunities.  An employee who believes he is qualified for a posted position 
will be provided an opportunity to submit an application for a career opportunity.  The employee 
shall receive an acknowledgement of receipt of his application.   
 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 11 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 11 
CLASSIFICATION AND PAY PLAN 

 
(A) The Department of Management Services shall continue to maintain a classification 

and pay plan, applicable to all positions in this unit, designed to attract and retain qualified 
personnel consistent with applicable law, rules, and regulations. When the Department of 
Management Services conducts a comparison between the salaries and benefits of private and 
public sector employees performing the same or similar job responsibilities, such information 
shall be provided to the Union. 

 
(B) The employing agency shall continue to maintain a position description for each 

position on a current basis.  Each employee and the Union shall be provided access to current 
position descriptions.  Upon request an employee shall be provided a copy of his position 
description either by hard copy or electronic means. 

 
(C) The Department shall assign each position to its appropriate broadband level 

according to the current position description. 
 
(D) The classification and pay plan includes: 

(1) All approved pay bands, 

(2) The allocation of each position to a broadband level, and 

(3) Provisions governing the administration of the plan. 

(E) Upon making an original or subsequent appointment to a Selected Exempt Service 
position in this unit, the employing agency shall set the salary at an amount within the assigned 
pay band.  The Aagency Hhead may give an employee an increase in salary provided the total 
salary is within the assigned pay band, funds are available for the increase, and the increase is 
not specifically prohibited by act of the Legislature. An employee may be paid less than the 
minimum of the assigned pay band due to budget limitations in the instances of a fiscal exigency.  
A vacant position may be filled below the minimum of the pay band if approved by the Secretary 
of the Department of Management Services. 

 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 11 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

(F) The Department of Management Services may adjust a pay band in the classification 
and pay plan when adjustments are appropriate.  A salary adjustment shall be consistent with 
state law.  The Union shall be notified, in writing, of individual salary increases. 

 
 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 12 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 12 
PERSONNEL FILE 

 
(A) There shall be one official personnel file for each employee, which shall be 

maintained by the employing agency.  Information in an employee's official personnel file shall 
only refer to matters concerning the employee's job or related to the employee's Sstate 
employment. 

 
(B) If derogatory material is placed in an employee's official personnel file, a copy will 

be sent to the employee. The employee shall have ten (10) calendar days to provide a written 
response and his answer will be attached to the file copy. 

 
(C) Upon request and the payment of lawful cost, the employee shall receive a copy of 

material in his file. The Sstate will provide each employee access to his personnel file by 
electronic means and if the employee has no access to a computer, the state will make a 
computer available for this purpose. 
 

 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 13 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 13 
SAFETY 

 
(A) When an employee believes that a condition exists at a Sstate facility which is in 

violation of an established health or safety rule, such condition shall be reported immediately by 
the employee, in writing, to the appropriate supervisor, detailing the specific violation and rule, if 
known and/or appropriate. 

 
(B) The supervisor shall investigate the report and make a reasonable effort to take action 

deemed appropriate. The supervisor will furnish a written response to the employee within thirty 
(30) calendar days after the employee's report is received. 

 
(C) Complaints which arise under this Article shall be grievable, but only up to and 

including Step 2 of the grievance procedure in this Agreement. 
 
(D) The parties agree that where an agency has a safety committee created by agency 

policy to directly address matters of safety related to employees, the union may select one person 
to serve on the committee. 
 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 14 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 14 
REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS 

 
The performance of employees shall be evaluated in accordance with Rule 60L-35, 

Florida Administrative Code.  Employees shall be evaluated at least annually on the date or dates 
determined by their agency; such evaluations shall be conducted by the employee’s immediate 
supervisor or designated managerial employee having knowledge of the employee’s duties, 
responsibilities and job performance.  The evaluation shall be an assessment of an employee’s 
performance of assigned duties and responsibilities, and shall inform the employee of his 
strengths and weaknesses. The rater will provide the employee with coaching and meaningful 
feedback regarding job performance throughout the evaluation period.  The rater shall inform the 
employee in writing throughout the evaluation period of performance deficiencies that could 
result in a “Below Expectation” or “Unacceptable” rating and corrective action to be taken to 
facilitate the employee’s progress toward meeting performance expectations.  

 
 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 15 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 15 
SCOPE OF PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
An employee who is required to be licensed or certified as a condition of employment 

shall not be assigned duties that directly violate the requirements of his license or certification. 
 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 16 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 16 
EMPLOYMENT OUTSIDE OF STATE GOVERNMENT 

 
An employee who wishes to perform other employment outside of state government shall 

secure approval in advance. Permission shall not be unreasonably withheld as long as such 
outside employment does not conflict with the employee’s state employment nor with the 
employing agency’s procedures limiting such outside employment. 
 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 17 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 17 
DRUG TESTING 

 
The Sstate and the Union agree to drug testing of employees in accordance with Ssection 
112.0455, Florida Statutes, the Drug-Free Workplace Act, and Ssection 944.474, Florida 
Statutes. 

 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 18 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 18 
HOURS OF WORK/OVERTIME & LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

 
SECTION 1 - Hours of Work – Excluded Employees 
 

Inasmuch as an excluded employee's service is performance based, each employee is 
expected to work whatever hours may be required by the position and no overtime or 
compensatory leave may be earned or paid, except where a compensatory leave plan has been 
approved by Department of Management Services and the respective employee’s agency. The 
authorized supervisor shall, by written procedures, establish the work hours and attendance and 
leave requirements for excluded employees. Such written procedures, as a minimum, shall 
require that an accurate record of the time worked and leave taken be maintained and that any 
full-time employee who works less than the normal number of hours in the pay period (biweekly 
period-80 hours; monthly period-hours required by Comptroller) shall be required to utilize 
annual, sick or administrative leave, compensatory leave or leave without pay to bring the 
employee's total for the pay period up to the minimum hours required. The same requirements 
shall apply to part-time employees, except that the normal working hours in the pay period shall 
be prescribed by the Aagency Hhead or designee. With prior approval, employees working more 
than their regularly scheduled hours within a particular workweek may be allowed to offset those 
hours within the same pay period. 
 
SECTION 2 – Hours of Work and FLSA Overtime for Included Employees 
 

(A) The normal workweek for each full-time employee shall be 40 hours.  The agencies 
will ensure that time and attendance sheets accurately reflect all time worked regardless of 
whether the employee is a non-exempt (included) or exempt FLSA employee.  Employees will 
be informed of changes made to their time and attendance sheet by the supervising authority, 
prior to its submission to payroll.  

(B) Management retains the right to schedule its employees; however, the Sstate will 
make a good faith effort, whenever practical, to provide employees with consecutive hours in the 
workday and consecutive days in the workweek. 

(C) Hours of work in excess of 40 hours in the workweek will qualify full-time included 
employees (not exempt under the FLSA) for overtime.  Payment of overtime shall be in 
accordance with the provisions of Rule 60L-34.0031, F.A.C. 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 18 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

(D) Management retains the right to approve or disapprove time off for its employees.  
However, the Sstate will make a good faith effort, whenever practical, to allow employees to 
schedule leave as requested by the employee. Failure to approve an employee's specific request 
shall not be grievable under the provisions of Article 6 of this Agreement. 

(E) The Sstate agrees that the assignment of overtime is not to be made on the basis of 
favoritism.  Where an employee has reason to believe that overtime is being assigned on the 
basis of favoritism, the employee shall have the right to the Grievance Procedure under Article 6 
of this Agreement, to Step 2. 
 
SECTION 3 – Leaves of Absence 
 

The general requirements for leave earning, approval and use are governed by the 
provisions of Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code and Ssection 110.219, Florida Statutes.  
 
 
 
 
 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 19 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 19 
HOLIDAYS 

 
SECTION 1 – Recognized Holidays 
 
Employees are entitled to the holidays identified in Ssection 110.117, Florida Statutes.  If an 
employee is required to work on the actual holiday or the actual holiday falls on the 
employee’s regular day off, the employee will be allowed to take another day off to use as a 
holiday observance, during the pay period in which the holiday occurs.  Due to agency needs, 
management will make the final decision as to which alternate date would be used for the 
holiday observance.  There may be some instances where an agency may not be able to 
permit an employee to observe the holiday, due to agency needs.  A consultation meeting to 
discuss holiday staffing decisions may be requested by the Union or the agency at any time. 
 
SECTION 2 – Personal Holiday 
 
Each employee is entitled to a personal holiday as governed by the provisions of Ssection 
110.117, Florida Statutes. 

 
 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 20 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 20 
TRAINING 

 
The Sstate and the Union recognize the importance of training programs in the 

development of employees. 
 
SECTION 1 - Employee Training 
 

(A) The Sstate will make every reasonable effort to continue existing training programs 
and to develop new programs where the State considers such programs to be necessary. 

 
(B) The Sstate will make a good faith effort to provide newly hired employees with a 

paid on-the-job orientation period to explain procedures, policies and standards of performance 
expected of the employee, and to provide in-service education programs. 

 
(C) Employees shall ensure that all licensures or certifications required by their position 

shall remain in good standing.  If education or training is required for employees to remain in 
their position, employees’ attendance at required training or education courses shall be 
considered hours of work.  Employees may be reimbursed for the cost of required training and or 
education to maintain required licensures or certifications as authorized by law. 
 
SECTION 2 - Employee Education 
 

(A) When the Sstate requires an employee to attend short courses, institutes and 
workshops to improve their performance in their current position, it will be considered time with 
pay. 

 
(B) Personal leave may be granted for other training purposes if: the employee applies in 

advance in writing specifying the course and his objectives related to his position, the employee 
obtains permission of his Agency Head or designee, and the leave does not interfere with agency 
services. 
 
SECTION 3 - Educational Assistance Plan 
 

The Sstate shall provide up to six (6) credit hours of tuition-free courses per term at a 
state university or community college to full-time employees on a space available basis as 
authorized by law.   



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 20 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

 
SECTION 4 – Grievability 
 

It is understood that nothing in this Article precludes or in any way limits or restricts the 
State's right to develop, implement, or otherwise manage the training of employees. Therefore, a 
claim by an employee or the Union concerning this Article shall not be subject to the grievance 
procedure of this Agreement except the issue of whether the employee was permitted time with 
pay to attend required training.  
 
 
 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 21 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 21 
TRAVEL EXPENSES 

 
SECTION 1 – Allowable Expenses 
 

Per diem and travel expenses shall be paid for authorized travel on Sstate business in the 
manner and amounts as provided in Ssection 112.061, Florida Statutes.  Employees shall be 
allowed either of the following for each day of travel, at the option of the employee, for 
subsistence when traveling to conduct bona fide state business, as authorized by the agency: 

(A) Eighty dollars per diem; or 
(B) If actual expenses exceed $80, the following amounts for meals, plus actual expenses 

for lodging at a single-occupancy rate to be substantiated by paid bills therefor. 
 

Breakfast………………………………………. …$6 
Lunch………………………………………….….$11 
Dinner……………………………………… ……$19 

 

SECTION 2 – Exceptions 
 

(A) When lodging or meals are provided at a state institution, the employee shall be 
reimbursed only for the actual expenses of such lodging or meals, not to exceed the maximum 
provided by Florida Statutes, Ssection 112.061. 

(B) No employee, whether traveling out of state or in state, shall be reimbursed for any 
meal or lodging included in a convention or conference registration fee paid by the Sstate. 

(C) No employee shall be reimbursed on a per diem basis, nor shall he receive 
subsistence allowance, when traveling on short trips where the employee is not away from his 
headquarters overnight. 

 
 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 22 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 22 
REPLACEMENT OF PERSONAL PROPERTY 

 
(A) An employee, while on duty and acting within the scope of employment, who 

suffers damage or destruction of the employee’s watch or prescription glasses, or other items of 
personal property as have been given prior approval by the agency and the Secretary of 
Management Services or designee, as being required by the employee to adequately perform the 
duties of the position, will be reimbursed as provided herein.   

 
(1) Watch -$75 
 
(2) Prescription Glasses - $200 

 
(3) Other Items – The Secretary of management Services, or designee, 

shall have final authority to determine the reimbursement value of items other than watches or 
prescription glasses. 

 
(4) Total allowable per incident - $500 
 

(B) Reimbursement shall be with the approval of the Agency Head. Approvals shall not 
be unreasonably denied.  

 
 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 23 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 23 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

 
The Sstate agrees to administer the State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan in 

accordance with any statutory provision or Act affecting the plan or its operation. 
 
 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 24 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 24 
VACANT 

 
 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 25 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 30, 2013 

Page 1 of 3 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 25 
WAGES 

 
SECTION 1 – Pay Provisions – General 

(A) Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 General 
Appropriations Act.  

(B) Increases to base rate of pay shall be in accordance with state law and the Fiscal 
Year 2013-2014 General Appropriations Act.   
 
SECTION 2 – Unemployment Rate Incentive 
 
 In recognition of reducing the unemployment rate from December 2010 to December 
2012, the Governor’s Budget Recommendations provide for a one-time, non-discretionary, 
$1,200 lump sum bonus award, plus applicable taxes, to eligible employees.  Eligibility 
requirements are set forth in Section 8 – Salaries and Benefits – Fiscal Year 2013-2014 of the 
Governor’s Recommendations.  The awards shall be paid to eligible employees no later than 
August 30, 2013, and are subject to funding as provided in the 2013-2014 General 
Appropriations Act. 
 
SECTION 3 – Variable Compensation Award 
 
 The Governor’s Budget Recommendations provide for discretionary, one-time lump sum 
interim variable compensation awards to eligible employees achieving high job performance as 
evidenced by the employee’s performance evaluation period ending during the period July 1, 
2012 through June 30, 2013.  Awards for Outstanding and Commendable performance will be 
$5,000 and $2,500, respectively, plus applicable taxes.  Eligibility requirements are set forth in 
Section 8 – Salaries and Benefits – Fiscal Year 2013-2014 of the Governor’s Recommendations. 
The awards shall be paid to eligible employees no later than September 30, 2013, and are subject 
to funding as provided in the 2013-2014 General Appropriations Act. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 25 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 30, 2013 

Page 2 of 3 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

SECTION 4 – Recidivism Reduction Incentive 
 
 The Governor’s Budget Recommendations provide for one-time, non-discretionary, lump 
sum bonus awards to eligible employees in the Department of Corrections in recognition of a 
decrease in Florida’s recidivism rate over the past two years, saving more than $44 million in 
prison costs.  Awards to eligible Department employees will be $500, plus applicable taxes. 
Eligibility requirements are set forth in Section 8 – Salaries and Benefits – Fiscal Year 2013-
2014 of the Governor’s Recommendations.  The awards shall be paid to eligible employees no 
later than July 31, 2013, and are subject to funding as provided in the 2013-14 General 
Appropriations Act. 
 
SECTION 5 – Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency 
 
 In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 General 
Appropriations Act, and contingent upon the availability of funds and at the agency head’s 
discretion, each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15 
percent of the employee’s base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or 
area closed due to emergency conditions from another area of the state that is not closed. 
 
SECTION 6 – Performance Pay  
 
 Each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee’s 
exemplary performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 
60L-35, Florida Administrative Code. 
 
SECTION 7 – Savings Sharing Program 
 An employee or groups of employees may be eligible for monetary awards for ideas or 
programs that result in a cost saving to the state, pursuant to section 110.1245(1), Florida 
Statutes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 25 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 30, 2013 

Page 3 of 3 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

SECTION 8 – Pay Subject to General Appropriations Act 
 
 In the event the 2013 Legislature provides different funding or eligibility provisions for 
the above-specified pay increases and payments, the State and the Union agree that such 
increases and payments shall be administered in accordance with the provisions of the Fiscal 
Year 2013-2014 General Appropriations Act, and any other relevant statutes.   
 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 26 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 26 
PRINTING OF THE AGREEMENT 

 
Each party to the collective bargaining agreement shall bear its own printing costs; 

however, during the term of the agreement, the Department of Management Services shall 
maintain a copy of the Agreement on its website. 
 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 27 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 27 
VACANT 

 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 28 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 28 
MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 

 
The Union agrees that the Sstate has and will continue to retain, whether exercised or not, 

the right to determine unilaterally the purpose of each of its constituent agencies, set standards of 
services to be offered to the public, and exercise control and discretion over its organization and 
operations. Unit employees shall serve at the pleasure of the Aagency Hhead and shall be subject 
to suspension, dismissal, reduction in pay, demotion, transfer, or other personnel action at the 
discretion of the Aagency Hhead. 
 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 29 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 29 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 
(A) This Agreement supersedes and cancels all prior practices and agreements, whether 

written or oral, unless expressly stated to the contrary herein, and constitutes the complete and 
entire Agreement between the parties, and concludes collective bargaining for its term. 

 
(B) The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which resulted in this 

Agreement, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with 
respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining, and 
that the understanding and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and 
opportunity are set forth in this Agreement. 

 
(C) If the Union believes an agency has changed a practice relative to wages, hours, or 

terms and conditions of employment, in violation of Chapter 447, Florida Statutes, this will be 
immediately brought to the agency's attention in writing. 
 



FPD / SES Supervisory Non-Professional Unit 
State Proposal – Article 30 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

For the State                                                                           For the FPD 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                Federation of Physicians and Dentists 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 30 
SAVINGS CLAUSE 

 
If any provision of this Agreement, or the application of such provision, should be 

rendered or declared invalid, unlawful, or not enforceable, by any court action or by reason of 
any existing or subsequently enacted legislation; or if the appropriate governmental body having 
amendatory power to change a law, rule or regulation which is in conflict with a provision of this 
Agreement fails to enact or adopt an enabling amendment to make the provision effective, in 
accordance with Ssection 447.309(3) and Chapter 110, Part V, Florida Statutes; then such 
provision shall not be applicable, performed or enforced, but the remaining parts or portion of 
this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect for the term of this Agreement. 
 
 



Selected Exempt Service (SES) Supervisory Non-Professional Bargaining Unit – Union Proposals 

 

To date the Federation of Physicians and Dentists representing employees in the SES 
Supervisory Non-Professional Unit has not submitted proposals for a successor agreement for 
Fiscal Year 2013-2014 or responses to the state’s proposals.  The parties are currently scheduling 
negotiations and will advise the Committee of the outcome of these meetings. 

 



Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 P
hy

si
ci

an
s a

nd
 D

en
tis

ts
  

Se
le

ct
ed

 E
xe

m
pt

 S
er

vi
ce

 (S
E

S)
 S

up
er

vi
so

ry
 N

on
-P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l U

ni
t 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

 -Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f J

an
ua

ry
 3

0,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 2

01
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

 
A

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 A

rt
ic

le
s 2

 th
ro

ug
h 

30
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

2 
– 

G
en

de
r R

ef
er

en
ce

 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

3 
– 

V
ac

an
t 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

4 
– 

N
o 

D
is

cr
im

in
at

io
n 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

5 
– 

U
ni

on
 A

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
nd

 
Em

pl
oy

ee
 R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

6 
– 

G
rie

va
nc

e 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

               

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

Pr
op

os
es

 a
 g

rie
va

nc
e 

fo
rm

 fo
r A

pp
en

di
x 

B
 a

nd
 

a 
re

qu
es

t f
or

 a
rb

itr
at

io
n 

fo
rm

 fo
r A

pp
en

di
x 

C
 o

f 
th

e 
ag

re
em

en
t, 

 If 
a 

co
nt

ra
ct

 la
ng

ua
ge

 g
rie

va
nc

e 
is

 n
ot

 re
so

lv
ed

 
at

 S
te

p 
2 

of
 G

rie
va

nc
e 

Pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
 

m
ay

 su
bm

it 
th

e 
gr

ie
va

nc
e 

to
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f 

M
an

ag
em

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s, 

St
ep

 3
, f

or
 re

vi
ew

, 
 Pa

rti
es

 m
ay

, b
y 

w
rit

te
n 

ag
re

em
en

t, 
su

bm
it 

a 
gr

ie
va

nc
e 

fo
r m

ed
ia

tio
n 

af
te

r i
t i

s s
ub

m
itt

ed
 to

 
ar

bi
tra

tio
n 

bu
t b

ef
or

e 
a 

he
ar

in
g 

is
 sc

he
du

le
d;

 
ex

pe
di

te
d 

ar
bi

tra
tio

n 
he

ar
in

g 
be

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 

w
he

re
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 th
re

sh
ol

d 
is

su
e 

re
ga

rd
in

g 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
      

      St
at

e’
s p

ro
po

sa
l 

en
su

re
s D

M
S’

 S
te

p 
3 

re
vi

ew
 o

f c
on

tra
ct

 
la

ng
ua

ge
 g

rie
va

nc
es

, 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 o
th

er
 

ag
re

em
en

ts
.  

If 
th

e 
gr

ie
va

nc
e 

is
 n

ot
 

re
so

lv
ed

 a
t S

te
p 

3,
 

th
e 

un
io

n 
m

ay
 

re
qu

es
t a

rb
itr

at
io

n.
 



Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 P
hy

si
ci

an
s a

nd
 D

en
tis

ts
  

Se
le

ct
ed

 E
xe

m
pt

 S
er

vi
ce

 (S
E

S)
 S

up
er

vi
so

ry
 N

on
-P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l U

ni
t 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

 -Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f J

an
ua

ry
 3

0,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 2

01
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

 
A

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 A

rt
ic

le
s 2

 th
ro

ug
h 

30
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

6 
– 

G
rie

va
nc

e 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

ar
bi

tra
bi

lit
y 

(s
uc

h 
as

 ti
m

el
in

es
s)

; a
no

th
er

 
ar

bi
tra

to
r w

ill
 h

ea
r s

ub
st

an
tiv

e 
is

su
es

. 
   

7 
– 

Em
pl

oy
ee

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

of
 C

on
du

ct
 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

8 
– 

Em
pl

oy
ee

 R
ig

ht
s 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

9 
– 

V
ac

an
t 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

10
 –

 C
ar

ee
r O

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

11
 –

 C
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
Pa

y 
Pl

an
 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

12
 –

 P
er

so
nn

el
 F

ile
 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

13
 –

 S
af

et
y 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

14
 –

 R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 E

va
lu

at
io

ns
 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 



Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 P
hy

si
ci

an
s a

nd
 D

en
tis

ts
  

Se
le

ct
ed

 E
xe

m
pt

 S
er

vi
ce

 (S
E

S)
 S

up
er

vi
so

ry
 N

on
-P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l U

ni
t 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

 -Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f J

an
ua

ry
 3

0,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 2

01
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

 
A

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 A

rt
ic

le
s 2

 th
ro

ug
h 

30
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

15
 –

 S
co

pe
 o

f 
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s  

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

16
 –

 E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t O
ut

si
de

 
St

at
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

17
 –

 D
ru

g 
Te

st
in

g 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

18
 –

 H
ou

rs
 o

f 
W

or
k/

O
ve

rti
m

e 
&

 L
ea

ve
s 

of
 A

bs
en

ce
 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

19
 –

 H
ol

id
ay

s 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

20
 –

 T
ra

in
in

g 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

21
 –

 T
ra

ve
l E

xp
en

se
s 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

22
 –

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t o
f 

Pe
rs

on
al

 P
ro

pe
rty

 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

23
 –

 In
su

ra
nc

e 
Be

ne
fit

s 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 
  

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 



Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 P
hy

si
ci

an
s a

nd
 D

en
tis

ts
  

Se
le

ct
ed

 E
xe

m
pt

 S
er

vi
ce

 (S
E

S)
 S

up
er

vi
so

ry
 N

on
-P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l U

ni
t 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

 -Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f J

an
ua

ry
 3

0,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 2

01
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

 
A

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 A

rt
ic

le
s 2

 th
ro

ug
h 

30
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

24
 –

 V
ac

an
t 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

25
 –

 W
ag

es
 

                         

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
30

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

Pa
y 

sh
al

l b
e 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r 
20

13
-1

4 
G

en
er

al
 A

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

 A
ct

. 
 Pr

ov
id

es
 fo

r o
th

er
 p

ay
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s:
 

 U
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t R

at
e 

In
ce

nt
iv

e:
 

Pr
ov

id
es

 fo
r a

 o
ne

-ti
m

e,
 n

on
-d

is
cr

et
io

na
ry

, 
$1

,2
00

 lu
m

p 
su

m
 b

on
us

 a
w

ar
d,

 p
lu

s 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 ta
xe

s, 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
el

ig
ib

ili
ty

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 in

 S
ec

tio
n 

8 
of

 F
Y

 2
01

3-
20

14
 

G
ov

er
no

r’
s B

ud
ge

t R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

, t
o 

be
 p

ai
d 

no
 la

te
r t

ha
n 

A
ug

us
t 3

0,
 2

01
3,

 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

fu
nd

in
g 

in
 F

Y
 2

01
3-

20
14

 G
en

er
al

 
A

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

 A
ct

. 
 V

ar
ia

bl
e 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
A

w
ar

d:
 

Pr
ov

id
es

 fo
r a

 d
is

cr
et

io
na

ry
, o

ne
-ti

m
e 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
aw

ar
d 

of
 $

5,
00

0 
to

 e
lig

ib
le

 
em

pl
oy

ee
s a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 jo
b 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
nd

 $
2,

50
0 

to
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s f
or

 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

C
om

m
en

da
bl

e 
jo

b 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

el
ig

ib
ili

ty
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 in

 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 



Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 P
hy

si
ci

an
s a

nd
 D

en
tis

ts
  

Se
le

ct
ed

 E
xe

m
pt

 S
er

vi
ce

 (S
E

S)
 S

up
er

vi
so

ry
 N

on
-P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l U

ni
t 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

 -Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f J

an
ua

ry
 3

0,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 2

01
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

 
A

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 A

rt
ic

le
s 2

 th
ro

ug
h 

30
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

25
 –

 W
ag

es
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
Se

ct
io

n 
8 

of
 G

ov
er

no
r’

s F
Y

 2
01

3-
20

14
 

B
ud

ge
t R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
. 

 R
ec

id
iv

is
m

 R
ed

uc
tio

n 
In

ce
nt

iv
e:

 
Pr

ov
id

es
 fo

r a
 o

ne
-ti

m
e,

 n
on

-d
is

cr
et

io
na

ry
, 

lu
m

p 
su

m
 b

on
us

 a
w

ar
d 

of
 $

50
0,

 p
lu

s 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 ta
xe

s t
o 

el
ig

ib
le

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f 
C

or
re

ct
io

ns
’ e

m
pl

oy
ee

s b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
el

ig
ib

ili
ty

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
8 

of
 

G
ov

er
no

r’
s F

Y
 2

01
3-

20
14

 B
ud

ge
t 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

. 
 Pr

op
os

es
 a

 te
m

po
ra

ry
 sp

ec
ia

l d
ut

ie
s a

dd
iti

ve
 

du
rin

g 
de

pl
oy

m
en

t t
o 

a 
fa

ci
lit

y 
or

 a
re

a 
cl

os
ed

 d
ue

 to
 a

n 
em

er
ge

nc
y,

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
pa

y,
 a

nd
 sa

vi
ng

s s
ha

rin
g 

pr
og

ra
m

. 
   

26
 –

 P
rin

tin
g 

of
 th

e 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

27
 - 

V
ac

an
t 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

28
 –

 M
an

ag
em

en
t R

ig
ht

s 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 



Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 P
hy

si
ci

an
s a

nd
 D

en
tis

ts
  

Se
le

ct
ed

 E
xe

m
pt

 S
er

vi
ce

 (S
E

S)
 S

up
er

vi
so

ry
 N

on
-P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l U

ni
t 

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

 -Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f J

an
ua

ry
 3

0,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

 –
 2

01
4 

Su
cc

es
so

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 –
 A

ll 
A

rt
ic

le
s O

pe
n 

fo
r 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

 
A

t I
m

pa
ss

e:
 A

rt
ic

le
s 2

 th
ro

ug
h 

30
 

 
A

rt
ic

le
 

 
St

at
e’

s L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

U
ni

on
’s

 L
as

t P
ro

po
sa

l 
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

29
 –

 E
nt

ire
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

30
 –

 S
av

in
gs

 C
la

us
e 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 

St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

 





SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 2 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 2 
GENDER REFERENCE 

 
All references in this Agreement to employees of the male gender are used for 

convenience only and shall be construed to include both male and female employees. 
 
 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 3 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 3 
VACANT 

 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 4 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 4  
NO DISCRIMINATION 

 
SECTION 1 - Non-Discrimination Policy - Age, Sex, Race, Color, Religious Creed, National 
Origin, Disability, Protected Union Activity 
 

(A) The Sstate and the Union shall not discriminate against any employee for any 
reason prohibited by law.  Employees shall have the rights afforded by Article 1, Section 6, of 
the Florida Constitution and Chapter 447, Florida Statutes.  Consistent with Chapter 447, Florida 
Statutes, public employees in the State of Florida have the right to self-organization, to form, 
join, or assist labor unions or labor organizations or to refrain from such activity, to bargain 
collectively through representatives of their own choosing, and to engage in concerted activities, 
for the purpose of collective bargaining or other mutual aid or protection. 

 
(B) The Union shall have the right to consult on issues of unlawful discrimination with 

an agency head or designee. 
 
(C) Any claim of unlawful discrimination by an employee against the Sstate under this 

Section, except for grievances related to Association membership, shall only be subject to the 
method of review prescribed by law or by rules and regulations having the force and effect of 
law.  
 
SECTION 2 - Non-Discrimination - Union Activities 
 

(A) Neither the Sstate nor the Union shall interfere with the right of employees to 
become or refrain from becoming members of the Union, and the Union shall not discriminate 
against any employee because of membership or non membership in any employee organization. 
However, the Union is not obligated to represent a non-member with respect to grievances 
and/or any arbitration or administrative proceeding. 

 
(B) Union claims of discrimination against the Sstate, its officers, or representatives, 

shall be remedied only through the Public Employees Relations Commission or such 
administrative proceedings provided by law. 
 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 5 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 5 
EMPLOYEE RIGHTS, MANAGEMENT, AND UNION COMMUNICATIONS 

 
SECTION 1 – Definition 
 

The term “employee”, as used in this Agreement, shall mean an employee included in 
the bargaining unit represented by the State Employees Attorneys Guild, (Union). 
 
SECTION 2 - Selected Exempt Service Rule Interpretations 
 

The Sstate will maintain on the Department of Management Services’ website any 
written interpretations of the Rules of the State Personnel System.   
 
SECTION 3 - Consultation Meetings 
 

(A) Upon request by the Union, representatives of the Department of Management 
Services shall make a good faith effort to meet and consult on a quarterly basis. Such meetings 
shall be held at a time and place agreed to by the State and the Union.  The purpose of 
consultation meetings shall be to discuss matters relating to the administration of this Agreement. 

 
(B) Upon request by the Union, an agency head or designee shall make a good faith 

effort to meet and consult on a quarterly basis. Such meetings shall be held at a time and place 
agreed to by the Aagency Hhead or designee and the Union.  The purpose of consultation 
meetings shall be to discuss matters relating to the administration of this Agreement as it relates 
to those areas within the exclusive jurisdiction of the agency consulted. 

 
(C) No later than seven (7) calendar days prior to the scheduled meeting date, the 

parties shall exchange agenda indicating the matters they wish to discuss. 
 
(D) Decision(s) reached through consultation meetings shall be reduced to writing by 

the agency and a copy shall be furnished to the Department of Management Services and the 
Union. 
 
 
 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 5 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

SECTION 4 - Bulletin Boards 
 

(A) Where requested in writing, and where justified by the number of employees 
affected, the Sstate agrees to furnish at Sstate institutions where employees are employed, wall 
space not to exceed 20" X 30" for Union purchased bulletin boards. Space will be provided in 
those areas as agreed by the agency and Union. When agreement cannot be reached, the agency 
will select an area. 

 
(B) Union bulletin boards may be used to communicate with and inform employees. 

Bulletin board items may include notices of meetings, elections, and other related materials 
pertaining to the welfare of employees. Notices posted on these bulletin boards shall not contain 
anything reflecting adversely on the Sstate, or its officers or employees, nor shall posted material 
violate or have the effect of violating any law, rule, or regulation. 

 
(C) Notices posted must be dated and bear the signature of the Union's authorized 

representative. 
 
(D) A violation of these provisions shall be a basis for removal of bulletin board 

privileges by the Chief Labor Negotiator of the Department of Management Services.  
 
SECTION 5 - Employee Lists 
 

Upon request of the Union the Sstate will provide the Union a list giving the name, 
home address on file (unless home addresses are confidential under applicable law), 
classification title, gross salary, and location of employment for each employee. This list will be 
prepared on the basis of the latest information on file at the time the list is prepared and will be 
furnished to the Union after receipt by the Sstate of the payment of the actual costs to the State 
incurred in the preparation of such list. 
 
SECTION 6 - Negotiations 
 

(A) The Union agrees that all collective bargaining is to be conducted with Sstate 
representatives designated for that purpose by the Governor, as chief executive officer. While 
negotiation meetings shall normally be held in Tallahassee, the Sstate and the Union may agree 
to meet elsewhere at a Sstatefacility or other location which involves no rental cost to the Sstate. 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 5 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

There shall be no negotiation between the Union and the Sstate at other levels of Sstate 
government. 
 

(B) The Union may designate employees to serve on its negotiation committee, and the 
employees will be granted administrative leave to attend scheduled negotiation sessions with the 
Sstate when attendance does not interfere with the performance of the employee's duties or does 
not unduly hamper the operation of the employee’s work unit.  The Union negotiation committee 
shall be limited to five (5) employees.  No more than one (1) employee shall be selected from the 
same work unit at any one time.  The Sstate shall not reimburse employees for travel, meals, or 
lodging in connection with negotiations unless the State specifically requests an employee be in 
attendance to elaborate on a particular issue. 
 
SECTION 7 - Employee Assistance Programs 
 

The Sstate and the Union encourage and support the maintenance of an Employee 
Assistance Program and the utilization of such programs by employees. 
 
SECTION 8 - Charitable Solicitations 
 

Employee participation in charitable drives is voluntary.  
 
SECTION 9 – Creditors 
 

The Sstate shall not assist outside creditors with the collection of debt unless duly 
authorized by law.  
 
SECTION 10 - Representative Access 
 

(A) The Sstate agrees that designated Union Representatives shall have access to Sstate 
controlled premises that are open to the public where employees are employed. 
 

(B) If any area of the Sstate's premises is otherwise restricted to the public, permission 
must be requested to enter the area; permission shall not be unreasonably denied.  Access shall 
be during the regular working hours of the employee and only for the purpose of investigating an 
employee's grievance. 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
Month Day, 2012 

Page 1 of 8 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 6 
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

 
It is the policy of the State and Union to encourage informal discussions between 

supervisors and employees regarding employee concerns. Such discussions should be held with a 
view to reaching an understanding which will resolve the matter in a manner satisfactory to the 
employee, without need for recourse to a formal grievance procedure. 

 
SECTION 1 – Definitions 
 

As used in this Article: 
 
(A) "Grievance" shall mean a dispute involving the interpretation or application of the 

specific provisions of this Agreement, filed on the appropriate form as contained in Appendix B 
of the Agreement. 

 
(B) "Employee" shall mean an individual employee or group of employees having the 

same grievance. In the case of a group of employees, one employee shall be designated by the 
group to act as spokesperson and to be responsible for processing the grievance. 

 
(C) "Days" shall mean calendar days, excluding any day observed by the State as a 

holiday for employees pursuant to Section 110.117, Florida Statutes. 
 
(D) "Grievance Representative" shall mean an employee designated by the Union to 

investigate grievances at the Informal Step and to represent grievants at the Informal Step and 
Step 1 meetings on grievances which have been properly filed under this Article when the Union 
has been selected as the employee's representative. 

 
(E) "Required Participant" means any employee whose presence at a grievance meeting 

has been determined necessary by the agency. 
 
(F) "Union Representative" means a non-State employee officially designated by the 

Union. 
 
 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
Month Day, 2012 

Page 2 of 8 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

SECTION 2 - Election of Remedy 
 

An employee shall have the option of utilizing the unfair labor practice procedures as 
provided in Chapter 447, Florida Statutes, or this grievance procedure, but such employee is 
precluded from using more than one procedure to address the same or similar complaints and 
issues. 
 
SECTION 3 - Grievance Representation 
 

(A) An employee who decides to use this grievance procedure shall indicate at Step 1 
(or other initial written step if authorized by the provisions of this Article) whether he shall be 
represented by the Union. When an employee has elected Union representation, both the 
employee and the Union representative shall be notified of Step 1 meetings. Written 
communication concerning the grievance or its resolution shall be sent to both the employee and 
the Union representative, unless it would entail the disclosure of confidential information or 
violate the attorney-client privilege, (in the event of a potential disclosure of confidential 
information or an attorney-client privilege, the Union will be provided an opportunity to provide 
a representative that already has access to the confidential information or who will preserve the 
privilege by the nature of their attorney-client relationship) and any decision agreed to by the 
State and the Union shall be binding on the employee. 

 
(B) If the employee is not represented by the Union, any adjustment of the grievance 

shall be consistent with the terms of this Agreement. The Union shall be given reasonable 
opportunity to be present at a meeting called for the resolution of the grievance unless it would 
result in the disclosure of confidential information or violate the attorney-client privilege. An 
employee using this procedure in the processing of a grievance will be bound by the procedure 
established by the parties to the Agreement. 

 
(C) The Executive Director of the Union shall furnish to the State a list of Union 

Representatives and Grievance Representatives. The State will not recognize a person as a Union 
Representative or Grievance Representative whose name does not appear on the list. 

 
(D) If a grievance meeting is held or requires reasonable travel time during the working 

hours of any required participant, the participant shall be excused without loss of pay for that 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
Month Day, 2012 

Page 3 of 8 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

purpose. Attendance at grievance meetings outside of regular working hours shall not be deemed 
time worked. 
 
SECTION 4 – Procedures 
 

(A) The filing or pendency of a grievance under the provisions of this Article shall in 
no way operate to impede, delay or interfere with the right of the State to take the action 
complained of; subject, however, to the final disposition of the grievance. Grievances may be 
filed and responded to by facsimile, electronic mail, mail, or personal delivery. 
 

(B) The resolution of a grievance prior to its submission in writing at Step 3 shall not 
establish a precedent binding on either the Union or the State in other cases. 

 
(C) Grievances shall be presented and adjusted in the following manner. 
 

(1) Informal Discussion 
 

(a) An employee having a grievance may, within seven (7) days 
following the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance, present the grievance orally to 
his immediate supervisor who has the authority to adjust the grievance, for informal discussion. 

 
(b) If the grievance is not resolved by informal discussion, the employee 

may, within fourteen (14) days after the date of that discussion, submit a formal written 
grievance at Step 1 of this procedure. 

 
(c) If the employee elects not to utilize the informal discussion provisions 

of this Section, the employee may file a formal grievance at Step 1, provided the written 
grievance is filed within fourteen (14) days following the occurrence of the event giving rise to 
the grievance. 
 

(1) (2) Step 1 
 

(a) In filing a grievance at Step 1, the employee shall submit to the Step 1 
management representative within 14 days following the occurrence of the event giving rise to 
the grievance a grievance form as contained in Appendix B, setting forth specifically the 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
Month Day, 2012 

Page 4 of 8 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

complete facts and issues on which the grievance is based, the specific provision or provisions of 
the Agreement allegedly violated, and the relief requested. 

 
(b) The Step 1 management representative or designee shall meet with 

the Union Representative to discuss the grievance and shall communicate a decision in writing to 
the employee and to the Union Representative, if any, within fourteen (14) days following the 
date of the meeting. 
 

(2) (3) Step 2 
 

(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the employee may appeal the 
grievance in writing to the Aagency Hhead or designee within fourteen (14) days after receipt of 
the decision at Step 1. 

 
(b) The Aagency Hhead or designee may meet with the Union 

Representative to discuss the grievance. The Aagency Hhead or designee shall communicate a 
decision in writing to the employee and to the Union Representative within twenty-one (21) days 
following receipt of the written grievance. 

 
(3) (4) Step 3 
 

(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 2, the employee may submit 
the grievance in writing to the Office of the General Counsel of the Department of Management 
Services or designee within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the decision at Step 2. The 
grievance shall include a copy of the grievance form submitted at Steps 1 and 2, together with all 
written responses and documents in support of the grievance. 

 
(b) The Department of Management Services may meet with the Union 

Representative to discuss the grievance. The Department of Management Services shall 
communicate a decision in writing to the employee and the Union Representative within twenty-
one (21) days following receipt of the written grievance. 

 
(c) Grievance Mediation.  The parties may, by written agreement, submit 

a grievance to mediation to be conducted by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service 
(FMCS), either prior to the grievance being submitted to arbitration or after it has been submitted 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
Month Day, 2012 

Page 5 of 8 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

but before a hearing is scheduled.  When the parties agree to mediate a grievance, the time limits 
to file for, or process, an arbitration are automatically extended for the period necessary to 
conclude the mediation process.  Either party may withdraw from the mediation process with 
written notice no later than five (5) days before a scheduled mediation. 
 

(4) (5) Step 4 – Arbitration 
 

(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 3, the Union Representative 
may appeal the grievance to arbitration on a Request for Arbitration form as contained in 
Appendix C within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the decision at Step 3.  

 
(b) The arbitrator shall be one person from a panel of three (3) permanent 

arbitrators, selected by the State and the Union to serve in rotation for any case or cases 
submitted. 

 
(c) Arbitration hearings shall be held at times and locations agreed to by 

the parties. Under normal circumstances, hearings will be held in Tallahassee; however, selection 
of the site shall take into account the availability of evidence, location of witnesses and existence 
of appropriate facilities. If agreement cannot be reached, the arbitration hearing shall be held in 
the city of Tallahassee. 

 
(d) Issues of arbitrability, including timeliness, shall be separated from 

the substantive issue(s) of the grievance and, whenever possible, determined by a hearing 
conducted by conference call.  The arbitrator shall have ten (10) days from the hearing to render 
a decision on arbitrability.  If the decision is that the issue is arbitrable, an arbitrator shall then be 
selected to hear the substantive issue(s) in accordance with the provisions of (5) (b). 
 

(e) The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the 
grievance and, provided the decision is in accordance with his jurisdiction and authority under 
this Agreement, his decision shall be final and binding on the State, the Union, the grievant(s), 
and employees. In considering a grievance, the arbitrator shall be governed by the following 
provisions and limitations: 

 
1. The arbitrator shall issue a decision not later than thirty (30) 

days from the date of the closing of the hearing or the submission of briefs, whichever is later. 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
Month Day, 2012 

Page 6 of 8 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

2. The arbitrator's decision shall be in writing, and shall set forth 
the arbitrator's opinion and conclusions on the issue(s) submitted. 

3. The arbitrator shall have no authority to determine any issues 
other than those raised in the initial written grievance. The arbitrator shall refrain from issuing 
any statement of opinion or conclusion not essential to the determination of the issues submitted. 

4. The arbitrator shall limit the decision strictly to the application 
and interpretation of the specific provisions of this Agreement. 

5. The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make any 
decision: 

a. Contrary to or inconsistent with, adding to, subtracting 
from, or modifying, altering or ignoring in any way, the terms of this Agreement, or of 
applicable law or rules or regulations having the force and effect of law. 

b. Limiting or interfering in any way with the powers, 
duties and responsibilities of the State under its Constitution, applicable law, and rules and 
regulations having the force and effect of law, except as such powers, duties and responsibilities 
have been abridged, delegated or modified by the expressed provisions of this Agreement. 

c. Which has the effect of restricting the discretion of an 
agency head as otherwise granted by law or the Selected Exempt Service Rules of the State 
Personnel System; or 

d. That is based solely upon an agency past practice or 
policy other than to determine that such agency practice or policy is contrary to law, the Selected 
Exempt Service Rules of the State Personnel System, or this Agreement. 

(e) The reasonable fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall 
be borne equally by the parties.  Each party shall be responsible for compensating and paying the 
expenses of its own representatives, attorneys and witnesses. 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
Month Day, 2012 

Page 7 of 8 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

(f) The employee, not the Union, will be responsible for 
costs of an arbitration to which the Union was not a party. 
 
SECTION 5 - Time Limits 
 

(A) Failure to initiate or appeal a grievance within the time limits in Section 4 shall be 
deemed a waiver of the grievance. Failure at any step of this procedure to submit a grievance to 
the next step within the specified time limits shall be deemed to be acceptance of the decision at 
that step. 

 
(B) Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance 

within the specified time limit shall permit the employee or the Union where appropriate, to 
proceed to the next step. 

 
(C) The number of days indicated at each step should be considered as a maximum, and 

every effort should be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits specified in any 
step of this procedure may be extended in writing, in any specific instance, by agreement of the 
parties. 

 
(D) Claims of either an untimely filing or untimely appeal shall be made at the step in 

question, or will be considered waived. 
 
SECTION 6 – Exceptions 
 

(A) Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to permit 
the Union or an employee to process a grievance (1) in behalf of an employee without his 
consent, or (2) with respect to any matter which is the subject of a grievance, appeal, 
administrative action before a governmental board or agency, or court proceeding, brought by an 
employee or group of employees, or by the Union. 

 
(B) All grievances will be presented at the initial step with the following exceptions: 
 

(1) If a grievance arises from the action of an official higher than the Agency 
Step 1 management representative, the grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 by submitting a 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 6 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
Month Day, 2012 

Page 8 of 8 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

grievance form (Appendix B) as set forth in Step 1 within seven (7) days following the 
occurrence giving rise to the grievance. 
 

(2) The Union shall have the right to bring a class action grievance on behalf of 
employees in its own name concerning disputes relating to the interpretation or application of 
this Agreement. The Union's election to proceed under this Article shall preclude it from 
proceeding in another forum on the same issue. The grievance shall be initiated at Step 3 of this 
procedure, in accordance with the provisions set forth therein, within fourteen (14) days of the 
occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance. 
 
 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 7 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 7 
EMPLOYEE STANDARDS OF CONDUCT AND PERFORMANCE 

 
SECTION 1 - Standards of Conduct and Performance 
 

(A)  The Selected Exempt Service is designed to provide the delivery of high quality 
performance in selected classifications by facilitating the Sstate's ability to attract and retain 
qualified personnel in these positions, while also providing sufficient management flexibility to 
ensure that the work force is responsive to agency needs.  Moreover, the Sstate recognizes the 
right of a duly recognized Union Representative to express the views of the Union provided they 
are identified as Union views. 

 
(B)  Each employee shall be provided a copy of his current position description. 

 
(C) The performance of employees shall be evaluated in accordance with Rule 60L-

35, Florida Administrative Code. 
 

(D)  Each employee shall serve at the pleasure of the Aagency Hhead and is subject to 
suspension, dismissal, reduction in pay, demotion, transfer, or other personnel action at the sole 
discretion and upon prior review and consideration of the Aagency Hhead or designee.  No such 
personnel action shall be grievable under the grievance article of this Agreement.  Upon written 
request of the Union, agencies will, in accordance with chapter 119, Florida Statutes, provide the 
Union documentation related to the personnel action.  
 
SECTION 2 - Employee Certifications  
 

Employees shall ensure that all licensures or certifications required by their profession 
shall remain in good standing.  The reimbursement of required Florida Bar dues, licensures and 
or certifications will be in accordance with the General Appropriations Act.   
 
SECTION 3 - Confidentiality Requirements 
 

Employees shall comply with all confidentiality requirements imposed by agency 
policy, federal or state law, federal regulation or administrative rule, including rules or codes of 
conduct governing attorney conduct as promulgated by the Supreme Court of the State of 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 7 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Florida, or the Florida Bar or other professional certification or regulatory body that governs the 
ability of an employee to practice his particular profession.   
 
SECTION 4 – Employee Representation Right 
 

An employee may request a union representative be present to advise and/or assist the 
employee during any investigation meeting in which the employee is being questioned relative to 
alleged misconduct of the employee.  Upon the request of the employee, the purpose of the 
investigation will be explained.   
 
SECTION 5 – State Denial of Representation 
 

The employer may refuse a request for a union representative during an investigatory 
interview not intended to lead to discipline of the interviewed employee.  If the interview 
transitions to questions, which may lead to the discipline of the interviewed employee, he may 
have union representation for the interview to continue.   
 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 8 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 8 
WORKFORCE REDUCTION 

 
(A)  A workforce reduction is the deletion of positions. Agencies may delete both 

vacant and filled positions. Agencies may delete positions for a variety of reasons including 
budget cuts, program reductions resulting from outsourcing or privatization efforts, or program 
phase-outs.  Unit Eemployees shall be subject to termination, including but not limited to a 
workforce reduction, at the discretion of the Aagency Hhead.   

 
(B)  The Agency Head shall furnish the Union Representative with a copy of the 

notice separating an employee as a result of a workforce reduction. 
 
(C) The decision of an Agency Head regarding a workforce reduction shall be final 

and shall not be subject to the grievance procedure of this Agreement. 
 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 9 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 9 
REASSIGNMENT 

 
Employees are subject to reassignment at the discretion of the Aagency Hhead. 

However, employees shall have the opportunity to request to be considered for vacant positions 
in accordance with the provisions of this Article. 

 
SECTION 1 – Definitions 
 

As used in this Article: 
 
"Reassignment" shall mean the moving of an employee from a position in a broadband 

level to a different position in the same broadband level or to a different broadband level having 
the same maximum salary and shall be treated as an original appointment. 

 
SECTION 2 - Voluntary Reassignment 
 

(A) An employee who has attained twelve (12) months of continuous service in the 
Selected Exempt Service System may apply for a voluntary reassignment on a Request Form 
(supplied by the agency). Such Requests shall indicate the position(s), county(ies), institution(s) 
and/or other work location(s) to which the employee would like to be reassigned or transferred. 

 
(B) An employee may submit a Request Form at any time; however, all such Requests 

shall expire on May 31 of each calendar year. Requests can be filed in May to become effective 
on June 1. 

 
(C) All Request Forms shall be submitted to the Aagency Hhead or designee who shall 

be responsible for furnishing a copy of each such Request to the manager(s) or supervisor(s) who 
has the authority to make employee hiring decisions in the work unit to which the employee has 
requested reassignment or transfer. The employee shall provide a copy of the Request to the 
Union at the time it is filed with the agency. 

 
(D) When an employee has been reassigned pursuant to a Request filed under this 

Article, all other pending Requests shall be canceled. No other Request may be filed under this 
Article for a period of twelve (12) months following the employee's reassignment. If an 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 9 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

employee declines an offer of reassignment pursuant to a Request filed under this Article, the 
employee's request shall be canceled and the employee will not be eligible to submit a Request 
for a period of twelve (12) months.  
 
SECTION 3 - Involuntary Reassignment 
 

(A) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent an agency, at its 
discretion, from effecting the involuntary reassignment of an employee according to the needs of 
the agency. 

 
(B) An employee shall be given a minimum of fourteen (14) calendar days notice prior 

to the agency effecting an involuntary reassignment of the employee. An agency shall make a 
good faith effort to provide thirty (30) calendar days notice but shall provide 14 calendar days 
notice prior to the agency effecting an involuntary reassignment of the employee that would 
require a relocation of the employees residence.  The parties agree, however, that these notice 
requirements shall not be required during an emergency or other extraordinary conditions.  An 
employee shall receive relocation costs in accordance with applicable law. 

 
 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 10 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 10 
CLASSIFICATION and PAY PLAN 

 
(A)  The Department of Management Services shall continue to maintain a 

classification and pay plan applicable to all positions in this unit, designed to attract and retain 
qualified personnel.   

 
(B)  The employing agency shall continue to maintain a position description for each 

position on a current basis.  Each employee and the Union shall be provided a copy of the 
employee’s position description.   

 
(C)  The Department shall assign each position to its appropriate broadband level 

according to the position description. 
 
(D)  The classification and pay plan includes: 

(1)  All approved pay bands; 

(2)  The allocation of each position to a pay broadband level, and; 

(3)  Provisions governing the administration of the plan. 
 

(E)  Upon making an original or any subsequent appointment to a Selected Exempt 
Service position in this unit, the employing agency shall set the salary at an amount within the 
assigned pay range. Based on the employee's initial or subsequent appraisal, the Agency Head 
may give an employee an increase in salary provided the total salary is within the assigned pay 
band, funds are available for such increase, and such increase is not specifically prohibited by act 
of the Legislature. An employee may be paid less than the minimum of the assigned pay band 
only due to exigent circumstances. 

 
(F)  Any salary adjustment shall be consistent with state law.  The Union shall be 

notified, in writing, of any salary increases. 
 
 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 11 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 11 
CLASSIFICATION REVIEW AND PROFESSIONAL PRACTICE SCOPE 

 
SECTION 1 - Classification Review 
 

(A)   When an employee alleges that he is being regularly required to perform duties 
not included in the position description of the position being filled by the employee, and the 
employee alleges that the duties assigned are not included in the occupational profile for the 
broadband level to which the position is allocated, the employee may request in writing that the 
Aagency Hhead review the duties assigned to the employee's position. The Aagency Hhead or 
designee shall review the duties as requested. The employee will receive a copy of the written 
decision within sixty (60) days of the request. If the decision is that the duties assigned are 
sufficient to justify reclassifying the position, either the position will be reclassified or the duties 
in question will be removed. Shortage of funds shall not be used as the basis for refusing to 
reclassify a position after a review has been completed.  
 

(B)  If the Aagency Hhead 's decision is that the employee is properly classified and 
the employee is not satisfied with that decision, the employee, with or without representation, 
may request review by the Secretary of the Department of Management Services or designee.  
The employee must request review by the Secretary of the Department of Management Services 
or designee within fourteen (14) days of receipt of the agency decision that he is properly 
classified.  The Secretary of the Department of Management Services or designee shall conduct 
an independent review of the duties as requested and shall submit a decision in writing to both 
the agency and the employee.  The decision of the Secretary of the Department of Management 
Services or designee shall be final and binding on all parties.  The process set forth in this Article 
shall be the sole method to resolve a disagreement concerning employee position classification 
and issues involving employee position classification shall not be subject to the grievance 
procedure of this Agreement 
 
SECTION 2 - Scope of Professional Practice 
 

The parties will comply with all statutory and rule provisions relating to the practice of 
law including, Chapter 454, FS and the Rules Regulating the Florida Bar promulgated by the 
Supreme Court of Florida.  
 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 12 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 12 
PERSONNEL RECORDS 

 
(A) There shall be only one official personnel file for each employee which shall be 

maintained by the employing agency. A duplicate personnel file may be established and 
maintained on an employee within an agency. An employee will have the right to review his 
official personnel file, and any duplicate personnel file, at reasonable times under the supervision 
of the designated records custodian. 
 

(B) If derogatory material is placed in an employee's official personnel file, a copy will 
be sent to the employee. The employee may provide a written response which will also be placed 
in the file. 
 
 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 13 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 13 
SAFETY 

 
(A) When an employee believes that a condition exists at a Sstate facility or worksite 

 which is in violation of an established health or safety rule, the condition shall be reported 
immediately by the employee in writing to the appropriate supervisor, detailing the specific 
violation and rule, if known and/or appropriate. 

 
(B) The supervisor shall investigate the report and make a reasonable effort to take 

action deemed appropriate.  
 
(C) Complaints which arise under this Article shall be grievable up to Step 3 of the 

grievance procedure of this Agreement. 
 
 
 

 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 14 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 14 
REPLACEMENT OF PERSONAL PROPERTY  

 
(A) An employee, while on duty and acting within the scope of employment, who 

suffers damage or destruction of the employee's watch or prescription glasses, or other items of 
personal property as have been given prior approval by the agency and the Secretary of the 
Department of Management Services or designee, as being required by the employee to 
adequately perform the duties of the position, will be reimbursed as provided herein. 

 
(B) A written report must be filed by the employee detailing the circumstances under 

which his property was damaged or destroyed. A receipt or other estimate of replacement or 
repair cost must be attached to the employee's written report. 

 
(C) The Sstate shall authorize reimbursement for repair or replacement of the property, 

not to exceed the following amounts, or as otherwise provided for by law: 
(1) Watch - $75 
 
(2) Prescription glasses - $200 (including any required examination) 
 
(3) Other Items - The Secretary of the Department of Management 

Services, or designee, shall have final authority to determine the reimbursement value of 
items other than watches or prescription glasses. 

 
(4) Total allowable per incident - $500 
 

(D) Reimbursement shall be with the approval of the Agency Head. 
 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 15 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 15 
VACANT  

 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 16 (Substance –Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 16  
HOURS OF WORK AND EMPLOYEE LEAVE  

 
SECTION 1 - Hours of Work  
 

Because an employee's service is performance based, each employee is expected to 
work whatever hours may be required by the position and no overtime or compensatory leave 
may be earned or paid. With prior approval, employees working more than their regularly 
scheduled hours within a particular work period may be allowed to offset those hours within the 
same work period. 
 
SECTION 2 – Holidays 
 

(A) Employees are entitled to the holidays identified in Ssection 110.117, Florida 
Statutes; provided, that to be eligible to receive holiday pay, an employee must be in pay status 
(actual work or paid leave) for at least a portion of the workday before the holiday. If an 
employee is unable to observe a holiday, the employee may take an alternate day off during the 
work period in which the holiday occurs; provided, that if the employee is unable to observe the 
holiday, the employee is not eligible for special compensatory leave 
 

(B)  For part-time employees, agencies shall credit a prorated number of holiday 
hours proportional to the number of holiday hours allowed to a full-time employee. 
 
SECTION 3 - Personal Holiday 
 

Each employee is entitled to a personal holiday as governed by the provisions of 
Ssection 110.117, Florida Statutes.   
 
SECTION 4 - Employee Leave 
 

The general requirements for leave earning, approval and use are governed by the 
provisions of Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code and Ssection 110.219, Florida Statutes.  
 
 
 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 16 (Substance –Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

SECTION 5 - Union Activities 
 

Employees shall have the right to request leave for the purpose of attending Union 
conventions, conferences and meetings. 
 
 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 17 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 17  
TRAINING AND EDUCATION 

 
(A) The Sstate will make a good faith effort to allow employees a reasonable amount of 

time, with pay, as the work schedule will permit, for the purpose of attending short courses, 
institutes, and workshops which will improve their performance in their current position, as 
provided below: 
 

(1) Such time may be granted if: the employee applies in advance in writing 
specifying the course and his objectives related to his position; the employee obtains permission 
of his department head, and such time does not interfere with services. Such application should 
be submitted by the employee at least thirty (30) days prior to the date of the seminar or fourteen 
(14) days prior to the posting of the employee's work schedule, whichever comes sooner. If the 
request is approved, the employee will be notified in writing of the dates approved, and the time 
will be shown on the work schedule for the employee's unit. Where management has approved a 
request and the employee scheduled is unable to attend, another employee in the unit may be 
allowed by management to substitute for the employee who was originally scheduled. Time 
limits established herein may be waived by management.  Requests shall not be unreasonably 
denied.  If education or training is required for employees to remain in their position the 
employees attendance at required training or education courses shall be considered hours of 
work.  When approved by the Agency employees shall be reimbursed for the cost of required 
training and or education for the maintenance of required licensures or certifications as required 
by law. 
 

(2) No out-of-state travel will be approved to attend such courses, institutes, or 
workshops when similar programs are available within the State of Florida. 

 
(3) Subsections (1) and (2) above do not preclude the Sstate from assigning 

employees to attend training courses as determined by management. 
 
(4) The Sstate shall provide up to six (6) credit hours of tuition-free courses per 

term at a state university or community college to full-time employees on a space available basis 
as authorized by law.    
 
 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 18 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 30, 2013 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 18 
WAGES 

 
SECTION 1 – Pay Provisions – General 

(A) Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 General 
Appropriations Act.  

(B) Increases to base rate of pay shall be in accordance with state law and the Fiscal 
Year 2013-2014 General Appropriations Act.   
 
SECTION 2 – Unemployment Rate Incentive 
 
 In recognition of reducing the unemployment rate from December 2010 to December 
2012, the Governor’s Budget Recommendations provide for a one-time, non-discretionary, 
$1,200 lump sum bonus award, plus applicable taxes, to eligible employees.  Eligibility 
requirements are set forth in Section 8 – Salaries and Benefits – Fiscal Year 2013-2014 of the 
Governor’s Recommendations.  The awards shall be paid to eligible employees no later than 
August 30, 2013, and are subject to funding as provided in the 2013-2014 General 
Appropriations Act. 
 
SECTION 3 – Variable Compensation Award 
 
 The Governor’s Budget Recommendations provide for discretionary, one-time lump sum 
interim variable compensation awards to eligible employees achieving high job performance as 
evidenced by the employee’s performance evaluation period ending during the period July 1, 
2012 through June 30, 2013.  Awards for Outstanding and Commendable performance will be 
$5,000 and $2,500, respectively, plus applicable taxes.  Eligibility requirements are set forth in 
Section 8 – Salaries and Benefits – Fiscal Year 2013-2014 of the Governor’s Recommendations. 
The awards shall be paid to eligible employees no later than September 30, 2013, and are subject 
to funding as provided in the 2013-2014 General Appropriations Act. 
 
 
 
 
 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 18 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 30, 2013 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

SECTION 4 – Recidivism Reduction Incentive 
 
 The Governor’s Budget Recommendations provide for one-time, non-discretionary, lump 
sum bonus awards to eligible employees in the Department of Corrections in recognition of a 
decrease in Florida’s recidivism rate over the past two years, saving more than $44 million in 
prison costs.  Awards to eligible Department employees will be $500, plus applicable taxes. 
Eligibility requirements are set forth in Section 8 – Salaries and Benefits – Fiscal Year 2013-
2014 of the Governor’s Recommendations.  The awards shall be paid to eligible employees no 
later than July 31, 2013, and are subject to funding as provided in the 2013-14 General 
Appropriations Act. 
 
SECTION 5 – Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency 
 
 In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 General 
Appropriations Act, and contingent upon the availability of funds and at the agency head’s 
discretion, each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15 
percent of the employee’s base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or 
area closed due to emergency conditions from another area of the state that is not closed. 
 
SECTION 6 – Performance Pay  
 
 Each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee’s 
exemplary performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 
60L-35, Florida Administrative Code. 
 
SECTION 7 – Savings Sharing Program 
 An employee or groups of employees may be eligible for monetary awards for ideas or 
programs that result in a cost saving to the state, pursuant to section 110.1245(1), Florida 
Statutes. 
 
 
 
 
 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 18 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 30, 2013 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

SECTION 8 – Pay Subject to General Appropriations Act 
 
 In the event the 2013 Legislature provides different funding or eligibility provisions for 
the above-specified pay increases and payments, the State and the Union agree that such 
increases and payments shall be administered in accordance with the provisions of the Fiscal 
Year 2013-2014 General Appropriations Act, and any other relevant statutes.   
 
 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 19 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 19 
INSURANCE BENEFITS 

 
The Sstate agrees to administer the State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan 

in accordance with any statutory provision or Act affecting the plan or its operation. 
 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 20 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 20  
PER DIEM AND TRAVEL EXPENSES 

 
SECTION 1 – Allowable Expenses 
 

Per diem and travel expenses shall be paid for authorized travel on Sstate business in 
the manner and amounts as provided in Ssection 112.061, Florida Statutes.  Employees shall be 
allowed either of the following for each day of travel, at the option of the employee, for 
subsistence when traveling to conduct bona fide state business, as authorized by the agency: 

 
(A) Eighty dollars per diem; or 

 
(B) If actual expenses exceed $80 the following amounts for meals, plus actual 

expenses for lodging at a single-occupancy rate to be substantiated by paid bills therefor. 
Breakfast……………………………………….….$6 
Lunch………………………………………….….$11  
Dinner……………………………………………..$19  

 
SECTION 2 – Exceptions 
 

(A) When lodging or meals are provided at a state institution, the employee shall be 
reimbursed only for the actual expenses of such lodging or meals, not to exceed the maximum 
provided by Florida Statutes, Ssection 112.061. 

 
(B) No employee, whether traveling out of state or in state, shall be reimbursed for any 

meal or lodging included in a convention or conference registration fee paid by the Sstate. 
 
(C) No employee shall be reimbursed on a per diem basis, nor shall he receive 

subsistence allowance, when traveling on short trips where the employee is not away from his 
headquarters overnight. 

 
 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 21 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 21 
EMPLOYMENT OUTSIDE OF STATE GOVERNMENT 

 
An employee who wishes to perform other employment outside of state government 

shall secure approval in advance.  Permission shall not be unreasonably withheld as long as such 
outside employment does not conflict with the employee's state employment, or with the 
employing agency's procedures limiting such outside employment. 
 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 22 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 22 
VACANT 

 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 23 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 23 
MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 

 
The Union agrees that the Sstate has and will continue to retain, whether exercised or 

not, the right to determine unilaterally the purpose of each of its constituent agencies, set 
standards of services to be offered to the public, and exercise control and discretion over its 
organization and operations. Unit employees shall serve at the pleasure of the Aagency Hhead 
and shall be subject to suspension, dismissal, reduction in pay, demotion, transfer, or other 
personnel action at the discretion of the Aagency Hhead. 
 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 24 (Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 24 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 
(A) This Agreement supersedes and cancels all prior practices and agreements, whether 

written or oral, unless expressly stated to the contrary herein, and constitutes the complete and 
entire Agreement between the parties, and concludes collective bargaining for its term. 

 
(B) The parties acknowledge that, during the negotiations which resulted in this 

Agreement, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with 
respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining, and 
that the understanding and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and 
opportunity are set forth in this Agreement. 

 
(C) If the Union believes an agency has changed a practice relative to wages, hours, or 

terms and conditions of employment, in violation of Chapter 447, Florida Statutes, this will be 
immediately brought to the agency's attention in writing. 
 
 



SEAG / SES Attorneys Unit 
State Proposal – Article 25 (Substance – Status Quo) 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
January 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

For the State                                                                           For the SEAG 
 

_____________________________                                      _____________________________ 
Mike Mattimore                                                                      Mark Neimeiser 
State’s Chief Labor Negotiator                                               Interim Executive Director  
                                                                                                State Employees Attorneys Guild 

 
_______________                                                                 ___________________ 
Date                                                                                         Date 

 
 

Article 25 
SAVINGS CLAUSE 

 
If any provision of this Agreement, or the application of such provision, should be 

rendered or declared invalid, unlawful, or not enforceable, by any court action or by reason of 
any existing or subsequently enacted legislation; or if the appropriate governmental body having 
amendatory power to change a law, rule or regulation which is in conflict with a provision of this 
Agreement fails to enact or adopt an enabling amendment to make the provision effective, in 
accordance with Ssection 447.309(3) and Chapter 110, Part V, Florida Statutes; then such 
provision shall not be applicable, performed or enforced, but the remaining parts or portion of 
this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect for the term of this Agreement. 
 



Selected Exempt Service (SES) Attorneys Bargaining Unit – Union Proposals 

 

To date the State Employees Attorneys Guild representing employees in the SES Attorneys Unit 
has not submitted proposals for a successor agreement for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 or responses to 
the state’s proposals.  The parties are currently scheduling negotiations and will advise the 
Committee of the outcome of these meetings. 

 



Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 P
hy

si
ci

an
s a

nd
 D

en
tis

ts
 / 

St
at

e 
E

m
pl

oy
ee

s A
tto

rn
ey

s G
ui

ld
  

Se
le

ct
ed

 E
xe

m
pt

 S
er

vi
ce

 (S
E

S)
 A

tto
rn

ey
s U

ni
t  

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

 -Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f J

an
ua

ry
 3

0,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

-2
01

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
 

A
t I

m
pa

ss
e:

  A
rt

ic
le

s 2
 th

ro
ug

h 
25

 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
2 

– 
G

en
de

r R
ef

er
en

ce
 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

3 
– 

V
ac

an
t 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

4 
– 

N
o 

D
is

cr
im

in
at

io
n 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

5 
– 

Em
pl

oy
ee

 R
ig

ht
s, 

M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

an
d 

U
ni

on
 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

6 
– 

G
rie

va
nc

e 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

            

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 Pr

op
os

es
 a

 g
rie

va
nc

e 
fo

rm
 fo

r A
pp

en
di

x 
B

 a
nd

 
a 

re
qu

es
t f

or
 a

rb
itr

at
io

n 
fo

rm
 fo

r A
pp

en
di

x 
C

 
of

 th
e 

ag
re

em
en

t, 
 Pa

rti
es

 m
ay

, b
y 

w
rit

te
n 

ag
re

em
en

t, 
su

bm
it 

a 
gr

ie
va

nc
e 

fo
r m

ed
ia

tio
n 

af
te

r i
t i

s s
ub

m
itt

ed
 to

 
ar

bi
tra

tio
n 

bu
t b

ef
or

e 
a 

he
ar

in
g 

is
 sc

he
du

le
d;

 
ex

pe
di

te
d 

ar
bi

tra
tio

n 
he

ar
in

g 
be

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 

w
he

re
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 th
re

sh
ol

d 
is

su
e 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
ar

bi
tra

bi
lit

y 
(s

uc
h 

as
 ti

m
el

in
es

s)
; a

no
th

er
 

ar
bi

tra
to

r w
ill

 h
ea

r s
ub

st
an

tiv
e 

is
su

es
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

7 
– 

Em
pl

oy
ee

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

f 
C

on
du

ct
 a

nd
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 
 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 



Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 P
hy

si
ci

an
s a

nd
 D

en
tis

ts
 / 

St
at

e 
E

m
pl

oy
ee

s A
tto

rn
ey

s G
ui

ld
  

Se
le

ct
ed

 E
xe

m
pt

 S
er

vi
ce

 (S
E

S)
 A

tto
rn

ey
s U

ni
t  

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

 -Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f J

an
ua

ry
 3

0,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

-2
01

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
 

A
t I

m
pa

ss
e:

  A
rt

ic
le

s 2
 th

ro
ug

h 
25

 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
8 

– 
W

or
kf

or
ce

 R
ed

uc
tio

n 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

9 
– 

R
ea

ss
ig

nm
en

t 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

10
 –

 C
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
Pa

y 
Pl

an
 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

11
 –

 C
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n 
R

ev
ie

w
 

an
d 

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
Sc

op
e 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

12
 –

 P
er

so
nn

el
 R

ec
or

ds
 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

13
 –

 S
af

et
y 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

14
 –

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t o
f 

Pe
rs

on
al

 P
ro

pe
rty

 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

15
 –

 V
ac

an
t 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

16
 –

 H
ou

rs
 o

f W
or

k 
an

d 
Em

pl
oy

ee
 L

ea
ve

 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

  

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 



Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 P
hy

si
ci

an
s a

nd
 D

en
tis

ts
 / 

St
at

e 
E

m
pl

oy
ee

s A
tto

rn
ey

s G
ui

ld
  

Se
le

ct
ed

 E
xe

m
pt

 S
er

vi
ce

 (S
E

S)
 A

tto
rn

ey
s U

ni
t  

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

 -Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f J

an
ua

ry
 3

0,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

-2
01

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
 

A
t I

m
pa

ss
e:

  A
rt

ic
le

s 2
 th

ro
ug

h 
25

 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
17

 –
 T

ra
in

in
g 

an
d 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

18
 –

 W
ag

es
 

                         

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
30

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 Pa

y 
sh

al
l b

e 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 F
is

ca
l Y

ea
r 

20
13

-1
4 

G
en

er
al

 A
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
 A

ct
. 

 Pr
ov

id
es

 fo
r o

th
er

 p
ay

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s: 

 U
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t R

at
e 

In
ce

nt
iv

e:
 

Pr
ov

id
es

 fo
r a

 o
ne

-ti
m

e,
 n

on
-d

is
cr

et
io

na
ry

, 
$1

,2
00

 lu
m

p 
su

m
 b

on
us

 a
w

ar
d,

 p
lu

s a
pp

lic
ab

le
 

ta
xe

s, 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
el

ig
ib

ili
ty

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 in
 

Se
ct

io
n 

8 
of

 F
Y

 2
01

3-
20

14
 G

ov
er

no
r’

s B
ud

ge
t 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

, t
o 

be
 p

ai
d 

no
 la

te
r t

ha
n 

A
ug

us
t 3

0,
 2

01
3,

 su
bj

ec
t t

o 
fu

nd
in

g 
in

 F
Y

 
20

13
-2

01
4 

G
en

er
al

 A
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
 A

ct
. 

 V
ar

ia
bl

e 
C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

A
w

ar
d:

 
Pr

ov
id

es
 fo

r a
 d

is
cr

et
io

na
ry

, o
ne

-ti
m

e 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

aw
ar

d 
of

 $
5,

00
0 

to
 e

lig
ib

le
 

em
pl

oy
ee

s a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 jo

b 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 a

nd
 $

2,
50

0 
to

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s f

or
 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
C

om
m

en
da

bl
e 

jo
b 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
ba

se
d 

on
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
8 

of
 G

ov
er

no
r’

s F
Y

 2
01

3-
20

14
 B

ud
ge

t 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
. 

 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 



Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 P
hy

si
ci

an
s a

nd
 D

en
tis

ts
 / 

St
at

e 
E

m
pl

oy
ee

s A
tto

rn
ey

s G
ui

ld
  

Se
le

ct
ed

 E
xe

m
pt

 S
er

vi
ce

 (S
E

S)
 A

tto
rn

ey
s U

ni
t  

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

 -Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f J

an
ua

ry
 3

0,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

-2
01

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
 

A
t I

m
pa

ss
e:

  A
rt

ic
le

s 2
 th

ro
ug

h 
25

 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
18

 –
 W

ag
es

 (c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

R
ec

id
iv

is
m

 R
ed

uc
tio

n 
In

ce
nt

iv
e:

 
Pr

ov
id

es
 fo

r a
 o

ne
-ti

m
e,

 n
on

-d
is

cr
et

io
na

ry
, 

lu
m

p 
su

m
 b

on
us

 a
w

ar
d 

of
 $

50
0,

 p
lu

s a
pp

lic
ab

le
 

ta
xe

s t
o 

el
ig

ib
le

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f C
or

re
ct

io
ns

’ 
em

pl
oy

ee
s b

as
ed

 o
n 

el
ig

ib
ili

ty
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 in

 
Se

ct
io

n 
8 

of
 G

ov
er

no
r’

s F
Y

 2
01

3-
20

14
 B

ud
ge

t 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
. 

 Pr
op

os
es

 a
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 sp
ec

ia
l d

ut
ie

s a
dd

iti
ve

 
du

rin
g 

de
pl

oy
m

en
t t

o 
a 

fa
ci

lit
y 

or
 a

re
a 

cl
os

ed
 

du
e 

to
 a

n 
em

er
ge

nc
y,

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 p
ay

, a
nd

 
sa

vi
ng

s s
ha

rin
g 

pr
og

ra
m

. 
  

19
 –

 In
su

ra
nc

e 
Be

ne
fit

s 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

20
 –

 P
er

 D
ie

m
 a

nd
 T

ra
ve

l 
Ex

pe
ns

es
 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

21
 –

 E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t O
ut

si
de

 o
f 

St
at

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 St
at

us
 Q

uo
. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

22
 –

 V
ac

an
t 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

23
 –

 M
an

ag
em

en
t R

ig
ht

s 
St

at
e’

s 0
1-

24
-1

3 
Pr

op
os

al
: 

 
St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 



Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 P
hy

si
ci

an
s a

nd
 D

en
tis

ts
 / 

St
at

e 
E

m
pl

oy
ee

s A
tto

rn
ey

s G
ui

ld
  

Se
le

ct
ed

 E
xe

m
pt

 S
er

vi
ce

 (S
E

S)
 A

tto
rn

ey
s U

ni
t  

C
ur

re
nt

 O
ne

 -Y
ea

r 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t E
xp

ir
es

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

3 
St

at
us

 o
f C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
B

ar
ga

in
in

g 
as

 o
f J

an
ua

ry
 3

0,
 2

01
3 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
13

-2
01

4 
Su

cc
es

so
r 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 –

 A
ll 

A
rt

ic
le

s O
pe

n 
fo

r 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
 

A
t I

m
pa

ss
e:

  A
rt

ic
le

s 2
 th

ro
ug

h 
25

 
 

A
rt

ic
le

 
 

St
at

e’
s L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
U

ni
on

’s
 L

as
t P

ro
po

sa
l 

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
24

 –
 E

nt
ire

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

25
 –

 S
av

in
gs

 C
la

us
e 

St
at

e’
s 0

1-
24

-1
3 

Pr
op

os
al

: 
 St

at
us

 Q
uo

. 

N
o 

Pr
op

os
al

 O
ff

er
ed

. 
 

 



Joint Select Committee on Collective
Bargaining

Senator Hays, Co-Chair
Representative Van Zant, Co-Chair

Meeting Packet
Materials Submitted by:

Department of the Lottery

Monday, February 18, 2013
11 :00 AM

Morris Hall (17 HOB)



CORAL GABLES OFFICE

121 MAJORCA AVENUE

SUITE 300

CORALGABLES,FL 33134-4508

305-445-7801

FACSIMILE 305-442-1578

JACKSONVILLE OFFICE

421 WEST CHURCH STREET

SUITE 430

JACKSONVILLE, FL 32202

904-562-4480

FACSIMILE 904-562-4499

ALLEN NORTON &BLUE
PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION

ORLANDO OFFICE

1477 WEST FAIRBANKS AVENUE

SUITE 100

WINTER PARK, FL 32789-7113

407-471-2152

FACSIMILE 407-571-1496

REPLY TO: TALLAHASSEE

SENT VIA HAND DELIJ.7ERY
and UNITED STATES MAIL

TALLAHASSEE OFFICE

906 NORTH MONROE STREET

TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32303

850·561·3503

FACSIMILE 850-561-0332

February 5, 2013

TAMPA OFFICE

324 SOUTH HYDE PARK AVENUE

HYDE PARK PLAZA, SUITE 350

TAMPA, FL 33606-4127

813-251-1210

FACSIMILE 813-253-2006

http://twitter.comlanblaw

The Honorable Will Weatherford, Speaker of the House
The Florida House ofRepresentatives
Suite 420, The Capitol
402 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1300

The Honorable Don Gaetz, President
The Florida Senate
Suite 409, The Capitol
404 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1100

Re: Notification of Collective Bargaining Impasse

Dear Speaker Weatherford and President Gaetz,

Ul

.."
::)

. ,', ~ '~'":

....~_:~ CJ
t1"i

The State of Florida, Department of Lottery's collective bargaining team is conducting
negotiations with representatives from the Federation of Public Employees. Since we have not
reached agreement on certain articles in the collective bargaining agreement, a declaration of
impasse is deemed to have occurred in accordance with Section 216.163(6), Florida Statutes.

Accordingly, this letter is provided by the Department of Lottery's bargaining representatives to
notify the Legislature that effective February 5, 2013, the following issues are unresolved and
therefore are at impasse:

Article 12 - Wages

Negotiations continue on these articles and it is possible that one or more may be
resolved prior to the end ofthe legislative session.

Department of the Lottery_ 2012-2013_ Impasse Letter to Legislature (3)



February 5, 2013
Page 2

Please note that the entire contents of the above-referenced articles are at impasse. The
resolution of the articles is not limited to those issues discussed by the parties in negotiation
sessions to date. Negotiations continue on these articles and it is possible that one or more may
be resolved prior to the end of the legislative session. We will keep you informed of any
changes resulting from continued negotiations.

In accordance with Section 216.163(6), Florida Statutes, all unresolved articles as of this date are
respectfully submitted for impasse.

Sincerely,

fiL~~~
Chief Labor Negotiator

cc: Mike Hogan, Chairman, Public Employees Relations Commission
Ben Gibson, Assistant General Counsel, Executive Office of Governor Rick Scott
Renee Tondee, Policy Coordinator, Office of Policy and Budget
Cynthia O'Connell, Secretary, Department of Lottery
Glenda Thornton, General Counsel, Department of Lottery
Jack Marziliano, Federation of Public Employees

Department of the Lottery_ 20 l2-2013_lmpasse Letterto Legislature (3) ALLEN, NORTON & BLUE, P.A.
PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION



Joint Select Committee on Collective
Bargaining

Senator Hays, Co-Chair
Representative Van Zant, Co-Chair

Meeting Packet
Materials Submitted by:

Bargaining Units

Monday, February 18, 2013
11 :00 AM

Morris Hall (17 HOB)





.lOSEI'll EGAN. JR.

TOBE M. LEV

RICHARD P. SIWICA

EGAN, LEV & SIWICA, P.A.
ATTORNEYS AND COUNSU,ORS AT LAW

POST OFFICE Box 2231
ORLANDO, FLORIDA 32R02·223I

TEL (407) 422·1400
FAX (407) 422-3658

February 14,2013

SrR\'ET ADDRESS
231 E. COLONIAL DRIVF

ORLANDO. Fl.ORIDA

.UXOl

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL

Senator Alan Hays, Co-Chair
The Florida Legislature
Government Operations Subcommittee
Room 2) 8 House Office Bldg.
402 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-) 300

Re: Negotiatitm~' with IAFF Local 05-20

Dcar Senator Hays and Representative Van Zant:

Representative Charles Van Zant
The Florida Legislature
Government Operations Subcommittee
Room 218 I-louse Otlice Bldg.
402 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-) 300

Enclosed herewith is a copy of the Union's proposed resolution of the contract impassc
bctween the State and IAFF Local S-20. Please note that the Union's proposals reflect changes
to both the 2009-2012 contract (which is the expired agreement which remains in effect as a
matter of law because a successor agreement has not been ratified) and the 2012-2013
"agrcement" which the State (apparcntly) believes is in etTect (notwithstanding thc abscnce of a
ratification vote).1 The Union's proposals are reflectcd on both documents for case of reference.

Because the State has insisted to impasse on language that is either permissive and/or
waives employee rights, the Union hereby statcs its objections to such language to the
Committee/Legislative Body. Such language would include, but not be limited to, the State's
proposal in AI1icles 6 and 7 to remove disciplinary matters from the mandatory grievance
arbitration process, as well as wage, insurance and other language that removes these issues from
the collective bargaining process, and subjects them to unilateral dctennination by the employer.

Respectfully submitted,
,,,",:\ {" . f\
U II /1 \\~ . fln',
"rJ~ C.vrQ.\ci~....w-l,.l.L~
Richard Siwica Cf(\;J./
l~igl1('d ill his ah,l'lll'" 10 amid dda"f

cc: Michael Mattimore (w/enclosure)
Nat Wright (w/enclosure)

I Tlwre was no ratification vote because of pending litigalion hetween tht~ parties,



Union Proposals Based on 2009 • 2012 Agreement

THIS AGREEMENT is between the State of Florida
(hereinafter called the "State") and the FLORIDA
STATE FIRE SERVICE ASSOCIAnON
(hereinafter called "FSFSA") representing the
employees in the Florida State Fire Service
Association Bargaining Unit. AU such employees for
the purposes of this contract shall be classified as
included employees.

PREAMBLE
WHEREAS, it is recognized by the parties

hereto that the declared public policy of the State
and the purpose of Part II, Chapter 447, Florida
Statutes, is to provide statutory implementation of
Section 6, Article I of the Constitution of the State of
Florida, and to promote harmonious and cooperative
relationships between State government and its
employees, both collectively and individually, and to
protect the public by assuring, at all times, the
orderly and uninterrupted operations and functions
of State Government; and

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the parties
of this Agreement to set forth the entire agreement
with respect to matters within the scope of
negotiations; and

WHEREAS, the above language is a
statement of intent and, therefore, not subject to the
grievance procedure as outlined in Article 6.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of
the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties do
agree as follows:

Union Proposals Based on 2012 - 2013
"Agreement"

THIS AGREEMENT is between the State of Florida
(hereinafter called the "State") and the FLORIDA
STATE FIRE SERVICE ASSOCIATION
(hereinafter called "PSFSA") representing the
employees in the Florida State Fire Service
Association Bargaining Unit. All such employees for
the purposes of this contract shall be classified as
included employees.

PREAMBLE
WHEREAS, it is recognized by the parties

hereto that the declared public .policy of the State
and the purpose of Part II, Chapter 447, Florida
Statutes, is to provide statutory implementation of
Section 6. Article I of the Constitution of the State of
Florida, and to promote harmonious and cooperative
relationships between State government and its
employees, both collectively and individually, and to
protect the public by assuring, at all times, the
orderly and uninterntpted operations and functions
of State Government; and

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the parties
of this Agreement to set forth the entire agreement
with respect to matters within the scope of
negotiations; and

WHEREAS, the above language is a
statement of intent and, therefore, not subject to the
grievance procedure as outlined in Article 6.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of
the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties do
agree as follows:



Article 1
RECOGNITION

SECTION1 N Recognition
The State hereby recognizes FSFSA. as the

exclusive representative for the purposes of
'collective bargaining with respect to wages, hours,
and tenus and conditions of employment for all
employees included in the Florida State Fire Service
Association Bargaining Unit.

The Bargaining Unit for which this
recognition is accorded is as defined in Certification
number 1360 issued by the Florida Public
Employees Relations Commission and as
subsequently amended by the Commission.

,This Agreement includes all full-time and
part-time Career Service employees in the
classifications and positions listed in Appendix A of
this Agreement.

Article 1
RECOGNITION

SECTION 1- Recognition
The State hereby recognizes FSFSA, as the

exclusive representative for the purposes of
collective bargaining with respect to wages, hours,
and tenus and conditions of employment for all
employees included in the Florida State Fire Service
Association Bargaining Unit.

The Bargaining Unit for which this
recognition is accorded is as defined in Certification
number 1360 issued by the Florida Public
Employees Relations Commission and as
subsequently amended by the Commission.

This Agreement includes all full-time and
part-time Career Service employees in the
classifications and positions listed in Appendix A of
this Agreement.



Article 2
GENDER REFERENCE

All references in this Agreement to
employees of the male gender are used for
convenience only and shall be construed to include
both male and female employees.

Article 2
GENDER REFERENCE

All references in this Agreement to
employees of the male gender are used for
convenience only and shall be construed to include
both male and female employees.



Article 3
DUES CHECKOFF

SECTION 1 .. Deductions
(A) During the term of this Agreement, the

State, by and through its respective agencies, agrees
to deduct FSFSA membership dues and uniform
assessments, if any, in an amount established by the
FSFSA and certified in writing by the President of
FSFSA or his designee to the State from the pay of
those employees in the bargaining unit who
individually make such request on a written checkoff
authorization form provided by FSFSA (Appendix
B). Such deductions will be made by the agency
when other payroll deductions are made and will
begin with the pay for the first full pay period
following receipt of the authorization by the agency. .

(B) FSFSA shall advise the State of any
uniform assessment or increase in dues in writing at
least thirty (30) days prior to its effective date.

(C) This Article applies only to the deduction
of membership dues and uniform. assessments, if
any, and shall not apply to the collection of any
fines, penalties, or special assessment....

(D) Employee organization dues deduction
will be provided for the certified bargaining agent
only.

SECTION 2 .. Remittance
Deductions of dues and unifonn assessments,

if any, shall be remitted exclusively to the President
of FSFSA or his designee, on either a biweekly or
monthly cycle along with a list containing the
names, employee number, agency, and amount
deducted of the employees for whom the remittance
is made. Remittance of dues shall be provided in the
form of direct deposit.

SECTION 3 - Insufficient Pay for Deduction
In the event an employee's salary eamings

within any pay period, after deductions for
withholding, social security, retirement, and
insurance are not sufficient to cover dues and any
unifonn assessments, it will be the responsibility of
FSFSA to collect its dues and uniform assessments
for that pay period directly from the employee.

SECTION 4 - Termination of Deduction
Deductions for FSFSA dues and/or uniform

assessments shall continue until either: (I) revoked
by the employee by providing the State and FSFSA
with thirty (30) days written notice that he is
tenninatin}:!; the prior checkoff authorization; (2)

Article 3
VAC~1\IT



revoked pursuant to Section 447.507, Florida
Statutes; (3) the termination of employment; or (4)
the transfer, promotion, or demotion of the employee
out of this bargaining unit. If these deductions are
continued when any of the above situations occur,
FSFSA shall, upon notice of the error, reimburse the
employee for the deductions that were improperly
withheld.

SECTION 5· Indemnification
FSFSA shall indemnify, defend and hold the

State of Florida, its officers, officials, agents and
employees, harmless against any claim, demand,
suit. or liability (monetary or otherwise) and for all
legal costs arising from any action taken or not taken
by the State, its officials, agents, and employees in
complying with this Article. FSFSA shall promptly
refund to the State any f\.mds received in accordance
with this Article which are in excess of the amount
of dues andlor uniform assessments which the State
or its agencies have agreed to deduct.

SECTION 6 - Processing the, Dues Checkoff
Authorization Form

(A) The Dues Checkoff Authorization Form
(Appendix '8) supplied by FSFSA shall: (1) be in
strict conformance with Appendix '8; (2) be the only
form used by bargaining unit employees who wish to
initiate dues deduction and shall; (3) contain all the
information required for processing prior to
submission to the State.

(B) Changes in the Dues Checkoff
Authorization FOlms required by (A) above will not
affect deductions authorized by forms that the parties
have previollsly agreed to.

(C) Forms that are: (1) incorrectly filled out
or do not contain all the information necessary for
payroll processing, (2) postdated, or (3) submitted to
the State more than sixty (60) days following the
date of the employee's signature will be returned to
the Association.



Article 4
NO DISCRIl\UNATION

SECTION 1 ~ Non~Discrimination Policy - State"
Federal Law

(A) The State and the Association shall not
discriminate against any employee for any reason
prohibited lU'lder Florida Statutes or any Federal
Law.

(B) The Association shall have the right to
consult on issues of discrimination or unlawful
discrimination with the Step 1 Management
Representative and/or his designee(s), up through the
Step 2 Management Representative and/or his
designee(s), to the Department of Management
Services.

(C) Any claim of discrimination or unlawful
discrimination by an employee against the State, it')
officials or representatives) except for grievances
related to Association membership, shall only be
subject to the method of review prescribed by law or
by rules and regulations having the force and effect
of law.

SECTION 2 • Non-Discrimination Policy 
Association Membership

Neither the State nor the Association shall
interfere with the right of employees covered by this
Agreement to become or refrain from becoming
members of the Association, and neither the State
nor the Association shall discriminate against any
such employee because of membership or non
membership in any employee organization.

Article 4
NO DISCRIMINATION

SECTION 1 • Non-Discrimination Policy - State
Federal Law

(A) The State and the Association shall not
discriminate against any employee for any reason
prohibited under Florida Statutes or any Federal
Law.

(B) The Association shall have the right to
consult on issues of discrimination or unlawful
discrimination with the Step 1 Management
Representative and/or his designee(s), up through the
Step 2 Management Representative and/or his
designee(s), to the Department of Management
Services.

(C) Any claim of discrimination or unlawful
discrimination by an employee against the State, its
officials or representative.<;. except for grievances
related to Association membership, shall only be
subject to the method of review prescribed by law or
by rules and regulations having the force and effect
of law.

SECTION 2 - Non-Discrimination Policy 
Association Membership

Neither the State nor the Association shall
interfere with the right of employees covered by this
Agreement to become or refrain from becoming
members of the Association. and neither the State
nor the Association shall discriminate agai~lst any
such employee because of membership or non
membership in any employee organization.



Article 5 Article 5
REPRESENTATION RIGHTS REPRESENTATION RIGHTS

SECTION 1 • Definitions SECTION 1 • Definitions
The State recognizes and agrees to deal with The State recognizes and agrees to deal with

designated grievance representatives of FSFSA on designated grievance representatives of FSFSA on
.all matters relating to grievances. The term. all matters relating to grievances. The term
"Grievance Representative." as used in this "Grievance Representative," as used in this
Agreement, shall mean a bargain unit member Agreement, shall mean a bargain unit member
officially designated by the President of the Florida officially designated by the President of the Florida
State Fire Service Association to investigate State Fire Service Association to investigate
grievances. grievances.

SECTION 2 • Designation of Employee
Representatives

(A) The President of the Florida State Fire
Service Association shall furnish to the State and
keep up-to-date a list of FSFSA Staff
Representatives. The State will not recognize any
person as a Staff Representative whose name does
not appear on the list.

(B) From employees in the bargaining unit,
the Association shall select a reasonable number of
FSFSA Grievance Representatives. The FSFSA shall
fumish the State with the name, social security
number, official class title, name of employing
agency, and specific work location of each employee
who has been designated to act as a Grievance
Representative. The State shall not recognize an
employee as an authorized Grievance Representative
until such information has been received from the
Association.

(1) Upon request of an aggrieved
employee, or upon filing of a grievance by
FSFSA itself, a FSFSA grievance
representative may investigate the grievance,
provided it is in his/her existing district,
except in the case of state level
representatives who operate statewide or in
the case of region level representatives who
operate region wide, and may assist in the
grievance presentation.

SECTION 3 .. Access
(A) The State agrees that accredited

representatives of the Florida State Fire Service
Association shall have access to the premises of the
State, which are available to the public.

(B) If any area of the State's premises is
restricted to the public, pennission must be
requested to enter such areas and such permission
will not be unreasonably denied. Such access shall
be during the regular working hours of the employee

SECTION 2 • Designation of Employee
Representatives

(A) The President of the Florida State Fire
Service Association shall furnish to the State and
keep up-to-date a list of FSFSA Staff
Representatives. The State will not recognize any
person as a Staff Representative whose name does
not appear on the list.

(B) From employees in the bargaining unit,
the Association shall select a reasonable number of
FSFSA Grievance Representatives. The FSFSA shall
furnish the State with the name, social security
number, official class titlet name of employing
agency, and specific work location of each employee
who has been designated to act as a Grievance
Representative. The State shall not recognize an
employee as an authorized Grievance Representative
lmtil such information has been received from the
Association.

(1) Upon request of an aggrieved
employee, or upon filing of a grievance by
FSFSA itselft a FSFSA grievance
representative may investigate the grievance,
provided it is in his/her existing district,
except in the case of state level
representatives who operate statewide or in
the case of region level representatives who
operate region wide, and may assist in the
grievance presentation.

SECTION 3 - Access
(A) The State agrees that accredited

representatives of the Florida State Fire Service
Association shall have access to the premises of the
State, which are available to the public.

(B) If any area of the State's premises is
restricte.d to the public. permission must be
requested to enter such areas and such
permission will not be unreasonably denied.
Such access shall be durin~ the regular working



and shall be to investigate an employee's grievance.
(C) Upoa reEIUest fHul reoeipt of payft1eflt, the

State shall pr6'"iae eeereaited FeflFeseatftti¥es
ffifoffHatioa, doeaffieRts, or other pl:ilJlie reeords for
the itwestigation of &H employee's grievRace.
Bargaining Unit members may reguest information,
documentation. or other such public records utilized
during investigations, grievances. and disciplinary
issues directly affecting bargaining unit member(s)
at no cost to the employee or his designated
representative.

SECTION 4 - Distribution of Literature
FSFSA representatives may, during non

working hours or during any breaks, distribute
employee organization literature. FSFSA agrees that
nothing of a libelous, racist, sexist, obscene, or
partisan political nature shall be so distributed.

SECTION 5 - Use of State Facilities for Meetings
The State agrees that recognized

representatives of FSFSA shall have access to the
premises of the State which are available to the
public for the purpose of conducting meetings, in
compliance with Department of Management
Services Rule 60H~6.007. If any area of the State's
premises is restricted to the public, permission must
be requested to enter such areas and such permission
will not be unreasonably denied.

SECTION 6 • Bulletin Boards
(A) Where requested in writing. the State

agrees to furnish in State-controlled facilities to
which bargaining unit employees are assigned, wall
space not to exceed 24x36" for Association
purchased bulletin boards of an equal size. Such
bulletin boards will be placed at a State facility in an
area normally accessible t.o, and-frequented by,
covered employees. Once a location has been
established, it shall not be-moved without notice.

(B) The FSFSA bulletin boards shall be used
only for the following notices:
(I) Recreation and social

affairs of FSFSA,
(2) FSFSA meetings,
(3) FSFSA elections,
(4) Reports of FSFSA

committees,
(5) FSFSA benefit programs,
(6) Current FSFSA contract,
(7) Training and educational

opportunities, and

hours of the employee and shall be to investigate
an employee's grievance.

(C) Upon Felill:lest aBfl receipt of payment, the
State sliall pro....ide aeeree.i~ represeffiBtiYes
infoi'fl.'iMioa. aoowneats, or ether pualic Feeoffis for
the iWlestigBtion of aft employee's grievftooe.
Bargaining Unit members may reguest information.
documentation. or other such public records utilized
during investigations. grievances, and disciplinary
issues directly affecting bargaining unit member(s)
at no cost to the employee or his designated
representative.

SECTION 4 • Distribution ofLiterature
FSFSA representatives may, during non

working hours or during any breaks, distribute
employee organization literature. FSFSA agree.'i that
nothing of a libelous, racist, sexist. obscene, or
partisan political nature shall be so distributed.

SECTION 5 • Use of State Facilities for Meetings
The State agrees that recognized

representatives of FSFSA shall have access to the
premises of the State which are available to the
public for the purpose of conducting meetings, in
compliance with Department of Management
Services Rule 60H~6.007. If any area of the State's
premises is restricted to the public, permission must
be requested to enter such areas and such permission
will not be unreasonably denied.

SECTION 6 • Bulletin Boards
(A) Where requested in writing, the State

agrees to furnish in State-controlled facilities to
which bargaining unit employees are assigned, wall
space not to exceed 24x36" for Association
purchased bulletin boards of an equal size. Such
bulletin boards will be placed at a State facility in an
area normally accessible to, and-frequented by,
covered employees. Once a location hal) been
established, it shall not be-moved without notice.

(B) The FSFSA bulletin boards shall be used
only for the following notices:
( I) Recreation and social

affairs of FSFSA,
(2) FSFSA meetings.
(3) FSFSA elections,
(4) Reports of FSFSA

committees,
(5) FSFSA benefit programs,
(6) Current FSFSA contract,
(7) Training and educational



(8) Other materials perta..ining
to the welfare of FSFSA members
with Agency approval and such
approval shall" not be unreasonably
denied.

(9) Decisions reached through
consultation meetings, as approved by the
Department of Management Services.

(10) Notices of wage
increases for covered employees.
(C) Material posted on these bulletin boards

shall not contain anything reflecting adversely on the
State. or any of its officers or employees; nor shall
any posted material violate any law. nIle, or
regulation.

(D) Notices posted must be dated and bear
the signature of the FSFSA's authorized
representative.

(E) A violation of these provisions by an
FSFSA Staff Representative or an authorized
representative shall be a basis for removal of bulletin
board privileges for that representative by the
Department of Management Services for a period
not to exceed three (3) months.

SECTION 7 • Use of State Phones
When a FSFSA steward or officer is called

by a management representative while on duty, the
steward or officer may receive the call without
charge. A FSFSA steward or officer may place a
call to a management representative even though the
call may result in a cost to the State.

SECTION S· Consultations
(A) In order to provide a means for

continuing communication between the parties and
upon request of the President of the Florida State
Fire Service Association, the Secretary of the
Depm1ment of Management Services and/or his
designated representative(s) and not more than three
(3) representatives of FSFSA shall meet and consult
quarterly. Such meetings shall be held at a mutually
agreeable time and place designated by the
Department of Management Services.

(B) Upon request by the designated FSFSA
Staff Representative. the Agency Head and/or his
designee(s) and the Staff Representative, with not
more than three (3) FSFSA representatives from the
agency, shall make a good faith effort to meet and
consult quarterly. Such meetings shall be held at a
mutually agreeable time and place to be designated
by the Agency Head or his designee.

opportunities, and
(8) Other materials pertaining

to the welfare of FSFSA members
with Agency approval and such
approval shall not be unreasonably
denied.

(9) Decisions reached through
consultation meetings, as approved by the
Department of Management Services.

(10) Notices of wage
increases for covered employees.
(C) Material posted on these bulletin boards

shall not contain anything reflecting adversely on the
State, or any of its officers or employees; nor shall
any posted material violate any law. mle. or
regulation.

(D) Notices posted must be dated and bear
the signature of the FSFSA's authorized
representative.

(E) A violation of these provisions by an
FSFSA Staff Representative or an authorized
representative shall be a basis for removal of bulletin
board privileges for that representative by the
Department of Management Services for a period
not to exceed three (3) months.
SECTION 7 .. Use of State Phones

When a FSFSA steward or officer is called
by a management representative while on duty. the
steward or officer may receive the call without
charge. A FSFSA steward or officer may place a
call to a management representative even though the
call may result in a cost to the State.

SECTION S - Consultations
(A) In order to provide a means for

continuing communication between the parties and
upon request of the President of the Florida State
Fire Service Association. the Secretary of the
Department of Management Services and/or his
designated representative(s) and not more than three
(3) representatives of FSFSA shall meet and consult
quarterly. Such meetings shall be held at a mutually
agreeable time and place designated by the
Depmtment of Management Services.

(B) Upon request by the designated FSFSA Staff
Representative, the Agency Head and/or his
designee(s) and the Staff Representative. with
not more than three (3) FSFSA representatives
from the agency, shall make a good faith effort
to meet and consult quarterly. Such meetings
shall be held at a mutually agreeable time mId
place to be designated by the Agency Head or his



(C) Upon request by the designated FSFSA
Staff Representative, the Step 1 Management
Representative and/or his designee(s) and the
designated FSFSA Staff Representative, with not
more than two (2) FSFSA representatives from the
Agency, shaH make a good faith effort to meet and
consult. Such meetings shall be held at a mutually
agreeable time and place to be designated by the
Step 1 Management Representative.

(D) All consultation meetings will be
scheduled at a mutually convenient time and place.
If a consultation meeting is held or requires
reasonable travel time during the working hours of
any employee participant, such participant shall be
excused without loss of pay for that purpose.
Attendance at a consultation meeting outside of
regular working hours shall not be deemed time
worked.

(E) The purpose of all consultation meetings
shall be to discuss matters relating to the
administration of this Agreement and any agency
activities affecting unit employees. It is understood
that these meetings shall not be used for the purpose
of discussing pending grievances or for negotiation
purposes. Prior to the scheduled meeting date, the
parties shall give reasonable notice of topics to be
discussed and persons to be in attendance.

(F) An agency shall prepare a written
response to issues raised during a consultation
meeting within thirty (30) days after the date of the
meeting.

(0) Any time consultation agenda topics
include issues on firefighter safety, qualifications,
training, or duties related to firefighting a
representative from me Florida State Fire Marshall
office Bureau of Fire Standards and training or
higher office shaH be present during consultation~ to
act as an advisor to both the agencies and the
bargaining unit on said such issues.

SECTION 9· Negotiations
(A) FSFSA agrees that all collective

bargaining is to be conducted with State
representatives designated for that purpose by the
Govemor, as chief executive officer. Negotiating
meetings may be held in Tallahassee unless the State
and FSFSA mutually agree to meet elsewhere at a
State facility or other location which involves no
rental cost to the State. There shall be no negotiation
by FSFSA at any other level of State government.

(B) FSFSA may designate up to six (6)
employees within the Unit to attend each single~day

designee.
(C) Upon request by the designated FSFSA

Staff Representative, the Step 1 Management
Representative andlor his designee(s) and the
designated FSFSA Staff Representative, with not
more than two (2) FSFSA representatives from the
Agency, shall make a good faith effort to meet and
consult. Such meetings shall be held at a mutually
agreeable time and place to be designated by the
Step 1 Management Representative.

(D) All consultation meetings will be
scheduled at a mutually convenient time and place.
[f a consultation meeting is held or requires
reasonable travel time during the working hours of
any employee participant. such participant shall be
excused without loss of pay for that purpose.
Attendance at a consultation meeting outside of
regular working hours shall not be deemed time
worked.

(E) The purpose of aU consultation meetings
shall be to discuss matters relating to the
administration of this Agreement and any agency
activities affecting unit employees. It is understood
that these meetings shall not be used for the purpose
of discussing pending grievances or for negotiation
purposes. Prior to the scheduled meeting date, the
parties shall give reasonable notice of topics to be
discussed and persons to be in attendance.

(F) An agency shall prepare a written
response to issues raised during a consultation
meeting within thirty (30) days after the date of the
meeting.

(G) Any time consultation agenda topics
include issues on firefighter safetx, qualifications.
training, or duties related to frrefighting a
representative from the Florida State Fire Marshall
office Bureau of Fire Standards and training or
higher oftlce shall be present during consultations to
act as an advisor to both the agencies and the
bargaining unit on said such issues.

SECTION 9 • Negotiations
(A) FSFSA agrees that all collective

bargaining is to be conducted with State
representatives designated for that purpose by the
Governor, as chief executive officer. Negotiating
meetings may be held in Tallahassee unless the State
and FSFSA mutually agree to meet elsewhere at a ~

State facility or other location which involves no ~
rental cost to the State. There shall be no negotiation
by FSFSA at any other level of State govemment.

(B) FSFSA may designate up to six (6)



session as Negotiation Committee members and
such employees will be granted leave with pay to
attend negotiating sessions with the State. If travel
to and from negotiations unavoidably occurs on the
participant's scheduled work days immediately
preceding or following a day of negotiation, Unit
employees shall be eligible to receive leave with pay
on an hour for hour basis for such reasonable travel
time pending review and approval by the employing
agency. No individual employee shall be credited
with more than the number of hours in the
employee's regular workday for any day the
employee is attending negotiations or traveling to or
from negotiations. The time in attendance at such
negotiating sessions shall not be counted as hours
worked for the purpose of computing compensatory
time or overtime. The Agency shall not reimburse
the employee for travel, meals, lodging, or any
expense incurred in connection with attendance at
negotiating sessions.

(C) The FSFSA President shall be allowed
to take up to sixteen (16) hours of leave with pay per
fiscal year and the remaining five (5) members of the
Negotiation Committee shall each be allowed to take
up to eight (8) hours of leave with pay per fiscal year
not to exceed a total of forty (40) hours, to
participate in FSFSA training and preparation for
negotiation meetings provided fire conditions,
emergency activities or other priority work projects
do not preclude such participation. Use of these
hours will require appropriate documentation.

(D) Any time negotiations articles are
"opened" that include issues on firefighter safety,
Qualifications. training, or duties related to
firefighting a representative from the Florida State
Fire Marshall office Bureau of Fire Standard...;; and
training, or higher office, shall be present during
ne.gotiations to act as an advisor to both the agencies
and the bargaining unit on said such issues.

employees within the Unit to attend each single-day
session as Negotiation Committee members and
such employees will be granted leave with pay to
attend negotiating sessions with the State. If travel
to and from negotiations unavoidably occurs on the
participant's scheduled work days immediately
preceding or following a day of negotiation, Unit
employees shall be eligible to receive leave with pay
on an hour for hour basis for such reasonable travel
time pending review and approval by the employing
agency. No individual employee shall be credited
with more than the number of hours in the
employee's regular workday for any day the
employee is attending negotiations or traveling to or
from negotiations. The time in attendance at such
negotiating sessions shall not be counted as hours
worked for the purpose of computing compensatory
time or overtime. The Agency shall not reimburse
the employee for travel, meals, lodging, or any
expense incurred in connection with attendance at
negotiating sessions.

(C) The FSFSA President shall be allowed
to take up to sixteen (16) hours of leave with pay per
fiscal year and the remaining five (5) members of the
Negotiation Committee shall each be allowed to take
up to eight (8) hours of leave with pay per tiscal year
not to exceed a total of forty (40) hours, to
participate in FSFSA training and preparation for
negotiation meetings provided fire conditions,
emergency activities or other priority work projects
do not preclude such participation. Use of these
hours will require appropriate documentation.

(D) Any time negotiations articles are
"opened" that include issl\~s on firefighter safety,
qualifications, training, or duties related to
ftrefighting a representative from the Florida State
Fire Marshall office Bureau of Fire Stangards and
training, or higher office, shall be present during
negotiations to act as an advisor to both the agencies
and the bargaining unit on said such issues.



Article 6
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

It is the policy of the State and FSFSA to
encourage informal discussions of complaints
between management and supervisors covered by
this Agreement, all well as between those supervisors
and covered employees. Such discussions should be
held with a view to reaching an understanding which
will resolve the matter in a manner satisfactory to the
employee, and the state, without need for recourse to
the fonnal grievance procedure prescribed by this
Article.

SECTION 1 • Definitions
As used in this Article:

(A) "Grievance" shall mean a dispute
involving the interpretation or application of the
specific provisions of this Agreement, except as
exclusions are noted in this Agreement.

(B) "Grievant" shall mean an employee or a
group of firefighting employees having the same
grievance, or the union. In the case of a group of
employees, one shall be designated by the group to
act as spokesperson and to be responsible for
processing the grievance.

(C) "Days" shall mean calendar days,
excluding any day observed as a holiday pursuant to
Section 110.117, Florida Statutes. If the due date for
a grievance response or for a grievance submission
to a step or to arbitration falls on a we-ekend or a
holiday, the action shall be due the next business
day.

SECTION 2 • Election of Remedy and
Representation

(A) If an employee or FSFSA has a
gti.evance which may be processed under this Atticle
and which may also be appealed to the Florida
Public Employees Relations Commission. the
employee or FSFSA shall elect at the outset which
procedure is to be used and such election shall be
binding on the employee or FSFSA. In the case of
any duplicate filing. the action first filed will be the
one processed.

(B) An employee who decides to use this
Grievance Procedure shall indicate at Step I (or the
initial written step if authorized by the provisions of
this Article) whether or not he shall be represented
by FSFSA. When the employee has elected FSFSA
representation, both the employee and FSFSA
Representative shall be notified of any Step 1
meeting. Further, any written communication

Article 6
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

It is the policy of the State and FSFSA to
encourage infonnal discussions of complaints
between management and supervisors covered by
this Agreement, as well as between those supervisors
and covered employees. Such discussions should be
held with a view to reaching an understanding which
will resolve the matter in a manner satisfactory to the
employee, and the state, without need for recourse to
the fOlmal grievance procedure prescribed by this
Article.

SECTION 1 w Definitions
As used in this Article:

(A) "Grievance" shall mean a dispute
involving the interpretation or application of the
specific provisions of this Agreement. except as
exclusions are noted in this Agreement.

(B) "Grievant" shall mean an employee or a
group of fire-fighting employees having the same
grievance, or the union. In the case of a group of
employees, one shall be designated by the group to
act as spokesperson and to be responsible for
processing the grievance.

(C) "Pays" shall mean calendar days, ~

excluding any day observed as a holiday pursuant to
Section 110.117. Florida Statutes. Ifthe due date for
a grievance response or for a grievance submission
to a step or to arbitration falls on a weekend or a
holiday, the action shall be due the next business
day.

SECTION 2· Election of Remedy and
Representation

(A) If an employee or FSFSA has a
grievance which may be processed under this Article
and which may also be appealed to the Florida
Public Employees Relations Commission. the
employee or FSFSA shall elect at the outset which
procedure is to be used and such election shall be
binding on the employee or FSFSA. [n the case of
any duplicate filing, the action first filed will be the
one processed.

(B) An employee who decides to use this
Grievance Procedure shall indicate at Step 1 (or the
initial written step if authorized by the provisions of
this Atticle) whether or not he shall be represented ~

by FSFSA. When the employee has elected FSFSA ~

representation, both the employee and FSFSA
Representative shall be notified of any Step 1
meeting. Further, anv written communication



concetning the grievance or its resolution shall be
sent to both the employee and the FSFSA
representative, and any decision mutually agreed to

~ by the State and the FSFSA shall be binding on the
, employee.

(C) If the employee is not represented by the
FSFSA. any adjustment of the grievance shall be
consistent with the terms of this Collective
Bargaining Agreement. FSFSA shan be given
reasonable oppottunity to be present at any meeting
called for the resolution of such grievance. An
employee using this procedure in the processing of a
grievance will be bound by the procedure established
by the Parties to the Agreement.

The FSFSA shall not be bound by the
decision of any grievance or arbitration in which the
employee was not represented by the FSFSA.

SECTION 3 . Procedures
(A) Employee grievances filed in accordance

with this Article should be presented and handled
promptly at the lowest level of management having
the authority to adjust the grievances.

(B) There shall be no reprisals against any of
the participants in the procedures contained herein
by reason of such participation.

(C) The filing or pendency of any grievance
under the provisions of this Article shall in no way
operate to impede, delay or interfere with the right of
the State to take the action complained of; subject,
however, to the final disposition of the grievance.

(D) Once a grievance is presented, no new
violation or issue can be raised, unless the Parties
mutually agree in writing to revise or amend the
alleged violations or issues or for good cause but in
no event less than seven (7) days prior to any
arbitration hearing. When an issue is unchanged, but
it is detennined that an article, section or paragraph
of the Agreement has been cited imprecisely or
erroneously by the employee, then the employee
shall have the right to amend that pmt of his
grievance.

(E) The resolution of a grievance prior to its
submission in writing at Step 2 shall not establish a
precedent binding on either FSFSA or the State in
other cases.

(F) If a grievance meeting is held or requires
travel time during the working time of a required
participant, the reasonable time will be deemed time
worked. A required participant is defined as the
grievant, the designated union representative located
in the grievant's District or in the event of no

concerning the grievance or its resolution shall be
sent to both the employee and the FSFSA
representative, and any decision mutually agreed to
by the State and the FSFSA shall be binding on the
employee.

(C) If the employee is not represented by the
FSFSA, any adjustment of the grievance shall be
consistent with the terms of this Collective
Bargaining Agreement. FSFSA shall be given
reasonable opportunity to be present at any meeting
called for the resolution of such grievance. An
employee using this procedure in the processing of a
grievance will be bound by the procedure established
by the Parties to the Agreement.

The FSFSA shall not be bound by the
decision of any grievance or arbitration in which the
employee was not represented by the FSFSA.

SECTION 3 • Procedures
(A) Employee grievances filed in accordance

with this Article should be presented and handled
promptly at the lowest level of management having
the authority to adjust the grievances.

(B) There shall be no reprisals against any of
the participants in the procedures contained herein
by reason of such participation.

(C) The filing or pendency of any grievance
under the provisions of this Atticle shall in no way
operate to impede, delay or interfere with the right of
the State to take the action complained of; subject,
however, to the final disposition of the grievance.

(D) Once a grievance is presented, no new
violation or issue can be raised. unless the Parties
mutually agree in writing to revise or amend the
alleged violations or issues or for good cause but in
no event less than seven (7) days prior to any
arbitration hearing. When an issue is unchanged, but
it is determined that an article, section or paragraph
of the Agreement has been cited imprecisely or
elToneously by the employee, then the employee
shall have the right to amend that part of his
grievance.

(E) The resolution of a grievance prior to its
submission in writing at Step 2 shall not establish a
precedent binding on either FSFSA or the State in
other cases.

(F) If a grievance meeting is held or requires
travel time during the working time of a required
participant, the reasonable time will be deemed time
worked. A required participant is defined as the
grievant. the designated union representative located
in the grievant's District or in the event of no



· designated union representative in the grievant's
District the union representative from the nearest
District, and any person required by the State to
attend. Attendance at grievance meetings outside of
the regular working hours shall not be deemed time
worked. All grievance meetings shall be held at
times and locations mutually agreed to by the
parties. Unless mutually agreed otherwise, all
meetings shall be held within fifty (50) miles of the
grievant's place of work.

(G) Grievances shall be presented and
adjusted in the following manner, and no one
individual may respond to a grievance at more than
one written step.

(H) Grievances and grievance responses may
be filed by hand-delivery, mail (including e-mail),
courier, or electronic facsimile. If sent via electronic
facsimile, the burden shall be on the sending Party to
confirm the correct electronic facsimile number
before tran..,mission. Documents shall be deemed
filed upon receipt during regular business hours
(8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. E.S.T.). Documents received
after business hours shall be considered received the
next business day.

Step 1.
(A) An employee having a grievance may

within fourteen (14) days following actual
knowledge of the occurrence of the event giving rise
to the grievance submit a grievance at Step 1.
Nothing in this procedure shall preclude an
employee from presenting concerns through
informal discussions with management
representative. In filing a grievance at Step 1, the
employee or his designated representative shall
submit to the Step 1 Management Representative a
grievance fOlm setting forth specifically the known
facts on which the grievance is based, the specific
provision or provisions of the Agreement allegedly
violated, and the relief requested. In discipline cases,
it shall be presumed that the grievance alleges that
the discipline was without just cause, and requests,
as relief, at a minimum, reinstatement, full make
whole relief.

(B) The Step 1 Management Representative
or his designee shall communicate a decision in
writing to the employee and to FSFSA Grievance
Representative, if any, within fourteen (14) days
following receipt of the grievance form. If the
Management Representative fails to respond within
the time limit it shall be deemed a denial.

designated wlion representative in the grievant's
District the union representative from the nearest
District, and any person required by the State to
attend. Attendance at grievance meetings outside of
the regular working hours shall not be deemed time
worked. All grievance meetings shall be held at
times and locations mutually agreed to by the
parties. Unless mutually agreed otherwise, all
meetings shall be held within fifty (50) miles of the
grievant's place of work.

(G) Grievances shall be presented and
adjusted in the following manner, and no one
individual may respond to a grievance at more than
one written step.

(R) Grievances and grievance responses may
be filed by hand·delivery, mail (including e-mail),
courier, or electronic facsimile. If sent via electronic
facsimile, the burden shall be on the sending Party to
confirm the correct electronic facsimile number
before transmission. Documents shall be deemed
filed upon receipt during regular business hours
(8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. E.S.T.). Documents received
after business hours shall be considered received the
next business day.

Step 1.
(A) An employee having a grievance may

within fourteen (14) days following actual
knowledge of the occurrence of the event giving rise
to the grievance submit a grievance at Step 1.
Nothing in. this procedure shall preclude an
employee from presenting concerns through
informal discussions with management
representative. In filing a grievance at Step I, the
employee or his designated representative shall
submit to the Step 1 Management Representative a
grievance fonn setting forth specifically the known
facts on which the grievance is based, the specific
provision or provisions of the Agreement allegedly
violated, and the relief requested. In discipline cases,
it shall be presumed that the grievance alleges that
the discipline was without just cause, and requests,
as relief, at a minimum, reinstatement, full make
whole relief.

(8) The Step 1 Management Representative
or his designee shall commwlicate a decision in
writing to the employee and to FSFSA Grievance
Representative, if any. within fourteen (14) days
following receipt of the grievance fonn. If the
Management Representative fails to respond within
the time limit it shall be deemed a deniaL



Step 2. Step 2.
(A) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1. (A) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1,

the employee or his designated representative may the employee or his designated representative may
· submit it to the Agency Head or his designated submit it to the Agency Head or his designated
representative within fourteen (14) days after receipt representative within fourteen (14) days after receipt
of the decision at Step 1. of the decision at Step 1.

(B) The Agency Head or his designated (B) The Agency Head or his designated
representative shall communicate a decision in representative shall communicate a decision in
writing to the employee and the FSFSA Grievance writing to the employee and the FSFSA Grievance
Representative. if any, within fourteen (14) days Repre..;entative, if any. within fourteen (14) days

· following receipt of the written grievance. If the following receipt of the written grievance. If the
Agency Head fails to respond within the time limits Agency Head fails to respond within the time limits
it shall be deemed a denial. it shall be deemed a deniaL

Step 3. Step 3.
fA) If the grievance is not re.'lolved at Step 2. (A) If the grievance is not resolv~ at Step 2, .

the employee or his designated representative may the employee or his designated representative may
submit it to the Department Head directly cQvering submit it to the Department Head directly covering
said agency within fourteen (14) days after receipt of saig agency within fourteen (14) days after receipt of

·the decision at Step 2. the decision at Step ,.
(B) The Department Head shall communicate (B) The Department Head shall communicate

a decision in writing to the employee and the FSFSA a decision in writing to the employee and the FSFSA
Grievance Representative. if any. within fourteen Grievance Representative. if any, within fourteen
(I4) gays following receipt of the written grievance. (14) days following receipt of the written grievance.
If the Department Head fails to respond within the If the Department Head fails to respond within the
time limits it shall be deemed a denial. time limits it shaH be deemed a denial.

Step 4. Step 4.
(A) If the grievance is not resolved at Step i1 (A) If the grievance is not resolved at Step i1

~ the FSFSA may appeal the grievance to ~ the FSFSA may appeal the grievance to
arbitration within fourteen (14) days after receipt of arbitration within fourteen (14) days after receipt of
the decision at Step ~ 3. If, at the initial written step. the decision at Step i1~ If, at the initial written step,
FSFSA declined to repre..<;;ent the employee because FSFSA declined to represent the employee because
he was not a member of FSFSA, the employee may he was not a member of FSFSA, the employee may
appeal the grievance to arbitration. The gtievance appeal the grievance to arbitration. The grievance
shall include a copy of the grievance forms shall include a copy of the grievance forms
submitted at Steps 1 Rfld 21,2 and 3 together with all submitted at Steps 1 and 21.2 and 3 together with all
written responses and documents in support of the written responses and documents in support of the
grievance. The Department of Management Services grievance. The Department of Management Services
may have a meeting with the FSFSA Staff may have a meeting with the FSFSA Staff
Representative or his designee to discuss the Representative or his designee to discuss the
grievance. grievance.

(B) The arbitrator shall be one person from a (B) The arbitrator shall be one person from a
panel of four (4) arbitrators selected by the Patties. panel of four (4) arbitrators selected by the Parties.

(e) The parties may, by mutual agreement in (C) The parties may, by mutual agreement in
writing. submit related grievances for hearing before writing, submit related grievances for hearing before
the same arbitrator. Arbitration hearings shall be the same arbitrator. Arbitration hearings shall be
held at times and locations mutually agreed to by the held at times and locations mutually agreed to by the
parties; however. unless mutually agreed otherwise, parties; however, unless mutually agreed otherwise,
all hearings shall be held within fifty (50) miles of all hearings shall be held within fifty (50) miles of
the grievant(s)' place of work. the grievant(s)' place of work.

(D) The arbitrator may fashion an (D) The arbitrator may fashion an



appropriate remedy to resolve the grievance and,
provided the decision is in accordance with his
jurisdiction and authority under this Agreement,
shall be tinal and binding on the State. FSFSA, the
grievant(s). and the employees in the bargaining
unit. In considering a grievance the arbitrator shall
be governed by the following prOVisions and
limitations:

(1) The arbitrator shall issue
his decision not later than fourteen
(14) days from the date of the closing
of the hearing or the submission of
briefs, whichever is later.

(2) The arbitrator's decision
sh~ll be in writing, and shall set forth
the arbitrator's opinion and
conclusions on the issue(s) submitted.

(3) The arbitrator shall have
no authority to determine any other
issue, and shall refrain from issuing
any statement of opinion or
conclusion not essential to the
determination of the issues submitted.

(4) The arbitrator shall limit
his decision strictly to the application
and interpretation of the specific
provisions of this Agreement.

(5) The arbitrator shall be
without power or authority to make
any decisions that are:

(a) Contrary to or
inconsistent with, adding to,
subtracting from, or
modifying, altering or
ignoring in any way, the terms
of this Agreement, or of
applicable law or rules or
regulations having the force
and effect of law.

(b) Limiting or
interfering in any way with
the power, duties and
responsibilities of the State
under its Constitution,
applicable law, and rules and
regulations having the force
and effect of law, except as
such powers, duties and
responsibilities have been
abridged, delegated or
modified by the express
provisions of this Agreement.

appropriate remedy to resolve the grievance and.
provided the decision is in accordance with his
jurisdiction and authority under this Agreement,
shall be final and binding on the State. FSFSA, the
grievant(s), and the employees in the bargaining
unit. In considering a grievance the arbitrator shall
be governed by the following provisions and
limitations:

(1) The arbitrator shall issue
his decision not later than fourteen
(14) days from the date of the closing
of the hearing or the submission of
briefs, whichever is later.

(2) The arbitrator's decision
shall be in writing, and shall set forth
the arbitrator's opinion and
conclusions on the issue(s) submitted.

(3) The arbitrator shall have
no authority to determine any other
issue, and shall refrain from issuing
any statement of opinion or
conclusion 110t essential to the
determination of the issues submitted.

(4) The arbitrator shall limit
his decision strictly to the application
and interpretation of the specific
provisions of this Agreement.

(5) The arbitrator shall be
without power or authority to make
any decisions that are:

(a) Contrary to or
inconsistent with, adding to,
subtracting from, or
modifying, altering or
ignoring in any way, the terms
of this Agreement. or of
applicable law or rules or
regulations having the force
and effect of law.

(b) Limiting or
interfering in any way with
the power. duties and
responsibilities of the State
under its Constitution,
applicable law, and rules and
regulations having the force
and effect of law. except as
such powers, duties and
responsibilities have been
abridged, delegated or
modified by the express
provisions of this A~reement.



(6) The arbitrator's award
may include back pay, to the
Grievant(s); however, the following
limitations shall apply to such
monetary awards:

(a) No award for back
pay shall exceed' the amount
of pay the employee would
otherwise have earned at his
regular rate of pay and such
back pay shall not be
retroactive to a date earlier
than the date of the occurrence
of the event giving rise to the
grievance under
consideration.

(b) The award shall
not exceed the actual loss to
the grievant. will not include
punitive damages. and will be
reduced by the amount of
wages earned from other
sources excluding
unemployment compensation
received by the employee
during the period of time
affected by the award.

(c) The reasonable fees and
expenses of the arbitrator shall be
borne equally by the parties for the
first fiye (5) matters submitted for
arbitration in the respective contract
year and thereafter the loser pays the
fees and expenses of the arbitration.
Each party shall be responsible for
compensating and paying the
expenses of its own representatives.
attorneys and witnesses.

(d) FSFSA will not be
responsible for costs of an
arbitration to which it was not
a Party.

SECTION 4 • Time Limits
(A) Failure at any step of this procedure to

communicate the decision on a grievance within the
specified time limits shall permit the employee. or
FSFSA. where appropriate. to proceed to the next
step. The State will make a good faith effort to
timely communicate decisions at each step.

(B) The number of days indicated at each
step should be considered as a maximum. and every

(6) The arbitrator's award
may include back pay. to the
Grievant(s); however. the following
limitations shall apply to such
monetary awards:

(a) No award for back
pay shall exceed the amount
of pay the employee would
otherwise have earned at his
regular rate of pay and such
back pay shall not be
retroactive to a date earlier
than the date of the occurrence
of the event giving rise to the
grievance under
consideration.

(b) The award shall
not exceed the actual loss to
the grievant, will not include
punitive damages. and will be
reduced by the amount of
wages earned from other
sources excluding
unemployment compensation
received by the employee
during the period of time
affected by the award.

(c) The reasonable fees and
expenses of the arbitrator shall be
borne equally by the parties for dle
first fi·..e (5) matters submitted for
arbitration in the respective contract
year and thereafter the loser pays the
fees and expenses of the arbitration.
Each party shall be responsible for
compensating and paying the
expenses of its own representatives,
attomeys and witnesses.

(d) FSFSA will not be
responsible for costs of all

arbitration to which it was not
a Party.

SECTION 4· Time Limits
(A) Failure at any step of this procedure to

communicate the decision on a grievance within the
specified time limits shall permit the employee. or
FSFSA. where appropriate. to proceed to the next
step. The State will make a good faith effort to
timely communicate decisions at each step.

(B) The number of days indicated at each
step should be considered as a maximum, and every



effort should be made to expedite the process.
However, the time limits specified in any step of this
procedure may be extended. in any specific instance.
by mutual written agreement.

(C) Claims of either a.n untimely filing or
untimely appeal shall be made at the step in
question. In the event a grievance is asserted to be
untimely. at arbitration the parties will submit the
issue of timeliness to be resolved prior to the
submission of the merits of the grievance.

SECTION 5 • Exceptions
CA) Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in

this Agreement shall be construed to permit FSFSA
or an employee to process a grievance (1) in behalf
of any employee without his consent. or (2) with
respect to any matter which is the subject of a
grievance, appeal, administrative action before a
government board or agency, or court proceeding,
brought by FSFSA.

(B) All grievances will be presented at the
initial step with the following exceptions:

(1) If a grievance arises from
the action of an official higher than
the Step 1 Management
Representative, the grievance shall be
initiated at Step 2 or J 2,3 or 4, as
appropriate, by submitting a
grievance form as set forth in Step 1
within fourteen (14) days following
the actual knowledge of the
occurrence giving rise to the
grievance.

(2) The FSFSA shall have the right to
bring a class action grievance on behalf of
bargaining Unit employees in its own name,
concerning disputes relating to the
interpretation or application of this
Agreement. Such grievance shall not include
disciplinary actions taken against an
employee. The FSFSA's election to proceed
under this Article shall preclude it from
proceeding in another fomm on the same
issue. Such grievance shall be initiated at
Step 2 of this procedure, in accordance with
the provisions set forth herein, within
fourteen (14) days of the knowledge or
reasonable knowledge of the occurrence of
the event giving rise to the grievance.

Article 7
DISCIPLINARY ACTION

effort should be made to expedite the process.
However, the time limits specified in any step of this
procedure may be extended, in any specific instance,
by mutual written agreement.

(C) Claims of either an untimely filing or
untimely appeal shall be made at the step in
question. In the event a grievance is asserted to be
untimely, at arbitration the parties will submit the
issue of timeliness to be resolved prior to the
submission of the merits of the grievance.

SECTION 5 • Exceptions
(A) Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in

this Agreement shall be construed to pennit FSFSA
or an employee to process a grievance (1) in behalf
of any employee without his consent, or (2) with
respe~t to any matter which is the subject of a
grievance, appeal, administrative action before a
government board or agency, or court proceeding,
brought by FSFSA.

(B) All grievances will be presented at the
initial step with the following exceptions:

(1) If a grievance arises from
the action of an official higher than
the Step 1 Management
Representative, the grievance shall be
initiated at Step 2 or J 2,3 or 4, as
appropriate, by submitting a
grievance form all set forth in Step 1
within fourteen (14) days following
the actual knowledge of the
occurrence giving rise to the
grievance.

(2) The FSFSA shall have the right to
bring a class action grievance on behalf of
bargaining Unit employees in its own name,
conceming disputes relating to the
interpretation or application of this
Agreement. Such grievance shall not include
disciplinary actions taken against an
employee. The FSFSA's election to proceed
under this Article shall preclude it from
proceeding in another forum on the same
issue. Such grievance shall be initiated at
Step 2 of this procedure. in accordance with
the provisions set forth herein, within
fourteen (14) days of the knowledge or
reasonable knowledge of the occurrence of
the event giving rise to the grievance. ~

Article 7
DISCIPLINARY ACTION



• (A) An employee who has satisfactorily (A) An employee who has satisfactorily
completed at least a one-year probationary period in completed at least a one·year probationary period in
their current position may be disciplined or their current position may be disciplined or
discharged only for just cause. where specific policy. discharged only for just cause, where specific policy.
statute, or law has been violated and proven by the statute, or law has been violated and proven by the
State. State.

(1) Disciplinary actions to include (1) Disciplinary actions to include
suspensions~ dismissals. reduction in pay, and suspensionssdismissals. reduction in pay, and
demotions must be filed and completed within thirty demotigns must be filed and completed within thirty
(30) days of the time the offense has OCCUlTed. (30) days of the time the offense has oc£urred.
During Criminal Investiggtions Article 7(A) During Criminal Investigations Article 7(A)
timeframes will not apply due to Florida Law. timeframes will not awly due to Florida Law.

(2) frior to any investigation process by the (2) Prior to any investigation proces§ by the
agencies excluding those of Criminal investigations agencies excluding those of Criminal investigation.
bargaining unit members will be advised by bargaining unit members will be advised by
Management in writing of me nature of the Management in writing of the nature of the
investigations name of complainant (unless protected investigation, name of complainant (unless protected
by law), date the infraction occurred, and any other by law), date the infraction occurred, and any other
pertinent information involving why the p€(rtinent informl\tion involving why the
tnvestigation is being conducted. investigation is being conducteg.

(3) FSFSA representatives will be involved (3) FSFSA representatives will be involved
in all stages of any investigations and interrogations in all stages of any investigations and interrogations
of any bargaining unit member unless the bargaining of any bargaining unit member unless the bargaining
unit member reguest not to have FSFSA involved in unit member reguest not to have FSFSA involved in
writing to Management after being advised of tbe writing to Management after being advised of the
nature of the investigation. nature of the investigation.

(4) Florida Statute 112.82 commonly referred (4) Florida Statute 112.82 commonly referred
to a..o;; the "Firefighter Bill of Rightss" will apply to all to as the "Firefighter Bill of Rights," will awly to all
FSFSA bargaining unit members during any level of FSFSA bargaining unit members during any level of
the investigation process. the investigation ptocess.

(B) An employee who has not attained (B) An employee who has not attained
permanent status in their current position shall not pelmanent status in their current position shall not
have access to the grievance procedure in Article 6 have access to the grievance procedure in AIticle 6
when dismissed, except to the extent permitted by when dismissed, except to the extent permitted by
Article 15. Article 15.

(C) Each employee shall be furnished a copy (C) Each employee shall be fumished a copy
of aU disciplinary actions placed in his official of all disciplinary actions placed in his official
persotmel file and shall be permitted to respond personnel tile and shall be permitted to respond
thereto. thereto.

(D) An employee may request that an FSFSA (D) An employee may request that an FSFSA
Staff Representative be present during any Staff Representative be present during any
disciplinary investigation meeting in which the disciplinary investigation meeting in which the
employee is being questioned relative to alleged employee is being questioned relative to alleged
misconduct of the employee. misconduct of the employee.

(E) Letters of counseling are not disciplinary (E) Letters of counseling are not disciplinary
actions and not grievable. Lerffirs of counseling fflay actions and not grievable. Letters of eOllnseling may
be l:lsed at arbitration only to she'll that an employee ae used at ai'bitffitioR oRly to nhoVl that an employee
was placed on notice of a Plile not as an eX8fl1Ple of Vias placed en flotiee of a rule not as 8R example of
prior abeiplifle. They shall not be relied upon for plier disei:pline. They shall not be relied upon for
the purposes of promotional decisions or the purposes of promotional decisions or
performance evaluations if the com!uct reslilting in performance evaluations if the COReltiet resulting in
,to. 1._..~ • • .1. ~_". ,t "" .1.. l ' • ,1. r," " 1 ,,"\.u_ ._.._...., ...- - ,~-,



maatha. ffiOatRs.
(1) Letters of counseling shall be removed !1) Letters of counseling shall be remov~d

and stricken from a bargaining unit memberts and strickeu from a . bargaining unit member's
official record after twelve !12} months if no other official record after twelve (I2) months if no other
issues of the same nature occur requiring follow uR issues of the same nature occur requiring follow uR
to the initial counseling, i.e.. the counseling to the initial counseling, i.e., the counseling
corrected the issue originally addressed. corrected the issue originally addressed.

(F) Suspensions, Dismissal, Reductions in (F) Suspensions, Dismissal, Reductions in
Pay, and Demotions resulting in a loss of pay may Pay, and Demotions resulting in a loss of pay may
be challenged under Article 6 through arbitration. be challenged under Article 6 through arbitration.
Reprimands shall be subject to the grievance Reprimands shall be subject to the grievance
procedure as follows: procedure as follows:

(1) Oral reprimands shall not be (1) Oral reprimands shall not be
grievable under the provisions of this grievable tmder the provisions of this
Agreement. Agreement.

(2) An oral reprimand will not be (2) An oral reprimand will not be
considered in determining discipline considered in determining discipline
provided the employee is not disciplined for provided the employee is not disciplined for
the same offense during the succeeding the same offense during the succeeding
twelve (12) months. twelve (12) months.

(3) Written reprimands may be (3) Written reprimands may be
grieved up to Step 2 and the decision at that grieved up to Step 2 and the decision at that
level shall be final and binding. level shall be fmal and binding.

(4) A written reprimand will not be (4) A written reprimand will not be
considered in determining discipline considered in determining discipline
provided the employee is not disciplined for provided the employee is not disciplined for
the same offense during the succeeding the same offense during the succeeding
eighteen (18) months, and the written eighteen (18) months, and the written
reprimand was not for a major offense which reprimand was not for a major offense which
could have resulted in the employee's could have resulted in the employee's
dismissal. dismissal.

(G) Suspensions of more than three (3) days
(G) Suspensions of more than three (3) days shall be split over a maximum of 2 pay periods to

shall be split over a maximum of 2 pay periods to prevent and extreme financial burden on bargaining
prevent and extreme financial burden on bargaining unit members and, more importantly. their f~mily.

unit members and. more imRortantly, their family. Bargaining unit members may choose to receive the
Bargaining unit members may choose to receive the entire suspension of more than three (3) days at once
entire suspension of more than three (3) days at once at their discretion.
at their discretion. (H) AllY bargaining unit member who has

(H) Any bargaining unit member who has any any complaints made against that employee and is
complaints made against that employee and is found found innocent of all charges shall not have the
innocent of all charges shall not have the complaint comRlaint in their personal file. The State shall
in their personal file. The State shall maintain a maintain a separate file of unconfirmed and
separate file of unconfirmed and lIDsubstantiated unsubstantiated complaints that are sealed. The
complaints that are sealed. The State shall be State shall be responsible for maintaining a file of
responsible for maintaining a file of complaints by complaints by any corporation. company. or
any corporation. company. or individual that individual that repeatedly makes false statements iJ,S

repeatedly makes false statements as detennined by determined by the Attorney General's discovery and
the Attorney General's discovery and investigation investigation of State employees. All individuals or
of State employees. All individuals or corporations corporations who falsely make complaints shall be
who falsely make complaints shall be investigated investigated by the respective agency and/or charged
bv the resoective aeencv and/or chareed accordinQlv accordinQ:lv if found Quiltv under Florida Law.



0.,• ..-.-----------------....-------------------"1if found guilty under Florida Law.



Article 8
WORKFORCE REDUCTIONS

SECTION 1 • Layoffs
(A) When employees certified pursuant to

Chapter 633, Florida Statutes are to be laid off, the
State shall implement such layoff in the following
manner:

(1) For bargaining Unit employees,
the competitive area within which layoffs
will be affected shall be defined as statewide
within each agency.

(2) Layoff shall be by class or
occupational level within the fire service
bargaining unit.

(3) An employee who does not have
permanent status may be laid off without
applying the provision for retention rights.

(4) No employee with permanent
status in their current position shall be laid
off while an employee who does not hold
permanent status is serving in that broadband
level unless the permanent employee does
not elect to exercise his retention rights or
does not meet the selective competition
criteria.

(5) AU employees who have
permanent status in their current position in
the affected broadband level shall be ranked
on a layoff list ba"ed on the total retention
points derived as follows:

(a) Length of service retention
points shall be based on one point for
each month of continuous service in a
Career Service position.

(1) An employee who
resigns from one Career
Service position to accept
employment in another Career
Service position is not
considered to have a break in
service.

(2) An employee who
has been laid off and is
reemployed within one year
from the date of the layoff,
shall not be considered to
have a break in service.

(3) Moving from
Career Service to Selected
Exempt Service or Senior
Management Service and
back to Career Service does

Article 8
WORKFORCE REDUCTIONS

SECTION 1 • Layoffs
(A) When employees certified pursuant to

Chapter 633, Florida Statutes, are to be laid off, the
state shaH implement such layoff in the following
manner:

(1) The competitive area within
which layoffs will be affected shall be defined as
statewide within each agency.

(2) Layoff shall be by class or
occupational level within the fire service bargaining
unit.

(3) An employee who does not have
permanent status in his current position may be laid
off without applying the provision for retention
rights.

(4) No employee with permanent
status in his current position shall be laid off while
an employee who does not hold permanent status is
serving in that broadband level, unless the
permanent employee does not elect to exercise his
retention rights or does not meet the selective
competition criteria.

(5) All employees who have
permanent status in their current pOSition in the
affected broadband level shall be ranked on a layoff
list based on the total retention points derived as
follows:

(a) Length of service retention
points shall be based on one point for each month of
continuous service in a Career Service position.

(1) An employee who
resigns from one Career Service position to accept
employment in another Career Service position is
not considered to have a break in service.

(2) An employee who
has been laid off and is reemployed within one year
from the date of the layoff, shall not be considered to
have a break in service.

(3) Moving from
Career Service to Selected Exempt Service or Senior
Management Service and back to Career Service
does not constitute a break in service unless the
employee's break in service is more than 31 calendar
days. Only time· spent in the Career Service can be
counted in calculating retention points.

(b) Retention points deducted
for perfonnance not meeting performance standards
or work expectations defined for the position shall
be based on the five years immediately prior to the
agency's established cutoff date. One (1) point shall



not constitute a break in be deducted for each month an employee has a rating
service unless the employee's below performance expectations.
break in service is more than (6) The layoff list shall be prepared
31 calendar days. Only time . by totaling retention points. Employees eligible for
spent in the Career Service veterans' preference pursuant to section 295.07(l)(a)
can be counted in calculating or (b), Florida Statutes, shall have ten percent added
retention points. to their total retention points, and those eligible
(b) Retention points deducted pursuant to section 295.07(l)(c) or (d) shall have

for performance not meeting five percent added.
performance standards or work (7) The employee with the highest
expectations dermed for the position total retention points is placed at the top of the list,
shall be based on the five years and the employee with the lowest retention pOints is
immediately prior to the agency's placed at the bottom of the list.
established cutoff date. One (1) point (8) The employee at the top of the list
shall be deducted for each month an shall bump the employee at the bottom of the list.
employee has a rating below The next highest employee on the list and the
performance expectations, remaining employees shall be handled in the same
(6) The layoff list shall be prepared manner until the total number of filled positions in

by totaling retention points, Employees the broadband level to be abolished is complete.
eligible for veterans' preference pursuant to (9) Should two or more employees
Section 295.07( 1)(a) or (b), Florida Statutes, have the same combined total of retention points, the
shall have ten percent added to their total order of layoff shall be determined by giving
retention points, and those eligible pursuant preference for retention in the following sequence:
to Section 295.07(l)(c) or (d) shall have five (a) The employee with the
percent added. longest service in the affected

(7) The employee with the highest broadband level.
total retention points is placed at the top of (b) The employee with the
the list, and the employee with the lowest longest continuous service in the Career Service.
retention points is placed at the bottom of the (c) The employee who is
list. entitled to veteran's preference pursuant to section

(8) The employee at the top of the list 295.07(1), Florida Statutes.
shall bump the employee at the bottom of the (10) An employee who has
list. The next highest employee on the list permanent status in his current position and who is
and the remaining employees shall be to be laid off shall be given at least 14 calendar days
handled in the same manner until the total notice of such layoff or in lieu thereof, two weeks
number of filled positions in the broadband payor a combination of days of notice and pay in
level to be abolished is complete, lieu of the full 14 calendar days notice, to be paid at

(9) Should two or more employees the employee's cun'ent hourly base rate of pay. The
have the same combined total of retention state will make a reasonable effort to provide 30
points, the order of layoff shall be days notice of a layoff. The notice of layoff shall be
determined by giving preference for retention in writing and sent to the employee by certified mail.
in the following sequence: retmn receipt requested. Within seven (7) calendar

(a) The employee with the days after receiving the notice of layoff, the
longest service in the affected employee shall have the right to request a demotion
broadband level. or reassignment within the competitive area, in lieu

(b) The employee with the of layoff, to a position in a broadband level within
longest continuous service in the the bargaining unit in which the employee held
Career Service. permanent status, or to a position at the level of or

(c) The employee who is below the current level in the bargaining unit in
entitled to veteran's preference which the employee held permanent status. Such
pursuant to Section 295.07(1), Florida request must be in writing and reassignment or
Statutes. demotion cannot be effected to a hiMer broadband



(10) An employee who has
permanent status and who is to be laid off
shall be given at least 14 calendar days notice
of such layoff or in lieu thereof, two weeks
payor a combination of days of notice and
pay, in lieu of the full 14 calendar days
notice, to be paid at the employee's current
hourly base rate of pay. The State will make
a reasonable effort to provide thirty (30) days
notice of a layoff. The notice of layoff shall
be in writing and sent to the employee by
certified mail, return receipt requested.
Within 7 calendar days after receiving the
notice of layoff, the employee shall have the
right to request a demotion or reassignment
within the competitive area in lieu of layoff
to a position in a broadband level within the
bargaining unit which the employee held

~ permanent status, or to a position at the level
of or below the current level in the
bargaining unit, in which the employee held
permanent status. Such request must be in
writing and reassignment or demotion cannot
be effected to a higher broadband level.

(11) An employee's request for
demotion or reassignment shall be granted
unless it would cause the layoff of another
employee who possesses a greater total of
retention points.

(12) An employee who is adversely
affected as a result of another employee
having a greater number of retention points
shall have the same right of reassignment or
demotion under the same procedure as
provided in this section.

(13) If an employee requests a
demotion or reassignment in lieu of layoff,
the same fOlmula and criteria for establishing
retention points shall be used as prescribed in
this section.
(B) If there is to be a layoff of employees the

State shall take all reasonable steps to place any
adversely affected employees in existing vacancies
for which they are qualified.

(C) If work perfonned by employees in this
unit is to be performed by non-State employees. the
State agrees to encourage the employing entity to
consider any adversely affected unit employees for
employment in its organization if the State has been
unable to place the employees in other positions
within the Career Service System.

level.
(11) An employee's reque..'\t for

demotion or reassigmnent shall be granted unless it
would cause the layoff of another employee who
possesses a greater total of retention points.

(12) An employee who is adversely
affected as a result of another employee having a
greater number of retention points shall have the
same right of reassignment or demotion under the
same procedure as prOVided in this section.

(13) If an employee requests a
demotion or reassignment in lieu of layoff, the same
formula and criteria for establishing retention point~

shall be used as prescribed in this section.
(B) If there is to be a layoff of employees,

the state shall take all reasonable steps to place any
adversely affected employees in existing vacancies
for which they are qualified.

(C) If work performed by employees in this
unit is to be performed by non-state employees, the
state agrees to encourage the employing entity to
consider any adversely affected unit employees for
employment in its organization if the state has been
unable to place the employees in other positions
within the State Personnel System.

SECTION 2 - Recall
When a vacancy occurs, or new position is

established. laid off employees shall be recalled in
the following manner:

(A) For one year following layoff, when a
position is to be filled, or a new position is
established in the same agency and in the same
broadband level within the affected competitive area,
a laid off employee with the highest number of
retention points shall be offered reemployment;
subsequent offers shall be made in the order of the
employee's total retention points. Reemployment of
such employees shall be with permanent status in
their position. An employee who refuses such offer
of reemployment shall forfeit any rights to
subsequent placement offers as provided in this
subsection.

(B) An employee who accepts a voluntary
demotion in lieu of layoff and is subsequently
promoted to a position in the same broadband level
in the same agency from which the employee was
demoted in lieu of layoff, shall be promoted with
pennanent status in the position.

(e) Under no circumstances is a layoff to be
considered as a disciplinary action, and in the event
an employee elects to appeal the action taken, such



SECTION 2 • Recall
When a vacancy occurs, or new position is

established, laid off employees shall be recalled in
the following manner:

I (A) For one year following layoff, when a
position is to be filled, or a .new position is
established in the same agency and in the same
broadband level within the affected competitive area,
the laid off employees with the highest number of
retention points shall be offered reemployment and
subsequent offers shall be made in the order of the
employee's total retention points. Reemployment of
such employees shall be with permanent status. An
employee who refuses such offer of reemployment
shall forfeit any rights to subsequent placement
offers as provided in this subsection.

(B) An employee who accepts a voluntary
demotion in lieu of layoff and is subsequently
promoted to a position in the same broadband level
in the same agency from which the employee was
demoted in lieu of layoff, shall be promoted with
permanent status.

(C) Under no circumstances is a layoff to be
considered as a disciplinary action, and in the event
an employee elects to appeal the action taken, such
appeal must be based upon whether the layoff was in
accordance with the provisions of this Article.

SECTION 3 . Job Security
The State shall make a reasonable effort to

notify FSFSA at least thirty (30) days in advance of
a layoff involving positions within the bargaining
unit. Prior to the actual layoff, if requested, the State
will meet with FSFSA to bargain the impact of the
layoff on the employees involved.

appeal must be based upon whether the layoff was in
accordance with the provisions of this Article.

SECTION 3 - Job Security
The state shall make a reasonable effort to

notify FSFSA at least 30 days in advance of a layoff
involving positions within the bargaining unit. Prior
to the actual layoff, if requested, the state will meet
with the FSFSA to bargain the impact of the layoff
on the employees involved.



Article 9
VOLUNTARY REASSIGNMENT, TRANSFER,

CHANGE IN DUTY STATION, AND
PROMOTIONS

Employees who have attained permanent
status in their current position in the Career Service
and who meet all eligibility requirements shall have
the opportunity to request reassignment, transfer,
change in duty station to vacant positions within
their respective agencies and promotions to vacant
positions within the bargaining unit in accordance
with the provisions of this Article.

SECTION 1 . Definitions
As used in this Article:
(A) "Change in Duty Station" shall mean the

moving of an employee to a duty station located
within fifty (50) miles of his current duty station.

(B) "Duty station" shall mean the place
which is designated as an employee's official
headquarters.

(C) "Broadband level" shall mean the same
level within the employee's current occupation
within the State classification system.

(0) "Reassignment" shall mean the moving of an
employee from a position in one broadband level to a
different position in the same broadband level or to a
different broadband level having the same maximum
salary.

(E) "Transfer" shall mean the moving of an
employee from one geographic area of the State to a
different geographic location which is in excess of
fifty (50) miles from the employee's current duty
station.

(F) "Promotion" shall mean the changing of
the classification of an employe.e to a broadband
level having a higher maximum salary; or the
changing of the classification of an employee to a
broadband level having the same or a lower
maximum salary but a higher level of responsibility.

(0) "Demotion" shall mean the changing of
the chlssification of un employee to a broadband
level having a lower maximum salary; or the
changing of the classification of an employee to a
broadband level having the same or a higher
maximum salary but a lower level of responsibility.

SECTION 2 . Procedures
(A) An employee who has satisfactorily

completed at least a one-year probationary period in

Article 9
VOLUNTARY REASSIGNMENT~ TRANSFER,

CHANGE IN DUTY STATION, AND
PROMOTIONS

Employees who have attained permanent
status in their current position in the Career Service
and who meet all eligibility requirements shall have
the opportunity to request reassignment. transfer,
change in duty station to vacant positions within
their respective agencies and promotions to vacant
positions within the bargaining unit in accordance
with the provisions of this Article.

SECTION 1 • Definitions
As used in this Article:
(A) "Change in Duty Station" shall mean the

moving of an employee to a duty station located
within fifty (50) miles of his current duty station.

(8) "Duty station" shall mean the place
which is designated as an employee's official
headquarters.

(C) "Broadband level" shall mean the same
level within the employee's current occupation
within the State classification system.

(D) "Reassignment" shall mean the moving
of an employee from a position in one broadband
level to a different position in the same broadband ~
level or to a different broadband level having the
same maximum salary.

(E) "Transfer" shall mean the moving of an
employee from one geographic area of the State to a
different geographic location which is in excess of
fifty (50) miles from the employee's current duty
station.

(F) "Promotion" shall mean the changing of
the classification of an employee to a broadband
level having a higher maximum salary; or the
changing of the classification of an employee to a
broadband level having the same or a lower
maximum salary but a higher level of responsibility.

(G) "Demotion" shall mean the changing of
the classification of an employee to a broadband
level having a lower maximum salary; or the
changing of the classification of an employee to a
broadband level having the same or a higher
maximum salary but a lower level of responsibility.

SECTION 2· Procedures
(A) An employee who has satisfactorily ~

completed at least a one-year probationary period in
their current position may apply for a reassignment,
transfer, chan~e in duty station or promotion on a



their. current position may apply for a reassignment, Request for Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty
transfer, change in duty station or promotion on a Station and Promotion Form (supplied by the
Request for Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty agency). Such Requests shall indicate the broadband
Station and Promotion Form (supplied by the level(s), county(ies), and/or shift(s) to which the
agency). Such Requests shall indicate the broadband employee would like to be reassigned, transferred,
level(s), county(ies). and/or shift(s) to which the change of duty station or promoted. When the
employee .would like to be rea~signed, transferred. employee requests reassignment to a different
change of duty station or promoted. When the position in a different broadband level, or
employee requests reassignment to a different promotion, a State of Florida Employment
position in a different broadband level, or Application Form must be completed and sent with
promotion, a State of Florida Employment the Request Form.
Application Fonn must be completed and sent with (B) An employee may submit a Request for
the Request Form. Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station and

(B) An employee may submit a Request for Promotion Form at any time; however, all such
Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station and . Requests shall expire on May 31 of each calendar
Promotion Fonn at any time; however, all such year. Requests can be filed in May to become
Requests shall expire on May 31 of each calendar effective on June 1.
year. Requests can be filed in May to become (C) All Request for Reassignment. Transfer.
effective on June 1. Change in Duty Station and Promotion Fonns shall

(C) All Request for Reassignment,. Transfer, be submitted to the agency head or his designee who
Change in Duty Station and Promotion Forms shall shall be responsible for furnishing a copy of each
be submitted to the agency head or his designee who such Request to the management representatives
shall be responsible for furnishing a copy of each who have the authority to make employee hiring
such Request to the management representatives decisions in the work unit to which the employee has
who have the authority to make employee hiring requested reassignment, transfer, change in duty
decisions in the work unit to which the employee has station or promotion.
requested reassignment, transfer, change in duty (D) Except where a vacancy is filled by
station or promotion. demotion, or where reassignment, transfer, change in

(D) Except where a vacancy is filled by duty station or promotion is not in the best interests
demotion. or where rea<;signment. transfer, change in of the agency, the management representative having
duty station or promotion is not in the best interests hiring authority for that vacancy shall give first
of the agency, the management representative having consideration to those employees who have
hiring authority for that vacancy shall give first submitted a Request for Reassignment, Transfer,
consideration to those employees who have Change in Duty Station and Promotion Fonn;
submitted a Request for Reassignment, Transfer. provided, however, that employees whose request
Change in Duty Station and Promotion Fonn; for reassignment is not submitted by the first day of
provided. however, that employees whose request the month shall not be considered for vacancies
for reass.ignment is not submitted by the first day of which occur during that month.
the month shall not be considered for vacancies (E) The hiring authOlity shall normally till a
which occur during that month. permanent vacancy with the applicant who has the

(E) The hiring authority shall normally fill a greatest length of service in the broadband level and
permanent vacancy with the applicant who has the who has a Request for Rea~signment Form on file
greatest length of service in the broadband level and for the vacancy. The parties agree. however, that
who has a Request for Reassignment Form on file for the other factors, such as employees' work history and
vacancy. The parties agree, however/that other factors, agency needs, will be taken into consideration in
such as employees' work history and agency needs, will making the decision as to whether or not the
be taken into consideration in making the decision as to applicant with the greatest length of service in the
whether or not the applicant with the greatest length of class/occupational level will be placed in the vacant
service in the class/occupational level will be placed in position.
the vacant position.. . (F) If the applicant with the greatest length of

(F) If the applIcant With the greatest length of service in the broadband level is not selected for the
service in the broadband level is not selected for the vacant position, all applicants who have greater



vacant position, all applicants who have greater length of service in tIle class/occupational level than
length of service in the class/occupational level than the employee selected shall be notified in writing of
the employee selected shall be notified in writing of the agency's decision.
the agency's decision. (0) When an employee has been reassigned,

(0) When an employee has been reassigned, transferred, changed duty station, or promoted
transferred, changed duty station, or promoted pursuant to a Request filed under this Article, all
pursuant to a Request filed under this Article, all other pending Requests for Reassignment, Transfer,
other pending Requests for Reassignment,·Transfer, Change in Duty Station and Promotion from that
Change in Duty Station and Promotion from that employee shall be canceled. No other Request for
employee shall be canceled. No other Request for Reassignment, Transfer. Change in Duty Station and
Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station and Promotion may be filed by the employee under this
Promotion may be filed by the employee under this Article for a period of twelve (12) months following
Article for a period of twelve (12) months following the employee's reassignment, transfer, change in
the employee's reassignment, transfer, change in duty station or promotion. If an employee declines
duty station or promotion. If an employee declines an offer of reassignment, transfer, change in duty
an offer of reassignment, transfer, change in duty station or promotion pursuant to a Request filed
station or promotion pursuant to a Request filed under this Article, the employee's Request shall be
under this Article. the employee's Request shall be canceled and the employee will not be eligible to
canceled and the employee will not be eligible to resubmit that Request for a period of twelve (12)
resubmit that Request for a period of twelve (12) months from the date the employee declined the
months from the date the employee declined the offer of reassignment, transfer, change in duty
offer of reassignment, transfer, change in duty station or promotion.
station or promotion. (H) The State agrees to establish a

(H) The State agrees to establish a ~romotiona1 system for all bargaining unit members
Qromotional system for all bargaining unit members consisting of at least three (3) steps for promotion
consisting of at least three (3) stens for ~romotion within the bargaining job class and brog,dband codes
within the bargaining job class and broadband codes with each level making at least 5% increase to their i

with each level making at least 5% increase to their previous level salary
previous level salary

SECTION 3 . Involuntary Reassignment,
SECTION 3 . Involuntary Reassignment, Transfer Or Change In Duty Station
Transfer Or Change In Duty Station (Al Nothing contained in this Agreement

tAl Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent an agency, at its
shall be construed to prevent an agency, at its discretion, from effecting the involuntary
discretion, from effecting the involuntary reassignment. transfer or change in duty station of
reassignment, transfer or change in duty station of any employee according to the needs of the agency~
any employee according to the needs of the agency: however, the agency will make a good faith effort to
however, the agency will make a good faith effort to take such action only when dictated by the needs of
take such action only when dictated by the needs of the agency and in each case, will take into
the agency and in each case, will take into consideration the needs and circumstances of the
consideration the needs and circumstances of the employee prior to taking such action.
employee prior to taking such action. (B) When bargaining unit members are

(8) When bargaining unit members are ass igned temporarv change of duty stations and
assigned temporary change of duty stations and required to report to a different work location other
required to renort to a different work location other than nOiroal assigned work site, bargaining unit
than normal assigned work site. bargaining unit members will only be required to drive personal
members wilt only be required to drive personal vehicles to their normally assigned office at the
vehicles to their normally asshmed office at the begimling and end of their normal work day. Travel
beginning and end of their normal work day. Travel to and from to the temporary change of duty location I
to and from to the temporary change of duty location will be in a state owned vehicle. Travel time to and
will be in a state owned vehicle. Travel time to and from the temporary change of duty station will be
from the temnorary change of duty station will be considered hours worked.



.' considered hours worked. (C ) No employee will be required to
(C ) No employee will be required to tem/lorarily change duty stations or work more than .

temoorarilv change duty stations or work more than 25 miles from ths:;ir normally assigned district! duty
25 miles from their normally assigned district! duty station except in a voluntarilY status or during
station exc'Wt in a voluntarily status or during declared state§ of emergency_
declared states of emergency.

SECTION 4 - Notice
SECT10N 4 - Notice An employee shall be given a minimum of

An employee shall be given a minimum of fourteen (l4) calendar days notice prior to the
fourteen (14) calendar days notice prior to the agency effecting any reassignment or transfer of the
agency effecting any reassignment or transfer of the employee. In the case of a transfer, the agency will
employee. In the case of a transfer, the agency will make a good faith effort to give a minimum of thirty
make a good faith effort to give a minimum of thirty (30) calendar days notice. The parties agree,
(30) calendar days notice. The parties agree, however, that these notice requirements shall not be
however, that these notice requirements shall not be required during an emergency or other extraordinary
required during an emergency or other extraordinary conditions.
conditions.

SECTION 5 • Relocation Allowance
SECTION S • Relocation Allowance An employee who is involuntary reassigned

An employee who is involuntary reassigned and and who is required to relocate his residence shall be
who is required to relocate his residence shall be granted time off with pay for one (1) work day for
granted time off with pay for one (1) work day for purposes of relocating his residence. In addition, the
purposes of relocating his residence. In addition, the employee shall be granted travel time to the new
employee shall be granted travel time to the new location based on the most direct route. No
location based on the most direct route. No employee employee will be credited with more than the
will be credited with more than the number of hours in number of hours in the employeelg regular workday
the employee's regular workday and such time shall not and such time shall not be counted as hours worked~

~ be counted as hours worked for the purpose of for the purpose of computing compensatory time or
computing compensatory time or overtime. overtime.

SECTIONe GFie';ability
Sl.~ON6 ~. amty:rhe pro,..isioRS ef tRis/\Riele f€gaFeliAg ','eh:lAt3/)' J¥leW

The t='re¥isions ef this Article regarding volHfttaryreassigAmeAt, tr3l'1sfer, eI'l3Rge iA eh:/ty statisR SF
reasslgRment, tfaRsfer, cfta.Age in: dtlty station: orproFf/etioR, shall Ret ee 51:lbjOct to the griet,.·3Ace
l*0m.ettoa. sllan not he s\il>jeet to the grie'''aneeproceal:lres af ARlete 6 o~ tRis AgreemeRt; 1:19'....O'lOr, 3R
proeeEil:lfes of ARlete 6 of this Agreement; fto'lievef,employee (oFf/plaiRt E9Rceming iFf/pFefler applieatiel'l of
88: employee complaint concerning improt='eftRO ",ro·,isions Elf ParagFaph (E) Elf SettloR 2 aRa SettleR ~

application of the provisioflS of Paragraflft (B) ofma'll;)e grie"'eEl iR acceFel3F1ce witt:l Article 6, up to aAEl
iRCh:IEliAg Step 2 of tAe ~rie"aRce Proeeeh:lre. IR Seotion '2 aae SeetioR ;; may he gl'ie'leEl in
cSRsiElering stich cOFf/plaiAts, weigl::\t sRall ee gi"eR to tt:le accordance with Article 6, lJ:I3 EO tlfld lnelHdiag Step
specific PFElCeal:lreS 18110'....e8 aRa aecisieRS maele, aleAg 2 of the Grietfaae6 Precedut'e. In consideriag sliCh
'....ith the Rcces ef the ageRe~', complaints, weight shaH he giyen to the specifie

proce8l:l:reS foUoweEl anEl decisiens made, aleng with
tfte..fle



Article 10 Article 10
OCCUPATION PROFILESIRULES OCCUPATION PROFILESIRULES

MAINTAINEDI DOCUMENTATION SECTION 1 . Occupational ProfilesIRules
SECTION 1 - Occupational ProfileslRules Maintained
Maintained (A) The State will maintain on the Internet

(A) The State will maintain on the Internet the Occupation Proftles and the Personnel Rules of
the Occupation Profiles and the Personnel Rules of the State Personnel System which it has published,
the State Personnel System which it has published, and which affect employees within the bargaining
and which affect employees within the bargaining Unit.
Unit. (B) In instances where the State of Florida

(B) In instances where the State of Florida determines that a revision to an Occupation Profile
determines that a revision to an Occupation Profile or bargaining unit position description (vacant or
or bargaining unit position description (vacant or filled) for positions covered by this Agreement is
filled) for positions covered by this Agreement is needed, the Department of Management Services
needed, the Department of Management Services shall notify FSFSA in writing of the proposed
shall notify FSFSA in writing of the proposed changes, and provide the bargaining rights allowed
changes, and provide the bargaining rights allowed by law over the proposed change.
by law over the proposed change. (C) Agencies and FSFSA will establish one

(C) Agencies and FSFSA will establish one (1) position description for each bargflining unit
(1) position description for each bargaining unit position and class code for bargaining unit positions
position and class code for bargaining unit positions as referenced in this contract under Appendix A.
as referenced in this contract under Appendix A. Additional duties, changes, or modifications to
Additional duties, changes. or modifications to individuals' bargaining unit member position
individuals' bargaining unit member position descriptions will be subject to negotiation.
descriptions will be subject to negotiation. (D) Additional duties. changes to

(D) Additional duties, changes to requirements or standards, modifications, etc.. to a
requirements or standards, modifications. etc.. to a position description will be voluntary on the
position description will be voluntary on the member's part after properly negotiated by the
member's part after properly negotiated by the FSFSA and the State of Florida.
FSFSA and the State of Florida.

SECTION 2 - Documentation
SECTION 2 - Documentation The State shall use best efforts to provide

The State shall use best efforts to provide FSFSA with the following;
FSFSA with the following: (A) Thirty (30) days prior to any agencies

(A) Thirty (30) days prior to any agencies implementing policies and procedures which affect
implementing policies and procedures which affect bargaining Unit employees' wages, hours or terms
bargaining Unit employees' wages, hours or terms and conditions of employment, and not expressly
and conditions of employment, and not expressly addressed by this Agreement FSFSA will also be
addressed by this Agreement FSFSA will also be sent a copy of the proposed changes, and provided
sent a copy of the proposed changes, and provided the bargaining rights allowed by law over the
the bargaining rights allowed by law over the proposed change.
proposed change. (B) Upon request by FSFSA to an agency the

(B) Upon request by FSFSA to an agency the State shall provide a current copy of the agency's
State shall provide a CutTent copy of the agency's nIles, regulations and policies which affect
nIles, regulations and policies which affect bargaining Unit employees' wages, hours. terms and
bargaining Unit employees' wages. hours. terms and conditions of employment covered by this
conditions of employment covered by this Agreement and which are not included in the
Agreement and which are not included in the Personnel Rules of the State Personnel System.
Personnel Rules of the State Personnel System. (C) A copy of any department or Division's

(C) A copy of any department or Division's nIles, regulations or policies which affect the
rules, regulations or policies which affect the employees' wages, hours, terms and conditions of
employees' wages, hours, terms and conditions of employment shall be made available to all



employment shall be made available to aU. bargaining unit employees.:.
bargaining unit employees.:. (Q) In those instances where any policy.

(D) In those instances' where any policy. procedure. or laws affecting bargaining unit
procedurs;. or laws affecting bargaining unit members are cllimged without FSFSA notification

~ members are changed without FSFSA notification and bargaining has not occurred ov~ a particular
and bargaining has not occurred over a particular subject, those policies will be suspend£<!
subject, those policies will be suspended immediately once identified by either party until
immediately once identified by either party until successfully negotiated between FSFSA and the
successfully negotiated b!(tween FSFSA· and the State.
State.



Article 11
CLASSIFICATION REVIEW

(A) When an employee alleges that the
employee is being regularly required to perform
duties which are not included in the position
description of the position being filled by the
employee, and the employee alleges that the duties
assigned are not included in the official Occupation
Profile to which the position is allocated, the
employee may request in writing that the Agency
Head review the duties assigned to the employee's
position. The Agency Head or his designee shall
review the duties as requested. The employee will
receive a copy of the written decision within 60 days
of the request. If the decision is that the duties
assigned are sufficient to justify reclassifying the
position, either the position will be reclassified or
the duties in question will be removed. Shortage of
funds shall not be used as the basis for refusing to
reclassify a position after a review has been
completed. If the decision is to reclassify the
position and the employee is to receive a
promotional pay increase, the pay increase shall be
effective from the date the agency received the
employee's request for a classification review.

(B) If the employee is not satisfied with the
decision, the employee, with or without
representation, may request in writing a review by
the Secretary of the Department of Management
Services or designee. The review by the Department
of Management Services will be in accordance with
Chapter 110, Florida Statutes.

(C) The written decision of the Secretary of
the Department of Management Services or designee
as to the classification of the position shall be final
and binding on all patties.

SECTION 2 • Work Load Quotas
(A) When an employee alleges that the

employee is being regularly required to carry an
inequitable work load quota, the employee may
request in writing that the Agency Head or his
designee review the work load quota assigned to the
employee. The Agency Head or his designee shall
make the final written decision on the complaint
which shall be binding on all parties. The employee
will receive a copy of the written decision within 60
days of the request.

(B) The State and the Union agree that work
load quota problems are an appropriate item for
discussion in consultation meeting;s as described in

Article 11
CLASSIFICATION REVIEW

SECTION 1- AdditionaiDuties········
(A) When an employee alleges that the

employee is being regularly required to perform
duties which are not included in the position
description of the position being filled by the
employee, and the employee alleges that the duties
assigned are not included in the official Occupation
Profile to which the position is allocated. the
employee may request in writing that the Agency
Head review the duties assigned to the employee's
position. The Agency Head or his designee shall
review the duties as requested. The employee will
receive a copy of the written decision within 60 days
of the request. If the decision is that the duties
assigned are sufficient to justify reclassifying the
position, either the position will be reclassified or
the duties in question will be removed. Shortage of
fWlds shall not be used as the basis for refusing to
reclassify a position after a review has been
completed. If the decision is to reclassify the
position and the employee is to receive a
promotional pay increase, the pay increase shall be
effective from the date the agency received the
employee's request for a classification review.

(B) If the employee is not satisfied with the
decision, the employee, with or without
representation, may request in writing a review by
the Secretary of the Department of Management
Services or designee. The review by the Department
of Management Services will be in accordance with
Chapter 110, Florida Statutes.

(C) The written decision of the Secretary of
the Department of Management Services or designee
as to the classification of the position shall be final
and binding on all parties.

SECTION 2 • Work Load Quotas
(A) When an employee alleges that the

employee is being regularly required to carry an
inequitable work load quota, the employee may
request in writing that the Agency Head or his
designee review the work load quota assigned to the
employee. The Agency Head or his designee shall
make the final written decision on the complaint
which shall be binding on all parties. The employee
will receive a copy of the written decision within 60
days of the request.

(B) The State and the Union agree that work
load quota problems are an appropriate item for
discussion in consultation meeting;s as described in



·' Article 5. Article 5.

Section'3 - Minimum' pay. Section ~ - Minimum pax.
.... ', (A) Bargaining unit positions shal.l, have a bi::. .+....' .........;..~.. , , (A).,Barg@inipg unit positions shall have a bi-

annual review of the salarie.g of current like positions annual review of the salaries of current like positions
perfonning like duties and of the CQunty. Cities. and }2erforming like duties and of the County. Cities, ood
other enforcement authorities performing like duties other enforcement authorities p¢orming like duties
in their immediate areas. in their immediate areas.

(a) Existing employees with satisfa£to~ (8) Existing employees with satisfactory
evaluations shall he brought to an egu@l level of pay evaluations shall be brought to an equal level of pay
of other like ngsitions with the same amount of of other like positiol1§ with the same amount of
service time. AdditiQnaUy local pay shall be service time. Additionally lWa! pay shall be
assessed to determine that bargaining unit memb~rs assessed to detennine that bargaining unit members
gerforming like duties and of the County, Cities, and performing like dutie§ and of the County, Cities, and
other ~nforcement authorities shall have tbeir pay other enforcement authorities shall have their pay
adjusted to at least the median gay of the adjusted to at least the median pay of the
surrounding work are!!s. syrrounding work areas.

Section 4 - Recl@§sification to Special Risk Section 4 - Reclassification to Special Risk
Bargaining unit members holding the Bargaining unit m~mbers hQlding the

position of Fire Protection Specialist shall be position of Fire Protection Specialist shall be
reclassified from "Cowgliance Officer" to reclassified from "Compliance Officer" to
"Protective Services" and reclassified as "Special "Protective Services" and reclassitled. as "Spe<;ial
Risk" employee's due to the high risk duties they Ri~k" employee's due to the high. risk duties they
routinely are required to perform. routinely are required to perform.

, Article 12 Article 12
PERSONNEL RECORDS PERSONNEL RECORDS

(A) There shall be only one official personnel (A) There shall be only one official personnel
file for each employee. which shall be maintained in file for each employee, which shall be maintained in
the central personnel office of the employing agency the central personnel office of the employing agency
unless a different location is designated by the unless a different location is designated by the
Secretary of the Department of Management Secretary of the Department of Management
Services or its designee which may be a contractor. Services or its designee which may be a contractor.
Information in an employee's official personnel file Information in an employee's official personnel file
shall only refer to matters concerning (affecting) the shall only refer to matters concerning (affecting) the
employee's job or related to his State employment. employee's job or related to his State employment.

(B) If any derogatory material is placed in an (B) If any derogatory material is placed in an
employee's official personnel file, a notarized employee's official persOlmel tile, a notarized
certified copy will be sent to the employee. The certified copy will be sent to the employee. The
employee will have the right to answer any such employee will have the right to answer any such
material filed, and his answer will be attached to the material filed. and his answerwiJ} be attached to the
file copy. file copy.

(C) An employee will have the right to (C) An employee will have the right to
review his own official personnel file at reasonable review his own official persOlUlcl file at re.asonable
times under the supervision of the designated records times under the supervision of the designated records
custodian. custodian.

(D) Only documents filed in the one official (D) Only documents filed in the one official
personnel file shall be utilized for any disciglinary ~ersOlmel file shall be utilized for any disciplina~

hearings or investigations conducting against hearings or investigations conducting against
bargaining unit members. bargaining unit members.

(E) Anv documentation which mav have a (E) Anv documentation which mav have a



negative impact on a bargaining unit members'
employment or used later during investigations or
disciplinary procedures in accordance with this
contract shall be notarized prior to submittal to the
official personnel file.
~ Where the Agency Head or its

designee, the Public Employees Relations
Commission, the courts, an arbitrator, or other
statutory authority determines that a document has
been placed in the employee's personnel file in error
or is otherwise invalid, such document shall be
sealed in the file and shall be stamped "NOT
VALID", and retained in the employee's personnel
file as specified in the State of Florida General
Records Schedule GS 1 for State and Local
Government Records, as promulgated by the
Department of State after final action; provided,
however, that the document shall be removed upon
the employee's written request in accordance with
the foregoing records schedule.

negative impact on a bargaining unit members'
employment or used later during investigations or
disciplinary procedures in accordance with this
contract shall be notarized prior to submittal to the
official personnel file.

f91-{fl Where the Agency Head or its
designee, the Public Employees Relations
Commission, the courts, an arbitrator, or other
statutory authority determines that a document has
been placed in the employee's personnel file in error
or is otherwise invalid, such document shall be
sealed in the file and shall be stamped "NOT
VALID", and retained in the employee's personnel
file as specified in the State of Florida General
Records Schedule GS 1 for State and Local
Government Records, as promulgated by the
Department of State after final action; provided,
however, that the document shall be removed upon
the employee's written request in accordance with
the foregoing records schedule.



Article 13
HEALTH AND WELFARE

SECTION 1- Insurance Benefits
The. State....agrees, .. to administer the State

~ Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan in
accordance with the current General Appropriations
Act for the applicable year and, if provided, the
Summary Statement of Intent. as well as any
statutory provision or Act effecting the plan or its
operation.

SECTION 2 - Employee Assistance Program
(A) Where a State agency has adopted an

employee assistance program pursuant to Section
110.1091, Florida Statutes, the State will make
psychological and substance abuse counseling
services available.

(B) Any complaint or claim by an
employee within the FSFSA bargaining unit
concerning this section shall not be subject to the
grievance procedure of this agreement.

SECTION 3 - Death In-Line·Of Duty Benefits
(A) Funeral and burial expenses will be as

provided in Section 112.191, Florida Statutes.
(B) Education benefits will be as provided in

Section 112.191, Florida Statutes.
(C) Health insurance benefits will be as

provided in Section 110.123, Florida
Statutes.

(D)Any complaint or claim by an employee
of FSFSA concerning this Article shall not be
subject to the Grievance Procedure of this
Agreement.

SECTION 4 - Division of Forestry Fire Fighter
Health and Physical Fitness Standards Program
The Division of Forestry (DOP) and FSFSA agree to
a fire fighter health and physical fitness standards
program. which shall include appropriate screening
and vaccination of all bargaining lUlit members.

(A) The DOF shall provide Fitness
Technician(s) in each Field Unit.
(1) Fitness Technicians must

maintain a cuncnt AED CPR card or higher.
(2) Fitness technicians will

provide fitness. health,
nuuition and wellness
information to all bargaining
unit employees, and the
Fitness Technicians will be
given opportunities to receive

Article 13
HEALTH AND \VELFARE

SECTION 1- Insurance Benefits
.' The State agrees to administer the State

Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan in
accordance with the current General Appropriations
Act for the applicable year and, if provided, the
Summary Statement of Intent, as well as any
statutory provision or Act effecting the plan or its
operation.

SECTION 2 - Employee Assistance Program
(A) Where a State agency has adopted an

employee assistance program pursuant to Section
nO.1091, Florida Statutes, the State will make
psychological and substance abuse counseling
services available.

(C) Any complaint or claim by an
employee within the FSFSA bargaining unit
concerning this section shall not be subject to the
grievance procedure of this agreement.

SECTION 3 - Death In·Line·Of Duty Benefits
(A) Funeral and burial expenses will be as

provided in Section 112.191, Florida Statutes.
(E) Education benefits will be as provided in

Section 112.191, Florida Statutes.
(F) Health insurance benefits will be as

provided in Section 110.123, Florida
Statutes.

(G)Any complaint or claim by an employee
of FSFSA concerning this Article shall not be
subject to the Grievance Procedure of this
Agreement.

SECTION 4 - Division of Forestry Fire Fighter
Health and Physical Fitness Standards Program
The Division of Forestry (DOF) and FSFSA agree to
a tire fighter health and physical fitness standards
program, which shall include appropriate screening
and vaccination of aU bargaining unit members.

(B) The DOF shall provide Fitness
Technician(s) in each Field Unit.
(4) Fitness Technicians must

maintain a current AED CPR card or higher.
(5) Fitness technicians will

provide fitness, health,
nutrition and wellness
information to aU bargaining
unit employees, and the
Fitness Technicians will be
given opportunities to receive



(B)

(C)
Fitness Test

information and tramIng in
such areas as: nutrition,
exercise physiology, etc.

(3) Fitness technicians conducting
fitness exams will be trained
to a minimum of First
Responder level and have
available on scene· reguired
personal protective eguipment
for BSI (Body substance
Isolation), first aid kit, and
approved functioned ABD.

All Special Risk Job Classes,
including Bargaining Unit
Employees. will be pennitted to
exercise a maximum of 3 times per
week for 30 minutes per session.
(1) This is an employee optional

activity and may be permitted
if fire conditions, emergency
activities or other priority
work project'!, (that have been
approved by the Field Unit
Manager), do not preclude
such activities.

(2) Individual aerobic and/or
strength exercises are authorized.

(3) Team sports are prohibited.
(4) If it is not possible for the

employee to conduct aerobic
exercises at the work site, then
the employee must start and
finish their exercise session
from their work site, and be
able to respond back to the
site within i5 minutes of
notification.

(5) The acquisition of all exercise
equipment is a local decision.
However, state funds may not
be used to purchase this
equipment.

(6) The DOF will not provide
reduced memberships with
any gyms or health clubs.
This is a personal decision on
the part of employees.

DOF Employee Health Kwm &

(B)

(C)
Fitness Test

information and training m
such areas as: nutrition,
exercise physiology, etc.

(6) Fitness technicians conducting I

fitness exams will be trained
to a minimum of First
Responder level and have
available on scene required
personal protective eguipment
for BSI (Body substance
Isolation), first aid kit. and
approved functioned AED.

AU Special Risk Job Classes,
including Bargaining Unit
Employees, will be permitted to
exercise a maximum of 3 times per
week for 30 minutes per se.-;sion.
(8) This is an employee optional

activity and may be permitted
if fire conditions, emergency
activities or other priority
work projects. (that have been
approved by the Field Unit
Manager), do not preclude
such activities.

(9) Individual aerobic and/or
strength exercises are authorized.

(10) Team sports are prohibited.
(II) If it is not possible for the

employee to conduct aerobic
exercises at the work site, then
the employee must start and
finish their exercise session
from their work site, and be
able to respond back to the
site within 15 minutes of
notification.

(12) The acquisition of all exercise
equipment is a local decision.
However, state funds may not
be used to purchase this
equipment.

(13) The DOF will not provide
reduced memberships with
any gyms or health clubs.
This is a personal decision on
the part of employees.

OOF Employee Health K>;;af/l &

•

(1) The OOF employee Health
£mm & Fitness Test is
required for Special Risk

(1) The OOF employee Health
Exam & Fitness Test IS

required for Special Risk



employees hired or rehired
after January 1. 1993. and
includes the Initial or Annual
Medical Examination and the
Fitness Test. The Initial
Medical Exam shall be in
accordance with the DOF
approved edition of the
National Fire Protection
Association (NFPA 1582)
Medical Requirements for
Fire fighters. The Initial and
Annual Medical Exams
standards for the pulmonary
function test and the resting
blood pressure limits are
established by DOF. The
Annual Medical Examination
consists of specific
components of the Initial
Medical Examination,
(Pulmonary Function Test &
Resting Blood Pressure). For
the Annual Medical Exam.
employees are required to
utilize the nOF Annual
Medical Exam standard. The
employee has the option of
utilizing the OOF facility for
the Annual Medical Exam, or
obtaining certification to take
the Annual Fitness Test,
utilizing the DOF Annual
Medical Exam standard, from
their personal physician (at
personal cost). The Fitness
Test currently is the United
States Forestry Service
(USFS) Work Capacity Test
(WCT). also called the Pack
Test. The employee must
successfully complete the
Medical Examination within
thirty (30) days prior to taking
the Fitness Test.

(2) Bargaining unit employees
who fail the Annual Fitness
Test, due to fitness reasons.
will not be allowed to pelform
wildfire suppression duties
until they retake and pass the
Annual Fitness Test. The

employees hired or rehired
after January 1. 1993. and
includes the Initial or Annual
Medical Examination and the
Fitness Test. The Initial
Medical Exam shall be in
accordance with the DOF
approved edition of the
National Fire Protection
Association (NFPA 1582)
Medical Requirements for
Fire fighters. The Initial and
Annual Medical Exams
standards for the pUlmonary
function test and the resting
blood pressure limits are
established by nOF. The
Annual Medical Examination
consists of specific
component,; of the Initial
Medical Examination,
(Pulmonary Flffiction Test &
Resting Blood Pressure). For
the Annual Medical Exam,
employees are required to
utilize the OOF Annual
Medical Exam standard. The
employee has the option of
utilizing the nOF facility for
the Annual Medical Exam, or
obtaining certification to take
the Annual Fitness Test,
utilizing the DOF Annual
Medical Exam standard, from
their personal physician (at
personal cost). The Fitness
Test currently is the United
St.ates Forestry Service
(USPS) Work Capacity Test
(WCT), also called the Pack
Test. The employee must
successfully complete the
Medical Examination within
thirty (30) days prior to taking
the Fitness Test.

(2) Bargaining unit employees
who fail the Annual Fitness
Test, due to fitness reasons,
will not be allowed to perform
wildfire suppression duties
until they retake and pass the
Annual Fitness Test. The



employee will be mandated to
perform physical fitness
training as described in B. and
will be pennitted up to twelve
(12) months and a minimum
of four (4) attempts, at three
(3) month intervals or less, to
retake the Annual Fimess
Test.

(3) Bargaining unit employees
who fail the AmUlal Medical
Exam will be fllaeea Oft siek
leaYe- workers compensation
until they provide a flefSonal
physician's statement
allowing them to work in a
modified duty capacity. If
the employee provides a
flefSoaal physician's statement
releasing them to full duty
status and successfully
complete the Annual Medical
Exam, at a DOF medical
examination facility or are
certitied to take the Annual
Fitness Test, utilizing the
DOF Annual Medical Exam
standard, by their personal
physician (at personal cost),
they will be required to take
the Annual Fitness Test within
thirty (30) days of medical
release to full duty status.
Should the bargaining unit
employee fail the Annual
Fitness Test after release to
full duty status, he/she will be
provided the opportunity to
take the Annual Fitness Test
in accordance with paragraph
C. (2) above.

(4) Bargaining unit employees
who have exhausted all
attempts to pass the Annual
Medicel E.lftfm tf:fdJeF Fitness
Test, may be offered a vacant
position that does not include
fire fighting duties in the
Department of Agriculture
and Consumer Services. If
another position cannot be
identified and agreed upon,

(3)

(4)

employee will be mandated to
perform physical fitness
training as described in B. and
will be permitted up to twelve
(12) months and a minimum
of four (4) attempts, at three
(3) month intervals or less, to
retake the Anllual Fitness
Test.
Bargaining unit employees
who fail the Annual Medical
Exam will ee fllaeeEl on siek
~ workers compensation
until they provide a pefSoaal
physician's statement
allowing them to work in a
modified duty capacity. If
the employee provides a
f)ersonal physician's statement
releasing them to full duty
status and successfully
complete the Annual Medical
Exam, at a DOF medical
examination facility or are
certified to take the Annual
Fitness Test, utilizing the
DOF Annual Medical Ex.am
standard, by their personal
physician (at personal cost).
they will be required to take
the Annual Fitness Test within
thirty (30) days of medical
release to full duty status.
Should the bargaining unit
employee fail the Annual
Fitness Test after release to
full duty status, he/she will be
provided the opportunity to
take the Annual Fitness Test
in accordance with paragraph
C. (2) above.
Bargaining unit employees
who have exhausted all
attempts to pass the Annual
Mc.'iiieal ExfH'l't {,'lui/fir Fitness
Test. may be offered a vacant
position that does not include
fire fighting duties in the
Department of Agriculture'
and Consumer Services. If
another position cannot be
identified and agreed upon,



termination may result.
(5) The DOF employee Annual

Fitnes.v Test and the "National
Fitness Test" will be
conducted during the months
of November, December and
January. These two tests may
be combined and taken as one
test, with the National Fitness
Test (3 mile walk with 45
pound pack in 45 minutes)
substituting for the DOF
employee A'lnUlll Fitness Test
(2 mile walk with 25 pound
pack in 30 minutes).

(6) If a candidate for hire is
required to take the DOF
Initial Fitness Test, or an
employee is currently
scheduled to take the DOF
employee Annual Fitness Test
after January 31st and before
September 1St, the candidate
or employee will take these
tests as scheduled, and will
take the nOF employee
Annual Fitness Test the
upcoming November.
December or January (This
means two tests in 12
months). When the test is
completed in November.
December or January, the
employee will be
synchronized for future
November, December or
January testing.

(7) If a candidate for hire is
required to take the OOF
Initial Fitness Test. after
August 31 st, and before
November Isr, the candidate
will take the test as scheduled,
and be required to take the
DOF employee Ann.ual
Fitness Test in November,
December or January of the
following year (This means
more than 12 months between
tests). (Example; candidate
takes the DOF Initial Fitness
Test on October 15. 2006, and

termination may result.
(5) The DOF employee Annual

Fitness Test and the "National
Fitness Test" will be
conducted during the months
of .November, December and
January. These two tests may
be combined and taken as one
test, with the National Fitness
Test (3 mile walk with 45.
pound pack in 45 minutes)
substituting for the nOF
employee Annual Fitness Test
(2 mile walk with 25 pound
pack in 30 minutes).

(6) If a candidate for hire is
required to take the DOF
Initial Fitness Test, or an
employee is currently
scheduled to take the DOF
employee Anmwl Fitness Test
after January 31st and before
September 1st, the candidate
or employee will take these
tests as scheduled, and will
take the DOF employee
Annual Fitness Test the
upcoming November,
December or January (This
means two tests in 12
months). When the test is
completed in November,
December or January, the
employee will be
synchronized for future
November. December or
January testing.

(14) If a candidate for hire is
required to take the DOF
Initial Fitness Test, after
August 31 5

\ and before
November 1St, the candidate
wilJ take the test as scheduled.
and be required to take the
OOF employee Annual
Fitness Test in November,
December or January of the
following year (This means
more than 12 months between
tests). (Example; candidate
takes the OOF Initial Fitness
Test on October 15,2006, and



will be required to take the
DOF employee Annual
Fitness Test in November or
December of 2007 or January
of 2008.) When the test is
completed In November.
December or January, the
employee will be
synchronized for funtre
November, December or
January testing.

(8) If an employee is scheduled to
take the DOF employee
Annual Fitness Test after
August 31st

, and before
November 1st, the employee
will wait until November,
December or January to take
the DOF employee Annual
Fitness Test (This means more
than 12 months between
tests). When the test is
completed in November.
December or January, the
employee will be
synchronized for future
November, December or
January testing.

!.2.l FSFSA bargaining unit
members who fail the Annual
Medical Exam due to heart
and lung issues (Failure of the
Pulmonary Function Test or
resting heart rate) will be
treated as an on the job iniury
as long as their initial hire
fitness exams has been
successfully completed.
Agencies will comply with
Florida Statute 112.18
commonly referred to as the
"Heart and Lung Bill".
Workers Compensation I
Disability laws will then apply
and take effect to saig affected
members.

(10) Bargaining unit members
required to take initial and
annual medical and fitness
testing will be test.ed and
evaluated as referenced in
Section 4(C)(l) for initial and

will be required to take the
DOF employee Annual
Fitness Test in November or
December of 2007 or January
of 2008.) When the test is
completed in November,
December or Jal1uary. the
employee will be
synchronized for future
November, December or
January testing.

(8) If an employee is scheduled to
take the DOF employee
Annual Fitness Test after
August 31st

, and before
November 1st, the employee
will wait until November,
December or January to take
the OOF employee Annual
Fitness Test (This means more
than 12 months between
tests). When the test is
completed in November.
December or January, the
employee will be
synchronized for future
November. December or
January testing.

!.21 FSFSA bargaining unit
members who fail the Annulll
Medical Exam due to heart
and lung issues (Failure of the
Pulmonary Function Test or
resting heart rate) will be
treated as an on the job injury
as long as their initial hire
fitness exams ha§ been
successfullY completed.
Agencies will comply with
Rodda Statute 112.18
commonly refcned to a') the
"Heart and Lung Bill".
Workers Compensation I
Disability laws will then apply
and take effect to said affected
members.

(lQ} Bargaining unit members
required to take initial and
annual mediCal and fitness
t.esting will be tested and
evaluated as referenced in
Section 4(C)(l) for initial and



annual physical exams.
FSFSA agrees current NFPA
1582 standards shall be the
standard utilized for tho~e

bargaining unit members.
!JJ..} Bargaining unit members that

enter into the state Deferred
Retirement Qption Program
(DROP) will be exempt from
any physical exam of fitness
requirements while in DROP
stAtus.

annual physical exams.
FSFSA agrees current NFPA
1582 standards shall be thS
standard utilized for those
bargaining unit members.

.illl Bargaining unit members that
enter into the state Deferred
Retirement Option Prolram
{DROP) will be exempt frQm
any physical exam of fitness
requirements while in DROP
status.



Article 14 Article 14
STATE VEmCLES AND VESSELS STATE VEHICLES AND VESSELS

SECTION 1- Vehicle and Vessel Safety SECTION 1- Vehicle and Vessel Safety
State vehicles and vessels used by bargaining State vehicles and vessels used by bargaining

Unit employees. whether issued to the employee or Unit employees. whether issued to the employee or
not. shall be maintained in safe operating condition. not, shall be maintained in safe operating condition.

SECTION 2 - Firefighting Equipment SECTION 2 - Firefighting Equipment
1Al Existing open~cab DozerlPlow units will {Al Existing open-cab DozerlPlow units will

be replaced with closed-cab, climate controlled be replaced with closed-cab, climate controlled
units, as Riftding is made &Y&i:laele and as tmits. as fH:ading is maEle available tm6 Q!f

E:letefftliaecl ey Di""isioa of Fofestry Riaaagemeftl. detel'fBiaecl ey Divisioa of F'<lfesa-y maaegem.eflf.
. Open can equipment will not be utilized for wildland Qpen can equipment will not be utilized for wildland

fire fighting or prescribed fire operations at anytime fire fighting or prescribed fire operations at anytime
by bargaining wlit members. Open cab is defined as by bargaining unit members. Open cab is defined as
any equipment exposing the operator directly to any equipment exposing the operator directly to
heat. flame. poisonous gases. and other heat. tlame. poisonous gases. and other
environmental factors. Proper safety gear for environmental factors. Proper safety gear for
wildland fire operations at a minimum will include wildland fire operations at a minimum will include
NFPA 1977 personnel protective eguipment. NFPA NFPA 1977 personnlGl protective equipment, NFPA
1984 approved respirators. and lGscape portable air 1984 approved respirators. and escape portable {!ir
systems regardless of what the type of equipment systems regardless of what the t,me of equipment
being utilized.. being utilized..

(B) Bargaining unit members will be (B) Bargaining unit members will be
provided with NFPA 1984 approved respirators for provided with NFPA 1984 approved respirators for
wildland fire and prescribed burning operations. All wildland fire and prescribed burning operations. All
firefighting equipment will be fitted with maintained firefighting eguipment will be fitted with maintained
escape portable breathing equipment. Portable Air escape portable breathing equipment. Portable Air
equipment is to be utilized for escaping from the equipment is to be utilized for escaping from the
incident as a Last resort. incident as a last resOlt.

(C) Agencies will ensure firefighting (el Agencies will ensure firefighting
equipment has adequate communications devices are equipment ha.'i adequate communications devices are
provided in each area of the state. Adequate provided in each area of the state. Adequate
Communications devices are defined as; 0) Ability Communications devices are defined as; (1) Ability
to communicate with aU agency equipment on scene to communicate with all agency equipment on scene
to include aircraft. ground and command forces. (2) to include aircraft. ground and command forces. (2)
Ability to commtmicate with those cooperating Ability to communicate with those cooperating
agencies normally responding to incidents in the agencies normally responding to incidents in the
area. (3) Abilitv to maintain communications with area. (3) Ability to maintain communications with
dispatch at all times. dispatch at all times.

(D) Firefighting equipment utilized by (0) Firetlghting equipment utilized by
bargaining unit members during firefighting bargaining unit members during firefighting
operations will only be repaired by manufacturer operations will onlv be repaired by manufacturer
approved certified mechanics. Firefighting approved certified mechanics. Firefig;hting
equipment will be inspected at a mininlUm annually equipment will be inspected at a minimum annually
by a manufacturer approved mechanics to ensure by a manufacturer approved mechanics to ensure
safety of our bargaining unit members. safety of our bargaining unit members.

Section 3 - Agency Provided Vehicles Section 3 - Agency Provided Vehicles
(Al Fire Protection Specialist with the fA} Fire Protection Specialist with the

Agency for Health Care Administration shall be Agency for Health Care Administration shall be
afforded the same tvoe of transoortation as the State afforded the same tvoe of transportation as the State



Fire Marshal's office Fire Protection Specialist.
(El Bargaining unit members will have the

option to take home state vehides when required to
be in oneall status after normal working hours.

Section 4 - Use of Personal Vehicles
CA) Bargaining unit members will be

reimbursed at the established state rates for use of
personal vehicles for official state business, to
include after hours response. call back situations
after hours, and when required to work on scheduled
days off.

Fire Marshal's office Fire Protection Snes;ialist.
CB) Bargaining unit members will have the

option to take home state vehicles when required to
be in oneall status after normal working hours.

Section 4 - Use of Personal Vehicles
(A) Bargaining unit members will be

reimbursed at the established state rates for use of
personal vehicles for official state: business. to
include after hours response, call back situations
after hours, and when required to work on scheduled
days off.



Article 15
PROBATIONARY STATUS

An employee who has obtained permanent
status in a bargaining unit position within a
broadband level who fails after a promotion to a
higher broadband level. due to the performance of
the new duties, to satisfactorily complete the
promotional probationary period shall have the
opportunity to be demoted. The demotion will be to
a vacant unit position in the agency at the former
broadband level.

(A) Such a demotion shall be with permanent
status, provided the employee held permanent status
in the lower broadband level.

(B) The employee's salary will be reduced in
accordance with the agency's pay upon demotion
policy. In no case will the employee's salary be
reduced by an amount greater than the promotional
increase.

(C) Such demotion shall not be grievable
under the contractual grievance procedure.

Article 15
PROBATIONARY STATUS

An employee who has attained permanent
status in a bargaining unit position within a
broadband level who fails after a promotion to a
higher broadband level, due to the performance of
the new duties, to satisfactorily complete the
promotional probationary period shall have the
opportunity to be demoted. The demotion will be to
a vacant unit position in the agency at the former
broadband level.

(A) Such a demotion shall be with pennanent
status in the position. provided. the employee held
permanent status in a position in the lower
broadband level.

(B) The employee'S salary will be reduced in
accordance with the agency's pay upon demotion
policy. In no case will the employee's salary be
reduced by an amount greater than the promotional
increase.

(C) Such demotion shall not be grievable
under the contractual grievance procedure.



Article 16
RETIREMENT

All bargaining unit members shall continue
to participate in the Florida Retirement System
(FRS) at no cost to the employee.

Article 16
RETIREMENT

The state agrees to administer the Florida
Retirement System (FRS) in accordance with any
statutory provision or Act affecting the plan or its
operation.



Article 17
ALLOWANCES AND REIMBURSEMENTS

SECTION 1- Travel Expenses
(A) With the prior approval of the Agency

Head, travel expenses of employees incurred in the
performance of a public purpose authorized by law
will be paid in accordance with Section 112.061,
Florida Statutes. The State will make a good faith
effort to pay travel vouchers within thirty (30) days
after they have been properly completed and
submitted. Vouchers are considered submitted when
the employee submits them to the local official
designated by management to receive such vouchers.

(8) Any bargaining trnit member required to
work continuously without adequate meal breaks
due to emergency response. prescribed burning, or
pre-scheduled events shall be compensated at
established meal rates for all meal breaks missed,
Meal break times will be established for each meal
(Breakfast 0600- 0900, Lunch 1100 - 1400, and
dinner 1700- 2000>

SECTION 2 • Competitive Area Differential
Competitive Area Differential adjustments

shall continue in effect for the counties already
identified. The respective agency shall submit a
request to have the counties contained within the
district of Caloosahatchee considered for
competitive area differential in accordance with
Chapter 60L-32, Florida Administrative Code.
Competitive area differential will apply to all
bargaining unit members within those designated
counties already receiving differentials.

SECTION 3 - Fee Reimbursements
(A) Agencies will reimburse a permanent

employee for filing and examination fees associated
with renewing the appropriate commercial driver's
license and endorsement(s) if the employee is : (1) in
a classification that requires the operation of
equipment which requires either a Class A, Class B
or Class C commercial driver's license and any
endorsement(s) ; or (2) the classification designated
by the department requires the employee to upgrade
hislher driver's license to a Class A, Class B or
Class C commercial driver's license and any
endorsement(s); provided the employee successfully
passes the required examination and is issued the
license and appropriate endorsement(s),

(B) Employees applying for renewal or
reinstatement of a license due to an illegal violation
will not be reimbursed for any costs associated with

Article 17
ALLOWANCESANDRE~URSEMENTS

SECTION 1 - Travel Expenses
(Al With the prior approval of the Agency Head,

travel expenses of employees incurred in the performance of a
public purpose authorized by law will be paid in accordance
with Section 112.061, Rorida Statutes. The State will make a
good faith effort to pay travel vouchers within thirty (30) days
after they have been properly completed and submitted.
Vouchers are considered submitted when the employee submits
them to the local official designated by management to receive
such vouchers.

iB) Any bargainhlg unit member required to work
continuously without adequate meal j;!reaks due to emergency
re~iPonse. prescribed burning., or pre-schedulW events shall be
cQmpensated at established meal rates for aU meal breaks
mi§sed, Meal break times will be e.§tj!blished for each meal
(Breakfast 0600- 0900, Lynch 1100 1400, and dinner 1700
WQQl

SECTION 2 - Competitive Area Differential
Competitive Area Differential adjustments shall

continue in effect for the counties already identitied. The
respective agency shall submit a request to have the counties
contained within the district of Caloosahatchee considered for
competitive area differential in accordance with Chapter 6OL
32, Florida Administrative Code. Competitive area differential
will apply to all bargaining unit members within thpse
d~signated counties already receiving differentials.

SECTION 3 - Fee Reimbursements
(A) Agencies witl reimburse a permanent employee

for filing and examination fees associated with renewing the
appropriate commercial driver's license and endorsement(s) if
the. employee is : (I) in a classification that requires the
operation of equipment which requires either a Class A, Class
B or Class C commercial driver's license and any
endorsement(s) ; or (2) the classification designated by the
department requires the employee to upgrade his/her driver's
license to a Class A, Class B or Clas5 C commercial driver's
license and any endorsement(s); provided the employee
successfully passes the required ex.amination and is issued the
license and appropriate endorsement(s).

(B) Employees applying for renewal or re.instatement
of a liceme due lo an illegal violalion will nOl be reimbursed
for any costs associated with obtaining a license as required by
the DMV.

(C) The Slate will not pay any additional cost incurred
as a result of an employee's failure to pass the written and/of
performance tcst within the opportunities allowed by the
original application fee.

(D) Reimbursement for commercial driver's license
renewal fees will be for that portion of the commercial driver's
license fee (inclUding the cost of endorsement{s) required by
the employer) which exceeds the cost of the regular
noncommercial Class E driver's license, provided the employee
applies for the required license and any required
endorsement(s) simultaneously. If an employee fails to take all
required extras_simultaneously, reimbursement will not exceed
the cost that would have been incurred had the tests been taken
simultaneously.



obtaining a license as required by the DMV.
(C) The State will not pay any additional cost

incurred as a result of an employee's failure to pass
the written andlor performance test within the
opportunities allowed by the original application fee.

(D) Reimbursement for commercial driver's
license renewal fees will be for that portion of the
commercial driver's license fee (including the cost
of endorsement(s) required by the employer) which
exceeds the cost of the regular noncommercial Class
E driver's license, provided the employee applies for
the required license and any required endorsement(s)
simultaneously. If an employee fails to take all
required extras_simultaneously, reimbursement will
not exceed the cost that would have been incurred
had the tests been taken simultaneously.



Article 18
LEAVES OF ABSENCE

SECTION 1 • Leaves
The parties specifically agree that the

attendance and leave provisions as contained in
Chapter 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code,
including the accrual, usage and payment of sick and
annual leave upon separation from Career Service
employment shall apply to all bargaining Unit
employees.

SECTION 2· Association Activities
Employees covered by this Agreement shall

have the right to request leave without pay for the
purpose of attending Association conventions,
conferences and meetings. When such requests
cannot be granted, the supervisor shall provide such
denial in writing.

SECTION 3 - Personal Leave
Employees shall be allowed a personal leave

day to be granted on July 1 and employees must take
this personal day by the end of each fiscal year.

Article 18
LEAVES OF ABSENCE

SECTION 1 • Leaves
The parties specifically agree that the

attendance and leave provisions as contained in Rule
60L·34, Florida Administrative Code, including the
accrual. usage and payment of sick and annual leave
upon separation from Career Service employment.
shall apply to all employees.

SECTION 2 - Association Activities
Employees shall have the right to request

annual or compensatory leave Qf leave without pay
for the purpose of attending FSFSA conventions.
conferences and meetings. When such requests
cannot be granted, the supervisor shall provide such
denial in writing.

SECTION 3 - Personal Holiday
Employees shall be credited a personal

holiday on July 1 that must be taken by the end of
each fiscal year.



.,;
Article 19

OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT
(A) If during the term of this Agreement, an
employee is to accept new employment outside
of State government, the employee shall notify
the agency head, or designee, of such
employment, prior to the date of employment.
and verify that there does not exist a conflict
with the State's employment policies or
procedures.

(B) During the course of the employee's
outside employment, an agency may make
rea.~onable inquires of the employee to ensure that
continued outside employment does not constitute a
conflict of interest, or interfere with the employee's
primary duties with the State.

Article 19
OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT

(A) If during the term of this Agreement, an
employee is to accept new employment outside of
State government. the employee shall notify the
agency head, or designee. of such employment, prior
to the date of employment, and verify that there does
not exist a conflict with the State's employment
policies or procedures.

(B) During the course of the employee's
outside employment, an agency may make
reasonable inquires of the employee to ensure that
continued outside employment does not constitute a
conflict of interest, or interfere with the employee's
primary duties with the State.



Article 20
TRAINING AND EDUCATION

The State and the Association recognize the
importance of training programs in the
development of the employees of the State.

SECTION 1 . Employee Education
(A) At the discretion of the Agency Head or

designee the State may allow employees to attend
short courses, position related college courses,
institutes, and workshops which will improve their
performance in their current and possible future
positions within their current agency, without a loss
of pay and benefits.

(B) Such training/education shall be
considered as time worked and may be granted if:
the employee applies in advance in writing
specifying the course and his objectives related to
his position; the employee obtains permission of his
Agency Head; and such training/education does not
interfere with agency services.

(C) Subsections (A) and (B) above do not
preclude the State from assigning employees to
attend training courses as determined by
management. Such required training shall be
consistent with the employee's position description.

SECTION 2 - Employee Training
(A) The State will not unreasonably deny

applications for training.
(B) The State will make a good faith eff0l1 to

give priority to bargaining unit members for
available training courses that are mandatory for
their respective positions.

(Cl No bargaining unit member shall be
denied any position related training request without
just cause from the agency as long as all
qualifications, prerequisites, and emergency
response needs are met for that agency. district. or
area. Any eligible bargaining unit member denied
training shall be prioritized over all other applicants
for the next available like training.

(D) Any denied request for training (to
include modifications of schedules) will be provided
in writing along with justification to the bargainin!!
unit member.

(E) Bargaining unit members schedules may
be altered to nccommodate all types of training as
long as it does not affect agency emergency response
staf(ing to the state of Florida and is voluntary on the
member's part, excluding those members in
orobationarv status.

Article 20
TRAINING AND EDUCATION

The State and the Association recognize the
importance of training programs in the development
of the employees of the State.

SECTION 1 - Employee Education
(A) At the discretion of the Agency Head or

designee the State may allow employees to attend
short courses, position related college courses,
institutes, and workshops which will improve their
perfonnance in their current pnd possible future
positions within their current agency, without a loss
of pay and benefits.

(B) Such training/education shall be
considered as time worked and may be granted if:
the employee applies in advance in writing
specifying the course and his objectives related to
his position; the employee obtains permission of his
Agency Head; and suchtraining/education does not
interfere with agency services.

(C) Subsections (A) and (B) above do not
preclude the State from assigning employees to
attend training courses as determined by
management. Such required training shall be
consistent with the employee's position description.

SECTION 2 - Employee Training
(A) The State will not unreasonably deny

applications for training.
(B) The State will make a good faith effOlt to

give priority to bargaining unit members for
available training courses that are mandatory for
their respective positions.

(C) No bargaining unit member shall be
denied any position related training request without
just cause from the agency a.." long 3...<i aU
qualifications, prerequisites, and emergency
response needs are met for that agency, district, or
area. Any eligible bargaining unit member denied
training shall be prioritized over all other applicants
for the next available like training.

(D) Any denied request for training (to
include modifications of schedules) will be provided
in writing along with justification to the bargaining
unit member.

(m Bargaining unit members schedules may
be altered to accommodate all types of trainin!! as
long as it does not affect agency emergency response
staffing: to the state of Florida and is voluntary on the
member's Dart excludin!! those members in



(f) All bargaining unit members will receive probationary status.
a minimum of forty (40) hours of job relnted career (F) All bargainipg unit members will receive
advancement training annually excluding mandated a minimum of forty (40) hours of iob related career
training established by the agencie~. advancement training annually excluding mandateQ., training established by the agencies..
SECTION 3 - Educational Assistance Plan

The State shall provide up to six (6) credit SECTION 3 - Educational Assistance Plan
hours of tuition-free courses per tenn at a state The State shall provide up to six (6) credit
university or community college to full~time hours of tuition-free courses per term at a state
employees on a space available basis as authorized university or community college to full-time
bylaw. employees on a space available basis as authorized

bylaw.
Section 4 • Educational incentive pay.

Employees with BA degrees. Master degrees. Section 4 .. Educational incentive pay.
and Doctorate degrees in Fire Science or other work Employees with BA degrees. Master degrees,
related degree will receive an annual incentive pay and Doctorate degrees in Fire Science or other work
of $2000.00 for BA degrees, $4000.00 for Master relatw qegree will receive an annual incentive pay
gegIees, am! ;1;6000.00 for Doctorate degrees in Fire of $2000.00 for BA degrees, $4000.00 for Master
Science or other work related degree per year. degrees, and $6000.00 for Doctorate degrees in Fire

Science or other work related degree per year.
Section 5· Training of State Employees affecting
Bargaining unit employees Section 5- Training. of State Employees affecting

(A) Emergency operations dispatchers, duty Bargaining unit employees
officer's. duty officer supervisors, and other fA) Emergency operations dispatchers, duty
personnel directly involved in dispatching officer's, duty offiqer supervisors, qud other
bargaining lmit members to emergency situations personnel directly involved in dispatching
shall meet certification guidelines as established in bargainipg unit members to emergency situations
Florida Statute 401.465. shall meet certification guidelines as established in

(B) No bargaining unit member will be Florida Statute 401.465.
assigned collateral, supplemental, or temporary (B) No bargaining unit member will be
duties as a dispatcher of any form without proper assigned collateral. supplemental, or temporary
certification as established and maintained by duties as a dispatcher of any fonn without proper
Florida Statute 401.465, certification as established and maintained by

Florida Statute 401.465.



Article 21
CO~TTEES

SECTION 1 - Safety Committee
The parties agree to that each agency shall

have at least one Safety Committee. FSFSA may
select one person to serve on each committee
directly addressing fire services operations and other
matters of safety related to bargaining unit members.
Employees assigned to serve on these Safety
Committees shall be pennined to attend meetings
while on-duty with no loss of payor benefits. At the
discretion of the agency. travel costs may be
reimbursed. Any recommendations of the
Committee shall be submitted in writing to the
appropriate management representative who shall
promptly respond with respect to each
recommendation.

SECTION 2 .. Other Committees
fA) The parties agree that where the State or

an agency has a Committee created by agency policy
to directly address fire service operations and other
matters of safety related to bargaining unit members.
FSFSA may select one person to serve on any such
Committee. Employees assigned to serve on such
Committees shall be pennitted to attend meetings
while on-duty with no loss of payor benefits. If
travel costs are incurred by the FSFSA selected
member, the agency may reimburse the costs at its
discretion.

(B) The pmties agree that anytime a group.
committee. special. or management meeting is held
that will address issues directly impacting FSFSA
bargaining unit members in any way. FSFSA will be
notified at least seven (7) days plioI' and may select
up to two (2) representative to attend such function
as a bargaining unit representatives. Employees
assigned by FSFSA to attend such functions shall be
permitted to attend meetings while on..<futy with no
loss of payor benefits with all state rules applicable.

Article 21
COMMITTEES

SECTION 1 .. Safety Committee
The parties agree to that each agency shall

have at least one Safety Committee. FSFSA may
select one person to serve on each committee
directly addressing ftre services operations and other
matters of safety related to bargaining unit members.
Employees assigned to serve on these Safety
Committees shall be permitted to attend meetings
while on-duty with no loss of payor benefits. At the
discretion of the agency, travel costs may be
reimbursed. Any recommendations of the
Committee shall be submitted in writing to the
appropriate management representative who shall
promptly respond with respect to each
recommendation.

SECTION 2 .. Other Committees
LAl The parties agree that where the State or

an agency has a Committee created by agency policy
to directly address fire service operations and other
matters of safety related to bargaining unit members,
FSFSA may select one person to serve on any such
Committee. Employees assigned to serve on such
Committees shall be permitted to attend meetings
while on-duty with no loss of payor benefits. If
travel costs are incurred by the FSFSA selected
member. the agency may reimburse the costs at its
discretion.

(B) The parties agree that anytime a group,
committee, special, or management meeting is held
that will address issues directly impacting FSFSA
bargaining unit members in any way, FSFSA will be
notified at least seven (7) days prior and may select
up to two (2) representative to attend such function
as a bargaining unit representatives. Employees
assigned bv FSFSA to attend such functions shall be I

penllitted to attend meetings while on-duty with no
loss of payor benefits with all state rules applicable.



Article 22
PERSONAL PROPERTY - REPLACEMENT

AND/OR REIMBURSEMENT
(A) An employee,. while on duty and acting

~ within the scope of employment who suffers damage
or destruction of the employee's watch or
prescription glasses, or other such items of personal
property as have been given prior approval by the
Agency Head or hislher designee as being required
by the employee to adequately perfonn the duties of
the position, will be reimbursed or have such
property repaired or replaced as provided herein.

(B) A written report must be filed detailing
the circumstances under which such property was
damaged or destroyed. The damage cannot be the
result of the negligence of the employee. Upon
verification by the agency of the circumstances
under which the damage or destruction occurred, and
upon proper documentation by the employee of the
amount ex.pended, the State shall authorize
reimbursement for repair or replacement of such
property, not to exceed the following amounts:

1. Watch - $75
2. Prescription glasses - $200 

including any examination
3. Other items - The Agency Head

or his/her designee shall have
final authority to determine the
reimbursement value of any items
oilier than watches or prescription
gla'ises.

4. Total allowable per incident 
$500

Article 22
PRSONAL PROPERTY - REPLACEMENT

AND/OR REIMBURSE:MENT
(A) An employee. while on duty and acting

within the scope of employment who suffers damage
or destruction of the employee's watch or
prescription glasses, or other such items of personal
property as have been given prior approval by the
Agency Head or hislher designee as being required
by the employee to adequately perfonn the duties of
the position, will be reimbursed or have such
property repaired or replaced as provided herein.

(B) A written report must be filed detailing
the circumstances under which such property was
damaged or destroyed. The damage cannot be the
result of the negligence of the employee. Upon
verification by the agency of the circumstances
under which the damage or destruction occurred, and
upon proper documentation by the employee of the
amount expended, the State shall authorize
reimbursement for repair or replacement of such
property, not to exceed the following amounts:

5. Watch - $75
6. Prescription glasses - $200 

including any examination
7. Other items - The Agency Head

or hislher designee shall have
final authority to determine the
reimbursement value of any items
other than watches or prescription
glasses.

8. Total allowable per incident 
$500

(C) Such reimbursements require the (C) Such reimbursements require the
approval of the Agency Head or hislher designee. approval of the Agency Head or hislher designee.
Approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.



Article 23
HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIl\tffi

SECTION 1 - Hours of Work and Overtime
(A) The normal work period for each full

time employee shall be forty (40) hours consisting of
five (5) eight (8) hour or four (4) ten (10) hour days,
or a tweaty eight (28) day ORe ftl:tAdreEi eRd sixty
H6Q) Ro\:i£ period. The Department of Children and
Families bargaining unit employees shall remain on
a 28 day, 192 hour period, consisting of twenty-four
(24) hours on-duty and forty-eight (48) hours off
duty. all other bargaining unit members normal
workday will consist of an eight (8) hour workday
unless changes are successfully negotiated on by the
agencies and the FSFSA.

(B) Management retains the right to schedule
its employees~ however, the State will make a good
faith effort, whenever practical, to provide the
employees with consecutive hours in the workday
and consecutive days in the workweek.

(C) Work beyond the normal workweek shall
be administered in accordance with the provisions of
Chapter 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code.

(D) Management retains the right to approve
or disapprove time off for its employees. However,
the State will make a good faith effort, whenever
practical, to allow employees to use compensatory
leave credits as requested by the employee. Failure
to approve an employee's specific request shall not
be grievable under the provisions of Article 6 of this
Agreement.

(E) The State agrees that the assignment of
overtime is not to be made on the basis of fav0l1tism
(to include selection of ovettime or earning of comp
time). In any case, where an employee has reason to
believe that overtime is being a.'\signed on the basis
of favoritism, the employee shall have the right to
the Gtievance Procedure under Atticle 6 herein, to
Step 2 of the procedure.

!F) Bargaining Unit members will be
notified in writing at least three (3) days prior to any
modifications of scheduled hours referenced in
Section 2(A) to include working days off, offsetting
of excess hours, or scheduled events where more
than eight (8) hours in a workday is planned,
excluding emergency response unless their
contracted hours have been reached as referenced in
.cAl

(G) Bargaining unit members will not be
considered to be in "ove.rtime" status or required to
offset "extra hours" until they have met their
contracted hours as referenced above in (Al. Extra

Article 23
HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME

SECTION 1- Hours of Work and Overtime
(A) The nonnal work period for each full- I

time employee shall be forty (40) hours consisting of
five (5) eight (8) hour or four (4) ten (10) hour days,
Of a tweRty eigkt (28) day ORe ftl:lRdreEl 9:Hd SIJEty
(160) ftel:lf fleriod. The Department of Children and
Families bargaining unit employees shall remain on
a 28 day, 192 hour period. consisting of twenty-four
(24) hours on-duty and forty-eight (48) hours off
duty, all other bargaining unit members nonnal
workday will consist of an eight (8) hour workday
unless changes are successfully negotiated on by the
agencies and the FSFSA.

(B) Management retains the right to schedule
its employees; however, the State will make a good
faith effort, whenever practical, to provide the
employees with consecutive hours in the workday
and consecutive days in the workweek.

(C) Work beyond the normal workweek shall
be administered in accordance with the provisions of
Chapter 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code.

(D) Management retains the right to approve
or disapprove time off for its employees. However,
the State will make a good faith effort, whenever
practical, to allow employees to use compensatory
leave credits as requested by the employee. Failure
to approve an employee's specific request shall not
be grievable under the provisions of Article 6 of this
Agreement.

(E) The State agrees that the assignment of
overtime is not to be made on the basis of favoritism
(to include selection of overtime or eatning of comp
time). [n any calle, where an employee has reason to
believe that overtime is being assigned on the basis
of favoritism, the employee shall have the right to
the Grievance Procedure under Article 6 herein, to
Step 2 of the procedure.

{F) Bargaining Unit members will be
notified in writing at least three (3) days prior to any
modifications of scheduled hours referenced in
Section 2(A) to include working days off, offsetting
of excess hours. or scheduled events where more
than eight (8) hours in a workday is plalUlcd,
excluding emergency response unless their
contracted hours have been reached as referenced in
!Al

(0) Bargaining unit members will not be
considered to be in "overtime" status or required to
offset "extra hours" until they have met their
contracted hours as referenced above in !A). Extra



hours are defined by FSFSA as those exceeding the
amounts established in Section HA) for normal
work geriods. 40 hours a week or 160 hours
depending on the bargaining unit position affected.

(m The state and FSFSA agree tQ establish
work! rest guidelines for the emergency response
agencies. Agency established mandatory days Qff
given to bargaining unit members will QS{
compensated days off days of consisting of a
minimum eight (S) hours at 1.5 times the members
salary regardless of bours worked in the work weS{k
Of work periQd unless those days coincide with a
bargaining unit members normally scheduled day
off.

CD Bargaining unit members will only be
required to work Qver their normal scheduled work
day(s) on a voluntary basis, exceptions to this rule;
(1) In emergency response situations where no other
resources within the district! region are available (2)

An ongoing emergency incident where volunteer
replacements are not available from within the
district! region! state, (3) During a declared state of
emergency by the State of Florida during which
other nrovisions of this contract including pay and
benefits will be applicable. (4) Fire readiness levels
dictated by wildfire activity warrant extra staffmg or
prolonged staffing for emergency response
situations.

(J) Bargaining unit members that choose to
bank FLSA comp time in lieu of overtime will be
compensated at 1.5 times total hours for overtime
hours worked. Bargaining unit members shall be
allowed to bank up to one hundred and twenty (20)

hours and required to zero (0) out balances annually
once a year by June 30111 of each year. Any hours
earned over the one hundred and twenty (120) hours
banked will be compensated as overtime pay at 1.5
times the bargaining unit members hourly salary.
Any unused FLSA balances remaining on June. 30th

annually will be Raid out as the bargaining unit
member's hourly rate of nay.

SECTION 2 - \Vork Schedules, Vacation And
Holiday Schedules

(A) When regular work schedules are
changed, employees' nonnal work schedules,
showing each employee's shift, workdays and hours,
will be posted no less than fourteen (14) calendar
days in advance. and will reflect at least a two (2)
workweek schedule; however. the State will make a
good faith effort to reflect a one (1) month schedule.
In the event all employee's shift, workdays, or hours

hours are defined by FSFSA as those exceeding the
amounts· established in Section HAl for nonnal
work periods. 40 hours a week or 160 hours
depending on the bargaining unit PQsition affected.

(H) The state and FSFSA agree to establish
work! rest guidelines for the emergency respons!¥
agencis;.o;. Agency established mandatory days off
given to bargaining unit mem!:>ers will !:>e
compS{nsated days off days of consisting of a
minimum eight (S} hours at 1.;5 times the members
salary regargless of hours worked in the work week
or work neriod unless those days coincide with a
bargaining unit Iill(mbers normally scheduled day
2fL

(1) Bargaining unit members will only be
required to work Qver their normal scheduled work
dans) on a voluntary basis. exceptions to this rule:
(1) In emergency response situations where no oJ,her
resources within the distrietJ region are available (21
An ongoing emergency incident where volunteer
renlacements are not available from within the
district! rs;gion/ state, (3) During a declared state of
emergency by the State of FlQridg during which
other provisions of this contract including pay and
benefits will be applicable. (4) Fire readiness l~vels

dictated QY wildfire activity warrant extra staffmg or
prolonged staffing for emergency response
situations.

(1) Bargaining unit members that choose to
bank FLSA comp time in lieu of overtime will l.:!e
compensated at 1.5 times total hours for overtime
hours worked. Bargaining unit members shall be
allowed to bank up to one hundred and twenty (120)
hours and required to zero (0) out bgJances annually
once a year by June 30th of each year. Any hours
earned over the one hundre4 and twenty (120) hours
banked will be compen~.ated as overtime pay at 1.5
times the bargaining unit members hourly salary.
Any unused FLSA balances remaining on June 30th

annually will be naid out as the bargaining unit
member's hourly rate of pay.

SECTION 2 - Work Schedules, Vacation And
Holiday Schedules

(A) When regular work schedules are
changed. employees' normal work schedules,
showing each employee's shift. workdays and hours,
will be posted no less than fourteen (14) calendar
days in advance, and will reflect at least a two (2)
workweek schedule; however. the State will make a
good faith effort to reflect a one (1) month schedule.
In the event an employee's shift, workdays, or hours



are changed while the employee is on approved
leave the agency will notify the employee of the
change at his home. With prior written notification
of at least three (3) workdays to the employee's
immediate supervisor, employees may mutually
agree to exchange days or shifts on a temporary
basis. If the immediate supervisor objects to the
exchange of workdays or shifts. the employee
initiating the notification shall be advised that the
exchange is disapproved.

(B) Where practical, shifts, shift transfers and
regular days off shall be scheduled with due regard
for the needs of the agency. seniority and employee
preference. The State and the Association
understand that there may be times when the needs
of the agency will not pennit such scheduling;
however, when an employee's shift and/or regular
days off are changed, the agency will make a good
faith effort to keep the employee on the new shift or
regular days off for a minimum of twelve (12)
months unless otherwise requested by the employee.

(C) When an employee is not assigned to a
rotating shift and the employee's regular shift
assignment is being changed, the State will schedule
the employee to be off work for a minimum of two
shifts between the end of the previous shift
assignment and the beginning of the new shift
assignment.

(D) Where practical, vacation and holiday
leave shall be scheduled in advance of such leave.
Time off for vacations and holidays, when the
holiday is a regularly scheduled workday for the
employee. will be scheduled with due regard for the
needs of the agency. seniority and employee
preference. In implementing this provision. nothing
shall preclude an agency from making reasonable
accommodations for extraordinary leave requests as
determined by the agency, or ensuring the fair
distribution of leave during the holidays.

(E) The State will continue to observe the
scheduling structures currently in place at each
agency and agrees to bargain any change in the
overall practice of how schedules are established.
Scheduling structures shall mean the normal work
period as set forth in Section leA) of this article.

(F) Holiday hours worked will be calculated
at 1.5 hours times normal work hours when
bargaining unit members are required to work during
state recognized approved holidays.

SECTION 3 - Rest Periods
(A) No supervisor shall unreasonably deny an

are changed while the employee is on approved
leave the agency will notify the employee of the
change at his home. With prior written notification
of at least three (3) workdays to the employee's
immediate supervisor. employees may mutually
agree to exchange days or shifts on a temporary
basis. If the immediate supervisor objects to the
exchange of workdays or shifts, the employee
initiating the notification shall be advised that the
exchange is disapproved.

(B) Where practical, shifts, shift transfers and
regular days off shall be scheduled with due regard
for the needs of the agency, seniority and employee
preference. The State and the Association
understand that there may be times when the needs
of the agency will not permit such scheduling;
however. when an employee's shift and/or regular
days off are changed, the agency will make a good
faith effort to keep the employee on the new shift or
regular days off for a minimum of twelve (12)
months unless otherwise requested by the employee.

(C) When an employee is not assigned to a
rotating shift and the employee' s regular shift
assignment is being changed, the State will schedule
the employee to be off work for a minimum of two
shifts between the end of the previous shift
assignment and the beginning of the new shift
assignment.

(D) Where practical, vacation and holiday
leave shall be scheduled in advance of such leave.
Time off for vacations and holidays, when the
holiday is a regularly scheduled workday for the
employee, will be scheduled with due regard for the
needs of the agency, seniority and employee
preference. [n implementing this provision, nothing
shall preclude an agency from making reasonable
accommodations for extraordinary leave requests as
determined by the agency, or ensuring the fair
distribution of leave during the holidays.

(E) The State will continue to observe the
scheduling structures currently in place at each
agency and agrees to bargain any change in the
overall practice of how schedules are established.
Scheduling structures shall mean the normal work
period as set forth in Section I(A) of this article.

(F) Holiday hours worked will be calculated
at 1.5 hours times normal work hours when
bargaining unit members are required to work during
state recognized approved holidays.

SECTION 3 - Rest Periods
(A) No supervisor shall unreasonably deny an



employee a fifteen (IS) minute rest period during
each four (4) hour work shift.· Whenever possible,
such rest periods shall be scheduled at the middle of
the work shift. However, it is recognized that many

f positions have a post of duty assignment that
requires coverage for a full eight-hour shift, which
would not pennit the employee to actually leave his
post. In those cases, it is recognized that the
employee can "rest" while the employee physically
remains in the geographic location of his duty post.

(B) An employee may not accumulate unused
rest periods, nor shall rest periods be authorized for
covering an employee's late arrival on duty or early
departure from duty.

SECTION 4 - Work Day
(A) The State will make a good faith effort to

not require an employee to split a workday into two
or more segments without the mutual agreement of
the employee and the employer.

(B) Where employees are required to work
extra hours during an approved extended work
period, the State will make a good faith effort to
offset such extra hours in eight (8) hour increments,
pre¥ideEl this etlfl be delle prier t:e at the end of the
extended work period.

(C) Bargaining unit members who are
assigned to an eight (8) hour work day will begin
shift at 0800 unless conditions specified in Section 1
(1) are present.

employee a fifteen (15) minute rest period during
each four (4) hour work shift.· Whenever possible,
such rest periods shall be schedule-d at the middle of
the work shift. However, it is recognized that many
positions have a post of duty assignment that
requires coverage for a full eight-hour shift. which
would not permit the employee to actually leave his
post. In those cases, it is recognized that the
employee can ''rest'' while the employee physically
remains. in the geographic location of his duty post.

(B) An employee may not accumulate unus.ed
rest periods. nor shall rest periods be authorized for
covering an employee's late arrival on duty or early
departure from duty.

SECTION 4 - Work Day
(A) The State will make a good faith effort to

not require an employee to split a workday into two
or more segments without the mutual agreement of
the employee and the employer.

(B) Where employees are required to work
extra hours during an approved extended work
period, the State will make a good faith effort to
offset such extra hours in eight (8) hour increments,
pfOviaea this C8ft be EIoae prior £0 at the end of the
extended work period.

(C) Bargaining unit members who are
assigned to an eight (8) hour work day will begin
shift at 0800 unless conditions specified in Section 1
(n are present.



Article 24 Article 24
ON-CALL ASSIGNMENT, CALL-BACK AND ON-CALL ASSIGNMENT, CALL-BACK AND

RESIDENCY RESIDENCY
SECTION 1 - On-Call SECTION 1 - On·CaD

!AlAn "on-call" assignment shall exist !Al An "on-call" assignment shall exist
where the employee ha~ been instructed by the where the employee has been instmcted by the
appropriate management to remain available to work appropriate management to remain available to work
during an off duty period. The employee must leave during an off duty period. The employee must leave
word where the employee may be reached by phone word where the employee may be reached by phone
or electronic signaling device. The employee must or electronic signaling device. The employee must
be available to return to the work location on short be available to return to the work location on short
notice to perfonn assigned duties. notice to perform a~signed duties.

(B) Agencies are required to provide 24 hour (B) Agencies are required to provide 24 hoyr
protection to the citizens of Florida for wildfire protection to the citizens of Florida for wildfire
response. On- Call assignments will begin at the end response. On- Call assignments will begin at the end
of the workday and continue until the next scheduled of the workday and continue until the next scheduled
operation period. under normal conditions from operation I!~riod. under normal condition.~ from
1700 until 0800 the following morning. 1700 until 0800 the following morning.

(e) Bargaining unit members scheduled to be (C) Bargaining unit members scheduled to be
in an on-call status that can not go into on-call status in an on-call status that can not go into on-call status
due to the geeds of the agency shall be compensated due to the needs of the agency shall be compensated
for those hours scheduled in accordance with Article for those hours scheduled in accordance with Article
23 of this contract. 23 of this contract.

SECTION 2 - On..CaU Fees SECTION 2 - On-Call Fees
(A) When approved as provided herein, an (A) When approved as provided herein, an

employee who is required to be on-call shall be employee who is required to be on-call shall be
compensated by payment of a fee in an amount of compensated by payment of a fee in an amount of
($1. .00) ($5.00) per hour for each hour or portion ($1.00) ($5.00) per hour for each hour or pOltion
thereof such employee is required to be on-call. thereof such employee is required to be on-call.

(B) An employee who is required to be on- (B) An employee who is required to be on-
call on a Saturday, Sunday, or Holiday as listed in call on a Saturday, Sunday, or Holiday as listed in
Section 110.1 17, F.S. will be compensated by Section 110.117, F.S. will be compensated by
payment of a fee in an amount equal to ORe fourth payment of a fee in an amount equal to oae fourth
flI4t one-half (1/2) of the statewide minimum for fY4t one-half (1/2) of the statewide minimum for
the employee's pay band level for each hour or the employee's pay band level for each hour or
portion thereof such employee is required to be on- portion thereof such employee is required to be on-
eall. calL

(C) On-call assignments are not to be granted
SECTION 2 - On-Call Fees on the basis of favoritism.

(A) When approved as provided herein, an
employee who is required to be on-call shall be SECTION 3 - Call Back
compensated by payment of a fee in an amount of (A) An employee called back to work beyond
($1.00) per hour for each hour or pOltion thereof the employees scheduled hours of work for that day,
such employee is required to be on-call. shall be credited for actual time worked, or a

(B) An employee who is required to be on- minimum of t'NO (2) hours four (4) hours, whichever
call on a Saturday, Sunday, or Holiday as listed in is greater.
Section 110.117, F.S. will be compensated by (B) An employee called back during a
payment of a fee in an amount equal to one-fourth designated On-Call assignment, shall be required to
(114) of the statewide minimum for the employee's be en route with apparatus within forty-five (45)
payband .level for each hour or portion thereof such minutes of confirmed notification by dispatch.
employee is required to be on-call. (C ) Call back hours will be considered



(C) On-call assignments are not to be granted overtime and compensated at 1.5 times the
on the basis of favoritism. employees salAry Qr 1.5 times for compensatory

leave de.pending on the bargaining unit mem~rs
SECTION 3 - Call Back selection.

(A) An employee called back to work beyond (D) Call back shall be deftned as contacted by
the employees scheduled hours of work for that day, the agency or state representative for any state .
shall be credited for actual time worked, or a business requiring the employee to alter any of their
minimum of twa (2) ftel::tf5 four (4) hours. whichever off duty activities fQr the needs of the state fm: at
is greater. least seven (7) minutes or more.

(B) An employee called back during a ro) CaJl back situations could occur whether
designated On-Call assignment, shall be required to the ~mployee i~ an "On call" status or not. In the
be en route with apparatus within forty-five (45) case the member is not in official "'on call" status all
minutes of conftrmed notiftcation by dispatch. getAils of this article will awly.

(C ) Call back hours will be considered
overtime and compensated at 1.5 times the SECTION 4 - Residency Requirement
employees §alary Qr 1.5 times for compensatory Division of Forestry employees will reside
leAve depending on the bargaining unit members within 20 air miles of the assigned headquarters
selection. where the supervisor has knowingly permitted an

(0) Call back shall be gefmed as contacted by employee to reside outside of the residency limits,
the agency or state representativ~ for any state the employee will not be required to move within the
business requiring the emPloyee to alter any of tMir residency limits. If the employee changes residences
off duty activities for the needs of the state for at in the future, the new residence will be within the
least seven (7) minutes or more. limitation.
(E) Call back situations could o£<;ur whether the
employee is an "On can" status or not. In the case
the member is not in official "on call" status all
details of this article will apply.

SECTION 4 - Residency Requirement
Division of Forestry employees will reside

within 20 air miles of the assigned headquarters
where the supervisor has knowingly permitted an
employee to reside outside of the residency limits,
the employee will not be required to move within the
residency limits. If the employee changes residences
in the future. the new residence will be within the
limitation.

(A) An employee called back to work beyond
the employees scheduled hours of work for that day,
shall be credited for actual time worked, or a
minimum of ~wo (2) hotH's four (4) hours whichever
is greater.

(B) An employee called back during a
designated On-Call assignment, shall be required to
be en route with apparatus within forty-five (45)
minutes of confinned notification by dispatch.

(C ) Call back hours wiU be considered
overtime and compensated at 1.5 times the
employees salary or 1.5 times for compensatory
leave depending on the bargaining unit members
selection.

(D) Call back shall be defined as contacted bv



the .agency or state representative for any state
business requiring the employee to alter any of their
off duty activities for the needs of the state for at
le~t seven (7) minutes or more.
(E) Call back situations could occur whether the
employee is an "On call'~ status or not. In the case
the member is not in official "on call" status all
details of this article will apply.



..

Article 25
WAGES

SECTION 1-Pay Provisions

~ (A) Pay'sh&1:1 ee ift aeeerElaaGe with the Fisoel
Year 2Q10 2011 Geaeral hJ:lf>F0priatians .Art a£J

eKeeMtee iJ:l~ law I'fEl',ieliHg Be eeH\fJetitj,<'e wage
iBerease or elu~age ~ tl:ie eli1'feBt pay graees or pay
~

~ I11creases to base rate of pay and
salary additives shall be in accordance with state law
and the Fiscal Year 2QI0 2011 2012~2013 General
Appropriations Act in addition to where as otherwise
stated in this contract upon ratification.

.all All FSFSA Bargainins unit members
shall be awarded a minimum 10% salary increa~e

effective fiscal year 2012-2013 due to no cost of
living adjustments or salary increase's aWilfded by
legislation in over seven (7) plus yelgs.

SECTION 2 - Cash Payout of Annual Leave
Permanent Career Service employees will

have the option of receiving up to twenty-four (24)
hours of unused annual leave each December in the
form of a cash payout, subject to, and in accordance
with, Section 110.219(7), Florida Statutes.

i
SECTION 3 - Savings Sharing Program

(A) In accordance with section
110.1245(1), Florida Statutes, individual employees
or teams of employees may be eligible for "profit
sharing" for ideas or programs that result in a budget
savings to the state.

(B) Agency heads may recommend to the
Legislative Budget Commission employees who
generated cost savings to share in a portion of these
savings.

SECTION 4 - Performance Pay
Each agency is authorized to grant merit pay

increases to employees based upon exemplary
performance ali evidenced by a performance
evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35,
Florida Administrative Code.

Section 5- Step Pay Plan
CA) Agencies shall establish step pay plans

utilizing years in service within establish broadband
Rosition. Step one (1) pay grades will be set at
current starting hire rate for said position
classification and increasing annually on the
members date of hire. Annual SteD increases will be

Article 25
WAGES

SECTION 1-Pay Provisions
(1\) Pay shall be m aeElOfeaaee \viat the

Fiscal Year 2010 2Gll GeRel'aI Appropriations .'\ee
as eKeetitee mID la'+\' pfO\'idmg Be eOlBJ=letit¥t'e •....age
meFElase or change to the etlffeflt fJay graties Of pay
eaaes.
~ fnl,'Ceases to base rate of pay and

salary additives shall be in, accordance with state law
and the Fiscal Year 2010 2011 2012~2013 General
Appropriations Act in addition to where as otherwise
stated in this £Qntract upon ralificatigU.

all All FSFSA Bargaining unit memhers
shall be awarded a minimum 10% salary increase
effective fiscal Xear 2012~2013 due to ng £Qst of
living iM!ius~nts or salary increase's awarded by
legislation in over seven (7) plus Xears.

SECTION 2 - Cash Payout of Annual Leave
Permanent Career Service employees will

have the option of receiving up to twenty-four (24)
hours of unused annual leave each December in the
form of a cash payout, subject to, and in accordance
with, Section 110.219(7), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 3 - Savings Sharing Program
Individual employees or groups of

employees may be eligible for monetary awards for
ideas or programs that result in a cost saving to the
state pursuant to Section 110.1245(1), Florida
Statutes.

SECTION 4 - Performance Pay
Each agency is authorized to grant merit pay

increases to employees ba.~ed upon exemplary
performance, as evidenced by a performance
evaluation conducted pursuant to Chapter 60L-35,
Florida Administrative Code.

Section 5- Step Pav Plan
(A) Agencies shall establish step pay plans

utilil.ing years in service within establish broadband
position. Step one (1) pay grades will be set at
current starting hire rate for said position
classification and increasing annually on the
members date of hire. Annual Step increases will be
no less than three (3) percent of a members annual
base salary or higher if determined by management
for exemplary performance.

(B) FSFSA agrees that completed
disciDlinarv actions above a written renrimand in



no less than three (3) percent of a members annual accordance with article seven (7) of this contract
bas~ salary or higher if determined by management would exclude members from being eligible for
for exemplary performance. annual salarY step plan increases.

(B) FSFSA agrees that completed (C ) Step pay plan increases will be in
disciplinary action.1i above a written reprimand in addition to general apprsmriations act as executed
a~cordance with article seven (7) of this contract into law or any salary increases or benefits changes
would exclude members from being eligible for established by legislation for state employees as a
annual salary step plan incr~es. whole.

(C ) Step pa}: plan increases will be in
addition to general appropriations act as executed Section 6- Longevity Bonus
into law or anX salmy increases or benefits changes (A) Bargaining unit members will be
established by legislation for state employees as a rewarded for their commitment to the State of
whole. Florida and its citizen for extended periods and to

help comgat reoccurring turnover among the
Section 6- Longevity Bonus agencies.

(Al Bargaining unit members will be (B) Agencies shall establish longevitx
rewarded for their commitment to the State of bonuses for bargaining unit members as follows;
Florida and its citizen fQ1' extended periods and to Five (5) xear anniversary $5000 one time bonus. ten
help combat reoccurring turnover among the (10) xear anniversary $10.000 Qne time bonus.
agencies. twenty (20) xear anniversarx $20.000 one time

(B) Agencies shall establish longevity bonus.
bonuses for bargaining unit members as follows;
Five (5) year anniversar): $5000 one time bonus. ten
(10) year anniversary $10.000 one time bonus.
twenty (20) xear anniversarx $20.000 one time
bonus.



Article Mi Article 26
SAFETY SAfETY

SECTION 1 • Minimum Staffing reouiremeD.!! SECTION -1 • Minimum Staffing r!t9yirem~nts

~ (A) Agenci§ will establish minjmwn (A) Agencies will establish minimum
staffing for all emergency' response of at least two staffmg for all emergency response of <\t least two
(2) firefighters per apparatus equipment when (2) fJtefighters per aIWaratus equipment wh~n

dispatched to s::mergency situations such as wildfires. dispatched to emergency situations such as wildfires.
hurricqs), floods. etc. One (1) tirefighter· at a hurricanes) floods, ew· One (1) f@fight~r at a
minimum wilt serve as a lookout. establish the minimum will serve as a lookout. establish the
Incident Command System with adjoining forces, Incident Commanc!, System with adjoining force§.
monitor fire behavior and conditions. maintain monitor fire behavior and £onditions. maintain
communic51tions. and assist the initial attack communications. and assist the initial attack
firefighter as needed. firefighter (ls needed.

(B) No phase of emergency response (B) No phase of emergency response
operations will be conducted by bargaining until operations will he conducted by bargaining until
members until ALL safety protocols and members until ALL safety protocols and
requirements are established and enforced on the requirements are established and enforced on the
ftreline. fJteline.

Section 2 - Personal Protective Eguiument
Section 2 - Personal Protective Equiumem Reguirements
Requirements (A) Agencies will provide o~rating

fA) Agencies will provide o~rating personal protective equi12ment to all wildland
personal protective equipment to all wildland firefighters firefighters and apparatus in compliance
firefighters firefighters and apparatus in compliance with NFPA 1977 for all wilgland firefighting and
with NFPA 1977 for all wildland firefigbting and prescribed burning operatiQns. At a minimum PPE
prescribed burning operations. At a minimum PPE . will include but not limited too; Nomex clothing
will include but not limited too; Nomex clothing (Shirt and pants), approved hardhats with goggles or
{Shirt and pants), approved hardhats with goggles or face shield. leather gloves. new generation fire
face shield, leather gloves, new generation fire shelters. headlamp. 8" in leather lace up boots. hand
shelters, headlamp. 8" in leather lace un boots. hand held radio with interagency communication
held radio with interagency communication capability.
capability. <B) Agencie§ will provide optional use

(B) Agencies will provide optional use NFPA 1984 approved respirators for all wildland
NFPA 1984 approved respirators for all wildland fire and prescribed bum operations to all bargaining
fire and prescribed bum operations to all bargaining unit members applicable.
unit members applicable. Lk) Agencies will provide at least 15

{C) Agencies will provide at least 15 minutes of portable Self Contained Breathable Air in
minutes of portable Self Contained Breathable Air in all wildland apparatus and equipment operating
all wildland apparatus and equipment operating directly on the firelille for each operator. Portable
directly on the fireline for each operator. Portable Air is to be utilized for escaping from the incident as
Air is to be utilized for el>caping from the incident as a last resort.
a last resort. (D) Agencies will ensure adequats;

(D) Agencies will ensure adequate communications devices are provided in each area of
communications devices are provided in each arej:l of the state. Adequate Communications devices are
the state. Adequate Communications devices are defined as; (1) Ability to communicate with all
defined as; (l) Ability to communicate with all agency equipment on scene to include aircraft,
!!gency equipment on scene to include aircraft, ground forces, and command forces, (2) ability to
ground forces, and command forces. (2) ability to communicate with those cooperating agencies
communicate with those cooperating agencies nomlally responding to incidents in the area, (3)
normallv resoondine: to incidents in the area (3) Abilitv to maintain communications with disDatch at



Ability to maintain communications with dispatch at all times.
all times.

Section 3- Fireline operations requirements
Section 3- Fireline o~rations requirements (Al FSFSA and the agencies both agree

(A) FSFSA and the agencies both agree firefighting is dangerous high risk work and should
firefighting is dangerous high risk work and should only be performed by properly trained personnel.
only be petformed by properly trained personneL Only special high risk state certified wildland
Only special high risk state certified· wildland firefighters positions or state certified structure
firefighters positions or state certified structure firefighters will conduct operations directly on the
firefighters will conduct operations directly on the fireline in the wildfire environment during any phase
fire.tine in the wildfire environment during any phase of the operations unless a declaration of emergency
of the operations unless a declaration of emergency is in Rlace b):: the governor's office and an "all hands
is in place b):: the governor's office and an "all hands effort" is being required.
effort" is being required. (8) Non certified positions and Rersonnel

(B) Non certified Rositions and personnel on the fireline could be a risk to those fighting the
on the fireline could be a risk to those fighting the fire and the State of Florida citizens. Non High Risk
fire and the State of Florida citizens. Non High Risk positions ma):: only conduct operations on the
110sitions ma~ only conduct operations on the fireline once all firefighter qualifications and
fireline once all firefighter qualifications and requirements are met to include but not limited 1Q
requirements are met to include but not limit!;d to minimum training, certification, and ph)::sical
minimum training. celtification, and physical requirements are met as established in Article 13
requirements are met as established in Article 13 Section 4 of this contract for our bargaining unit
Section 4 of this contract for our bargaining unit members.
members. (C ) Non special high risk positions will

(C ) Non special high risk positions will onI):: conduct operations in the wildfire environment
only conduct opel'atiQns in the wildfire environment or prescribed fIre operations when directly
or prescribed fire operations when directly supervised b):: fire fighter positions for the safet):: of
supervised b):: fire fighter positions for the safety of our bargaining unit members.
our bargaining unit members. (D) Agencies will establish a verification

CD) Agencies will establish a verification s)::stem to ensure lookouts are identified,
s)::stem to ensure lookout.s are identified, communications with command and adjoining forces
communications with command and adjoining forces are established, escape routes are identified. and
are established. escape routes are identified, and safety zones are established PRIOR to conducting
safety zones are established PRIOR to conducting und during any emergency response operations
and during an):: emergency response operations conducted by our members.
conducted by Qur members.



.' Article 27 Article 27
UNIFORMS UNIFORMS

SECTION 1- Uniform Allowance and SECTION 1- Uniform Allowance and
Maintenance Maintenance

® The State shall maintain its current fA) The State shall maintain its current
practice of providing uniform allowance, boot practice of providing uniform allowance, boot
reimbursement, and cleaning allowance. FSFSA reimbursement. and cleaning allowance. FSFSA
employees who are cWTently required to wear employees who are currently required to wear
uniforms shall have a combined uniform uniforms shall have a combined uniform
maintenance, uniform purchase. and boot allowance maintenance, uniform purchase. and boot allowance
pursuant to the Division of Forestry's uniform pursuant to the Division of Forestry's uniform
policy. policy.

fB) FSFSA and the state agree that adequate (B) FSFSA and the state agree that adequattr
time for purchases should be allQwed and adequate time for purchases should be allowed and adeqyaw
time allowed by the agency to process such time allowed 2Y the agency to process such
purchases priQr to fiscal deadlines of the agency. purchases prior to fiscal deadlines of the ag:ency.
Bargaining unit members will be allowed to Bargaining unit members will be allowed tQ
purchase uniform components with uniform purchase uniform components with unifgIm
allowances from August 1st to May 15tl1 of each allowances from August lSI to May 15th of each
fis£al year. fiscal year.

(C) In the instance where uniforms are ec) In the instaru;e wh~re uniforms are
required and the agency does not provide adequate reguired and the agency does not provide adequate
oppQltunities for whatever reasons (to include but oPPQrtunities for whi~ever reasons (to include but
not limited to lack of vendors, back orders. or not limited to lack of vendors, back orders, or
change in uniform policies) to bargaining unit change in uniform policies) to bargaining unit
members to purchase or maintain unifOrms by the members to purchase or maintain uniforms by the

i established May 15th deadline. any monies allocated established May 15th deadline. any monies aUocate,g
and not used fOf allowance. boot reimbursement. and nQt used for allowance. boot reimbursement,
cleaning allowance. or allotments will be awarded to cleaning allowance. Of allotments will be awarded to
the bargaining unit employee directly affected. the bargaining unit employee directly affected.

CD) Uniform issues with vendors including (D) Uniform issues with vendors including
but not limited· to back orders. lack of vendors, but not limited to back orders. lack of vendors,
changes in uniform compgnents. etc. are the changes in uniform components, etc. are the
responsibility of the State of Floridp. and said resRonsibility of the State of Florida and said
vendors and will not have an adverse impact on vendors and will not have an adverse impact on
bargaining unit member's established in policy and bargaining unit member's established in policy and
procedure or this contract. FSFSA agrees that procedure or this contract. FSFSA agrees that
ordering of wrong sizes and any elTors made on the ordering of wrong sizes and any elTOl'S made on the
member's part reliefs the state of said responsibility member's pmt reliefs the state of said responsibility
to conect the issues. to correct the issues.

SECTION 2 - Accessories SECTION 2 - Accessories
(A) Where hand~held radios are provided, (A) Where hand~held radios are provided,

they will be suitable for firefighting use. they will be suitable for firefighting use, as
(B) Where it is current practice shield or star referenced in Article 26 of this agreement.

style badges shall be provided to unit employees. (B) Where it is current practice shield or star
Collar brass will continue to be standard issue per style badges shall be provided to unit employees.
agency policy. Collar brass will continue to be standard issue per

(C) Name tags shall continue to be standard agency policy.
issue per agency policy. (C) Name tags shall continue to be standard

(D) Employees will be permitted to wear issue per agency policy.
EMT, award recognition and union pins. The union (D) Employees will be permitted to wear



pin shall be no larger than one (1) inch in diameter.

SECTION 3 - Non..Unifonned Employees
Non-uniformed bargaining unit employees in

the Department of Financial Services, Division of
State Fire Marshal shall receive a clothing allowance
in the amOlUlt of $250.00 annually.

EMT, award recognition and union pins. The union
pin shall be no larger than one (1) inch in diameter.

(El Bargaining unit positions will be
provided at no cost to the employee with badges or
identification cards that can be used to identify them
(both on and off the job) as emergency responder
firefighter in the event of emergency situations to
other rescue personnel and! or the public in general.

SECTION 3 - Non..Uniformed Employees
.cAl Non-uniformed bargaining unit

employees in the Department of Financial Services,
Division of Sta.te Fire Marshal shall receive a
clothing allowance in the amount of $250.00
annually.

(B) Fire Protection Specialist with the
Agency for Health Care Administration shall receive
the;: same clothing and clothing allowances as the
same positions within the State Fire Marshal office.



Article 28
VACANT

Article 28
VACANT



Article 29
VACANT

Article 29
VACANT

..



Article 30
PREVAILING RIGHTS

All pay and benefits provisions published in
the State Personnel System and/or existing practices

. which cover employees in the bargaining tmit and
which are not specifically provided for or modified
by this Contract shall continue in effect during the
tenn of this Contract.

Article 30
VACANT



Article 31
MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

The FSFSA agrees that the State has and will
continue to retain. whether exercised or not, the right
to determine unilaterally the purpose of each of its
constituent agencies, set standards of services to be
offered to the public, and exercise control and
discretion over its organization and operations. It is
also the right of the public employer to direct its
employees, take disciplinary action for proper cause,
and relieve its employees from duty because of lack
of work or for other legitimate reasons, except as
abridged or moditled by the express provisions of
this Contract; provided, however, that the exercise of
such rights shaH not preclude an employee or
employee representative from raising a grievance on
any such decision which violates the terms and
conditions of this Contract.

Article 31
MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

The FSFSA agrees that the State has and will
continue to retain, whether ex.ercised or not, the right ~

to determine unilaterally the purpose of each of its
constituent agencies, set standards of services to be
offered to the public, and exercise control and
discretion over its organization and operations. It is
also the light of the public employer to direct its
employees, take disciplinary action for proper cause,
and relieve its employees from duty because of lack
of work or for other legitimate reasons, except as
abridged or modified by the express provisions of
this Contract; provided, however, that the exercise of
such rights shall not preclude an employee or
employee representative from raising a grievance on
any such decision which violates the terms and
conditions of this Contract.



Article 32
ENTIRE AGREEMENT

SECTION 1 • AgreementlReopeners
(A) This Agreement, upon ratification,

I~ supersedes and cancels all prior practices and
agreements in conflict with this agreement, whether
written or oral, unless expressly stated to the
contrary herein, and constitutes the complete and
entire agreement between the parties, and concludes
collective bargaining for its tenn.

(B) The p·arties acknowledge that, during the
negotiations which resulted in this Agreement, each
had the unlimited right and opportunity to make
demands and proposals with respect to any subject
or matter not removed by law from the area of
collective bargaining. and that the understandings
and agreements arrived at by the parties after the
exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in
this Agreement.

(e) The State and FSFSA agree that, in
addition to A1ticle 25, Wages, changes in any three
(3) articles within this Agreement that FSFSA or the
State desire to reopen shall be subject to negotiations
for Fiscal Year 2010-2011, plus any articles under
study as agreed to by the State and FSFSA.

(D) The State and FSFSA further agree that,
in addition to Article 25, Wages, changes in any
three (3) articles within this Agreement that FSFSA
or the State desire to reopen shall be subject to
negotiations during the second year of this
Agreement for Fiscal Year 2011-2012.

(E) Except as to the above subjects, the State
and FSFSA, for the duration of this Agreement, each
voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right, and
each agrees that the other shall not be obligated to
bargain collectively with respect to any subject or
matter referred to, or covered in this Agreement,
even though such subjects or matters may not have
been· within the knowledge or contemplation of
either or both of the parties at the time they
negotiated or signed this Agreement.

SECTION 2 • Memorandum of
Understanding/Settlements

The Pmties recognize that during the tenn of
this Agreement situations may arise which require
that terms and conditions not specifically and clearly
set forth in the Agreement must be clarified or
amended. Under such circumstances, FSFSA is
specifically authorized by bargaining Unit
employees to enter into the settlement of grievance
disputes or memorandums of understanding which

Article 32
ENTIRE AGREEMENT

SECTION 1- Agreement
(A) This Agreement supersedes and cancels·

all prior practices and agreements in conflict with
this Agreement. whether written or oral, unless
expressly stated to the contrary herein, and
constitutes the complete and entire agreement
between the parties, and concludes collective
bargaining for its term.

(B) The parties acknowledge that during the
negotiations which resulted in this Agreement, each
had the unlimited right and opportunity to make
demands and proposals with respect to any subject
or matter not removed by law from the area of
collective bargaining, and that the understandings
and agreements arrived· at by the parties after the
exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in
this Agreement.

(C) Except as to the above subjects, the state
and the FSFSA. for the duration of this Agreement,
each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right,
and each agrees that the other shall not be obligated
to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or
matter referred to, or covered in this Agreement,
even though such subjects or matters may not have
been within the knowledge or contemplation of
either or both of the parties at the time they
negotiated or signed this Agreement.

SECTION 2 - Memorandllm of
Understanding/Settlements

The parties recognize that during the term of
this Agreement situations may arise which require
that tenns and conditions not specifically and clearly
set forth in the Agreement must be clarified or
amended. Under such circumstances, the FSFSA is
specifically authorized by employees to enter into
the settlement of grievance disputes or
memorandums of understanding which clarify or
amend this Agreement, without having to be ratified
by employees. Such settlements and memorandums
of understanding, if any, shall be attached as
Appendix D.



clarify or amend this Agreement, without having to
be ratified by bargaining Unit members. Such
settlements and memorandums of understanding
shall be attached as Appendix. C.

0(""



Article 33
SAVINGS CLAUSE

If any provision of this Contract should be
rendered or declared invalid. or unlawful, or not
enforceable by reason of any court action or existing
or subsequently enacted legislation or federal
regulation; or if the appropriate governmental body
having amendatory power to change a law, rule or
regulation which is in conflict with a provision of
this Contract fails to enact or adopt an enabling
amendment to make the provision effective in
accordance with Section 447.309(3), Florida

.Stanltes; then such provision shall not be applicable,
performed or enforced; but the remaining parts or
portions of this Contract shall remain in full force
and effect for the term of this Contract.

Artitle33
SAVINGS CLAUSE

If any provision of this Agreement is
rendered or declared invalid, unlawful. or not
enforceable by reason of any court action or existing
or subsequently enacted legislation or federal
regulation; or if the appropriate governmental body
having .amendatory power to change a law, rule or
regulation which is in conflict with a provision of
this Agreement fails to enact or adopt an enabling
amendment to make the provision effec.tive in
accordance with section 447.309(3), Florida
Statutes; then such provision shall not be applicable,
performed, or enforced; but the remaining parts or
portions of this Agreement shall remain in full force
and effect for the term of this Agreement.



Article 34
DURATION

SECTION 1 • Term
(A) This Agreement shall be effective upon

ratification, and shall remain in full force and effect
through the thirtieth day of June 2012. This
Agreement shaH remain in fun force and be effective
during the period of negotiation and may be
extended in the manner set forth in the following
paragraph.

(B) In the event that the State and the
Association fail to secure a successor Agreement
prior to the expiration date of this Agreement, the
parties may mutually agree in writing to extend this
Agreement for any period of time.

SECTION 2 • Notices
Notices hereunder shall be given by

registered or certified mail, and if by the State shall
be addressed to FSFSA Local S-20, 11310 South
Orange Blossom Trail #218, Orlando, Florida 32837
and if by FSFSA shall be addressed to the Chief
Negotiator, Department of Management Services,
4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 160, Tallahassee,
Florida 32399-0950. Either party may, by a like
written notice, change the address to which such
notice shall be given. Notices shall be considered to
have been given as of the date shown on the
postmark.

SECTION 3 • Emergencies
If it is determined that civil emergency

conditions exist, including, but not limited to, riots,
civil disorders, hurricane conditions, or similar
catastrophes, the provisions of this Agreement may
be suspended by the Governor during the time of the
declared emergency, provided that wage rates .md
monetary fringe benefits shall not be suspended. It is
understood that a declared emergency may be
limited to specific geographic areas, in which case
suspension of the tenns of this Agreement as
provided above, would apply only to those
employees permanently or temporarily assigned to
such areas.

-ir:?" . ,

Article 34
DURATION

SECTION 1 • Term
(A) This Agreement shall remain in full force

and effect through the thirtieth day of June 2013.
This Agreement shall remain in full force and be
effective during the period of negotiation, and may
be extended in the manner set forth in the following
paragraph.

(B) In the event that the state and the FSFSA
fail to secure a successor Agreement prior to the
expiration date of this Agreement, the parties may
.agree in writing to extend this Agreement for any
period of time.

SECTION 2 - Notices
Notices hereunder shall be given by

registered or certified mail, and if by the state shall
be addressed to FSFSA Local S-20, 208 Odham
Drive, Sanford, Florida 32773, and if by FSFSA
shall be addressed to the Chief Negotiator,
Department of Management Services, 4050
Esplanade Way, Suite 160, Tallahassee, Florida
32399~0950. Either party may, by a like written
notice, change the address to which such notice shall
be given. Notices shall be considered to have been l
given as of the date shown on the postmark.

SECTION 3 - Emergencies
If it is determined that civil emergency

conditions exist, including, but not limited to, riots,
civil disorders. hun'icane conditions, or similar
catastrophes, the provisions of this Agreement may
be suspended by the Governor during the time of the
declared emergency, provided that wage rates and
monetary fringe benefits shall not be suspended. It is
understood that a declared emergency may be
limited to specific geographic areas, in which case
sllspension of the terms of this Agreement as
provided above, would apply only to those
employees pennanently or temporarily assigned to
such areas.

, ....



»
."
VI

~
ITI



February 13, 2013

Representative Charles Van Zant
Senator Alan Hays
Co-Chairs, Joint Select Committee
on Collective Bargaining
402 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL 32399-1300

Dear Representative Van Zant and Senator Hays,

Please accept this letter as the written summary of the issues at impasse between
AFSCME, Council 79 and the State of Florida. AFSCME and the State have not
reached agreement on five of the Articles in our contract. In numeric order they are:
Article 4 - No Discrimination, Article 6 - Grievance Procedure, Article 13 - Health
and Safety, Article 18 - Leaves of Absence, Hours of Work, Disability Leave, and
Article 25 - Wages. I will discuss each issue in numeric order.

Article 4 - No Discrimination

Article 4 consists of three sections. Section 1 prohibits discrimination for any reason
prohibited under Federal law and provides remedies, Section 2 protects against
sexual harassment and provides remedies, and Section 3 requires the Union to
support the State's affirmative action program. These sections setting forth basic
rights and remedies have been part of the contract for sometime and are not
objected to by the Union or State.

The disagreement, or impasse, has arisen over the Union's proposal to add a Section
to the Article that would ensure that state employees are treated the same as
employees in the private sector and provide remedies. Over the last several years,
involving numerous issues, and again this year over the defined benefit pension
plan, the state has taken the position that state employees should be treated the
same as private sector employees. The proposed new section would have three sub
parts, each ensuring the same rights and protections employees in the private sector
enjoy under the law.

The first subsection clarifies that all state employees would receive at least
minimum wage as set forth in the Florida Constitution and provides for a pay
adjustment as a remedy if because of the January adjustment or other changes any
employee fell below the minimum. Many members of our bargaining unit earn
relatively modest pay. This subsection just recognizes that in the event an
employees pay falls below the minimum level it would be adjusted up-ward.



AFSCME Impasse Letter Page 2

The second subsection provides the same standards of workplace safety for State
employees under the Occupational Safety and Health Standards Act, as employees in
the private sector, recognizing in the contract a right to work in a reasonably safe
workplace free from recognized hazards. The concept of a safe workplace seems
non-controversial. A statement that it is the public policy ofthe state to provide safe
workplaces has been part of the contract for a long time, and even if not specifically
part of the contract, it would seem readily apparent that the state would have a
policy to provide safe workplaces. This proposal attempts to adopt a policy of
Governor Bush's and apply it to all ofthe members of the bargaining unit versus just
some of them. It is discussed in more detail in our discussion ofArticle 13.

The third subsection places language in the contract that would clarify that the Fair
Labor Standards Act protects state employees, just like it protects private sector
employees. The act provides very basic, and widely recognized rights such as the 40
hour workweek and the requirement to pay time and a half for overtime.

The Union asks the legislature to include these equity provisions in the contract.
They are not only fair, but they are the other side of the 'treat state employees like
other employees' coin.

Article 6 - Grievance Procedure

Article 6 is eight pages long, includes four Sections and outlines the process for
handling grievances. Florida law requires the last step in a negotiated grievance
process to be arbitration. The Union proposes to leave the Article as it was last year
and previously. The State's proposal changes the status quo by requiring the use of
two different arbitrators instead of one. Obviously this is time consuming and
expensive. The situation arises when the parties have a dispute about rather an
issue is arbitral. An issue of arbitrability might arise because of a question of
timeliness, or perhaps because of a question of whether the issue can even be
grieved. The question of arbitrability is a threshold question - meaning it must be
answered first. If the employee prevails the arbitrator moves on to decide the
substantive issue. If the employee loses the substantive issue is never decided.
Frequently the 'battle' over the question of arbitrability will decide the war. In those
cases requiring the employment of a second arbitrator is a tremendous waste of
time and money. In other cases, even if there is a dispute over the substantive issue
hiring a second arbitrator is still time consuming and expensive. The current system
works fine and is the most efficient.

The Union asks the legislature to maintain the status quo on Article 6.

Article 13 - Health and Safety

Article 13 is two pages and four sections. It creates a permissive 'Safety Committee'
and has always set forth Florida's public policy of providing a safe workplace for
state employees. The State and the Union have exchanged different proposals on



AFSCME Impasse Letter Page 3

this issue. Because of the joint willingness in changing this Article the parties may
still be able to resolve the issue.

Obviously the Union has a desire for their members to work in workplaces free of
known hazards. The Union's proposal continues to recognize the State's previously
agreed to policy recognizing the necessity to make every reasonable effort to
provide employees safe and healthy workplaces. The Union uses Governor Bush's
executive order, 2000-292, as the means to define the scope of the State's
commitment and as an example as to the best way to implement the State's shared
goal in providing safe workplaces. The Union's proposal simply incorporates
Governor Bush's Executive Order language as part of the contract. The remedies,
just like the scope of the obligation are identical to the executive order. This
proposal is made as a new Section 1 with the subsequent sections renumbered.

Although the State has expressed a willingness to adopt Governor Bush's Executive
Order, the Union has two concerns with that proposal. The first is that the State's
proposal appears to be limited to the existence of Executive Order 2000-292. The
Union cannot agree to something that could change merely by another Governor
executing a new Executive Order that supersedes the order the contract referenced.
Because of this concern the Union proposes the language, not the order, becomes
part of the contract. The second concern involves coverage. Governor Bush had
authority only over some of the agencies where members of the bargaining unit
work. His order covers only those agencies. The Union wants to include every
member of the bargaining unit. Our proposal specifically mentions the entire
bargaining unit.

Because safety is important, and the State has expressed a public policy supporting
work place safety, the Union asks the legislature to accept it's proposal that makes
Governor Bush's executive order part of the contract applicable to all members of
the bargaining unit.

Article 18 - Leaves ofAbsence, Hours ofWork, Disability Leave

Article 18 is four pages and eight sections. The area of disagreement is in Section 8 
'Special Compensatory Leave.' The State proposes status quo and the Union seeks to
return to the version of the provision in place prior to July 1, 2012 - just one year
ago. In last year's negotiations the Special Compensatory Leave provisions were
changed from allowing accumulation of these hours to a requirement to use the
hours within 120 days or the time would be forfeited. The members of the
bargaining unit have learned through experience that those hours cannot be easily
used within 120 days due to the real world needs ofthe agencies.

Special Compensatory Leave is only earned in two situations. The first is when an
employee works, because of agency needs, on what would normally be a state
holiday. These include Christmas, Thanksgiving, Veterans Day and other paid
holidays as determined by the Legislature. The other situation is when the Governor



AFSCME Impasse Letter Page 4

declares an emergency such as in a hurricane or a flood and it is determined too
unsafe for sate employees to travel to work. The Section was drafted originally in
recognition of the needs of the 24/7/365 jobs. Because employees were asked to
sacrifice their holidays and to come to work when roads may be unsafe the 'Special
Compensatory Leave' Section was drafted as a way to 'compensate' them for their
dedication. These employees are invested in the success of their agencies mission.
To ask them to work for free, which is the result of the 120-day forfeiture provision,
creates an adverse relationship between the employees and the State. This is
counter-productive and does not serve the best interest of the State or its
employees.

The Union asks the Legislature to restore the Article to its prior form. Agencies that
are frequently under staffed will better be able to achieve their mission goals and
employees will be treated fairly.

Article 25 - Wages

As proposed by the State, Article 25 is two pages and nine sections. The State
proposes $1,200 one-time lump sum bonuses, plus applicable taxes, for all
employees with "satisfactory" performance as well as $2,500 and $5,000 200 one
time lump sum bonuses, plus applicable taxes, for certain employees rated as
"commendable" and "outstanding," respectively. The Union respects that the State
wants to financially recognize all of its employees and reward high performers, but
the Union fundamentally disagrees that the bonuses proposed should take the place
of cost-of-living adjustments to employee salaries.

After years where salaries have failed to match inflation, the priority of the state
should be investment in bringing salaries up to their former earning power through
general cost-of-living adjustments (COLA). The last COLA for state employee
salaries was 3 percent Oct. 1, 2006. According to the US Bureau of Labor Statistics,
the Consumer Price Index (CPI) at that time was 201.8. In December 2012, the CPI
stood at 229.601, an increase of 13.7 percent. On July 1,2011, state employees were
required to contribute 3 percent to the Florida Retirement System. Since the last
COLA, state employees have had their earning power reduced by 16.7 percent.

The Union has proposed a 5-percent across-the-board increase for eligible employ
ees with a $1,200 minimum and asks the Legislature to fund permanent salary
increases for the state employees.

Sincerely,

Doug Martin
Chief Negotiator, State Master Contract
AFSCME Florida Council 79
3064 Highland Oaks Terrace
Tallahassee, FL 32301



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Counter Proposal- Article 6 (Status Quo)

Fiscal Year 2013-14
January 28,2013

Page 1 of8

Article 6
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

It is the policy of the state and Union to encourage infonnal discussions between
supervisors and employees of employee complaints. Such discussions should be held with a view
to reaching an understanding which will resolve the matter in a manner satisfactory to the
employee and the state, without need for recourse to the fonnal grievance procedure prescribed
by this Article.

SECTION 1 - Defmitions

As used in this Article
(A) "Grievance" shall mean a dispute involving the interpretation or application of the

specific provisions of this Contract that is filed on a grievance fonn as contained in Appendix B.
(B) "Employee" shall mean an employee or a group of employees having the same

grievance.
(C) "Days" shall mean calendar days, excluding any day observed as a holiday

pursuant to Florida Statutes, or holiday observed by the Union pursuant to a list furnished to the
state in writing, as of the effective date of this Contract.

(D) "File" or "Appeal" shall mean the receipt of a grievance by the appropriate step
representative.

SECTION 2 - Election of Remedy and Representation

(A) Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in this Contract shall be construed topennit
the Union or an employee to process a grievance (l) on behalf of any employee without his
consent, or (2) when the subject of such (employee's) grievance is at the same time the subject of
an administrative action under section 120.569 or 120.57, Florida Statutes, or appeal before a
governmental board or agency, or court proceeding, except that employees shall have the right to
pursue claims of discrimination in other appropriate forums. If a grievance is filed that may be
processed under this Article and also under the Public Employees Relations Act pursuant to
section 110.227(5), Florida Statutes, the grievant shall indicate at the time the grievance is
reduced to writing which procedure is to be used as the exclusive remedy. In the case of any
duplicate filing, the action first filed will be the one processed.

(B) An employee who decides to use this Grievance Procedure shall indicate at the
Oral Step or initial written step (if authorized by the provisions of this Article) whether to be
represented by the Union or another representative designated by the employee. If the employee
is represented by the Union or another representative, any decision agreed to by the state and

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
ChiefNegotiator



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Counter Proposal- Article 6 (Status Quo)

Fiscal Year 2013-14
January 28,2013

Page 2 of8

Union or the state and the employee's designated representative, shall be binding on the
employee.

(C) Where Union representation is authorized as provided in this Contract and is
requested by an employee, the employee's representative shall be selected from the list of
Stewards, Union Staff Representatives or Union Regional Directors which has been provided to
the state in accordance with Article 5 of this Contract. The employee may also be represented by
an attorney or other representative retained by either the Union or the employee.

(1) If an employee selects a Steward to represent that employee in a grievance
which has been properly filed in accordance with this Article, the Steward may be allowed a
reasonable amount of time off with pay to investigate the grievance at the Oral Step and to
represent the grievant at any Oral Step and Step 1 meetings which are held during regular work
hours. Such time off with pay shall be subject to prior approval by the Steward's immediate
supervisor; however, approval of such time off will not be withheld if the Steward can be
allowed such time off without interfering with, or unduly hampering, the operations of the unit to
which the Steward is regularly assigned. The Steward's immediate supervisor will notify the
grievant's supervisor prior to allowing the Steward time off to investigate the grievance.

(2) Investigations will be conducted in a way that does not interfere with state
operations.

(3) As indicated in Article 5 of this Contract, the Steward in the same work
location or the closest work location to the grievant's work location shall be selected to represent
the employee. In no case shall a Steward be allowed to travel more than 25 miles from his
official work location in order to investigate a grievance. The Union will make a reasonable
effort to ensure that it trains a sufficient number of stewards in order to minimize any such travel.

(4) A Steward who has been selected to represent an employee as provided in
this Article; will be considered a required participant at the Step 1 grievance meeting.

(5) An employee who files a grievance in accordance with this Article, or the
designated spokesperson in a class action grievance, will be considered a required participant at
the Oral Step and Step 1 grievance meetings.

(D) Both the employee and the employee's representative, if any, shall be notified of
the Step 1 meeting. Further, all communication concerning written grievances or their resolution
shall be in writing and a copy shall be sent to both the employee and the employee's
representative.

(E) If the employee is not represented by the Union, any adjustment of the grievance
shall be consistent with the terms of this Contract, the Union shall be given reasonable
opportunity to be present at any meeting called for the resolution of the grievance, and
processing of the grievance will be in accordance with the procedures established in this
Contract. The Union shall not be bound by the decision of any grievance in which the employee

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
ChiefNegotiator



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Counter Proposal - Article 6 (Status Quo)

Fiscal Year 2013-14
January 28,2013

Page 3 of8

chose not to be represented by the Union.
(F) The filing or pendency of any grievance under the provisions of this Article shall

in no way operate to impede, delay or interfere with the right of the state to take the action
complained of, subject, however, to the final disposition of the grievance.

(G) The resolution of a grievance prior to its submission in writing at Step 3 shall not
establish a precedent binding on either the state or the Union in other cases.

SECTION 3 - Procedures

(A) Employee grievances filed in accordance with this Article are to be presented
and handled promptly at the lowest level of supervision having the authority to adjust the
grievances. A grievance may be filed and responded to by facsimile, electronic mail, personal
service, or mail. Grievances are to be filed on the appropriate fonn as contained in Appendix B
ofthis Contract.

(B) Once a grievance is filed, no new violation or issue can be raised.
(C) There shall be no reprisals against any of the participants in the procedures

contained herein by reason of such participation.
(D) If a grievance meeting is held or requires reasonable travel time during the

working hours of any required participant, such participant shall be excused without loss of pay
for that purpose. Attendance at grievance meetings outside of regular working hours shall not be
deemed time worked.

(E) All grievances will be presented at Oral Step, with the following exceptions:
(1) If a grievance arises from the action of an official higher than the Step 1

Management Representative, the grievance shall be filed at Step 2 on the grievance fonn as
contained in Appendix B of this Contract within 21 days following the occurrence of the event
giving rise to the grievance.

(2) A dispute involving the interpretation or application of a provision of this
Contract which gives a right to the Union as an employee organization may be filed by the Union
as a grievance. Such grievance shall be initiated at Step 3 of this procedure, in accordance with
the provisions set forth therein, and received by the Office Manager for the Office of the General
Counsel, Department of Management Services, 4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 160, Tallahassee,
Florida 32399-9050, within 21 days ofthe occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance.

(F) An employee who has not attained pennanent status in his position can only file
non-discipline grievances, which are final and binding at Step 3 as provided in this Article. With
respect to disciplinary grievances, oral reprimands shall not be grievable. An employee who has
attained pennanent status in his position may grieve a written reprimand up to Step 2; the
decision at that level shall be final and binding.

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
ChiefNegotiator



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Counter Proposal - Article 6 (Status Quo)

Fiscal Year 2013-14
January 28,2013

Page 4 of8

(G) Grievances shall be presented and adjusted in the following manner, and no
individual may respond to a grievance at more than one written step. In the event a grievance is
not answered in a timely manner at the preceding step, the state agrees not to remand the
grievance for the purpose of obtaining the answer without the agreement of the Union or the
employee's designated representative, if any.

(1) Oral Discussion
(a) An employee having a grievance may, within 21 days following

the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance, present the grievance orally to his or her
immediate supervisor, stating the specific provision(s) of the Contract allegedly violated, and the
relief requested. The immediate supervisor shall make every effort to resolve the grievance at the
Oral Step, including meeting to discuss the grievance if such meeting is requested by the
employee or the employee's representative.. or if a meeting is deemed necessary by the
supervisor. The supervisor shall communicate a decision to the employee and the employee's
representative, if any, within 14 days following the date the grievance is received at the Oral
Step.

(b) If the grievance is not resolved by such informal discussion, the
employee may, within 21 days after receipt of a timely decision at the Oral Step, file a written
grievance at Step 1 of this procedure.

(c) Failure to communicate the decision in a timely manner shall
permit the employee, the Union, or other designated employee representative where appropriate,
to proceed to the next step.

(d) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits
specified in this step of this procedure may be extended in writing provided there is agreement
by both parties. There shall be no retroactive extensions of time limits.

(2) STEP 1
(a) The employee or the designated employee representative shall file

a written grievance with the Step 1 Management Representative to be received within 21 days
following the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance, or within 21 days of receipt of
the decision at the Oral Step, whichever is later, on the appropriate grievance form as contained
in Appendix B of this Contract, setting forth specifically the complete facts on which the
grievance is based, the specific provision(s) of the Contract allegedly violated, and the relief
requested. All written documents to be considered by the Step 1 Management Representative
shall be submitted with the grievance form.

(b) The Step 1 Management Representative or his designated
representative shall meet to discuss the grievance and shall communicate a decision in writing to
the employee and the employee's representative, if any, within 14 days following the date the

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
ChiefNegotiator



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Counter Proposal - Article 6 (Status Quo)

Fiscal Year 2013-14
January 28, 2013

Page 5 of8

grievance is received at Step 1.
(c) Failure to communicate the decision in a timely manner shall

pennit the employee, the Union, or other designated employee representative where appropriate,
to proceed to the next step.

(d) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits
specified in this step of this procedure may be extended in writing provided there is agreement
by both parties. There shall be no retroactive extensions of time limits.

(3) STEP 2
(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the employee or the

employee's representative may file a written grievance with the Agency Head or designated
representative within 21 days after receipt of the decision at Step 1 provided the Step 1 decision
is received on or before the last valid due date. The grievance shall include a copy of the
grievance fonn submitted at Step 1 and a copy of the Step 1 response, together with all written
documents in support of the grievance. When the grievance is eligible for initiation at Step 2, the
grievance fonn must contain the same infonnation as a grievance filed at Step 1 above.

(b) The Agency Head or designated representative may meet with the
employee and/or the designated Union Staff Representative to discuss the grievance. The
Agency Head or designated representative shall communicate a decision in writing within 21
days following receipt of the written grievance.

(c) Failure to communicate the decision in a timely manner shall
pennit the employee, the Union, or other designated employee representative where appropriate,
to proceed to the next step.

(d) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits
specified in this step of this procedure may be extended in writing provided there is agreement
by both parties. There shall be no retroactive extensions of time limits.

(4) STEP 3
(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 2, the Union President or

the designated member of the Union President's staff, or the employee or designated employee
representative if not represented by the Union, may appeal the Step 2 decision by filing a written
grievance to the Office Manager for the Office of the General Counsel of the Department of
Management Services, 4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 160, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-9050 within
21 days after receipt of the decision at Step 2, provided the Step 2 decision is received on or
before the last valid due date. The grievance shall be filed on the appropriate grievance fonn as
contained in Appendix B of this Contract, setting forth specifically the complete facts on which
the grievance is based, the specific provision(s) of the Contract allegedly violated, the relief

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
ChiefNegotiator



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Counter Proposal - Article 6 (Status Quo)

Fiscal Year 2013-14
January 28, 2013

Page 6 of8

requested, and shall include a copy of the grievance fonn submitted at Steps 1 and 2, together
with all written responses and documents in support of the grievance. The designated
representative of the Department of Management Services may meet with the Union President or
the designated member of the Union President's staff, the employee, or the designated employee
representative if not represented by the union to discuss the grievance. When the grievance is
eligible for initiation at Step 3, the grievance fonn must contain the same infonnation as a
grievance filed at Step 1, above.

(b) The designated representative of the Department of Management
Services shall communicate a decision in writing to the Union President or the designated
member of the Union President's staff if the employee is represented by the union, or to the
employee or the designated employee representative, within 21 days following receipt of the
written grievance. The employee's representative is responsible for providing a copy ofthe Step
3 decision to the employee.

(c) Failure to communicate the decision within the specified time limit
shall pennit the employee, the Union, or other designated employee representative where
appropriate, to proceed to the next step.

(d) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits
specified in this step of this procedure may be extended in writing provided there is agreement
by both parties. There shall be no retroactive extensions of time limits.

(5) GRIEVANCE MEDIATION
The parties may, by written agreement, submit a grievance to mediation to be

conducted by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS), either prior to the
grievance being submitted to arbitration or after it has been submitted but before a hearing is
scheduled. When the parties agree to mediate a grievance, the time limits to file for, or process,
an arbitration are automatically extended for the period necessary to conclude the mediation
process. Either party may withdraw from the mediation process with written notice no later than
five (5) days before a scheduled mediation.

(6) ARBITRATION
(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 3, the Union President or

the designated member of the Union President's staff may appeal the Step 3 decision to
Arbitration by filing a written appeal to arbitration on the appropriate fonn as contained in
Appendix C of this Contract, with the Arbitration Coordinator, Office of the General Counsel for
the Department of Management Services, 4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 160, Tallahassee, Florida
32399-9050 within 45 days after receipt of the decision at Step 3, provided the Step 3 decision is
received on or before the last valid due date. The appeal to arbitration may be filed by facsimile,
electronic mail, personal service, or mail, and shall include a copy of the Step 3 decision. If, at

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
ChiefNegotiator



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Counter Proposal - Article 6 (Status Quo)

Fiscal Year 2013-14
January 28,2013

Page 7 of8

the initial written step, the employee did not elect Union representation, or the Union refused to
represent the employee because the employee was not a dues-paying member of the Union, the
employee may appeal the grievance to Arbitration or may designate another representative to
appeal the Step 3 decision to arbitration on their behalf.

(b) The parties may agree in writing to file related grievances for
hearing before the same arbitrator.

(c) The arbitrator shall be one person from a panel of at least five (5)
arbitrators, mutually selected by the state and the Union to serve in rotation for any case
submitted. The Department of Management Services shall facilitate the scheduling of all
arbitration hearings and shall contact the next arbitrator in the agreed rotation and coordinate the
arbitration hearing time and date.

(d) Arbitration hearings shall be held at times and locations agreed to
by the parties, taking into consideration the availability of evidence, location of witnesses,
existence of appropriate facilities, and other relevant factors. If agreement cannot be reached, the
arbitration hearing shall be held in the City ofTallahassee.

(e) Issues of arbitrability shall be separated from the substantive
issue(s) of the grievance and, whenever possible, determined by a hearing conducted by
conference call. The arbitrator shall have ten (10) days from the hearing to render a decision on
arbitrability. If the decision is that the issue is arbitrable, an arbitrator shall then be selected to
hear the substantive issue(s).

(f) The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the
grievance and, provided the decision is in accordance with his jurisdiction and authority under
this Contract, shall be final and binding on the state, the Union, the grievant(s), and the
employees in the bargaining unit. In considering a grievance, the arbitrator shall be governed by
the following provisions and limitations:

1. The arbitrator shall issue a decision not later 30 days from
the date of the closing of the hearing or the submission ofbriefs, whichever is later.

2. The arbitrator's decision shall be in writing, and shall set
forth the arbitrator's opinion and conclusions on the precise issue(s) submitted.

3. The arbitrator shall have no authority to determine any
other issue, and the arbitrator shall refrain from issuing any statement of opinion or conclusion
not essential to the determination of the issues submitted.

4. The arbitrator shall conform an award to the limitations
imposed by section 447.401, Florida Statutes, and specifically shall not have the power to add to,
subtract from, modify, or alter the terms ofthis Contract.

5. The arbitrator's award may include back pay to the
grievant(s); however, the following limitations shall apply to such monetary awards:

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
ChiefNegotiator



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Counter Proposal- Article 6 (Status Quo)

Fiscal Year 2013-14
January 28,2013

Page 8 of8

a. No award for back pay shall exceed the amount of
pay the employee would otherwise have earned at his regular rate of pay and such back pay shall
not be retroactive to a date earlier than the date of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the
grievance under consideration and in no event more than the time limits permitted for initiation
of the grievance.

b. The award shall not exceed the actual loss to the
grievant and will not include punitive damages.

(g) The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne equally by
the parties; however, each party shall be responsible for compensating and paying the expenses
of its own representatives, attorneys and witnesses.

(h) The Union will not be responsible for costs of an arbitration to
which it was not a party.

SECTION 4 - Time Limits

(A) Failure to initiate, file or appeal a grievance within the time limits specified shall
be deemed a waiver of the grievance.

(B) Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance
to be received within the specified time limit shall permit the employee, the Union, or the
designated employee representative where appropriate, to proceed to the next step.

(C) Claims of either an untimely filing or untimely appeal shall be made at the step in
question.

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
ChiefNegotiator



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Counter Proposal- Article 13

Fiscal Year 2013-14
January 28,2013

Page 1 of2

Article 13
HEALTH AND SAFETY

SECTION 1 - Occupational Safety and Health

(A) It shall be the policy of the state to make every reasonable effort to provide
employees a safe and healthy working environment free from recognized hazards and. comply
with federal law, United States Code, Title 29, Chapter 15, the Occupational Safety and Health
Act (OSHA).

SECTION 2 - Safety Committee

(AB) Where management has created a workplace safety committee in a state
controlled facility, the Union shall select one unit employee of the facility to serve on such
committee.

(BG) Where management has not established a safety committee, both the state and
Union shall work toward the establishment ofone in each state-controlled facility.

SECTION ~~ - Employee Safety

(A) An employee becoming aware of a work-related accident shall immediately notify
the supervisor of the area where the incident occurred.

(B) When an employee believes that an unsafe working condition exists in the work
area, he shall immediately report the condition to the supervisor. The supervisor shall investigate
the report, and make a reasonable effort to take action deemed appropriate. The nature of the
action taken shall be based on the seriousness of the condition. Within 30 days after the report of
unsafe working condition is received, the supervisor will furnish a response to the employee and,
where the employee's report was in writing, the supervisor shall respond in writing.

SECTION~ - Grievability

Complaints which arise under the application or interpretation of this Article shall be
grievable, but only to Step 2 of the Grie>l"ance Procedure of the Contract

SECTION 2,4 - Use of Inmate Labor or Known Criminal Offender Labor

(A) Employees working for any agency, exclusive of the Department of Corrections
and the Department of Juvenile Justice, who are not told at the time of employment in that

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

Date

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
ChiefNegotiator

Date



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Counter Proposal- Article 13

Fiscal Year 2013-14
January 28,2013

Page 2 of2

position that they may be required to work with or supervise inmates or persons known to by the
agency to be under the supervision of a court or a criminal justice agency, may, because of
religious or moral objection, request reassignment to a comparable vacant position not requiring
work with or supervision of inmates or persons known to by the agency to be under the
supervision of a court or criminal justice agency. Such requests shall not be unreasonably denied.

(B) It shall be prohibited for any agency head, or any other officer or employee of an
agency, to take any retaliatory action against an individual who, in accordance with this section,
requests reassignment to a position not requiring work with or supervision of inmates or persons
known to by the agency to be under the supervision of a court or criminal justice agency.

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

Date

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
ChiefNegotiator

Date



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Proposal - Article 18

Fiscal Year 2013-14
January 28,2013

Page 1 of2

Article 18
LEAVES OF ABSENCE, HOURS OF WORK, DISABILITY LEAVE

SECTION 1-7 retain current contract language.

SECTION 8 - Special Compensatory Leave

(A) Earning of Special Compensatory Leave Credits. Special compensatory leave credits may be
earned only in the following instances:

(1) By an employee in the career service for work performed on a holiday as defined in
section 110.117, Florida Statutes, or for work performed during a work period that
includes a holiday, as provided by the Rules of the State Personnel System.

(2) By an employee in the career service for work performed in the employee's assigned
office, facility, or region which is closed pursuant to an Executive Order of the Governor
or any other disaster or emergency condition.

(B) Special compensatory leave credits shall be calculated by multiplying the number of hours
the employee performed work on the qualifying holiday or period ofdeclared emergency times
1.5.

(BC) Special Compensatory Leave Earned Prior to July 1, 2012

An employee may be required to reduce special compensatory leave credit balances.

(GD) Special Compensatory Leave Earned On or After July 1,2012

(l) When :£lwecial compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection (A)(l),
on or after July 1, 2012, which are not cannot be used each year by the employee by the
April 30 or October 31 that immediately succeeds the work period in which the leave is
credited, because ofoperational needs of the agency, the employee shall be paid for the
special compensatory leave credits by multiplying the employee's hourly pay rate times
the number of special compensatory credits, unless the agency and employee agree to
extend the date the credits must be used for an additional 180 days. ee forfeited.

(2) When Sspecial compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection (A)(2),
on or after July 1,2012, which are not cannot be used by the employee within 120
calendar days from the end of the work period in which the leave is credited because of
operational needs of the agency, the employee shall be paid for the special compensatory
leave credits by multiplying the employee's hourly pay rate times the number of special

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
ChiefNegotiator



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Proposal - Article 18

Fiscal Year 2013-14
January 28,2013

Page 2 of2

compensatory credits, unless the agency and employee agree to extend the date the
credits must be used for an additional 180 days shall be forfeited.

(3) Each agency shall schedule employees earning special compensatory leave credits in
a manner that allows all such leave credits earned on or after July 1, 2012, to be used
within the time limits specified in subsections 1 and 2. However, if scheduling such leave
within such time limits would prevent the agency from meeting minimum staffing
requirements needed to ensure public safety, the agency head may extend the time limits
specified in subsections 1 and 2 for up to an additional 180 calendar days. Extensions will
not be allowed for any other reason.

(4) No agency may make a payout ofunused special compensatory leave credits earned on or
after July 1,2012.

(.El}) Unless otherwise prohibited by law or rule, all requests for use of approved leave, other
than administrative leave, shall first be charged to any special compensatory leave credits the
employee has accrued.

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
ChiefNegotiator



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Proposal - Article 25

Fiscal Year 2013-14
February 4,2013

Page 1 of2

ARTICLE 25
WAGES

In order to recruit and retain the excellent personnel who have made the State of Florida
the most efficient state government in United States, the policy of the State of Florida
should be to maintain the earning power of their employees so that their salaries keep up
with inflation. After years where salaries have failed to match inflation, the priority of the
state should be investment in bringing salaries up to their former earning power through
general cost-of-living adjustments (COLA). The last COLA for state employee salaries was
3 percent Oct. 1, 2006. According to the US Bureau of Labor Statistics, the Consumer Price
Index (CPI) at that time was 201.8. In December 2012, the CPI stood at 229.601, an
increase of 13.7 percent. On July 1, 2011, state employees were required to contribute 3
percent to the Florida Retirement System. Since the last COLA, state employees have had
their earning power reduced by 16.7 percent. Although such a large percentage cannot be
recouped in a single year, the state must begin paying down the debt owed to its employees
who have helped balance the budget out of their own salaries and by taking on the work of
laid off co-workers and unfilled positions.

SECTION 1 - Pay Provisions

(A) Pay shall be in aeeordanee 'tVith the Fiseal Year 2012 13 General Appropriations Aet. All
employees of the AFSCME represented bargaining units (Professional, Administrative Clerical,
Operational Services and Human Services) will receive a 5 percent increase, plus applicable
taxes,-to their base rate ofpay on July 1, 2013, with a $1,200 minimum increase.

SECTION 2 - Cash Payout of AHllusl Leave

Permanent Career Service employees will have may be giV'en the option of receiving up to
twenty-four (24) hours of unused annual leave each December, in the form of a cash payout,
subject to, and in accordance with, Section 110.219(7), Florida Statutes. Permanent Career
Service employees in the AFSCME represented bargaining units (Professional,
Administrative/Clerical, Operational Services and Human Services) will have the option of
receiving a payout each December of all unused special compensatory leave earned after July 1,
2012.

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
ChiefNegotiator



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Proposal - Article 25

Fiscal Year 2013-14
February 4,2013

Page 2 of2

SECTION 3 - Savings Sharing Program

Individual An employees or groups of employees may be eligible for monetary awards for ideas
or programs that result in a cost saving to the state, pursuant to section 110.1245(1), Florida
Statutes.

SECTION 4 - Performance Pay

Each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee's exemplary
performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35,
Florida Administrative Code. The granting of merit pay increases should be awarded fairly and
be distributed proportionally to all members of a work unit who have achieved outstanding or
commendable performance. Supervisors will be required to document the objective criteria used
for awarding merit pay increases.

SECTION 5 - Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency
In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2013-14 General
Appropriations Act. each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay
additive of up to 15 percent of the employee's base rate of pay to each employee
temporarily deployed to a facility or area closed due to emergency conditions from another
area of the state that is not closed.

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
ChiefNegotiator



AFSCME Florida Council 79
Union Counter Proposal - Article 34

Fiscal Year 2013-14
January 28,2013

Page 1 of 1

Article 34
DURATION

SECTION 1 - Term

This Contract shall remain in full force and effect through the thirtieth day of June~
2015. The State and the AFSCME agree that changes in any four (4) articles within this
Agreement that AFSCME or the State desire to reopen shall be subject to negotiations for Fiscal
Year 2014-2015.This Contract shall remain in full force during the period of negotiations on a
successor agreement, and may be extended in the manner set forth in the following paragraph.

In the event that the state and the Union fail to secure a successor Contract prior to the
expiration of this Contract, the parties may agree in writing to extend this Contract for any period
of time.

In the event that either party desires to terminate or modify this Contract, written notice
must be given to the other party not less than ten (10) days prior to the desired termination date,
which shall not be before the anniversary date set forth above.

SECTION 2 - Notices

Notices hereunder shall be given by registered or certified mail, and if by the state shall
be addressed to Florida Public Employees Council 79, American Federation of State, County and
Municipal Employees, 3064 Highland Oaks Terrace, Tallahassee, Florida 32301; and if by the
Union shall be addressed to the Chief Negotiator, Department of Management Services, 4050
Esplanade Way, Suite 160, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0950. Either party may, by a like written
notice, change the address to which such notice shall be given. Notices shall be considered to
have been given as of the date shown on the postmark.

SECTION 3 - Emergencies

If it is determined that civil emergency conditions exist, including, but not limited to,
riots, civil disorders, hurricane conditions or similar catastrophes, the provisions of this Contract
maybe suspended by the Governor during the time of the declared emergency, provided that
wage rates and monetary fringe benefits shall not be suspended. It is understood that a declared
emergency may be limited to specific geographic areas, in which case suspension of the terms of
this Contract as provided above would apply only to those employees permanently or
temporarily assigned to such areas.

For the State

Michael Mattimore
State's Chief Labor Negotiator

For AFSCME Florida Council 79

Doug Martin
ChiefNegotiator





FLORIDA POLICE BENEVOLENT
ASSOCIATION, INC.

The Voice ofFlorida's Law Enforcement Officers

February 11,2013

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL

Senator Alan Hays, Co-Chair
Representative Charles Van Zant, Co-Chair
Joint Select Committee on Collective Bargaining

Governmental Operations Subcommittee
Room 218 House Office Building
Tallahassee, Florida 32399

Re: Collective Bargaining Proposals of PBA for
Special Agents Unit

Dear Senator Hays and Representative Van Zant:

Attached you will find the collective bargaining proposals submitted by the Florida Police
Benevolent Association, Inc., to Governor Scott and the Department of Management Services
covering the Special Agents Unit. These proposals are drafted in legislative style with new language
underlined and language the PBA proposes to delete, struck-through.

As an examination of the impasse letter from DMS' chief negotiator indicates, Governor
Scott and the PBA are at impasse on a substantial number of articles. While the PBA believes it is
fair to state that several of the articles will be resolved as negotiations progress, it is equally fair to
state many will not be resolved and will require resolution by the Florida Legislature.

In order to assist you in resolving the impasse, the Florida PBA offers the following
comments:

(1) Information relating to the PBA proposals and the reasons for
such proposals are available from two primary contact persons:
(a) PBA Executive Director, Matt Puckett, matt@f1pba.org, and
(b) PBA General Counsel, Hal Johnson, hal@f1pba.org.

(2) As always, a fair wage adjustment is the number one priority for
the PBA and its membership. Its wage proposal has 2 important
components: (a) a 6% competitive pay adjustment in the
individual officer's base salary, which is a "catch-Up" pay
adjustment in the individual's base salary to recover from the lack
of general wage adjustments over the past several years and the
pension contribution effective in 2011; and (b) a compression
adjustment of3% in the base salary of individual law enforcement
personnel with 7 or more years of service.

300 E. Brevard St., Tallahassee, FL 32301-1218 • www.flpba.org • 850.222.3329 • Toll Free: 1.800.733.3722 • Fax: 850.561.0192



Senator Alan Hays, Co-Chair
Representative Charles Van Zant, Co-Chair
Joint Select Committee on Collective Bargaining
February 11, 2013
Page 2 of2

(3) A second major priority of the PBA is to retain agency
independence in resolving the special compensatory leave
"liability" problem. The PBA has worked hard with several
agencies including FDLE, FHP and FWC to develop programs
that will, over a relatively short period of time, substantially
reduce the amount of special compensatory time the law
enforcement personnel have accumulated. The agencies appear
pleased with the results of these programs as do the agencies' law
enforcement personnel. The PBA and agencies would like the
special compensatory leave reduction programs to continue
through memorandum of understandings reached between PBA
and the agencies.

(4) The Governor and DMS have proposed a pilot program relating to
disciplinary appeals. Currently, career service employees have
two options. The PBA would like to see the two-option system
continue unchanged rather than "test pilot" a single option
disciplinary appeal process.

As previously stated, there remain many other articles at impasse in the proposed collective
bargaining agreement which have not been fully discussed. The PBA will continue to work with the
Governor and DMS to resolve them. In the event agreement on them cannot be reached, then it is the
position ofthe PBA that the "status quo" (old language) be retained for these articles.

Thank you for your consideration of the Florida P.B.A. bargaining proposals. And, please
give serious consideration to granting your law enforcement personnel a wage adjustment that
reflects their dedication and service to the citizens ofFlorida.

Respectfully,

GHJ/dlt

Encl(s)

c: Michael Mattimore, DMS ChiefNegotiator
Matt Puckett, PBA Executive Director
John Love, State Affairs Committee
Heather Williamson, State Affairs Committee
James Futch, FDLEEA Chapter President



FLORIDA POLICE BENEVOLENTASSOCIATION, INC.

State of Florida and Florida P.B.A.
Proposal 1 - November 19, 2012
2013-2014 Negotiations
July 1,2013 through June 30, 2014
SPECIAL AGENT BARGAINING UNIT

The Florida P.B.A. proposes the articles contained in the FY 2012-2013
revised agreement remain unchanged unless specific modifications
(attached) have been submitted.

All modifications are drawn to the FY 2012-2013 revised agreement.
The modifications are prepared in legislative style.

The Florida P.B.A. proposed agreement is attached. [Changes to the
current agreement are found at Articles 5, 6, 18,23,25,26,27,31 and
35.]

Florida Police Benevolent Association, Inc.
300 East Brevard Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301

(850) 222-3329 • (800) 733-3722 • Fax (850) 561-8898



*AGREEMENT
THE STATE OF FLORIDA

and

THE FLORIDA POLICE
BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION

Special Agent Bargaining Unit

Effective July 1, 2012 through
June 30, 2013

Incorporates 2012 Legislative Impasse Resolution
to Articles 5, 25, and 31

All other articles status quo from Fiscal Year 2011-12 Agreement

*TO BE CHANGED ONCE AGREEMENT ON
DURATION AND OTHER ARTICLES IS

REACHED



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Article 1 - Recognition
Article 2 - Gender Reference
Article 3 - Vacant
Article 4 - No Discrimination
Article 5 - Employee Representation and Association Activities (OPEN)
Article 6 - Grievance Procedure (OPEN)
Article 7 - Internal Investigations and Disciplinary Actions
Article 8 - Workforce Reduction
Article 9 - Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station, Promotion
Article 10 - Grooming

.Article 11 - Classification Review
Article 12 - Personnel Records
Article 13 - Safety
Article 14 - Perfonnance Review
Article 15 - Seniority
Article 16 - Employment Outside State Government
Article 17 - Department Vehicles
Article 18 - Leave (OPEN)
Article 19 - Personal Property Replacement and/or Reimbursement
Article 20 - Educational Assistance Plan
Article 21 - Acting Ranks
Article 22 - Job-Connected Disability
Article 23 - Workday, Workweek and Overtime (OPEN)
Article 24 - On-Call, Call-Back, and Court Appearances
Article 25 - Wages (OPEN)
Article 26 - Equipment and Service Awards (OPEN)
Article 27 - Insurance Benefits (OPEN)
Article 28 - Travel Expenses
Article 29 - Drug Testing
Article 30 - No Strike
Article 31 - VaeantRetirement (OPEN)
Article 32 - Management Rights
Article 33 - Entire Agreement
Article 34 - Savings Clause
Article 35 - Duration (OPEN)
Appendix A - Special Agent Unit Description

1



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is between the State of Florida (hereinafter called the "State") and
the FLORIDA POLICE BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION, INC. (hereinafter called the
"Association") representing the employees in the Special Agent bargaining Unit.

PREAMBLE

WHEREAS, it is recognized by the parties hereto that the declared public policy of the
State and the purpose of Part II, Chapter 447, Florida Statutes, is to provide statutory
implementation of Section 6, Article I of the Constitution of the State of Florida, and to promote
harmonious and cooperative relationships between State government and its employees, both
collectively and individually, and to protect the public by assuring, at all times, the orderly and
uninterrupted operations and functions of State Government; and

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the parties of this Agreement to set forth the entire
agreement with respect to matters within the scope of negotiations; and

WHEREAS, the above language is a statement of intent and, therefore, not subject to the
grievance procedure as outlined in Article 6;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the
parties do agree as follows:

Article 1
RECOGNITION

(A) The State hereby recognizes the Florida Police Benevolent Association, Inc., as the
exclusive representative for the purposes of collective bargaining with respect to wages, hours,
and terms and conditions of employment for all employees included in the Special Agent
bargaining Unit.

(B) The bargaining Unit for which this recognition is accorded is as defined in the
Certification issued by the Florida Public Employees Relations Commission, Certification No.
1228.

(C) This Agreement includes all full-time and part-time Career Service employees in the
classifications and positions listed in Appendix A of this Agreement.

Article 2
GENDER REFERENCE

All references in this Agreement to employees of the male gender are used for
convenience only and shall be construed to include both male and female employees.

Article 3
VACANT

2



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

Article 4
NO DISCRIMINATION

SECTION 1- Non-Discrimination Policy - State-Federal Law

(A) The State and the Association shall not discriminate against any employee for any
reason prohibited under Florida Statutes or any Federal Law.

(B) The Association shall have the right to consult on issues of unlawful discrimination
with the Step 1 Management Representative and/or his designee(s), up through the Step 2
Management Representative and/or his designee(s), to the Department of Management Services.

(C) Any claim of unlawful discrimination by an employee against the State, its officials
or representatives, except for grievances related to Association membership, shall only be subject
to the method of review prescribed by law or by rules and regulations having the force and effect
oflaw.

(D) The Association agrees to support the State's current affirmative action programs and
efforts to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act, as well as other initiatives to avoid
unlawful discrimination.

SECTION 2 - Non-Discrimination Policy - Association Membership

Neither the State nor the Association shall interfere with the right of law enforcement
employees covered by this Agreement to become or refrain from becoming members of the
Association, and neither the State nor the Association shall discriminate against any such
employee because of membership or non-membership in any employee organization.

Article 5 2(J.J2 J.,egisliHive !/HfJlISse R:es91uti9H
EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATION AND ASSOCIATION ACTIVITIES

SECTION 1 - Definitions

(A) The term "employee" as used in this Agreement, shall mean an employee
included in the Special Agent bargaining unit represented by the Florida Police Benevolent
Association, Inc. (Association).

(B) The term "Grievance Representative," as used in this Agreement, shall mean an
employee who has been designated by the President of the Association to investigate grievances
at the Oral Step, and to represent a grievant at the Oral Step and Step 1 meetings on grievances
which have been properly filed under Article 6 of this Agreement, when the Association has
been selected as the employee's representative.

SECTION 2 - Representation

(A) The Association shall select one (1) employee as an Association Grievance
Representative per region as defined by the Florida Department of Law Enforcement, and shall
furnish to the state and keep up-to-date a list of all such employees authorized to act as
Grievance Representatives. In addition, the Association shall furnish to the state and keep up-to
date a list of Association Staff Representatives. The state will not recognize a grievance or staff
representative whose name does not appear on the appropriate list. Where Association

3



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

representation is requested by an employee, the representative shall be a person so selected and
designated by the Association.

(B) Where Association representation is not requested by the employee, an Association
Grievance Representative shall be notified of and be given an opportunity to be present at any
meeting held concerning the grievance.

SECTION 3 - Representative Access

The state agrees that accredited representatives of the Association shall have access to the
premises of the state which are available to the public. If any area of the state's premises is
restricted to the public, permission must be requested to enter such areas and such permission
will not be unreasonably denied. Such access shall be during the regular working hours of the
employee and shall be restricted to matters related to the application of this Agreement.

SECTION 4 - Academy Access

Where the agency operates its own Academy and conducts entry-level Special Agent
training, a representative of the Association, accompanied by a representative of the Executive
Director, will be permitted to address each entry-level Special Agent class during class time to
provide each recruit a copy of the current Special Agent Unit Agreement and to discuss the
provisions of that Agreement. This presentation will not last longer than 30 minutes unless a
longer period is agreed to by the Association and the agency, and may be made only once per
class at a time mutually selected in advance by the Association, the representative of the
Executive Director, and the Special Agent Unit Head or designee.

It is understood by the parties that the Association will not use this time to solicit new
members. Any violation of this provision may result in the revocation of this section of the
Agreement.

SECTION 5 - Consultation

(A) Upon request by the designated Association Staff Representative, the Secretary of the
Department of Management Services and/or designated representative(s) shall make a good faith
effort to meet and consult on a quarterly basis with three (3) Association representatives. Such
meetings shall be held at a time and place designated by the Department of Management
Services.

(B) Upon request by the designated Association Staff Representative, but not more often
than once in each calendar month, the Executive Director and/or designated representatives shall
meet and consult with not more than two (2) Association representatives from the Agency and
the Association Staff Representative. Such meetings shall be held at a time and place designated
by the Executive Director.

(C) Upon request by the designated Association Staff Representative, but not more than
once in each calendar month, the Step 1 Management Representative shall make a good faith
effort to meet and consult with the Association Staff Representative and not more than two (2)
Association representatives from the Agency. Such meetings shall be held at a time and place to
be designated by the Step 1 Management Representative.

(D) All consultation meetings will be scheduled after giving due consideration to the
availability and work location of all parties. If a consultation meeting is held or requires

4



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

reasonable travel time during the working hours of any employee participant, such participant
shall be granted administrative leave for that purpose. Attendance at the consultation meeting
outside of regular working hours shall not be deemed time worked.

(E) The purpose of all consultation meetings shall be to discuss matters relating to the
administration of this Agreement and agency law enforcement activities which affect employees,
and no such meeting shall be used for the purpose of discussing pending grievances or for
negotiation purposes. No later than three (3) calendar days prior to the scheduled meeting date,
the parties shall exchange agenda indicating the matters they wish to discuss.

SECTION 6 - Bulletin Boards

(A) Where requested in writing, the state agrees to furnish in a permanent state-controlled
facility to which any employees are assigned, wall space not to exceed 24 x 36 inches for

• Association-purchased bulletin boards of an equal size. Where the Association currently
maintains bulletin boards, that practice shall continue.

(B) When requested in writing, the state agrees to furnish at an academy in an agency
controlled facility, wall space not to exceed 24 x 36 inches for an Association-purchased bulletin
board.

(C) The use of Association bulletin board space is limited to the following notices:

(1) Recreation and social affairs of the Association,

(2) Association meetings,

(3) Association elections,

(4) Reports of Association committees,

(5) Association benefit programs,

(6) Current Association contract,

(7) Training and educational opportunities, and

(8) Other materials pertaining to the welfare of Association members.

(D) Notices posted on these bulletin boards shall not contain anything reflecting
adversely on the state, or any of its officers or employees, nor shall any posted material violate or
have the effect of violating any law, rule, or regulation.

(E) Notices posted must be dated and bear the signature of the Association's authorized
representative.

(F) A violation of these provisions by an Association authorized representative shall be a
basis for removal of bulletin board privileges by the Department of Management Services.

SECTION 7 - Employee Lists

(A) Upon request of the designated Association Staff Representative, the state will, on no
more than a quarterly basis, provide the Association with a list giving the name, work address on
file, classification title, and gross salary for each employee.

(B) When an employee resigns, is terminated, retires normally, is retired by disability, or
is transferred, promoted or demoted out of the bargaining unit, the state shall promptly notify the

5



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

Association, giving the employee's name and agency.

SECTION 8 - Occupation Profiles and Rules

(A) The state will maintain on the Department of Management Services' website the
occupation profiles and the Rules of the State Personnel System.

(B) In instances where the state determines that a revision to an occupation profile or
occupational level for positions covered by this Agreement is needed, the Department of
Management Services shall notify the Association in writing of the proposed changes. This
procedure shall not constitute a waiver of the Association's right to bargain over such matters in
accordance with Chapter 447, Part II, Florida Statutes and applicable law. The Association shall
notify the Department of Management Services in writing within seven (7) calendar days of its
receipt of written notification from the Department, of its comments concerning the proposed
change(s) or its desire to discuss the proposed change(s). Failure of the Association to notify the
Department of Management Services within the specified period shall constitute a waiver of the
right to discuss the change(s).

SECTION 9 - Negotiations

(A) The Association agrees that all collective bargaining is to be conducted with state
representatives designated for that purpose by the Governor, as chief executive officer. While
negotiating meetings shall normally be held in Tallahassee, the state and the Association may
agree to meet elsewhere at a state facility or other location which involves no rental cost to the
state. There shall he no negotiation by the Association at any other level of state government.

(B) The Association may designate certain employees to serve as its Negotiation
Committee, and such employees will be granted administrative leave to attend negotiating
sessions with the state. An employee serving on the Negotiation Committee shall also be granted
a maximum of eight (8) hours administrative leave to attend a negotiation preparatory meeting to
be held the calendar day immediately preceding each scheduled negotiation session, provided
that the negotiation preparatory meeting is held on what would otherwise be the employee's
normal workday. No employee shall be credited with more than the number of hours in the
employee's regular workday for any day the employee is in negotiations. No more than three (3)
employees that may attend a preparatory meeting or negotiating session. The time in attendance
at such preparatory meetings and negotiating sessions shall not be counted as hours worked for
the purpose of computing compensatory time or overtime. The agency shall not reimburse the
employee for travel, meals, lodging, or any expense incurred in connection with attendance at
preparatory meetings or negotiating sessions.

(C) The selection of an employee shall not unduly hamper the operations of the work
unit.

SECTION 9 - Changes to Policies

CA) The State shall provide reasonable notice to the PBA of amendments to existing policies
that result in change in a mandatory subject of bargaining.

(B) After notice, the PBA may consult with the DHSMV on a change in a mandatory

6



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

subject of bargaining provided that the PBA makes a request in a reasonable timeframe. If
consultation is unsuccessful, the matter will be referred to the Department of Management
Services to bargain over the proposed change.

eCl Where the proposed changes affect the entire bargaining unit and relate to mandatory
subjects of bargaining, the PBA and the State shall meet to bargain the proposed changes.

ill) Nothing herein shall preclude the PBA from filing a grievance if the proposed changes
violate the Agreement.

Article 6
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

It is the policy of the State and the Association to encourage informal discussions of
complaints between management and employees covered by this Agreement, as well as between
supervisors and covered employees. Such discussions should be held with view to reaching an
understanding, which will resolve the matter in a manner satisfactory to the employee, without
need for recourse to the formal grievance procedure prescribed by this Article.

SECTION 1- Definitions

As used in this Article:

(A) "Grievance" shall mean a dispute involving the interpretation or application of the
specific provisions of this Agreement, except as exclusions are noted in this Agreement.

(B) "Employee" shall mean a Special Agent, Special Agent Trainee, or a group of such
employees having the same grievance. In the case of a group of employees, one shall be
designated by the group to act as spokesperson and to be responsible for processing the
grievance.

(C) "Days" shall mean calendar days, excluding any day observed as a holiday pursuant
to the Personnel Rules.

SECTION 2 - Election of Remedy and Representation

(A) If an employee or the Association has a grievance which may be processed under this
Article and which may also be appealed to the Florida Public Employees Relations Commission,
the employee or the Association shall elect at the outset, which procedure is to be used and such
election shall be binding on the employee or the Association. In the case of any duplicate filing,
the action first filed will be the one processed.

(B) An employee who decides to use this Grievance Procedure shall indicate at Step I (or
the initial written step if authorized by the provisions of this Article) whether or not he shall be
represented by the Association. When the employee has elected Association representation, both
the employee and the Association Representative shall be notified of any Step 1 meeting.
Further, any written communication concerning the grievance or its resolution shall be sent to
both the employee and the Association representative, and any decision mutually agreed to by
the State and the Association shall be binding on the employee.

(C) If the employee is not represented by the Association, any adjustment of the

7



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

grievance shall be consistent with the terms of this collective bargaining Agreement. The
Association shall be given reasonable opportunity to be present at any meeting called for the
resolution of such grievance. An employee using this procedure in the processing of a grievance
will be bound by the procedure established by the parties to the Agreement. The Association
shall not be bound by the decision of any grievance or arbitration in which the employee was not
represented by the Association.

SECTION 3 - Procedures

(A) Employee grievances filed in accordance with this Article should be presented and
handled promptly at the lowest level of management having the authority to adjust the
grievances.

(B) There shall be no reprisals against any of the participants in the procedures contained
herein by reason of such participation.

(C) Except for suspensions, the filing or pendency of any grievance under the provisions
of this Article shall in no way operate to impede, delay or interfere with the right of the State to
take the action complained of; subject, however, to the final disposition of the grievance.
Suspensions shall not be imposed until the final disposition of the grievance, if any, except
where such suspension is made pending the outcome of a criminal investigation. The employee
shall notice the agency head or his designated representative of his intention to grieve a
suspension within seven (7) days of the receipt of the final notice from the agency. The
employee's failure to do so shall permit the agency to proceed with the suspension.

(D) OHee a grievaHee is preseHted, HO Hew violatiOH or issue eaH be raised. Once a
grievance is presented, no new violation or issue can be raised, unless the Parties mutually agree
in writing to revise or amend the alleged violations or issues or for good cause but in no event
less than seven (7) days prior to any arbitration hearing. When an issue is unchanged, but it is
determined that an article, section or paragraph of the Agreement has been cited imprecisely or
erroneously by the employee, then the employee shall have the right to amend that part of his
grievance.

(E) The resolution of a grievance prior to its submission in writing at Step 3 shall not
establish a precedent binding on either the Association or the State in other cases.

(F) If a grievance meeting is held or requires reasonable travel time during the working
hours of any required participant, such participant shall be excused without loss of pay for that
purpose. Attendance at grievance meetings outside of the regular working hours shall not be
deemed time worked.

(0) Grie'\'aHees shall be preseHted aHd adjusted iH the follO'i'liHg fflaHHer, aHd' HO OHe
iHdividual fflay respoHd to a grie1iaHee at fflore thaH OHe ",;ritteH step.Grievances and grievance
responses may be filed by hand-delivery, mail (including e-mail), courier, or electronic facsimile.
If sent via electronic facsimile, the burden shall be on the sending Party to confirm the correct
electronic facsimile number before transmission. Documents shall be deemed filed upon receipt
during regular business hours (8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.). Documents received after business hours
shall be considered received the next business day.

8



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

(1) Oral Discussion

(a) An employee having a grievance may, within fourteen (14) days
following the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance, present the grievance orally to
the management representative who has the authority to adjust the grievance, for informal
discussion, and the management representative shall make every effort to resolve the grievance
promptly.

(b) If the grievance is not resolved by such informal discussion, the
employee may, within fourteen (14) days after the date of that discussion, submit a formal
grievance at Step 1 of this procedure.

(2) Step 1

(a) In filing a grievance at Step 1, the employee or his designated
representative shall submit to the Step 1 Management Representative a grievance form setting
forth specifically the complete facts on which the grievance is based, the specific provision or
provisions of the Agreement allegedly violated, and the relief requested.

(b) The Step 1 Management Representative or his designee shall
communicate a decision in writing to the employee and to the Association Grievance
Representative, if any, within fourteen (14) days following receipt of the grievance form.

(3) Step 2

(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the employee or his
designated representative may submit it in writing to the Agency Head or his designated
representative within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the decision at Step 1. When the
grievance is eligible for initiation at Step 2, the Grievance form must contain the same
information as a grievance filed at Step 1 above. The Agency Head or his designated
representative may have a meeting with the employee, and/or with an Association Grievance
Representative, at the employee's option, to discuss the grievance.

(b) The Agency Head or his designated representative shall communicate
a decision in writing to the employee and to the Association Grievance Representative within
twenty-one (21) days following receipt of the written grievance.

(4) Step 3

Step 3 shall serve as the final and binding step for all matters, which are
grievable, but not arbitrable, under this Agreement.

(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 2, the employee or his
designated representative may submit the grievance in writing to the Department of Management
Services within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the decision at Step 2. The grievance shall
include a copy of the grievance forms submitted at Steps 1 and 2, together with all written
responses and documents in support of the grievance. When the grievance is eligible for
initiation at Step 3, the grievance form must contain the same information as a grievance filed at
Step 1 above.

(b) The Department of Management Services may have a meeting with the
Association Staff Representative or his designee, to discuss the grievance. The Department of

9



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

Management Services shall communicate a decision in writing to the employee and to the
Association Staff Representative within twenty-one (21) days following receipt of the written
grIevance.

(5) Step 4 - Arbitration

(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 3, the Association
representative may appeal the grievance in writing to arbitration on a form to be supplied by the
State, within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the decision at Step 3. If, at the initial written
step, the Association refused to represent the employee because he was not a dues-paying
member of the Association, the employee may appeal the grievance to arbitration.

(b) The arbitrator shall be one person from a panel of three (3) permanent
arbitrators, mutually selected by the State and the Association to serve in rotation for any case or
cases submitted.

(c) The parties may, by mutual agreement in writing, submit related
grievances for hearing before the same arbitrator.

(d) Arbitration hearings shall be held at times and locations mutually
agreed to by the parties. Under normal circumstances hearings will be held in Tallahassee;
however, selection of the site shall take into account the availability of evidence, location of
witnesses and existence of appropriate facilities.

(e) The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the
grievance and, provided the decision is in accordance with his jurisdiction and authority under
this Agreement, shall be final and binding on the State, the Association, the grievant(s), and the
employees in the bargaining Unit. In considering a grievance the arbitrator shall be governed by
the following provisions and limitations:

1. The arbitrator shall issue his decision not later than thirty (30)
days from the date of the closing of the hearing or the submission of briefs, whichever is later.

2. The arbitrator's decision shall be in writing, and shall set forth
the arbitrator's opinion and conclusions on the issue(s) submitted.

3. The arbitrator shall have no authority to determine any other
issue, and shall refrain from issuing any statement of opinion or conclusion not essential to the
determination of the issues submitted.

4. The arbitrator shall limit his decision strictly to the application
and interpretation of the specific provisions ofthis Agreement.

5. The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make any
decisions:

a. Contrary to or inconsistent with, adding to, subtracting
from, or modifying, altering or ignoring in any way, the terms of this Agreement, or of
applicable law or rules or regulations having the force and effect of law.

b. Limiting or interfering in any way with the powers,
duties and responsibilities of the State under its Constitution, applicable law, and rules and
regulations having the force and effect of law, except as such powers, duties and responsibilities

10



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

have been abridged, delegated or modified by the expressed provisions of this Agreement.

6. The arbitrator's award may include back pay to the grievant(s);
however, the following limitations shall apply to such monetary awards:

a. No award for back pay shall exceed the amount of pay
the employee would otherwise have earned at his regular rate of pay and such back pay shall not
be retroactive to a date earlier than the date of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the
grievance under consideration and in no event more than the time limits permitted for initiation
of the grievance.

b. The award shall not exceed the actual loss to the
grievant, will not include punitive damages, and will be reduced by the amount of wages earned
from other sources and/or unemployment compensation received by the employee during the
period oftime affected by the award.

(f) The reasonable fees and expenses ofthe arbitrator shall be borne solely
by the party who fails to prevail in the hearing; however, each party shall be responsible for
compensating and paying the expenses of its own representatives, attorneys and witnesses.

(g) The Association will not be responsible for costs of an arbitration to
which it was not a party.

SECTION 4 - Time Limits

(A) Failure to initiate a grievance within the time limits in Section 3 above shall be
deemed a waiver ofthe grievance. Failure at any step of this procedure to submit a grievance to
the next step within the specified time limits shall be deemed to be acceptance of the decision at
that step.

(B) Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance
within the specified time limits shall permit the employee, or the Association where appropriate,
to proceed to the next step. A Step 2 or Step 3 answer that is not received by the Association by
the written, agreed-to deadline does not alter the time limits for appealing the grievance to the
next step.

(C) The number of days indicated at each step should be considered as a maximum, and
every effort should be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits specified in any
step of this procedure may be extended, in any specific instance, by mutual agreement.

(D) Claims of either an untimely filing or untimely appeal shall be made at the step in
question.

SECTION 5 - Exceptions

(A) Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to permit
the Association or an employee to process a grievance (1) in behalf of any employee without his
consent, or (2) with respect to any matter which is the subject of a grievance, appeal,
administrative action before a government board or agency, or court proceeding, brought by an
individual employee or group of employees, or by the Association.

(B) All grievances will be presented at the initial step with the following exceptions:

(1) If a grievance arises from the action of an official higher than the Step 1

11



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

Management Representative, the grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 or 3, as appropriate, by
submitting a grievance form as set forth in Step 1 within fourteen (14) days following the
occurrence giving rise to the grievance.

(2) The Association shall have the right to bring a class action grievance on behalf
of bargaining Unit employees in its own name, concerning disputes relating to the interpretation
or application of this Agreement. Such grievance shall not include disciplinary actions taken
against an employee. The Association's election to proceed under this Article shall preclude it
from proceeding in another forum on the same issue. Such grievance shall be initiated at Step 2
of this procedure, in accordance with the provisions set forth herein, within fourteen (14) days of
the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance.

(3) Any employee who has not attained permanent status in the Career Service
can only bring non-discipline grievances to Step 3 as provided for in this Article.

Article 7
INTERNAL INVESTIGATIONS AND DISCIPLINARY ACTION

SECTION 1- Internal Investigations

(A) The parties recognize that law enforcement personnel occupy a special place in
American society. Therefore, it is understood that the State has the right to expect that a
professional standard of conduct be adhered to by all law enforcement personnel regardless of
rank or assignment. Since internal investigations may be undertaken to inquire into complaints
of law enforcement misconduct, the State reserves the right to conduct such investigations to
uncover the facts in each case, but expressly agrees to carefully guard and protect the rights and
dignity of accused personnel. In the course of any internal investigation, the investigative
methods employed will be consistent with the law.

(B) When an allegation is made against an employee, the State will make every
reasonable effort to ensure that the allegation and related statements are reduced to writing,
under oath and signed. An internal investigation may be opened on the basis of an anonymous
or unwritten complaint if, following a preliminary review of the allegations, the agency
determines there is a reasonable basis to initiate the investigation.

(C) Any employee while under investigation and subject to interrogation by members of
the Department of Law Enforcement for any reason which could lead to disciplinary action,
demotion, or dismissal, shall be interrogated under the conditions as established, and shall have
the rights and privileges afforded, by Sections 112.532 and 112.533, Florida Statutes. Failure of
the Department to comply with Sections 112.532 and 112.533, Florida Statutes, shall be subject
to the grievance procedure in Article 6, but only through Step 2.

(D) In cases where an agency determines that the employee's absence from the work
location is essential to the investigation and the employee cannot be reassigned to other duties
pending completion of the investigation, the employee shall be placed on administrative leave
pending investigation, such leave shall be in accordance with Chapter 60L-34, Florida
Administrative Code.

(E) Unless required by statute, no employee shall be required to submit toa polygraph
test or any device designed to measure the truthfulness of his responses during an investigation

12



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

of a complaint or allegation.

(F) Only sustained findings may be inserted in personnel records. Unfounded findings
shall not be inserted in permanent personnel records or referred to in performance reviews.
Nothing in this Section shall obligate the State to violate or act in a manner contrary to Chapter
119, Florida Statutes.

(G) The State shall ensure that persons who investigate charges against law enforcement
employees are aware of, and in good faith abide by, the requirements of Sections 112.532 and
112.533, Florida Statutes.

SECTION 2 - Disciplinary Action

(A) An employee who has permanent status in the Career Service System may be
disciplined only for just cause. Cause shall include, but is not limited to poor performance,
negligence, inefficiency or inability to perform assigned duties, insubordination, violation of
provisions of law or agency rules, conduct unbecoming a public employee, misconduct, habitual
drug abuse, or conviction of any crime. The agency head shall ensure that all employees of the
agency have reasonable access to the agency's personnel manual.

(B) If filed within fourteen (14) calendar days from the date of receipt of notice from the
agency, by personal delivery or by certified mail, return receipt requested, a complaint by an
employee with permanent status in the Career Service concerning a reduction in base pay,
suspension, demotion, or dismissal may be grieved at Step 2 and processed through the
Arbitration Step without review at Step 3, in accordance with the grievance procedure in Article
6 of this Agreement. Written reprimands shall be subject to the grievance procedure in Article 6
but only through at Step 3.

(C) An employee who has not attained permanent status in the Career Service System
shall not have access to the grievance procedure in Article 6 when disciplined.

(D) Each employee shall be furnished a copy of all disciplinary actions placed in his
official personnel file and shall be permitted to respond thereto.

(E) An employee may request that an Association Staff Representative be present during
any disciplinary investigation meeting in which the employee is being questioned relative to
alleged misconduct of the employee, or during a predetermination conference in which
suspension, demotion, or dismissal of the employee is being considered.

(F) An oral reprimand shall not be considered in determining progressive discipline,
provided that the employee is not disciplined for the same offense during the succeeding twelve
(12) months from the date of issuance, and a written reprimand shall not be considered in
determining progressive discipline, provided that the employee is not disciplined for the same
offense during the succeeding twenty-four (24) months for the date of issuance, and further
provided that the oral or written reprimands were not for a major offense which could have
resulted in the employee's dismissal.

Article 8
WORKFORCE REDUCTION

SECTION 1-Layoffs

13



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

(A) When bargaining Unit employees are to be laid off, the State shall implement such
layoff in the following manner:

(l) The competitive area for the bargaining unit shall be statewide unless the
Department and Association agree otherwise.

(2) Layoff shall be by class or occupational level within the Special Agent unit.

(3) Any employee who does not have Career Service status may be laid off
without applying the provision for retention rights.

(4) No employee with permanent status in the affected class shall be laid offwhile
an employee who does not hold permanent status is serving in that class or level unless the
permanent employee does not elect to exercise his retention rights or does not meet selective
competition criteria.

(5) All employees who have permanent status in the affected class or level shall
be ranked in a layoff list based on the total retention points derived as follows:

(a) Length-of-service retention points shall be based on one point for each
month of continuous service in a Career Service position based on the five years immediately
prior to the agency's established cutoff date for the determining layoff.

(l) An employee who resigns from one Career Service position to
accept employment in another Career Service position is not considered to have a break in
services if such break is not in excess of 31 calendar days.

(2) An employee who has been laid off and is reemployed within
one year from the date of layoff, shall not be considered to have a break in service.

(3) Moving from Career Service to Selected Exempt Service or
Senior Management Service and back to Career Service does not constitute a break in service
unless the employee's break between services is more than 31 days. Only the time spent in
Career Service can be counted in calculating retention points.

(b) Retention points deducted for performance not meeting performance
standards or work expectations defined for the position shall be based on the five years
immediately prior to the agency's established cutoff date. Five points shall be deducted from the
length of service points for each month in which performance was below standards. In the case
of reassignment or demotion to a class within a series, reduction of retention points shall be
calculated in the same manner for a class in a series as for a class outside a series.

(6) The layoff list shall be prepared by totaling retention points. Employees
eligible for veteran's preference pursuant to Section 295.07(1)(a) or (b), Florida Statutes, shall
have ten percent added to their total retention points, and those eligible pursuant to Section
295.07(l)(c) or (d) shall have five percent added.

(7) The employee with the highest total retention points is placed at the top of the
list and the employee with the lowest total retention points is placed at the bottom of the list.

(8) The employee at the top of the list shall bump the employee at the bottom of
the list. The next highest employee on the list and the remaining employees shall be handled in
the same manner until the total number of filled positions in the class to be abolished is

14



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

complete.

(9) Should two or more employees have the same combined total retention points,
the order of layoff shall be determined by giving preference for retention in the following
sequence:

(a) The employee with the longest service in the affected class.

(b) The employee with the longest continuous Career Service.

(c) The employee who is entitled to veteran's preference pursuant to
Section 295.07(1), Florida Statutes.

(10) An employee who has Career Service status and who is to be laid off shall be
given at least 14 calendar days notice of such layoff in lieu thereof, two weeks pay for a
combination of days notice or pay, in lieu of the full fourteen calendars days notice, to be paid at
the employee's current hourly base rate of pay. The notice of layoff shall be in writing sent to
the employee by certified mail, return receipt requested. Within seven calendar days after
receiving the notice of layoff, the employee shall have the right to request a reassignment within
the competitive area in lieu of layoff to another position. Such request must be in writing.

(11) An employee's request for reassignment or demotion shall be granted unless
it would cause the layoff of another employee who possesses a greater total of retention points.

(12) An employee who is adversely affected as a result of another employee
having a greater number of retention points shall have the same right of reassignment or
demotion under the same procedures provided in this section.

(13) If an employee requests a reassignment or demotion in lieu of layoff, the
same formula and criteria for establishing retention points for that class shall be used as
prescribed in this section.

SECTION 2 - Recall

(A) When a vacancy occurs or a new position is established, laid off employees shall be
recalled in the following manner:

(1) For one year following lay-off, when a position is to be filled, or a new
position is established in the same agency and in the same class within the affected competitive
area, the laid off employees with the highest number of retention points shall be offered
reemployment and subsequent offers shall be made in the order of the employee's total retention
points. Reemployment of such employees shall be with permanent status. An employee who
refuses such offer of employment shall forfeit any rights to subsequent placement offers as
provided in this subsection.

(2) An employee who accepts a voluntary demotion in lieu of layoff and is
subsequently promoted to a position in the same class in the same agency from which the
employees was demoted in lieu of layoff, shall be promoted with permanent status.

(3) Under no circumstances is a layoff to be considered a disciplinary action, and
in the event an employee elects to appeal the action taken, such appeal must be based on whether
the layoffwas in accordance with the provisions of this article.

15



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

SECTION 3 - Retirement Benefits

Pursuant to Section 121.021(38), Florida Statutes, an absence from the employer's payroll
for a period of not to exceed twelve (12) calendar months due to a "layoff" by the State shall not
constitute a break in the continuous service requirement as provided in Section 121.021, Florida
Statutes, for special risk members.

SECTION 4 - Job Security

(A) The State shall make a reasonable effort to notify the Association at least thirty (30)
days in advance of classes within the bargaining unit that will be involved in a layoff. Prior to
the actual layoff, the State will meet with the Association to discuss the effect of the layoff on
the employees involved.

(B) At least thirty (30) days prior to affecting a planned organizational change which will
result in the movement of positions out of the bargaining unit, or in the demotion of Unit
employees, the agency will notify the Department of Management Services of the changes. If
the Department of Management Services determines that bargaining Unit employees are
impacted by the changes under Chapter 447, Florida Statutes, it will notify the Association of the
changes.

Article 9
REASSIGNMENT, TRANSFER, CHANGE IN DUTY STATION, PROMOTION

It is the intent of the State and the Association that the minimum initial service obligation
for Unit members shall be twenty-four (24) months. Employees who have fulfilled their
minimum initial service obligations shall have the opportunity to request reassignment, transfer,
or a change in duty station in accordance with the provisions of this Article; however, the State
retains the right to determine the nature and location of work assignments based upon staffing
needs.

SECTION 1 - Definitions

As used in this Article:

(A) "Change in Duty Station" shall mean the moving of an employee to a duty station
located within fifty (50) miles of his current duty station.

(B) "Duty station" shall mean the place which is designated as an employee's official
headquarters.

(C) "Occupational level" shall mean the same level within the employee's current
occupation within the State classification system.

(D) "Reassignment" shall mean the moving of an employee from a position in one
class/occupationallevel to a different position in the same class/occupationallevel with the same
essential knowledge, skills & abilities, regardless of the location of the position.

(E) "Transfer" shall mean the moving of an employee from one geographic area of the
State to a different geographic location which is in excess of fifty (50) miles from the employee's
current duty station.

16



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

SECTION 2 - Procedures and Exceptions

(A) An employee who has completed the twenty-four (24) month minimum service
obligation in his initial job assignment may apply for a reassignment on a Request for
Reassignment Form (supplied by the Agency). Such Requests shall indicate the county(ies)
and/or duty station to which the employee would like to be reassigned.

(B) An employee may submit a Request for Reassignment Form at any time; however, all
such Requests shall expire on June 30 of each calendar year. Requests for reassignment for the
next fiscal year may, be filed on June I of the preceding fiscal year.

(C) All Request for Reassignment Forms shall be submitted to the appropriate Executive
Council member who shall be responsible for furnishing a copy of each such Request to the
management representatives who have the authority to make employee hiring decisions in the
county and duty station to which the employee has requested reassignment. The employee shall
provide a copy of the Request to the Association at the time it is filed with the agency.

(D) Except where a vacancy is filled by demotion, the management representative having
hiring authority for that vacancy shall give first consideration to those employees who have
submitted a Request for Reassignment Form; provided, however, that employees whose Request
for Reassignment is not submitted by the first day of the month shall not be considered for
vacancies which occur during that month.

(E) The hiring authority shall normally fill a permanent vacancy with the employee who
has the greatest length of service in the class/occupational level and who has a Request for
Reassignment Form on file for the county in which the vacancy exists. The parties agree,
however, that other factors, such as employees' work history and agency needs, may be taken
into consideration in making the decision as to whether or not the employee with the greatest
length of service in the class/occupational level will be placed in the vacant position.

(F) If the employee with the greatest length of service in the class/occupational level is
not selected for the vacant position, all employees who have greater length of service in the
class/occupational level than the employee selected shall be notified in writing of the agency's
decision with a copy to the Association. Except where mutually agreed otherwise by the
Association and the Agency, the Executive Director's notification shall contain the reason(s) the
less senior applicant was selected.

(G) When an employee has been reassigned pursuant to a Request filed under this
Article, all other pending Requests shall be canceled. No other Request may be filed under this
Article for a period of twelve (12) months following the employee's reassignment. If an
employee declines an offer of reassignment pursuant to a Request filed under this Article, the
employee will not be eligible for consideration for reassignment to the specific
class/occupational level, county(ies), and/or duty station declined, for a period of twelve (12)
months.

(H) The twenty-four (24) month service obligation for an initial appointment shall only
be waived if the employee is promoted to a position in another location, or if an unusual
circumstance or hardship affecting the employee is accepted by the agency as justification for
varying the required minimum service, or as otherwise approved by the Executive Director or his
designee.

17



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

SECTION 3 - Involuntary Reassignment, Transfer or Change in Duty Station

(A) An employee shall not be required to change residence for the sole purpose of living
within a specific county; however, an employee may be required to reside within a reasonable
distance of a specific duty station.

(B) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent an agency, at its
discretion, from effecting the involuntary reassignment, transfer or change in duty station at any
time, of any employee, according to the needs of the agency or as authorized by Section
110.205(3), Florida Statutes. However, it is understood that the agency will make an effort not
to affect any involuntary reassignment, transfer or change in duty station which will impose a
residency hardship on the employee (in that he must relocate his residence from a permanent
home presently owned or cancel a rental lease extending more than three (3) months), without
first considering any Request for Reassignment Forms on file for the county in which the agency
need exists.

(C) Except in unusual circumstances, a member involuntarily transferred will be
permitted ninety (90) days to report to the new assignment location. An employee who receives
an involuntary change in duty station will be permitted a reasonable time in which to report to
the new duty station.

(D) Reassignments, transfers and changes in duty station shall not be utilized as
disciplinary sanctions.

SECTION 4 - Notice

(A) An employee shall be given a minimum of fourteen (14) calendar days' notice prior
to the agency affecting any reassignment and thirty (30) calendar days' notice prior to the agency
affecting any transfer.

(B) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent the State from
making effecting reassignments, transfers, or changes in duty stations of any employee during an
emergency or as otherwise required to meet urgent law enforcement needs of the State.

(C) When an Agency establishes a new position within a class/occupationallevel it shall
notice all Agency bargaining Unit employees of the duties and responsibilities of the position
and the qualifications for said position. The procedures established in this Article shall thereafter
apply to filling vacancies in such positions.

SECTION 5 - Promotion

The State and the Association agree that promotion of an FDLE member to Special Agent
should be made based on the employee meeting the qualifications for law enforcement
employment set forth in Chapter 943, Florida Statues, and upon successfully completing
whatever additional training required by the Department prior to such appointment. The parties
agree that the provisions of the Personnel Rules will be followed when making such
appointments.

SECTION 6 - Probationary Status on Promotion

(A) An employee who has been appointed to a classification or occupational level shall
attain permanent status in that classification or occupational level upon successful completion of

18



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

the designated probationary period. Such employee shall not lose permanent in such
classification or occupational level by accepting a promotion to a higher classification or
occupational level with the same agency and within the Career Service system.

(B) An employee who has obtained permanent status in a classification or occupational
level who is promoted to a higher classification or occupational level that fails, to due to
performance, to satisfactorily complete probation in the promotional classification or
occupational level shall be demoted in the former classification or occupational level previously
held by the employee in an available vacant position.

(l) Such a demotion shall be with permanent status, provided the employee held
permanent status in the lower class/occupational level.

(2) Such a demotion shall not be grievable under Article 6 of this Agreement.

(3) Such a demotion shall not preclude the agency from seeking to discipline the
employee for just cause based upon specific acts of misconduct.

SECTION 7 - Relocation Allowance

An employee who is reassigned, or promoted, and who is required by agency policy to
relocate his residence shall be granted time off with pay for two (2) work days for purposes of
relocating his residence. In addition, the employee shall be granted travel time to the new
location based on the most direct route. No employee will be credited with more than the
number of hours in the employee's regular workday and such time shall not be counted as hours
worked for the purpose of computing compensatory time or overtime.

SECTION 8 - Grievability

(A) An employee complaint concerning administration of this Article may be grieved in
accordance with Article 6 of this Agreement up to and including Step 3 of the grievance
procedure. In considering such complaints, weight shall be given to the specific procedures
followed and decisions made, along with the needs of the agency.

(B) An employee complaint concerning administration of Section 3 of this Article may be
grieved in accordance with Article 6 of this Agreement up to and including Step 3 of the
grievance procedure. The initiation of a grievance claiming a residency hardship shall stay any
required change in residence until final disposition of the grievance. In considering such a
grievance weight shall be given to the needs of the agency against the hardship on the employee.
Complaints concerning transfers, as authorized by Section 110.205(3), Florida Statutes, shall not
be subject to the grievance procedure.

Article 10
GROOMING

The Parties agree that the agency shall have the right to set reasonable and professional
grooming standards for its employees. The Agency and State agree to consult with the
Association in the development of said grooming standards.

Article 11

19



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

CLASSIFICATION REVIEW

(A) Except in case of an emergency, bargaining Unit employees shall not be required to
perform work not included in the employee's class specification.

(B) When an employee alleges that the employee is being regularly required to perform
duties which are not included in the class specification to which his position is allocated, the
employee may request that the Executive Director review the duties assigned to the employee's
position. The Executive Director or his designee shall review the duties as requested. The
employee will receive a copy of the decision.

(C) If the employee is not satisfied with the decision, the employee, with or without
representation, may request in review by the Secretary of Management Services or his designee.

(D) The decision of the Secretary of Management Services or his designee as to the
classification of the position shall be final and binding on all parties.

Article 12
PERSONNEL RECORDS

SECTION 1 - Personnel File

(A) There shall be only one official personnel file for each Unit employee, which shall
be maintained in the central personnel office of the employing agency unless a different location
is approved by the Secretary of the Department of Management Services or designee, which may
be a contractor. Duplicate personnel files may be established and maintained within an agency.
Such duplicate personnel files may contain part or all of the items filed in the official personnel
file, but may not contain any items which are not filed in the official personnel file.

(B) If any derogatory material is placed in a Unit employee's official personnel file, a
copy will be sent to the employee. The employee will have the right to answer any such material
filed, and his answer will be attached to the file copy.

(C) A Unit employee will have the right to review his own official personnel file and any
duplicate personnel files at reasonable times under the supervision of the designated records
custodian.

(D) Where the Executive Director or his designee, the Public Employees Relations
Commission, the courts, an arbitrator, or other statutory authority determines that a document has
been placed in the employee's personnel file in error or is otherwise invalid, such document shall
be placed in an envelope together with a letter of explanation. The envelope shall be sealed,
stamped "NOT VALID", as specified in the State of Florida General Records Schedule GSI for
State and Local Government Records, as promulgated by the Department of State; provided,
however, that the document shall be removed upon the employee's written request in accordance
with the foregoing records schedule.

SECTION 2 - Privacy

The home addresses, telephone numbers, photographs, and social security numbers of
active or former law enforcement personnel, as well as the places of employment of the spouses
and children and the names and locations of schools attended by the children of said active or

20



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

former law enforcement personnel are exempt from disclosure under the Public Records law,
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and shall not be released except for a legitimate governmental
purpose.

SECTION 3 - Counseling Notes

(A) The State and the Association agree that a letter of counseling or counseling notice is
not discipline and not subject to the grievance procedure. Such materials are documentation of
minor work deficiencies and are appropriately utilized in evaluating the performance of an
employee or documenting adherence to an agency's standards of conduct.

(B) A letter of counseling or counseling notice will not be considered in determining
progressive discipline provided the employee has not been counseled or disciplined for the same
offense during the succeeding twelve (12) months, except it may be cited to demonstrate the
employee had been previously noticed of the same performance or conduct deficiency.

Article 13
SAFETY

SECTION 1- Vehicle Safety

Vehicles used by bargaining Unit employees, whether issued to the employee or not,
shall be maintained in safe operating condition by the State.

SECTION 2 - Firearms Safety

In order to promote safety in the use of firearms by Special Agent bargaining Unit
employees, the State will guarantee that each bargaining Unit employee is offered the
opportunity to fire his issued and/or departmental-approved personal weapon in an agency
approved course of fire at least once every six (6) months, at no cost to employee. Such training
shall be for the purpose of familiarization in the use of firearms.

SECTION 3 - Safety Committee

Where the agency has a Safety Committee, the Association will name one bargaining
Unit member to serve on such committee. Where such a committee has not been established, the
State will consider establishment of one in each location having Special Agent Unit employees.
Time spent in attendance and travel to such committee meetings shall be considered as time
worked. However, the employee's attendance shall not unduly hamper the operations of the
employee's work unit.

Article 14
PERFORMANCE REVIEW

(A) Employees shall be evaluated by their immediate supervisors or designated raters,
who shall be held accountable for such reviews. All appraisals shall conform to the provisions of
Section 110.224, Florida Statutes.

(B) The Parties agree that management is required to establish squad-level numerical
arrest and other case-related goals in accordance with Legislative direction associated with
performance-based budgeting. Such goals may be considered for the evaluation of individual

21



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

performance; however, the primary factor in such evaluation shall be the individual's
performance of his assigned duties and responsibilities.

(C) The Parties agree that performance evaluations are not grievable under Article 6 of
this Agreement; however a performance appraisal may be contested if it serves, in whole or in
part, as the basis for a disciplinary action.

(D) Any employee who has attained permanent status in his current class shall not be
disciplined for poor performance unless the employee has been counseled about the poor
performance, and provided a reasonable opportunity to correct performance deficiencies.

(E) The use of performance counseling shall not preclude the agency from seeking to
discipline the employee for cause based upon specific acts of misconduct.

(F) Bargaining Unit employees shall receive an evaluation from the academy upon
completion of entry-level Special Agent training. A copy of the evaluation shall be forwarded
to the appropriate supervisor.

Article 15
SENIORITY

SECTION 1 - Definition

For the purpose of this Agreement, "seniority" shall be defined as continuous service in
the job classification/occupational level; provided, however, that an employee shall be
considered to have a break in service when the employee separates, and is not on any payroll for
at least thirty-one (31) calendar days following the separation.

SECTION 2 - Seniority Application

Except under extraordinary circumstances, vacations, and regular days off shall be
scheduled with due regard for needs of the agency, seniority and bargaining Unit employee
preference. The State and the Association understand that there may be times when the needs of
the agency will not permit such scheduling.

SECTION 3 - Vacation and Holiday Leave

Where practicable, leave of forty (40) contiguous hours or more, or for holidays
requested, shall be requested at least sixty (60) days in advance of such leave in order that the
provisions of this Article may be fully implemented; however, in implementing this provision
nothing shall preclude an agency from making reasonable accommodations for extraordinary
leave requests or ensuring the fair distribution of leave during favored holidays.

Article 16
EMPLOYMENT OUTSIDE STATE GOVERNMENT

SECTION 1 - Outside Employment - Non-Police Employment

(A) On the effective date of this Agreement, any bargaining Unit employee who is
performing non-police employment outside of State government, which employment has not
been previously approved, shall be subject to the provisions of Section I(B) of this Article.

(B) If, during the term of this Agreement, an employee is to accept new non-police

22



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

employment outside of State government, the employee shall notify the Executive Director, or
his designee, of such employment, prior to date of employment, and verify that such non-police
employment does not conflict with the employee's State employment, or with the employing
agency's procedures limiting such outside employment. Should such conflict(s) be found to
exist, outside employment shall be disapproved.

(C) During the course of the employee's outside employment, an agency may make
reasonable inquiries of the employee to ensure that the employee's continued outside
employment does not constitute a conflict of interest, or interfere with the employee's primary
duties as a State law enforcement officer. Employees shall not be required to file regular reports
regarding the outside employment.

SECTION 2 - Outside Employment - Police Employment

(A) Any bargaining Unit employee who wishes to perform police employment outside of
State government shall secure the required approval in advance in accordance with Chapter 60L
32, Florida Administrative Code and applicable law. It is understood that permission shall not be
unreasonably withheld as long as such outside employment does not conflict with the employee's
State employment or with the employing agency's procedures limiting such outside employment.

(B) During the course of the employee's outside employment, an agency may make
reasonable inquiries of the employee to ensure that the employee's continued outside
employment does not constitute a conflict of interest, or interfere with the employee's primary
duties as a State law enforcement officer. Employees shall not be required to file regular reports
regarding the outside employment.

(C) Each employee will be permitted to use his official car during approved off-duty
police employment, provided the off-duty employment is within fifty (50) miles of the
employee's city of assignment, and the official car directly facilitates the performance of the off
duty employment. Use of the official car which necessitates travel beyond fifty (50) miles of the
employee's city of assignment will require prior written approval by either the employee's
Regional Director or Program Director. Approval for such outside employment, consistent with
the above-stated conditions, will be granted so long as:

(l) It does not constitute a conflict of interest;

(2) It does not interfere with the employee's primary duties as a State law
enforcement officer;

(3) It is within the duties and responsibilities the employee performs or may
reasonably be expected to perform as a part of his job duties and responsibilities;

(4) Such employment does not carry the employee outside the State of Florida;
and

(5) Such employment does.not unduly hamper the operation of the work unit.

(D) Each employee shall be permitted to work up to 64 hours per week of on-duty and
off-duty approved work. Employees may work in excess of 64 hours per week with the
approval of the Regional Director.

(E) When required by the agency, bargaining Unit employees who are utilizing State

23



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

equipment while performing police employment outside of State employment shall be
responsible for all insurance relative to such outside employment, including workers'
compensation, and liability insurance.

SECTION 3 - Reimbursement of Costs

All mileage placed on a State automobile in off-duty police employment shall be paid for
by the employee at the mileage rate established in Section 112.061, Florida Statutes.

Article 17
DEPARTMENT VEHICLES

The agency may provide each unit employee with an unmarked vehicle for work use.
Employees will reside within 35 miles of their assigned office.

An employee currently residing outside of the 35 mile limit will continue to be allowed to
do so; however, newly appointed employees and current employees that relocate their residence
must abide by the 35 mile rule, unless the Agency grants the employee a waiver of the rule.

Article 18
LEAVE

The attendance and leave provisions as contained in Chapter 60L-34 of the Personnel
Rules shall apply to all bargaining Unit employees, except as noted in this agreement.

Article 19
PERSONAL PROPERTY - REPLACEMENT AND/OR REIMBURSEMENT

(A) Other than the employee's watch or prescription glasses, any personal property
subject to replacement or reimbursement pursuant to this article must be approved in advance by
the Agency as being required by the employee to adequately perform the duties of his position.

(B) Thereafter, an employee who, while on duty and acting within the scope of
employment, suffers the damage, destruction or loss of his watch, prescription glasses, or other
personal property approved pursuant to Paragraph (A), will be reimbursed, have such property
repaired, or have such property replaced with an item which is of the same or a similar quality, as
described in this Article; provided, however, that:

(l) The Agency has the option to decide whether a specific piece of property is
repaired versus replaced; and

(2) The employee shall not be reimbursed or have property repaired or replaced if
the Agency determines that the damage, destruction or loss resulted from the employee's
negligence.

(C) An employee who wants to be reimbursed or have personal property repaired or
replaced must:

(l) File a written report detailing the circumstances under which the property was
damaged, destroyed or lost; and

24



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

(2) Document the amount expended to repair or replace such property.

(D) After meeting the conditions described above, the Executive Director or designee
shall authorize reimbursement not to exceed the following amounts:

Watch - $75

Prescription glasses - $300 (including any required examination)

Other Items - the Executive Director or designee shall have final authority to determine
the reimbursement value of any items other than watches or prescription glasses.

Total allowable per incident - $600.

Article 21
ACTING RANKS

SECTION 1- Eligibility

Each time an employee is officially designated by the appropriate supervisor to act in a
higher classification than the employee's permanent classification, and actually performs said
duties for a period of more than twenty-two (22) workdays, within any six (6) consecutive
months, the employee shall be eligible for a temporary special duty additive as provided in
Chapter 60L-32, Florida Administrative Code. If an employee performs duties in a higher
classification for twenty-two (22) consecutive workdays within any six (6) consecutive months,
the employee shall be eligible for a Temporary Special Duty salary additive, as provided in
Article 25 of this Agreement, effective the first day of performing such duties.

SECTION 2 - Method of Compensation

It is understood by the parties that, insofar as pay is concerned, employees temporarily
performing the duties of a higher classification shall be paid according to the same compensation
method as permanent promotees under the Personnel Rules.

SECTION 3 - Return to Regular Rate

Employees being paid at a higher rate while temporarily performing the duties of a higher
classification will be returned to their regular rate of pay when the period of temporary
employment in the higher class ends.

Article 22
JOB-CONNECTED DISABILITY

SECTION 1- Section 440.15(11), Florida Statutes - Full-Pay Status

(A) An employee who sustains a job-connected disability and meets the eligibility
requirements, as provided for in Section 440.15(11), Florida Statutes, may be carried in full-pay
status.

(B) Any claim by an employee or the Association concerning this Section shall not be
subject to the Grievance Procedure of this Agreement.

SECTION 2 - Chapter 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code - Disability Leave With Pay

25



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

An employee who sustains a job-connected disability which is not covered by Section 1
above, is eligible for disability leave with pay under the provisions of Chapter 60L-34, Personnel
Rules. The Executive Director or his designee shall not unreasonably refuse to submit a request
to carry an employee in full-pay status under the provisions of Chapter 60L-34, Florida
Administrative Code, provided, however, the Secretary of the Department of Management
Services or its designee shall have the right to determine whether or not an employee should be
carried in full-pay status for more than twenty-six (26) weeks. An employee shall not be
required to use accrued compensatory or annual leave in order to be eligible to be carried in full
pay status under Chapter 60L-34. However, no employee shall be carried in full-pay status until
he has utilized 100 hours of accumulated sick leave, annual leave, compensatory leave or leave
without pay.

SECTION 3 - Alternate Duty

(A) Where an employee is eligible for disability leave with pay under the Personnel Rules
as a result of an injury in the line of duty, and is temporarily unable to perform his normal work
duties, the Executive Director or his designee shall give due consideration to any request by the
employee to be temporarily assigned substitute duties within the employee's medical restrictions.
This shall have no effect on the agency's ability to make a different assignment based upon
current medical opinion.

(B) Where an employee is temporarily unable to perform his normal work duties, but is
given a reasonable prognosis to return to full duty within the near future, the Executive Director
or his designee shall give due consideration to any request by the employee to be temporarily
assigned duties within the employee's medical restrictions. This shall have no effect on the
agency's ability to make a different assignment based upon current medical opinion.

(C) Where an employee suffers an injury in the line of duty, and is permanently unable to
perform his normal work duties, the Executive Director or his designee shall attempt to
reasonably accommodate any written request by the employee to be assigned to a different
vacant position in a different classification within the employee's medical restrictions.

(D) A complaint concerning this Section may be grieved in accordance with Article 6 of
this Agreement up to and including Step 3. The decision of the Department of Management
Services shall be final and binding on all parties.

Article 23
WORKDAY, WORKWEEK AND OVERTIME

SECTION 1 - Overtime

(A) The normal workweek for each full-time employee shall be forty (40) hours.

(B) Work beyond the normal workweek or approved extended period shall be recognized
in accordance with Chapter 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code; provided, however, that when
an emergency is declared by the Governor and funds are available, employees who are assigned
to the emergency area described in the Governor's Executive Order shall be subject to a forty
(40) hour workweek while so assigned. The State and the Association will cooperate to secure
funds for the payment of overtime to Unit employees in the situation described herein.

(C) The Association agrees to support those changes in Chapter 60L-34, Florida

26



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

Administrative Code that may be required in order for the State to be in compliance with the Fair
Labor Standards Act as it is applied to public employees.

(D) If an agency has a plan approved in advance by the Department of Management
Services, FLSA special compensatory leave credits shall be granted, administered and used as
described below:

An employee who is filling an included position may, at the end of the approved
extended period if mutually agreed to by the employee and supervisor, waive payment for
overtime and have the overtime hours credited to "FLSA special compensatory leave." If such
approved election is made, the overtime hours will be credited as "FLSA special compensatory
leave" credits at the rate of one and one-half (1-1/2) hours for each hour of overtime worked. An
employee will only be permitted to accumulate a maximum of eighty (80) hours of "FLSA
special compensatory leave" credits which may be taken in any increments if mutually agreed to
by the employee and the supervisor. If mutual agreement is not reached, the supervisor may,
with a minimum of five (5) workdays notice, require the employee to use such leave credits at
any time in increments of full work days. However, all unused "FLSA special compensatory
leave" credits at the close of business on December 31 and June 30 shall be paid for at the
employee's straight time regular hourly rate in accordance with Chapter 60L-34, Florida
Administrative Code. An employee who separates from the Career Service or moves to another
state agency shall be paid for all unused "FLSA special compensatory leave" in accordance with
the above.

SECTION 2 - Workday

(A) Agencies shall not require an employee to split a workday into two or more segments
without the mutual agreement of the employee and the employer.

(B) Where employees are required to work extra hours during an approved extended
work period, the State will make a good faith effort to offset such extra hours in eight (8) hour
increments, provided this can be done prior to the end of the extended work period.

SECTION 3 - Sick Leave Pool and Sick Leave Transfer

Special Agent bargaining Unit employees shall be subject to the conditions, and have full
access to the benefits, of the employing agency's existing sick leave pool and sick leave transfer
plan.

SECTION 4 - Special Compensatory Leave

Special Agent bargaining Unit employees shall be required, with reasonable advance
notice, to use special compensatory leave before using accrued annualleaye credits. Employees
will only be permitted to accumulate a mffidmUfB: of 240 HOurS of special compensatory leave
credits.in accordance with the current agency policy and procedure. The use of special
compensatory leave usage may be extended by the agency based upon operational needs or
declared emergencies.

Article 24
ON CALL, CALL BACK and COURT APPEARANCES

27



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

SECTION 1 - Call-Back

A Unit employee called out to work at a time not contiguous with the employee's
scheduled hours of work shall be credited for actual time worked, or a minimum of two (2)
hours, whichever is greater.

SECTION 2 - Court Appearances

If a Unit employee is subpoenaed to appear as a witness in a job-related court case, not
during the employee's regularly assigned work hours, the employee shall be credited for actual
time worked, or a minimum of two and one-half (2-1/2) hours, whichever is greater.

SECTION 3 - On-Call

Based on the availability of funds, employees who are required to be on-call shall be
compensated by payment of a fee in an amount of not less than one dollar ($1.00) for each hour
such employee is required to be available. Employees who are required to be on call on a
Saturday, Sunday and/or a holiday as listed in Section 11 0.117, Florida Statutes, will be
compensated by payment of a fee in an amount equal to one-fourth (1/4) of the statewide
minimum for the employee's class for each eight (8) hour period such employee is required to be
available.

Article 25
WAGES

)(}J) l.egJs.lllti¥e IHfJHlsse ReSfJ/utifJH

SECTION 1 - Pay Provisions

(A) Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Year 2012 132013-2014 General
Appropriations Act;- and as provided herein:

1. Effective July 1, 2013, all employees shall have their base rate of pay
increased by six percent (6%).

2. Effective October 1, 2013, all employees with seven (7) continuous years
of service as a law enforcement officer with the State and a "meets standards"
performance evaluation shall receive a three percent (3%) an internal pay relationship
adjustment in their base rate of pay. Should an employee reach the seven (7) years of
service level subsequent to October 1,2013, the employee shall receive the same internal
pay relationship adjustment.

3. Effective July 1, 2013 all employees serving on the Protective Operations
Squad shall receive a temporary duty salary additive in the amount of five percent (5%)
of the employee's base rate of pay.

(B) Increases to base rate of pay and salary additives shall be in accordance with state
law and the Fiscal Year 2012-13 General Appropriations Act.

SECTION 2 - Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2012-13 General
Appropriations Act, and contingent upon the availability of funds and at the agency head's
discretion, the FDLE is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15
percent ofthe employee's base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or

28



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

area closed due to emergency conditions from another area of the state that is not closed.

SECTION 3 - Cash Payout of Annual Leave

Permanent Career Service employees may be given the option of receiving up to 24 hours
of unused annual leave each December, in the form of a cash payout subject to, and in
accordance with, section 110.219(7), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 4 - Performance Pay

Each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee's
exemplary performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule
60L-35, Florida Administrative Code.

SECTION 5 - Savings Sharing Program

An employee or groups of employees may be eligible for monetary awards for ideas or
programs that result in a cost saving to the state, pursuant to section 110.1245(1), Florida
Statutes.

Article 26
EQUIPMENT AND SERVICE AWARDS

SECTION 1 - Accessories and Equipment

Accessories and equipment will include the following minimum requirements:

(A) A service weapon gun belt, holster and accessories as appropriate for the Yffit
employees.

(B) Spare ammunition, and an appropriate case.

(C) Where hand-held radios are provided, they will be suitable for law enforcement use.

(D) The agency shall provide bullet-proof vests to bargaining Unit employees and will
develop a policy for replacement upon expiration of the guaranteed life of the vest as expressed
by the manufacturer at the time ofpurchase.

(E) The agency will select and provide to each employee at least one intermediate force
weapon, as determined appropriate by the agency, and provide training in the use of such
weapon.

(F) Unless otherwise required by agency needs, vehicles shall be equipped by the
manufacturer as provided by current State of Florida contract specifications for unmarked law
enforcement vehicles.

SECTION 2 - Clothing Allowance

Employees of this Unit shall receive a clothing allowance In the amount of
$500.00750.00 annually.

SECTION 3 - Award

When an employee retires under any provision of the State retirement system, including
medical disability retirement, the employee shall be presented his badge, his service revolver or
pistol, if one had been issued as part of the employee's equipment, and an identification card

29



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

clearly marked "RETIRED" as provided in Section 112.193, Florida Statutes.

SECTION 4 - Award Program

The State agrees to promote a program of recognition awards for bargaining Unit
employees which shall include:

(A) Upon promotion, a framed certificate certifying the promotion.

(B) Awards for bravery and outstanding service.

(C) Service awards through the use of certificates, patches or pins recognizing years of
service with the State; specifically recognizing fifteen (15), twenty (20) and twenty-five (25)
years of service.

(D) Upon normal retirement, an identification card and badge.

Article 27
INSURANCE BENEFITS

SECTION 1 - State Employees Group Insurance Program

The State agrees to administer the State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan in
accordance with any statutory provision or Act affecting the plan or its operation.,. at no
additional cost in co-payments or health insurance premiums to the employee.

SECTION 2 - Death In-Line-Of-Duty Benefits

(A) Funeral and burial expenses will be as provided in Section 112.19, Florida
Statutes.

(B) Education benefits will be as provided in Section 112.19, Florida Statutes.
(C) State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan premium for the employee's

surviving spouse and children will be as provided in Section 110.123, Florida Statutes.
(D) Any complaint or claim by an employee or the Association concerning' this

Section shall not be subject to the Grievance Procedure of this Agreement.

Article 28
TRAVEL EXPENSES

SECTION 1 - Payment of Travel Vouchers

With the prior approval of the Executive Director, travel expenses of employees incurred
in the performance of a public purpose authorized by law will be paid in accordance with Section
112.061, Florida Statutes. The State will make a good faith effort to pay travel vouchers within
thirty (30) days after they have been properly submitted. Vouchers are considered submitted
when the employee submits them to the local official designated by management to receive such
vouchers.

SECTION 2 - Emergency Travel

(A) When an emergency, such as a hurricane, arises that requires the agency to
temporarily assign employees with less than forty-eight (48) hours notice, the agency will make
a good faith effort to officially notify employees of the temporary assignment. Such notification

30



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

may be in person, by telephone, by radio, or in writing.

(B) When an emergency arises requiring temporary personnel assignment with less than
forty-eight (48) hours notice, the State agrees to make the necessary payment to the vendor for
lodging for such employees. The employee shall have no responsibility to make such payments
to the vendor. Travel vouchers will be submitted as required in Section 1 above.

SECTION 3 - Mileage Allowance

The State agrees to seek continued funding to provide for the payment of a mileage
allowance for the use of privately-owned vehicles for official travel at the rate of 44.5 cents per
mile.

Article 29
DRUG TESTING

(A) The State and the Association agree to drug testing of bargaining unit employees in
accordance with Section 112.0455, Florida Statutes, the Drug-Free Workplace Act.

(B) All classes covered by this Agreement are designated special risk for drug testing
purposes. Special risk means employees who are required as a condition of employment to be
certified under Chapter 633 or Chapter 943, Florida Statutes.

(C) An employee shall have the right to grieve any disciplinary action taken under
Section 112.0455, the Drug-Free Workplace Act, subject to the limitations on the grievability of
disciplinary actions in Article 6. If an employee is not disciplined but is denied a demotion,
reassignment or promotion as a result of a positive confirmed drug test, the employee shall have
the right to grieve such action in accordance with Article 6.

Article 30
NO STRIKE

SECTION 1 - No Strike Agreement

Neither the Association nor any of its officers or agents, nor members covered by this
Agreement, nor any other employees covered by this Agreement, will instigate, promote,
sponsor, or engage in any prohibited activities as defined in Section 447.203(6), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 2 - Penalty

Any or all employees who violate any provision of this law prohibiting strikes or of this
Article will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including discharge, and any such
disciplinary action by the State shall not be subject to the Grievance Procedure established
herein.

.:.Article 31 2(}12 Legislflul'€ /1HfJflSse Reselutien

VACA:..""JTRETIREMENT

*Hold open pending decision of the Florida Supreme Court in the case of Rick Scott, et at. v.
George Williams, et al., Case No. SCI2-520.

31



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

Article 32
MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

The Association agrees that the State has and will continue to retain, whether exercised or
not, the right to determine unilaterally the purpose of each of its constituent agencies, set
standards of services to be offered to the public, and exercise control and discretion over its
organization and operations. It is also the right of the public employer to direct its employees,
take disciplinary action for proper cause, and relieve its employees from duty because of lack of
work or for other legitimate reasons, except as abridged or modified by the express provisions of
this Agreement; provided, however, that the exercise of such rights shall not preclude an
employee or employee representative from raising a grievance on any such decision which
violates the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Article 33
ENTIRE AGREEMENT

SECTION 1 - AgreementlReopeners

This Agreement, upon ratification, supersedes and cancels all prior practices and
agreements, whether written or oral, unless expressly stated to the contrary herein, and
constitutes the complete and entire agreement between the parties, and concludes collective
bargaining for its term.

The parties acknowledge that, during the negotiations which resulted in this Agreement,
each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any
subject or matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining, and that the
understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and
opportunity are set forth in this Agreement. The State maintains the right to make changes to
rules, policies or practices during the term of this Agreement unless such action will be in direct
conflict with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Except as to the above subjects, the State and the Association, for the duration of this
Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right, and each agrees that the other
shall not be obligated to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter referred to, or
covered in this Agreement, even though such subjects or matters may not have been within the
knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated or signed
this Agreement.

SECTION 2 - Memorandum of Understanding/Settlements

The Parties recognize that during the term of this Agreement situations may arise which
require that terms and conditions not specifically and clearly set forth in the Agreement must be
clarified or amended. Under such circumstances, the Association is specifically authorized by
bargaining Unit employees to enter into the settlement of grievance disputes or memorandum of
understanding which clarifies or amends this Agreement, without having to be ratified by
bargaining Unit members.

Article 34
SAVINGS CLAUSE

If any provision of this Agreement, or the application of such provision, should be

32



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

rendered or declared invalid, unlawful, or not enforceable, by any court action or by reason of
any existing or subsequently enacted legislation; or if the appropriate governmental body, having
amendatory power to change a law, rule or regulation which is in conflict with a provision of this
Agreement, fails to enact or adopt an enabling amendment to make the provision effective, in
accordance with Section 447.309(3), Florida Statutes; then such provision shall not be
applicable, performed or enforced, but the remaining parts or portions of this Agreement shall
remain in full force and effect for the term of this Agreement.

Article 35
DURATION

SECTION 1 - Term

This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect through the thirtieth day of June
~2014. This Agreement shall be automatically renewed from year to year thereafter, unless
either party shall notify the other in writing on or before September I of each year that it desires
to change or modify this Agreement. This Agreement shall remain in full force and be effective
during the period of negotiation and may be extended in the manner set forth in the following
paragraph.

In the event that the State and the Association fail to secure a successor Agreement prior
to the expiration date of this Agreement, the parties may mutually agree in writing to extend this
Agreement for any period of time.

In the event that either party· desires to terminate or modify this Agreement, written
notice must be given to the other party not less than ten (l0) days prior to the desired termination
date, which shall not be before the anniversary date set forth in the preceding paragraph.

SECTION 2 - Notices

Notices hereunder shall be given by registered or certified mail, and if by the State shall
be addressed to the Association at 300 East Brevard Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301; and ifby
the Association shall be addressed to the ChiefNegotiator, Department of Management Services,
4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 160, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0950. Either party may, by a like
written notice, change the address to which such notice shall be given. Notices shall be
considered to have been given as of the date shown on the postmark.

SECTION 3 - Emergencies

If it is determined that civil emergency conditions exist, including, but not limited to,
riots, civil disorders, hurricane conditions, or similar catastrophes, the provisions of this
Agreement may be suspended by the Governor during the time of the declared emergency,
provided that wage rates and monetary fringe benefits shall not be suspended. It is understood
that a declared emergency may be limited to specific geographic areas, in which case suspension
of the terms of this Agreement as provided above, would apply only to those bargaining Unit
employees permanently or temporarily assigned to such areas.

33



Fiscal Year 2012-13 PBA - Special Agent Unit Successor Agreement

APPENDIX A
SPECIAL AGENT UNIT DESCRIPTION

CBUCODE 10

Class
Code

8580

8581

Class Title

Special Agent Trainee

Special Agent

34





FLORIDA POLICE BENEVOLENT
ASSOCIATION, INC.

The Voice ofFlo..rida~Law Enforcement Officers

February 11,2013

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL

Senator Alan Hays, Co-Chair
Representative Charles Van Zant, Co-Chair
Joint Select Committee on Collective Bargaining

Governmental Operations Subcommittee
Room 218 House Office Building
Tallahassee, Florida 32399

Re: Collective Bargaining Proposals of PBA for
State Law Enforcement Officers Unit

Dear Senator Hays and Representative Van Zant:

Attached you will find the collective bargaining proposals submitted by the Florida Police
Benevolent Association, Inc., to Governor Scott and the Department of Management Services
covering the State Law Enforcement Unit. These proposals are drafted in legislative style with new
language underlined and language the PBA proposes to delete, struck-through.

As an examination of the impasse letter from OMS' chief negotiator indicates, Governor
Scott and the. PBA are at impasse on a substantial number of articles. While the PBA believes it is
fair to state that several of the articles will be resolved as negotiations progress, it is equally fair to
state many will not be resolved and will require resolution by the Florida Legislature.

In order to assist you in resolving the impasse, the Florida PBA offers the following
comments:

(l) Information relating to the PBA proposals and the reasons for
such proposals are available from two primary contact persons:
(a) PBA Executive Director, Matt Puckett, matt@flpba.org, and
(b) PBA General Counsel, Hal Johnson, hal@flpba.org.

(2) As always, a fair wage adjustment is the number one priority for
the PBA and its membership. Its wage proposal has 2 important
components: (a) a 6% competitive pay adjustment in the
individual officer's base salary, which is a "catch-up" pay
adjustment in the individual's base salary to recover from the lack
of general wage adjustments over the past several years and the
pension contribution effective in 2011; and (b) a compression
adjustment of 3% in the base salary of individual law enforcement
personnel with 7 or more years of service.

300 E. Brevard St., Tallahassee, FL 32301-1218. www.flpba.org • 850.222.3329 • Toll Free: 1.800.733.3722 • Fax: 850.561.0192



Senator Alan Hays, Co-Chair
Representative Charles Van Zant, Co-Chair
Joint Select Committee on Collective Bargaining
February 11,2013
Page 2 of2

(3) A second major priority of the PBA is to retain agency
independence in resolving the special compensatory leave
"liability" problem. The PBA has worked hard with several
agencies including FOLE, FHP and FWC to develop programs
that will, over a relatively short period of time, substantially
reduce the amount of special compensatory time the law
enforcement personnel have accumulated. The agencies appear
pleased with the results of these programs as do the agencies' law
enforcement personnel. The PBA and agencies would like the
special compensatory leave reduction programs to continue
through memorandum of understandings reached between PBA
and the agencies.

(4) The Governor and OMS have proposed a pilot program relating to
disciplinary appeals. Currently, career service employees have
two options. The PBA would like to see the two-option system
continue unchanged rather than "test pilot" a single option
disciplinary appeal process.

As previously stated, there remain many other articles at impasse in the proposed collective
bargaining agreement which have not been fully discussed. The PBA will continue to work with the
Governor and OMS to resolve them. In the event agreement on them cannot be reached, then it is the
position of the PBA that the "status quo" (old language) be retained for these articles.

Thank you for your consideration of the Florida P.B.A. bargaining proposals. And, please
give serious consideration to granting your law enforcement personnel a wage adjustment that
reflects their dedication and service to the citizens of Florida.

Respectfully,

GHJ/dlt

Encl(s)

C: Michael Mattimore, OMS ChiefNegotiator
Matt Puckett, PBA Executive Director
John Love, State Affairs Committee
Heather Williamson, State Affairs Committee
Scott Hoffman, State Law Enforcement Officers Chapter President



FLORIDA POLICE BENEVOLENTASSOCIATION, INC.

State of Florida and Florida P.B.A.
Proposal 1- November 19,2012
2013-2014 Negotiations
July 1,2013 through June 30, 2016
LAW ENFORCEMENT BARGAINING UNIT

The Florida P.B.A. proposes the articles contained in the FY 2012-2013
revised agreement remain unchanged unless specific modifications
(attached) have been submitted.

All modifications are drawn to the FY 2012-2013 revised agreement.
The modifications are prepared in legislative style.

The Florida P.B.A. proposed agreement is attached. [Changes to the
current agreement are found at Articles 9, 14, 18, 22, 25, 27, 33 and
35.]

Florida Police Benevolent Association, Inc.
300 East Brevard Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301

(850) 222-3329· (800) 733-3722· Fax (850) 561-8898



*AGREEMENT
THE STATE OF FLORIDA

and

THE FLORIDA POLICE
BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION

Law Enforcement Bargaining Unit

December 27, 2010 through June 30, 2013

Incorporates FY 2011 - 2012 approved reopener revisions
to Articles 3, 16, 18, 25 and 27

and

FY 2012-2013 reopener revisions
to Articles 5 and 25

pursuant to 2012 legislative impasse resolution

*TO BE CHANGED ONCE AGREEMENT ON
DURATION AND OTHER ARTICLES IS

REACHED



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

TABLE OF CONTENTS

• AGREEMENT
• PREAMBLE
• Article 1 - RECOGNITION
• Article 2 - GENDER REFERENCE
• Article 3 - VACANT
• Article 4 - NO DISCRIMINATION
• Article 5 - EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATION AND PBA ACTIVITIES
• Article 6 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE
• Article 7 - INTERNAL INVESTIGATIONS
• Article 8 - WORKFORCE REDUCTION
• Article 9 - REASSIGNMENT, TRANSFER, CHANGE IN DUTY STATION AND PROMOTION (OPEN)
• Article 10 - DISCIPLINARY ACTION
• Article 11 - CLASSIFICATION REVIEW
• Article 12 - PERSONNEL RECORDS
• Article 13 - SAFETY
• Article 14 - PERFORMANCE REVIEW (OPEN)
• Article 15 - SENIORITY
• Article 16 - EMPLOYMENT OUTSIDE STATE GOVERNMENT
• Article 17 - GROOMING STANDARDS
• Article 18 - HOURS OF WORK, LEAVE AND JOB-CONNECTED DISABILITY (OPEN)
• Article 19 - PERSONAL PROPERTY - REPLACEMENT AND/OR REIMBURSEMENT
• Article 20 - TRAINING AND EDUCATION
• Article 21 - ACTING RANKS
• Article 22 -= VACANTRETIREMENT (OPEN)
• Article 23 - EQUIPMENT
• Article 24 - ON-CALL ASSIGNMENT - CALL-BACK - COURT APPEARANCE
• Article 25 - WAGES (OPEN)
• Article 26 - UNIFORMS AND ACCESSORIES
• Article 27 - INSURANCE BENEFITS (OPEN)
• Article 28 - TRAVEL EXPENSES
• Article 29 - DRUG TESTING
• Article 30 - NO STRIKE
• Article 31 - STATE PERSONNEL SYSTEM RULES
• Article 32 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS
• Article 33 - ENTIRE AGREEMENT (OPEN)
• Article 34 - SAVINGS CLAUSE
• Article 35 - DURATION (OPEN)
• Article 36 - AWARDS
• SIGNATURES
• APPENDIX A - Classes in the Law Enforcement Unit



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is between the State of Florida (hereinafter called the "State") and
the FLORIDA POLICE BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION, (hereinafter called the "PBA")
representing the employees in the Law Enforcement Bargaining Unit.

PREAMBLE

WHEREAS, it is recognized by the parties hereto that the declared public policy of the
State and the purpose of Part II, Chapter 447, Florida Statutes, is to provide
statutory implementation of Section 6, Article I of the Constitution of the State of
Florida, and to promote harmonious and cooperative relationships between State
government and its employees, both collectively and individually, and to protect the
public by assuring, at all times, the orderly and uninterrupted operations and
functions of State Government; and

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the parties of this Agreement to set forth the entire
agreement with respect to matters within the scope of negotiations; and

WHEREAS, the above language is a statement of intent and, therefore, not subject to
the grievance procedure as outlined in Article 6;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the
parties do agree as follows:

Article 1
RECOGNITION

(A) The State hereby recognizes the PBA as the exclusive representative for the
purposes of collective bargaining with respect to wages, hours, and terms and
conditions of employment for all employees included in the Law Enforcement
Bargaining Unit.

(B) The bargaining Unit for which this recognition is accorded is as defined in
Certification Number 1281 issued by the Florida Public Employees Relations
Commission and as subsequently amended by the Commission.

(C) This Agreement includes all full-time and part-time Career Service employees in
the classifications and positions listed in Appendix A of this Agreement.

Article 2
GENDER REFERENCE

All references in this Agreement to employees of the male gender are used for
convenience only and shall be construed to include both male and female employees.

Article 3
VACANT

2



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

Article 4
NO DISCRIMINATION

SECTION 1 - Non-Discrimination Policy - State-Federal Law

(A) The State and the PBA shall not discriminate against any employee for any
reason prohibited under Florida Statutes or any Federal Law.

(B) The PBA shall have the right to consult on issues of discrimination or sexual
harassment with the Step 1 Management Representative and/or his designee(s), up
through the Step 2 Management Representative and/or his designee(s), to the
Department of Management Services.

(C) Any claim of discrimination or sexual harassment by an employee against the
State, its officials or representatives, except for grievances related to PBA
membership, shall only be subject to the method of review prescribed by law or by
rules and regulations having the force and effect of law.

SECTION 2 - Non-Discrimination Policy - PBA Membership

Neither the State nor the PBA shall interfere with the right of law enforcement
employees covered by this Agreement to become or refrain from becoming members
of the PBA, and neither the State nor the PBA shall discriminate against any such
employee because of membership or non-membership in any employee organization.

SECTION 3 - Affirmative Action and Americans with Disabilities Programs

The Parties agree that during the first year of the initial collective bargaining
agreement that the PBA may contact each law enforcement agency for the purpose
of conducting a consultation meeting. Such meeting shall be conducted in
accordance with the provisions of Article 5 of the Agreement. At the initial meeting,
the agency shall provide to the PBA an orientation to the agency's current affirmative
action program and efforts to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Article 5 2912 Legislsti',ve Ilftl'ssse Ressltltisft
EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATION AND PBA ACTIVITIES

SECTION 1 - Definitions

(A) The term "employee", as used in this Agreement, shall mean an employee
included in the bargaining unit represented by the Florida Police Benevolent Association,
(PBA).

(B) The term "Grievance Representative", as used in this Agreement, shall mean an
employee designated by the President of the PBA to represent a grievant at Step 1
meetings on grievances which have been properly filed under Article 6 of this
Agreement, where the PBA has been selected as the employee's representative.

3



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

SECTION 2 - Representation

(A) The PBA shall select a reasonable number of PBA Grievance Representatives, and
shall furnish to the State and keep up-to-date a list of employees authorized as Grievance
Representatives. The State will not recognize a grievance or staff representative whose
name does not appear on the list. The PBA shall furnish to the State and keep up-to-date
a list of PBA Staff Representatives. Where PBA representation is requested by an
employee, the representative shall be a person designated by the PBA.

(B) Where PBA representation is not requested by the employee, the PBA shall be
notified of, and be given an opportunity for a Staff Representative to be present at
meetings concerning the grievance.

SECTION 3 - Representative Access

The State agrees that recognized representatives of the PBA shall have access to the
premises of the State which are available to the public. If an-area of the State's premises
is restricted to the public, permission must be requested to enter the area; such permission
will not be unreasonably denied. Access shall be during the regular working hours of the
employee and shall be restricted to matters related to the application of this Agreement.

SECTION 4 - Documents

(A) The State shall provide the PBA with the following:

(l) When agencies send out information which affects an employee's
terms and conditions of employment covered by this Agreement or which
could affect the application or interpretation of this Agreement, the PBA
will be sent the information.

(2) Each agency shall furnish the PBA a current copy of the agency's
rules, regulations and policies which affect employees' terms and
conditions of employment covered by this Agreement which are not
included in the Rules of the State Personnel System. Changes and updates
shall be furnished to the PBA as they occur. If an agency publishes and
timely maintains on the agency's website the documents referenced in this
Section for use by employees, the documents on the agency's website
shall serve as the copies furnished to the PBA. This does not relieve the
affected agency of the duty to notify the PBA as changes and updates
occur.

4



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(B) The State shall provide each employee with the following:

(1) Access to a copy of the Rules of the State Personnel System; and

(2) Access to a copy of department rules, regulations or policies which
affect the employee's salary, benefits or terms and conditions of
employment. Employees will be notified of changes and updates as they
occur.

SECTION 5 - Consultation

(A) Upon request by the designated PBA Staff Representative, the Secretary of the
Department of Management Services and/or designated representatives shall make a good
faith effort to meet and consult on a quarterly basis with three (3) PBA representatives.
Meetings shall be held at a time and place designated by the Department of Management
Services.

(B) Upon request by the designated PBA Staff Representative, but not more often than
once in each calendar month, the Agency Head and/or designated representatives shall
make a good faith effort to meet and consult with not more than two (2) PBA
representatives from the Agency and PBA Staff Representative. Meetings shall be held at
a time and place designated by the Agency Head.

(C) Upon request by the designated PBA Staff Representative, but not more than once in
each calendar month, the Step 1 Management Representative shall make a good faith
effort to meet and consult with the PBA Staff Representative and not more than two (2)
PBA representatives from the Agency. Meetings shall be held at a time and place to be
designated by the Step 1 Management Representative.

(D) Consultation meetings will be scheduled after gIvmg due consideration to the
availability and work location of all parties. If a consultation meeting is held or requires
reasonable travel time during the working hours of an employee participant, the
employee shall be excused without loss of pay for that purpose. Attendance at the
consultation meeting outside of regular working hours shall not be deemed time worked.

(E) The purpose of consultation meetings shall be to discuss matters relating to the
administration of this Agreement and agency law enforcement activities which affect
employees, and no meeting shall be used for the purpose of discussing pending
grievances or for negotiation purposes. No later than seven (7) calendar days prior to the
scheduled meeting date, the parties shall exchange agenda indicating the matters they
wish to discuss.

5



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

SECTION 6 - Bulletin Boards

(A) Where requested in writing, the State agrees to furnish in a permanent State
controlled facility to which employees are assigned, wall space not to exceed 24" x 36"
for PBA-purchased bulletin boards.

(B) When requested in writing, the State agrees to furnish at an academy in an agency
controlled facility, wall space not to exceed 24" x 36" for a PBA - purchased bulletin
board.

(C) The PBA bulletin boards shall be used only for the following notices:

(1) Recreation and social affairs of the PBA,

(2) PBA meetings,

(3) PBA elections,

(4) Reports of PBA committees,

(5) PBA benefit programs,

(6) Current PBA contract,

(7) Training and educational opportunities, and

(8) Other materials pertaining to the welfare ofPBA members.

(D) Notices posted on these bulletin boards shall not contain anything reflecting
adversely on the State, its officers or employees; nor shall any posted material violate
law, rule, or regulation.

(E) Notices posted must be dated and bear the signature of the PBA's authorized
representative.

(F) A violation of these provisions by a PBA authorized representative shall be a basis for
removal of bulletin board privileges by the Department of Management Services.

(0) Agencies shall cooperate with the PBA to maintain PBA bulletin boards free of
postings by non-PBA individuals or organizations.

SECTION 7 - Occupational Profiles and Rules Maintained

.
The State will maintain on the Department of Management Services' website the
occupational profiles and the Rules of the State Personnel System.

6



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

SECTION 8 - Negotiations

(A) The PBA agrees that all collective bargaining is to be conducted with State
representatives designated for that purpose by the Governor, as chief executive officer.
Negotiating meetings shall be held in Tallahassee unless the State and the PBA agree to
meet elsewhere at a State facility or other location which involves no rental cost to the
State. There shall be no negotiation by the PBA at other levels of State government.

(B) The PBA may designate up to eight (8) employees to attend each single-day session
as Negotiation Committee members who will be granted administrative leave to attend
negotiation sessions with the State. If travel to and from negotiations unavoidably occurs
on work days immediately preceding or following a day of negotiation, employees shall
be eligible to receive administrative leave on an hour for hour basis for such reasonable
travel time pending review and approval by the employing agency. If the PBA chooses
to hold a negotiation preparatory meeting on the calendar day immediately preceding a
scheduled negotiation session, negotiation committee members will be granted
administrative leave for attendance at the meeting. Administrative leave for travel time
to the preparatory meeting is limited to the day of the preparatory meeting. No employee
shall be credited with more than the number of hours in the employee's regular workday
for a day the employee is attending negotiations or traveling to or from negotiations. The
time in attendance at negotiating sessions shall not be counted as hours worked for the
purpose of computing compensatory time or overtime. The Agency shall not reimburse
the employee for travel, meals, lodging, or any expense incurred in connection with
attendance at negotiating sessions.

(C) The selection of an employee shall not unduly hamper the operations of the work
unit. No more than one (1) employee per agency shall attend a single day session.

SECTION 9 - Changes To Policies

(A) The State shall provide reasonable notice to the PBA of amendments to existing
policies that result in change in a mandatory subject of bargaining.

(B) After notice, the PBA may consult with an agency on a change in a mandatory
subject of bargaining provided that the PBA makes a request in a reasonable timeframe.
If consultation is unsuccessful, the matter will be referred to the Department of
Management Services to bargain over the proposed change.

(C) Where the proposed changes affect the entire bargaining unit, and relate to
mandatory subjects of bargaining, the PBA and the State shall meet to bargain the
proposed changes.

(0) Nothing herein shall preclude the PBA from filing a grievance if the proposed
changes violate the Agreement.

7



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(E) The PBA acknowledges that certain proposed changes require an expedited response
and may be implemented without undue delay in those instances where there is a waiver,
exigent circumstances, or satisfaction of bargaining to resolution or impasse.

SECTION 10 - Academy Access

Where the agency operates its own Academy and conducts entry-level law enforcement
training, the PBA will be notified of the date, time and location of the training, and the
parties will determine the date and time the PBA will be granted academy access. A
representative of the PBA, accompanied by the head of the Academy, will be permitted to
address each entry-level law enforcement class during class time, to issue to each recruit
a copy of the current PBA Agreement, to discuss the provisions of that Agreement and to
describe the organization and benefits. The presentation will not last longer than thirty
(30) minutes, unless a longer period is agreed to by the PBA and the agency, and may be
made only once per class at a time selected in advance by the PBA, the representative of
the head of the academy, and the agency head or designee.

It is understood by the parties that the PBA will not use this time to obtain executed
applications for membership or dues deduction.

Article 6
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

It is the policy of the State and the PBA to encourage informal discussions of
complaints between management and supervisors covered by this Agreement, as
well as between those supervisors and covered employees. Such discussions should
be held with a view to reaching an understanding which will resolve the matter in a
manner satisfactory to the employee, without need for recourse to the formal
grievance procedure prescribed by this Article.

SECTION 1 - Definitions

As used in this Article:

(A) "Grievance" shall mean a dispute involVing the interpretation or application of the
specific provisions of this Agreement, except as exclusions are noted in this
Agreement.

(B) "Employee" shall mean a law enforcement employee or a group of law
enforcement employees haVing the same grievance. In the case of a group of
employees, one shall be designated by the group to act as spokesperson and to be
responsible for processing the grievance.

(C) "Days" shall mean calendar days, excluding any day observed as a holiday
pursuant to the Rules of the State Personnel System. If the due date for a grievance
response or for a grievance submission to a step or to arbitration falls on a weekend
or a holiday, the action shall be due the next business day.

8



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

SECTION 2 - Election of Remedy and Representation

(A) If an employee or the PBA has a grievance which may be processed under this
Article and which may also be appealed to the Florida Public Employees Relations
Commission, the employee or the PBA shall elect at the outset which procedure is to
be used and such election shall be binding on the employee or the PBA. In the case
of any duplicate filing, the action first filed will be the one processed.

(B) An employee who decides to use this Grievance Procedure shall indicate at Step
1 (or the initial written step if authorized by the provisions of this Article) whether or
not he shall be represented by the PBA. When the employee has elected PBA
representation, both the employee and the PBA Representative shall be notified of
any Step 1 meeting. Further, any written communication concerning the grievance or
its resolution shall be sent to both the employee and the PBA representative, and
any decision mutually agreed to by the State and the PBA shall be binding on the
employee.

(C) If the employee is not represented by the PBA, any adjustment of the grievance
shall be consistent with the terms of this Collective Bargaining Agreement. The PBA
shall be given reasonable opportunity to be present at any meeting called for the
resolution of such grievance. An employee using this procedure in the processing of a
grievance will be bound by the procedure established by the Parties to the
Agreement.

The PBA shall not be bound by the decision of any grievance or arbitration in which
the employee was not represented by the PBA.

SECTION 3 - Procedures

(A) Employee grievances filed in accordance with this Article should be presented
and handled promptly at the lowest level of management having the authority to
adjust the grievances.

(B) There shall be no reprisals against any of the participants in the procedures
contained herein by reason of such participation.

(C) The filing or pendency of any grievance under the provisions of this Article shall
in no way operate to impede, delay or interfere with the right of the State to take the
action complained of; subject, however, to the final disposition of the grievance.

(D) Once a grievance is presented, no new violation or issue can be raised, unless
the Parties mutually agree in writing to revise or amend the alleged violations or
issues or for good cause but in no event less than seven (7) days prior to any
arbitration hearing. When an issue is unchanged, but it is determined that an article,
section or paragraph of the Agreement has been cited imprecisely or erroneously by
the employee, then the employee shall have the right to amend that part of his
grievance.

(E) The resolution of a grievance prior to its submission in writing at Step 2 shall not
establish a precedent binding on either the PBA or the State in other cases.

9



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(F) If a grievance meeting is held or requires reasonable travel time during the
working hours of any required participant, such participant shall be excused without
loss of pay for that purpose. Attendance at grievance meetings outside of the regular
working hours shall not be deemed time worked. All grievance meetings shall be held
at times and locations mutually agreed to by the parties, except that, unless
mutually agreed otherwise, all meetings shall be held within fifty (50) miles of the
grievant's place of work.

(G) Grievances shall be presented and adjusted in the following manner, and no one
individual may respond to a grievance at more than one written step.

(H) Grievances and grievance responses may be filed by hand-delivery, mail
(including e-mail), courier, or electronic facsimile. If sent via electronic facsimile, the
burden shall be on the sending Party to confirm the correct electronic facsimile
number before transmission. Documents shall be deemed filed upon receipt during
regular business hours (8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.). Documents received after business
hours shall be considered received the next business day.

Step 1.

(A) An employee having a grievance may within fourteen (14) days following actual
knowledge of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance submit a
grievance at Step 1. Nothing in this procedure shall preclude an employee from
presenting concerns through informal discussions with management representative.
In filing a grievance at Step 1, the employee or his designated representative shall
submit to the Step 1 Management Representative a grievance form setting forth
specifically the known facts on which the grievance is based, the specific provision or
provisions of the Agreement allegedly Violated, and the relief requested. In discipline
cases, it shall be presumed that the grievance alleges that the discipline was without
just cause, and requests, as relief, at a minimum, reinstatement, full make whole
relief.

(B) The Step 1 Management Representative or his designee shall communicate a
decision in writing to the employee and to the PBA Grievance Representative, if any,
within fourteen (14) days follOWing receipt of the grievance form. If the Management
Representative fails to respond within the time limit it shall be deemed a denial.

Step 2.

(A) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the employee or his designated
representative may submit it to the Agency Head or his designated representative
within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the decision at Step 1.

(B) The Agency Head or his designated representative shall communicate a decision
in writing to the employee and the PBA Grievance Representative, if any, within
fourteen (14) days follOWing receipt of the written grievance. If the Agency Head fails
to respond within the time limits it shall be deemed a denial.

10



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

Step 3.

(A) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 2, the PBA may appeal the grievance to
arbitration within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the decision at Step 2. If, at the
initial written step, the PBA declined to represent the employee because he was not a
member of the PBA, the employee may appeal the grievance to arbitration. The
grievance shall include a copy of the grievance forms submitted at Steps 1 and 2
together with all written responses and documents in support of the grievance. The
Department of Management Services may have a meeting with the PBA Staff
Representative or his designee to discuss the grievance.

(B) The arbitrator shall be one person from a panel of four (4) arbitrators selected by
the Parties.

(C) The parties may, by mutual agreement in writing, submit related grievances for
hearing before the same arbitrator. Arbitration hearings shall be held at times and
locations mutually agreed to by the parties; however, unless mutually agreed
otherwise, all hearings shall be held within fifty (50) miles of the grievant(s)' place of
work.

(D) The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the grievance and,
provided the decision is in accordance with his jurisdiction and authority under this
Agreement, shall be final and binding on the State, the PBA, the grievant(s), and the
employees in the bargaining unit. In considering a grievance the arbitrator shall be
governed by the following provisions and limitations:

(1) The arbitrator shall issue his decision not later than fourteen (14)
days from the date of the closing of the hearing or the submission of
briefs, whichever is later.

(2) The arbitrator's decision shall be in writing, and shall set forth the
arbitrator's opinion and conclusions on the issue(s) submitted.

(3) The arbitrator shall have no authority to determine any other
issue, and shall refrain from issuing any statement of opinion or
conclusion not essential to the determination of the issues submitted.

(4) The arbitrator shall limit his decision strictly to the application and
interpretation of the specific provisions of this Agreement.

(5) The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make any
decisions that are:

(a) Contrary to or inconsistent with, adding to, subtracting from, or
modifying, altering or ignoring in any way, the terms of this
Agreement, or of applicable law or rules or regulations having the
force and effect of law.

(b) Limiting or interfering in any way with the power, duties and
responsibilities of the State under its Constitution, applicable law, and
rules and regulations having the force and effect of law, except as

11



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

such powers, duties and responsibilities have been abridged, delegated
or modified by the express provisions of this Agreement.

(6) The arbitrator's award may include back pay, to the Grievant(s);
however, the following limitations shall apply to such monetary
awards:

(a) No award for back pay shall exceed the amount of pay the
employee would otherwise have earned at his regular rate of pay and
such back pay shall not be retroactive to a date earlier than the date
of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance under
consideration.

(b) The award shall not exceed the actual loss to the grievant, will not
include punitive damages, and will be reduced by the amount of wages
earned from other sources excluding unemployment compensation
received by the employee during the period of time affected by the
award.

(c) The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne solely by the
party who fails to prevail in the hearing; however, each party shall be
responsible for compensating and paying the expenses of its own
representatives, attorneys and witnesses. Should the arbitrator fashion
an award in such a manner that the grievance is sustained in part and
denied in part, the State and the PBA will evenly split the arbitrator's
fee and expenses.

(d) The PBA will not be responsible for costs of an arbitration to which
it was not a Party.

SECTION 4 - Time Limits

(A) Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance
within the specified time limits shall permit the employee, or the PBA, where
appropriate, to proceed to the next step. The State will make a good faith effort to
timely communicate decisions at each step.

(B) The number of days indicated at each step should be considered as a maximum,
and every effort should be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits
specified in any step of this procedure may be extended, in any specific instance, by
mutual written agreement.

(C) Claims of either an untimely filing or untimely appeal shall be made at the step in
-question.

SECTION 5 - Exceptions

(A) Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to
permit the PBA or an employee to process a grievance (1) in behalf of any employee
without his consent, or (2) with respect to any matter which is the subject of a

12



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

grievance, appeal, administrative action before a government board or agency, or
court proceeding, brought by the PBA.

(B) All grievances will be presented at the initial step with the following exceptions:

(1) If a grievance arises from the action of an official higher than the
Step 1 Management Representative, the grievance shall be initiated at
Step 2 or 3, as appropriate, by submitting a grievance form as set
forth in Step 1 within fourteen (14) days following the actual
knowledge of the occurrence giving rise to the grievance.

(2) The PBA shall have the right to bring a class action grievance on
behalf of bargaining Unit employees in its own name, concerning
disputes relating to the interpretation or application of this Agreement.
Such grievance shall not include disciplinary actions taken against an
employee. The PBA's election to proceed under this Article shall
preclude it from proceeding in another forum on the same issue. Such
grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 or, where more than one agency
is implicated, Step 3 of this procedure, in accordance with the
provisions set forth herein, within fourteen (14) days of the knowledge
or reasonable knowledge of the occurrence of the event giving rise to
the grievance.

SECTION 6 - Expedited Arbitration

(A) The parties recognize that certain grievances are amenable to expedited
resolution by an arbitrator. Accordingly at any point in the grievance procedure, the
PBA may request expedited arbitration of any grievance. Requests for expedited
arbitration shall be granted in cases involVing arbitrable disciplinary action less than
discharge. In all other cases, expedited arbitration will be used in instances of
mutual agreement.

(B) Expedited Arbitration Rules:

(1) When a grievance is to be resolved via expedited arbitration, all
remaining steps in the grievance procedure are skipped and the
grievance is submitted directly to the expedited arbitrator.

(2) The arbitrator is designated by rotation from the list of four (4)
permanent arbitrators.

(3) Expedited arbitration hearings shall be no longer than four (4)
hours in duration, with each party limited to two (2) hours, with a
maximum of two (2) witnesses per party, and one (1) rebuttal witness
if necessary. There shall be no post-hearing briefs, although either
party may submit written statement of position to the arbitrator during
the hearing. The Arbitrator shall issue a short (no longer than three
(3) pages) decision within seven (7) days of the hearing. With the
exception of the foregoing, all provisions of Section (3)(J)(5) of this
procedure shall be applicable.

13



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

Article 7
INTERNAL INVESTIGATIONS

SECTION 1 - Internal Investigations

(A) The parties recognize that law enforcement personnel occupy a special place in
American society. Therefore, it is understood that the State has the right to expect
that a professional standard of conduct be adhered to by all law enforcement
personnel regardless of rank or assignment. Since internal investigations may be
undertaken to inquire into complaints of law enforcement misconduct, the State
reserves the right to conduct such investigations to uncover the facts in each case,
but expressly agrees to carefully guard and protect the rights and dignity of accused
personnel. In the course of any internal investigation, the investigative methods
employed will be consistent with the law (including but not limited to Section
112.532, Florida Statutes) and this agreement; nothing in this agreement, however,
shall be deemed to diminish the rights of employees under applicable law.

(8) When an allegation is made against an employee, the State will make every
reasonable effort to ensure that the allegation and any related statements are
reduced to writing, under oath, and signed. The written allegation shall be known as
a complaint.

(C) When an employee is to be questioned or interviewed concerning a complaint or
allegation, the employee will be informed prior to the interview of the nature of the
investigation and whether he is the subject of the investigation or a witness in an
investigation. Employees shall be informed of the right to have a union
representative in attendance at the interview and where requested, an employee
shall be given forty-eight (48) hours to contact, consult with and secure the
attendance of a representative at the interview. If he is the subject of the
investigation, the employee and his representative will also be informed of each
complaint or allegation against him and they shall be permitted to review all written
statements and recordings made by the complainant and witnesses will be made
available for review at least one (1) hour prior to the commencement of the
interview in accordance with Section 112, Florida Statutes. In the event the written
statement or recordings are such that additional review time is warranted, the
employee may request and be granted additional time unless the request is made for
the purposes of delay. Pursuant to Section 112.533, Florida Statutes, the employee
who is the subject of the investigation shall not disclose the contents to anyone other
than his representative or attorney until the investigation is complete.

(D) Interviews and questioning of employees shall be conducted in a professional
manner. Statements from an employee shall not be taken in a coercive manner.

(E) The formal interrogation of a law enforcement officer shall comply with the
provisions of Florida Statutes, Section 112.532. The employee shall receive a copy of
his written or recorded statement at no cost to the employee. No recording or
transcription of the investigative interview will be made without the knowledge of all
participants present at the interview.

(F) In cases where the agency determines that the employee's absence from the
work location is essential to the investigation and the employee cannot be reassigned

14



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

to other duties pending completion of the investigation, the employee shall be placed
on administrative leave with pay.

(G) Unless required by statute, no employee shall be required to submit to a
polygraph test or any device designed to measure the truthfulness of his responses
during an investigation of a complaint or allegation.

(H) Only sustained findings may be inserted in personnel records. Unfounded
findings shall not be inserted in permanent personnel records or referred to in
performance reviews.

(1) Internal investigations will ordinarily be completed within forty-five (45) days
from the date the complaint is filed, unless circumstances necessitate a longer
period. An investigation shall not exceed one hundred and twenty (120) days without
the approval of the Agency head or designee. Except in the case of a criminal
investigation, the employee shall be notified in writing of any investigation that
exceeds one hundred and twenty (120) days.

(J) The employee under investigation shall be advised in writing of the results of the
investigation at its conclusion.

(K) The State will make a good faith effort to train persons who investigate charges
against law enforcement employees in the investigative rights reserved for those
employees in the interest of avoiding infringement of those rights.

(L) In the case of criminal, non-administrative internal investigation into the criminal
misconduct of a sworn employee, the provisions of (6) through (K) shall not apply.

Article 8
WORK FORCE REDUCTION

SECTION 1 - Layoffs

(A) When bargaining Unit employees are to be laid off, the State shall
implement such layoff in the following manner:

(1) For bargaining Unit employees, the competitive area within which
layoffs will be affected shall be defined as statewide within each agency.

(2) Layoff shall be by occupational level within the Law Enforcement
bargaining unit.

(3) An employee who does not have permanent status in the Career
Service System may be laid off without applying the provision for retention
rights.

(4) No employee with permanent status in the affected broadband
level shall be laid off while an employee who does not hold permanent status
is serving in that broadband level unless the permanent employee does not
elect to exercise his retention rights or does not meet the selective
competition criteria.

15



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(5) All employees who have permanent status in the affected
broadband level shall be ranked on a layoff list based on the total retention
points derived as follows:

(a) Length of service retention points shall be based on one
point for each month of continuous service in a Career Service
position.

(1) An employee who resigns from one Career Service
position to accept employment in another Career Service
position is not considered to have a break in service.

(2) An employee who has been laid off and is
reemployed within one year from the date of the layoff, shall
not be considered to have a break in service.

(3) Moving from Career Service to Selected Exempt
Service or Senior Management Service and back to Career
Service does not constitute a break in service unless the
employee's break in service is more than 31 calendar days.
Only time spent in the Career Service can be counted in
calculating retention points.

(b) Retention points deducted for performance not meeting
performance standards or work expectations defined for the position
shall be based on the five years immediately prior to the agency's
established cutoff date. Five points shall be deducted for each month
an employee has a rating below performance expectations.

(6) The layoff list shall be prepared by totaling retention points.
Employees eligible for veterans' preference pursuant to Section 295.07(1)(a)
or (b), Florida Statutes, shall have ten percent added to their total retention
points, and those eligible pursuant to Section 295.07(1)(c) or (d) shall have
five percent added.

(7) The employee with the highest total retention points is placed at
the top of the list, and the employee with the lowest retention points is placed
at the bottom of the list.

(8) The employee at the top of the list shall bump the employee at the
bottom of the list. The next highest employee on the list and the remaining
employees shall be handled in the same manner until the total number of
filled positions in the broadband level to be abolished is complete.

(9) Should two or more employees have the same combined total of
retention points, the order of layoff shall be determined by giving preference
for retention in the following sequence:

(a) The employee with the longest service in the affected
broadband level.

(b) The employee with the longest continuous Career Service.
(c) The employee who is entitled to veteran's preference

pursuant to Section 295.07(1), Florida Statutes.

16



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(10) An employee who has Career Service status and who is to be laid
off shall be given at least 14 calendar days notice of such layoff or in lieu
thereof, two weeks payor a combination of days of notice and pay, in lieu of
the full 14 calendar days notice, to be paid at the employee's current hourly
base rate of pay. The notice of layoff shall be in writing and sent to the
employee by certified mail, return receipt requested. Within 7 calendar days
after receiving the notice of layoff, the employee shall have the right to
request a demotion or reassignment within the competitive area in lieu of
layoff to a position in a broadband level within the bargaining unit which the
employee held permanent status, or to a position at the level of or below the
current level in the bargaining unit, in which the employee held permanent
status. Such request must be in writing and reassignment or demotion cannot
be effected to a higher broadband level.

(11) An employee's request for demotion or reassignment shall be
granted unless it would cause the layoff of another employee who possesses a
greater total of retention points.

(12) An employee who is adversely affected as a result of another
employee having a greater number of retention points shall have the same
right of reassignment or demotion under the same procedure as provided in
this section.

(13) If an employee requests a demotion or reassignment in lieu of
layoff, the same formula and criteria for establishing retention points shall be
used as prescribed in this section.

(B) If there is to be a layoff of employees the State shall take all reasonable
steps to place any adversely affected employees in existing vacancies for which they
are qualified.

(C) If work performed by employees in this unit is to be performed by non
State employees, the State agrees to encourage the employing entity to consider
any adversely affected unit employees for employment in its organization if the State
has been unable to place the employees in other positions within the Career Service
System.

SECTION 2 - Recall

(A) For a period of six (6) calendar months following layoff, when a vacancy
occurs or a new position is established, laid off employees with the highest number
of retention points shall be notified and permitted the opportunity to apply.

(B) Any appointment offer by the employing agency shall be subject to
agency needs and sufficient funds and salary rate for the vacant position.

(C) Employees who are reemployed after layoff in a position in the broadband
level from which the employee was laid off shall be reemployed with permanent
status.

17



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

SECTION 3 - Retirement Benefits

Pursuant to Section 121.021(38), Florida Statutes, an absence from the employer's
payroll for a period of not to exceed twelve (12) calendar months due to a "layoff" by
the State shall not constitute a break in the continuous service requirement as
provided in Section 121.021, Florida Statutes, for special risk members.

SECTION 4 - Job Security

(A) The State shall notify the PBA at least thirty (30) days in advance of a
layoff involVing positions within the bargaining unit. Thirty (30) days prior to the
actual layoff decision, the State will meet and negotiate with the PBA over the
necessity of the layoff, alternatives to the proposed layoff and like and related
matters. However, these negotiations shall not delay the implementation of layoffs
after completion of the thirty (30) days bargaining period. The union will not pursue
statutory impasse resolution procedures after the satisfaction of this bargaining
obligation.

(B) At least thirty (30) days prior to affecting a planned organizational change
which will result in the movement of positions out of the bargaining unit, or in the
demotion of Unit employees, the agency will notify the Department of Management
Services of the changes. If the Department of Management Services determines that
bargaining Unit employees are impacted by the changes under Chapter 447, Florida
Statutes, it will notify the PBA of the changes.

Article 9
REASSIGNMENT, TRANSFER, CHANGE IN DUTY STATION, AND PROMOTION

Employees who have attained permanent status in the Career Service shall have the
opportunity to request and be selected for vacant positions in their current class
within the respective agency in accordance with the provisions of this Article.

SECTION 1 - Definitions

As used in this Article:

(A) "Change in Duty Station" shall mean the moving of an employee to a duty station
located within fifty (50) miles of his current duty station.

(B) "Duty station" shall mean the place which is designated as an employee's official
headquarters.

(C) "Occupational level" shall mean the same level within the employee's current
occupation within the State classification system.

(D) "Reassignment" shall mean the moving of an employee from a position in one
occupational level to a different position in the same occupational level with the

18



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

same essential knowledge, skills and abilities, regardless of the location of the
position.

(E) "Transfer" shall mean the moving of an employee from one geographic area of
the State to a different geographic location which is in excess of fifty (50) miles from
the employee's current duty station.

(F) "Promotion" shall mean the moving of an employee from a position in one
occupational level to a different position in another occupational level having a higher
maximum salary, provided the position in the higher occupational level is in the
bargaining Unit.

(G) "Demotion" shall mean the moving of an employee from a position in one
occupational level to a different position in another class/occupational level having a
lower maximum salary.

SECTION 2 - Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station

(A) An employee who has attained permanent status in the Career Service System
may apply for a reassignment on a Request for Reassignment Form (supplied by the
agency). Such Requests shall indicate the county(ies) and/or shift(s) to which the
employee would like to be reassigned. When the employee requests reassignment, a
State of Florida Employment Application Form must be completed and sent with the
Request for Reassignment Form.

(B) An employee may submit a Request for Reassignment Form at any time;
however, all such Requests shall expire on June 30 of each calendar year. Requests
for reassignment for the next fiscal year may be filed on June 1 of the preceding
fiscal year.

(C) All Request for Reassignment Forms shall be submitted to the agency head or his
designee who shall be responsible for furnishing a copy of each such Request to the
management representatives who have the authority to make employee hiring
decisions in the county to which the employee has requested reassignment, The
employee shall provide a copy of the Request to the PBA at the time it is filed with
the agency.

(D) Except where a vacancy is filled by demotion, or ",'here reassignment is not in
the best interests of the agency, the management representative haVing hiring
authority for that vacancy shall give first consideration to those employees who have
submitted a Request for Reassignment Form; provided, however, that employees
whose Request for Reassignment is not submitted by the first day of the month shall
not be considered for vacancies which occur during that month.

(E) Provided the reassignment is in the best interest of the agency, tThe hiring
authority shall normally fill a permanent vacancy with the employee who has the
greatest length of service in the occupational level and who has a Request for
Reassignment Form on file for the county in which the vacancy exists-;- unless the
employee has been formally disciplined. received a "below standards" performance
evaluation or placed on performance improvement plan within the past calendar
year. The Parties agree, howe\'er, that other factors, such as employees' work

19



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

histoFY and agenc)' needs, A'la'l be taken into consideration in A'laking the decision as
to ·....hether or not the eA'lplo'lee with the greatest length of service in the
occupational lC'ifel ·....ill be placed in the vacant position.

(F) If the employee with the greatest length of service in the occupational level is not
selected for the vacant position, the Agency shall notify the employee selected with
reasons for the selection. Employees with greater length in service will be allowed to
obtain a copy of the notice.

(G) When an employee has been reassigned pursuant to a Request filed under this
Article, all other pending Requests shall be canceled. No other Request may be filed
under this Article for a period of twelve (12) months following the employee's
reassignment. If an employee declines an offer of reassignment pursuant to a
Request filed under this Article, the employee will not be eligible for consideration for
reassignment to the county(ies) and/or shift(s) declined, for a period of twelve (12)
months.

(H) An employee shall not be required to change residence for the sole purpose of
living within a specific county; however, an employee may be required to reside
within a reasonable distance of a specific duty station.

(I) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent an agency, at
its discretion, from affecting the involuntary reassignment, transfer or change in duty
station of any employee according to the needs of the agency. However, it is
understood that the agency will make an effort not to affect any involuntary
reassignment, transfer or change in duty station which will impose a residency
hardship on the employee (in that he must relocate his residence from a permanent
home presently owned or cancel a rental lease extending more than three (3)
months), without first considering any Request for Reassignment Forms on file for
the county in which the agency need exists.

(J) An employee shall be given a minimum of fourteen (14) calendar days' notice
prior to the agency affecting any shift change or reassignment and thirty (30)
calendar days' notice prior to the agency affecting any transfer.

(K) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent the State from
making reassignments, shift changes, transfers, or changes in duty stations of any
employee during an emergency or as otherwise required to meet urgent law
enforcement needs of the State.

SECTION 3 - Relocation Allowance

An employee who is reassigned or promoted and who is required by agency policy to
relocate his residence shall be granted time off with pay for one (1) work day leave
for purposes of relocating his residence. In addition, the employee shall be granted
travel time to the new location based on the most direct route. No employee will be
credited with more than the number of hours in the employee's regular workday and
such time shall not be counted as hours worked for the purpose of computing
compensatory time or overtime.

20



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

SECTION 4 - Request to Take Promotional Test

The State and the PBA agree that promotions should be made based on the relative
merit and fitness of applicants. Toward the goal of selecting the most qualified
applicant for each promotional vacancy, the parties agree that the provisions of this
Article along with all provisions of the Rules of the State Personnel System will be
followed when making such appointments.

(A) If an agency has established a promotional test, an employee who has attained
permanent status in the Career Service System may apply to take a- the promotional
test by submitting a Request to Take Test Form to the agency in which the
promotional position is located that he wishes to be considered for promotional
vacancies. Such request shall indicate the occupational level(s) to which the
employee would like to be promoted. If the request is for promotion to a position in
the same agency, the employee's eligibility for the occupational level shall be made
from information in the employee's personnel file. If the request is for a promotion to
a position in any agency other than the agency in which the employee is currently
employed, a State of Florida Employment Application Form must be completed and
sent with the employee's request for promotional consideration. In such cases, the
employee's eligibility shall be determined by the agency by the use of this completed
application. Each applicant will be notified of his eligibility or ineligibility for the
occupational level(s) applied for.

(B) An employee may submit a request to take a promotional test where established
by an agency at any time; however, all such requests must be filed every two (2)
years and must be received in the agency personnel office by no later than the first
business day after January 15 of each calendar year and shall remain effective until
revoked by the employee.

(C) If an agency has established a promotional test, by January 15 of each calendar
year, the central personnel office of each agency shall provide a "NOTICE OF
PROMOTIONAL TEST" containing the following information:

(1) The date(s) of the testes),

(2) The city(ies) where the testes) will be administered,

(3) The major categories to be covered by each test,

(4) A bibliography of the sources from which test questions have been
taken; e.g., name of textbooks, departmental policies, general orders,
special orders, etc.

(5) The passing grade that must be attained, expressed as a percent
(%) of correct answers to the total number of questions graded.

(D) By February 15 of each calendar year, each agency shall furnish to those
eligible employees whose test requests are on file in that agency, a copy of the
"NOTICE OF PROMOTIONAL TEST". The respective agency shall be responsible for
the administration of the written test no earlier than April 15 of each calendar year

21



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

and only those employees whose names are furnished to the agency will be eligible
to take the promotional test.

(E) Each agency that has established a promotional test and administers a
written test shall be responsible for notifying each employee who takes a
promotional test of the test results.

(F) When extraordinary circumstances make it necessary to give a
promotional test at a time other than as set forth above, the employees will be given
adequate notice to prepare for such special test.

SECTION 5 - Test Standards and Criteria

(A) The respective State agency shall be responsible for the development of
all written promotional tests which shall be based upon a job task analysis of the
occupational level of positions being tested and an assessment of the knowledge,
skills and abilities necessary to perform the requirements of positions in the
occupational level.

(B) Only persons who have been certified as a law enforcement officer
pursuant to Chapter 943, Florida Statutes, shall be eligible for agency promotional
tests.

(C) A one-hour test review will be held at the conclusion of each test session.
All challenges to test items must be submitted in writing and received by the
respective State agency within five (5) days after the date of the test.

SECTION 6 - Promotional Lists

(A) If the agency does not elect to rank employees solely on the basis of a
written test, the agency shall establish a promotional list which ranks the employees
according to their relative merit and fitness for promotional vacancies in the
occupational level. In addition to the written test score, the agency may, at its
discretion, utilize the employee's performance reviews and/or oral interviews in
establishing the agency's final promotional list. When performance reviews and/or
oral interviews are used, in addition to written test scores the agency shall advise
PBA in writing as to the weight the agency proposes to accord to each criteria in
establishing the agency promotional list. The PBA may upon request discuss the
criteria and weight to be accorded in addition to written test scores. If an agency
utilizes oral interviews, it will establish a three member panel, one to be selected by
the agency head or his designee, one by mutual agreement of the parties, and the
third to be selected by the PBA, prOVided that no member of the panel may be an
employee covered by this Agreement. Questions asked at an oral interview will be
limited to those that are clearly job related and the same questions shall be asked of
all applicants.

(B) The agency promotional list shall be effective July 1st of each calendar
year. Names shall be retained on the agency's promotional list for a period of one
year. Time extensions of said list may be made only by the mutual consent of the
parties. When a list is established as a result of a special test being given pursuant to
Section 2(D) above, it shall remain in force through June 30 of the calendar year.

22



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(C) The agency's promotional list, consisting of the name, final score and
position on the appropriate list, shall be furnished to each employee who passed the
written test.

SECTION 7 - Method of Filling Vacancies

(A) Except where a vacancy is filled by demoting a law enforcement employee
or by reassignment, any person who is to be selected for a vacancy must first have
his name placed on the agency's promotional list in accordance with the criteria set
forth in this Article. Upon the employee receiving his copy of the agency promotional
list, the employee who wishes to be considered for promotional opportunities shall
file with the agency a Request for Promotion Form which shall indicate the
occupational level(s) and the county(ies) to which the employee would like to be
promoted. The vacancy shall be filled from among the persons haVing the highest
five numerical scores contained on the promotional list who have applied for the
vacancy. However, an agency shall have the discretion to fill a vacancy from only the
highest five numerical scores of current agency or bargaining Unit employees
contained on the agency's promotional list. Agencies shall attempt to fill vacancies in
an expeditious manner when operationally feasible.

(8) In filling vacancies, the agency will first consider any pending Request for
Reassignment forms on file for the work area in which the agency need exists.
Nothing contained in this agreement shall be construed to prevent an agency from
filling a vacancy in a manner meeting the agency's needs.

SECTION 8 - Grievability

The initiation of a grievance claiming a residency hardship shall stay any reqUired
change in residence until final disposition of the grievance. In considering such a
grievance weight shall be given to the needs of the agency against the hardship on
the employee.

SECTION 9 - Promotions Outside the Unit

The State shall make a good faith effort to fill vacant positions in the rank
immediately above the bargaining unit with employees of the bargaining unit. This
provision is not subject to the Article 6 grievance procedure.

SECTION 10 - Probationary Status

An employee who has obtained permanent status in a position in a broadband level
who fails, due to the performance of the new duties, to satisfactorily complete the
probationary period in the promotional broadband level shall be demoted to the
former broadband level preViously held by the employee in an available vacant
position in the employing agency or may, at the discretion of the agency in which the
employee was preViously employed when the employee successfully completed
probation, be demoted to an available vacant position.

(A) Such a demotion shall be with permanent status, prOVided the employee held
permanent status in the lower broadband level.

23



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(B) The employee's salary will be reduced in accordance with the agency's pay upon
demotion policy.

(C) Such demotion shall not be grievable under the contractual grievance procedure.

Article 10
DISCIPLINARY ACTION

(A) An employee who has permanent status in the Career Service System may be
disciplined only for just cause.

(B) An employee who has not attained permanent status in the Career Service
System shall not have access to the grievance procedure in Article 6 when dismissed.

(C) Each employee shall be furnished a copy of all disciplinary actions placed in his
official personnel file and shall be permitted to respond thereto.

(D) An employee may request that a PBA Staff Representative be present during any
disciplinary investigation meeting in which the employee is being questioned relative
to alleged misconduct of the employee, or during a predetermination conference in
which suspension or dismissal of the employee is being considered.

(E) Letters of counseling are not disciplinary action and not grievable; documentation
or discipline less severe than an oral reprimand shall not be used against any
employee in any fashion.

(F) Suspensions, Dismissal, Reductions in Pay, and Demotions resulting in a loss of
pay may be challenged under Article 6 through arbitration. Oral reprimands, written
reprimands or other disciplinary actions not resulting in monetary loss are grievable
to Step 2 only and not arbitrable. At arbitration over a suspension, dismissal,
reduction in pay, or demotion with a monetary loss an employee may challenge any
basis relied upon by the Agency for taking the disciplinary action.

Article 11
CLASSIFICATION REVIEW

(A) Except in case of an emergency, bargaining Unit employees shall not be reqUired
to perform work not included in the employee's position description.

(B) When an employee alleges that the employee is being regularly required to
perform duties which are not included in the position description of the position being
filled by the employee, and the employee alleges that the duties assigned are not
included within the broadband level to which the position is allocated, the employee
may request that the agency head review the duties assigned to the employee's
position. The agency head or his designee shall review the duties as requested. The
employee will receive a copy of the decision.

(C) If the employee is not satisfied with the decision, the employee, with or without
representation, may request review by the Secretary of the Department of
Management Services or his designee.

24



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(D) The decision of the Secretary of the Department of Management Services or his
designee as to the broadband level of the position shall be final and binding on all
parties.

Article 12
PERSONNEL RECORDS

SECTION 1 - Personnel File

(A) There shall be only one official personnel file for each law enforcement employee,
which file shall be maintained in the central personnel office of the employing agency
unless a different location is approved by the Secretary of the Department of
Management Services or his designee in accordance with applicable law. Duplicate
personnel files may be established and maintained within an agency. Such duplicate
personnel files may contain part or all of the items filed in the official personnel file,
but may not contain any items which are not filed in the official personnel file.

(8) If any derogatory material is placed in a law enforcement employee's official
personnel file, a copy will be sent to the employee. The law enforcement employee
will have the right to answer any such material filed, and his answer will be attached
to the file copy.

(C) A law enforcement employee will have the right to review his own official
personnel file and any duplicate personnel files at reasonable times under the
supervision of the designated records custodian.

(D) Where the Agency Head or his designee, the Department of Management
Services, the Florida Public Employees Relations Commission, the Courts, an
Arbitrator, or other statutory authority determines that a disciplinary action against
an employee is not sustained, or is unfounded, or is otherwise invalid, or when an
employee is exonerated of a charge brought in a disciplinary action, the record copy
of such action shall be sealed in the file together with an explanation, stamped "NOT
VALID", and retained in the employee's personnel file for at least five (5) years after
final action as specified in the State of Florida General Records Schedule GSl for
State and Local Government Records, as promulgated by the Department of State;
provided, however, that the document shall be removed only upon the employee's
written request in accordance with the foregoing records schedule.

SECTION 2 - Privacy

The State and its agencies recognize the fact that Law Enforcement bargaining Unit
employees' home addresses, telephone numbers, photographs, places of
employment of the spouses and children and the names and locations of schools
attended by the children of bargaining Unit members are exempt from disclosure
under the Public Records law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and shall not be
released except for a legitimate governmental purpose.

25



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

Article 13
SAFETY

SECTION 1 - Vehicle and Vessel Safety

Vehicles and vessels used by bargaining Unit employees, whether issued to the
employee or not, shall be maintained in safe operating condition by the State.

SECTION 2 - Firearms Safety

In order to promote safety in the use of firearms by Law Enforcement Bargaining
Unit employees, the State will guarantee that each bargaining Unit employee is
allowed to fire his weapon in an approved Standards and Training Course at least
once every six (6) months, at no cost to employee. Such training shall be for the
purpose of familiarization in the use of firearms.

SECTION 3 - Consultation

The parties agree to form a Safety Committee with an equal number of PBA and
employer representatives, to study and recommend the purchase and maintenance
of minimal standards of safety equipment. The Committee shall conduct research
and periodically make recommendations to the State and/or appropriate agencies
with regard to:

(A) That all vehicles shall incorporate standard "police packages", power windows,
rear window defoggers, and heated rearview mirrors;

(B) That all 4X4 vehicles be equipped with roll bars;

(C) That all vehicles and vessels shall have a locking gun rack.

(D) Crash barriers for inspection booths;

(E) Use of radios by uniformed personnel not assigned marked vehicles; and

(F) Other matters relating to equipment, vehicle, and vessel purchases;
improvements to existing vehicles to enhance safety; training; and other matters
relating to safety.

The recommendations of the Committee shall be submitted in writing to the
appropriate agency head who shall respond, in writing, with respect to each
recommendation. Rejection of any recommendation shall include written justification
for the rejection.

The parties agree to execute a Memorandum of Understanding setting forth the
composition and schedule for the Committee.

26



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

Article 14
PERFORMANCE REVIEW

SECTION 1- Performance Reviews

(A) Performance reviews shall be conducted in accordance with Rule 60L-35, Florida
Administrative Code, Performance Evaluation System.

(B) Employees' performance shall be reviewed by their immediate supervisors or
designated raters, who shall submit the proposed performance review to higher
management for approval.

(C) Numerical arrest, citation or violation quotas will not be used as the primary
factor in reviewing employees' performance.

(D) The State will continue to maintain and will make a good faith effort to train
supervisors in performance review techniques.

(E) The performance review of an employee shall not be subject to the Grievance
Procedure of Article 6 of this Agreement unless the performance review is relied
upon in whole or in part as the basis for a disciplinary action under Article 10.

SECTION 2 - Agency Performance Reviews

The State agrees that each Agency's performance review system for bargaining Unit
employees shall adhere to the following standards.

(A) Performance reviews shall be based on an employee's actual job performance
and shall not conform to preconceived percentage distributions. When a numerical
scoring formula is to be utilized by any agency, the evaluation form shall contain the
formula with blanks for insertion of the actual scores that will be used in reaching the
overall evaluation.

(B) Whenever practicable, an employee's performance shall be reviewed by a sworn
law enforcement officer.

SECTION 3 - Recruit Evaluation

Bargaining Unit employees shall receive an evaluation from the academy upon
completion of recruit school. A copy of the evaluation shall be forwarded to their Law
Enforcement Unit supervisor.

Article 15
SENIORITY

SECTION 1 - Definition

For the purpose of this Agreement, "seniority" shall be defined as continuous service
in the job classification; proVided, however, that an employee shall be considered to
have a break in service when the employee separates, and is not on any payroll for
at least thirty-one (31) calendar days following the separation.

27



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

SECTION 2 - Seniority Application

Except under extraordinary circumstances, vacations, shifts, shift transfers and
regular days off shall be scheduled with due regard for needs of the agency,
seniority, and bargaining Unit employee preference. The State and the PBA
understand that there may be times when the needs of the agency will not permit
such scheduling.

SECTION 3 - Vacation and Holiday Leave
Where practicable, leave of forty (40) contiguous hours or more, or for holidays
requested, shall be requested at least sixty (60) days in advance of such leave in
order that the provisions of this Article may be fully implemented; however, in
implementing this provision nothing shall preclude an agency from making
reasonable accommodations for extraordinary leave requests or ensuring the fair
distribution of leave during favored holidays.

Article 16
EMPLOYMENT OUTSIDE STATE GOVERNMENT

For purposes of this Article, the following definitions are used:

(A) "Hireback": Off duty police employment administered by the State.

(B) "Off-Duty Employment": Any secondary employment undertaken while in an off
duty status which does not entail the use or implied use of policy authority. Work of
this type provides no real or potential law enforcement services, and vested policy
powers are not a condition of employment.

(C) "Off-Duty Police Employment": Secondary employment undertaken while in order
than a duty status which entails actual or potential use of policy authority and
requires police powers as a condition of employment.

SECTION 1 - Outside Employment - Non-Police Employment

(A) On the effective date of this Agreement, any bargaining Unit employee who is
performing non-police employment outside of State government, which employment
has not been previously approved, shall be subject to the provisions of Section l(B)
of this Article.

(B) If, during the term of this Agreement, an employee is to accept new non-police
employment outside of State government, the employee shall notify his agency
head, or his designee, of such employment, prior to date of employment, and verify
that such non-police employment does not conflict with the employee's State
employment, or with the employing agency's policies or procedures limiting such
outside employment. Should such conflict(s) be found to exist, outside employment
shall be disapproved. Absent extenuating circumstances, a disapproval of a notice or
request for outside non-police employment will be communicated to the employee
within fourteen (14) calendar days of the notice or request. If extenuating
circumstances prevent a determination as to the appropriateness of the non-police
employment, the reasons for·the delay will be provided to the employee in writing.
In any event whenever the State determines that any outside employment conflicts

28



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

with the employee's responsibilities connected with his state employment, the
outside employment may be disapproved and prohibited. Disapprovals of outside
employment shall be subject to the contract's expedited arbitration procedure.

(C) During the course of the employee's outside employment, an agency may make
reasonable inquiries of the employee to ensure that the employee's continued
outside employment does not constitute a conflict of interest, or interfere with the
employee's primary duties as a State law enforcement officer.

SECTION 2 - Outside Employment - Police Employment

(A) Any bargaining Unit employee who wishes to perform police employment outside
of State government shall secure the reqUired approval in advance in accordance
with the Rules of the State Personnel System, agency policies and procedures and
applicable law. It is understood that permission shall not be withheld as long as such
outside employment does not conflict with the employee's State employment or with
the employing agency's procedures limiting such outside employment.

(6) Requests for approval of outside employment shall be acted upon in a timely
manner. Within 60 days of ratification of the contract the parties will initiate
consultations on the amount of off-duty hours to be allowed. Absent extenuating
circumstances, a disapproval will be communicated within fourteen (14) calendar
days of the submission of the notice by the employee. In the event extenuating
circumstances prevent a determination with fourteen (14) calendar days, the reasons
for the delay will be prOVided in writing to the employee. In any event a request can
be denied or an approval can be revoked whenever the State determines that a
conflict exists between the employee's state employment and the outside
employment. Disapprovals of a request for outside employment shall be subject to
the contract's expedited arbitration procedure.

(C) During the course of the employee's outside employment, an agency may make
reasonable inquiries of the employee to ensure that the employee's continued
outside employment does not constitute a conflict of interest, or interfere with the
employee's primary duties as a State law enforcement officer.

(D) Each employee will be permitted to wear his uniform and personal eqUipment
and use his patrol car or vessel during approved off-duty police employment. Any
employee who desires to seek such outside employment during his off-duty hours or
leave time will seek permission from his agency whose decision will be in accordance
with the policy established by the agency on such matters. Approval for such outside
employment will be granted so long as it:

(1) Does not constitute a conflict of interest;

(2) Does not interfere with the employee's primary duties as a State
law enforcement officer; and

(3) Within the duties and responsibilities the employee performs or
may reasonably be expected to perform as a part of his job duties and
responsibilities.

29



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(E) When required by the State, bargaining Unit employees who are utilizing State
equipment while performing police employment outside of State employment shall
be responsible for all insurance relative to such outside employment, including
workers' compensation, liability and vehicle insurance, unless the employees are
engaged in activity as provided in Section 440.091, Florida Statutes.

SECTION 3- Reimbursement of Costs

Use of a State vessel or vehicle in off-duty police employment shall be paid for by
the employee pursuant to the agency's current rate schedule or the agency's
estimated cost of operating the vessel or vehicle, including all mileage on the vehicle
at the mileage rate established in Section 112.061, Florida Statutes.

Article 17
GROOMING STANDARDS

SECTION 1 - Haircuts

Haircuts will conform to the following standards:

(A) Hair on top of the head will be neatly groomed. The length or bulk of the hair will
not be excessive or present a ragged, unkempt appearance. When combed, it will
not fall over the ears or eyebrows, or touch the collar, except for the closely cut hair
at the back of the neck. The hair of uniformed female members may touch the shirt
collar but not fall below the collar's edge and may cover a portion of the ear. Long
hair must be worn up in a neat, stylish manner which permits the wearing of the hat.
Conspicuous barrettes, pins or combs will not be worn.

(B) If an employee desires to wear sideburns, they will be neatly trimmed. The base
will be a clean shaven horizontal line. Sideburns will not extend downward beyond
the lowest part of the exterior ear opening.

(C) The face will be clean shaven, except that if a mustache is worn it will be kept
neatly trimmed and tidy. No portion extending beyond the corners of the mouth will
fall below a line parallel with the bottom of the lower lip.

SECTION 2 - Cosmetics and Jewelry

If worn, cosmetics shall be subdued and blended to match the natural skin color of
the individual. False eyelashes are prohibited. Fingernails should be clear and
trimmed so as not to extend beyond the tips of the fingers. Fingernail polish, if worn,
shall be clear. Female officers may wear small post earrings.

SECTION 3 - Permitted Variations

Variations in the grooming standards described in this Article may be permitted by
an agency when it deems that such variations are required by an employee's current
work assignment.

30



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

Article 18
HOURS OF WORK, LEAVE AND JOB-CONNECTED DISABILITY

The Parties specifically agree that the attendance and leave provisions as contained
in Chapter 60L-34, of the Florida Administrative Code, including the accrual, usage
and payment of sick and annual leave upon separation from Career Service
employment, shall apply to all Bargaining Unit employees. The State shall not
compel an employee to involuntarily use annual leave in circumstances where the
employee is ill or otherwise qualified for sick leave. This provision shall not apply in
instances of qualified family medical leave.

SECTION 1 - Workday

(A) Agencies shall not require an employee to split a workday into two or more
segments without the mutual agreement of the employee and the employer.

(B) Where an employee works hours in excess of their regular schedule the State
has the ability to adjust the employees schedule as long as it occurs within the same
work period and provided the employee receives notice of the adjustment prior to
the commencement of the employee's adjusted shift for a 40-hour work period, or
24 hours notice for a 80-hour work period or 36 hours notice for a 160-hour work
period. The State will make a good faith effort to offset such extra hours in eight (8)
hour increments.

SECTION 2 - Non-Required Work Time

Law Enforcement Bargaining Unit employees shall not be required to volunteer time
to the State. If records of voluntary time are kept by the State or its agencies, they
shall not be used to adversely affect performance reviews or promotions.

SECTION 3 - Work Schedule

(A) Where an employee has an established schedule, a change in workdays or shifts
will be posted no less than fourteen (14) calendar days in advance and will reflect at
least a two (2) workweek schedule; however, the State will make a good faith effort
to reflect a one (1) month schedule.

(B) In the event of a declared emergency the notice requirement of this Section
may be void.

(C) The state will continue to observe the scheduling structures currently in place at
each agency and agrees to bargain any change in the overall practice of how
schedules are established.

SECTION 4 - Overtime

(A) The normal workweek for each full-time employee shall be forty (40) hours.

(B) Work beyond the normal workweek or approved extended period shall be
recognized in accordance with Chapter 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code;
provided, however, that when an emergency is declared by the Governor and funds

31



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

are available, employees who are assigned to the emergency area described in the
Governor's Executive Order shall be subject to a forty (40) hour workweek while so
assigned. The State and the PBA will cooperate to secure funds for the payment of
overtime to Unit employees in the situation described herein. The State shall make a
reasonable effort to equalize distribution of overtime opportunities.

(C) The PBA agrees to support those changes in Chapter 60L-34, Florida
Administrative Code that may be reqUired in order for the State to be in compliance
with the Fair Labor Standards Act as it is applied to public employees, which the
State agrees to comply with.

SECTION 5 - FLSA Special Compensatory Leave

(A) If an agency has a plan approved in advance by the Department of Management
Services, FLSA special compensatory leave credits shall be granted, administered
and used as described below:

(B) An employee who is filling an included position may, at the end of the approved
extended period, waive payment for overtime and have the overtime hours credited
to "FLSA special compensatory leave." If such election is made, the overtime hours
will be credited as "FLSA special compensatory leave" credits at the rate of one and
one-half (1-1/2) hours for each hour of overtime worked. An employee will only be
permitted to accumulate a maximum of one hundred (100) hours of "FLSA special
compensatory leave" credits which may be taken in any increments at the
employee's discretion prOVided the FLSA compensatory leave is taken by June 30 or
December 31 of each year. The employee's request to utilize FLSA compensatory
leave shall be granted so long as granting the request would not result in "undue
disruption." If the FLSA compensatory leave is not utilized by the employee by June
30 or December 31 of each year, all unused "FLSA special compensatory leave"
credits at the close of business on December 31 and June 30 shall be paid for at the
employee's straight time regular hourly rate in accordance with Chapter 60L-34,
Florida Administrative Code, as amended;· An employee who separates from the
Career Service or moves to another state agency shall be paid for all unused "FLSA
special compensatory leave" in accordance with the above.

(C) The parties agree that all law enforcement recruits shall be treated in the
manner described below with regard to FLSA compensatory leave:

(1) Law enforcement recruits undergoing training to attain Law
Enforcement Certification, or agency-specific orientation, will be
exempt from the 100 hour cap on the earning of FLSA compensatory
leave credits and mandatory June 30 and December 31 payment
requirements during the time they attend an academy or education
institution.

(2) Recruits may request up to 120 hours of FLSA leave upon graduation
from the academy or educational institution for the purpose of
relocating to their new assignment. Such leave must be authorized by
the recruit's agency. Recruits must use the accrued FLSA
compensatory leave credits before using regular annual leave.

32



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(3) Any remaining FLSA compensatory leave credits shall be used within
the next six-month cycle, or paid for at the end of that cycle, as
presently provided for in Chapter 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code,
and Article 18, Section 6(A) of the Agreement.

SECTION 6 - Special Compensatory Leave TO BE DISCUSSED

(A) An employee shall be eligible to earn special compensatory leave credits as a
result of hours worked on a holiday; extra hours 'Norked during an established 'work
period 'Nhich contains a holiday or when a facility is closed under Executive Order
during emergency conditions. When an employee is required to ';'t'orl< in
circumstances as set forth in this paragraph, any special compensatory leave earned
at the end of the workweek, work period, or extended 'Nork period, shall be tal<en
with the mutual agreement of the employee and the supervisor provided the special
compensatory leave is tal<en 'lI';'ithin sixty (60) calendar days of the holiday or last
date the facility remained closed under Executive Order. Thereafter, the special
compensatory leave 'lI';'ill be scheduled at the discretion of the supervisor. The State
shall not offset special compensatory leave earned during a worl< period due to a
holiday 'Nith approved sicl< leave used during the same work period or administrative
leave used in the work period for negotiations pursuant to Article 5.

(B) Law Enforcement bargaining unit Employees may, at their option, use special
compensatory leave before using accrued annual lea\'e credits. Employees will only
be permitted to accumulate a maximum of two hundred and forty (240) hours of
special compensatory leave credits.

SECTION 7 - Sick Leave Pool and Sick Leave Transfer

Each agency shall set up and administer a sick leave pool and sick leave transfer
plan for the Law Enforcement Bargaining Unit employees if there is sufficient
employee participation to render the pool and sick leave transfer plan
administratively feasible, Employees shall be subject to the conditions, and have full
access to the benefits, of the employing agency's existing sick leave pool and sick
leave transfer plan.

SECTION 8 - Section 440.15{12}, Florida Statutes - Full-Pay Status

(A) An employee who sustains a job-connected disability and meets the eligibility
requirements, as provided for in Section 440.15(12), Florida Statutes, may be
carried in full-pay status.

(B) Any claim by an employee or the PBA concerning this Section shall not be
subject to the Grievance Procedure of this Agreement.

SECTION 9 - Chapter 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code- Disability Leave
With Pay

An employee who sustains a job-connected disability which is not covered by Section
8 above, is eligible for disability leave with pay under the provisions of Chapter 60L
34, Florida Administrative Code, The Agency Head or his designee shall not
unreasonably refuse to submit a request to carry an employee in full-pay status
under the provisions of Chapter 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code, prOVided,

33



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 201 1-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

however, the Secretary of the Department of Management Services or his designee
shall have the right to determine whether or not an employee should be carried in
full-pay status for more than twenty-six (26) weeks. An employee shall not be
required to use accrued compensatory or annual leave in order to be eligible to be
carried in full-pay status under Chapter 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code.
However, no employee shall be carried in full-pay status until he has utilized 100
hours of accumulated sick leave, annual leave, compensatory leave or leave without
pay.

SECTION 10 - Alternate Duty

(A) Where an employee is eligible for disability leave with pay under Rules of the
State Personnel System as a result of an injury in the line of duty, and is temporarily
unable to perform his normal work duties, the Agency Head or his designee shall
give due consideration to any request by the employee to be temporarily assigned
substitute duties within the employee's medical restrictions. This shall have no effect
on the agency's ability to make a different assignment based upon current medical
opinion.

(B) A complaint concerning this Section may be grieved in accordance with Article 6
of this Agreement up to and including Step 2. The decision of the Department of
Management Services shall be final and binding on all parties.

Article 19
PERSONAL PROPERTY - REPLACEMENT AND/OR REIMBURSEMENT

(A) Other than the employee's watch or prescription glasses, any personal property
subject to replacement or reimbursement pursuant to this article must be approved
in advance by the Agency as being required by the employee to adequately perform
the duties of his/her position.

(B) Thereafter, an employee who, while on duty and acting within the scope of
employment, suffers the damage, destruction or loss of his or her watch, prescription
glasses, or other personal property approved pursuant to Paragraph (A), will be
reimbursed, have such property repaired, or have such property replaced with an
item which is of the same or a similar quality, as described in this Article; provided,
however, that:

(1) the Agency has the option to decide whether a specific piece of
property is repaired versus replaced; and

(2) the employee shall not be reimbursed or have property repaired or
replaced if the Agency determines that the damage, destruction or loss
resulted from the employee's negligence.

(C) An employee who wants to be reimbursed or have personal property repaired or
replaced must:

(1) File a written report detailing the circumstances under which the
property was damaged, destroyed or lost; and

34



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(2) Document the amount expended to repair or replace such
property.

(D) After meeting the conditions described above, the Agency head or designee shall
authorize reimbursement not to exceed the following amounts:

Watch - $75

Prescription glasses - $200 (including any required examination)

Other Items - the Agency head or designee shall have final authority
to determine the reimbursement value of any items other than
watches or prescription glasses.

Total allowable per incident - $500.

Article 20
TRAINING AND EDUCATION

SECTION 1 - Law Enforcement Supervisors' Training

The State and the PBA recognize the importance of supervisor training programs to
develop management skills in our law enforcement supervisors. The State will make
a reasonable effort to continue existing training programs in law enforcement
techniques and to develop new programs in performance review techniques,
supervisory skills and managerial techniques.

SECTION 2 - Educational Assistance Plan

The State shall provide up to six (6) credit hours of tuition-free courses per term at a
state university or community college to full-time employees on a space available
basis as authorized by law. During the term of this agreement, and subject to
additional funding, the Governor agrees to seek approval of the Legislature to
continue the existing program for the provision of tUition-free courses.

Article 21
ACTING RANKS .

SECTION 1 - Eligibility

Each time an employee is officially designated by the appropriate supervisor to act in
a higher broadband level than the employee's permanent broadband level, and
actually performs said duties for a period of more than twenty-two (22) workdays,
within any six (6) consecutive months, the employee shall be eligible for a
promotional pay increase to the higher broadband level as prOVided in the Rules of
the State Personnel System.

35



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

SECTION 2 - Method of Compensation

It is understood by the parties that, insofar as pay is concerned, employees
temporarily filling a position in a higher broadband level shall be paid according to
the same compensation method as permanent promotees under the Rules of the
State Personnel System.

SECTION 3 - Return to Regular Rate

Employees being paid at a higher rate while temporarily filling a position in a higher
broadband level will be returned to their regular rate of pay when the period of
temporary employment in the higher broadband level is ended.

,!Article 22
'.'ACANT RETIREMENT

*Hold open pending decision of the Florida Supreme Court in the case of Rick Scott.
et al. v. George Williams. et al .. Case No. SC12-520.

Article 23
EQUIPMENT

SECTION 1 - NEW VEHICLES

Newly purchased pursuit vehicles for uniformed patrol shall be police package
eqUipped by the manufacturer as prOVided by current State of Florida contract
specifications for pursuit vehicles.

SECTION 2 - HIGH VISIBILITY LIGHTS

Each agency shall utilize high visibility lights as dictated by agency needs.

Article 24
ON-CALL ASSIGNMENT - CALL-BACK - COURT APPEARANCE

SECTION 1 - Definition

On-call assignment shall be as defined in the Rules of the State Personnel System.

SECTION 2 - Request for On-Call Pay

When an employee is reqUired by appropriate management to be on call, a request
for on-call payment under Chapter 60L-32, Florida Administrative Code, shall be
submitted by the agency for approval. The Secretary of Management Services or his
designee shall not unreasonably withhold approval of such request.

36



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

SECTION 3 - On-Call Fee

(A) When approved as provided herein, employees who are required to be on call
shall be compensated by payment of a fee in an amount of not less than one dollar
($1.00) for each hour such employee is required to be available.

(6) Employees who are required to be on call on a Saturday, Sunday and/or a
holiday as listed in Section 110.117, Florida Statutes, will be compensated by
payment of a fee in an amount equal to one-fourth (1/4) of the statewide minimum
for the employee's class for each eight (8) hour period such employee is required to
be available.

SECTION 4 - Call-Back

A law enforcement employee called out to work at a time not contiguous with the
employee's scheduled hours of work shall be credited for actual time worked, or a
minimum of four (4) hours, whichever is greater. The rate of compensation shall be
in accordance with the Rules of the State Personnel System.

SECTION 5 - Court Appearances

If a law enforcement employee is subpoenaed to appear as a witness in a job-related
court case, not during the employee's regularly assigned shift, the employee shall be
credited for actual time worked, or a minimum of two and one-half (2-1/2) hours,
whichever is greater.

Article 25 2812 Legislsti....e Il'I'Il'ssse Reseltltiel'l
WAGES

SECTION 1 - Pay Provisions - General

(A) Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Year 201220132013-2014 General
Appropriations Act. and as provided herein:

1. Effective July 1, 2013, all employees shall have their base rate of
pay increased by six percent (6%).

2. Effective October 1, 2013, all employees with seven (7)
continuous years of service as a law enforcement officer with the State and a
"meets standards" performance evaluation shall receive a three percent (3%) an
internal pay relationship adjustment in their base rate ofpay. Should an employee
reach the seven (7) years of service level subsequent to October 1, 2013, the
employee shall receive the same internal pay relationship adjustment.

37



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(B) Increases to base rate of pay and salary additives shall be in accordance with state
law and the Fiscal Year 2012-2013 General Appropriations Act.

SECTION 2 -Pay Provisions

Based on an agency's determination that sufficient funds and salary rate are available, the
State and PBA agree:

(A) When an agency grants an increase to an employee's base rate of pay, the new
base rate of pay shall be within the broadband level and in accordance with Section
216.251 (3), Florida Statutes. If an agency determines that an increase to base rate of pay
is to be granted based on one of the categories below, the following amounts of increase
shall be granted:

1. Outstanding Job Performance Rating- up to 8%;

2. Added Duties and Responsibilities - up to 8%;

3. Education and Training - up to 8%;

4. Reassignment - up to 8%;

5. Transfer - up to 12%;

6. Competitive Job Offer - up to a level to be competitive;

7. Internal Pay Relationships - as necessary and within the funds
available.

(B) Salary additives shall be implemented in accordance with the General
Appropriations Act and state law, including Section 110.2035(6)(c), Florida Statutes and
Section 216.251 (3), Florida Statutes.

An Agency may assign one of the following job duties to an employee. If an Agency
grants a salary additive to an employee, which must be in accordance with the law, the
following amounts of increase shall be granted:

1. Leadworker - up to 5% of the broadband minimum;

2. Temporary Special Duty - up to 15% of the employee's base
rate of pay;

3. Trainer - up to 15% of the broadband minimum;

38



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

4. Hazardous Duty - up to 15% of the broadband minimum.

(C) If an Agency elects to grant an increase or additive higher than those
provided in paragraphs (A) or (B), the Union will be notified.

SECTION 3 - Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2012-2013 General
Appropriations Act, and contingent upon the availability of funds and at the agency
head's discretion, each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay
additive of up to 15 percent of the employee's base rate of pay to each employee
temporarily deployed to a facility or area closed due to emergency conditions from
another area of the state that is not closed.

SECTION 4 - Cash Payout of Annual Leave

Permanent Career Service employees may be given the option of receiving up to twenty
four (24) hours of unused annual leave each December in the form of a cash payout,
subject to, and in accordance with, Section 110.219(7), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 5 - Performance Pay

Each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee's
exemplary performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to
Rule 60L-35, Florida Administrative Code.

SECTION 6 - Savings Sharing Program

An employee or groups of employees may be eligible for monetary awards for ideas or
programs that result in a cost saving to the state, pursuant to section 110.1245(1), Florida
Statutes.

Article 26
UNIFORMS AND ACCESSORIES

SECTION 1 - Uniform - Standard Issue

(A) All Law Enforcement Bargaining Unit employees shall receive a standard issue of
uniforms (winter and summer) and uniform accessories. If the uniforms are to be
replaced, the State will study the feasibility of replacing them with quality wash and
wear uniforms.

(B) The State shall prOVide uniforms for its female officers in the appropriate sizes,
designed and cut for females. If a female officer is required to wear a bullet proof
vest, it shall be designed and fitted for a female.

39



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

SECTION 2 - Uniform Accessories

Uniform accessories will include the following minimum requirements:

(A) Gun belt, either 2-1/4 inches or 3 inches as appropriate for the individual officer.

(B) An employee who currently has, and who has been trained in the use of, a cross
draw holster, shall be permitted to continue to utilize that type of holster. All other
employees will be issued a strong-hand holster.

(C) Spare ammunition, and an appropriate case.

(D) Where hand-held radios are provided, they will be suitable for law enforcement
use.

(E) Each agency that provides bullet proof vests to Law Enforcement bargaining Unit
employees will develop a policy for replacement upon expiration of the guaranteed
life· of the vest as expressed by the manufacturer at the time of purchase.

(F) Each agency will select and provide to each employee at least one intermediate
force weapon, as determined appropriate by the agency, and provide training in the
use of such weapon.

SECTION 3 - Uniform and Clothing Maintenance Allowance

The State will provide Unit employees who are furnished and required by the State to
wear a uniform, or those employees of this Unit assigned to full-time plain clothes
positions, a maintenance, clothing and shoe allowance in the amount of
$500.00750.00 annually, unless laundry and dry cleaning facilities are available and
the service is furnished by the agency without cost to the employees.

Article 27
INSURANCE BENEFITS

SECTION 1 - State Employees Group Insurance Program

The State agrees to administer the State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance
Plan in accordance with any statutory provision or Act affecting the plan or its

I
operation-:- at no additional costs in co-payments or health insurance premiums to the

. employee.

SECTION 2 - Death In-Line-Of-Duty Benefits

(A) Funeral and burial expenses will be as provided in Section 112.19, Florida
Statutes.

(B) Education benefits will be as provided in Section 112.19, Florida Statutes.

40



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(C) State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan premium for the
employee's surviving spouse and children will be as provided in Section 110.123,
Florida Statutes.

(D) Any complaint or claim by an employee or the PBA concerning this Section
shall not be subject to the Grievance Procedure of this Agreement.

Article 28
TRAVEL EXPENSES

SECTION 1 - Payment of Travel Vouchers

With the prior approval of the agency head, travel expenses of employees incurred in
the performance of a public purpose authorized by law will be paid in accordance
with Section 112.061, Florida Statutes. The State will make a good faith effort to pay
travel vouchers within thirty (30) days after they have been properly submitted.
Vouchers are considered submitted when the employee submits them to the local
official designated by management to receive such vouchers.

SECTION 2 - Emergency Travel

(A) When an emergency, such as a hurricane, arises that requires the agency to
temporarily assign employees with less than forty-eight (48) hours notice, the
agency will make a good faith effort to officially notify employees of the temporary
assignment. Such notification may be in person, by telephone, by radio, or in writing.

(B) When an emergency arises requiring temporary personnel assignment with less
than forty-eight (48) hours' notice, the State agrees to make the necessary payment
to the vendor for lodging for such employees. The employee shall have no
responsibility to make such payments to the vendor. Travel vouchers will be
submitted as reqUired in Section 1 above.

SECTION 3 - Mileage Allowance

The State agrees to seek continued funding to prOVide for the payment of a mileage
allowance for the use of privately-owned vehicles for official travel at the rate
prOVided in Section 112.061(7)(d)1., Florida Statutes.

Article 29
DRUG TESTING

(A) The State and the PBA agree to drug testing of bargaining unit employees in
accordance with Section 112.0455, Florida Statutes, the Drug-Free Workplace Act.

(B) All classes covered by this Agreement are designated special risk classes for drug
testing purposes. Special risk means employees who are reqUired as a condition of
employment to be certified under Chapter 633 or Chapter 943, Florida Statutes.

(C) An employee shall have the right to grieve any disciplinary action taken under
Section 112.0455, the Drug-Free Workplace Act, subject to the limitations on the

41



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

grievability of disciplinary actions in Article 10. If an employee is not disciplined but
is denied a demotion, reassignment or promotion as a result of a positive confirmed
drug test, the employee shall have the right to grieve such action in accordance with
Article 6.

Article 30
NO STRIKE

SECTION 1 - No Strike Agreement

Neither the PBA nor any of its officers or agents nor members covered by this
Agreement, nor any other employees covered by this Agreement, will instigate,
promote, sponsor, or engage in any prohibited activities as defined in Section
447.203(6), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 2 - Penalty

Any or all employees who violate any provision of this law prohibiting strikes or of
this Article will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including discharge, and
any such disciplinary action by the State shall not be subject to the Grievance
Procedure established herein.

Article 31
STATE PERSONNEL SYSTEM RULES

All pay and benefits provisions published in the Rules of the State Personnel System
which cover employees in the bargaining Unit and which are not specifically provided
for or modified by this Agreement shall continue in effect during the term of this
Agreement.

Article 32
MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

The PBA agrees that the State has and will continue to retain, whether exercised or
not, the right to determine unilaterally the purpose of each of its constituent
agencies, set standards of services to be offered to the public, and exercise control
and discretion over its organization and operations. It is also the right of the public
employer to direct its employees, take disciplinary action for proper cause, and
relieve its employees from duty because of lack of work or for other legitimate
reasons, except as abridged or modified by the express provisions of this
Agreement; provided, however, that the exercise of such rights shall not preclude an
employee or employee representative from raising a grievance on any such decision
which violates the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

42



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

Article 33
ENTIRE AGREEMENT

SECTION 1 - Agreement/Reopeners

This Agreement, upon ratification, supersedes and cancels all prior practices and
agreements, whether written or oral, unless expressly stated to the contrary herein,
and constitutes the complete and entire agreement between the parties, and
concludes collective bargaining for its term.

The parties acknowledge that, during the negotiations which resulted in this
Agreement, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and
proposals with respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from the area of
collective bargaining, and that the understandings and agreements arrived at by the
parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this
Agreement.

The State and the PBA agree that changes in any four (4) articles within this
Agreement that the PBA or the State desire to reopen, plus any articles which
provide for a study by the State and the PBA, shall be subject to negotiations for
Fiscal Year 2011 20122014-2015.

The State and the PBA further agree that changes in any four (4) articles within this
Agreement that the PBA or the State desire to reopen, plus any articles which
provide for a study by the State and the PBA, shall be subject to negotiations during
the second year of this Agreement for Fiscal Year 2012 20132015-2016.

Except as to the above subjects, the State and the PBA, for the duration of this
Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right, and each agrees that
the other shall not be obligated to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or
matter referred to, or covered in this Agreement, even though such subjects or
matters may not have been within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both
of the parties at the time they negotiated or signed this Agreement.

SECTION 2 - Memorandum of Understanding/Settlements

The Parties recognize that during the term of this Agreement situations may arise
which require that terms and conditions not specifically and clearly set forth in the
Agreement must be clarified or amended. Under such circumstances, the PBA is
specifically authorized by bargaining Unit employees to enter into the settlement of
grievance disputes or memorandum of understanding which clarifies or amends this
Agreement, without having to be ratified by bargaining Unit members.

Article 34
SAVINGS CLAUSE

If any provision of this Agreement, or the application of such provision, should be
rendered or declared invalid, unlawful, or not enforceable, by any court action or by
reason of any existing or subsequently enacted legislation; or if the appropriate
governmental body, having amendatory power to change a law, rule or regulation

43



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

which is in conflict with a provision of this Agreement, fails to enact or adopt an
enabling amendment to make the provision effective, in accordance with Section
447.309(3), Florida Statutes; then such provision shall not be applicable, performed
or enforced, but the remaining parts or portions of this Agreement shall remain in
full force and effect for the term of this Agreement.

Article 35
DURATION

SECTION 1 - Term

This Agreement shall be effective upon ratification, and shall remain in full force and
effect through the thirtieth day of June ~2016. Either party may reopen up to
four (4) Articles per contract year. Either party may reopen these Articles by
providing written notice within the thirty (30) days prior to September 1 of the
contract year. This Agreement shall be automatically renewed from year to year
thereafter, unless either party shall notify the other in writing on or before
September 1 of each year that it desires to change or modify this Agreement. This
Agreement shall remain in full force and be effective during the period of negotiation
and may be extended in the manner set forth in the following paragraph.

In the event that the State and the PBA fail to secure a successor Agreement prior to
the expiration date of this Agreement, the parties may mutually agree in writing to
extend this Agreement for any period of time.

In the event that either party desires to terminate or modify this Agreement, written
notice must be given to the other party not less than ten (10) days prior to the
desired termination date, which shall not be before the anniversary date set forth in
the preceding paragraph.

SECTION 2 - Notices

Notices hereunder shall be given by registered or certified mail, and if by the State
shall be addressed to the Florida Police Benevolent Association, Inc. at 300 East
Brevard Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301 and if by the PBA shall be addressed to
the Office of the Secretary and the Office of the General Counsel, Department of
Management Services, 4050 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0950. Either
party may, by a like written notice, change the address to which such notice shall be
given. Notices shall be considered to have been given as of the date shown on the
postmark.

SECTION 3 - Emergencies

If it is determined that civil emergency conditions exist, including, but not limited to,
riots, civil disorders, hurricane conditions, or similar catastrophes, the provisions of
this Agreement may be suspended by the Governor or a State agency head during
the time of the declared emergency, prOVided that wage rates and monetary fringe
benefits shall not be suspended. It is understood that a declared emergency may be
limited to specific geographic areas, in which case suspension of the terms of this

44



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

Agreement as provided above, would apply only to those bargaining Unit employees
permanently or temporarily assigned to such areas.

Article 36
AWARDS

A. MEDAL OF VALOR

The State may recognize heroic conduct with an award of valor. The criteria for
awarding a medal of valor is as defined at Section 112.194 Florida Statutes. A
medal of valor may be accompanied by a monetary award up to $250.00.

B. RETIREMENT AWARDS

1. Retirement awards for eligible employees who retire from the State Retirement
System with substantial service to an agency of the State of Florida, including the
badge worn by him or her, the employee's service revolver or pistol, if one had been
issued as part of the employee's equipment, and an identification card clearly
marked "RETIRED" shall be as provided in Section 112.193, Florida Statutes.

2. The State may grant awards, certificates and other recognition pursuant to Florida
Statutes, Section 110.1245(3) to retiring employees whose service to the State has
been satisfactory, in appreciation and recognition of such service. The cost for such
awards shall not exceed $100.00.

C. RECOGNITION AWARDS

The State may grant awards, certificates and other recognition to employees who
demonstrate satisfactory service to the State in appreciation and recognition of such
service. The cost for such tokens of recognition shall not exceed $100.00.

45



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

APPENDIX A
LAW ENFORCEMENT UNIT - CBU Code 06

Class Class Title
Code

5497 Youth Custody Officer
8515 Law Enforcement Officer
8517 Law Enforcement Corporal
8519 Law Enforcement Sergeant
8528 Law Enforcement Wildlife Inspector
8532 Law Enforcement Airplane Pilot I
8534 Law Enforcement Airplane Pilot II
8540 Law Enforcement Investigator I
8541 Law Enforcement Investigator II

NOTE: The above classes have been designated special risk for drug testing purposes
under Chapter 60L-19, Florida Administrative Code. "Special risk" means employees
who are required as a condition of employment to be certified under Chapter 633 or
Chapter 943, Florida Statutes.

46





FLORIDA POLICE BENEVOLENT
ASSOCIATION, INC.

The Voice ofFl()rida~Law Enforcement Officers

February 11,2013

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL

Senator Alan Hays, Co-Chair
Representative Charles Van Zant, Co-Chair
Joint Select Committee on Collective Bargaining

Governmental Operations Subcommittee
Room 218 House Office Building
Tallahassee, Florida 32399

Re: Collective Bargaining Proposals of PBA for
Florida Highway Patrol Unit

Dear Senator Hays and Representative Van Zant:

Attached you will find the collective bargaining proposals submitted by the Florida Police
Benevolent Association, Inc., to Governor Scott and the Department of Management Services
covering the Florida Highway Patrol Unit. These proposals are drafted in legislative style with new
language underlined and language the PBA proposes to delete, struck-through.

As an examination of the impasse letter from DMS' chief negotiator indicates, Governor
Scott and the PBA are at impasse on a substantial number of articles. While the PBA believes it is
fair to state that several of the articles will be resolved as negotiations progress, it is equally fair to
state many will not be resolved and will require resolution by the Florida Legislature.

In order to assist you in resolving the impasse, the Florida PBA offers the following
comments:

(l) Information relating to the PBA proposals and the reasons for
such proposals are available from two primary contact persons:
(a) PBA Executive Director, Matt Puckett, matt@flpba.org, and
(b) PBA General Counsel, Hal Johnson, hal@flpba.org.

(2) As always, a fair wage adjustment is the number one priority for
the PBA and its membership. Its wage proposal has 2 important
components: (a) a 6% competitive pay adjustment in the
individual trooper's base salary, which is a "catch-up" pay
adjustment in the individual's base salary to recover from the lack
of general wage adjustments over the past several years and the
pension contribution effective in 2011; and (b) a compression
adjustment of 3% in the base salary of individual law enforcement
personnel with 7 or more years of service.

300 E. Brevard St., Tallahassee, FL 32301-1218. www.flpba.org • 850.222.3329 • Toll Free: 1.800.733.3722 • Fax: 850.561.0192



Senator Alan Hays, Co-Chair
Representative Charles Van Zant, Co-Chair
Joint Select Committee on Collective Bargaining
February 11,2013
Page 2 of2

(3) A second major priority of the PBA is to retain agency
independence in resolving the special compensatory leave
"liability" problem. The PBA has worked hard with several
agencies including FOLE, FHP and FWC to develop programs
that will, over a relatively short period of time, substantially
reduce the amount of special compensatory time the law
enforcement personnel have accumulated. The agencies appear
pleased with the results of these programs as do the agencies' law
enforcement personnel. The PBA and agencies would like the
special compensatory leave reduction programs to continue
through memorandum of understandings reached between PBA
and the agencies.

(4) The Governor and OMS have proposed a pilot program relating to
disciplinary appeals. Currently, career service employees have
two options. The PBA would like to see the two-option system
continue unchanged rather than "test pilot" a single option
disciplinary appeal process.

As previously stated, there remain many other articles at impasse in the proposed collective
bargaining agreement which have not been fully discussed. The PBA will continue to work with the
Governor and OMS to resolve them. In the event agreement on them cannot be reached, then it is the
position of the PBA that the "status quo" (old language) be retained for these articles.

Thank you for your consideration of the Florida P.B.A. bargaining proposals. And, please
give serious consideration to granting your law enforcement personnel a wage adjustment that
reflects their dedication and service to the citizens ofFlorida.

GHJ/dlt

Encl(s)

C: Michael Mattimore, OMS ChiefNegotiator
Matt Puckett, PBA Executive Director
John Love, State Affairs Committee
Heather Williamson, State Affairs Committee
William Smith, Florida Highway Patrol Chapter President



FLORIDA POLICE BENEVOLENTASSOCIATION, INC.

State of Florida and Florida P.B.A.
Proposal 1 - November 19, 2012
2013-2014 Negotiations
July 1,2013 through June 30, 2016
FLORIDA HIGHWAY PATROL BARGAINING UNIT

The Florida P.B.A. proposes the articles contained in the FY 2012-2013
revised agreement remain unchanged unless specific modifications
(attached) have been submitted.

All modifications are drawn to the FY 2012-2013 revised agreement.
The modifications are prepared in legislative style.

The Florida P.B.A. proposed agreement is attached. [Changes to the
current agreement are found at Articles 10, 17, 18, 22, 25, 26, 27, 33
and 35.]

Florida Police Benevolent Association, Inc.
300 East Brevard Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301

(850) 222-3329· (800) 733-3722 • Fax (850) 561-8898



*AGREEMENT
THE STATE OF FLORIDA

and

THE FLORIDA POLICE
BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION

Florida Highway Patrol Bargaining Unit

December 27, 2010 through June 30, 2013

Incorporates FY 2011 - 2012 approved reopener revisions
to Articles 3, 16, 18, 25 and 27

and

FY 2012-2013 reopener revisions
to Articles 5 and 25

pursuant to 2012 legislative impasse resolution

*TO BE CHANGED ONCE AGREEMENT ON
DURATION AND OTHER ARTICLES IS

REACHED



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

TABLE OF CONTENTS

• AGREEMENT
• PREAMBLE
• Article 1 - RECOGNITION
• Article 2 - GENDER REFERENCE
• Article 3 - VACANT
• Article 4 - NO DISCRIMINATION
• Article 5 - EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATION AND PBA ACTIVITIES
• Article 6 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE
• Article 7 - INTERNAL INVESTIGATIONS
• Article 8 - WORKFORCE REDUCTION
• Article 9 - REASSIGNMENT, TRANSFER, CHANGE IN DUTY STATION AND ROMOTION

I. Article 10 - DISCIPLINARY ACTION (OPEN)
• Article 11 - CLASSIFICATION REVIEW
• Article 12 - PERSONNEL RECORDS
• Article 13 - SAFETY
• Article 14 - PERFORMANCE REVIEW
• Article 15 - SENIORITY
• Article 16 - EMPLOYMENT OUTSIDE STATE GOVERNMENT

I
. Article 17 - GROOMING STANDARDS (OPEN)
• Article 18 - HOURS OF WORK, LEAVE AND JOB-CONNECTED DISABILITY (OPEN)
• Article 19 - PERSONAL PROPERTY - REPLACEMENT AND/OR REIMBURSEMENT
• Article 20 - TRAINING AND EDUCATION
• Article 21 - ACTING RANKS

I. Article 22 -= VACANTRETIREMENT (OPEN)
• Article 23 - EQUIPMENT
• Article 24 - ON-CALL ASSIGNMENT - CALL-BACK - COURT APPEARANCE
• Article 25 - WAGES (OPEN)
• Article 26 - UNIFORMS AND ACCESSORIES (OPEN)
• Article 27 - INSURANCE BENEFITS (OPEN)
• Article 28 - TRAVEL EXPENSES
• Article 29 - DRUG TESTING
• Article 30 - NO STRIKE
• Article 31 - STATE PERSONNEL SYSTEM RULES
• Article 32 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

I. Article 33 - ENTIRE AGREEMENT (OPEN)
• Article 34 - SAVINGS CLAUSE

I. Article 35 - DURATION (OPEN)
• Article 36 - AWARDS
• SIGNATURES
• APPENDIX A - Classes in the Florida Highway Patrol Unit



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is between the State of Florida (hereinafter called the "State") and
the FLORIDA POLICE BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION, (hereinafter called the "PBA")
representing the employees in the Florida Highway Patrol Bargaining Unit.

PREAMBLE

WHEREAS, it is recognized by the parties hereto that the declared public policy of the
State and the purpose of Part II, Chapter 447, Florida Statutes, is to provide
statutory implementation of Section 6, Article I of the Constitution of the State of
Florida, and to promote harmonious and cooperative relationships between State
government and its employees, both collectively and individually, and to protect the
public by assuring, at all times, the orderly and uninterrupted operations and
functions of State Government; and

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the parties of this Agreement to set forth the entire
agreement with respect to matters within the scope of negotiations; and

WHEREAS, the above language is a statement of intent and, therefore, not subject to
the grievance procedure as outlined in Article 6;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the
parties do agree as follows: '

Article 1
RECOGNITION

(A) The State hereby recognizes the PBA as the exclusive representative for the
purposes of collective bargaining with respect to wages, hours, and terms and
conditions of employment for all employees included in the Florida Highway Patrol
Bargaining Unit.

(B) The bargaining Unit for which this recognition is accorded is as defined in
Certification Number 1634 issued by the Florida Public Employees Relations
Commission and as subsequently amended by the Commission.

(C) This Agreement includes all full-time and part-time Career Service employees in
the classifications and positions listed in Appendix A of this Agreement.

Article 2
GENDER REFERENCE

All references in this Agreement to employees of the male gender are used for
convenience only and shall be construed to include both male and female employees.

2



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

Article 3
VACANT

Article 4
NO DISCRIMINATION

SECTION 1 - Non-Discrimination Policy - State-Federal Law

(A) The State and the PBA shall not discriminate against any employee for any
reason prohibited under Florida Statutes or any Federal Law.

(B) The PBA shall have the right to consult on issues of discrimination or sexual
harassment with the Step 1 Management Representative and/or his designee(s), up
through the Step 2 Management Representative and/or his designee(s), to the
Department of Management Services.

(C) Any claim of discrimination or sexual harassment by an employee against the
State, its officials or representatives, except for grievances related to PBA
membership, shall only be subject to the method of review prescribed by law or by
rules and regulations having the force and effect of law.

SECTION 2 - Non-Discrimination Policy - PBA Membership

Neither the State nor the PBA shall interfere with the right of Florida Highway Patrol
employees covered by this Agreement to become or refrain from becoming members
of the PBA, and neither the State nor the PBA shall discriminate against any such
employee because of membership or non-membership in any employee organization.

SECTION 3 - Affirmative Action and Americans with Disabilities Programs

The Parties agree that during the first year of the initial collective bargaining
agreement that the PBA may contact the DHSMV for the purpose of conducting a
consultation meeting. Such meeting shall be conducted in accordance with the
provisions of Article 5 of the Agreement. At the initial meeting, the agency shall
provide to the PBA an orientation to the agency's current affirmative action program
and efforts to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Article 5 2812 Legislath'e Ilftl'asse Reseltltieft
EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATION AND PBA ACTIVITIES

SECTION 1 - Definitions

(A) The term "employee", as used in this Agreement, shall mean an employee
included in the bargaining unit represented by the Florida Police Benevolent Association,
(PBA).

(B) The term "Grievance Representative", as used in this Agreement, shall mean an
employee designated by the President of the PBA to represent a grievant at Step 1

3



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

meetings on grievances which have been properly filed under Article 6 of this
Agreement, where the PBA has been selected as the employee's representative.

SECTION 2 - Representation

(A) The PBA shall select a reasonable number of PBA Grievance Representatives, and
shall furnish to the State and keep up-to-date a list of all employees authorized as
Grievance Representatives. The State will not recognize a grievance or staff
representative whose name does not appear on the list. The PBA shall furnish to the State
and keep up-to-date a list of PBA Staff Representatives. Where PBA representation is
requested by an employee, the representative shall be a person designated by the PBA.

(B) Where PBA Association representation is not requested by the employee, the PBA
shall be notified of, and be given an opportunity for a Staff Representative to be present
at a meeting held concerning the grievance.

SECTION 3 - Representative Access

The State agrees that recognized representatives of the PBA shall have access to the
premises of the State which are available to the public. If an area of the State's premises
is restricted to the public, permission must be requested to enter the area; such permission
will not be unreasonably denied. Access shall be during the regular working hours of the
employee and shall be restricted to matters related to the application of this Agreement.

SECTION 4 - Documents

(A) The State shall provide the PBA with the following:

(l) When the DHSMV sends out information which affects an employee's
terms and conditions of employment covered by this Agreement, or which
could affect the application or interpretation of this Agreement, the PBA
will be sent the information.

(2) The DHSMV shall furnish to the PBA a current copy of the agency's
rules, regulations and policies which affect employees' terms and
conditions of employment covered by this Agreement and which are not
included in the Rules of the State Personnel System. Changes and updates
shall be furnished to the PBA as they occur. If the DHSMV publishes and
timely maintains on DHSMV's website documents referenced in this
Section for use by employees, the documents on the website shall serve as
the copies furnished to the PBA. This does not relieve the DHSMV of the
duty to notify the PBA as changes and updates occur.

4



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(B) The State shall provide each employee with the following:

(1) Access to a copy of the applicable Rules of the State Personnel
System; and

(2) Access to a copy of department rules, regulations or policies which
affect the employee's salary, benefits or terms and conditions of
employment. Employees will be notified of changes and updates as they
occur.

SECTION 5 - Consultation

(A) Upon request by the designated PBA Staff Representative, the Secretary of the
Department of Management Services and/or designated representatives shall make a good
faith effort to meet and consult on a quarterly basis with three (3) PBA representatives.
Meetings shall be held at a time and place designated by the Department of Management
Services.

(B) Upon request by the designated PBA Staff Representative, but not more often than
once in each calendar month, the DHSMV Agency Head and/or designated
representatives shall make a good faith effort to meet and consult with not more than two
(2) PBA representatives from the DHSMV and PBA Staff Representative. Meetings
shall be held at a time and place designated by the Agency Head.

(C) Upon request by the designated PBA Staff Representative, but not more than once in
each calendar month, the Step 1 Management Representative shall make a good faith
effort to meet and consult with the PBA Staff Representative and not more than two (2)
PBA representatives from the DHSMV. Meetings shall be held at a time and place to be
designated by the Step 1 Management Representative.

(D) Consultation meetings will be scheduled after gIvmg due consideration to the
availability and work location of all parties. If a consultation meeting is held or requires
reasonable travel time during the working hours of an employee participant, the
employee shall be excused without loss of pay for that purpose. Attendance at the
consultation meeting outside of regular working hours shall not be deemed time worked.

(E) The purpose of consultation meetings shall be to discuss matters relating to the
administration of this Agreement and Florida Highway Patrol activities which affect
employees, and no meeting shall be used for the purpose of discussing pending
grievances or for negotiation purposes. No later than seven (7) calendar days prior to the
scheduled meeting date, the parties shall exchange agenda indicating the matters they
wish to discuss.

5



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

SECTION 6 - Bulletin Boards

(A) Where requested in writing, the State agrees to furnish in a permanent State
controlled facility to which employees are assigned, wall space not to exceed 24" x 36"
for PBA-purchased bulletin boards.

(B) When requested in writing, the State agrees to furnish at an academy in a DHSMV
controlled facility, wall space not to exceed 24" x 36" for a PBA - purchased bulletin
board.

(C) The PBA bulletin boards shall be used only for the following notices:

(1) Recreation and social affairs of the PBA,

(2) PBA meetings,

(3) PBA elections,

(4) Reports of PBA committees,

(5) PBA benefit programs,

(6) Current PBA contract,

(7) Training and educational opportunities, and

(8) Other materials pertaining to the welfare ofPBA members.

(0) Notices posted on these bulletin boards shall not contain anything reflecting
adversely on the State, or its officers or employees; nor shall any posted material violate
law, rule, or regulation.

(E) Notices posted must be dated and bear the signature of the PBA's authorized
representative.

(F) A violation of these provisions by a PBA authorized representative shall be a basis for
removal of bulletin board privileges by the Department of Management Services.

(0) The DHSMV shall cooperate with the PBA to maintain PBA bulletin boards free of
postings by non-PBA individuals or organizations.

SECTION 7 - Occupational Profiles and Rules Maintained

The State will maintain on the Department of Management Services' website the
occupational profiles and the Rules of the State Personnel System.

6



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

SECTION 8 - Negotiations

(A) The PBA agrees that all collective bargaining is to be conducted with State
representatives designated for that purpose by the Governor, as chief executive officer.
Negotiating meetings shall be held in Tallahassee unless the State and the PBA agree to
meet elsewhere at a State facility or other location which involves no rental cost to the
State. There shall be no negotiation by the PBA at other levels of State government.

(B) The PBA may designate up to four (4) employees to attend each single-day session as
Negotiation Committee members who will be granted administrative leave to attend
negotiating sessions with the State. If travel to and from negotiations unavoidably occurs
on work days immediately preceding or following a day of negotiation, employees shall
be eligible to receive administrative leave on an hour for hour basis for such reasonable
travel time pending review and approval by the employing agency. If the PBA chooses
to hold a negotiation preparatory meeting on the calendar day immediately preceding a
scheduled negotiation session, negotiation committee members will be granted
administrative leave for attendance at such meeting. Administrative leave for travel time
to such preparatory meeting is limited to the day of the preparatory meeting. No
employee shall be credited with more than the number of hours in the employee's regular
workday for any day the employee is attending negotiations or traveling to or from
negotiations. The time in attendance at negotiating sessions shall not be counted as hours
worked for the purpose of computing compensatory time or overtime. The Agency shall
not reimburse the employee for travel, meals, lodging, or any expense incurred in
connection with attendance at negotiating sessions.

(C) The selection of an employee shall not unduly hamper the operations of the work
unit. No more than one (l) employee per FHP region shall attend a single day session.

SECTION 9 -Changes To Policies

(A) The State shall provide reasonable notice to the PBA of amendments to existing
policies that result in change in a mandatory subject of bargaining.

(B) After notice, the PBA may consult with the DHSMV on a change in a mandatory
subject of bargaining provided that the PBA makes a request in a reasonable timeframe.
If consultation is unsuccessful, the matter will be referred to the Department of
Management Services to bargain over the proposed change.

(C) Where the proposed changes affect the entire bargaining unit and relate to mandatory
subjects of bargaining, the PBA and the State shall meet to bargain the proposed changes.

(D) Nothing herein shall preclude the PBA from filing a grievance if the proposed
changes violate the Agreement.

7



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(E) The PBA acknowledges that certain proposed changes require an expedited response
and may be implemented without undue delay in those instances where there is a waiver,
exigent circumstances, or satisfaction of bargaining to resolution or impasse.

SECTION 10 - Academy Access

Where the DHSMV operates its own Academy and conducts entry-level Florida Highway
Patrol training, the PBA will be notified of the date, time and location of the training, and
the parties will determine the date and time the PBA will be granted academy access. A
representative of the PBA, accompanied by the head of the Academy, will be permitted to
address each entry-level Florida Highway Patrol class during class time, to issue to each
recruit a copy of the current PBA Agreement, to discuss the provisions of that
Agreement, and to describe the organization and benefits. The presentation will not last
longer than thirty (30) minutes, unless a longer period is agreed to by the PBA and the
DHSMV, and may be made only once per class at a time selected in advance by the PBA,
the representative of the head of the academy, and the DHSMV agency head or designee.

It is understood by the parties that the PBA will not use this time to obtain executed
applications for membership or dues fef deduction.

Article 6
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

It is the policy of the State and the PBA to encourage informal discussions of
complaints between management and supervisors covered by this Agreement, as
well as between those supervisors and covered employees. Such discussions should
be held with a view to reaching an understanding which will resolve the matter in a
manner satisfactory to the employee, without need for recourse to the formal
grievance procedure prescribed by this Article.

SECTION 1 - Definitions

As used in this Article:

(A) "Grievance" shall mean a dispute involving the interpretation or application of the
specific provisions of this Agreement, except as exclusions are noted in this
Agreement.

(B) "Employee" shall mean a Florida Highway Patrol_employee or a group of Florida
Highway Patrol employees haVing the same grievance. In the case of a group of
employees, one shall be designated by the group to act as spokesperson and to be
responsible for processing the grievance.

(C) "Days" shall mean calendar days, excluding any day observed as a holiday
pursuant to the Rules of the State Personnel System. If the due date for a grievance
response or for a grievance submission to a step or to arbitration falls on a weekend
or a holiday, the action shall be due the next business day.

8



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

SECTION 2 - Election of Remedy and Representation

(A) If an employee or the PBA has a grievance which may be processed under this
Article and which may also be appealed to the Florida Public Employees Relations
Commission, the employee or the PBA shall elect at the outset which procedure is to
be used and such election shall be binding on the employee or the PBA. In the case
of any duplicate filing, the action first filed will be the one processed.

(B) An employee who decides to use this Grievance Procedure shall indicate at Step
1 (or the initial written step if authorized by the provisions of this Article) whether or
not he shall be represented by the PBA. When the employee has elected PBA
representation, both the employee and the PBA Representative shall be notified of
any Step 1 meeting. Further, any written communication concerning the grievance or
its resolution shall be sent to both the employee and the PBA representative, and
any decision mutually agreed to by the State and the PBA shall be binding on the
employee.

(C) If the employee is not represented by the PBA, any adjustment of the grievance
shall be consistent with the terms of this Collective Bargaining Agreement. The PBA
shall be given reasonable opportunity to be present at any meeting called for the
resolution of such grievance. An employee using this procedure in the processing of a
grievance will be bound by the procedure established by the Parties to the
Agreement.

The PBA shall not be bound by the decision of any grievance or arbitration in which
the employee was not represented by the PBA.

SECTION 3 - Procedures

(A) Employee grievances filed in accordance with this Article should be presented
and handled promptly at the lowest level of management having the authority to
adjust the grievances.

(B) There shall be no reprisals against any of the participants in the procedures
contained herein by reason of such participation.

(C) The filing or pendency of any grievance under the provisions of this Article shall
in no way operate to impede, delay or interfere with the right of the State to take the
action complained of; subject, however, to the final disposition of the grievance.

(D) Once a grievance is presented, no new violation or issue can be raised, unless
the Parties mutually agree in writing to revise or amend the alleged violations or
issues or for good cause but in no event less than seven (7) days prior to any
arbitration hearing. When an issue is unchanged, but it is determined that an article,
section or paragraph of the Agreement has been cited imprecisely or erroneously by
the employee, then the employee shall have the right to amend that part of his
grievance.

(E) The resolution of a grievance prior to its submission in writing at Step 2 shall not
establish a precedent binding on either the PBA or the State in other cases.

9



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(F) If a grievance meeting is held or requires reasonable travel time during the
working hours of any required participant, such participant shall be excused without
loss of pay for that purpose. Attendance at grievance meetings outside of the regular
working hours shall not be deemed time worked. All grievance meetings shall be held
at times and locations mutually agreed to by the parties, except that, unless
mutually agreed otherwise, all meetings shall be held within fifty (50) miles of the
grievant's place of work.

(G) Grievances shall be presented and adjusted in the following manner, and no one
individual may respond to a grievance at more than one written step.

(H) Grievances and grievance responses may be filed by hand-delivery, mail
(including e-mail), courier, or electronic facsimile. If sent via electronic facsimile, the
burden shall be on the sending Party to confirm the correct electronic facsimile
number before transmission. Documents shall be deemed filed upon receipt during
regular business hours (8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.). Documents received after business
hours shall be considered received the next business day.

Step 1.

(A) An employee having a grievance may within fourteen (14) days following actual
knowledge of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance submit a
grievance at Step 1. Nothing in this procedure shall preclude an employee from
presenting concerns through informal discussions with management representative.
In filing a grievance at Step 1, the employee or his designated representative shall
submit to the Step 1 Management Representative a grievance form setting forth
specifically the known facts on which the grievance is based, the specific provision or
provisions of the Agreement allegedly violated, and the relief requested. In discipline
cases, it shall be presumed that the grievance alleges that the discipline was without
just cause, and requests, as relief, at a minimum, reinstatement, full make whole
relief.

(B) The Step 1 Management Representative or his designee shall communicate a
decision in writing to the employee and to the PBA Grievance Representative, if any,
within fourteen (14) days follOWing receipt of the grievance form. If the Management
Representative fails to respond within the time limit it shall be deemed a denial.

Step 2.

(A) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the employee or his designated
representative may submit it to the Agency Head or his designated representative
within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the decision at Step 1.

(B) The Agency Head or his designated representative shall communicate a decision
in writing to the employee and the PBA Grievance Representative, if any, within
fourteen (14) days follOWing receipt of the written grievance. If the Agency Head fails
to respond within the time limits it shall be deemed a denial.

10



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

Step 3.

(A) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 2, the PBA may appeal the grievance to
arbitration within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the decision at Step 2. If, at the
initial written step, the PBA declined to represent the employee because he was not a
member of the PBA, the employee may appeal the grievance to arbitration. The
grievance shall include a copy of the grievance forms submitted at Steps 1 and 2
together with all written responses and documents in support of the grievance. The
Department of Management Services may have a meeting with the PBA Staff
Representative or his designee to discuss the grievance.

(B) The arbitrator shall be one person from a panel of four (4) arbitrators selected by
the Parties.

(C) The parties may, by mutual agreement in writing, submit related grievances for
hearing before the same arbitrator. Arbitration hearings shall be held at times and
locations mutually agreed to by the parties; however, unless mutually agreed
otherwise, all hearings shall be held within fifty (50) miles of the grievant(s)' place of
work.

(D) The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the grievance and,
prOVided the decision is in accordance with his jurisdiction and authority under this
Agreement, shall be final and binding on the State, the PBA, the grievant(s), and the
employees in the bargaining unit. In considering a grievance the arbitrator shall be
governed by the following provisions and limitations:

(1) The arbitrator shall issue his decision not later than fourteen (14)
days from the date of the closing of the hearing or the submission of
briefs, whichever is later.

(2) The arbitrator's decision shall be in writing, and shall set forth the
arbitrator's opinion and conclusions on the issue(s) submitted.

(3) The arbitrator shall have no authority to determine any other
issue, and shall refrain from issuing any statement of opinion or
conclusion not essential to the determination of the issues submitted.

(4) The arbitrator shall limit his decision strictly to the application and
interpretation of the specific provisions of this Agreement.

(5) The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make any
decisions that are:

(a) Contrary to or inconsistent With, adding to, subtracting from, or
modifying, altering or ignoring in any way, the terms of this
Agreement, or of applicable law or rules or regulations haVing the
force and effect of law.

(b) Limiting or interfering in any way with the power, duties and
responsibilities of the State under its Constitution, applicable law, and
rules and regulations haVing the force and effect of law, except as

11



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

such powers, duties and responsibilities have been abridged, delegated
or modified by the express provisions of this Agreement.

(6) The arbitrator's award may include back pay, to the Grievant(s);
however, the folloWing limitations shall apply to such monetary
awards:

(a) No award for back pay shall exceed the amount of pay the
employee would otherwise have earned at his regular rate of pay and
such back pay shall not be retroactive to a date earlier than the date
of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance under
consideration.

(b) The award shall not exceed the actual loss to the grievant, will not
include punitive damages, and will be reduced by the amount of wages
earned from other sources excluding unemployment compensation
received by the employee during the period of time affected by the
award.

(c) The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne solely by the
party who fails to prevail in the hearing; however, each party shall be
responsible for compensating and paying the expenses of its own
representatives, attorneys and witnesses. Should the arbitrator fashion
an award in such a manner that the grievance is sustained in part and
denied in part, the State and the PBA will evenly split the arbitrator's
fee and expenses.

(d) The PBA will not be responsible for costs of an arbitration to which
it was not a Party.

SECTION 4 - Time Limits

(A) Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance
within the specified time limits shall permit the employee, or the PBA, where
appropriate, to proceed to the next step. The State will make a good faith effort to
timely communicate decisions at each step.

(B) The number of days indicated at each step should be considered as a maximum,
and every effort should be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits
specified in any step of this procedure may be extended, in any specific instance, by
mutual written agreement.

(C) Claims of either an untimely filing or untimely appeal shall be made at the step in
question.

SECTION 5 - Exceptions

(A) Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to
permit the PBA or an employee to process a grievance (1) on behalf of any employee
without his consent, or (2) with respect to any matter which is the subject of a

12



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

grievance, appeal, administrative action before a government board or agency, or
court proceeding, brought by the PBA.

(B) All grievances will be presented at the initial step with the following exceptions:

(1) If a grievance arises from the action of an official higher than the
Step 1 Management Representative, the grievance shall be initiated at
Step 2 or 3, as appropriate, by submitting a grievance form as set
forth in Step 1 within fourteen (14) days following the actual
knowledge of the occurrence giving rise to the grievance.

(2) The PBA shall have the right to bring a class action grievance on
behalf of bargaining Unit employees in its own name, concerning
disputes relating to the interpretation or application of this Agreement.
Such grievance shall not include disciplinary actions taken against an
employee. The PBA's election to proceed under this Article shall
preclude it from proceeding in another forum on the same issue. Such
grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 in accordance with the provisions
set forth herein, within fourteen (14) days of the knowledge or
reasonable knowledge of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the
grievance.

SECTION 6 - Expedited Arbitration

(A) The parties recognize that certain grievances are amenable to expedited
resolution by an arbitrator. Accordingly at any point in the grievance procedure, the
PBA may request expedited arbitration of any grievance. Requests for expedited
arbitration shall be granted in cases involving arbitrable disciplinary action less than
discharge. In all other cases, expedited arbitration will be used in instances of
mutual agreement.

(B) Expedited Arbitration Rules:

(1) When a grievance is to be resolved via expedited arbitration, all
remaining steps in the grievance procedure are skipped and the
grievance is submitted directly to the expedited arbitrator.

(2) The arbitrator is designated by rotation from the list of four (4)
permanent arbitrators.

(3) Expedited arbitration hearings shall be no longer than four (4)
hours in duration, with each party limited to two (2) hours, with a
maximum of two (2) witnesses per party, and one (1) rebuttal witness
if necessary. There shall be no post-hearing briefs, although either
party may submit written statement of position to the arbitrator during
the hearing. The Arbitrator shall issue a short (no longer than three
(3) pages) decision within seven (7) days of the hearing. With the
exception of the foregoing, all provisions of Section (3)(J)(S) of this
procedure shall be applicable.

13



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

Article 7
INTERNAL INVESTIGATIONS

SECTION 1 - Internal Investigations

(A) The parties recognize that Florida Highway Patrol_personnel occupy a special
place in American society. Therefore, it is understood that the State has the right to
expect that a professional standard of conduct be adhered to by all Florida Highway
Patrol_personnel regardless of rank or assignment. Since internal investigations may
be undertaken to inquire into complaints of Florida Highway Patrol misconduct, the
State reserves the right to conduct such investigations to uncover the facts in each
case, but expressly agrees to carefully guard and protect the rights and dignity of
accused personnel. In the course of any internal investigation, the investigative
methods employed will be consistent with the law (including but not limited to
Section 112.532, Florida Statutes) and this agreement; nothing in this agreement,
however, shall be deemed to diminish the rights of employees under applicable law.

(B) When an allegation is made against an employee, the State will make every
reasonable effort to ensure that the allegation and any related statements are
reduced to writing, under oath, and signed. The written allegation shall be known as
a complaint.

(C) When an employee is to be questioned or interviewed concerning a complaint or
allegation, the employee will be informed prior to the interview of the nature of the
investigation and whether he is the subject of the investigation or a witness in an
investigation. Employees shall be informed of the right to have a union
representative in attendance at the interview and where requested, an employee
shall be given forty-eight (48) hours to contact, consult with and secure the
attendance of a representative at the interview. If he is the subject of the
investigation, the employee and his representative will also be informed of each
complaint or allegation against him and they shall be permitted to review all written
statements and recordings made by the complainant and witnesses will be made
available for review at least one (1) hour prior to the commencement of the
interview in accordance with Section 112, Florida Statutes. In the event the written
statement or recordings are such that additional review time is warranted, the
employee may request and be granted additional time unless the request is made for
the purposes of delay. Pursuant to Section 112.533, Florida Statutes, the employee
who is the subject of the investigation shall not disclose the contents to anyone other
than his representative or attorney until the investigation is complete.

(D) Interviews and questioning of employees shall be conducted in a professional
manner. Statements from an employee shall not be taken in a coercive manner.

(E) The formal interrogation of a Florida Highway Patrol_officer shall comply with the
provisions of Florida Statutes, Section 112.532. The employee shall receive a copy of
his written or recorded statement at no cost to the employee. No recording or
transcription of the investigative interview will be made without the knowledge of all
participants present at the interview.

(F) In cases where the agency determines that the employee's absence from the
work location is essential to the investigation and the employee cannot be reassigned

14



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

to other duties pending completion of the investigation, the employee shall be placed
on administrative leave with pay.

(G) Unless required by statute, no employee shall be required to submit to a
polygraph test or any device designed to measure the truthfulness of his responses
during an investigation of a complaint or allegation.

(H) Only sustained findings may be inserted in personnel records. Unfounded
findings shall not be inserted in permanent personnel records or referred to in
performance reviews.

(I) Internal investigations will ordinarily be completed within forty-five (45) days
from the date the complaint is filed, unless circumstances necessitate a longer
period. An investigation shall not exceed one hundred and twenty (120) days without
the approval of the Agency head or designee. Except in the case of a criminal
investigation, the employee shall be notified in writing of any investigation that
exceeds one hundred and twenty (120) days.

(J) The employee under investigation shall be advised in writing of the results of the
investigation at its conclusion.

(K) The State will make a good faith effort to train persons who investigate charges
against Florida Highway Patrol employees in the investigative rights reserved for
those employees in the interest of avoiding infringement of those rights.

(L) In the case of criminal, non-administrative internal investigation into the criminal
misconduct of a sworn employee, the provisions of (8) through (K) shall not apply.

Article 8
WORK FORCE REDUCTION

SECTION 1 - Layoffs

(A) When bargaining Unit employees are to be laid off, the State shall
implement such layoff in the following manner:

(1) For bargaining Unit employees, the competitive area within which
layoffs will be affected shall be defined as statewide within the DHSMV.

(2) Layoff shall be by occupational level within the Florida Highway
Patrol bargaining unit.

(3) An employee who does not have permanent status in the Career
Service System may be laid off without applying the provision for retention
rights.

(4) No employee with permanent status in the affected broadband
level shall be laid off while an employee who does not hold permanent status
is serving in that broadband level unless the permanent employee does not
elect to exercise his retention rights or does not meet the selective
competition criteria.

15



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(5) All employees who have permanent status in the affected
broadband level shall be ranked on a layoff list based on the total retention
points derived as follows:

(a) Length of service retention points shall be based on one
point for each month of continuous service in a Career Service
position.

(1) An employee who resigns from one Career Service
position to accept employment in another Career Service
position is not considered to have a break in service.

(2) An employee who has been laid off and is
reemployed within one year from the date of the layoff, shall
not be considered to have a break in service.

(3) Moving from Career Service to Selected Exempt
Service or Senior Management Service and back to Career
Service does not constitute a break in service unless the
employee's break in service is more than 31 calendar days.
Only time spent in the Career Service can be counted in
calculating retention points.

(b) Retention points deducted for performance not meeting
performance standards or work expectations defined for the position
shall be based on the five years immediately prior to the DHSMV's
established cutoff date. Five points shall be deducted for each month
an employee has a rating below performance expectations.

(6) The layoff list shall be prepared by totaling retention points.
Employees eligible for veterans' preference pursuant to Section 295.07(1)(a)
or (b), Florida Statutes, shall have ten percent added to their total retention
points, and those eligible pursuant to Section 295.07(1)(c) or (d) shall have
five percent added.

(7) The employee with the highest total retention points is placed at
the top of the list, and the employee with the lowest retention points is placed
at the bottom of the list.

(8) The employee at the top of the list shall bump the employee at the
bottom of the list. The next highest employee on the list and the remaining
employees shall be handled in the same manner until the total number of
filled positions in the broadband level to be abolished is complete.

(9) Should two or more employees have the same combined total of
retention points, the order of layoff shall be determined by giving preference
for retention in the following sequence:

(a) The employee with the longest service in the affected
broadband level.

(b) The employee with the longest continuous Career Service.
(c) The employee who is entitled to veteran's preference

pursuant to Section 295.07(1), Florida Statutes.

16



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(10) An employee who has Career Service status and who is to be laid
off shall be given at least 14 calendar days notice of such layoff or in lieu
thereof, two weeks payor a combination of days of notice and pay, in lieu of
the full 14 calendar days notice, to be paid at the employee's current hourly
base rate of pay. The notice of layoff shall be in writing and sent to the
employee by certified mail, return receipt requested. Within 7 calendar days
after receiving the notice of layoff, the employee shall have the right to
request a demotion or reassignment within the competitive area in lieu of
layoff to a position in a broadband level within the bargaining unit wh'ich the
employee held permanent status, or to a position at the level of or below the
current level in the bargaining unit, in which the employee held permanent
status. Such request must be in writing and reassignment or demotion cannot
be effected to a higher broadband level.

(11) An employee's request for demotion or reassignment shall be
granted unless it would cause the layoff of another employee who possesses a
greater total of retention points.

(12) An employee who is adversely affected as a result of another
employee having a greater number of retention points shall have the same
right of reassignment or demotion under the same procedure as provided in
this section.

(13) If an employee requests a demotion or reassignment in lieu of
layoff, the same formula and criteria for establishing retention points shall be
used as prescribed in this section.

(8) If there is to be a layoff of employees the State shall take all reasonable
steps to place any adversely affected employees in existing vacancies for which they
are qualified.

(C) If work performed by employees in this unit is to be performed by non
State employees, the State agrees to encourage the employing entity to consider
any adversely affected unit employees for employment in its organization if the State
has been unable to place the employees in other positions within the Career Service
System.

SECTION 2 - Recall

(A) For a period of six (6) calendar months following layoff, when a vacancy
occurs or a new position is established, laid off employees with the highest number
of retention points shall be notified and permitted the opportunity to apply.

(8) Any appointment offer by the employing agency shall be subject to
agency needs and sufficient funds and salary rate for the vacant position.

(C) Employees who are reemployed after layoff in a position in the broadband
level from which the employee was laid off shall be reemployed with permanent
status.

17



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

SECTION 3 - Retirement Benefits

Pursuant to Section 121.021(38), Florida Statutes, an absence from the employer's
payroll for a period of not to exceed twelve (12) calendar months due to a "layoff" by
the State shall not constitute a break in the continuous service requirement as
provided in Section 121.021, Florida Statutes, for special risk members.

SECTION 4 - Job Security

(A) The State shall notify the PBA at least thirty (30) days in advance of a
layoff involving positions within the bargaining unit. Thirty (30) days prior to the
actual layoff decision, the State will meet and negotiate with the PBA over the
ne,cessity of the layoff, alternatives to the proposed layoff and like and related
matters. However, these negotiations shall not delay the implementation of layoffs
after completion of the thirty (30) days bargaining period. The union will not pursue
statutory impasse resolution procedures after the satisfaction of this bargaining
obligation.

(B) At least thirty (30) days prior to affecting a planned organizational change
which will result in the movement of positions out of the bargaining unit, or in the
demotion of Unit employees, the agency will notify the Department of Management
Services of the changes. If the Department of Management Services determines that
bargaining Unit employees are impacted by the changes under Chapter 447, Florida
Statutes, it will notify the PBA of the changes.

Article 9
REASSIGNMENT, TRANSFER, CHANGE IN DUTY STATION, AND PROMOTION

Employees who have attained permanent status in the Career Service shall have the
opportunity to request and be selected for vacant positions in their current class
within the DHSMV in accordance with the provisions of this Article.

SECTION 1 - Definitions

As used in this Article:

(A) "Change in Duty Station" shall mean the moving of an employee to a duty station
located within fifty (50) miles of his current duty station.

(B) "Duty station" shall mean the place which is designated as an employee's official
headquarters.

(C) "Occupational level" shall mean the same level within the employee's current
occupation within the State classification system.

(D) "Reassignment" shall mean the moving of an employee from a position in one
occupational level to a different position in the same occupational level with the
same essential knowledge, skills and abilities, regardless of the location of the
position.

18



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(E) "Transfer" shall mean the moving of an employee from one geographic area of
the State to a different geographic location which is in excess of fifty (50) miles from
the employee's current duty station.

(F) "Promotion" shall mean the moving of an employee from a position in one
occupational level to a different position in another occupational level having a higher
maximum salary, prOVided the position in the higher occupational level is in the
bargaining Unit.

(G) "Demotion" shall mean the moving of an employee from a position in one
occupational level to a different position in another class/occupational level having a
lower maximum salary.

SECTION 2 - Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station

(A) An employee who has attained permanent status in the Career Service System
may apply for a reassignment on a Request for Reassignment Form (supplied by the
agency). Such Requests shall indicate the county(ies) and/or shift(s) to which the
employee would like to be reassigned. When the employee requests reassignment, a
State of Florida Employment Application Form must be completed and sent with the
Request for Reassignment Form.

(B) An employee may submit a Request for Reassignment Form at any time;
however, all such Requests shall expire on June 30 of each calendar year. Requests
for reassignment for the next fiscal year may be filed on June 1 of the preceding
fiscal year.

(C) All Request for Reassignment Forms shall be submitted to the agency head or his
designee who shall be responsible for furnishing a copy of each such Request to the
management representatives who have the authority to make employee hiring
decisions in the county to which the employee has requested reassignment. The
employee shall prOVide a copy of the Request to the PBA at the time it is filed with
the agency.

(D) Except where a vacancy is filled by demotion, or where reassignment is not in
the best interests of the agency, the management representative having hiring
authority for that vacancy shall give first consideration to those employees who have
submitted a Request for Reassignment Form; prOVided, however, that employees
whose Request for Reassignment is not submitted by the first day of the month shall
not be considered for vacancies which occur during that month.

(E) Provided the reassignment is in the best interest of the agency, the hiring
authority shall normally fill a permanent vacancy with the employee who has the
greatest length of service in the occupational level and who has a Request for
Reassignment Form on file for the county in which the vacancy exists. The Parties
agree, however, that other factors, such as employees' work history and agency
needs, may be taken into consideration in making the decision as to whether or not
the employee with the greatest length of service in the occupational level will be
placed in the vacant position.

19



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(F) If the employee with the greatest length of service in the occupational level is not
selected for the vacant position, the Agency shall notify the employee selected with
reasons for the selection. Employees with greater length in service will be allowed to
obtain a copy of the notice.

(G) When an employee has been reassigned pursuant to a Request filed under this
Article, all other pending Requests shall be canceled. No other Request may be filed
under this Article for a period of twelve (12) months following the employee's
reassignment. If an employee declines an offer of reassignment pursuant to a
Request filed under this Article, the employee will not be eligible for consideration for
reassignment to the county(ies) and/or shift(s) declined, for a period of twelve (12)
months.

(H) An employee shall not be required to change residence for the sole purpose of
living within a specific county; however, an employee may be required to reside
within a reasonable distance of a specific duty station.

(I) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent the DHSMV, at
its discretion, from affecting the involuntary reassignment, transfer or change in duty
station of any employee according to the needs of the agency. However, it is
understood that the DHSMV will make an effort not to affect any involuntary
reassignment, transfer or change in duty station which will impose a residency
hardship on the employee (in that he must relocate his residence from a permanent
home presently owned or cancel a rental lease extending more than three (3)
months), without first considering any Request for Reassignment Forms on file for
the county in which the agency need exists.

(J) An employee shall be given a minimum of fourteen (14) calendar days' notice
prior to the agency affecting any shift change or reassignment and thirty (30)
calendar days' notice prior to the agency affecting any transfer.

(K) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent the State from
making reassignments, shift changes, transfers, or changes in duty stations of any
employee during an emergency or as otherwise required to meet urgent law
enforcement needs of the State.

SECTION 3 - Relocation Allowance

An employee who is reassigned or promoted and who is required by agency policy to
relocate his residence shall be granted time off with pay for one (1) work day leave
for purposes of relocating his residence. In addition, the employee shall be granted
travel time to the new location based on the most direct route. No employee will be
credited with more than the number of hours in the employee's regular workday and
such time shall not be counted as hours worked for the purpose of computing
compensatory time or overtime.

SECTION 4 - Request to Take Promotional Test

The State and the PBA agree that promotions should be made based on the relative
merit and fitness of applicants. Toward the goal of selecting the most qualified
applicant for each promotional vacancy, the parties agree that the provisions of this

20



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

Article along with all provisions of the Rules of the State Personnel System will be
followed when making such appointments.

(A) If the DHSMV has established a promotional test, an employee who has attained
permanent status in the Career Service System may apply to take a the promotional
test by submitting a Request to Take Test Form to the DHSMV to indicate that he
wishes to be considered for promotional vacancies. Such request shall indicate the
occupational level(s) to which the employee would like to be promoted. The
employee's eligibility for the occupational level shall be determined from information
in the employee's personnel file. Each applicant will be notified of his eligibility or
ineligibility for the occupational level(s) applied for.

(B) An employee may submit a request to take a promotional test where established
by the DHSMV at any time; however, all such requests must be filed every two (2)
years and must be received in the agency personnel office by no later than the first
business day after January 15 of each calendar year and shall remain effective until
revoked by the employee.

(C) If an agency has established a promotional test, by January 15 of each calendar
year, the central personnel office of each agency shall proVide a "NOTICE OF
PROMOTIONAL TEST" containing the folloWing information:

(1) The date(s) of the test(s),

(2) The city(ies) where the test(s) will be administered,

(3) The major categories to be covered by each test,

(4) A bibliography of the sources from which test questions have been
taken; e.g., name of textbooks, departmental policies, general orders,
special orders, etc.

(5) The passing grade that must be attained, expressed as a percent
(%) of correct answers to the total number of questions graded.

(D) By February 15 of each calendar year, the DHSMV shall furnish to those
eligible employees whose test requests are on file in the agency, a copy of the
"NOTICE OF PROMOTIONAL TEST". The DHSMV shall be responsible for the
administration of the written test no earlier than April 15 of each calendar year and
only those employees whose names are furnished to the DHSMV will be eligible to
take the promotional test.

(E) The DHSMV, if it has established a promotional test and administers a
written test shall be responsible for notifying each employee who takes a
promotional test of the test results.

(F) When extraordinary circumstances make it necessary to give a
promotional test at a time other than as set forth above, the employees will be given
adequate notice to prepare for such special test.

21



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

SECTION 5 - Test Standards and Criteria

(A) The DHSMV shall be responsible for the development of all written
promotional tests which shall be based upon a job task analysis of the occupational
level of positions being tested and an assessment of the knowledge, skills and
abilities necessary to perform the requirements of positions in the occupational level.

(B) Only persons who have been certified as a law enforcement officer
pursuant to Chapter 943, Florida Statutes, shall be eligible for agency promotional
tests.

(C) A one-hour test review will be held at the conclusion of each test session.
All challenges to test items must be submitted in writing and received by the DHSMV
within five (5) days after the date of the test.

SECTION 6 - Promotional Lists

(A) If the DHSMV does not elect to rank employees solely on the basis of a
written test, the agency shall establish a promotional list which ranks the employees
according to their relative merit and fitness for promotional vacancies in the
occupational level. In addition to the written test score, the agency may, at its
discretion, utilize the employee's performance reviews and/or oral interviews in
establishing the agency's final promotional list. When performance reviews and/or
oral interviews are used, in addition to written test scores the DHSMV shall advise
PBA in writing as to the weight the agency proposes to accord to each criteria in
establishing the agency promotional list. The PBA may upon request discuss the
criteria and weight to be accorded in addition to written test scores. If the DHSMV
utilizes oral interviews, it will establish a three member panel, one to be selected by
the agency head or his designee, one by mutual agreement of the parties, and the
third to be selected by the PBA, provided that no member of the panel may be an
employee covered by this Agreement. Questions asked at an oral interview will be
limited to those that are clearly job related and the same questions shall be asked of
all applicants.

(B) The agency promotional list shall be effective July 1st of each calendar
year. Names shall be retained on the agency's promotional list for a period of one
year. Time extensions of said list may be made only by the mutual consent of the
parties. When a list is established as a result of a special test being given pursuant to
Section 2(D) above, it shall remain in force through June 30 of the calendar year.

(C) The agency's promotional list, consisting of the name, final score and
position on the appropriate list, shall be furnished to each employee who passed the
written test.

SECTION 7 - Method of Filling Vacancies

(A) Except where a vacancy is filled by demoting a law enforcement employee
or by reassignment, any person who is to be selected for a vacancy must first have
his name placed on the agency's promotional list in accordance with the criteria set

22



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

forth in this Article. Upon the employee receiving his copy of the agency promotional
list, the employee who wishes to be considered for promotional opportunities shall
file with the agency a Request for Promotion Form which shall indicate the
occupational level(s) and the county(ies) to which the employee would like to be
promoted. The vacancy shall be filled from among the persons having the highest
five numerical scores contained on the promotional list who have applied for the
vacancy. However, the DHSMV shall have the discretion to fill a vacancy from only
the highest five numerical scores of DHSMV bargaining Unit employees contained on
the agency's promotional list. The DHSMV shall attempt to fill vacancies in an
expeditious manner when operationally feasible.

(8) In filling vacancies, the DHSMV will first consider any pending Request for
Reassignment forms on file for the work area in which the agency need exists.
Nothing contained in this agreement shall be construed to prevent the DHSMV from
filling a vacancy in a manner meeting the agency's needs.

SECTION 8 - Grievability

The initiation of a grievance claiming a residency hardship shall stay any required
change in residence until final disposition of the grievance. In considering such a
grievance weight shall be given to the needs of the agency against the hardship on
the employee.

SECTION 9 - Promotions Outside the Unit

The State shall make a good faith effort to fill vacant positions in the rank
immediately above the bargaining unit with employees of the bargaining unit. This
provision is not subject to the Article 6 grievance procedure.

SECTION 10 - Probationary Status

An employee who has obtained permanent status in a position in a broadband level
who fails, due to the performance of the new duties, to satisfactorily complete the
probationary period in the promotional broadband level shall be demoted to the
former broadband level previously held by the employee in an available vacant
position in the DHSMV.

(A) Such a demotion shall be with permanent status, provided the employee held
permanent status in the lower broadband level.

(8) The employee's salary will be reduced in accordance with the agency's pay upon
demotion policy.

(C) Such demotion shall not be grievable under the contractual grievance procedure.

Article 10
DISCIPLINARY ACTION

(A) An employee who has permanent status in the Career Service System may be
disciplined only for just cause.

23



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(B) An employee who has not attained permanent status in the Career Service
System shall not have access to the grievance procedure in Article 6 when dismissed.

(C) Each employee shall be furnished a copy of all disciplinary actions, including
administrative sanctions, placed in his official personnel file and shall be permitted to
respond thereto.

(D) An employee may request that a PBA Staff Representative be present during any
disciplinary investigation meeting in which the employee is being questioned relative
to alleged misconduct of the employee, or during a predetermination conference in
which suspension or dismissal of the employee is being considered.

(E) Letters of counseling are not disciplinary action and not grievable; documentation
or discipline less severe than an oral reprimand shall not be used against any
employee in any fashion.

(F) Suspensions, Dismissal, Reductions in Pay, and Demotions resulting in a loss of
pay may be challenged under Article 6 through arbitration. Oral reprimands, written
reprimands or other disciplinary actions, including administrative sanctions such as
loss of vehicle use, not resulting in monetary loss are grievable to Step 2 only and
not arbitrable. At arbitration over a suspension, dismissal, reduction in pay, or
demotion with a monetary loss an employee may challenge any basis relied upon by
the Agency for taking the disciplinary action.

Article 11
CLASSIFICATION REVIEW

(A) Except in case of an emergency, bargaining Unit employees shall not be required
to perform work not included in the employee's position description.

(B) When an employee alleges that the employee is being regularly required to
perform duties which are not included in the position description of the position being
filled by the employee, and the employee alleges that the duties assigned are not
included within the broadband level to which the position is allocated, the employee
may request that the agency head review the duties assigned to the employee's
position. The agency head or his designee shall review the duties as requested. The
employee will receive a copy of the decision.

(C) If the employee is not satisfied with the decision, the employee, with or without
representation, may request review by the Secretary of the Department of
Management Services or his designee.

(D) The decision of the Secretary of the Department of Management Services or his
designee as to the broadband level of the position shall be final and binding on all
parties.

Article 12
PERSONNEL RECORDS

SECTION 1 - Personnel File

24



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(A) There shall be only one official personnel file for each law enforcement employee,
which file shall be maintained in the central personnel office of the DHSMV unless a
different location is approved by the Secretary of the Department of Management
Services or his designee in accordance with applicable law. Duplicate personnel files
may be established and maintained within the DHSMV. Such duplicate personnel files
may contain part or all of the items filed in the official personnel file, but may not
contain any items which are not filed in the official personnel file.

(B) If any derogatory material is placed in a law enforcement employee's official
personnel file, a copy will be sent to the employee. The law enforcement_employee
will have the right to answer any such material filed, and his answer will be attached
to the file copy.

(C) A law enforcemenCemployee will have the right to review his own official
personnel file and any duplicate personnel files at reasonable times under the
supervision of the designated records custodian.

(D) Where the Agency Head or his designee, the Department of Management
Services, the Florida Public Employees Relations Commission, the Courts, an
Arbitrator, or other statutory authority determines that a disciplinary action against
an employee is not sustained, or is unfounded, or is otherwise invalid, or when an
employee is exonerated of a charge brought in a disciplinary action,the record copy
of such action shall be sealed in the file together with an explanation, stamped "NOT
VALID", and retained in the employee's personnel file for at least five (5) years after
final action as specified in the State of Florida General Records Schedule GSl for
State and Local Government Records, as promulgated by the Department of State;
provided, however, that the document shall be removed only upon the employee's
written request in accordance with the foregoing records schedule.

SECTION 2 - Privacy

The State and its agencies recognize the fact that Florida Highway Patrol bargaining
Unit employees' home addresses, telephone numbers, photographs, places of
employment of the spouses and children and the names and locations of schools
attended by the children of bargaining Unit members are exempt from disclosure
under the Public Records law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and shall not be
released except for a legitimate governmental purpose.

Article 13
SAFETY

SECTION 1 - Vehicle and Vessel Safety

Vehicles and vessels used by bargaining Unit employees, whether issued to the
employee or not, shall be maintained in safe operating condition by the State.

SECTION 2 - Firearms Safety

In order to promote safety in the use of firearms by Florida Highway Patrol
Bargaining Unit employees, the State will guarantee that each bargaining Unit
employee is allowed to fire his weapon in an approved Standards and Training

25



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

Course at least once every six (6) months, at no cost to employee. Such training
shall be for the purpose of familiarization in the use of firearms.

SECTION 3 - Consultation

The parties agree to form a Safety Committee with an equal number of PBA and
employer representatives, to study and recommend the purchase and maintenance
of minimal standards of safety equipment. The Committee shall conduct research
and periodically make recommendations to the State and/or appropriate agencies
with regard to:

(A) That all vehicles shall incorporate standard "police packages", power windows,
rear window defoggers, and heated rearview mirrors;

(B) That all 4X4 vehicles be equipped with roll bars;

(C) That all vehicles and vessels shall have a locking gun rack.

(D) Crash barriers for inspection booths;

(E) Use of radios by uniformed personnel not assigned marked vehicles; and

(F) Other matters relating to equipment, vehicle, and vessel purchases;
improvements to existing vehicles to enhance safety; training; and other matters
relating to safety.

The recommendations of the Committee shall be submitted in writing to the
appropriate agency head who shall respond, in writing, with respect to each
recommendation. Rejection of any recommendation shall include written justification
for the rejection.

The parties agree to execute a Memorandum of Understanding setting forth the
composition and schedule for the Committee.

Article 14
PERFORMANCE REVIEW

SECTION 1 - Performance Reviews

(A) The performance of permanent status bargaining Unit employees shall be
reviewed in accordance with Section 110.224, Florida Statutes.

(B) Employees' performance shall be reviewed by their immediate supervisors or
designated raters, who shall submit the proposed performance review to higher
management for approval.

(C) Numerical arrest, citation or violation quotas will not be used as the primary
factor in reviewing employees' performance.

26



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(D) The State will continue to maintain and will make a good faith effort to train
supervisors in performance review techniques.

(E) The performance review of an employee shall not be subject to the Grievance
Procedure of Article 6 of this Agreement unless the performance review is relied
upon in whole or in part as the basis for a disciplinary action under Article 10.

SECTION 2 - Agency Performance Reviews

The State agrees that the DHSMV's performance review system for bargaining Unit
employees shall adhere to the following standards.

(A) Performance reviews shall be based on an employee's actual job performance
and shall not conform to preconceived percentage distributions. When a numerical
scoring formula is to be utilized by the agency, the evaluation form shall contain the
formula with blanks for insertion of the actual scores that will be used in reaching the
overall evaluation.

(B) Whenever practicable, an employee's performance shall be reviewed by a sworn
law enforcement officer.

SECTION 3 - Recruit Evaluation

Bargaining Unit employees shall receive an evaluation from the academy upon
completion of recruit school. A copy of the evaluation shall be forwarded to their
Florida Highway Patrol Unit supervisor.

Article 15
SENIORITY

SECTION 1 - Definition

For the purpose of this Agreement, "seniority" shall be defined as continuous service
in the job classification; provided, however, that an employee shall be considered to
have a break in service when the employee separates, and is not on any payroll for
at least thirty-one (31) calendar days following the separation.

SECTION 2 - Seniority Application

Except under extraordinary circumstances, vacations, shifts, shift transfers and
regular days off shall be scheduled with due regard for needs of the agency,
seniority, and bargaining Unit employee preference. The State and the PBA
understand that there may be times when the needs of the agency will not permit
such scheduling.

SECTION 3 - Vacation and Holiday Leave

Where practicable, leave of forty (40) contiguous hours or more, or for holidays
requested, shall be requested at least sixty (60) days in advance of such leave in
order that the provisions of this Article may be fully implemented; however, in

27



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

implementing this provision nothing shall preclude the DHSMV from making
reasonable accommodations for extraordinary leave requests or ensuring the fair
distribution of leave during favored holidays.

Article 16
EMPLOYMENT OUTSIDE STATE GOVERNMENT

For purposes of this Article, the following definitions are used:

(A) "Hireback": Off duty police employment administered by the State.

(B) "Off-Duty Employment": Any secondary employment undertaken while in an off
duty status which does not entail the use or implied use of police authority. Work of
this type provides no real or potential law enforcement services, and vested police
powers are not a condition of employment.

(C) "Off-Duty Police Employment" (ODPE): Secondary employment undertaken while
in other than a duty status which entails actual or potential use of police authority
and requires police powers as a condition of employment. The definition
encompasses those who schedule off-duty police employment.

(D) "ODPE Job": A distinct project that has one employer and in which work is
performed in a set location(s) identified at the beginning of the job. In the case of a
construction or similar project, an ODPE job may consist of multiple phases.
However, a second distinct construction project shall be considered a separate ODPE
job for the purposes of assigning a scheduler.

SECTION 1 - Outside Employment - Non-Police Employment

(A) On the effective date of this Agreement, any bargaining Unit employee who is
performing non-police employment outside of State government, which employment
has not been previously approved, shall be subject to the provisions of Section l(B)
of this Article.

(B) If, during the term of this Agreement, an employee is to accept new non-police
employment outside of State government, the employee shall notify his agency
head, or his designee, of such employment, prior to date of employment, and verify
that such non-police employment does not conflict with the employee's State
employment, or with the DHSMV's policies or procedures limiting such outside
employment. Should such conflict(s) be found to exist, outside employment shall be
disapproved. Absent extenuating circumstances, a disapproval of a notice or request
for outside non-police employment will be communicated to the employee within
fourteen (14) calendar days of the notice or request. If extenuating circumstances
prevent a determination as to the appropriateness of the non-police employment,
the reasons for the delay will be provided to the employee in writing. In any event
whenever the State determines that any outside employment conflicts with the
employee's responsibilities connected with his state employment, the outside
employment may be disapproved and prohibited. Disapprovals of outside
employment shall be subject to the contract's expedited arbitration procedure.

28



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(C) During the course of the employee's outside employment, the DHSMV may make
reasonable inquiries of the employee to ensure that the employee's continued
outside employment does not constitute a conflict of interest, or interfere with the
employee's primary duties as a State law enforcement officer.

SECTION 2 - Outside Employment - Police Employment

(A) Any bargaining Unit employee who wishes to perform police employment outside
of State government shall secure the required approval in advance in accordance
with the Rules of the State Personnel System, agency policies and procedures and
applicable law. It is understood that permission shall not be withheld as long as such
outside employment does not conflict with the employee's State employment or with
the DHSMV's procedures limiting such outside employment.

(B) Requests for approval of outside employment shall be acted upon in a timely
manner. Within 60 days of ratification of the contract the parties will initiate
consultations on the amount of off-duty hours to be allowed. Absent extenuating
circumstances, a disapproval will be communicated within fourteen (14) calendar
days of the submission of the notice by the employee. In the event extenuating
circumstances prevent a determination with fourteen (14) calendar days, the reasons
for the delay will be proVided in writing to the employee. In any event a request can
be denied or an approval can be revoked whenever the State determines that a
conflict exists between the employee's state employment and the outside
employment. Disapprovals of a request for outside employment shall be subject to
the contract's expedited arbitration procedure.

(C) During the course of the employee's outside employment, the DHSMV may make
reasonable inquiries of the employee to ensure that the employee's continued
outside employment does not constitute a conflict of interest, or interfere with the
employee's primary duties as a State law enforcement officer.

(D) Each employee will be permitted to wear his uniform and personal equipment
and use his patrol car or vessel during approved off-duty police employment. Any
employee who desires to seek such outside employment during his off-duty hours or
leave time will seek permission from the DHSMV whose decision will be in
accordance with the policy established by the agency on such matters. Approval for
such outside employment will be granted so long as it:

(1) Does not constitute a conflict of interest;

(2) Does not interfere with the employee's primary duties as a State
law enforcement officer; and

(3) Within the duties and responsibilities the employee performs or
may reasonably be expected to perform as a part of his job duties and
responsibilities.

(E) When reqUired by the State, bargaining Unit employees who are utilizing State
equipment while performing police employment outside of State employment shall
be responsible for all insurance relative to such outside employment, including

29



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

workers' compensation, liability and vehicle insurance, unless the employees are
engaged in activity as provided in Section 440.091, Florida Statutes.

Article 17
GROOMING STANDARDS

SECTION 1 - Haircuts

Haircuts will conform to the following standards:

(A) Hair on top of the head will be neatly groomed. The length or bulk of the hair will
not be excessive or present a ragged, unkempt appearance. When combed, it will
not fall over the ears or eyebrows, or touch the collar, except for the closely cut hair
at the back of the neck. The hair of uniformed female members may touch the shirt
collar but not fall below the collar's edge and may cover a portion of the ear. Long
hair must be worn up in a neat, stylish manner which permits the wearing of the hat.
Conspicuous barrettes, pins or combs will not be worn.

(B) If an employee desires to wear sideburns, they will be neatly trimmed. The base
will be a clean shaven horizontal line. Sideburns will not extend downward beyond
the lowest part of the exterior ear opening.

(C) The face will be clean shaven, except that if a mustache is worn it will be kept
neatly trimmed and tidy. No portion extending beyond the corners of the mouth will
fall below a line parallel with the bottom of the lower lip.

SECTION 2 - Cosmetics and Jewelry

If worn, cosmetics shall be subdued and blended to match the natural skin color of
the individual. False eyelashes are prohibited. Fingernails should be clear and
trimmed so as not to extend beyond the tips of the fingers. Fingernail polish, if worn,
shall be clear. Female officers may wear small post earrings.

SECTION 3 - Permitted Variations

Variations in the grooming standards described in this Article may be permitted by
the DHSMV when it deems that such variations are required by an employee's
current work assignment.

SECTION 4 - Tattoos

Members employed prior to July 1. 2013 and having pre-existing tattoos are
permitted to have tattoos provided they conform to the following gUidelines:

Tattoos visible while the member is in uniform are restricted to the
member's upper arms or forearms.

30



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(1) Tattoos are not permitted in the elbow or wrist areas of the arms.

(2) Tattoos cannot contain offensive or vulgar material or any reference to
Florida Highway Patrol.

Any member with non-conforming tattoos on their arms shall be required
to wear a Class A uniform.

Article 18
HOURS OF WORK, LEAVE AND JOB-CONNECTED DISABILITY

The Parties specifically agree that the attendance and leave provisions as contained
in Chapter 60L-34, of the Florida Administrative Code, including the accrual, usage
and payment of sick and annual leave upon separation from Career Service
employment, shall apply to all Bargaining Unit employees. The State shall not
compel an employee to involuntarily use annual leave in circumstances where the
employee is ill or otherwise qualified for sick leave. This provision shall not apply in
instances of qualified family medical leave.

SECTION 1 - Workday, Work Period

(A) The DHSMV shall not require an employee to split a workday into two or more
segments without the mutual agreement of the employee and the employer.

(B) Where an employee works hours in excess of their regular schedule, the State
has the ability to adjust the employee~s schedule as long as it occurs within the same
work period and provided the employee receives notice of the adjustment prior to
the commencement of the employee's adjusted shift for a 40-hour work period, or
24 hours notice for a 80-hour work period or 36 hours notice for a 160-hour work
period. The State will make a good faith effort to offset such extra hours in eight (8)
hour increments.

(C) The work period for Florida Highway Patrol Bargaining Unit employees shall be
40, 80 or 160 hours, as determined by the Executive Director of the DHSMV-;- after
the proposed change is bargained with the PBA.

SECTION 2 - Non-Required Work Time

Florida Highway Patrol Bargaining Unit employees shall not be required to volunteer
time to the State. If records of voluntary time are kept by the State or the DHSMV,
they shall not be used to adversely affect performance reviews or promotions.

SECTION 3 - Work Schedule

(A) Where an employee has an established schedule, a change in workdays or shifts
will be posted no less than fourteen (14) calendar days in advance and will reflect at
least a two (2) workweek schedule; however, the State will make a good faith effort
to reflect a one (1) month schedule.

31



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(B) In the event of a declared emergency the notice requirement of this Section
may be void.

(C) The state will continue to observe the scheduling structures currently in place at
the DHSMV and agrees to bargain any change in the overall practice of how
schedules are established.

SECTION 4 - Overtime

(A) The work period for each full-time employee shall be 40, 80 or 160 hours, as
determined by the agency.

(B) Work beyond the employee's regular work period shall be recognized in
accordance with Chapter 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code; provided, however,
that when an emergency is declared by the Governor and funds are available,
employees who are assigned to the emergency area described in the Governor's
Executive Order shall be subject to a forty (40) hour workweek while so assigned.
The State and the PBA will cooperate to secure funds for the payment of overtime to
Unit employees in the situation described herein. The State shall make a reasonable
effort to equalize distribution of overtime opportunities.

(C) The PBA agrees to support those changes in Chapter 60L-34, Florida
Administrative Code that may be required in order for the State to be in compliance
with the Fair Labor Standards Act as it is applied to public employees, which the
State agrees to comply with.

SECTION 5 - FLSA Special Compensatory Leave

(A) If the DHSMV has a plan approved in advance by the Department of Management
Services, FLSA special compensatory leave credits shall be granted, administered
and used as described below:

(B) An employee who is filling an included position may, at the end of the approved
extended period, waive payment for overtime and have the overtime hours credited
to "FLSA special compensatory leave." If such election is made, the overtime hours
will be credited as "FLSA special compensatory leave" credits at the rate of one and
one-half (1-1/2) hours for each hour of overtime worked. An employee will only be
permitted to accumulate a maximum of one hundred (100) hours of "FLSA special
compensatory leave" credits which may be taken in any increments at the
employee's discretion provided the FLSA compensatory leave is taken by June 30 or
December 31 of each year. The employee's request to utilize FLSA compensatory
leave shall be granted so long as granting the request would not result in "undue
disruption." If the FLSA compensatory leave is not utilized by the employee by June
30 or December 31 of each year, all unused "FLSA special compensatory leave"
credits at the close of business on December 31 and June 30 shall be paid for at the
employee's straight time regular hourly rate in accordance with Chapter 60L-34,
Florida Administrative Code, as amended. An employee who separates from the
Career Service or moves to another state agency shall be paid for all unused "FLSA
special compensatory leave" in accordance with the above.

(C) The parties agree that all Florida Highway Patrol recruits shall be treated in
the manner described below with regard to FLSA compensatory leave:

32



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(1) Florida Highway Patrol recruits undergoing training to attain Law
Enforcement Certification, or agency-specific orientation, will be
exempt from the 100 hour cap on the earning of FLSA compensatory
leave credits and mandatory June 30 and December 31 payment
requirements during the time they attend an academy or education
institution.

(2) Recruits may request up to 120 hours of FLSA leave upon graduation
from the academy or educational institution for the purpose of
relocating to their new assignment. Such leave must be authorized by
the recruit's agency, Recruits must use the accrued FLSA
compensatory leave credits before using regular annual leave.

(3) Any remaining FLSA compensatory leave credits shall be used within
the next six-month cycle, or paid for at the end of that cycle, as
presently provided for in Chapter 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code,
and Article 18, Section 6(A) of the Agreement,

SECTION 6 - Special Compensatory Leave

(A) An effil3lo'tee shall be eligible to earn sl3ecial coml3ensatory leave credits as a
result of hours worked on a holiday; extra hours 'Norked during an established work
l3eriod "'\I'hich contains a holiday or 'Nhen a facility is closed under Executive Order
during effiergency conditions. When an eml3loyee is required to work in
circumstances as set forth in this l3aragral3h, any sl3ecial COffil3ensatory leave earned
at the end of the "'\I'ork'Neel<, '/Jork period, or extended work l3eriod, shall be tal<en
'Nith the ffiutual agreeffient of the eml3loyee and the sUl3ervisor I3rovided the sl3ecial
coml3ensatory lemte is taken within sixty (60) calendar days of the holiday or last
date the facility remained closed under Executive Order. Thereafter, the sl3ecial
coml3ensatory leave '1'1I'ill be scheduled at the discretion of the sUl3ervisor. Special
Compensatory Leave is defined as leave that is earned as a result of hours worked
on a holiday, extra hours worked during an established work week which contains a
holiday, or extra hours worked when a facility is closed under an Executive Order
during emergency conditions.

(6) Use of Special Compensatory Leave:

1. When a member earns special compensatory leave credits, the member shall
have 60 calendar days in which to use the earned Special Compensatory Leave time.

2. If the member fails to use the earned Special Compensatory Leave during the
60 day period, the supervisor shall schedule the member to use the leave.

3. A member who has a leave balance in excess of 240 hours shall be required
to use a minimum of 120 hours of the member's earned Special Compensatory Leave
each calendar year or the amount necessary to bring the member's Special

33



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

Compensatory Leave balance to 240 hours. whichever is less. prior to using any
annual leave credits. except if the failure to grant annual leave will result in its
conversion to sick leave.

4. The State shall not offset special compensatory leave earned during a work
period due to a holiday with approved sick leave used during the same work period
or administrative leave used in the work period for negotiations pursuant to Article 5.

5. A member who begins employment after July 1, 2013 shall only be permitted
to accumulate a maximum of 240 hours of Special Compensatory Leave credits.
notWithstanding any additional hours worked on a holiday. during the established
work week containing a holiday. This provision shall not apply to credit earned due
to closure of a facility under an Executive Order during emergency conditions.

6. Employees shall not be compelled to use accrued special compensatory leave
to cover an absence's) taken for the use of administrative leave. sick leave. or
personal holiday.

(B) FloFie!a High'....ay PatFol baFgaining unit Employees may, at theiF option, use
special compensatoFy leave befom using accFuee! annual leave cree!its. Employees
will only be peFmittee! to accumulate a maximum of two hune!Fee! ane! forty (240)
hours of special compensatoFy leave cFee!its.

SECTION 7 - Sick Leave Pool and Sick Leave Transfer

The DHSMV shall set up and administer a sick leave pool and sick leave transfer plan
for the Florida Highway Patrol Bargaining Unit employees if there is sufficient
employee participation to render the pool and sick leave transfer plan
administratively feasible. Employees shall be subject to the conditions, and have full
access to the benefits, of the DHSMV's existing sick leave pool and sick leave
transfer plan.

SECTION 8 - Section 440.1S(12), Florida Statutes - Full-Pay Status

(A) An employee who sustains a job-connected disability and meets the eligibility
reqUirements, as prOVided for in Section 440.15(12), Florida Statutes, may be
carried in full-pay status.

(B) Any claim by an employee or the PBA concerning this Section shall not be
subject to the Grievance Procedure of this Agreement.

SECTION 9 - Chapter 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code- Disability Leave
With Pay

An employee who sustains a job-connected disability which is not covered by Section
8 above, is eligible for disability leave with pay under the provisions of Chapter 60L
34, Florida Administrative Code. The Agency Head or his designee shall not
unreasonably refuse to submit a request to carry an employee in full-pay status
under the provisions of Chapter 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code, prOVided,
however, the Secretary of the Department of Management Services or his designee
shall have the right to determine whether or not an employee should be carried in
full-pay status for more than twenty-six (26) weeks. An employee shall not be

34



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

required to use accrued compensatory or annual leave in order to be eligible to be
carried in full-pay status under Chapter 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code.
However, no employee shall be carried in full-pay status until he has utilized 100
hours of accumulated sick leave, annual leave, compensatory leave or leave without
pay.

SECTION 10 - Alternate Duty

(A) Where an employee is eligible for disability leave with pay under Rules of the
State Personnel System as a result of an injury in the line of duty, and is temporarily
unable to perform his normal work duties, the Agency Head or his designee shall
give due consideration to any request by the employee to be temporarily assigned
substitute duties within the employee's medical restrictions. This shall have no effect
on the agency's ability to make a different assignment based upon current medical
opinion.

(6) A complaint concerning this Section may be grieved in accordance with Article 6
of this Agreement up to and including Step 2. The decision of the Department of
Management Services shall be final and binding on all parties.

Article 19
PERSONAL PROPERTY - REPLACEMENT AND/OR REIMBURSEMENT

(A) Other than the employee's watch or prescription glasses, any personal property
subject to replacement or reimbursement pursuant to this article must be approved
in advance by the DHSMV as being required by the employee to adequately perform
the duties of his/her position.

(6) Thereafter, an employee who, while on duty and acting within the scope of
employment, suffers the damage, destruction or loss of his or her watch, prescription
glasses, or other personal property approved pursuant to Paragraph (A), will be
reimbursed, have such property repaired, or have such property replaced with an
item which is of the same or a similar quality, as described in this Article; provided,
however, that:

(1) the DHSMV has the option to decide whether a specific piece of
property is repaired versus replaced; and

(2) the employee shall not be reimbursed or have property repaired or
replaced if the DHSMV determines that the damage, destruction or loss
resulted from the employee's negligence.

(C) An employee who wants to be reimbursed or have personal property repaired or
replaced must:

(1) File a written report detailing the circumstances under which the
property was damaged, destroyed or lost; and

(2) Document the amount expended to repair or replace such
property.

35



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(D) After meeting the conditions described above, the Agency head or designee shall
authorize reimbursement not to exceed the following amounts:

Watch - $75

Prescription glasses - $200 (including any required examination)

Other Items - the Agency head or designee shall have final authority
to determine the reimbursement value of any items other than
watches or prescription glasses.

Total allowable per incident - $500.

Article 20
TRAINING AND EDUCATION

SECTION 1 - Law Enforcement Supervisors' Training
The State and the PBA recognize the importance of supervisor training programs to
develop management skills in our law enforcement supervisors. The State will make
a reasonable effort to continue existing training programs in law enforcement
techniques and to develop new programs in performance review techniques,
supervisory skills and managerial techniques.

SECTION 2 - Educational Assistance Plan
The State shall provide up to six (6) credit hours of tuition-free courses per term at a
state university or community college to full-time employees on a space available
basis as authorized by law. During the term of this agreement, and subject to
additional funding, the Governor agrees to seek approval of the Legislature to
continue the existing program for the provision of tuition-free courses.

Article 21
ACTING RANKS

SECTION 1 - Eligibility

Each time an employee is officially designated by the appropriate supervisor to act in
a higher broadband level than the employee's permanent broadband level, and
actually performs said duties for a period of more than twenty-two (22) workdays,
within any six (6) consecutive months, the employee shall be eligible for a
promotional pay increase to the higher broadband level as prOVided in the Rules of
the State Personnel System.

SECTION 2 - Method of Compensation

It is understood by the parties that, insofar as pay is concerned, employees
temporarily filling a position in a higher broadband level shall be paid according to
the same compensation method as permanent promotees under the Rules of the
State Personnel System.

36



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

SECTION 3 - Return to Regular Rate

Employees being paid at a higher rate while temporarily filling a position in a higher
broadband level will be returned to their regular rate of pay when the period of
temporary employment in the higher broadband level is ended.

,!Article 22
\~CANTRETIREMENT

*Hold open pending decision of the Florida Supreme Court in the case of Rick Scott.
et al. v. George Williams. et al .. Case No. SC12-520.

Article 23
EQUIPMENT

SECTION 1 - NEW VEHICLES

Newly purchased pursuit vehicles for uniformed patrol shall be police package
equipped by the manufacturer as prOVided by current State of Florida contract
specifications for pursuit vehicles.

SECTION 2 - HIGH VISIBILITY LIGHTS

Each agency shall utilize high visibility lights as dictated by agency needs.

Article 24
ON-CALL ASSIGNMENT - CALL-BACK - COURT APPEARANCE

SECTION 1 - Definition

On-call assignment shall be as defined in the Rules of the State Personnel System.

SECTION 2 - Request for On-Call Pay

When an employee is reqUired by appropriate management to be on call, a request
for on-call payment under Chapter 60L-32, Florida Administrative Code, shall be
submitted by the DHSMV for approval. The Secretary of Management Services or his
designee shall not unreasonably withhold approval of such request.

SECTION 3 - On-Call Fee

(A) When approved as prOVided herein, employees who are reqUired to be on call
shall be compensated by payment of a fee in an amount of not less than one dollar
($1.00) for each hour such employee is required to be available.

(8) Employees who are reqUired to be on call on a Saturday, Sunday and/or a
holiday as listed in Section 110.117, Florida Statutes, will be compensated by
payment of a fee in an amount equal to one-fourth (1/4) of the statewide minimum
for the employee's class for each eight (8) hour period such employee is required to
be available.

37



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

SECTION 4 - Call-Back

A law enforcement employee called out to work at a time not contiguous with the
employee's scheduled hours of work shall be credited for actual time worked, or a
minimum of four (4) hours, whichever is greater. The rate of compensation shall be
in accordance with the Rules of the State Personnel System.

SECTION 5 - Court Appearances

If a law enforcement employee is subpoenaed to appear as a witness in a job-related
court case, not during the employee's regularly assigned shift, the employee shall be
credited for actual time worked, or a minimum of two and one-half (2-1/2) hours,
whichever is greater.

Article 25 2912 Legislstiwe Iftll'ssse Reseltltiefl
WAGES

SECTION 1 - Pay Provisions - General

(A) Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Year 2012201313-2014
General Appropriations Act. and as provided herein:

1. Effective July 1, 2013, all employees shall have their base rate of
pay increased by six percent (6%).

2. Effective October 1, 2013, all employees with seven (7)
continuous years of service as a law enforcement officer with the State and a
"meets standards" performance evaluation shall receive a three percent (3%) an
internal pay relationship adjustment in their base rate ofpay. Should an employee
reach the seven (7) years of service level subsequent to October 1, 2013, the
employee shall receive the same internal pay relationship adjustment.

(B) Increases to base rate of pay and salary additives shall be in accordance
with state law and the Fiscal Year 2012-2013 General Appropriations Act.

SECTION 2 - Other Pay Provisions

Based on the DHSMV's determination that sufficient funds and salary rate are available,
the State and PBA agree:

(A) When the DHSMV grants an increase to an employee's base rate of pay, the new
base rate of pay shall be within the broadband level and in accordance with Section
216.251 (3), Florida Statutes. If the DHSMV determines that an increase to base rate of
pay is to be granted based on one of the categories below, the following amounts of
increase shall be granted:

38



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

1. Outstanding Job Performance Rating - up to 8%;

2. Added Duties and Responsibilities - up to 8%;

3. Education and Training - up to 8%;

4. Reassignment - up to 8%;

5. Transfer - up to 12%;

6. Competitive Job Offer - up to a level to be competitive;

7. Internal Pay Relationships - as necessary and within the funds
available.

(B) Salary additives shall be implemented in accordance with the General
Appropriations Act and state law, including Section 1l0.2035(6)(c), Florida Statutes and
Section 216.251 (3), Florida Statutes.

The DHSMV may assign one of the following job duties to an employee. If the DHSMV
grants a salary additive to an employee, which must be in accordance with the law, the
following amounts of increase shall be granted:

1. Leadworker - up to 5% of the broadband minimum;

2. Temporary Special Duty - up to 15% of the employee's base
rate ofpay;

3. Trainer - up to 15% of the broadband minimum;

4. Hazardous Duty - up to 15% of the broadband minimum.

(C) If the DHSMV elects to grant an increase or additive higher than those provided
in paragraphs (A) or (B), the Union will be notified.

SECTION 3 - Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2012-2013 General
Appropriations Act, and contingent upon the availability of funds and at the agency
head's discretion, the DHSMV is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay
additive of up to 15 percent of the employee's base rate of pay to each employee
temporarily deployed to a facility or area closed dt!e to emergency conditions from
another area of the state that is not closed.

SECTION 4 - Cash Payout of Annual Leave

39



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

Permanent Career Service employees may be given the option of receiving up to twenty
four (24) hours of unused annual leave each December in the form of a cash payout,
subject to, and in accordance with, Section 110.219(7), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 5 - Performance Pay

Each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee's
exemplary performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to
Rule 60L-35, Florida Administrative Code.

SECTION 6 - Savings Sharing Program

An employee or groups of employees may be eligible for monetary awards for ideas or
programs that result in a cost saving to the state, pursuant to section 110.1245(1), Florida
Statutes.

Article 26
UNIFORMS AND ACCESSORIES

SECTION 1 - Uniform - Standard Issue

(A) All Florida Highway Patrol Bargaining Unit employees shall receive a standard
issue of uniforms (winter and summer) and uniform accessories. If the uniforms are
to be replaced, the State will study the feasibility of replacing them with quality wash
and wear uniforms.

(B) The State shall provide uniforms for its female officers in the appropriate sizes,
designed and cut for females. If a female officer is required to wear a bullet proof
vest, it shall be designed and fitted for a female.

SECTION 2 - Uniform Accessories

Uniform accessories will include the folloWing minimum requirements:

(A) Gun belt, either 2-1/4 inches or 3 inches as appropriate for the individual officer.

(B) An employee who currently has, and who has been trained in the use of, a cross
draw holster, shall be permitted to continue to utilize that type of holster. All other
employees will be issued a strong-hand holster.

(C) Spare ammunition, and an appropriate case.

(D) Where hand-held radios are provided, they will be suitable for law enforcement
use.

40



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

(E) The OHSMV, which provides bullet proof vests to Florida Highway Patrol
bargaining Unit employees, will develop a policy for replacement upon expiration of
the guaranteed life of the vest as expressed by the manufacturer at the time of
purchase.

(F) The OHSMV will select and provide to each employee at least one intermediate
force weapon, as determined appropriate by the agency, and provide training in the
use of such weapon.

SECTION 3 - Uniform and Clothing Maintenance Allowance

The State will provide Unit employees who are furnished and required by the State to
wear a uniform, or those employees of this Unit assigned to full-time plain clothes
positions, a maintenance, clothing and shoe allowance in the amount of
$500.00750.00 annually, unless laundry and dry cleaning facilities are available and
the service is furnished by the agency without cost to the employees.

Article 27
INSURANCE BENEFITS

SECTION 1 - State Employees Group Insurance Program

The State agrees to administer the State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance
Plan in accordance with any statutory provision or Act affecting the plan or its
operation-;- at no additional costs in co-payments or health insurance premiums to the
employee.

SECTION 2 - Death In-Line-Of-Duty Benefits

(A) Funeral and burial expenses will be as prOVided in Section 112.19, Florida
Statutes.

(B) Education benefits will be as prOVided in Section 112.19, Florida Statutes.

(C) State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan premium for the
employee's surviving spouse and children will be as prOVided in Section 110.123,
Florida Statutes.

(0) Any complaint or claim by an employee or the PBA concerning this Section
shall not be subject to the Grievance Procedure of this Agreement.

Article 28
TRAVEL EXPENSES

SECTION 1 - Payment of Travel Vouchers

41



2010 - 2013 State ofFlorida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

With the prior approval of the agency head, travel expenses of employees incurred in
the performance of a public purpose authorized by law will be paid in accordance
with Section 112.061, Florida Statutes. The State will make a good faith effort to pay
travel vouchers within thirty (30) days after they have been properly submitted.
Vouchers are considered submitted when the employee submits them to the local
official designated by management to receive such vouchers.

SECTION 2 - Emergency Travel

(A) When an emergency, such as a hurricane, arises that requires the DHSMV to
temporarily assign employees with less than forty-eight (48) hours notice, the
agency will make a good faith effort to officially notify employees of the temporary
assignment. Such notification may be in person, by telephone, by radio, or in writing.

(B) When an emergency arises requiring temporary personnel assignment with less
than forty-eight (48) hours' notice, the State agrees to make the necessary payment
to the vendor for lodging for such employees. The employee shall have no
responsibility to make such payments to the vendor. Travel vouchers will be
submitted as required in Section 1 above.

SECTION 3 - Mileage Allowance

The State agrees to seek continued funding to provide for the payment of a mileage
allowance for the use of privately-owned vehicles for official travel at the rate
provided in Section 112.061(7)(d)1., Florida Statutes.

Article 29
DRUG TESTING

(A) The State and the PBA agree to drug testing of bargaining unit employees in
accordance with Section 112.0455, Florida Statutes, the Drug-Free Workplace Act.

(B) All classes covered by this Agreement are designated special risk classes for drug
testing purposes. Special risk means employees who are required as a condition of
employment to be certified under Chapter 633 or Chapter 943, Florida Statutes.

(C) An employee shall have the right to grieve any disciplinary action taken under
Section 112.0455, the Drug-Free Workplace Act, subject to the limitations on the
grievability of disciplinary actions in Article 10. If an employee is not disciplined but
is denied a demotion, reassignment or promotion as a result of a positive confirmed
drug test, the employee shall have the right to grieve such action in accordance with
Article 6.

Article 30
NO STRIKE

SECTION 1 - No Strike Agreement

Neither the PBA nor any of its officers or agents nor members covered by this
Agreement, nor any other employees covered by this Agreement, will instigate,

42



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

promote, sponsor, or engage in any prohibited activities as defined in Section
447.203(6), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 2 - Penalty

Any or all employees who violate any provision of this law prohibiting strikes or of
this Article will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including discharge, and
any such disciplinary action by the State shall not be subject to the Grievance
Procedure established herein.

Article 31
STATE PERSONNEL SYSTEM RULES

All pay and benefits provisions published in the Rules of the State Personnel System
which cover employees in the bargaining Unit and which are not specifically provided
for or modified by this Agreement shall continue in effect during the term of this
Agreement.

Article 32
MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

The PBA agrees that the State has and will continue to retain, whether exercised or
not, the right to determine unilaterally the purpose of each of its constituent
agencies, set standards of services to be offered to the public, and exercise control
and discretion over its organization and operations. It is also the right of the public
employer to direct its employees, take disciplinary action for proper cause, and
relieve its employees from duty because of lack of work or for other legitimate
reasons, except as abridged or modified by the express provisions of this
Agreement; prOVided, however, that the exercise of such rights shall not preclude an
employee or employee representative from raising a grievance on any such decision
which violates the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Article 33
ENTIRE AGREEMENT

SECTION 1 - Agreement/Reopeners

This Agreement, upon ratification, supersedes and cancels all prior practices and
agreements, whether written or oral, unless expressly stated to the contrary herein,
and constitutes the complete and entire agreement between the parties, and
concludes collective bargaining for its term.

The parties acknowledge that, during the negotiations which resulted in this
Agreement, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and
proposals with respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from the area of
collective bargaining, and that the understandings and agreements arrived at by the

43



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this
Agreement.

The State and the PBA agree that changes in any four (4) articles within this
Agreement that the PBA or the State desire to reopen, plus any articles which
provide for a study by the State and the PBA, shall be subject to negotiations for
Fiscal Year 2011 20122014-2015.

The State and the PBA further agree that changes in any four (4) articles within this
Agreement that the PBA or the State desire to reopen, plus any articles which
prOVide for a study by the State and the PBA, shall be subject to negotiations during
the second year of this Agreement for Fiscal Year 2012 20132015-2016.

Except as to the above subjects, the State and the PBA, for the duration of this
Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right, and each agrees that
the other shall not be obligated to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or
matter referred to, or covered in this Agreement, even though such subjects or
matters may not have been within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both
of the parties at the time they negotiated or signed this Agreement.

SECTION 2 - Memorandum of Understanding/Settlements

The Parties recognize that during the term of this Agreement situations may arise
which require that terms and conditions not specifically and clearly set forth in the
Agreement must be clarified or amended. Under such circumstances, the PBA is
specifically authorized by bargaining Unit employees to enter into the settlement of
grievance disputes or memorandum of understanding which clarifies or amends this
Agreement, without having to be ratified by bargaining Unit members.

Article 34
SAVINGS CLAUSE

If any provision of this Agreement, or the application of such provision, should be
rendered or declared invalid, unlawful, or not enforceable, by any court action or by
reason of any existing or subsequently enacted legislation; or if the appropriate
governmental body, having amendatory power to change a law, rule or regulation
which is in conflict with a provision of this Agreement, fails to enact or adopt an
enabling amendment to make the provision effective, in accordance with Section
447.309(3), Florida Statutes; then such provision shall not be applicable, performed
or enforced, but the remaining parts or portions of this Agreement shall remain in
full force and effect for the term of this Agreement.

Article 35
DURATION

SECTION 1 - Term

This Agreement shall be effective upon ratification, and shall remain in full force and
effect through the thirtieth day of June--:2&B2016. Either party may reopen up to
four (4) Articles per contract year. Either party may reopen these Articles by

44



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

providing written notice within the thirty (30) days prior to September 1 of the
contract year. This Agreement shall be automatically renewed from year to year
thereafter, unless either party shall notify the other in writing on or before
September 1 of each year that it desires to change or modify this Agreement. This
Agreement shall remain in full force and be effective during the period of negotiation
and may be extended in the manner set forth in the following paragraph.

In the event that the State and the PBA fail to secure a successor Agreement prior to
the expiration date of this Agreement, the parties may mutually agree in writing to
extend this Agreement for any period of time.

In the event that either party desires to terminate or modify this Agreement, written
notice must be given to the other party not less than ten (10) days prior to the
desired termination date, which shall not be before the anniversary date set forth in
the preceding paragraph.

SECTION 2 - Notices

Notices hereunder shall be given by registered or certified mail, and if by the State
shall be addressed to the Florida Police Benevolent Association, Inc. at 300 East
Brevard Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301 and if by the PBA shall be addressed to
the Office of the Secretary and the Office of the General Counsel, Department of
Management Services, 4050 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0950. Either
party may, by a like written notice, change the address to which such notice shall be
given. Notices shall be considered to have been given as of the date shown on the
postmark.

SECTION 3 - Emergencies

If it is determined that civil emergency conditions exist, including, but not limited to,
riots, civil disorders, hurricane conditions, or similar catastrophes, the provisions of
this Agreement may be suspended by the Governor or a State agency head during
the time of the declared emergency, provided that wage rates and monetary fringe
benefits shall not be suspended. It is understood that a declared emergency may be
limited to specific geographic areas, in which case suspension of the terms of this
Agreement as provided above, would apply only to those bargaining Unit employees
permanently or temporarily assigned to such areas.

Article 36
AWARDS

A. MEDAL OF VALOR

The State may recognize heroic conduct with an award of valor. The criteria for
awarding a medal of valor is as defined at Section 112.194 Florida Statutes. A
medal of valor may be accompanied by a monetary award up to $250.00.

B. RETIREMENT AWARDS

1. Retirement awards for eligible employees who retire from the State Retirement
System with substantial service to an agency of the State of Florida, including the

45



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

badge worn by him or her, the employee's service revolver or pistol, if one had been
issued as part of the employee's equipment, and an identification card clearly
marked "RETIRED" shall be as provided in Section 112.193, Florida Statutes.

2. The State may grant awards, certificates and other recognition pursuant to Florida
Statutes, Section 110.1245(3) to retiring employees whose service to the State has
been satisfactory, in appreciation and recognition of such service. The cost for such
awards shall not exceed $100.00.

C. RECOGNITION AWARDS

The State may grant awards, certificates and other recognition to employees who
demonstrate satisfactory service to the State in appreciation and recognition of such
service. The cost for such tokens of recognition shall not exceed $100.00.

46



2010 - 2013 State of Florida & PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Unit Agreement
Incorporates 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 Reopener Revisions

APPENDIX A

FLORIDA HIGHWAY PATROL UNIT - CBU Code 12

Class
Code Class Title Working Title

8515 Law Enforcement Officer
8519 Law Enforcement Sergeant
8532 Law Enforcement Airplane Pilot I
8534 Law Enforcement Airplane Pilot II
8540 Law Enforcement Investigator I
8541 Law Enforcement Investigator II

Florida Highway Patrol Trooper
Florida Highway Patrol Sergeant
Florida Highway Patrol Pilot I
Florida Highway Patrol Pilot II
Florida Highway Patrol Trooper II
Florida Highway Patrol Investigator II

NOTE: The above classes have been designated special risk for drug testing purposes
under Chapter 60L-19, Florida Administrative Code. "Special risk" means employees
who are required as a condition of employment to be certified under Chapter 633 or
Chapter 943, Florida Statutes. .

47



.-1o lDn OJ
2!.3
N~
OlD...a. ..,
...a. VI



PHILLIPS, RICHARD & RIND, P.A.
ATTORNEYS AT LAW

KATHLEEN M. PHILLIPS
MARK RICHARD
OSNAT K. RIND

9360 SW 72 STREET, SUITE 283
MIAMI, FLORIDA 33173
Tel: (305) 412-8322
Fax: (305) 412-8299

OF COUNSEL:
LIBBY HERRERA-NAVARRETE, PA
PATRICIA IRELAND

VIA EMAIL AND U.S. MAIL

February 13,2013

Senator Alan Hays, Co-Chair
Representative Charles VanZant, Co-Chair
Joint Select Committee on Collective Bargaining
402 S. Monroe St.
Tallahassee, FL 32399

Re: Articles at Impasse

Dear Senator Hays and Representative VanZant:

This firm represents the Teamsters Local 2011 for the purpose of negotiating a successor
collective bargaining agreement with the State of Florida ("State"). This letter is submitted in
response to your letter of February 7, 2013, requesting certain documentation.

Accordingly, please see the enclosed documents, which include copies of the most recent
proposals on articles at impasse, a summary overview of the proposals, and a summary overview
of the rationale behind the proposals.

The date at which the parties are declared to be at "impasse" is driven by statute, as opposed to
natural termination of the parties' negotiations. Accordingly, the Teamsters Local 2011
continues to discuss proposals on the remaining articles with the State in an attempt to resolve all
outstanding issues. The Teamsters Local 2011 has reserved the right to amend any existing
proposal enclosed herewith, and remains hopeful that additional articles will be removed from
the legislature's consideration prior to the final resolution of impasse.

Sincerely,

qg:::~
Holly E. Van Horsten, Esq.

Enclosures

~20



Article Summary of Most Recent Rationale
Union Proposal

Article 3- Returning the language of the Dues Having the language in the contract provides
Vacant (Dues Deduction Article that was previously that employees will be able to have
Deduction) stripped from the contract. membership dues, which they have

voluntarily elected to pay, deducted from
their paychecks for the duration of the
contract.

Article 4- The Union proposes a Section entitled The Teamsters have now completed over one
No "workplace behavior," indicating that full year as the collective bargaining
Discrimination that all employees should work in an representative of this unit. During that year,

environment that fosters mutual the Teamsters received many complaints
respect and professionalism. If an from officers about unprofessional behavior
employee believes he has been subject in the workplace. Thus, it is important to
to inappropriate behavior, he is include language that calls for mutual respect
encouraged to report the behavior to and professionalism. Inappropriate behavior
the Human Resources Office on a in the workplace does not further an agency's
form that already exists for that business needs, employee well-being or
purpose. The Section is not subject to productivity, and encouraging the use of the
the grievance and arbitration complaint form will enhance the agency's
procedure. ability to address problematic situations in a

timely and consistent manner.
Article 6- Note: the State proposes a non- The Union and the State have agreed to
Grievance traditional restriction on arbitration in clarify the "Oral Step" of the grievance
Procedure page 6 of 8 of its proposal. The State process, and that DMS is permitted to do the

not only proposes that issues of arbitration scheduling. However, the
arbitrability be addressed first, but also remainder of the State's proposal diminishes
proposes that the "looser pays" the the effectiveness of the grievance and
fees and expenses of this expedited arbitration procedure.
arbitration hearing. The Public
Employees Relations Commission
(PERC) has held that such a
restriction, without mutual agreement,
violates Florida Statute Section
447.401.

The Union's proposal is status quo
besides accepting a few ofthe changes
proposed by the State.

Article 7- Note: the State has proposed illegal 1. The use of "cumulative" discipline
Discipline and language in its Article 7 proposal. severely undermines the fairness and
Discharge This illegal language eliminates the effectiveness of the disciplinary process.

ability for an employee to go through Each and every time and employee engages
the grievance and arbitration process in any perceived questionable conduct,
when suspended or terminated, among he/she is charged with "conduct
other disciplinary actions. The unbecoming" and "failure to follow a written

2



language violates Florida Statute or oral instruction." The employee is then
Section 447.40l. automatically subject to a higher level of

discipline for hislher next offense, even if the
The Union has proposed: underlying conduct is completely unrelated
1. Eliminating "cumulative" to the first offense.
discipline, which frequently results in 2. It is not fair and just to use counseling,
unfair, unwarranted and excessive which does not count as discipline, against an
discipline officer after a reasonable period of time has
2. Both the State and the Union agree passed.
on the language in regard to 3. If an employee receives discipline, which
counseling notices and memorandum, is to count against himlher in the future under
but the Union proposes a time limit on the theory ofprogressive discipline, he/she
using such counseling in should have the right to be able to contest
administrative discipline proceedings this discipline before an unbiased third-party.
because a counseling is not considered The State's proposal calls for the agency
discipline and is not subject to initiating the discipline to be the final
grievance and arbitration decision maker, thereby serving as
3. The Union proposes that written prosecutor, judge, and jury.
reprimands be subject to arbitration, as
a written reprimand is a form of
discipline (and a disqualifier for a pay
bonus as proposed in the Governor's
budget). In return, the State has
proposed only grieving the reprimand
up to the 2nd step (out of4 steps) -
including those reprimands based on
criminal charges and using written
reprimands in determining progressive
discipline without any restrictions

Article 9- 1. Removing restriction in requesting 1. Employees should be able to request a
Reassignment, a reassignment, transfer or change in change within a Major Institution. For
Transfer, duty station. example, if an officer wants to go from the
Change in 2. Employees in the Department of work camp to the annex, he/she should be
Duty Station Children and Families ("DCF") (who, able to request this change.

by PERC determination, are part of 2. Many DCF employees have the very same
the same bargaining unit as employees certification as correction officers, and would
in DOC) shall have the same access to be an asset to the DOC. Thus, qualified DCF
vacant positions as employees in the employees should have the same access as
DOC. DOC employees to open positions in the
3. Agency can involuntarily reassign, DOC.
transfer or change an employee's duty 3. When involuntarily reassigning an
station according to the needs of the employee, the agency should, at the very
Agency. The Union seeks to add a least, consider the needs and circumstances
"good faith" requirement to take such of the employee.
action only when dictated by the needs 4. Allowing for probation officers to
of the agency and that the Agency will volunteer for a reassignment is a fair and
consider the needs and circumstances equitable way to effect the reassignment.

3



of the employee before taking such
action.
4. When the DOC needs to reassign a
probation officer to another office
because the case load at that other
office requires another officer, the
DOC shall first seek volunteers and if
there are no volunteers, the
reassignment will be on the basis of
seniority.

Article 10- Status quo, including the incorporation Of the many changes that the State seeks in
Promotions of the now-existing FDOC procedure the promotions process, one change stands

on promotions, with the exception of out as particularly problematic. Presently,
permitting promoted employees to during the oral interview, the person
retain permanent statue in the career interviewed is asked a series ofobjective,
service system. job-related questions, to ascertain hislher

knowledge of the FDOC and its operations.
The State seeks to change the process from
objective questions, to amorphous "scenario
based" questions which are scored based on
the interviewer's subjective impressions of
the answers. The State's proposal diminishes
the effectiveness of the interview process by
injecting subjectivity into a part of the
interview which should be based on
objectively measuring an individual's
knowledge.

Article 13 - 1. All safety equipment (i.e. 1. The officers put their lives at risk for the
Safety bulletproofvests) shall comply with safety of the community. Thus, they should

manufacturer standards. be provided with safety equipment that meets
2. Probation officers shall have a manufacturer standards.
sufficient number of radios available 2. Radios are a lifeline for officers out in the
for officers to use when performing field. Some officers are required to work in
field work (i.e. visiting offenders in areas with little to no cellphone reception,
their homes). and a radio is the only way to call for help in
3. Probation officers who are certified a deadly situation. Radios also allow
to carry a firearm shall be permitted to dispatch to monitor the situation when an
carry the firearm in the office (since officer "checks in" via radio, and if an officer
offenders are required to report to the fails to respond to dispatch because he/she is
officers at an assigned office). in a life-threatening situation, dispatch can

send critically necessary back-up.
3. Although prohibited from doing so,
probationers and parolees carry firearms into
probation offices. Officers who are trained
in firearms should be permitted to carry their
weapon in the event the situation with an
offender turns deadly.

4



Article 18- 1. Officer shall not be required to use 1. Many ofthe officers in the bargaining unit
Leaves of special compensatory leave before were permitted to accrue a number of special
Absence annual leave or regular compensatory compensatory leave hours over the years due

leave. to staffing shortages; however, the DOC
requires the use of "special comp" before

2. Leave provided to employees to annual leave. As a result, officers are not
attend collective bargaining able - at any point of time during the year -
negotiations shall be called to use annual leave, which means that they
Negotiation Committee Time ("NCT") automatically loose the value of the annual
and an employee shall not be required leave at the end ofthe year.
to work additional hours during the
work period to offset NCT.

Article 23- 1. If an employee has a special 1. This proposal provides the State with an
Hours of Work compensatory leave balance of at least opportunity to lessen its overall special
/Overtime l

540 hours, an employee can request a compensatory leave liability and provides the
one-time payout ofup to 300 hours officers with an opportunity to access the
payable at a discounted rate of75% of compensation they have received for
the employee's current rate ofpay. working on a holiday.

2. For special compensatory leave 2. Special compensatory leave is the
earned on or after July 1,2013, if the compensation that officers receive for
agency is unable to schedule the leave working on a holiday pursuant to Florida
(due to minimum staffing Statute Section 110.117. It is against the
requirements) during the relevant time paid holiday statute to require employees to
period or thereafter, during the 180 forfeit this holiday compensation.
day extension, the agency will
compensate the employee for the leave
at the employee current rate ofpay.

Article 25 - A fair and equitable wage increase The corrections officers have not received a
Wages raise for the last six (6) years. The cost of

living has increased since that time, and
many officers are struggling to support their
families.

Article 26- Balanced approach on when officers "Class A" uniforms are the most formal
Uniform and must wear "Class A" uniforms uniforms an officer can wear. The "Class A"
Insignia is an additional cost beyond the employee's

normal uniform, and more frequent use
necessitates replacement at a cost to the
State. The "Class A" uniforms are incredibly
hot to wear in the summer months. Thus, the
Union has proposed that the "Class A" be
worn only on certain formal occasions:
executions, funerals, and court appearances.

Article 27- Maintain the current level ofhealth The officers have not received a raise in the

1 This Article, in particular, continues to be a subject of negotiation between the Teamsters Local 2011 and the State,
and the Union's proposal at this time may not be its fmal proposal.

5



Insurance benefits at no additional cost to the last six (6) years and are now required by law
Benefits employee. to contribute 3% oftheir income to

retirement (effectively decreasing their
paychecks by 3%). Thus, the officers cannot
afford to make any additional payments
towards their health insurance.

Article 28- Reimbursement at federal mileage The federal mileage rate more accurately
Travel rates for officers who use their own reflects the cost of "wear and tear" associated
Expenses vehicles with an employee using hislher vehicle for

work purposes.
Article 30- Management will make a good faith Presently, management has the authority to
Vacant effort to schedule all mandatory schedule a mandatory meeting on an
(Mandatory meetings during an employee's employee's scheduled day off or during the
Meetings) scheduled workday and/or abutting an morning 12-hour shift, when the employee

employee's scheduled workday. If an works the evening 12-hour shift. Requiring
employee is required to attend a an employee to drive to work for a IS-minute
meeting that does not occur I) meeting substantially disrupts I) his day off,
immediately before or after his or 2) his sleep (if the meeting is during the
scheduled workday; or 2) during his morning 12-hour shift and he works the
scheduled workday, the employee will eveni~g 12-hour shift). Thus, if an employee
be paid a minimum of2 hours time. is required to come into work under such

conditions, he/she should be paid a minimum
of2 hours.

6



Teamsters Loca12011 Proposal
12.03.12

Article 3
DUES DEDUCTION

(A) During the tenn of this Agreement, the state, by and through its respective
agencies, agrees to deduct Union membership dues and unifonn assessments, if any, in an
amount established by the Union and certified in writing by the President of the Union, or his
designee to the state, from the pay of those employees in the bargaining units who individually
make such request on a written check-off authorization fonn provided by the Union (Appendix
B). Such deduction will be made by the agency when other payroll deductions are made and will
begin with the pay for the first full pay period following receipt of the authorization by the
agency.

(B) The Union shall advise the state ofany unifonn assessment of increase in dues in
writing at least thirty (30) days prior to its effective date.

(C) This Article applies only to the deduction ofmembership dues and unifonn
assessments, if any, and shall not apply to the collection of any fines, penalties, or special
assessments

(D) Employee organization dues deduction will be provided for the certified
bargaining agent only

SECTION 2 - Remittance

Deductions ofdues and unifonn assessments, if any, shall be remitted exclusively to the
President of the Teamsters Local 2011 or his designee, by the respective agencies on either a
biweekly or monthly cycle along with a list containing names, social security numbers, agency
division, district, institution, and amount deducted, of the employees for whom the remittance is
made

SECTION 3 - Insufficient Pay for Deduction

In the event an employee's salary is earnings within any pay period, after deductions for
withholding social security, retirement, and insurance, are not sufficient to cover dues and any
unifonn assessments, it will be the responsibility of the Union to collect its dues and unifonn
assessments for that pay period directly from the employee.

SECTION 4 - Termination of Deduction

Deductions for Union dues and/or unifonn assessments shall continue until either: (1)
revoked by the employee providing the state and the Union with thirty (30) days written notice
that he is terminating the prior check-off authorization; (2) revoked pursuant to Section 447.507,
Florida Statutes; (3) the tennination ofemployment; or (4) the transfer, promotion, or demotion
of the employee out of this bargaining unit. If these deductions are continued when any of the
above situations occur, the Association shall, upon notice of the error, reimburse the employee
for the deduction that were improperly withheld.

SECTION 5 - Identification



Teamsters Local 2011 Proposal
12.03.12

The Union shall indemnify, defend and hold the State ofFlorida, its officers, officials,
agents, and employees, harmless against any claim, demand, suit, or liability (monetary or
otherwise) and for all legal costs arising from any action taken or not taken by the State, its
officials, agents and employees in complying with this Article. The Union shall promptly refund
to the state any funds received in accordance with this Article, which are in excess of the amount
ofdues and/or uniform assessments, which the state or its agencies have agreed to deduct.

SECTION 6 - Processing the Dues Check-off Authorization Form

(A) The Dues Check-off Authorization Form (Appendix B) supplied by the
Association shall: (1) be in strict conformance with Appendix B; (2) be the only form used by
bargaining unit employees who wish to initiate dues deduction; (3) contain all the information
required for processing prior to submission to the state.

(B) Changes in the Dues Check-offAuthorization Forms required by (A) above will
not affect deductions authorized by forms that the parties have previously agreed to.

(C) Forms that are: (1) incorrectly filled out or do not contain all the information
necessary for payroll processing, (2) postdated, or (3) submitted to the state more than sixty (60)
days following the date of the employee's signature will be returned to the Union.



Teamsters Local 2011
Proposal - Article 4

February 4,2013
Article 4

WORKPLACE BEHAVIORINO DISCRIMINATION

SECTION I-Non-Discrimination Policy -State-Federal Law

(A) The state and the Union shall not discriminate against any employee for any
reason prohibited under Florida Statutes or any federal law.

(B) The Union shall have the right to consult on issues of unlawful discrimination
with the Step 1 Management Representative and/or designee(s), up through the Step 2
Management Representative and/or designee(s), to the Department ofManagement Services.

(C) Any claim of unlawful discrimination by an employee against the state, its
officials or representatives, except for grievances related to Union membership, shall only be
subject to the method of review prescribed by law or by rules and regulations having the force
and effect oflaw.

(D) The Union agrees to support the state's current affirmative action programs and
efforts to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

SECTION 2 -Non-Discrimination Policy -Union Membership

Neither the state nor the Union shall interfere with the right of employees covered by this
Agreement to become or refrain from becoming members of the Union, and neither the state nor
the Union shall discriminate against an employee because of membership or non-membership in
any employee organization.

SECTION 3 - Workplace Behavior

(A) The state and the Union agree that all employees should work in an environment that
fosters mutual respect and professionalism. The parties agree that inappropriate behavior in the
workplace does not fuliher an agency's business needs. employee well-being or productivity. All
employees are responsible for contributing to such an environment and are expected to treat
others with dignity and respect.

(B) Inappropriate workplace behavior by employees, supervisors and/or managers will
not be tolerated. This Section is not subject to the grievance procedure in Aliicle 6; however, if
an employee believes he or she has been subjected to inappropriate behavior, the employee is
encouraged to report this behavior to the Human Resources Office in wliting, on the designated
fODn.



Teamsters Local 2011
Proposal - Article 6

February 4,2013

Article 6
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

It is the policy of the state and Union to encourage informal discussions between
supervisors and employees of employee complaints. Such discussions should be held with a
view to reaching an understanding which will resolve the matter in a manner satisfactory to the
employee and the state, without need for recourse to the formal grievance procedure prescribed
by this Article.

SECTION 1 - DefInitions

As used in this Article:
(A) "Grievance" shall mean a dispute involving the interpretation or application of the

specific provisions of this Agreement, except as exclusions are noted in this Agreement, filed on
the appropriate form as contained in Appendix B ofthis Agreement.

(B) "Employee" shall mean an employee or a group of employees having the same
grievance. In the case of a group of employees one employee shall be designated by the group to
act as spokesperson and to be responsible for processing the grievance.

(C) "Days" shall mean calendar days, excluding any day observed as a holiday
pursuant to Section 110.117, Florida Statutes, or holiday observed by the Union pursuant to a list
furnished to the state in writing, as of the effective date of this Agreement.

SECTION 2 - Election of Remedy and Representation

(A) If an employee or the Union has a grievance which may be processed under this
Article and which may also be appealed to the Public Employees Relations Commission, the
employee or the Union shall indicate at the time the grievance is reduced to writing which
procedure is to be used and such decision shall be binding on the employee or the Union. In the
case of any duplicate filing, the action first filed will be the one processed.

(B) An employee who decides to use this grievance procedure shall indicate at the
Oral Step or initial written step (if authorized by the provisions of this Article) whether he shall
be represented by the Union. If the employee is represented by the Union, any decision agreed
to by the state and Union shall be binding on the employee.

(C) Where Union representation is requested by an employee, the employee's
representative shall be selected from the list of Union Grievance Representatives or Union &taff
Representatives Business Agents which has been provided to the state by the Union. When an
employee has been appropriately designated to serve as a Grievance Representative and the state
has been notified in accordance with Article 5, Section 2 (B), the Grievance Representative shall
be authorized to investigate grievances and represent grievants in accordance with this Article,
subject to the following limitations:

(1) A Grievance Representative will not be allowed time off with pay to
investigate his own grievance.

(2) Time spent by a Grievance Representative in investigating a grievance
shall be the minimum amount of time necessary to perform the specific investigation involved.

(a) If an employee selects a Grievance Representative to represent him
in a grievance which has been properly filed in accordance with this Article, the Grievance
Representative may be allowed a reasonable amount of annual or compensatory leave to
investigate the grievance at the Oral Step and to represent the grievant at Oral Step and Step 1

1



Teamsters Local 2011
Proposal - Article 6

February 4,2013

meetings held during regular work hours. Such annual or compensatory leave shall be subject to
prior approval by the Grievance Representative's immediate supervisor; however, approval of
such time off will not be withheld if the Grievance Representative can be allowed such time off
without interfering with, or unduly hampering the operations of the unit to which the Grievance
Representative is regularly assigned. The Grievance Representative's immediate supervisor will
notify the grievant's supervisor prior to allowing the Grievance Representative time off to
investigate the grievance.

(b) Investigations will be conducted in a way that does not interfere
with state operations.

(c) The Grievance Representative must be selected from Grievance
Representatives within the same work unit as the grievant's work unit. If no Grievance
Representative is located in the grievant's work unit, the Grievance Representative must be
selected from the work unit located closest to the grievant's work location. In no case shall a
Grievance Representative who is on duty be allowed to travel more than 50 miles from his
official work location in order to investigate a grievance. Such travel limitation shall not apply
when the Grievance Representative is not on duty.

(d) A Grievance Representative selected to represent an employee as
provided in this Article will be considered a required participant at the Step 1 grievance meeting.

(D) Both the employee and the employee's representative, if any, shall be notified of
the Step 1 meeting. Further, all communication concerning written grievances or their resolution
shall be in writing, with a copy sent to both the employee and the employee's representative.

(E) If the employee is not represented by the Union, any adjustment of the grievance
shall be consistent with the terms of this Agreement. The Union shall be given reasonable
opportunity to be present at any meeting called for the resolution of the grievance, and
processing of the grievance will be in accordance with the procedures established in this
Agreement. The Union shall not be bound by the decision of any grievance in which the
employee chose not to be represented by the Union.

(F) The resolution of a grievance prior to its submission in writing at Step 3 shall not
establish a precedent binding on either the state or the Union in other cases.

SECTION 3 - Procedures

(A) Employee grievances filed in accordance with this Article are to be presented and
handled promptly at the lowest level of supervision having the authority to adjust the grievances.
Grievances may be filed and responded to by facsimile, electronic mail, mail, or personal
delivery.

(B) After a grievance is presented, no new violation or issue can be raised.
(C) There shall be no reprisals against any of the participants in the procedures

contained herein by reason ofsuch participation.
(D) If a grievance meeting is held or requires reasonable travel time during the

working hours of any required participant, such participant shall be excused without loss of pay
for that purpose. Attendance at grievance m~etings outside of regular working hours shall not be
deemed time worked.

(E) Grievances shall be presented and adjusted in the following manner, and no
individual may respond to a grievance at more than one written step.

(l) Oral Discussion

2



Teamsters Local 2011
Proposal - Article 6

February 4,2013

(a) An employee having a grievance may, within 14 days following
the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance, initiate the mievance by presenti!!g the
grievffilce i1 orally to the Oral Step representative or by filing a written grievance at Step 1. The
Oral Step representative shall make every effort to resolve the grievance at the Oral Step,
including meeting to discuss the grievance if such meeting is requested by the employee or the
employee's representative if a meeting is deemed necessary by the Oral Step representative. The
Oral Step representative shall communicate a decision to the employee and the employee's
representative, if any, within 14 days following the date the grievance is received at the Oral
Step.

(b) Ifthe employee elects not to utilize the oral discussion provision of
this section he may file a vllitten grievance at Step 1, provided such 'Nritten grievance is filed
v/ithin 14 days following the occurrence o[the event giving rise to the grievance.

(e 12) Failure to communicate the decision within the specified time limit
shall permit the employee, or the Union where appropriate, to proceed to the next step.

(d £) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the
maximum, and every effort' will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits
specified in any step of this procedure may be extended in writing in any specific instance as
long as necessary provided there is agreement by both sides.

(e g) The Oral Step representative for correctional institutions shall be
the Chief Correctional Officer or designee. The Oral Step representative for community
corrections shall be the Circuit Administrator, or designee. The Oral Step representative for
employees in the institutional security specialist series shall be the Security Chiefor designee.

(2) Step 1
(a) If the employee elects to utilize the oral discussion step and the

grievance is not resolved, the employee or the designated employee representative may submit it
in writing to the Step 1 management representative within 14 days following the receipt of the
oral step decision. If the employee elects not to utilize the oral discussion provision of this
section he may file a written wievance at Step 1, provided such written grievance is filed within
14 days following the OCCUITence of the event giving rise to the grievance. In filing a grievance
at Step 1, the employee or the designated employee representative shall submit to the Step 1
Management Representative a grievance form as contained in Appendix B, setting forth
specifically the complete facts on which the grievance is based, the specific provision or
provisions of the Agreement allegedly violated, and the relief requested. All written documents
to be considered by the Step 1 Management Representative shall be submitted with the grievance
form; however, if additional written documentation is obtained after the grievance is filed, such
documentation may be presented at the Step 1 meeting.

(b) The Step 1 Management Representative or designated
representative shall meet to discuss the grievance and shall communicate a decision in writing to
the employee and the employee's representative, if any, within 14 days following the date the
grievance is received at Step 1.

(c) Failure to communicate the decision within the specified time limit
shall permit the employee, or the Union where appropriate, to proceed to the next step.

(d) The number ofdays indicated at this step shall be considered as the
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits
specified in any step of this procedure may be extended in writing in any specific instance as

3



Teamsters Local 2011
Proposal - Article 6

February 4,2013

long as necessary provided there is agreem,ent by both sides.
(3) Step 2

(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the employee or the
employee's representative may submit it in writing to the Agency Head or designated
representative within 14 days after receipt of the decision at Step 1. The grievance shall include a
copy of the grievance form submitted at Step 1 and a copy of the Step 1 response, together with
all written documents in support of the grievance. When the grievance is eligible for initiation at
Step 2, the grievance form must contain the same information as a grievance filed at Step 1
above.

(b) The Agency Head or designated representative may meet with the
employee and/or the designated Union Staff Representative to discuss the grievance. The
Agency Head or designated representative shall communicate a decision in writing within 21
days following receipt of the written grievance.

(c) Failure to communicate the decision within the specified time limit
shall permit the employee, or the Union where appropriate, to proceed to the next step.

(d) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits
specified in any step of this procedure may be extended in writing in any specific instance as
long as necessary provided there is agreement by both sides.

(4) Step 3
(a) If a grievance is not resolved at Step 2, the designated Union

representative, or the employee if not represented by the Union, may appeal the Step 2 decision,
in writing, to the Department of Management Services within 14 days after receipt of the
decision at Step 2. The grievance shall include a copy of the grievance form submitted at Steps 1
and 2, together with all written responses and documents in support of the grievance. The
Department of Management Services may meet with the Union President or designated Union
representative to discuss the grievance. When the grievance is eligible for initiation at Step 3,
the grievance form must contain the same information as the grievance filed at Step 1 above.

(b) The Department of Management Services shall communicate a
decision in writing to the employee and the Union President or designated Union representative
within 21 days following receipt of the written grievance.

(c) Failure to communicate the decision within the specified time limit
shall permit the employee, or the Union where appropriate, to proceed to the next step.

(d) The number ofdays indicated at this step shall be considered as the
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits
specified in any step of this procedure may be extended in writing in any specific instance as
long as necessary provided there is agreement by both sides.

(5) Grievance Mediation
The parties may, by written agreement, submit a grievance to mediation to

be conducted by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS), either prior to the
grievance being submitted to arbitration or after it has been submitted but before a hearing is
scheduled. When the parties agree to mediate a grievance, the time limits to file for, or process,
an arbitration are automatically extended for the period necessary to conclude the mediation
process. Either party may withdraw from the mediation process with written notice no later than
five (5) days before a scheduled mediation.

4



Teamsters Local 2011
Proposal- Article 6

February 4,2013

(6) Arbitration
(a) If a grievance is not resolved at Step 3, the President of the Union

or a designated member of his staff, may appeal the grievance to Arbitration on a Request for
Arbitration Fonn as contained in Appendix C within 14 days after receipt of the decision at Step
3. If, at the initial step, the Union refused to represent the employee because he was not a dues
paying member of the Union, the employee may appeal the grievance to Arbitration.

(b) The parties may, by agreement in writing, submit related
grievances for hearing before the same arbitrator.

(c) The arbitrator shall be one person from a panel of five (5)
arbitrators, selected by the state and the Union to serve in rotation for any case or cases
submitted. The Department of Management Services shall facilitate the scheduling of all
arbitration hearings.

(d) Arbitration hearings shall be held at times and locations agreed to
by the parties, taking into consideration the availability of evidence, location of witnesses,
existence of appropriate facilities, and other relevant factors. If agreement cannot be reached,
the arbitration hearing shall be held in the City of Tallahassee.

(e) The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the
grievance and, provided the decision is in accordance with his jurisdiction and authority under
this Agreement, shall be final and binding on the state, the Union, the grievant(s), and the
employees. In considering a grievance, the arbitrator shall be governed by the following
provisions and limitations:

1. The arbitrator shall issue a decision not later than 30 days
from the date ofthe closing of the hearing or the submission ofbriefs, whichever is later.

2. The arbitrator's decision shall be in writing, and shall set
forth the arbitrator's opinion and conclusions on the precise issue(s) submitted.

3. The arbitrator shall have no authority to determine any
other issue, and the arbitrator shall refrain from issuing any statement of opinion or conclusion
not essential to the determination of the issues submitted.

4. The arbitrator shall limit the decision strictly to the
application and interpretation of the specific provisions of this Agreement.

5. The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make
any decisions:

a. Contrary to or inconsistent with, adding to, subtracting
from, or modifying, altering or ignoring in any way, the tenns of this Agreement, or of
applicable law or rules or regulations having the force and effect oflaw; or

b. Limiting or interfering in any way with the powers,
duties, and responsibilities of the state under its Constitution, applicable law, and rules and
regulations having the force and effect of law, except as such powers, duties, and responsibilities
have been abridged, delegated, or modified by the expressed provisions of this Agreement; or

c. Which has the effect of restricting the discretion of an
Agency Head as otherwise granted by law or the Rules of the State Personnel System unless such
authority is modified by this Agreement; or

d. That is based solely upon an agency past practice or
policy unless such agency practice or policy is contrary to law, the Rules of the State Personnel
System, or this Agreement.

5



Claims of either an untimely filing or untimely appeal shall be made at the step in

Teamsters Local 2011
Proposal - Article 6

February 4,2013

6. The arbitrator's award may include back pay to the
grievant(s); however, the following limitations shall apply to such monetary awards.

a. No award for back pay shall exceed the amount of pay
the employee would otherwise have earned at his regular rate of pay and such back pay shall not
be retroactive to a date earlier than the date of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the
grievance under consideration and in no event more than the time limits permitted for initiation
of the grievance.

b. The award shall not exceed the actual loss to the grievant
and will not include punitive damages.

(f) The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne solely by the
party who fails to prevail in the hearing; however, each party shall be responsible for
compensating and paying the expenses of its own representatives, attorneys and witnesses.
Should the arbitrator fashion an award in such a manner that the grievance is sustained in part
and denied in part, the state and Union will evenly split the arbitrator's fee and expenses.

(g) The Union will not be responsible for costs of an arbitration to
which it was not a party.

SECTION 4 - Time Limits

(A) Failure to initiate or appeal a grievance within the time limits specified shall be
deemed a waiver ofthe grievance.

(B) Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance
within the specified time limit shall permit the employee, or the Union where appropriate, to
proceed to the next step. A Step 2 or Step 3 answer that is not received by the Union by the
written, agreed-to deadline does not alter the time limits for appealing a grievance to the next
step.

(C)
question.

SECTION 5 - Exceptions

(A) Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to
permit the Union or an employee to process a grievance: (1) on behalf of any employee without
his consent, or (2) when the subject of such (employee's) grievance is, at the same time, the
subject of an administrative action, an appeal before a governmental board or agency, or a court
proceeding.

(B) All grievances will be presented at the Oral Step or Step 1, with the following
exceptions:

(1) If a grievance arises from the action of an official higher than the Step 1
Management Representative, the grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 or 3 as appropriate, by
submitting a grievance form as set forth in Step 1 within 14 days following the occurrence of the
event giving rise to the grievance.

(2) The Union shall have the right to bring a class action grievance on behalf
of employees in its own name concerning disputes relating to the interpretation or application of
this Agreement. Such grievance shall not include disciplinary actions taken against any
employee. The Union's election to proceed under this Article shall preclude it from proceeding
in another forum on the same issue. The class action grievance shall list the employees

6



Teamsters Local 2011
Proposal - Article 6

February 4,2013

adversely impacted by the dispute relating to the interpretation or application of the Agreement.
Such grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 of this procedure, in accordance with the provisions
set forth herein, within 14 days of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance.

(C) An employee who has not attained permanent status in his current position may
only file non-discipline grievances. Non-discipline grievances filed by probationary employees
are final and binding at Step 3 unless the processing of such grievances is further limited by
specific provisions of this Agreement.

7



Teamsters Local 2011
Proposal - Article 7

February 4,2013

Article 7
DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE

SECTION 1 - Disciplinary Action

(A) An employee who has attained permanent status in his current position may be
disciplined only for cause as provided in section 110.227, Florida Statutes. Reductions in base
pay, demotions, involuntary transfers of more than 50 miles by highway, suspensions, and
dismissals may be effected by the state at any time against any employee. Such actions against
employees with permanent status in their current position for disciplinary reasons shall be
grievable in accordance with the grievance procedure in Article 6, if the employee alleges that
the action was not for just cause. However, any reduction in base pay required by the Rules of
the State Personnel System shall not be grievable. Demotion will not be used as a form of
disciplinary action for employees in the classes of Correctional Officer, Correctional Probation
Officer, Correctional Probation Officer-Institution, or Institutional Security Specialist I. The
Depfiiment of COITections and the Department of Children fild Families will not utilize
cumulative discipline. Disciplinary actions shall be subject to the grievance procedure as·
follows:

(1) Oral reprimands shall not be gri6'iable under the provisions of this Agreement.
The Department of Conections will not issue Oral Reprimands.

(2) An oral reprimand '""ill not be considered in detem1ining progressive
discipline provided the employee is not disciplined for the same offense during the succeeding
12 months, and in such cases the employee may request that an existing Oral Reprimand
contained in his official personnel file be marked "expired."

(1) The state may issue Counseling Notices or Supervisory Counseling
Memoranda, which are documentation of minor work deficiencies or conduct concerns that are
maintained by a supervisor ina working file. Such documents are not discipline, and are not
grievable, and shall not become paIi of the employee's official personnel file. However, such
documentation may be used by the state at an administrative hearing involving an employee's
discipline to demonstrate that the employee was on notice of the perfollllance deficiencies or
conduct concerns, so long as the perfollllance deficiencies or conduct concerns indicated in
documentation occuITed within the six months immediately prior to the administrative hearing.

(3) Written reprimands may be grieved by employees with permanent status in
their current position up to Step 3; the decision at that level shall be final and binding through the
arbitration step of the gI;evance procedure.

(4) A written reprimand will not be considered in determining progressive
discipline provided the employee is not disciplined for the same offense during the succeeding
18 months, and the written reprimand was not for a major offense which could have resulted in
the employee's dismissal.

(B) A con1plaint by an employee "vith pennanent status in his cunent position conceming
any written reprimand 'vvhich contains criminal allegations or criminal charges may be gri6'led
through the arbitration step of the gIievance procedure.

(G B) If filed within 14 calendar days from the date of receipt of notice from the agency,
by personal delivery or by certified mail, return receipt requested, a complaint by an employee
with permanent status in his current position concerning a reduction in base pay, suspension,
involuntary transfer of over 50 miles by highway, demotion, or dismissal may be grieved at Step

1



Teamsters Local 2011
Proposal - Article 7

February 4,2013

1 and processed through the Arbitration Step, in accordance with the Grievance Procedure in
Article 6 of this Agreement.

(f:}C) Where a disciplinary action may be appealed to the Public Employees Relations
Commission and is also grievable under this Agreement, the employee shall indicate at the time
the grievance is reduced to writing which procedure is to be used and such decision shall be
binding on the employee. In the case of any duplicate filing, the action first filed will be the one
processed.

(gD) For employees in the Department of COlTections, the following shall apply:
(1) If the Department ofCOl1"6ctions an agency issues a disciplinary suspension to

an employee and the employee files an appeal to the Public Employees Relations Commission
(PERC) in the required 21 days from the date the employee receives the letter, or files a
collective bargaining grievance within the time limits set forth in Article 6 of this Agreement, the
Department of Conections suspension shall be have the option to stayed the suspension for up to
90 calendar days pending a Recommended or Final Order by PERC, or a decision/award from an
arbitrator. If at the end of the 90 calendar day period the Department of Conections stays the
suspension, anEl-PERC has not issued a Recommended or Final Order, or an arbitrator has not
rendered a decision/award by the end of the period for which the suspension was stayed, the
Department of Conections agency may proceed with the disciplinary suspension.

(2) The employee Department may voluntaIily elect to have special compensatory
leave equal to the length of a disciplinary suspension deducted from an employee's leave balance
in lieu of the employee serving the suspension. In making such detennination, the Depmiment
shall take into consideration the preference of the employee as to serving the suspension or
having leave deducted. If the employee does not have sufficient special compensatory leave, he
may elect to use annual leave may be deducted. Inhere is not sufficient special compensatory or
annual leave, the remainder ofthe period will be leave without pay. Employees who elect to have
their from whom leave is deducted will continue to report for duty during the period of time in
which their leave is deducted. The employee's personnel file will reflect a disciplinary
suspension regardless ofwhether the employee serves the suspension or has leave deducted.

(3) The Depaliment of Conections may use Records of Counseling or other
documentation to describe the employee's vlork behavior in litigation involving employee
discipline.

SECTION 2 - Interrogation during Internal Investigations

In the course of any internal investigation, the interrogation methods employed will be
consistent with Sections 112.532 and Section 112.533, Florida Statutes.

(A) Definitions
For the purpose of this section the following definitions of terms as used in Section

112.532, Florida Statutes, shall apply:
(1) "Interrogation" refers to a disciplinary investigation meeting with respect to an

incident or complaint between a member of management or supervision, including an
investigator, and an employee covered by this Agreement in which the information to be
obtained at the investigation meeting will be the basis for the decision as to whether to suspend
or dismiss the employee. It does not include counseling sessions, or investigations, which may
result in lesser forms of disciplinary action or meetings at which the employee is solely being

2



Teamsters Local 2011
Proposal - Article 7

February 4,2013

advised of intended disciplinary action, and offered an opportunity to explain why he should not
be disciplined.

(2) "Complainants" refers to the complaining or charging party relative to an
incident, complaint, or reason.
(B) Procedures
Whenever an employee covered by this Agreement is under investigation and subject to

interrogation by members of his agency for any reason, which could lead to disciplinary action,
suspension, demotion, or dismissal, such interrogation shall be conducted under the following
conditions:

(1) The interrogation shall be conducted at a reasonable hour, preferably at a time
when the employee is on duty, unless the seriousness of the investigation is of such a degree that
immediate action is required.

(2) The interrogation shall take place either at the office of the command of the
investigating officer or correctional unit in which the incident allegedly occurred, as designated
by the investigating officer or agency.

(3) The employee under investigation shall be informed of the rank, name, and
command of the officer in charge of the investigation, the interrogating officer, and all persons
present during the interrogation. All questions directed to the officer under interrogation shall be
asked by and through one interrogator at anyone time.

(4) The employee under investigation shall be informed of the nature of the
investigation prior to any interrogation, and he shall be informed of the name of all
complainants.

(5) Interrogating sessions shall be for reasonable periods and shall be timed to
allow for such personal necessities and rest periods as are reasonably necessary for both the
employee and the representative.

(6) The employee under interrogation shall not be subjected to offensive language
or be threatened with transfer, dismissal, or disciplinary action. No promise or reward shall be
made as an inducement to answer any questions.

(7) The formal interrogation of an employee, including all recess periods, shall be
recorded, and there shall be no unrecorded questions or statements. Upon the request of the
interrogated officer, a copy of any such recording of the interrogation session must be made
available to the interrogated officer no later than 72 hours, excluding holidays and weekends,
following said interrogation.

(8) If the employee under interrogation is under arrest, or is likely to be placed
under arrest as a result of the interrogation, he shall be completely informed of all his rights
prior to the commencement of the interrogation.

(9) At the request of any employee under investigation, he shall have the right to
be represented by counselor any other representative of his choice, who shall be present at all
times during such interrogation whenever the interrogation relates to the officer's continued
fitness for correctional service.

(10) Where the agency determines that a complaint is unsupported by the facts or
is otherwise without merit, or determines that the facts are insufficient to charge or otherwise
discipline the employee under investigation, such conclusion will be so noted as part of the
investigative record. Written documents relative to the investigation are subject to the provisions
ofArticle 12, Personnel Records.

3



Teamsters Local 2011
Proposal - Article 7

February 4,2013

(11) Where the employee is the subject of the investigation, the employee shall be
provided the opportunity to review all written statements made by the complainant and witnesses
immediately prior to the beginning of the investigation interview.

(C) Unless required by statute, no employee shall be required to submit to a polygraph
test or any device designed to measure the truthfulness ofhis response during an investigation of
a complaint or allegation. If an employee is offered an opportunity to submit to a polygraph test,
the employee's refusal will not be referred to in any final action taken by the agency.

(D) Alleged violations of the investigative rights provided for in this section by an
employee or the Union shall be investigated by the agency. The agency shall provide the
employee and the Union with an explanation concerning the alleged violation and corrective
action taken, if any.

(E) The state will make a good faith effort to complete all internal investigations within
60 calendar days from the date the investigation is assigned to the investigator. Except in the
case of a criminal investigation, the employee shall be notified in writing of any investigation
that exceeds 120 calendar days. The employee under investigation shall be advised of the results
of the investigation at its conclusion.

(F) The provisions of this section may be grieved in accordance with Article 6, up to Step
3 of the Grievance Procedure; the decision at that step shall be final and binding.

(G) In cases where the agency determines that the employee's absence from the work
location is essential to the investigation and the employee cannot be reassigned to other duties
pending completion of the investigation, the employee shall be placed on administrative leave in
accordance with Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code. In cases where an employee has
been reassigned by the Department of Corrections pending the outcome of an investigation and
the charges or allegations against the employee are not sustained, the reassigned employee shall
be offered the option to return to the original work location and, if requested, the previously held
shift and days off as soon as they become available. As an exception, the Department may retain
the employee in the reassigned work location if it determines that information has been produced
in the course of its investigation of the charges that evidences a substantial likelihood of
interference with the operations of the work unit if the employee is returned to the original work
location.

SECTION 3 - Employee Copy

Each employee shall be furnished a copy of all disciplinary entries placed in his official
personnel file and shall be permitted to respond thereto, and a copy of the employee's response
shall be placed in the employee's personnel file.

SECTION 4 - Notice

Notice of reduction in base pay, demotion, involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by
highway, suspension, or dismissal affecting an employee who has satisfactorily completed at
least a one-year probationary period in his current position shall be in accordance with section
110.227(5), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 5 - Representation

4



Teamsters Local 2011
Proposal - Article 7

February 4,2013

Where union representation is requested by an employee during an investigation by the
agency Inspector General's Office, or during a predetermination conference, a union steward will
be allowed a reasonable amount of accrued leave, other than sick leave, to attend such meetings,
subject to prior approval by the steward's immediate supervisor. Such leave will be approved if
the steward can be allowed leave without interfering with, or unduly hampering, the operations
of the unit to which the steward is regularly assigned. Where an employee is represented by a
Union Representative in a predetellnination conference, the Union Representative shall be
notified of the disposition of the predetennination conference.

5



Teamsters Loca12011
Proposal- Article 9

February 5, 2013

Article 9

REASSIGNMENT, TRANSFER, CHANGE IN DUTY STATION

Employees who have attained permanent status in their current position and who meet all
eligibility requirements shall have the opportunity to request reassignment, transfer, or change in
duty station to vacant positions within their respective agencies in accordance with the
provisions of this Article.

SECTION 1 - Defmitions as used in this Article:

(A) "Duty station" shall mean the place which is designated as an employee's official
headquarters.

(B) "Change in duty station" shall mean the moving of an employee to a duty station
located within 50 miles, by highway, ofhis current duty station.

(C) "Broadband level" shall mean all positions sufficiently similar in knowledge, skills,
and abilities, and sufficiently similar as to kind or subject matter of work, level ofdifficulty or
responsibilities, and qualification requirements of the work, to warrant the same treatment as to
title, pay band, and other personnel transactions.

(D) "Reassignment" shall mean moving an employee from a position in one broadband
level to a different position in the same broadband level or to a different broadband level having
the same maximum salary.

(E) "Transfer" shall mean moving an employee from one geographic area of the state to a
different geographic location in excess of 50 miles, by highway, from the employee's current
duty station.

(F) "Agency needs" are those actions taken by an agency in order to meet its mission of
protecting the public, providing a safe and humane environment for staff and offenders, working
in partnership with the community to provide programs and services to offenders, and
supervising offenders at a level of security commensurate with the danger they present.

(0) "Major institution" shall mean in the Depmiment ofConections, the main facility
under the control of one warden or administrator, and will include the annexes, work camps,
release centers, and other satellite/sister facilities under the authority of that main facility warden
or administrator.

SECTION 2 - Procedures

(A) An employee who has attained permanent status in his current position may apply for
a reassignment, transfer, or change in duty station on a Request for Reassignment Transfer, or
Change in Duty Station Form (hereinafter "Request Form") (supplied by the agency, and
attached as "Appendix C"). Such requests shall indicate county(ies), institution(s), and/or other
work location( s) or shift(s) to which the employee would like to be reassigned. In-th:e
Depmiment of Conections, an employee in the correctional officer class series may only request
reassignment, transfer, or change in duty station from one major institution to another major
institution. A State ofFlorida Employment Application Form must be completed and sent with
the Request for Reassignment Form, except when the request is for a change in duty station
within a major institution.

(B) An employee may submit a Request for Reassignment Form at any time; however, all

1



Teamsters Loca12011
Proposal - Article 9

February 5,2013

such requests shall expire on May 31 of each calendar year. Requests can be filed in May to
become effective on June 1.

(C) All Request for Reassignment Forms shall be submitted to the Agency Head or
designee who shall be responsible for furnishing a copy of each such request to the manager(s) or
supervisor(s) who have the authority to make employee hiring decisions in the work unit to
which the employee has requested reassignment.

(D) Except where a vacancy is filled by demotion, the manager or supervisor having
hiring authority for that vacancy shall give first consideration to employees who have submitted
a Request for Reassignment Form; provided, however, that employees whose request for
reassignment is not submitted by the first day of the month shall not be considered for vacancies
which occur during that month.

(E) The hiring authority shall normally fill a vacancy with the employee who has the
greatest length of service in the broadband level and who has a Request for Reassignment Form
on file for the vacancy. The parties agree, however, that other factors, such as employees' work
history and agency needs, will be taken into consideration in making the decision as to whether
the employee with the greatest length of service in the broadband level will be placed in the
vacant position.

(F) Employees in the Depmiment of Children and Families shall have the same access to
apply for vacant positions in the Department of Corrections as the employees in the Department
of Corrections.

(G) In the Department of Children and Fmllilies, ilfthe employee with the greatest length
of service in the broadband level is not selected for the vacant position, all employees who have
greater length of service in the broadband level than the employee selected shall be notified in
writing of the agency's decision.

(H) When an employee has been reassigned pursuant to a request filed under this Article,
all other pending requests for reassignment from that employee shall be canceled. No other
request for reassignment may be filed by the employee under this Article for a period of 12
months following the employee's reassignment. If an employee declines an offer ofreassignment
pursuant to a request filed under this Article, the employee's request shall be canceled and the
employee is not eligible to resubmit that request for a period of 12 months from the date the
employee declined the offer of reassignment.

SECTION 3 - Involuntary Reassignment, Transfer, or Change in Duty Station

(A) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent an agency, at its
discretion, from effecting the involuntary reassignment, transfer, or change in duty station of an
employee according to the needs of the agency"; ; however, the agency will make a good faith
effOli to take such action only when dictated by the needs ofthe agency, and in each case, will
take into consideration the needs and circumstances of the employee prior to taking such action.
For the Depaliment of Corrections Article 23, Section 2(B)(2)a ofthis Agreement applies.

(B) In those instances where the Department ofCorrections determines that an excessive
caseload at a probation office requires the reassignment ofan officer, the Depmiment will
consider requests from volunteers, employee seniority, and the needs of the ageney in making
such reassignment. such reassignment shall first be made on a volunteer basis, and next, on the
basis of seniority with the least senior officer subject to reassignment.

SECTION 4 - Notice

2



Teamsters Local 2011
Proposal- Article 9

February 5,2013

An employee shall be given a minimum of 14 calendar days notice prior to the agency
effecting any reassignment or transfer of the employee. In the case of a transfer, the agency will
make a good faith effort to give a minimum of 30 calendar days notice. The parties agree,
however, that these notice requirements shall not be required during an emergency or other
extraordinary condition.

SECTION 5 -Relocation Allowance

An employee who is reassigned and required by agency policy to relocate his residence
shall be granted time off with pay for one (1) workday for this purpose. In addition, the employee
shall be granted travel time to the new location based on the most direct route. No employee will
be credited with more than the number of hours in the employee's regular workday and such time
shall not be counted as hours worked for the purpose of computing compensatory time or
overtime.

SECTION () Grievability

The provisions oftllis Article shall not be subject to the grievance procedures of Article 6
of this Agreement; hovlever, an employee complaint concerning improper application of the
Fiscal Yern' 2012 13 Teamsters Security Services Unit Successor Agreement
provisions of Section 2eE), Section 3, and Section 4 may be grieved in accordance with Article 6,
up to and including Step 3 of the grievance procedure. In considering such complaints, 'Neight
shall be given to the specific procedures follO'lved and decisions made, along with the needs of
the agency.

3



Teamsters Local 2011
Proposal- Article 10

February 4,2013

Article 10

PROMOTIONS

(A) The state and the Union agree that promotions should be used to provide career
mobility within the State Personnel System and should be based on the relative merit and fitness
of applicants.

(B) Toward the goals of selecting the most qualified applicant for each promotional
vacancy, the parties agree that the provisions of this Article, along with all provisions of the
Rules ofthe State Personnel System, will be followed when making such appointments.

SECTION 1 - Definitions

As used in this Article:
(A) "Broadband level" shall mean all positions sufficiently similar in knowledge, skills,

and abilities, and sufficiently similar as to kind or subject matter of work, level of difficulty or
responsibilities, and qualification requirements of the work, to warrant the same treatment as to
title, pay band, and other personnel transactions.

(B) "Promotion" shall mean changing the classification of an employee to a broadband
level having a higher maximum salary; or the changing of the classification of an employee to a
broadband level having the same or a lower maximum salary but a higher level of responsibility.

(C) "Demotion" shall mean changing the classification of an employee to a broadband
level having a lower maximum salary; or the changing of the classification of an employee to a
broadband level having the same or a higher maximum salary but a lower level of responsibility.

SECTION 2 - Procedures

(A) An employee who has attained permanent status in his current position may apply for
a promotion by submitting a Request for Promotion Form, furnished by the agency in which the
promotional position is located, to be considered for promotional vacancies. Such requests shall
indicate the class(es)/broadband level(s), county(ies), institution(s), and/or other work locations
to which the employee would like to be promoted. A State ofFlorida Employment Application
Form must be completed and sent with the employee's request for promotion.

(B) An employee may submit a request for promotion at any time; however, all such
requests shall expire on May 31 of each calendar year.

(C) When an employee has been promoted pursuant to a request filed under this Article;
all other pending requests for promotion from that employee shall be canceled. No other requests
for promotion may be filed by that employee under this Article for a period of 12 months
following the employee's promotion.

SECTION 3 - Method of Filling Vacancies

(A) Except where a vacancy is filled by demotion, or by reassignment as defined in
Article 9 of this Agreement, employees who have applied for promotion in accordance with
Section 2 of this Article shall be given first consideration for promotional vacancies in
accordance with the agencies' standard selection process.

(B) Each employee who applies in accordance with Section 2 ofthis Article will be
notified in writing by the appointing authority when the position has been filled.

1



Teamsters Local 2011
Proposal - Article 10

February 4,2013

(C) The standard selection process for filling institutional security specialist promotional
vacancies covered by this Agreement shall continue in effect during the term ofthis Agreement.
The standard selection process for filling Correctional Officer and Correctional Probation Officer
promotional vacancies shall be as provided for in Department of Corrections Procedure Number
208.005.

SECTION 4 - Probationary Status on Promotion

(A) An employee who has been appointed to a position must successfully complete at
least a one-year probationary period, and shall attain permanent status in that position upon
successful completion of the designated probationary period. Such employee shall not lose
penllanent status in such position or broadband level with the same agency and within the career
service system.

(B) An employee serving a probationm"y period in a position to '.vhich he has received an
internal agency promotion may be renlOved from that promotional position at any time during
the probationm"y period. Ifhis feruler position, or a comparable position, is vacmlt, the employee
is to be placed in such position. If such a position is not available, before dismissal, the agency
shall make a reasonable effOli to retain the employee in mlOther vacant position. This process
does not apply to temlinations fer cause nor does it create a right to bump an employee from an
occupied position. An employee who has obtained penllanent status in a position or broadband
level who fails, due to perf0l111anCe, to satisfactorily complete the probation in the promotional
position or broadband level shall be demoted to the fonner position or broadband level
previously held by the in an available vacant position.

(l) If the employee is demoted into their former position or a comparable
position, such demotion shall be with permanent status, provided the employee
previously attained permanent status in the agency in the lower position.

(2) The employee's salary will be reduced in accordance with the agency's pay
upon demotion policy.

(3) Such demotion shall not be grievable under the contractual grievance
procedure.

(4) Such demotion shall not preclude the agency from seeking to discipline the
employee for just cause based upon specific acts ofmisconduct.

SECTION 5 - Relocation Allowance

An employee who is promoted and required by agency policy to relocate his residence
shall be granted time off with pay for one (l) workday for this purpose. In addition, the
employee shall be granted travel time to the new location based on the most direct route. No
employee will be credited with more than the number of hours in the employee's regular
workday and such time shall not be counted as hours worked for the purpose of computing
compensatory time or overtime.

SECTION 6 - Grievability

(A) The provisions of this Article may be grieved in accordance with Article 6, up to and
including Step 3 of the Grievance Procedure, which decision shall be final and binding.

(B) If the Step 3 authority in the Department ofManagement Services determines that the
standard selection process was not followed in filling a promotional vacancy, he shall have the
authority, among other remedies, to order that the promotion be rescinded and direct that the

2



promotion be conducted in accordance with the standard selection process.

3

Teamsters Local 2011
Proposal - Article 10

February 4,2013



Teamsters Local 2011
Proposal- Article 13

February 4, 2013

Article 13
SAFETY

SECTION 1- Safety Committee

(A) It shall be the policy of the state to make every reasonable effort to provide employees a
safe and healthy working environment.

(B) Where management has created a safety committee in a state-controlled facility, the
employees shall select at least one person at the facility to serve on such committee.

(C) Where management has not established a safety committee both the state and Union shall
work toward the establishment ofone in each state-controlled facility.

SECTION 2 - Employee Safety

(A) An employee who becomes aware ofa work-related accident shall immediately notify
the supervisor of the area where the incident occurred.

(B) When an employee believes that an unsafe working condition exists in the work area, the
employee shall immediately report the condition to the supervisor. The supervisor shall investigate
the report and make a reasonable effort to take action deemed appropriate.

SECTION 3 - Grievability

Complaints which arise under the application or interpretation of this Article shall be
grievable, but only up to Step 3 of the grievance procedure of the Agreement.

SECTION 4 - Communicable Diseases

(A) In institutions, centers, and units in which inmates andlor patients with AIDS or other
communicable diseases are isolated due to their condition, employees entering such areas shall have
such protective wear and equipment made available to them as is made available to health care
employees working in that area.

(B) Employees shall not be required to handle, examine, or test materials from the human
body of inmates, offenders, or clients under their supervision except in accordance with the rules and
regulations of the agency regarding the handling and testing of such materials.

(C) The agencies shall make available to employees a procedure to screen for tuberculosis
(PPD SKIN TEST). Alternatively, the employee may at his own cost, have such test performed by a
private physician and provide the results of the test to the agency.

SECTION 5 - Correctional Probation Officer Safety

(A) Correctional probation officers, upon the approval of their immediate supervisor,
shall be provided with the following safety equipment: bulletproofvest, a hand-held radio, or a
cellular telephone. There shall be a sufficient number ofradios in each probation and parole
office such that each officer has access to a radio when conducting field work. An officer may be
authorized to calTya fireatUl "'lhile on duty in accordance "'lith Rules of the DepartIuent of
Con-ections, Chapter 33 302.1 04, FIOlida Administrative Code, as atnended Februat)' 13,2012.

(B) If a cOITectional probation officer is certified to carry a fireann, the employee is
authorized to carry his weapon and 2 additional ammunition magazines at all times while on
duty, including coming to and from work.

1



Teamsters Local 2011
Proposal- Article 13

February 4, 2013

SECTION 6 - Personal Weapons

(A) The Department ofCorrections may, upon written request, provide weapons lockers
to employees who are also employed outside the Department as an auxiliary police officer or
deputy and are required to carry these weapons to perform their duties.

(B) The Department ofCorrections authorizes employees to carry one handgun to work
in private vehicles and park such vehicles on the department grounds provided the handgun is
secured in the vehicle and maintained in a standard handgun lockbox in accordance with the
following:

(1) Only one handgun per vehicle/per lockbox.
(2) The handgun must be stored in a lockbox that is designed to hold a handgun

and can be locked; an empty ammunition box or metal coin box, or a glove compartment
are not lockboxes for this purpose.

(3) The doors and windows of the vehicle must lock if the lockbox is kept in the
cab of the vehicle. If the cab of the vehicle can be accessed from the trunk, the trunk must
lock. The trunk must be locked at all times.

(4) The lockbox cannot be placed in a metal toolbox on a truck.
(5) For convertibles, the lockbox must be placed in the trunk. Ifthe vehicle is a

Jeep or similar vehicle, with no top and no trunk, the officer cannot carry a handgun.
(C) Only the ammunition necessary to load the handgun to capacity will be allowed in the

lockbox. It is the officer's choice whether the handgun is loaded or the ammunition is separate,
but both must be in the lockbox and locked.

(D) At no time will the employee leave the vehicle unlocked while the handgun is in the
vehicle and parked on state grounds.

SECTION 7 - Personal Safety Equipment and Vehicles

(A) Any and all safety equipment issued by the Department of Corrections and used by
Employees shall comply with manufacture safety standards for:

(1) Bullet-ProofVests;
(2) Radios, which must also be compatible with local law enforcement
fi'equencies for correctional probation officers working in the field; and
(3) Personal Protection Equipment.

(B) Any and all State-owned vehicles used by Employees must comply with state and
federal DOT standards for commercial vehicles and be in sound working order. Under no
circumstances shall an Employee be held financially responsible for towing and/or repair costs if
a State-owned vehicle breaks down while being used by an Employee.

2



Teamsters Local 2011
Proposal- Article 18

February 4,2013
Article 18

LEAVES OF ABSENCE
SECTION I-Leaves

.cAl The parties specifically agree that the attendance and leave provisions as contained in
Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code, including the accrual, usage, and payment of sick
and annual leave upon separation from Career Service employment shall apply to all employees.

(B) Employees shall not be required to use special compensatory leave plior to the use of
annual leave and regular compensatory leave. Employees shall not be required to use special
compensatory leave for activities conducted pursuant to Section 2 below.

SECTION 2 -Negotiation Committee

(A) The term "Negotiation Committee Time." as used in this Agreement, shall mean time
granted to an employee serving on the Negotiation Committee to attend negotiation preparatory
meetings and negotiation sessions. and shall count as time worked.

(B) The Union may designate certain employees within this unit to serve as its
Negotiation Committee, and such employees will be granted administrative leave Negotiation
Committee Time ("NCT") to attend negotiating sessions with the state. An employee serving on
the Negotiation Committee shall also be granted a maximum of eight (8) hours administrative
tea-ve and to attend a negotiation preparatory meeting to be held the calendar day immediately
preceding each scheduled negotiation session, provided that the negotiation preparatory meeting
is held on what would otherwise be the employee's normal workday. Ne An employee shall be
credited with more than the number ofhours in the employee's regular workday for any day the
employee is in negotiations and negotiation preparatory meetings. The total number of hours,
including the hours spent in negotiation preparatory meetings, paid all employees on the Union's
Negotiation Committee shall not exceed one thousand (1000) hours. The time in attendance at
such preparatory meetings and negotiating sessions shall not be counted as hours worked for the
purpose of computing compensatory time or overtime; however. an employee shall not be
required to work additional hours during the work peliod to offset NCT. The agency shall not
reimburse the employee for travel, meals, lodging, or any expense incurred in connection with
attendance at preparatory meetings or negotiating sessions.

(B) No more than two (2) employees shall be selected from the same work unit at any
one time, nor shall the selection of any employee unduly hamper the operations of the work unit.

SECTION 3 -Union Activities

Employees shall have the right to request leave without pay, annual, or compensatory
leave for the purpose of attending Union conventions, conferences, and meetings. When such
requests cannot be granted, the supervisor shall provide such denial in writing.



Teamsters Local 2011 Proposal
12.04.12

Article 23

HOURS OF WORK/OVERTIME

SECTION i-Hours of Work and Overtime

(A) The normal workweek for each full-time employee shall be 40 hours unless the employee
is on an agency-established extended work period. Except for emergency circumstances, the normal
work day for the Department ofCorrections is eight (8) hours, ten (10) hours for its employees
assigned to public or Department ofTransportation work squads, or twelve (12) hours. The parties
agree that the issue of the hours in a normal work day for Department ofCorrections' employees may
be a subject ofnegotiation at any time during the term of this agreement.

(B) Management retains the right to schedule its employees; however, the state will make a
good faith effort, whenever practical, to provide employees with consecutive hours in the workday
and consecutive days in the workweek.

(C) Work beyond the normal workweek shall be recognized in accordance with the
provisions of Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code.

(D) Management retains the right to approve time off for its employees. However, the state
will make a good faith effort, whenever practical, to allow employees to use compensatory leave
credits as requested by the employee. Failure to approve an employee's specific request shall not be
grievable under the provisions ofArticle 6 of this Agreement.

(E) The state agrees that the assignment ofovertime is not to be made on the basis of
favoritism. In any case where an employee has reason to believe that overtime is being assigned on
the basis of favoritism, the employee shall have the right to the grievance procedure under Article 6
herein, to Step 3 ofthe procedure.

(F) The Union agrees to support those changes in Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code
that may be required in order for the state to be in compliance with the Fair Labor Standards Act as it
is applied to public employees.

SECTION 2 -Work Schedules, Vacation and Holiday Schedules

(A) When regular work schedules are changed, employees' normal work schedules, showing
each employee's shift, workdays, and hours, will be posted no less than 14 calendar days in advance,
and will reflect at least a two (2) workweek schedule; however, the state will make a good faith effort
to reflect a one (l) month schedule. In the event an employee's shift, workdays or hours are changed
while the employee is on approved leave, the agency will make a good faith effort to notify the
employee of the change at his home. With prior written notification of at least three (3) workdays to
the employee's immediate supervisor, employees may agree to exchange days or shifts on a
temporary basis. If the immediate supervisor objects to the exchange of workdays or shifts, the
employee initiating the notification shall be advised that the exchange is disapproved.

I



Teamsters Local 2011 Proposal
12.04.12

(B) For shifts, and shift changes the following shall apply:

(I) In the Department ofChildren and Families where practical, shifts, shift changes,
and regular days off shall be scheduled with due regard for the needs of the agency, seniority,
and employee preference. The state and the Union understand that there may be times when
the needs of the agency will not permit such scheduling; however, when an employee's shift
and/or regular days off are changed, the agency will make a good faith effort to keep the
employee on the new shift or regular days off for a minimum of 12 months unless otherwise
requested by the employee.

(2) For the Department ofCorrections, shifts, shift changes, and regular days off shall
be scheduled primarily to meet the needs of the agency, with due regard for employee
seniority, work history, and preference. Management is responsible for the assignment to and
from administrative shift positions. The Department of Corrections, whenever practical, will
try to offset an officer's additional work hours in conjunction with his regular days off.

(C) When an employee is not assigned to a rotating shift and the employee's regular shift
assignment is being changed, the state will schedule the employee to be offwork for a minimum of
two shifts between the end of the previous shift assignment and the beginning of the new shift
assignment.

(D) Where practical, vacation and holiday leave shall be scheduled at least 60 days in
advance of such leave. Time off for vacations and holidays, when the holiday is a regularly
scheduled workday for the employee, will be scheduled with due regard for the needs of the agency,
seniority, and employee preference. In implementing this provision, nothing shall preclude an agency
from making reasonable accommodations for extraordinary leave requests as determined by the
agency, or ensuring the fair distribution ofleave during holidays. For the Department ofCorrections,
annual leave requests and approvals for correctional officers shall be in accordance with procedure
602.030.

(E) Correctional probation officers (excluding community control officers) who carry a
regular caseload may be required to work a maximum of 16 hours per month outside the normal 8
a.m. to 5 p.m., Monday through Friday schedule. The 16 hours may be broken down into no less than
two-hour or more than eight-hour segments. Officers may schedule their field time in the morning,
evening, Saturday or Sunday, or in any combination thereof. Officers may also volunteer to schedule
more than 16 hours of field work in a month. Officers must receive prior approval from their
supervisor before implementing their work schedule.

(F) A complaint concerning this Section may be grieved in accordance with Article 6 ofthis
Agreement up to and including Step 3. The decision of the Step 3 Management Representative shall
be final and binding on all parties.

2



Teamsters Loca12011 Proposal
12.04.12

SECTION 3 - Rest Periods

(A) No supervisor shall unreasonably deny an employee a 15 minute rest period during each
four (4) hour work shift. Whenever possible, such rest periods shall be scheduled at the middle of the
work shift. However, it is recognized that many positions have a post ofduty assignment that
requires coverage for a full eight-hour shift, which would not permit the employee to actually leave
his post. In those cases, it is recognized that the employee can "rest" while the employee physically
remains in the geographic location ofhis duty post.

(B) An employee may not accumulate unused rest periods, nor shall rest periods be
authorized for covering an employee's late arrival on duty or early departure from duty.

SECTION 4 - Court Appearances

If a correctional officer Or institutional security specialist is subpoenaed to appear as a
witness in a job-related court case, not during the employee's regularly assigned shift, the
correctional officer or institutional security specialist shall be granted a minimum of two hours pay at
his straight-time hourly rate. In all other respects, such appearances shall be governed by the
provisions ofRule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code.

SECTION 5 - Non-Required Work Time

Employees shall not be required to volunteer time to the state.

SECTION 6 - Special Compensatory Leave

(A) Earning of Special Compensatory Leave Credits. Special compensatory leave credits may
be earned only in the following instances:

(l) By an employee in the career service for work performed on a holiday as defined
in section 110.117, Florida Statutes, or for work performed during a work period that
includes a holiday, as provided by the Rules of the State Personnel System.

(2) By an employee in the career service for work performed in the employee's
assigned office, facility, or region which is closed pursuant to an Executive Order of the
Governor or any other disaster or emergency condition.

(B) Special Compensatory Leave Earned Prior to July 1, 2012:
(1) Employees with a special compensatory leave balance in excess of240 hours as

of June 30. 2012 will be allowed to use hours above 240 (the "Excess Hours") for a period of
10 years ("Phase-Out Period''). The 10 year period will begin on July I, 2013 and will end
on June 30, 2023. Excess hours not used by June 30, 2023 will be eliminated from the
employee's leave balance and will have no value thereafter. Despite the fact that previous
collective bargaining agreements only pem1itted employees to accumulate a maximum of240
horn's of special compensatory leave credits, certain employees may have earned hours prior
to July 1,2012 in excess of that amount. Nothing in this agreement is intended to address the
validity or invalidity of special compensatory leave credits above 240 hours eamed prior to
July 1,2012.

(2) During the tem1 of this Agreement, if an employee has a special compensatory
leave balance of at least 540 hours, an employee may request, and receive, a one-time payout
ofup to 300 hours payable at a discounted rate of75% of the employee's current rate ofpay.

(3) If a Bargaining Unit employee separates fi'om his employing agency during the
Phase-Out period, the employee will receive compensation for all special compensatory leave
earned before June 30, 2012 at his CUlTent rate ofpay.

(4) An employee may be required to reduce special compensatory leave credit

3



Teamsters Local 2011 Proposal
12.04.12

balances above 240 hours. Where an employee is required to reduce special compensatory
time, the employee shall be provided seven (7) days notice of such leave. Such required leave
shall be scheduled in increments of time equal to the employee's normal hours of work. at-a
miRim\fl11 of eight (8) hour increments if such hours ,we available.

(C) Special Compensatory Leave Earned On or After July 1,2013:
(1) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection (A)(1), on

or after July 1,2012-3, must be "vhich are not used each year by the April 30 or October 31
that immediately succeeds the work period in which the leave is credited, whichever date
occurs earlier., shall be forfeited

(2) Special compensatory leave credits earned, as described in subsection (A)(2), on
or after July 1,2012-3, must be "1'hich are not used within 120 calendar days from the end of
the work period in which the leave is credited shall be forfeited.

(3) Each agency shall schedule employees earning special compensatory leave credits
in a manner that allows all such leave credits earned on or after July 1,2012, to be used
within the time limits specified in subsections 1 and 2. However, if scheduling such leave
within such time limits would prevent the agency from meeting minimum staffing
requirements needed to ensure public safety, the agency head may extend the time limits
specified in subsections 1 and 2 for up to an additional 180 calendar days. Extensions will not
be allowed for any other reason.

(4) If scheduling such leave within the 180 calendar day extension would prevent the
agency from meeting minimum staffing requirements needed to ensure public safety, the
agency must compensate the employee for the leave, at the expiration of the 180 days, at the
employee's current rate of pay.

(4) No agency may make a payout ofunused special compensatory leave eamed on or
after July 1,2012.
(D) Unless othenvise prohibited by la,,1' or lUle, all requests for use of approved leave, other

than administrative leave, shall first be charged to any special compensatory leave credits the
employee has accrued.

SECTION 7 - Compulsory Disability Leave

An agency may require an employee to use earned leave credits to cover the period between
the agency's determination that the employee may be unable to perform assigned duties and the
results of an agency-ordered medical examination. The medical examination shall be in accordance
with the provisions ofRule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code. If the medical examination
confirms that the employee is able to perform assigned duties, any earned leave required to be used
by the employee prior to the results of the medical examination shall be restored. If the employee is
placed in non-pay status due to a lack ofearned leave credits, the employee may be paid as ifhe had
worked; however, requests for such payment shall be considered by the agency on a case-by-case
basis.

4



Teamsters Local 2011 Proposal
12.03.12

Article 25

WAGES

SECTION 1 - Pay Provisions -General

(A) Pay shall be in accordance 'Nith the Fiscal Year 2012 13 General t\ppropriations Act.
(B) Increases to base rate of pay and salary additives shall be in accordance with state law

and the Fiscal Year 2012 13 General Appropriations Act.

Officers who have been employed in a position within their respective agency (i.e. DOC,
DCF) for the duration indicated below shall receive the following wage increase to their base rate of
pay effective July 1, 2013:

0-3 years - 3% increase
4-6 years - 5% increase
7+ years -7% increase

SECTION 2 -Other Pay Provisions

The following provisions shall apply to all appointments of employees to positions allocated
to classifications or broadband levels listed in Appendix A, of the Agreement, regardless of whether
the appointee is a newly hired employee or currently employed in another class series or occupational
level in the State Personnel System. The pay grades and rates of pay shall be determined in
accordance with the Schedule of Salary Ranges of the Career Service Pay Plan. An employee
receiving an original, promotion, reassignment, transfer, or demotion appointment shall have a base
rate ofpay equal to an amount within the pay range, subject to the following:

(A) Initial Appointment

The following shall apply to all employees who are appointed to a position with probationary
status:

(1) Persons appointed to a position prior to being certified by the Criminal Justice
Standards and Training Commission will be employed at a biweekly base rate ofpay at the
established trainee rate 10% below the minimum for the class or broadband level to which
the appointment is made.

(2) Upon being certified by the Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission,
the employee shall be placed at the minimum of the appropriate pay grade for the class or
broadband level to which appointed, effective the date of certification. Appointments above
the minimum may be approved by the Agency Head or designee.

(3) Persons holding a current Certificate ofCompletion for basic recruit training
issued by the Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission at the time of
appointment will have their biweekly base rate ofpay established at the minimum of the pay
grade for the class or broadband level to which the appointment is made.

(4) The probationary period shall be 12 months for any employee appointed to a
position with probationary status.

(5) Time spent as a trainee prior to receiving a Certification ofCompletion shall not
be counted toward completion of the probationary period.

(B) Pay upon Promotion Appointment

When promoted the employee shall receive a minimum of five percent (5%) above the

1



Teamsters Loca12011 Proposal
12.03.12

employee's base rate of pay in the lower class or broadband level, contingent upon funds being
available, or to the minimum of the higher pay grade, whichever is greater at the time of promotion.
An exception to this provision shall be when the employee is demoted and subsequently promoted
back to the former classification or broadband level, or to a classification assigned to the same
broadband level in the Security Services Unit, within the succeeding 12 months, in which case the
employee shall receive the same amount upon increase as was received when demoted. The Agency
Head may, at his discretion, grant the employee up to an additional five percent (5%) at the time of
promotion. In no case shall the employee be paid below the minimum for the class or broadband
level.

(C) Pay upon Demotion Appointment

When demoted the employee's biweekly base rate of pay in the lower class or broadband
level shall be determined in accordance with the following:

(1) If the employee is demoted before satisfactorily completing the probationary
period for the current position, and attaining permanent status, the employee's base rate of
pay in the lower c1asslbroadband level shall be determined in the same manner as an initial
appointment.

(2) If the employee attained permanent status in a bargaining unit position prior to
promotion, and is demoted before satisfactorily completing the probationary period for the
higher classlbroadband level, the employee's base rate ofpay shall be reduced to the amount
the employee was being paid when promoted.

(3) If the employee is demoted after satisfactorily completing the probationary period
for the higher c1asslbroadband level, the employee's base rate ofpay shall be reduced to the
amount the employee was being paid when promoted. The employee's pay in the lower pay
grade shall be at the discretion of the Agency Head or designee. Normally, the employee's
base rate ofpay will be reduced to the same amount the employee was paid when promoted.
However, in no case shall the employee's base rate ofpay in the lower classlbroadband level
exceed the employee's base rate of pay in the higher c1asslbroadband level, nor shall the
employee be placed at an amount within the lower pay grade which is less than the employee
was being paid at the time of the promotion.

SECTION 3 - Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency

In accordance with the authority provided in the Fiscal Year 2012-13 General Appropriations
Act, and contingent upon the availability of funds and at the agency head's discretion, each agency is
authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive ofup to 15 percent of the employee's base
rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a facility or area closed due to emergency
conditions from another area of the state that is not closed.

SECTION 4 - Cash Payout of Annual Leave

Permanent Career Service employees may be given the option of receiving up to 24 hours of
unused annual leave each December, in the form ofa cash payout subject to, and in accordance with,
section 110.219(7), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 5 - Performance Pay

Each agency is authorized to grant merit pay increases based on the employee's exemplary

2



Teamsters Local 2011 Proposal
12.03.12

performance, as evidenced by a performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35, Florida
Administrative Code.

SECTION 6 - Savings Sharing Program

An employee or groups of employees may be eligible for monetary awards for ideas or
programs that result in a cost saving to the state, pursuant to section 110.1245(1), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 7 - Wage Increase "Me Too" Clause

The members of the bargaining unit shall receive all cost ofliving adjustments (COLA) and,
or any other uniformly applied wage increases (i.e. "across the board raises") at the same percentage
level of those offered to other bargaining units of state employees.

3



Teamsters Local 2011 Proposal
12.04.12

Article 26

UNIFORM AND INSIGNIA

SECTION 1 - Uniform and Insignia for Correctional Officers and Institutional Security
Specialists

Correctional officers and institutional security specialists, where applicable, shall receive 8
standard issue ofunifOlTIlS and unifonn accessories. The state shall provide unifornls for its female
correctional officers and institutional security specialists in the appropriate Sizes, designed and cut
for females.

SECTION 2 - Uniform Maintenance Allowance for Correctional Officers and Institutional
Security Specialists

The state will provide unit correctional officers and institutional security specialists who are
furnished and required to wear a unifonn, a maintenance allowance in the amount of $250.00
annually, unless laundry and dry cleaning facilities are available and the service is furnished by the
agency without cost to the employee; in addition, such correctional officers and institutional security
specialists shall receive a shoe allowance in the amount of$75.00 annually.

SECTION 3 - Badges

(A) Correctional officers and correctional probation officers shall be issued badges according
to the following specifications:

(1) Badges issued to correctional officers below the rank of lieutenant shall be silver
metal, black lettering and pre-numbered. These badges shall be worn on the officers'
unifonns in a manner consistent with department policy and procedures.

(2) Badges issued to correctional officers at the rank of lieutenant and above shall be
gold metal, black lettering and pre-numbered. These badges shall be worn on the officers'
unifonns in a manner consistent with department policy and procedures.

(3) Badges issued to correctional probation officers shall be police size. These badges
shall be carried in badge cases and in accordance with department procedure.
(B) Correctional officers are only authorized to wear issued badges with the correctional

officer class "A" or "C" unifonn, and only while perfonning official duties, or while in unifonn and
traveling to or returning from their official duty station.

(C) The use of an issued badge as a credential for personal purposes is prohibited.
(D) Issued badges are considered state property and, except for retirement under specific

conditions or death in the line ofduty, are to be returned upon an employee's termination of
employment with the department or removal from a position in the Security Services Unit. Only
badges, which are issued by the department, shall be used to conduct officially designated duties.
Employees shall be responsible for reimbursing the department for any issued badge which is lost.

(E) Correctional officers and correctional probation officers who retire from the department
under honorable conditions from the Florida Retirement System, including retirement under medical
disability, shall be authorized to retain their issued badge.

(F) The badge ofa correctional officer or a correctional probation officer who is killed in the
line ofduty shall be presented to the employee's next ofkin.

(G) Upon request, correctional officers and correctional probation officers who are promoted
or transferred to other positions may retain their badge ifthey are in good standing with the
department and pay the cost of the badge.

SECTION 4 - Class "A" Uniforms

1



Teamsters Local 2011 Proposal
12.04.12

Employees shall be required to wear Class "A" unifol111S for the following occasions
only: executions, funerals, and cOUli appearances.

2



Teamsters Local 2011 Proposal
12.04.12

Article 27

INSURANCE BENEFITS

The state agrees to administer the State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan in
accordance with any statutory provision or Act affecting the plan or its operation. The CUlTent
General Appropriations Act and, ifproVided, the SummaIy Statement of Intent.



Teamsters Local 2011 Proposal
12.03.12

Article 28

TRAVEL EXPENSES

SECTION 1- Travel Expenses - Institutions - General

With the prior approval of the Agency Head, travel expenses of employees incurred in the
performance of a public purpose authorized by law will be paid in accordance with section 112.061,
Florida Statutes, with the exception of Section 2 below. The state will make a good faith effrnt to pay
travel vouchers within 30 days after they have been properly completed and submitted. Vouchers are
considered submitted when the employee submits them to the local official designated by
management to receive such vouchers.

SECTION 2 - Travel Expenses - Institutions - "Hospital Duty"

All officers required to use their own vehicles for hospital duty, shall be reimbursed at the

CUlTent federal mileage rate, which will be adjusted, as required, in accordance with changes

published in the federal register.

SECTION 3 - Travel Expenses - Community Corrections

All officers who use their own vehicles to conduct field work and/or to attend cOUl1

proceedings and/or training, shall be reimbursed at the CUlTent federal mileage rate, which will be

adjusted, as required, in accordance with changes published in the federal register.



Teamsters Local 2011
Proposal - Article 30

February 4,2013

Article 30
MANDATORY MEETINGS

Management will make a good faith effort to schedule all mandatory meetings during an
employee's scheduled workday and/or abutting an employee's scheduled workday. Ifan
employee is required to attend a meeting that does not occur 1) immediately before or after his
scheduled workday; or 2) during his scheduled workday, the employee will be paid a minimum
of2 hours time.



Teamsters Local 2011 Proposal
12.03.12

Article 32

ENTIRE AGREEMENT
SECTION 1 Agreement

(l..) This Agreement supersedes and cancels all prior practices and agreements, whether
written or oral, unless expressly stated to the contrmy herein, and constitutes the complete and entire
agreement between the parties, and concludes collective bargaining for its teml.

(B) The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which resulted in this
Agreement, each had the unlimited right mld oppOliunity to make demands and proposals '.vith
respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from that area of collective bargaining, and that
the understandings and agreements alTived at by the pmiies after the exercise o[that right and
opportunity are set forth in this Agreement.

(C) Except as to the above subjects, the state and the Union, for the duration of this
Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly v/aives the right, and each agrees that the other shall
not be obligated, to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter refelTed to, or covered
in this Agreement, even though such subjects or matters may not have been within the kno'i'/iedge or
contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated or signed this Agreement.

SECTION,2 - Memorandum of Understandings Settlements

The parties recognize that during the term of this Agreement, situations may arise which
require terms and conditions not specifically and clearly set forth in the Agreement to be clarified or
amended. Under such circumstances, the Union is specifically authorized by employees to enter into
the settlement ofgrievance disputes or memorandums ofunderstanding which clarify or amend this
Agreement without having to be ratified by employees.


	1Cover Letter to Joint Select Committee on CB 021313
	2Overview of Collective Bargaining Units 010413
	3Declaration of Impasse Notification to Speaker of House and Senate President 020513
	4FSFSA state proposals
	FSFSA State Proposal Article 2 - Gender Reference (SQ)
	FSFSA State Proposal Article 3 - Vacant (SQ)
	FSFSA State Proposal Article 4 - No Discrimination (SQ)
	0TSECTION 1 – Non-Discrimination Policy – State-Federal Law
	0TSECTION 2 – Non-Discrimination Policy – SAssociationS UFSFSAU Membership

	FSFSA State Proposal Article 5 - Representation Rights (SQ)
	SECTION 2 – Designation of Employee Representatives
	SECTION 3 – Access

	FSFSA State Proposal Article 6 - Grievance Procedure 020413
	FSFSA State Proposal Article 7 - Disciplinary Action
	FSFSA State Proposal Article 8 - Workforce Reductions (SQ)
	FSFSA State Proposal Article 9 - Voluntary Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station, and Promotions (SQ)
	SECTION 3 – Involuntary Reassignment, Transfer or Change in Duty Station
	SECTION 6 – Grievability


	FSFSA State Proposal Article 10 - Occupation Profiles Rules Maintained Documentation (SQ)
	FSFSA State Proposal Article 11 - Classification Review (SQ)
	FSFSA State Proposal Article 12 - Personnel Records
	FSFSA State Proposal Article 13 - Health and Welfare (SQ)
	FSFSA State Proposal Article 14 - State Vehicles and Vessels (SQ)
	FSFSA State Proposal Article 15 - Probationary Status (SQ)
	FSFSA State Proposal Article 16 - Retirement Proposed as Vacant
	RETIREMENT

	FSFSA State Proposal Article 17 - Allowances and Reimbursements (SQ)
	FSFSA State Proposal Article 18 - Leaves of Absence (SQ)
	0TSECTION 1 - Leaves
	0TSECTION 2 – Association Activities

	FSFSA State Proposal Article 19 - Outside Employment (SQ)
	FSFSA State Proposal Article 20 - Training and Education (SQ)
	0TSECTION 1 – Employee Education

	FSFSA State Proposal Article 21 - Committees (SQ)
	FSFSA State Proposal Article 22 - Personal Property - Replacement and or Reimbursement (SQ)
	FSFSA State Proposal Article 23 - Hours of Work and Overtime (SQ) 013013
	(A)  Earning of Special Compensatory Leave Credits.  0TSpecial compensatory leave credits may be earned only in the following instances:
	0T(C)  Special Compensatory Leave Earned On or After July 1, 2012

	FSFSA State Proposal Article 24 - On-Call Assignment, Call-Back and Residency (SQ)
	FSFSA State Proposal Article 25 - Wages 013013
	Article 25
	WAGES


	FSFSA State Proposal Article 26 - Vacant (SQ)
	FSFSA State Proposal Article 27 - Uniforms (SQ)
	FSFSA State Proposal Article 28 - Vacant (SQ)
	FSFSA State Proposal Article 29 - Vacant (SQ)
	FSFSA State Proposal Article 30 - Vacant (SQ)
	FSFSA State Proposal Article 31 - Management Rights (SQ)
	FSFSA State Proposal Article 32 - Entire Agreement (SQ)
	FSFSA State Proposal Article 33 - Savings Clause (SQ)

	5Letter and Summary from FSFSA Legal Counsel - no proposals 013013
	6FSFSA Costing
	7CB Status Sheet FSFSA articles at impasse 020413
	8AFSCME State Proposal
	AFSCME State Proposal Article 4 - No Discrimination 010813
	AFSCME State Proposal Article 6 - Grievance Procedure 020413 v2
	AFSCME State Proposal Article 13 - Health and Safety 020413
	AFSCME State Proposal Article 18 - Leaves of Absence, Hours of Work, Disability Leave 013013
	SECTION 1 – Leaves
	SECTION 2 – Hours of Work and Overtime
	SECTION 3 – Work Schedules
	SECTION 4 – Rest Periods
	SECTION 5 – Negotiation Committee
	SECTION 6 – Union Activities
	SECTION 7 – Disability Leave

	(A)  Earning of Special Compensatory Leave Credits.  0TSpecial compensatory leave credits may be earned only in the following instances:
	0T(C)  Special Compensatory Leave Earned On or After July 1, 2012


	AFSCME State Proposal Article 25 - Wages 013013
	Article 25
	WAGES



	9Binder1
	AFSCME Union Proposal Article 4 - No Discrimination 012813
	AFSCME Union Proposal Article 6 - Grievance Procedure 012813
	AFSCME Union Proposal Article 13 - Health and Safety 012813
	AFSCME Union Proposal Article 18 - Leaves of Absence, Hours of Work, Disability Leave 012813
	AFSCME Union Proposal Article 25 - Wages 020413

	10AFSCME Cost Estimates of Union's Proposals FY 2013-2014
	Sheet1

	11CB Status Sheet AFSCME articles at impasse 020413
	12 PBA Spec Agent Unit State Proposals
	PBA SAU State Proposal Article 5 - Employee Representation and Association Activities
	PBA SAU State Proposal Article 6 - Grievance Procedure
	0TSECTION 3 – Procedures

	PBA SAU State Proposal Article 7 - Internal Investigations and Disciplinary Action
	0TSECTION 1 – Internal Investigations
	0TSECTION 2 – Disciplinary Action

	PBA SAU State Proposal Article 8 - Workforce Reduction
	0TSECTION 2 – Recall
	0TSECTION 3 – Retirement Benefits
	0TSECTION 4 – Job Security

	PBA SAU State Proposal Article 9 - Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station, Promotion
	0TSECTION 2 – Procedures and Exceptions U– Voluntary Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station
	0TSECTION 3 – Involuntary Reassignment, Transfer or Change in Duty Station
	0TSECTION 4 – Notice
	0TSECTION 5 – Promotion
	0TSECTION 8 – Grievability

	PBA SAU State Proposal Article 14 - Performance Review
	PBA SAU State Proposal Article 15 - Seniority
	PBA SAU State Proposal Article 18 - Leave
	PBA SAU State Proposal Article 21 - Acting Ranks
	PBA SAU State Proposal Article 23 - Workday, Workweek and Overtime (2) 012313
	U(A)  Earning of Special Compensatory Leave Credits.  U0TUSpecial compensatory leave credits may be earned only in the following instances:
	0TU(C)  Special Compensatory Leave Earned On or After July 1, 2013

	PBA SAU State Proposal Article 24 - On-Call, Call-Back and Court Appearances
	0TSECTION S1S 2 – Call-Back

	PBA SAU State Proposal Article 25 - Wages 013013
	Article 25
	WAGES


	PBA SAU State Proposal Article 26 - Equipment and Service Awards
	0TSECTION 1 – Accessories and Equipment

	PBA SAU State Proposal Article 27 - Insurance Benefits
	PBA SAU State Proposal Article 31 - Vacant

	13PBA Special Agent Unit - Fiscal Year 2013-14 Union Proposal 111912
	14CB Status Sheet PBA - SAU articles at impasse 020413
	19PBA LEU State proposals
	State's PBA-LEU Proposal Article 6-Grievance Procedure  012313
	State's PBA-LEU Proposal Article 7-Internal Investigations  012313
	State's PBA-LEU Proposal Article 8-Work Force Reduction  012313
	State's PBA-LEU Proposal Article 9-Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station, and Promotion
	State's PBA-LEU Proposal Article 10-Disciplinary Action  012313
	State's PBA-LEU Proposal Article 14-Performance Review  012313
	State's PBA-LEU Proposal Article 15-Seniority  012313
	State's PBA-LEU Proposal Article 16-Employment Outside State Government  012313
	State's PBA-LEU Proposal Article 18-Hours of Work, Leave and Job-Connected Disability
	State's PBA-LEU Proposal Article 21-Compensation for Temporary Special Duty in Higher Level Position
	State's PBA-LEU Proposal Article 22-Vacant
	State's PBA-LEU Proposal Article 24-On-Call Assignment - Call-Back - Court Appearance
	State's PBA-LEU Proposal Article 25-Wages  013013
	State's PBA-LEU Proposal Article 26-Uniforms and Accessories
	State's PBA-LEU Proposal Article 27-Insurance Benefits
	State's PBA-LEU Proposal Article 31-State Personnel System Rules

	20PBA - Law Enforcement Unit Proposals  111912
	21Costing of PBA-LEU Economic Proposals - FY 2013-2014
	22CB Status Sheet PBA - LEU articles at impasse 020413
	23 PBA FHP Proposal
	State's PBA FHP Proposal Article 6-Grievance Procedure  012313
	State's PBA FHP Proposal Article 7-Internal Investigations  012313
	State's PBA FHP Proposal Article 8-Work Force Reduction  012313
	State's PBA FHP Proposal Article 9-Reassignment, Transfer, .Change in Duty Station, and Promotion  012313
	State's PBA FHP Proposal Article 10-Disciplinary Action  012313
	State's PBA FHP Proposal Article 14-Performance Review  012313
	State's PBA FHP Proposal Article 15-Seniority  012313
	State's PBA FHP Proposal Article 16-Employment Outside State Government 021313
	State's PBA FHP Proposal Article 18-Hours of Work (Spec Comp)  012313
	State's PBA FHP Proposal Article 21-Compensation for Temporary Special Duty in Higher Level Position  012313
	State's PBA FHP Proposal Article 22-Vacant  012313doc
	State's PBA FHP Proposal Article 24-On-Call Assignment - Call-Back - Court Appearances  012313
	State's PBA FHP Proposal Article 25 - Wages  013013
	State's PBA FHP Proposal Article 26-Uniforms and Accessories  012313
	State's PBA FHP Proposal Article 27-Insurance Benefits  012313
	State's PBA FHP Proposal Article 31-State Personnel System Rules  012313

	24 PBA - Florida Highway Patrol Proposals  111912
	25 Costing of PBA-FHP Economic Proposals - FY 2013-2014
	26 CB Status Sheet PBA - FHP articles at impasse 020413
	27 Teamsters Security services unit state proposals
	Teamsters SSU State Proposal Article 4 - No Discrimination 010913
	0TSECTION 1 – Non-Discrimination Policy – State-Federal Law
	0TSECTION 2 – Non-Discrimination Policy – 0TUnion0T Membership

	Teamsters SSU State Proposal Article 5 - Union Activities and Employee Representation 020513
	0TSECTION 1 – Definitions
	(A) The term “employee” as used in this Agreement, shall mean an employee included in the bargaining unit represented by the Union.
	0TSECTION 2 – Designation of Employee Representatives
	0TSECTION 3 – Bulletin Boards

	0TSECTION 4 – Information
	0TSECTION 5 – Occupation Profiles and Rules
	0TSECTION 6 – Representative Access
	0TUSECTION 7 – New Employee Orientation and Training Academies
	0TSECTION S7S 8 – Consultation

	0TSECTION S8S 9 – Negotiations
	The Union agrees that all collective bargaining is to be conducted with state representatives designated for that purpose by the Governor, as Chief Executive Officer. While negotiating meetings shall normally be held in Tallahassee, the state and the ...

	Teamsters SSU State Proposal Article 6 - Grievance Procedure 012513 v2
	0TSECTION 1 – Definitions
	0TSECTION 2 – SElection of Remedy andS Representation
	0TSECTION 3 – Procedures
	0TSECTION 4 – Time Limits
	0TSECTION 5 – Exceptions

	Teamsters SSU State Proposal Article 7 - Discipline and Discharge 012513
	0TSECTION 1 – Disciplinary Action
	0TSECTION 2 – Interrogation during Internal Investigations
	0TSECTION 3 – Employee Copy

	0TSECTION 4 – Notice

	Teamsters SSU State Proposal Article 9 - Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station 010913
	0TSECTION 1 – Definitions as used in this Article:
	0T (G) “Major institution” shall mean in the Department of Corrections, the main facility under the control of one warden, and will include the annexes, work camps, release centers, and other satellite/sister facilities under the authority of that mai...
	0TSECTION 2 – Procedures
	0TSECTION 3 – Involuntary Reassignment, Transfer, or Change in Duty Station
	0TSECTION 5 – Relocation Allowance
	An employee who is reassigned and required by agency policy to relocate his residence shall be granted time off with pay for one (1) workday for this purpose. In addition, the employee shall be granted travel time to the new location based on the most...
	0TSECTION 6 – Grievability
	The provisions of this Article shall not be subject to the grievance procedures of Article 6 of this Agreement; however, an employee complaint concerning improper application of the provisions of Section 2(E), Section 3, and Section 4 may be grieved i...

	Teamsters SSU State Proposal Article 10 - Promotions 020513
	0TSECTION 1 – Definitions
	0TSECTION 2 – Procedures
	0TSECTION 3 – Method of Filling Vacancies
	SECTION 4 – Status
	0T (A) An employee appointed to a position must successfully complete at least a one-year probationary period, and shall attain permanent status in that position upon successful completion of the designated probationary period.
	0T (B) An employee serving a probationary period in a position to which he has received an internal agency promotion may be removed from that promotional position at any time during the probationary period.  If his former position, or a comparable pos...
	0T  (1) If the employee is demoted into their former position or a comparable position, such demotion shall be with permanent status, provided the employee previously attained permanent status in the agency in the lower position.
	0T  (2) The employee’s salary will be reduced in accordance with the agency’s pay upon demotion policy.
	0T  (3) Such demotion shall not be grievable under the contractual grievance procedure.
	0T  (4) Such demotion shall not preclude the agency from seeking to discipline the employee for just cause based upon specific acts of misconduct.
	0TSECTION 5 – Relocation Allowance

	0TSECTION 6 – Grievability

	Teamsters SSU State Proposal Article 13 - Safety 012513
	0TSECTION 1 – Safety Committee
	0TSECTION 2 – Employee Safety
	0TSECTION 3 – Grievability
	0TSECTION 4 – Communicable Diseases

	0TSECTION 5 – Correctional Probation Officer Safety
	Correctional probation officers, upon the approval of their immediate supervisor, shall be provided with the following safety equipment: bulletproof vest, a hand-held radio, or a cellular telephone. An officer may be authorized to carry a firearm whil...
	0TSECTION 6 – Personal Weapons
	(A) The Department of Corrections may, upon written request, provide weapons lockers to employees who are also employed outside the Department as an auxiliary police officer or deputy and are required to carry these weapons to perform their duties.

	Teamsters SSU State Proposal Article 18 - Leaves of Absence 010913
	0TSECTION 1 – Leaves
	0TSECTION 2 – Negotiation Committee
	0TSECTION 3 – 0TUnion0T Activities

	Teamsters SSU State Proposal Article 23 - Hours of Work Overtime 012513
	0TSECTION 1 – Hours of Work and Overtime
	0TSECTION 2 – Work Schedules, Vacation and Holiday Schedules
	0TSECTION 3 – Rest Periods
	0TSECTION 4 – Court Appearances

	0TSECTION 5 – Non-Required Work Time
	0TSECTION 6 – Special Compensatory Leave
	(A)  Earning of Special Compensatory Leave Credits.  0TSpecial compensatory leave credits may be earned only in the following instances:
	0T (C)  Special Compensatory Leave Earned On or After July 1, 2012
	0TSECTION 7 – Compulsory Disability Leave


	Teamsters SSU State Proposal Article 25 - Wages 013013
	Article 25
	WAGES


	Teamsters SSU State Proposal Article 26 - Uniform and Insignia 010913
	0TSECTION 3 – Badges

	Teamsters SSU State Proposal Article 27 - Insurance Benefits 010913
	Teamsters SSU State Proposal Article 28 - Travel Expenses 010913
	Teamsters SSU State Proposal Article 3 - Vacant 010913
	Teamsters SSU State Proposal Article 30 - Vacant 010913
	Teamsters SSU State Proposal Article 32 - Entire Agreement 012513
	0TSECTION 1 – Agreement
	(A) This Agreement supersedes and cancels all prior practices and agreements, whether written or oral, unless expressly stated to the contrary herein, and constitutes the complete and entire agreement between the parties, and concludes collective barg...
	0TSECTION 2 – Memorandum of Understanding/Settlements
	The parties recognize that during the term of this Agreement, situations may arise which require terms and conditions not specifically and clearly set forth in the Agreement to be clarified or amended.  Under such circumstances, the Union is specifica...


	28 Teamsters Union Proposals
	Union Proposal Teamsters SSU - Article 3 - Dues Deduction 120312
	Union Proposal Teamsters SSU - Article 4 - No Discrimination 020413
	Union Proposal Teamsters SSU - Article 5 - Union Activities and Employee Representation 020413
	Union Proposal Teamsters SSU - Article 6 - Grievance Procedure 020413
	Union Proposal Teamsters SSU - Article 7 - Discipline and Discharge 020413
	Union Proposal Teamsters SSU - Article 9 - Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station 020513
	Union Proposal Teamsters SSU - Article 10 - Promotions 020413
	Union Proposal Teamsters SSU - Article 13 - Safety 020413
	Union Proposal Teamsters SSU - Article 18 - Leaves of Absence 020413
	Union Proposal Teamsters SSU - Article 23 - Hours of Work Overtime 120412
	Union Proposal Teamsters SSU - Article 25 - Wages 120312
	Union Proposal Teamsters SSU - Article 26 - Uniform and Insignia 120312
	Union Proposal Teamsters SSU - Article 27 - Insurance Benefits 120412
	Union Proposal Teamsters SSU - Article 28 - Travel Expenses 120312
	Union Proposal Teamsters SSU - Article 32 - Entire Agreement 120312

	29 Teamsters SSU Cost Estimates of Union's Economic Proposals FY 2013-2014
	Sheet1

	30 CB Status Sheet Teamsters SSU articles at impasse 020513
	31 FPD SES state proposals
	State's SES FPD Proposal Article 2     012413
	State's SES FPD Proposal Article 3      012413
	State's SES FPD Proposal Article 4     012413
	State's SES FPD Proposal Article 5      012413
	State's SES FPD Proposal Article 6      012413
	State's SES FPD Proposal Article 7      012413
	State's SES FPD Proposal Article 8     012413
	State's SES FPD Proposal Article 9      012413
	State's SES FPD Proposal Article 10    012413
	State's SES FPD Proposal Article 11    012413
	State's SES FPD Proposal Article 12    012413
	State's SES FPD Proposal Article 13    012413
	State's SES FPD Proposal Article 14    012413
	State's SES FPD Proposal Article 15    012413
	State's SES FPD Proposal Article 16    012413
	State's SES FPD Proposal Article 17    012413
	State's SES FPD Proposal Article 18   013013
	State's SES FPD Proposal Article 19    012413
	State's SES FPD Proposal Article 20    012413
	SECTION 1 – Allowable Expenses
	SECTION 2 – Exceptions

	State's SES FPD Proposal Article 21    012413
	State's SES FPD Proposal Article 22    012413
	State's SES FPD Proposal Article 23    012413
	State's SES FPD Proposal Article 24    012413
	State's SES FPD Proposal Article 25    012413

	32 SES Physicians Unit - Union Proposals
	33 CB Status Sheet FPD - SES Physicians articles at impasse 013013
	34 FPD SES supervisory non profesional unit state proposals
	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 2  012413 
	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 3   012413 
	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 4   012413 
	NO DISCRIMINATION

	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 5   012413 
	Article 5
	SECTION 2 – Union Seminars and Conventions


	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 6   012413
	Article 6

	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 7  012413 
	SECTION 1 - Employee Representation Right
	SECTION 2 - Employee Election
	SECTION 3 - State Denial of Representation
	SECTION 4 - Standards of Conduct

	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 8   012413 
	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 9   012413 
	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 10   012413 
	Article 10

	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 11   012413 
	CLASSIFICATION AND PAY PLAN

	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 12   012413 
	Article 12

	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 13   012413 
	Article 13

	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 14   012413 
	Article 14
	REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS

	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 15   012413 
	Article 15

	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 16   012413 
	Article 16

	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 17   012413 
	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 18   012413 
	Article 18
	HOURS OF WORK/OVERTIME & LEAVES OF ABSENCE

	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 19   012413 
	Article 19
	HOLIDAYS

	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 20   012413 
	SECTION 1 - Employee Training
	SECTION 3 - Educational Assistance Plan
	SECTION 4 – Grievability

	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 21   012413 
	Article 21
	TRAVEL EXPENSES
	SECTION 1 – Allowable Expenses
	SECTION 2 – Exceptions


	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 22   012413
	Article 22
	REPLACEMENT OF PERSONAL PROPERTY

	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 23   012413 
	Article 23

	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 24   012413 
	Article 24

	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 25   013013
	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 26   012413 
	Article 26
	PRINTING OF THE AGREEMENT

	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 27   012413 
	Article 27

	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 28   012413 
	Article 28
	MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 29   012413 
	ENTIRE AGREEMENT

	State's SES SNPU Proposal Article 30   012413 
	Article 30


	35 SES SNPU Bargaining Unit - Union Proposals
	36CB Status Sheet FPD - SNPU articles at impasse 013013
	37 SEAG-SES Attorneys Unit-state proposals
	State's SES SEAG Proposal Article 2  012413
	State's SES SEAG Proposal Article 3  012413
	State's SES SEAG Proposal Article 4  012413
	State's SES SEAG Proposal Article 5  012413
	State's SES SEAG Proposal Article 6  012413
	State's SES SEAG Proposal Article 7  012413
	State's SES SEAG Proposal Article 8  012413
	State's SES SEAG Proposal Article 9  012413
	State's SES SEAG Proposal Article 10  012413
	State's SES SEAG Proposal Article 11  012413
	State's SES SEAG Proposal Article 12  012413
	State's SES SEAG Proposal Article 13  012413
	State's SES SEAG Proposal Article 14  012413
	State's SES SEAG Proposal Article 15  012413
	State's SES SEAG Proposal Article 16  012413
	State's SES SEAG Proposal Article 17  012413
	State's SES SEAG Proposal Article 18  013013
	State's SES SEAG Proposal Article 19  012413
	State's SES SEAG Proposal Article 20  012413
	SECTION 1 – Allowable Expenses
	SECTION 2 – Exceptions

	State's SES SEAG Proposal Article 21  012413
	State's SES SEAG Proposal Article 22  012413
	State's SES SEAG Proposal Article 23  012413
	State's SES SEAG Proposal Article 24  012413
	State's SES SEAG Proposal Article 25 012413

	38 SES Attorneys Unit - Union Proposals
	39 CB Status Sheet SEAG articles at impasse 013013



